The Complete Deliverance Manual

by Gene Moody

THE COMPLETE DELIVERANCE MANUAL

By Gene Moody

DELIVERANCE MINISTRIES GENE B. MOODY 14930 JEFFERSON HIGHWAY BATON ROUGE, LA 70817-5217 www.GeneMoody.com

> Telephone: (225) 755-8870 Fax: (225) 755-6120

NOT COPYRIGHTED This manual is not copyrighted. I encourage you to make copies and distribute them for the Glory of God. You may freely use the lessons as GOD directs you!

Formatting, editing, cover, toc, tables and numbering provided by SpiritualWarfareSchool.com

THE COMPLETE DELIVERANCE MANUAL

TABLE OF CONTENTS – OVERVIEW OF TOPICS

SECTION 1 - BATTLE	1
SECTION 2 - BASIC DELIVERANCE AND SCHIZOPHRENIA	
SECTION 3 - CLEANING HOUSE AND MAINTAINING DELIVERANCE	
SECTION 4 – MIND	109
SECTION 5 – CURSES	171
SECTION 6 - THE CURSE OF THE BASTARD	198
SECTION 7 - SATAN, OCCULT AND RELIGIONS	
SECTION 8 - HOLIDAYS AND PUPPETRY	
SECTION 9 - SCRIPTURAL STUDIES	
SECTION 10 - SELECTED TOPIC STUDIES	
SECTION 11 - FAMILY	
SECTION 12 - WOMAN'S VIEWPOINT	
SECTION 13 - TESTIMONY AND FAMILY DELIVERANCE	
SECTION 14 - HEALING AND BODY	401
SECTION 15 - SEX	
SECTION 16 – MASS DELIVERANCE MANUAL	468
SECTION 17 – HOW TO DO DELIVERANCE	535
SECTION 18 - SUPPLEMENT TO DELIVERANCE MANUAL	578

THE COMPLETE DELIVERANCE MANUAL

TABLE OF CONTENTS – DETAILED

SECTION 1 - BATTLE	1
1. CAN A CHRISTIAN HAVE A DEMON?	1
LIST OF SCRIPTURE	1
GENERAL	2
WARNING SIGNALS - POSSIBLE NEED FOR DELIVERANCE	
HOW CAN A CHRISTIAN HAVE DEMONS?	4
RESULTS WHEN DEMONIZATION OF CHRISTIANS IS DENIED	
RESULTS WHEN CHILDREN DON'T RECEIVE DELIVERANCE	
WHO IS A BELIEVER?	
WHAT ABOUT DEMONS IN CHRISTIANS ?	
PRAYER	10
LIST OF DEMONS	10
REFERENCES	10
2. JESUS CAST OUT DEMONS EVERY WHERE HE WENT	11
LIST OF SCRIPTURES	11
GENERAL	11
MASS DELIVERANCE IN THE CHURCH BY JESUS	12
THE HOLY BIBLE COMMANDS US TO CAST OUT DEMONS	12
SUMMARY	12
3. THE DELIVERANCE MINISTER	13
GENERAL	13
EXORCISM	13
ORDINARY CHRISTIANS	13
DELIVERANCE MINISTER	13
General	13
Comparison With Jesus	14
Preparation For The Ministry	14
Some Advice	15
REFERENCES	
4. KEYS TO SUCCESSFUL DELIVERANCE	
PREFACE	
LEGAL RIGHTS OF DEMONS	
LAKE HAMILTON BIBLE CAMP	
TYPES OF DELIVERANCE	16
HOME MINISTRY	
SIX BASIC STEPS TO YOUR DELIVERANCE	17
SUMMARY	17

5. ON WITH THE BATTLE	
GENERAL	
COMMAND AND TAKE CHARGE DAILY	
CAUSING THE WAR IN HEAVEN	
THE BATTLE TODAY	
REFERENCES	
6. COMMENTS ON DELIVERANCE	
PREFACE	
LEARN ABOUT THE REAL ENEMY	
ON WITH THE BATTLE	
OVERALL VIEW OF DELIVERANCE	
7. LIVING THE WHOLE CHRISTIAN LIFE	
PREFACE	
GENERAL	
MENTAL	
PHYSICAL	
SPIRITUAL	
MATERIAL	
SALVATION, BAPTISM IN HOLY SPIRIT, AND DELIVERANCE	
SPIRIT, SOUL AND BODY	
GOD, FAMILY AND OCCUPATION	
SHORTCUTS TO THE CHRISTIAN LIFE	
BATTLE AGAINST EVIL	
CHARISMATIC WITCHCRAFT	
PROMISES IN THE BIBLE	
BLESSINGS AND CURSES	
SIN IN YOUR LIFE	
DEMONS AND CURSES IN YOUR LIFE	
SATAN'S MASTER PLAN TO DESTROY THE HUMAN RACE	
REJECTION, BITTERNESS, REBELLION AND UNFORGIVENESS	
CONSCIOUS AND SUBCONSCIOUS MIND	
CLEANING YOUR HOME AND YOUR PERSON	
MASS & INDIVIDUAL DELIVERANCE, TEACHING & COUNSELING	
MAINTAINING DELIVERANCE AND CHRISTIANITY	
DISCIPLINE FOR MIND AND BODY	
LEARN ABOUT THE REAL ENEMY	
DEALING WITH THE REALITY OF LIFE	
DIVINE HEALING AND DIVINE HEALTH	
BODY AND MIND DELIVERED AND HEALED	
DELIVERANCE FOR MIND AND BODY	
PSYCHIATRISTS, PSYCHOLOGISTS AND MENTAL INSTITUTIONS	
INFIRMITY, WEAKNESS, SICKNESS AND DISEASE	
FAMILY	
8. CHRISTIAN FANTASY - LIES NOT TRUTH	

PREFACE	
DEFINITIONS	
TRUTH	
LIES	
CHRISTIAN FABLES AND CLICHES	
DELIVERANCE MYTHS	
PROPHECY MYTHS	
BATTLE MYTHS	
GENERAL MYTHS	
TRADITION NOT COVERED	
PRAYER	
LIST OF DEMONS	
9. DAILY PRAYERS	
PREFACE	
PRAYER OF THANKSGIVING	
PRAYER AT THE BREAKFAST TABLE	
PRAYER FOR THE DAY	
PRAYER IN A RESTAURANT	
PRAYERS DURING THE DAY OR NIGHT	
10. WARRIORS FOR CHRIST	
SCRIPTURE	
PREFACE	
KEYS TO SUCCESS	
WHY DID JESUS COME TO EARTH?	
DID GOD GIVE US COMPLETE AUTHORIT	Y OVER THE ENEMY?
DOES GOD WORK THROUGH US?	
WHAT ARE WE SUPPOSED TO DO?	
WHAT ABOUT THOSE WHO WILL NOT FIG	GHT THE LORD'S BATTLES?
DO WE FIGHT AGAINST PEOPLE?	
WHO ARE OUR HUMAN AND SPIRITUAL I	ENEMIES?
HOW DID DAVID PRAY IN THE BOOK OF	PSALMS?
WHAT IS SPIRITUAL WARFARE?	
WHAT ABOUT CURSES?	
LIST OF DEMONS	

SECTION 2 - BASIC DELIVERANCE AND SCHIZOPH	IRENIA . 42
1. SINS OF OUR ANCESTORS, OURSELVES AND OTHERS	
WHAT IS SIN AND THE STANDARD AGAINST SIN?	
WHO DO WE COMMIT SIN AGAINST?	
HOW DO WE SIN AGAINST GOD?	
HOW DO WE SIN AGAINST OTHERS?	
HOW DO WE SIN AGAINST OURSELVES?	
HOW DO WE SIN AGAINST OUR DESCENDENTS?	

WHO FORGIVES SINS?	42
WHO CONFESSES SINS?	43
WHAT DO WE DO AFTER OUR SINS ARE FORGIVEN?	43
2. REJECTION, BITTERNESS, REBELLION AND UNFORGIVENESS	43
GENERAL	
REJECTION (OPPOSITE IS LOVE)	43
BITTERNESS (OPPOSITE IS FORGIVENESS)	43
REBELLION (OPPOSITE IS OBEDIENCE)	
UNFORGIVENESS (OPPOSITE IS FORGIVENESS)	44
3. HOW TO MINISTER BASIC DELIVERANCE	45
REASON FOR LEARNING	45
GENERAL	
STEPS TO MINISTER DELIVERANCE	
A. STEPS FOR BASIC DELIVERANCE FOR AN INDIVIDUAL	47
B. STEPS FOR SINS OF ANCESTORS FOR AN INDIVIDUAL	
C. STEPS FOR BASIC DELIVERANCE AND/OR SINS OF ANCESTORS	
D. STEPS FOR BASIC DELIVERANCE/SINS OF ANCESTORS	47
E. VARIATIONS	
HOW TO LEARN ABOUT DELIVERANCE	
PRACTICAL DELIVERANCE BOOKS	48
DELIVERANCE PRAYERS	
Short Prayer	
Prayers by Gene Moody	
Sins of Ancestors, Curses, Soul Ties, and Fragmented Soul	
COMMON DEMON GROUPINGS (FROM PIGS IN THE PARLOR)	
REJECTION	
LIST OF SCRIPTURE	
THE ROOTS OF REJECTION	
REJECTION, WITCHCRAFT CONTROL, AND UGLINESS	
SCHIZOPHRENIA	56
REFERENCES	
BITTERNESS	
LIST OF SCRIPTURE	57
GENERAL	
REFERENCES	
REBELLION	
LIST OF SCRIPTURE	
GENERAL	
STUDY OF REBELLION	
DISOBEDIENCE TO GOD SCRIPTURE	
HELPFUL SCRIPTURE AND BIBLE STORIES OF REBELLION	
NELSON'S EXPOSITORY DICTIONARY OF THE OLD TESTAMENT	
EVE REBELS (The Original Rebellion of Man)	
ABSALOM REBELS	60

JEZEBEL REBELS	61
AHAB REBELS	
CLASSIC EXAMPLES OF REBELLION	61
JEZEBEL-AHAB REBELLIOUS INFLUENCE IN WORLD TODAY	61
YOU AND PEOPLE AROUND YOU	62
SUMMARY	62
UNFORGIVENESS	63
LIST OF SCRIPTURE	63
ANALYSIS OF MATTHEW 5:44	63
GENERAL	
UNFORGIVENESS	63
FORGIVENESS	64
REFERENCES	65
HATE, VENGEANCE, ENVY, STRIFE, AND LOVE	65
HATE (Opposite is Love)	65
LIST OF SCRIPTURES	
VENGEANCE (OPPOSITE IS TO LET GOD REPAY YOUR ENEMIES)	66
VENGEANCE SCRIPTURES	67
List of Scriptures	67
ENVY AND STRIFE (Opposite is Peace and not Coveting)	67
List of Scriptures	67
Envy	67
Strife	68
LOVE	68
PRAYER	68
LIST OF ENVY AND STRIFE DEMONS OR CHARACTERISTICS	68
REFERENCES	70
DELIVERANCE PRAYERS	
GENERAL	70
SHORT PRAYER	70
MEDIUM PRAYER	71
LONG PRAYER - Warfare Prayer	
GENERAL CONFESSION AND PRAYER	72
FORGIVENESS PRAYER	
OCCULT CONFESSION PRAYER	
LOOSING FROM DOMINATION PRAYER	
PSYCHIC HEREDITY AND BONDAGE PRAYER	
LOOSING OF CURSES, SPELLS, ETC. PRAYER	72
COME TO JESUS DELIVERER PRAYER	
DEREK PRINCE'S BLOOD OF JESUS PRAYER	73
PRIDE	73
SOUL TIES	
THE PRAYERS OF GENE MOODY	
FRAGMENTED SOUL, AND SUBCONSCIOUS MIND AS FOLLOWS:	73

READING SCRIPTURE TO DEMONS	74
GENERAL VERSES FOR SPIRITUAL WARFARE	74
Hate	75
Pride	75
Self Pity	75
Fear	75
Fear of Man	75
Rebellion	75
Lust	75
Unbelief	75
Rejection	76
PASSAGES TO STUDY ON RELATED SUBJECTS	76
IF THE DEMONS DO NOT LEAVE	76
USING A THESAURUS IN DELIVERANCE	76
Editorial, Able To Cast Out Schizophrenia?	77
SCHIZOPHRENIA	77
GENERAL	77
SCHIZOPHRENIA	
THE SCHIZOPHRENIC REVELATION (BY IDA MAE HAMMOND)	80
EARLINE'S TESTIMONY ABOUT SCHIZOPHRENIA DELIVERANCE	83
LIST OF DEMONS	83
Walking Out Deliverance	85
REFERENCES	86

SECTION 3 - CLEANING HOUSE AND MAINTAINING

DELIVERANCE	
LIST OF SCRIPTURES	87
SHOULD HOUSES BE CLEANSED OF EVIL SPIRITS?	87
NOTES ON WITCHCRAFT, SYMBOLS AND ACCURSED OBJECTS	88
A WORD ABOUT INCENSE	88
DOLLS	88
DOLLS IN TOLEDO, OHIO - 1980	89
BABY - SEVEN MONTHS OLD	89
TO EXORCISE INANIMATE OBJECTS	89
SYMBOLS	
CURSED OBJECTS AND DEMON INFESTATION	
FIVE STEPS TO CLEANING HOUSE	91
REFERENCES	91
MAINTAINING YOUR DELIVERANCE FROM EVIL SPIRITS	
SEVEN WAYS TO DETERMINE THE NEED FOR DELIVERANCE	
SEVEN STEPS TO DELIVERANCE	
SEVEN STEPS FOR RETAINING DELIVERANCE	
HOW TO KEEP FREE FROM OPPRESSING SPIRITS	

HOLDING YOUR DELIVERANCE	94
WALKING IN FREEDOM AFTER DELIVERANCE	
TESTIMONIES OF CHRISTIANS ABOUT MAINTAINING DELIVERANCE	95
BY THIS I OVERCOME THE DEVIL	
TAKE HEAVEN BY FORCE	96
ADDITIONAL GOOD FIGHTING VERSES	96
HOW TO TREAT DEMONS	
STUDY OF THE BLOOD OF JESUS	
CURSING DEMONS AND INFIRMITIES	97
SCRIPTURES BRINGING ASSURANCE,	97
NAMES OF DEMONS	98
EARLINE'S TESTIMONY ABOUT MAINTAINING DELIVERANCE	
PURPOSE OF DELIVERANCE	98
BACKGROUND	99
MAIN TESTIMONY ABOUT DELIVERANCE	99
TESTIMONY ABOUT OVEREATING	102
TESTIMONY ABOUT DELIVERANCE FROM INDIAN CURSES	103
TESTIMONY ABOUT SCHIZOPHRENIA	103
TESTIMONY ABOUT MAINTAINING DELIVERANCE	104

100
109
109
110
110
111
111
113
122
122
123
123
125
126
127

WHAT IS THE SOUL?	128
HOW IS IT FRAGMENTED AND REMOVED?	128
WHY DOES SATAN WANT TO FRAGMENT A YOUTH?	
HOW TO DEAL WITH THE RETARDED, INSANE AND SENILE	128
PROTECTING YOUR MIND	129
LIST OF DEMONS	129
General	129
OCCULT (PARTIAL LIST)	
REFERENCES	
4. DELIVERANCE FOR THE SUBCONSCIOUS MIND (Abused child)	130
DEFINITIONS	
EARLINE'S TESTIMONY	
TEACHING	
DELIVERANCE	133
LIST OF DEMONS	133
5. DELIVERANCE FROM GRIEF AND BITTERNESS	
SCRIPTURE	
GENERAL	
FAMILY REACTIONS	
GENE'S TESTIMONY	
EARLINE'S TESTIMONY	
DEFINITIONS	
INSTRUCTIONS	
HOW DID WE GET OUT OF THIS MESS?	
IF YOU ARE IN THE GRIP OF GRIEF AND BITTERNESS	
CALL OUT ALL EVIL SPIRITS FROM YOURSELF AND FAMILY	
CONTINUE TO BREAK OLD HABITS AND OBEY GOD	
RESULTS	
LET'S GET STARTED	
LIST OF DEMONS	
6. THE NEUROTIC PERSONALITY (PSYCHONEUROSIS)	
GENERAL	
TRAUMA	
DEFINITIONS	
LIST OF NEUROTIC PERSONALITY DEMONS AND CHARACTERISTICS	
7. THE DELINQUENT PERSONALITIES (PSYCHOPSYCHOSIS)	
GENERAL	
ORGANIC PSYCHOSIS	
PSYCHOTIC BEHAVIOR	
8. THE PATHOLOGIC PERSONALITY (PSYCHOPATHIC)	
DEFINITIONS	
RESTORATION	
LIST OF PATHOLOGIC DEMONS AND CHARACTERISTICS	
9. AN ATTITUDE OF GRATITUDE, A SURE CURE FOR DEPRESSION	

LIST OF SCRIPTURES	157
WALLS BETWEEN PEOPLE	
HOW DO YOU KEEP DEMONS OUT?	
GENERAL	
LIST OF DEMONS	
10. HOW TO BE MISERABLE	
GENERAL	
NAMES OF DEMONS BEGINNING WITH "SELF"	
11. THE ART OF SELFISHNESS	
SCRIPTURE REFERENCES	
GENERAL	
BIBLICAL PRINCIPLES	
LIST OF DEMONS	

SECTION 5 – CURSES	
1. BIBLICAL CURSES	
LIST OF SCRIPTURE	
HOW DID WE LEARN ABOUT CURSES?	
INDIAN CURSES IN EARLINE'S LIFE	171
HOW DO CURSES TAKE EFFECT?	172
SCRIPTURE ABOUT THE CURSE OF THE BASTARD AND INCEST	172
OBSERVATIONS ABOUT BASTARDS	
THE CURSE OF THE BASTARD IN EARLINE'S LIFE	
HOW ARE CURSES IDENTIFIED?	
AHAB / JEZEBEL CURSES FOUND IN THE BIBLE	
AHAB/JEZEBEL REBELLIOUS INFLUENCE IN THE WORLD	
GENE'S AHAB CHARACTERISTICS	
HOW ARE CURSES RECOGNIZED THAT COME FROM ANCESTORS?	174
BLESSINGS AND CURSES	
EARLINE'S ANCESTRAL BACKGROUND	
HOW ARE CURSES BROKEN?	
WHAT IS DONE AFTER THE CURSE IS BROKEN?	
RESULTS OF BREAKING CURSES	
STEPS TO FREEDOM FROM CURSES	
CURSED OBJECTS ON YOU AND IN YOUR HOME	
FIVE STEPS TO CLEANING HOUSE OF CURSED OBJECTS	
SUMMARY	
BLESSINGS, CURSES AND DURATION	
BIBLICAL CURSES	
CURSES ON CHILDREN	
A CURSE AGAINST PROTESTANTS	
CURSES	
VOWS AND CURSES	

HEX SIGNS	
SYMBOLS OF HEX SIGNS	
BREAKING CURSES	
DEMONS SENT BY BIBLICAL CURSES	
REFERENCES	
2. INDIAN CURSES	
LIST OF SCRIPTURES	
Men that give wicked counsel	
Unfruitful works of darkness	
INDIAN CURSES IN MY LIFE (EARLINE'S TESTIMONY)	
INDIAN CURSES	
DELIVERANCE OF AN EAGLE SCOUT	
SPIRITS	
REFERENCES	190
3. THE CURSE OF AHAB AND JEZEBEL	
BOOKLETS	191
CURSES FOUND IN THE BIBLE	
TESTIMONIES ABOUT AHAB AND JEZEBEL	191
AHAB/JEZEBEL	
EFFECT ON CHILDREN OF AHAB/JEZEBEL	
YOU AND PEOPLE AROUND YOU	
CURSE OF AHAB - SCRIPTURE EXPLANATION	
AHAB CHARACTERISTICS	
JEZEBEL REBELS	
GENE'S AHAB CHARACTERISTICS	
AHAB REBELS	
ELIJAH DESTROYS BAAL'S PROPHETS (I KINGS 18:17-40)	
LIST OF SCRIPTURE ABOUT AHAB, JEZEBEL AND OTHERS	
SECTION 6 - THE CURSE OF THE BASTARD	198
SCRIPTURE	
KING DAVID	
GENERAL	
EXAMPLES	
EARLINE'S STORY	
Youth and Adults	
ABNORMAL SEXUAL ACTIVITIES IN PAGAN WORSHIP	
REPENTANCE AND FORGIVENESS	
SINS OF THE ANCESTORS	
LIST OF SEXUAL DEMONS	
CECTION 7 CATAN OCCULT AND DELICIONS	•••
SECTION 7 - SATAN, OCCULT AND RELIGIONS	
CONTENTS	

1	. LEARN ABOUT THE REAL ENEMY SATAN AND HIS FOLLOWERS	
	LIST OF SCRIPTURE TO READ BEFORE OR DURING DELIVERANCE	
	SCRIPTURE ABOUT SATAN AND HIS FOLLOWERS	
	FROM THE GARDEN OR EDEN TO THE FLOOD	
	FROM THE FLOOD TO THE EXODUS	
	FROM THE EXODUS TO THE DEATH OF SAUL	
	DURING THE REIGN OF DAVID AND THE DIVIDED KINGDOM	
	TEACHING ON DEMONOLOGY IN THE PROPHETIC BOOKS	
	DANIEL'S DESCRIPTION OF THE ANTICHRIST'S KINGDOM	
	DEMONOLOGY IN THE OLD TESTAMENT	
	SOME DEMONS NAMED IN THE OLD TESTAMENT	
	EVIL SUPERNATURALISM AS PRACTICED IN THE OLD TESTAMENT	
	SATAN'S DIRECT ATTACKS AGAINST THE LORD JESUS CHRIST	
	SATAN POSSESSES JUDAS AND DESIRES TO HAVE PETER	
	JESUS AND JOHN WERE ACCUSED OF HAVING A DEMON	
	SOME PEOPLE ARE DESCRIBED AS CHILDREN OF THE DEVIL	
	SPECIFIC ACCOUNTS OF DEMONIC DELIVERANCE	
	THE AUTHORITY OF JESUS CHRIST OVER DEMONS	
	INSTRUCTIONS CONCERNING THE CASTING OUT OF DEMONS	
	TEACHINGS CONCERNING SATAN AND HIS FOLLOWERS	
	STATEMENTS REGARDING SATAN AND HIS FOLLOWERS	
	THE NAMES AND TITLES OF SATAN IN THE BIBLE	
	SATAN'S ATTACKS AGAINST PAUL AND PAUL'S AUTHORITY	
	SATAN'S ATTACKS AGAINST CERTAIN GROUPS OF PEOPLE	
	SATAN USES PEOPLE AND DEMONS FOR HIS EVIL PURPOSES	
	SATAN'S CONTROL AND RULE OVER THE WORLD AND AGE	
	BELIEVERS ARE WARNED ABOUT SATAN'S WORLD SYSTEM	
	DARKNESS AND LIGHT· AN IMPORTANT RELATED SUBJECT	
	DELIVERANCE FROM SPIRITUAL BONDAGE	
	JESUS CHRIST HAS MADE VICTORY OVER SATAN POSSIBLE	
	HOW BELIEVERS CAN ENJOY VICTORY OVER SATAN	
	VARIOUS TYPES OF SPIRITS MENTIONED IN PAUL'S LETTERS	
	MISCELLANEOUS ADDITIONAL TEACHING ON DEMONOLOGY	
	PROPHETIC TEACHING ON DEMONOLOGY AND THE ANTI-CHRIST	
	THE RISE OF SATAN'S TRINITY IN THE LAST YEARS OF THIS AGE	
	THE FINAL, ULTIMATE DEFEAT OF SATAN AND HIS FOLLOWERS	
	GENERAL	
	SATAN, FALLEN ANGELS AND DEMONS	
	DEMONS	
	THE CHAIN OF COMMAND IN THE DEMONIC REALM	
	THE SATANIC COSMOS	
	THE BATTLE TODAY	
	NAMES OF SATAN AND HIS DEMONS	
	Unbelief	

2.	FORBIDDEN PRACTICES OF THE OCCULT	. 215
	LIST OF SCRIPTURE	. 215
	GENERAL	. 216
	Definitions With Scripture	. 216
	Short Definitions	. 217
	Spiritual Adultery and Death	. 217
	WARNING AGAINST CONTACT WITH THE OCCULT.	. 217
	TYPES OF OCCULTISM	. 218
	Magic Practices and Spiritism (Deut 18:9-12):	. 218
	SPIRITUAL ADULTERY	. 218
	PRAYERS FOR BREAKING WITCHCRAFT CONTROL AND CURSES	. 219
	LIST OF DEMONS, FORBIDDEN PRACTICES IN THE BIBLE	. 221
	Sacrificed to Devils	. 221
	Doctrines of Devils	. 221
	Clairaudience	. 221
	Magic Practices and Spiritism	. 221
	Occult In General	
3.	WINNING OVER WITCHCRAFT	. 222
	WHY THIS STUDY?	. 222
	WHAT IS WITCHCRAFT ?	. 222
	UNDERGROUND WITCHCRAFT AND OBVIOUS WITCHCRAFT	. 225
	LIST OF DEMONS	. 229
	CULTS	. 230
	REFERENCES	. 231
4.	SPIRITS OF RELIGIOUS ERROR	. 231
	DELIVERANCE SCRIPTURE	. 231
	MARKS OF CULTIC GROUPS	. 231
	IS KARATE FOR CHRISTIANS?	. 232
	A WORD ABOUT INCENSE	. 232
	DEMONIC RELIGIOUS CULTS FOR THE YOUNG	. 232
	MARKS OF CULTISM	. 233
	RELIGIOUS DECEPTION	. 233
	MARKS OF COUNTERFEIT GROUPS	. 234
	LIST OF DEMONS	. 234
	General	. 234
	Religious Cults	. 235
	Martial Arts	. 235
	False Religions	. 235
	Catholic Spirits	. 236
	Religious Works Spirits	. 236
	REFERENCES	. 237
	BOOKS ABOUT RELIGIONS	. 237
	5. CATHOLIC SPIRITS	. 237
	OTHER NAMES OF DEMONS	

CLOSING DELIVERANCE PRAYER	
REFERENCES	
6. CHARISMATIC WITCHCRAFT	
GENERAL	
MINISTRY AND LIST OF DEMONS	
7. PSYCHIC PRAYERS	
SCRIPTURE	
TESTIMONY	
HUMANISM	
Humanist Manifesto I	
Manifesto II	
Religion	
Ethics	
The Individual	
Democratic Society	
World Community	
SUMMARY	
PRAYERS	
LIST OF DEMONS	
REFERENCES	

CONTENTS	
1. HOLIDAYS	
SCRIPTURE ABOUT IDOL WORSHIP	
SCRIPTURE ABOUT SO-CALLED CHRISTIAN HOLIDAYS	
APPARENTLY HARMLESS HOLIDAYS	
NEW YEAR'S DAY (Encyclopedia Britannica)	
ST. VALENTINE'S DAY (World Book Encyclopedia & The Two Babylons)	
ST. PATRICK'S DAY (Webster's Dictionary)	
ORTHODOX LENT (The Two Babylons)	
EASTER SUNDAY (Babylon Mystery Religion & Encyclopedia Britannica)	
LIST OF DEMONS	
CHRISTMAS - PAGAN OR CHRISTIAN HOLIDAY?	
SCRIPTURE ABOUT SO-CALLED CHRISTIAN HOLIDAYS	
SCRIPTURE ABOUT MURMURING	
PREFACE	
IS DECEMBER 25TH JESUS' BIRTHDAY?	
LIST OF DEMONS FOR HOLIDAYS	
REFERENCES	
3. WHAT'S WRONG WITH VALENTINE'S DAY?	
SCRIPTURE	
4. PUPPETRY & VENTRILOQUISM	

LIST OF SCRIPTURE	
MARIONETTE - DEFINITIONS	
MARIONETTES	
MUMMERY DEFINITIONS	
MUMMERY	
PUPPETRY - DEFINITIONS	
PUPPETRY	
VENTRILOQUISM - DEFINITIONS	
VENTRILOQUISM	
COMMENTS	
CONCLUSION	
REFERENCES	

CONTENTS	
1. DELIVERANCE SCRIPTURE	
GENERAL	
LIST OF SCRIPTURE	
LIST OF DEMONS	
4. GOD SENDS DEMONS AND EVIL ON PEOPLE FOR DISOBEDIENCE	
SCRIPTURE	
EXAMPLES	
SOUL PUT IN RIGHT MIND BY DELIVERANCE	
SCRIPTURE	
4. FROM ADAM TO AHAB MEN'S WEAKNESSES	
LIST OF SCRIPTURE AND COMMENTS	
HOW TO RAISE A CROOK	
LIST OF DEMONS	
REFERENCES	
5. FROM EVE TO JEZEBEL WOMEN'S WEAKNESSES	
PREFACE	
OLD TESTAMENT - EVE TO JEZEBEL	
OLD TESTAMENT - REMAINING CHARACTERISTICS OF WOMEN	
NEW TESTAMENT - CHARACTERISTICS OF WOMEN	
STUDY OF SCRIPTURES	
TREATMENT OF WOMEN BY MEN	
AHAB AND JEZEBEL	
THE WOMAN QUESTION	
LIST OF DEMONS	
6. MISCELLANEOUS SCRIPTURAL STUDIES	301
PREFACE	

SECTION 10 - SELECTED TOPIC STUDIES	
ABORTION	
Picketing	
BINDING, LOOSING AND AGREEING	
Scripture	
Binding	
Loosing	
Agreeing	
Daily Prayers	
SATAN IS A GRADUALIST	
STEPS LEADING TO POSSESSION	
OUR VIEW OF POSSESSION	
SAUL'S EXPERIENCE	
WITCHCRAFT AND BLACK MAGIC	
OUR SINS AND OUR ANCESTORS	
END TIMES	
DISOBEDIENCE	
FUTURE OF NATIONS OF WORLD	
FULL GOSPEL BUSINESS MEN'S FELLOWSHIP INTERNATIONAL	
LAKE HAMILTON BIBLE CAMP	
COMMENTS ABOUT PSYCHIATRY AND PSYCHOLOGY	
LIST OF DEMONS	
SECTION 11 – FAMILY	312
1. PERFECT FAMILY WITH A PERFECT RELATIONSHIP TO GOD	
PREFACE	
INTRODUCTION	
OUR FAMILY	
PERFECT FAMILY	
KEY WORDS FOR FAMILY	
SCRIPTURES	
HUSBANDS	
THE GODLY RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN WIVES AND HUSBANDS	
CHILDREN	
SOME SCRIPTURAL CAUTIONS TO PARENTS	
SUMMARY	
SONG OF SOLOMON	
HUSBANDS AND WIVES ARE "ONE FLESH"	
PROVERBS TALKS ABOUT MEN AND WOMEN	
ABORTION	
WE ARE GOD'S WORKMANSHIP	
ADULTERY	
THE CURSE OF AHAB AND THE CURSE OF JEZEBEL	

EFFECT ON CHILDREN BY AHAB/JEZEBEL PARENTS	317
AHAB / JEZEBEL FAMILIES IN THE BIBLE	317
WINNING THE MATE TO THE LORD	318
FORBIDDEN TO MARRY UNBELIEVERS	318
VARIOUS SCRIPTURES ABOUT FAMILY	318
DUTIES OF HUSBAND	318
DUTIES OF A GOOD HUSBAND	320
HUSBANDS ARE PRIESTS AND HEADS OF HOMES	320
PRIEST OF HOMES	320
HEADS OF HOMES	320
FINANCES OF HOMES	320
WHEN THE HUSBAND DOES NOT FULFILL HIS DUTY	321
A WISE AND UNDERSTANDING WOMAN	322
COURAGEOUS	323
IMPORTANT ATTITUDES AND MOTIVES WE LEARN FROM ABIGAIL	323
SEXUAL RELATIONS	
SEX AND THE SINGLE CHRISTIAN MALE	324
THE SINGLE FEMALE	325
LIVING THE CHRISTIAN LIFE	327
SEVEN WAYS TO DETERMINE THE NEED FOR DELIVERANCE	328
SEVEN STEPS TO DELIVERANCE	328
SEVEN STEPS TO DELIVERANCE	
SEVEN STEPS FOR RETAINING DELIVERANCE	329
AN ATTITUDE OF GRATITUDE	330
HOW TO BE MISERABLE	331
ANALYSIS OF THE HOLY BIBLE, BOOK 16. THE FAMILY	
2. PERFECT FAMILY SUMMARY	336
HUSBAND IS PRIEST AND HEAD OF HOME	336
DUTIES OF A GOOD HUSBAND	337
DUTIES OF A GOOD WIFE	
SEXUAL RELATIONS: PROVERBS 5:15-21 AND HEBREWS 13:4	337
LIVING THE CHRISTIAN LIFE	337
3. FROM DEATH INTO REAL LIFE	
4. EARLINE'S TESTIMONY ABOUT BYRON'S DEATH	340
5. DEDICATION OF CHILDREN	345
6. PERFECTING LOVE	346
PREFACE	346
GENERAL	
FORGIVENESS AND REPENTANCE	356
TEACHING	358
PRAYER	
LIST OF DEMONS	359

SECTION 12 - WOMAN'S VIEWPOINT	
1. OUR INHERITANCE FROM A WOMAN'S VIEWPOINT	
GENERAL	
BLESSINGS AND CURSES	
EARLINE'S BACKGROUND	
BLACK PEOPLE	
LIST OF BLESSINGS	
AHAB- JEZEBEL	
WIFE AND MOTHER	
WHOLE FAMILY	
MINISTRY	
CAST OUT THE FOLLOWING DEMON SPIRITS	364
2. A WISE AND UNDERSTANDING WOMAN	364
GENERAL	364
SCRIPTURE	364
IMPORTANT ATTITUDES AND MOTIVES WE LEARN FROM ABIGAIL	366
3. GOOD HOMEMAKERS	366
GENERAL	366
SCRIPTURE	
HUSBANDS AND FATHERS	371
MINISTRY AND LIST OF DEMONS	
4. THE WOMAN QUESTION	
KEEPING WHAT YOU HAVE MAINTAINING DELIVERANCE	
WHY DO YOU WANT TO BE DELIVERED?	
IF YOU ARE GOING TO WIN A WAR, YOU MUST KNOW YOUR ENEMY	
THE DEVIL HAS SOME TRICKS HE PLAYS ON US - NO ONE ESCAPES	
SUBMIT TO GOD	
LET'S CONSIDER TEMPTATION	
GRADUALISM	
COVENANT	
EZRA, NEHEMIAH AND ESTHER	
HOW SHALL WE KEEP DELIVERANCE?	
PRAYER	
LIST OF DEMONS	380

SECTION 13 - TESTIMONY AND FAMILY DELIVERANCE 381

1. OUR DELIVERANCE TESTIMONY	
GENERAL	
PIGS IN THE PARLOR	
FAITH TABERNACLE	
CAN A CHRISTIAN HAVE A DEMON?	
ALL CHRISTIANS	
OUR FAMILY	

OUR MINISTRY	
2. EARLINE'S TESTIMONY ABOUT HER DELIVERANCE	
BACKGROUND	
MAIN TESTIMONY ABOUT DELIVERANCE	
TESTIMONY ABOUT OVEREATING	
TESTIMONY ABOUT DELIVERANCE FROM INDIAN CURSES	
TESTIMONY ABOUT SCHIZOPHRENIA	
TESTIMONY ABOUT MAINTAINING DELIVERANCE	
3. CHILDREN'S DELIVERANCE	
GENERAL	
MINISTRY TO CHILDREN	
CHILDREN AND DELIVERANCE	
CURSES ON CHILDREN	
DEMONIC RELIGIOUS CULTS FOR THE YOUNG	
ABUSED CHILDREN	
DOLLS	
DOLLS IN TOLEDO, OHIO	
DOLLS FOR BABY - SEVEN MONTHS OLD	
CONCLUSION	
SATAN IN THE TOY STORE	
TOYS WITH OCCULT LINKAGE OR EXCESSIVE VIOLENCE	
SUMMARY	
SCRIPTURES PERTAINING TO OCCULT PRACTICES	
REFERENCES	
LIST OF DEMONS FOR ABUSED CHILDREN	
GENERAL LIST OF DEMONS TO CAST OUT	
SECTION 14 - HEALING AND BODY	
1. JESUS SET MARIE'S BROKEN ARM	
THE LORD TAUGHT US A NUMBER OF LESSONS:	
2. BODY - CURED AND HEALED BY DELIVERANCE	
LIST OF SCRIPTURE	
OLD TESTAMENT MEDICINE AND HEALING	
NEW TESTAMENT (RELIEVING AND MAKING WHOLE)	
EXCERPTS FROM THE BIBLE	
POSSIBLE ROOTS OF INFIRMITY	
ACUPUNCTURE	
SICKNESS AND DEMONIC SYMPTOMS	
EPILEPSY	
SCHIZOPHRENIA	
COPROLALIA	
MUTILATION	
SPIRIT OF PARALYSIS	

LIST OF DEMONS	407
FUNCTIONAL DISEASES OF BODY	409
Emotional	409
Body Pain	
REFERENCES	
3. DRUNKENNESS AND GLUTTONY	
KEY SCRIPTURES	
GENERAL	
AMERICANS MUST CHANGE THEIR EATING HABITS!	411
EARLINE'S TESTIMONY	412
CONCLUSION	
LIST OF DEMONS	413
START WITH BASIC DELIVERANCE:	413
4. DRUGS AND MEDICINES	
LIST OF SCRIPTURE	414
DRUG ABUSE IN THE WORKPLACE	414
WHY DO PEOPLE TAKE DRUGS?	
GENERAL	417
MEDICINE'S BONDAGE TO SATAN	418
THE HIPPOCRATIC OATH	418
MEDICINE AND THE BELIEVER	419
A PARTIAL LIST OF DRUGS IN THE "PHYSICIAN'S DESK REFERENCES"	421
VALIUM AND LIBRIUM	
A DIRECTORY OF DRUGS - Hallucinogens	422
LIST OF DEMONS	
MINISTRY TO THE OPPRESSED	425
REFERENCES	425
CHILDREN DRUG ADDICTS	425
PREFACE	
HOW CHILDREN BECOME "MENTALLY ILL"	426
LIST OF DEMONS, DRUGS, SIGNS, SYMPTOMS AND REACTIONS	427
REFERENCES	427
SECTION 15 – SEX	428
1. SEXUAL DISEASES, IMPURITIES AND DEMONS	428
LIST OF SCRIPTURES	428
PREFACE	
HOW WE GET CAUGHT IN SEXUAL TRAPS	429
ACTIONS AND RESULTS	
DEMONS THAT BREAK UP MARRIAGES	432

SUBLIMINAL ADVERTISING IN WHAT YOU SEE AND READ	
THE SINGLE MALE	
THE SINGLE FEMALE	
SEX PERVERSION	
LIST OF SEXUAL DEMONS	
General	
2. THE AIDS EPIDEMIC	
SCRIPTURE	
DEFINITION OF SODOMY	
HOMOSEXUALS TO PARENTS	
SODOMY IN THE TEMPLE	
COMMENTS	
SURGEON GENERAL'S REPORT ON AIDS	
3. EFFEMINACY - SINS OF SODOM	
LIST OF DEMONS	
4. RAPE	
SCRIPTURE	
Ravished	
Forced	
Shame	
Defiled	
BIBLE STORIES	
5. SEXUAL HARASSMENT - ABUSE ASSAULT - VIOLENCE	
SEXUAL HARASSMENT	
SEXUAL ABUSE	
SEXUAL ASSAULT	
SEXUAL VIOLENCE	
LIST OF DEMONS	
REFERENCES	
SECTION 16 – MASS DELIVERANCE MANUAL	
1. LISTS OF DEMONS	
2. MASS DELIVERANCE	
HOW TO GET DELIVERED	
DELIVERANCE PRAYERS	
General	
Short Prayer	
BIBLICAL CURSES	
LIST OF DEMONS RELATED TO BIBLICAL CURSES	
SOUL TIES	
OCCULT AND FALSE RELIGIONS	
LOOSING GODLY SPIRITS	
LISTS OF DEMONS	

3. MASS DELIVERANCE SUPPLEMENT	474
PREFACE	
SIX STEPS TO DELIVERANCE OF AN INDIVIDUAL	
AIDS TO CASTING OUT DEMONS	
General	
4. HOW TO IDENTIFY GODLY AND UNGODLY SPIRITS	
HOW TO RECOGNIZE EVIL SPIRITS	476
THE SPIRITS OF GOD AND SATAN	477
GENERAL	477
GODLY SPIRITS	477
UNGODLY SPIRITS (FAMILIES)	
DICTIONARY OF CLASSICAL MYTHOLOGY	
IDOLS WORSHIPPED BY COUNTRIES	
TABER'S CYCLOPEDIC MEDICAL DICTIONARY	
NEUROTIC AND ABNORMAL PERSONALITIES	
PHOBIAS	
SOURCE AND BRANCHES OF FALSE RELIGIONS DIAGRAM:	
REFERENCES	
LISTS OF DEMONS	
PREPARATION FOR CASTING OUT DEMONS	
ABUSED CHILDREN DELIVERANCE	
AHAB AND JEZEBEL (THE CURSE OF AHAB AND JEZEBEL)	
BAD HABITS OF THINKING AND REACTING	
BIBLICAL CURSES	
CATHOLIC SPIRITS	
CHARISMATIC WITCHCRAFT	
CHILDREN DRUG ADDICTS	
CHILDREN'S DELIVERANCE	
CHRISTIAN FANTASY (LIES NOT TRUTH)	
COMMON DEMON GROUPINGS	
COMMON DEMON GROUPINGS	
CURSED OBJECTS (CLEANING YOUR HOUSE)	
DRUGS AND MEDICINE	
DRUNKENNESS AND GLUTTONY ·	
FEARS OF (HOW TO IDENTIFY GODLY AND UNGODLY SPIRITS)	
GOOD HOMEMAKERS	
DELIVERANCE FROM GRIEF AND BITTERNESS	
IDOLS WORSHIPPED BY COUNTRIES	
FALSE GODS	
INGRATITUDE • AN ATTITUDE OF GRATITUDE	
MAINTAINING YOUR DELIVERANCE FROM EVIL SPIRITS	
FROM ADAM TO AHAB - MEN'S WEAKNESSES	
MIND (THE MIND: FREEING - RESTORING - PROTECTING)	
OCCULT (FORBIDDEN PRACTICES OF THE OCCULT)	
occoli (i okbibbli) i kachels of mil occoli)	

Magic Practices and Spiritism	511
Occult Books	
Occult Movies	512
Superstition/Good Luck	513
Witchcraft Jewelry	513
Occult Objects	513
Occult Games	513
Occult Cartoons	513
Spiritism	513
Occult Music	514
Drugs	514
False Religions and Cults	
PASSIVE MIND - THE DEVIL'S WORKSHOP	
PSYCHONEUROSIS (THE NEUROTIC PERSONALITIES)	
PSYCHONEUROTIC (THE DELINQUENT PERSONALITIES)	
RELIGIOUS ERROR (SPIRITS OF RELIGIOUS ERROR)	
Practices and Teachings	
Practices and Teachings - Religious Demons	
Celebrating Mass	
Works Religion	
SATAN, FALLEN ANGELS AND DEMONS	
SCHIZOPHRENIA AND PARANOIA	
SCHIZOPHRENIA AND RELATED DISEASES	
SCHIZOPHRENIA AND RELATED DISEASES	
SCRIPTURE (DELIVERANCE SCRIPTURE)	
SELF (HOW TO BE MISERABLE)	
SEXUAL SIN AND DISEASES	
TOYS AND GAMES (CHILDREN'S DELIVERANCE)	
UNGODLY SPIRITS	
VALENTINE'S DAY	
WHEN DEMONIZATION OF CHRISTIANS IS DENIED	
WITCHCRAFT (WINNING OVER WITCHCRAFT)	
OTHER DEMONS	
WOMEN'S WEAKNESSES	533
ECTION 17 – HOW TO DO DELIVERANCE	
1. PREFACE	
General	
TYPES OF DELIVERANCE	
Six Basic Steps To Your Deliverance	
2. LOOKING AT DELIVERANCE	
Summary	
3. BASIC DELIVERANCE	537

General	. 538
Steps To Minister Deliverance	. 539
4. CHILDREN'S DELIVERANCE	. 540
General	. 541
REFERENCES	. 543
5. MASS DELIVERANCE	. 543
Prayer Against Cursed Objects And Demon Infestation (People And Houses)	. 546
6. DELIVERANCE PRAYERS	
Summary	. 548
General	. 548
Long Prayer	. 550
REFERENCES	. 552
7. BIBLICAL CURSES	. 552
Summary	. 552
Biblical Curses	. 553
Curses On Children	. 555
Symbols Of Hex Signs	. 555
REFERENCES	. 555
8. AIDS TO CASTING OUT DEMONS	. 555
9. CASTING OUT DEMONS	. 556
Summary	. 556
Self-Rejection	
Murder	. 557
Anti-Submissiveness	. 556
10. DELIVERANCE SCRIPTURE	. 557
SUMMARY	. 557
GENERAL	. 558
OLD TESTAMENT	. 558
NEW TESTAMENT	. 558
READING SCRIPTURE TO DEMONS	. 559
GENERAL VERSES FOR SPIRITUAL WARFARE	. 559
VERSES TO USE AGAINST THE RULER DEMONS	. 559
Hate	. 559
Pride	. 559
Self-Pity	. 559
Fear	. 559
Fear of Man	. 559
Rebellion	. 560
Lust	. 560
Unbelief	. 560
Rejection	. 560
Cleaning Your House	
REFERENCES:	
11. IDENTIFY GODLY AND UNGODLY SPIRITS	. 561

SUMMARY	561
THE SPIRITS OF GOD AND SATAN	561
DICTIONARY OF CLASSICAL MYTHOLOGY	561
NEUROTIC AND ABNORMAL PERSONALITIES	562
USING A THESAURUS IN DELIVERANCE	562
REFERENCES:	563
12. NAMES OF DEMONS	563
SUMMARY	563
LISTS OF DEMONS	564
GENERAL LIST OF DEMONS TO CAST OUT OF CHILDREN	565
COMMON DEMON GROUPINGS	565
13. CURSED OBJECTS	569
General	569
To Exorcise Inanimate Objects	569
FIVE STEPS TO CLEANING YOUR HOUSE	570
REFERENCES	570
14. LEARN ABOUT DELIVERANCE	570
Summary	
General	
15. PRACTICAL DELIVERANCE BOOKS	571
Mind	571
REFERENCES:	571
16. HOW NOT TO DO DELIVERANCE	571
OVERALL VIEW OF DELIVERANCE	572
BATTLE MYTHS	572
LAYING HANDS ON OTHERS	573
AGREEMENT BETWEEN HUSBAND AND WIFE	
THREE-FOLD DELIVERANCE	576
LIST OF DEMONS TO USE WITH HOW NOT TO DO DELIVERANCE	577
SECTION 18 - SUPPLEMENT TO DELIVERANCE MAN	IAL 578
PREFACE	
General	
GOD IS A MAN OF WAR	
SCRIPTURES	
YOUNG'S ANALYTICAL CONCORDANCE TO THE BIBLE	
DESCRIPTIONS OF GOD	
DOES GOD CURSE PEOPLE?	
THE NATION OF ISRAEL	
WARRIORS FOR CHRIST	
WARRIORS FOR CHRIST	
DOES GOD WORK THROUGH US?	
THE WAR OF THE AGES	

PASSIVE JUDGEMENT	584
WHAT IS WITCHCRAFT PRACTICED BY CHRISTIANS?	584
PLAYING GOD IN PEOPLE'S LIVES	584
EXAMPLES OF MINISTERS PLAYING GOD	586
SEQUENCE OF DEMONIZATION	587
PRAYER	589
LIST OF DEMONS	589
REFERENCES:	
REPENTANCE – THE KEY TO DELIVERANCE	589
SCRIPTURE	589
IMPORTANT	591
FORGIVING SIN	591
FORGIVING OTHERS	591
REMITTING AND RETAINING SIN	591
SINS OF OUR ANCESTORS	
CONFESS - REPENT - BREAK - CAST - DISCIPLINE	593
SIX BASIC STEPS TO YOUR DELIVERANCE	593
KNOWLEDGE - BLOOD - AUTHORITY - CHANGE	593
NEED FOR REPENTANCE	593
OLD TESTAMENT	594
NEW TESTAMENT	594
EASY BELIEVEISM	594
SIN IN YOUR LIFE	595
SIN IN THE MINISTER'S LIFE	595
SIN IN YOUR POSSESSIONS	596
FIVE STEPS TO CLEANING YOUR HOUSE	596
ERASING THE RESULTS OF SIN	597
PRAYER	597
LIST OF DEMONS	
DEMONIC TIES - SCRIPTURE	598
Soul Ties - One Flesh	598
Curses - Bondage	
WHAT DIFFERENCE A GENERATION MAKES - CHANGES IN 25 YEARS	599
ARE ADOLESCENTS VALUED RESOURCES?	599
GENERAL	600
GOD'S SYSTEM	
INANIMATE OBJECTS	601
SEX WITH DEMONS	
SPIRIT, SOUL AND BODY	601
SOUL TIES	
GODLY SOUL TIES	602
WITCHCRAFT	
BANDS	
COVENANTS	604

BROTHERHOODS	
YOKE OF BONDAGE	
SPIRITUAL STRENGTH, MIGHT AND FORCE	
TYPES OF CATEGORIES	606
PRAYER	606
LIST OF DEMONS	
Requirements to Agree - Bind - Loose	
Bind - Binding	
Bound - Bounds	
Loose - Loosed	
DEFINITIONS	
COMMENTS	
EXAMPLE	
MISTAKES IN TACTICS	
CAN SATAN MAKE YOU DO ANYTHING?	
WE ARE OUR OWN WORST ENEMY!	611
PRAYER	
CURSING OTHERS AND BEING CURSED	
COMMENTS	
SOME THOUGHTS	
BLESSING OTHERS AND BEING BLESSED	
PSYCHIC PRAYERS	
SPOKEN CURSES	
ANCESTRAL CURSES	
PARENTAL CURSES	615
CURSING BY OTHERS OTHER THAN YOUR ANCESTORS	615
CURSING YOURSELF	
CURSING YOUR DESCENDENTS	
ORIGIN OF CURSES	
BIBLICAL CURSES	
THE CURSE OF DISOBEDIENCE	
THE CURSE OF CHARISMATIC WITCHCRAFT	
THE CURSE OF THE BASTARD	617
THE INDIAN CURSES	
CURSED OBJECTS	618
SUMMARY	619
SPIRITUAL WARFARE	
PRAYER	
CURSES FOR SHEDDING INNOCENT BLOOD	
GENERAL	
PRAYER	
LIES, DECEIT AND FLATTERY	
SCRIPTURE	
COMMENTS	

DEFINITIONS	. 628
GOD IS TRUTH	. 629
GOD WILL NOT LIE	
RIGHTEOUSNESS AND HOLINESS	. 630
THE LITTLE WHITE LIE	. 630
EVANGELISTICALLY SPEAKING	. 630
THE DELIBERATE LIE	. 630
FLATTERY	. 631
PRETENDING	. 631
DECEIT AND DECEPTION	. 631
PRIDE, EGO AND VANITY	. 632
FALSENESS	. 632
CHEATING	. 632
DISHONESTY	. 632
RESPONSIBILITY OF A MINISTER	. 632
OLD PROPHECY GIVES AMAZING PREVIEW	. 633
PRAYER	. 634
LIST OF DEMONS	. 634
RESPECT, FEAR AND NERVOUSNESS	. 634
SCRIPTURE	. 634
HOW ABOUT FEAR MENTIONED IN THE BIBLE?	. 636
SHOULD WE RESPECT AND/OR FEAR THE LORD?	. 636
WHAT DOES IT TAKE OTHER THAN MENTALLY FEARING GOD?	. 637
SHOULD WE FEAR DEATH?	. 637
NERVOUS HABITS	. 637
FAITH, TRUST AND LOVE OF GOD	. 638
SHOULD WIVES FEAR THEIR HUSBANDS?	. 638
REFERENCES	. 639
LIST OF DEMONS	. 639
BALDNESS, BEARDS AND HAIR	. 639
PREFACE	. 640
FREEDOM OF CHOICE	. 640
JESUS CHRIST	. 640
REJECTION	. 641
BITTERNESS	. 641
REBELLION	. 641
FEMININE PREACHERS	. 643
WOMEN	. 643
ASK YOURSELVES SOME QUESTIONS	. 645
PERSONAL PREFERENCES.	. 645
PRAYER	. 645
WOMEN	615
	. 045
MEN	

LIST OF DEMONS	645
THE CHANGE OF LIFE	646
SCRIPTURE	646
PREFACE	646
ANN LANDER'S COLUMN	
CONFESS YOUR FAULTS TO OTHERS	646
LUSTING AFTER OTHER WOMEN	647
LUSTING AFTER OTHER MEN	647
MENOPAUSE	
DOUBLE-MINDEDNESS ABOUT TREATMENT	648
MALE CLIMACTERIC	648
WHAT IS THE ANSWER?	649
MENSTRUATION PROBLEMS	650
PRAYER FOR MEN	650
PRAYER FOR WOMEN	650
LIST OF DEMONS	
FREEMASONRY AND EASTERN STAR	651
LIST OF SCRIPTURE	651
PRIMARY SCRIPTURE	
PREFACE	
MASONRY - BEYOND THE LIGHT	653
HIDDEN SECRETS OF THE EASTERN STAR	654
SYMBOLS	
FROM PAGANISM TO CHRIST	
EVICTING DEMONIC SQUATTERS & BREAKING BONDAGES	654
CURSES	655
CURSED OBJECTS	
HIDDEN SECRETS OF THE EASTERN STAR	655
SUMMARY	
PATTERN FOR PRAYER	656
PRAYERS	
LIST OF DEMONS	
REFERENCES	
GODLY PEOPLE STRICKEN BEFORE THEIR TIME	657
SCRIPTURE	
LETTER OF OCTOBER 27, 1991	
REPLIES TO LETTER	
PRAYERS FOR US	
OUR MINISTRY	
FUTURE FOR CHRISTIANS	
GENERAL COMMENTS	
ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS	
GOD IN CONTROL	
SOVEREIGNTY OF GOD	660

TRIALS AND TESTINGS	
FAITH OF THE SAINTS	
CHRISTIAN SCOREBOARD	
PRESENT CHURCH AGE	
THIS WORLD	
CRUCIFIXION OF THE FLESH	
SERVANTS OF GOD	
DELIVERANCE WORKERS	
APOSTLES SUFFERED	
PRIDE, EGO AND VANITY	
CONFUSION OF MIND	
TESTIMONIES OF OTHERS	
STANDING WITH EACH OTHER	
HUSBANDS RESPONSIBILITY	
HUSBAND'S ASKING WIVE'S FORGIVENESS	
CREDIT TO OTHERS.	
PRAYERS BY GROUP	
LIST OF DEMONS	

PREFACE

General – The only way for deliverance to spread around the world is for many people to begin to practice deliverance. I encourage you to take this guide, begin to practice deliverance, and to help others as you grow stronger. God us to help train an army to minister deliverance. May God bless you with all spiritual blessings and bring you into all spiritual truth!

Mass deliverance is simply deliverance for everyone that can hear your voice. You can use this lesson for your family or church. Normally we only work on one area of a person's life in a meeting and do not try to cover all areas at the same time.

There is nothing mysterious about deliverance; any Christian can cast out demons. As a teacher, I am worthless if I can not show you how to practice what I teach. The Bible is also worthless to you unless you put it into practice.

Encouragement - Deliverance is the last battleground to complete freedom of the Christian. **The battle is the greatest and Satan will fight the hardest against this ministry.** You are fighting God's battles; you are cursed if you are unwilling to fight.

The benefits far outweigh having to go through the battle. You will learn things about the spiritual world that can not be learned in any way other than being involved in deliverance. You will see many signs, wonders and miracles performed by God. You will see peoples' lives changed before your eyes and dramatically changed for the better. You will help your family as you are helping others; the fringe benefits are great!

Healing and deliverance go hand-in-hand. Many can not get healed without deliverance. You will see many healings and miraculous healings by the Lord through praying for healing and cast-ing out of demons of infirmities.

Reason For Learning - The main reason we are teaching you how to do basic deliverance is that every Christian should be able to cast out demons at least in their own family. Later on God may lead you to have deliverance services in your home or church. God told us to train an army for His use; you are part of that army!

Deliverance will assist in establishing family order and God's order. Every Christian should cast out demons (Mark 16:17). There are not many "Deliverance Ministers" to help people. Christians have many demons; proper deliverance takes a lot of time. Deliverance is a way of life and not a grand event.

Parents are the best persons to minister to their children; husband to wife and wife to husband. Parents need to protect their children and set the family free from demons. Deliverance gives an understanding of God's and Satan's kingdoms that you will not get any other way. Deliverance allows you to see into the spiritual world by the manifestations of demons and angels.

Get involved! Study to show yourself approved by God. Seek God about deliverance. **Deliverance is a constant learning process.** Satan has spent thousands of years weaving a very complicated system to trap you and take you to Hell or cause you to live a miserable Christian life here on earth. **This manual is not copyrighted. You may make as many copies as you like and distribute them for the Glory of God. You may freely use the lessons for teaching aids. Amen.**

Blessings,

Gene Moody

SECTION 1 - BATTLE

CONTENTS

- 1. Can A Christian Have A Demon?
- 2. Jesus Cast Out Demons Everywhere He Went!
- 3. The Deliverance Minister
- 4. Keys To Successful Deliverance
- 5. On With The Battle
- 6. Comments On Deliverance
- 7. Living The Whole Christian Life
- 8. Christian Fantasy Lies Not Truth
- 9. Daily Prayers
- 10. Warriors For Christ

1. CAN A CHRISTIAN HAVE A DEMON?

LIST OF SCRIPTURE

	-
Matt.12:43-45	A non-Christian delivered.
Matt.15:22-28	Children's (Christian's) bread.
Mark 1:23-27	Man in the synagogue (Believer).
Mark 1:39-42	Cast out devils in synagogues.
Mark 7:25-30	Children's (Christian's) bread.
Mark 8:33	Jesus Called Peter satan.
Mark 9:17-29	Believer's son.
Luke 4:38-39	Spirit of fever is a demon.
Luke 11:24-26	A non-Christian delivered.
Luke 13:11-17	Daughter of Abraham (Believer).
Luke 22:3	Satan entered Judas.
Acts 5:3-4	Ananias and Sapphira were believers.
Acts 8:5-7, 13	Gave heed to things spoken of Christ.
Acts 8:20-24	Simon was a believer.
Acts 10:38	Sickness is oppression of satan.
I Cor. 5:1-5	Believer in Corinth delivered to satan.
II Cor. 2:10-11	Satan getting advantage of believer.
II Cor. 11:3-4	Believers receive another spirit.
II Cor. 12:7-9	Paul's messenger of satan in flesh.
Gal. 3:1	Galatians bewitched by spirits.
Eph. 2:1-3	Influence of satan.
Eph. 4:26-27	Anger gives place to devil.
I Tim. 1:18-20	Hymenaeus and Alexander believers.
I Tim. 4:1-2	Believers depart from the faith.

II Tim. 2:24-26	Recover out of snare of devil.
Heb. 12:15-16	Root of bitterness is a spirit.
James 4:6-8	Devil will flee from you.
I Peter 5:8-9	Afflictions in the brethren.

GENERAL

There is nowhere in the Bible that says explicitly that a "Christian" can have a demon. But it does talk about "believers" having demons. Are you a believer? What is the difference? None! The multitudes that came to Jesus received deliverance; some were bound to be believers!

You can memorize the" Bible and go to Hell. No part of the Bible is any good to you unless it is used! Head knowledge will not get you to Heaven; it takes heart knowledge. Bible scholars can argue about theology until Jesus comes again and not settle the question of whether a Christian can have a demon; it takes experience.

When you start casting demons out of people, you find that Christians not only have demons but they have thousands of demons! In our years of ministry, we have worked with thousands of people - small groups to large groups. We found that the congregation could have many demons. Then the Lord started us working with pastors and their families. We found that the fivefold ministry also had almost as many demons as the congregation. Finally the Lord had us to work with deliverance ministers. We found that they also had quite a few demons!

We have seen leaders go into false doctrines. These can even be leaders that cast out demons. It appears that pride is their downfall. Pride is an abomination to God and is an active demonic area.

WARNING SIGNALS - POSSIBLE NEED FOR DELIVERANCE

The following characteristics merit a closer look when they are pronounced, persistent or recurrent over a period of time, or progressive - tending to become more, rather than less, extreme. Check yourself against these warnings. The following thumbnail descriptions of behavior can be a call for help:

- 1. Confused or disordered thinking: loss of touch with reality delusions (persistence of erroneous convictions in the face of contrary evidence) hallucinations; disconnected speech.
- 2. Obsessions: absorption with a subject or idea to the exclusion of others, compulsions, uncontrollable urges.
- 3. Inability to cope: with minor problems, with daily routine.
- 4. Difficulty in making/keeping friends: poor social skills, isolation, withdrawal from society, Toner" lifestyle.

- 5. A pattern of failure across-the-board: at school, at work, in sports, in personal relationships.
- 6. Prolonged or severe depression: suicide threats/attempts.
- 7. Immaturity: infantile behavior (such as bed-wetting), over dependence on the mother (excessive clinging as a child, continuing dependence in teens and twenties), failure to keep pace with peer group.
- 8. A series of physical ailments which do not run a typical course and/or fail to respond to treatment.
- 9. Neglect of personal hygiene (disheveled and unsanitary surroundings) or exaggerated concern for order and for cleanliness.
- 10. Difficulty adjusting to new people and places.
- 11. Undue anxiety and worry: phobias, feelings of being persecuted.
- 12. Too much or too little sleep.
- 13. Excessive self-centeredness: indifference to other people's feelings, doings, ideas, lack of sympathy with another's pain or need.
- 14. Substantial rapid weight gain or loss.
- 15. Muted, "flat" emotions (absence of angry, delighted, sorrowing reactions to stimuli) or inappropriate emotions (sharp, inexplicable mood swings, silliness at serious moments, unpredictable tears).
- 16. Negative self-image and outlook: "inferiority" complex, feelings of worthlessness.
- 17. Frequent random changes of plans: inability to stick with a job, a school program, a living arrangement, failure to keep appointments, abide by decisions.
- 18. Extreme aggressiveness (combativeness, hostility, violence, rage) or exaggerated docility (lack of normal competitiveness and self-assertion, refusal to confront, avoidance of argument).
- 19. Unreasonable or irrational risk-taking.
- 20. Lack of zest and enthusiasm: listlessness, sadness, mood habitually "down", limited or missing sense of humor.

HOW CAN A CHRISTIAN HAVE DEMONS?

(Excerpts) How can a demon spirit indwell the same body at the same time as the Holy Spirit does? The New Testament word for "spirit" is "pneuma". In contra-distinction from the natural or "soulish", the spirit is that part of man which has the ability to grasp and perceive divine things (I Cor. 2:14).

The word for "soul" is "psyche". This word defines the self life - the emotions, the intellect and the will. Paul shows us that man is a three-fold being (I Thes. 5:23).

The Scripture teaches that prior to salvation a man is "dead in trespasses and sins" (Eph. 2:1). Jesus comes into the human spirit and brings in His life (I John 5:11-12). Jesus has made adequate provision for the whole man, but part of the responsibility now rests upon us as is shown in Phil. 2:13-15.

The word for "salvation" in this passage is "soteria". Thayer's Lexicon gives as the primary meaning of this word "deliverance from the molestation of enemies". The picture becomes clear. Jesus has delivered our SPIRIT from the power of Satan; now He says to us, "Work out your own deliverance from the molestation of enemies until you have freed both SOUL AND BODY".

RESULTS WHEN DEMONIZATION OF CHRISTIANS IS DENIED

(Excerpts) False teachings are perpetuated by the erroneous and unscriptural position that believers cannot have demons. The following is a partial list of the pitfalls associated with taking such a position; check yourself against these results:

- 1. The old sin nature becomes the "whipping boy" and the middle ground between God and the demons.
- 2. All problems are taught to be due to the "lack of surrender".
- 3. People are left open to be snared into cults by angels of light.
- 4. All inherited characteristics are thought to be unchangeable.
- 5. Personality quirks and characteristics are thought to be unchangeable.
- 6. Makes us unable to break the bondage on another person's will.
- 7. Mental health programs, which teach all problems are the result of heredity are supported.
- 8. Demons are given legal ground to stay when a person sits under teaching that denies a Christian can have a demon.
- 9. Demonic lies about oppression, possession, etc. are perpetuated.

- 10. Reinforces spiritual pride which keeps leaders from re-examining their teachings and retracting error.
- 11. Despair and hopelessness are fostered within the demonized.
- 12. Gives ground to accept, as law, all medical diagnosis and medication.

RESULTS WHEN CHILDREN DON'T RECEIVE DELIVERANCE

The greatest need in the church today is teaching the whole Bible without fear or favor of man and the practice of deliverance for every Christian. As you see the children, so you see the parents and the nation. Look at your children and see your mistakes in their lives.

The following statistics were taken from The Children's Hour, U.S. News & World Report "IN ONE DAY IN 1988 -2753 teenagers get pregnant, 1099 teenagers have abortions, 367 teens miscarry, 1287 teenagers give birth, 666 babies are born to women who have had inadequate prenatal care, 72 babies die before one month of life, 110 babies die before their first birthday, 9 children die from gunshot wounds, 5 teenagers commit suicide, 609 teenagers get gonorrhea or syphilis, 988 children are abused, 3288 children run away from home, 49322 children are in public juvenile correctional facilities, 2269 illegitimate children are born and 2989 kids see their parents divorced." All in one day in America.

WHO IS A BELIEVER?

(Excerpts) Because so many promises are given to those who are believers, it is important to know who the Bible classifies as a believer.

In the Greek, "believe" indicates one relying on Jesus Christ for salvation. In Acts 5:14 the word means "unadulterated trust". In I Tim. 4:12, "trueness, to entrust one's spiritual faith, assurance, well-being".

A check list for believers: must bear fruit (John 15:2); signs shall follow (Mark 16:17-18); shall do works Jesus did (John 14:12); answered prayer (John 15:7); friend of Jesus (John 15:14); and witnessing (John 15:27).

WHAT ABOUT DEMONS IN CHRISTIANS ?

(Excerpts) "In the name of our Lord Jesus Christ, when you are gathered together, and My spirit, with the power of our Lord Jesus Christ, to deliver such an one to satan for the destruction of the flesh, that the spirit may be saved in the day of the Lord Jesus" (I Cor. 5:4-5). The apostle here deals with the case of a disobedient and sinful believer in the church at Corinth.

In another case, Paul writes: "Holding faith, and a good conscience; which some having put away concerning faith have made shipwreck; of whom is Hymenaeus and Alexander, whom I have delivered unto Satan, that they may learn not to blaspheme" (I Tim. 1:19-20).

"In meekness, instructing those that oppose themselves; if God peradventure will give them repentance to the acknowledging of the truth; and that they may recover themselves out of the snare of the devil, who are taken captive by him at his will" (II Tim.2:25-26).

When you go into the ministry of casting out demons, inevitably you are challenged by the question, "Is it possible for a born-again believer to have a demon? In charismatic circles the question is: "Is it possible for a believer who is baptized in the Spirit to have a demon?"

"Absolutely not!" comes the stock answer. "The Holy Spirit cannot coexist in the same body with a demon!"

Actually, the answer to both questions above is definitely "yes". Almost one-hundred percent of the deliverance ministry we have had has been among the born-again believers, and most of them were Baptized-in-the-Spirit Christians also.

Several arguments are advanced to "prove" that under no circumstances can a bornagain person have a demon. The most common statement is that a Christian cannot be "possessed". This will be discussed later as a misnomer. The arguments in summary run something like this:

The believer is inhabited by the Holy Spirit; therefore, the demons cannot coexist within the same body. The proof text usually used is I Cor. 2:12; however, the verse does not say this.

Jesus came to destroy the works of the Devil (I John 3:8), and indeed He did. In the case of problems caused by demons, the remedy and method of doing this is cast out the demons in His name.

The struggle inside the believer is always revealed to be the struggle between the flesh and the Spirit, and not a struggle involving demons (Rom. 6 and 7). Were that the case, the conscientious claiming of the promises of God would solve every human problem.

The believer is delivered from the power of Satan and his demons (Col. 1:12-13; Eph. 2:1-3). Yes, but like many other promises, not automatically, but only as we voluntarily meet God's conditions for deliverance.

The Christian is provided with complete protection from the fiery darts of the enemy (Eph. 6). This overlooks the rather obvious fact that the armor is designed for defense from external, not internal enemies, and also that even so the believer's armor is not always in place.

In spite of these arguments, the dismaying fact remains that born-again Christians, including leaders, are having difficulties and problems which can find no solution in natural infirmities or the endless conflict between the flesh and the Spirit. It is no secret that many have become discouraged and filled with awful despair.

In his tract, *Demon Activity and the Christian*, Ernest B. Rockstad rightly concludes that: "Experience, of course is not the basis for the interpretation of the Bible. Never-theless, if consistent experiences run counter to an interpretation, the dedicated seeker after truth will set out to find the reason. He must be willing to re-study his interpretation under the direction of the Holy Spirit... and be prepared to make any necessary corrections in his own belief so as to be in full agreement with the facts as they are." He further points out that understanding the Biblical doctrine of human depravity should cause one to wonder that the Holy Spirit would enter a person under any circumstances.

You cannot argue anyone into believing that the old fundamental stand against Christians having demons is fallacious. There is an excellent presentation of the whole question in Don Basham's book, *Can A Christian Have A Demon?*. Writers like Frances Manuel, Merrill linger, Mark Bubeck, and Robert Peterson also teach that a Christian can have a demon.

In his very balanced and scholarly treatise, *Demons In The World Today*, Dr. Unger writes, "In demon influence, evil spirits exert power over a person short of actual possession. Such influence may vary from mild harassment to extreme subjection when body and mind become dominated and held in slavery by spirit agents. Christians, as well as non-Christians, can be so influenced. They may be oppressed, vexed, depressed, hindered and bound by demons."

Dr. Unger is frank to say that he had written in 1952, "To demon possession, only unbelievers are exposed." Twenty years later, he writes: "This statement was inferred, since Scripture does not clearly settle the question. It was based on the assumption that an evil spirit could not indwell the redeemed body together with the Holy Spirit".

Hobart Freeman points out that, "as a result of erroneous teachings and beliefs, which are based neither upon Scripture or experience, Satan has deluded many concerning the question, can a Christian be oppressed by Satan or possess evil spirits? Can one who has never participated actively in any form of occultism be subjected or oppressed?" The answer to both questions is yes, supported both from the Scriptures and experience.

Derek Prince in his helpful pamphlet, *Expelling Demons*, explains facts linguistically which should help unsnarl the semantic tangle. "The New Testament Greek word for 'demon' is 'daimonion' ... in the King James Version ... often translated 'devil'. Associated in the New Testament with the noun 'daimonion' is the passive verb 'daimonizomai'. The literal meaning of this verb is 'to be demoned', that is, in some way under the influence or power of demons. In the King James Version this verb is usually translated by some phrase such as 'to be possessed' or 'to be vexed by demons or by evil spirits. However, there is no distinction in the original Greek text to support these (translated) distinctions".

Believers were definitely subjected to demonic attack in the Scriptures. The physical afflictions and other disasters of Job are shown to be Satan's work in Job 1 and 2. In the synagogue there was a man with an unclean spirit (Mark 1:23). A woman called "a daughter of Abraham" (father of the faithful) was bound with a spirit of infirmity for eighteen years (Luke 13:11-16).

There is no reason to conclude arbitrarily in the two latter cases that the persons involved were not believers. In II Tim. 2:23-26, where Paul discusses contention and disputing over doctrine, believers are indicated who have evidently slipped and need to "recover themselves from the snare of the devil, who are taken captive of him at his will".

A member of the church in Corinth seems to have been overcome by a spirit of lust (I Cor. 5:1-5). Jesus rebuked a spirit of fever in Peter's mother-in-law (Luke 4:38-39) and it left her, and she was well. In Mark 9:25, Jesus uses this same term to rebuke Satan. Sickness is described as an oppression of the Devil in Acts 10:38 and Jesus often healed by removing spirits of infirmity, which are simply another method of Satanic attack (Luke 4:40-41).

Consider Peter, who one moment spoke by Divine revelation, declaring that Jesus was the very Christ, and in the next moment was reprimanded by Jesus, who rebuked Satan in him, saying "thou savorest not the things that be of God" (Matt. 16:13-23). Simon the magician is presented as one who believed and was baptized, but had evidently not been delivered from his occult bondage and was commanded to repent and pray (Acts 8:20-24). How did Satan manage to "fill the heart" of the believers Ananias and Sapphira? (Acts 5:3). Paul himself reports he suffered buffeting from a "messenger of Satan" (II Cor. 12:7).

Dr. V. Raymond Edman, the late president of Wheaton College, wrote the following in answer to a question as to whether or not a Christian could have a demon: "... The unguarded Christian may have demon possession in the soul, which would affect mental processes and emotions; or in the body, as was the case of the woman who had a 'spirit of infirmity eighteen years and was bowed together, and could in no wise lift up herself (Luke 13:11). Of her, the Saviour said when He healed her, 'Ought not this woman, being a daughter of Abraham, whom Satan hath bound, lo, these eighteen years, be loosed from this bond on the Sabbath day?' To say that a Christian cannot be demonized in any area of his life is a happy but inaccurate generalization".

Paul reproves the Corinthian Christians for receiving another spirit than the Spirit they had previously received (II Cor. 11:4).

Paul inquired, in Gal. 3:1, about who had bewitched the believers to draw them away from the truth.

Robert Peterson makes an interesting comment: "It appears that the full force of deceiving spirits is directed against the spiritual believer in doctrinal rather than worldly matters, although the latter may be used after the believer has been ensnared by the most subtle means. In I Tim. 4:1-2 the Apostle Paul gives a full account of how wicked spirits attack the spiritual believer and by deception beguile him away from the faith through the use of false prophets".

Don Basham sums up the matter when he writes that there is an "almost universal sense of fear and loathing toward the whole subject of Satan and the evil spirits. Many believers have adopted the fallacious idea that if they ignore Satan, he will ignore them. Scripturally, such a position is indefensible" (I Peter 5:8-9; James 4:7; II Cor. 2:11).

When the power of God begins to move in a person's life, he quite naturally becomes an object for the devil's most crippling attacks. The unreasoning fear of demons is fostered and promoted by Satan and his hosts directly. Basham concludes that a Christian can be tormented or afflicted by evil spirits in some area of his life and still be a sincere Christian; just as he can be tormented by physical sickness and still be a sincere Christian. It is always a blessing to see truths, not mere speculations, in print concerning spiritual warfare.

I shudder when I hear someone remark skeptically, "Well, I just can't believe that. I'd have to see it first." They seek to shield themselves by mere ignorance! For myself, I had no real problem believing in a personal Devil and in the fact that demons can infest both lost and saved as they have opportunity. To me it was as foolish as telling Peter he could not walk on the water when he was already doing it.

When a person is born again by confessing his sin and asking the Lord Jesus Christ to come into his heart and save him (Rom. 3:23-24; 6:23; Rev. 3:20), he is received by the Father and salvation comes instantaneously in the experience of the new birth. Love, joy, and peace are the initial, logical by-products.

The Holy Spirit comes to indwell and seal the believer as God's earnest of redemption (Eph. 1:13-14) and His abiding presence is guaranteed until the believer is redeemed (in point of time) completely by being taken to be with the Lord, whether it be through the door of death, or through the door of the Lord Jesus' return (I Thes. 4:16-17).

The Holy Spirit therefore inhabits the body of the believer in a peculiar and special way in these days since Pentecost, when the Holy Spirit was poured out on the assembled believers. The child of God (John 1:12) is accepted in the Beloved, Jesus (Eph. 1:6) and blessed with the assurance of God's presence and blessing. (John 10:28-30).

In spite of these wonderful changes, however, a week will scarcely pass in a babe's life (assuming he follows the Lord in Bible study and prayer), that he will not be convicted of some sin of omission or commission (James 4:17), which must be confessed (I John 1:9) and put away (Prov. 28:13). This will continue indefinitely as long as the believer is growing in grace and in the knowledge of the Lord Jesus Christ.

Many of these sins of omission and commission were present at the time of conversion and some will lie unnoticed by the believer for months, until the Lord deals with them. The Holy Spirit is able to coexist with these unconfessed sins. Why then is it so difficult to accept the fact that the Holy Spirit is able to also coexist with indwelling demons until they are detected, hated, renounced and expelled in the Name of Our Lord Jesus Christ?

PRAYER

I forgive the teachers that say a Christian cannot have a demon within their flesh or soul. God please forgive the teachers and show them the truth. Please forgive me for believing the teachers who teach this false doctrine. I forgive myself for the damage done to me and my family by practicing false teachings. I now break any curses of false doctrine on me and my descendants. I ask these things in the blessed name of Jesus Christ, my Lord, Master and Savior.

LIST OF DEMONS

Unclean Spirit	Foul spirit	Sorcery
Devils	Deaf	Bewitchment
Diverse Diseases	Fever	Fornication
Leprosy	Infirmity	Destruction
Satan	Lies	Unforgiveness
Dumb	Falsities	Another Jesus
Another Spirit	Another Gospel	Beguiling
Subtlety	Corruption	Weakness
Messenger of Satan	Disobedience	Anger
Lusts Of The Flesh	Blasphemy	Seducing Spirits
Desires Of The Flesh And Mind	Hypocrisy	Profanity
Doctrines Of Devils	Striving	Pride
Seared Conscience	Afflictions	Foolishness
Root Of Bitterness	Cults	Despair
Angels Of Light	Error	Hopelessness
Spiritual Pride	Deceiving	Suicide
Occultism	Fear	Resentment
Doubt	Depression	Sickness
False Doctrine & Teachers	Magic	Ignorance
Death	Hate	

REFERENCES

"How Can a Christian Have Demons?", pp. 136-138, Pigs In The Parlor. "What About Demons in Christians?", pp. 109-117, Battling The Hosts Of Hell. "Who is a Believer?", pp. 59-60, Annihilating The Hosts Of Hell "Results When Demonization of Christian is Denied", p 9, Annihilating The Hosts of Hell.

"Warning Signals", pp. 367-369, Breaking Points.

2. JESUS CAST OUT DEMONS EVERY WHERE HE WENT

LIST OF SCRIPTURES

Matthew:	4:23-24	All Galilee, Synagogues (vs. 23)
	8:14-17	Peter's house (vs. 14)
	8:28-33	Seashore (vs. 32)
	9:32-33	Outside (vs. 32)
	10:7-8	Everywhere (vs. 7)
	12:15, 22	Great multitudes (vs. 15)
	15:22-28	Coasts (vs. 22)
	16:13-19	Coasts (vs. 13)
	17:14-21	Multitude (vs. 14)
Mark:	1:23-27	Synagogues (vs. 23)
	1:32-34	Door - house of Simon and Andrew (vs. 33)
	1:39-41	Synagogues, all Galilee (vs. 39)
	3:9-15	Small ship (vs. 9)
	5:2-20	Out of ship (vs. 2)
	6:10-15	House (vs. 10)
	7:24-30	House (vs. 24)
	9:14-27	Multitude (vs. 14)
	9:33, 39	House (vs. 33)
Luke:	4:33-36	Synagogue (vs. 33)
	4:38-41	Simon's house (vs. 38)
	6:17-19	Plain (vs. 17)
	8:1-3	Every city and village (vs. 1)
	8:26-39	Seashore (vs. 26)
	9:37-42	Down from the hill (vs. 37)
	13:11-17	Synagogue (vs. 14)

GENERAL

As you can see, Jesus cast out demons in the synagogues, in all Galilee, outside, in the multitude, in houses, at the seashore, in a ship, in the plain, in every city and village, and finally everywhere among the people. I researched the Bible on where Jesus cast out demons; it is essentially everywhere He went. I believe this is what Jesus wants us to do. Since we are the temple of the Holy Spirit, we can have church anywhere two or more are gathered together. This can be you and the person you are ministering to.

What is casting out demons? Mark 16:17 says "And these signs (casting out) shall follow them that believe (Christians) in My name (Jesus) shall they 'cast out devils'." Cast out means to eject, bring forth, cast forth, drive out, expel, pluck, pull out, take out, thrust out, put forth, send away and send forth. Casting out demons is a command, not a prayer. For example, the following is a command for deliverance. "Spirit of rejection I command you to come out of me, John, Jane, etc. in the name of Jesus". There is some strong scripture that applies to those who fight against deliverance, especially in the church: Matt. 7:6 Dogs ... do not throw your pearls before swine.

Matt. 23:27-28 Hypocrites ... whitewashed tombs -full of dead men's bones and all uncleanness, full of hypocrisy and iniquity.

They are not fighting against the deliverance ministers, but against God and His Holy Bible. I pity them when they stand before God in the Great White Throne Judgement!

MASS DELIVERANCE IN THE CHURCH BY JESUS

Six REFERENCES were previously listed telling about Jesus casting out demons in the synagogues even in all Galilee. There is no term of "mass deliverance" in the King James Version of the Holy Bible. However, there is nothing that says Jesus did not have mass deliverance! There are REFERENCES to Jesus healing all the sick and casting demons out of them all.

THE HOLY BIBLE COMMANDS US TO CAST OUT DEMONS

Matt. 10:7-8 Apostles cast out demons everywhere they went.

Matt. 11:4-6 We should not be offended in any work of Jesus which includes deliverance. Matt. 18:18-20 We are to "bind, loose and agree".

Matt. 28:18-20 Teaching them to observe all things - which includes deliverance.

Mark 16:15-20 Go ye into all the world (and churches) - cast out demons.

Luke 4:18-20 A general charge to Christians - preach deliverance to captives - set at liberty them that are bruised.

Luke 7:21-23 Minister to the "blind, lame, lepers, deaf, dead and the poor".

Acts 8:5-7 Preaching the Word - unclean spirits came out - healing by deliverance.

SUMMARY

It is clear from the many scriptures that Jesus cast out demons everywhere He went and He wants the Christians to follow His pattern of ministry. The world will never be conquered for God from Satan unless deliverance is practiced world wide! We should have church everywhere we go.

The biggest enemy of God in deliverance is the Full-Gospel Christian that says that a Christian can not have a demon. They are keeping the world in bondage that cannot be overcome by just salvation, baptism in the Holy Spirit, divine healing, and material prosperity. God has some strong words to apply to those that fight against Him.

Christians need a lot of mass deliverance, group deliverance and individual deliverance. That's why Jesus cast out demons everywhere He went.

We need all-out spiritual warfare against Satan and his forces of evil. If you look at the statistics of the world, you can see that Satan is winning the battle. There will only be a small percentage of the world population in Heaven. It is estimated that only about 2% of the world population and 25% of the Church population will make it to Heaven. "Because strait is the gate, and narrow is the way, which leadeth unto life, and few there be that find it" (Matt. 7:14).

3. THE DELIVERANCE MINISTER

GENERAL

There are two basic ways to get rid of demons. One way is to exorcise the demon. Exorcism is the method used by those who follow Satan. The other way is deliverance. Deliverance is the method used by those who follow Jesus Christ, Son of Almighty God. If there is anything in a persons life that they cannot control and it is controlled by Satan, then the person is demon possessed in that area of their life. We have met few people that are totally demon-possessed in every area of their life.

Our calling is to be teachers. The Lord told us to help train an army of deliverance workers and ministers as well as the families to minister to themselves. There are tremendous fringe benefits to the ministry of helping your own family. You will see the power of God flow through you, and signs, wonders and miracles performed by God in the people you minister to.

EXORCISM

Native doctors and those who follow Satan (spiritualism, witchcraft, occult and Satan worship) claim that they can cast out demons. The Devil's followers cannot cast out demons. These people ask you to pay for their services or they are looking for power, drugs, sex or some other gain. A sacrifice may even be given to appease the demon. A weaker spirit is removed and a stronger spirit is substituted. After exorcism, the person is worse off than before, although for awhile it may look like there is improvement. Satan does not give free gifts; he gets something in return! God is the only one that gives free gifts through Jesus Christ.

ORDINARY CHRISTIANS

Christians can cast out demons of any rank in the Mighty Name of Jesus Christ (Mark 16:17; Luke 10:17-20). However, there are situations that require more experience than the ordinary Christian would have. These situations are where ordinary deliverance has not done the job. Here an experienced deliverance minister is required. Don't be afraid to get involved as the Holy Spirit leads you. There are too many cowardly Christians and Ministers that are afraid to get involved in this deliverance which is controversial and unpopular.

DELIVERANCE MINISTER

General

A deliverance minister is a person God has especially prepared for this work: teaching, ministry and counseling. The work of the Gospel is supposed to be done as a team (I Cor. 3:5-15). Some ministers are experts at teaching, preaching, pastoring, administering, organizing, counseling, praying, etc. Some are experts at deliverance (I Cor. 12:4-12; Eph. 4:11-12).

We are supposed to work together, consult together and refer cases to those we know God has made specialists in certain areas. In this way everyone is blessed and the Gospel work advances. The problem is that in a ministry or church one person wants to be everything. He cannot cope with all of the problems and things begin to get out of control. Many people suffer as the result. Disappointment and frustration overcomes them; they leave the church and go back into the world.

Comparison With Jesus

What about Jesus, didn't He do everything perfectly? However, Jesus had unlimited measure of the Holy Spirit - the Seven Spirits of God (John 3:34; Rev. 4:5 and 5:6). These seven administrations of the Holy Spirit are:

- 1. The Spirit of Jehovah the knowledge of Divine will, counsel and power to make the same known to others.
- 2. The Spirit of Wisdom not Word of Wisdom
- 3. The Spirit of Judgment
- 4. The Spirit of Counsel
- 5. The Spirit of Might
- 6. The Spirit of Knowledge of Jehovah of His nature, attributes and character
- 7. The Fear of Jehovah (Isa 11:2-3)

God deals with us according to our measure of faith (Rom. 12:3). Christ gives us the Spirit according to His measure (Eph. 4:7). No one is able to measure up to Christ and be perfect in all ways all of the time. The fact that a person manifests all of the nine gifts does not necessarily mean he is walking in full measure of Christ. If you manifest the nine gifts very well and manifest the nine fruits equally well (Gal. 5:22-24), then you are nearer to being Christ-like.

God knows that we grow by stages; that is why He scattered the gifts and ministrations of the Holy Spirit on the church at large. Within each ministry God has put all that is necessary to do the job of the Full Gospel according to Mark 16 if we all work together in the five-fold ministry.

Preparation For The Ministry

The minister on whom God has poured the Spirit of Deliverance from demon-possession needs preparation:

- 1. The minister needs to surrender fully to God and throw open all the doors and windows of his/her life to the searchlight of the Holy Spirit. The work of the deliverance minister can be a difficult undertaking.
- 2. The minister needs to be fully equipped.
- 3. The minister needs a good knowledge of the Scriptures and the Spirit of Understanding.
- 4. The minister needs a working knowledge of demons. This can only be acquired from learning and experience combined.
- 5. The minister needs to know how to handle different situations and types of demons.
- 6. A lengthy discussion of deliverance is found in our Deliverance Manual which contains four books: Basic Deliverance, Advanced Deliverance, Mass Deliverance, and How To Do Deliverance.

Some Advice

For the person who wants God to use him/her for deliverance work among those possessed by evil spirits, here is some advice:

- 1. The person ministering in the area of deliverance is in a position of all-out warfare with the forces of evil. Many have fallen by the wayside because of ignorance of the Bible and of deliverance, still having many demons within themselves, women and men ministering by themselves, being lured by false doctrines, etc. A man should never minister alone with a woman, or a woman alone with a man.
- 2. Demons can be very stubborn and highly seductive. Demons do not easily come out when they have a right before God to stay due to unconfessed sin, curses, soul ties, etc. They can lure the man or woman who is alone into a sex trap destroying the ministry, their family and others who are following that leader.
- 3. Effective weapons used against ministers are carelessness, pride, immorality, taking God for granted, spiritual weakness, and affliction of wife/husband where the minister refuses to yield to God.
- 4. Deliverance ministers should train their families and involve them in deliverance work. Husband and should minister together as a team, if possible.

REFERENCES

Ministering Among The Demon Possessed, Victoria Eto, Shallom Christian Mission International, P.O. Box 159, Oleh, Bendel State, Nigeria.

4. KEYS TO SUCCESSFUL DELIVERANCE

PREFACE

This short lesson is on some comments about how to have successful deliverance. The Deliverance Manual goes into detail about how to do deliverance. We suggest that you study the manual and look up the Scriptures that are referred to therein You will have a good education in deliverance after you have finished that study.

We have been going to Lake Hamilton Bible Camp for years as part of the congregation and of the ministry. Through the years, we have ministered to most of those who live and work at the Camp, and minister at the Camp. We have also ministered mass deliverance and spot deliverance on a regular basis to those who attend the deliverance teaching sessions.

Observation of those we have ministered to over the years shows us certain keys to successful deliverance. If the deliverance works and is lasting, then the chances are that it was done properly. If not, then you need to keep searching for the right method. Usually, either the person is not disciplining their life or you have used this wrong method of deliverance.

LEGAL RIGHTS OF DEMONS

Every demon within a person has a legal right before God to be there. Satan is a legalist and knows his rights before God to send demons into a person. Learn to think of Satan as a lawyer demanding his rights before God. Learn to think of Jesus Christ as an advocate, a lawyer, defending our rights before God.

If we take away their legal rights before God to be in a human body, then we can cast them out relatively easily. This method takes away much of the violence that is exhibited when the demons have a right to remain. We had violence and strong manifestations before God taught us this lesson. We would have to hold people on the floor to keep them from hurting themselves and others. We have even had the demons tell us that they would like to leave but they couldn't because the person had unforgiveness, they were cursed or for some other reason. Once a demon told us that he was held in by a curse.

Earline and I are small of stature, we don't want our house torn up, and we have no desire to fight physically with demons. We have had faith in God to protect us as we have tried to help others, some of whom had violent histories. God has honored that request and our faith. He has sent angels to protect us and once we knew that an angel had held a young man to keep him from hurting us.

The following are some general categories of demons' legal rights that you need to remove before you start casting out: soul ties, false religions, occult activities, cursed objects, sins of ancestors and curses. You need to deal with any sin that has been committed that may have opened the door for demons to come in especially unforgiveness. God taught us that unforgiveness is the most important part of deliverance.

LAKE HAMILTON BIBLE CAMP

This camp was founded on the vision given to Glen and Erma Miller by God. It was a vision of a deliverance camp to set the captives free. The Camp practices deliverance and teaches about the Kingdom of God. Mass and individual deliverance is practiced in the men's and women's meetings, and in the main deliverance meetings. As mass deliverance is proceeding, workers move around and help drive the demons out. Between the meetings, people are worked with for varying periods of time in individual deliverance.

TYPES OF DELIVERANCE

Different types of deliverance are individual, small group and large group. Mass deliverance is simply deliverance for anyone who can hear the speaker's voice; it can be two people or hundreds of thousands of people. The most successful is the individual deliverance. It is also the most time consuming but the most fruitful. Deliverance is not a cure-all but will allow the person to do things they couldn't do before and to follow God if they are sincere.

HOME MINISTRY

On Sundays, we either go to church, minister in a church, minister in our home or prepare lessons to teach about deliverance. We have ministered in our home to a wide range of people through the years. The following is the general pattern that we follow. It takes about three to eight hours a session. We see excellent results but it depends on the person disciplining their life after deliverance.

- 1. Earline opens the meeting in prayer.
- 2. We have fellowship for a short period of time.
- 3. We spend one to three hours getting to know the person and their problems.
- 4. I write down the person's history and sins.
- 5. We counsel and teach the person as it is needed.
- 6. We take a break for refreshments.
- 7. We take the person through a prayer where they pray about their sins and the sins of their ancestors. We break Biblical curses and soul ties, renounce occult and false religions, loose Godly spirits, destroy or exorcise cursed objects, and make positive confessions in Christ.
- 8. We use one or more form prayers for deliverance.
- 9. We cast out the demons in the name of Jesus. We read deliverance Scripture.
- 10. We pray for healing as necessary.
- 11. We counsel the person how to remain delivered.
- 12. We are led by the Holy Spirit, and we use the years of experience and training that God has give us.

SIX BASIC STEPS TO YOUR DELIVERANCE

- 1. Identify your problems.
- 2. Forgive, pray and get yourself right with God.
- 3. Break the curses and soul ties on you and your descendents.
- 4. Cast out your demons.
- 5. Pray for healing of your soul and body.
- 6. Discipline your life by changing your way of thinking and acting.

These six steps would also apply to any person that you are ministering to. It is easy to cast out demons but hard to discipline your life. The key to your remaining free is to discipline your mind and actions.

SUMMARY

Practice systematic deliverance: basic then advanced then special - both mass and individual. Work on one or more areas of a person's life at a time. You can not cast out all of the demons at one time; Christians are very demonized!

Pray deliverance prayers - break Biblical curses and soul ties - renounce occult and false religions - loose Godly Spirits - destroy or exorcise cursed objects -make positive confessions in Christ - read deliverance Scripture. If the demons do not leave, find out what their legal right is and remove it. Ask God what it is, force the demon to tell you and/or ask the person what sin they or their ancestors committed to get them in that trouble.

5. ON WITH THE BATTLE

GENERAL

"You are My battle axe and weapons of war" (Jer. 51:20).

The scriptures declare that the Father is counting on the believer to subdue Satan's empire (Psa. 149:5-9, Isa. 58:1-7, Jer. 1:10, Luke 4:18-19, Eph. 2:10, and 3:10, Heb. 2:7-8 and I John 3:8).

This concept of causing the Devil's forces to war against themselves, and destroy their strength and organized power is not new. It has been used by the Father and is recorded in the scriptures (Judges 7:22).

The scriptures are clear that the believer has the authority over Satan and all his evil spirits. They are admittedly the creations of the Father (Isa. 45:7).

The scriptures verify that we have total authority vested in us by the Father through Jesus Christ.

The believer is in authority over "the work of God's hands" (Gen. 1:28, Psa. 8:6, Isa. 45:11, Matt. 28:18, Luke 10:19 and Rom. 8:14-23).

Jesus describes deliverance, Luke 11:21-22, in full with notes.

Here are promises by the Father that He would cause the Devil's forces to destroy themselves: Psa. 35:1-8, Psa. 37:11-15, Psa. 109:17-18 & 28-29, Isa. 41:11-12, Isa. 49:26 and Eze. 35:6.

COMMAND AND TAKE CHARGE DAILY

This is how the believer can serve his or her Father in power in the battle planned against Satan.

Father, I come to you in the name of the Lord Jesus Christ. I take authority over Satan and all his evil spirits from my position at the right hand of the Father, seated above 'every name that is named* in the authority of the Lord Jesus Christ.

In the name of the Lord Jesus Christ, I bind the strong man over the world wide organizations such as:

Masonic Order and Bloodless Religions. Catholic Church and False Religions. Communist Empire and Godless Governments. Illuminati, Council of Foreign Relations and Trilateral Commission. One World-Wide Union, Longshoreman, UAW and Teamsters. World Council of Churches. America, Common Market Nations, Canada and Mexico.

Any religious, political, social or other organization that has practices that are contrary to the Holy Bible."

Notice that every organization has a demonic power ruling over it. This is why we bind powers over America, etc.

CAUSING THE WAR IN HEAVEN

"In the authority of Jesus Christ, I take authority over all foul and evil spirits, authorities, princes, kings, powers, world rulers, and the highest and mightiest servants of Satan. I bind them to be powerless in the mighty name of Jesus Christ. Father, in the authority of the Lord Jesus Christ, I pronounce the judgement written in the scriptures upon the evil and greedy conspirators in and over these world-wide organizations. As it is written, Father, I ask you to bring upon them the judgments found in Psa. 1:4, Isa. 41:11-12 and Jer. 17:5-6."

THE BATTLE TODAY

Satan and his forces continue today in their steadfast opposition against the overwhelming evidence that they will surely lose the battle. Dr. Chafer declares that Satan "is the living contender against the believer in the realms of spiritual life and activity as well as in the area of flesh and blood".

Satan and his fallen angels are sharply limited in power compared with God, for they are mere finite creatures who can do nothing outside the permissive will of God.

Robert Peterson points out that, "The master passion of Satan for worship leads him to gain worship by whatever method brings the best results. He gains the worship of millions of intelligent people through counterfeit systems of truth, persuading them that he does not exist; or that he holds no dread for the educated and informed, who either belittle his influence or dismiss it as humbug. The superstitious on the other hand, are held in bondage by fear, a fear the western world cannot understand because it defies explanation".

As Mrs. George Needham observes: "The root of idolatry is demonology. All its stupidity and senseless ceremony are but addenda to the main facts. The senses are gratified, the passions unloosed, the conscience deluded - but chief over all, Satan is worshipped."

The demons, and all their dupes, reject the Bible. So are Christians also dupes who reject any part of the Bible.

There can be very little doubt that the demons do have a highly organized empire of evil. Peterson writes out of direct observation as a missionary in Borneo, "I myself have heard through the lips of possessed persons two demons arguing over disputed territory. It seems that the demons are given boundaries over which they are not allowed to pass. Again I have heard demons trying to assert authority over other demons. If the one trying to usurp authority is lower in rank than the other one, there is apt to be violence. On the other hand, if the demon is high in rank, other demons must submit to his higher authority." "With those who are immersed in idolatry, Satan gains his end through fear, but with those who, having the Bible, should be acquainted with the Devil's devices, his most effective work is that of deluding men into believing that all this talk of demonic activity is mere superstition and unscientific nonsense, so fulfilling Satan's description as the one 'who deceiveth the whole world' (Rev. 12:9)."

Michael Harper flashes the alert that, "Behind the facade of religious life there is a spiritual battle raging. There seem to be many who are not fully aware of this warfare. From time to time there is a dramatic collision between the power of the Spirit and that of Satan. Success for the Christian will depend in a large measure on recognizing the work of the Devil and knowing how to defeat and expel him from every situation. So it is today, there is a fierce conflict and there are those who do not wish to pass this way. But we cannot avoid the battle - for if we do not fight the enemy, he will still come at us."

This conflict began long before the birth of Jesus and reached its height during His ministry. It will continue until Satan is thrown into the Lake of Fire and Brimstone.

Early in this century, Mrs. Penn-Lewis noted, "It is clear in Bible history that the manifestation of the power of God at Pentecost, and through the Apostles, meant again an aggressive attitude to the powers of darkness. Therefore, the growth and maturity of the Church of Christ at the end of the dispensation will mean the same recognition, and the same attitude toward the Satanic hosts of the Prince of the Power of the Air; with the same co-witness of the Holy Spirit to the authority of the Name of Jesus, as in the early Church. In brief, that the Church of Christ will reach its high water mark, when it knows how to 'bind the strong man' by prayer; 'command' the spirits of evil in the Name of Christ, and deliver men and women from their power."

Harper writes these encouraging words: "These wicked beings can suggest evil, but cannot coerce the will of another creature. They may spread snares and devices to ruin the children of God, but cannot compel any other being to comply with their designs, nor can they employ God's creation other than as He decrees. They have never been able to defeat God, and actually God uses them as instruments to correct the erring saints" (Luke 22:31-32, I Cor. 5:5, I Tim. 1:20).

Someone has remarked that Satan is like a monkey wrench which the Lord uses to tighten up loose nuts! Be of good cheer, saints of God! Satan is severely limited and all his bluster and bluff about 'all power' is sham. Our God is still on the throne and He rules! Hallelujah!

REFERENCES

On With The Battle! by J.M. Haggard.

6. COMMENTS ON DELIVERANCE

PREFACE

God is sovereign and can do anything. However, He will not violate the Holy Bible.

We will never reach the state of life where we do not make any mistakes in judgement or commit any sins, and do have perfect knowledge like God. To be perfect you must completely follow the whole Bible and be like Jesus Christ continually.

I have heard sermon after sermon that said all you have to do is pray or do some other part of our Christian duty. I have heard many sermons that someday God is going to do great things so that it will be easy to do great miracles.

We live in the nasty now and now. The only thing that counts is what will work. I want to see results, not hear theories about what God will do in the future.

Many times we work with pastors, deliverance workers and those who have been subjected to deliverance. As we work with these people in personal deliverance, we find that they have many demons.

Our desire is to see people really helped. I am an engineer, not a preacher. I am trained to see practical results and to be efficient. There is no place in my life for spiritual fantasy.

These are my comments after eleven years of intensive experience of working countless hours with thousands of people. Deliverance is a continuous learning experience and will be until we die. No one ever arrives in God's Kingdom. Much time has been spent in prayer, meditation, study, research, fasting, and association with others who write and minister deliverance.

LEARN ABOUT THE REAL ENEMY

There is one Satan - one individual not omniscient, omnipresent or omnipotent like God.

There are millions of fallen angels. Rev. 5:11 calculates at least 101,000,000 total angels. Rev. 12:4 calculates at least 33,700,000 fallen angels.

There are billions of demons. We only work with Christians and find that they have many demons. If the world has billions of people and Christians have many demons, then there must be many billions of demons.

Demons probably come from a Pre-Adamic Race but there is no scriptural REFERENCES that can be found to prove this statement.

Satan is in charge (Chief of Staff). The fallen angels are his officers. The demons are his foot soldiers.

We cast about 10,000 demons out of one man over a nine-month period. The demons freely talked, and gave us information about their rank and number. One demon said that a person could have tens of thousands of demons. This is probably someone that has worshiped Satan.

ON WITH THE BATTLE

We will be in a battle with Satan and his evil forces until we die. He never quits and we should never quit. Satan counts on us being quitters; we must persist!

The battle becomes more fierce as we are used more by God. However, the victories become greater and more pleasing to us and God.

Satan came to steal, kill and destroy; he works hard at his job. He will take everything from you that you will let him have.

Christians want to have their needs met quickly and easily. God simply does not work this way. You have to persist over a long period of time to restore your life. If it took you years to get into the spiritual and physical mess that you are in, why would you expect God to restore you overnight?

Christians expect God to be like a fast-food restaurant and to dish the food out on a silver platter. God cut a Covenant with you. He will always do His part but He will not do your part of the covenant.

Satan is a good Devil and works twenty-four hours a day at his job of destroying you. We need to be as good at being Christians as Satan is good at being evil.

You must learn what your condition is: mentally, physically, spiritually and materially. You must learn why you got into that condition so that you will not repeat the same mistakes.

There is no cure-all in the Bible. You must use all the provisions of the Bible to lead a balanced life. There are no short-cuts to a successful Christian life.

God realizes that the human race is lazy. We want what God has for us without having to put out much effort. That is why God requires us to work at being Christians.

The casting out of demons will not work by itself. It must be combined with teaching about deliverance and with the disciplining of your life. You must learn to change the way you think and act.

There is a curse against Christians who will not fight God's battles (I Kings 20:35-42 and Jer. 48:10).

Probably the greatest hindrances in the lives of Christians are unforgiveness, rejection, bitterness and rebellion.

Christians will never conquer the world for God in their present condition without deliverance. The church is in a pitiful state.

We have ministered to Christians with problems for over eleven years. It has shown us that the average Christian is very demonized. The amazing thing is how a person can even function with so many demons.

You must clean your house of cursed objects. You must do the things necessary to live a victorious Christian life: have a working knowledge of the Bible and put that knowledge into practice.

OVERALL VIEW OF DELIVERANCE

The best way to view deliverance is to look at what Jesus Christ did and said in the Bible. It is estimated that he spent a fourth to a third of his time teaching and ministering deliverance. If He thought it was that important, then we should too!

Deliverance consists of about three equal parts: teaching, casting out and counseling. There are many good books on deliverance and there is much in the Bible on this subject. The people need mass, group and individual deliverance. Finally, they need counseling so that they can discipline their minds and bodies.

Satan fights deliverance more than any other area of the Christian life. This is the last battleground to complete victory. When you get saved, you become a Foot Soldier. When you receive the Baptism, you become a Marine and are sent to the front line. When you enter into deliverance, you become a Paratrooper and are parachuted behind the Gates of Hell for all-out spiritual warfare.

Deliverance is the most controversial area of the Christian life. Christians generally either do not get involved or only get involved slightly. Because of this, there are weaknesses in the ministry of deliverance.

The biggest weakness is trying to cover deliverance by just casting out demons without proper teaching or counseling. Here, many Christians only go after the surface demons and do not go after the root causes of why the person got into those problems in the first place.

The second biggest weakness is not walking out the deliverance. After the demons are cast out, a person must change their ways of thinking and acting or they will let the demons come back into them. A person needs extensive counseling to help them do this and they must decide to change their lives.

The third biggest weakness is the lack of teaching on deliverance. There is a large body of knowledge about deliverance but you hear little practical teaching come from the pulpit.

Deliverance will not be completely successful unless there is a balance in the church and in the congregation of teaching, ministry and counseling. We have seen partial failures because people relied on just casting out demons, not disciplining their lives or not studying deliverance.

We have never seen a Christian that was not helped in some measure by deliverance. The measure of success is mainly dependent upon the person receiving deliverance. They must be persistent and consistent. They must set their face like flint to walk out their deliverance over an extended period of time!

7. LIVING THE WHOLE CHRISTIAN LIFE

PREFACE

It bothers me for preachers to give a sermon and then say that this sermon is the answer to all of your problems. Then for the preacher to do the same thing next week or week after week. There is no one answer to the Christian life. This lesson is what God has shown us about the Christian life; it is an overview. We are not completely living this life but we are improving as time goes by. I don't want to bring you into condemnation. You need to realize that it takes time to change your life; it actually takes years. God is a God of Restoration and you will spend your whole life being restored. I believe that if we were completely restored, we would be like Adam and Eve; able to do anything that God wants us to do. Our goal is to be more like Jesus Christ realizing that we will never be another Jesus Christ.

GENERAL

To live the whole Christian life means to obey the whole Bible. It means that every aspect of our lives must be lined up with the precepts of the Bible. This includes the mental, physical, spiritual and material parts of our lives. The Bible tells us how to live in every area of our lives. God is not out-of-date; He didn't forget anything in the Bible for our modern age.

MENTAL

We must discipline our mind, will and emotions. We learn to control our thinking the same way we control our physical body. The physical is told what to do; so, the brain is also told what to think by the spirit. The Holy Spirit leads our spirit which leads our soul which leads our body. The passive mind is an empty vessel inviting demons to have their way.

PHYSICAL

We must take care of our physical body. We should not abuse it by food, drink, drugs, etc. that we put into the body. We should not sin against the body by committing sexual sin. The body needs some physical exercise but not before spiritual exercise. The body is the temple of the Holy Spirit and should be a place where the Holy Spirit would want to live.

SPIRITUAL

We must feed the spiritual man within us. This requires living the Christian life. That requires reading the Bible, fasting, praying, fellowship with other Christians and other Christian activities. After salvation, it includes obtaining the Baptism in the Holy Spirit, learning about divine healing and divine health, deliverance and casting out demons, and prosperity for all areas of our life.

MATERIAL

We must learn that God is our source who will supply all of our needs. We learn to look to God rather than to ourselves or to man. We learn to have faith and trust in God. We will prosper mentally, physically, spiritually and even materially. Remember that the love of money is the root of all evil.

SALVATION, BAPTISM IN HOLY SPIRIT, AND DELIVERANCE

Learn how to lead people to salvation and the Baptism in the Holy Spirit with the evidence of speaking in other tongues. Learn how to pray for healing and how to cast out demons. Learn how to have prosperity in every area of your life; you will prosper as your spirit prospers.

SPIRIT, SOUL AND BODY

We are a spirit that has a body and a soul. The spirit and soul reside in the body which is a temporary house. Our spirit and soul will be with us in Heaven. The order of importance is spirit first, soul second and body last.

GOD, FAMILY AND OCCUPATION

The order of importance is God first, family second and occupation last. Most of my life was spent in the reverse order: occupation first, family second and God last. If you put God first in your life, He will help you and work with you to work out the remainder of your life (family, occupation, etc.) so that everything will work together for the Glory of God and to your benefit.

SHORTCUTS TO THE CHRISTIAN LIFE

There are no excuses in the Bible. There are no shortcuts to the whole Christian life. You must work to live the Christian life. It is not a passive, spectator sport of watching others do your work. You must work at being a good mate, a good parent, a good child and a good Christian all of your life. God does not honor lazy Christians.

BATTLE AGAINST EVIL

Satan is good at his job of being evil. He works twenty-four hours a day at destroying you. His demons never rest. You need to be as good at being a Christian as Satan is good at being evil. You will battle evil until you die. Learn to be a good soldier for the Lord.

CHARISMATIC WITCHCRAFT

You must learn to follow God and not man. Don't fall into the trap of idolizing your leader. You must be free from man so that you can do what God wants in your life.

PROMISES IN THE BIBLE

There are many promises to Christians in the Bible However, for every promise there is a condition. You will not receive the promise if you do not fulfill the condition. We want to live a haphazard, sinful Christian life and yet receive all of the blessings from God It won't work; God is not mocked.

BLESSINGS AND CURSES

There is a blessing for every verse in the Bible that you obey. There is a curse for every verse in the Bible that you disobey. If you obey half of the Bible, you are half blessed and half cursed. Decide to follow the whole Bible, not just a selected part of it.

SIN IN YOUR LIFE

If you have sin in your life, you have opened the door for Satan and his demons to attack you, your family and your church. Sin is a crack in your armor whether known or unknown to you. You or your ancestors have invited Satan to come into your life and work havoc.

DEMONS AND CURSES IN YOUR LIFE

You must systematically work at ridding yourself of curses .and demons. It is much easier to live without your demons than with your demons. It is easier to live with the demons on the outside than on the inside of the body. Christians have many curses and demons, and must work over an extended period of time to rid themselves of these. What the church needs more than I anything else is deliverance. They will never win the battle with Satan without deliverance. We need to cast out demons as a natural part of our Christian life.

SATAN'S MASTER PLAN TO DESTROY THE HUMAN RACE

Satan first wants you to get rejected. Then he causes you to become bitter by having unforgiveness. Finally he leads you into rebellion. You are then programmed to go into many other demonic activities such as sexual sin to gain love that you didn't receive as a child.

REJECTION, BITTERNESS, REBELLION AND UNFORGIVENESS

These three families, "The Three R's", of demons are the root causes of most of our problems as Christians. We must work to cleanse our lives of all rejection, bitterness and rebellion so that we are not controlled in any way by these emotions and reactions. Unforgiveness is very detrimental to our lives. We must forgive everyone who has done anything to us - actual or imagined. Hate, vengeance, envy and strife have no part in our lives.

CONSCIOUS AND SUBCONSCIOUS MIND

You must deal with why you consciously do things that are displeasing to God. You must deal with why you do things subconsciously without active thought on your part. You must check every area of your live that does not glorify Jesus, further the Kingdom of God, please the Holy Spirit within you, line up with the Bible, and make good sense. Your mind will be slowly restored as you follow the Bible and walk the Christian walk.

CLEANING YOUR HOME AND YOUR PERSON

You must clean your home and your person (body) of cursed objects. If you have cursed objects, you become cursed and you will have demons living with you. They don't just come to live in your home or on your person, they come to torment you and your family.

MASS & INDIVIDUAL DELIVERANCE, TEACHING & COUNSELING

We need mass and individual deliverance to rid ourselves of curses and demons. We need teaching and counseling to learn to discipline our minds and bodies. We need plenty of deliverance and teaching; it should be about one third of our church services.

MAINTAINING DELIVERANCE AND CHRISTIANITY

When you receive deliverance, you must fight to maintain it by changing your way of thinking and acting. You maintain your Christianity by continuing to live the Christian life. If you are not going forward with Jesus, you are going backwards with Satan. You must fight to discipline your soul and body. We can't just cast out your demons and you will live happily ever after. Start testifying about your deliverance; it will strengthen you.

DISCIPLINE FOR MIND AND BODY

Your mind must be disciplined so that it will think properly in accordance with the Bible. You must learn to act according to God rather than react according to Satan when presented with problems. You must discipline your body by getting proper sleep, exercise and food. You need sufficient rest for recuperation, physical exercises to keep the body working properly and the right food to sustain the body. You can sleep too much or too little. Lack of exercise will allow the body to deteriorate. Eat the right food and keep your body trim, not overweight.

LEARN ABOUT THE REAL ENEMY

You must educate yourself about Satan and his kingdom of evil so that you are not destroyed by ignorance about the wiles of Satan. You need to read and study to show yourself approved as a workman for God. Find out what the Bible has to say about evil; don't just study the Love of God and His Promises to you. Don't fall into traps of the occult, false religions and other demonic practices such as certain holidays. Learn to see the forces of evil working in the lives of those people God tells us about in the Bible. The Bible contains much scripture about deliverance and demonic activity. We have written a "Deliverance Manual" to teach people about the enemy.

DEALING WITH THE REALITY OF LIFE

God is total reality; there is no fantasy or play acting in God. There is no unreality in the Bible. Christians should not deal in any spiritual fantasy. Fantasy is very simply a lie from Satan who is the father of lies.

DIVINE HEALING AND DIVINE HEALTH

It is wonderful that God will heal our bodies super-naturally by miracles or over a period of time. However, we need to learn to walk in divine health as a normal part of our lives. To walk in divine health requires taking care of our bodies and walking blameless before God. Drunkenness and gluttony arc the same in the Sight of God. Demonic sex can destroy our bodies and take us to Hell.

BODY AND MIND DELIVERED AND HEALED

You need your body free from diseases and your mind free from demonic emotions. To get free, you must pray that God will heal you, and you cast out the demons that control your emotions and diseases in your body. Healing and deliverance go hand-in-hand. Many times people do not get healed by prayer because they need their demons cast out. Medicine taken to cure the body is all right if you do not have faith in God to heal you supernaturally.

DELIVERANCE FOR MIND AND BODY

You must deal with the areas of curses, soul ties, occult, false religions and cursed objects to get free. Curses and soul ties must be broken. Occult and false religious ties must be severed. Cursed objects must be destroyed. Then the demons must be cast out. Finally, you must discipline your life so that the demons will not come back into you.

PSYCHIATRISTS, PSYCHOLOGISTS AND MENTAL INSTITUTIONS

There is no need for the whole profession of treating the mind in the Christian world; the heathen have no other source than this profession. The Bible clearly has made provisions for taking care of the mind without drugs. A Christian can deliver and counsel other Christians far more effec-

tively than any heathen worker in the mental field of medicine. Drugs for the mind are a form of sorcery used to control the demons in the mind; do not take these medicines.

INFIRMITY, WEAKNESS, SICKNESS AND DISEASE

Infirmities from weakness to terminal diseases can come from your ancestors; they are transmitted by demons through the blood line. Infirmities can come in through your sins. Arthritis and cancer can come in through unforgiveness and bitterness. You must repent and get right with God, break the curses on you by your ancestors and cast out the demons.

FAMILY

Everyone in the family needs deliverance. You need to learn to pray for each other and your children. Don't wait for the pastor to do it or it will never get done. The Bible has much scripture about how the Godly family should be and the right relationship of the family to God. One of the key areas is to be thankful for what we have and what God is doing in our lives. We must come out of sin and death into holiness and life. It requires a lot of work to be a good homemaker, husband, wife or child.

8. CHRISTIAN FANTASY - LIES NOT TRUTH

PREFACE

We frequently encounter Christian fantasy especially in the Full Gospel Movement. Hos. 4:6, "My people are destroyed for lack of knowledge," We perish because of our ignorance. II Tim. 2:15, "Study to shew thyself approved unto God." You must study by yourself; you can not depend on others to teach you everything. II Tim. 3:16, "All scripture is given by inspiration of God." Many times you get little scripture in a message and a lot of man's words. The Bible from cover to cover must be read repeatedly and meditated upon. James 1:22, "But be ye doers of the word." It does no good just to read or hear the Word of God; you must put it into practice. Head knowledge will get you to Hell; heart knowledge will get you to Heaven. As you can see from these scriptures, you must study the whole Bible and put it into practice. We are not just New Testament Christians ignoring the Old Testament. We are children of God following the whole Word of God.

After our 12 year old son, Byron died, I decided to quit playing church and start following God as my Lord, Master and Savior; before then He was only my Christ. I was concerned because I had not gone to the seminary or Bible school. God told me just to accept the Bible in simple childlike faith, put it into practice and watch it work. That fit in well with my practical engineering background. Since that time, I have followed those instructions; signs, wonders and miracles have followed the teaching of the Word.

DEFINITIONS

Fantasy: hallucination, fanciful, imagination, caprice, unrealistic, improbable, daydream. Fable: story, fictitious, legend, falsehood, lie. Cliché: stereotype, trite, overly familiar. Myth: parable, allegory, tradition, unfounded, false, imaginary, unverifiable.

TRUTH

Deut. 32:4, A God of truth. Isa. 65:16, The God of truth. Our God is the one and only God; He is the God of Truth. I Kings 17:24, Now by this I know that thou art a man of God. If you are of God, then truth will flow through your mouth. Jer. 4:2, The Lord liveth, in truth, in judgement, and in righteousness. Many Christians fall into Satan's trap that God is love only and not judgement also. John 4:23, Worship the Father in spirit and in truth. Some are not true worshipers but are hypocrites that are putting on a religious show that stinks in God's nostrils. John 14:6, I am the way, the truth, and the life. Unless we accept Jesus Christ on His terms, we will never come to the Father. I John 1:8, We deceive ourselves. There was only one perfect person on earth - Jesus Christ, the Son of God. All others sin. To be perfect, you must completely follow the whole Word of God every moment of your life. Gal. 4:16, Am I therefore become your enemy? Do you get mad at Earline and me because we tell you about the hard sayings in the Bible, and do not pet you in your sins and weaknesses? We call this practice petting demons.

LIES

Num. 23:19, God is not a man that He should lie. God doesn't lie but man does. I Sam. 15:29, Will not lie nor repent. God doesn't have to repent for lying but man should. Job 11:3, Should thy lies make men hold their peace? Eze. 13:10, Peace; and there is no peace. The ministry cries peace, peace when America and the world are deteriorating into sin and degradation. Prov. 6:19, A false witness that speaketh lies. There are a lot of pat phrases in the Christian world that are not true when put to the test. This is false witness and deceives others. Prov. 19:9, He that speaketh lies shall perish. It is dangerous to follow false teachings of any kind and you will perish in some manner. You will pay for any area of the Bible that you are ignorant of. As Earline says, you burn while you learn. Isa. 9:15, The prophet that teacheth lies, he is the tail. Instead of being a head of Christianity, he will be the tail. Isa. 28:15, Under falsehood have we hid ourselves. Are Christian fables your refuge? Isa. 63:8, Children that will not lie. God's people do not lie. Jer. 14:14. The prophets prophesy lies in My name. People prophesy in the name of God but the prophecy comes from their soul. It is a soulish prophecy that frequently ends with "thus saith the Lord". Jer. 23:14, They commit adultery and walk in lies. How many preachers and teachers have you seen committing adultery and teaching lies? Jer. 23:25, Saying, I have dreamed, I have dreamed. These are false prophets with false dreams. Jer. 23:32, Cause my people to err by their lies, and by their lightness. False prophesy will cause the people to err. Taking Christianity lightly is error. Eze. 13:19, To slay the souls that should not die. This is talking about false prophetesses. Acts 5:4, Thou hast not lied unto men, but unto God. Some lies are unto God. If you say your soulish prophesy is from God, then you are lying about God. I Tim. 4:2, Speaking lies in hypocrisy. Hypocrites who depart from the faith continue to teach lies. Rom. 1:25, Who changed the truth of God into a lie. God will give Christians over to vile affections who want to believe lies. Heb. 6:18, It was impossible for God to lie. It is comforting to know that God does not lie and we can completely rely on His Word. We can trust our lives in the hands of God.

CHRISTIAN FABLES AND CLICHES

There are many fables and cliches (Glen Miller calls them tradition) that are passed off as the Gospel. Generally, these are sayings that make you feel good. They take many different forms. If repeated often enough, the Christian world believes they are true. Some of these follow; the list could go on and on.

"God will do everything for you; you don't have to do anything yourself." God will always do His part of the covenant; we must do our part also. "God will take care of your family if you take care of God's business." We have no right to neglect our families. "All of God's promises are ours." The promises are ours only if we meet the conditions. For every promise there is a condition.

DELIVERANCE MYTHS

There is much ignorance and many myths about deliverance. Deliverance is the most misunderstood part of the Christian life. Most traditional Christians know little or nothing about Satan and his army. They do not believe they have a personal Devil, Satan. Most Full-Gospel Christians do not believe that a Christian can have a demon in the body or soul. Satan is eating their lunch and they think it is just the flesh. Many deliverance workers and ministers do not realize how demonized they and the Christian body still are. Sometimes they fall by the wayside because they do not continue to purge their bodies of demons.

Deliverance is the most controversial and unpopular part of the Christian life. Unless the Church gets involved on a regular basis with deliverance, many Christians will continue to be defeated by Satan. The Devil will use their ignorance to plague the Church.

When the Christian finally accepts that he can have a demon, the response is that he can only have a few demons. Actually, Christians have many demons. When the young Christian starts to cast out demons, he will make statements like, "You are completely free of demons." Jesus never told anyone in the Bible that they were completely free of demons. He spent days casting out demons from the multitudes.

PROPHECY MYTHS

Prophecies can be a blessing or a curse. Personal prophecy has caused some Christians to try to make it come true with disastrous results. The most danger for abuse lies in personal prophecy. Charismatic witches use personal prophecy to control others. Some Christians think that they have to have a word from the Lord or there is something wrong with them.

The true prophet does not make any mistakes. All of his prophecies come true. In the Old Testament, if the prophet missed God, he was stoned (Deut. 13:1-5, 18:20). I wonder what would happen if we killed the false prophets today.

Many prophecies are soulish prophecies which are made up in the mind of man or woman. Frequently they do not line up with the Bible. Sometimes people prophesy just to be noticed.

You have a responsibility to check out everything you see, hear or read by the Word of God, by the Holy Spirit within you, and by your intelligence. Otherwise, you will follow every wind of false doctrine.

Some prophecy is divination. Divination is the false gift of prophecy. It has destroyed churches and ministries across the land. The prophecies are right on but the purpose is to control. The diviners want to take over the pastor, then the church, and finally the property.

Satan has a counterfeit for everything that God has created. Just because it is spiritual and happens in the church, does not mean that it is from God. The demons go to church with the Christians and non-Christians to hinder or destroy the church. Don't underestimate the power of Satan and his forces; he is the second-most powerful spiritual being in the universe, only second to Jesus Christ who defeated him. We have power over Satan only because of Jesus Christ.

BATTLE MYTHS

There are many myths about Christian warfare. Most Christians don't know that we are in a battle. Actually, we are in a life and death battle with Satan and his host of demons. We have to fight to take the Kingdom of God by force from the enemy. Satan is a good Devil, a worthy Adversary, at what he does; he works twenty-four hours a day to destroy us. He will probably take 98% of the world population and 75% of the church population to Hell with him. His army consists of billions of demons and hundreds of millions of fallen angels. He has multiplied demons for every person on earth, now about four billion people.

You will be tempted until you die. God will not stop the temptation but will make a way for you to escape. You need to learn to war in the spirit world to protect yourself and your family. The best defense against Satan is a good offense which is all-out spiritual warfare. God didn't provide any armour for our backs as cowards running from the enemy.

GENERAL MYTHS

The following are negative statements or myths: "There is a single answer to my problems and living the Christian life. My problems in life can be worked out overnight. We can pick and choose what parts of the Bible to follow. It is not necessary to discipline our soul or body. We can let our mind be blank and God will fill it. We do not have to take care of our body; God will heal us when we get sick. We can let others feed us spiritually; we don't need to do it ourselves. We don't need to go to church; all we have to do is watch television evangelism. If we don't like deliverance, we can ignore it. God will supply everything we desire. If we can just find an anointed man or woman of God, they will pray for us and everything will be fine. We can live with one foot in the world and one foot in the Kingdom of God. If you do God's work, you can ignore your responsibilities. I can be a passive Christian and watch others do the work of God. The pastor and leaders do the work, not me. I am not in a war, God will fight all of my battles. All I have to do is to follow my pastor; he will hear from God for me. We can live a sinful life and receive all of God's blessings. I can sin, get forgiven and my family will not suffer. All we need to have in the church is token deliverance. Rejection is not a demon. I have a right to my unforgiveness because of the way I have been treated. Sex is love. Bad emotions are not demonic. I do not have to examine every area of my life. I can keep my cursed objects without causing any harm.

We can get all of our demons cast out in one grand event. I can be ashamed of my deliverance; God won't mind. When someone makes me mad, I can react however I feel. I can be ignorant of Satan's wiles; what I don't know can't hurt me. God is love; He won't send me to Hell. I can do anything I want to; God will protect me. God is pie-in-the-sky by-and-by. We can be gluttons as long as we are not drunkards. I do not need to get my demons cast out; all 1 need is to get prayer for me to be healed. It is all right to take mind control drugs. I need to go to a psychiatrist; God is not interested in my mind. The sins of my ancestors will not cause me any problems. I can do things my way; God will approve."

TRADITION NOT COVERED

There are other areas that were not covered in this lesson. Some of these areas are holidays, puppetry, origin of evil, false strength of Christians, divine order, separation of healing and deliverance, taking care of the body and soul, what you sow - that you reap, Christians are not cursed, and parlor games won't hurt you. When this lesson was taught at Lake Hamilton Bible Camp, Glen Miller commented on these subjects. Tommy Cook also reviewed the topic of Prophecy Myths.

PRAYER

Before deliverance from demon bondage, pray about being controlled by charismatic witchcraft or trying to control other's wills which is also witchcraft. Repent, take authority over these forces, break soul ties, and break curses placed upon you. Then cast out the demons.

LIST OF DEMONS

Mass Deliverance Manual, Lists of Demons – Use "Ahab and Jezebel", "Bad Habits of Thinking and Reacting", "Charismatic Witchcraft", "Holidays", and "When Demonization of Christians is Denied".

The following is a general list to use:

Christian Fantasy and Fables Christian Tradition and Cliches Lies, Lying, Deceit, Deception Ignorance, Laziness, Slothfulness Playing Church, Play Acting Lying Teachers and Prophets False Witness, Falsehood Pat Phrases Soulish Prophecy Spiritual Adultery False Dreams and Visions Charismatic Witches and Warlocks False Prophetesses, Hypocrisy Vile Affections, Theatrics Sophistication, Pretension Divination, False Gifts and Fruits Greed, Gluttony, Drunkenness Mind Control, Witchcraft, Rebellion

9. DAILY PRAYERS

PREFACE

Part of your battle in the Christian World is your daily prayers. It is desirable to establish a pattern for your daily praying. You do not need to pray exactly as we do but let the Holy Spirit show you what to pray about. It needs to be personalized for your life. These examples may help you to establish your prayers. We have several prayers that we use almost every day except for interruptions. These prayers help us get the day started in the Lord. As priest and head of the home, I pray out loud and Earline agrees with me. It is very important and powerful for husband and wife to agree together in prayer.

PRAYER OF THANKSGIVING

I usually get up at 6:00 a.m. every morning. After toiletries, I exercise and then give thanks to God to get the day started off right. It is extremely important that we maintain "an attitude of gratitude" towards God for the constant help He gives us. If you are grateful to God, this will solve many of your problems and wrong thought processes. While I am getting dressed, Earline may be praying in bed before she gets up.

"Our Dear Heavenly and Gracious Father, thank You for divine health: mental, physical, spiritual and material for Earline and me. Thank You for all blessings known and unknown, and for showering down blessings on us so great that we can not receive them. Thank You for the complete restoration of our bodies. Thank You for restoring Earline's mouth, torso and feet. Thank You for restoring my face, back and legs.

We especially thank You for restoring us from cancer and lupus. Thank You now for restoring our mouths and respiratory systems so that we can do Your Work. Amen."

PRAYER AT THE BREAKFAST TABLE

Before we eat breakfast, we pray another prayer for the food and other things. We believe that you should pray before every meal. Pray out loud if possible; if you can not, pray silently. It is extremely important for God to bless the food you eat to protect your body. I pray the following prayer and Earline agrees with me.

"Our Dear Heavenly and Gracious Father, thank You Lord for a good day, for protecting us against powers, principalities, evil forces in this world and spiritual wickedness in high places. Now Lord, we apply the blood over and bind Satan away from Earline and me. Marie, Nathan and Nat, our jobs and our clients. Manna Baptist Church, Lake Hamilton Bible Camp, Trinity New Testament Fellowship, A & E Testing, our possessions and everything that we have any part in. Lord, send Your angels to minister unto us, build a ring of Holy Ghost Fire around us and cover us with Your Blood. We pray for the United States of America and Israel, the Christians and the Jews, the churches that worship Jesus in spirit and truth. We ask for courage, understanding, wisdom and strength. We pray especially for the leaders and ask a double portion for our families. We ask divine favor with You in accordance with the Holy Word of God, with each other and those we come into contact with today. We confess that this is the day that the Lord has made. We will rejoice and be glad in it for God has not given us a spirit of fear but of power, love and a sound mind. He that is in us is greater than he that is in the world. If God be for us, who can be against us? You have given us power over all the power of the enemy and we intend to exercise it by the leadership of the Holy Spirit. Now Lord, we ask that You lead, guide, direct and protect us. Let us walk in Your perfect will; we yield ourselves to You today. We thank You for our food, clothing and shelter, for everything that You have done for us known and unknown. We ask You to bless this food to our bodies, purify and cleanse it so that our temples will be fit for the Holy Spirit to reside in. All these things we ask in the Blessed Name of Jesus Christ, our Lord, Master and Savior. Amen."

PRAYER FOR THE DAY

We usually eat breakfast in a restaurant. After we come home, we pray for the day. After the following prayer, we pray for specific needs that we feel impressed to pray about. This is a prayer for the world and things that are important to us. I pray this prayer, Earline agrees with me, and she then prays as she is led.

"Dear Lord, we ask You to forgive Earline and I of our sins, teach us and show us so that we will be pleasing in Your sight. We pray for ourselves, Marie, Nathan and Nat, this day and the leadership of the Holy Spirit. We thank You for each other, this day and most of all for You. We pray for our relatives and friends, our Christian brothers and sisters. We pray for those who labor in the field of deliverance, for their families, churches and ministries that You would give them a triple-fold portion of courage, understanding, wisdom and strength.

We pray for the Army of the Lord that it would grow strong and mighty and be valiant and do exploits in the Name of Jesus Christ. We pray that deliverance would come to the forefront of Christianity. We pray for those that we have ministered to, for their families, churches and ministries that they would go on with the Lord. We pray for all men everywhere that they would come into the saving knowledge of Jesus Christ.

We pray for Manna Baptist Church, for Butch and Lois; for Lake Hamilton Bible Camp, for Glen and Erma, Kevin and Patti, and Daniel; for Trinity New Testament Fellowship, for Reggie and Pat. We pray for the five-fold ministry, for their families, churches and ministries. We pray for A & E Testing and for our business. We pray Your Blessings on these. We bind up all powers, principalities, evil forces in this world and spiritual wickedness in high places.

We loose the powers of God: warring angels, ministering angels, Holy Spirit and the Seven-Fold Spirit of God to come down and do a mighty battle on earth today. We bind up every force of evil and loose every force of good that we have the power and authority to do so in Jesus' Name. We thank You Lord for power and authority over the enemy, and the use of the Name of Jesus Christ for it's in His Name we pray. Amen."

PRAYER IN A RESTAURANT

It is not necessary to pray a long prayer in a loud voice in a public place. In fact, this practice may do more harm than good to Christianity. We feel it is better to softly pray a short prayer out loud than not to pray at all. We use this prayer for a meal or for a snack in public. It can also be used at home for snacks between meals.

"Our Dear Heavenly and Gracious Father, thank You Lord for this food. Bless, purify and cleanse it so that we can be fit temples for the Holy Spirit to reside in. We break any curses on it and eat it with thanksgiving. For it's in Jesus' Name we pray. Amen."

PRAYERS DURING THE DAY OR NIGHT

The remainder of the day we pray as the Holy Spirit leads us. These can be prayers in other tongues or in English. These can be prayers together or alone. They can be prayers out loud or silently. They can be prayers with your eyes closed or just going about the business of life. There is no set way that you have to pray. If we have a God consciousness, the Holy Spirit is praying through our spirit without ceasing.

If it is important, we try to get together to pray and agree. Sometimes we ask the Holy Spirit to impress the other person to pray at the same time when we are separated. It is beautiful to know that the other mate was praying at the same time in an emergency.

10. WARRIORS FOR CHRIST

SCRIPTURE

Gen. 1:28	We are to subdue the earth.
Gen. 3:15	Jesus bruised the head of Satan.
Ex. 15:3	The Lord is a man of war: the Lord is His name.
Num. 23:8	How shall I curse, whom God hath not cursed?
Psa. 5:10	Let them fall by their own counsels.
Psa. 6:10	Let all mine enemies be ashamed and sore vexed.
Psa. 7:15	And is fallen in the ditch which he made.
Psa. 8:6	Thou madest him to have dominion over the works of thy hands.
Psa. 10:15	Break thou the arm of the wicked and evil men.
Psa.17:13	Arise, O Lord, disappoint him, cast him down.
Psa. 24:8	The Lord mighty in battle.
Psa. 28:4	Render to them their desert.
Psa. 35:8	Let his net that he hath hid catch himself.
Psa. 37:14	And to slay such as be of upright conversation.
Psa. 55:9	Destroy, O Lord, and divide their tongues.
Psa. 57:6	Into the midst whereof they are fallen themselves.
Psa. 58:6	Break their teeth, O God, in their mouth.
Psa. 59:11	Scatter them by thy power; and bring them down.
Psa. 68:18	Thou hast led captivity captive.
Psa. 69:22	Which should have been for their welfare, let it become a trap.
Psa. 83:9	A prayer against them that oppress the church.
Psa. 109:17	As he loved cursing, so let it come unto him.
Psa.109:28	When they arise, let them be ashamed.
Psa. 109:29	Let them cover themselves with their own confusion.
Psa.140:9	Let the mischief of their own lips cover them.
Psa.149:6-9	A two edged sword in their hand.
Prov. 26:2	So the curse causeless shall not come.
Isa. 53:12	He shall divide the spoil with the strong.
Isa. 54:17	Every tongue arising against thee in judgment thou shalt condemn.
Isa. 58:6	Fast - Loose - Undo - Free - Break
Jer. 1:10	Set - Root - Pull - Destroy - Throw – Build Plant
Jer.48:10	Cursed be he that keepeth back his sword from blood.
Jer.51:20	Thou art my battle axe and weapons of war.
Matt. 5:44	Love your enemies.
Matt.10:7-8	Preach - Heal - Cleanse - Raise - Cast Give
Matt.12:29	We are to bind the strong man, Satan, and spoil his house.
Matt.18:18-19	Bind - Loose - Agree
Matt.28:20	Teaching to observe all things whatsoever I have commanded you.
Luke 4:18	Preach - Heal - Deliver - Sight - Liberty

Luke 8:1	We should do the works of God in every city and village.
Luke 10:18	Satan is a defeated foe.
Luke 10:19	God gave us power over all the power of the enemy.
Luke 11:22	We are stronger than Satan through Jesus Christ.
John 12:31	Now shall the prince of this world be cast out.
John 16:11	The prince of this world has been judged by Jesus.
Rom. 16:20	And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.
I Cor. 4:12	Being reviled we bless; being persecuted we suffer it.
II Cor. 10:4	We are to pull down the strongholds of Satan.
Eph, 3:10	The church is to make its presence known to the principalities.
Eph. 6:12	We wrestle not against flesh and blood but against evil forces.
Eph.6:16	Ye shall be able to quench all the fiery darts of the wicked.
Col. 2:15	Jesus spoiled principalities and powers.
II Tim. 1:10	Our Savior Jesus Christ who hath abolished death.
II Tim. 2:26	Help others recover themselves out of the snare of the Devil.
Heb. 2:8	Thou hast put all things in subjection under his feet.
Heb. 2:14	He might destroy him that had the power over death.
James 4:7	Resist the Devil and he will flee from you.
I John 3:8	Son of God was manifested to destroy the works of the Devil.
1 John 5:5	We are overcomers because we believe in Jesus, the Son of God.
Rev. 12:11	Overcome by blood of Lamb, word of our testimony and love not lives.
Rev. 12:17	We are at war with the forces of evil.

The Bible says that God is "God of Battles", "Man of War" and "Lord of Armies". There is a lot more scripture in the Word of God which describes God and what He expects us to do as His warriors (soldiers). Several such verses are II Kings 13:14-19 and Psa. 78:9-11.

PREFACE

This lesson is to demonstrate that we are to be warriors for Christ in the spiritual battle for the earth. What we do will have consequences for eternity. You can make a difference in the world!

A philosopher once said, "For every man attacking the roots of evil, there are a thousand flailing away at the leaves." This is a picture of Christianity today; few people are willing to get their hands dirty and dig up the roots of evil. Deliverance is dealing with sin in people's lives; it is housecleaning according to Ear-line.

KEYS TO SUCCESS

The following was penned by William B. Fason, 1865-1945, who handled sporting goods and farm machinery in east Texas. Many times the world follows the principles of Christianity to succeed in business. See if you can apply his philosophy to everyday living. (The comment in the parenthesis is mine.)

- 1. Don't ever tell nobody nuthin that ain't so. (Don't lie under any circumstance.)
- 2. If it's broke, fix it quick as you can. You can fish anytime. Crops won't wait to be sowed or harvested. (If you have problems in life, deal with them now. Don't procrastinate, the problems will probably get worse.)

- 3. The product has gotta do the job right or it ain't no bargain no matter how pretty or cheap it is. Cheap shoes hurt ever day for years. Good ones only hurt once when you pay for them. (Easy believeism is no bargain. It only hurts once when you deal openly with your sin.)
- 4. Don't sell a 30-06 to a feller that hunts rabbits. The shells is expensive and the rabbit gets blowed up and ain't hardly fit to eat. (Don't apply the wrong solution in the Bible to your problems. For instance, don't pray for healing when you need your demons cast out.)
- 5. Don't sell a 22 to a bear hunter. He's liable to wind up getting ate by the bear. (Don't tell a person that ail of their problems are solved; they may leave the church when they find out that what you said is not true.)
- 6. Nuthin is more important than a satisfied customer. Treat him wrong an he will holler all over the county. Treat him fair and he will brag you more customers that you can shake a stick at. (Use the "Golden Rule" and tell the truth in love; it will win out in the end.)
- 7. Trust everybody but still cut the cards. (Don't let the charlatans ruin your love for others. Use your brain and leadership of the Holy Spirit to spot falseness.)
- 8. Don't fret none over a mistake. Just make sure you learnt somethin. (Don't spend time in guilt. Learn your lesson and don't make the same mistake again.)
- 9. Be suspishus of any man that walks a dog on a leash. (Discern everything that you hear, see or read to see if it lines up with the Bible.)
- 10. Always deal with things like they is, not like they ain't or ought to be. (Face life in reality not in Christian fantasy; don't live a lie.)
- 11. If a feller sez, "It's ain't the money it's the principal of the thing." You can bet your life it's the money. (Learn to look on the hidden man of the heart and not on the outward appearance of man.)
- 12. Let the Lord guide you but remember that God don't do no plowin or milkin. (Don't look to God to do our jobs. Study the Bible and see what your part is.)

WHY DID JESUS COME TO EARTH?

I John 3:8 says, "For this purpose the Son of God was manifested, that He might destroy the works of the Devil." Most adults can not answer this question correctly! Most people think that He came to save them. Salvation is just part of what Jesus Christ accomplished on earth.

As you can see from the scripture above, He bruised Satan's head, led captivity captive, divided the spoil, cast out Satan, judged prince of world, spoiled principalities and powers, abolished death, put all things in subjection, etc. As you study the Bible, it is clear that Jesus Christ, The Son of God, completely defeated Satan and his army of fallen angels and demons. It is also clear that God Almighty made provisions that we can be totally victorious in Him according to His Ways. Wouldn't it be ridiculous if God setup a plan for children of God to lose to the forces of evil?

If Satan has been completely defeated, then why do we still have to war with the enemy? It is simple; Satan is free to roam the earth until he is bound up for a thousand years. Until then, he can do everything we will let him do to destroy us. Satan has no power over us but we let him trick us due to our ignorance of the Bible and because of sin in our lives.

DID GOD GIVE US COMPLETE AUTHORITY OVER THE ENEMY?

Luke 10:19 says, "Behold, I give unto you power to tread on serpents and scorpions, and over all the power of the enemy: and nothing shall by any means hurt you". We are to subdue, have dominion, do the works of God, be overcomers, quench fiery darts, etc.

DOES GOD WORK THROUGH US?

Jer. 51:20 says, Thou art My battle ax and weapons of war: for with thee will I break in pieces the nations, and with thee will I destroy kingdoms". Why doesn't God do everything Himself? He certainly could! God has chosen to work through His children. The condition of the world is the responsibility of the Christian body and especially the leaders. It is clear that the five-fold ministry has failed to properly teach and show the world how to live. The world will never be won for Christ with the ignorance, cowardliness and greed of the present day ministry.

WHAT ARE WE SUPPOSED TO DO?

Matt. 12:29 says, "Or else how can one enter into a strong man's house, and spoil his goods except he first bind the strong man and then he will spoil his house". If Jesus came to destroy the works of the enemy, then what should we do? We should continue in His footsteps and do His works until He comes for us. We should bind the forces of evil and spoil their houses. We are to help those recover themselves out of the snare of the Devil who have been taken captive.

Key words about what we can do are: Fast - Loose -Undo - Free - Break - Set - Root - Pull - Destroy -Throw - Build - Plant - Cleanse - Raise - Cast - Give -Bind - Loose - Agree - Preach - Heal - Deliver - Sight - Liberty,

WHAT ABOUT THOSE WHO WILL NOT FIGHT THE LORD'S BATTLES?

Jer. 48:10 says, "Cursed be he that doeth the work of the Lord deceitfully, and cursed be he that keepeth back his sword from blood". If you will not fight for God, you are cursed. If you do not fight, the demons will take advantage of you. You can not win by not fighting in the spiritual war. The best defense is a good offense against the forces of evil. God will always do His part of the covenant but He will not do our part. It is far better to be on His side in the battle than to be neutral in the battle and be subject to the enemy. If you are not willing to fight, God will watch as you are overcome by the enemy.

DO WE FIGHT AGAINST PEOPLE?

Eph. 6:12 says, "For we wrestle not against flesh and blood, but against principalities, against powers, against the rulers of the darkness of this world, against spiritual wickedness in high places". We are not fighting against people but against demons within people and spiritual forces outside of people; this is spiritual warfare. We don't have a right to fight against flesh and blood but we do have the right and responsibility to fight against evil forces. Otherwise, there is no battle on earth; we just let humans and Satan do anything to us. I also believe we have the right and responsibility to defend our nation and our families against harm.

HOW DO WE LOVE OUR HUMAN ENEMIES?

Matt. 5:44 says, "But I say unto you, Love your enemies, bless them that curse you, do good to them that hate you, and pray for them which despitefully use you, and persecute you". This is a

verse that God has used to deal with me when others are not treating me in a Christian way. There are no excuses in the Bible. Here we are talking about humans and not demons.

The Bible has a lot to say about how we treat others. Matt. 5:44 is a good summary about how we should treat our human enemies. Our enemies could be other Christians or heathen in the world. How do we reconcile spiritual warfare with spiritual beings versus loving physical human beings?

I normally think of a number of things when I pray for people who are my enemies because of their actions against me, family, ministry, etc. as follows:

- 1. I repent and ask God to forgive me of anything I may have done. (You need to get right with God before praying for others.)
- 2. I forgive my enemies and release them from sin against me. (The most important thing is forgiveness. We can hold a person's sin or release it.)
- 3. I ask God to forgive them and bless them with all spiritual blessings. (All spiritual blessings would include salvation and teaching the right way.)
- 4. I break any soul ties with them or curses on me in the Name of Jesus. (Now we have the right to break soul ties and curses with sin under the Blood.)
- 5. I then send the demons back to the sender that were sent to me. (It is hoped that the demons will cause the person to see that there is something wrong.)
- 6. I ask God to save their souls and open dem eyes as to what they are doing. (We want the heathen to be saved and the saved to be taught. The wrong actions may be done in ignorance or with malice aforethought.)
- 7. If we feel that it is an attack by people in the occult or Satan worship, then we command the demons to go back and attack those who sent them to attack us. (The purpose is to demonstrate that God is greater and that they should get saved.)

WHO ARE OUR HUMAN AND SPIRITUAL ENEMIES?

As we discussed above, we should love our human enemies according to scripture. We do not have to love Satan and his evil spirits. Actually, we should hate everything that God hates. Surprised? Read your Bible. We can hate Satan and all forces' of evil, sin and iniquity, and all that God hates. If you do not hate evil, you will love evil, compromise with evil or practice evil. Demons cannot be saved. We won't be dancing in Heaven with Satan!

Our enemies can be the unsaved or the saved. They can have spiritual or physical bodies. They can be ignorant or learned in evil. They can be practicing witchcraft or occult activities or even be worshiping Satan. How we war or pray would depend upon the above classification.

HOW DID DAVID PRAY IN THE BOOK OF PSALMS?

It is interesting to study how David prayed for his enemies in the Psalms. The above listed verses are some of the many that David used against his enemies.

David talks about his enemies falling into their own traps, catching themselves in their nets and falling by their own devices. In other words, he prays that they will fall into their traps set for him.

David also prays to God to cause his enemies to fall by counsel, and to be ashamed, vexed, disappointed, cast down, rendered, destroyed, divided, scattered, brought down, confused, etc. He even prays that their arms will be broken and their teeth will be knocked out.

We feel like the way David prayed is appropriate under certain circumstances where the people are practicing witchcraft, occult or Satan worship to destroy the Christians. They send demons to attack the Christians and destroy them in certain areas of their lives. We send the demons back to the sender to counterattack. The object is to cause the person to wake up and see that God is stronger than Satan, reject evil and seek salvation.

We know that we are targets of those who actively follow evil. The Lord showed us that one Halloween night we were to be the sacrifice for the local Satanist churches. However, God foiled their plan by sending a Christian family to spend the night with us until midnight! If God does not protect us, then we are unprotected. There is no way that we can humanly defend ourselves against attacks of the enemy who wants to physically kill us. We are no match against evil humans or spirits without the help of God. If God doesn't defend a city, it is not defended.

Those in the occult will fast and pray up to forty days to destroy Christian families and churches. They are serious about what they are doing and Satan is a harsh taskmaster. We need to be as good at being Christians as Satan is at being evil!

WHAT IS SPIRITUAL WARFARE?

If we are warriors for Christ, then how do we fight the war using spiritual warfare? The above scripture shows us that Christ was a warrior for God and we are to be warriors for Christ. The war consists of two fronts: an earthly and a heavenly.

On earth we do not war against humans but against the demons in humans. We do not fight (physically, mentally, spiritually or materially) with our brothers or sisters, saved or unsaved. We do pray for those who are unsaved to receive salvation but do not cast out their demons. For the saved, we bind up the demons and cast them out of their bodies. We pray for Salvation, Deliverance, Baptism, Healing and Prosperity. We Teach, Counsel, Pray and Minister as the Holy Spirit leads. In other words, we minister to all the needs of our brethren in every area of their lives. God has made provisions for every need we have in every area of our lives!

On earth we battle for our minds which is the main battle for the human race. Physically, we fight for our bodies to be healthy. We battle with our finances against the forces of evil by tithes and offerings supporting the true works of God. Time is spent in following the Christian walk: fellowshipping with other Christians, reading the Bible, fasting, praying, meditating, studying, and strengthening ourselves. Time is spent in helping others: teaching, counseling, praying and ministry. We battle mentally, physically, materially, spiritually with our time, talents and resources. In the heavenlies we war against Satan and his army of fallen angels, demons and imps. This is mainly a spiritual battle of prayer against principalities, powers, rulers of darkness of this world, and spiritual wickedness in high places. There are two heavenlies: Godly and ungodly. We ask God to loose His forces to battle for us and we bind the forces of Satan.

WHAT ABOUT CURSES?

Psa. 109:17 says, 'As he loved cursing, so let it come unto him: as he delighted not in blessing, so let it be far from him.' The Bible also says, "So the curse causeless shall not come," and "How shall I curse whom God hath not cursed?" You do not need to send curses back to the sender but just break them off you and your family. You can send the demons back to the sender. When we break the curses off us, the person that sent the curses is still cursed. The scripture says he loved cursing, the curse had a cause and God cursed him.

LIST OF DEMONS

A good list of demons to use in mass deliverance is "Common Demon Groupings" found in Mass Deliverance Manual. First, go through Basic Deliverance of Rejection, Bitterness and Rebellion families. Then go through the remainder of the fifty families.

SECTION 2 - BASIC DELIVERANCE AND SCHIZOPHRENIA

CONTENTS

- 1. Sins of Ancestors, Ourselves and Others
- 2. Basic Deliverance
- 3. How To Minister Basic Deliverance
- 4. Rejection
- 5. Bitterness
- 6. Rebellion
- 7. Unforgiveness
- 8. Hate, Vengeance, Envy And Strife Deliverance Prayers Schizophrenia

1. SINS OF OUR ANCESTORS, OURSELVES AND OTHERS WHAT IS SIN AND THE STANDARD AGAINST SIN?

Sin is the thought or deed we commit that is contrary to the teaching of the Bible. The standard that is used to judge sin is the Holy Inspired Word of God, The Bible.

WHO DO WE COMMIT SIN AGAINST?

We sin against God and others (I Cor. 8:12). The results of our sins affect ourselves and others. We sin upward against God, outward against others, inward against ourselves and downward against our descendents.

HOW DO WE SIN AGAINST GOD?

We sin against God by disobedience to the commandments and precepts of the whole Bible.

HOW DO WE SIN AGAINST OTHERS?

We sin against others by doing something to them that is contrary to the Bible. First, see what is a sin in the Bible. Second, that would be a sin against others. For example, the spreading of lies about another person is sin. We are telling lies which is a sin against God and it is hurting another person.

HOW DO WE SIN AGAINST OURSELVES?

He that commits fornication sins against his own body. Every other sin that man does is outside of the body except for fornication (I Cor. 6:18).

HOW DO WE SIN AGAINST OUR DESCENDENTS?

We sin against our descendents either directly or indirectly. We can directly sin against our children or indirectly against our children's children to the tenth generation. For example, we conceive a bastard. It is a sin against that child, our other children and our children's children to the tenth generation. The curse, created by conceiving a bastard, will bring problems and grief: primarily alienation from the church and conceiving bastards generation after generation.

WHO FORGIVES SINS?

Only God can forgive sin by the shed Blood of Jesus Christ. We can remit (send away) sins and retain (hold fast) sins (John 20:23). What you bind on earth is bound in Heaven; what you loose

on earth is loosed in Heaven (Matt. 16:19; 18:18). Other passages are judging others (I Cor. 5:1-5), forgive in the sight of Christ (II Cor. 2:10) and Christ speaking in me (II Cor. 13:3).

WHO CONFESSES SINS?

We confess our sins and the sins of our ancestors, and humble ourselves before God (Lev. 26:40-42). Earline has a testimony about how God healed her heart after she dealt with her Indian ancestors. God gave her a series of steps about how to counteract the sins of her ancestors who worshipped demons. The ideal is to have our descendents forgive their ancestors (especially their parents). The most sure method is for the person to forgive those who have hurt them or committed acts which affect their lives.

WHAT DO WE DO AFTER OUR SINS ARE FORGIVEN?

First, we get our sins are forgiven and we forgive others for sinning against us. We then have the right to break curses, soul ties and cast out the demons. Second, we break the curses on ourselves, our mate if he or she is affected, and our descendents. We can break curses placed on us by others, curses placed on us by ourselves, and curses placed on our descendents by ourselves. Third, we break soul ties brought about by sexual sin and witchcraft. Fourth, we cast out the demons that came in through sin and curses.

2. REJECTION, BITTERNESS, REBELLION AND UNFORGIVENESS

GENERAL

The 3 R's of deliverance - the most important grouping - like reading, writing and arithmetic. Almighty God taught us this lesson in the middle of the night in the middle of our bed ten years ago. God personally taught us about basic deliverance.

REJECTION (OPPOSITE IS LOVE)

Rejection includes fear of rejection and self-rejection. Except for the sins of the ancestors, rejection is generally where the demons first attack someone. Because of the parents, this can be in the womb.

Matt. 5:3	(rejected are "poor in spirit")
Matt. 5:43-44	(love your enemies)
II Cor. 5:14-15	(not live unto themselves)
Eph. 6:4	(fathers provoke not your children to wrath)

Rejection is defined as reject, refuse, repudiate, decline, deny, rebuff, repel, renounce, discard, throw away, exclude, eliminate and jettison. Have you had these feelings before? Rejection is very common among Christians.

BITTERNESS (OPPOSITE IS FORGIVENESS)

Bitterness includes resentment, hatred, unforgiveness, violence, temper, anger, retaliation and murder. Generally, after a person becomes rejected, they become bitter.

Acts 8:22-24	(gall of bitterness and bond of iniquity)
Rom. 3:13-14	(full of cursing and bitterness)
Eph. 4:31-32	(bitterness—forgiveness)

Heb. 12:14-16 (peace—bitterness)

Bitterness is defined as bitterly curse, rebellious, sharp, acrid, grief, embitter, poisonous, violently, provoke, vex, grieve, sorrow, bitter herb, calamity, bile, venom, angry, chafed, most bitterly, rebel and provoke. Have you had these feelings before? Unforgiveness, which is a form of bitterness, is very common among Christians.

REBELLION (OPPOSITE IS OBEDIENCE)

Rebellion includes self-will, stubbornness, disobedience and anti-submissiveness. Generally after a person has become bitter, they rebel.

1 Sam. 15:23	(for rebellion is as the sin of witchcraft and stubbornness is as iniquity and
	idolatry)
Heb. 2:2	(disobedience received a just reward)
Heb. 13:17	(submit yourselves)
2 Pet. 2:10	(presumptuous are they, self-willed)

Disobedience means to disobey, transgress, violate, disregard, defy, infringe, shirk, resist, mutiny, rebel and revolt. Have you had these feelings before? Rebellion is very common among Christians.

UNFORGIVENESS (OPPOSITE IS FORGIVENESS)

Generally a person's demons cannot be cast out if he has unforgiveness in his heart.

Matt. 18:21-35(Law of Forgiveness - Key Chapter)
God sends demons to torment these with unforgiveness. Forgive your fel-
lowman 70 x 7 = 490 times.

Kingdom of Heaven:	God	Rich Man	Poor Man
(Is likened to)	(King)	(You)	(Anyone you have not forgiven)
Talent = 750 oz. of silver; Pence = $1/8$ oz. of silver.			
10,000 talents x 750 = 7,500,000 oz. =		\$52,800,000	
		(\$600,000)	
100 Pence x $1/8 = 12-1/2$ oz. = \$44.00		(\$1.00).	
Forgave 600,000 times as much.			
Tormentors are Satan and his demons.			
Prison is being in jail with Satan as Warden and his demons as guards.			

This is the crucifixion of the flesh until you come to your senses and forgive your fellowman and then ask God to forgive you!

The consequence of unforgiveness is the most important lesson that God has taught us about deliverance.

Generally cancer and arthritis come in through the sin of unforgiveness. If you know a Christian with these diseases, see if they have unforgiveness. They cannot be healed if the demons have a right to be there.

Pattern for being delivered and healed: forgive others, ask God for forgiveness, and forgive self. Cast out unforgiveness and bitterness. Cast out cancer and arthritis. Anoint with oil and pray for healing.

3. HOW TO MINISTER BASIC DELIVERANCE REASON FOR LEARNING

The main reason we are teaching you how to do basic deliverance is that every Christian should be able to cast out demons at least in their own family. Later on God may lead you to do deliverance in your home or church. God told us to train an army for His use; you are part of that army!

Deliverance will assist in establishing family order and God's order. Every Christian should cast out demons (Mark 16:17). There are not many "Deliverance Ministers" to help people. Christians have many demons; proper deliverance takes a lot of time. Deliverance is a way of life and not a grand event.

Parents are the best persons to minister to their children; husband to wife; and wife to husband. Parents need to protect their children and set the family free from demons.

Deliverance gives an understanding of God's and Satan's kingdoms that you will not get any other way. Deliverance allows you to see into the spiritual world by the manifestations of demons.

GENERAL

Basic Deliverance consists of setting a person free from three common demon families: rejection, bitterness and rebellion (also common to schizophrenia).

Typically a person becomes rejected, then becomes bitter, and finally rebels (then come other problems). The most important key in setting a person free from these families is to get the person to forgive anyone that has hurt him!

First, unforgiveness should be dealt with before the families of rejection, bitterness and rebellion are cast out.

After basic deliverance, then other demon families can be attacked. For example, cancer and arthritis can come into a person thru the open door of unforgiveness. After basic deliverance, cast out the spirits of cancer and arthritis.

A person may have become demonized while in the womb by sins of the ancestors for causes other than rejection, bitterness and rebellion. If so, another approach is required.

Again, the most important key in setting a person free from the sins of the ancestors is to get the person to forgive his ancestors, and ask God to forgive them and bless them (parents are also ancestors).

After forgiveness for any hurt or sin, then any demonic ties should be broken. For example, curses of the ancestors passed down thru the generations, or soul ties caused by sexual sin or witchcraft control are demonic ties.

After breaking curses and soul ties, we ask God to restore the fragmented soul, mind, will and emotions. We ask God to send out angels to restore anything that the demons have stolen.

After **restoration of the fragmented soul**, we ask God to stir up the demons in the subconscious mind so that they can be identified and cast out.

The person can then be led in a general prayer of **salvation/deliverance** to God. There are many good prayers.

The leader should then pray and take authority over the demonic spirit world.

After the grounds for deliverance are established (taking away the legal rights before God for the demons to stay), then start casting out demons.

Use all the weapons of the warfare in the Bible against the demons. These include reading scripture to the demons, exercising the Gifts of the Holy Spirit, causing the demons to reveal information against themselves, seeking discernment from God through the Holy Spirit, praying to God in other tongues, asking Jesus for help, and any other methods that are helpful in gathering data, taking away legal rights and casting out. By all means, do what God tells you to do even if you do not understand it.

Unforgiveness - get the person to forgive others by an act of his will which God will honor. It may be very difficult for the person but God accepts their willingness to forgive.

Unforgiveness - Cancer or Arthritis come into the person later on.

Before any deliverance starts, a person should be given an opportunity to discuss his problems and background so that you can get to know the person and properly minister to him.

After deliverance is ended, a person should be counseled about how to walk out his deliverance and discipline his life.

It is good if teaching on basic deliverance or sins of ancestors precedes the deliverance.

After counseling, anoint with oil and pray for any healing needed or for scars in the body where the demons left (inner healing).

COMMON DEMON FAMILIES

Rejection Fear of Rejection Self-Rejection

Bitterness Resentment Hatred Unforgiveness

Rebellion Self-will Stubbornness Violence Temper Anger Retaliation Murder Disobedience Anti-submissiveness

STEPS TO MINISTER DELIVERANCE

A. STEPS FOR BASIC DELIVERANCE FOR AN INDIVIDUAL

- 1. Find out about the person's problems and background.
- 2. Some discussion about how they got into trouble may be help.
- 3. Get the person to forgive others and lead him in a specific prayer about his problems.
- 4. Start casting out the families of Rejection, then Bitterness and finally Rebellion.
- 5. Counsel the person how to walk out his deliverance and how to discipline his life.
- 6. Anoint with oil and pray for healing (physical and/or inner).
- 7. The above steps could be used after a church service at the altar or in the prayer room, in the home or over the phone.

B. STEPS FOR SINS OF ANCESTORS FOR AN INDIVIDUAL

- 1. Follow steps A.l through A.3 above.
- 2. Lead the person through a prayer to break curses and soul ties, restore the fragmented soul, stir up the demons in the subconscious mind, and finally salvation/deliverance.
- 3. Here again, it is good to start with basic deliverance of Rejection, Bitterness and Rebellion. Then go into other areas that have been identified and legal grounds established for casting out.
- 4. Follow steps A.5 through A.7.

C. STEPS FOR BASIC DELIVERANCE AND/OR SINS OF ANCESTORS FOR A GROUP OR A CHURCH

- 1. Teach on Basic Deliverance, Sins of Ancestors, or any other deliverance topic.
- 2. Lead the congregation in a mass prayer about that topic, and include curses, soul ties, fragmented soul, subconscious mind, unforgiveness and salvation.
- 3. The pastor/evangelist will then pray and take authority over the demonic spiritual world and ask God to send His forces and take charge of the deliverance.
- 4. Start the mass deliverance with basic deliverance and then go to any other topic. Workers shall help individuals having trouble getting free.
- 5. After mass deliverance, work with individuals and follow steps A.5 through A.7.
- 6. The above steps could be used in a prayer group, church, home or any meeting about deliverance.

D. STEPS FOR BASIC DELIVERANCE/SINS OF ANCESTORS FOR THE HOME COUNSELING / MINISTRY MEETING

1. Provide specific counseling to the individuals as God leads.

- 2. Follow steps A.l and A.2. Take a refreshment/bathroom break of about 15 minutes.
- 3. Follow steps A.3 and C.2 through C.5.

E. VARIATIONS

The above procedures can be varied to fit the situation or at the leadership of the Holy Spirit.

HOW TO LEARN ABOUT DELIVERANCE

- 1. Get Experience start casting out demons and get involved.
- 2. Study Bible use a concordance and study Gospels mainly.
- 3. Fast and pray seek the Lord about your problems.
- 4. Study deliverance books learn as much as you can.
- 5 Study books on the mind, will and emotions.
- 6 Go to deliverance meetings participate in teaching and ministry: mass, small groups and individuals.
- 7 Study Satan from a Christian viewpoint to see how he is trying to destroy you, your family and your church.
- 8. Emphasize practical methods put the Bible to work.
- 9. Clean out your house get rid of demonic objects.
- 10. Be persistent keep after the demons in an area of your life until you are successful.
- 11. Learn to research a subject use encyclopedias, dictionaries, medical and psychiatric books.
- 12. Learn the three phases of deliverance: How to Determine the Need for Deliverance, How to Get Delivered, and How to Stay Delivered.
- 13. Deliverance is a constant learning process. Satan has spent thousands of years weaving a very complicated system to trap people.

PRACTICAL DELIVERANCE BOOKS

Basic

PIGS IN THE PARLOR - Frank and Ida Mae Hammond, Impact Books, 137 W. Jefferson, Kirkwood, MO 63122.

Advanced

All seven books by Win Worley, Hegewisch Baptist Church, Highland, Indiana 46322

- 1. Battling The Hosts Of Hell
- 2. Conquering The Hosts Of Hell
- 3. Demolishing The Hosts Of Hell
- 4. Annihilating The Hosts Of Hell, Volume I
- 5. Annihilating The Hosts Of Hell, Volume IIi
- 6. Eradicating The Hosts Of Hell
- 7. Smashing The Hosts Of Hell

Mind

WAR ON THE SAINTS - Unabridged Edition, Jessie Penn-Lewis & Evans Roberts, Thomas E. Lowe, LTD., New York, New York.

DELIVERANCE PRAYERS

There are many good deliverance prayers that have been written and printed in books and in loose-leaf form. Some of these prayers are general and some have been written for specific purposes.

The ideal prayer is the one prayed by the individual to cover the specific area of the person's life that is being ministered to at that time. The next best prayer is the form prayer which the person repeats after the deliverance leader.

The following prayers have been used many times by us and have produced good results. One side benefit is that the people can see what is wrong and evil in their lives by what is contained in the prayers.

These prayers can be used for individuals, small groups or large groups equally well.

Short Prayer

"Lord Jesus Christ, I believe You died on the cross for my sins and rose again from the dead. You redeemed me by Your blood and I belong to You, and I want to live for You. I confess all my sins-known and un-known-I'm sorry for them all. I renounce them all. <u>I forgive all others as I</u> want You to forgive me. Forgive me now and cleanse me with Your blood. I thank You for the blood of Jesus Christ which cleanses me now from all sin. And I come to You now as my deliverer. You know my special needs-the thing that binds, that torments, that defiles; that evil spirit, that unclean spirit—I claim the promise of Your word, "Whosoever that calleth on the name of the Lord shall be delivered." I call upon You now. In the name of the Lord Jesus Christ, deliver me and set me free. Satan, I renounce you and all your works. I loose myself from you, in the name of Jesus, and I command you to leave me right now in Jesus' name. Amen!"

This is my favorite prayer because it is short and effective. The first part is salvation and the last part is deliverance. You can pause after the sentence underlined about "forgiveness" and let the people forgive others as the Holy Spirit leads them. This prayer was written by Derek Prince.

Prayers by Gene Moody

The first thing we do is get the people to pray about their specific problems and sins, so that the blood of Jesus can cleanse the people and take away legal rights that the demons have to remain, and God can begin to act.

Then we get the people to repeat the Short Prayer out loud with sincerity after me.

Finally, we lead the people in a combination prayer out loud that covers the following:

Sins of Ancestors, Curses, Soul Ties, and Fragmented Soul

"Lord Jesus Christ, I forgive my ancestors and descendants, and I ask You to forgive and bless them. Forgive me for my many sins and I forgive myself for sins against my body. I break all curses, hexes, vexes and demonic ties that bind. I break all soul ties caused by witchcraft or sexual sins. Lord Jesus, restore my fragmented soul: mind, will and emotions; send Your angels out to recover anything that was stolen from me. Lord Jesus, stir up the demons in my subconscious mind so that they can be identified and cast out. All these things we ask in the blessed name of our Lord Jesus Christ: Our Lord, Master and Savior. We now take authority over Satan and all the forces of evil according to the whole Word of God and command that you obey it. In the Name of Jesus Christ, we ask these things. Amen."

After the people have prayed and been led in prayer, then I take spiritual authority over the meeting as follows:

"Satan, we come against all powers, principalities, evil forces in this world and spiritual wickedness in high places. We come against all demons inside or outside of anyone present, over this city, state, nation and world, in Hell or out of Hell. The Bible says, 'Behold, I give unto you power to tread on serpents and scorpions, and over all the power of the enemy: and nothing shall by any means hurt you.'

We intend to exercise that power to set ourselves free. Satan, we come against you by the power and blood of Jesus Christ, by the Word of God, by the name of Jesus, by the authority of the believer, in the unity of our spirits. Satan, we tell you that we sit in heavenly places with our Christ Jesus. We are over you, your fallen angels, your demons and all forces of evil. We command you to line up in rank and file and order, and come out quickly. We bind every power that you have and loose ourselves from you in the name of Jesus.

Lord Jesus, we ask that You would send the gifts of the Holy Spirit as needed to minister to the needs of the people and to accomplish what You want done here. We are careful to give You all the glory, honor, praise and credit for everything that is said or done. We ask all these things in the blessed name of Jesus Christ, our Lord and Master and Savior. And we take authority over Satan according to the whole Word of God. For it's in Jesus' name we pray. Amen!"

Now start casting out demons!

COMMON DEMON GROUPINGS (FROM PIGS IN THE PARLOR)

Bitterness	Bickering	Doubt	Heartache
Resentment	Argument	Unbelief	Heartbreak
Hatred	Quarreling	Skepticism	Crying
Unforgiveness	Fighting	-	Sadness
Violence		Jealousy	Cruelty
Temper	Control	Envy	
Anger	Possessiveness	Suspicion	Heaviness
Retaliation	Dominance	Distrust	Gloom
Murder	Witchcraft	Selfishness	Burden
			Disgust
Rebellion	Retaliation	Withdrawal	
Self-will	Destruction	Pouting	Worry
Stubbornness	Spite	Daydreaming	Anxiety
Disobedience	Hatred	Fantasy	Fear
Anti-	Sadism	Pretension	Dread

Submissiveness

Accusation Judging Criticism

Faultfinding

Rejection

Fear of Rejection Self-Rejection Insecurity Inferiority Self-Pity Loneliness Timidity Shyness Inadequacy Ineptness Passivity Funk Indifference Listlessness Lethargy

Depression

Despair Despondency Discouragement Defeatism Dejection Hopelessness Suicide Death Insomnia Morbidity

Strife

Contention

Hurt Cruelty

Sensitiveness Self-Awareness Fear of Man Fear of Disapproval

Persecution

Unfairness Fear of Judgment Fear of Condemnation Fear of Accusation Fear of Reproof Sensitiveness

Mental Illness

Insanity Madness Mania Retardation Senility Schizophrenia Paranoia Hallucinations

Paranoia

Jealousy Envy Suspicion Distrust Persecution Fears Confrontation Confusion Frustration Incoherence Forgetfulness Unreality

Escape Indifference Stoicism Passivity Sleepiness Alcohol Drugs

Perfection Pride Vanity Ego Frustration

Criticism Irritability Intolerance Anger

Competition

Driving Argument Pride Ego

Impatience Agitation Frustration Intolerance

Resentment Criticism

False Burden

False Responsibility False Compassion Grief Sorrow Apprehension

Nervousness

Tension Headache Nervous Habits Restlessness Excitement Insomnia Roving

Sexual Impurity

Lust Fantasy Lust Masturbation Homosexuality Lesbianism Adultery Fornication Incest Harlotry Rape Exposure Frigidity

Cults

Jehovah's Witnesses **Christian Science** Rosicrucianism Theosophy Urantia Subud Latihan Unity Mormonism Bahaism Unitarianism (Lodges, societies and social agencies using the Bible and God as a basis but omitting the blood atonement of Jesus Christ)

Death

Vanity

Addictive & Com-

Fetishes

Indecision Procrastination Compromise Confusion Forgetfulness Indifference

Self-Deception Self-Delusion Self-Seduction Pride

Mind Binding Confusion Fear of Man Fear of Failure Occult Spirits Spiritism Spirits

Mind Idolatry Intellectualism Rationalization Pride Ego

Fears (All Kinds) Phobias (All Kinds) Hysteria

Fear of Authority Lying Deceit

Pride Ego Self-Righteousness Haughtiness Importance Arrogance

Affectation

Theatrics Playacting Sophistication Pretension

Fatigue

Tiredness Weariness Laziness

Infirmity (May include any disease or sickness)

Inheritance

(Physical) (Emotional) (Mental) (Curses)

Hyper Activity

Restlessness Driving Pressure

Cursing

Blasphemy Coarse Jesting Gossip Criticism Backbiting Mockery Belittling Railing pulsive Nicotine Alcohol Drugs Caffeine Medications Gluttony

- Gluttony
- Nervousness Compulsive Eating Resentment Frustration Idleness Self-Pity Self-Reward

Self-Accusation Self-Hatred Self-Condemnation

Occult Ouija Board Palmistry Handwriting Analysis Automatic Handwriting ESP Hypnotism Horoscope Astrology Levitation Fortune Telling Water Witching Tarot Cards Pendulum Witchcraft **Black Magic** White Magic Conjuration Incantation Charms

Etc.

Religious Ritualism Formalism Legalism Doctrinal Obsession Seduction Doctrinal Error Fear of God Fear of Hell Fear of Lost Salvation Religiosity Etc.

Spiritism

Seance Spirit Guide Necromancy

False Religions Buddhism Taoism Hinduism Islam Shintoism Confucianism Etc.

Covetousness

Stealing Kleptomania Material Lust Greed Discontent

Guilt

Condemnation Shame Unworthiness Embarrassment

Bitterness

Bickering

Doubt

Heartache

Sadism Hurt Cruelty

Spite

Hatred

Argument

Quarreling

Fighting

Control

Possessiveness

Dominance

Witchcraft

Retaliation

Destruction

Resentment

Unforgiveness

Hatred

Violence

Temper

Anger Retaliation

Murder

Rebellion

Stubbornness

Disobedience

Accusation

Faultfinding

Fear of Rejection

Self-Rejection

Judging

Criticism

Rejection

Insecurity

Inferiority

Self-Pitv

Timidity

Shyness

Loneliness

Inadequacy

Indifference

Listlessness

Depression

Despondency

Hopelessness

Defeatism

Dejection

Suicide

Discouragement

Lethargy

Despair

Ineptness

Passivity

Funk

Submissiveness

Self-will

Anti-

Sensitiveness Self-Awareness Fear of Man Fear of Disapproval

Persecution Unfairness Fear of Judgment Fear of Condemnation Fear of Accusation Fear of Reproof Sensitiveness

Mental Illness

Insanity Madness Mania Retardation Senility Schizophrenia Paranoia Hallucinations

Paranoia

Jealousy Envy Suspicion Distrust Unbelief Skepticism

Jealousy

- Envy Suspicion Distrust Selfishness
- Withdrawal Pouting Daydreaming Fantasy Pretension Unreality
- Escape Indifference Stoicism Passivity Sleepiness Alcohol Drugs
- Perfection Pride Vanity Ego Frustration Criticism Irritability Intolerance Anger
- **Competition** Driving Argument Pride Ego
- **Impatience** Agitation
- Frustration Intolerance Resentment Criticism

Heartbreak Crying Sadness Cruelty

Heaviness Gloom Burden Disgust

Worry

Anxiety Fear Dread Apprehension

Nervousness

- Tension Headache Nervous Habits Restlessness Excitement Insomnia Roving
- Sexual Impurity Lust Fantasy Lust Masturbation Homosexuality Lesbianism Adultery Fornication Incest Harlotry Rape Exposure Frigidity

Cults

Jehovah's Witnesses Christian Science Rosicrucianism Theosophy Urantia Subud

53

Death	Persecution		Latihan
Insomnia	Fears	False Burden	Unity
Morbidity	Confrontation	False Responsibility	Mormonism
	Confusion	False Compassion	Bahaism
Strife	Frustration	Grief	UniUrianism
Contention	Incoherence	Sorrow	(Lodges, societies
	Forgetfulness		and social agencies
	-		using the Bible and
			God as a basis but

omitting the blood atonement of Jesus

Christ)

RE
(Rejected are "poor in spirit")
(Love your enemies)
(Not to think of himself more highly)
(Take heed lest he fall)
(Not live unto themselves)
(Fathers do not provoke children)
(Think on these things)
(Double-minded man)
(Fiery trial)

GENERAL

Rejection includes fear of rejection and self-rejection in this common demon family. Except for the sins of the ancestors, rejection is generally where the demons first attack someone and because of the parents, this can be in the womb.

Rejection is defined as reject, refuse, repudiate, decline, deny, rebuff, repel, renounce, discard, throw away, exclude, eliminate and jettison.

Have you had these feelings before? Rejection is very common among Christians. Love is the opposite of Rejection.

THE ROOTS OF REJECTION

(Excerpts) "As for My people, children are their oppressors, and women rule over them. 0 My people, they which lead thee cause thee to err, and destroy the way of thy paths" (Isaiah 3:12). The curse of destruction of the family priesthood (which is centered in the father and usually is the result of inherited family curses) paves the way for the spirit of Rejection in a child.

Frustrated by his lack of leadership and her inability to respect him as a man, the woman (who herself may have inherited curses of dominance) begins to take over and direct the home by the Jezebel spirit.

The child is caught up in the conflict between the parents and becomes its chief victim.

The spirits in the mother will coerce the male child, forbidding him to assert his masculinity or to engage in activities which would develop him as a man.

The progression of destruction in the life of a female child is much the same as that of the boy, except that she will consciously or unconsciously absorb and manifest the same attitudes and spirits which drive her mother.

There is a definite pattern to the entrance of Rejection, which in turn opens the door for Rebellion:

- 1 Curse of destruction of the family priesthood (centered in father).
- 2 Curses and spirits of withdrawal of the father and dominance by the mother.
- 3 Spirit of improper discipline (usually works through the mother, either overpermissive or too harsh) may associate with the curse of rebellion against discipline on the child's part.
- 4 Spirit of lying to escape punishment.
- 5 Curse and spirits of guilt.
- 6 Curse and spirits of distrust (resulting from guilt).
- 7 Curse and spirits involving lack of communication between parents and child.
- 8 Curse and spirits of rejection ("My parents don't love me" or "I can't even talk to them", etc.).

REJECTION, WITCHCRAFT CONTROL, AND UGLINESS

(Excerpts) The hellish "ping pong" game played with hapless victims by the spirits of Rejection and Rebellion has been spelled out by the Hammonds. Everyone working in deliverance should read Pigs in the Parlor by Frank Hammond, with particular attention to the chapter on Schizophrenia.

Rejection is such a common malady that it is found everywhere to some degree or another.

Discovery of an out-of-wedlock pregnancy usually results in anger, upset and dismay in the parents.

The curse of Rejection from the Womb has opened the door for many tormenting spirits in scores of people with whom we have dealt.

Over and over people have reported life-long trouble by seemingly groundless but crippling rejection and various kinds of fears.

In some individuals, such spirits only produce discomfort and uneasiness.

A knowledge of the binding and casting out of evil spirits, and loosing the spirits of God (to counter and cancel the evil ones) is essential (Matt. 18:18; Mark 16:17-18).

There is a demonic entity called Witchcraft Control and he is able to bind other spirits in a person, particularly those involving habits such as smoking, drinking and sexual lapses. In order for the victim to be freed completely, all witchcraft curses must be broken from his family (back to ten generations on both sides) or from any other quarter. All legal holds and legal grounds must be taken from the enemy in the name of Jesus.

We have observed that people with heavy rejection spirits (usually including Rejection from the Womb) sometimes are rather homely and plain. A demon called Ugliness is found in many persons.

Perhaps you have noticed that people very often look ten to twenty years younger in their casket than when alive. Many times in deliverance, we see people change before us. They look younger, softer and more relaxed.

SCHIZOPHRENIA

(Excerpts) Schizophrenia is a very common problem. Some authorities in the field of mental illness estimate there may be as many as fifty million schizophrenics in the United States. This is about one out of eight persons. Schizophrenics account for half the population in psychiatric hospitals. Of course there are varying degrees of schizophrenia. Some cases are acute while others are quite mild. Many schizophrenics have never been treated professionally. Schizophrenia has remained a very baffling problem to mental health professionals. The cause and cure has remained shrouded in uncertainty.

The disturbance and disintegration of personality known as schizophrenia or dementia praecox is frequently encountered by the deliverance minister. I would estimate that as many as one fourth of those who come to us for deliverance are found to have the schizophrenic pattern. The Lord has graciously given us a special revelation on the problem which enables us to deal with such cases more effectively.

The core of the schizophrenic is Rejection and Rebellion.

Schizophrenia always begins with Rejection! It commonly begins in childhood or infancy and sometimes while the child is yet in his mother's womb. There are many causes for rejection. Perhaps the child was not wanted. It may have been the wrong sex desired by one or both parents. The conditions in the home may have been unsettled. There are many "doors" that lead to rejection.

For example, suppose the schizophrenic nature is in the mother. The demons will pick out one or more of her children to feed down through. The schizophrenic mother feels rejection. She is the one who is primarily responsible for feeding love into the family. The rejection within herself creates problems in her relationships with the child. The child is opened for rejection by the mother's instability.

Now, one can have a rejection spirit and not be schizophrenic. In other words, it is all in the matter of forming a personality. You can have a rejection spirit and still manage to form your own personality and be secure in yourself. **Rejection is the control demon in one of the personalities set up within the schizophrenic.** Rejection depicts a **withdrawn** type personality. (It is a feeling within - it is agony **within** - it is a **starvation of love** -it is **insecurity** - it is **inferiority** - it is **fantasy** - it is **unreality** - it is all on the inside - "I don't share in this.").

Sexual perversions represent an extreme attempt to overcome rejection. Sexual experiences, real or imaginary, can never satisfy the need for genuine love. They are the Devil's substitutes for real love and leave a person ridden with frustration and guilt. Sex is not love!

The person who has a deep sense of rejection feels insecure and inferior.

Since the person has been rejected or fears rejection, he is driven to pamper self... to push self. He is thereby trying to overcome feelings of rejection. One who **feels** rejected wants to feel important.

REFERENCES

The Roots of Rejection, page 224, *Battling The Hosts Of Hell* "Rejection, Witchcraft Control, and Ugliness", page 70, *Demolishing The Hosts Of Hell* "Schizophrenia", page 123, *Pigs In The Parlor*

"Rejection", page 624, Roget's Thesaurus.

BITTERNESS LIST OF SCRIPTURE

Deut. 29:18-20	(Root of Gall & Wormwood)
I Sam. 1:10	(Bitterness of Soul)
1 Sam. 15:32	(Bitterness of Death)
2 Sam 2:26	(Bitterness in the latter end)
Psa 10:7	(Cursing, Deceit, Oppression, Mischief, Iniquity)
Pro. 14:10	(Bitterness of Heart)
Pro. 17:25	(Bitterness to Mother)
Ezek. 27:31	(Bitter Wailing)
Zech. 12:10	(Bitterness for Only Son)
Acts 8:22-24	(Gall of Bitterness, Bond of Iniquity)
Rom. 3:13-14	(Cursing and Bitterness)
Eph. 4:31-32	(Bitterness, Wrath, Anger, Clamor)
Col. 3:8-9	(Anger, Wrath, Malice, Lies)
Heb. 12:14-16	(Root of Bitterness)

GENERAL

Bitterness includes resentment, hatred, unforgiveness, violence, temper, anger, retaliation and murder in a common demon family. Generally, after a person becomes rejected, they become bitter and unforgiving. The opposite of bitterness is forgiveness.

Bitterness is defined as bitterly curse, rebellious, sharp, acrid, grief, embitter, poisonous, violently, provoke, vex, grieve, sorrow, bitter herb, calamity, bile, venom, angry, chafed, most bitterly, rebel and provoke.

Have you had these feelings before? Unforgiveness, which is a form of bitterness, is very common among Christians.

Gall is defined as "poison" or "bile." Bound is defined as "control" and "uniting". Root is defined as "root" and "thought". Wormwood is defined as "cursed."

DEALING WITH BITTERNESS (EXCERPTS)

Bitterness is a hurt that will not heal, a wound in the spirit (Prov. 18:14). It comes into a life because of a failure to appropriate God's grace (Heb. 12:15); by refusing to forgive others (Matt. 6:14-15; 7:1-2; 18:21-35); or refusing to thank God for all things (Eph 5:20; Phil 4:6).

However, each time we remember the things which happened, we are suddenly flooded with hurt and/or anger again. This indicates unhealed bitterness.

"Vengeance is mine, I will repay, saith the Lord." (Heb. 10:30) It is too heavy for us to carry and besides it belongs to God.

Forgive eagerly, remembering that unforgiveness is torture (Matt. 18:34-35).

We must remember that God loves us (Rom. 8:32-34), and not look at what others say, what we think or even at the situation itself.

We must go to the God of all comfort (II Cor. 1:3) for His Holy Spirit is our Comforter (John 14:16) and He earnestly desires to comfort us (Psalm 103:13).

When we go to God, we will find peace that passes understanding which will keep (guard, garrison) our hearts and minds (emotions and thoughts) (Phil. 4:4-9).

Focus on God and give Him thanks (Eph. 5:20; Rom. 8:28) rejoicing because your name is written in the 'Lamb's Book of Life (Luke 10:20; Phil. 4:4) and ask for grace, comfort and peace (Matt.7:7-11).

Focusing on God and letting Him be our judge is absolutely necessary. Proverbs 29:25 contrasts the fear of man with trust in God. To receive comfort and heal the bitterness in your spirit, you must die to works of righteousness (trying to earn God's love and favor) by drowning in the ocean of God's love and grace, rejoicing that He has chosen you.

REFERENCES

Dealing With Bitterness, p. 36, Conquering The Hosts Of Hell

REBELLION LIST OF SCRIPTURE

1 Sam. 15:23	(for rebellion is as the sin of witchcraft, stubbornness is as iniquity &
	idolatry)
Heb. 2:2	(disobedience received a just reward)
Heb. 13:17	(submit yourselves) (anti-submissiveness)
2 Peter 2:10	(presumptuous are they, self-willed)

GENERAL

Synonyms for Rebellion are Treason, Self-Will, Obduracy, Stubbornness, Disobedience, Denunciation, and Anti-submissiveness.

Antonyms for Rebellion are Willingness, Obedience and Submissiveness.

Rebellion includes self-will, stubbornness, disobedience and anti-submissiveness in this common demon family.

Generally, after a person has become bitter, they rebel.

Disobedience means to disobey, transgress, violate, disregard, defy, infringe, shirk, resist, mutiny, rebel and revolt.

Have you had these feelings before? Rebellion is very common among Christians. Obedience is the opposite of Rebellion.

The word "Rebellion" occurs infrequently in the Bible. Therefore, we must use other words as "rebellious" and "to rebel". The next best word to describe Rebellion is Disobedience or the opposite of Obedience.

STUDY OF REBELLION

The best way to study rebellion is as disobedience to God and from the opposite view of "the need to be obedient to God". There are many instances of disobedience to God and the corresponding punishment in the Bible for the sin.

DISOBEDIENCE TO GOD SCRIPTURE

Lev. 26:14-46	(A curse to those that break the commandments)
Num. 14:11-24	(People murmur - God threatens them)
Num. 32:8-13	(Moses reproves the Reubenites and Gadites)
Deut. 18:19	(God will require it of the people) Deut. 28:15-68 (The curse for
	disobedience)

HELPFUL SCRIPTURE AND BIBLE STORIES OF REBELLION

Gen. Ch. 3	The Fall of Man
2 Sam. Ch. 13	Absalom Avenges Tamar

2 Sam. Ch. 15	Absalom's Conspiracy
Kings Ch. 16-22	Ahab/Jezebel Rebellion
Isa. 3:12	Children Oppress, Women Rule (Ahab/Jezebel Complex)
Isa. Ch. 14	Satan's Fall
Eze. Ch. 28	Satan's Rebellion
Mai. 4:5-6	Smite the Earth with a Curse
Thes. 2:9-12	Strong Delusion, Believing Lies
James 3:13-18	Earthly, Unspiritual, Devilish Wisdom

NELSON'S EXPOSITORY DICTIONARY OF THE OLD TESTAMENT

The words "to rebel, rebellion and rebellious" are defined by the following phrases:

Be contentious, make angry, contend with, dispute with, stubborn headed, opposition to someone motivated by pride, stubborn and rebellious, speech and actions are against the Lord, rebellious attitude against God, disobey, act of defying the command of God, rebellious and defiled, listens to no voice, accepts no correction, make bitter, provoke, reject, not recognize, rebellion and stiff neck, double rebellion and rebellious house.

"Rebellion" can also be defined as revolt, overthrow, mutiny, breakup, destruction, spasm, convulsion, resistance, interference, friction, withstand, repulse and disobedient.

"Rebellious" can also be defined as revolutionary, defiance, aggressiveness, dare and scorn.

EVE REBELS (The Original Rebellion of Man)

There are many ingredients in Eve's rebellion: She was seduced by conversation and greed for power and knowledge.

The price of seduction was experiencing a knowledge of good and evil.

The action of rebellion resulted in shame, attempting to correct the mistake or cover it up, fear, withdrawing from God's presence, loss of esteemed position, pain in childbirth, hard work and toil, and birth of rebellious children.

ABSALOM REBELS

Absalom's sister, Tamar, was raped by his half-brother, Amnon (II Sam. 13). Hate entered Absalom's heart because of his sister being raped. He plotted and planned for two years to murder Amnon.

Absalom again falls prey to resentment and burns Joab's field because he would not go to David for him. By trying to force David to see him, he is acting out rebellion.

He came to repentance but didn't really repent; it was surface repentance only.

After he had his audience with David, he quickly got busy with his plans for rebellion.

Absalom got favor with the people by acting as if he loved them and claiming great concern for their welfare. After he had seduced them, he declared himself King.

Some demons that probably were in Absalom were hate, anger, resentment, deceit, trickery, witchcraft, betrayal, pride, pompousness, false love, backstabbing, lying, arrogance, unrighteous* judgement and self-serving.

JEZEBEL REBELS

She killed God's prophets which is rebellion against God. She exhibited hate, retaliation and threatenings.

She turns from role of woman and wife to trying to upstage the King, her husband. She belittled him, connived behind his back, and plotted murder and control of people. Some women/men today use seemingly pure religious motives to control others such as soulish prophecy - telling others what to do.

Another motive behind her rebellion was that she wanted worship and admiration.

Jezebel is true sorcery. Rebellious Jezebelic males/females will ask questions aimed at causing the other person to doubt his worth, ability, decisions, etc. She ended up being thrown out a window, run over by chariots and eaten by dogs. Did she go to Hell?

AHAB REBELS (WORSHIPING IDOLS IS WORST REBELLION AGAINST GOD.)

The major rebellion was against God in Baal worship. He went after idols.

Ahab exhibited characteristics of complete confusion, disobedience, resentfulness, sullenness, greed, accomplice to Jezebel, believed lying spirit, refused to believe God, and begat rebellious children.

CLASSIC EXAMPLES OF REBELLION

Nation of Israel - rebelled many times. Satan and Fallen Angels - original rebellion. Queen Jezebel - rebellious woman. King Ahab - rebellious man.

JEZEBEL-AHAB REBELLIOUS INFLUENCE IN WORLD TODAY

Divorce - one parent families.

Felinism - pictures bungling father and clever mother. Sex - no restrictions. Young people - confused, rebellious. Drugs - Sex - Music. Society with emotional problems. Effeminate, emotional, weak spiritual and weak physical men.

Women's false strength - put to test usually fails. Children - fear, insecurity, frustration, difficulty learning, potential corruption, discord, growth in occult and cults, selfishness, doubt, inability to achieve, hypochondriacs and church splits.

YOU AND PEOPLE AROUND YOU

Such qualities as these have unnatural power to seduce you, even overwhelm you. It is not charisma but seduction, and it creates bondage. You may have a friend whom you at times have a great desire to be free of, and the next moment feel guilt or condemnation for desiring your freedom. Consider why you are attracted to your friend.

Look out for mothers/dads who try to dominate married children's lives, and men/women who cannot delegate authority but try to mind every detail.

Women/men shouldn't try to force mate into a religious experience but win him/her by quiet and joyful submission to the Christian life fulfilling your role as God established it.

SUMMARY

A study of the Bible shows clearly that God hates rebellion and that He will punish the people for their sins.

The people are blessed when they obey the Bible and they are cursed when they disobey the Bible commandments.

All rebellion is against God. For example, when a wife rebels against her husband, she is not just rebelling against him but against God who put the husband in authority over the wife. Finally, rebellion can be very costly while obedience can be very rewarding. The Bible applies equally to an individual, family, church, community, nation, etc.

Rebellion	Greed
Disobedience	Lying
Self-Will	Hate
Stubbornness	Evil Plotting & Planning
Anti-submissiveness	Evil Control of Others
Destruction	Unrighteous Judgment
Subversion	Rock Music
Resistance	Christian Rock
Interference	Deceit
Friction	Trickery
Repulse	Betrayal
Defiance	Pride
Aggressiveness	False Love
Scorn	Arrogance
Sorcery	Conniving
Seduction	Confusion
Sullen	Masculine Women
Taking Tranquilizers	Effeminate Men
	Masculine Women

UNFORGIVENESS LIST OF SCRIPTURE

Psa. 85:2	(Forgiven iniquity and covered sin -God)
Psa. 86:5	(Ready to forgive and plenteous in mercy - God)
Psa. 103:3,12	(Forgiveth all and removed as far as east from west - God)
Isa. 1:18	(Sins shall be as white as snow - God)
Isa. 43:25	(Blotteth out and will not remember -God)
Mt. 5:44	(Forgive your enemies)
Mt. 6:14-15	(Forgive men or not be forgiven by God -man)
Mt. 18:21-35	(Law of Forgiveness - man)
Mk. 11:25-26	(Forgive men or not be forgiven by God - man)
Lk. 17:3-4	(Rebuke man and forgive seven times a day - man)
Eph. 4:32	(King, tenderhearted, forgiving as God does - man)
Col. 2:13	(Forgiven you all trespasses - God)
Col. 3:12-13	(Mercies, kindness, humbleness, meekness, long-suffering, forbearing and
	forgiving one another - man)
Heb. 8:12	(Merciful to unrighteous and remember not sins - God)
Heb. 10:17	(Remember not sins and iniquities -God)
1 Jn. 1:9	(Confessing, forgiveness, cleansing from unrighteousness

ANALYSIS OF MATTHEW 5:44

"But I say unto you, Love your enemies, bless them that curse you, do good to them that hate you, and pray for them which despitefully use you, and persecute you." Forgive your enemies; there are no excuses!

- 1. Love your enemies. We do not have to love Satan! Love in a social or moral sense: beloved. Enemy is an adversary: foe.
- 2. Bless them that curse you. Speak well of: thank or invoke a benediction upon. Curse is to imprecate: to doom.
- 3. Do good to them that hate you. Do good honestly: full well. Hate is to detest: especially to persecute.
- 4. Pray for them that despitefully use you and persecute you. Pray earnestly for: supplicate. Despitefully is to insult: slander and falsely accuse. Persecute is to pursue: to suffer.

GENERAL

Generally a person's demons cannot be cast out if he has unforgiveness in his heart. The opposite of unforgiveness is forgiveness.

Matt. 18:21-35 (Law of Forgiveness - Key Chapter); God sends demons to torment these with unforgiveness. Forgive your fellowman $70 \ge 7 = 490$ times.

UNFORGIVENESS (OPPOSITE IS FORGIVENESS)

Generally a person's demons cannot be cast out if he has unforgiveness in his heart.

Matt. 18:21-35 (Law of Forgiveness - Key Chapter) God sends demons to torment these with unforgiveness. Forgive your fellowman 70 x 7 = 490 times.

Kingdom of Heaven:	God	Rich Man	Poor Man
(Is likened to)	(King)	(You)	(Anyone you have not forgiven)

Talent = $750 \text{ oz. of silver};$	
Pence = $1/8$ oz. of silver.	
10,000 talents x 750 = 7,500,000 oz. =	\$52,800,000
	(\$600.000)

100 Pence x 1/8 = 12-1/2 oz. = \$44.00 (\$1.00). Forgave 600,000 times as much. Tormentors are Satan and his demons. Prison is being in jail with Satan as Warden and his demons as guards.

This is the crucifixion of the flesh until you come to your senses and forgive your fellowman and then ask God to forgive you!

The consequence of unforgiveness is the most important lesson that God has taught us about deliverance.

Generally cancer and arthritis come in through the sin of unforgiveness. If you know a Christian with these diseases, see if they have unforgiveness. They cannot be healed if the demons have a right to be there.

Pattern for being delivered and healed: forgive others, ask God for forgiveness, and forgive self. Cast out unforgiveness and bitterness. Cast out cancer and arthritis. Anoint with oil and pray for healing.

FORGIVENESS

(Excerpts) Forgiveness is hard to give because it hurts to extend it to undeserving and hardhearted ones. To release a wrong-doer instead of exacting a just penalty requires that we reach out in love, rejecting the temptation to hold bitterness and resentment. This is contrary to our natural inclinations, thus the old adage, "To err is human, to forgive divine".

Forgiveness is not forgetting the wrong done; some hurts are so deep that this would be impossible. We can forget the anger and hurt we felt, but the act is branded in our minds. Forgiveness takes place when the victim accepts the loss and/or injury done him and deliberately cancels the debt owed him by the offending person.

Anger must be dealt with openly and honestly, not denied or ignored. Either it must be vented in retaliation or the injured party must accept his own anger, bear the burden of it, and confess it in prayer to release himself and to set the other party free. Revenge always hurts the revenger far more than the one at whom it is leveled.

In other words, our pattern must be the grievous and substitutionary death of Christ. He willingly received ail the hurt and evil of the entire human race in His own body on the tree (I Peter 2:21-24) to pay the debt for our guilt. He now offers what He has wrought as a free gift to undeserving and guilty persons so they can be free (Rom. 6:23; John 10:28-30). As nothing else will, forgiveness takes us into the mysteries of grace where God forgives unconditionally on the basis of the substitutionary payment by another (Mark 11:25-26). One of the fruits of the Holy Spirit's work in a life is the quality of meekness. It is a quality which is nurtured and abetted by practicing forgiveness.

This highly prized quality will cause us to be able to accept God's dealings with us as good, without disputing or resisting them. Meekness will also cause us to be able to "bear one another's burdens" cheerfully and for Jesus' sake, enabling us to enter into the mystery of Christ's sufferings.

Because unforgiveness, and the resentment and bitterness it generates is so deadly, it is not optional, but necessary that it be dealt with. Cancer and arthritis spirits definitely root into this fertile ground. To be bitter and unforgiving costs far more than it is worth.

REFERENCES

"Forgiveness", p. 34, Conquering The Hosts Of Hell

HATE, VENGEANCE, ENVY, STRIFE, AND LOVE HATE (Opposite is Love)

God hates: Worship of other gods or images; sacrificed sons and daughter to other gods; God hates rightfully; idolatry; evil deeds; wrong; robbery; those loving violence; loves those who hate evil and those Egyptians that hated Israel (Ps. 105:23-25); haughtiness, lying, murdering, plotting evil, eagerness to do wrong, a false witness and sowing discord among brothers (Prov. 6:16-19); pious meetings; hated Esau loved Jacob; show and pretense - hypocrisy; pride and false glory; those worshipping beautiful homes; plots to harm others; swearing lies; divorce and cruel men (taken from 25 scripture verses).

We hate: Low and vulgar things; crooked deals; false teaching; those undecided to obey God; every other way; lies and falsehood; God's enemies; evil; pride; arrogance; corruption; deceit; our son if we don't discipline; dishonesty; bribes; hates himself if a thief; time for hating; idols; father, mother, wife, children, brothers, sisters and own life (Luke 14:26); licentious deeds; sexual sin and idol feasts (taken from 19 scripture verses).

LIST OF SCRIPTURES

Ex. 20:5	(Worship of gods and images)
Deut. 12:31	(Sacrifice children)
Deut. 16:22	(Worship images)
Job 34:17	(God hates rightfully)
Psa. 5:5	(Proud sinners)
Psa. 11:5	(Violence)
Psa. 45:7	(Wrong)
Psa. 97:10	(Evil)
Psa. 101:3	(Deals)

Psa. 105:25	(Hated Israel)
Psa. 119:104	(False Teaching)
Psa. 119:113	(Undecided)
Psa. 119:128	(Way)
Psa. 119:163	(Falsehood)
Psa. 139:21,22	(Hate God's enemies, hate, to hate enemy, be utterly odious, grieved, to
	cut off, detest, loathe self, hatred, exceeding hate.)
Pro. 6:16-19	(Seven things) (Evil)
Pro. 8:13	(Lies)
Pro. 13:5	(Son)
Pro. 24:9	(Folly)
Pro. 28:16	(Dishonesty and bribes)
Pro. 29:24	(Hates himself)
Ecc. 3:8	(A time for hating)
Isa. 1:14	(Pious meetings)
Isa. 61:8	(Robbery and wrong)
Jer. 44:4	(Worshipping other gods)
Hos. 9:15	(Idolatry)
Amos 5:15, 21	(Idols) (Hypocrisy)
Amos 6:8	(Pride)
Zech. 8:17	(Lying and harming others)
Mai. 1:3	(Rejected Esau)
Mai. 2:16	(Divorce and cruelty)
Matt. 10:22	(Hate us for being Christians)
Lk. 14:26	(Father, mother, wife, children, brothers and sisters, own life)
Jn. 12:25	(Despise life)
Rom. 9:13	(Chose not to bless Esau) (Hate wrong)
Rev. 2:6,15	(Licentiousness and sexual sin. Morally unreserved, wanton, lascivious,
	voluptuous, dissolute, debauched, profligate and bridled.)

VENGEANCE (OPPOSITE IS TO LET GOD REPAY YOUR ENEMIES)

Vengeance means punishment, to retaliate, avenge, revenge, carrying justice out, punisher, justice and judgement.

Repay means recompense, render, pay, command and grant. Have you done these things?

Christians are to: Bring back or help enemy's ox; love thy neighbor as thyself; feed enemy; resist not evil; turn other cheek; give cloak also; go two miles; lend; give to him that hostess; love enemies; bless them that curse; do good; pray for them; be perfect; have peace; overcome evil; provide honest things; give place to wrath; be a blessing; pitiful; courteous and compassionate.

Christians are not to: Forbear helping enemy; hate; rebuke; sin upon neighbor; avenge; bear grudge; recompense evil; be false witness; deceive; do so to him; render evil accordingly; grieve brother at meat of idols; obtain vengeance; be bitter; and render railing for railing.

Vengeance means punishment, to retaliate, avenge, revenge, carrying justice out, punisher, justice and judgement.

Repay means recompense, render, pay, command and grant. Have you done these things?

VENGEANCE SCRIPTURES

Rom. 12:17-21	(Vengeance is mine; I will repay)
List of Scriptures	
Ex. 23:4-5	(Help enemy's oxen)
Lev. 19:17-18	(Not hate, rebuke, sin, avenge, grudge but love)
Deut. 32:35	(To God belongs vengeance and recompense)
Pro. 20:22	(No recompense)
Pro. 24:28-29	(No repaying)
Pro. 25:21-22	(Feed enemy; coals of fire)
Mt. 5:38-48	(Love your enemies)
Mk. 9:50	(Have peace one with another)
Rom. 12:17-21	(Vengeance is God's)
Rom. 14:14-19	(Do not grieve brother over food of idols)
1 Thes. 5:14-18	(Do not render evil for evil)
Heb. 10:26-31	(Vengeance is God's)
Heb. 12:14-17	(Root of bitterness)
1 Pet. 3:8-9	(Do not render evil or railing)

ENVY AND STRIFE (Opposite is Peace and not Coveting)

Prov. 14:30	(Envy is the rottenness [disease?] of the bones)
1 Cor. 3:3	(Are you not carnal and walk as men?)
1 Cor. 11:30	(Weak and sickly [diseases] and many sleep [die])
Gal. 5:19-26	(Shall not inherit the Kingdom of God [fruit of the devil])
Jas. 3:14-16	(Envying is jealousy)

Envy is described as a green-eyed monster, yellow-eyed, horn-mad, resentful, to try to possess, to demand, to covet, mistrust, to be skeptical and jaundiced.

Strife is described as contentious, quarrels, hostility, competition, rivalry, controversy, pairing off, acting hateful and spiteful. **Have you had these feelings?**

List of Scriptures

Envy		
Num. 12:1-10	Mt. 27:18	1 Cor. 11:30
Job 5:2	Mk. 15:10	2 Cor. 12:20
Pro. 14:30	Acts 7:9	Gal. 5:21,26
Pro. 23:17	Acts 13:45	1 Tim. 6:1-6
Pro. 27:4	Acts 17:5	Tit. 3:3
Ecc. 9:6	Rom. 1:29	Jas. 3:14

Isa. 11:13	Rom. 13:13	Jas. 4:5
Isa. 26:11	1 Cor. 3:3	Jas. 5:9
Ezk, 35:11-15		1 Pet. 2:1
Strife		
Pro. 10:12	Pro. 20:3	Pro. 28:25
Pro. 15:18	Pro. 22:10	Pro. 30:33
Pro. 16:19	Pro. 26:17	Phil. 2:3
Pro. 16:28	Pro. 26:21	2 Tim. 2:23-25

LOVE

I want to try to minister love to break down barriers. This is a new area for me and I ask God to help me. The ones that hurt us the most are the ones we love the most. Love breaks down walls between people. It may be the most powerful force of God. Love can be used as a weapon against evil. Demons cannot comprehend love; they hate each other and Satan.

I have often wondered why men cannot show love for their wives in church but they can easily hug the other women. The women can also easily hug the other men rather than their husbands. It is not sissy to show love for your wife. Jesus was not a sissy. A man who truly follows God rather than the world is courageous.

PRAYER

Love your enemies. First, forgive those that have hurt you. Bless them that curse you. Then ask God to break the curse. Do good to them that hate you. And ask God to bless them. Pray for them that despitefully use you and persecute you. Pray for your enemies now (Matt. 5:44).

God - Father, Son and Holy Spirit: Ask God for forgiveness for holding grudges against Him and blaming Him for tragedies in your lives. **Ancestors and Parents**: Forgive them for the sins of the ancestors. **Husbands and Wives**: Husbands ask God to forgive you for having bitterness against your wives. Wives ask God to forgive you for not submitting to your husbands. **Children**: Ask God to forgive you for not honoring and obeying your parents. **Others**: Forgive others for hurts and wrongs. Release them from sins against us.

LIST OF ENVY AND STRIFE DEMONS OR CHARACTERISTICS

This list of demons and their characteristics caused us to have a confrontation with our pastor about deliverance. Since we couldn't do deliverance his way, we left the church so that we could do deliverance God's way.

Ill-Will	Lack of Christian	Get one's back up	Sensual
Opposition	Charity	Get in one's hair	Devilish
Grudge	Trying to imitate	Keep at boiling point	Confusion
Malice	One dividing	Make one blow his	Evil Works
Prejudice	homes/church	top	Wars
Debate	Dubious	Eruption (get in a	Fighting
Yellow	Distrustful	huff)	Condemnation

Jaundice Backbiting Covetousness Spiteful Flare up Go on the warpath Go into orbit Look black Become Insane Hatred Wrath Proud Froward Whisperer Meddling Foolish Scorner Reproach Contradicting Lewd Rioting Drunkenness Chambering Wantonness Tumults Reveling Disputing Earthly Violence

Skeptic Indignation Annovance Tantrum Enmity Murder Non-Conformist Full of Doubts Without faith Peculiar Fury and Temper Impatience Violence Fretful Out of Humor Get one's goat Get one's dander up Stir up a hornet's nest Rage and Outbursts Bitterness Hemorrhage Yell and Scream Boil Over Seethe Have a fit Bristle Up Gnash one's teeth Fly off the handle Snap the mind/go mad Fear of Showing Love

Apoplexy (bad veins) Fume and sputter Rail at Fulminate Have a tantrum Provoking Despise **Evil-surmising** Corrupt Disobedient Deceiving Lies Adultery Guile **Evil-Speaking** Contentions Selfishness Greedy Competitive Evil Eye Looks that kill Pairing off Anger - Rage Revenge - Wrath Quarrel - Hostile Argumentative Abnormal - Rebel Suspicious Unbelief Pride

Hypocrisy Ought Discontentment Lusting Hard feelings Cravings Resentments **Rivalry** Strife Controversy Ouarrel Hateful **Furious** Bitterness Resentment Withdrawal Deceit Anger Retaliation Revenge Hurt Guilt Unforgiveness Cancer Arthritis Idol Worship Graven Images Sacrifice Children

Fear of Others Opin-Provoking False Teaching ions Indecision Crack up Meddlesome Lying Lies Folly Forcing Vainglory Dishonesty Unlearned Bribery Opposition Hate Leprosy Piousness Silliness Hypocrisy Rottenness Divorce Shame Cruelty Blasphemies Licentiousness Boasting Sexual Sin

Frenzy Sharpness Gall, Chafe, ruffle Make the fur fly Make bad blood Make sore Hysterics Irritate To Rant Roar Shake and Quiver Scold Fly Apart Root of Bitterness Raking Wrath Grudge False Witness Sowing discord Plotting Evil Pretense False Glory Swearing Vulgarity Corruption Judgmental False Rebuke Desolation Assault Deceit Malignity Divisions Carnality Haughtiness Murder Out of line Displeasure Carry on Raise the Devil Stamp with rage Look daggers Arrogance Voluptuousness Fear of Being Hurt Fear of Rejection Vengeance Vexation Swellings

REFERENCES

Scriptures and demons for Envy and Strife were taken from a teaching by Glen and Erma Miller of Lake Hamilton Bible Camp, Hot Springs, Arkansas.

DELIVERANCE PRAYERS GENERAL

There are many good deliverance prayers that have been written and printed in books and in loose-leaf form. Some of these prayers are general and some have been written for specific purposes.

The ideal prayer is the one prayed by the individual to cover the specific area of the person's life that is being ministered to at that time. The next best prayer is the form prayer which the person repeats after the deliverance leader.

Three printed prayers are included: short - "Pigs In The Parlor"; medium - "Out In The Name of Jesus"; and long, Hegewisch Baptist Church. Finally a combination prayer by Gene and Earline Moody is presented.

All of these prayers have been used many times by Lis and others, and have produced good results. One side benefit is that the people can see what is wrong and evil in their lives by what is contained in the prayers.

These prayers can be used for individuals, small groups or large groups equally well.

SHORT PRAYER

Lord Jesus Christ, I believe You died on the cross for my sins and rose again from the dead. You redeemed me by Your blood and I belong to You, and I want to live for You. I confess all my sins—known and unknown—I'm sorry for them all. I renounce them all. <u>I forgive all others as I want You to forgive me</u>. Forgive me now and cleanse me with Your blood. I thank You for the blood of Jesus Christ which cleanses me now from all sin. And I come to You now as my deliverer. You know my special needs—the thing that binds, that torments, that defiles; that evil spirit, that unclean spirit-I claim the promise of Your Word, "Whosoever that calleth on the name of the Lord shall be delivered." (Joel 2:32) I call upon You now. In the name of the Lord Jesus Christ, deliver me and set me free. Satan, I renounce you and all your works. I loose myself from you, in the name of Jesus, and I command you to leave me right now in Jesus' name. Amen!

This is my favorite prayer because it is short and effective. The first part is salvation and the last part is deliverance. You can pause after the sentence underlined about "forgiveness" and let the people forgive others as the Holy Spirit leads them.

MEDIUM PRAYER

Thank You, Lord, for dying for my sins, for Your glorious resurrection, and for making me a new creature in Christ by faith in Your precious blood. Dear Lord, I have a confession to make: I have sought supernatural experience apart from You.

I have disobeyed Your Word.

I want You to help me renounce all these things and cleanse me in body, soul, and spirit in Jesus' name. I renounce witchcraft and magic, both black and white.

I renounce Ouija boards and all other occult games. I renounce all séances, clairvoyance, and mediums; ESP, second sight, and mind reading. I renounce all fortune telling, palm reading, tealeaf reading, crystal balls, Tarot and other card laying. I renounce all astrology and interest in horoscopes. I renounce the heresy of reincarnation and all healing groups involved in metaphysics.

I renounce all hypnosis under any excuse or authority. I break any curse placed on me from any occult source, in Jesus' name.

I renounce all curiosity about either future or past, which is outside Thy will.

I renounce water witching or dowsing, levitation, body lifting, table tipping, psychometry, and automatic writing.

I renounce astral projection and other demonic skills. I renounce all literature I have ever read in any of these fields, and vow that I will destroy such books in my own possession.

I now break, in the name of Jesus Christ, all psychic heredity, and any demonic hold upon my family line as a result of the disobedience of any of my ancestors. I also break any bonds of physical or mental illness, in Jesus' name.

I also break all demonic subjection to my mother, father, grandparents, or any other human being. In the name of Jesus Christ I renounce everything psychic and occult.

I renounce every cult that denies the blood of Christ. I renounce every philosophy that denies the divinity of Christ.

I call upon the Lord to set me free. Lord, I have another confession to make, I have not loved, but have resented certain people. I call upon You, Lord, to help me forgive them. I do now for-give...(Here we pause for several minutes while each person puts the names in there which the Lord brings to mind, either of persons living or dead.)

I do now forgive myself. I renounce every evil spirit that binds or torments me and I call upon the Lord to set me free.

LONG PRAYER - Warfare Prayer

Heavenly Father, I bow in worship and praise before You. I cover myself with the blood of the Lord Jesus Christ as my protection. I surrender myself completely and unreservedly in every area of my life to You. I take a stand against all the workings of satan that would hinder me in my prayer life. I address myself only to the true and living God and refuse any involvement of satan in my prayer. Satan, I command you, in the Name of the Lord Jesus Christ, to leave my presence with all your demons. I bring the blood of the Lord Jesus Christ between us. I resist all the endeavors of satan and his wicked spirits to rob me of the will of God. I choose to be transformed by the renewing of my mind. I pull down the strongholds of satan.

GENERAL CONFESSION AND PRAYER

Lord Jesus Christ, I believe that You are the Son of God, that You are the Messiah come in the flesh to destroy the works of the Devil. You died on the cross for my sins and rose again from the dead. I now confess all of my sins and repent. I now ask You to forgive me and cleanse me in Your blood. I believe that Your blood cleanses me now from all sin. Thank You for redeeming me, cleansing me, justifying me, and sanctifying me in Your blood.

FORGIVENESS PRAYER

Lord, I have a confession to make: I have not loved, but have resented certain people and have unforgiveness in my heart, and I call upon You, Lord, to help me forgive them. I do now forgive (name them, both living and dead) and ask You to forgive them also, Lord. I do now forgive and accept myself, in the name of Jesus Christ.

OCCULT CONFESSION PRAYER

Lord, I now confess seeking from satan the help that should only come from God. I now confess as sin (name them, occult sins) and also those sins I cannot remember. Lord, I now repent and renounce these sins and ask You to forgive me. I renounce satan and all his works: I hate all his demons; I count them my enemies. In the Name of Jesus Christ I now close the door on all occult practices, and I command all such spirits to leave me in the Name of Jesus Christ.

LOOSING FROM DOMINATION PRAYER

In the Name of Jesus Christ, I now renounce, break and loose myself from all demonic subjection to my mother, father, grandparents, or any other human beings, living or dead, that have dominated me in any way, and I thank You, Lord, for setting me free.

PSYCHIC HEREDITY AND BONDAGE PRAYER

In the Name of Jesus Christ, I now renounce, break and loose myself and my children from all psychic powers or bondages or bonds of physical or mental illness, upon me or my family line, as the results of parents or any other ancestors. I thank You, Lord, for setting me free.

LOOSING OF CURSES, SPELLS, ETC. PRAYER

In the Name of Jesus Christ, I now rebuke, break, loose myself and my children from any and all evil curses, charms, vexes, hexes, spells, jinxes, psychic powers, bewitchment, witchcraft and

sorcery, that have been put upon me or my family line from any persons or from any occult or psychic sources, and I cancel all connected or related spirits and command them to leave me. I thank You, Lord, for setting me free.

COME TO JESUS DELIVERER PRAYER

I come to You, Jesus, as my Deliverer. You know all my problems (name them), all the things that bind, that torment, that defile, and harass me. I now loose myself from every dark spirit, from every evil influence, from every satanic bondage, from every spirit in me that is not the Spirit of God, and I command all such spirits to leave me now in the Name of Jesus Christ. I now confess that my body is a temple for the Holy Spirit, redeemed, cleansed, sanctified, by the blood of Jesus. Therefore, satan has no place, no power over me, through the blood of Jesus.

DEREK PRINCE'S BLOOD OF JESUS PRAYER

Through the Blood of Jesus I am redeemed out of the hand of the devil. Through the Blood of Jesus all my sins are forgiven. The Blood of Jesus Christ, God's Son, cleanses me continually from all sin. Through the Blood of Jesus I am justified, made righteous, just as if I'd never sinned; I am sanctified, made holy, set apart to God. My body is a temple for the Holy Spirit, redeemed, cleansed, sanctified, by the Blood of Jesus. Therefore Satan has no part in me, no power over me, through the Blood of the Lord Jesus Christ. I renounce him, loose myself from him, command him to leave me, **IN THE NAME OF THE LORD JESUS CHRIST!**

PRIDE

Father, I come to You in the Name of Jesus Christ. I know pride is an abomination to You, that a haughty look, a lying tongue, hands that shed innocent blood, a heart that deviseth wicked imaginations, feet that be swift in running to mischief, a false witness that speaketh lies, and he that soweth discord among brethren are seven things that the Lord hates and are an abomination unto Him. (Proverbs 6:16). Father, I renounce these and turn away from them. I humble myself before You and come to You as a little child.

SOUL TIES

Father, I break and renounce evil soul ties that I have had or may have had with (lodges, adulterers, close friends, husbands, wives, engagements, cults, binding agreements between buddies). I renounce these evil soul ties, break them and wash them away with the shed blood of the LORD JESUS CHRIST.

THE PRAYERS OF GENE MOODY

The first thing we do is get the people to pray about their specific problems and sins, so that the blood of Jesus can cleanse the people and take away legal rights that the demons have to remain, and God can begin to act.

Then we get the people to repeat the Short Prayer out loud with sincerity after me. Finally, we lead the people in a prayer out loud that covers Sins of Ancestors, Curses, Soul Ties,

FRAGMENTED SOUL, AND SUBCONSCIOUS MIND AS FOLLOWS:

Lord Jesus Christ, I forgive my ancestors and descendants, and I ask You to forgive and bless them. Forgive me for my many sins and I forgive myself for sins against my body. I break all

curses, hexes, vexes and demonic ties that bind. I break all soul ties caused by witchcraft or sexual sins. Lord Jesus, restore my fragmented soul: mind, will and emotions; send Your angels out to recover anything that was stolen from me. Lord Jesus, stir up the demons in my subconscious mind so that they can be identified and cast out. All these things we ask in the blessed name of our Lord Jesus Christ: Our Lord, Master and Savior. We now take authority over satan and all the forces of evil according to the whole Word of God and command that you obey it. In the Name of Jesus Christ, we ask these things. Amen.

After the people have prayed and been led in prayer, then I take spiritual authority over the meeting as follows:

Satan, we come against all powers, principalities, evil forces in this world and spiritual wickedness in high places. We come against all demons inside or outside of anyone present, over this city, state, nation and world, in Hell or out of Hell. The Bible says, 'Behold, I give unto you power to tread on serpents and scorpions, and over all the power of the enemy: and nothing shall by any means hurt you.' We intend to exercise that power to set ourselves free. Satan, we come against you by the power and blood of Jesus Christ, by the Word of God, by the name of Jesus, by the authority of the believer, in the unity of our spirits. Satan, we tell you that we sit in heavenly places with our Christ Jesus. We are over you, your fallen angels, your demons and all forces of evil. We command you to line up in rank and file and order, and come out quickly. We bind every power that you have and loose ourselves from you in the name of Jesus.

Lord Jesus, we ask that You would send the gifts of the Holy Spirit as needed to minister to the needs of the people and to accomplish what You want done We are careful to give You all the glory, honor, praise and credit for everything that is said or done. We ask all these things in the blessed name of Jesus Christ, our Lord and Master and Savior. And we take authority over satan according to the whole Word of God. For it's in Jesus name we pray. Amen!

Now start casting out demons!

READING SCRIPTURE TO DEMONS

(Excerpts) It is very handy to have your Bible scriptures about deliverance underlined and marked with a "D" so that you can read them to soften the demons up when they are hard to cast out.

It is even better to memorize effective scripture verses in fighting through to victory. The following is a good list from "Out In The Name of Jesus".

It is even better to memorize effective scripture verses in fighting through to victory. The following is a good list from "Out In The Name of Jesus".

GENERAL VERSES FOR SPIRITUAL WARFARE

Prov. 18:10	Mark 16:17	Luke 10:19
II Cor. 10:3-5	Eph. 6:10-18	James 4:7
I John 4:4-14	Rev. 12:11	

Verses to Use Against the Ruler Demons Hate

Hate		
Psalm 60:4	Prov. 10:12	Song of Sol. 2:4
Matt. 22:37-39	Luke 10:17	I Cor. 13:4-8
Gal. 5:22-23	Phil. 2:1-2	Eph. 3:16-19
I Thess. 4:8	I John 3:14	I John 4:16 & 19-21

Pride

Prov 3:34	Prov. 13:10	Prov. 14:3
Prov. 15:25	Prov. 16:5	Prov. 16:16-17
Prov. 16:18-19	Prov. 21:23-24	Prov. 28:9
Prov. 29:1 & 23	Phil. 2:5-8	II Tim. 3:1-2
James 4:10	I Peter 5:6	

Self Pity

Nehemiah 8:10	Psalm 33:1	Psalm 34:1-3
Psalm 50:23	Psalm 104:33-34	Phil. 3:4
Phil. 4:11, 13, 19	1 Thess. 5:18	1 Tim. 6:6

Fear

Josh. 1:9	Psalm 46:1-2	Psalm 56:3
Psalm 107:2	Isa. 44:2-3	II Tim 1:7
Heb. 13:6	1 John 4:18	

Fear of Man

Josh. 1:5	Josh. 10:8	Prov. 29:25

Rebellion

I Sam. 15:23	Prov. 17:11	Jer. 28:16
Jer. 29:32	Rom. 12:1-2	Rom. 13:1-2
Eph. 5:21	Phil. 2:5-8	Phil. 2:14
I Thess. 5:18	II Tim. 3:1-3	

Lust

Lev. 19:2	Isa. 52:11	Matt. 5:8
1 Cor. 3:16-17	1 Cor. 6:9-10	I Cor. 6:17-20
Eph. 5:3	2 Tim. 2:22	Titus 1:15
Heb. 12:14	Heb. 13:4	I Peter 2:11

Unbelief

Mark 11:23-24	Mark 16:17-18	Luke 1:45
John 6:29	John 7:38	John 8:31-32

Acts 27:25	Gal. 2:20	Heb 11:1
I Peter 1:6-7		

Rejection

J		
Psalm 16:5-8	Psalm 23	Psalm 55:22
Psalm 91:1-2	John 3:16	John 4:10
John 6:37	John 15:7-12	Eph. 1:4-6
Phil. 2:1-11	1 Thes. 3:12-13	1 Thes. 5:15-18
Heb. 13:5	1 John 4:16 & 19	

PASSAGES TO STUDY ON RELATED SUBJECTS

- 1. Fasting: Matt. 6:16-18; Isaiah 58
- 2. Praise: II Chron. 20; Psalms 134 through 150; Rev. 4 and 5
- 3. Scripture: Deut. 4:1-2; Psalm 119; John 8:31-32
- 4. The Blood of Christ: Ex. 12; Heb. 9 and 10; Rev. 5:9-10 & 12:11

IF THE DEMONS DO NOT LEAVE

No demon can resist the name of Jesus or disobey the Word of God when they are being used properly in other people have done to that person or what that person has done to himself. The most common ground is **unforgiveness.** Other common grounds are **sins of ancestors** or anyone who had had authority over that person, or the **personal sins** of that person.

USING A THESAURUS IN DELIVERANCE

(Excerpts) Because demons tend to "cluster" in family groupings, the thesaurus can be an amazingly helpful instrument to identify demons within a specific category. When the spirit is forced to manifest, his name, located in the thesaurus, becomes a tool

to uncover his supportive network of demons.

This method has been tried in the laboratory of experience and many times has been the key to a breakthrough in cases where the demons have a particularly strong hold on the individual. These excerpts were taken from page 61 of *Demolishing The Hosts Of Hell*.

Editorial, Able To Cast Out Schizophrenia?

Editor, Morning Advocate:

My wife and I sadly read the article about, "How Two Men Lost Their Lives" in the Sunday Advocate. It is a shame that these things have to happen: two men are dead and their families are affected for life.

The paper very clearly states that Kyle Martin was a paranoid schizophrenia, a person with a split personality, who is very fearful. He heard " voices," spoke of his parents as "devils" and said he was the "destructor." This is the conversation of one tormented by demons, the Destructor is the name of a powerful demon.

Earline and I make our living as school teacher and engineer, respectively. We are also licensed ministers but not pastors. For six years we have been helping the mentally, physically and spiritually ill through counseling, ministering, prayer and deliverance (casting out demons). We have worked with up to 50 people at a time and have seen thousands of demons leave those ministered to.

The paper said that he had been treated since he was 13-years-old. Notice that he was never cured but controlled by Thorazine. Psychiatrists cannot cure schizophrenia but only try to control it. The reason is that schizophrenia is not a disease but a spiritual condition of one who has demons.

A Christian who believes the Bible, can cast the demons out of a paranoid schizophrenia and he will have a sound mind. We have worked with these difficult cases and seen them lead a normal life. Schizophrenia is much more common than most people realize.

I thank God that there are several churches in this area that cast out demons. It is the job of the church, not doctors, to deliver the people. The Bible says, "And these signs shall follow them that believe, in My name shall they cast out devils." Mark 16:17. Jesus Christ dealt with "torments," "possessed with devils," and "lunatic" in their synagogues, Matt. 4:23-24 and he healed them.

The Bible clearly shows that deliverance belongs in the churches. In addition to the above verses, see Matt. 10:7-8, 28:18-20; Mark 1:23-27, 1:39-42 and 16:15-20; Luke 4:18-20, 4:33-36 and 13:11-7; and Acts 8:5-7. God will hold the church responsible for not preaching "deliverance to the captives and setting at liberty them that are bruised."

The best book along with your Bible I have found to teach people is "Pigs in the Parlor" by Frank and Ida Mae Hammond. Chapter 21, Schizophrenia, is the best explanation that is published.

It's the duty of Christians to tell the world that they can be set free through using Bible directions.

GENE & EARLINE MOODY Baton Rouge

SCHIZOPHRENIA

GENERAL

What is it: A person who has two souls or personalities. Each personality is equipped with its own attitudes. These spirits whip the mind and personality back and forth as they vie for power: such as pride versus inferiority.

The separate personalities are closely interwoven so that it is impossible for the person who has them to understand and control them. The best explanation is found in PIGS IN THE PARLOR. Saul was a good example of the schizophrenic personality.

Children often become double-minded when mother or father deal with them by manipulation instead of being forthright. For instance, a parent sets a reasonable and fair rule. The child wants to break it. Sometimes the parent will try to coax or manipulate the child into obeying rather than dealing directly by spanking if it is needed (Amos 3:3 and Matt. 6:24).

Double-mindedness wears the person out, and frustrates and confuses him. Deciding, then undeciding stagnates a person. For example, Earline's mom was here for a while; she couldn't be content for desiring to go home. When at home, she was pressed to stay somewhere else besides her home. When away from home, great fears filled her about the house. She was miserable and made those around her miserable (James 1:5-8).

Schizophrenia always begins with rejection. This rejection may be real or imagined. Often a child is rejected soon after conception. The reason for rejection doesn't matter. It could be unwanted, incest, rape, wrong sex, no more kids, hate parenthood, divorce, etc. We have seen cases where the rejection was not real but the demons had used some minor incident to tell them they were unwanted and that person accepted the demons' lie. This is why parents need to talk over any situation with a child who seems troubled.

A "schizo" parent will usually have a schizo child or children. It's not inherited like blue eyes but is demonic. Demons like to cluster.

A schizo parent has difficulty showing love, Since the mother is the most constant parent with the children and cannot feed love into them, they become targets for rejection demons. Because fathers are away most of the day they seem special to children and they can be hurt very easily if they feel father doesn't accept and show he loves them.

Many people don't understand who they are. One proof of the schizo personality is the constant question of "Who am I?" The identity of one's own self is confused or lost.

Rejection is a withdrawing-type of personality; likes to work alone, doesn't participate, unsure, etc. Rejection is inward and withdrawn before it is outward.

Rejected people reject others before they can be rejected by them.

Rejection invites rebellion. For instance, a child or adult will fight for love and lash out at those starving him of love. Rebellion is the reaction to rejection.

Rebellion is aggressive, angry, bitter, resentful and retaliates. This personality is moody, stubborn and selfish.

Having rejection and rebellion in the same body is hard to bear. This personality switches back and forth in seconds.

Deliverance from the schizo personality takes time because the real self has often not developed very much at that point. If one is to be successful, he needs Jesus. Jesus will help the real person to develop. Obedience to Jesus' instructions are necessary. Bible study and prayer are needed.

A schizo person is like a hurricane. If two schizo persons run into each other, there surely will be a storm.

If you are not schizo, you may be stunned after a stormy encounter with a schizo. Remain stable and calm; God will give you understanding.

When a schizo explodes, he opens the door to bitterness. Demons will convince him that it is all the other person's fault.

Often this fantasy of innocence will open the door for lust. It may take the form of sensual love or worldly love. Love of world and fear of man may enter as this person is wed to the world for love. Thinking about having fine possessions will cause people to like them more. Or one may go into sexual fantasy until one acts them out in experience. We are told from Genesis to Revelation how to use our mind, how to discipline it and what to set it on. The orders, if you want to call them that, are in Phil. 4:4-9. At the end of this verse (Amp.) we are commanded to fix our minds on them! When we entertain fantasy we invite demons to invade us.

Under the rejection spell comes infirmity and insecurity, deep depression, self accusation, and compulsion to confess sins. For example, a person enters into wrong doing and cannot keep from confessing. He really wants to shock and hurt others so that he can get attention as a substitute for love.

Hard on the heels of these come deception, self-seduction, delusion, fear and pride. Now we enter into the paranoid companion of schizophrenia.

On the rejection side are jealousy and envy, usually of others who can give or receive love. On the rebellion side are distrust, suspicion and fears of all types of persecution.

Paranoid demons do not care how they hurt others but are super sensitive to their own hurts. Schizos cannot forgive so they keep bitterness alive.

Three main areas to conquer are rejection, rebellion and bitterness. As the person breaks old habits of reaction, he must begin to give and receive love, submit to valid authority, and readily forgive. Determination is required.

As you begin to see yourself grow, it gets very exciting. You can give love and not be hurt when it is not returned. You will understand because you have been there before.

Paranoia is conquered by faith and trust in God. You will do many new things because you are no longer torn between the rejection and rebellion personalities.

SCHIZOPHRENIA

(Excerpts)

Schizophrenia is a very common problem. Some authorities in the field of mental illness estimate there may be as many as fifty million schizophrenics in the United States. This is about one out of eight persons. Schizophrenics account for half the population in psychiatric hospitals. Of course there are varying degrees of schizophrenia. Some cases are acute while others are quite mild. Many schizophrenics have never been treated professionally. Schizophrenia has remained a very baffling problem to mental health professionals. The cause and cure has remained shrouded in uncertainty.

The disturbance and disintegration of personality known as schizophrenia or dementia praecox is frequently encountered by the deliverance minister. I would estimate that as many as one fourth of those who come to us for deliverance are found to have the schizophrenic pattern. The Lord has graciously given us a special revelation on the problem which enables us to deal with such cases more effectively.

THE SCHIZOPHRENIC REVELATION (BY IDA MAE HAMMOND)

We were working very closely in deliverance with a person who did not show much improvement after repeated ministries.

Time after time we felt that the victory was gained.

The Lord said, "I want to give you a revelation of what is Sarah's problem. The problem is schizophrenia". The Lord gave me this definition: "Schizophrenia is a disturbance, distortion or disintegration of the development of the personality."

I was still in bed - still had sleep in my eyes - as the Lord continued giving the revelation.

Next, the Lord instructed me to take my hands apart VERY SLOWLY. As my fingers were slowly disengaged the Lord showed me that these demonic spirits in the schizophrenic must be separated, cast out and given up. The process requires time. It is a shock to the person to discover that so much of his personality is not the real self. He may be afraid to discover what his true personality is. He needs time to adjust and to fall out of agreement with the false demon personalities, point by point. He must come to loathe the schizophrenic personality, and fall out of agreement with it. The Lord recalled to my memory Amos 3:3, "How can two walk together except they be agreed".

The last two fingers to come apart were the middle fingers on each hand. The Lord showed that these fingers represent the core of the schizophrenic -Rejection and Rebellion.

The control demon is called "Schizophrenia" or "Double-Mindedness". The Bible says, "A double-minded man is unstable in all of his ways" (James 1:8).

The phrase translated "two minds" comes from a compound Greek word literally meaning "two souls".

Schizophrenia ALWAYS begins with "rejection".

Schizophrenia can be demonically inherited. Notice I said "demonically". By that I mean it is not in the blood system, not in the genes - it is in the demons!

Now, one can have a rejection spirit and not be a schizophrenic.

Rejection (shown on the left hand in the illustration) is the control demon in one of the personalities set up within the schizophrenic.

The second personality set up by the demons is "rebellion". (See the middle finger on the right hand in the illustration).

The Lord showed me that I was to refer to the schizophrenic person as "Sarah One" and "Sarah Two" - the "Sarah One" being the real person, and the "Sarah Two" the schizophrenic personality which has two sides to it.

The real person is neither of the "hands". The "Real Self" is shown in the illustration between the arms, at the bottom. Jesus must start growing in the person, developing that personality, and making it what He wants it to be. This is why the schizophrenic deliverance requires time - sometimes several months or even a year, or longer. The deliverance must work in balance with the development of the "Real Self. It cannot be rushed, for there is nothing for the person to fall back upon. If every demon in the schizophrenic person were suddenly cast out he would feel to-tally lost. Identity with the "Real Self" requires time. As the schizophrenic nature is knocked out, the true personality must come forth to replace it.

He must be willing to fall out of agreement with the demons and to break old habit patterns.

On the illustration you will see a swirl at the top between the two hands. This represents a "hurricane". The schizophrenic person continually creates "storms" around himself.

These times of storm cause the root of bitterness to form (see right hand) and to be driven deeper and deeper.

Now, let us see what the other fingers on the left hand represent. The "ring finger" is designated Lust. The Lord showed me that this demon "weds" a person to the world for love. A companion spirit in this group is Fantasy Lust which may cause the person to imagine he is some great lover of the motion picture world or to fantasize sexual experiences, as a prelude to overt acts. The harlotry spirit in women may first manifest itself in dress and provocativeness.

The little finger on the left hand represents insecurity and inferiority. This is yet another manifestation of rejection. The index finger on the left hand is "self-accusation". This demon causes a person to turn against himself and tears down his sense of personal worth. In most cases we have found "self-accusation" coupled with a "compulsion to confess".

Now, let us move to the right hand in the illustration. The middle finger in the illustration is designated rebellion. As we have seen, rebellion identifies one of the false personalities set up by the demons.

The ring finger on the right hand represents self-will. This demon "weds" a person to selfish desires. This opens the way for stubbornness, selfishness and un-teachableness. Again, we see the compensation for rejection.

The index finger is called accusation. It seeks to eliminate a concentration on self by calling attention to others. The accusation demon opens the door for companion spirits of judgmentalism.

The little finger on the right hand is self-deception. Its companions are delusion, self-seduction and pride. The spirit of delusion comes along and says, "You are REALLY somebody"; "You are a spiritual giant"! or some other kind of giant.

In one ministry case, the spirit of self-deception had convinced a thirteen year old girl that she was nineteen.

Through the revelation the Lord showed how the thumbs represent the "Paranoid" phase of schizophrenia. On the rejection side are spirits of jealousy and envy. On the rebellion side are spirits of distrust, suspicion, fear and persecution. There is another demon in this latter group and it is called "Confrontation with honesty at all cost." The person acting under the influence of paranoid demons is quite insensitive as to how many wounds he causes, yet he is supersensitive to every offense towards himself.

The revelation portrayed in the fingers and thumbs has proved to be infallible, as judged by numerous ministries with schizophrenics. There is no flaw in it. It is apparent in most instances that the demons listed on the left hand are in some way associated with the triad of rejection-type spirits ... rejection, fear of rejection and self-rejection.

The listing of demons on the right hand includes control and possessiveness. They are directly related to rebellion.

Herein lies the problem with the schizophrenic. He is unable to forgive. He has an unforgiving spirit. The root of bitterness is kept alive and out of it comes resentment, hatred, anger, retaliation, violence and murder.

How does the schizophrenic come out of this tangled mess? The three main areas to conquer are Rejection, Rebellion and the Root of Bitterness. As these areas are conquered the "house" (life) must be filled by the giving and receiving of love, by submission to every valid authority and by forgiveness of all persons regardless of the circumstances. When these three areas are conquered, the other related spirits lose their strength. Determination is necessary. The person who can per-

sistently say, "I WILL BE DIFFERENT! I WILL NOT LET DEMONS RULE MY LIFE" will eventually see victory.

Between the hands at the bottom of the illustration is a little, stick figure called "The Real Self. As the deliverance takes place, over a period of time, "The Real Self" must rise up (depicted by arrows) and part the false schizophrenic personalities by falling out of agreement with all of their influence and all that they represent. "The Real Self must take on the nature of Jesus Himself. Spiritual exercises such as Bible study, prayer, fasting, praise and fellowship with other believers is essential to a successful deliverance. These spiritual exercises will also accelerate the deliverance process as the person's life is filled with the positive things of Christ Jesus.

It is hard work for both the schizophrenic patient and deliverance minister. I greatly admire schizophrenics who fight through to victory. I admire these victories above all other deliverances. The Schizophrenic deliverance is the deepest, most involved and most determined deliverance that we have encountered.

EARLINE'S TESTIMONY ABOUT SCHIZOPHRENIA DELIVERANCE

Schizophrenia means split mind (schizein = to split and phren = mind). I had a lifetime of mental and emotional tension. I was unable to decide what to do and see it through. I had many fears that something bad was going to happen. All of my life I had great fears of bad things happening: fears of failing and fears of people. I was often tense for weeks and I did not know why.

This is the earliest memory I have of going to school. I was so afraid of all the people I could not go into the school but hid behind the well house until my brother came and took me into the first grade. I was disoriented that day; strange feelings and fears tormented me.

I have very few memories from childhood below the age of nine or ten years. Generally speaking I lived in two worlds; home and away from home. I became very good at forgetting everything bad (parents' fights and my own troubles) that happened at home the minute I walked out the door. I felt more freedom and ease away from home.

At high school and college I had trouble with certain subjects like algebra and chemistry. They had things too similar for me to distinguish between them. Both of these subjects ended in frustration and low grades for me.

In my marriage I had some problems of accepting my husband as one who would provide for me, take care of me, and continue to love me. I was always expecting the marriage to end badly. After six years of marriage, we had a delightful son and two years later we had a beautiful daughter.

LIST OF DEMONS

Paranoid - Schizophrenia - Double-Mindedness - Two Souls (Satan's Master Plan to Destroy the Human Race)

Rejection (Beginning of Schizophrenia) Pre-natal rejection, Rejection in the womb, Rejection after birth, Self-rejection, Fear of rejection, Inability to give or receive love, Starved for love Rebellion (Rejection and Rebellion are the core, the two main personalities) Self-Will, Selfishness, Stubbornness, Disobedience, Anti-Submissiveness, Aggression, Unteachable

Root of Bitterness (Three main areas are Rejection, Rebellion and Bitterness) Resentment, Bitterness, Unforgiveness, Hatred, Violence, Temper, Anger, Retaliation, Murder, Memory Recall

Double Mindedness (Schizophrenia or Double Mindedness are Controls) Hesitating, Dubious, Irresolute, Unstable, Uncertain, Unrealistic

Paranoia (Strong area - Paranoid Schizophrenic -rooted in fear) Jealousy, Envy, Suspicion, Distrust, Persecution, Fears, Confrontation, Many Voices, Insensitive, Confrontation with honesty at all costs, Delusions, False Grandeur, Omnipotence, False Beliefs

Mental Illness (Schizophrenia - Paranoia - Mental Illness) Insanity, Madness, Mania, Retardation, Senility, Hallucinations

Self (The schizophrenic is constantly looking at self) Self-Pity: Fear of Judgement, Insecurity, Inferiority Self-Accusation: Compulsive Confession, Self-Hatred, Self-Unforgiveness, Self-Condemnation, Attention Seeking

Self-Will: Selfishness, Stubbornness

Self-Deception: Self-Delusion, Self-Seduction, Pride,

Unteachableness

Self-Awareness: Timidity, Shyness, Loneliness, Sensitiveness

Lust (Weds a person to the world for love) Fantasy Lust, Harlotry, Perverseness, Sexual Impurity, False Compassion, False Love

Depression (The Devil's D's: Rejection to Depression to Suicide) Despondency, Despair, Discouragement, Defeatism, Detective, Helplessness, Hopelessness, Suicide, Death, Insomnia, Morbidity, False spirits

Fears (Paranoia - Phobias - Fears) People, Mental Insanity, Germs, Hysteria, Phobias

Control (Demonic control of others: parents, mates, pastors, etc.) Domination, Witchcraft, Possessive-ness, Conniving, Manipulation

Indecision (Double-Mindedness - Indecision) Procrastination, Compromise, Confusion, Forgetfulness, Indifference, Apathy

Unfairness (No one treats them fairly) Withdrawal, Fantasy, Daydreaming, Unreality, Vivid Imagination, Pouting, Pretension

Talkativeness (Cannot let others talk) Nervousness, Tension

Accusation Towards Others (Keeps one from looking at self) Projection, Criticism, Faultfinding, Documentation

False Compassion (False concern for others - false spiritual gifts) False Responsibility, False Burden, False Love, Inordinate Affection for Animals

Guilt (Demonic prolonged false emotions) Condemnation, Unworthiness, Shame, Embarrassment

Perfection (An effort to earn respect and acceptance of others) Intolerance, Pride, Irritability, Vanity, Frustration, Anger, Ego, impatience, Criticism

Walking Out Deliverance

Give and receive love. Submit to every valid authority. Forgive all persons regardless of circumstances. Must be determined and persistent. Bible study, prayer, fasting, praise and fellowship are essential.

Soul Ties, Demonic Subjection (Control Spirits -Break these with those who have treated you) Psychiatrist, Psychotherapist, Psychologist, Neurologist, Social Worker, Group Therapist, Mental Institutions

Phobias (There are 210 recognized phobias by psychiatrists) Persistent Abnormal Fear, Aversions to Subjects, Anxiety, Morbid Fears

Tranquilizing Drugs (Controls the soul - mind, will and emotions) Ataraxics, Indian Snake Root, Rauwolfia Serpentina, Chlorpromazine, Reserpine, Meprobamate, Barbiturates, Sedatives

Techniques Lobotomy, Shock Therapy, Drug Therapy, Tranquilizing Drugs, Narcosis, Diets, Fever Therapy, Release Therapy, Psychodrama, Group Therapy, Interview Therapy, Free Word Association

- 1. Keeps one from giving and receiving love, both God and man's.
- 2. Weds one to the world for love.
- 3. Makes one tell all, seeking attention, punishment and correction.
- 4. Includes inordinate affection for animals.
- 5. With honesty at all costs, seeking evidence for suspicions
- 6. Keeps one from looking at self. Projects one's own faults into others.
- 7. Disobedience and anti-submissiveness.
- 8. Weds one to selfish desires.

9. Both mental & spiritual. Seductive: to tempt, mislead, decoy. Delusion: a misleading of the mind, false belief, fixed misconception. In psychiatry: a false belief regarding self, common in paranoia.

REFERENCES

Pigs In The Parlor, a practical guide to Deliverance, by Frank and Ida Mae Hammond, Impact Books, Inc., 137 W. Jefferson Avenue, Kirkwood, MO 63122. There have been around 250,000 of these books sold and we have had a big part in distributing these around the United States. This is a primer or basic book on deliverance that every Christian should have. We recommend that you purchase the book and read it cover-to-cover at least three times! Satan will really fight you because he wants you to stay ignorant so that he can take advantage of you and your family.

SECTION 3 - CLEANING HOUSE AND MAINTAINING DELIVERANCE

CONTENTS

- 1. List Of Scriptures
- 2. Cleaning Your House
- 3. Maintaining Your Deliverance From Evil Spirits
- 4. Earline's Testimony About Maintaining Deliverance

LIST OF SCRIPTURES

L Ex. 20:4	Graven Image (Jesus' picture? He did not have white skin!)
C Num. 23:8	Can only curse if God curses (notice that God curses.)
L Deut. 7:25-26	Those who keep or own cursed objects. (You are cursed.)
L Deut. 14:7-19	Unclean animals (something for you to think about.)
C Deut. 21:23	Anyone hanged is accursed of God.
C Deut. 32:5,17	Have corrupted themselves. Have worshipped devils (demons.)
C Josh. 6:18	Those who keep or own cursed objects (ARE CURSED.)
C 2 Sam. 7:29	Blessing of the Lord.
L Pro. 3:33	Curse of the Lord on house of the wicked.
L Jer. 48:10	Deceitful worker of the Lord is cursed.
C Gal. 3:13	Christ has redeemed us from the curse (must be applied.)
C Col. 2:14-15	Blotting out ordinances against us.
C Rev. 12:11	Overcome by word of testimony.
C Rev. 22:3	No more curse in Heaven.

"L" is scripture for lesson; "C" is scripture for cleaning your house.

SHOULD HOUSES BE CLEANSED OF EVIL SPIRITS?

(Excerpts) Due to my involvement with demons through deliverance, I have heard many reports of unusual demon activities in connection with houses and objects. Books and objects identified with anything related to Satan's kingdom have been known to attract demons. Sinful activities on the part of former residents account for some houses needing to be cleansed.

Many have told of hearing voices or sounds in their houses. Such manifestations are sometimes called "poltergeist", a German word meaning "knocking or noisy ghosts".

What about the owls and frogs? These are classified among the creatures mentioned in Deut. 14:7-19 as being unclean and abominable. They are types of demon spirits.

"The graven images of their gods you shall burn with fire, you shall not desire the silver or gold that is on them, nor take it for yourself, lest you be ensnared by it; for it is an abomination to the Lord your God. Neither shall you bring an abomination (an idol) into your house, lest you be ensnared by it; for it is an abomination to the Lord your God" (Deut. 7:25-26).

Demons are definitely attracted to houses by objects and literature that pertain to false religions, cults, the occult and spiritism. All such materials should be burned or otherwise destroyed. Houses or buildings which are suspect of demon infestation should be cleansed by the authority of the name of Jesus. Those who live in such places should stand on the provisions of the blood of Jesus Christ. (Probably the greatest abomination to God is worshiping other gods in any form such as having an idol in your house.)

NOTES ON WITCHCRAFT, SYMBOLS AND ACCURSED OBJECTS

(Excerpts) In Satan worship, often times the arms are crossed as a sign of submission to and being bound by the devil. (Also a sign of rebellion.)

Often good luck charms, ankhs, astrological symbols and other jewelry with hex signs, etc. will cause interference with deliverance. Some objects, particularly rings, bracelets, necklaces and other jewelry which has been given to a person by someone in witchcraft will have curses and/or bondage in them. There is a resurgence of hex signs, and ancient geometric and mystical motifs which are being incorporated into designs for clothing, jewelry, decorative objects and china. In antique shops there are often selections of rings, pendants, pins and various kinds of jewelry which were originally designed to bring good luck and to act as a talisman to chase evil. Some of the most popular currently include: The Egyptian ankh (a cross with a loop at the top which was an ancient fertility symbol); the ancient witchcraft sign of the broken cross, popularly know as the peace symbol; Chais (consists of Hebrew characters spelling the word life); all kinds of Polynesian tikkis, figures, and other things; a wiggly tail which is called the "Italian horn"; protectors from the evil eye; a hand with the index and little fingers pointing up (a satanic witchcraft sign); and a great variety of crosses, clovers, stars, wishbones, lucky coins, mystic medals, horse-shoes and other items.

Another interesting thing is how many times in religious fetishes and statues there is a dangerous resident demon power.

If it is necessary to do an exorcism in a house it is wise to clean the house spiritually afterward, to head off any trouble which might be caused by spirits remaining in the place. (Command the demons to leave the people, house and property.)

A WORD ABOUT INCENSE

(Excerpts) Believers must be careful about bringing incense into their homes. Most people are unaware that much of the incense sold in curio and novelty shops was manufactured by devotees of the Hare Krishna cult. Their wares are dedicated to this demon god of the Hindus and can cause much trouble.

DOLLS

(Excerpts) Dolls were believed to bring good luck to their owners; to make livestock give more milk; help win wars; and heal the sick. Only witch doctors or medicine men were allowed to handle them.

The dictionary defines a doll as a small carved or molded figure which served as a cult object or representation of a nursery story, cartoon or puppet character.

Both World Book and Britannica point out that dolls were buried with people and were supposed to be friends and servants in the spirit world.

Roman and Greek girls, in preparation for marriage would leave their dolls on the altar of the temples of Artemis and Diana. To this day multitudes of idol (demon) worshippers use dolls in pagan religious ceremonies.

DOLLS IN TOLEDO, OHIO - 1980

(Excerpts) One night when my wife was complaining to me about the child's insolence, out of nowhere I said, "Her problems are those stinking doll babies, it's witchcraft".

The next night while I was praying for someone's deliverance, she picked up an encyclopedia to check what it said about dolls! There it was: "origin in witchcraft and magic".

BABY - SEVEN MONTHS OLD

(Excerpts) The Lord began to show us the legal grounds Satan held. It was in his dolls! He had received one for Christmas and a small plastic boy sailor doll at birth. The Lord also told my husband of various stuffed toys (in shapes of animals - whales, dogs and kangaroos), a plastic toy "Big Bird" and matching bib. These were thrown away and curses from them broken. (Look for strange sicknesses or diseases that will not heal in children.)

When the Lord commanded that "no graven images" were to be made, He wasn't being cruel and heartless. He knew the damage they could put upon people (Ex. 20:4). The Lord has also shown us that puppets are a deception and the Lord places a curse on those that use deceit (Jer. 48:10).

TO EXORCISE INANIMATE OBJECTS

(Excerpts) In the case of objects dedicated to demons (idols, artifacts, etc.), the best course of action is to destroy them. However, it is well to check secondhand cars, homes, and apartments also because if the former owners had Ouija boards, or other occult paraphernalia, or were involved in serious bondage to sin, then there is every reason to suspect that evil spirits could be lingering behind. These spirits can and will cause trouble to the new owners.

Keep in mind that any prayers offered to anyone or anything other than God the Father, Son and Holy Spirit constitute prayers and/or worship to demons. Very often these are answered in the form of curses, for demons can and do respond to those who request of them. (If you know of demonic prayers against your family, break the curses placed against you.)

We suggest that two believers go on a mission such as this with Bible in hand. These should be destroyed: Look for little Mexican sun gods, idols, incense, Buddhas, hand carved objects from Africa or the Orient, Ouija boards, anything connected with astrology, horoscopes, fortune telling, and so on. Books or objects associated with witchcraft, good luck charms, or the cult religions (metaphysics, Christian Science, Jehovah's Witnesses, etc.), rock and roll records and tapes al fall m the category of things which have been often loaded with evil spiritual power.

Verbally denounce Satan and his power, and all of his demon hosts and claim authority as a believer-priest because of the name of Jesus Christ and the authority of His shed Blood. (There is more power in the spoken word.) Some Scripture which has proven useful in this includes: Rev. 12:11; 22:3; Col. 2:14-15; Gal. 3:13; Deut 21:23; 32:5; Num. 23:8, 23; II Sam. 7:29. (Read out loud in the house.)

In some cases the door lintel and window sills have been anointed by touching them with olive oil. Other things such as statues have been so anointed in Jesus name and many times the demonic power is checked or destroyed. Any specific areas of demonic activity or influence of which you are aware should be denounced by name (Prov. 3:33).

SYMBOLS

Many symbols are of demonic origin: Fleur-de-Lis -Britannica Encyclopedia gives this explanation. In India and in Egypt it was common decorating device used as a symbol of life and resurrection, the attribute of the god Horus. The Mobile Winged horse - Pegasus; FTD's symbol is Mercury or Hermes - the messenger of the gods, god of commerce also god of fraud and cunning. Caduceus, the winged wand of Mercury -Doctors and the American Medical Profession. Nike is the goddess of victory (Athena). The cornucopia represents the goat mother (Amaltheia) who suckled the infant-god in a cave, Zeus is said to have given it to her to insure a plenteous supply of food.

When you read the scripture given at the beginning of this lesson you probably began to feel that all of the gods and goddess and all mythology is a collection of demon worship. Many of the gods and goddess are referred to in the Old Testament by the names the Hebrews would have used. All of them come from the old Chaldean Religion. Tammuz is mentioned in the Bible and the REFERENCES to groves, temple prostitution, etc. is about idol worship or demon worship. Everyone should do a little .research into this and discover the original reason for all our holi-days and symbols. Old encyclopedias are better than late editions because the latter editions leave out much information that is vital to us. Research the meaning of Biblical REFERENCES to groves, temple prostitutes, and celebrations in both Old and New Testaments. It will open your eyes to the revival of Satan and demon worship in America and to our coming judgement. God did not overlook the Hebrews' worship of Satan and the demons and He promises not to overlook ours either.

To really follow God demands that as soon as you learn of something you do or have that is an abomination to God, you remove it from your life immediately. Your Christian friends may not agree with you and may criticize you. After you have done your research and have submitted it to God you follow His direction.

CURSED OBJECTS AND DEMON INFESTATION

(Cast out of people and houses; command all demons to go by these names or associated with these objects.)

- 1. Books and objects identified with anything related to Satan's Kingdom.
- 2. Sinful activities of former residents left curses.
- 3. Knocking or noisy ghosts (poltergeist) and apparitions.
- 4. Owl and frog images of all types.
- 5. Witch's mask and fetishes used by witch doctors.
- 6. Objects and literature that pertain to false religions, cults, the occult and spiritism.
- 7. Graven images of gods (demons).

- 8. Objects dedicated to demons (idols and artifacts).
- 9. Ouija boards or other occult paraphernalia.
- 10. Prayers and worship to demons bring curses on home.
- 11. Mexican sun gods; idols; incense; Buddhas; hand carved objects from Africa or the Orient; anything connected with astrology, horoscopes, fortune telling, etc.; books or objects associated with witchcraft, good luck charms or cult religions (metaphysics, Christian Science, Jehovah's Witnesses, etc.); rock and roll records and tapes.
- 12. Jewelry given to a person by someone in witchcraft, hex signs, ancient geometric and mystical motifs, jewelry designed to bring good luck and act as talisman to chase evil.
- 13. Egyptian ankh, broken cross (peace symbol), chais, Polynesian tikkis of gods, African jujus, Italian horn, protectors from the evil eye, hand with index and little fingers pointing up, crosses, clovers, stars, wishbones, luck coins, mystic medals, horseshoes, religious fetishes and statues.
- 14. Products with cryptic curses (hidden secret, occult curses).
- 15. Dolls used for witchcraft and magic; puppets, cult objects or representations.

FIVE STEPS TO CLEANING HOUSE

- 1. Six-way prayer of forgiveness you forgive your ancestors, descendants and others, ask God to forgive and bless them. Ask God to forgive you; you forgive yourself for sins against your body. Also ask forgiveness for spiritual adultery.
- 2. Break curses and soul ties from others (ancestors) and to others (descendants); break curses of psychic or Catholic prayers.
- 3. Clean out house of those objects or exorcise objects (you do this).
- 4. Anoint house with oil and cast evil spirits out of house (you do this).
- 5. Cast demons out of people that came in through curses from others (optional); for mass deliverance, see Cursed Objects and Demon Infestation.

REFERENCES

(Excerpts were taken from these REFERENCES.)

- 1. "Should Houses be Cleansed of Evil Spirits", pp. 141-143, *Pigs In The Parlor*
- 2. "How to Exorcise Inanimate Objects", pp. 220-222, Battling The Hosts Of Hell
- 3. "Biblical Curses", pp. 56-59, Annihilating The Hosts Of Hell, Book I
- 4. "Notes on witchcraft, Symbols and Accursed Objects, pp. 18-20, *Conquering The Hosts Of Hell*
- 5. "A Word About Incense", pp. 17-18, *Demolishing The Hosts Of Hell*
- 6. "Dolls", pp. 54-55, *Annihilating The Hosts Of Hell, Book 2*

MAINTAINING YOUR DELIVERANCE FROM EVIL SPIRITS SEVEN WAYS TO DETERMINE THE NEED FOR DELIVERANCE

(Excerpts) The presence and nature of evil spirits can be known by two principle methods: (1) discernment: I Cor. 12:10 lists "discerning of spirits" as one of the nine supernatural gifts of the Holy Spirit, and (2) detection: the second method of knowing the presence and nature of evil spirits. Detection is simply observing what spirits are doing to a person (Mark 7:24-30). Some of the most common symptoms of indwelling demons are as follows:

Disturbances in the emotions which persist or recur. Disturbances in the mind or thought life. Outbursts or uncontrolled use of the tongue. Recurring unclean thoughts and acts regarding sex. Addictions to nicotine, alcohol, drugs, medicines, caffeine, food, etc.

Many diseases and physical afflictions are due to spirits of infirmity (Luke 13:11).

Involvement to any degree in religious error can open the door for demons as follows:

False religions, e.g. Eastern religions, pagan religions, philosophies, and mind sciences. Christian Cults - all such cults may be classified as "bloodless religions" - "having a form of godliness, but denying the power thereof (II Tim. 3:5). Occult and Spiritism - Any method of seeking supernatural knowledge, wisdom, guidance and power apart from God is forbidden (Deut. 18:9-15)! False Doctrine - a great increase of doctrinal errors will be promoted by deceiving and seducing spirits in the last days (I Tim. 4:1).

SEVEN STEPS TO DELIVERANCE

(Excerpts) One must be honest with himself and with God if he expects to receive God's blessing of deliverance. Ask God to help you see yourself as He sees you and to bring to light anything that is not of Him (Psalm 32:5; 139:23-24).

Humility involves a recognition that one is dependent upon God and His provisions for deliverance (James 4:6-7). It also involves a complete openness with God's servants ministering in the deliverance (James 5:16).

Repentance is a determined turning away from sin and Satan (Amos 3:3). One must loathe his sins (Ezekiel 20:43).

Renunciation is the forsaking of evil. Renunciation is action resulting from repentance (Matt. 3:7-8). If one has repented of religious error, he may need to completely renounce it by destroying all literature and items associated with that error (Acts 19:18-19).

God freely forgives all who confess their sins and ask forgiveness through His Son (I John 1:9). He expects us to forgive all others who have ever wronged us in any way (Matt. 6:14-15). Willingness to forgive is absolutely essential to deliverance (Matt. 18:21-35).

In prayer ask God to deliver you and set you free in the name of Jesus (Joel 2:32). Prayer and warfare are two separate and distinct activities. Our warfare against demon powers is not fleshly but spiritual (Eph. 6:10-12; II Cor. 10:3-5). Use the weapons of submission to God, the blood of

Jesus Christ, the Word of God, and your testimony as a believer (James 4:7; Rev. 12:11; Eph. 6:17). Christ cannot fail! He is the Deliverer (Mark 16:17; Luke 10:19; Psalm 18:2)!

SEVEN STEPS FOR RETAINING DELIVERANCE

(Excerpts)

Put on the whole armor of God as set forth in Eph. 6:10-18. There are seven pieces of armour:

- 1. Loins girt about with truth.
- 2. The breastplate of righteousness.
- 3. Feet shod with the preparation of the Gospel of peace.
- 4. The shield of faith.
- 5. The helmet of salvation.
- 6. The sword of the Spirit which is the Word of God.
- 7. Praying in the Spirit.

Refuse the thoughts that demons give you and replace them with spiritual thoughts (Phil. 4:8).

Positive confession is faith expressed. Negative confessions characterize demonic influence and will open the door to the enemy (Mark 11:23).

Jesus withstood Satan's temptation by using Scripture. The Word is a mirror to the soul (James 1:22-25); it is a lamp unto the feet for guidance (Psalm 119:105); it is a cleansing agent (Eph. 5:25-26); it is a two-edged sword, laying bare the heart (Heb. 4:12); and it is food for the spirit (I Pet. 2:2; Matt. 4:4). No person can long maintain deliverance apart from the Word of God as a primary factor in his life (Psalm 1:1-3)!

Take up your cross daily and follow Jesus (Luke 9:23). If fleshly appetites, desires and lusts are not brought to the cross, a way for demons to return will be left open (Gal. 5:19-21, 24).

Develop a life of continuous praise and prayer which silences the enemy. Pray in the Spirit (in tongues) and also in the understanding (I Cor. 14:14). "Pray without ceasing" (I Thess. 5:17).

Maintain a life of fellowship and spiritual ministry. It is the sheep that wanders from the flock that is most endangered. Desire spiritual gifts and yield to their operation through you within the body of Christ (I Cor. 12:7-14).

Commit yourself totally to Christ. Determine that every thought, word and action will reflect the very nature of Christ. Faith and trust in God is the greatest weapon against the Devil's lies (Eph. 6:16).

Doing these seven things will insure that your "house" (life) is filled after having been cleansed. Do not settle for anything less (Romans 5:10)!

HOW TO KEEP FREE FROM OPPRESSING SPIRITS

(Excerpts) Fill yourself with the Word of God and be obedient to what the Word says. You become God-possessed as you hear and do the Words of the Father. You become demon-possessed as you hear and do the words of the enemy (John 14:23).

Avail yourself of the Blood of Jesus. Learn to ask forgiveness when you sin. Learn to stand tall in His love and grace. Satan must respect the blood (Rev. 12:11).

Take your freedom by faith. This is your position, declare it, stand on the Word, get stubborn with the Devil, this is your heritage (Luke 10:19).

Resist the Devil, be sober and vigilant, resist steadfast in the faith, and he will flee from you (I Peter 5:8-10).

A loving spirit is needed. Refuse to be hateful and mean; confess love (Matt. 5:44).

A forgiving spirit is needed; an unforgiving spirit lets the enemy on you again (Mark 11:25).

A tender spirit is needed. Jesus did not bite back. He was tender: you be like Him. Refuse to yield to the retaliation spirit; away with critical spirits. Learn to recognize the striving spirit, it is from the Devil. Do not yield to it, it will bring you into bondage again. Learn to yield to the peaceable spirit; be a peacemaker. Learn to exercise mercy and gentleness; these are Christ-like actions. Remember, any enemy spirit that you yield to will bring bondage. Yield to Christ's love, meekness and tenderness, and liberation comes (II Tim. 2:24).

You must forsake sin lest a worse thing come upon you (John 5:14).

HOLDING YOUR DELIVERANCE

(TESTIMONY OF A WOMAN)

"After Pastor Worley cast out spirits of sinus trouble and migraine headaches, I had three glorious weeks of freedom from any pain. Suddenly one morning I awoke shocked to find I had all the symptoms of sinus and migraine.

When I realized what was happening, I took authority over Satan and his demons and commanded them to leave me in Jesus' name.

Later, the same morning this happened, I received a letter from Pastor Worley warning me that the Devil would use this very tactic, but that I must resist him and refuse to accept his attacks."

I believe that, according to Mark 11:23, many times what we say or confess with our lips can be more important than what we believe. The word "believe" occurs only once in the verse while "say" is repeated three times. The last part of the passage is "he shall have whatsoever he saith".

The submitted, resisting child of God may expect Satan to flee from him (James 4:7). We must learn to hold the deliverance areas against the onslaughts of a determined foe (Joshua 1:7-9; Deut. 28).

WALKING IN FREEDOM AFTER DELIVERANCE

(Excerpts) Have you been delivered from unclean spirits? Praise the Lord (Eph. 6:12; Mark 16:17). Walking in the Spirit after a deliverance is essential in order to keep a person free (Eph. 6:14-17). It may be that unclean spirits from which you are now free had been with you for a very long time. In such cases, you can expect several weeks up to a year after deliverance during which the Lord will gradually heal your mind and emotions (Rom. 8:37).

In order to avoid the enemy's snares, it helps to recognize some of his strategy. Four typical methods of attack encountered by people after deliverance can be outlined as follows:

The Scriptures say that Satan is the father of lies.

Even though they are now outside of you, unclean spirits still talk to you (John 8:36).

One meaning for the word "Satan" is "accuser". You may find yourself feeling guilty for having had unclean spirits or for your past sins (Psalm 13:5). The enemy may try to intimidate you with demonstrations of his power. Don't be frightened if things seem to go wrong for you for a while or if some symptoms from before deliverance seem to reappear.

You may find yourself tempted with old habits or behavior that doesn't fit in with Christian life. The Devil has a way of making the old times seem rosy to us just like he tricked the Israelites in the desert into missing the "leeks and onions" that they left behind in Egypt (John 10:10; Psalm 37).

Recognizing the enemy's strategy is helpful but it does not win the battle for us. It is more important that you learn and practice some positive principles that will enable you to gain ground quickly and hold it. The following five points are easy to remember and will help you tremendously:

Focus your attention on Jesus (Rev. 12:11).

Allow the Holy Spirit to have His way with you (John 16:13).

Immerse yourself in the Scriptures; the Bible is the written Word of God (John 8:31). Tell the Devil and his unclean spirits in Jesus' name to go away and leave you alone. Make it clear that you intend to follow Jesus no matter what (James 4:7). Hang onto other Christians. The Christian walk is not a solo performance (Gal. 6:2).

If you practice these five faith principles, your post-deliverance problems will be minimal and your progress steady (Luke 4:17-21).

TESTIMONIES OF CHRISTIANS ABOUT MAINTAINING DELIVERANCE

Scriptural basis is Rev. 12:11 for overcomers. Earline Moody has a good testimony about how the soul (mind, will and emotions) works in maintaining her deliverance.

BY THIS I OVERCOME THE DEVIL

(Excerpts) Through the blood of Jesus, I am redeemed out of the hand of the Devil (Eph. 1:7). Through the blood of Jesus, all my sins are forgiven (Psa. 107:2). The blood of Jesus Christ, God's Son, continually cleanses me from all sin (I John 1:7). Through the blood of Jesus, I am justified, made righteous, just-as-if I'd never sinned (Rom. 5:9). Through the blood of Jesus, I am sanctified, made holy, set apart to God (Heb. 13:12). My body is a temple of the Holy Spirit, redeemed, cleansed, by the blood of Jesus (I Cor. 6:19-20). Satan has no place in me, no power over me, through the Blood of Jesus and the Word of God (Rev. 12:11).

TAKE HEAVEN BY FORCE

We are not wrestling against the Father, Son and Holy Spirit, but against Satan and his forces of evil. God has given us the abundant life but we have to take it by force from Satan! This is analogous to Israel; God gave them the promised land and then told them to take it by force (Eph. 6:12).

Two verses clearly illustrate this Bible principle: Matt. 11:12 Kingdom of heaven suffereth violence and the violent take it by force (abode of God is to be seized and the forces seized it).

Luke 16:16 Kingdom of God is preached, and every man presseth into it (rule of Supreme Deity is preached and every man forces into it).

ADDITIONAL GOOD FIGHTING VERSES

- Psa. 57:6 They have digged a pit before me.
- Isa. 54:17 No weapon formed against thee shall prosper.
- Matt. 15:26 The woman fought for deliverance for her child (15:21-28)!

2 Cor. 10:3-6 Weapons of our warfare.

- Eph. 6:10-18 Put on the whole armour of God.
- Rev. 12:11 And they overcame him.

HOW TO TREAT DEMONS

Matt. 9:33 Cast - to eject, drive out, pluck (Dumb Demoniac).
Matt. 9:34 Casteth - thrust out, expel (Dumb Demoniac).
Matt. 17:18 Rebuked - censure, admonish, tax upon (Epileptic).
Mark 1:34 Suffered - to send forth (Sick or possessed with demons).
Luke 11:14 Casting - to put out, send away (Demon that was dumb).
Eph 4:27 Place - location, condition (Gave no opportunity to the devil).
Jas. 4:7 Resist - oppose, withstand (Resist the Devil).
2 Pet. 2:11 Railing - blasphemer, slanderous, profane, wicked (Judgement).
1 Jn. 3:8 Destroy - loosen, break up, put off (Destroy works of devil).
Jude 9 Railing - vilification, evil speaking (Reviling Judgement).

As you can see from the above scripture, we forcefully drive demons out of Christians but we do not rail at demons.

Luke 9:1 says we have **power and authority** (mastery, superhuman force, violence, control) and Luke 10:7 says the demons are subject (subordinate, obey) to Christians.

STUDY OF THE BLOOD OF JESUS

The Old Testament told of rites and bloody sacrifices of the law to redeem the people from their sins which foretold the shedding of the blood of Jesus Christ.

The New Testament told of dignity and perfection of the blood and sacrifice of Jesus Christ.

The following scriptures will give you an overall view of what the Bible says about the blood of Jesus (Verses in bold are the more important): Gen. 4:10; Exodus 12:7,13, 22-23; 24:6,8; 29:12, 16,20-21; Lev. 4:6-7; Lev. 5:9; 7:2; 8:24; 17:11; Num. 19:4; Joel 3:21; Rom. 3:25-26; 5:9; Eph. 1:7; Heb. 9:7-14; 10:19-22; 12:24; 13:20; I Peter 1:2, 19-22; I John 1:7; 5:7-8; Rev. 12:11

CURSING DEMONS AND INFIRMITIES

The Psalms contain imprecations (call down curses and evil) upon enemies and transgressors. For a good study, see "Strong's" or "Young's" Concordance for "curse, cursed, curses, cursest, curseth, cursing, accursed and cursedst". The following verses describe the meaning of cursing:

Gen. 9:24-27	Execrate - to abhor, loathe, detest (Cursed younger son).
Num. 22:6 & 23:8	Blaspheme - perforate, bitterly curse (King of Moab asked
	Balaam, prophet, to curse Israel).
Deut.11:26-28;	(Blessing and curse, curses and more curses).
27:15-26; 28:15-68	
Judges 5:23	Execrate - (Curse bitterly its inhabitants).
II Sam. 16:10-12	Vilification - revile, slander (Curse David).
II Kings 2:23-25	Despise - speak evil of (Cursed them in the name of the Lord).
Job 3:1-10	Contempt - vile (Cursed the day of his birth).
Mark 11:21	Doom - execrate, imprecate (Fig tree which you cursed).
Gal. 1:8-9	Anathema - solemn curse, excommunicated (Let him be accursed).

SCRIPTURES BRINGING ASSURANCE, CONFIDENCE, DELIVERANCE, PROTECTION, & REDEEMING

Psalm 1:1-3	Meditate	Matthew 8:17	Sickness
Psalm 17:4	Words	Mark ll:23	Saith
Psalm 23:4	Fear of Evil	Luke 9:23	Cross
Psalm 31:2	Defend	John 8:36	Free
Psalm 34:7,10,19	Deliver	John 10:10	Life
Psalm 46:1,5,10	Help	John 16:13	Truth
Psalm 55:18,22	Sustain	Roman 8:1,2,32,37	Free
Psalm 68:19	Benefits	1 Cor. 2:16	Mind
Psalm 71:1	Trust	1 Cor. 6:17	One Spirit
Psalm 91:5	Not Afraid	1 Cor. 10:13	Temptation
Psalm 97:10	Preserve	1 Cor. 12:7-14	Gifts
Psalm 103:3	Forgiveness	1 Cor. 14:33	Peace
Psalm 107:2,6	Redeemed	2 Cor. 2:14	Triumph
Psalm 119:133	Order Steps	2 Cor. 3:17	Liberty
Psalm 147:3	Health	2 Cor. 10:5	Mind

Proverb 1:33	Dwell Safely	Galatian 6:2	Burdens
Proverb 3:26	Dwell Safely	Ephesian 6:16	Shield
Isaiah 26:3	Peace	Phil. 4:7,8,19	Needs
Isaiah 41:10,13	Help	1 Thess 5:14	Praying
Isaiah 50:7	Help	2 Thess 3:3	Keep
Isaiah 55:7	Pardon	2 Timothy 1:7	Power &Love
Isaiah 59:19	Standard	Hebrew 10:17	Forgiven
Isaiah 61:3	Oil of Joy	1 John 2:14	Overcome
Jeremiah 15:21	Iledeem	1 John 3:8	Destroy Devil
Ezekiel 33:16	Live	1 John 4:4	Overcome
Micah 7:19	Compassion	Revelation 12:11	Overcome

NAMES OF DEMONS

Scornful Cursing Destroyer Blasphemy Fear Criticism Death Mockery Poverty Railing Afflictions Gossip Trouble Fantasy Sex Confusion Masturbation Terror Lust Hate Perverseness Diseases Homosexuality Distress Fornication Domination Adultery Incest Provocativeness Broken Heart Dismay Harlotry Heaviness Nicotine Mourning Alcohol Infirmities Drugs Sicknesses Medicines Stealing Caffeine Murder Food Addiction Doubt Eastern Relig-Condemnation ions False Gifts Pagan Religions Imaginations **High Things Unclean Spirits**

Philosophies Palmistry Mind Sciences **Yoga Exercises** Analysis Karate Mormonism Jehovah Wit-ESP nesses Christian Science Rosicrucianism Theosophy Unity Bloodless Religions Occult Spiritism Seances Witchcraft Magic **Ouija Boards** Levitation Fiery ons Darts Cursing Lust of Uncleanness Striving Corruption Vanity aches

Handwriting Automatic Handwriting Guilt Hypnosis Horoscopes Astrology Divination False Doctrine Deceiving Seducing Asceticism Vegetarianism Dishonesty Proudness Pornography Unforgiveness Yoke of Bondage Serness pents & Scorpi-Blindness Retaliation ishes Sinus Trouble Migraine Head-Negative Con-

World Rulers of Darkness Spiritual Hosts of Wicked Temptation Strongholds Imaginations **Evil Thoughts** Disobedience **Evil Weapons Evil Tongues** Nets and Pits Wiles Principalities Powers Rulers of Dark-Mockery Affliction Presumptuous Spots & Blem-Covetousness Lust of Flesh

EARLINE'S TESTIMONY ABOUT MAINTAINING DELIVERANCE PURPOSE OF DELIVERANCE

The purpose of salvation and deliverance is to bring honor to God among the heathen.

fessions

In the Old Testament, God became very upset about the shame Israel brought upon His name through their disobedience and sins.

For Israel's uncleanness, shedding innocent blood and worshipping idols, God scattered them among the heathen and dispersed them into many nations. They had profaned His holy name (Ezk. 36:17-21). When we do these things, we also profane His name. See also Rom. 1:16-24.

As Christians, we must be very careful not to profane God's name. For profaning His name, we will be punished. Demons have a right to enter you if you persist in disobedience.

Our desire and duty is to honor God's name. Read I Tim. 6 and Titus 2 for directions on how to honor God.

Maintaining your deliverance is important to other Christians. It brings honor to God and encouragement to others. We overcome Satan first by God's provision, the Blood of the Lamb; secondly by our testimony, not just our words but our lives; and thirdly by loving not our lives to the death (Rev. 12:11).

This is why it is so important for you and me to keep getting and maintaining our deliverance until it is complete, and we are established and settled.

BACKGROUND

I have an Indian-English-German-French background. There are curses on each of these people. Indians worshipped devils. Some English and Europeans were Druids who worshipped Satan.

In innocence, my father participated in some occult practices - wart removal and water witching. From my father came curses of Masons and Indians. Physical problems came as a result of curses on Indian worship: inactive thyroid, female disorders and heart disease.

My mother was a paranoid schizophrenic with an Indian-English background. Her emotional illness caused me to need a lot of deliverance from emotional problems.

The following testimony will help you understand how the soul (mind, will and emotions) works. It will also show you how Satan attacks the physical body with demons through curses.

MAIN TESTIMONY ABOUT DELIVERANCE

In July of 1975 I came into deliverance. Do you know it is truly possible to have peace in your mind? For most of my life, I was your average daughter, wife, mother and woman. In my mind there was never any real peace, only a sort of make-believe peace. I was not particularly moody, not often angry and not often depressed.

Life for me after I married was a continual move - new places - new people - new houses, all of which I enjoyed. Our homes were among the best and most beautiful around. Decorating them was a lot of joy for me. Taking my children to new places and introducing them to new experiences was exciting. We toured all of the U.S., Canada and Mexico. The greatest fun was watching the children enjoy all the new and unusual things we came across. Life was very exciting.

On May 22, 1973 we were devastated. Our son died from an accident at play. Now all of these lovely homes, beautiful furniture, exciting places, fun people and fun times seemed like trash. At this time we came to know the love of Jesus and the power of God. Never would we be the same again.

After five months passed, we returned south from Minneapolis. In Baton Rouge at the Full Gospel Business Men meetings, we heard about divine healing and the Baptism in the Holy Spirit; I needed both. In time I was healed of my allergies, bad back, etc. and got the Baptism in the Holy Spirit.

Gene and I went to meetings, testified and prayed for people, and saw miracles of healing and Baptisms. For about six months things went fine but as time passed, some attitudes and hurts began to show up and I was very unhappy, moody, and depressed.

I spent hours telling Gene how badly he had treated me. I came to believe he had done things that he had not. If you look at my previous statement, you'll see I enjoyed moving. One time when I was ill, I didn't want to move. The rest of the time I enjoyed it. So, I let myself come to believe that he moved just to hurt me and to make life bad for me. I accused him of shutting Marie and me out of his life since Byron died. Gene never knew what to expect when he got home — maybe a frying pan on the noodle. No amount of Bible reading, prayer or fasting helped for more than a week or two at the most.

I was trying to help Marie who was going through all kinds of adjustments to her brother's death but only made matters worse. She also became full of resentment and hurt, and was bitter and angry.

Gene, Marie and I fasted, prayed and talked. I was fasting and praying that God would fix Gene up. I was so blind I was sure that I was perfect - well almost.

After a year or so, I was sitting reading Psalm 91.1 had always loved it but suddenly like a bucket of ice water it hit me. The Psalm was not true for me. I had no peace, and was always angry and moody. I (when you are persuaded by the Devil to look on others as the problem) was even beginning to wonder if God was just being bad to me.

I sat on the couch and began to pray: "God, if You don't help me tonight, I am going out of church, and into the world for good". I told God, "Gene is worse off than me; he's all of my problems". God just stopped talking so I started praying again the same prayer. God said, "Get Gene to pray deliverance for you". I asked about having our pastors do my deliverance. God didn't answer; it was like He pulled down a shade or veil. Being one of determination, I started out again, "God, I must have help tonight; if I don't get it, I flat quit". He said, "Get Gene to pray deliverance for you". God was not harsh, neither was He condemning. He seemed to be pleased that I had finally asked for help arid really meant it.

I called Gene. He didn't seem particularly impressed. He also suggested the same people and the same excuses. But the best one was, "I don't know what deliverance is; I don't know how to do that".

After some discussion, we decided to go to the bedroom and get in the middle of the bed. We were sitting facing each other. Gene started praying, and my mind started wandering. He prayed a while in tongues and started saying strange things such as, "You come out of my wife in the name of Jesus". One thing I remember well was that at the beginning, when each demon was named, I had a thought, "I don't have that".

As he called out Rejection, its hurts and kindred spirits, I was being shown by the Holy Spirit how these spirits had gained entrance into me, and how they had checked and bound me in all attempts to be myself. Rejection kept me just short of my goals in life. Mostly it kept me from doing what God said to do due to a fear that the other person would disagree or reject me and my idea. I always worked better and succeeded best in those things that I did alone.

Next came Bitterness; I never even considered myself bitter. But as he called out demons under this ruler, I saw hate, violence and anger. I had much trouble with temper; not that I was always violent, on the contrary I was seldom angry to the observer. When I did get angry or lose my temper, my husband and children usually found some other more suitable place to be.

At the naming of Rebellion, I thought, "I surely don't have this spirit". As he called it out again, I balled up my fist, drew back to back-hand him, and was consumed with a fit of coughing and mucus.

As this was going on, I was shown how there is only one real rebellion, and it is pointed toward God. We may say, "My husband just does not accept God's way so I am going to—". In the end when it's traced back, it is rebellion to God for God gave directions about how to live with an unsaved mate. If it is against circumstances, God says, "This is the will of God in Christ Jesus concerning you. In whatever circumstances, I am therewith to be content".

One of my rebellions was against circumstances. I had always had such lovely homes with rooms to spare, so that Gene always had an office, and I always had a sewing and craft room. When we came here, Gene bought a three bedroom house with only two baths. His reason was that I couldn't set up Byron's bedroom; I became bitter. I said, "Yes, but you still have your office; I don't have a room. You always get what you want." And I became more rebellious.

When I first moved here I didn't hate this house but little by little it crept up on me. At first it was just the things packed together. Then it grew until I hated the house twenty-four hours a day. Then my ingratitude reached other branches of my life. My wheels were the wheels of a camper truck. I didn't like the truck anymore. Next came Gene, and then living in this bug-infested hot climate with people who can't speak good English. The ungrateful person begins to blame others even if he sees it's as much his fault as the other person's. He lies to himself until in his eyes, at least, the other person is entirely at fault.

God showed me my attitude, in light of His attitude, letting me know that He could take even this house away; that He had provided it and I was ungrateful for His provision. Oh my, this really was sobering me up. After these three main ruler demons were cast out, I gave up if he called a demon out. I just agreed and became free of it.

I had a habit of getting my work done as fast as I could because I didn't like being in the house alone. So, I roved all over this town looking for plants and cloth to work on the house, but I never worked on it. I did a lot of visiting with other Christian women which was not necessary. Since neither Gene nor I knew anything about this turn of events, I asked God to teach me so I wouldn't go backwards. I rather liked the changes in my mind and attitude.

I found Romans 12 contained my answer. In verse 2,1 am told to renew my mind and attitudes with God's instructions. By doing this, I would prove for myself what is the good and acceptable and perfect will of God. In response to your obedience and surrender, God will help you change bad attitudes and habits.

Attitudes submitted to God's word will follow with actions of obedience.

In studying Eph. 5:25-32, I saw how my home was meant to show Christ's relationship with the Church. To my dismay, I saw it reflected my relationship with Christ. It was not a relationship to bring others to Christ.

I also saw how the Church is rebelling against Christ just as in our family members were in rebellion.

The morning after this experience I came down the hall to the kitchen and was greeted pleasantly by my daughter. Now, this was a surprise because she was not so pleasant at that time either. I noticed that she began to change. I asked God about this often and learned that my condition had put such a strain on her that she was being broken under it. I didn't tell her about my deliverance; I didn't know I should. She became a very obedient and joyful person. I began to enjoy Marie and not worry about her so much.

TESTIMONY ABOUT OVEREATING

The morning after the first deliverance took place I prepared a nice breakfast for us. Sitting down to read the Bible, I thought about getting something to eat. In fact I said, "I think I'll get me something". This thought alarmed because I was now approaching 180 pounds. I prayed asking God to show me what this was. To my amazement, something inside me said, "I said get me something to eat." I asked, "Who are you?" It said, "My name is I like to eat." I said that often. After casting out the demon, "I Like To Eat", I told God how I had tried dieting and I knew that was hopeless. I was told obedience is better than sacrifice, and I knew how to eat but was not doing it. Plenty of fresh fruits and vegetables, not much meat and very little sweets is the basis of a proper diet.

Asked if I'd do what I was told, I assured God that I would. He said that food can be divided into two groups: God's and Devil's. Devil's food includes sweets to excess, junk food, and liquids which are mostly empty calories.

It's not bad manners not to eat sweets or any other food when you know your body has not used up the last meal. I was intelligent enough to know if I truly needed food. Here are God's suggestions in summary:

- 1. Eat fruit and vegetables; include leafy greens.
- 2. Do not each much meat three or four servings weekly.
- 3. Don't eat unless you truly need to.
- 4. Don't let others stuff you.
- 5. Seldom eat sweets.
- 6. Almost never eat junk food.
- 7. Remember those whose God is their belly.
- 8. Cook all foods simply.
- 9. Use little fat and cut fat from meat.

TESTIMONY ABOUT DELIVERANCE FROM INDIAN CURSES

I had a heart condition which was unusual. It never occurred with regularity nor under any, specific condition.

While taking a tread mill test, I experienced tremendous pain in the chest, arms and neck. Having been examined by a heart specialist, he told me that my heart was good but he had written "death by heart attack" on many people's certificates like myself. These were people who didn't really have anything wrong with their hearts.

A year or so after my dad's death I found my heart acting up again. Sometimes one to five years would elapse between seizures. I began to ask God to show me why my brothers, dad, dad's brothers and his dad, all had heart problems. He showed me Exodus 20 and Ezekiel 18. He told me to repent for my ancestors and myself for the sin of idol worship in Lev. 26:40-41. The curse of idol worship follows the blood line. I did these things and have been free for over thirteen years. I was only the second generation from this Indian worship and also had curses from previous generations.

TESTIMONY ABOUT SCHIZOPHRENIA

Schizophrenia means split mind (schizein = to split and phren = mind). I had a lifetime of mental and emotional tension. I was unable to decide what to do and see it through. I had many fears that something bad was going to happen.

All of my life I had great fears of bad things happening: fears of failing and fears of people. I was often tense for weeks and I did not know why.

This is the earliest memory I have of going to school. I was so afraid of all the people I could not go into the school but hid behind the well house until my brother came and took me into the first grade. I was disoriented that day; strange feelings and fears tormented me.

I have very few memories from childhood below the age of nine or ten years. Generally speaking I lived in two worlds: home and away from home. I became very good at forgetting everything

bad (parents' fights and my own troubles) that happened at home the minute I walked out the door. I felt more freedom and ease away from home. At high school and college I had trouble with certain subjects like algebra and chemistry. They had things too similar for me to distinguish between them. Both of these subjects ended in frustration and low grades for me.

In my marriage I had some problems accepting my husband as one who would provide for me, take care of me, and continue to love me. I was always expecting the marriage to end badly.

After six years of marriage, we had a delightful son and two years later we had a beautiful daughter.

Double-mindedness wears the person out, and frustrates and confuses him. Deciding, then undecid-ing, stagnates a person. For example, my mom was here for a while; she couldn't be content for desiring to go home. When at home, she was pressed to stay somewhere else besides her home. When away from home, great fears filled her about the house. She was miserable and made those around her miserable (James 1:5-8).

TESTIMONY ABOUT MAINTAINING DELIVERANCE

The scriptural basis for giving a testimony is found in Rev. 12:11 where we overcome Satan by three things: the blood of Jesus, our testimony, and loving not our lives to the death. God told me that if I was unwilling to tell about my deliverance, I would lose it. And furthermore, if I was ashamed of Him and His provisions, He would be ashamed of me in Heaven.

In James 4:7 we are told how to make the Devil flee. We often quote part of the verse "resist the devil and he will flee from you". This gives us a false sense of security. The truth is you must first submit yourself to God. This is not a careless submission but true submission to God which requires us to read, study and obey the Bible. As we submit this way to God and then resist the Devil, he will indeed flee from us. God does not require us to know all the Biblical requirements before He will help us but we must be making every effort to obey all that we have learned, and be diligent about learning and applying more.

After all deliverances, some decisions must be made and never changed no matter how much pressure is applied to you from whatever source to change or go back to old sins. Here are some decisions which must be made: 1. Study God's Word and accept His principles as your own. 2. Discipline your life and accept responsibility for your actions and thoughts in the areas where you have been delivered. 3. Enter His presence with thanksgiving for all with which He has blessed you. 4. Joyfully obey God's direction even if you have to force yourself in the beginning.

The day after 1 received my main deliverance, I had an empty feeling and did not know what to do. My reaction was to ask God continually for direction. We cannot do what God directs if we never apply His Word to our life. If we do not apply His Word to our thoughts and actions we are not truly subject to God. Therefore the Devil will not flee from us and we are only fooling ourselves if we think the demons will leave us alone. While we kid ourselves, the Devil and his demons eat our dinner and by the time we face the truth dinner is nearly over.

I learned that I didn't really know God's Word. I didn't know how to use God's Word or how to use my mind. I asked God to take my thoughts. He told me that He wouldn't touch my thoughts with a ten foot pole; that His thoughts were higher than mine and that I must control my thoughts and bring them into submission to Jesus Christ (II Cor. 10:5).

I started marking everything that God said in the Bible in red. I found there is much said about the mind in Deuteronomy and throughout the Bible. Next I was impressed to underline every verse in the New Testament that told me something that I should do.

I soon realized that I really didn't know what I should think with my mind. It occurred to me that my mind is to be an instrument for my spirit's use and not the other way around. The hands, feet, eyes, ears and body obey, so why not make the mind obey? To make the mind obey, I needed to know what to make it do.

I had to learn how to tell the difference between God's and the Devil's thoughts. The battleground for the Christian is primarily for his soul, not body or spirit. The demons want to re-enter through your mind. See Romans 6:16-18. Do you not know that if you continually surrender yourselves to any one to do his will, you are the slaves of him whom you obey, whether it be to sin, which leads to death, or to obedience which leads to righteousness - right doing and right standing with God? But thank God, though you were once slaves of sin you have become obedient with all your heart to the standard of teaching in which you were instructed and to which you were committed. And having been set free from sin, you have become the servants of righteousness - of conformity to the divine will in thought, purpose and action.

How do we yield ourselves to anyone (God or Devil)?

Is it not in the mind? A human always plays with sinful thoughts, then he acts it out. It is not by accident we sin. A lot of people do not want to accept the responsibility for their sinfulness and want to blame it on someone else. The only trouble with this idea is that God will not be fooled by it, neither will your enemy, the Devil.

Temptation - 1 Cor. 10:13, For no temptation - no trial regarded as enticing to sin (no matter how it comes or where it leads) - has overtaken you and laid hold on you that is not common to man - that is no temptation or trial has come to you that is beyond human resistance and that is not adjusted and adapted and belonging to human experience, and such as man can bear. But God is faithful to His Word and to His compassionate nature and He (can be trusted) not to let you be tempted and tried and assayed beyond your ability and strength of resistance and power to endure, but with the temptation He will (always) provide a way out - the means to escape to a landing place -that you may be capable and strong and powerful patiently to bear up under it.

This tells me temptation is common to mankind, therefore it is common for the Devil and the demons to use it. If they tempt us, we have not sinned. We have sinned when we enjoy and continue to invite the temptation, then yield and obey the temptation. It also shows we were not watchful for the escape route and we did not take it.

Situations around you will not necessarily change immediately now that you have changed. Just as you practiced obedience to the demons' words, now practice obedience to God's Word.

This was my first encounter with the Devil after I was delivered. Before I was delivered, I would get very angry and depressed when I cleaned house. At that time, we had wall-to-wall furniture. The living room was really badly cluttered. Each piece of furniture had to be moved to vacuum around it. I was happy and didn't hate this house anymore.

As I was vacuuming the living room, I dropped a table on my toe and was having trouble getting the vacuum nozzle under the sofa. I raised up and let out a loud, "I hate this---". God quickly warned me that "life and death is in the tongue, and they that love it will eat the fruit thereof" (Prov. 18:21). God also told me at this time that He had given it to my family. If I didn't have an attitude of gratitude about the house and furniture, He could easily remove them from me. I knew that I must not complete the sentence or I would be back where I started from. I repented and repeated until I believed it, "I love this house and I thank God for it".

Another of Satan's tactics is to use gradualism on us. He will give us a sin to look at and consider. He will cover it over with pretty lies (pretty young people smoking, never an old person dying of lung cancer). He will use rejection to trap you; he will never tell the true ending (where does illegal sex lead?). He knows that the more we see it, hear it and consider it, the more likely we are to give in to it. A good example to the use of gradualism is Humanism. Forty years ago it was very mildly given to people mainly by pastors and teachers. People considered it and accepted it because it was given by people they trusted. Not considering what was the basic theory behind it (worship of self - therefore idolatry), people allowed this theory to so invade them that now we cannot recognize it for what it is. Many of us say we are against it but we live by it instead of the Bible.

We do not recognize God's provisions for us. We think our life should have no problems or privations. We are not grateful to God for all. Deut. 28:47-48, Because you did not serve the Lord your God with joyfulness of heart and mind in gratitude for the abundance of all with which He had blessed you, therefore you shall serve your enemies whom the Lord shall send against you, in hunger and thirst, in nakedness, and in want of all things; and He will put a yoke of iron upon your neck, until He hath destroyed you.

This verse presents some interesting ideas: 1. Are you having problems because you are ungrateful to God? 2. Do you know which problems are from God to help you learn to endure to the end or which ones are brought on because of being ungrateful? 3. Which ones have you invited by yielding to temptations of the enemy? If you will know the answer to these questions, you will have to seek God. He has promised to give wisdom to all who ask for it not wavering (James 1:4-8). If you ask God for wisdom and He gives you wisdom, you must not waver following His wisdom.

For example: if you have been one to look at dirty magazines, God's wisdom tells you this will lead you to want to do what you see; then you must stop it. You may need deliverance for the demons you have let in plus you must change your habits. No one can change your thought life

by casting out your demons. Casting out your demons is one of God's escape routes. To deliverance must be added by the deliveree, discipline* of mind and action.

The best attack against habit, and the attempts of demons to trick you and get back in that I found was: 1. To tell them to leave in Jesus' name once and 2. Immediately take control of your mind. I would do it this way: I would tell them, "Jesus has given me authority over you (Luke 10:19, Matt. 28:18-20), therefore, I command you to leave me now". If I did not sense they were gone, I would say, "Since you are still here, I would like to read to you about what Jesus Christ has done for me." I would open the Bible to Matt. 26-28, Mark 14-16, Luke 22-24 and John 17-21 and read it aloud to them. Of course they did not want to hear of God's love and provision for me. The pressure they had placed on me and their thoughts were long gone, but I would read on and bless myself in God's Word. Some times the pressure from the demons trying to get back in was strong enough that I would have to walk and read very loudly to them. I will still do this if I come under attack; it always works. After a time, you will be able to tell them the facts without reading it to them.

My next attack was sent through people. When asked why I looked so much better and was losing weight, I would answer truthfully and say, "I was delivered of demons," and, "no, I was not dieting". If three people were present, you would get three distinct reactions. One would leave pronto, one would regard you as if you were radioactive, and one would grab your arm and want to know more.

Then you'd hear whispers - she had demons! They only talk about demons; do they worship them? They are fanatical; they believe there is a demon under every bush!

Next I was tempted to go back to some of my old habits of retaliation, etc. I must crucify the flesh - God said that vengeance belongs to Him (Rom. 12:19). I must not habitually sin or else I become the demon's house in that area again (I John 3:8-9).

Mental suggestions by the Devil must be put down. He will suggest a what if, could be or maybe. If this happens, what will you do (fear and more fear)? Unless you have facts to base your knowledge on, don't let the Devil play you along.

One of his tactics was to attack me about Marie: what if Marie can't adjust to her brother's death? Before deliverance, I would cringe in fear and worry.

After deliverance, I learned to tell Satan that Marie can do all things through Christ who strengthens her; I can too!

You don't have to be perfect to give a word of encouragement, share an experience, help someone or even cast out a demon. If God demanded perfection, nothing would ever get done. I'm over fifty years old and I have yet to meet a perfect person.

You must have a total commitment to Jesus Christ. Rely totally on Him and His Word. Do these things and you will continue to get free and stay free. Don't be double minded: deciding and undeciding.

I found a verse to put my temptations in perspective (Heb. 12:4). Begin reading at verse one which contains instruction on keeping pure. It suggests we, "strip off and throw aside every encumbrance and sin which so readily (deftly and cleverly) clings to and entangles us, and let us run with patient endurance and steady and active persistence the appointed course of the race set before us. Looking away (from all that will distract) to Jesus, Who is the Leader and the source of our faith (giving the first incentive for our belief) and is also its Finisher, (bringing it to maturity and perfection). He, for the joy (of obtaining the prize) that was set before Him endured the cross, despising and ignoring the shame, and is now seated at the right hand of the throne of God. Just think of Him who endured from sinners such grievous opposition and bitter hostility against - reckon up and consider it all in comparison with your trials - so that you may not grow weary or exhausted, losing heart and relaxing and fainting in your minds. You have not yet struggled and fought agonizing against sin, nor have you yet resisted and withstood to the point of pouring out your (own) blood."

If we are able with every temptation to resist to the shedding of our blood, maybe then we might have an acceptable excuse for failing to resist the Devil and him having to flee.

God will not make you over; He will work with you and help you. See Mark 16:20. A miracle is taking place as you go obeying The Word in the areas you have received instruction and deliverance.

A study of Matt. Chapter 5 will help anyone see just where they are missing it with their attitudes. It will inspire you to clear your mind of a lot of incorrect ideas and to broaden your understanding of the truth.

SECTION 4 – MIND

CONTENTS

- 1. Passive Mind The Devil's Workshop
- 2. Restoring Your Mind
- 3. The Mind: Freeing Restoring Protecting
- 4. Deliverance For The Subconscious Mind
- 5. Deliverance from Grief and Bitterness
- 6. The Neurotic Personalities (Psychoneurosis)
- 7. The Delinquent Personalities (Psychopsychosis)
- 8. The Pathologic Personalities (Psychopathic)
- 9. An Attitude of Gratitude A Cure For Depression
- 10. How To Be Miserable
- 11. The Art Of Selfishness

LIST OF SCRIPTURE

Deut.: Amp. Ver.	(You will find out how to use your mind in this book.)
2 Kings 4:8-35	(Shulamite Woman.)
Pro. 2:2-7	(Find the knowledge of God.)
Pro. 3:5-10	(Trust in the Lord with all your heart.)
Pro. 3:13-14,24	(Unrelaxed Mind.)
Pro. 6:4-11	("O" Sluggard.)
Pro. 6:17-18	(Abomination to God.)
Pro. 10:19-20	(Talk too much.)
Isa. 26:3	(God will guard.)
Isa. 30:15-17	(Rest and trust in God.)
Isa. 55:8-9	(God's thoughts not ours.)
Jer. 12:5	(If in a safe land, you fall down.)
Dan. 6:14-23	(King's mind compared to Daniel.)
Malachi	(This book shows the difference between God's mind and man's mind on issues
	which are very important to God.)
Matt. 3:2	(Repent - How sincere has our repentance been?)
Luke 1:27-38	(Mary accepts God's will.)
Luke 9:25-26	(Being ashamed of God before man is weakness of mind.)
Rom. 1:28	(Passive mind is reprobate, considers God worthless.)
Rom. 6:16-19	(Active mind and body as servants of God.)
Rom. 8:6-7	(Holy Spirit mind and fleshly mind.)
Rom. 10:12	(Take heed lest he fall.)
Rom. 12:1-3	(Make correct judgment of self.)
2 Cor. 4:4	(Passive mind blind.)
2 Cor. 4:16	(Inactive mind.)
2 Cor. 10:3-5	(Bring thoughts into obedience to Christ.)
2 Cor. 5:23	(Fruit of the Spirit is self-control.)
Gal. 5:24	(Crucify the flesh - actively.)
Gal. 6:3-7	(Make correct judgment of self - God is not mocked.)
Eph. 4:7	(Grace is given to each of us.)

Eph. 4:17-20	(Cults and spiritism.)
Eph. 4:21-24,32	(You arc an active participant.)
Phil. 2:3-9	(God worketh in you.)
Phil. 3:13	(Looking backwards.)
Phil. 4:6-8	(Think on these things.)
Col. 1:21-23	(If you continue.)
Col. 3:2	(A commandment - set your mind on things above.)
2 Tim. 1:7	(No fear.)
2 Tim. 2:21-26	(Refuse - shut your mind to youthful lusts, controversies.)
James 1:7	(Double minded man will not receive from God.)
1 Pet. 1:13	(Gird up your mind.)
1 Pet. 4:7	(Keep sound-minded.)
1 Pet. 5:7-8	(Worry drains the mind and body.)
2 Pet. 3:1	(Sincere mind.)

1. PASSIVE MIND - THE DEVIL'S WORKSHOP

DEFINITIONS OF THE PASSIVE MIND

Earline's definition is a mind not directed by its owner but open to allow any thought to pass through. It often accepts lies as truth, and fears as facts.

Webster's definition is receiving impression from external agents - not acting - being the objective of the action rather than the subject.

Passive Mind - The passive mind does not accept completely the Word of God as Truth, therefore it is always questioning and wondering. This questioning and wondering weakens the will, causing the person to be slow to obey God. This is the cause of most of the instability we see in Christians today. It causes us to be unsettled in our minds. God's purpose within is to establish and settle us (1 Peter 5:6-11). If we refuse to stand against the Devil, God cannot strengthen us.

Active Mind - The active mind studies and tests God's Word, sees it work, believes it, accepts it, trusts it, and relies on it. It is continually learning more of God's will and obeying His precepts. How do you know a Christian? By watching him do what God has said in the Bible for him to do.

Mental Passivity - includes in its descriptive words: unreasoning, inactive, unenthusiastic, unresponsive, unqualified obedience to the commands of another, lawful or unlawful. (Mark 4:24 - futile mind; Eph. 4:17-19 - seducing pastors or teachers who patronize you to get you on their side, many times opposing God's Word. Rom. 6:16 - You will become the slave of whomever you yield your mind to obey.) A person who does not successfully complete earthly duties shows mental passivity.

Consider and read these scriptures: Jer, 12:5 (This scripture is to the prophet, Jeremiah. It is also to pastors and Christians today. If you are afraid to live for and obey God in time of peace, what will you do in time of trial and persecution?); Rom. 12:1-2 (whole body including mind is sacrifice); Eph. 4:17-32 (strip self of all old mental and spiritual attitudes and put on new.); Phil. 2:13 (God's power works in us and we will do His Word.)

CAUSES OF THE PASSIVE MIND

Manipulation by Jezebelic mother or father, and Ahab mother or father.Ignorance of spiritual commandments given in Old and New Testaments.Looking back and using the same method of drawing conclusions.Draining mental energy by constant recriminations and unproductive activity of worrying, plotting and planning.

QUIET MIND VS. PASSIVE MIND

If we give thanks to God and truly trust Him we have inner peace. Our minds-and bodies both work and produce better.

A quiet mind is at peace and resting in the Lord with full confidence in God even in times of trial. A passive mind is always active "spinning wheels" with thoughts running rampant through it jumping from one thing to another, almost never at rest or at peace.

Consider and read these scriptures. 2 Kings 4:8-36 (Shunammite woman not intimidated by death); Isa. 30:15-16 (God called His people to quietness and trusting Him in order to have confidence and strength); Dan. 6:14-23 (King let his mind be played upon by people; in pride and ignorance he would have shed innocent blood had not God come to Daniel's help); Luke 1:27-38 (Mary not passive in accepting God's plans for her - it was not unusual in that day for unmarried pregnant women to be stoned on their way to the well, etc.); 1 Pet. 3:3-4 (God's woman has peace of mind.)

ACTIVE PARTICIPANT

You must be an active participant in your change from old to new life (passive to active). Jer. 12:5 - You cannot run with the men on horseback unless your mind is settled by a life of practice in obeying God's Word; Heb. 2:3 - How shall we escape (appropriate retribution) if we neglect so great salvation; 2 Tim. 3:2-5 - A chilling account of the mind in last days (seems like what we see today); Eph. 4:17-32 - We cannot live as the unsaved!

To a passive person, Phil. 2:3 means that God will work everything out for me. God does the willing and doing.

To an active person, Phil. 2:3 means that God will work in me as I obey His commandments and line myself up with His will. Then His good pleasure is done in and through me.

Consider and read these scriptures which teach about the active/passive mind: Pro. 3:5-10. Vs. 5. Lean on, trust in and be confident in the Lord with all your heart and mind, and do not rely on your own insight or understanding. Vs. 6. In all your ways know, and recognize and acknowledge Him, and He will direct and make straight and plain your paths. Vs. 7. Be not wise in your own eyes; reverently fear and worship the Lord, and turn (entirely) away from evil. Vs. 8. It will be health to your nerves and sinews, and marrow and moistening to your bones. This seems like a prescription for good mental, spiritual and physical health. The rest of these scriptures give more insight about how to work out Pro. 3:5-10. Pro. 3:13-14; 6:17-18; Isa. 26:3; 55:8-9; Rom.

6:16; 8:6-7; 10:12; 12:1-3; 2 Cor. 10:3-5; Eph. 4:21-32; Gal. 6:3; Phil. 2:4-9; 4:8; Col. 1:21; 2 Tim. 1:7; James 1:7; 1 Pet. 1:13; 2 Pet. 3:1.

We must repent, change our mind and change our conduct. The battle for our minds began in the Garden of Eden with Adam and Eve. In Matt. 3 we see the contrast between the minds of those obeying God and those in disobedience; 2 Cor. 4:4, following the god of this world brings a blinded mind. Gen. 3:1-6, doubt, unbelief, questioning God, adding to what God has said brings instability. Rom. 6:16, results of yielding to wrong person or attitudes, etc.

PASSIVE MIND

(Excerpts) The passive mind is blind to the Word of God. In a Christian the passive mind will hear and accept the Devil's opinions about life and its situations. It looks at them in the Devil's light rather than the Light of God. It uses great swelling words to argue with God, "BUT GOD".

The passive mind is a reprobate mind. After much agreeing with the Devil, soon God is not in all of our thoughts, and we become vain or empty of the truth (Rom. 1:28). All sin is played with in the mind before it is committed.

Cults, spiritism and mind control need minds empty of God to fully operate in (Eph. 4:17-20).

An active mind should get stronger as it matures. An inactive mind desires to do these things but does very little (2 Cor. 4:16).

Inactive minds babble away by talking too much, often about things they know little about, using incorrect facts and assumptions. The unrelaxed mind causes sleepless nights (Pro. 3:24; 10:19).

Deuteronomy contains the formula for the correct use of mind and heart. Deut. 4:9, set your mind to remember what God has done. 4:29, seek God with your whole heart. 4:39, recognize that the Lord is God in heaven and on earth; there is no other. 5:29, fear God and keep His commandments. 6:5, love God with your entire being. 6:6, God's words shall be first in your mind and heart. 6:7, impress them diligently on the minds and hearts of your children. 7:17, don't fear larger nations. 8:2, know if you will keep His commandments. 8:5, know also in your mind and heart that, as a man disciplines and instructs his son, so the Lord your God disciplines and instructs you. We should be diligent in our discipline and instruction of our children so that God will quickly and correctly discipline and instruct us. 8:14, when God has blessed you don't forget Him. 8:17, don't forget God blessed you and get proud and say you did it yourself. 9:4, don't say in your heart that God's blessings fall on you because you are righteous. 9:5, God is keeping His promise to Abraham. 10:12, see 6:5. 11:13-14, diligently serve God and He will send early and latter rain for crops and grass for cattle. 11:16, don't be deceived and worship other gods. 11:18, lay God's Words as forehead bands before your eyes. 15:7, shall not harden heart against nor refuse to help poor brethren. 15:9, have no greed for brother's goods. 17:20, don't be lifted up in your heart over your brothers. 18:22, do not be afraid of false prophets. 20:3, trust God, fear no enemy. 20:8, let fainthearted return home. Read chapters 27-28 to see how you will be blessed or cursed. 28:47, destruction for not serving the Lord with gratitude of heart and mind. 28:67, disobedience will bring extreme anxiety. 29:18-19, don't expect safety if you get into demon or Satan worship. 30:2, return to God with whole being. 30:10, if you sincerely repent you will be forgiven. 30:14, Word of God is in our mouth. 30:17-20, punishment for turning to demons and Satan. 31:46, set mind and heart on the Words of God delivered to you this day. 2 Cor. 10:3-5, we are totally helpless against Satan if we use natural weapons or our thoughts but, if in all confrontations we use God's Word as the leveler, we win. Eph. 4:22-32, you are the one who will have to strip yourself of your old nature (you will do this through Bible study, and putting the Biblical information into practice daily and by using God's provision of deliverance from demon bondage). Col. 1:21, you must remain well grounded in the Gospel. 2 Cor. 10:5, you will learn to control the use of your thoughts.

WAR ON THE SAINTS

The best book we have found to help you understand how the mind works is the unabridged edition of *WAR ON THE SAINTS* by Jessie Penn-Lewis with Evan Roberts, The Ninth Edition, Thomas E. Lowe Ltd., New York, NY. (Order from: LHBC, PO Box 516, Hot Springs, AR 71902 - \$11.50 plus \$1.50 postage.) This book is like a textbook and is not easy to read. However, we strongly recommend you purchase and read this book! At the end of this lesson are found copies of the tables in the book. They will help you to understand how you have allowed your mind to become invaded by demons. Study these tables carefully.

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE PASSIVE MIND

Passive Will - indecisive, torture of mind, embarrassment.

Passive Mind - inactive mind, hesitation, rashness, lack of concentration, lack of judgment, bad memory (can't remember names, numbers, dates, important facts).

Passive Imagination - gazing, evil gazes, dulled vision, bound mind, can't think (mind held by iron band, mental pressure, mental weights, fetters on mind, mental chains, mental yokes and fetters.)

Passive Judgment - can't make a clear judgment on issues, misuses the verse on judge not. Many do not realize they are to judge every prophecy, fruit in our lives and in the lives of others, etc. I once heard a pastor tell his people they should not criticize him even when he is wrong, neither should they talk about him. I have seen a strange thing in that church - an unusually large number of divorces, illegitimate children, crimes of theft and forced entry, idolatry, etc. People should be taught to properly make scriptural judgment.

Passive Reason - closed mind, evil positiveness, infallibility.

Passive Conscience - moral degradation, moral stagnation, retrogression in life and service, false voice of God, false reasoning.

Passive Spirit - wrong thoughts, wrong spirit, inactive spirit, faint spirit, bound spirit, filthy spirit, mixed condition, impure spirit, absolutely powerless spirit, bound use of tongues, no liberty, wrong mental conclusions, mixed feelings about God, soulish spirit, quenching spirit, ignoring spiritual truths, (exhaustion of spirit, body and mind), (strained spirit, mind, body).

Passive Body - cessation of consciousness, passive sight, passive hearing, passive smell, passive taste, passive feeling, dulled consciousness, dead consciousness, unconscious habits, repulsive habits, peculiar habits (hyper-personality conscious), lethargy, heaviness, (stooping of back, shoulders, spine), dullness of eyes, passive eyes.

Passive Whole Man - dormant affections (dormant faculties of mind and body) dormant bodily needs, severity to body, indulgence of flesh, stoical feelings, sensuous domination, physical domination (physical spiritual experiences); senses feed on thrills, glow, fire, sense realm, walk after flesh, aroused sense of life, (acute sensation of body consciousness), dulled sense of God, loss of God's presence, crutches, veiled, in ignorance of God, natural idiosyncrasies, infirmities, over-stressed, nervous mind, timid mind, no gift of speech, no power to think, (incapable for God's service), apathy, (passive state of rest, peace, love, joy, fruit of spirit), passive holiness, misconception of self-effacement, counterfeit suffering, weak-willed, spasmodic spirit, mind and body.

Different Reactions of Passive and Active Mind On its sins: Active mind will call sin. It will not blame its sin on others. It will recognize and apply Jesus' work on the cross. It will begin a corrective program. Passive mind will blame someone else, say it was forced into sin, or ignore it. It will seldom make the necessary corrections and obey God.

On self-examination in the light of God's Word: Active mind will examine itself by the Bible, will not despair or become crushed, but will rapidly exercise true repentance and faith in God's promise of forgiveness which brings joy. Passive mind will let evil spirits lead it into self-accusations, recriminations and despair, becoming crushed, despondent and depressed. God does not crush us but reveals the remedy.

On conviction: Active mind knows God convicts of sin. God's conviction is not confusing but clear. When it goes to God in true repentance, the blood of Jesus cleanses completely. Passive mind deals with conviction without true repentance and allows demons to nag and attack over and over never knowing if the sin is cleansed.

On repentance: Active mind sincerely repents by a deliberate act of it's will in obedience to God. Accepts that the sin is cleansed by Christ's blood. Passive mind makes compulsive confession over and over for same sin without truly considering the meaning of Christ's forgiveness. Will accuse others to cover own guilt feelings. As you can see the passive mind never finds rest.

LIST OF DEMONS OR DEMONIC CHARACTERISTICS

Rebellion	Moral Stagnation Filthy	Mind Control
Passive Mind	Minded Conditional Love	Excuses
Fleshly Mind	Double Minded Glutton Weak	Dissension
Immorality	Willed Unlawful	Not Making Decisions Pride
Impurity	Lack of Concentration	Inability to Listen Nerve Irri-
Indecency	Retrogression	tation Evil Positiveness Preju-
Sorcery	Listlessness	dice Mental Stagnation Inco-
Mind Control Drugs	Lethargy	herence Hesitation Tortured
Enmity	Skepticism	Mind Backsliding

Strife Jealousy Anger Temper Party Spirit **Peculiar Opinions** Heresies Envy Drunkenness Carousing Depression Despondency Defeatism Doubt Dejection Despair Discouragement Gloom Burden Disgust Withdrawal Daydreaming Pouting Fantasy Pretension Unenthusiastic Unreality Escape Deceit Importance **Believing Lies** Demonic Manipulation Restless Darkened Mind **Spiritism Spirits Excessive Talking** Pushing To Extremes Uncontrolled Will Attitude of Infallibility Inability to Reason Lazy Unteachableness Spirit of Division Antagonism to Truth About Evil Spirits Excessive Weeping Incorrect Judgment Shame / Embarrassment

Indecision Drugs Dread Compromise Hopelessness Self-seduction Heaviness Fear of Failure Nervousness Unbelief Tension Mental Illness Madness Senility Schizophrenia Paranoia Carelessness Suspicion False Love Fear of Women Distrust Automatic Failure Confusion Frustration Self-righteousness Arrogance Lying **Recriminations Unrepentant** Blinded Mind Mental Lethargy Impatient Restlessness Emotionalism Ignorance of God's Word Rage Vain Imaginations Lack of Moral Vision or Judicial Balance Oppression of Self & Others Believing Teachings of Demons Exaggerated View of Self (Good or Bad) Unqualified Obedience to Demons Counterfeiting God, Presence of God, Divine, Human, Angelic and Satanic Things, Supernatural Visions and Voices

Unsettled Mind/Emotions Idiosyncrasies Futile Mind **Evil Plotting/Planning** Intimidation Doubt Unbelief Indecision Worry Forgetfulness Procrastination Insomnia Roving Morbidity Maniac Apprehension Self-deception Unfounded Fears Self-delusion Pride Fear of Man Occult Spirits Mind Idolatry Intellectualism Rationalization Unholy laughter Ego Vanity Hate of Men/Women Hysteria Mockery Haughtiness Unresisting (to evil) Unresponsive (to God) Unproductive behavior Reprobate Mind **Cult Spirits** Hysterical Babbling Unproductive No Power of Choice Marred Judgment Stoicism

TRUE WORKINGS OF GOD VS. SATAN'S COUNTERFEITS

This next table will compare 31 true workings of God, explaining the differences between the true workings of God and Satan's false counterfeit. This is found in the 1912 classic, "*War on the Saints*" by Jessie Penn-Lewis.

1. The Baptism, or Fullness of the Spirit	17. Divine guidance
2. The Presence of God	18. Divine "Leadings"
3. God in and with man in the spirit	19. Divine "Visions"
4. Christ manifested	20. Obedience to God
5. Consciousness of God	21. God giving power
6. The Holiness of God	22. God giving influence
7. Surrender to God	23. God giving "impressions"
8. Fellowship with the sufferings of Christ	24. Divine life from God
9. Trusting God	25. Divine love
10. Reliance upon God	26. Fire from God
11. Communion with God	27. Texts from God
12. Waiting on God	28. Sin from the fallen nature
13. Praying to God	29. Self-examination in the light of God
14. Asking God	30. Conviction of sin
15. God speaking	31. Confession of sin
16. The voice of God	

Supplementary Notes

"War on the Saints" by Jessie Penn-Lewis "And this I pray, that your love may abound still more and more in knowledge and all discernment, that you may approve the things that are excellent, that you may be sincere and without offense till the day of Christ" Phil 1:9-10

TRUE WORKINGS OF GOD	SATAN'S COUNTERFEIT	
1. The Baptism, or Fullness of the Spirit: An in-	1. Counterfeit workings of evil spirits may accom-	
flux of the Spirit of God into the human spirit,	pany a true reception of the Fullness of the Holy	
which liberates the spirit from the soul (Heb. 4:	Spirit, if the believer "lets go" his mind into	
12), so as to become a pliable organ or channel for	"blankness," and yields his body up passively to	
the outflow of the Spirit through the believer, mani-	supernatural power. As a "blank mind" and "pas-	
fested in witness to Christ and in aggressive prayer	sive body" is contrary to the condition for use re-	
service against the powers of darkness.	quired by the Holy Spirit, and is the primary condi-	
	tion necessary for evil spirits to work, the anomaly	
It is a true baptizing into the Body of Christ, and	is found in the Holy Spirit responding to the law of	
oneness with all the members of the Body. Its spe-	faith, and filling the man's spirit, at the same time	
cial mark and result is known in power to witness	that evil supernatural powers respond to the law of	
for Christ, and in conviction of sin in others, and	passivity fulfilled in mind and body. They then can	
their turning to God.	produce in the senses manifestations, which seem	
	to be the outcome of the Holy Spirit's entry to the	
The highest manifestation of the Fullness of the	spirit.	
Spirit is co-existent with the use of the faculties and		
self-control.	The results of the counterfeit manifestations are	
	varied, and wide in their ramifications, according to	
There is but one reception of the Holy Spirit: with	individual conditions. The abstract result is great	
many succeeding experiences, developments, or	"manifestations" with little real fruit; "possession"	

new crises, resultant on fresh acts of faith, or ap- prehension of truth; various believers having varied degrees of the same Infilling of the Spirit, accord- ing to individual conditions. The enduement of power for service is often a definite experience in many lives. <i>Pages 50, 291, 297</i> .	by evil spirits of the mind and body in varied de- grees; a spirit of division from others, instead of unity, etc., <i>Pages 54, 97, 106, 107, 108</i> .
2. The Presence of God: Known in and by the human spirit, through the Holy Spirit. When He fills the atmosphere of a room the <i>spirit</i> of the man is conscious of it, not his senses. The faculties of those present are alert and clear, and they retain freedom of action. The <i>spirit</i> is made tender (Psa. 34: 18), and the will pliable to the will of God. All the actions of a person moved by the true and pure Presence of God are in accord with the highest ideal of harmony and grace. <i>Pages 104, 107</i> .	2. The counterfeit of the Presence of God is mainly felt upon the body, and by the physical senses, in conscious "fire," "thrills," etc. The counterfeit of the "Presence" in the atmosphere is felt by the senses of the body, as "breath," "wind," etc., whilst the <i>mind is passive or inactive</i> . The person affected by this counterfeit "presence" will be moved almost automatically to actions he would not perform of his own will, and with all his faculties in operation. He may not even remember what he has done when under the "power" of this "presence," just as a sleepwalker knows nothing of his actions when in that state. The inaction of the mind can often be seen by the vacant look in the eyes. <i>Pages 109, 112, 124, 128, 130</i> .
3. God in and with man in the spirit: John 14: 23. The Father in heaven is realized to be a real Father (Gal. 4: 6), the Son a real Saviour, the Holy Spirit a real Person; manifested as One <i>in the spirit</i> of the believer, by the Holy Spirit: with resulting effects as in Rom. 8: 9-11. <i>Pages 103, 130</i> .	3. Evil spirit's counterfeit, as the occasion serves them, each Person of the Trinity, and can thus obtain access, and become in and with a man in manifestations given to the senses, in which the real <i>spirit-sense</i> may have no part. <i>Pages 52, 103, 104, 105, 108.</i>
 4. Christ manifested: in the believer by His Spirit, so that He is known as a Living Person on the Throne in heaven, and the believer joined in spirit to Him there, with the result that Christ's life and nature is imparted to him, forming and building up in him a "new creation," (Gal. 1: 16; 4: 19. Col. 1: 27), the believer growing up into Him in all hings.note 1 Pages 103, 107, 126, 127, 289. 	4. Christ apparently manifested inwardly as a "Person," to whom the soul prays, or with whom he holds communion, yet there is no real evidence of the expression of the Divine nature, or true growth of the Christ life, with a deepening fellowship with the Christ in heaven. On the contrary the Christ in heaven seems far away. The counterfeit centres and ends in an "experience" which keeps the person introverted or self-centred (spiritually). <i>Page 107. Cf. pp. 289, 290, 291.</i>
5. Consciousness of God: Felt in the spirit, and not by the physical senses. Pages 107, 108.	5. "Consciousness" of "God" in <i>bodily</i> sensations, which feed the "flesh" and overpower the true spiritsense. <i>Pages 106, 130.</i>
6. <i>The Holiness of God:</i> when realized by the be- liever produces worship and godly awe, with a ha- tred of sin. On the ground of the Blood of Calvary God draws near to men, seeking their love, but His presence does not terrorize. <i>Page 289</i> .	6. Evil spirits counterfeit this by giving a <i>terror</i> of God, which drives men away from Him, or forces them into actions of slavish fear, apart from the use of the mind, and volition, in glad voluntary obedience to Him. <i>Page 143</i> .
7. Surrender to God: Of spirit, soul and body, is a simple yielding or committal to Him of the whole man, to do His will and be at His service. God asks the full <i>co-operation</i> note 2 of the man in the intelligent use of all his faculties. Rom. 6: 13. Page 70.	7. Passive yielding of spirit, soul and body to supernatural power, to be moved automatically, in passive, blind obedience, apart from the use of volition or mind. Evil spirits desire " <i>control</i> " of a man, and his passive submission to them. <i>Pages 68, 69</i> .

8. <i>Fellowship with the sufferings of Christ:</i> The 8. "Sufferin	g" caused by evil spirits is characterized
	h acuteness, and is fruitless in result
	eing hardened instead of mellowed by
	<u> </u>
	ons can cause anguished suffering in
	or body. "Possession" manifested in ab-
- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	ering, may be the fruit of (unconscious)
-	of sufferings caused by evil spirits, of-
-	e name of the "will of God." Pages 88,
89, 90.	
9. <i>Trusting God:</i> A true faith given of God in the 9. "Trusting	evil spirits" comes about through trust-
spirit, having its origin in Him, without effort reck- ing blindly	some supernatural words, or
oning upon Him to fulfil His written Word. Co- revelations,	supposed to come from God, which
	forced "faith," or faith beyond the
· · ·	ue measure, the result being actions
	into paths of trial never planned by
	<i>129, 135, 274, 275.</i>
	e upon evil spirits means a <i>passive</i> lean-
-	pernatural help and experience, which
	erson away from faith in God Himself,
	tive co-action with Him. Page 143.
· ·	union" with evil spirits may take place
	within to enjoy <i>sense</i> communion, in
	eelings" which absorbs and renders the
	ble of the duties of life. The "flesh" is
	spurious spiritual "communion" as
	grosser ways. Pages 124, 125, 155.
12. <i>Waiting on God:</i> The spirit in restful coopera-	ing for the Spirit to come," in hours of
tion with the Holy spirit, waiting God's time to act, prayer, which	ch brings those who "wait" into passiv-
and a waiting for Him to fulfil His promises. The ity, which a	t last reaches a point of "séance" condi-
true waiting upon God can be co-existent with the tions, follow	ved by an influx of lying spirits in mani-
keenest activity of mind and service. <i>Page 62- 63.</i> festations. <i>H</i>	Pages 62, 63.
	to evil spirits comes about by praying
	the atmosphere, or within, or possibly
	" of God in the mind; instead of ap-
	Throne of Grace according to Heb.
not directed toward God as <i>within</i> the believer, but 10: 19. <i>Pag</i>	-
to a Father in heaven, in the Name of the Son, by	
the Holy Spirit. <i>Page 126</i> .	
	" evil spirits, by speaking to some <i>su</i> -
	<i>presence</i> in, or around the person. The
	re generally "dramatic," sensational,
•	
	o over-awe the person, and make him
· · · ·	wonderful recipient of favour from on
	s means the demons gain control over
	118, 119, 142.
	rits speaking, wither puffing up, accus-
	nning or confusing the person, so that
5	dered or distracted and <i>cannot exercise</i>
-	<i>br judgment</i> . The "speaking" of accusing ables the "thinking," or speaking to

16. <i>The voice of God:</i> Is heard and known <i>in the spirit</i> of man, wherein the Spirit of God dwells. God also speaks through the conscience, and through the written Word (see "Texts"), never confusing or dulling the faculties of the man, or perplexing him, so as to hinder clearness of judgment and reason. The true voice of God does not make a <i>demand</i> of unreasoning obedience to it, irrespective of the man's free volition. <i>Pages 137, 138</i> .	 oneself, when the words are not uttered audibly. <i>Pages 170, 171.</i> Also "Listening" on <i>pages 119, 125, 136, 142, 143.</i> 16. The counterfeit "voice" of God is usually loud and comes from outside the person. It can come from <i>within</i>, when the person is deeply possessed. It is frequently imperative and persistent, urging to sudden action. Confusing and clamorous, or subtle in suggestion; producing <i>fear</i> through its insistent demands, making the man a slave to supernatural power. May also be distinguished from the voice of God by its sometimes, trivial objective, and fruitless results when obeyed. <i>Pages 137, 139, 141, 142.</i>
 17. Divine guidance: Through the spirit and mind; <i>i.e.</i>, "drawing" in spirit, light in the mind: spirit and mind brought into one accord in harmony with the principles of the Word of God (Ephes. 5: 17; Phil. 1: 9-11 A.V. m.) Pages 134, 135, 136, 140, 219. 18. Divine "Leadings": Are in the spirit; demand co-operation of the man in every faculty of mind, and spiritual intelligence in correctly rending the monitions of the Spirit. The will is always left free 	 17. Satanic guidance by supernatural voices, visions, leadings, drawings, are all dependent upon the passivity of the mind and reason, and take place in the sense-realm as a counterfeit of the true in the spirit. <i>Pages 128, 134, 135, 136, 221, 222.</i> 18. Satanic "leadings" and impulses, demand passive surrender of mind and body. They are compulsory in effect, and all "compelling" and "compulsion" from the supernatural realm indicates the
 to choose and act. The true "leading of the Spirit" is never out of accord with principles of God's Word. Pages 140, 141. 19. Divine "Visions": When given, come (1) without seeking for them, (2) with definite purpose, (3) are never abortive, and (4) are co-existent with active use of the mind and faculties. Page 150. 	 work of deceiving spirits. <i>Pages 140, 141, 157</i>. 19. Satanic visions, (1) demand a passive state, (2) are broken by mental action, (3) are frequently contrary to truth, and (4) fruitless in result. Destroy all faith reliance on God. <i>Pages 149, 150</i>. 20. Grade for the line with the state of the st
 20. Obedience to God: An act of deliberate will, choosing to do the will of God, when made known to the believer. A full examination of the <i>source</i> of the command preceding intelligent decision to obey, is co-existent with true obedience. <i>Pages 50, 51, 54.</i> 21. God giving power: By the Holy Spirit in the 	 20. Counterfeit of "obedience" is a passive, automatic, blind yielding to supernatural power or voices, apart from intelligent apprehension of results or consequences. The person fears to question or <i>examine</i> the source of the command. <i>Pages 50, 141.</i> 21. Evil spirits give power in a supernatural en-
man's spirit, strengthening him in spirit, so as to energize his mind and every faculty of his being to their fullest use, and enabling him to endure and accomplish what he would not bear or do apart from God. (Ephes. 3: 16) <i>Pages 70, 138, 288</i> .	ergy generally spasmodic and unreliable dependent upon the man being passive in spirit, soul and body. This "power," when it ceases, leaves the man dull and exhausted, the effect generally be- ing attributed to natural causes. <i>Cf. pages 112, 118,</i> <i>119.</i>
 22. God giving influence: Means that the believer draws others to God, not to himself. True Divine "influence" does not "control" others automatically, but constrains them to turn to God. Page 289. 23. God giving "impressions": Means a gentle movement in the spirit, which leaves the person 	 22. Evil spirits giving "influence," means a control or power over other which causes them to act apart from their volition, or reason. This "power" may be exercised unknowingly by persons the demons can use in this way. <i>Page 145</i>. 23. Evil spirits' "impressions" are from outside, <i>upon</i> the person, and require certain conditions for

free to act of his own volition, and does not <i>compel</i> him to action. "impressions from God" are <i>within</i> in the shrine of the spirit; and not from a "power" outside, <i>e.g.</i> , in "touches" on the body, or an exterior compelling force. <i>See page 219</i> for action of the spirit.	the "impressions" to be given <i>i.e.</i> , a sitting still and waiting, etc. These conditions can also be ful- filled unconsciously by cultivating passivity of the whole being. See obsession, ppp. <i>Cf. pages 128</i> , <i>129</i> .
24. <i>Divine life from God:</i> Is known, not by "consciousness," but <i>results</i> , enabling the believer to bear and suffer what he could not bear or suffer humanly. There is rarely any "feeling" of strength or life, because consciousness of Divine life would draw the man from the path of faith to rely upon his experience. <i>Pages 91, 291.</i>	24. "Life" in thrills, etc., given by evil spirits, is known by its being in the <i>senses</i> , giving pleasant sensations, rather than true power. When it passes away, the person is dulled or weakened, and may go into spiritual darkness through numbness of the sensibilities, <i>e.g.</i> , he says he is "like a stone." <i>Page 130</i> .
25. <i>Divine love:</i> Shed abroad in the heart by the Holy Spirit, is co-existent with keen and faithful dealing with sin; with acute hatred to sin and Satan, and all that is contrary to righteousness. God's love does not dull, but energizes every faculty to fulfil the action for which it was intended in creation. It has no "craving" in it, nor does it weaken those to whom it flows out. <i>Cf. page 291</i> .	25. Counterfeit of the "love of God" makes the recipient cover over sin, compromise with it; dulls him to keen-edged righteousness; makes him incapable of true hatred to the things that God hates, for the faculty which "loves" is the faculty which hates. The counterfeit of love, whether human or Divine, given by evil spirits, grips the sensibilities with an overmastering and painful "craving" for its object. <i>Pages 108, 128, 145.</i>
26. <i>Fire from God:</i> Is a purifying through suffering (Matt. 3: 11,12), or a consuming zeal in spirit, which deepens into white heat intensity to do the will and work of God, which no trials or opposition can quench. Fire from God is spiritual, not literal, and therefore falls upon the <i>spirit</i> , not the body. <i>Page 291.</i>	26. "Fire" caused by evil spirits is generally a glow in the body, which the believer thinks is a manifes- tation of "God" in "possession" of the body, but af- terwards results in darkness, dullness and weakness with no reasonable cause; or else it continues de- ceiving the believer into counterfeit experiences. <i>Pages 82, 130.</i>
27. <i>Texts from God:</i> These are given through the organ of the spirit to the mind, when the spirit is (1) calm, (2) unstrained, (3) at liberty, (4) open to the Spirit of God. They do not confuse, and when acted upon are found to be confirmed in Providence, and are always in accord with the keen use of the faculties. Intelligent knowledge of the broad principles of Scripture is needed for the true interpretation of "texts" which arise in the spirit, lest they be misused through human conceptions of Divine things, <i>e.g.</i> , the <i>mind</i> may take literally what God means spiritually. <i>Cf. page 139</i> .	27. Texts from evil spirits "flash" into the mind: rush with force; come from without (audibly), or in the mental sphere. They elate or crush, condemn or puff up; confuse or turn out fruitless, leading those who obey them into vain actions, or into wreckage of circumstances. Evil spirits give a false "experi- ence," and then "texts to confirm it," whereas true experience confirms the truth of the statements of the written Word. Evil spirits make use of all mis- conceptions of truth. <i>Pages 18, 65, 66, 139, 149, 150.</i>
28. <i>Sin from the fallen nature:</i> Is from within, carries the will with it, or else forces the will by its pressure. The man knows the movement to sin is sin, and yet yields to it. Rom. 6: 6,11,12 is God's way of dealing with the fallen nature, and its workings, as the believer stands on the ground of the Cross, and wields Christ's finished Calvary work as a weapon for victory. The Holy Spirit bears witness to the Cross in setting free from sin, when it is the	28. Sin caused by e.s., apart from temptation, is also within, <i>but is forced</i> into the spirit, mind or body, against the desire of the man, and should be recognized as distinctly not of, or from himself, <i>e.g.</i> , blasphemous thoughts and unexplainable "feelings." If the "sin" infused by demons is dealt with as from the evil nature, although the person stands on Rom. 6: 6,11, and refuses it, no deliverance comes, but when it is recognized as the work

outcome of the evil nature. Pages 229, 234, 247.	of demons, and resisted on the ground of the Cross, freedom is quickly given. <i>Pages 133, 218, 228-233</i> .
 29. Self-examination in the light of God: A discrimination of his own actions exercised by the spiritual man, which does not produce "despair," "disappointment," a "crushed feeling," etc., but leads to rapid decision of action, and a joyous faith in the co-operating work of the Spirit in deliverance from all that does not bear the verdict of the light of God. John 3: 21. Page 56. 30. Conviction of sin: Comes from the Word of God, or by the direct action of the Holy Spirit, to the conscience, in times of quiet prayer or reading. It is never "vague" or confusing, and ceases directly the man decides to obey the Word, or go to God for cleansing in the Blood of Christ. True conviction is also a deepening experience, as the light of God shines into the conscience and life. Cf. pages 229 to 234. 	 29. Self-introspection, is made use of by evil spirits to throw the believer into self-accusation and despair. This dries the person inward and downward to crushed impotence and faithlessness. <i>God never crushes His children</i>. He convicts only to reveal the remedy. Evil spirits seek to turn souls into selfcentred absorption whereas God moves in them to live and care for others. <i>Page 159</i>. 30. Evil spirits' accusations, which are a counterfeit of conviction, are from without, in the ear (audibly), or to the <i>mind</i>, in a "nagging," persistent, confusing kind of "speaking," often without definite purpose or specific reason. No "confessing" or "step of obedience" affects these accusations, and they come again and again over the same things Many live under a perpetual cloud through the attacks of accusing spirits. They are under the shadow of being "always wrong." <i>Cf. pages 229 to 234</i>.
31. <i>Confession of sin:</i> To God and man, should be the deliberate act of the will in obedience to the Word of God, and conscience. It should be followed by sincere repentance and putting away of the confessed sin, and have the witness of the Spirit to the conscience that the sin has been put away through the efficacy of the Blood of Christ. <i>Page 133.</i>	31. Compulsory confessions, by the driving power of evil spirits upon the mind in accusation, or from remorse; or, to silence the accusing voices, the man is sometimes impelled to "confess" "sins" which have no actual existence. <i>Page 133</i> .
Notes Without exception the manifestation of the Holy Spirit is marked by (<i>a</i>) a Christ-like spirit of love, (<i>b</i>) soberness of spirit vision, (<i>c</i>) keenness of vision, (<i>d</i>) deep humility of heart and meekness of spirit, with lion-courage against sin and Satan, and (<i>e</i>) clearness of the <i>mental</i> faculties with a "sound mind." 2 Timothy 1: 7. "Wherefore be ye not foolish, but understand what the will of the Lord is "Ephes. 5: 17, R.V.	Notes Speaking generally, proof of "sense- manifestations" being from deceiving spirits may be found in the <i>spirit</i> being wrong alongside of "manifestations," <i>e.g.</i> , 1. Condemning spirit and judging spirit. 2. Spirit-vision dulled; cannot see marks of God at work in other ways. 3. Absence of true Spirit-power in (<i>a</i>) conviction of sin, (<i>b</i>) deliv- erance of souls, or (<i>c</i>) salvation of souls. 4. Or the spirit is "sweet" in a weak sense, with <i>mind dulled</i> , and unable to work with clearness.

CHARTS FROM WAR ON THE SAINTS				
Summary Of "Ground" Chart From				
War on the Saints, 1912 Edition by Jessie Penn Lewis p.305				
I. Evil spirits must have ground: p. 54	7. Ground traced to radical cause, i.e. thought and			
1. Degree of ground for possession cannot be de-	belief. p. 191. Example: p. 192. N.B. "Ground"			
fined. p. 54.	cannot be cast out, p. 179.			
2. Ground can be deepened. pp. 96, 161	VI. How ground is removed or given up:			
3. Cannot interfere with faculties	1. By revoking consent given in the past, know-			
unless ground given. p.155.	ingly or unknowingly, i.e. by steady refusal. pp.			
4. They deceive & attack to obtain ground. p. 200.	190, 193, 199, 251.			
II. The ground given to e.s. for access:	2. Persistent refusal needed until liberty is obtained.			
1. Every thought accepted from them pp. 69, 155,	p. 193.			
156, 158.	3. Ground may pass away gradually. p. 200.			
2. Wrong conceptions suggested by them, of spiri-	4. Ground may pass away unknowingly by standing			
tual things. p.160.	on Rom. vi. p. 96. Why ground does not pass away			
3. Wrong interpretation of their workings, by be-	when given up. pp. 192, 193.			
lieving their lies. pp. 95, 175, 176.	VII. How dispossession takes place:			
4. Passivity of spirit, soul, or body, pp. 71, 73, 86,	1. As ground is removed, the e.s. depart or lose			
119, 123, 149, 172.	hold. p. 112.			
5. Accepting of counterfeits. p. 69 Note: (a) the	2. Believer dispossessed as ground passes away,			
fallen nature is permanent ground, needing to be	i.e., wrong thoughts, passivity, etc. pp. 189, 193.			
dealt with perpetually on the basis of Rom. vi. pp.	3. Faculties gradually released as ground is given			
187, 188.	up. p. 192. <i>Example:</i> p. 191.			
(b) Acts of sin may also give ground. pp. 95, 96.	VIII. Ground refused to e.s. is ground retaken			
III. Result of ground given: Faculties dulled, ren-	for God, e.g., faculties surrendered to e.s. when re-			
dered inoperative, etc. pp. 119, 175	leased are recovered for God. pp. 183, 190. IX.			
IV. How ground is given to e.s.:	Need of watching lest fresh ground given. pp. 190,			
By consent, i.e., act of will consciously or uncon-	200.			
sciously; deliberately given, or obtained by guile, p.	In conflict, because of e.s. re-attempt to deceive,			
	and re-enter, need of watchful and exhaustive re-			
V. <i>How ground has to be dealt with</i> : Col. List II.,	fusal, pp. 241-248. explanations			
p.103	Ground to be given up: e.g. a thought and belief			
1. Must be found out and given up, i.e. give up "thought," or "passivity," etc. p. 94.	discovered as deception and "given up."			
2. Light on ground obtained by prayer. p. 112	<i>Ground which admits e.s. keeps e.s. in possession:</i> e.g., e.s. works on passivity which is ground for			
3. Knowledge of ground, and ground given up. p.	them to work upon. If not removed keeps e.s. in			
189. <i>Example</i> p. 192.	possession.			
4. Must face truth about ground. p. 183.	Ground to be re-taken from the foe: e.g., the facul-			
5. Ground must be discovered, in detail for full dis-	ties recovered for use. p.190			
possession from e.s., pp. 191, 193.	<i>Ground newly given:</i> e.g., a new deception through			
6. Ground given up specifically on points wherein	believing one of e.s. lies.			
deceived. p. 189				
Notes: All supernatural manifestations by e.s. in belief	ever denotes that there is ground for their workings.			
See pp. 149, 271. The believer fighting to freedom m				
pretation of manifestations of e.s. p. 175. See Tables				
Need watchfulness against "excuses" suggested by e.	s. to cover ground, or divert dealing with it. p. 175.			
For further knowledge of "ground" see Column Lists				

For further knowledge of "ground" see Column Lists pp. 103, 184.

Some Other Misinterpretations of Truth chart from War on the Saints, 1912 Edition by Jessie Penn Lewis p.67						
Truth	True Interpretation In					
1. The blood of Jesus	Cleanses moment by moment	Leaves the man sinless.				
cleanseth "	The source is not from the	* The man must not speak nor				
2. It is not ye that speak "	believer Ask according to	use his jaws, but be passive.				
3. Ask and ye shall receive."	God's Will, and you will re-	† Ask anything, and you will				
4. "It is God that worketh in	ceive.	receive.				
you to will and to do "	The man must "will" and must	* God wills for you (or in-				
5. "Ye need not that any	act (page 75) You do not need	stead of you) and God works				
man teach you."	any man to teach you, but you	instead of you.				
6. "He will guide you	need Spirit taught teachers	‡ I must not take teaching				
into all truth "	given of God.	from any man, but "direct"				
7. "A people for His	The spirit of God will guide,	from God				
own possession "	but I must see how and when	‡ He has guided me into all				
8. Meet for the	God's ownership	truth "Possessed" by God				
Master's use"	God, in the man's spirit, using	indwelling, moving and con-				
	the mind, in the sense of giv-	trolling a passive automaton.				
	ing light for the believer's in-	"Used by God as a passive				
	telligent co-operation.	tool, requiring blind submis-				
		sion.				
* These two wrongly interpreted	l l nassages a basis for nassivity	51011.				

* These two wrongly interpreted passages a basis for passivity

† Leads to haphazard and unintelligent praying, without seeking to know the will of God ‡ By these attitudes the "adding to faith," knowledge is greatly hindered, and those who assume these attitudes take an evil, infallible position, and their advancement in the spiritual life is impeded.

Three Classes Among Believers			
chart from War on the Saints, 1912 Edition by Jessie Penn Lewis p.72			
I	II	III	
Unsurrendered	Surrendered.	Surrendered but Unde-	
	Deceived, Possessed	ceived, Dispossessed and	
These use the word "surren-		Victorious	
der," but do not really know it,	These seem more "foolish"		
and act it out in practice. Be-	than those in Class 1, but in	The mind is liberated, and all	
lievers in this stage are more	reality are more advanced.	the faculties are operating.	
reasonable than those in No. 2,	In order to understand the	These are open to light and all	
because their faculties have	actions of No. 2, it is needful	that is Divine, but they seek to	
not been yielded into passiv-	to read them from their inner	watchfully close themselves to	
ity. These believers call those	standpoint, for to them all that	all that is Satanic.	
in the next class "cranks,"	they do seems right. These	No. 3 can read Nos. 1 and 2	
"faddists,"	are open to both Divine and	intelligently.	
"extremists," etc.	Satanic power.		
	Are liable to be "puffed up."		

	chart fro	-	1 Access To The Believer 12 Edition by Jessie Penn L	ewis p.103	
I.	II.	III.		V.	VI.
How Evil Spirits De-	The Ground Given	Where they enter.	Symptoms of the	The excuses used	Effects in and
ceive	For Deception		presence of evil	by evil spirits to	through the
	-	They bury themselves	spirits in a man.	cover ground.	believer.
By first obtaining con-	Thoughts admitted to	in the very structure	_	_	
sent of the will.	the mind.	of the human frame,	Attitude of "infallibility"	It is "Divine."	General weakness.
By counterfeiting the	Passivity of the whole	and enter mind or	Antagonism to truth	-sin	Mental and bodily
presence of God as in	being in various parts	nervous system	about evil spirits.	-disease	lethargy.
influence. By counter-	or stages.	specially.	Restlessness. Inability to	-physical	Nerve irritation
feiting the	Faculties unused.		reason or listen to oth-	-natural	shown in impatient
Person of God within.	Lack of mental	See Chapter VII.	ers' words. "Flashes" of	-temperament	restlessness.
By suggestions to the	control.	_	memory.	-heredity	Unteachableness.
mind.	Lack of reasoning.		Suspicious spirit.	-brain-fog	Positiveness.
By counterfeits of	Lack of use of the		Abnormal talkativeness	-fatigue	Loss of decisive power
1. Divine things	will.		or reserve. The body in	-imagination	of choice.
2. Human	Giving up power of		time becomes open to	-spiritual	Spirit of division.
3. Satanic	decision.		the evil spirits' use of	-vision from God	Prejudices without
4. Angelic	Ceasing to use the		eyes, head, vocal organs,	-revelation	reason.
By teachings of	judgment.		tongue, jaws, muscles,		Marred judgment.
Demons. By supernatu-	Actions as the result		hands, feet, manifested	See Chapter VII. on	Exaggerated view
ral	of these various		in uncontrollable move-	"Excuses"	of self, painful or
visions and voices	things, the actions		ments.	The excuses mean	pleasing.
By pushing to	giving more ground.			blaming self, or some-	Lack of moral vision
extremes. Their first ob-			See Chapter VII	one	and judicial balance.
ject is to deceive so as	See Chapter VII. on			else for what the	Unholy laughter.
to gain (1) communica-	"Ground"			evil spirits are doing.	Excessive disposition
tion					to weep.
with, (2) entrance to,					Depression and
(3) confidence of the					oppression.
believer, that all their					
workings are of God					

need for deliverance, or for the aiding of others.

Stages Of Deliverance					
chart from War On The Saints, 1912 Edition by Jessie Penn Lewis pg. 184					
I.	II.	III.	IV.	V.	VI.
Deception	Ground	Dis-possession.	Excuses or	Effects.	Results.
How It Is Broken	And how it is to	It's gradual	reasons suggested		1. Deep eagerness
	be dealt with	removal as ground	by deceiving	The symptoms gradually	for the deliverance
By first obtaining con-		is discovered	spirits to cover	disappear, but the	of others.
sent of the will.	The steady refusal of	and removed	their working.	believer must be on	2. Clear knowledge
	ground; specifically			guard not to consider	of the devil's true char-
1. The entry to the mind	of the points wherein	The possession by the	Discovery of the	he has full and final	acter in enmity and ha-
of questions concerning	the believer sees he	evil spirits now weakens	excuses made by the	victory, nor think that	tred of the believer.
various experiences,	has been deceived,	according to the	evil spirits to cover	the evil spirit has gone	3. Past experience
"Doubt" of these experi-	and their cause and	degree in which the	their location and	because the manifesta-	clearly understood,
ences.	results.	ground is given up, and	working.	tions	perplexities explained,
2. Admittance of possi-	Watching against	if more ground is not	The believer now	have ceased. He	and the Deceiver de-
bility of deception.	giving new ground.	given.	resists these and calls	needs now to be very	tected in his subtle
	Feels and sees things		them by their right	watchful, and keenly	workings.
3. Discovery of the de-	apparently worse, but	See pages 194, 195,	name of "lies."	alert to recognize and	4. Never off guard
ception.	in reality they are	200.	The need of being on	refuse all efforts at	concerning the powers
4. Acknowledgement of	actually better.		guard against the evil	new deceptions.	of darkness in watching
deception.	Each point must be		spirits counterfeiting		and prayer.
*	fought through by		the man himself.	See page 194.	5. Strong spirit
See pages 185-189	persistent refusal*				development of resisting
			See pages 175, 201.		power against evil spirits
	See pages 94, 189, 193.				in place of weak and
					passive drifting.
	* Also by action, as				6. The spirit liberated
	e.g., the regaining of				into universal
	the use of the mind.				prayer.
					See page 206.
NOTE — In studying these columns, the believer needing deliverance should remember that all these stages may vary, and					
the "symptoms" of deception, possession, and dis-possession may be of slight or acute degree, and some entirely absent.					

2. RESTORING YOUR MIND (Receiving The Mind Of Christ)

GENERAL

If your mind is sick, here is how to restore your mind to health. If you are not a Christian or are a young Christian, here is how to receive Christ and the mind of Christ. Look up and read the following scriptures, and then do what they say.

Gen. 1:26	(Dominion over all the earth)
Gen. 2:7	(The creation of man)
Gen. 2:19-20	(Adam named every creature)
Isa. 11:2	(Wisdom; Understanding; Counsel; Might; Knowledge; Spirit and Fear of the Lord)
Jer. 31:33	(Put the law in their hearts)
John 1:12	(Power to become sons of God)
John 20:22	(Receive the Holy Ghost)
Rom. 10:10	(Believe in heart and confess with mouth)
Rom. 12:2	(Transformed by the renewing. of your mind)
1 Cor. 2:14-	(Things of God are spiritually discerned)
1 Cor. 2:16	(We have the mind of Christ)
1 Cor. 15:14	(Christ is risen)
2 Cor. 10:4-5	(Bring into captivity every thought to Christ)
Eph. 2:5	(Quickened us together with Christ)
Eph. 4:22-23	(Renewed in the Spirit of your mind)
Phil. 2:12	(Work out salvation with fear and trembling)
Col. 3:10	(Renewed in knowledge after God)
2 Tim. 1:7	(No fear but power, love and sound mind)
Heb. 8:10	(Put God's laws in their mind)
Heb. 10:16	(Put God's laws in their hearts)
Rev. 5:12	(Power, Riches, Wisdom, Strength, Honor, Glory and Blessing)

3. THE MIND: FREEING - RESTORING - PROTECTING

GENERAL - All thoughts start either with the Father or Satan. Man is incapable of generating thoughts alone. Don't let Satan generate your thoughts (Matt. 5:37; II Cor. 10:5; Matt. 5:36; 6:27).

WHY THIS MANUAL? - The Father has planned so that any child of God can have superb intelligence. The mind is truly the key to a believer's growth into an over-

FREEING THE MIND

The Battle Field is Your Mind

You Can: Free your mind (Eph. 6:17); free your children's minds (I Cor* 7:11; John 17:12; Isa. 54:13; Eph. 6:11); and free the minds of the ones to be delivered (Eph. 6:18; Rom. 8:26-27)

YOU HAVE TO WORK AT TAKING AUTHORITY

1. You must become a believer (John 14:12! Mark 16:17).

- 2. Break the bondage of Satan over the aware and unaware mind. (Heb. 1:14; Lev. 26:13; Isa. 28:22; Job 38:31).
- 3. Daily recite renunciation and warfare prayers.
- 4. Have an attitude of deliverance and keep yourself in a state of continuous deliverance (Luke 8:14).
- 5. Cast out fears (name each one or group), forgetfulness, curses, vows, anxiety, confusion, envy, jealousy, gossip, compromise, cravings, addictions, mind control spirits, etc. (Mark 16:17; Phil. 4:4-8).
- 6. Restore the soul.
- 7. Salvation really means saved or delivered out of the control of the Devil (Rom. 10:10; Phil. 2:12; Eph. 6:17).
- 8. Learn the true meaning of hope (I Thes. 5:8; Eph. 2:6; Col. 2:9-10).
- 9. Now you can control your mind by bringing every thought into captivity (II Cor. 10:5).

HOW DID THE MIND GET IN BONDAGE?

- 1. We should know this about evil spirits' rights to enter a person (saved or unsaved). Satan is a legalist. This means that he knows when he has a legal right to send or keep an evil spirit in a person. Example: The act of smoking gives legal grounds for nicotine, craving of smoke, addiction, and many other spirits to enter and stay in a person.
- 2. Before we are "born again" Satan has a heyday filling us with evil spirits.
- 3. Explanation: This has to be correct or the Bible could not say the carnal flesh is at enmity (open warfare) with God. This means that the cells and blood have to be full of evil spirits or it would not be at war with the Father.
- 4. In many scriptures the Lord says these will be visited upon the third and fourth generations.
- 5. This gives Satan legal grounds to afflict an unborn baby, newborn baby, children and adults until these curses are removed.
- 6. Ephesians 2:2 (Amplified) "In which at one time you walked habitually. You were following the course and fashion of this world—were under the sway of the tendency of this present age—following the prince of the power of the air (you were obedient to him and were under his control) the (demon) spirit that still constantly works in the sons of disobedience—the careless, the rebellious and the unbelieving, who go against the purposes of God.
- 7. Every disease (regardless of what your doctor says) originated with Satan sending an evil spirit into the body. (No other way for ft to happen!) You say, "What about the deficiency diseases?" What causes the deficiency?
- 8. What limits or restricts the number of evil spirits that can be in the brain or body (flesh)?
- 9. The strongman referred to in the scriptures by Jesus Christ has to give his permission for spirits of lesser power to enter the brain or body and be submissive to him.
- 10. There is one Satan, millions of fallen angels (101,000,000 +), Rev. 5:11), billions of demons (Pre-Adamic Race?).
- 11. FEAR (Satan's weapon to make a person afraid). Every organ of a person is affected by fear. Over 200 varieties of fear from Satan (called phobias).
- 12. ENJOY YOURSELF The evil spirits encourage, tempt and push their victims: such as eating (surfeiting).
- 13. Now so that men will not know or realize that man was created by the Father and so that man would think the Devil really does not exist, Satan developed the following plans.

- 14. All present problems of any type can be explained scientifically, such as: Evolution man evolved from lower forms (lying and deception spirits).
- 15. Man finally accepts the lowly position in the world. Thinks of himself as a part of a "chance system" without a specific end (Isa. 46:10).

WHAT IS THE SOUL?

To the best of our knowledge, the soul is made up of the: personality, intellect, mind as it deals with the intellect, will, emotions and heart.

HOW IS IT FRAGMENTED AND REMOVED?

- 1. Dealing with the occult or witchcraft apparently gives grounds for Satan to remove portions of the soul and substitute evil spirits in that portion's place.
- 2. Whenever a person puts something or someone above the Father, a portion of the soul can go into the idolized object or person.
- 3. Witchcraft, spells, incantations, some forms of prayers these can be used to fragment and remove the* soul.
- 4. Great trauma such as accidents, fire, shock, etc., undoubtedly have a place in the plan to fragment the soul (Psalm 7:2).

WHY DOES SATAN WANT TO FRAGMENT A YOUTH?

- 1. Ties up the whole family with care for the retarded or insane.
- 2. Weakens faith in God.
- 3. Brings shame to entire family.
- 4. Causes embarrassment about marriages to others.
- 5. Sets stage for future generations to be insane.
- 6. Binds them to doctors.
- 7. Binds them to psychiatrist.
- 8. Sometimes connects the family to the occult through accommodation to the behavior of the victim.

HERE IS A TRUTH! - Just remember - There is no such a thing as a deranged, retarded, insane person as such, there is only a person whose normal God-given intellect has been removed and insane, deranged, retarded, dumb, crazy, evil spirits substituted for the normal intellect.

HOW TO DEAL WITH THE RETARDED, INSANE AND SENILE

- 1. Scripture posters and wallpaper with powerful deliverance scriptures are helpful.
- 2. Play deliverance scripture and messages, and mass deliverance tapes 24 hours a day when possible.
- 3. Have parent or guardian to take Warfare Prayers for those unable to take them personally.
- 4. Distance from the person being prayed for means nothing.
- 5. Your commanding and prayers are effective in comas, when sleeping and drugged, or under anesthesia. The evil spirits hear it all.
- 6. Acts 19:12 Use prayer cloths in pillows, clothing and bedding.
- 7. Anoint premises with oil; also anoint clothes and bedclothes with oil.
- 8. Loose their angels as discussed in Matt. 18:10.
- 9. Ask for angels to minister all the time (Heb. 1:14).

- 10. Forgive their sins (John 20:23).
- 11. Cast out Mind Control and Prince of Mind Occult.

PROTECTING YOUR MIND

- 1. The word "strong" is related to Joel 3:16 where the Lord says that He'll be our strength, which means shelter.
- 2. "Might" means ability or strength through and in us. We must know our authority and power.
- 3. "Stand" means an active upright position.
- 4. "Having done all to stand" means having conquered all to be ready to fight again. This should tell any believer they could get battered and destroyed if they do not learn warfare.
- 5. Faith must be alive by doing works that Jesus Christ did. Shield can be quickly moved to head.
- 6. Learn full meaning of salvation.
- 7. These scriptures pertain to hope: Joel 3:16; Col. 1:5; II Thes. 2:6; I Tim. 1:1; Col. 1:27; Titus 3:7.
- 8. Now you are the Lord's battle axe Jer. 51:20.
- 9. The whole armor of God is found in Eph. 6:10-18; I Thes. 5:8; Gal. 2:5.

LIST OF DEMONS

General

- Resentment, Unforgiveness Occult sins and practices Demonic subjection to authority Psychic powers or bondages of physical or mental illness
- Evil curses, charms, vexes, hexes, spells, jinxes, bewitchment, witchcraft and sorcery Every dark spirit, evil influence
- Pride, haughty look, lying tongue, hands that shed innocent blood, heart that deviseth wicked imaginations, feet that be swift to running to mischief, false witness and he that soweth discord among the brethren

Unbelief and doubt, care, worry, anxiety Evil soul ties

All fetters, bonds, ties and bands, whether they be by word or deed

Fragmented mind, will and emotions

Retardation, insanity and senility, madness

Mind control and prince of mind occult

Sins of blood ancestors

Cults, Eastern religions and false religions

Mind altering medicines such as Valium, Librium,

Serex, Phenobarbital, sleeping pills, etc.

Early retirement, defeat, giving up easily, automatic failure mechanism

- Forgetfulness, vows, confusion, envy, jealousy, gossip, compromise, cravings, addictions Sickness, poverty, oppression Smoking, nicotine, craving of smoke Adultery, harlotry, fornication, lewd sex, sexual exploits
- Acting, deceit, role playing, fantasy Depression, imaginations, daydreaming, intellectual idolatry, infirmity Blindness, astonishment of heart Anger, hate, low I.Q., fear of failure, aging, anti-Christ, fear of man, divorce, self-centeredness, ego,nervous habits, fatigue, religion without Christ, suicide

Diabetes, kidney stones, cancer, hepatitis, arthritis, kidney infection

All fears and phobias

Self-gratification and selfish pleasure, surfeiting Derangement, dumb, crazy Worship of objects or persons Incantations and psychic prayers Trauma of accidents, fire, shock, etc. Nonincentive, victim of chance, mental acceptance of mediocrity and low man on scale

OCCULT (PARTIAL LIST)

Fortune Telling, Ouija Board, Cards, Good Luck Charms, Seances, Edgar Cayce, Jean Dixon, Mind Control, Witchcraft, Four-Leaf Clover, Rabbit Foot, Wishbone, ESP, Transcendental Meditation, Yoga, Hypnosis, Drugs (tranquilizers and pain relievers), Incense, Dungeons and Dragons, Pendulum, Palm Reading, Automatic Handwriting, Pierced Ears, Horoscopes, Signs of the Zodiac, Voodoo, Magic, Levitation, Water Witching, Tea Leaf Reading, Secret Organizations, Eight Ball.

REFERENCES

The Mind: Freeing - Restoring - Protecting by J.M. Haggard. Excerpts were taken from this booklet and a list of demons was compiled for mass deliverance.

4. DELIVERANCE FOR THE SUBCONSCIOUS MIND (Abused child)

DEFINITIONS

Subconscious - n. that portion of mental activity of which the individual has little or no conscious perception.

Subconscious - a. occurring without conscious perception, or with only slight perception on the part of the individual - said of mental processes of reactions.

Abuse - n. to use ill; to maltreat; to misuse, to use with bad motives or wrong purposes; to violate; to defile; to deceive, to impose on; to treat harshly; to use insulting, coarse, or bad language about or to; to revile.

EARLINE'S TESTIMONY

Rejection is the basic cause of abuse. All types of rejection work to destroy the mental and emotional health of an individual.

Read II Tim. 3:1-6 and watch for these characteristics in my life.

I had often wondered about certain problems I had: (1) an inordinate desire to please, (2) inability to say no to things I didn't want to do, (3) always setting goals, working hard to accomplish them and then stopping short of success, (4) always feeling I had to do things better than anyone else and (5) trying to make everything around me and about me look better than I thought it was.

In September of 1983, I cut off part of my finger in an accident loading a horse. It was the first time I had need of a hospital in many years. I was put to sleep and my finger was sewn into my palm. The next day I was supposed to be quiet and take it easy.

For five years, I had been trying to help my mom get resettled after my dad's death. At times she would tell me what she wanted me to do and I would start to do it. Right in the middle of my do-

ing it, she would suddenly, without telling me, change her mind, and have one of my brothers doing an entirely different thing.

Two years ago, I took her to Maine to see my brother. Back in Chattanooga she accused me of wanting and trying to kill her. This really puzzled me because I thought we got along very well.

After the operation, I was being still on the sofa praying. I asked God, "Why can't I help Mom? Why does she think I want to kill her?"

I had a vision or dream, some might say a flashback. I was standing in the room I had as a child. I was high, near the ceiling. I was witnessing a terrible thing. A woman was beating, not whipping, a child. I went down to see who this was and to stop it; I saw it was my mom. I went beside the bed, bent down and looked; the child was me.

Thinking I was hallucinating because of the drugs from the operation the day before, I quickly decided to get up and get busy. One handed work was hard to find, so I swept the carport.

My brother called me or I called him. Since I sounded a little funny, he asked what was wrong. I told him next time they could sew me up awake. Then I related this story to him. He was silent, then he asked me if I didn't remember that day. He said he had told my dad that if my mom didn't stop beating me for no reason, he would kill her. The only words said in the scene were by my dad; he said to my mom that he would kill her if he ever heard of this happening again. I was not a small child. I was ten or twelve years old when the beatings stopped! For some reason, I simply cannot remember this today. He thought her fear that I wanted to kill her came from the guilt for what she did to me.

About eight to nine years before this incident, Gene and I had fasted and prayed for me for two years. When I got the Baptism of the Holy Spirit, there was only initial joy. Immediately, I began to have more fears than before, my emotions were out of control and I couldn't think clearly. God does not give us a spirit of fear but a spirit of power, love, calm, well-balanced mind, discipline and self control.

Neither of us knew about deliverance from demons, so God had to teach us. After a long time of praying one night, Gene began to call out Rejection, Rebellion, Bitterness, etc. I was very different after this. I had to learn how to stay free by studying the Bible. No one in our town believed a Christian could have a demon, so we had to rely on God and His Word.

I was doing very well until the scene passed before my eyes and I learned of my early life. Immediately, I began to have times of panic for no apparent reason.

I was hostile. I noticed a panic when those who had authority over me were present. I would become fearful if a policeman came near me, and when the pastor or principal came into my room. I felt I had to challenge Gene's decisions.

We prayed and felt that I needed more deliverance. Gene was led to call out the same things as before. We realized at this point that we were working on my subconscious mind.

TEACHING

As you can see, abuse (whether verbal, physical, mental or sexual) has a deep and lasting effect on a person. It affects all their relationships and all they do. This includes neglect.

II Tim. 3:2 says that in the end times people will be lovers of self, utterly self-centered. Most child abuse comes from selfish parents. When a child is neglected or rejected, damage is done to them emotionally, mentally and physically.

Emotionally these children are unsure of themselves, and everyone or almost everyone around them. Often they are unable to be still or concentrate. Emotions are always at an extreme pitch.

Mentally they cannot trust others or themselves. They have difficulty learning, due mainly to being emotionally unsound. Some become so fearful they are always watching everyone around them. Some are pressured so by rejection, they go to unnatural or extreme means to succeed. Lying does not seem so bad if it will stop the abuse.

Many become schizophrenic, paranoid and psychotic. Schizophrenics are double or many minded, and unable to cope with reality (James 1:4-6). Some become catatonic either rejecting any activity or extremely active and talkative, and have hallucinations (II Tim. 3:3). The paranoid mind has delusions of grandeur and persecution. Psychotics simply refuse to acknowledge reality (II Tim. 3:4): the town bum, drunks, sexual perverts, etc. Many that we call hypocrites are in this group (II Tim. 3:5).

Many times an abused child will mildly or completely neglect themselves to convey the idea to others that they are worthless or at fault. By their attitudes they invite sickness, etc. Or, they go to the other extreme, they must always look beautiful to hide their real self.

If a child is beaten, when it becomes an adult it will tend to do the same thing to its children. I know that God helped me in this area. As a small child coming home from school one day after a particularly hard time, a voice told me, "You don't have to be like your people, you have the ability to choose which way you will go". With my children, I would never touch to punish when I was really mad or upset.

Since these senseless beatings have no reason, the child becomes confused and frustrated. Many work extremely hard to prove themselves.

In mental abuse, children follow pretty much the same pattern as physical abuse. Eventually they accept or partially accept the verbal abuse as true. Dishonest dealing with children makes them fearful of trusting. Hence they have trouble trusting God because parents who are authority figures have not been trustworthy. They always have nervous problems.

Sexually abused children have all the above problems. Hate figures in all abuse, but is extreme in a sexually abused child. The abused child may take up homosexuality, sadism, etc., and become frigid. Any form of abuse can lead to mental illness.

First, the child who has been abused must learn to forgive. When tempted to hate again, the child must not let it rule him or her.

Come to understand that the parent or abuser has had much trouble in his or her life. If the person is young, you should seek help and protection from this abuser.

If you have had unexplained nervousness, fears, lying, inability to trust, always having to prove yourself in dead-heat competition, hate and hatefulness, strong leaning to sexual perversions, hypocritical, fantasy, inability to cope with life or people, extreme self-centeredness, extreme emotions, bad temper, depression, confusion, frustrations, being victimized or unable to control your actions, then you probably need deliverance in your subconscious mind as well as conscious mind.

After deliverance, you will need to learn what the Bible says about each area of deliverance and teach yourself to obey. Without the demons inside, you should be able to obey God's instructions. Ask God for understanding of yourself. Learn to think differently than before.

For example: Most abused people have a problem feeling gratitude because they have been victimized repeatedly. They cannot be glad or grateful when something good happens because they fear it has a price to be paid. Learn Deut. 28:47 - to serve the Lord in gratitude of heart and mind for all that He has blessed you with (an example of what parents' attitudes should be). Remember, Jesus died for you before you were ever born. Forgive everyone to the degree that you can truly pray for them to be saved and receive blessings of God. Realize that their troubles are probably as great or greater than yours. Realize it is not entirely or maybe not at all your fault.

DELIVERANCE

Break all inheritance from ancestors' sins that would give you demons in the subconscious mind. These include idol worship (Masons, occult, cults, Catholic, etc.), sexual sins (bastards, incest, adultery, homosexuality, etc.) and ungodly attitudes of the parents.

Start with basic deliverance in subconscious mind and conscious mind (rejection, bitterness and rebellion). Then call for demon spirits that went in from the abuser (Spirits of Abuse). Call out the Victim Spirit (adversities to be victimized).

Beating		discouraged	no peace
discontent	false burdens	cruelty	stoicism
covetousness	irritability	madness	hallucinations
hate	harlotry	frigidity	aggravated
dejection	lonely	contention	passivity
stealing	worry	manic depressive	
guilt	competition		self-pity
hopelessness	despondency	defeated	fantasy lust
kleptomania	timid and shy	daydreaming	sleepiness
masturbation	dread	paranoia	confusion
retaliation	driving	laziness	self-reward
suicide	fear of authority	pretense	procrastination
material lust	inadequacy	fantasy	alcohol
depression	apprehension	unfairness	frustration

LIST OF DEMONS

destruction	argument		self-hatred
death (welcome		murder	listlessness
fantasy)	ineptness	distrust	drugs
food lust	nervous	fear of judgement	forgetfulness
pride	grief	cursing	self-awareness
pouting	disgust	sadism	funk
morbidity	suspicion	pretension	quarreling
greed	excitement	fear of condemnation	incoherence
homosexuality	sorrow	gossip	self-condemnation
cursing	lying and deceit	backbiting	indecision
heaviness	(for protection)	unreality	fighting
criticism	jealousy	fear of accusation	doubt
despair	schizophrenia	mockery	self-protection
berating	heartache	hyperactive	incest
gloom	spite	escape	torment
intolerance	mental illness	fear of reproof	unbelief
ego	heartbreak	belittling	sexual impurity
inferiority	exposure	driving	harassment
	hatred	indifference	skepticism
	retarded	sensitiveness	lust
	crying (for control of	railing	
	others)		

5. DELIVERANCE FROM GRIEF AND BITTERNESS

SCRIPTURE

- 1 Sam. 1:16 Hannah's bitter provocation (childless).
- 1 Sam. 2:33 Grief over children.
- Psalm 6:7 Eyes consumed because of grief.
- Psalm 31:9 Eyes, inner self & body weak from grief.
- Psalm 31:10 Life spent with grief.
- Psalm 78:40 God's grief over our rebellion.
- Prov. 17:25 Foolish son is grief to father.
- Isa. 17:11 Griefs due to worshipping Adonis.
- Isa. 53:3 Jesus acquainted with grief.
- Isa. 53:4,10 Jesus bore our griefs.
- Jer. 6:7 Jeremiah's grief over Jerusalem's wickedness.
- Jer. 45:3 Lord added grief to sorrow.
- 2 Cor. 2:5 Grief caused by incest.
- Eph. 4:30 Grieve not the Holy Spirit.
- 2 Cor. 1:3 God comforts & consoles us in troubles.
- 2 Cor. 1:4 So we may comfort others.
- 1 Pet. 5:6-11 Knowing the same sufferings are appointed to your brethren in the world. God will complete, settle, establish you.

GENERAL

I learned about grief when our son died. In time this grief became dear to me. I was very heart broken when I hadn't thought of him all day.

God met us at the time of Byron's death. He did unusual things to get our attention and to minister to us. This saved our lives but did not remove grief from us. We followed the usual pattern for those who grieve. We used grief and self-pity to manipulate others and disobey God. None of us were aware of these actions at the time, yet we became expert at using them. Our demons, having become expert at using people for thousands of years, have us doing their bidding very well, very quickly.

FAMILY REACTIONS

As we were unable to meet Marie's needs, she felt rejected and went into rebellion and bitterness. She would rebel just for the sake of rebelling. She didn't know it at the time, neither did we, but these actions were the result of distrust because we let her brother die. Parents are to protect children. The demons told her this but she was not conscious of agreeing with them. Clever aren't they?

Gene withdrew from the family, and neglected family problems and needs to minister to others.

I grieved over all the above. I became dominating, a Jezebel, trying to fix everything for everybody except myself. This dominating tended to emphasize everyone's troubles, even creating more troubles.

GENE'S TESTIMONY

After Byron's death, the world seemed unreal. I wanted to leave this world and I asked God to kill us. This was an improper prayer and it was a selfish action on my part. Losing Byron was like losing an arm or a leg. We searched the Bible to see if we could commit suicide, go to heaven and be with Byron, and also to be out of our misery. The Bible says that you have no right to commit suicide and you may end up in Hell. We prayed that the plane would crash in the Atlanta Airport. There were one-hundred tornadoes in Atlanta that day and the plane shook on its take-off. My grief really was for my loss and for myself. God told us that Byron was in Heaven. I would sit and hold Byron's picture and cry; I did this many times. I felt like I had to grieve over Byron's death or I was not showing proper love for him. I would drive to work praying and crying. I cry often now but they are tears of joy. I have found that there is nothing wrong with a man crying in the sight of God.

I did not want to work but God told me that I must support my family. I tried to go to the mission field but nobody wanted me; they only wanted me to go to the seminary. God told me to continue to be an engineer and to start helping others who were in need.

After Byron's death we really started seeking God. Jesus was our Savior but He became our Lord and Master also.

Byron's death caused us to reach out and help others who were experiencing death in their families. God has helped restore our lives as we have helped others. Now we have a ministry of helping others centered around deliverance. It took four years to write our testimony "From Death Into Real Life" and to overcome our grief. I handled my grief by the following steps: I quit looking back at Byron's death, I ministered to the needs of my family, and I went on with what the Lord wanted me to do.

EARLINE'S TESTIMONY

I grieved over Byron's death and worried over my family. I became a dominating Jezebel, trying to fix everything for everyone except myself. This action tended to make everything worse, even creating more problems. I prayed and fasted a lot to get God to straighten them out, but forgot to ask for wisdom and understanding to straighten myself out. I did not follow I Peter 5:7-11.1 would cast my cares upon Him but because there was no quick-fix, I took them all back and did not follow on to believe v.9, that after a while He would finish the work He planned in us. We would be established, secure, settled and strengthened.

I had been taught about good confessions. I confessed, until I was worn out, that the problems would be taken care of by God. Things got worse rather than better. I did not take scriptural care of my part of the problem. I was ignorant of the Bible's instruction so God could not act. I did not qualify due to ignorance and disobedience (Hosea 4:6). I began to say to God, "If I must go through this, please teach me all that I need to learn. I don't want to go through this over and over."

Grief is a normal reaction to loss or pain. It is not normal grief when two, five or ten years later, it is as great or greater than when it happened. Grief becomes rebellion when it controls our action to the point we do not obey God.

In John 10:10 we find out who wants to kill, steal and destroy us. The Devil never lets up when you have trouble; that's when he pounces the hardest through his demons.

DEFINITIONS

What is grief? Grief is sorrow, heavy, grievous, sad, intense suffering caused by emotions due to loss, misfortune, injury, evil, regret or suffering, to be morbid, to suffer calamity, failure, distress or lament.

Emotions - Grief causes a breakdown in emotional control. Emotions will fluctuate wildly.

Will - You are unable to do what you see you should do or need to do.

Body - Doctors tell us, after many years of study, those who are bitter, in grief or unforgiving create a climate in the body where cancer, arthritis and ulcers thrive. Our body chemistry and functions are out of order due to the stress created by grief, bitterness and unforgiveness.

Mind - The mind should be under control by the person's spirit which should be under the direction of the Holy Spirit. We tend to think of our mind as the supreme part of us but it is not. We are a spirit that has a soul and lives in a body.

INSTRUCTIONS

Just as we do not let our hands or feet do their own thing, neither do we let our mind accept every thought coming into it. A mind can receive more than one thought at a time from more than one source. We hear from God and Satan at the same time. We should examine every thought that comes into our minds. If it does not pass a Biblical inspection, we should reject it. If it lines up with the Bible, we pray for wisdom and act on the wisdom God gives. Many thoughts coming through our minds are not our own but are sent out by evil spirits to snag us. If we accept them and think back with them, we can be led into depression, sins, etc.

Many thoughts coming into your mind are not your own but are sent to entice you. If we accept them and act on them, we can be led into sins in mind or body.

Boys at Louisiana Training Institute would tell me that they had thoughts to do the crime and not to do it at the same time. They did not sort out the good from the evil and made the wrong choice. Rom. 6:16-17 tells us that to whomever we yield ourselves servants to obey, that's whose slave we become; if to unrighteousness -death and if to righteousness - life in God.

John 10:10 says Jesus comes to give life abundantly. My cry, was "Lord how do I get life abundantly?" I learned a new song (Is. 60:1), "Arise, shine for your light has come." I tried but I didn't know how to arise or shine. In the Amplified Bible I found the complete directions.

Is. 60:1 - Arise (from the depression and prostration in which circumstances have kept you; rise to a new life). Shine (be radiant with the glory of the Lord; for your light has come, and the glory of the Lord has risen upon you). Now I knew what I was to arise from depression and prostration. Each time I tried to arise, a ton of weight held me down.

Is. 61:1-4: Jesus came to preach the gospel, bind and heal the broken hearted, proclaim liberty to the physical and spiritual captives, and opening of the prisons and eyes of the blind. To proclaim the year of favor, to grant consolation and joy to those that mourn, to give beauty for ashes, praise for failing spirit and build oaks of righteousness that the Lord be glorified.

Grief does not bring glory to the Lord but joy, praise and righteousness do. Verse 4 says after all this is done, they (the people) will rebuild their ruined lives and cities. This has begun to come true in the lives of our family members.

I realized I was asking God to fix the circumstances around me that I should have been at work on. I was continually asking, "How?" Right off I saw more scripture after I saw the scripture about forgiveness.

Mark 11:22-26 and Matt. 18:21-35 instructed me to forgive everyone who had ever wronged me in anyway, including myself. I must forgive Byron for dying and myself for thinking I could have prevented it, and ask God to forgive me for blaming Him.

Forgiveness doesn't mean forgetting. It means let it drop, leave it and let it go (Matt. 6:6-15). Count the offense unimportant compared to what Jesus did for me, (Matt. 18:34-35). As I came to forgive, much of the ton of weight fell off of me. I must forgive to be forgiven. If I regard iniquity in my heart, God will not hear me. Unforgiveness is sin (Ps. 66:18). Many of my prayers were not answered because of unforgiveness, grief or bitterness.

We grieve over many things: our sins, the results of our sins, rejections, worries, neglect, divorce, abuse, death, failure, children's failures, etc.

A spirit of grief is bitter. This bitterness reaches everybody and everything around us (Heb. 12:14-16). Our grief kept us so tied up in it that we neglected each other and our daughter. She took the neglect to mean rejection and she began to reject herself; after rejection, entered rebellion.

HOW DID WE GET OUT OF THIS MESS?

After two years of fasting, Bible study and prayer, God suggested that I ask Gene to pray deliverance for me. We had never heard of prayers for deliverance; neither did we know what it was or how to do it. Gene suggested we go into our room and ask God to help us. The Bible says we have the Holy Spirit; we don't need anyone to teach us (I John 2:27).

After a very lengthy prayer, Gene began to call out things bothering me. The basis for deliverance is Mark 16:16-20 and Jesus' examples in the Gospels.

As he called out unforgiveness, the faces of people and circumstances flashed before me, and I forgave them. He then proceeded to rejection, bitterness (of which grief is a part) and rebellion.

IF YOU ARE IN THE GRIP OF GRIEF AND BITTERNESS

Forgiveness (Mark 11:25) - Christians have no choice but to forgive. Matt. 18:34-35: God will send tormentors on you if you don't forgive.

Submit To God (John 4:23-24) - Face up to the facts: do not use grief as an excuse to disobey God, for bad behavior or to neglect duties. Fantasy is deadly. Obey: To establish basis for deliverance, you must obey appropriate scriptures. Honesty: "If you love Me, you will keep My commandments. God hates lies and lying. Bind up the evil forces working against you. Loose yourself from them and ask God to send his forces to aid in your release: wisdom, discerning of spirits, power and might (seven-fold Spirit of God).

CALL OUT ALL EVIL SPIRITS FROM YOURSELF AND FAMILY

To Stay Free After Deliverance - Control your thought life (II Cor. 10:5). I got very holy asking God to control my thoughts. After weeks of doing this, I heard, "Stupid! What is the understood subject of that sentence?" I had my answer; I was to bring every thought into subjection to Jesus Christ. He quoted Isa. 55 to me. Phil. 4:8 gives a list of things you should think on, things worthy of reverence, just, honorable, seemly, pure, lovely, lovable, kind, winsome, gracious; if there be any virtue, excellence or anything worthy of praise, think on, weigh, and take account of these things. Fix your mind on them. This is a commandment! Resist Satan - I never in my wildest imagination could have known how Satan would fight against my desire to obey. I got a lot of experience in forgiving and in thought control right off. People began to say and do things that hurt badly. I used to retaliate ten times for one hurt. But, God says, "Vengeance is Mine, I will repay.

As I forgave and just simply counted the offense as worthless, a wholesome, clean feeling came to me. I liked it.

I made a list of things God allows me to think on and put it behind the cabinet door in the kitchen. When I got off track, I'd read the list. If what I was thinking about wasn't on the list, I'd stop those thoughts, reject and throw them out.

CONTINUE TO BREAK OLD HABITS AND OBEY GOD

If lazy, Prov. 6:6,9; 10:26; 13:4; 20:4; 26:16. If disobedient, I Sam. 15:23; Ez. 20:38; Is. 30:1. If lying, Prov. 6:17; Rev. 21:8. Whatever your problem, find the instructions for the solution in the Bible and follow them. If you fail, get up and try again: II Cor. 4:7-9, Book of James, I Cor. 10, etc.

RESULTS

God has shown me that we would still be "us four and no more family" except for Byron's death. We avoided people with problems. We had always taken care of our problems as they arose. We had everything: positions, houses, cars, boats, etc. - what this world says is success. We were wretched and poor in God's eyes. Now each time God uses us to help someone, I see it as a result of God's help, our obedience to God, and Byron's death. Much good has come out of Byron's death for many families, children and individuals. Without deliverance from demon bondage, we'd probably all be dead now.

LET'S GET STARTED

Repent - The first thing you need to do is repent for being ignorant of the Bible which contains God's advice and for not following that which you do know; for wanting to or for living in fantasy; for blaming others when it's your problem too; for not trusting God and going on but living in the past; for the unkindness you have done to others; for not believing that this terrible thing that has happened can work together for good and be useful to you, others and God's plan; for not accepting God's right to use you seeing you were bought with a great and precious price; for not being willing to be hurt as others are; for refusing to be grateful to God in all things; for listening to and following the advice of demons; for failing to consider the others who have also been grieved by this thing which has happened; for holding resentments against yourself, others and God; and for allowing your grief to become excessive.

Forgive - Ask God to remind you of all those against whom you hold unforgiveness. Forgive all (yourself -everyone). Forgive those causing your grief.

Break Curses - Rebellion, divorce, death, occult involvement, inherited curses, domination and bitterness.

Pray any other prayer that will establish the basis for deliverance from grief and bitterness.

Ask God to give you wisdom in correcting your thought patterns, ways of treating others, purpose of your life, the things that have hurt you so much; to help you understand how the other members of your family have suffered; to help you let Him use this thing for your good, the good of others and God's plan.

LIST OF DEMONS

Unforgiveness	Rebellion	Oppressive Grief	Doubt
Rejection	Self-Will	Pain of Mind	Doubting God's
Fear of Rejection	Stubbornness	Painful Emotions	Word
Rejection of Oth-	Disobedience	Regret	Disease
ers	Anti Submissive-	Suffering Spirits	Cancer Ulcers Ar-
Self Rejection	ness	Distrust	thritis
Root of Bitterness	Escape	Heaviness	Worry
Resentment Ha-	Indifference	Cursing	Fear
tred	Stoicism	Morbidity	Anxiety
Unforgiveness	Passivity	Sorrow	Dread
Violence Toward	Sleepiness	Depression	Apprehension
Self	Alcohol	Despair	Restlessness
Violence Toward	Drugs	Disgust	Roving
Others	Listlessness	Despondency	Confusion
Malice	Lethargy	Discouragement	Frustration Inco-
Temper	Tiredness	Defeatism	herence Lying
Anger	Weariness	Dejection	Spirit Guilt
Rage	Laziness	Hopelessness	Self-Hatred
Murder	Self-Deception	Envy	Condemnation
Grief	Indecision	Distrust	Unworthiness
Suicide	Grief	Selfishness	Shame
Death	Heartache	Fantasy	Embarrassment
Insomnia	Crying	Unreality	Railing Con-
Wrath	Sadness	Spite	frontation
Bitterness of	Cruel	Deceit	Pressure
Death Bitter	Burdens	Hateful	
Wailing		Hatred	

6. THE NEUROTIC PERSONALITY (PSYCHONEUROSIS)

GENERAL

This is a series of three lessons, The Three P's: Psychoneurosis, Psychopsychosis and Psychopathic. The first lesson will deal with "The Neurotic Personalities (Psychoneurosis)"; second lesson "The Delinquent Personalities (Psychopsychosis)" and third lesson "The Pathologic Personalities (Psychopathic)". These are the results of unresolved traumas of mind and emotions.

Many people suffering from some form of personality disorder believe they cannot be helped at all. They are happy to find that they can be helped by God's provisions through Jesus Christ. Many that you think will never make it do. They start off by attacking one or two problems and follow right on through to success.

We've also worked with a few people who didn't really seem to have many problems and they would get a lot of help. Maybe they would get a job and lose their government aid. Then they would decide they didn't want to go through with deliverance and discipline because of money, or persecutions.

As you will find in Pigs in the Parlor, most personality problems begin with that first deadly wound of rejection which is not handled properly. Satan and his demons build a strong web around rejection as the person tries to protect himself from further rejection and its pain.

I would like to share with you some very wonderful verses from God's Word. These verses were very vexing to me at one time.

First I'll share one group of verses which encouraged me while at the same time these others troubled me.

Isaiah 61:1-4, The Spirit of the Lord is upon me to preach the Gospel of good tidings to the meek, the poor and afflicted; He sent me to bind up and heal the brokenhearted, to proclaim liberty to the physical and spiritual captives, and the opening of the prison and of the eyes of those who are bound. To proclaim the acceptable year of the Lord - the year of His favor - and the day of vengeance of our God; to comfort all who mourn. To grant consolation and joy to those who mourn in Zion, to give them an ornament - a garland or diadem - of beauty instead of ashes, the oil of joy for mourning, the garment of praise for heavy, burdened and failing spirit; that they may be called oaks of righteousness, lofty, strong, magnificent, distinguished for uprightness, justice and right standing with God, the planting of the Lord that He may be glorified. And they shall rebuild the ancient ruins and raise up the former desolations and renew the ruined cities, the devastations of many generations.

Verses 1-3 show us what God planned to do in each of our lives. He knows we have all the problems listed. This is a mighty job and God can only accomplish this job if we cooperate with Him. This cooperation means we will have to read, study and discipline ourselves to obey His Word (I Pet. 1:4-9). After Byron's death, each of us had our own personal struggle. I could not see how I would ever have any joy again except being joyful over my salvation.

Verse 4 tells us what we will be able to do if we allow verses 1-3 to take place in our lives.

I thought, "God, that's a very big job You've got in me". Phil. 1:6 gave me the answer. He will complete the job if I cooperate with Him.

Sometimes I find myself and others fulfilling Jer. 6:16. The Lord said, Stand by the roads and look and ask for the eternal paths, where is the good, old way; then walk in it, and you will find rest for your soul. But they said, 'We will not walk in it'. Does this sound like you? Young people today, as well as old, say "No" to God.

Matthew 11:28-29, Come to Me, all you who labor and are heavy-laden and over burdened, and I will cause you to rest. I will ease and refresh and relieve your souls. Take my yoke upon you, and learn of Me; for I am gentle (meek) and humble (lowly) in heart and you shall find rest for your souls - relief, ease, refreshment and recreation and blessed quiet. Verse 29 has the key - we are to do the taking of the yoke.

What is the yoke? Taking time to learn what God said to do and doing it. Sounds easy? Try it! Learning and doing require great determination and discipline. It sounds paradoxical that in discipline and obedience you'll find your greatest freedom. Everyone thinks if they throw off the

yoke they'll be free. Let's use a classic - the young lady or man who throws off God's advice to be chaste (sexually inactive) until married and remain faithful to mate to death. He or she thinks they are free of old moral restraints only to find sexual diseases aplenty and a life of agony.

Matt. 11:30, For My yoke is wholesome (useful and good) not harsh, hard, sharp and pressing, but comfortable, gracious and pleasant; My burden is light and easy to be borne. Really obeying God is easier than carrying the load of sin.

Example - A friend of my dad's, while in service, enjoyed many female friends and got sexuallytransmitted diseases several times. Each time his disease was cured by penicillin. He figured he beat the odds, found a wonderful girl and got married. In a few years they had a sweet, beautiful baby girl. The baby had syphilis and died in about one year. Next baby is a beautiful girl again; at three years old she's fine. He's making a fortune as a hotel baker. He still thinks, "This time we made it." But alas, at seven years this child starts going blind and takes ten years to die. I worked for this man in his bakery for two years. He cried all day everyday. There was no help for his pain. He did not find healing for his girls.

Today one of our greatest problems as individuals and as a nation is our heavy, over-burdened lives. Before I ever knew there was deliverance and hope, I thought, "God, You surely must be kidding."

But after my first deliverance, I was able to understand a lot better what God was saying. We can lead a peaceful, contented life mentally as well as spiritually. The soul contains your mind, will and emotions. Sometimes in the King James version these words are used interchangeably.

When you have demons in your soul, you think this is surely an unkeepable promise or pie in the sky bye and bye. Please read Phil. 4:7-9, test your inner emotions, actions and will against the scriptures, and see if you score very well. Rejoice in the Lord, Always? Do you see your unselfishness and consideration? Do you ever fret or be anxious? Always in everything give thanks to God? Show God's Peace? Think only on things true, just, pure, kind, lovely, excellent, etc.? Do you fix your mind by force, if need be, on the above? Now verse 7 always eluded me. I always looked for someone who had God's peace, the peace of mind which passeth all understanding. Mostly I found people worse off than me.

In Gal. 5:22 and I Pet. 5:10, I found that the work of the Holy Spirit in me should have accomplished love, joy, peace, patience (an even temper), kindness and goodness, faithfulness, meekness, humility, gentleness, self-control, self-restraint and continence but it had not done so yet.

I became fearful that I was not saved even though I had received the Baptism of the Holy Spirit two years before. Not only was I in trouble but also my husband and daughter. Each of us wondered, I'm sure, why the others didn't do better while minimizing our own shortcomings.

Two years of frustrations and prayers paid off one night when God showed us about evil spirits. We began to learn then and it hasn't stopped yet.

So I want to share a few things with you that we have observed during deliverance sessions about ourselves and others that may help you.

TRAUMA

All people who have ever lived on this earth will at one time or another encounter an earth shaking event from which their lives will never be the same again. When we refuse to face it honestly, we can enter into mental or emotional fantasy.

My first, I suppose, was ten years of child beatings at the hands of my mom and sometimes my dad. I used the psychosis of denial to repress these beatings so that I do not remember them very well. At ten years of age, our daughter saw the death of the brother she loved more than anyone else. She also developed and used some forms of denial. The denial was only recently faced up to and its power broken. She now feels so free and happy, the first time in thirteen years (facing up with no pretense = freedom).

Most of us use some form of denial to help us adjust to this trauma. We simply deny it, build withdrawn fantasy lives that do not deal with the real world we face. This is a childish way to adjust to trouble. Unless the people around us understand what is happening to us, know God's solution and are willing to practice it, we may spend a lifetime in a troubled state of mind. Sometimes we will be only mildly troubled but sometimes it may grow to a neurosis or psychosis.

When we refuse to deal honestly with life or have unrealistic expectations of an easy life with no problems or sadness, refuse to be responsible for our action, we make lies our refuge (Isa. 28:15). And God will send you strong delusions (II Thes. 2:11). In our humanity we often resort to lives of fantasy when faced with trauma which cuts us to our core. In Psalm 51:6, God desires truth in our inner parts. In John 8:32, the truth sets us free. s

DEFINITIONS

Soul - mind, will and emotion - your personality.

Will - the power of choice and deliberate action or intention resulting from exercising this power.

Emotion - a physical or mental response to happenings. It may be a change in feeling, behavior or internal excitement with both superficial (mild) or deep (extremely strong) phenomena being elicited.

Mind - the thinking and perceiving part of consciousness, intellect, reason.

Trauma - a severe, sudden shock that has a permanent effect upon the personality.

Neurotic - a maladjustive form of an adjustment mechanism. Neurotics do not adjust normally to trauma.

Psychosis - a mental or personality disorder, more severe than a neurosis, having unrealistic behavior that often is so dangerous that a person must be institutionalized.

Psychopath - a person with an imperfect or nonexistent understanding of morality, and consequent antisocial conduct. In short, a psychopathic personality has absolutely no moral scruples - no conscience.

Personality Impairment - falls into three separate categories: neurosis, psychotic and psychopathic. Each is separate yet sometimes overlap. A person may have problems in only one area or some in each area.

Neurosis is the milder form of abnormal reaction to trauma. It is an inability to deal with traumatic experiences in a mature way and almost always has roots in childhood.

Sexual, emotional or physical abuse, neglect, too much attention or too little attention, unrealistic expectations from parents, death and traumatic accident are only a few things that accelerate a small problem into a larger one.

Neurosis is evident when a function of the personality escapes conscious control: groundless fears, uncontrollable ideas, disturbing behavior patterns, loss of control of body parts and disability of involuntary organs where no medical or physical reason can be found.

A common symptom is groundless fear or anxiety. We're not talking about normal anxiety or fear when there is immediate danger, but a constant reign of fear. Worry is mild but continuous fear; panic is extra - intense fear.

Reality - Our world is full of dangers but God has promised to protect us and never leave us (Psalm 116:15). Precious in the sight of God is the death of His saints. The Living Bible says He is present at accidents. In Hebrews 13:5, He will never, never, never leave us. When hard times come, God doesn't get scared and run from us. Many of the hard times or traumatic experiences can be used by God, with our cooperation, to refine us and make us strong.

Death Wish, Neurasthenia, Accident Prone - these are people who have a strong sense of guilt and feel the need to be punished.

Fearing and fantasizing (denial), and fearing what may happen and usually doesn't wastes mental power and capacity.

Panic with no cause or an imaginary cause is a sure sign of neurosis. We panic about fear of *death, fear of death of loved one, pain, serious illness and permanent injury. Bodily signs of panic are heart palpitations, rapid pulse, sweaty hands and/or feet, rapid breathing, perspiring and dizziness. Anxiety may be caused by memory of pain caused by failure, rejection, cruelty and being projected to future events.

Some common phobias are fear of falling from high places (bathoohobia), being confined (claustrophobia), of corpse (necrophobia), and fear of open spaces (agoraphobia).

Phobias are unreasonable fear such as fears of snakes, mice, spiders, heights, darkness, sex, leaving home and driving after an accident. When these interfere with normal life they become a neurosis.

Obsessions - a conscious idea or device recognized as being irrational such as a desire to rape, exposure, prostitution, murder, hurt, drunkenness, drugs, peeping toms, homosexuality, gluttony, etc. An obsessive neurotic does not approve of his desire but cannot get rid of it.

Kleptomania - desiring to steal even when you can pay.

Compulsions - Attempts of the obsessive to hide or counteract the obsession; as a person who fantasizes about homosexuality but goes to great lengths to show how he hates it. If desiring to kill someone, he may go to great lengths to show he loves them. Excessive hand washing is fear of getting germs. Extreme spotless housekeeping sometimes masks a dislike for the family being cozy or comfortable. Lust is hidden by unusually strong attempts to show he does not lust. desiring to steal even when you can

Mania - committing acts against your conscious will, like stealing, fire setting, assault, rape and rage. When not doing these things, they seem normal.

Sleepwalking - desire to do something impulsive that he may be ashamed to do when awake.

Amnesia - intense desire to forget something dreadful.

Hysteria - condition of people wishing desperately to avoid a distressing situation. Blindness with no physical or medical reason, paralysis and convulsions can result also from repressed emotions or motives. These symptoms satisfy the person.

Hypochrondriac - behavior of one who uses illness to keep from doing something he doesn't want to do; to avoid confrontation. Example - wife gets a headache every time husband gets romantic.

Neurotic Depression or Melancholia - a person sad for no reason or sorrows for an abnormally long time. Melancholia is prolonged grief and finding comfort in it.

LIST OF NEUROTIC PERSONALITY DEMONS AND CHARACTERISTICS

Bind all demons that we or our ancestors have given power to control our minds. Bind all demons of the occult, cults, drugs, rock music, sexual sins, occult games, etc. (II Cor. 6:14-18; 10:3-6; Eph. 6:11-18). Loose the Seven-Fold Spirit of God: Wisdom, Understanding, Counsel, Might, Knowledge of God, Reverence to God and Obedient Fear of God (Isa. 11:2). In the Name of Jesus, we loose ourselves from your control. We will have victory over you (Eph. 3:16-19).

Anxiety

Continuous Fear Fear of Future Trouble Fear of Dying Fear of Going Crazy Fear of Serious Illness Fear of Change Fear of Rejection Worry Panic

Compulsions

Over inhibited

- Over conscientious Rigid Chronic Tension
- Kleptomania and Other Manias Stealing/Shoplifting Neurotic Kleptomania Glove Anesthesia Repressed Fear Resentment of Rejection Criminal

Disassociated Personalities

Split Personality Sleep Walking Fugue Flight Amnesia Anxiety of Conflict

Psychosomatic Medicine

Psychotherapy

Release Therapy Psychodrama Group Therapy Interview Therapy Free Word Association

Traumatic Neurosis

Trauma Unsuccessful Adjustments **Childish Reactions** Success - Boasting Failure - Denial Inordinate Desire For Praise, Attention and Satisfaction **True Motive Denial** Fantasy **Primitive Aggression Demonic Domination** Inability to Handle Frustration Blind Rage Unreasonableness Irritable Temperamental Unthinking Uncaring Ungrateful Hostility Cruelty **Suspicious** Unable to Trust Delinquency Rebellious Homosexuality Self-Gratification Spoiled Brat Withdrawal/Flight

Retrogression Regression Jealousy Dependence Passive Bed-wetting Thumb Sucking **Tantrums** Homesickness Panic Hysterical Don't Care Attitude Sour Grapes Detachment **Unjustified Elation Unjustified Depress!** Irresponsible

Acting Superior Paranoia Compensation Rationalization Bullying Sadism

Repressed Emotional Excitement

Shameful Desires Wrong Motives Repressed Frustration Obsessive Irrational Idea or Desire (Homosexuality) Prejudices Indecent or Criminal Acts

Compulsive/Obsessive

Extremes - Orderly/Sloppy Extremes - Generous/Stingy Extremes - Courteous/Discourteous Extremes - Kind/Cruel Ritualistic

Hysteria

Hysterical Paralysis Glove Anesthesia Stupidity Convulsions Neurasthenia Death Wish or Wish to Stop Functioning Continuous Fatigue Diseases Colitis Asthma Hives High Blood Pressure Migraine Headaches Impotence and Frigidity

Phobias (Fears Of)

Bathoohobia: Falling From High Places Claustrophobia: Tight Places Necrophobia: Fear of the Dead Agoraphobia: Fear of Open Space Photophobia: Fear of Bright Light Snakes, People and Many Others

7. THE DELINQUENT PERSONALITIES (PSYCHOPSYCHOSIS)

GENERAL

Gene and I have come to believe that a lot of delinquency is the result of homes out of divine order. Neglect or hate for the children and abuse of children hardens their hearts and leaves a child unable to enter society and fulfill his divine purpose.

When people are hurt and do not completely forgive, they let Satan's demons minister to them, and build a demonic personality in their mind and body. This personality is not normal and it usually is not pleasant.

It is healing to the body and mind to completely forgive - holding nothing back. When you have nothing against others, the next step is to forgive yourself completely.

Then, with obedience to the Biblical principles, you can build a healthy mind. It will not be easy but it will be the most exciting thing you will ever do. One common ingredient in all delinquent personalities is the almost total lack of Godly principles

What is the root cause of most personality problems? In the people we have worked with, it has originated with a very serious rejection. The ultimate rejection is the murder of the unborn. An attempted abortion which failed or nine months of the parents wishing you would die before or at birth. You may think these things do not effect people but they do. As a result of not being wanted, a person will spend a life time trying every means he can think of to get people to accept him. If he cannot get a feeling of acceptance, he will become increasingly more removed from normalcy. Becoming more bitter, he will eventually rebel against all authority.

Children who are betrayed through abuse can hardly trust anyone - even God. They cannot comprehend true love, therefore they cannot accept nor comprehend the love of Jesus. They cannot understand abiding help, therefore they cannot understand the work of the Holy Spirit. God does not promise a life without pain or loss but He shows us how to respond to all parts of our life. Read Hebrews 12 and don't neglect to read the last half.

Most crimes against people and property are committed by people suffering from manias. Theft, arson, rape, assault, murder are some of the acts that neurotics commit. Some crimes are committed by retarded people.

Professional criminals usually have rejected all or part of social ethics. These are usually burglars, robbers, confidence men, racketeers, gangsters and killers. Sometimes they desire to be caught and punished because this relieves repressed guilt feelings. Those criminals who feel no guilt or remorse over their acts are psychopathic personalities and will be discussed later.

Now we'll study psychotic behavior. As you will see in many cases, the same problem exists as in neuroses but to a greater degree.

In society, consistent, serious and inappropriate disobedience of the written and unwritten laws is considered a sign of abnormal behavior. II Tim. 3:1-5 lists abnormal behavior from God's point of view.

ORGANIC PSYCHOSIS

There are many causes of organic psychosis: inborn brain defects, brain infections, intoxication, head injuries, circulation disorders, seizures, bodily changes of growth and aging, tumors or cancers, and unknown physical causes. Each of these conditions can alter behavior so severely that it appears irrational and prevents adjustments. God can heal any of these disorders.

General Paresis is due to syphilitic damage to the brain; it causes indifference to neatness, punctuality and normal interests. Person becomes irritable or overly sentimental. Efficiency, memory, energy and intellect declines. Speech becomes slurred. If not treated, degeneration ends in death.

Alcoholic and Drug Reactions - Alcohol and drugs are used to relieve anxiety and guilt feelings, and to suppress hurtful emotions. Alcohol and drugs relieve the tensions by depressing the nervous system starting in the brain; behavior is regressive. The more drugs or drinks taken, the more immature the person becomes.

Alcohol and drugs do nothing to solve problems. At the drunken stage, he is psychotic. Without salvation and deliverance, the alcoholic has little hope of cure. His descent is continually downward until death takes him.

PSYCHOTIC BEHAVIOR

Psychotic behavior may be thought of as a last ditch effort of the mind to deal with the anxiety aroused by emotion or mental (psychic) shocks. A psychotic can not deal with anxiety and his symptoms serve to help him escape the shock.

If a person accepts this behavioral pattern, finds comfort in it and has no desire to change somewhere along the way, a demon can come in. Then he feels he can not change and usually will not cooperate with those who would help

Psychotic depression is expressed three ways: emotionally, physically and intellectually.

Emotionally: A severely depressed person feels overwhelmingly sad, hopeless, worthless and helpless. They also have fears of catastrophe, complete discouragement and will give up in the face of problems. Physically: They may claim physical problems they don't really have (hypo-chondriac). Intellectually: They will try to make it look like they are unable to learn. They will choose to live on a level below their abilities.

In middle age people are sometimes shocked by the realization that they are mortal, have less energy and sometimes are ill. They have regrets for past failures and a wasted life with fear of future and death. As a boy or girl disappointed in love sometimes seems to enjoy the misery, so do these people. Sometimes this ends in suicide.

Manic depressive has alternating episodes of great depression, anger or great elation. Sometimes only one symptom is present or they may vacillate between symptoms.

Psychotic mania - an extremely outgoing person, talks excessively and loudly, laughs, shouts, mind flits from thing to thing, ignores chaste moral conduct, may be sexually promiscuous and is a rebel.

Schizophrenia - a split mind (James 1:4-6). This person has periods of inconsistency and is undependable, ignores reality and reacts largely to their hallucinations. Thinks only their ideas are the right ones. They are often apathetic (loose interest in living). They deny reality, disregarding the reality they see. Their emotions are withdrawn from reality into fantasy and they do not care to relate or communicate with friends or family. Talks only of his fantasies. Schizophrenia sometimes is helped along by this common trait of people. We tend, especially when young, to ignore the truly important things and expend great energy on unimportant things.

Many become prostitutes, druggies or boozers, bums, delinquents, wanderers and thieves. They are indifferent to pain or the pain they cause, and blame others for all shortcomings.

Acute Schizophrenic Panic - sudden panic, non-stopping, resulting in nervous breakdown

Catatonic Schizophrenia - hostile to society and selves. It is shown two ways: total withdrawal, sitting in stupor, or excessive aggression. In catatonic state, the person is keenly observing everything. If a catatonic shifts to extreme excited stage, the underlying hostility may force him to kill. Sometimes at this time they have superhuman (demonic) strength.

Hebephrenic Schizophrenia - a youthful mind. Often seen in people trying to take back babyish or childish ways. Symptoms are silliness, disassociated emotions, peculiar delusions, hallucinations, making meaningless grimaces or gestures, and inability to communicate. This behavior reflects a complete break with human concepts of conduct and substitution of a fantasy reality.

Paranoid Schizophrenic has also disordered emotions and thinking with delusions of persecutions or grandeur. His delusions help him hide the source of the problem and deny any responsibility for failure. When competition threatens, delusions of persecution are used to deny failure or frustration.

Paranoias grow out of childish adjustments to unpleasant reality. He will apply intelligence and energy to perfecting a hypothesis that is factually false but emotionally true. He is unwilling to ,test his emotionally true conclusion objectively or look at it logically. Paranoiacs often strive excessively for success or leadership and suffer greatly mentally if they fail.

Tranquilizing drugs - many times we are working with a schizophrenic person and the demon will give his name. It will be the name of one of the tranquilizing drugs. The demons claim to let the person appear relieved of some symptoms as long as they get the drug.

LIST OF DELINQUENT PERSONALITY DEMONS AND CHARACTERISTICS

The Organic Psychosis (Physical)Kinds and Causes: Inborn Brain Defects Brain Infections Intoxication Head Injuries Circulation Disorders Seizures Bodily Changes of Growth & Aging Tumors or Cancers Unknown Physical Causes General Paresis - Syphilitic Damage Alcoholic Reactions: Regression Pathological Intoxication Acute Alcoholic Hallucinations Delirium Tremors Korsakoff's Syndrome Blackouts Alcohol/Drug Addiction Senile Dementia Symptoms: Release Interference: Amnesia Dementia Aphasia Compensation: Avoids Replaces Repeats Manic Depressive Maniacal Wild Elation Depression **Distorted Perverted Values** Psychotic Mania Excessive: Talking Outgoingness Laughing Shouting Artificial Joy Flitting Mind Spend Thrift Hypomaniac Flouting Restraints Sexual Problems Accompanying Psychotic Mania: Promiscuous Arrogant Bold **Exhibitionistic Denial** Simple Schizophrenia Vagabonds Prostitutes Delinquents Wanderers Unsettled & Undependable Stealing Indifferent Filthy Dangerous Disgrace Acute Schizophrenia Panic Agitated Nervous Breakdown Hebephrenic Schizophrenia Crazy Fool Silliness **Disassociated Emotions** Peculiar Delusions & Hallucinations Grimaces

Gestures Fantasy Insane Symbolism Tranquilizing Drugs Chlordiazepoxide - Librium Chorpromazine - Thorazine Diazepam - Valium Meprobamate - Miltown & Equanil Promazine - Saparine Reserpine - Serpasil Street Drugs / Rock Music Side Effects of Drugs: Jaundice Nausea Rashes Severe Mental Depression Suicidal Tendencies Psychological Discord Anxiety - Escape Behavior Psychic Shocks: Death Deceived Divorce Hate Rejection Terror Fears of Catastrophe Depressed Nervous System **Psychotic Depression** In Emotions, Physical, Intellectual: Discouragement (Devil's D's) Worthless Hopeless Fantasy Introvert Stupor Involutional Melancholia Regret of Past Fear of Future Fear of Change Death Wish Fear of Death Suicide Despair Sexual Impotence Despondent Change of Life Stress Male/Female Guilt Uselessness Irritable Restless Headaches

Heart Palpitations Dizziness Sleepiness Forgetfulness Depression Regret Schizophrenia Double Minded Split Minded No Communication Detachment Fantasy Indifference Inconsistency Unreality **Emotional Disorders** Excitement Exaggeration Hallucinations Dementia Praecox Apathetic Vain Imaginations **Denying Reality** False Perceptions Delusions False Beliefs Withdrawal Catatonic Schizophrenia Indifference Hostile Childish Negativism Temper Tantrums Killing Sheer Aggressive Energy Superhuman Demonic Strength Regression Paranoid Schizophrenia Disordered Emotion Delusion of Persecution Delusion of Grandeur Anxiety Guilt **Deep Fear Frustration** Fear of Homosexuality Fears of Failure Fear of Competition Persuasive Delusional System

8. THE PATHOLOGIC PERSONALITY (PSYCHOPATHIC)

DEFINITIONS

The psychopathic personality is characterized by disequilibrate and gross errors in judgement. It is egocentric, disdains Bible, country and people, and has no natural affection for family members. When opposed, will vacillate between big bully attitude, and quaking and cringing.

The so-called successful type will use high-powered domination tactics to get money, success or way; will do anything for selfish gain.

Why do people develop this way? We have seen two main reasons: 1. The sins of their forefathers which have placed curses on them. The effect of these curses will cause people to develop ways of thinking and behavior that will allow the demons to control them. 2. The treatment given them by parents; such as improper love, discipline, teaching and example. Rejection is the root of many of the personality problems in people.

The emotionally unstable personality, the compulsive personality, homosexuality and other pathological sexual deviates are in the group called psychopathic.

The emotionally unstable people overreact to minor stress. All relationships are emotional because of his hostility, guilt, rejection, bitterness, rebellion and anxiety. These people go to great extremes to get their way; having gotten it, they will still not be grateful or satisfied.

The Passive-Aggressive Personality - Reactions in this group are of three varieties. All three occur frequently and interchangeably in the same person. In all these groups the central aim is to control others which is witchcraft. Jezebel and Ahab are in this group.

The Passive-Dependent Type is helpless, indecisive, dependent and sometimes called a clinging vine. Winning, procrastination and trying to push someone else to do for them. They wait forever for you to do it for them. The velvet-gloved Jezebel and sweet, smiling, lazy Ahab are in this group.

The Passive-Aggressive Type reacts to life with passive measures that have an aggressive tinge, such as pouting, stubbornness, procrastination, inefficiency and obstructionism (typical - chronic objector). This one will take strong measures to get you to do his bidding.

The Aggressive Type reacts to frustration with irritability, temper tantrums and destructive behavior. Has a morbid or pathological resentment. This person is deeply dependent on others but deceives himself believing he is not. This group contains all parents who bully their children instead of teaching them. Rapists are in this group.

The Compulsive Personality - These people are characterized by chronic, frenzied, excessive concern with perfection. They are overly inhibited, over conscientious and may have an abnormal capacity for work. They cannot relax: work-a-holic, etc.; driven by fears of failure.

Homosexuality - A common spur to homosexuality seems to be drugs and alcoholism. We have found the most common reason is the Ahab and Jezebel home. Families with parents out of order create great tensions and instability. It is hard for children to mature properly in such an immature situation. Early homosexual seduction is a strong influence. Phallus-over-evaluation can stem from old Baal worship. We have seen a few homosexuals delivered.

Ambisexual Types have the same profile as above but repress their homosexuality for looks sake. Some raise families and move among normal people while practicing homosexuality.

Perverted - people not normal in sexual life who engage in perverted sex as normal.

Voyeurism - seeking sexual gratification by watching others in sexual activities (Peeping Toms).

Fetishism - An inanimate object is the love object (a blanket, stocking, glove, shoe, etc.). Even any part of the body may be a source of erotic stimulation.

Flagellation - whipping (sadism) or allowing oneself to be whipped (masochism) for sexual excitement.

Oral Sex, Anal Sex and Bestiality are closely related. Buggery and sodomy; all are sodomy.

Exposure is a mild form of perversion: dirty old man image.

Crimes committed by psychopaths are often very gruesome, horrible and senseless. Most of these crimes have a motivation for deviate sex. Mass murderers and snipers are in this group.

Sociopath - An abnormal attitude toward society, refusing to conform to the culture. For Christian, a refusal to conform to God's direction about living within society. There are two forms.

Antisocial Reaction - A person always in trouble who does not profit from punishment or experience; has no genuine loyalties to any person (Absalom). He is callous and hedonistic, shows emotional immaturity, no sense of responsibility, has poor judgement, and tries to rationalize his behavior (hoboes, draft dodger, radical).

Dyssocial Reaction - A psychopath with antisocial and immoral trends. This person has usually experienced some or all of these common frustrations: disordered home life, unstable parents or catastrophic childhood frustrations creating an intense hostility to authority.

These are some of the usual causes. These things go on generation after generation, and have a snowballing effect. Popularizing crime, disintegration of old-fashioned wholesome home life, lowering moral standards, lax disciplinary measures, indifference to religion, and extremes in progressive education are some of the causes.

By and large the best solution is for people to return to God's directions for family, personal and social life. As we have gone through these subjects, I'm sure scriptures have come to your mind which offer the correct solution to each problem. Study some Bible characters such as King Saul, Absalom, Ahab and Jezebel to see that human nature hasn't changed.

For contrast, see Abraham, Hannah, King David, Isaiah and Daniel to see that good human nature also has not changed. While none of these men and women were perfect, all had repentant and obedient hearts.

RESTORATION

If you are in this group actively or if you fantasize about these things, you may have had childhood frustrations or broken home, etc. Now is the time to ask God to begin restoration. Maybe you have repressed the memory as I did. If so, forgive anyone who treated you in such a manner to bring you into this type of bondage. If you remember the activity and people, forgive each person. Ask God to forgive you for keeping these things alive in your life. Declare all out war on the demons which have lived in your life and mind so long. You may need to ask others to forgive you for the hurt you've caused them. Ask God to help them to overcome your hurting and neglecting to teach them correctly. Remember the gates of hell shall not prevail against you, if you persevere. Break all soul ties to anyone you have been connected with in any of these things: broken homes, divorced husbands or wives, or any sex partner besides legitimate mate. Break all bonds of demonic domination coming to you and going from you. Remember you have made this vow to God not to any person on earth.

Matt. 11:29, If we take God's yoke upon us and learn of Him and obey his precepts, we will enter His rest.

Luke 21:34, But take heed to yourselves and be on your guard lest your hearts be overburdened and depressed - weighted down - with the giddiness and headache and nausea of self-indulgence, drunkenness, and worldly worries and cares pertaining to (the business of) this life, and that day come upon you suddenly like a trap or a noose.

You might like to pray something like this: "Father in Heaven I come to You now in Jesus' name. I have forgiven all who have mistreated me in any way and I have broken all evil soul ties. If I have missed anything that I need to pray about, please bring it to my memory. I have read in Luke 10:19, Behold I give you authority and power to trample upon serpents and scorpions and physical and mental strength and ability over all the power that the enemy possesses, and nothing shall in any way harm you. Nevertheless do not rejoice at this, that the spirits are subject to you but rejoice that your names are written or enrolled in Heaven. I take the authority You have given me in Jesus' name.

Father, You have given us the keys Co Your kingdom -binding and loosing. We now bind all evil authorities, powers, rulers, princes and dominions that have had control over us and our families in the name of Jesus Christ. In His name we loose them from us . Father, we ask You to send Your Seven-Fold Spirit and the ministering spirits of God to help in this battle. We break all the curses that are on us from the sins of our forefathers. (If you know their sins, name them now.) Father, I thank You for all You have provided for me. Thank You, Lord Jesus, for dying for my sins and giving me power over all the power of the enemy in Your name. Amen."

Ephesians and James are extremely good books to aid you in living in the nasty now and now. These scriptures will help you maintain your deliverance. Study them carefully after deliverance and follow the direction given.

Psychopathic Personality	Spend Thrift	Compulsive Personality:
Emotional Disequilibrium	When Failure Comes:	Over inhibited
Gross Errors in Judgment	Self-Pity	Over conscientious
Egocentric Disdain for Love	Munching on Friends Hard	Chronic, Excessive, Obsessive
Scoffers at Bible and God	Luck Guys	Concerns
Sneers	Blaming Others - Not Respon-	Work-a-holic
No Human Affection	sible	Rigid
Unheeding	Cringing Fear	Tense
No Understanding	Quaking	Neurotic Illness

LIST OF PATHOLOGIC DEMONS AND CHARACTERISTICS

Extreme Selfishness	Sniveling	Regression From Maturity
Paranoid	Sinvering	Regression From Maturity
	Emotionally Unstable Dan	Dessive Type
Stutters No Fair Plan	Emotionally Unstable Per-	Passive Type:
NO Fall Plan	sonality Passive-Aggressive	Helplessness
	Type	Indecisiveness
Materially Successful: Psy-	Passive With Aggressiveness	Clinging Vine
chopathic High Pressure At-	Pouting	
tempts to Dominate Gambling	Stubbornness	Aggressive Type:
Harlotry	Procrastination	Frustrated
	Inefficiency	Irritable
	Obstructionism	Temper Tantrums
	Chronic Objector	Destructive
		Trying To Dominate
		Hidden Dependency
Homosexuality Male:	Sexual Deviation:	Antisocial Reaction
Cosmeticized	Alcoholism, Drugs, Crime,	(Sociopathy)
Effeminate	Rebellion	Chronic Antisocial
Sissified	Voyeurism	Stoic
Sissilied		
Female - Lesbian:	Peeping Toms Girlie Shows	Disloyal Callous
Gruff	Movies	Hedonistic
	WIOVIES	
Swaggering	Dedenastru	Emotional Immaturity
Aggressive Masculine	Pederasty: Anal Sex	Can't Learn From Experience Or Punishment
Wascume		
Comonali	Buggery	Irresponsible
General:	Sodomy	Poor Judgment Rationalization
Emotionally Unstable	Bestiality	Radical
Sexually Confused	Fetishism:	
Alcoholism, Drugs, Rock Mu-		Shirks Duties
sic	Inanimate Sex Object	Durganial Baaction
Ahab and Jezebel Home	Body Erotic Stimulation	Dyssocial Reaction
Over attachment to Mother or Father	Elegallation	(Sociopathy)
Father Unusual Hate for Mother or	Flagellation:	Disregard for Social Codes
Father	Whipping (sadism) - Desire to	Repeated Conflict Unstable
Overvaluation of Genital	inflict pain Masochism - Desire to Re-	
Stimuli	ceive Pain	Hostile to Authority Criminal Mind
Fear of Father or Mother		
	Follotic and Countiling and	Anti-Religion
Jealousy of Sibling Homosexual Seduction	Fellatio and Cunnilingus:	Catastrophic Childhood Frustrations
	Oral Sex	
Masturbation	E-m agrees	Juvenile Delinquency
Abnormal Erotic Interest	Exposure:	Demon Sympathetic to Crime
	Senile Distri Old Mar	Low Moral Standards
	Dirty Old Man	Pains of Broken Family

9. AN ATTITUDE OF GRATITUDE, A SURE CURE FOR DEPRESSION

LIST OF SCRIPTURES

Ezra 3:10-13;	Account of triumph and joy at the 6:16-22 destruction of idol worship and
	renewed worship of God.
Pro. 4:23	Guard your heart - life flows from it.
Matt. 12:35-36	You are what flows out of you.
Pro. 18:21	Death and life are in your tongue - watch it, man!
Pro. 12:25	Anxiety - heavy heart, encouragement, help.
Joshua 1:8	Formula for good success.
Phil. 4:8	Think on these things.
Col. 3:16	Let Christ's words live in you.
Mark 11:23	Have what you believe and say.
Psa. 50:23	Order your conversation rightly; if you say with your lips "yea", but in
	your heart "nay", you just cancelled!
2 Tim. 3:2	Ungrateful is high on the list of signs of the end times in personal life. God
	told me, "Earline, have an 'attitude of gratitude'".

WALLS BETWEEN PEOPLE

How can you help yourself and your family members get and keep deliverance? After my deliverance, I was praying and asking God what had happened to the closeness our family always had. I saw a large brick wall. This wall was constructed in such a manner that it kept us from seeing each other and understanding each other. Each of us had placed bricks in the wall. Because I had asked to understand, one brick called "no understanding" had come out of the wall. I saw names on all the other bricks facing me and I realized these were the names of the things I had done intentionally and unintentionally that had placed invisible barriers between my family members and myself. I repented for my part in building the wall and prayed to obtain knowledge to remove the other bricks I had put in the wall. As I began to remove my bricks, the others began to remove theirs.

We found that, in trying to protect ourselves from being hurt, we had placed invisible barriers around ourselves and cut the other person off from us. I have observed that some ladies sit in the deliverance meetings like knots on a log but up in the ladies meeting they don't. Why do you act differently in the large meetings when your husband and children are present? Don't look so smug fellows, because I believe you are doing the same thing. We do this because we are unable to feel the need of the other family members and share their desire to be free. We have become hateful, gotten behind our wall and do not feel the pain nor desire they have to be free. We're too centered on ourselves. Don't be like the husband who told his wife during deliverance, "You'll never overcome this one." Instead of beating each other down, try helping.

You may need to spend time in prayer and fasting to obtain the information you need to help. In Isa. 58:3-6, vs. 6, (Rather,) is this not the fast I have chosen: to loose the bands of wickedness, to undo the bands of the yoke, to let the oppressed go free, and that you break every (enslaving) yoke? See also Acts 8:23. Study these Scriptures and you will see that bitterness enslaves those who give it, those to whom it is aimed and then all those around them. Bitterness is the result of rejection; if it is not destroyed, rebellion will set in.

Parents, if you have rebellious children, search out the place where you dealt them a deadly blow of rejection and undo it. Parents need to know that the demons are present at all times; they take every occasion given them to lie to the children about what you just said or did. If you tell your child by word or action that you do not have time for him right now, the demons will tell him you don't love him or you would like it better if he was not around. As soon as possible, talk with the child and explain why you could not take time at just that moment, and give quality time to him. I have found that children understand if you will just take time to communicate with them. Just as the bitterness has enslaved all of those around it, so all must be active in undoing its yoke. As we go through the teaching and the deliverance, think about your family members, not just yourself.

HOW DO YOU KEEP DEMONS OUT?

- 1. Begin to know your God. He is greater than you think. Study your Bible and use what you have learned. He keeps covenant with you.
- 2. As your understanding of God grows, your fear of demons will lessen.
- 3. Know your rights. When demons come to seek entry again, rebuke them in Jesus Christ's name. Immediately, say that you have a few things to tell them. A good place to start is the Lord's Supper, His Death, Resurrection and Ascension. Remind them that it was all done for you. They do not like to stay around to hear of your salvation, etc. Talk out loud when necessary.
- 4. Seek God to know where you may have given them the right to attack; correct your thinking or actions. REMEMBER, they want the right to try to re-enter you. They will try to get you to cooperate with them and give them the right to re-enter.
- 5. Continually rejoice that God loves you, Jesus did all this for you and the Holy Spirit is willing to live in you.

GENERAL

Sometimes to understand what something is, it is good to know what it is not. Let's consult Webster's Dictionary: Ingratitude - n., ungratefulness, lack of gratitude; adj., unthankful, unmindful, thankless. And what it is: Gratitude - n., thanks, thankfulness, appreciation, indebtedness; adj., to be beholding, indebted, in one's debt. "Thanks," "thanksgiving" and "thankful" are used 137 times in the Bible. If the ingredients of gratitude were counted, it would include praise, joy, rejoicing, etc. If all these were counted, the number of times "gratitude" appears in its many forms would be staggering.

My first encounter with God's "attitude about gratitude" came one day when I was doing a "duty" reading of the Bible. These verses, Deut. 28:47-48, seemed to jump out at me almost as though it were being thrown at me. I read it over and over. The Holy Spirit began to deal with me immediately. You see, I had just been complaining about my house (it was not big enough), my daughter (she was fighting and beating up all the boys in the neighborhood), and my husband (he wasn't giving me enough - you name it, I didn't think he was doing enough). After all, it's a little embarrassing to have your friends see that you only have three bedrooms, your daughter whips all the boys her age, and your husband suddenly has changed.

In II Cor. 10:5, we are told to bring all our thoughts into subjection to Jesus Christ. This means we have to control our thoughts. Isa. 55:8 tells us that God's thoughts are not ours. As I saw my thoughts as God looks at them, I didn't feel so holy anymore. The truth was getting through. I

was the one failing, more so than them. But most of all, I failed to be thankful to God for His blessings and provisions. As I was so thinking, I remembered that the Bible says I am the best reward Gene will have on earth (Ecc. 9:9, Living Bible). Question: What kind of reward are you, Ea-line? I was very grieved at my answer for I had made his life a grief to him in the past one and a half years.

Then, God reminded me that He supplieth all my needs. Since I was not thankful for them, He could remove all of them instantly. In my mind, I saw Gene and Marie as gone. That was enough, I didn't even get to possessions; I was much grieved. I repented as fast as I saw my mistakes and was cleansed. Then I began a study about gratitude to God. This is what I found:

1 Chron. 16:4,7-11	The first account of God's people (Levites) appointed to give praise and thanks to God continually.
2 Chron. 20:21,22	Shows praises go before the people for victory against overwhelming
Acts 16:25	odds. Says Paul and Silas were delivered out of prison after they continually
	sang praises to God.

Read these accounts for realization of the value of gratitude to God: Deut. 28:47-48, Amplified Bible, "Because you did not serve the Lord your God with joyfulness of mind and heart in gratitude for the abundance of all with which He both blessed you, therefore, you shall serve your enemies whom the Lord shall send against you, in hunger, in thirst, in nakedness, and in the want of all things: and He will put a yoke of iron upon your neck until He has destroyed you."

See James 4:7-8 and Hab. 3:17-18. The Devil does not flee from you because you have not submitted yourself to God. You should rejoice in your salvation even if all else fails.

It is very important to serve the Lord with joy; joy being a large part of gratitude: Eph. 5:20, Amplified Bible, "At all times and for everything giving thanks in the name of our Lord Jesus Christ to God the Father." I Thes. 5:18, "Thank God in everything no matter what the circumstances may be, be thankful and give thanks; for this is the will of God in Christ Jesus concerning you." Here thankfulness is emphasized by its double usage. Many times the entrance of demon activity may come about by so small a thing as ungratefulness. It was so for me.

Study these examples: Deut. 1:26-28, vs. 26 - brought rebellion against God; vs. 27 - punishment, discontentment with God, lying to self; and vs. 28 - cringing fear, ineptness, fear of failure. Romans 1:19-32; vs. 27 -knowing God yet not honoring or glorifying Him or giving thanks becomes futile, godless, vain, foolish, stupid; vs. 22 - claiming wisdom but becoming fools and simpletons; vs. 23 - worshipping demons; vs. 24 -God gave them up; and vs. 24-32 - a listing which is shocking in its reality of what happens to people who have known and recognized God but do not truly obey and have gratitude towards God.

In this account in Romans, we are treated to an example of how the Devil gradually draws us away from God until we reach a point where God gives us up. I have witnessed this in many Christian lives and Spirit-filled Christians as well. This trick or wile of the Devil is called gradualism. It is used on us in our spiritual life as well as our political and financial life. We have lost much of our personal freedom and purchasing power, not to mention our spiritual power by just this trick.

Joy, praise, gladness, thankfulness and reverence for God are all a part of gratitude. As soon as I began to be grateful in my mind and heart for all God's goodness to me, I felt joy, peace, praise, gladness, reverence and honor for God spring up inside of me. I began to look at each problem I faced with excitement. It's such an opportunity to watch God work. You will never escape the fact that you are in charge of your attitudes. Attitudes reside in the mind. You are in charge of that mind in your head (II Cor. 10:5). The way you allow your mind to think will eventually become YOU (Matt. 12:35-37)!

LIST OF DEMONS

Here are some demons you may recognize. They are partners with ingratitude. These are Godward (repentance is an absolute necessity):

Ingratitude to God	Thanklessness
Dishonor of God	Hatred Towards God
Rejection of God & His deal-	Anger Towards God
ings with you	

These are towards others (the	se need repentance also):
Punishment	Indecency
Discontent	Incest
Lying To Self	Loathsomeness
Cover-Up Lies	Unrighteousness
Cringing Fear	Iniquity
Ineptness	Guilt
Fear of Failure	Covetousness
Dishonor of Self	Grasping
Dishonor of Others	Greed
Futility	Malice
Foolish Reasonings	Envy
Stupid Speculations	Jealousy
Senseless Minds	Murder
Foolishness	Strife
Lack of Knowledge	Deceit
Lack of Wisdom	Treachery
Sexual Idolatry	Ill-will
Impurity	Cruel Ways
Homosexuality/	Secret Backbiting
(Male or Female)	Gossip
Slandering	Disobedient To Parents
Hateful to God	Ungrateful
Insolence	Boasters
Arrogance	Unholy

Boasting	Profane
Inventors of Evil	Callous and Inhuman
Undutiful To Parents	Relentless
Having No Understanding	Unforgiving
Without Conscience	Lacking Natural Affections
Faithlessness	Troublemakers
Heartlessness	False Accusers
Loneliness	Intemperate
Mercilessness	Loose Morals
Fantasy	Fierce
Poverty in Soul	Haters of Good
Poverty of Spirit	Treacherous
Poverty in Body	Betrayers
Want Lack Self-centeredness Insufficiency Rationalization Murmuring & Complaining Proud Abusive/Contemptuous Blasphemous Scoffers Arrogant & Contemptuous	Self-conceited Hypocrites Lovers of Sexual Pleasure and Vain Amusements Vain/Godless Imaginations Ungrateful to Husband, Wife and Children

10. HOW TO BE MISERABLE (Me, I and Mine You, Yours and Yourself)

GENERAL

- 1. Think only about yourself.
- 2. Talk only about yourself.
- 3. Use T" as often as possible.
- 4. Mirror yourself continually in the opinion of others.
- 5. Listen greedily to what others say about you.
- 6. You be suspicious of others.
- 7. You expect to always be appreciated by others.
- 8. You be jealous and sensitive of others.
- 9. You never forgive others.
- 10. Trust nobody but yourself.
- 11. You insist on consideration and respect by others.
- 12. You demand agreement with your own views.
- 13. Sulk if people are not grateful to you.
- 14. Never forget a service you have rendered.
- 15. Be on the lookout always for a good time for yourself.
- 16. Shirk your duties when you can.
- 17. You do as little for others as possible.
- 18. Love yourself supremely.

19. You always be selfish towards others.

Review the following list of names of demons that begin with "self" and see which ones apply to you; then do something about getting rid of these bad habits and/or demons! There are many other names that begin with "self" that are omitted. If you treat yourself any way that is contrary to the Holy Bible, it is demonic and you may receive demons by the name of that characteristic after you have practiced that bad habit for awhile!

NAMES OF DEMONS BEGINNING WITH "SELF"

Salf abhamina	Salf avagantian
Self-abhorring	Self-exaggeration
Self-abnegation Self-absorbed	Self-exalting
	Self-exposure
Self-absorption	Self-exulting
Self-abuse	Self-flattering
Self-accusation	Self-forgetfulness
Self-admiring	Self-hatred
Self-affrighted	Self-harming
Self-aggrandizement	Self-hood
Self-annihilation	Self-idolized
Self-applause	Self-ignorance
Self-appointed	Self-immolating
Self-approbation	Self-importance
Self-assumed	Self-indignation
Self-awareness	Self-indulging
Self-banished	Self-infliction
Self-baptizer	Self-interest
Self-begotten	Selfishness
Self-beguiled	Self-killed
Self-betrayal	Self-lauding
Self-blinded	Self-loathing
Self-centered	Self-loving
Self-collected	Self-made
Self-conceited	Self-neglecting
Self-concern	Self-oblivion
Self-condemnation	Self-opinionated
Self-condemning	Self-partiality
Self-conflict	Self-pity
Self-conscious	Self-pleasing
Self-consuming	Self-pollution
Self-contained	Self-preferences
Self-contempt	Self-pride
Self-contradiction	Self-repression
Self-criticism	Self-reproving
Self-crucifixion	Self-repulsive
Self-deceiving	Self-restriction
Self-deception	Self-reverence
1	

Self-deluded Self-delusion Self-depraved Self-depreciation Self-despair Self-despaise Self-destroying Self-destruction Self-disserving Self-devouring Self-devouring Self-diffidence Self-diffidence Self-diffusive Self-disparagement Self-disparagement Self-display Self-distrust Self-ease Self-ease	Self-righteousness Self-received Self-scorn Self-seduction Self-seeking Self-starved Self-subjugation Self-subjugation Self-subversive Self-suppression Self-suspended Self-suspicious Self-tormenting Self-torture Self-torturing Self-torturing Self-torturing Self-torturing Self-unforgiveness Self-willed Self-worshipper Self-wrong
Self-evolution	Sell-wrong
Self-display Self-distrust Self-ease Self-esteem	Self-unforgiveness Self-willed Self-worshipper

11. THE ART OF SELFISHNESS

SCRIPTURE REFERENCES

Gen. 3:1-24	Results of Adam and Eve's selfishness.
Ex. 20:1-17	Comprehensive list of Biblical principles.
2 Sam 6:14-23	David looses all sense of self in worship to God.
Isa. 11:2	Seven-fold Spirit of God.
Matt. 22:34-40	Two basic Biblical principles containing all of Ex. 20:1-17.
Mark 12:29-31	The Great Commandments.
James 3:14-18	Fruit of selfishness.
Gal. 5:16-26	Contrasting fruit of godly and ungodly spirits.
Heb. 5:5	Jesus did not exalt Himself; was exalted by God.
James 4:2-4	Seeking blessings is selfishness.
Jude	Concerning selfish leaders and Christians.
2 Cor. 10:12	Comparing yourself to others.
Rev. 2 and 3	Could it be that self-gratification is the underlying problem in these two chap-
	ters?

GENERAL

I guess this topic could be entitled "How To Teach The Art of Selfishness To Your Children" or "How You Learned To Be Selfish", but I think there is no need to dress it up. Let's just call it selfishness. I was reading II Tim. 3:1-7 one day and began to understand some errors of my manner of thinking and teaching my children. This chapter seems to contain the results of not heeding the instruction in Ex. 20.

Also, most of us have attended public school where we were subtly taught humanism. If you are over fifty years of age, the humanistic hold on your mind will not be as strong as with those who

are younger. The teaching of humanism in America's public schools is a perfect study of Satan's use of gradualism. As the years have gone by, it has increased in intensity until people are becoming utterly self-centered, lazy, looking for something to help them escape reality, someone to blame for their failures and dependent on government for those things they should be doing for themselves. Reading and heeding the teaching of the Bible seems like a fantasy to us. Therefore, we Christians find ourselves seeking a God who will take care of all our problems for us. We cannot understand that God has cut covenant with us and never cuts out on us. We are the ones who ask God to do both His part and ours. The Christian life requires a Christian to become deeply involved in correcting the problems in his own life, thereby learning to know God and himself and becoming strong in faith as he sees his obedience to the scriptures bringing corrections in his body, soul and spirit. Then his life will be a strength and encouragement to all people both saved and lost.

Humanism, humanitarianism: 1. the beliefs or actions of humanitarians. 2. In ethics (a) the doctrine that man's obligations are limited to the welfare of mankind (b) the doctrine that man may perfect his own nature without the aid of divine grace. 3. The doctrine that denies the divinity of Jesus Christ. As any person with any sense at all can see this assumption is a failure. Mankind is not getting better, only worse. If you think mankind is getting better as a group or as individuals, take off your blinders and look clearly at us.

This religion started with the first family in Genesis, We see it in action when Cain comes before God with his rebellious offering instead of following the instructions of God concerning repentance and worship. He brings the works of his own hands demanding God accept them. When God rebukes and rejects him, he plots the death of his brother who has obeyed God and been accepted. We in the church are still doing this.

A man can never be so good that God will have to accept him for his goodness alone without that man accepting God's way of salvation, repentance and worship. God is not obligated to receive our works in place of obedience to His Word. This is the basis of all false religions.

Selfishness in Worship - II Sam. 6:14-23

- 1. David danced with all his might before the Lord,
- 2. Israel was shouting and blowing the trumpets.
- 3. David was leaping and dancing before the Lord.
- 4. Michal despised David in her heart.
- 5. David said, "I will yet be more vile than this and I will be base in my own eyes."
- 6. Michal was childless until her death.
- 7. There is a lesson here for us. Let's dance, shout, blow the trumpet, leap and humble ourselves before God !

Because of self, we restrict our worship of the Lord. We must follow some preset way of behaving. Sometimes we despise those who really get into worship as David did. Look out, we may receive a sentence like Michal's.

Because spirits of self are very sneaky and try to trick and confuse us, pray something like this before you begin this study. We often, in moments of mock piety, ask God to sit on the throne of our life but do not consider what it will mean. Once I was carried away with fantasy and asked

God to sit on the throne of my life. His answer was, "It's a little crowded here; we cannot both sit here". We need to consider what this kind of prayer means and not ask such a thing unless we mean to make the changes that will be required of us.

"Father, I come to You now in the name of Jesus asking You to send the Seven-Fold Spirit of God upon me (Isa. 11:2) to help me to understand the selfishness in my life. I bind all self spirits from interfering with my understanding of my motives and actions. Give me wisdom to attack my problems. Grant me the ability to see my motives and actions as You do. Father, please for-give, cleanse, and instruct me in Your way. I repent of accepting humanism as a religion to live by. Father, help me to comprehend the many subtle ways it has controlled my ideas and actions, clouded my view of You and of life, and kept me from understanding Your Word. I now take authority (Luke 10:19) over all the power of the enemy, and I bind him and his demons from interfering now. I ask You, Father, to send warrior spirits and angels to assist me (Heb. 1:14). I ask this prayer in Jesus' Name."

We complain about the young being so selfish. Where do you think they were trained? Look in the mirror. Selfishness is a lack of control of self-indulgence. One proof of the Holy Spirit's work in us is self-control (Gal. 5:5, 22-26). V.22 But the fruit of the Holy Spirit, (the work which His presence within accomplishes) -is love, joy (gladness), peace, patience (an even temper, forbear-ance), kindness, goodness (benevolence), faithfulness: V.23 (meekness, humility) gentleness, self-control (self-restraint, continence). Against such there is no law. V.24 And those who belong to Christ Jesus, the Messiah, have crucified the flesh - Godless human nature - with its passions and appetites and desires.

II Tim. 3:1-5

VI. When He said, but understand this, I realized that whether I agreed with the statement or whether I liked it or not, this is the way it would surely be. That in the last days perilous time will set in. Any slow-minded person can tell that perilous times have indeed set in: hard to deal with and hard to bear. Does anyone doubt that these times are hard to deal with and hard to bear?

V2. For people will be lovers of self and utterly self-centered. Here we see the demon behind many of the plagues in America today. Just consider the true motive behind: sex out of marriage; drunkenness, gluttony and drugs; robbery; murder; the most awful murder to the helpless - abortion; sexual, mental and physical abuse of children; homosexuality; betrayal of our nation and the list goes on. I believe you can judge the condition of a person or a nation by the way it treats its children.

Lovers of money and aroused by an inordinate greedy desire for wealth. The Bible tells us that God gives blessings to His beloved in his sleep (Ps. 127:2). Josh. 1:6-8 gives the real formula for good success. I have noticed that many people completely wear themselves out attempting to obtain money and things (the better things of life). They lose their children to drugs, people who prey on children, polluted and perverted sex, or suicide and do not awake from their slumber until the children have been destroyed. Our children follow our example.

Proud and arrogant and contemptuous boasters. Have you ever noticed who does the bragging and boasting? It is usually those who are attempting to cover their failures. Are they full of hot air? People who boast are really showing their rejection. Our children follow our example. **They will be abusive (blasphemous, scoffers).** These days it's not uncommon to hear people scoffing at God, Satan and every thing that is honest, correct and true. In II Pet. 2:9-10 these people are filled with self-will, despise authority, walk after the flesh, and indulged in polluting passions and exaggerating emotions. They do not give proper respect to God, the Devil or the demons. The children are just following our example.

Disobedient to parents. When you consider the example set by and the life lived by most Christians, is it any wonder the children of Christians scoff at God, parents and the law? Most Christians don't care very much about obeying God. They won't spend enough time to read and learn how to obey Him. In all the deliverances we've been in where disobedience was a big problem in the children, we would always find the parents were self-centered, had not taken time to live a life of obedience before the children, nor taken the time to teach Biblical principles to them. Worst of all, the parents do not live by Biblical principles themselves. The children are just following our example.

Ungrateful. It is so seldom that you hear anyone say thanks to God, let alone to parents. Our children see us like we are, not like we pretend or say we are. If we don't live grateful lives, the children will know and they will follow our example.

Unholy. From the time children can hold their heads up, they are exposed to all kinds of unholiness right in mom and dad's house.

Profane. A lot of people who spank their children for cursing do it themselves. Have you ever said (most people especially Christians do), "Oh God," or "Oh, my God". They will follow you.

V3. They will be without natural (human) affection (callous and inhuman) relentless - admitting of no truce or appeasement. There is so much child abuse today, but not all of it is beatings, etc. Much of it is overindulgence, appeasement and submission of parents to children by begging them to obey. We don't love our children enough to teach right living to them. Sinners often have higher morals than Christians. Natural human affection is simply love among family members. Natural human affection requires that there be no sex among family members. God looks at incest as requiring strong punishment. Where there is a lack of natural affection between family members, there is callousness. Young and old alike will slumber on in evil ways and refuse suggestions for change until some calamity happens, and even then make no changes.

They will be slanderers - false accusers, trouble makers; intemperate and loose in morals and conduct, uncontrolled and fierce, haters of good. These are the common emotions and actions in the world today, and to our shame even in the Christian world. We say we have power over all the power of the enemy; why do we not stop all of these?

Verses 4 and 5 tell you all the consequences of the way we have raised our children. It is not just us but the way we were raised. If there is to be any change for the better, dads and moms will again have to learn and obey their Heavenly Father, read the manual (Bible), and put it into action. These two verses are self explanatory. **V4.** They will be treacherous (betrayers), rash and inflated with self-conceit. They will be lovers of sensual pleasures and vain amusements more than and rather than lovers of God. What has all the name it - claim it - faith it and God wants you rich led to? We boast of the size of our church when many times we have led the people to crave what they before only mildly wanted. Now they feel that their greed is holy.

V5. For although they hold a form of piety (true religion), they deny and reject and are strangers to the power of it - their conduct belies the genuineness of their profession. (When we deny our sins in this area and reject change and deliverance, we show we have no power). From such people turn away. Such people fill the church houses today. They show by their attitude that they would rather be some place else: sleeping through the dead service given by the defeated pastor. If anyone does get in touch with God and start cleaning himself up, most of the church will hate him. True seekers of God welcome His action in their lives and the lives of others. They welcome His supernatural power in the church and in their own life. If you are one of those people who does not like for God to move in the church as He will, you may be one of the followers of Cain (Gen. 3:1-24). His religious system says God should accept us when we do things we have decided are good.

Women's Lib was born in Gen. 3:1-6. We aren't told why Eve listened to the serpent. If she acted as all people do today, I would say she felt rejected and inferior. The Bible does not tell us why she did what she did. But I believe the serpent's comments give us some clues. First, he questions God's instructions and requirements (doubting God really meant what He said). Then he points to her desires: to be wise, to know the difference between good and evil, blessing and calamity. I believe these desires are the basic drive of all Jezebels. Adam became Ahab. He loved Eve and chose to submit to Eve in his actions as well as to consequences. Nothing happened until Adam ate, then their eyes were opened. Each of their actions were motivated by selfishness. By letting selfishness rule them, they gave way for other demon activity in their lives.

Ahab and Jezebel traits have followed us today and are still causing grave troubles. Watch the pattern of Ahab and Jezebel develop. First they agree to rebel, next hide from God, try to cover the sins, blame someone else, and can no longer approach God with purity. God passed judgement on their sins. The tendency to sin in the same manner passed on to all their descendents. How about the gifts:

- 1. Ahab and Jezebel characteristics.
- 2. Disobedience and rebellion.
- 3. Rejection.
- 4. Desiring to be equal to God.
- 5. Lying.
- 6. Making excuses.
- 7. Blaming others for our mistakes and sin.
- 8. Jezebel challenging man and the position of man.
- 9. Fear of facing God, attempting to hide from God.
- 10. Realization of evil.
- 11. Loss of position and possession.
- 12. Sadness.
- 13. Shame.

- 14. Cursed to back-breaking work.
- 15. Grief.
- 16. Death.
- 17. Cursed ground.
- 18. Grief and suffering in pregnancy, and pain in childbirth.
- 19. Hate, jealousy and murder.
- 20. Beginning of the false religious system.
- 21. Man and wife separated (no longer one). Eve said I, not we, have gotten a son.
- 22. Evil first baby.
- 23. Woman's desire and craving to be to husband, and he will rule over her.
- 24. Like Cain, we try to get God to accept us without our obeying Him.

We are still living in the above sentence. After we repented and accepted Jesus, the results of Adam and Eve's actions did not melt away like magic. We now have the right to face up and overcome them all. Instead of conquering them, we pass them on to our children.

Let's just take a look at how we parents really flub up. Let's use the Christmas Season as a case in point. We loose demons of self-centeredness on our children plus those of idolatry. We say to them ever so well meaning, "What would you like for Christmas?" He probably hasn't thought to much about it unless we've allowed him to get brain washed by TV. So we start him on the self trail.

As a teacher, I can tell you that it takes a month or more for your child to get this selfcenteredness under control if at all. My assistant and I would have to bind up idolatry and selfcenteredness, and loose Godly spirits on the children for weeks after they came back to school. We would use scriptures about self-control, good work habits and generosity to help them get back into school work.

As we continually probe for their desires, we are really sicking demons on the child. As parents, we should have the good sense to know what toys our child should have and when. We should have enough spiritual strength to teach the children why they can and cannot have certain things. When they say everyone else has it or does it, a parent gets a great teaching opportunity. If you do not have sound convictions, you will not be prepared to calmly and powerfully teach with enough conviction to convince them of your confidence in your knowledge.

We don't just wait for holidays, we are constantly asking the children, "what do you want for supper"? If there are three children, there will be no agreement.

Why not take on your responsibility and make a wholesome meal? Those who don't like it may wait until the next meal - no snacks. When they get hungry, they will eat.

What about clothes? Parents are paying; they should say what you wear. If you are on your own and paying your own bills, you may chose.

Lately, I hear and see moms and dads begging children to obey. In our day, we didn't beg, we told them what they could or could not do. Those children seemed to be better adjusted and hap-

pier than now. It is really more disgusting to see an Ahab daddy beg a child to be good than to see a mom giving in.

You will need to study your own motives to see why you do the things you do. They may point to your own need to face up to the need for deliverance from rejection, bitterness and rebellion, etc. Refusing to shape up, once saved, is serious rebellion and stupidity.

Do you have enough strength to read, study your Bible and obey it? Will you take the time to teach your children Biblical principles? Will you be strong enough to stand up to their objections as the family begins to come into order? The children really respond well to their father's teaching them. Our children would really be kicking up a fuss. After Gene talked to them, they would correct quickly.

BIBLICAL PRINCIPLES

The Biblical principles we are to live by are contained in Matt. 22:34-40 and Mark 12:29-30. We tend to forget that if we love Jesus we will work at keeping all His Commandments (John 14:15). II Timothy 3:1-7 is the results of breaking the Ten Commandants (Ex. 20:1-17).

Ex. 20:1-17

V3. We shall have no God but God. Self cannot be our god.

V4. We shall not bow to another God. Self cannot be bowed to.

V5. This is the result of not loving God with all our mind, heart and whole being. If we worship or hold self in higher esteem than God, we have made ourselves an idol. We will curse ourselves, our children, our grandchildren and our great-grandchildren. Is serving the god of self, worth our children for generations?

V6. God's mercy is shown to a thousand generations of them that love Him and keep His Commandants.

V7. Taking God's name in vain, as saying, "Oh my God," or "Oh God", is profanity. Do not use either the name of Jesus Christ or God as a curse word. We will not be held blameless.

V8-11. Trying to get ahead by working on the Sabbath will backfire. By not taking the time to study and think on God, and to rest your body, you will find you are slipping backwards rather then getting ahead.

V12. We shorten our life when we do not treat our parents with honor, due obedience and courtesy.

V13. Do no murder. To murder is selfish.

V14. Committing adultery is a totally selfish act taking no care for duty, self or loved ones.

V15. Stealing is for gain without having earned the privilege of ownership.

V16. Lying about someone is a serious breach of Christian ethics.

V17. To covet is to desire something you have no right to have or have not earned the right to obtain.

It is easy to see selfishness is the force breaking every commandment.

You cannot maintain your deliverance from demon bondage unless you determine to obey God's commandments. God's principles must become our principles. A Christian without God's principles is not worthy of trust. In the Old Testament, God is telling us what actions to have and not have. In the New Testament, Jesus Christ is looking behind our actions to

our motives or the roots of our actions. God says not to commit adultery; Jesus says to look with lust is adultery.

When we break any commandment, curses are loosed on our children. This means that demons have a right to work on our children to get them to sin and allow in more demons. Take adultery for instance; demons will follow our children and put pressure on them to enter into sex sin. The age at which children get into sex sin is younger and younger, and the sin more and more gross and unclean.

Begin by recognizing and truly repenting of sin in breaking God's commandments. Then repent with sincere repentance for each commandment you have broken.

Now you are ready to break curses of idol worship and self worship, and of bowing down to idols (don't forget the idol of self). Break curses of witchcraft and satanism, using God's name in vain or in profanity, not honoring the Sabbath, not honoring parents (the curse for not honoring parents is short life), hate, murder, adultery, stealing, lying, covetousness and for rebellion. "Dear Father, forgive me for setting up gods to worship, especially the god of self. For placing self on the throne of my life and for serving my wants. I ask you to give me understanding of myself and the motives for my actions. Help me to understand how I became my own god. I do repent for being selfish, of always looking out for myself, of always wanting the best for myself and my family. I am also ashamed to see how I have taught my children to be selfish. Please forgive me for my selfish motives and acts, the way I have tried to and have manipulated others to get my desires. Forgive me for serving you to bring honor to myself. Oh Lord, please cleanse me and instruct me in Your way. I will apply myself diligently to learn Your way and do it."

It is a serious thing to make a vow to God and not pay it. If you plan to keep this vow, you may pray a prayer something like this:

For the men: "Dear Father, I will apply myself to study Biblical principles. I will live them and teach them to my children. I will not berate nor harass my wife and children as they learn." For the women: "Dear Father, I will apply myself to study Biblical principles. I will incorporate them into my life. I will live them and teach them to our children. I will not belittle or disrespect my husband as he leads us."

LIST OF DEMONS

You can use the Lists of Demons found in MASS DELIVERANCE MANUAL for Bad Habits of Thinking and Reacting", "Ingratitude" and "Self.

SECTION 5 – CURSES

CONTENTS

- 1. Biblical Curses
- 2. Indian Curses
- 3. The Curse of Ahab and Jezebel
- 4. The Curse of the Bastard (Booklet)

1. BIBLICAL CURSES

LIST OF SCRIPTURE

Exodus 34:6-7	(Iniquity of fathers on the children)
Num. 14:18, 33	(Children wandered for 40 years)
Deut. 5:9-10	(Idol worship)
Joshua 24:19-20	(Serving strange gods)
I Kings 21:29	(In son's days, evil will come on his house)
Job 10:14	(Visiting mine iniquity)
Psalms 79:8	(Remember not against us former iniquities)
Isaiah 64:9	(Neither remember iniquity forever)
Jer. 32:18	(The iniquity of the father upon the children)
Micah 6:11	(Wicked balances)
Nahum 1:3	(Will not acquit the wicked)

HOW DID WE LEARN ABOUT CURSES?

We learned through twelve years of intensive experience of working with thousands of people. We learned in mass deliverance with groups of people and especially in ministry to individuals. We learned by spending sufficient hours with individuals to find out what was wrong with them and then taking the time to get rid of demons that were holding on. The ministry to others is a proving ground for the knowledge we have gained. After twelve years, we are constantly learning more about how the enemy operates; you never learn it all!

Our ministry changed dramatically when we learned that we needed to break curses and how to do it. Our deliverance sessions became more smooth with less manifestations and violence. It is as simple as this; if the demons have a right to remain before God because of a curse, you will not be able to cast them out, or if you do, they will be able to come back and re-enter the person. I am a trained engineer; I am trained to learn how things, work. I want to figure out how the Kingdom of God works. I teach you what I have learned; I intend to keep learning until I die. The Bible is like an engineer's handbook. God told me to accept the Bible in simple childlike faith, put it into practice and watch it work!

INDIAN CURSES IN EARLINE'S LIFE

What are the effects of curses? I had a heart condition which was unusual. It never occurred with regularity nor under any specific condition.

While taking a tread mill test, I experienced tremendous pain in the chest, arms and neck. I had been examined by a "heart specialist" in Minneapolis, who told me that my heart was good but

he had written "death by heart attack" on many people's certificates like myself. These were people who didn't really have anything wrong with their hearts.

A year or so after my dad's death I found my heart acting up again. Sometimes one to five years would elapse between seizures. I began to ask God to show me why my brothers, dad, dad's brothers and his dad all had heart problems.

He showed me Ezekiel 18 & Exodus 20. He told me to repent for my ancestors and myself for the sin of idol worship in Leviticus 26:40-41. The curse of idol worship follows the blood line. I did these things and have been free for over eleven years. I was only the second generation from previous generations that sinned before God.

HOW DO CURSES TAKE EFFECT?

Curses take effect when you or your ancestors have committed certain acts which are contrary to the Word of God. This is an act of sin which then brings curses on you and your descendents. The demons will then try to perpetuate the curse for all remaining generations of descendents. The demons can enter the child in the womb at conception. The child enters life with this characteristic which is demonic. The world would say that the child inherited this characteristic from his ancestors. What was inherited was a demon passed down through the blood line.

SCRIPTURE ABOUT THE CURSE OF THE BASTARD AND INCEST

"A person begotten out of wedlock shall not enter into the assembly of the Lord; even until his tenth generation shall his descendants not enter into the congregation of the Lord." (Deut. 23:2)

OBSERVATIONS ABOUT BASTARDS

When a bastard is conceived in lust, it is not true love. True love is protecting and providing. Neither is present when the bastard is conceived. Demons of lust will follow all children of this line. Besides lust, all types of demons follow them and try to gain entrance. Present day observations include more bastards, family and personal rebellion, sickness, suicide, can't feel welcome or at peace in God's house, murder, delinquency and mental illness.

THE CURSE OF THE BASTARD IN EARLINE'S LIFE

Great-grandfather marries great-grandmother in church. All seems well; has three children. Great-grandfather dies. Great-grandmother discovers she can not get his railroad pension because she is his fifth wife. My grandfather becomes very bitter and a little paranoid. My mom is paranoid and schizophrenic. She abused me physically.

Here are some of the problems created for me by this curse. Never feeling at home in any church for long. Never feeling good about myself. Being ashamed for people to look at me even though I didn't know what I wanted to hide, overriding fear, striving excessively to succeed and stopping short of realizing the goal, fear of failure, fear of authority, resisting authority, fighting verbally and physically, demonic pressure to sexual activities, and not much joy in natural or spiritual life.

HOW ARE CURSES IDENTIFIED?

We learned to recognize many curses by name either through experience, or by the names or characteristics mentioned in the Bible.

Sometimes we break curses because the demon says it has a right to remain because of the curse; this happens many times when a demon will not leave.

Sometimes we break curses because we feel impressed by the Holy Spirit to do so. Nothing is lost by breaking a curse that does not exist; everything is gained by breaking a curse that does exist.

THE CURSE OF AHAB AND JEZEBEL BOOKLETS

Two excellent booklets have been printed by the Hegewisch Baptist Church: The Curse of Ahab for men and The Curse of Jezebel for women. Men may also have Jezebel tendencies; women - Ahab tendencies.

AHAB / JEZEBEL CURSES FOUND IN THE BIBLE

The relationship of Ahab and Jezebel provides an excellent illustration of the curse brought about by a husband and wife being out of God's divine order for the family. This curse can be traced back all the way to Adam and Eve. It can be found through the Bible being manifested in different families.

God puts the greatest burden of responsibility on the men, not the women. If the men were not Ahabs and were, in fact, priests and heads of their homes, then the women would not be Jezebels! The man cannot escape his responsibility by blaming his problems on the woman.

AHAB/JEZEBEL REBELLIOUS INFLUENCE IN THE WORLD

Divorce - one parent families.

Felinism - pictures bungling father and clever mother. Sex - no restrictions. Young people - confused, rebellious. Drugs - Sex - Music. Society with emotional problems. Effeminate, emotional, weak spiritual and weak physical men.

Women's false strength - put to test usually fails.

GENE'S AHAB CHARACTERISTICS

- 1. Leaving spiritual leadership up to Earline about how to raise children.
- 2. Breakdown of communications between Earline, Marie and me as I pursued spiritual goals but neglected my family.
- 3. Fear of getting hurt by others especially by my family and Earline's family.
- 4. God of jobs at one time when I put my job first, family second and God last. Now it is reversed: God first, family second and job last.
- 5. Leaving things of God to wife occurred partially such as receiving the Baptism. I suggested that Earline receive it first.
- 6. I came from a poor family and had a materialistic drive until Byron died.
- 7. We had many misunderstandings as Ahab husband and Jezebel wife.
- 8. I did not believe in having an argument with my wife. So, I would go into my room, study engineering, and not talk to Earline.
- 9. We even came close to separation and divorce at our low point about ten years ago.
- 10. I was somewhat unemotional and could not show love the way I should.

- 11. The greatest blessing was that God kept us from wholeheartedly pursuing fame and fortune before Byron died.
- 12. Earline said I acted like an Ahab but did not give in anytime!

HOW ARE CURSES RECOGNIZED THAT COME FROM ANCESTORS?

Even the world can recognize the curses, they just don't know what causes them. For example, suppose the women in a family die of cancer generation after generation. Then we would say that the family is cursed. The next question would be, what is the original sin that started the generational line of cancer? If we can not identify that sin by name, the next best thing to do is to forgive, in general, all ancestors that have sinned and caused this curse.

BLESSINGS AND CURSES

We all live with the results of our actions. Blessings are the result of obeying God. Curses are the result of obeying the Devil -disobeying God.

We already had the blessings in the Garden - now begin the curses of God (Gen. 3:16-19). Pain in childbearing is not something that women suffer alone; her husband suffers emotionally at this time too. The ground is cursed because man gave heed to his wife and obeyed her against God's commandments. Women suffer as they watch the hard, back-breaking or stressful work of their husbands. And so began the power struggle that all men and women engage in.

EARLINE'S ANCESTRAL BACKGROUND

I have an Indian - English - German - French background. There are curses on each of these people: Indians worshipped demons; some English and Europeans were Druids - they worshipped Satan. In innocence, my father participated in some occult practices: wart removal and water witching. From my father came curses of Masons and Indians. Physical problems came as a result of curses on Indian worship: inactive thyroid, female disorders and heart disease.

My mother was a paranoid schizophrenic with an Indian - English background. Her emotional illness caused me to need a lot of deliverance from emotional problems.

HOW ARE CURSES BROKEN?

Once the curse is identified, then you know that there is sin in the camp. The sin must be dealt with by the individual, not the leader. The individual must confess his sins and the sins of the fathers (Lev. 26:40-42). He should then forgive his ancestors, especially his parents, for bringing curses and torment into his life and family. After you have asked God to forgive all parties involved in the sin that brought the curse and repented yourself, then you have a right to break the curse in the Name of Jesus Christ.

WHAT IS DONE AFTER THE CURSE IS BROKEN?

Once the curse is broken, cast out the demons that came in through the curse by their names. After the demons are cast out, pray for physical healing of the body and mental and emotional healing for the mind. After you have been delivered and healed, "Go and sin no more lest a worse thing come upon you." You must change your way of thinking and acting even though this curse was brought upon you by your ancestors.

RESULTS OF BREAKING CURSES

We have seen people begin to receive deliverance as the curses were broken but before any demons were verbally cast out in the Name of Jesus Christ. Deliverance sessions become more smooth with less manifestations of demons and violence to the people. When the demons tell us that they have a right to remain because of a curse, we break the curse and then we are able to cast out the demons who refuse to leave.

STEPS TO FREEDOM FROM CURSES

- 1. Identify the name of the curse and the sin that caused the curse.
- 2. Repent and pray to God to take away the right for the curse to be in your life.
- 3. Forgive the ancestors (in ancestral curses) for their sin against you in placing this curse on the family line.
- 4. Break the curse in the Name of Jesus Christ.
- 5. Cast out the demons that came in with the curse.
- 6. Discipline your life and sin no more.

CURSED OBJECTS ON YOU AND IN YOUR HOME

Earline will tell you what she has learned about jewelry. I want the men to take off all religious objects. I want the women to take off all jewelry except for wedding rings and watches. My favorite example is pierced ears which is a sign of slavery in the Bible. Jesus Christ wants us to live a simple life without religious objects or graven images. Cast out of people and houses - command all demons to go by these names or associated with these objects:

Books and objects identified with anything related to Satan's Kingdom.

Sinful activities of former residents that left curses. Knocking or noisy ghosts (poltergeist) and apparitions.

Owl and frog images of all types.

Witch's mask and fetishes used by witch doctors.

Objects and literature that pertain to false religions, cults, the occult and spiritism.

Graven images of gods (demons).

Objects dedicated to demons (idols and artifacts).

Ouija boards or other occult paraphernalia.

Prayers and worship to demons bring curses on home.

Mexican sun gods; idols; incense; Buddhas; hand carved objects from Africa or the Orient; anything connected with astrology, horoscopes, fortune telling, etc.; books or objects associated with witchcraft, good luck charms or cult religions (metaphysics, Christian Science, Jehovah's Witnesses, etc.); rock and roll records and tapes. Jewelry given to a person by someone in witchcraft, hex signs, ancient geometric and mystical motifs, jewelry designed to bring good luck and act as talisman to chase evil.

Egyptian ankh, broken cross (peace symbol), chais, Polynesian tikkis of gods, African jujus, Italian horn, protectors from the evil eye, hand with index and little fingers pointing up, crosses, clovers, stars, wishbones, luck coins, mystic medals, horseshoes, religious fetishes and statues.

Products with cryptic curses (hidden secret, occult curses).

Dolls used for witchcraft and magic; puppets, cult objects or representations.

FIVE STEPS TO CLEANING HOUSE OF CURSED OBJECTS

- 1. Six-way prayer of forgiveness you forgive your ancestors, descendants and others, ask God to forgive and bless them. Ask God to forgive you; you forgive yourself for sins against your body. Also ask forgiveness for spiritual adultery.
- 2. Break curses and soul ties from others (ancestors) and to others (descendants); break curses of psychic or Catholic prayers.
- 3. Clean out house of those objects or exorcise objects (you do this).
- 4. Anoint house with oil and cast evil spirits out of house (you do this).
- 5. Cast demons out of people that came in through curses from others (optional); for mass deliverance, see Cursed Objects and Demon Infestation.

SUMMARY

- 1. God cursed the earth when Adam and Eve fell.
- 2. "Biblical Curses" apply to those or their descendents who have committed these sins.
- 3. "Curses on Children" can be used when specifically working with children.
- 4. "Hex Signs" and all associated with these symbols are demonic.

BLESSINGS, CURSES AND DURATION

Ex. 20:1-5	Curse of idol worship extends to fourth generation of great- grandchildren.
Deut. 23:2	Curse of the bastard extends to tenth generation of descendants.
Deut. 28	Blessings are for obeying and curses for disobeying the Holy Bible.
Deut. 28:1-14	Blessings.
Deut. 28:15-44	Curses.
Deut. 28:45-68	Wrath of God.
Ex. 20:1-5 &	God showed Earline that this was the curse of idol worship brought on
Ezek. 18:1-9	her by her Indian ancestors which caused her and her family heart trou-
	ble. He also showed her how to break the curse.

Notice how a family can be cursed to the fourth or tenth generation by the ancestors. Actually there are curses on the human race that go all the way back to Adam and Eve. Blessings can go from generation to generation if not broken by sin. Curses can also go from generation to generation if not broken by sin.

Very simply, we are blessed for obeying the Word of God and cursed for disobeying the Word of God. Blessings and curses are promises from God which will either bring down the wrath of God or His favor on your family.

God will supply all of your needs: mental, physical, spiritual and material. He can become your Savior, Baptizer, Healer, Deliverer and Prosperer. These things will only come to pass if you follow the Bible -for every promise there is a condition. If you do not meet the condition, you will not receive the promise! There is probably a curse for every scripture that is disobeyed. Sixty-six curses are listed under Biblical Curses which follow:

BIBLICAL CURSES

(Excerpts)

- 1. Those who curse/mistreat Jews (Deut. 27:26; Gen. 27:29; 12:3; Num. 24:9).
- 2. Those willing deceivers (Jos. 9:23; Jer. 48:10; Mal. 1:14; Gen. 27:12).
- 3. An adulterous woman (Numbers 5:27).
- 4. Disobedience of Lord's commandments (Deut. ll:28; Dan. 9:11; Jer. 11:3).
- 5. Idolatry (Jer. 44:8; Deut. 29:19; Ex. 20:5; Deut. 5:8-9).
- 6. Those who keep or own cursed objects (Deut. 7:25; Jos. 6:18).
- 7. Those who refuse to come to the Lord's help (Judges 5:23).
- 8. House of the wicked (Prov. 3:33).
- 9. He who gives not to the poor (Prov. 28:27).
- 10. The earth by reason of man's disobedience (Isa. 24:3-6).
- 11. Jerusalem is a curse to all nations if Jews rebel against God (Jer. 26:6).
- 12. Thieves and those who swear falsely by the Lord's Name (Zech. 5:4).
- 13. Ministers who fail to give the glory to God (Mai. 2:2; Rev. 1:6).
- 14. Those who rob God of tithes and offerings (Mal. 3:9; Haggai 1:6-9).
- 15. Those who hearken unto their wives rather than God (Gen. 3:17).
- 16. Those who lightly esteem their parents (Deut. 27:16).
- 17. Those who make graven images (Deut. 5:8; 27:15; Ex. 20:4).
- 18. Those who willfully cheat people out of their property (Deut. 27:17).
- 19. Those who take advantage of the blind (Deut. 27:18).
- 20. Those oppressing strangers, widow*, fatherless (Deut. 27:19; (Ex. 22:22-24).
- 21. He who lies with his father's wife (Deut. 27:20; Lev. 18:8).
- 22. He who lies with his sister (Deut. 27:22).
- 23. Those who smite their neighbors secretly (Deut. 27:24).
- 24. Those who take money to slay the innocent (Deut. 27:24).
- 25. He who lies with any beast (Deut. 27:21; Ex. 22:19).
- 26. Adulterers (Job 24:15-18).
- 27. The proud (Psalm 119:21).
- 28. Those who trust in man and not the Lord (Jer.48:10).
- 29. Those who do the work of the Lord deceitfully (Jer. 48:10).
- 30. He who keeps back his sword from blood (Jer. 48:10; I Kings 20:35-42).
- 31. Those who reward evil for good (Prov. 17:13).
- 32. Illegitimate children (Deut. 23:2).
- 33. Children born from incestuous unions (Gen. 19:36-38).
- 34. Murderers (Exodus 21:12).
- 35. To murder indirectly (Exodus 21:14).

- 36. Children who strike their parents (Exodus 21:15).
- 37. Kidnappers (Exodus 21:16; Deut. 24:7).
- 38. Those who curse their parents (Exodus 21:17).
- 39. Those who cause the unborn to die (Exodus 21:22-23).
- 40. Those who do not prevent death (Exodus 21:29).
- 41. Those involved in witchcraft (Exodus 22:18).
- 42. Those who sacrifice to false gods (Exodus 22:20).
- 43. Those who attempt to turn anyone away from the Lord (Deut. 13:6-9).
- 44. Those who follow horoscopes (Deut. 17:2-5).
- 45. Those who rebel against pastors (Deut. 17:12).
- 46. False prophets (Deut. 18:19-22).
- 47. Women who keep not their virginity until they are married (Deut. 22:13-21).
- 48. Adulterers (Deut. 22:22-27).
- 49. Parents who don't discipline children, but honor them above God (I Sam. 2:17, 27-36).
- 50. Those who curse their rulers (I Kings 2:8-9; Ex. 22:28).
- 51. Those who teach rebellion against the Lord (Jer. 28:16-17).
- 52. Those who refuse to warn them that sin (Ezek. 3:18-21).
- 53. Those who defile the Sabbath (Ex. 31:14; Num. 15:32-36).
- 54. Those who sacrifice human beings (Lev. 20:2).
- 55. Participants in séances and fortune telling (Lev. 20:6).
- 56. Homosexual and lesbian relationships (Lev. 20:13).
- 57. Sexual intercourse during menstruation (Lev. 20:18).
- 58. Necromancers and fortune tellers (Lev. 20:27).
- 59. Those who blaspheme the Lord's name (Lev. 24:15-16).
- 60. Those who are carnally minded (Romans 8:6).
- 61. Sodomy (oral and anal sex) (Gen. 19:13, 24-25).
- 62. Rebellious children (Deut. 21:18-21).
- 63. Possibly from murder, nonproductivity, a fugitive, vagabond (Gen. 4:11; Matt. 5:21-22, Jesus' statement on hatred equals murder, John 3:15).
- 64. Possible curse upon improper family structure destruction of family priesthood (Mai. 4:6) with special attention given to the relationship between father and children.
- 65. The curse causeless shall not come (Prov. 26:2).
- 66. Any sin worthy of death is also cursed by God (Deut. 21:22-23).

CURSES ON CHILDREN

- 1. Children born from incestuous unions (Gen. 19:36-38).
- 2. Curse of idol worship extends to 4th generation of great-grandchildren (Exodus 20:1-5).
- 3. Children who strike their parents (Exodus 21:15).
- 4. Those who curse their parents (Exodus 21:17).
- 5. Iniquity of fathers on children (Exodus 34:6-7).
- 6. Children wandered for forty years (Numbers 14:18 & 33).
- 7. Idol worship (Deut. 5:9-10).
- 8. Rebellious children (Deut. 21:18-21).
- 9. Curse of the bastard extends to tenth generation of descendants (Deut. 23:2).
- 10. In son's days evil will come on his house (I Kings 21:19).
- 11. The iniquity of the father upon the children (Jer. 32:18).

A CURSE AGAINST PROTESTANTS

(Excerpts)

One of the authorized curses published in the Romish Pontifical, to be used against Protestants, reads as follows: "May God Almighty and all His saints curse them with the curse with which the devil and his angels are cursed."

"Let all they have be cursed. Always and everywhere let them be cursed. Speaking and silent let them be cursed. Within and without let them be cursed.

From the crown of the head to the sole of the foot let them be cursed. Let all the members of their body be cursed."

"Cursed let them be, standing or lying, from this time forth forever; and thus let their candle be extinguished in the presence of God, at the day of judgement."

This is the spirit of Papacy; and all who possess the spirit of the true Christ should readily recognize so base a counterfeit.

CURSES

(Excerpts)

- 1. Christians walking in the knowledge and power of their spiritual authority are especially targeted for attention by the enemy.
- 2. Higher level witches will "scan" the person on whom the curse is to be placed.
- 3. For example: a woman whose parents were witches was hesitant to break curses and send them back to the source for fear they were coming from her relatives in witchcraft.
- 4. For some reason women seem more susceptible than men to attack through curses.
- 5. God's chain of command establishes the father, the husband or the male members of the Christian assembly as a spiritual covering and counseling resource for the women.
- 6. People often state that they are not under any curses. As regarding final salvation, no; but as far as your life here and now, yes; you definitely can be affected.
- 7. When man broke God's law and brought black people from Africa to America as slaves, it opened the way for many curses.
- 8. You cannot get away from judgement for breaking God's laws. Even to this day, Louisiana is ruled by the Prince of Southern Curses and Arkansas by the Prince of the Occult.
- 9. Those from the northern United States have for-bearers in Europe who brought witchcraft curses from the Black Forest, Scandinavia and the Druids in England.
- 10. When you came into contact with occult practices (such as the Ouija board, horoscopes, fortune tellers, hypnosis, or ESP), you were cursed, your children were cursed, your grandchildren were cursed and your great-grandchildren were cursed, all in one operation!
- 11. Anything in the occult realm requires two steps to destroy the grounds for attack.
- 12. People ask if every single occult contact will open the door to Satan.
- 13. Take no chances, just state, "I am closing any door I may have opened to you, Satan, through contact with the Ouija board, astrology, Fortune telling, hypnosis, ESP, etc."
- 14. Because you or someone else opened the door to invite attack, you are now legally closing that door and putting Satan on notice about it.
- 15. The occult is a deadly and dangerous area.

- 16. Most people are unaware that the witches in Africa have been fasting thirty and forty days to break-up Christian marriages in Africa and this country, especially those among the leadership.
- 17. One thing to remember about fasting is that basically it opens one to the spirit world.
- 18. When on a fast, check everything very carefully. There are two stations broadcasting.
- 19. A curse causeless cannot come, therefore, when they do hit we must seek out the reason and eliminate it.
- 20. A curse from the law comes from attempting to obey the letter of the law rather than trusting in the Lord.
- 21. Christ redeems those who put their trust in Him (Deut. 11:28; 26:16; Gal. 3:10-15).
- 22. If you suspect a curse is rooted in the occult, it must be broken back to at least four generations.
- 23. When a demon seems to resist the breaking of a curse, break it back fifteen or twenty generations.
- 24. Never hesitate to break a curse for it is quite simple.
- 25. We must destroy the curses for they are all around us to entangle and hinder.
- 26. Some say they want no part of it, but there is a curse on those who will not fight or are slack in the Lord's battle (Judg. 5:23; Jer. 48:10).
- 27. Seeing to the needs of the poor doesn't mean to be a gullible goose, but to be prayerful and see exactly what God wants you to do.
- 28. What would have happened to the good Samaritan if he had helped everyone he saw in need on the road that day?
- 29. We must tune in with the Lord's will and follow Him to discover which persons are our responsibility; those He has equipped you to minister to financially, spiritually and in every way.
- 30. The others will fritter away all your money and God will still judge you for foolish interference.
- 31. There is a curse on ministers and any believer who will not give glory to Christ (Mai. 2:2; Rev. 1:6).
- 32. If the wrong kind of people "pray" for you, it can hit you like a curse.
- 33. There is charismatic witchcraft, also, and often you find groups presided over by a charismatic witch.
- 34. Stay very close to God's written Word, let everything else be strictly supplementary, to be checked and cross-checked by the Word of God.
- 35. There is a curse on improper family structure which causes defective family priesthoods (Mai. 4:6).
- 36. There is a curse from trusting in man instead of God, depending on the flesh instead of the spirit (Jer. 17).
- 37. Of course some are more susceptible than others, and you need to become aware of where you are weak and brace against it.
- 38. In sexual areas there are many kinds of curses which can cause trouble.

VOWS AND CURSES

(Excerpts) - In the Bible, vows were solemn promises to God, either positive or negative. Under the Mosaic Law, the vows and promises of dependents such as children, unmarried daughters and wives were void, except when ratified by the express or tacit consent of the father or husband. This afforded protection to them against rash vows. The whole matter is explored in Numbers 30. Other scriptures dealing with vows include: Ecc. 5:4-6; Num. 30:2; Deut. 23:21-22).

Broken vows can be a source of real trouble. That is why Jonah repented and renewed his vows in the belly of the fish, saying, "I will pay my vows." If a vow is discovered to be contrary to Scripture and dishonoring to God, it should be formally renounced and forgiveness sought for making it (I John 1:9). A vow that is expressly evil or is for an evil purpose should never be made nor kept. To keep such a vow, for the sake of consistency, is to compound one evil by another (Matt. 5:33-37).

A curse has been defined as: uttering a wish of evil against one; to imprecate evil; to call for mischief or injury to fall upon; to execrate; to bring evil upon or to; to blast, vex, harass or torment with great calamities.

We have found that even the wrong kinds of "prayer" and laying on of hands, or "prayers" at a distance, have resulted in hurtful and dismaying results with the effects of a curse. For example: Curses came on a man and woman through a couple who were casting witchcraft curses in a Full Gospel Church!

HEX SIGNS

(EXCERPTS) - The five pointed star has been used by witches for centuries and called the pentacle or pentagram. With the two points up (as in Eastern Star) it is called the sign of the goat or Satan; one point up symbolizes witchcraft. When witches want to talk with demons, they will often stand within a pentagram and the demon will appear within a six pointed star by two triangles (hexagram) commonly called the Star of David. The Mogen David, as it was called, was a Cabalistic magic symbol for white magic and the word hex comes from the hexagram.

All Masonic symbols were ancient witchcraft sighs long before freemasonry was created. The initiation rituals for witchcraft and for Masons are identical (according to ex-witch John Todd), again demonstrating Masonic roots into witchcraft. The only difference is that the initiated witch disrobes completely at the close, and signs in his own blood. The wiggly horn called the Italian horn is also a witchcraft device (leprechaun's staff or unicorn's horn) and means you trust the Devil for your finances.

The Egyptian ankh (cross with a loop on top) is a sex goddess symbol meaning you despise virginity, believe in fertility rites, and worship and serve the Egyptian sun god RA (Egyptian name for Lucifer).

All the signs of the Zodiac are occult symbols as are the little Mexican sun gods and Buddhas. The crescent moon and star are the sign of an initiate into witchcraft.

In the Old Testament, God gave cunning skills to hands of artisans who fashioned the furnishings and decorations for the tabernacle. The use of these signs and symbols, and others which are the property of Satan can bring demons to your home and/or person.

Neither shalt thou bring an abomination into thine house lest thou be a cursed thing like it; but thou shalt utterly abhor it for it is a cursed thing (Deut. 7:26).

SYMBOLS OF HEX SIGNS

(EXCERPTS) - Remove these symbols from your person and possessions:

- 1. Six Petal Rosette and Lucky Stars these are your lucky stars.
- 2. The Irish Shamrock Hex good luck, fast life, good fortune and fidelity.
- 3. Tulip faith, hope and charity.
- 4. Unicorn virtue and piety.
- 5. Fertility.
- 6. Twelve Petal Rosette that each month of the year be joyous ones.
- 7. The Distelfink the bird of happiness always near you and good fortune.
- 8. Your Lucky Stars lucky stars that guide your heart.
- 9. Love and Romance rosette and hearts of love and romance.
- 10. Eight Pointed Star star and rosette to bring abundance and goodwill.
- 11. Friendship.
- 12. There is a symbol for each of the above listed hex signs.

BREAKING CURSES

"I break any curses placed on me or my descendants from uttering a wish of evil against one; to imprecate evil, to call for mischief or injury to fall upon; to execrate, to bring evil upon or to; to blast, vex, harass or torment with great calamities. I break these curses in Jesus' name. I break the curses back to ten generations or even to Adam and Eve on both sides of my family, and destroy every legal hold and every legal ground that demons have to work in my life. I break curses that follow in the name of the Lord Jesus Christ."

Mistreating God's Chosen People Willing Deceivers Adultery, Harlotry,	Taking Advantage of Blind Oppressing Strangers, Widows, Orphans Bestiality
Prostitution Dis-	Incest With Sister or
obedience to Bible	Mother
Idolatry	Murder Secretly or
Keeping Cursed Ob-	For
jects Refusing To	Hire
Fight For God	Pride
House of Wicked Not	Putting Trust In Man
Giving To Poor	Doing The Work
Stealing	of God Deceitfully
Swearing Falsely By	Rewarding Evil For
God Failing To	Good Abortion or
Give Glory to God	Causing Unborn
Robbing God of	To Die Having
Tithes Dishonoring	Bastards Murder-
Parents Hearkening	ing Indirectly
to Wives Rather	Striking Parents
Than God Making	Kidnapping Curs-
Graven Images	ing Parents Not
Cheating People	Preventing Death

Out of Property	Sacrificing to Gods Witchcraft		
Turning Someone	Refusing To Warn	Children Rebelling	
Away From God	Sinners Defiling	Nonproductivity	Loving Cursing
Following Horo-	The Sabbath Sacri-	Fugitive and	Choosing That
scopes Rebelling	ficing Humans Se-	Vagabond Im-	Which God De-
Against Pastors	ances and Fortune	proper Family	lights Not In Look-
Losing Virginity Be-	Telling	Structure	ing To World For
fore	Intercourse During	Destruction of Family	Help
Marriage	Menstruation	Priesthood Refus-	Stubbornness and Re-
False Prophets	Homosexuals and	ing To Do The	bellion
Rape	Lesbians	Word of God Fam-	Offending Children
Not Disciplining	Necromancers	ily Disorder Fail-	Believing Christ
Children	Blaspheming Lord's	ure and Poverty	Adding To or Tak-
Teaching Rebellion	Name	Any Sin Worthy of	ing Away From
Against God Curs-	Being Carnally	Death Touching	Bible Any Biblical
ing Rulers	Minded Oral and	God's Anointed	Curse Not listed
	Anal Sex	Perversion of Gos-	Above
		pel	

Finally, "failure to hearken unto the voice of the Lord God, to observe to do all His statutes; then all these curses shall come upon thee, and overtake thee."

DEMONS SENT BY BIBLICAL CURSES

Pestilence Idol Wor-Occult Curses Sore Sicknesses Your Lucky Stars ship Graven Images Emerods Fertility Love & Romance Nonproductivity **Consumption Bastard** Necromancers Eight Pointed Star **Pride Fever** American Indian Diseases of Egypt Friendship Hex Pentacle/Pentagram Wicked Balances Curses Deceiving Personal Poverty Catholic Prayers In-Scab Eastern Star flammation Dis-Blaspheming Trembling of Heart Hexagram like/Hatred/Murder Charismatic Witch-Adultery Star of David Prince of Southern Misrepresentation craft Mogen David Curses Extreme Burn-Failing of Eyes Cabalistic Magic Itch ing Curse of the Law Disobedience Sodomy Symbol Prince of Occult Perversion of Judg-White Magic Horoscopes Blasting Madness Masonic Symbols ment **Bless You Spirits** Oral & Anal Sex Sorrow of Mind Freemasonry Witchcraft Curses Rebellion Cursed Objects Italian Horn Mildew Incest Blindness Doubt Leprechaun's Staff Broken Vows Voodoo Curses Botch Slackness Unicorn's Horn Thievery of Egypt Lesbians False Prophets Egyptian Ankh Astonishment of Homosexual Egyptian Sun God RA Heart Unicorn Zodiac Mexican Sun God Deeper Teachings **False Swearing** Seances Tulip Buddhas

Plagues Irish Shamrock Hex Fortune Telling Twelve Petal Rosette The Distelfink

(Cursing, Vexation, Rebuke, Destroying, Perishing, Consuming, Groping)
(Not Prosper, Oppressed, Spoiled, Failure, Crushed, Smite, Pursuing)
(Sore Botch of Knees, Legs and Whole Body)
(Overtaking, Distress, Plucked, Chastisement, Removed, Not Healed)
(Astonishment, Proverb, Byword, Want, Besiege, Straitness, Evil)

REFERENCES

Seven books written by Rev. Win Worley, Hegewisch Baptist Church, Highland, Indiana.

2. INDIAN CURSES

Ex. 20:3	No other gods
Deut. 7:25-26	Graven images - abominations
Josh. 7	Sin of Achan & Accursed Things
2 Kings 21:2 2	Abominations
Chron. 28:3	Burned Incense & Children
2 Chron. 33:2,9	Abominations
2 Chron. 36:14	Abominations of heathen
Ezra 6:21	Separated from heathen
Job 30:3-8	Demons Roam in Wilderness
Psa. 135:15	Idols are Silver & Gold
Jer. 10:2	Signs of heathen
Ezek. 11:2	Men that give wicked counsel
Ezek. 20:9,14	Not polluted before heathen
Eph. 5:6-17	Unfruitful works of darkness
Acts 19:19	Curious Arts and Books

LIST OF SCRIPTURES

INDIAN CURSES IN MY LIFE (EARLINE'S TESTIMONY)

I had a heart condition which was unusual. It never occurred with regularity nor under any specific condition.

While taking a tread mill test, I experienced tremendous pain in the chest, arms and neck. I had been examined by a "heart specialist" in Minneapolis, who told me that my heart was good but he had written "death by heart attack" on many people's certificates like myself. These were people who didn't really have anything wrong with their hearts.

A year or so after my dad's death I found my heart acting up again. Sometimes one to five years would elapse between seizures. I began to ask God to show me why my brothers, dad, dad's brothers and his dad all had heart problems.

He showed me Ezekiel 18 & Exodus 20. He told me to repent for my ancestors and myself for the sin of idol worship in Leviticus 26:40-41. The curse of idol worship follows the blood line. I did these things and have been free for over seven years. I was only the second generation from previous generations that sinned before God.

INDIAN CURSES

(EXCERPTS) We need to become aware of demonic activity rooted in Indian curses. All the American Indian tribes were demon worshippers. When the white man arrived, he did many horrible things to the natives and the Indians retaliated by cursing the land from one end to the other, wherever they went.

Many today have Indian blood because of intermarriage, rape and immorality, and this can bring inherited family curses. So many times in deliverance we uncover previously unsuspected grounds for attack and harassment coming through these channels.

In Ohio recently, I tangled with a Comanche Indian spirit in a woman. A blue-eyed blonde with Comanche heritage! As the demon manifested and I demanded his name he answered, "Thunderbird"! "And what do you do?", I asked. "Well, what do you think I do? Stupid! I thunder...I cause commotion. But she won't do it. She is no fun, she just won't do it at all. We haven't given up and are still working on it, but she won't let us do anything". He then called her some obscenities as we closed in and forced him to go and thunder some other place.

Immediately another Indian spirit manifested. Haughtily, he announced he was Firebird. "I strut, I plan, but she's no fun. This stupid bitch! I tell her 'paint your face, fix yourself up' but she just won't do it. She likes to be clean and neat. How sickening! I want her to paint her face and eyes like a harlot, but she won't do it." His frustration over this has ceased for he has gone where it is very dry. (Job 30:3-8).

DELIVERANCE OF AN EAGLE SCOUT

(Excerpts) (Excellent testimony - applies to Boy Scouts, Girl Scouts and all forms of scouting.) All of these three years of learning and games were drawn directly from an Indian background.

We were taught all about the American Indians. We even had a yell we screamed as a unit: "Akeyla, we will do our best!" Now I believe that Akeyla was some Indian spirit, possibly a sun god. Through scouting I was introduced to horoscopes. At the end of my Cub Scouting career, I danced my first Indian dance.

In the scouts here was much tedious work to be done, including lots of memorization, scout oaths, and law, etc.

We moved to a new house and more and more I became involved in scouting until soon it was absorbing most of my spare time.

As a Cub Scout summer camp staffer, scouting became my goal.

The following summer I worked as a staffer at a regular Boy Scout camp and became an Eagle Scout.

The Order of the Arrow is an organization within scouting which takes scouts from regular troops, elected by their fellow troopers.

In the ceremony, we symbolically mixed blood and took a log off of a brother's shoulder, and put it on our own, symbolically taking their burdens upon us.

We were given a real Indian name, actually becoming an Indian. The Order of the Arrow deals with many authentic ceremonies and dances from Indian demon worship and dancing before evil spirits.

As Guard of the Lodge in the ceremonies that summer, I used my Indian name, and for seven weeks we dressed in authentic Indian costumes.

As the spiritual leader per se, of the ceremonies in which I was involved, I moved deeper and deeper into heathenism and sin.

Shortly after this I was baptized in the Holy Spirit, but no one warned me that much I was involved with was wrong.

Everything done in scouting is designed to build up the individual in the soulish realm. One of the big points stressed is self-reliance, rather than reliance on God as Scripture teaches.

Although scouting did much for me and taught me good things I missed at home and in the classroom, now I realize that it was not without penalty.

I had to break very strong, ungodly soul ties with my camp director, a scouting professional whom I idolized. For example, the main group sponsoring scout troops is the churches, although scouts teach many un-scriptural principles.

The number one supporter of the scouts is the Roman Catholic Church.

To those saved and Spirit-filled, scouting continues to control and interferes with spiritual growth.

The next fall, as a growing baby Christian, I began to pray and stand on faith for things.

It was my senior year in high school and because I was now very active in sports and scouting there was no free time to pray or read the Bible.

Help came from an adopted medicine man, not a natural Indian by birth, but nevertheless he possessed an unholy power of which he was unaware.

I did recognize what was happening because I had learned some truth. He introduced this ungodly control into the ceremonies I was directing. This man did Indian dances at the camp and cast curses at all of us, the staff, the children, their parent* on visitor's night and all the fathers who stayed with the boys.

As Chief of the Lodge and Chief of the Ceremony I held control. This satisfied a witchcraftoriented control in my life which craved dominance.

I wanted it to be a witness for Him, but He cannot bless what is already cursed in His Word.

Some Scripture that I found which applies to my experiences and bears on the abominations of the heathen are: Ephesians 5:6-17; II Kings 21:2; II Chronicles 28:3; 33:2,9; 36:14; Ezra 6:21. "Ye should know that I am the Lord for ye have not walked in My statutes, neither executed My judgments, but have done after the manners of the heathen that are around about you" (Ezekiel 11:12). This is what I had done. Through Ezekiel 20:9,14 and Psalm 135:15, God spoke to me concerning the many scouting awards I received and the many things which I had made idols in my life.

The idols of the heathen were silver and gold, the work of the man's hands.

Indians were great sky watchers and much of their activity and life was dictated by studying the stars. "Thus saith the Lord, learn not the ways of the heathen, and be not dismayed at the signs of heaven, for the heathen are dismayed at them" (Jeremiah 10:2).

It was a real struggle to praise, pray and read the Word. I grew weary of the constant spiritual battles and pressures but the Lord sustained and kept developing me spiritually in spite of the obstacles.

One deliverance uncovered outer layers of pride, hatred and many, many other things which had come through the Boy Scout spirits. There was a host of Indian spirits, a stronghold of Indian lore, and Indian witchcraft, tied in with Indian chants and dances.

I had two Indian counselors, Sitting Bull and Geronimo, who filled me with Rebellion, Anger and Resentment toward authority.

It was discerned that I had an Indian chiefs headdress at home which hindered my deliverance. This was a demonic stronghold and constituted legal grounds for them to stay.

They bound up the spirits so I could go home and destroy all the remaining artifacts and other scouting treasures that I had saved. These powerful soul ties had such a control over me and were so much a part of me that this was extremely difficult.

As I began to unpack I began to realize just how much time scouting had taken in my life.

When I began to burn my scout treasures it produced some immediate deliverance. Although I had already renounced scouting and the Order of the Arrow, so long as I clung to my mementos there was still bondage.

The Lord gave me Scriptures to encourage me: "The graven images of their gods shall ye burn with fire; thou shalt not desire the silver or gold that is on them nor take it unto thee, lest thou be snared therein for it is an abomination into thine house, lest thou be a cursed thing like it but thou shalt utterly detest it and thou shalt utterly abhor it for it is a cursed thing" (Deuteronomy 7:25, 26; Exodus 20:3; Joshua 7). To me this meant I was not even to save the real gold or silver from the medals and rings but had to destroy them completely. Also in Acts, I read, "Many of them also which used curious arts brought their books together and burned them before all men and they counted the price of them and found it fifty thousand pieces of silver, so mightily grew the Word of God and prevailed." (Acts 19:19).

I had to do away with these idols and curious arts involving the witchcraft of Indian lore.

As I was being freed, I began to wonder what part the Illuminati played in the Boy Scouts of America and how they managed to use the organization to further their destructive conspiracy. From my experience I believe it has much to do with the control and programming of youth, much as Hitler trained German young people, taking them away from their families.

Immediately following the fire, I noticed I could pray more easily and effectively.

I was now able to receive much more deliverance because I had broken the ties with scouting, destroying all legal grounds for them to stay. Astrology was cast out. He had come in through studies for merit badges and the demon bragged that Lucifer was the bright and shining star. Evil soul ties with the star had to be broken. Astrology said, "That stupid bastard burned all that stuff! Why did he do that? Why did he choose that? He broke all the holds we had when he destroyed it all". (There seven spirits of Astrology.)

When Indian witchcraft came up I began to see Indian faces and saw the face of the Indian medicine man who had painted us at camp. His face was running around in my mind, tormenting me, and we cast out his name and his spirit. Next were cast out spirits of Akeyla, Matoula (the medicine man I played), War Whoops, and Indian Folk Lore.

I had renounced the legend I learned from the Lenelanapa, the Indian tribe from which the ritual came. The spirit of Lenelanapa (means real men) was thrown out. There was a spirit and curse of Baby Pow and Baby Pow Reincarnation. Baby Pow claimed to be the founder of scouting and this spirit told us that scouting takes the boys from their mothers.

There were many dance spirits including Rain Dance and Hoop Dance. Astrology or Indian Lore Merit badges stress the golden rule in scouting, stating that the principle is found in ten major world religions today.

However, in practice they do not warn about the god of this world, and they actually promote other religions as well as Christianity. The scout spirit is mentioned frequently and I believe there is an evil spirit driving this movement.

Candles are featured in their ceremonies and they teach scouters can become a candle in the dark. This is a parody of what Jesus taught about being lights in the world.

I learned much magic as a Cub Scout and a magic award to be earned got me started into a study of magic.

Scouts are absolutely nonsectarian in their attitude towards religious training.

Leaders are urged to "neglect none of the boys, for among them somewhere may be the man who will lead the world to everlasting peace". Certainly this sounds like the Anti-Christ and scouts are programmed to think that a one-man ruler of peace will come.

When I researched the seemingly harmless Indian rituals we had used in ceremonies I learned of their connection with demon worship. They were designed to appease the evil spirits.

Some were also spectacular and often remarkable ceremonies pertaining to their many secret societies. These were similar in many ways to Odd Fellows, Freemasons and other lodges, involving sun worship and rooting back to Baal worship. It was believed that tobacco was popular with the spirits and gods and therefore it was often used in ceremonies. In dances and rituals the high point of performances came when the chief participant would lose normal control of himself and enter into another state of existence, the realm of his unconscious. Rites in many cases called for personal tortures which summoned a vision to bring wisdom and power.

How I praise God each day for deliverance from the lies and deceits of the enemy.

Alcoholic spirits (es-	Hypnotic trance	Indian Jezebel Est-	Indian witchcraft
pecially firewater &	Charms - war, health,	sanatlehi - old woman	(ability to turn one-
whiskey)	ward off evil spirits	who rejuvenates self	self into a bear, wolf,
Break curse of loss of	Idol worship Incanta-	Indian Magic, arrow-	fox, owl, snake)
prosperity	tion Chac (water God)	heads, string, gourd,	Great Buffalo spirit
Blood brothers & sis-	Indian Astrology spir-	rattles, rawhide, roots,	God of War
ters (break ties)	its (believed to be	twigs, berries, beaks	(Ojibway) Inherited
Akeyla (Sun God)	ruling spirits) when a	of birds, bird wings,	incest God fowls of
Baby Pow Astrology	star comes to earth, it	pure white pebbles,	the air (Ojibway)
Baby Pow Reincarna-	is believed to change	turquoise, eagles,	Knives
tion Anger	into a demon. Drums	blackbirds, peace	God of the stars
Baal Worship Ances-	Dominance	pipe, bones Earth	(Ojibway)
tor Gods Beads -	Dances - owl, char-	monster Tlalal-	Ka-du-te-ta (older
white meant peace;	coal, sun, snake, duck,	tecuhtli Hiawatha -	women who never
purple meant war,	chicken, horse, fire-	glandular malfunc-	die) God of herbs of
death or mourning	leaping, fish, alligator,	tions, swelling Father	the earth (Ojibway)
Aiy	crow, ghost, buffalo,	sky Indian magic spir-	Kachina doll Lene-
Anti-Christ	scalp Indian Art In-	its Fox spirit (makes a	lanapa (Indian Macho
Birdgod - Crocodile	dian artifacts Indian	witch pass through	man) Great Spirit
Amulets	chants Indian corn	fire) Indian Mythol-	Longhouse Great
Bitterness	Desertion Indian	ogy spirits (for youth)	Lodge Maid of the
Batgod - Jaguar	curses Elk Spirits In-	Indian pierced ear	Mist Great White Fa-
Cannibalism	dian drumbeat (Voo-	spirit Fireside dancer	ther Masks for dances

SPIRITS

(Ojibway, Medicine Man) Buffalo Caribou spirit Buffalo child (croa- ton) Curse on Arrowhead Blood thirsty Curse to cause cutting off Curse of firstborn to pass through the fire Hopa doll Indian rituals Child sacrifice	doo worship) Divorce Indian eye Eliminate curse on American Indians In- dian Fireside Humor spirit (Sioux) Earth Mother Indian folklore Eagle	Indian pierced ears in women, men and children Fear of lack of provision False prophecy thru money Indian scalp spirit False Indian prophecy Indian spirit of bond- age False tongues In- dian spirit of poverty Feathers Indian spirit of war Firebird Indian Sor- cery Firegod – Xi- utechli	God of the harvest Matolu (chief) God of death (Aztec) associ- ated with group KISS Medicine Bag Medi- cine Lodge Geronimo Medicine Man God's eye Medicine tipis Great Father
Mediums God of hunting (Ojibway) Moloch Greed Moon worship Heavy heart Mother earth Human sacrifice Mur- der Hoop dance Na- kedness Horoscopes Necromancy (Ojibway & Cherokee) Hatred Order of the Arrow Spirit of the Sky Spirit of the Moon Spirit of Happy Hunting (pow- erful death spirit) Pe- yote eating (open to all drug spirits) Power over life of animals Power over death of animals (es- pecially wolf) Crow medicine men Spirit of Animals Peace piper	Spirit of Trees Peace pipe worship (Cal- umet) Spirit of Grass Poverty Spirit of Wa- ter Pow-wow Spirit of Stones Prayer to the Dead (Winnebago, Peyote cult) Spirit of Maize Spirit of Maple Syrup in trees Pride Spirit of Nature Wor- ship Priesthood of the Bow Spirit Guides Rejection Squash Blossom Raccoon spirits Squirrel Spirits Reincarnation Stag Raindance Stooped shoulder Rebellion Superstition	Resentment Submission to tribal custom Retaliation Sweat lodges & pu- berty rites Religious spirits (prophets, priests) Teepee Regeneration, green corn dance Thief Sacrifice to God of the Harvest Thunderbird (Eagle) no head, beak full of rows of wolf's teeth, powerful ruling spirit in American Indians Sisuitl (soul catcher) Sacrificial pole Scout Idols Scout Oaths Scout Societies Thun- der God - Ibeorhum Seances(Croatbn) To- bacco Spirits nicotine, cigarettes, cigar	Serpent swastika Shamans (medicine man) Seer Totem pole - Spirit of The Clan Sitting Bull War God Si-ka-ma-hi-fi (Elder creator spirit, Hidatsa) Warpath War Whoops Snake dance Wigwam (Ojibway) Song to the Morning Star (Pawnee) Will of Wisp Sorcery Woe from long march (Mohawk), Six Nations Sun worship Sun Dance (all) Wolf Spirit of the Prairie wolf Break curses of Half-Breed Spirit of the Sun Spirit of the Clouds

REFERENCES

Annihilating The Hosts Of Hell, Books I & II, by Win Worley.

3. THE CURSE OF AHAB AND JEZEBEL

BOOKLETS

Two excellent booklets have been printed by the Hegewisch Baptist Church: The Curse of Ahab for men and The Curse of Jezebel for women. Men may also have Jezebel tendencies; women - Ahab tendencies.

CURSES FOUND IN THE BIBLE

The relationship of Ahab and Jezebel provides an excellent illustration of the curse brought about by a husband and wife being out of God's divine order for the family.

However, this curse can be traced back all the way to Adam and Eve. It can be found through the Bible being manifested in different families.

God puts the greatest burden of responsibility on the men, not the women. If the men were not Ahabs and were, in fact, priests and heads of their homes, then the women would not be Jezebels! The man cannot escape his responsibility by blaming his problems on the woman.

TESTIMONIES ABOUT AHAB AND JEZEBEL

Earline will give her testimony and teaching about Jezebel from a woman's viewpoint.

Gene will give his testimony and teaching about Ahab from a man's viewpoint.

The Bible provides a lot of stories about families with Ahab/Jezebelic tendencies. It is very interesting to trace the sins of the ancestors down through the generations in the Bible. Not only can you see the sins passed down through the men but also through the women.

AHAB/JEZEBEL

Do you have more than the usual problems in finances, housing, family, etc.? This may be the curse of improper family structure (Mai. 4:6). If someone does not stop the pattern of living in the curse, they will go from generation to generation. A mother who is a Jezebel will raise Jezebel daughters and Ahab sons. Ahab fathers will raise Ahab sons and Jezebel daughters. If sons do not see their father as respected in his office of father, they have no other example to the contrary and will follow him. Likewise, the girls will probably choose a husband like their father.

When you have a Jezebel/Ahab marriage, you will have men not committed to God, home or children. These men prefer to play and pretend they are men, and only deceive themselves. Likewise, the women who have to take over the financial care and sometimes total responsibility for the children are equally deceived.

RESULTS OF AHAB/JEZEBEL RELATIONSHIP

- 1. We set the wrong pattern for our children to follow.
- 2. The children spend the rest of their adult lives trying to live normal lives.

- 3. Husbands are wrongly influenced by their wives.
- 4. Husbands let the wives do their jobs.
- 5. Ahab men are weak spiritually and may be evil.
- 6. Ahab men turn away from their families and God to achieve satisfaction in other things such as wine, women and money.
- 7. We shift our blame to the other party.
- 8. The women are placed in a position of priest and head of the home which they cannot handle.
- 9. We open our families, churches and nation to demonic attack.

JEZEBEL/AHAB REBELLIOUS INFLUENCE IN THE WORLD

- 1. Divorce one parent families.
- 2. Felinism pictures bungling father and clever mother.
- 3. Sex no restrictions.
- 4. Young people confused, rebellious.
- 5. Drugs Sex Music.
- 6. Society with emotional problems.
- 7. Effeminate, emotional, weak spiritual and weak physical men.
- 8. Women's false strength put to test usually fails.

EFFECT ON CHILDREN OF AHAB/JEZEBEL

Children are open to violence or death, even early death, because of tensions, confusions, hurts and insults given them by the family structure being out of order (Ezekiel 38:8-9). Confusion, frustration, disgust, hate, etc. lead to suicide. In trying to find their place, these children frequently give in to spirits which drive them to love of power, money, praise, fame, etc. (I Kings 21:20).

Children have fear, insecurity, frustration and difficulty learning. It leads to potential corruption, discord, growth in occult and cults, selfishness, doubt, inability to achieve, fake sickness, hypo-chondriacs and church splits.

Ahab fathers place curses on male children; Jezebel mothers - female children. Male children tend to become homosexuals; the female children - lesbians. Children will have broken marriages and families like their parents. Jezebel mothers cause children to be manipulative. Children are full of rebellion and under pressure to prove their love to their parents. Finally, children are open to satanic attack and will usually become like their parents!

YOU AND PEOPLE AROUND YOU

Such qualities as these have unnatural power to seduce you, even overwhelm you. It is not charisma but seduction, and it creates bondage. You may have a friend whom you at times have a great desire to be free of, and the next moment feel guilt or condemnation for desiring your freedom. Consider why you are attracted to your friend.

Look out for mothers/dads who try to dominate married children's lives, and men/women who cannot delegate authority but try to mind every detail.

Women/men shouldn't try to force mate into a religious experience, but win him/her by quiet and joyful submission to the Christian life, fulfilling your role as God established it.

CURSE OF AHAB - SCRIPTURE EXPLANATION

Omri was an idol (demon) worshipper and Ahab's father; Omri did worse than all the kings before him. He set the pattern for his son to follow and Ahab did evil in the sight of the Lord above all that were before him, even Omri (I Kings 16:25, 28 & 30).

He married Jezebel, daughter of Ethbaal, king of the Zidonians who worshipped Baal. So Ahab served and worshipped Baal. Ahab was influenced spiritually by Jezebel. Baal was the male god; Asherah - female god (I Kings 16:31; 18:17-19).

Ahab told Elijah that he, not Ahab, was the one that troubled Israel. Ahab would not take his responsibility but shifted blame for his problems and those of his father (I Kings 18:21). He persecuted the prophets (I Kings 18:4, 13 &19).

Ahab told Jezebel about Elijah killing the prophets of Baal. Jezebel was the one that took action against Elijah (vowed to kill him), not Ahab. He let her do his job (I Kings 19:1).

Ahab not only worshipped Baal; he was disobedient to God and did not follow Elijah's prophecies.

He grieved over not getting Naboth's vineyard; he was greedy. Ahab let Jezebel do his dirty work of stealing the vineyard. Then he did not mind about hearing of Naboth's death. He sold himself to Satan to work evil (I Kings 21:4, 7, 16, 19 & 20).

His children were affected by the deeds of Ahab (I Kings 21:21).

He was dominated by his wife to do evil. God forgave him when he humbled himself before God (I Kings 21:25 & 29).

He hated the truth and the prophets of God. He was willing to imprison and torture them (I Kings 22:8 & 27).

He was subtle and willing to use Jehoshaphat as a decoy to be attacked.

Ahab's son was Ahaziah; he followed his parents' evil ways. He followed Baalzebub, the god of Eberon.

Another son of Ahab, Joram, did evil but not like his parents (II Kings 3:1-2).

Jehoram married the daughter of Ahab; he also did evil in the Lord's sight. He was crafty like Ahab (II Kings 8:18; II Chron. 18:2). He also persecuted the prophets (II Kings 9:7 & 22).

The death of Jezebel is foretold and happens as predicted (II Kings 9:10 & 30-37).

AHAB CHARACTERISTICS

He brought grief and judgement on himself and nation. He opened the floodgates for idol worship into the nation and homes. He did not oppose murder for greed or any other purpose. Once entered into the mind of an Ahab man, he will accept more and more wanton acts of a depraved nature. There is a loss of manhood and fatherhood.

JEZEBEL REBELS

She killed God's prophets which is rebellion against God. She exhibited hate, retaliation and threatenings.

GENE'S AHAB CHARACTERISTICS

- 1. Leaving spiritual leadership up to Earline about how to raise children.
- 2. Breakdown of communications between Earline, Marie and me as I pursued spiritual goals but neglected my family.
- 3. Fear of getting hurt by others especially by my family and Earline's family.
- 4. God of jobs at one time when I put my job first, family second and God last. Now it is reversed: God first, family second and job last.
- 5. Leaving things of God to wife occurred partially such as receiving the Baptism. I suggested that Earline receive it first.
- 6. I came from a poor family and had a materialistic drive until Byron died.
- 7. We had many misunderstandings as Ahab husband and Jezebel wife.
- 8. I did not believe in having an argument with my wife. So, I would go into my room, study engineering, and not talk to Earline.
- 9. We even came close to separation and divorce at our low point about ten years ago.
- 10. I was somewhat unemotional and could not show love the way I should.
- 11. The greatest blessing was that God kept us from wholeheartedly pursuing fame and fortune before Byron died.
- 12. Earline said I acted like an Ahab but did not give in anytime!

Jezebel's aim was accurate in spiritual perspective, but her acts were against God and His plan. So by not opposing Jezebel, Ahab gave consent and was guilty of being an accessory to the crime.

Satan's evil desires are seen in the evil acts of men (John 8:44). Influence is what a demon does to you from the outside; control - inside. You have to be careful what you allow to influence you because demons hope to gain control later on through the influence.

Ahab broke the Ten Commandments; he coveted the man's field.

Ahab married a woman devoted to everything that God hated and forbid. This opened a breach upon Israel through which Satan gained astonishing power and flooded Israel with evil. Even so, a man opposed to God who submits to his wife or other women, opens the floodgate for evil to pour upon his family.

AHAB REBELS

The major rebellion was against God in Baal worship. He went after other idols. Worshipping idols is the worst rebellion against God.

Ahab exhibited characteristics of confusion, disobedience, resentfulness, sullenness and greed. He was an accomplice to Jezebel, believed a lying spirit, refused to believe God, and begat rebellious children.

She turned from the role of woman and wife to trying to upstage the King, her husband. She belittled him, connived behind his back, and plotted murder and control of people. Some women/men today use seemingly pure religious motives to control others such as prophecy - telling others what to do (soulish prophecy - charismatic witchcraft).

Another motive behind her rebellion was that she wanted worship and admiration.

Jezebel is true sorcery. Rebellious Jezebel males/females will ask questions aimed at causing the other person to doubt their worth, ability, decisions, etc.

She ended up being thrown out a window, run over by chariots and eaten by dogs. Did she go to Hell?

ELIJAH DESTROYS BAAL'S PROPHETS (I KINGS 18:17-40)

If you believe that Jesus is Lord, He said to cast out demons (envoys of Satan) and He said don't cast them out of the unsaved (Matt. 12:43-45 & I Kings 18:21).

Many times in deliverance sessions the demons inside someone will cry out for help. If the demon power is bound in Jesus' name, the demon gets no help and the name of Jesus answers by actions; the demon leaves. Who is greater? (I Kings 18:24).

God's people should dictate directions and conditions, not Satan (I Kings 18:25).

It is tough on Satan when he is on open display. He does not like talk of demons because as long as he is hidden, he has power; but shown in the light of God, he limps around (I Kings 18:26).

Satanists cut themselves, eat flesh and drink blood (I Kings 18:28).

The Devil usually will not exhibit himself when God's presence is real but will manifest when people give their will over to his direction. "The devil made me do it" is always a lie! (I Kings 18:29).

LIST OF SCRIPTURE ABOUT AHAB, JEZEBEL AND OTHERS Other Families In The Bible

Learn to identify mistakes the people made as you read their stories. The only person that didn't make any mistakes was the Lord Jesus Christ!

Gen.	3	(Eve) Jezebel Spirit.
	3:3	(Eve) Added to God's Words.
	3:6	(Eve) Did wrong & persuaded Adam.
	16:1	(Sarah) Act of Jezebel.
	16:5	(Sarah & Hagar) Contention and strife results of Jezebel.
	21:9	(Isaac &Ishmael) Mocking & forever of nations.
	25:23	(Rebekah) Knew Jacob was to rule over Esau.
	25:29	(Jacob) Also has Jezebel spirit connives to get birthright; results in confusion in children.
	27:1-29	(Rebekah & Jacob) Again connive to get blessing.
	27:41	(Esau) Hates Jacob.
	27:46	(Rebekah & Jacob) Fear.
Ch. 2	5 & 27	Report of contention, strife & wearing down of families.
Isa. 3	:12	(Children and women rule).

Ahab

1 Kings	16:25,28-33; 17:1; 18:1,4,13,17-19,21,46 19:1-3; 20:2,13-14,34,42-43;
	21:1,3-5,7,15-16,18-21,24-25,27,29 22:1,3-4,6,8-9,20,27,30,34,38-41,49-
	50,52
2 Kings	1:1-2,17; 3:1-2,5; 8:16,18,25,27*29 9:7-10,22,25,29-30,37; 10:1,10-11,17-
	18,30 21:3,13,23
2 Chron	18:1-3,19; 21:6,13; 22:3-8
Jeremiah	29:21-22
Micah	6:16
Revelation	2:20

Jezebel

1 Kings	16:31; 18:4,13,19; 19:1-2; 21:1
2 Kings	9:7,37
Revelation	2:30

SPIRITS OF AHAB

SPIRITS OF JEZEBEL

SI INITS OF AIIAD		SI IKI IS OF JEZEBEL	
Overloading wife	Accusation	Distrust	
Dirty stories	Indecision	Revenger	
Pride	Aggression	Deception	
Degradation Pornog-	Intimidation	Rationalization	
raphy Destruction of	Attention seeking	Delusion	
family priesthood	Insinuation	Rebellion	
Pouting	Arrogance	Demanding	
Doubting manhood	Insecurity	Strife	
Passive quitter	Beguiling	Defeat	
Drunkenness	Inadequate	Slander	
Rebellious children	Belittling	Determined maneu-	
Emasculations	Intellectualism	vers	
Rejection	Bickering	Sharp temper	
Emotional cripple	Inhospitable	Dominance	
	Overloading wife Dirty stories Pride Degradation Pornog- raphy Destruction of family priesthood Pouting Doubting manhood Passive quitter Drunkenness Rebellious children Emasculations Rejection	Overloading wifeAccusationDirty storiesIndecisionPrideAggressionDegradation Pornog-Intimidationraphy Destruction ofAttention seekingfamily priesthoodInsinuationPoutingArroganceDoubting manhoodInsecurityPassive quitterBeguilingDrunkennessInadequateRebellious childrenBelittlingEmasculationsIntellectualismRejectionBickering	

breakdown Lust of material things Conditional love Lack of confidence Childish behavior Liking sensual women Competition Macho spirit Covetousness Misunderstandings Compromise Manipulating women Clashing conflict Murder Considering God's things trivial No order Call evil good - good, evil No peace Displeased No unity Disobedient

Resentment Failure Scared Fearful Separation & divorce Fear of getting hurt Sibling rivalry Fear of women Sluggishness Filth Stoicism Following sins of the father Tragic mistakes God of sports Unemotional God of jobs Upset children Heavy spirited Workaholic Hatred of women Worship of enterprise, success, profit, promotion & wealth Homosexuality Hurts X-rated movies Inability to designate authority

Backbiting Interference Brash, bossy woman Jealousy Bedroom blackmail Jezebel Conniving Lack of confidence Contention Lying Continuous complaining Lawlessness Condemnation Laziness Confusion Manipulation Counterfeit spiritual gifts Mistrust Conditional love Nagging Charming Overindulgence **Controlling spirits** Pouting Dissatisfaction Pride Demands Perversion (sexual & spiritual) Double mindedness Psychology Doubt Philosophy Disunity Projected guilt Discord Quick temper Disruption

Short temper Emotional outburst Sorcery Failure Shirk responsibility Fear Sensitive Frustration Sharp tongue Forsaking protection Sleepiness Female dominance & control Shame Female hardness Suicide Fierce determination Spiritual blindness False sickness Self-defeating Finger pointing Sorrow Frigidity Turmoil Grief Ungodly discipline Hatred of men Unbelief Hot temper Ugliness Hasty marriage Vanitv Hopelessness Witchcraft Hypnotic control Inability to give or receive love Whining Irresponsibility Worldly Wisdom Retaliation

SECTION 6 - THE CURSE OF THE BASTARD

CONTENTS

- 1. Scripture
- 2. King David
- 3. General
- 4. Examples
- 5. Earline's Story
- 6. Abnormal Sexual Activities In Pagan Worship
- 7. Repentance And Forgiveness
- 8. Sins Of The Ancestors
- 9. List Of Sexual Demons

SCRIPTURE

A person begotten out of wedlock shall not enter into the assembly of the Lord; even until his tenth generation shall his descendants not enter into the congregation of the Lord" (Deut. 23:2).

KING DAVID

Let's take a Bible example: David in II Sam. 11:2 conceived a bastard. The results were murder to cover it and death to the child;

What happened to David's children as a result of this one act of disobedience? Nathan told David that God would have given him more wives but to take Uriah's only wife was very evil. God placed a sword in David's house; it would raise up evil against David out of his own house. David's wives would be taken by others and lain with in sight of all Israel.

Household results were murder, incest and rebellion. Amnon, David's firstborn, raped his halfsister Tamar; Absalom killed Amnon in revenge; Tamar was destitute; Absalom took David's wives in the sight of Israel; and much more evil. In II Sam. 14-15, Absalom was very rebellious to his parents, planned to take the throne and to kill his father.

Of David's first six sons: Amnon raped Tamar and then was murdered by Absalom. Of the second, Chibab; fifth, Sephatiah; and sixth, Itham, no mention is made. Third, Absalom, was rebellious, murderer, attempted murder of father, and was murdered himself. Fourth, Adonijah, plotted and attempted to take David's throne when David had his last illness. These had total disregard for God's house.

GENERAL

When a bastard is conceived in lust, it is not true love. True love is protecting and providing. Neither is present when the bastard is conceived. Demons of lust will follow all children of this line. Besides lust, all types of demons follow them and try to gain entrance.

Present day observations include more bastards, family and personal rebellion, sickness, suicide, can't feel welcome or at peace in God's house, murder, delinquency, mental illness, and physical deformities.

EXAMPLES

Four family generations which included mother, daughter, grandchildren and great-grandchildren. Mother ran away from home at fifteen (claimed poverty was the reason), lived with a man, conceived a bastard daughter. The daughter runs away at fifteen, lives with man, conceived granddaughter; lives with another man, creates another bastard grandson and granddaughter; marries, has legitimate grandson; divorces, lives with another man and has bastard granddaughter. First granddaughter entices man to sex, conceives child and forces man into marriage. Second granddaughter, the step-father exposes himself to her. First grandson is very promiscuous. Second grandson is only Christian with any strength; he is very weak and unsure. Last granddaughter, thirteen years old, finds out she is also a bastard and is broken-hearted over it.

At present, daughter is married, found Bible, got saved and sought deliverance. Mother refuses to forgive.

Example: An unsaved drunkard conceives daughter with prostitute. Gets saved, visits daughter and finds her being raised in house of prostitution. His family agrees to take her into their home. Curse of bastard affects even the legitimate children; one son has bastard and another son is petty criminal.

EARLINE'S STORY

Great-grandfather marries great-grandmother in church. All seems well; has three children. Great-grandfather dies. Great-grandmother discovers she can not get his railroad pension because she is his fifth wife. My grandfather becomes very bitter and a little paranoid. My mom is paranoid and schizophrenic. She abused me physically.

Here are some of the problems created for me by this curse. Never feeling at home in any church for long. Never feeling good about myself. Being ashamed for people to look at me even though I didn't know what I wanted to hide, overriding fear, striving excessively to succeed and stopping short of realizing the goal, fear of failure, fear of authority, resisting authority, fighting verbally and physically, demonic pressure to sexual activities, and not much joy in natural or spiritual life.

Youth and Adults

Young people - if things severely pressure you, you have tendency to perversions or violence, agitating passion, moral conflict and craving or covetousness, perhaps the bastard curse is on you. Does crime fascinate you, are you excessively self-conscious, are you ashamed for people to look at you even when you don't know why, have an unusual desire to please peers and adults, fear of not being accepted by God, sell yourself for nothing, don't respect yourself, don't trust and obey God or parents, deviate from God's moral code, have no joy and are double-minded?

Where does true joy come from? Only a clear, pure heart can have true joy. This joy abides through trouble. All other joy is either partial or counterfeit.

Adults - if you have the same problems including the inability to love, guide and lead your children into a Godly life, you also may have the bastard's curse or you may have started it.

Each time a bastard is created, whether it comes to birth or is aborted, ten generations of bondage is started. If it happens with you, and by some good fortune it is avoided for nine generations and happens again, the countdown starts over.

ABNORMAL SEXUAL ACTIVITIES IN PAGAN WORSHIP

Read and study these scriptures: Num. 22-31; Rom. 1:18-32; Rev. 2:4; I Cor. 6:15-16. See Strong's Concordance under Ashtoreth, Ashtaroth, Queen of Heaven, Tammuz. If you look these names up in Biblical dictionaries and encyclopedias as well as secular dictionaries and encyclopedias you will see that all forms of deviate and demonic sexual behavior is the basis of their worship. As we engage in these sexual acts we are worshiping (whether we realize we are worshiping or not does not make any difference in the consequences) but we are not worshiping the God of the Bible. It is very difficult for people to leave their religions so it is hard for people to give up immoral sex acts once they have engaged in them.

REPENTANCE AND FORGIVENESS

Repentance and forgiveness are absolute necessities. We must see this sin as God sees it. For worshipping idols, only three to four generations are cursed; but for a bastard - ten generations. A Bible generation is forty years; this curse runs 400 years if no one does it after the first occurrence. Next, we must break the curse and call out the demons. After this is done, we must renew and discipline our mind and body. We are looking to obtain a harvest of righteousness in James 3:17-18, not a harvest of curses.

Because Jesus became accursed for us, we have the privilege of breaking this curse, obtaining our family's freedom and living Godly lives that will not profane God before the heathen.

SINS OF THE ANCESTORS

Two genealogical studies prepared for non-religious purposes will clearly prove the law of generations:

"The Kallikak Family" by H.H. Goddark, Macmillian Company, New York, 1927 - Father, Martin Sr., origin was good English blood/middle class with both parents feeble-minded; from him came 41 matings, 222 feebleminded children, and ONLY 2 normal children.

First family has an honorable marriage; from it came 496 descendants, ALL NORMAL, 3 listed as degenerates, 2 alcoholics, and 1 sexually loose. All the legitimate children married into "better families" in their state and became: colonial governors, doctors, lawyers, judges, educators, traders, landowners, and respectable citizens. Among them was found: no feeble-mindedness, no illegitimate children, no immoral women, no epilepsy, no criminals, and no keepers of houses of prostitution. Of the 496 descendants, only 15 children died in infancy, 1 case of insanity, 2 victims of habitual drunkenness, and 1 sexually loose.

At the close of the War of Independence, the father, Martin Sr., went to a pub to celebrate the end of the war. There in an inebriated state he intercoursed a woman who was "loose and feeble-minded". An illegitimate son, Martin Jr., was born. Of that son, Martin Jr., there were 480 descendants. Only 46 were found to be normal, 36 were illegitimate, 33 sexually immoral, 24 confirmed alcoholics, 3 epileptics, 82 died in infancy, 3 criminals, and 8 keepers of houses of "ill fame". Of this large group some 1146 offspring were birthed; there were 262 feeble-minded, 197 considered normal, and 581 undetermined.

"The Jukes" - "A Study of the Relation of Crime, Pauperism, Disease, and Heredity in the 1900V by R.L. Ragsdale, G.P. Putnam and Sons, New York and London - Father, Max, was a hunter, fisher, hard drinker, jolly and compassionate, adverse to steady work, and became blind (probably due to syphilis). Origin was middle class Dutch.

Of his 1,200 descendants there were 280 paupers, 140 criminals, 250 arrests and trials, 140 years of imprisonment, 60 habitual thieves, 7 murderers, 50 common prostitutes, 40 syphilitic women, 400 men contracted syphilis, 40 wives contaminated, 440 totally contaminated by syphilis, 300 children died prematurely, and 50 illegitimate births. In 75 years the family of 1,200 members cost the state \$1,308,000.00 in costs in the early 1900's.

Now let's study the influence of the sins from generation to generation:

FIRST GENERATION: Max, blindness, probably due to the syphilis.

SECOND GENERATION: Effie, no information.

THIRD GENERATION: Name not recorded; harlot; married her cousin; not industrious.

FOURTH GENERATION: 4 MALES - illegitimate son; at 30 on relief; went to prison; able bodied, full health - in poor house. ANOTHER SON - at 22 on relief; at 44 breach of peace; jail at 49; in poor house rest of life. ANOTHER SON - in poor house at 23 and remained there rest of life. ANOTHER SON - at 24 on relief, assault and battery at 33, habitual drunk. DAUGHTER - harlot, poor house at 23, kept brothel, contracted epilepsy, married second cousin. DAUGH-TER - harlot, birthed illegitimate son, a licentious vagrant, married second cousin. NOTE: In this generation all offspring show profound stress with characteristics of the father.

FIFTH GENERATION: 7 MALES, 10 FEMALES: MALE — Laborer, syphilis, jail numerous times, petit liar, assault and battery, poor house most of life. MALE -- cohabited, killed at war. MALE -- at 21 on relief, jail, vagrant, soldier in rebellion. MALE — bricklayer, at 19 on relief, jail, married cousin. MALE — at 7 in poor house, was abandoned. MALE — soldier in rebellion, incurable syphilis. MALE — not industrious, temperate. FEMALE — harlot, illegitimate child. FEMALE - harlot at 21. FEMALE - deserted at 13. FEMALE - deserted at 11, dead at 14. FE-MALE -- deserted at 9. FEMALE — harlot, incurable syphilis. FEMALE - reputable character, NOTE: This is a female child given up for adoption. FEMALE -- died at young age. FEMALE - harlot. FEMALE - harlot, not industrious.

SIXTH GENERATION: Nine Males; Fourteen Females: MALE - on relief. MALE -- attempted rape, dangerous man, unmarried. MALE -- deserted at 8. MALE — incurable syphilis, assault and battery, jail. MALE — intemperate, lazy. MALE - industrious, soldier at 21, good reputation, NOTE: a child deserted who was adopted. MALE — dwarf, double jointed. MALE — intemperate, married cousin. FEMALE — harlot. FEMALE - reputable, NOTE: one of the children deserted then adopted. FEMALE — died of syphilis. FEMALE harlot, could not read or write. FEMALE — incurable syphilis, died of same. FEMALE harlot, incurable syphilis, incurable drunk, kept brothel. FEMALE — incurable syphilis, harlot. FEMALE harlot, incurable syphilis, lazy, kept brothel. FEMALE - harlot, incurable syphilis, vagrant. FEMALE — good reputation, NOTE: a child deserted, later adopted. FEMALE — blind, on relief at 27 for rest of life. FEMALE — harlot, on relief at age

Note the profound growth of the sins of the forefathers as each generation progressed. The ONLY descendants listed as reputable and good citizens were three females and one male, and they were among those children deserted who later were adopted into reputable families. Marrying blood relatives is incest.

LIST OF SEXUAL DEMONS

Sins Bastard	
Fornication (Idola-	1
trous]
Sex Orgies) Adultery]
Masculine Women	1
Effeminate Men]
Abusers of Them-]
selves with Mankind	1
(Arseno-koites or	1
Sodomite, Oral or	1
Anal Copulation)	
Sensual (Carnal, Vo-	(
luptuous, Senses, Ap-	(
petites) Evil Concu-	
piscence Inordinate]
Affections (Exces-	
sive) Lasciviousness	
(Lewd Emotions)	

Filthy Communication (Obscene, Blasphemy, Profanity) Masturbation Homosexuality and Catamite Lesbianism Pornography Exposure Uncleanness Perversion Lust and Passions, Fantasy Lust Fantasies Obscene Music, Poetry, Literature and Art Occult Sex Immorality Incest

Harlotry, Rape, Frigidity Bad Dreams Drunkenness Drugs Diseases Venereal Diseases Insanity Gonorrhea Staggering Gait Chancroid (Soft) Heart Disease Granuloma Inguinale Blindness Spirochetal Infections Ulcerative Lesions Syphilis Yaws **Congenital Syphilis** Bejel Gonorrheal Arthritis Pinta Venereal Lympogranu-loma **Relapsing Fever Aids** Topical Ulcer Meningitis **Rat-Bite Fever** Endocarditis Weil's Disease Sterility Herpes I and II Feeble-mindedness Alcoholics Epilepsy

SECTION 7 - SATAN, OCCULT AND RELIGIONS

CONTENTS

- 1. Learn About The Real Enemy Satan & His Followers
- 2. Forbidden Practices Of The Occult
- 3. Winning Over Witchcraft
- 4. Spirits Of Religious Error
- 5. Catholic Spirits
- 6. Charismatic Witchcraft
- 7. Psychic Prayers
- 8. Humanism

1. LEARN ABOUT THE REAL ENEMY SATAN AND HIS FOLLOWERS

LIST OF SCRIPTURE TO READ BEFORE OR DURING DELIVERANCE

Job 1:6-13; 2:3-13	Isa. 14:12-17	Ezek. 28:12-19
Dan. 4:34-36; 10:12-14	Matt. 17:14-18;	Matt. 28:18-20
Luke 4:1-13; 10:18-20	Luke 13:15-16	John 8:42-45
Acts 5:3-4	II Cor. 4:3-6	II Cor. 11:1-4
Eph. 4:25-27; 6:10-20	Col. 1:11-14; 2:13-15	I Thes. 2:17-20
Heb. 2:14-15	James 4:7-10	I Pet. 5:8-9
I John 3:7-9; 4:4-6	Rev. 12:7-12	Rev. 13:5-15; 20:10

SCRIPTURE ABOUT SATAN AND HIS FOLLOWERS

OLD TESTAMENT - BEFORE THE COMING OF THE LORD JESUS CHRIST Before The Recreation Of Genesis 1:2 (Isa. 24:1; Jer. 4:23-26)

- 1. Ezekiel 28:11-19
- 2. Isa. 14:4-20
- 3. Job 38:4-7

FROM THE GARDEN OR EDEN TO THE FLOOD

TROW THE GARDEN O
Gen. 3:1-15;4: 1-16;6:1-8
Matt. 24:37-39
Luke 17:26-27
II Cor. 11:3
Eph. 4:9
I Tim. 2:14

Heb. 11:4 I Pet. 3: 18-20; 4:6 II Pet. 2:4-5 I John 2:15-17; 3:11-12 Jude 6, 11

FROM THE FLOOD TO THE EXODUS

Gen. 10:8-10, 25;	Isa. 19:1-3
11:1-9; 19	Luke 17:28-30
Ex. 7:10-12,19-22;8:1-7;	II Tim. 3:8
16-19; 9:11	James 5:11

Job 1:1; 2:10	II Pet. 2:6-8
Psalms 78:43-51	Jude 7

FROM THE EXODUS TO THE DEATH OF SAUL

Gen. 6:4; 14:5-6; 15:20 36:20-21, 29 Ex. 32 Num.13: 13,22,28,33; 22-24 Deut. 1:28; 2:10-12, 20-23; 3:11-13; 7:1-5; 9:2; 20:16-18; 20-24 Josh 11:21-22; 12:4,15; 13:12,22; 14:12, 15; 15: 13-14;17:15;18:16,23; 21:11; 24:9-10 Judges 1:20; 9 I Sam. 9:15-17; 10:1-13; 15; 16:13-23; 17; 1 Sam. 18:10-22; 19:9-24; 22:16-19; 28:3-20 II Sam. 5:18-22; 21:16-22; 23:13 1 Chron. 10; 11:15; 14:9; 20:4-8 Job 26:5 Psalm 88:10 Prov. 2:18; 9:18; 21:16 Isa. 14:8; 17:5; 26:14, 19 Micah 6:5 Acts 7:38-43 II Peter 2:15-16 Jude 11 Rev. 2:14

DURING THE REIGN OF DAVID AND THE DIVIDED KINGDOM

II Sam. 24 I Kings 22:1-28 I Chron. 21:1-28 II Chron. 18 Psalm 109:6-15 Acts 1:15-20

TEACHING ON DEMONOLOGY IN THE PROPHETIC BOOKS

Isa. 24:17-23 Is a. 26: 13-19; 27:1 Isa. 30:30-33; 61:1 Dan. 10:12-14, 20-21 Zech. 3 Luke 4:18 Eph. 4:8

DANIEL'S DESCRIPTION OF THE ANTICHRIST'S KINGDOM

Dan. 2:31-45'; 7 & 8

Dan. 9:20-27; 11:21; 12:13

DEMONOLOGY IN THE OLD TESTAMENT

Gen. 35:1-4	Psalm 78:49
Ex. 12:23	Psalm 96:5
Job 4:18; 15:15	Amos 5:25-27

SOME DEMONS NAMED IN THE OLD TESTAMENT

Lev. 17:6-7	Psalms 106:34-39
Num. 5:14, 30	Is. 13:21; 34:14
Deut. 32:16-17	Hosea 4:12; 5:4
II Kings 23:8	Zech. 13:1-5

II Chron. 11:15

EVIL SUPERNATURALISM AS PRACTICED IN THE OLD TESTAMENT

Gen. 30:27; 31:19, 30, 34;	Isa 44:25; 47:9-15; 65:3-7
Gen. 41:8, 24; 44:4-5	Jer. 14:14; 19:4-6;
Ex. 22:18	27:9-11; 29:8-9
Lev. 19:26, 31; 20:1-6, 27	Ezk. 8:6-18; 12:24;
Deut. 18:9-22	13:1-9,23; 21:21-23, 29
I Sam. 6:1-5	Ezk. 22:28
II Kings g;22; 17:14-18	Dan. 1:20; 2:2,10,27-28
II Kings 21:1-7, 11	Dan. 4:6-9; 5:7,11,15
II Kings 23:4-24	Micah 3:6-7,11; 5:12-15
II Chron. 33:1-9	Nahum 3:4
Psalm 106:28-29	Zech. 10:2
Isa. 8:19-20; 19:3; 29:4	Mal. 3:5

In this study, all REFERENCES to the following words have been checked and used if related to the subject: angel, charmer, dead, devil, divination, enchantment, familiar, giants, leviathan, magic, necromancy, Satan, serpent, spirit, witch, wizard. Also every REFERENCES to Anakim, Avim, Emim, Horim, Nephilim, Rephaim, Zamzummim.

SATAN'S DIRECT ATTACKS AGAINST THE LORD JESUS CHRIST

The Gospels- During The Earthly Life Of The Lord Jesus Christ Matt. 4:1-11; 16:22-23 Luke 4:2-13 Mark 1:13; 8:33

SATAN POSSESSES JUDAS AND DESIRES TO HAVE PETER

Luke 22:3-6, 21-23, 31-34	John 17:12
John 6:64, 70-71; 13:21-30	II Thess. 2:3

JESUS AND JOHN WERE ACCUSED OF HAVING A DEMON

Matt. 9:34; 10:25; 11:18;	
12:24	
Mark 3:22, 28-30	

Luke 7:33; 11:15 John 7:20; 8:48-49, 52 John 10:20-21

SOME PEOPLE ARE DESCRIBED AS CHILDREN OF THE DEVIL

Matt. 3:7; 12:34;	Luke 3:7
Matt. 13:24-30; 23:15,33	John 8:41,44

SPECIFIC ACCOUNTS OF DEMONIC DELIVERANCE

Matt. 8:14-15, 28-34;	Mk 7:24-30; 9:14-29; 16:9
9:32-33; 12:22-23;	Luke 4:33-39; 8:2-3,27-39;

15:21-28; 17:14-21 9:37-43; 11:14; 13:11-17 Mark 1:23-31; 5:2-20;

THE AUTHORITY OF JESUS CHRIST OVER DEMONS

Matt. 4:24; 8:16-17;Luke 4:40-41; 6:17-19;8:24-27; 11:2-67:18-23: 8:23-25; 13:32;Mark 1:32-34, 39;Eph. 2:2

INSTRUCTIONS CONCERNING THE CASTING OUT OF DEMONS

Matt. 10:1,8; 12:25-29 18:18-20 Mark 3:13-15, 23-27

3:7-12; 4:37-41

Mk.6:7. 13; 9:39-40; 16:17 Luke 9:1, 49-50 Luke 10:17-20; 11:17-22

TEACHINGS CONCERNING SATAN AND HIS FOLLOWERS

Matt. 6:13, 23; 12:43-45; 13:4,19 Mark 4:4,15 Luke 1:79; 8:5,12; 11:4, Luke 11:24-26, 35; 22:53 John 1:5; 3:19; 8:12; 10:1-16; 12:31, 35, 46; 14:30; 16: 11; 17:15

STATEMENTS REGARDING SATAN AND HIS FOLLOWERS

Matt. 7:21-23 Mark 13:5; 6:21-23 Matt. 24:4-5, 23-26 Luke 21:8 Matt. 25:41; 8:29 John 5:43

NOTE: In this study of the New Testament all REFERENCES to the following words have been checked and used if they were related to the subject: (angel, anti-christ, Beelzebub, Belial, darkness, devil, demon, dragon, lion, Satan, serpent, sorcery, spirit, tempter.

THE NAMES AND TITLES OF SATAN IN THE BIBLE

In the New Testament he is called: the accuser of the brethren, the adversary, the authority of darkness, Beelzebub, Belial, the devil, the great red dragon, the enemy, the god of this age, a liar, the father of lies! a roaring lion, a murderer, the ruler of the authorities of the air, the ruler of this world, the serpent, Satan, the tempter, a thief and the wicked one. He also has these additional names in the Old Testament: Leviathan, Lucifer, the King of Babylon and the King of Tyre.

SATAN'S ATTACKS AGAINST PAUL AND PAUL'S AUTHORITY

Acts To Revelation	
I Cor. 5:1-5	I Tim. 1:18-20
II Cor. 12:7-10	II Tim. 4:17
I Thess. 2:18	

SATAN'S ATTACKS AGAINST CERTAIN GROUPS OF PEOPLE

1 Cor. 7:5	2 Cor. 2:10-11; 11:3-4
2 Tim. 2:24-26	1 John 2:13-14

SATAN USES PEOPLE AND DEMONS FOR HIS EVIL PURPOSES

Acts 5:1-11; 8:9-24	
Acts 13:6-12	
II Cor. 11:13-15	

Gal. 1:6-9; 3:1 Rev. 2:2-6, 9-10, 15, 20-25; 3:9

SATAN'S CONTROL AND RULE OVER THE WORLD AND AGE

Acts 26:14-18 II Cor. 4:3-4 Eph. 2:1-3 I Thess. 3:5 I Tim. 6:9 Heb. 2:17-18; 4:14-16 James 1:13-15 I John 3:7-12 I John 5:18-19 Rev. 2:13

BELIEVERS ARE WARNED ABOUT SATAN'S WORLD SYSTEM

John 16:33 Rom. 12:1-2 Gal. 1:3-4; 4:3 Col. 2:8-10, 20 James 1:17; 4:1-4 II Pet. 1:3-4, 20 I John 2: 15-17; 5:4-5

DARKNESS AND LIGHT· AN IMPORTANT RELATED SUBJECT

Rom. 2:17-20; 13:12 I Cor. 4:5 II Cor. 4:6; 6:14-18 Eph. 4:17-19; 5:6-14 I Thess. 5:4-5 I Pet. 2:9 I John 1:5-7; 2:8-11

DELIVERANCE FROM SPIRITUAL BONDAGE

Acts 5:16; 8:6-8; 10:36-38 Acts 16:16-24 Acts 19:11-13,20

JESUS CHRIST HAS MADE VICTORY OVER SATAN POSSIBLE

Rom. 8:31-39 Eph. 1:20-23; 3:8-12 Col. 1:13-16; 2:13-15 II Thess. 3:1-3

Heb. 2:14-15 I Pet. 3:22 I John 5:18

HOW BELIEVERS CAN ENJOY VICTORY OVER SATAN

Rom. 6:16	James 4:17
II Cor. 10:4-5	I Pet. 5:8-9

Eph. 4:17; 6:10-18 I John 4:1-6

VARIOUS TYPES OF SPIRITS MENTIONED IN PAUL'S LETTERS

Rom. 8:15; 11:7-8 I Cor. 2:12; 12:10 2 Tim. 1:7

MISCELLANEOUS ADDITIONAL TEACHING ON DEMONOLOGY

Acts 17:18; 23:7-9Titus 2:3II Tim. 3:3I Tim. 3:11I Cor. 8:1-6; 10:16-22James 2:19; 3:14-15

PROPHETIC TEACHING ON DEMONOLOGY AND THE ANTI-CHRIST

John 17:12 Acts 1:25 Rom. 16:20 I Cor. 6:1-3 II Thes. 2:1-12 I Tim. 4:1-3 II Pet. 2:1-22 I John 2:18-22 II John 7 Jude 3, 25 Rev. 11:7; 17:8

THE RISE OF SATAN'S TRINITY IN THE LAST YEARS OF THIS AGE

Gen. 37:9-10Rev. 9, 12 & 13Joel 2:1-11Rev. 11:17; 14:8-12; 15:2

THE FINAL, ULTIMATE DEFEAT OF SATAN AND HIS FOLLOWERS

Rev. 7; 16:1-2,10-11Rev. 18:2; 19:19-20Rev. 16:13-14Rev. 20:1-10

Note: For additional information on the rise of the anti-christ, his kingdom, activities and downfall, read Daniel 2:40-45; 7:7-28; 8:8-14, 19-26; 9:25-27; 11:21; 12:13.

GENERAL

His origin, afflicts body and mind, interferes with prayers and plans, murderer and liar, deceiver and accuser of Christians, Christ defeated him, his power controlled by God, we resist him, Christ resisted by the Word, and his doom.

There is a tremendous amount of Scripture that tells about Satan and his forces of evil. The Bible says more about Satan than Heaven so that you can overcome Satan and make it to Heaven!

SATAN, FALLEN ANGELS AND DEMONS

There is one Satan - one individual not omniscient, omnipresent, or omnipotent like God.

There are millions of fallen angels. Rev. 5:11 calculates at least 101,000,000 total angels. Rev. 12:4 calculates at least 33,700,000 fallen angels.

There are billions of demons. We only work with Christians and find they have many demons. If the world has billions of people and Christians have many demons, then there must be billions and billions of

DEMONS

Satan is in charge (Chief of Staff). The fallen angels are his officers. The demons are his foot soldiers. Some theorize that demons may have come from a Pre-Adamic Race but there is no scriptural REFERENCES that can be found to prove this statement.

We cast about 10,000 demons out of one man over a nine-month period. The demons freely talked and gave us information about their rank and number. One demon said that a person could have tens of thousands of demons.

THE CHAIN OF COMMAND IN THE DEMONIC REALM

(Excerpts) Demons are very conscious of authority and adhere slavishly to the "chain of command" and the line of authority structure. There are Chief Kings and Chief Princes and under them are kings and princes who rule over various geographical and spiritual areas. There are kingdoms, principalities, dominions and powers which are administered by kings and princes.

For example, each state in the United States is ruled over by a prince, e.g. Louisiana - Southern Curses. The control of a geographical area seems to rest on the success of a prince in controlling the majority of the persons within that place, but it also has to do with the ferocity and power of that prince.

A general is in charge of a legion (6,000) while a prince will control a number of legions. A ruler or captain commands a cohort (600), and there can be chief captains and chief rulers with still more authority. A centurion controls 100 demons and if he controls less than a hundred demons he is called a strongman. Any demon in authority will direct how many, and when and where pain spirits are to attack, and how sustained the attack is to be. These pain spirits are called Imps by those in charge.

Because of the rigid authority structure, a wise move in dealing with spirits is to bind all the spirits, especially the ruling ones, and the ones of violence, fighting and murder.

THE SATANIC COSMOS

(Excerpts) Derek Prince writes, "Today, by Divine providence, the veils of convention and carnality are once again being drawn aside, and the church of Jesus Christ is being confronted by the same manifest opposition of demon power that confronted the church of the New Testament. In these circumstances, the church must once again explore the resources of authority and power made available to her through the truth of the Scripture, the anointing of the Holy Spirit, and the Name and the Blood of the Lord Jesus Christ." In the Scriptures, both holy and unholy spirit beings are designated as angels (Rev. 12:7). As Dr. Chafer says, "In power, prominence and importance, Satan appears in the Bible second only to the Trinity".

Second only, therefore, to knowing the triune God and the value of His redeeming grace is knowing the truth about the enemy of God, who "as a roaring lion walketh about seeking whom he may devour" (I Pet. 5:8).

Frances Manuel gives us this useful summation: "We do not have clear and plain teaching regarding the demons themselves. Demons in vast numbers constitute a part of Satan's hierarchy and fight in his army. They are spiritual beings without bodies of their own, hence they seek embodiment; they have supernatural power and strength. They are not omniscient, but are creatures of cunning intellect, and given to deceits and wiles. They are unclean, corrupt, and bent on destruction and ruin. They degrade the bodies they invade and possess, whether of animals or men. They tremble at the Word of God and have to bow to the authority of Jesus Christ whether exerted directly by Him or by those to whom He has delegated the authority to subject them."

Mrs. Penn-Lewis defines the satanic forces described in Eph. 6:12 as: "Principalities - force and dominion dealing with nations and governments; Powers - having authority and power of action in all the spheres open to them; World Rulers - governing the darkness and blindness of the world at large; Wicked Spirits - in heavenly places - the forces being directed in and upon the Church of Jesus Christ in wiles, fiery darts, onslaught, and every conceivable deception about doctrine which they are capable of planning".

She continues: "All Teaching' originating from deceiving spirits weaken the authority of the Scriptures; distort the teaching in the Scriptures; add to the Scriptures the thoughts of men; or put the Scriptures entirely aside The test of all thought and belief therefore is its harmony with the written Scriptures in its full body of truth, and the attitude to the cross and sin".

Dr. Chafer points out that the "demon influence, like their activity, is prompted by two motives; both to hinder the purpose of God for humanity, and to extend the authority of Satan. They therefore, at the command of their king, willingly cooperate in all his God-dishonoring undertakings. This influence is exercised both to mislead the unsaved and to wage an increasing war against the believer". (Eph. 6:12)

When you were born as a human being, you became the object of extreme hatred and jealousy from the Archangel Lucifer and his hosts, for it was on human beings (not angels) that God elected to display His grace, love and mercy unexcelled.

When he saw what God was doing in placing this puny creature in charge of his former domain, the Devil immediately began to design a plan to plant rebellion in the man, thus to depose him from the position of over-lordship God had given men.

When grace was extended to the man and woman in the Garden of Eden through the provision of substitutionary blood, the promise was made that some day God would send the Saviour to be the Lamb of God.

After being outmaneuvered by God, and failing with Adam and Eve, Satan took note that God had said that the Saviour would come through the seed of the woman.

The super-angel continued to invade the affairs of men and by the time of Noah, he had managed, by supernatural power, to infiltrate the human race with angelic creatures who somehow took the bodies of humans (to father monstrous hybrid offspring, half-demon and half-human, Gen. 6:2).

At last, when the entire race had been tainted by the demonic strain, except for Noah and his family, God again struck the devil a mighty blow and had Noah prepare an ark.

Noah proved to be the glorious exception in an earth filled with violence and he found grace in the eyes of the Lord.

The result was the galling slavery of Egyptian bondage which gripped them and was to last for centuries.

On Mount Sinai, God gave them a perfect set of laws, but even while Moses was in communion with God on the mountain, Satan worked mightily.

After much purging and forty more years of agonizing preparation, God got His slow people ready for the victorious march into the promised land.

As Dr. Chafer observes, "Evidently demons have always been active in the world from the dawn of human history; but as the occasion may arise, they become more active at one time than at another. When the Son of God came to earth, took a human body and was manifested in the flesh, the very Creator and God against whom the demons had originally rebelled, there was a violent and powerful upsurge of demonic manifestations and power over all the world. It was almost as if the unseen world, in torment and resentment at the presence of the God-man, went into fresh spasms of rebellion and fury".

When the coming of the promised Messiah was near, there was a mighty Satanic upheaval.

When the time for Jesus' birth drew near, Satan struck again, moving Caesar to order a census (which was never completed).

The enemy next arranged that every inn and room in the village be filled, leaving no room for the weary couple.

Satan never gives up.

Herod's fury knew no bounds when he discovered how he had been tricked.

There were continuous attacks on Jesus during His days of ministry.

When Jesus came to the end, the super-attempt to forestall God's plan was tried.

On the cross He hung in agony and blood.

At the tomb, it seemed that Satan had finally triumphed, but (Praise God!) early on the first day of the week all was changed completely, for time and eternity. The Son of God came out of that tomb, the keys of hell and death dangling at His belt (Rev. 1:18). This was total victory!

Satan struck next by creating incest in Noah's family, and by fomenting and stirring in the affairs of the descendents of Noah.

Satan continued to work ceaselessly to drag men and women away from the place of blessing to idolatry.

The descendents of Abraham, chosen by God to carry out his promises, were sent into Egypt to sojourn during a famine, but like so many, they went to sojourn and stayed on and settled down, instead of returning to the land of promise.

THE BATTLE TODAY

(Excerpts) Satan and his forces continue today in their steadfast opposition against the overwhelming evidence that they will surely lose the battle. Dr. Chafer declares that Satan "is the living contender against the believer in the realms of spiritual life and activity as well as in the area of flesh and blood".

Satan and his fallen angels are sharply limited in power compared with God, for they are mere finite creatures who can do nothing outside the permissive will of God.

Robert Peterson points out that, "The master passion of Satan for worship leads him to gain worship by whatever method brings the best results. He gains the worship of millions of intelligent people through counterfeit systems of truth, persuading them that he does not exist; or that he holds no dread for the educated and informed, who either belittle his influence or dismiss it as humbug. The superstitious on the other hand, are held in bondage by fear, a fear the Western world cannot understand because it defies explanation".

As Mrs. George Needham observes :"... The root... of idolatry is demonology. All its stupidity and senseless ceremony are but addenda to the main facts. The senses are gratified, the passions unloosed, the conscience deluded - but chief over all, Satan is worshipped."

The demons, and all their dupes, reject the Bible.

There can be very little doubt that the demons do have a highly organized empire of evil. Peterson writes out of direct observation as a missionary in Borneo, "I myself have heard through the lips of possessed persons two demons arguing over disputed territory. It seems that the demons are given boundaries over which they are not allowed to pass. Again I have heard demons trying to assert authority over other demons. If the one trying to usurp authority is lower in rank than the other one, there is apt to be violence. On the other hand, if the demon is high in rank, other demons must submit to his higher authority".

"With those who are immersed in idolatry, Satan gains his end through fear, but with those, who, having the Bible, should be acquainted with the Devil's devices, his most effective work is that

of deluding men into believing that all this talk of demonic activity is mere superstition and unscientific nonsense, so fulfilling Satan's description as the one '... who deceiveth the whole world' (Rev. 12:9)."

Michael Harper flashes the alert that, "Behind the facade of religious life there is a spiritual battle raging. There seem to be many who are not fully aware of this warfare. From time to time there is a dramatic collision between the power of the Spirit and that of Satan. Success for the Christian will depend in a large measure on recognizing the work of the devil and knowing how to defeat and expel him from every situation So it is today, there is a fierce conflict and there are those who do not wish to pass this way. But we cannot avoid the battle - for if we do not fight the enemy, he will still come at us"

This conflict began long before the birth of Jesus and reached its height during His ministry.

Early in this century, Mrs. Penn-Lewis noted, "It is ... clear in Bible history that the manifestation of the power of God at Pentecost, and through the Apostles, meant again an aggressive attitude to the powers of darkness. Therefore, the growth and maturity of the Church of Christ at the end of the dispensation will mean the same recognition, and the same attitude toward the Satanic hosts of the prince of the power of the air; with the same co-witness of the Holy Spirit to the authority of the Name of Jesus, as in the early Church. In brief, that the Church of Christ will reach its high water mark, when ... it knows how to 'bind the strong man' by prayer; 'command' the spirits of evil in the Name of Christ, and deliver men and women from their power."

Harper writes these encouraging words: "These wicked beings can suggest evil, but cannot coerce the will of another creature. They may spread snares and devices to ruin the children of God, but cannot compel any other being to comply with their designs, nor can they employ God's creation other than as He decrees. They have never been able to defeat God, and actually God uses them as instruments to correct the erring saints" (Luke 22:31-32; I Cor. 5:5; I Tim. 1:20). Someone has remarked that Satan is like a monkey wrench which the Lord uses to tighten up loose nuts! Be of good cheer saints of God! Satan is severely limited and all his bluster and bluff about "all power" is sham. Our God is still on the throne and He rules! Hallelujah!

NAMES OF SATAN AND HIS DEMONS

I ANIES OF SATAN AND INS DEMONS					
Fallen Angel	Authorities	Whoredoms	Charmer		
Ruler of World	Evil Practices	Death	Thief		
Evil Supernaturalism	Devils	Wickedness	Hindrance		
Divination	Lucifer	Betraying	Enchantment		
King of Babylon	Denying	Familiar	King of Tyre		
Vipers	Giants	Chief Kings	Gehenna		
Leviathan	Chief Princes	Tarsus	Magic		
Kings	Children of Devil	Necromancy	Princes		
Fever	Satan	Kingdoms	Dumbness		
Serpent	Principalities	Blindness	Evil, Unclean Spirits		
Dominions	Infirmities	Witch	Powers		
False Prophets	Wizard	Prince of Southern	Curses		
Thorn in the Flesh	Anakim	Hymaneus	Avim		
Generals	Alexander	Emim	Legions		

Self-Control	Horim	Rulers	Corruption
Nephilim	Captains	Ananias & Sapphira	Rephaim
Chief Captains	Covetousness	Zamzummim	Chief Rulers
Elymas	Anti-christ	Centurion	Jezebel
Strongman	False Apostles	Belial	Imps
False Gospel	Darkness	Pain	Nicolaitanes
Demons	Affliction	Pergamos	Lion
Interference	Conformance	Sorcery	Deceiving
Oppression	Tempter	Nimrod	Python
Accusation	Tower of Babel	Unbelief	

-

2. FORBIDDEN PRACTICES OF THE OCCULT LIST OF SCRIPTURE

Ex. 7:11-12	Secret Arts
Ex. 20:3-5	Supernatural experiences outside of God
Ex. 22:18	Punishable by death
Lev. 18:10-26	Forbidden practices
Lev. 29:16, 31	Occultism and spiritually defiling
Lev. 20:6, 27	Punishable by death
Num. 33:52	Destroy the inhabitants & idols
Deut. 5:7-9	Previous generations
Deut. 7:25-26	Abomination to God
Deut. 11:16-17	Poor crops
Deut. 18:9-12	Magic practices - spiritism
Deut. 29:27	Hidden knowledge
Deut. 31:17	Many evils and troubles
Deut. 32:16-25	Continual inward fears
1 Sam. 15:22-23	Witchcraft
1 Sam. 28	Necromancy - seance
1 Sam. 31:4	Suicide
2 Kings 1:1-4	Advises your life
2 Kings 17:17	Enchantments, divination, wizardry
2 Kings 21:5-6	Burned son as offering
2 Kings 23:10-15	Destroyed idol worship
1 Chron. 10:13-14	Communication with the dead
2 Chron. 28:1-4	Abominable practices of the nations
2 Chron. 33:6	Enchantments - witchcraft
Ps. 106:24-31	Worshipped Baal of Peor
Pro. 3:5-7	Fortune telling
Pro. 28:13	Covereth his sins
Isa. 2:6	Diviners, soothsayers, strike hands
Isa. 8:17-19	Communication with the dead
Isa. 19:3	Put a spell upon
Isa. 47:9,12-13	Predicts the future
Jer. 10:2	Prognostication - observing times
Jer. 27:9-10	Enchantments - divination
Jer. 29:8	Fortune telling

Ezk. 23:37	Committed adultery with idols
Dan. 1:20	Enchantments - astrology
Dan. 2	Astrology
Dan. 4	Astrology
Dan. 5:7-12	Prognostication, observing times
Hosea 4:6	Lack of knowledge
Zech. 10:2	Harlotry brought from Egypt
Mai. 3:5-6	God does not change
Matt. 17:10-13	Elijah not reincarnated
Acts 8:9	Simon practiced magic
Acts 15:29	Meat sacrificed to idols
Acts 16:16-18	Divination, fortune telling
Acts 19:19	Break heathen images
1 Cor. 6:9-10	Idolaters go to hell
1 Cor. 10:20	Provokes the Lord to jealousy
1 Cor. 12	True spiritual gifts
2 Cor. 4:4	Satan is god of this world
Gal. 5:19-21	Shall not inherit the kingdom of God
Gal. 6:.7	God is not mocked
Eph. 5:5,11-12	Have no fellowship with darkness
Eph. 6:10-18	Stand against wiles of devil
1 Tim. 4:1	Doctrines of demons
2 Tim. 3:8	Men opposed the truth
James 1:5	Ask God for wisdom
James 4:7	Resist the devil
2 Pet. 2:1	Damnable heresies
1 John 5:21	Meat sacrificed to idols
Rev. 9:20-21	Worshipping demons and idols
Rev. 21:8	Lake which burneth with fire and brimstone
Rev. 22:15	Who loves and practices falsehood

NOTE: We recommend that you read all of the above Scripture. It will give you a good overview of the occult.

GENERAL

Definitions With Scripture

- 1. Enchantments Practice of magical arts: Deut. 18:10-12; II Chron. 33:6; II Kings 17:17; Isa. 47:8-11; Jer. 27:8-9; Dan. 1:20.
- 2. Witchcraft Practices of dealing with evil spirits (soothsaying and magic): Deut.18:10-12; II Chron. 33:6; I Sam. 15:23; Gal. 5:19-21.
- 3. Sorcery Same as witchcraft: Jer. 27:9; Isa. 47:9; Rev. 21:8.
- 4. Divination Fortune telling: Deut. 18:10-14; II Kings 17:17; Jer. 27:8-9; 29:8-9; Acts 16:16-24.
- 5. Wizardry A male witch to be destroyed in Israel: Deut. 18:11; II Kings 17:17; Exodus 22:18.

- 6. Necromancy Seance communication with the dead: Deut. 18:11; I Sam. 28; Isaiah 8:19; I Chron. 10:13-14.
- 7. Charming To put a spell upon: Deut. 18:11; Isaiah 19:3.
- 8. Star Gazing Astrology prognostication and observing times: Isaiah 47:12-15; Jer. 10:2; Dan. 1:18-20; 2; 4; 5:7-15.
- 9. Room Decorations & Television Programs Room decor using oriental gods, zodiac signs and "Aztec sun gods". Television programs such as "Night Gallery", "Sixth Sense", "Ghost Story", "Kreskin", and "Bewitched". We no longer have a television set.

Short Definitions

- 1. Diviner One who uses false means to discover the divine will of God.
- 2. Observer of Times (Soothsayer) one who pretends to tell future events.
- 3. Enchanter (Song Spell, Augur) uses incantations and pronounces spells for and of evil spirits.
- 4. Witch (Sorcerer)- one who deals with evil spirits in order to work a spell on people.
- 5. Charmer (Serpent Charmer).
- 6. Consulter with Wizard (Clairvoyant or Physic) -a male witch.
- 7. Necromancer (Familiar Spirit) calls forth the spirits of the dead.
- 8. Familiar Spirits (Medium).
- 9. Children To Pass Priests burned children to death as a sacrifice to heathen Through The Fire gods.

Spiritual Adultery and Death

The Scriptures condemn all forms of occultism and sorcery, and warn that "...they which do such things shall not inherit the kingdom of God" (Gal. 5:19-21) but "...are an abomination unto the Lord" (Deut. 18:12) and "...shall have their part in the lake which burneth with fire and brimstone" (Rev. 21:8). From earliest times God forbade occultism as spiritually defiling (Lev. 19:31) and made participation in it punishable by death (Ex. 22:18; Lev. 20:27) and cause for rejection of that soul by God (Lev. 20:6).

The results of consulting or practicing the occult leads to demon possession for you and your descendants, and finally being tormented in Hell for eternity! There isn't any ultimate reconciliation!

Almighty God calls seeking after other gods (occult) as spiritual adultery, fornication and whoring!

Ancestors, parents or yourself can cause curses to come on you or your children. This is the inheritance of the curse.

WARNING AGAINST CONTACT WITH THE OCCULT

(Excerpts) According to the Scriptures, the sins of the fathers are visited upon the third and fourth generations of those who disobey God. It is carefully pointed out in Exodus 20:5 when the law was given, and is specifically connected with the commandment prohibiting the construction and worship of graven images which constitutes the worship of demons. For those who disregard this stark warning and make contact with occult spirits, there will be terrible and certain repercussions in the form of sickness, misery, insanity, and sometimes an early death.

There are many, many ways in which the occult spirits are given ground through various contacts, and cause marital upheaval and other problems of all kinds. Unless the curse is broken, it will continue to plague the family and its descendants to the third and fourth generations. It predisposes people to be physically oriented and sensitive, and through psychic heredity, to pick up more curses and spirits, thus extending the hereditary blight to many generations.

TYPES OF OCCULTISM

(Excerpts) Occultism is participation or involvement in any way with fortune telling, magic practices, spiritism, (or false religious cults and teachings.) Contact with the occult may have occurred in childhood. Occult involvement can come from previous generations (Deut. 5:7-9). Check yourself out with the following lists:

Fortune telling (Proverbs 3:5-7): Palm-reading, crystal ball, cards, tea leaves, handwriting analysis, games such as Ouija, ESP, Telepathy, Kabala, Horoscope, Clairvoyant, Voodoo, etc.; pendulums, horoscopes, and astrology; anything that predicts your future or advises your life (Isaiah 47:13; II Kings 1:1-4).

Magic Practices and Spiritism (Deut 18:9-12):

mediums and séances, table-tipping, levitation, necromancy, communicating with the dead or spirit guides, automatic writing, divining, water-witching, or dowsing with forked sticks or other objects for water, oil, minerals, underground sewer and water lines, etc.; ESP, PK (psychokinesis), telepathy, clairvoyance, Coloradans psychic powers, second sight, hypnosis, self-hypnosis, remote influence of the sub-conscious mind of others, auras, metaphysics, mental science, selfrealization, visions, trances, dreams; superstition, witchcraft; black, white, and neutral magic, charms, good luck items, fetishes, runes, amulets, talismans, mascots, medals, crux ansanta (ankh), birth signs, spells, incantations, potions, sorcery, curses, materialization or apport, apparitions, ghosts, poltergeists; magic healing through wart or burn charming, powwow, spiritualism, psychic spirit or metaphysical healing, Christian Science healing, rod or pendulum diagnosis, trance diagnosis, acupuncture, yin-yang. All books, literature, music, etc. dealing with occultism.

SPIRITUAL ADULTERY

Divination - A very general term taking in any supernatural process of gaining hidden knowledge that cannot be discerned through the natural mind or senses. For example, water-witching, use of Ouija boards, fortune tellers, mediums and horoscopes. (The Bible has three approved ways of gaining hidden knowledge: (1) prayer to the Father in Jesus' name, (2) the legitimate spiritual gifts of the Holy Spirit, and (3) divine revelation from the Word of God.)

Observer of Times - The following of horoscopes, omens in the sky and nature, astrology and monthly prognostication. (Rom. 6:3-11 tells us that Christians have been crucified and buried with Christ Jesus. II Cor. 5:17 tells us that if any man is in Christ Jesus he is a new creation in Jesus. This being true there is no way to plot our lives by the heavens or good and bad omens seeing how we are now identified with the Creator and not the creation.)

Enchanter - One who uses the human voice or music to bring another person under psychic control. Hypnosis and spell casting come under enchantments.

(The Deceiver should be controlled only by the Holy Spirit. He does not need an enchanter to get into his mind to discover the past, present or future. All he has to do is ask God who will give him all the wisdom he needs James 1:5).

Witch and Wizard - Female and male, respectively, who practice white, grey, or black magic. Anyone who uses clairvoyant or psychic powers such as ESP, mental telepathy, levitation of objects, astral projection, etc. In the Old Testament physical death was the cure for witchcraft (Ex. 22:18); in the New Testament eternal damnation (Galatians 5:20-21).

Charmer - The use of amulets, potions and symbols to hypnotize, cast spells, bring good luck, o charm away warts and diseases, and to give protection from evil. Some of these are as follows:

1. The Ankh or Luv Knot symbolizes sexual intercourse, eternal life, and is often used in the Devil's pentagram. It has nothing to do with the eternal life purchased by the cross of Jesus Christ and should not be worn on the body.

2. The devil's or witches' foot, an old symbol in black magic. It has nothing to do with peace.

The Word tells us that the believer can have health and good success through obedience to the Word (Psa. 1:1-3; Prov. 4:20-21). We can appropriate divine health through and because of the stripes of Jesus by prayer with faith. (Psa. 103:2-4; I Pet. 2.24; James 5:14-15).

Consulter With Familiar Spirits - A medium who uses a demon or evil spirit to tell them about the present or future of individuals, or the location of lost persons or objects. (In Acts 16:16-18 Paul met a fortune telling girl who had a familiar spirit or a spirit of divination. Paul cast the spirit out of her. He would have never done this if it was a gift from God.)

Necromancer - This is a medium who consults a demon that mimics a dead person. The necromancer will often go into a trance and let the evil spirit take over his body and speak through him. Ecc. 9:5-6 tells us that the dead do not know anything, that they have no emotions, and they have no portion of the earth. It is appointed unto man once to die and after that the judgement (Heb. 9:27.) The spirit of a dead person either goes to heaven or hell when he dies.

PRAYERS FOR BREAKING WITCHCRAFT CONTROL AND CURSES

(Excerpts) - "We break all curses and control of witchcraft as uttering a wish of evil against one; to call for mischief or injury to fall upon; to execrate, to bring evil upon or to; to blast, vex, harass or torment with great calamities; individuals working in concert with a specific form of evil spirit activity; Satanic covens of witches and warlocks; persons dabbling with witchcraft and sorcery, casting spells, potions, enchantments and curses; wrong kinds of psychic prayers; and witchcraft control (Pro.26:2; Psa. 109; I John 1:9; Gal. 3:10-15).

I am now closing any door I may have opened to you, Satan, through contact with witchcraft, occult, and similar activities. I am closing the door against all these things I know about and all the things I don't know about. I renounce you and all your demons and I'm closing every door I may have opened. Christ redeems those who put their trust in Him. Jesus Christ became a curse on the cross for us and blotted out the handwriting of ordinances against us. We claim and apply these principles. We break the curses back to twenty-five generations or even to Adam and Eve. All legal holds and legal grounds are removed in Jesus name.

We break all curses, spells, hexes, etc. sent upon us by envious enemies who seek to harm us or kill us or wreak havoc physically, emotionally, and/ or spiritually. We bind and order any demons to come out of us and return to the senders escorted by angels to destroy that seat of witch-craft. The demons are commanded to confuse and sow terror and panic in the hearts of witches and warlocks.

Since we have power over the demons (through Jesus' name), they are our slaves and they must obey us as we command. We command the demons to attack their own works and to destroy each other and to shake the kingdom of evil to its very foundation (Rom. 6:16; II Pet. 2:19; Matt. 12:28; Luke 11: 20).

Lord Jesus Christ, I believe You died on the cross for my sins and rose again from the dead. You redeemed me by Your blood and I belong to You, and I want to live for You. I confess all my sins - known and unknown - I'm sorry for them all. I renounce them all. I forgive all others as I want You to forgive me. Forgive me now and cleanse me with Your blood. I thank You for the blood of Jesus Christ which cleanses me now from all sin. Now that I am washed by the blood and free from sin, I have a right to attack the enemy and command the enemy to attack itself.

Thank You, Lord Jesus, for dying for my sins, for Your glorious resurrection, and for making me a new creature in Christ -- by faith in Your precious blood.

Dear Lord, I have a confession to make: Through ignorance, stupidity or willfulness I have sought supernatural experiences apart from Your Word and I ask You to help me as I renounce all these things. Cleanse me in body, soul, and spirit, I pray. Satan, I am closing any door which I may have opened to you through contact with the occult. I renounce all contact with witchcraft, magic, Ouija boards, and other occult games. I renounce all kinds of fortune telling, palm reading, tea leaf reading, crystal balls, Tarot and other card laying. I renounce all astrology, birth signs, and horoscopes. I renounce the heresy of reincarnation and all healing groups involved in metaphysics and spiritualism. I renounce all hypnosis under any excuse or authority. I renounce all rock music, including acid, hard and Jesus rock. I renounce all transcendental meditation, yoga, Zen and all eastern cults and religious idol worship. I renounce all martial arts, including Judo, Kung Fu and Karate. I renounce all water witching or dowsing, levitation, table tipping, body lifting, psychometry (divining through objects), automatic writing, and handwriting analysis; I renounce all literature I have ever read and studied in any of these fields and I vow I will destroy such books in my possession. I renounce astral projection, soul and out-of-body travel, and other demonic skills. I renounce, in the Name of the Lord Jesus Christ, all psychic heredity that I have and break any demonic hold on my family line back to seven generations on both sides of my family. I do now renounce and forsake every psychic and occult contact that I know about and those which I do not know about. I renounce every cult that denies the blood of Jesus Christ and every philosophy which denies the deity of the Lord Jesus.

Lord, I have another confession to make. I have not loved, but have resented certain people and I call upon You to help me forgive them. Lord Jesus, I do now forgive the following people for anything they have ever done to hurt or disappoint me: (Insert here the names of persons, living

or dead, who come to mind. Deut. 7:26; 17:2-5; 18:10-12; Matt. 18:22-35; Mark 11:25-26; Acts 19:19; Heb. 12:15; I John 4:7-12).

Father, I come to You now in the Name of Jesus. I believe He is the Son of God that takes away the sins of all who repent and confess Him as Lord. Father, this day I come to confess as a sin and renounce my contact with all forms of the occult and false religions. I hate Satan, all his demons and all his works. In particular, I confess and renounce the following: going to fortune tellers, reading horoscopes, believing in reincarnation, etc. (Confess all sins you can remember that the Holy Spirit may have brought to your mind.) I also confess and renounce as a sin any contact that I cannot remember. I count all that offends You, Lord, as my enemy. Father, I want to be holy even as You are holy. Father, I thank You for forgiving me and now I rise clean and in newness of life in Christ Jesus. In Jesus' Name. Amen."

LIST OF DEMONS, FORBIDDEN PRACTICES IN THE BIBLE

NOTE: Forbidden practices in the Bible cover occult practices in general; other types of occult practices come from these.

Magic Practices and Spiritism

Mediums	Divining	Cha
Seances	White Magic	Tali
Second Sight	Table Tipping	Ma
Levitation	Metaphysics	Арр
Necromancy	Trances	Am
Spirit Guides	Runes	Birt
Auras	Self-Realization	Spe
Self-Hypnosis	Visions	Wa
Mental Science	Black Magic	Anl
Water Witching	Medals	Sor
Dowsing	Witchcraft	Cur
Superstition	Good Luck	Psy
Psychokinesis	Fetishes	Pot
Telepathy	Incantations	

- Charms Talismans Mascots Apport Amulets Birth Signs Spells Wart Charming Ankh Sorcery Curses Psychic Powers Potions
- Automatic Writing Poltergeists Acupuncture Burn Charming Pendulum Diagnosis Yin-Yang Ghosts Trance Diagnosis Birth Stones Metaphysical Healing

Occult In General

Ruler of Witchcraft	Swan
Death by hypnosis	Lust for Power
God's Eye	Spider
Karate	Open Doors
Martial Arts	Rappings on Wall
Third Eye	Foundation
Judo	Black Mass
Kung Fu	Satan Worship
Snake	Multiplied Curses
Mongoose	Jezebel
Cat	Ahab
Cobra	Female Dominance
Lust for Dominance	Yielding Male
	Evil Eye

Occult Fears Black arts Love Knot Devil's Foot Indian Kachina Conjuration Occult Symbols Serpent Charmer Omens Prognostication Pass Through The Fire Augur Rebellion Stubbornness Parapsychology Yoga Hearing Noises Psychic Portraits Macabre Phrenology Numerology Great Seal Alchemy Calling Evil Spirits Baptism in Witchcraft

3. WINNING OVER WITCHCRAFT

WHY THIS STUDY?

From all over the United States come reports from believers that they are being bypassed on their jobs by less qualified people. In federal and state agencies many believers report that they seem to be put on a shelf and status quo exists while new people zip to the top with advancements. Some business executives report being fired without reason. Marriages considered quite solid suddenly break up. Children with a previously dependable record become erratic.

We think that the real answer is that many people are being controlled by witchcraft. This study only touches the tip of what surely must be a giant iceberg. Only the overcomer is properly equipped to defeat this monster. We must learn to use our weapons (II Cor. 10:4).

The believers or overcomers according to the Scriptures, are to be "more than conquerors" (Rom. 8:37) and never ashamed (Joel 2:26, 27; Ps. 37:19; Isa. 29:22; Rom. 10:11).

WHAT IS WITCHCRAFT ?

- 1. Rebellion is as witchcraft.
- 2. When you turn from God you are in witchcraft or the Devil's world.
- 3. If the Devil wants to bring a preacher down, he might use an evil spirit of lust in a gorgeous, young, perfumed, sweet thing to bring about the fall.
- 4. Witchcraft is the use of everything in the Devil's arsenal to destroy any chance of a human being coming into the full power of God.
- 5. Occult means unseen, so all these practices are hidden snares to involve humans in the Devil's world, to make the human think that he, the human, has it all.

CULTS - Many cults have their members say a prayer that their soul touch all souls. This is one of the ways evil soul ties are formed.

WE ARE SURROUNDED - A believer must be aware that from every aspect of his life and activity, he is threatened constantly with the prospect of witchcraft being beamed at him by the enemy.

A good example of this is drugs, known as sorcery, and medications such as (even though they are prescribed by a doctor) Valium, Serex, Phenobarbital, and other common medications which are not curative.

SATAN IS AFTER THE CONTROL OF YOUR MIND!! - Mind control is the chief weapon of Satan to snare the believer. The Scriptures admonish us to "bring every thought into captivity" (II Cor. 10:5).

Many times a person will enter a world of fantasy and imagination, lusting after something, or somebody, or something they consider normal.

This is a counterfeit for what we are supposed to do when these thoughts enter our minds.

IT'S IMPORTANT TO "CAPTURE OUR THOUGHTS" - By apprehending our thoughts, understanding our thoughts, and being able to look upon our own thoughts, we can bring every thought into captivity.

It has been our experience that the thought pattern has to change in order to give way to the new personality to take over.

WITCHCRAFT IN THE CHURCH - The practice of witchcraft in the Catholic Church is in all their ceremonies.

A Catholic helps curse himself or herself every time he makes an upside-down cross in crossing himself.

MORE WITCHCRAFT - Cub Scouts, scouting organizations, DeMolay and Masonic organization's ritualism and symbolism all go back to Nimrod.

Teachers who are witches usually go to school to learn how to interweave witchcraft into the teaching program without being suspected by the community.

Another example is that of a student that put spells and love potions on a girl to make her desire him sexually.

It is all very real, and it results in an evil spirit being put into the participants by the curse, hex or charm, and the student's mentality and entire attitude usually becomes erratic and unpredictable.

In schools where Karate or Judo is taught, this causes further demon possession.

In gym classes, YMCA and YWCA, people are often taught to sit in the Lotus position.

Only the believer has the power to prevent this witchcraft.

The great conspiracy of Satan to control your mind reaches into the entertainment field through

television and movies.

SOAP OPERAS - Soap operas have a powerful grip on the mind.

The writers and script writers are absolutely polluted with it.

There is hardly a page of movie ads that is fit to read.

The only love they have is the sexual activity.

In witchcraft books, they suggest that you go out in public with no clothes on except a raincoat and then take the coat off in an elevator to build up your energy or power.

A look at a nude or indecently exposed body, or pornographic material can be just as potent as the taking of a drug in admitting or activating an evil spirit.

MEDICAL SCIENCE - Of course the biggest field of all that has been invaded is medicine.

The medical fields of Psychology, Osteopathy, MD's and especially Psychiatry are all touched by the practice of witchcraft.

GOVERNMENT - In government, witchcraft has crept into the Army, the CIA, and all the government agencies.

I am going to use the word conspiracy because that is certainly the best term for it and includes all teachings of witchcraft.

Workers who have become aware of this have been told that there are certain signs they go by.

They further encourage the study of witchcraft and the promotion of witchcraft throughout all the government agencies (both state and federal).

BUSINESS - Business has been infiltrated by witchcraft and you can tell that by the way motor companies have named some of their cars.

PROTESTANT CHURCHES - The protestant church is infiltrated with witchcraft in the fact that ESP, Transcendental Meditation and hypnosis are all used commonly now for relaxing.

FUND RAISERS - Fund raisers and the people raising money in church activities routinely use witchcraft knowingly and unknowingly. This is putting a "guilt trip" on other men who feel they should "keep up" their share.

The use of worldly fund raisers to solicit funds for so called "Godly" purposes is an insult to the Holy Spirit's ability to work in the hearts of overcomers to put the dynamite under the Devil.

DYING AND AGING SEMINARS - The Devil, through mind control, loves to see people getting ready to die, retire, get old and be "out of the way".

The Scriptures never refer to an overcomer losing his or her usefulness.

If you say you are ready to die for God, the Devil will usually be the one to accommodate you. Through witchcraft and mind control, the Devil loves to get someone to say "I feel as though I'll die young" or "I'll never live beyond 52 because my family all dies at that age".

EDUCATION - The education system also is infiltrated by witchcraft.

WHO PRACTICES IT - The Illuminati - CFR. (Their total power is in witchcraft.) The Illuminati, now known as the Council of Foreign Relations, is a worldwide conspiracy, directly under Satan. A movement towards this type of system is being done through mind control by gradually removing all "values set out by the Scriptures."

The purpose of scriptural living is to build individuals into spiritual giants as overcomers in the Word of God.

A person must remember that witchcraft is practiced in the name of Jesus Christ.

You must remember that if the Catholic Church did not operate in the name of Jesus Christ she could not be a harlot.

UNDERGROUND WITCHCRAFT AND OBVIOUS WITCHCRAFT

EDUCATION - parapsychology, Dungeons & Dragons, folklore, mythology.

ENTERTAINMENT - rock music, T.V., movies, soap operas, etc.

GOVERNMENT - Illuminati, CFR, Government Agencies (both state and federal).

LODGES - origins in witchcraft.

RELIGIONS - Protestant, Catholic, Cults, World Council of Churches, National Council of Churches, Mormonism and other cults.

RECREATIONS - games with demonic influence (D & D), possible source of dolls, toys, puppets, stuffed animals.

HOME LIFE - Travel - You name it!

BUSINESS - witchcraft promises, promotions, forecasts based on astrology readings, sales power (soul power), pyramid power.

HOLIDAYS - Halloween, Easter (Easter rabbit takes attention off true meaning), Christmas (Santa is a counterfeit), Christmas pageants and plays.

SOCIAL LIFE - musk oil perfumes, some say "Cleopatra knew how to create a spell".

LAW ENFORCEMENT - using psychics and hypnosis.

PSYCHOLOGY - almost 100% using some form of witchcraft.

MEDICINE - Hippocratic Oath, sorcery (drugs), chemicals that aren't curative, acupuncture.

NURSES - trained under conditions of liberal sex, unrestrained sex, etc. Most nurses being taught how to teach people to accept death. Nurses take the Nightingale Oath which binds them to the doctors.

ARMED FORCES - hard core pornographic films shown on government equipment (Jack Anderson report in Washington Merry-Go-Round, November 17, 1981). Use of drugs in armed forces growing at alarming rate. Constant attempts to unionize forces.

MIND CONTROL IS IN THE JUDICIARY SYSTEM AND JUDGES' DECISIONS - Until witchcraft is out of our Judicial System at all levels of government, it will be difficult to get constitutional government defended.

MIND CONTROL IS IN SEMINARIES - Our seminaries are teaching carnal power (flesh) procedures to restore marriages, to build congregations, and to solve problems, and in turn they operate a church just like a large organization or 4-H Club.

In Kansas City, 800 preachers gathered and studied a hard core pornographic film on oral sex. This was to learn to teach people how to keep their marriages happy. What an abomination!

WHY SATAN WANTS YOU SAVED - The Scriptures show the great power that we are to have as overcomers. None of these are taught in the present day so called average church . If Satan can get you saved (so called saved) having an intellectual experience, he has you bottled up in a powerless church, and you are now controllable and are no threat to the forces of evil through witchcraft. The great majority of the church is continuing in the flesh.

UNIONS - The unions are attempting to control the minds of their members and everyone looking on by a block labor vote.

The fluent pen of the union is funneled into 15 million American homes through their publications. In 1919 a prophecy was made and recorded that the World Council of Churches, the Unions, and the Catholic Church would unite as one to serve the Devil's purposes to bring harm to the believers and slow the Father's work all over the world.

In 1981 newspapers confirm that these organizations have admitted that they are one in purpose and leadership, and now a world influence.

The Father has already promised victory for His over-corners, but we must do our part.

KNOW WHO YOU ARE! - We are to overcome the world.

Right now we are fully endowed, commissioned, chosen and appointed to destroy witchcraft (rebellion against God the Father) in our homes, schools and country, and to live a peaceful and godly life (I Tim. 2:2).

We do have all authority over the enemy (Luke 10:19).

We are to walk in power as Jesus Christ walked.

Nothing is left out of our control (Heb. 2:8 Amp.).

Jesus Christ said that He had the power to keep others and that we have that same power (John 17:12).

Jesus Christ is still praying for us (John 17).

The same keeping power that Jesus Christ used is available for us to keep loved ones.

We are still abiding under the prayers of Jesus Christ and should walk boldly as an overcomer as He planned for us to do.

The weapons of our warfare are not carnal but are spiritual (II Cor. 10:4).

KEEPING YOUR HOME - The overcomer can stop witchcraft in its tracks by becoming aware that it is all around and influencing their family, job, and country.

Witchcraft is after your home.

This is not only done to your children and your homes, but your husband or your wife is being bombarded on every side - business, entertainment, recreation and education. I mean it's a closed-in situation, and witchcraft is abounding every time you turn around.

It's witchcraft attacking your home through pornographic magazines and pornography in ads; drug peddlers; seducing scenes and rebellious scenes on television and movies; rock music and much of the country music; whiskey ads, beer ads, smoking ads, depicting of white magic and white witchcraft for good; astrology, signs of the zodiac, self-help programs, self-hypnosis programs; tobacco through the seducing ads in the tobacco industry; Rubik's Cube and some of the eye-catching electronic games; and mind boggling medicine that the doctor dispenses such as tranquilizers and the pain pills.

The pyramid and its power or force has crept into the home in many ways.

HALLOWEEN - Probably one of the most successful penetrations into the church, school, business and home has been Halloween.

The following is a news article on a haunted house sponsored by a large church group which has over 100,000 people to go through the haunted house each year.

"Workers at Florida 'haunted house' discover body of shooting victim. Workers setting up a 'haunted house' discovered a still warm body hours before the Halloween attraction opened, police said. Despite the discovery of the unidentified victim, the Tamiami Park Haunted House opened on schedule at twilight Wednesday. Police say there is no apparent connection between the slaying and the 14th Campus Life Haunted House. The haunted house attraction produced by the nonprofit Christian youth group annually attracts 100,000 people with its Halloween makebelieve. Effects are expected to be so realistic that a first-aid station has been set up for those who faint."

FARMING - One of the influences that witches often brag about is the ability to influence the weather. It is only the overcomer that can do this, and the Scriptures tell us that nothing is left out of man's control.

WARFARE - We highly recommend that the overcomer go through the office, plant or business, and anoint all the chairs, desks, windows, walls and any soil or anything that would receive the oil.

Also, if you are in authority or have the authority to do it, remove from the premises all objects of witchcraft that are abominations to the Lord.

If you know that pornographic magazines and erotic sex booklets and paperbacks are in the offices or shops, then these should be anointed if at all possible.

One business that I went into had a series of original art work that depicted demons and Indian worship in each room.

It's my opinion that Scriptures on the wall in a business can help bring this business out from under the spell of Satan and into the power of the Lord.

VIETNAM WAR - The Devil had two purposes through the use of the Illuminati or the Council of Foreign Relations through the war in Vietnam and involving the U.S. in the Vietnam War. As I see it now, the first purpose was to drain the U.S. of more dollars and cents. The second purpose, perhaps the most important to the Devil, was that the country (Vietnam) is full of witch-craft.

ABOMINATIONS TO THE LORD - The Lord declares that He will not tolerate these abominations among His people in the Kingdom of God (spiritual) in which the overcomer is now:

Enchanter - to hiss, whisper a spell, prognosticate, divine, enchantment, to practice magic, to cover, to cloud over, observe times, soothsayer, sorcerer.

Divination - witchcraft, to distribute or determine by lot or magic scroll (This would include gambling by dice or cards.), to divine, soothsayer.

Witch - to practice magic, to whisper a spell, sorcerer, to enchant, to use witchcraft.

Charmer - to fascinate, to spell, to join by spells, enchantment. (Without a doubt includes hypnosis.)

Consulter With Familiar Spirits - familiar — friendly or family spirits.

Wizard - conjurer, a ghost prognosticator (indicates one who knows many things).

Sorceress - (Pharmakia) - medical poisoner, magic, a druggist, a magician. Oriental science (indicates use of drugs and chemicals to produce stupor, spells, mind altering influences, such as smoking and drinking.)

LIST OF DEMONS			
Occult Practices	Incense	Amulets	Jesus Rock & Roll
Martial Arts	UFO	Dipping Snuff	Clairvoyance
Fortune Telling	Pendulum	Talismans	Poltergeists
Buddhism-Zen	Trances	Drinking Alcoholic	Telepathy
Ouija Board	Palm Reading	Satanism	Irish
Hinduism	Dolls	Beverages	Parapsychology
Cards	Automatic Handwrit-	Indian Witchcraft	Gypsy
Taoism	ing	Kabala	Enchantments
Good Luck Charms	Idolatry	Sun or Moon Worship	Science
Yin and Yang	Pierced Ears	Handwriting Analysis	Potions
Seances	Psychometry	Spiritual Healing	Witchcraft
Confucianism	Horoscopes	Strychnine	Ankh
Edgar Cayce	Psychic	Italian Horn	Rappings
Acupuncture	Signs of the Zodiac	Arsenic	Peace Sign
Jeanne Dixon	Predictions	Indian Religions	Conjuration
Hare Krishna	Voodoo	Gene/Chromosome	Star of David
Mind Control	Clairaudience	War Paint	Haunted Houses
Bingo Gambling	Magic	Damage	Five Pointed Star
Witchcraft	Second Sight	Maize Fertility	Fantasy
Playing Cards	Levitation	Crystal Ball	Artifacts
Four-leaf Clover	Auras	Christian Science	TV
Gambling	Water witching	Tarot Cards	Tattoos
Rabbit Foot	Metaphysics	Omens	Shows Like Merlin
Reincarnation	Tea Leaf Reading	Psychic Readings	Owls and Frogs

LIST OF DEMONS

Wishbone	Mental Science	Karma	Walt Disney
Arthur Ford	Secret Organizations	Sorcery	Snakes
ESP	and	Healing	Rosemary's Baby
Ruth Montgomery	Visions	Drug/Pharmakia	Self-Realization
Transcendental Medi-	Lodges	Mediums	Fiction
tation	Superstition	LSD	Deja-Vu
Divining	Eight Ball	Hex Signs	Tolkien
Yoga	Fetishes	Rubik's Cube	Incantation
Psychocybernetics	Smoking		
Hypnosis	Runes		
Mind Over Matter	Chewing Tobacco		

CULTS

Jehovah's Witnesses	Unity	Spiritualism	Inner Peace Move-
Christian Science	Mormonism	Scientology	ment
Rosicrucianism	Unitarians	Swedenborgianism	
Theosophy	Bahai	Christodeiphianism	

Any other religions (including the Catholic Church, and Paganism) using the Bible but denying or omitting the divinity of Christ and the atonement of His precious Blood. Any group denying existence of Heaven or Hell.

Demon Association

Education - parapsychology, Dungeons and Dragons, folklore, mythology.

Entertainment - rock music, lewd or occult movies or TV.

Government Agencies - (both state and federal) Federal Reserve System.

Lodges - origins in witchcraft - Masons, DeMolay, Eastern Star, Job's Daughters.

Religions - Protestant, Catholic, Cults (World Council of Churches).

Recreations - games with demonic influence.

Travel - soul travel, astral projection.

Home Life - mind control, Jezebel and Ahab.

Business - witchcraft promises promotions, forecasts based on astrology readings, sales power (soul power) pyramid power.

Law Enforcement - using psychics, and hypnosis. Psychiatry - almost 100% using some form of witchcraft.

Medicine - Hippocratic oath, sorcery, tranquilizers, pain pills.

Other Demons

Pornography	Strongman	Need	Failure
Blood Transfusions	Strongholds	Greed	Serpents
Seduction	Imaginations	Covetousness	Scorpions
Rebellion	High Things	Counterfeit	Dirtiness
Country Music	Disobedience	Disco Lights	Orneriness
White/Black Magic	Occult	Nimrod	DinHce
White/Black Witch-	Soul Ties	Scouting	Halloween

craft	Valium	Ritualism	Ghosts
Astrology	Serex	Symbolism	Jack-0- Lanterns
Signs of Zodiac	Phenobarbital	Demonology	Goblins
Self-Help Programs	Anesthesias	Death and-Hell	Barrenness
Self-Hypnosis	Fantasy	Love Potions	Sterility
Principalities	Lust	Lotus	Diseases
Powers	Bankruptcy	Oral Sex	Mind Occult
Authorities	Poorness	Confusion	Foul and Evil Spirits
Kingdoms	Lack	Forgetfulness	
Rulers	Loss	Poverty	

REFERENCES

Winning Over Witchcraft by J.M. Haggard. Excerpts were taken from this booklet and the list of demons arranged for mass deliverance.

NOTE: For more information on the Catholic Church and Nimrod you should obtain the books Babylon Mystery Religion and The Two Babylons.

4. SPIRITS OF RELIGIOUS ERROR

DELIVERANCE SCRIPTURE

Isa. 14:4-23	Punishment of Satan and his demons.
Ezk. 28:11-19	Punishment of Satan.
Matt. 9:32-38	Compassion on the multitude - dumb delivered.
Mark 6:7-56	Power over unclean spirits - healed all.
Luke 9:1-62	Deliverance and miracles of God.

MARKS OF CULTIC GROUPS

(Excerpts) In these end times there is a veritable rash of cults springing up. Their telltale earmarks have often been repeated, but I will remind you again of some of the most common.

There are Biblical qualities of leadership. These are very important for the people will seldom rise above the level of their leaders (Jer. 12:10-11; Isa. 24:2, II Tim. 2:16).

God's leaders reach for responsibility and are marked by a willingness to sacrifice and be a servant of all (Phil. 2:19-23; I Peter 5:2-3).

The persons the Lord chooses feed the flock (Jer. 3:25; 23:3-4; Ezek. 34:23-24). Self-seeking ones come in to fleece the flock (Ex. 34:1-10; Jer. 23:1-2; Micah 3:1-5; John 10:12-13). When leaders falter and fail, pray for them, but do not follow them into error (I Cor. 5).

There is an edification and building of the body under Godly leaders who gently lead the flock (Isa. 40:10-11). Others scatter and bring confusion, dividing the flock needlessly (Jer. 23:1-2).

When a leader is God-called he sees himself as only the under-shepherd of God's sheep with a call to keep himself totally committed to the Lord at all times (Psalms 100:3; 23:1; Ezek. 34:23;

Ex. 34:30-31; I Cor. 7:23; I Peter 5:4). A self-appointed leader is a hireling (John 10) and considers the sheep as his property to be sheared for his benefit.

In a group cursed with false leaders there will be false teachings on: submission to authority (with a loyalty foreign to scripture and without the provision for growth and development); divine order; individuality; the kingdom of God; and becoming deity. Psychic and occult powers may be presented in the guise of spiritual gifts from the Lord. False prophecy which does not come to pass and financial exploitation will flourish. Pride and exclusivism in the group will be fostered and deliberate divisions will be caused from families and from other Christians. There will be a widespread and thinly-veiled use of fear as a weapon of control and the group will periodically be shaken by moral lapses, many condoned by the leadership.

IS KARATE FOR CHRISTIANS?

(Excerpts) Currently popularized on T.V. and in the movies, this deadly art, under several titles, has gained widespread acceptance in every strata of our society. Combined with the moral training of Zen Buddhism, its purpose was to develop Sumurai warriors.

Today Karate is often taught in conjunction with various forms of transcendental meditation (similar to Yoga) to "psych" up the students to heights of greater effectiveness. This puts it in the category of an occult "religious" exercise and makes it extremely dangerous.

Jesus warns in Matthew 26:52 that those who resort to the sword (violence) will die that way. Ephesians 6 speaks of wrestling not with flesh and blood but with spiritual adversaries. I Corinthians 10:3-4 continues in that same vein, and in Luke 10:19, Christians are given authority over their enemies by the empowering of the Holy Spirit.

Since Karate is heavily involved in the occult, those who dabble with it will bring curses upon themselves and upon their descendants to the third and fourth generations. (Deut. 6:8; 7:25-26; 11:28; 12:3; 13:6-10) (Worship of Idols).

A WORD ABOUT INCENSE

(Excerpts) Most people are unaware that much of the incense sold in curio and novelty shops was manufactured by devotees of the Hare Krishna cult. Their wares are dedicated to this demon god of the Hindus and can cause much trouble.

There on the package of incense was the picture of Hindu deity, Hare Krishna and on the back was printed the Hare Krishna chant with instructions on how to get in touch with the "infinite".

My daughter uttered a short shriek and collapsed straight to the floor - landing in the yoga lotus position!

DEMONIC RELIGIOUS CULTS FOR THE YOUNG

(Excerpts) There is a strange hold that many weird cults have on thousands of ensnared young people which is through demonic control spirits. In the name of liberty, they have opened the door for terrible bondage (II Peter 2:19-20).

Some of the most well-known are: Children of God, Unification, International Society of Krishna Consciousness, Forever Family, The Mission, The Process, Scintillate, Love Israel, The Assembly, The Body, The Farm, The Way, etc.

Deeply craving and seeking peer approval, a disciplined life and a better world than the one they see, these youngsters do not realize how easily they can be deceived. Knowing the vulnerability of the group, unscrupulous promoters work zealously to exploit them and their unspoken cry, "I am important, please notice me".

In the beginning the approach is always warm, friendly and accepting. Chanting is often used to focus attention and limit peripheral vision.

The cruelty, selfishness and egotism of the leaders is unbelievable. Many are Jezebelic women, some are charismatic witches. Others are vicious and unprincipled men, depraved and driven to all sorts of excesses.

Jesus said, "Ye shall know the truth and the truth shall set you free" (John 8:32). Paul admonished believers not to be entangled again in the yoke of bondage (Gal. 5:1). God's people are to be peculiar (I Peter 2:9; Titus 2:13) but that peculiarity is to be found in the fact that they are zealous of good works and seek to honor God's name.

MARKS OF CULTISM

(Excerpts) Because of the prevalence of religious cults which have destroyed thousands, perhaps the identifying characteristics of them should be repeated. All cultic systems have one or more of the following:

- 1. Deceptive Christology.
- 2. Extra Biblical revelations.
- 3. Translocal totalitarian authority in leadership.
- 4. Babylonian pyramidal control of the followers.
- 5. Semi-secret sessions for teaching followers.
- 6. Exclusivism or cronyism.
- 7. Semantic juggling or a text out of context used to "prove" false doctrines and concepts.
- 8. Punishment and reward motivation or control of behavior and attitudes through ruthless use of fear.
- 9. Denunciation of others, particularly of those who question or deny cults.
- 10. Separation and isolation of followers from their families and friends and the formation of communal living cells to facilitate centralized control and enforce obedience.

The more of these practices which are in evidence, the more cultic and demonic the organization is.

RELIGIOUS DECEPTION

(Excerpts) We are warned of false prophets and teachers (Matt. 7:15-27; Mark 13:22; Acts 20:28-32; II Tim. 4:3-4; I John 4:1-3; II Peter 2:1).

Many claiming to give prophetic words are not from the Lord. Believers, newly saved and often with liturgical church or no church or biblical background, are swayed by these charlatans.

Satan specializes in deception, is very subtle and often appears as a religious angel of light. The author of confusion and father of lies, he can also come as a roaring lion (John 8:44; I Cor. 14:33; II Cor. 13:15).

Supernatural gifts and miracles of healing do not guarantee the genuineness of a work. False leaders often are very sincere, and may themselves be deceived about what they are doing. They also can manifest supernatural gifts (Matt. 7:22-23). False workers emphasize physical sensations, emotional experiences and employ worldly wisdom which is earthly, sensual and devilish (demonic) (James 3:15). All this de-emphasizes Christ and produces a drift away from Him in search of more thrilling sensual experiences.

False love can be spotted because it is limited to a special group and snares participants into bondage. Leaders of such groups claims exclusive authority and revelations of knowledge, but submit themselves to no authority for review or correction.

Groups such as this often adopt distinctive names, identifying them as the one true representative of Christ on earth. The groups are marked by confusion, and always, followers are pressured by harsh and condemnatory demands. Situation ethics such as "the end justifies the means" are employed frequently.

MARKS OF COUNTERFEIT GROUPS

Marks of counterfeit groups may include one or more of the following errors:

- 1. Presenting another Jesus, spirit or gospel (Gal. 1:6; II Tim. 4:3; II Cor.11:4). Sometimes loyalty to the group is more important than loyalty to Jesus.
- 2. Denial of virgin birth, the blood, the work of the cross and the existence of sin.
- 3. They may go overboard literalizing Scriptures such as "hate your mother and father" (Luke 14:26).
- 4. Some press the return of Christ to an extreme which creates apathy and laziness (II Thess. 3:10-11).
- 5. Use of isolated Scriptures to build doctrines, ignoring the context.
- 6. Some are anti-Semitic and are spiritualists masquerading as Christians.
- 7. Some overemphasize the Old Testament and neglect the New Testament message of the cross and the blood.

LIST OF DEMONS General

Lodges, societies and social agencies using the Bible and God as a basis but omitting the Blood Atonement of Jesus Christ. Cults that deny the Blood of Christ or philosophy that denies the divinity of Christ.

Books, literature, music, etc. dealing with false religions.

Demons from all false doctrines studied, believed and taught; all unrighteous practices engaged in.

A great many come in through family background, curses and inheritance. There must be legal grounds or holds to open a person to attack.

Religious Cults

Jehovah's Witnesses	Unification	Christodelphianism	Seventh-Day Adven-
Christian Science	Forever Family	Inner Peace Move-	tism
Rosicrucianism	The Mission	ment	Mary Baker. Eddy
Theosophy	The Process	Edgar Cayce	Spiritual Frontiers
Urantia	Scientology	Jean Dixon	Fellowship
Subud	Love Israel	Arthur Ford	Association for Re-
Latihan	The Assembly	Ruth Montgomery	search and Enlight-
Unity	The Body	Eckankar	enment
Mormonism	The Farm	Herbert Armstrong	Religious Research
Bahaism	The Wav	Eastern Star	Foundation of Amer-
Unitarianism	Spiritualism	Freemasonry	ica
Children of God	Swedenborgianism		

Practices and Teachings - Religious Demons

Ritualism	Astral Projection
Formalism	Chanting
Legalism	Charismatic Witches
Doctrinal Obsession	Soul Travel
Seduction	Karma
Doctrinal Error	Idol Worship
Fear of God	Incense
Fear of Hell	Yoga (Lotus)
Religiosity	Fear of Lost Salvation
Reincarnation	Cult Book Reading
Demonic Healing	Bloodline - Cult lies
Groups	

Rage

Transcendental Meditation Consecration Deception Baptismal Regeneration Good Works Metaphysics Jesus Only Predestination Holy Ghost Fear Psychocybernetics Jerking Six-Six-Six Clearing House - Cult Control Varied Studies in Cults Evolution Studying and Teaching Eastern Religion Interest and Study

Martial Arts

Karate Ushito Lust (Asmodeus) Kung Fu Ki-Ya Fighting Judo Hatha Yoga

False Religions

Buddhism Taoism Tae Kinon Do Aikido Suicide Jiap Destruction (Osmodeus) "Enter The Dragon

Shintoism

Confucianism

Acupuncture "Way of The Dragon" Masochism Remedial Message "Game of Death" Meditation Herbal Remedies Murder Hypnosis Kung Fu-Wu-Su Hate False Honor Kata Violence

I Ching Indian Fakir Catholicism Spiritism Hinduism Islam

Catholic Spirits

Candles Catholic Hymns Saints (by name) Dedication to Saints Confessional Confession to Priest Confirmation Fear of Priest Holy Eucharist Lourdes Fatima Incense Mariolarity Fear of Excommunication Obedience to Priest **One Holy Priesthood** One True Church One Only Church Prayers to Saints Pope Oueen of Heaven Queen of Peace Queen of Righteousness Spirits of Babylon Angel Worship Idolatry Medals Miraculous Medal Scapulars Feast Days Assumption Easter Bunny Santa Claus Hail Mary Sign of the Cross Way of the Cross Masochism

Hare Krishna Zen Buddhism

Infant Baptism Penance First Communion Extreme Unction Mariology-Study Rosary-Buddhism Holy Water Missals Catechisms Titles of Mary Mother of God Great Harlot Nimrod Tammuz **Knights of Columbus** Holy Mother Church Statues (by name) Sacred Heart Lady of Mt. Carmel Worship of Host Immaculate Conception Anti-Christ Christmas Infant of Prague Our Lady of Guadelupe Glory be Ejaculations Catholic Matrimony Semiramis Veneration of Crucifix **Celebrating Mass** Spirit of Death Stoicism Sadism Masochism Eucharistic Devotion **False Confession**

False Orders **False Devotions Religious Deception** False Confirmation False Vows **False Obedience** Virgins (by name) False Ordination **False Tongues False Visions** False Dreams False Prophecy **False Preaching** False Celibacy Anti-Christ with Power and Strength Harmoniousness -Loss of Salvation Consecration to Mary as a Slave Veneration of Pope, **Bishops**, Priests Magic of Seven Sacraments Necromancy-Praying to the Dead False Salvation Doctrine False Baptism in Holy Spirit Ordination to Priesthood Plenary and Partial Indulgences Mediatrix of all Graces

Krishna Conscious-

ness

Receiving and Administering Sacraments Going to and Hearing Confessions Consecrating and Adoring the Host Prayers and Novenas to Saints Blind Obedience to **Superiors** Doctrine of Transubstantiation Spirit of Man in Black Suit Obedience to the Priesthood False Laying on of Hands **False Religious** Authority Religious Mind Control False Anointings of Baptism and Confirmation Praying, Kissing, Bowing and Incensing Relics Making Vows of Obedience, Chastity and Poverty and Breaking Them Veneration of Relics Tabernacles. Chalice

Religious Works Spirits

Works Religion	False Divine Healing
Good Works	False Dreams

False Holiness Hypocrisy False Purity False Virginity

Unbelief	False Prophecy
Doubt	False Prophets
Another Jesus	False Hope
False Tongues	False Joy
False Baptism	False Testimony
False Gifts	False Visions

Holy Ground Holy Roller Poison Drinking Snake Handling Passing Through The Fire Woman Preacher Snake Venom Shaking - Inside and Outside

REFERENCES

"Marks of Cultic Groups", Tract (II Peter 2:17-19)
"Marks of Cultism", p. 68, The Battle Royal- Book I.
"Demonic Religious Cults for the Young", pp. 47-48, Conquering The Hosts Of Hell (John 8:32; Gal. 5:1).
"Religious Deception", pp. 112-114, The Battle Royal - Book 1. (p. 114 "Marks of Counterfeit Groups") (Matt. 7:22-23; James 3:15).
"A Word About Incense", Tract (Deut. 7:25-26)
"Is Karate for Christians", Tract (Deut. 13:6-10)

BOOKS ABOUT RELIGIONS

"50 Years in the Church of Rome" (Catholic) "The Priest, The Woman, and the Confessional" (Catholic) "Babylon Mystery Religion" (False Religion)

5. CATHOLIC SPIRITS

REQUIREMENTS OF INDIVIDUAL - The person to be delivered must be a believer in Jesus Christ in all that He did and taught as presented in the Bible or be willing to become a believer. If he is baptized in the Holy Spirit, so much the better, but it is not a prerequisite to being delivered. In fact, if he was baptized in the Spirit while he was a member of the Catholic Church, Mormon Church, some Pentecostal denominations, etc., he may have to be delivered of False Baptism and False Gifts. The Holy Spirit is not offended if we try the spirits as the Bible recommends (I Jn. 4:1).

The person, as well as the deliverance workers, may be anointed with oil. This is optional, except for healing (Jas. 5:14).

Cleaning Your House - The first requirement for the Christian being delivered is for him to remove from his house (or his room if it is not his house) all Catholic objects, symbols, medals, statues, pictures, holy cards, Catholic bibles, rosaries, crucifixes, missals, Catholic hymn books, relics, votive candles, shrines, sentimental Catholic mementoes, etc. If an object is not his to remove, the person can anoint it with oil and bind its powers from him. If the person does not clean his house, deliverance will be only partial at best, because these things give legal grounds for demons to stay.

PRAYERS BEFORE DELIVERANCE General - When finished praying the prayers you have selected, close them in the Mighty Name of Jesus Christ. The following prayers spoken by the

deliverance worker are meant to be guidelines, not a firm ritual to be followed, and contain elements we have found to be important: "Heavenly Father, we thank You that You have brought (name of person) and this group (or myself) together in a prayer of deliverance and to do spiritual warfare. We ask You to send warrior angels to do battle for us in the heaven-lies. We ask You through Your Holy Spirit to impress intercessors to pray at this time on our behalf. We thank You for sending protecting angels around us, above us and below us. Thank You, Jesus, for being here with us for You said that when two or more are gathered together in Your name You are in the midst of them. Thank You for the spiritual authority to use Your Name against the kingdom of darkness. We thank You that the Holy Spirit is here to give us discernment and whatever gifts are needful.

We forbid any transference or communications of evil spirits between any of us here present. Father, we ask You to have the angels remove any evil spirits in the atmosphere assigned to hinder or interfere with this deliverance. We cut off all evil power sources directed toward us from the kingdom of darkness and from witches, wizards, sorcerers and other people used by the Devil for such purposes. We bind the strong man over this area and in each of the people here present. We ask that all strong men be revealed to us by the Holy Spirit."

Binding Spirits - The following spirits marked with an asterisk (*) are usually bound for every deliverance, adding or subtracting as the Holy Spirit leads. At a later date these spirits should be cast out, but for the present they are bound while we cast out their subordinates. The other spirits listed are especially for those who have been in the Catholic system: "We bind Leviathan*, Schizophrenia*, Double mindedness*, Doubt*, Unbelief*, Confusion*, Deception* (especially in the ears where it attempts to strain out the truth), Mind Control*, Mind Occult* (comes in with medication and gives power to other spirits), Jezebel*, Death*, Witchcraft*. We bind Mind Bondage, Spiritual Death, Harlotry, Brain Washing, Babylon, False Doctrines, Religious Deception, Spiritual Darkness, Sorcery and Quenching the Spirit, in the Name of Jesus Christ (Matt. 16:19; 18:18).

We bind every evil spirit in this person separately so that they cannot help each other or hinder this deliverance. We command all evil spirits to come out decently and in order. We command violent spirits to come out meekly. None of you will hurt this person, anyone else or any property." (You may ask the Father to have angels keep a person from violence. You may ask for assistance at any time during deliverance. This really works, Praise the Lord! If the person still gets up or wants to wrestle, it is the person himself not the spirit, and deliverance should be stopped until he is willing to cooperate.)

We forbid the spirits to move around in this person except to come out. We ask that the Holy Spirit put a wedge behind any spirit that manifests so that it cannot recede. We forbid any retaliation or backlash. We command all evil spirits that are cast out to go with the angels wherever Jesus wants them to go and they cannot return. We ask the Holy Spirit to guide us in immediately filling any vacancy left by evil spirits, so there is no room for them to return."

Unconfessed Sins - If the person has any unconfessed sins he should now repent, ask and receive forgiveness of sins. He should forgive those the Holy Spirit brings to mind. He should forgive himself. If he has blamed God for things the Devil has done in his life, he should repent of this also. A person will know they have really forgiven someone else when the memory of the

incident comes to mind and there is a feeling of sorrow that it happened, but no stab of anger, resentment or hatred. Sometimes certain people have to be forgiven many times, because they keep doing the same things that caused the hurt or disappointment in the first place. If you have had an abortion or have been responsible for an abortion (such as the man who fathered the child, or someone who advised or supervised an abortion), this must be confessed as murder.

General Confession Prayer - "Lord Jesus Christ, I believe that You are the Son of God, that You are the Messiah come in the flesh to destroy the works of the Devil. You died on the cross for my sins and rose again the third day from the dead. I confess all my sins (name any that have not been confessed) and repent. I thank You for bearing my sins, sicknesses and burdens. Thank You for redeeming me. Therefore, Satan, from this moment on has no right to a place in me through the shedding of Your Innocent Blood."

Forgiveness Prayer - "Father in Heaven, I confess to You that in the past I have held unforgiveness, bitterness and resentment in my heart against certain people who have hurt or disappointed me. I now recognize this as sin, and that I can only be forgiven by God to the extent that I forgive others. I ask forgiveness in Jesus' Name. You have said in Your Word that if we confess our sins,, You are faithful and just to forgive us our sins and to cleanse us from all unrighteousness (I Jn. 1:9). I do now forgive the following people whom I remember who have hurt or disappointed me. (Ask the Holy Spirit to bring them to mind.) I forgive all those people I remember and if any should be brought to mind in days to come, I will quickly forgive them also. I also forgive myself for my many faults and failures. It would be wrong of me to assume I was higher than You by holding things in my heart against myself which You have already forgiven me, I also ask forgiveness, Father, for blaming You for things in my life which I now realize came from Satan who comes to kill, steal and destroy. Jesus came to destroy the works of the Devil and has given me authority to use His Name for that purpose also. Thank You, Father, for Your everlasting mercy and kindness to me."

Restoring The Soul Prayer - This prayer may be prayed now, at the end of the deliverance or at some other point according to the direction of the Holy Spirit. We believe it is important to pray it during or after each deliverance, as more and more of the demonic holds are cast off the person: "Heavenly Father, I come to You in the Name of the Lord Jesus Christ and I ask You to send angels to gather and restore my soul's fragments. With the full power and authority of Jesus Christ, I ask You to send Your angels to unearth and break all earthen vessels, jars, containers, bonds and bindings that have been put upon parts of my soul, willingly or unawares. I ask You to have the angels free my soul from all bondage by whatever means is required, and I agree and say, Father, that the Lord is all powerful and capable of doing this.

Now, Father, I ask You to have the angels take out of my soul any evil portions or fragments of any other person's soul and return the fragments to them. I ask You to have the angels collect and restore to its proper place all the pieces of my fragmented mind, will and emotions. Bring them into proper and original positions perfectly as You planned them when You formed Adam and Eve in the Garden of Eden. I ask these things in the name of Jesus Christ, God's Son."

Renunciation of Catholic Church - We have found that people who are not yet ready to give up ties to Catholicism, but are willing to be delivered in other areas, can receive some deliverance. However, for deliverance to be most effective, a sincere renunciation of the Catholic system is

necessary. An example of such a prayer is the following: "Heavenly Father, I renounce and repent of my participation in the (Roman, Greek or Russian) Catholic institution. I cancel the effects of all promises made to, oaths taken and rituals performed in the Catholic system by me, my parents, my husband/wife and their ancestors on both sides of the family. I renounce and cancel my allegiance to the Pope as head of The One True Church and to the Vatican as the Holy See. I renounce all false doctrines of the Catholic system:

- 1. The false doctrine that Mary is our mediator between man and God rather than His Son, Jesus. The Bible says in I Tim. 2:5, "For there is one God, and one mediator between God and men, the man Christ Jesus." Also see John 14:6.
- 2. The false doctrine which glorifies Mary more than Christ. The Bible says in Acts 4:12, "Neither is there salvation in any other: for there is none other name under Heaven given among men, whereby we must be saved." Also in Eph. 1:21, "His Name is above every other Name, not only in this world, but also in that which is to come."
- 3. The false doctrine which makes Mary the Gate to Heaven instead of Christ. The Bible says in John 10:1,7,9, "Verily, verily, I say unto you, he that entereth not by the door into the sheepfold, but climbeth up some other way, the same is a thief and a robber...Then said Jesus unto them again, verily, verily, I say unto you, I am the door of the sheep...I am the door: by me if any man enter in, he shall be saved, and shall go in and out, and find pasture." In John 14:6 "Jesus saith unto him; I am the way, and the truth, and the life: no man cometh unto the Father, but by me." Also see Acts 4:12.
- 4. The false doctrine which gives Mary the power of Christ. The Bible says in Phil. 2:9-10. "Wherefore God also hath highly exalted him, and given him a name which is above every name: that at the name of Jesus every knee should bow, of things in heaven, and things in earth and things under the earth." Also in Heb. 7:25, "Wherefore he is able also to save them to the uttermost hat come unto God by him, seeing he ever liveth to make intercession for them."
- 5. The false doctrine of praying to the dead. The Bible says in Deut. 18:10-11, "There shall not be found among you any one that maketh his son or his daughter to pass through the fire, or that useth divination, or an observer of times, or an enchanter, or a witch, or a charmer, or a consulter with familiar spirits, or a wizard, or a necromancer." (A necromancer is one who talks to the dead.) Verse 12 says, "For all that do these things are an abomination unto the Lord:..."
- 6. The false doctrine of salvation through works. The Bible says in Eph. 2:8-9, "For by grace are ye saved through faith; and that not of yourselves: it is the gift of God: not of works, lest any man should boast."
- 7. The false doctrine of praying to angels. The Bible says in Col. 2:18, "Let no one disqualify you, insisting on self-abasement and worship of angels, taking his stand on visions, puffed up without reason by his sensuous mind..." And in Rev. 22:8-9, "And I John saw these things, and heard them. And when I had heard and seen, I fell down to worship before the feet of the angel which shewed me these things. Then saith he unto me, see thou do it not: for I am thy fellow servant, and of thy brethren the prophets, and of them which keep the saying of this book: worship God."
- 8. "I renounce and repent of all these false doctrines and all of the other false doctrines of the Catholic system, in the Name of Jesus Christ. "Breaking Curses And Soul Ties"

At this point, it would be a good idea to pray the **Soul Restoration Prayer** if it has not been done so during this deliverance session. Then the person being delivered can continue:

- 1. "I break curses put upon me and my family by the Knights of Columbus or any other Catholic society. I cut all ties and holds between me and the strong man, Jezebel, Queen of Kingdoms, and the Great Harlot.
- 2. I declare to be broken any bonds, ties, or bindings that hold me to the Catholic system because of my Water Baptism, First Holy Communion, confirmation rituals, marriage vows or sacraments.
- 3. I break evil soul ties between me and the saints for which I was named. (Catholic people can be delivered of evil spirits that are called by the person's specific baptismal and confirmation names. Call these spirits out using; the saint's names and expect a manifestation, specifically, on each name.)
- 4. I break evil soul ties between me and the saints to which I have prayed. (Call out these evil spirits, using the saint's names.)
- 5. I repent of bringing Catholic statues or other abominable things into my home, as they come under the category of idols and accursed things. I have removed them from my person, home, car and place of work. (Call out spirits from the person because they had these things. Example: 'Any spirits that came in because of these things in the house of (name the person) must come out.')
- 6. 1 repent of Baal worship, which is one of the ancestors of the Catholic system. (Call out spirits of Baal, Priests of Baal, Shedding Innocent Blood, Ashtaroth, goddess mother and wife of Baal, etc.)
- 7. I repent of idolatry, worship of statues, veneration of statues and relics, and possession of same." (Call out spirits by these names.)
- 8. I repent of calling priests, Father, for Matt. 23:9 says, "And call no man your father upon the earth; for one is your Father, which is in heaven." (Call out evil spirits having priest's names.)
- 9. I break all evil soul ties with all priests and nuns with whom I have had contact or have held in high admiration. (Name the ones the Holy Spirit brings to remembrance and call spirits out by these names. Also call out Fear of Priest and Nuns. If the person wanted to become or did become a nun, call out False Bride of Christ and Bride of Satan. Call out Guilt if the person felt they should have been a nun or priest but didn't become one. Also call out Guilt For Leaving The Mother Church.)
- 10. I renounce praying to Mary and break all curses on me because of this. I cancel any dedication to Mary which may have been done in my behalf. (Call out spirits of Mary from the following: Madonna, Holy Mary, Our Lady, Notre Dame, Mother of God, Dei Mater, Deipara, Theotokos, Mater Dolorosa, The Sorrowful Mother, Queen of Heaven, Regina Coeli, Queen of Angels, Regina Angelorum, Star of the Sea, Stella Maris, The Virgin, The Blessed Virgin, The Black Virgin, Sacred heart of Mary, Hail Mary, Lady of Lourdes, Lady of Fatima, Lady of the Snows, (Other Ladies), The Virgin Mary, The Virgin Mother, Sancta Virgo Virginum, Holy Virgin of Virgins; Virgo Sponsa Dei, Virgin Bride of the Lord, Virgo Clemens, Virgin Most Merciful, Virgo Gloriosa, Virgin Most Glorious, Virgo Potens, Virgin Most Powerful, Virgo Praedican-da, Virgin Most Venerable, Hortus Clusus, Immaculate Conception, Mariology, Mariolatry, Queen of Peace, Queen of Righteousness, Queen of Martyrs, Mother Mary, Queen of Hell, Sovereign

Mistress of the Devils, Fayy Fatima-Vexxa Myya (creates a very deep loyalty to Mary), Mary Worship, Loyalty to the Church of Mary to the Death (occult in nature and practice), Sodality Fellowships (solidarity in Mary), Mary Seed of Wisdom.

- 11. I repent of the sins of my fathers during the Inquisition in Europe from 1200-1800 A.D. when millions of people were tortured, maimed and killed as heretics because they owned Bibles and obeyed what was in the Bible instead of the church tradition. As the Catholic system has never repented of this, I do so now. I renounce these actions as sin, and repent of them for myself and my family. (Call out spirits of Mental Torment, Murder, Burning, Torture and all kinds of Infirmities.)
- 12. I break the curse of Jesuit intrigue and deceit over me; Christ became a curse for me. I renounce and repent, of any association of myself, parents or ancestors (or husband/wife) back on both sides of the family from the beginning of the organization of the Jesuit Order. (Call out spirits of Political Intrigue, Lying, Religious Lying, Pieytheas, Deceit, Subterfuge, Treason, Manipulation, Murder, etc.)
- 13. I renounce and repent of saying, 'I was born a Catholic and I'll die a Catholic!' I break that curse and call out a Spirit of Death. We do all this in the Name of Jesus Christ." (Call out spirits of Death which can include Death and Hades, Osmodeus, Appolyon, Premature Death, Death by Overdose, Death by Terminal Illness, Death by Accident, Death by Drowning, etc. Also call out Destruction Spirits, and Promises to Saints and Mary.)

OTHER NAMES OF DEMONS

The following are paragraphs of other names by which evil spirits may be called out of the person. Obviously, this deliverance will take a number of sessions. It would be good to pray the Restoration Prayer before and/or after each time of deliverance. Also use the Closing Prayer after deliverance.

General - Burning of Votive Candles, Catholic Hymns, Catechism, Penance, Confessional, Confession, Lying in the Confessional, Confirmation, False Baptism, Fear of Priest, Fear of Nun, Fear of Being a Priest or Nun, Relics, Veneration of Relics, Fear of Excommunication, Burning Incense, Blind Obedience to the Priest, One Holy Priesthood, One True Church, Prayers to Saints, Novenas, False Confession, Rosary (this includes spirits of Buddha, because the rosary was adopted from Buddhism, and spirits of Death coming from Buddha), Purgatory, Fear of Judgment and Hell, False Celibacy, Idolatry, Holy Water, Way of the Cross.

Benediction Services - Genuflecting, Sorrowful Mysteries, Joyful Mysteries, Veneration of Saints, Sacred Pictures, Holy Cards, Icons, Sacred Medals, Sacred Heart of Jesus, Sign of the Cross, Crucifix, Belief in the Pope as Head of the Church, Sacred Silence, Jesuit Spirits.

False Religious Rites - Liturgy, Holy Rites, Ceremony, Processional, Litany, Greater or Lesser Litany, Invocation, Invocation of the Saints, Confirmation, Auricular Confession, The Confessional, The Confessionary, Sign of the Cross, Pax, Kiss of Peace, Reciting the Rosary, Telling of Beads, Thurification, Incense, Aspersion, Asperges, Lustration, Seven Sacraments, Mysteries, Baptism, Confirmation, Eucharist, Penance, Extreme Unction, Holy Orders, Matrimony, Burning Candles.

Unction - Sacred Unction, Sacramental Anointment, Chrism or Chrisom, Chrismation, Chrismatory, Last Rites, Viaticum, Last Supper, Lord's Supper, Holy Communion, The Sacrament, Holy

Sacrament, Intinction, Consubstantiation, Impanation, Tran-substantiation, Real Presence, Elements, Host, Wafer.

Mass - Missa, The Divine Liturgy, High Mass, Missa Solemnis, Low Mass, Missa Bassa, Rosary Mass, Rosary of the Seven Dolors of Mary, Lady Mass, Dry Mass, Missa Sicca, Liturgy of the Presanctified, Missa Praesanctificatorum, Missa Publica, Missa Privata, Missa Cantata, Missa Media, Missa Adventitia, Missa Manualis, Missa Capitularis, Missa Legata, Requiem, Requiem Mass, Dirge, Memento of the Dead.

Parts of the Mass - Prayers at the Foot of the Altar, Introit, Kyrie, Kyrie Eleison, Gloria, Collect, Epistle, Gradual, Alleluia, Tract, Gospel, Credo, Offeratory, Lavabo, Secreta, Preface, Sanctus, Tersanctus, Canon, Memento of the Living, Consecration, Elevation of the Host, Anamnesis, Memento of the Dead, Paternoster, Fraction, Agnus Dei, Pax, Communion, Post Communion, Dismissal, Blessing, Last Gospel.

Sacred and Ritualistic Articles - Relics, Sacred Relics, Monstrance, Ostensorium, Host, Eucharistia, Pyx, Ciborium, Tabernacle, Ark, Crucifix, Cross, Rood, Holy Cross, Osculatory, Pax, Agnus Dei, Icon, Bambino, Veronica, Pieta, Sacramental, Holy Water, Holy-Water Sprinkler, Aspergillum, Asperges, Asperger, Thurible, Censer, Incensory, Cruet, Ur-ceole, Rosary, Beads, Beadroll, Chaplet, Votive Candle, Vigil Light, Incensory, Cruet, Urceole, Paschal Candle, Sanctus Bell, Sacring Bell, Sangrall, Holy Grail, Missals, Mass Book, Formulary.

Holy Days - Advent, Christmas, Candlemas, Candlemas Day, Epiphany, Three Kings' Day, Twelfth-Tide, Twelfthnight, Twelfth-Day, Sep-tuagesima, Shrove Tuesday, Mardi Gras, Carnival, Pancake Day, Ash Wednesday, Lent, Lententide, Quadragesima, Quadragesima Sunday, Holy Week, Passion Week, Palm Sunday, Holy Thursday or Maundy Thursday, Good Friday, Easter, Eastertide, Easter Sunday, Easter Monday, Annunciation, Annunciation Day, Lady Day, Ascension Day or Holy Thursday, Pentecost, Whitsuntide, Whitsun, Whitweek, Whitsunday, Whit-Monday, Whit-Tuesday, White Sunday, Trinity Sunday, Corous Christi, Lemmas, Lemmas Day, Lamaestone, Michaelmas, Michaelmas Day, Michaelmastide, Halloween, Hallowmas, Allhallow-mas, Allhallowtide, Allhallows, All Saints' Day, All Souls' Day, Martinmas, Ember Days.

Allegiance to Pope - Pontiff, Papa, Holy Father, Servant of the Servants of God, Cardinal, Primate, Exarch, Metropolitan, Abuna, Archbishop, Bishop, Prelate, Diocesian, Suffragan, Coadjutor, Dean, Rector, Vicar, Chaplain, Curate, Penitentiary.

False Religion - False Doctrines, Mind Idolatry, Mind Binding, Babylonian Spirits, Nimrod, Semiramus, Tammuz, Babel, Confusion, Deception, Pipytheas (religious lying), Orion (compromises the truth; gives false gifts), Python (spirit of divination), Divination, Parricide (murder of parents).

Religious Orders - Franciscan, Gray Friar, Friar Minor, Minorite, Observant, Recollect, Conventual, Capuchin, Dominican, Black Friar, Friar Preacher, Preaching Friar of Brother, Carmelite, White Friar, Augustinian, Augustinian Hermit, Austin Friar, Begging Hermit, Benedictine, Black Monk, Jesuit, Loyolite, Crutched Friar, Crossed Friar, Templar, Hospitaler, Bernardine, Bonhomme, Carthusian, Cisterian, Cluniac, Gilbertine, Lorettine, Maturine, Premonstratensian, Trappist, Brigittine, Marist, Maryknoll, Oratorian, Redemptorist.

Patron Saints - There are also patron saints over various occupations, diseases, certain groups of people (expectant mothers, falsely accused persons, etc.), countries and places. Various symbols in art represent saints (George - dragon and Francis - birds, also deer, fish, skull, stigmata, wolf, etc.) The Roman calendar has a special saint or saints for every day of the year. There are over 5,000 saints in all.

CLOSING DELIVERANCE PRAYER

- 1. "We bind any spirits that are left in this person, separately in uncomfortable boxes, with the angels reading Scripture to them, and the Shekinah Glory of God shining on them until this person receives more deliverance. If any evil spirits wish to come out decently and in order, they may go with the angels that are waiting to take them wherever Jesus wants them to go.
- 2. All spirits that have come out during this deliverance must leave this person and this area, and go with the angels wherever Jesus wants them to go; they cannot return. We ask the Holy Spirit for wisdom to fill every vacancy that now exists with Godly attributes, so there is no place for a spirit to return.
- 3. We forbid all retaliation, backlash and vengeance from evil spirits on this person or his family, property, finances, pets or on any of the deliverance workers, their families, properties, finances, or those that they pray for.
- 4. We thank the angels for doing battle for us in the heavenlies and for taking these spirits away. We thank the Holy Spirit for wisdom to fill the vacancies and for healing any wounds left as the demons came out. We thank You, Jesus, for the use of Your Name and for Your Protective Blood. We thank You, Heavenly Father, for Your love and mercy from everlasting to everlasting.
- 5. We loose spirits of Truth, Deliverance, Adoption, Counsel, Might, Wisdom, Understanding, and Revelation Knowledge of the Word, life, etc. upon the person delivered.(Isa.11:2)
- 6. We ask all of the above prayers in the Blessed Name of Jesus Christ, Son of the Living God. Praise Almighty God from Whom all blessings flow! Amen and Amen."

REFERENCES

- 1. Dictionary of Saints, John J. Delaney, Doubleday & Company, Inc., Garden City, N.Y.
- 2. This lesson was submitted to us for use in deliverance by Jean and Larry Lester of Chicago, Illinois through Dr. William Null of Salina, Kansas. It has been rearranged and revised by us.

6. CHARISMATIC WITCHCRAFT

GENERAL

We have no right to control others! God gave us a free will and even He will not try to control us! Therefore, we enter into agreement with Satan and his demons when we attempt to control others, and we are practicing witchcraft!

Witchcraft is the practice of trying to control others for personal gain. Charismatic witchcraft is exercising control over other Christians by leaders or anyone within the church. Charismatic witches use personal prophecy to control others.

Soul ties are formed with those to whom we submit our wills. Soul ties can be formed with leaders of the church as well as with anyone in the occult that we go to for help. A dictatorial pastor will form soul ties with his congregation. The church leaders are cursed by trying to take the place of God in our lives. The congregation is cursed for following man rather than God.

Queen Jezebel was a prime example of controlling others. A Jezebelic woman is actually practicing witchcraft as she tries to control her family. Charismatic witches are Jezebels.

A lot can be written about this subject. There are many demons associated with control of others. This practice is basically mind control.

MINISTRY AND LIST OF DEMONS

"We break the power of the ruler demons over every family and organization. We break demonic ties, bonds and caps. We break soul ties to pastors, religious leaders or any Christian who has been trying to control us. We break curses placed on us by submitting our wills to others. We break curses brought by charismatic witchcraft and control. We break the curse of Jezebel and Ahab. We renounce false gifts given by Satan. We drive out all demonic works and associated spirits of witchcraft and mind control as follows:

Rejection by Christian brothers, sisters, pastors Rejection of deliverance and all groups involved in deliverance ministry

Rejection by husband, wife, mother, father, children Rejection between deliverance workers, pastors Rejection in womb, of self, of others Hurts and deep hurts by Christians Touch me not, inability to give or receive love, conception in lust

False doctrine, heresy

False preachers, teachers, evangelists, prophets, apostles

False tongues, prophecy, interpretation, demonic gifts

False religions, religious cults, eastern religions False love, sweetness, sentimentality False prosperity, love of money, think and grow rich, money by faith

False positive thinking, metaphysical faith, soulish faith

False charismatic movement, false partial gospel False shaking, quaking, crying, putting on a show False cooperating, discipleship

Charismatic witchcraft, witches, warlocks Domination, control, manipulation, dictatorial Mind control, blanking, blocking, binding, confusion Witchcraft, occult, anti-christ, familiar spirits, divination

Jezebel, Ahab, passivity, destruction of family priesthood, luke-warmness

Commanding angels for riches, imaging, visualization Greed, covetousness, mammon

Financial poverty of workers, pastors, churches, camps

A different gospel, another Jesus

Apostate religion, almost fooling the very elect

Spirit of error, spirit of the world, aborted spirit

Ruler demons over workers, pastors, families, churches, camps

Soul ties and curses from control

Despondency, despair, defeat, hopelessness, morbidity

Strife, contention, bickering, quarreling among brethren

Inability to work with other Christians Denominational spirits, separation, infighting Spiritual pride, ego, vanity, pre-eminence, haughtiness

Self-idolatry, we are gods, worship of man, fear of man

Mormonism, Jehovah Witnessism, bloodless religions Catholicism, occult, Masonry, religious demons Evil eye, third eye, Masonic eye, all seeing eye

Christian fantasy, falseness, false love Playacting, theatrics, affectation, pretension Hypocrisy, lying, deceit, deception, delusion, compromise

7. PSYCHIC PRAYERS SCRIPTURE

Deut. 30:16,11:26-28, In that I command thee this day to love the Lord thy god, to walk in his ways, and to keep his commandments, and his statutes, and his judgments, that thou mayest live and multiply: and the Lord thy god shall bless thee in the land whither thou goest to possess it. Behold, I set before you this day a blessing and a curse; a blessing, if ye obey the commandments of the Lord your God, which I command you this day: and a curse, if ye will not obey the commandments of the Lord your God, but turn aside out of the way which I command you this day, to go after other gods, which ye have not known.

Deut. 30:15,19, See, I have set before thee this day life and good, and death and evil. I call heaven and earth to record this day against you, that I have set before you life and death, blessing and cursing: therefore choose life, that both thou and thy seed may live.

Jos. 24:15, And if it seem evil unto you to serve the Lord, choose you this day whom ye will serve; whether the gods which your fathers served that were on the other side of the flood, or the

gods of the Amorites, in whose land ye dwell: but as for me and my house, we will serve the Lord.

Is. 55:1, Ho, every one that thirsteth, come ye to the waters, and he that hath no money; come, buy, and eat; yea, come buy wine and milk without money and without price.

Jer. 26:3, If so be they will hearken, and turn every man from thy evil way, that I may repent me of the evil, which I purpose to do unto them because of the evil of their doings.

Joel 2:32, And it shall come to pass, that whosoever shall call on the name of the Lord shall be delivered: for in mount Zion and in Jerusalem shall be deliverance, as the Lord hath said, and in the remnant whom the Lord shall call.

John 5:40, 6:37, And ye will not come to me, that ye might have life. All that the Father giveth me shall come to men, and him that cometh to me I will in no wise cast out.

Acts 2:21, And it shall come to pass, that whosoever shall call on the name of the Lord shall be saved.

Rom. 10:11, 13, For the Scripture saith, whosoever believeth on him shall not be ashamed. For whosoever shall call upon the name of the Lord shall be saved.

II Tim. 2:21, If a man therefore purge himself from these, he shall be a vessel unto honor, sanctified, and meet for the master's use, and prepared unto every good work.

Rev. 22:17, And the Spirit and the bride say, come. And let him that heareth say, come. And let him that is athirst come. And whosoever will, let him take the water of life freely.

Men are addressed as free agents and may be saved if they will. In other words, men and women have a free will to accept or reject the things of God. He gives them a free will and we have no right to violate their free will. Key phrases in the Scripture are: if ye obey, if ye will not obey, choose life, choose you this day whom ye will serve, if so they will hearken, whosoever shall call, if a man therefore purge himself, come, will not come, and whosoever will.

TESTIMONY

This is a vivid testimony of a pastor, his wife and their church about what happened when psychic prayers were prayed for them. These are friends of ours and we have their permission to use their testimony.

This situation came about because the pastor taught the people about unforgiveness and entered into deliverance. The families would not forgive each other for past offenses. Some of the congregation did not want deliverance, and fled from the teaching and ministering of it.

After the people left the church, they went to other churches and prayer groups. There, they prayed for the pastor that God would make him get back into line and give up deliverance. This is not a prayer to God but a prayer to Satan. Their prayers loosed demons on the pastor and his family.

They were trying to control the pastor's and his wife's wills. These were Jezebels that wanted the church back like they had it before. They had controlled the church and the pastor whom they called, "Our Little Boy".

The demons manifested and knocked the curtains off the wall of the pastor's house. One demon manifested and walked in front of our car as we were driving back home that night after this visit. The demon looked like a half man from the waist down. The purpose was to cause me to drive off the road and to kill us.

The Holy Spirit showed the pastor and his wife what had happened because of the psychic prayers. They forgave the people that had prayed against them (about eighty persons), broke the curses and soul ties, cast out the demons and sent them back to the senders, and prayed for the people to see what they were doing wrong.

Many things happened to the people that left and prayed against the church. They suffered from divorce, family problems, sickness and death. As you can see, it is dangerous to pray psychic prayers and fight against deliverance.

SPOKEN CURSES - There are two ways that we can curse another person. We can pray a psychic prayer or we can speak against another person. The words we speak go out into the air and they have power to do good or evil. We need to be careful what we speak as well as what we do.

WARFARE - Periodically, Earline and I have to break the curses that are placed against us and our ministry.

You can feel the spiritual pressure building up and it is necessary to go to spiritual war. We forgive those who knowingly or unknowingly are praying or speaking against us, break any curses or soul ties, send the demons back to those who sent them, and pray that their eyes will be opened.

SUMMARY - A psychic prayer is any prayer that does not line up with the Word of God. If you pray contrary to the Bible, then you are praying to Satan. Satan then has the right to loose demons on the people that you prayed for as well as yourself.

Since God gave everyone a free will to follow or not to follow Him and His precepts, then we have no right to try to impose our will on others even if it seems to be for their best spiritual interests. God did not create us as robots with controlled minds and actions.

Therefore, be very careful how you pray and speak. Study your Bible to find out how God thinks and acts so that you can pray in accordance with His Will. Also study to see how you should speak and bless others as well as your family.

HUMANISM

PREFACE - Why is it so hard for Christians to believe the Bible and follow its directions? The Bible is a handbook or manual for living the human life. Would anyone buy a car or other unfamiliar article and not read the accompanying manual? There are a few who would not refer to the

manual until after they have ruined the article, but most people have the good sense to read the manual before they tear up the article. Yet, we try to run our lives without ever looking into the manual. The principles of the Bible will work for non-Christians and Christians. However, they work better for Christians because the non-Christian could not use the application of the name of Jesus as is needed in deliverance, etc. Yet, many non-Christians live a better moral life than Christians.

So, here we sit. We've come to learn how to free ourselves from demon bondage. We don't seem to be able to comprehend the simple requirements of getting free and staying free, nor how to fight off demonic attacks. All the information we need is in the Bible and it is fairly clear. However, it is not easy because it requires responsibility and discipline. These two characteristics are not in vogue today. There are some assumptions and attitudes held in America today that make following the Bible hard for those who want to live a care-free, irresponsible, lazy and ignorant life, and who want others to be responsible for the failures in their lives.

While the obtaining of freedom from demon bondage should be exciting to the Christian desiring deliverance, yet we see blank, non - comprehending, dull faces and wonder why. One day I was impressed to look into the Religion of Humanism. I say religion because the humanists say their ideas are a religion in both their manifestos.

Now Humanism is not responsible for all our problems yet it has made its contribution. Most Christians believe they do not follow humanistic doctrine. I would like for you to examine your attitudes and actions as we go into a study of the humanistic doctrine.

Christians today believe that humanism is not much of a problem in their lives yet a lot of our beliefs are not Biblical but humanistic in origin. We have only to examine the hours under instruction and it becomes clear. Most Christians are under the influence of the Bible one to three hours a week and to humanistic influence six hours a day, 180 days a year for a minimum of twelve years. It was a shock to me to learn that of the 114 signers of the Humanist Manifesto II, 47 are professors or teachers, twelve are ministers (mostly Unitarian), and two are Rabbis. From this, we see that the humanists have targeted schools and school administrations as a good place to spread their doctrine. After all, we have compulsory education laws. Churches are next because they had a vast influence on American life.

The church has aided the ideas of humanism through twisting some parts of the Gospel and ignoring others. We've had an overdose of easy-believism, get what you want by faith. Faith in who and what? What happened to dying to self and carrying your cross daily? When did reaping what you've sown, cease? "What you say is what you get." If this were true, one half of the Christians would have destroyed the other one half by now. Why have we incorporated the ancient Hindu practice of visualization and inner healing into Christianity?

If we accept the responsibility for and confess our sins, forgive those who have hurt us, break the curses of our ancestors' sin from us, deliver ourselves from demons in the name of Jesus Christ, discipline our minds and actions as instructed in the Bible, we have inner and outer healing and it is done according to God's Word, not a far-eastern religion.

God wants us all well physically and all wealthy. Isn't it strange Peter, John and the other disciples didn't know this? Looks like those who were with Jesus should have known about being wealthy and always healthy. What about Paul and his problems? All these polluted teachings have confused and misinformed Christians and it causes many young Christians to give up before they hardly get started.

Did you read that you were bought with a precious price, ye are not your own? Ye are dead and your life is hidden in God. Once, when I was complaining to God about some circumstance in my life that I did not like, a thought occurred to me, "dead people don't feel or need".

As Christians, we cannot escape our responsibility. We have Bibles we can read; we have no excuse for our ignorance. We have become lazy. We want instant everything, no responsibility, no discipline and no disappointments. My grandmother said that disappointments, if handled correctly, build strong character. We don't stick to our commitment to Jesus Christ if it becomes hard or runs us cross-wise to popular opinion. See Story of Sower to see different types of responses to the Word of God.

Here are two common misconceptions concerning deliverance. "I want you to cast all my demons out all at once. I want to be totally free like in the Bible." First, I have not been able to find a single time when Jesus made any claim that He made anyone totally free. The Bible only reports that those demons he called out, came out. Question: of the many people delivered of demons in the Bible, where were they when Jesus was being tried and crucified? Were they afraid to speak up for Him? Cringing fear is demonic. Maybe Jesus forgot to get out fear. No where does Jesus tell anyone, "You are totally free."

Another falsehood: "I will never again have any trouble with the demon that has left." In Matt. 12:43-45 and Luke 11:24-26, we learn that all demons that go out, look for another place, find none, come back to their former house and check it out. If the spot in you where they were is empty, they will come again to try to get back in. They can come back in if the person out of whom they are cast, does not correct both the thoughts and actions which gave the demons the right to come in. The corrections must be Biblical in nature. The empty place where the demons were must be filled with God's thoughts and actions. If they are not filled with Godly precepts, the demon will get some of his buddies to help him gang up on you. Because you have not filled their places with Godly precepts, you can be tricked and you will give them the right to come back in. You must remember that no demon can be in you which does not have a legal right before God to be there.

I want to discuss another very subtle but powerful influence on all of us who have attended public school in the last fifty years in this country. Remember the number of hours we spent in public school (12,960) until grade twelve?

Most all of us say we do not agree with humanism, but do we really know what its aims are?

THE HUMANIST MANIFESTO I AND II - In the preface of the book The Humanist Manifesto I (1933) and The Humanist Manifesto II (1973) Paul Kurtz begins with this explanation of Humanism.

"Humanism is a philosophical, religious and moral point of view as old as human civilization itself. It has its roots in classical China, Greece, and Rome; it is expressed in the Renaissance and the Enlightenment, in the scientific revolution, and in the twentieth century." Most studious Christians know that the religion of all these nations generally was the worship of ancestors and demons. He says again, "In 1933 a group of 34 liberal humanists in the United States defined and enunciated the philosophical and religious principles that seemed to them fundamental. They drafted Humanist Manifesto I, which for its time was a radical document. It was concerned with expressing a general religious and philosophical outlook that rejected orthodox and dogmatic positions..."

In Ps.2:2, The kings of the earth take their places; the rulers take counsel together against the Lord and His Anointed One - the Messiah, the Christ. They say in Acts 4:25-27, Let us break their bands (of restraint) asunder, and cast their cords (of control) from us. He who sits in the heavens laughs; the Lord has them in derision (and in supreme contempt He mocks them). Please finish reading this Psalm. Those who have lived many years have seen the results of this rejection of orthodox or Biblical views or reason. When we left Christian principles, our level of mental, spiritual and physical life took a descending order. Never have so many people been so concerned for their health; never have so many been so sickly. This is true of mental health also.

He tries to justify the weakness and failure of Manifesto I by using this excuse, "It did not and could not address itself to future problems and needs." Yet the precepts of the Bible which they reject, has addressed all of man's problems and needs, and has met the needs of all who abide in it.

"What more pressing need than to recognize in this critical age of modern science and technology that, if no deity will save us, we must save ourselves?" I must say that it looks like this idea that we can save ourselves has failed miserably. Acts 4:11-12, This (Jesus) is the Stone which was despised and rejected by you, the builders, but which has become the Head (the external angle) of the corner - the Cornerstone. See Ps. 118:22. And there is salvation in and through no one else, for there is no other name under heaven given among men by and in which we must be saved.

There are more depressed and suicidal people today than in all of American history. The rate seems to be escalating as our nation in general follows these two Manifestos. So you see that even though they say they are not a religious group, that is hardly the truth. See John 8:32 and I Cor. 3:19-21.

"Today man's larger understanding of the universe, his scientific achievements, and his deeper appreciation of brotherhood,... " I have to question anyone's appreciation of brotherhood who sanctions murder of the unborn, the old, the infirm, the undesirable. Yet, Jesus Christ appreciates all people.

Humanist Manifesto I

"First: Religious humanists regard the universe as self-existing and not created." The Bible explains the creation in Gen. 1. In the beginning God created the Heavens and the earth.... Also see Heb. 1:2-3; 11:3.

"Second: Humanism believes that man is part of nature and that he has emerged as a result of a continuous process." Gen. 1:26, God said, Let Us (Father, Son, and Holy Spirit) make mankind in our image, after our likeness; and let them have complete authority over the fish of the sea, the birds of the air, the (tame) beasts, and over all of the earth, and every thing that creeps on the earth. See Heb. 1:2,11:3 and Ps. 104:30.

The theory of evolution says man evolved from a type of ape. I have always wondered why there are still apes today. If it is true that they changed because their environment no longer supported their life style, how did the ones we know today survive? Also, how did some of them have the intelligence to change and how did they know what to change?

Gen.1:24, And God said, Let the earth bring forth living creatures according to their kinds: livestock, creeping things, and (wild) beasts of the earth according to their kind. And it was so. Gen. 2:19-20, And whatever Adam called every living creature, that is its name.

Satan and his bunch have always lied to man and tried to trick him. He started this deception by calling it a theory; today this theory is taught as fact. John 8:44, You are of your father the devil; and it is your will to practice the lusts and gratify the desires (which are characteristic) of your father. He was a murderer from the beginning, and does not stand in the truth, because there is no truth in him. When he speaks a falsehood, he speaks what is natural to him; for he is a liar (himself) and the father of lies and all that is false.

Satan never shows us the end results of our sins; he paints them beautifully. He never shows us the ugly details. This is called gradualism. Gradualism: the policy of approaching a desired end by gradual stages. In other words, it's a sneaky way of manipulation to seduce a person into a situation .

"Third: Holding an organic view of life, humanists find that the traditional dualism of mind and body must be rejected." I Thes. 5:23, And may the God of peace Himself sanctify you through and through - that is, separate you from profane things, make you pure and wholly consecrated to God - and may your spirit and soul and body be preserved sound and complete (and found) blameless at the coming of our Lord Jesus Christ, the Messiah. Actually man is three parts: he is a spirit, which has a mind, and they live in a body. See Matthew 10:28.

"Fourth: Humanism recognizes that man's religious culture and civilization, as clearly depicted by anthropology and history, are the product of a gradual development due to his interaction with his natural environment...." This seems a strange statement for them to make. No group of historians or anthropologists can agree with each other on the issue of earth's or man's creation. Each group can punch big holes in the others' theory.

Read Gen. 1-3 and see that God, Adam and Eve could talk. Adam tended the garden. Gen. 6, Noah built a boat at the direction of God. It was the size of a modern World War I battleship. "In 1609 at Hoon, Holland, the Netherlandish Mennonite, P. Jansen, produced a vessel after the pattern of the ark, only smaller, whereby he proved it was well adapted for floating, and would carry a cargo greater by one third than any other form of like cubical content." It revolutionized ship building. Since 1900, every large vessel on the high seas was definitely inclined toward the proportions of Noah's Ark (as verified by Lloyd's Register of Shipping in the World Almanac). From Lang's Commentary.

"A person born into a particular culture is largely molded to that culture." This is partly true; however man came into this world equipped with a brain. He can reason, choose and change. Humanists would like for all of us to agree with them and become as they want us. Where, in all of this, is there true freedom? God does not make us do anything. With Him it is freedom of choice. Gal. 6:7, Whatsoever a man soweth that shall he also reap. And that is a fact. You may not choose to live a Christian life but you will eventually reap the results of what you do.

"Fifth: Humanism asserts that the nature of the universe depicted by modern science makes unacceptable any supernatural or cosmic guarantees of values." Gen. 1-2 explains the creation. Heb.1:3, He is the perfect imprint - very image - of God's nature upholding and maintaining and guiding and propelling the universe by His mighty word of power. All of us live and move and have our being by His Word and permission.

"Religion must formulate its hopes and plans in the light of scientific spirit and method." God does not have to become subjected to the scientific spirit and method since He created all things. Heb. 1:2, 10, Also by and through Whom He created the worlds and the reaches of space and the ages of time - (that is) He made, produced, built, operated and arranged them in order. And (further), You, Lord, did lay down the foundation of the earth in the beginning, and the heavens are the works of Your hands.

"Sixth: We are convinced that the time has passed for theism,...." Theism - belief in the existence of one God viewed as the creative source of man and the world who transcends yet is immanent in the world. See Heb. 1-2. Ps. 14:1, The (empty headed) fool has said in his heart, There is no God. They are corrupt, they have done abominable deeds, there is none that does good or right. See Rom. 3:10.

"Seventh: Religion consists of those actions, purposes, and experiences which are humanly significant. It includes labor, art, science, philosophy, love, friendship, recreation - all that is in its degree expressive of intelligently satisfying human living. The distinction between the sacred and the secular can no longer be maintained." This looks like man's worship of himself and his pride in what he can accomplish.

It completely overlooks the fact (James 1:17) that every good gift that man has comes from the Father in Heaven. There is a religion called Pantheism which maintains that everything is in God and God is in everything, therefore I am God. Romans 1 tells us of the descent into degradation of people who have known God, decided to deny Him and began to worship the created rather than the Creator.

"Eighth: Religious Humanism considers the complete realization of human personality to be the end of man's life." It seems here they think there is no life after death and no judgement. Heb. 9:27, And just as it is appointed for (all) men once to die and after that the (certain) judgement. In II Cor. 5:6 & 8, Paul talks about being absent from the body (dead) and present with the Lord. See John 6:40 and Luke 18:30.

"Ninth: In place of the old attitudes involved in worship and prayer the humanist finds his religious emotions expressed in a heightened sense of personal life and in a cooperative effort to promote social well being." Question - What went wrong? From casual observation it looks like this belief has brought almost total failure. This is self-worship at its height. Self worship beings terrible fears. Deep in the heart of man he knows he has no power to save himself. Review Romans 1.

When a person becomes so self-centered and self-motivated that all in life must revolve around him, you will find our present day rebellious people. Gods of self are so small they cave in on themselves. Gen. 4:3-15, Cain is a worshiper of himself and what he could do; he would do it his way or else. This type of worship began in rebellion and ended in murder. Today we are witness to this type of worship; it also ends in rebellion and often murder. "Heightened sense of personal life" sounds selfish to me. In II Timothy 3:1-5 we have listed the results of being too selfcentered. In I Sam. 15:23, For rebellion is as the sin of witchcraft. When we become so selfcentered that we will do anything and manipulate everything to get our way, we have entered into witchcraft.

"Tenth: It follows that there will be no uniquely religious emotions and attitudes of the kind hitherto associated with belief in the supernatural." This is a very strong statement and is contrary to our Constitution and Bill of Rights. It does parallel the Communist Manifesto. Matt. 22:37-39, You shall love the Lord with all your heart, and with all your soul, and with all your mind. See Deut. 6:5. Now when I love someone that much there will just possibly be a little emotion shown. When we consider the magnitude of what Jesus Christ has done for us, we will worship and praise Him. The desire of humanism to stop our religious attitudes and emotions amounts to witchcraft. Is this brotherhood?

"Eleventh: Men will learn to face the crises of life in terms of his knowledge of their naturalness and probability. Reasonable and manly attitudes will be fostered by education and supported by custom." It seems that we have proved this to be an incorrect assumption. It has failed wonderfully! Men today seem to be weaker in principle and courage than I have seen in my lifetime. A large proportion of our young men are on drugs because they cannot stand the pressure of every-day life. The Bible tells us that we can do all things through Christ who strengthens us (Phil. 3:13 and Heb. 4:16).

"We assume that humanism will take the path of social and mental hygiene and discourage sentimental and unreal hopes and wishful thinking." In this statement humanists show how little they know of the nature of men. These are the real results of fifty years of humanism in school and church: more mentally ill than ever, more substance abuse than ever, more social unrest than ever. The young people we have worked with are overloaded with unreal hopes and wishful thinking. We have suicide at a rate never even imagined in years gone by. As a young person, until age 25,1 never knew one person who had killed himself. I knew only one or two who used alcohol and none that used drugs. We are largely a group of ungrateful people and this is especially true in the church.

We have been taught to believe God for our wants, not our needs. God promised to meet our needs. Phil. 4:19, And my God will liberally supply (fill to the full) your every need according to His riches in glory in Christ Jesus.

"Twelfth: Believing that religion must work increasingly for joy in living, religious humanists aim to foster the creative in man and to encourage achievements that add to the satisfaction of life." Neh. 8:10, The joy of the Lord is your strength. Rom. 14:17, The kingdom of God is not a matter of (getting the) food and drink (one likes), but instead, it is righteousness - that state which makes a person acceptable to God - and heart peace and joy in the Holy Ghost.

We have worked with hundreds of youth who have indulged in most of the sins advocated in the humanist manifestos. To their horror, they did not have a life of joy at all. They have found that whether you are a Christian or not sooner or later you pay for your sins. Adultery brings many worries and abortion brings earth shaking guilt; there is deep remorse, shame, loss and disease. You cannot have heart peace and joy when the things you have done bring guilt and fears.

"Thirteenth: Certainly religious institutions, their ritualistic forms, ecclesiastical methods, and communal activities must be reconstituted as rapidly as experience allows,...." What happens to our guarantee of freedom of worship? There are a few charlatans in Christianity who need to be reconstituted but by and large this is not true. God is able to take care of His wayward children (as we have had graphic examples in the last two years).

"Fourteenth: The humanists are firmly convinced that existing acquisitive and profit-motivated society has shown itself to be inadequate and a radical change in methods, controls, and motives must be instituted. Humanists demand a shared life in a shared world." It is a lie for anyone to say our economic system did not work. It worked as long a sound economic system was used. You may have noticed that our economic system decline parallels the issuing of these two manifestoes.

II Thes. 3:10-11, If anyone will not work, neither shall he eat. In the Old Testament, owners of fields were supposed to leave the corners of the fields unharvested, leave gleanings for those who had need of food; and let anyone traveling in his field eat all he needed (only he must not take more than he could eat). Lev. 19:10 & Jer. 49:9

The Christians are to bring all their tithes into the storehouse (armory) that there may be food in my house. Mai. 3:10. It is the job of the Christian community to share with those in need. Each person was expected to provide for and care for his relatives when they came upon hard times. See I Tim. 5:8.

"Fifteenth and last: We assert that humanism will: (a) affirm life rather than deny it; (b) seek to elicit the possibilities of life not flee from it; and (c) endeavor to establish the condition of a satisfactory life for all, not merely the few." I think you should judge this statement in the light of conditions in the U.S.A. today. Have they accomplished their stated aims or have they accomplished their real aims? The real way to success is found in Joshua 1:6-9 (please read and study).

Manifesto II

We will only discuss the additions to Manifesto I. This manifesto is divided into six main headings: Religion, Ethics, The Individual, Democratic Society, World Community and Humanity as a Whole. Deut. 11:26-27, Behold, I set before you this day a blessing and a curse; The blessing, if you obey the commandants of the Lord your God, which I command you this day; And the curse, if you will not obey the commandants of the Lord your God, but turn aside from the way I commanded you this day, to go after other gods which you have not known. Pro. 10:20, The tongue of those who are upright and in right standing with God is as choice silver; the mind of those who are wicked and out of harmony with God is of little value. Read Prov. 2-3 to learn about true wisdom.

"Faced with apocalyptic prophesies and doomsday scenarios, many flee in despair from reason and embrace irrational cults and theologies of withdrawal and retreat." Prov. 3:25, Be not afraid of sudden terror and panic, nor of the stormy blast or the storm and ruin of the wicked when it comes. For the Lord shall be your confidence, firm and strong, and shall keep your foot from being caught (in a trap or hidden danger). See also Ps. 92. This does not sound like retreat or fear. Study Prov. 8:11 and Prov. 9.

Listen to some utter fantasy, "A humanist outlook will tap the creative of each human being and provide the vision and courage for us to work together." In the fifty plus years since the humanists first manifesto was written, I have seen most of their desires put into effect. Why hasn't each human's creative been taped? It looks right but the opposite is true; there are more people on welfare than ever in all our history as a nation. Where is the vision, courage and working together for good of each other?

Religion

"First: We find insufficient evidence for belief in the existence of a supernatural; it is either meaningless or irrelevant to the question of the survival and fulfillment of the human race. As nor-theist, we begin with humans not God, nature not deity." Gen. 1-3, Jesus Christ came to minister to the human race. Matt. 20:28, Jesus Christ, the supernatural, came to heal and help the natural man.

"Traditional religions often offer solace to humans, but as often they inhibit humans from helping themselves or experiencing their full potentials." Isn't this Communist doctrine? This statement is directly opposite to the effects of truly following the Bible. Actually it is difficult to avoid reaching your God given potential if you follow His advice. Josh 1:7-8 contains the formula for good success. Be strong and of good courage, follow the law, the book of the law shall not depart out of your mouth, meditate on it day and night, and do all that is written in it, and then you shall make your way prosperous and have good success.

"But we can discover no divine purpose or providence for the human species. While there is much we do not know, [now here we get the truth, there is certainly much they do not know] humans are responsible for what we are or will become." This is only partially true. With God's help we reach His full plan for us when we follow His Bible. The godless mind of man is described in Gen. 6:5, The Lord saw that the wickedness of man was great upon the earth, and that every imagination and intention of all human thinking was only evil continually. Ps. 14:1-3, They are all gone aside, they are all together become filthy; there is none that does good or right, no, not one.

"No deity will save us; we must save ourselves." From what they have said so far, it is hard to see why we need saving. But God says in Eph. 2:1-3, And you (He made alive), when you were dead (slain) by (your) trespasses and sins. In which at one time you walked habitually. You were following the course and fashion of this world - were under the sway of the tendency of this present age - following the prince of the power of the air. (You were obedient to him and were under his control,) the (demon) spirit that still constantly works in the sons of disobedience - the careless, the rebellious and the unbelieving, who go against the purposes of God. See John 3:16; Rom. 1:16 and 10:10.

"Second: Promises of immortal salvation or fear of eternal damnation are both illusory and harmful." See II Tim.3:15 and Ps. 9:7-10. While the fear of damnation is terrible, salvation is the greatest security creating peace and an environment for success in life.

"Rather, science affirms that the human species is an emergence from natural evolutionary forces." As a teacher I have done some study of this theory and found no concrete evidence of any truth in it. Instead I see that the so-called facts change over time, and the evidence breaks down and is inconsistent. There is very little agreement among evolutionists. Gen.1-3.

"There is no credible evidence that life survives the death of the body." Heb. 9:27, And just as it is appointed for (all) men once to die and after that the (certain) judgement. II Cor. 5:6-9, So then, we are always full of good courage; we know that while we are at home in the body we are abroad from the home with the Lord.

Ethics

"Third: Ethics is autonomous and situational, needing no theological or ideological sanction." Our Republic was founded on the laws of the Bible and they worked very well for America until those who wanted to destroy our Republic came to power. With these people came the beginning of the seduction, "for the good life here and now", of the American people and questioning of Biblical law. Read Exodus and Deuteronomy for an understanding of God's law. Situational ethics has no place in God's kingdom. A nation or a person without ethics is unstable and untrustworthy. Doing what is right because it is right and not because you might get caught, used to be a child's guide to questionable situations.

"Fourth: Reason and intelligence are the most effective instruments that mankind possesses. There is no substitute: neither faith nor passion suffices in itself." This is indeed shallow and trite, really just plain nonsense. Listen to the Bible. Ps. 111:10, The reverent fear and worship of the Lord is the beginning of wisdom. Pro. 4:5,7, The beginning of Wisdom is, get Wisdom -skillful and godly Wisdom! For skillful and godly Wisdom is the principal thing. And with all you have gotten get understanding - discernment, comprehension and interpretation. See James 1:5. Go to Pro. 7:1, But fools despise Wisdom... Pro. 3:13, Happy is the man that findeth Wisdom.

The Individual

"Fifth: The preciousness and dignity of the individual person is a central humanist value." This is a strange statement because the next paragraph describes ways of harming people that humanists approve. It is God who created us to have freedom of choice. For every freedom we have there is equal responsibility. Study seriously number six. "Sixth: ...we believe that intolerant attitudes, often cultivated by orthodox religions and puritan cultures, unduly repress sexual conduct." The Bible tells us in Gal. 6:7, Be not deceived; God will not allow himself to be sneered at - scorned, disdained or mocked. He inevitably deludes himself who attempts to delude God. For whatsoever a man soweth that shall he reap. We are informed that people who commit adultery, sodomy, or homosexual acts, and those who participate in deviate sex receive curses. These curses are simply the results of their action. Like 2 + 2 = 4, certain actions bring certain curses. Some of these curses will go on to be a part of the life of many generations.

"The right to birth control, abortion, and divorce should be recognized." In number five it was stated that all people have preciousness and have dignity. What about the unborn? What about responsibility for your own actions? Why should I have to help pay for your abortion, when you do not love and respect yourself enough to do what is best for yourself? Ex. 23:7, Be very careful not to condemn to death the innocents and the righteous, for I will not justify and acquit the wicked. Deut. 19:10,13; 21:8-9; 27:24-25, Cursed are those who take money to slay the innocent. Ps. 106:37-42; Pro. 6:16-17. The results of shedding innocent blood, whether born or unborn are found in Joel 3:19, they and the land shall become a desolation and a wilderness.

"The many varieties of sexual exploration should not in themselves be considered evil. ..individuals should be permitted to express their sexual proclivities ... as they so desire." These actions bring curses: adultery: Nu. 5:27, Deut. 22:13-21 & 27:21-22, Ex. 22:19; incest: Deut. 27:20, Lev. 18: 6-18, Gen. 19:36-38, Deut. 23:4; abortion: Ex. 21:22-23; homosexuality: Lev. 20:13; sodomy: Gen. 19:13, 24-25. A curse for sexual sin may be a disease, death of children, loss of country or loss of own life.

Democratic Society

"Seventh: The seventh includes the right to suicide and the right to murder those that others say should die. Ex. 20:13, You shall commit no murder. Eph. 5:29, No man ever hated his own body. A demon or group of demons may convince a man to kill himself.

"Eighth: All persons should have a voice in developing the values and goals that determine their lives." It speaks as if this was not already granted us both by God and our Constitution. God's values and goals for your life are always the best. But God tells us to choose whomever we wish to serve, Josh. 24:15. God's suggestions for running our life are in Ex., Lev. and Deut.

"Ninth: The separation of church and state and the separation of ideology and state are imperatives." This is in direct contradiction of Manifesto I, number seven, "The distinction between sacred and secular can no longer be maintained."

"Tenth: In number ten economic systems are to be judged by how that system increases the economic well-being for all individuals. There is no economic system on earth which has been able to meet everyone's economic well-being.

"Hence the door is open to alternative economic systems." This is the drive to one world, one money then to no money. People will be easier to control if they have no money with which to trade or all trade goes on through some system that is monitored. See Rev. 13:16-17.

"Eleventh: Individuals should be encouraged to contribute to their own betterment. If unable, then society should provide means to satisfy their basic economic, health, and cultural needs, including, whatever resources make possible a minimum guaranteed annual salary." They claim here to be concerned for all old people, outcasts, abused children, etc. But just before this, they said they were for abortion, suicide and euthanasia.

II Tim. 3:10, If any will not work, let him not eat. As Christians, we are to help those around us who suffer need. In the United States our welfare programs are holding people in bondage to the program. Instead of getting people into productive jobs, we have several generations on the program. The aim of welfare sounds good but does not produce a good consequence.

We believe in the right to universal education. Innovative and experimental forms of education are to be welcomed." It looks like we have had so much innovative and experimental education that no one knows how to teach or teach anyone how to learn. Fifty years ago children who desired to learn could. They could accumulate a lot of knowledge in twelve years in school. In II Tim. 2:15 we are instructed to study to show ourselves approved unto God.

World Community

"Twelfth: We deplore the division of humankind on nationalistic grounds. Thus we look to the development of a system of world law and a world order based upon transnational federal government. We thus reaffirm a commitment to the building of world community,..." I believe I have read about this in Revelation. It will be very interesting to see that system work. It may take from one to five years to get your case heard in court now. Just think, you might get "euthanized" before your case came up. If you won a settlement, the proceeds could go to the government. Rev. 13:14. Sounds like the New Age Movement, Occult, Satanic Worship, Humanism, god and goddess Worship all rolled into one.

"Thirteenth: This world community must renounce the resort to violence and force as a method of solving international disputes."

I recommend that every Christian get a copy of both humanist manifestoes and study them. Of course, if you have not diligently studied your Bible and sought God's wisdom and understanding, you will not be able to recognize its diabolical reasoning. Much of what they advocate sounds so good to the mind that wants to be passive in life. We have three great seducers: lust of the eye, lust of the flesh and pride of life. Lust: desire, pleasure, uncontrolled desire, eagerness to possess. These three work together to cause us to spend time hoping we won't have to fight for right and that we can just indulge and enjoy ourselves.

Lust of the flesh promotes love of soft, pampered and effeminate life. Effeminate: 1. having the qualities attributed to a woman (not necessarily homosexual but often leading to it), as weakness, gentleness, delicacy, unmanly. 2. characterized by such qualities: weak; soft, decadent, (decadent: a falling away, a decline in force or quality; a process or condition, or period of decline, as in morals); decay, (decay: to deteriorate, to become rotten), decline. Not wanting to suffer loss of children, our life or our possessions.

Lust of the eyes works in us with greed, covetousness, envy, fervent desire. We want desperately to get, to get more and more, and by any and all means keep what we have no matter what we

have to compromise to keep it all. We greatly desire the admiration of others about our accomplishments.

Pride of life works in us to cause us to compromise righteous values in order to keep things or situations as we want them, to enjoy the dominion over all that we can dominate. The Devil tempted Christ in these three ways also: 1. to gratify a bodily appetite, (lust of the flesh) 2. to court applause, (lust of the eyes) and 3. to purchase dominion (pride of life). In Spirit-Filled Christians these three are used to put down any Christian who is not doing as well as we are or who has problems or fails in any way. The Devil is the force behind lust of the flesh, lust of the eyes and pride of life. How do we overcome? Rev. 12:11, And they overcame (conquered) him by means of the blood of the Lamb (salvation of body, soul and spirit), and by the utterance of their testimony (being unashamed of the works of God in your life), for they did not love their life and cling to life even when faced with death, holding their lives cheap till they had to die)for their witnessing.

"Fourteenth: Ecological damage, resource depletion, and excessive population growth must be checked by international concord." Gen. 1:28, And God blessed them, and said to them, Be ye fruitful, multiply, and fill the earth and subdue it (with ail its vast resources). He said to subdue the earth not destroy it. So you see, God has given the directions for the use of the earth but we have not obeyed.

"Fifteenth: It is the moral obligation of the developed nations to provide - through an international authority that safeguards human rights - massive technical, agricultural, medical, and economic assistance, including birth control techniques, to the developing portions of the globe." We have done this. The banking system has lent billions to Third World nations and has succeeded in almost bankrupting all of them. These countries can hardly pay the interest on their debts and this is almost bankrupting the U.S.A. It has turned respect and admiration for the U.S.A. into contempt and hate. There is a curse on willing deceivers, see Jos. 9:23; Jer. 48:10; Mai. 1:14; Gen. 27:12. The money of our aid has in most cases gone into leaders' pockets and not into improvements in the countries. This idea was a fluke; it has failed. We should help others but not try to lead them into a life-style they cannot understand and do not want.

"Hence extreme disproportions in wealth, income, and economic growth should be reduced on a worldwide scale." The Bible tells us throughout its pages that He will provide the needs of those who follow Him. Most of the nations we have lent to worship false gods and have rejected knowledge of the true God. We are also taught to use wisdom in all we do; that includes giving and imposing our life-style on others. America has been blessed because the majority of its citizens were Christians and abided by the Biblical precepts but that is no longer true. Our economics will go as our obedience to God goes.

"Sixteenth: Technology is a vital key to human progress and development." The fear (reverent fear) of God is the beginning of wisdom. In the old days when a discovery was made, the discoverer declared, "Look what God has wrought." "We are particularly disturbed when technology ... is used to modify humans without their consent." If they really believe this, they would have to condemn abortion. Abortion certainly modifies a human being; it is total destruction.

"Seventeenth: The world must be open to diverse political, ideological, and moral viewpoints and evolve a worldwide system of television and radio for information and education." I have a friend who spent five years in Africa; in that country television was not allowed. The leaders felt it would corrupt the people's morals. T.V. does educate, but alas, it is a downward trend to a base, crude and evil level.

SUMMARY

This document on humanism is not consistent. On the one hand it says it respects human life and on the other hand it favors euthanasia, suicide and abortion. It advocates a total rejection of worship of God and insists that man worship himself, that above all else man must have things the way he thinks he wants them and to indulge all his base desires. It implies a love for mankind, but upon careful reading, you find little room for personal or religious freedom. It condemns violence but in truth creates violence.

For the results of being taught these ideas for fifty plus years, see American youth. It was not a good dream, it is a nightmare. Our only hope is a return to Biblical principles. The way back will not be through following the masses but following Jesus Christ. Is our nation too far gone? If we were to all repent and change our wicked ways today, God would have to apologize to Sodom and Gomorrah, for shedding innocent blood. In Jer. 22 we find the punishment for shedding innocent blood and for injustice - the loss of the homeland and going into slavery.

As I see it, Humanism is anti-Christ, anti-Christian, anti-freedom and anti-people. Their Manifestos are full of contradictions and lies. After more than fifty years under their influence, we are not better off but worse off in every way. Its teachings help a person to become extremely selfcentered. It fosters the idea that everything, even God, exists to serve man's wants. Its stand in favor of abortion, divorce, euthanasia and suicide confuses the person's ability to love. By encouraging these four things, people influenced by humanism will not understand the true meaning of love, neither will they take up the responsibility that love carries.

Lust, greed, irresponsibility, laziness and hardness of heart come into people and take the place that love, generosity, responsibility, productive activity and caring should have. There is a tendency to want to stay dependent on others and not mature. Today, most marriages are made in lust, most children are conceived in lust and most lives are spent in lust. Read Chapter 13 of I Cor. and examine yourself. I have been working on my life and attitudes to adapt this chapter into my heart and life for many years.

It causes people to seek to escape from all suffering, to escape all consequences of bad behavior, etc. It does us good to learn how to deal with our failures and hard times, to work hard, to suffer from persecutions, to handle discouragement and despair, etc.

PRAYERS

If you have seen the work of humanism in your life and attitudes, and you desire to see and understand how it has worked its way into your life, pray with me this prayer and add those sins particular to your life.

Those who have tried to use inner healing and visualization to bring peace and success should repent and renounce all of these things as idolatry and rebellion. Then break soul ties with the

person who instructed you in it and call out demons of rejection, bitterness, rebellion and idolatry. Call out the names of the religions that practice these things.

"Father in Heaven, I thank You for exposing the true aims of humanism to me. I realize it is against You, Your presence and Your power. I have spent years under its instruction. In many subtle ways its doctrine interferes with my believing, heeding and trusting You. Forgive me for not being diligent in searching out its true aims. I ask You, Lord, for wisdom, knowledge and discernment to know the place this religion holds in my mind and life and how it interferes in my relationship with You and others. I break its power and curse over me beginning this day in Jesus Christ's name. I will be diligent in reading, studying and applying Your Word to my life. I will not try to excuse myself from obedience to the Bible but will begin to obey Your precepts as I learn them. I thank You for helping me understand and discern the difference between Your word and will, and humanism's will and aims. Thank You for working with me as I act on Your word and cast out the demon intruders in my life. I break the bondage of humanism off my mind in Jesus Christ's name. I break the curses of idolatry, witchcraft, lies and domination off me and my descendents in Jesus' name.

We break these Biblical curses that are the results of our being taught under Humanism: willing deceivers (Jos. 9:23, Jer. 48:10, Gen. 27:12, Mai. 1:14); an adulterous woman (Nu. 5:27); adulterers (Job 24:15-18); idolatry (Jer. 44:8, Deut. 29:19); those who keep or own cursed objects (Deut.7:25); house of the wicked (Pro. 3:33); thieves and those who swear falsely by the Lord's name (Zech. 5:4); those who rob God (Mai. 3:9); those who harken to their wives rather than to God (Gen. 3:17); those who make graven images (Deut. 5:8); willfully cheating people out of their property (Deut. 27:17); incest (Deut. 27:20-22); bestiality (Deut. 27:21); shedding innocent blood (Deut. 27:24); the proud (Ps. 119:21); trusting in man (Jer. 48:10); those who reward evil for good (Pro. 17:13); illegitimate children (Deut. 23:3); children of incest (Gen. 19:36-38); murderers (Ex. 21:12); children who strike their parents (Ex. 21:15); cursing parents (Ex. 21:17); murdering the unborn (Ex. 21:22-23); not preventing death (Ex. 21:29); witchcraft (Ex. 22: 20); those who attempt to turn anyone away from God (Deut. 13:6-9); horoscope followers (Deut. 17:2-5); not disciplining children (I Sam. 2:8-9); those who teach rebellion against God (Jer. 28:16-17); those who sacrifice human beings (Lev. 20:2); homosexuals (Lev. 20:13); blaspheming the Lord's name (Ex. 20:7); the carnal minded (Rom. 8:6); and rebellious children (Deut. 21:18-21) in Jesus Christ's name. Amen."

LIST OF DEMONS

Rejection	Stupor	Comfort	Evil Spirit of Unbelief
Fear of Rejection	Anti-God	Self-Seduction	Occult
Demonic Subjection	Anti-Salvation	Effeminate	ESP
Self Rejection and	Anti-Bible	Life: Soft	Hypnotism
Hatred	Anti-Christ	Pampered	Horoscope - Astrol-
Rejection of Others	Anti-Salvation by Je-	Weakness	ogy
Rejection of God	sus	Delicacy	Levitations
Bitterness	Lies and Lying	Unmanly	Fortune Telling
Resentment	Human Reasonings	Decadent	Tarot Cards - Tea
Hatred	Stupid Imaginations	Decline in Force	Leaf
Unforgiveness To-	Vain Imaginations	Decline in Morals	Reading
ward Self	Anti-Godly Super-	Decay	Witchcraft - Black

Unforgiveness To-	natural	Rot	and
ward Others	Worship of: Medi-	Adultery	White Magic
Unforgiveness To-	cine, Demons, Sci-	Fornication	Conjuration
ward God	ence, Man's, Rea-	Sodomy	Soul Travel
Temper	son, Man's, Intel-	Demonic Sex	Charms, Fetishes, Tal-
Violence	lect, Self, Pride,	Deviate Sex	isman, Amulets
Rage	Ego, Vanity	Perverted	Self-Worship
Anger	Man's Ideas	Pornography	Man is God
Retaliation	Aggression: Against	Homosexual	One-World Govern-
Murder	God, Against Oth-	Divorce	ment
Abortion	ers, Against God's	Passivity	One-World Money
Suicide	Law	Escape	Irresponsibility
Rebellion	Hate	Drugs: Street and Pre-	Evaluation
Self-will	Envy	scription	Situational Ethics
Stubbornness	Empty Headed	Alcohol	Can't Comprehend
Disobedience	Fool	Over Sleeping	Denial
Anti-Submission	Lust of the Eye	Indifferent	Denying God's
Strife in Family	Greed	Stoicism	Protection
Quarreling	Covetousness	Lethargy	Denying God's
Fighting: Physical and	Fervent and Uncon-	Depression	Provision
Verbal	trollable	Despair	Denying God's Love
Demonic Domination	Desire	Despondency	Denying God's Pres-
Self-Idolatry	Conquest for "Good	Discouragement	ence
Humanism	Life"	Defeat	Denying God Pro-
Demonic Denomina-	Pleasure	Hopelessness	vided
tion	Grasping	Morbid	Man With a Spirit
Idol Worship	Lust of the Flesh	Gloom	Denying That God Is
Witchcraft	Over Indulgence	Disgust	Supernatural
Deception	Self-Gratification	Heaviness	Vain
Denying True Wor-	Taoism	Unreal Expectations	Pride
ship of God	New Age	Wishful Thinking	Ego
Denying Prayer and	Hinduism	Hateful Thinking	Hard Hearted
Power of Prayer	Islam	Unreal Hopes	Calloused
Denying God's Will	Shintoism	Socialism	Shedding Innocent
Answer Prayer	Confucianism	Pride of Life	Blood
Denying Religious	Ancestor Worship	Self-Righteousness	Euthanasia
Emotions	Freemasons	Self-Realization	Infanticide
Denying Godly Hope	Pantheism	Self-Fulfillment	Infirm Demon
Unreasonableness	God and Goddess	Self-Glorification	
False Religions	Worship	Compromise	
Buddhism	Unnatural Affection	Haughty	

REFERENCES

- 1.
- 2.
- Amplified Bible Pigs in the Parlor Humanist Manifesto 1 and II Webster's Dictionary 3.
- 4.

SECTION 8 - HOLIDAYS AND PUPPETRY

CONTENTS

- 1. Holidays
- 2. Christmas Pagan Or Christian Holiday?
- 3. What's Wrong With Valentine's Day
- 4. Marionettes, Mariolatry, Mummery, Puppetry And Ventriloquism

1. HOLIDAYS

SCRIPTURE ABOUT IDOL WORSHIP

Read the whole chapter of Ezekiel 8. Ezekiel in a vision of God at Jerusalem is shown the image of jealousy, the chambers of imagery, the mourners for Tammuz, the worshippers towards the sun and God's wrath for their idolatry. "Therefore will I also deal in fury: mine eyes shall not spare, neither will I have pity: and though they cry in mine ears with a loud voice, yet will I not hear them" (vs. 18).

2 Cor. 5:17	(A new creature in Christ.)
2 Cor. 6:16-17	(What agreement can there be between the temple of God and idols? Leave
	idolatry and heathen worship; touch not any unclean thing!)
Eph. 4:25	(Reject all falsity.)
1 Thess. 1:9	(Ye turned from idols to God.)
1 John 5:21	(Keep yourself from idols.)

SCRIPTURE ABOUT SO-CALLED CHRISTIAN HOLIDAYS

Certain holidays got into the Christian church by way of the Catholic Church. To keep the country united, Roman emperors began to give Christian meaning to pagan rituals.

Ex. 22:18	Thou shalt not suffer a witch to live.
Ex. 23:13	Make no mention of the name of other gods.
Lev. 19:31	To be defiled by familiar spirits and wizards.
Deut. 18:9-14	The abominations of the nations are to be avoided.
Josh. 23:7	Neither make mention of the name of their gods.
1 Sam. 28:7-28	The witch raised Samuel;
Micah 5:12-13	Cut off witches, soothsayers, and images.
Acts 13:6-11	Elymas the sorcerer was struck blind.
Acts 16:16-19	Casteth out a spirit of divination.
Romans 12:2	And be not conformed to this world.
Gal. 5:19-21	He reckoneth up the works of the flesh.
Eph. 6:12-13	He sheweth what they intend that preach circumcision.
2 Tim. 1:7	For God hath not given us a spirit of fear
James 4:4-10	God resisteth the proud.

APPARENTLY HARMLESS HOLIDAYS

Some holidays do not appear to have any evil practices that are contrary to the Word of God. They are Columbus Day, Independence Day, Labor Day and Thanksgiving. Good Friday is kept on the anniversary of the crucifixion. Encyclopedia Britannica says that the origin is somewhat obscure. Jesus could not have died on Friday and risen on Sunday in three days.

Common Hebrew holidays include Passover, Rosh Hashannah, Yom Kippur and Hanukkah. These are apparently harmless holidays taken from the Old Testament practices.

Most of the remaining holidays are American in origin and celebrate birthdays or special events. They include Lincoln's Birthday, Washington's Birthday, Flag Day, Mother's Day, Memorial Day, Father's Day, Election Day and Veterans' Day.

NEW YEAR'S DAY (Encyclopedia Britannica)

Participation in New Year's Day observances as well as in the Saturnalia of December was from the first discouraged by the church. Christians were expected to spend the day in quiet meditation, reading Scripture and performing acts of charity. In 567 A.D. this began to change.

The Romans' god Janus (for January) was worshipped by exchanging gifts. Druid priests gave branches of mistletoe which grew on their sacred oaks, to the people for charms.

ST. VALENTINE'S DAY (World Book Encyclopedia & The Two Babylons)

Ex. 20:3-6	You shall have no other gods except Me.
Ex. 20:7-17	The Ten Commandments.
Matt. 18:5-6	Woe to those who mislead children.

We need to ask God and our children to forgive us.

John 14:15	If you love Me, keep My commandments.
John 15:12	Love one another just as I have loved you.
Rom. 11:22	Consider therefore the goodness and severity of God.

In 296 B.C., there is found a record of Pan worship in Lupercal, a cave in the Palentin Hills. To purify themselves, priests sacrificed and ate goats and dogs, cut skins in strips for lashes, and used these to strike women.

Cupid is the Latin name of the god of sexual love, Eros. Kamadira is Hindu for Cupid; the name was shortened to Kama. Cupid is also another name for Nimrod, Baal is another name for Nimrod, and so this is Baal worship.

Here we get erotic demons. Many children conceived in Christian homes are conceived in lust. So, lust and other sex spirits enter at conception.

ST. PATRICK'S DAY (Webster's Dictionary)

St. Patrick is the patron saint of Ireland. Patron saint: a saint that is supposed to protect and promote the welfare of a particular person, community, state or institution.

Jehovah-Jireh, the Lord will provide (Gen. 22:14). Casting the whole of your care upon Him (I Peter 5:7). Don't worry, God knows what you need even before you ask (Luke 12:22-31).

So, St. Patrick is an idol you are depending on. We are told not to try to communicate with the dead -necromancy (Deut. 18:11).

ORTHODOX LENT (The Two Babylons)

The forty days abstinence of Lent was directly borrowed from worshippers of the Babylonian goddess, Ishtar or Eastre. Such a fast is still observed in the spring of the year by pagan Devil worshippers of Koor-distan. Pagan Mexicans, three days after the vernal equinox, begin a solemn fast of forty days in honor of the sun.

In 519 A.D. the council held at Aurelia in the time of Hormisdas, Bishop of Rome, decreed that Lent should be kept before Easter. Three days after the vernal equinox began, a solemn fast of forty days was held in honor of the sun. The sun god has many names: Adonis, Asiris, Bacchus, Liber and Tammuz.

Lent was brought into the church to keep the pagans from leaving it. The church said the fast was for Christ's crucifixion. In reality it had been in effect before Christ was born in the heathen spring festivals. Ash Wednesday is celebrated on the first day of Lent.

PALM SUNDAY (Realen Cyklops) It was originally to commemorate Christ's triumphal entry into Jerusalem. Later on it was combined with pagan activities; today the palm and willow are blessed and carried in the procession. It is ascribed to a pagan holiday where olive and willow are blessed.

Powers attributed to the palm are exorcizing evil spirits, healing diseases, warding off devils, protecting homes from lightning and fire, and protecting fields against hail and storms. The olive has had healing powers attributed to it since antiquity.

EASTER SUNDAY (Babylon Mystery Religion & Encyclopedia Britannica)

I always thought it was strange that Easter came on a different day each year. If Christ arose on March 10, that would be the anniversary every year. But I found that Easter's date is established by astrology according to the vernal equinox. The spring festival of pagan worship of the sun and the renewed season was also set on the same date.

The Druids had a sacred symbol - an egg. The word Easter comes from the name of a pagan goddess - goddess of rising light of day and spring. Easter is the modern form of Eastre, Ostera, Astarte or Ishtar. Another name for Astarte is Diana of Euphrates. Easter in the King James Bible means pascha or Passover.

Astarte was hatched from a big egg which fell from heaven. Druids (Satan worshippers) in Europe used eggs as symbols of the goddess of spring. The rabbit is associated with the moon in ancient Egypt. It is a fertility symbol of sexual significance.

Hot cross buns are raisin cakes with a "T" or "X" on them baked for the queen of heaven (Jer. 7:18). This started hundreds of years before Mary, the mother of Jesus, was called the queen of heaven.

God talks about sun worship in Ezekiel Chapter 8. The sunrise service was a part of ancient sun worship. This is the source of our modern sunrise services. Baal was the sun god and still is today. Shinto pilgrims pray to the sun as they climb the mountain sides. Mithrists meet together at dawn and honor the sun god. At the time of the Old Testament, the Jews got into practices of picking up sticks and feathers to build fires, making raisin cakes, and crying for Tammuz /Josh. 23:7 and Eze. 8:14). Don't mix with these heathen practices; don't even mention the names of their gods!

MAY DAY

It is derived from Maia, Mother of Mercury, to whom the Romans sacrificed on the first day. From April 2S to May 2, a festival was held to Flora, goddess of flowers. The celebration was so widespread across England that the parliament suspended it in 1644 but restored it in 1661. Winding the May pole is part of the celebration.

HALLOWEEN (The Truth About Halloween) Trick or treat comes to us by way of pagan cults - worshippers of Satan. The earliest celebrations we re held by Druids in honor of Shamhain, lord of the dead. They believed that Shamhain called together wicked spirits, fairies, witches and elves to harm people. To exorcise yourself of these ghosts, you set out a food treat. If you didn't, they would trick you. Druids might even ask for your child to sacrifice.

Jack-o-lantern is the ancient symbol of a dammed soul. Today Satan worshippers have their highest Sabbath mass on the eve of October 31st; it ends on November 1st. To obtain the greatest power, they perform the greatest sacrifice; humans are preferred above animals. This is the time to proclaim powers for control and leadership of the satanic realm of world systems.

Haunted houses are good places to get demons of fear, rebellion and unclean spirits. Orange, black and red are considered to be the Devil's colors. Children get demons and so do you when you surrender to Satan and partake of his worship!

To mask is to obscure the true identity of the reveler so that he/she can commit sin in secret. In 800 A.D., All Saints Day was established on November 1 to honor all dead saints; pretty clever of Satan! If we pray to dead saints we are into necromancy which God forbids us to do.

MARDI GRAS

This is a reign of evil: Baal, Bacchus and Saturn worship.

ST. JOHN'S EVE (The Two Babylons) This is the custom of lighting fires at night. Very evil activities go on at this time. The pagans had a festival to Oannes (Tammuz or Nimrod). The Papacy using John the Baptist (Joannes) for Oannes adapted mid summer's day to St. John's Fires. Fragments from the fires were used for casting spells. Druids made blazing fires to Baal on June 24.

CHRISTMAS (Babylon Mystery Religion & Christmas Almanac)

Christmas means a mass for Christ. Does Christ need a mass? Mass is the celebration of the Eucharist. In the doctrine of transubstantiation, the Catholic priest says that the bread and wine do not remain but the entire substance of the bread and wine is changed into the body of Christ

and into his actual blood respectively. How can this be when He is seated besides the Father in Heaven?

In ancient times there was already a celebration in December. From December 17 until January 6 was Saturnalia. The first day public ceremonies were held honoring Saturn or Baal. The second day, pigs were offered by families. Trees, fires, cedars and oaks were worshipped.

Jesus Christ is truth (John 14:6)! Almost everything associated with Christmas is a lie. It is not a mass for Christ. Santa Claus does not exist. The date of December 25 as Christ's birth date is most likely a lie. The brotherly love at Christmas is fake. Some can hardly wait for it to end.

The tree was worshipped and decorated by many ancient pagan groups. In the Bible, at least ten times, the green tree is associated with idolatry and false worship and is forbidden. Druids used holly and mistletoe in their ceremonies. They worshipped the oak tree. Gilded nuts and balls or ornaments symbolize the sun.

The Yule log is the dead stock of Nimrod, deified as the sun god, but cut down by his enemies. The Christmas tree is Nimrod come to life again. Nimrod was so evil, that at his death, the leaders cut his body in twelve pieces and sent them around the world so that his body could not be recovered and worshipped!

"For the customs and ordinances of the people are false, empty and futile: for one cutteth a tree out of the forest, the work of the hands of the workman, with the axe. They deck the idol with silver and with gold: they fasten it with nails and with hammer that it move not" (Jer. 10:3-4). These customs show how good and evil became mixed, and worship of the true God became polluted.

Missionaries in the sixth century were sent to the pagans in the Roman forts. Finding June 24 very popular, they sought to Christianize this day by calling it John the Baptist's birthday. Jesus' name was easily Fitted into this holiday six months later on December 24. Romans exchanged presents for Saturnalia in pagan Rome.

If God wanted us to celebrate Jesus' birthday, I believe He could have given us the date and told us how to do it. We are only told to commemorate His death and resurrection with the Lord's Supper until He comes. The early Christians did this at every meeting. God gave exact instructions to the people for every feast, celebration or sacrifice; that includes dates and activities.

God really got specific in Exodus and Leviticus. He came down hard on all occult practices. He even said to kill those that practiced them.

America was later in recovering from its Puritan influence than England. Christmas was outlawed in New England until the mid-nineteenth century. In 1856 Bostonians were required to be at work or they were dismissed. School classes were held until 1870.

LIST OF DEMONS

LIST OF DEMONS	-	-	
Idol Worship	Heathen Worship	False: Healing Powers	Worship of Rabbi.:
Saturn	Eroticism	Easter	Hot Cross Buns
Occult Practices	Haunted Houses	Adonis	Dead Stock of Nim-
Oannes	May Pole	Abominations	rod
Image of Jealousy	Unclean Things	Eastre	Pride
Janus	Lust	Futility	Sacrifice to Satan
Halloween	Rebellion	Bacchus	Worship of Firs, Ce-
Joannes	Ishtar	Soothsaying	dars and Oaks
Chambers of Inagery	Falsity	Satan Worship	Honoring Dead Saints
Druids	Conception in Lust	Fear	Goddess of Flowers
Wicked Spirits	Unclean Spirits	Nimrod	(Flora)
Fairies	Sun God	Demonic Images	Blessed Palm, Willow
Mourners for Tamales	Pagan Rituals	Casting Spells	& Olive
Sacred Oaks	St. Patrick	Mass for Christ	Black Sabbath Mass
Queen of Heaven	Devil's Colors	Santa Claus	Transubstantiation
Elves	Liber	False Worship	Saturn Worship (Sat-
Sun Worship	Witchcraft	Fertility Symbols	urnalia)
Charms	Necromancy	Diana of Euphrates	Goddess of Rising
Baal	Reveling	Sacred Egg	Light of Day
Ego	Ostera	Divination	Lord of Dead (Sham-
Idolatry	Familiar Spirits	Asiris	hain)
Misleading Children	Abstinence of Lent	Eucharist	Mother of Mercury
Jack -0-Lantern	Reign of Evil	Vanity	(Maia)
Astarte	Tammuz	Sorcery	
	Witches/Wizards		

CHRISTMAS - PAGAN OR CHRISTIAN HOLIDAY?

SCRIPTURE ABOUT IDOL WORSHIP - Read the whole chapter of Ezekiel 8. Ezekiel in a vision of God at Jerusalem is shown the image of jealousy, the chambers or imagery, the mourners for Tammuz, the worshippers towards the sun and God's wrath for their idolatry. "Therefore will I also deal in fury: mine eyes shall not spare, neither will I have pity: and though they cry in mine ears with a loud voice, yet will I not hear them" (vs. 18).

1 Cor. 5:17	A new creature in Christ.
2 Cor. 6:16-17	What agreement can there be between the temple of God and idols? leave
	idolatry and heathen worship; touch not any unclean thing.
Eph. 4:25	Reject all falsity.
1 Thes. 1:9	Ye turned from idols to God.
1 John 5:21	Keep yourself from idols.

SCRIPTURE ABOUT SO-CALLED CHRISTIAN HOLIDAYS

Certain holidays got into the Christian church by way of the Catholic Church. To keep the country united, Roman emperors began to give Christian meaning to pagan rituals.

Ex. 22:18 Thou shalt not suffer a witch to live.

Ex. 23:13	Make no mention of the name of other gods.
Lev. 19:31	To be defiled by familiar spirits and wizards.
Deut. 18: 9-14	The abomination of the nations are to be avoided.
Jos. 23:7	Neither make mention of the name of their gods.
I Sam. 28:7-28	The witch raised Samuel; Saul fainted.
Micah 5:12-13	Cut off witches, soothsayers and images.
Acts 13:6-11	Elymas the sorcerer was struck blind.
Acts 16:16-19	Casteth out a spirit of divination.
Romans 12:2	And be not conformed to this world.
Gal. 5:19-21	He reckoneth up the works of the flesh.
Eph. 6:12-13	He sheweth what they intend that preach circumcision.
II Tim. 1:7	For God hath not given us a spirit of fear.
James 4:4-10	God resisteth the proud.

SCRIPTURE ABOUT MURMURING

To Murmur (in anger): imagine, mourn, mutter, roar, take away. See Strong's Concordance for murmur, murmured, murmurers, murmuring and murmurings.

Isa. 8:11-22	Israel's idolatrous practices.	
Isa. 8:19	Wizards that peep and mutter.	
Isa. 10:10-17	Chirping - chatter, peep, whisper.	
Isa. 10:14	Or opened the mouth or peeped. *	
Isa. 59:3	Tongue hath muttered perverseness	•

PREFACE

One of the purposes of the Lord Jesus coming to earth was to establish His Church. We all know that He was successful and we also remember the record of how the early church walked full of boldness and power, having their words confirmed with signs and wonders. Today the majority of the church is a far cry from the church the Lord Jesus started, both in life-style and power.

Shortly after Jesus' death, persecutions of the believers began as Satan began his plan to pollute what God had begun. Years later the Devil began a religious system that he hoped would replace the true church.

The persecutions were temporarily stopped, and a deal was offered to both the Christians and pagans. It went something tike this: let's stop fighting over our religious differences and just Christianize the pagan gods and holidays. Both sides gave a little so they could all live in peace. By doing that, the Christian commitment and dedication to Jesus Christ only would have been seriously damaged. I beseech you brethren by the mercies of God that you approach this material with a heart and mind seeking the truth, and that you will prayerfully consider the facts contained within these pages. Remember that after the big compromise, the true believers didn't accept the new system, but chose to go into hiding rather than deny their Lord and Savior.

Most people say that Christmas is the celebration of Jesus' birthday, even though more non-Christians participate than Christians. Jesus told us that those who were like Him, Christians, would be hated by all nations for His name's sake (Matt. 10:22, 24:9; Mk. 13:13 & Lu. 21:17). Please note that Jesus said that His followers would be hated by the world because of Him. If they hate us because of Him, why do they celebrate His birthday? Let's look at what it means to celebrate one's birthday. The word celebrate means to perform (a sacrament of solemn ceremony) publicly and with appropriate rites, to honor by solemn ceremonies or by refraining from ordinary business, to demonstrate satisfaction in festivities or by other deviation from routine. Could we say then, that in order to celebrate someone's birthday, we should participate in activities that reflect the person's life? Could we, at least, say that in commemorating one's birthday our activities should be restricted to such things that the honoree would be pleased with?

A large majority of the activities employed by people involved in the supposed celebration of Jesus' birthday are public, yes; but neither appropriate nor solemn. So much of it is outright sin; how can sin satisfy Jesus Christ who is the opposite of sin?

IS DECEMBER 25TH JESUS' BIRTHDAY?

There are many arguments concerning the date of Jesus' birth. I personally believe that God purposefully did not give us the day and date. Let's examine the few clues we do have, in the Word of God, and see if we can determine the season.

In Palestine, December 25th is during the coldest time of the year. "In Palestine winter includes part of autumn and the seasons of seedtime and cold, extending from the beginning of September to the beginning of March. The cold of winter is not usually severe, though the north winds are very penetrating from the middle of December to the middle of February. Snow and hail during most winters fall on the hills." The weather during the Hebrew month Tebeth (December-January) is "...coldest month; rain, hail and snow on higher hills, and occasionally at Jerusalem" (Unger's Bible Dictionary, p. 1170).

What the weather was like during this time of the year is important in order to answer two questions. Did Caesar Augustus have everybody to return to his home town for a census during the coldest time of the year? Tithing time was harvest time according to the law of Moses (Ex. 23:14-19, Le. 23:1-10 & Deut. 16:16-17). Some say that tax time was harvest time throughout the Roman Empire. It does seem logical that the Roman governor would collect taxes at the time of harvest (Lu. 2:1-7). More importantly, with the weather being as it was during that time of year, would the shepherd be in the field at night as recorded in Lu. 2:8? We know that they were in the field on the night of Jesus' birth, but was that night during the middle of December? The Jews built special places to house their flocks during the cold and winter storms (Isa. 24:3, Nu. 32:16,24 & 36). "It was an ancient custom among Jews of those days to send out their sheep to fields and deserts about Passover (early spring), and bring them home at commencement of the first rain," says the Adam Clarke Commentary (Vol. 5, p. 370).

These important facts cast shadows of doubt over the traditional teaching concerning the time of Jesus' birth in the light of the Biblical account of the events that took place during that time.

There are those who say that they know that Jesus wasn't born on December 25th, but they set that day aside to celebrate the birth of their Savior. They also say that they don't celebrate it with sinful activities, but with things that would please the Lord as an expression of their love for Him. Please don't get caught up in your personal feelings, let's remain honest, open and objective about this position as we test the Scripture.

There is absolutely no Scripture in the entire Word of God to support celebrating Jesus' birthday at any time. However, we are told in the Word to keep the commandments that the Lord has given us and not to add anything to them nor take anything from them (De. 12:28-32, Mt.5:17-19). If Christmas is being celebrated because of real love for Jesus, why are His commandments not being kept (Jn. 14:21, 23 & 24)? John 13:34 commands us to love one another, as He loved us. We are to love each other the same way: black, white, rich or poor. He commanded us to make miracle workers out of others and to teach them to guard His words from loss or injury (Matt. 28:18-20). Check out the word "observe" found in Matt. 28:20 in the Greek. He also commanded us to heal the sick, cleanse the lepers, raise the dead and cast out devils - for free (Mt. 10:5-8).

If the motive for celebrating Christmas stands on real love for the Master, then according to His own words, that same love will motivate you to keep His sayings. He gave us specific instructions of what to do to remember Him by (Lu. 22:19). Most people begin preparing for Christmas months in advance with unparalleled zeal and enthusiasm. I wonder if they get half as excited when it's time to take communion or if they even know when the next time communion will be given at their place of fellowship?

The point is obvious. The excitement and enthusiasm manifested during the Christmas season is not an expression of love or gratitude directed towards Jesus Christ. If it were true love and gratitude to Him, you would be just as enthused about doing the Word. Obedience is better than sacrifice (I Sam. 15:22-23).

Another very important point we must explore is the fact that those who celebrate Christmas didn't set December 25th aside as the date to celebrate Jesus' birth. This date was chosen about 1700 years ago. The sad part about this is that billions of people are following this tradition with very little, and in most cases no, knowledge as to why and how Christmas came about.

HAVE YOU EVER WONDERED WHY PEOPLE GIVE PRESENTS AT CHRISTMAS? WHAT ABOUT THE CHRISTMAS TREE AND LIGHTS ON TREES AND HOUSES? HAVE YOU EVER WONDERED WHERE THEY CAME FROM? - Is it because the wise men brought gifts to Jesus? If this is the case and you are following their examples, then why do you give gifts to each other?

Jesus is the Light of the World, His light never dims or loses its glow. It is not like the lights we put up at Christmas in worship to the sun. In the clear light of day they have no beauty.

Let us continue our search for the roots of this celebration the world calls Jesus' birthday. The Encyclopedia Britannica says: "December 25th in Rome is the date of a pagan festival chosen as the birthday of the unconquered Sun (natalis solis invicts) which at the winter solstice begins again to show an increase of light. At some point before A.D. 336, the church at Rome established the commemoration of the birthday of Christ, the 'SUN' of righteousness on this date." The evidence is contained in the chronography of A.D. 354 (an almanac for the use of Christians). The same encyclopedia says that, 'The traditional customs connected with Christmas have been derived from several sources as a result of the 'coincidence* of the feast of the Nativity of Christ and the pagan agricultural and solar observances at mid-winter." In the Roman world, the

Saturnalia was a time of merry-making and exchange of presents. Christmas festivities were indirectly* influenced by these customs.

The fact that Christmas was celebrated on the birthday of the unconquered sun gave the season a solar background connected with the (kalends) of January when houses were decorated with greenery and lights, and presents were given to children and the poor. To these solstitial observances were added the Germanic-Celtic Yule rites when the Teutonic tribes penetrated into Gaul, Britain and Central Europe. Yuletide brought its own tradition of feasting and mortuary customs to combine with Roman solstitial and traditional New Year rites. Special foods and good fellowship, the Yule log and Yule cakes, greenery and fir trees, wassailing, gifts and greetings all commemorated different aspects of this festive season. Fires and lights, symbols of warmth and lasting life, have always been associated with the winter festival, both pagan and Christian. Evergreens, as symbols of survival, have long association with Christmas festivities, probably dating from the eighth century when

St. Boniface completed the Christianization of Germany and dedicated the fir tree to the Holy Child to replace the sacred oak of Odin.

The Encyclopedia Americana says, "The reasons for establishing December 25th as Christmas are somewhat obscure, but it is usually held that the day chosen was to correspond to pagan festivals that took place around the time of the winter Solstice, when the days begin to lengthen, to celebrate the rebirth of the sun." Northern European tribes celebrated their chief festival of Yule at the winter solstice to commemorate the rebirth of the sun as the giver of light and warmth. The Roman Saturnalia (a festival dedicated to Saturn, the god of agriculture, and to the renewed power of the sun) also took place at this time. And some Christian customs are thought to be rooted in this pagan celebration. It is held by some scholars that the birth of Christ as "Light of the World" was made analogous to the rebirth of the sun in order to make Christianity more meaningful to pagan converts.

The Christmas Almanac, 1944 edition, says, "Saturnalia and the Kalends were celebrations most familiar to early Christians, December 17-24 and January 1-3. But the tradition of celebrating December 25th as Christ's birthday came to the Romans from Persia. Mithra, the Persian god of light and sacred contacts, was born out of a rock on December 25th. Rome was famous for its flirtations with strange gods and cults, and in the third century Aurelia established the festival of Dies Invicti Solis, The Day of the Invincible Sun, on December 25th. Mithra was an embodiment of the sun, so this period of rebirth was a major day in Mithraism, which had become Rome's latest official religion with the patronage of Aurelia. It is believed that the emperor Constantine adhered to Mithraism up to the time of his conversion to Christianity. He was probably instrumental in seeing that the major feast of his old religion was carried over to his new faith."

As you have just read, we got the celebration of Christmas from the Church of Rome, or as it is called today, the Roman Catholic Church. The Church of the Lord Jesus Christ has received many abominable customs from the Catholic Church. After Constantine's makeshift conversion from sun god worship to his form of Christianity, the mixture began. Before that time, "Christians were being severely persecuted. Constantine Christianized his entire army with one motion and stopped the persecutions. Instead of doing away with the old pagan customs, the names were

changed to make them attractive to the real Christians. The Christians who did not conform to the new state religion were persecuted as pagans, and in later years as heretics. See Foxe's Book of Martyrs.

This is a brief history of the birth of the Catholic Church. Now let's see what the Catholic Church has to say concerning the birth of Christmas.

In The Catholic Encyclopedia under the heading of Christmas, "According to the hypothesis suggested by H. Userner developed by B. Potte (Les Origines) and accepted by most scholars today, the birth of Christ was assigned the date of the winter solstice (December 25th in the Julian calendar; January 6th in the Egyptian), because on this day, as the sun began its return to the northern skies, the pagan devotees of Mithra celebrated the Dies Natalis Solic Invite (birthday of the invincible sun). On December 25th, 274 A.D., Aurelia had proclaimed the sun god principle patron of the empire and dedicated a temple to him in the Campus Martius.

Christmas originated at a time when the cult of the sun was particularly strong at Rome. This theory finds support in some of the church fathers comparing the birthday of Christ and the winter solstice. Indeed, from the beginning of the Third Century 'Sun of Justice' appears as a title of Christ (Botte, Les Or-gines, p. 63). Though the substitution of Christmas for the pagan festival cannot be proven with certainty, it remains the most plausible explanation for the dating of Christmas."

The festival celebrated throughout the known world was called Saturnalia before the name was changed to Christmas. The name underwent several changes before finally becoming Christmas, which means Mass of Christ. As a matter of fact, before being Christmas, the festival was called Christ Mass. Let's take an historical look at this festival, Saturnalia, and see if it is in any way similar to what is traditionally celebrated today as the birthday of Jesus Christ.

The Encyclopedia Americana says, "The great festival, the Saturnalia, became the most popular of Roman festivals, and its influence is still felt throughout the western world. Originally on December 17th, it was extended first to three and eventually seven days. The date has been connected with the winter sowing season, which in modern Italy varies from October-January, remarkably like the Greek Kronia (see Cron-nus), it was the gayest festival of the year. All work and business was suspended.

Slaves were given temporary freedom to say and do what they liked, and certain moral restrictions were eased. The streets were infected with a Mardi Gras madness, a mock king was chosen (Saturnalia pin-ceos). The seasonal greeting T O Saturnalia' was heard everywhere. Presents were freely exchanged, principally wax candles and little clay dolls (sigil-laria).

The cult statue of Saturn himself, traditionally bound at the feet with woolen bands, was untied, presumably to come out and enjoy the fun. The influence of the Saturnalia upon Christmas and the New Year has been direct."

DID YOU RECOGNIZE THE SIMILARITIES?

- 1. All work and business was suspended.
- 2. Slaves (employees) were given temporary freedom.

- 3. Moral restrictions eased; alcohol consumption even by children.
- 4. Sexual favors were given as presents.
- 5. The mock king (Good Ole Santa) is set up. His chair is elevated in department stores.
- 6. "I O Saturnalia" was heard everywhere. Merry Christmas is heard everywhere.
- 7. Evergreens were used for decorations (symbols of rebirth and fertility).
- 8. The boar (male pig) was killed and eaten (symbol of Frey, god of regeneration). Is pig the main meat on our Christmas table?
- 9. Yule log also was symbol of continuing life.
- 10. Lights used to dispel the growing darkness of the winter solstice.

The Encyclopedia Americana says, "Burning the Yule log was adapted to English custom by ancient Scandinavian practice of kindling huge bonfires in honor of the winter solstice. The idea of using evergreens at Christmas time also came to England from pre-Christian northern European beliefs. Celtic and Teutonic tribes honored these plants at their winter solstice festival, gave properties to the mistletoe (kiss under) in particular. The evergreen holly was worshipped as a promise of the sun's return."

The Christmas Almanac also says about the boar's head that, "The association of the boar's head with Christmas probably dates back to pagan times when the Germanic god Frey, who cared for the fertility of the herds, was symbolized by a boar. Therefore, at mid-winter to ensure new calves and lambs in the Spring, a boar would be sacrificed to the god. The sacrifice was carried over into Christmas tradition as a non-religious custom."

Notice how similar Father Christmas of today is to the god Saturn of the Roman Saturnalia. He is also very similar to our Santa Claus. The Christmas Almanac says, "Although he is the English equivalent of Santa Claus, Father Christmas is rather different from our jolly elf and even further removed from the original ascetic and holy St. Nicholas. Father Christmas developed from several pagan predecessors. The Roman Saturnalia celebrated the brief return each year of the Golden Age when the god Saturn returned to rule over Italy. Saturn was a giant who came bearing good food and wine, joy and revelry, and equality of all people. When carried into the northern regions of Europe, Saturn probably combined with the wild figure of Odin and his raging host of spirits who swept across the land during the winter. Thus, Father Christmas was never a Christian religious figure, but symbolized rather, the arrival of those secular pleasures which came from elsewhere than the Christian tradition. He was always portrayed as a giant, wearing a scarlet or green robe lined with fur; crowned with holly, ivy or mistletoe; and carrying the Yule log and a bowl of Christmas punch."

There is nothing Christian about Christmas. Sure, religion has tried to make it appear Christian, but anything like Christ must line up with the Word of God and Christmas doesn't. It is full of lies and hypocrisy, from Santa to the giving of gifts to the nativity scene. The most popular scene at Christmas, the nativity scene, says that when the wise men presented gifts to Jesus, He was in a stable. The Bible says He was in a house (Matt.2:11) and could have been as much as two years old (Matt. 2:7-16). Why do you think Herod had babies killed from two years old down? Most of the gift giving is only to get something in return and the small portion that is given to the poor is not motivated out of real love; for if it was, the people would give to the poor in the same manner all year long.

Did you know it was against the law to celebrate Christmas in the United States for many years? The truth has been hidden from us throughout the years but our forefathers knew of its roots and who actually receives the worship during this celebration.

The Christmas Almanac says, "America was later in recovering from the Puritan influence than England. Christmas was outlawed in New England until the middle of the nineteenth century. In 1856, Christmas Day was still an ordinary work day in Boston and failure to report to a job was grounds for dismissal. Classes were held in Boston public schools as late as 1870. It was probably the influence of immigrants from Germany and Ireland that finally convinced the Yankees that Christmas could be a harmless, pleasant, and even religious festivity. The first state to declare Christmas a legal holiday was Alabama in 1836. The last was Oklahoma in 1890."

In Christmas written by Allen, pagq 108, "In 17th century England when Puritans were in power, Christmas was illegal. Markets were ordered to stay open and even the baking of fancy pies and plum pudding were banned. On December 25th all church doors were locked."

In 1659 a New England law barred all Christmas observances. Many Yankees did not accept popular Christmas festivities until well into the 19th century.

The Puritans objected to Christmas on these grounds:

- (1) it detracted from the significance of the Sabbath,
- (2) they objected to the fact that many of the customs associated with Christmas had heathen origins and
- (3) many people became riotous and drunken.
- (4) Year Book of Customs by Allen, page 174, "Mistletoe was especially connected with the winter solstice rites in pre-Christian times, so much so that it is one evergreen never allowed in the church. Yule log was used in Scandinavia to honor the god, Thor."

Star in the East, by Holzer, page 36: the fact remains that the use of any form of greens in the Christmas service is entirely pre-Christian and has nothing to do with the nativity. The Druids sang chants to create a harmonious atmosphere among the celebrants. The chants entered into Christmas tradition and became caroling. Also, on page 38, "Bringing the tree inside the house and dressing it in lights and other glitter really stems from pre-Christian times. The tree ceremony is Scandinavian rather than Celtic."

I know that many Christians say that they disassociate themselves from all of the lies and paganism of Christmas, but that, my friend, you can't do. If you take the lies and paganism out of Christmas, you'll have no Christmas, for that's what it is made of. Remember (Deut. 12:28-32), you have no right to add to the commandments that the Lord has given; you only have the right to obey them.

Please forgive us for leading our children in idolatrous worship. Forgive us for idol worship that is false and heathen in Your sight, for bringing curses on ourselves and our children, grandchildren, great grandchildren, and great, great grandchildren. The Bible says that You are a jealous God concerning our worship. Forgive us for provoking You by following the most ancient false religion started by Nimrod, Semiramus and Tammuz. Forgive us for rebelling against the whole Word of God and causing ourselves to be an abomination to You. Forgive us for following pagan rituals and blind traditions, for not being able to break worldly habits, for our pride, ego and vanity."

Idol Worship	Sacred Oaks	Unclean Spirits	Bacchus
Image of Jealousy	Charms	Devil's Colors	Nimrod
Chambers of Imagery	Misleading Children	Reveling	Santa Claus
Mourners for Tam-	Eroticism	Reign of Evil	Sacred Egg
muz	Lust	Easter	Sorcery
Sun Worship	Conception in Lust	Futility	Pride
Idolatry	St. Patrick	Fear	Greed
Heathen Worship	Necromancy	Mass for Christ	Cruel
Unclean Things	Abstinence of Lent	Diana of Euphrates	Pouting
Falsity	False Healing Powers	Vanity	Shame
Pagan Rituals	Eastre	Dead Stock of Nim-	Lying
Witchcraft	Satan Worship	rod	Jezebel
Familiar Spirits	Casting Spells	Envy	Unhappiness
Witches/Wizards	Fertility Symbols	Fantasy	Negative
Abominations	Asiris Eucharist	Laziness	Drunkenness
Soothsaying	Hot Cross Buns	Embarrassment	Goddess of Flowers
Demonic Images	Hate	Disappointment	(Flora)
False Worship	Selfishness	Ahab	Blessed Palm, Willow
Divination	Harshness	Pressure	and Olive
Worship of Rabbit	Violence	Stealing	Black Sabbath Mass
Occult Supernatural	Depression	Oannes	Transubstantiation
Bragging	Distrust	Joannes	Saturn Worship (Sat-
Evil Competition	Fear of Failing	Fairies	urnalia)
Demonic Manipula-	Confusion	Elves	Sacrifice to satan
tion	Demanding	Ego	Worship of Firs, Ce-
Hurt	Occult Practices	Astarte	dars, and Oaks
Doubt	Halloween	May Pole	Goddess of Rising
Traditions	Wicked Spirits	Ishtar	Light of Day
Wanting	Queen of Heaven	Sun God	Lord of Dead (Sham-
Hard-Hearted	Baal	Liber	hain)
Saturn	Jack-0-Lantern	Ostera	Mother of Mercury
Janus	Haunted Houses	Tammuz	Honoring Dead Saints
Druids	Rebellion	Adonis	(Maia

LIST OF DEMONS FOR HOLIDAYS

REFERENCES

- 1. *Webster's New Twentieth Century Dictionary* of the English Language, unabridged, Second Edition, 1970. The unabridged dictionary is the best type of dictionary to use to study spiritual origins of words and practices.
- 2. *The Holy Bible* containing the Old and New Testaments in the authorized King James version along with "Strong's Exhaustive Concordance of the Bible" with Greek and Hebrew Dictionary.

- 3. *The Encyclopedia Britannica*, a Dictionary of Arts, Sciences, Literature and General Information, Eleventh Edition, 1910. The best type of encyclopedia to study spiritual origins is the older ones. The newer encyclopedias leave out more and more about spiritual things.
- 4. *The World Book Encyclopedia* and *The New Family Encyclopedia*.
- 5. This lesson was adapted with his permission from Christmas Pagan Holiday or Christian? written by Walley Naylor, Jackson, Mississippi. It also includes portions from lessons by Gene and Earline Moody.

3. WHAT'S WRONG WITH VALENTINE'S DAY?

(Exodus 20, Joshua 23 and Deuteronomy 28)

SCRIPTURE

You shall have no other gods before or besides me. You shall not make yourself any graven image (cupids are graven images)to worship it—, or
any likeness of anything that is in the heavens above, or that is in the earth
beneath, or that is in the water under the earth. You shall not bow down
yourself to them or serve them; for I the Lord your God am a jealous God,
visiting the iniquity of the fathers upon the children to the third and fourth
generation of them that hate me.
But showing mercy and steadfast love to a thousand generations of those
who love Me and keep My commandments.
Parallels Ex. 20:5-6
Proof of real love is keeping commandments.
Two commandments.
Love God.
Love fellowman.
Speaks of dangerous relationship we have to God if we offend one of His
children.

Valentine's Day came about this way. As far back as 296 B.C. according to World Book Encyclopedia, there was worship of the god Pan, also called Faunus and Lupercus. The rites were centered at Lupercal, a cave in the Palatine Hill. Priests sacrificed goats and cut their skins into strips for lashes. Then they ran around the Palatine Hill striking all the women they met. These ceremonies also involved purification through sacrifice of a dog. (Aren't Christians purified by the blood of Jesus?) In 496 A.D. Pope Gelasius changed this ceremonial rite from February 15 to February 14 and called it St. Valentine's Day instead. After the spread of Christianity churchmen tried to give Christian meaning to the pagan festival.

Encyclopedia Britannica, 1910 Edition, reports that in 296 B.C. a bronze she-wolf was placed in the cave of Lupercus. The festival was to honor Lupricus - identified with Faunus. Its rights were under the supervision of priests called, Luprici, whose institution is attributed either to Arcadian Evander or to Romulus and Remus. The festival began with a sacrifice of goats and a dog by the Luperic priest . After the sacrifice, two priests were led to the altar and their foreheads were touched with a bloody knife. The blood was wiped off with wool dipped in milk. Then the

ritual required that two young men should laugh. (I wonder at what—perhaps God?) The smearing of blood on the forehead probably refers to human sacrifice originally practiced at the festival. The sacrificial feast followed; after which the Luperic cut thongs from the skins of the victims and ran in two bands around the walls of the old Palatine City striking people who were near. The thongs were called februa, the festival Februatio, the day Fabruare to purify. The festival survived until 496 A.D. when it was changed by Pope Gelasius into the Feast of Purification.

World Book Encyclopedia says Cupid (cupido = desire) is the Latin name for the god of sexual love (Eros).

Encyclopedia Britannica says Kamadeva in Hindu mythology is the god of love. He is variously stated to have been the child of Brahma or Dharma. Later, Kama simply became the Hindu Cupid. While attempting to lure Siva to sin, he was destroyed by a fiery glance of the goddess' third eye. Kama's wife Rati (voluptuousness) mourned him so greatly that Siva relented and he was reborn as the child of Krishna and Rukmini. The babe was called Pradyumma (Cupid). He is represented armed with a bow of sugar cane strung with bees. Its five arrows are tipped with flowers which overcome the five senses. A fish adorns his flag and he rides a parrot or sparrowemblematic of lubricity (lasciviousness, lewdness, lechery, instability and trickiness).

Britannica says Eros or Cupid is the god of sexual passion, son of Aphrodite and Zeus. Chief gods associated with Eros and Pathos are Himeros (longing and desire), and Peitho (persuasion). Athenians changed him from goat man to fat youth with bow and arrow.

World Book in Pan-Greek Mythology says Cupid is the son of Hermes and one of the daughters of Dryaps (Oak Man), or of Zeus and the nymph Callisto, god of shepherds, flocks and forests. He is said to be born with horns, a goat's beard, feet and tail, and covered completely with hair. Hermes took him to Olympus where he became a favorite of Dionysus. His appearance struck terror in hearts of men, hence the expression "panic fear". Associated with Panisci are a number of male and female forest imps, his wives and children who send evil dreams and apparitions to terrify mankind.

His original home was Arcadia. His cult was introduced into Athens, at the time of the Battle of Marathon, when he promised his assistance against the Persians if the Athenians would worship him.

The story of the pilot Thamus, who was sailing near the island of Paxi in the time of Tiberius, was commanded by a mighty voice to proclaim that "Pan is dead" is found in Plutarch.

This story coincides with the birth (or crucifixion) of Christ. Reinach suggests that the words uttered by the voice was "Tammuz, Tammuz the all-great, is dead" and that it was merely a lament for the "great Tammuz or Adonis".

Deut 32:16-17,1 Cor.18-21 Compare these two scriptures and notice that God has not changed at all in His opinion of what constitutes devil worship.

Ezekiel 8:14 Then he brought me to the entrance of the north gate of the Lord's house, and behold, there sat women weeping for Tammuz. (According to Ezekiel, the Spirit of God called this an abomination to God. He also called Tammuz an idol.)

Jer. 7:16-18 God told Jeremiah not to pray for people of Judah because the children gather wood, the fathers kindle the fire, and the women knead dough to make cakes for the queen of heaven. They pour out drink offerings to other gods; they provoke me to anger!

According to "The Two Babylons", page 5, Semiramis is the mother of gods; page 21, mother of Tammuz; and pages 62-63, Tammuz is Nimrod (see Gen. 10:8-11).

When traced back, Valentine's Day is the worship of Semiramis and Tammuz-Nimrod. Can you as a Christian promote this day or bring children under its curses?

II Cor. 6:14 Do not be unequally yoked up with unbelievers - do not make mismatched alliances with them, or come under a different yoke with them (inconsistent with your faith). For what partnership hath right living and right standing with God with iniquity and lawlessness? Or how can light fellowship with darkness?

II Cor. 6:15 What agreement (can there be between) a temple of God and idols? For we are the temple of the living God; even as He said, I will dwell in and with and among them, and will walk in and with and among them, and I will be their God and they shall be my people (see Ex. 25:8; 29:45;Lev. 26:12; Ezek. 37:27 & Jer.31:1).

II Cor. 6:17 So come out from among them (unbelievers), and separate (sever) yourselves from them, says the Lord, and touch not (any) unclean thing; then

I will receive you kindly and treat you with favor (see Isa. 52:11).

II Cor. 6:18 And I will be a father to you, and you shall be My sons and daughters says the Lord Almighty (see Hos. 1:10 and Isa. 43:6)

God showed me some years back that to serve a god meant to work and plan for him. That everytime I spent time and money on this day, I worshipped these gods and denied Jesus.

How could I ask God to bless me when I had just risen up from idol worship (see Joshua 23:6-16 and 24:20)? I'd like to propose a few questions to you:

Since Nimrod worship is Baal worship, and Baal worship required child sacrifice, could it be possible that by serving gods like Lupercus, Baal and Saturn, we have brought the Biblical curses upon our families and our nation such as abortion, child abuse, homosexuality, unprovoked murders, financial loss, etc?

It seems that God really got upset at the Jews for worshipping other gods. Why would He not do the same with us? How can we as Christians encourage our children in Satan worship with Valentine's Day activities? Could it be that we focus our children's minds on erotic ideas in the guise of sweetheart day? Then we wonder why they are promiscuous?

It would seem to me that we are double minded (James 1:4-8). What can we expect to get from God? For those who say we can use old idol worship days, etc. and be all right with God, how do you explain Matt. 9:17, Mark 2:22 and Luke 5:37? Break curses of idol worship, conception in lust, and those who call good evil and evil good.

Ruler spirits are Rejection, Rebellion and Bitterness. Other spirits that may enter are:

Imp	Panic	Rukmini	Perverted Love
Dissatisfied	Ahab Callisto	Semiramis	Pierced Five Senses
Sensuousness	Anti-Christ	Hearts	Five Arrows
Depression	Rati	Nymphs	Inferiority
Remus	Mockery	Broken Hearted	Lying
Fantasy Lust	Siva	Rejection	Shame
Seduction	Krishna	Erotic Love	Voluptuousness
Dionipus	Tammuz	Bestiality	Guilt
Evil Dreams	Druids	Pradyumma	Lust
Killing	Dejected	Jealousy	Eros
Zodiac Signs	Fantasy Sex	Despair	Olymp
Abortion	Jezebel	Envy	
MurderLonging	Human Sacrifice	Pierced Heart	
Kamadeva	Third Eye	Bitterness	

4. PUPPETRY & VENTRILOQUISM LIST OF SCRIPTURE

Isa. 8:11-22 (Israel's idolatrous practices)
 Isa. 8:19 (wizards that peep and mutter)
 Isa. 10:10-17 (chirping- chatter, peep, whisper)
 Isa. 10:14 (or opened the mouth or peeped)
 Isa. 59:3 (tongue hath muttered perverseness)
 To Murmur (imagine, mourn, mutter, roar, take (in anger): away)

7. See Strong's Concordance for murmur, murmured, murmurers, murmuring and murmurings.

MARIONETTE - DEFINITIONS

1. Mariolater: n. one who worships the Virgin Mary: opprobrious term.

2. Mariolatry: n. (Gr. Marie, Mary, and Latreia, worship.) Worship of the Virgin Mary, regarded as carried to an idolatrous extreme: opprobrious term.

3. Marionette: n. (Fr., from mariolette, dim. of mariole, a name formerly given to little figures of the Virgin Mary.)

MARIONETTES

Probably from Ital. morio, a fool or buffoon, but also said to be derived from the mariolettes, or little figures of the Virgin Mary), fantoccini (from fantino, a child) or puppets (Fr., poupee, Lat. pupa, a baby or doll), the names given to figures, generally below life-size, suspended by threads or wires and imitating with their limbs and heads the movements of living persons.

The high antiquity of puppets appears from the fact that figures with movable limbs have been discovered in the tombs of Egypt and among the remains of Etruria. They were also common among the Greeks, from whom they were imported to Rome. Plays in which the characters are represented by puppets or by the shadows of moving figures, worked by concealed performers who deliver the dialogue, are not only popular in India and China, but during several centuries past maintained an important position among the amusements of the people in most European countries. Goethe and Lessing deemed them worthy of attention; and in 1721 LeSage wrote plays for puppets to perform.

The earliest performances in English were drawn from or founded upon Bible narratives and the lives of the saints, in the same vein as the "morality" plays which they succeeded. Popular subjects in 16th century were "The Prodigal Son" and "Nineveh, With Jonah and the Whale". And in a pamphlet of 1641, describing Bartholomew Fair, we read, "Here a knave in a fool's coat, with a trumpet sounding or a drum beating, invites you to see his puppets. Here a rogue like a wild woodsman, or in an antic shape like an incubus, desires your company to view his motion." In 1667 Peys recorded how at Bartholomew Fair he found "My Lady Castlemaine at a puppet play, Patient Grizill." Besides the "Sorrows of Griselda", other puppet plays of the period were "Dick Whittington", "The Vagaries of Merry Andrew", and "The Humors of Bartholomew Fair". Powell's noted marionette show was the subject of an article in "The Tatler", 1709, and again in "The Spectator", 1711.

The latter refers also to Pinkethman, a "motion-maker," in whose scenes the divinities of Olympus ascended and descended to the strains of music. An idea of the class of representation may be gathered from an advertisement of Crawley, a rival of Pinketham, which sets forth-"The Old Creation of the World, with the addition of Noah's Flood", also several fountains playing water during the time of the play. The best scene represented "Noah and his family coming out of the ark, with all the animals two by two, and all the fowls of the air seen in a prospect sitting upon trees; likewise over the ark is the sun rising in a gorgeous manner; moreover a multitude of angels in a double rank", the angels ringing bells. "Likewise machines descending from above, double, with Dives rising out of hell and Lazarus seen in Abraham's bosom; besides several figures dancing jigs, sarabands, and country dances, with the merry conceits of Squire Punch and Sir John Spendall."

Yates showed a moving picture of a city, with an artificial cascade, and a temple—with mechanical birds in which attention was called to the exact imitation of living birds, the quick motion of the bills, just swelling of the throat, and fluttering of the wings. The puppets were wax figures 5 feet in stature. Toward the end of the 18th century, Flocton's show presented five hundred figures at work at various trades. Brown's Theatre of Arts showed at country fairs, from 1830 to 1840, the battle of Trafalgar, Napoleon's army crossing the Alps, and the marble palace of St. Petersburg; and at a still later date Clapton's similar exhibition presented Grace Darling rescuing the crew of the "Forfarshire" steamer wrecked on the Fern Islands, with many ingenious moving figures of quadrupeds, and, in particular, a swan which dipped its head into imitation water, opened its wings, and with flexible neck preened and trimmed its plumage. In these mechanical scenes the figures, painted upon a flat surface and cut out, commonly of pasteboard, are slid along grooves arranged transversely in front of the set scenery, the actions of legs and arms being worked by wires from the hands of persons below the stage, though sometimes use is made of clockwork. In recent days the literature for the marionette stage has had an important literary recruit in the person of the Belgian author Maurice Materlinck.

MUMMERY DEFINITIONS

- 1. Mummer: n. 1) A person who wears a mask or disguise or specifically, in England, any of the masked and costumed persons who travel from house to house, as at Christmas time, acting out short pantomimes. 2) Humorously, any actor.
- 2. Mummery: n.; pi. mummeries, (OFr. mummery, from momer, to mum.) l)Performance by mummers. 2) Any show or ceremony regarded as pretentious or hypocritical.

MUMMERY

Bands of men and women in medieval and later England and elsewhere, who, during periods of public festivity, particularly at Christmas, dressed in fantastic clothes and wearing masks or disguised as animals, serenaded the people outside their houses or joined in the revels within. In a more restricted sense the term is applied to the actors in the old English rural folk plays of St. George, etc.; and "mumming" thus becomes a contemptuous synonym for any form of stage-playing.

The origin of the word mummer (older spelling "mommer," Fr. momeur) is not satisfactorily explained, but the verb "to mum" means both to mutter and to be silent, and "mummer" apparently comes from one or both of these senses. Mumming seems to have been a survival of the Roman custom of masquerading during the annual orgies of the Saturnalia. "The disguising and mummying that is used in Christmas time," Langley writes in his synopsis of Polydore Virgil, "in the Northe parties came out of the feasts of Pallas, that were done with visors and painted visages, named Quinqatria of the Romaynes."

Aubanus, writing of mumming in Germany, says that "in the Saturnalia there were frequent and luxurious feastings amongst friends, presents were mutually sent, and changes of dress made; that Christians have adopted the same customs, which continue to be used from the Nativity to the Epiphany: that exchanges of dress too, as of old among the Romans, are common, and neighbors by mutual invitation visit each other in the manner which the Germans call mummery." Christmas was the grand season for mumming in England. Some were disguised as bears, others as unicorns, or wore deer's hide and antlers or ram's horns. Mumming led to such outrages that Henry VIII issued a proclamation declaring the wearing of a mask or disguise a misdemeanor.

Stow gives an account of an elaborate mummery held in 1377 by the London citizens to amuse the son of the Black Prince, then living at Kensington (Survey, 1603, p. 97). In Scotland, where mumming still exists at Christmas, Hogmanay, New Years's Day and Handsel Monday, mummers are called "guisards". They usually present on these four nights a rude drama called Galatian, which, in various versions, is common throughout the Lowlands of Scotland.

PUPPETRY - DEFINITIONS

1. Puppet, n., (Fr. poupee; L. Pupa, a puppet.) 1) A small figure that is a likeness of the human form; a doll. 2) Such a figure moved by attached strings or wires, or one whose actions, ideas, etc. are controlled by another.

- 2. Puppeteer, n., a person who operates, designs, or costumes puppets, or produces puppet shows.
- 3. Puppetish, a., like a puppet.
- 4. Puppetmaster, n., one who manages or performs in a puppet show.
- 5. Puppertoon, n., (puppet and oon as in cartoon.) a motion picture made by arranging jointed puppets into the successive stages of some motion and photographing each stage separately.
- 6. Puppet Play, same as puppet show.
- 7. Puppet Player, one who works puppets in a puppet show.
- 8. Puppetry, n., 1) Puppets or their actions; mummery. 2) The art of producing puppet shows.
- 9. Puppet Show, a play or performance with puppets.

PUPPETRY

Puppet: Puppets are figures usually in imitation of life, under an operator's control. They are used for dramatic presentations.

Types of Puppets: There are many different kinds of puppets. Some are worked by strings. Others are worked by rods or held over the hand and fingers, and there are combinations of these types. String puppets are often called marionettes, a word of French origin. It comes from the religious puppet plays of the Middle Ages in which one of the puppet characters represented the Virgin Mary. The name Little Mary, or marionette, came to be given the other puppets.

Types of puppets are the hand puppet, the rod puppet, the hand-and-rod puppet, and the finger puppet. There are also flat puppets known as shadow figures, used to cast black or colored shadows on a screen. Puppets may be moved by strings, wires, rods, hands, fingers, or magnetic attraction. They can be controlled from above, below, at a level with the operator, or from the back or sides of the stage, depending on the type of puppet.

A dummy, such as Charlie McCarthy, used in combination with ventriloquism, or "voice throwing", is operated from the back and held level with the ventriloquist. There are strings and rods inside such dummies and these work the head and the features. The ventriloquist's arm, which supports the dummy, also gives some movement to the body. The limbs of the dummy are usually moved only as they swing with the body. See Ventriloquism.

Hand puppets are one of the easiest types to make, though not to operate. The hand puppet, in its simplest form, needs only a head on a tube like costume. It is drawn over the hand, like a glove. The forefinger works the head, and the thumb and middle finger the two arms. Such puppets are often sold as toys, because even a child's hand can produce entertaining movements of the figure. Puppets made of paper bags are a popular variety of hand puppets among amateur puppeteers, or operators of puppet shows.

Rod puppets and shadow figures may be made simply, of everyday materials, and they also can be worked easily, even by young children. Varieties of these types are sometimes found in toy stores. String puppets are the most popular type in the United States. **Early Puppets:** Greek Literature of about 300 B.C. refers to "string-pullers", possibly puppeteers. Small jointed puppets or dolls with a wire attached to the head have been found in children's graves in Greece and Italy, and date back to about A.D. 100. After the break-up of the Roman Empire, the puppet theater kept alive some of the traditions of the Roman theater. It is thought that string-operated solid puppets originated in the Western World, then went eastward to China, and over the Bering Strait to the Americas. American Indians were using them before the coming of the white man. The flat shadow figures probably originated in Asia and made their way westward, reaching Europe and America during the 1700's as opaque silhouettes. There was then a vogue for black cut-paper figures.

Later European Puppets: In the Middle Ages, people used puppets to act out religious plays and morality plays. The popular puppet Punchinello came to France from Italy in the 1640's and became known as Plinchinelle. He reached England about 1660, and his name was soon shortened to Punch. The first text of a Punch-and-Judy was published in England in 1828 and was illustrated by the famous artist, George Cruik-shank.

Many parts of Europe developed puppet heroes who spoke and acted like the people of the region. Certain places were also known for special types of puppets. The people of Barcelona, Spain, liked hand puppets of a special type. The people of Cologne, Germany, were fond of rod puppets. Flanders and Sicily used puppets of knights in armor. In the palaces and castles of the 1700's there were richly appointed private puppet theaters. Voltaire, the French philosopher and playwright, helped with puppet shows in such theaters.

Goethe, the great German poet, received a puppet theater on his twelfth birthday, and wrote his own plays for it. Toy puppet theaters and small hand puppets were favorites in the 1800's. Lewis Carroll, Hans Christian Andersen, and Tad Lincoln made their own. In Paris there were artistic groups of people who were fascinated by the hand puppets of the satirist, Lemer-cier de Neuville, and by rod puppet shows at the Petit-Theatre and shadows at the Black Cat cabaret.

Puppets in America brought the theater to many people. Both children and grown-ups who could not afford the regular theater or who lived too far away from it, attended puppet shows until the movies took over the low-priced field. Around 1900, puppets were popular at fairs and circuses, in town halls and school-houses, and in parks and streets. Puppeteers presented popular versions of old-fashioned dramas. Noah's Ark and Jeptha's Rash Vow appeared for many years after such Biblical plays had ceased to be done by living actors.

Gradually in the 1900's, a new kind of puppet show developed. More skill and artistry were displayed. Most puppet theaters today are small and easy to travel with. Artists and writers who wanted to produce plays for small audiences of friends used puppets. They wrote plays especially for puppets and used puppet actors that were works of art. The professional puppet theater of today grew out of this type of sophisticated artistry.

In 1915, full-length plays with string puppets were produced by Ellen Van Volkenburg and the Chicago Little Theater. Tony Sarg gave his first public show in 1916 in New York, and Ellen Van Volkenburg directed his famous production of The Rose and The Ring. Sarg's work helped to revive puppetry in the United States.

Many men and women contributed to his revival. Remo Bufano used all types of puppets in New York City. He had a little hand puppet, Orlando Furioso, and a huge thirty-five foot telescoping string-puppet clown, used in the stage show, Jumbo. Forman Brown and Harry Burnett have done string-puppet musical comedies, and had their own Turnabout Theater in Los Angeles. George Pal and Lou Bunin have made films with puppet actors. Puppets are used widely in television advertising.

Publications and Societies: As a result of the puppet revival, many people became interested in producing puppet shows. Puppetry became popular with school and civic groups. Many of these amateurs had no idea how to make a puppet. Puppeteers had always kept secret the mechanics of their trade and they were reluctant to give assistance to newcomers. Gradually, writers published technical information.

One of the first books was The Tony Sarg Marionette Book, published in 1921 by F.J. McIsaac. In 1930, Paul McPharlin first issued Puppetry, A Yearbook of Puppets and Marionettes. During its 16 years, it recorded important events in puppetry throughout the world. Other books and pamphlets on puppets also appeared.

The Union Internationale des Marionnettes was founded in Prague in the 1930's, and held congresses. People interested in puppetry established national societies in many countries, notably England, France, and the United States. Periodicals on puppetry also appeared. The first one was The Marionette, in 1918. These publications contained historical articles, plays, and construction details for puppets and stages.

In May, 1958, the first International Festival of Puppet Theaters took place in Bucharest, Romania. More than 300 delegates from 27 countries and more than 30 companies participated.

VENTRILOQUISM - DEFINITIONS

- 1. Ventrilocution: n., ventriloquism.
- 2. Ventriloqual: a., ventriloquial.
- 3. Ventriloquial: a., pertaining to, belonging to, or using ventriloquism.
- 4. Ventriloquially: adv., in a ventriloquial manner.
- 5. Ventriloquism: n., (from L. ventriloquus, lit., one who speaks from the belly, from venter, belly, and loqui, to speak; and -ism.) the art or practice of speaking in such a way that the voice seems to come from some other source than the speaker.
- 6. Ventriloquist: n., a person who practices ventriloquism; specifically, an entertainer who uses ventriloquism to carry on a pretended conversation with a large puppet, or dummy.
- 7. Ventriloquistic: a., of or pertaining to ventriloquism or ventriloquists.
- 8. Ventriloquize: v.t. and vi,i.; ventriloquized, pt., pp.; ventriloquizing, ppr. to utter (words or sounds) as a ventriloquist.
- 9. Ventriloquous: a., same as ventriloquial.
- 10. Ventriloquv: n., same as ventriloquism.

VENTRILOQUISM

Ventriloquism (lat. venter, belly, and loqui, to speak), the art of producing the voice in such a manner that it shall appear to proceed, not from the speaker's own mouth but from some place altogether distant from him. The art of ventriloquism was formerly supposed to result from a pe-

culiar use of the stomach (whence the name) during the process of inhalation. As a matter of fact, the words are formed in the normal manner, but the breath is allowed to escape very slowly, the tones being muffled by narrowing the glottis and the mouth opened as little as possible, while the tongue is retracted and only its tip moves. Gestures and facial expression are employed at the same time to assist in the deception by stimulating the imagination of the listeners and to distract their attention from the speaker. "Thus," says Huxley, "if the ventriloquist desires to create the belief that a voice issues from the bowels of the earth, he imitates, with great accuracy, the tones of such a half-stifled voice, and suggests the existence of someone uttering it by directing his answers and gestures towards the ground.

The gestures and tones are such as would be produced by a given cause; and, no other cause being apparent, the mind of the bystander insensibly judges the suggested cause to exist." Ventriloquism, which is still a recognized form of conjuring entertainment, is of ancient origin. Traces of the art are found in Egyptian and Hebrew archaeology. Eurykles of Athens was the most celebrated of Greek ventriloquists, who were called after him Euryklides, and also Engastrimanteis (belly-prophets). It is not impossible that the priests of ancient times were masters of this art, and that to it may be ascribed such miracles as the speaking statues of the Egyptians, the Greek oracles, and the stone in the river Pactolus, the sound of which put robbers to flight. Many uncivilized races of modern times are adept in ventriloquism, as the Zulus, the Maoris and the Eskimos. It is well known in Hindustan and China, where it is practiced by traveling magicians.

COMMENTS

- 1. The above was taken from dictionaries and encyclopedias with the scripture from the Bible. The practices refer to idolatrous and ungodly conduct. Some of the key words researched are chirp, murmur, peep and mutter uttered by people practicing the occult or talking against God.
- 2. Marionettes are a part of the worship of the Virgin Mary rather than Jesus Christ. It is derived from the words fool and buffoon, and is associated with incubus, divinities of Olympus, Devil rising out of hell, etc.
- 3. Mummery is regarded as pretentious and hypocritical. It is described as contemptuous, mutter, annual orgies of the Saturnalia, unicorns, outrages, rude drama, etc.
- 4. Puppetry is an imitation of life. It is described by religious puppet plays, voice throwing, etc.
- 5. Ventriloquism is the pretended conversation with a dummy. It is described by the terms of conjuring, belly prophets, speaking statutes of the Egyptians, the Greek oracles and the stone in the river Pactolus, etc.

CONCLUSION

1. God is total reality; there is no fantasy or play-acting in God! There is no unreality in the Bible!

- 2. Christians should not deal in any spiritual fantasy. Fantasy is very simply a lie that is not from God.
- 3. God does not need any human circus or side shows to sell and promote the kingdom of God! All it takes is a straight forward application of the Bible with signs, wonders and miracles following the true teaching of the Word of God to attract people to church. Jesus said if you don't believe Me then believe My miracles.

REFERENCES

- 1. Webster's New Twentieth Century Dictionary of the English Language, unabridged, Second Edition, 1970. The unabridged dictionary is the best type of dictionary to use to study spiritual origins of words and practices.
- 2. The Holy Bible containing the Old and New Testaments in the authorized King James version along with "Strong's Exhaustive Concordance of the Bible" with Greek and Hebrew Dictionary.
- 3. The Encyclopedia Britannica, a Dictionary of Arts, Sciences, Literature and General Information, Eleventh Edition, 1910. The best type of encyclopedia to study spiritual origins is the older ones. The newer encyclopedias leave out more and more about spiritual things.
- 4. The World Book Encyclopedia and The New Family Encyclopedia.

SECTION 9 - SCRIPTURAL STUDIES

CONTENTS

- 1. Deliverance Scripture
- 2. God Sends Demons And Evil On People For Disobedience
- 3. Soul Put In Right Mind By Deliverance
- 4. From Adam to Ahab- Men's Weaknesses
- 5. From Eve to Jezebel- Women's Weaknesses
- 6. Miscellaneous Scriptural Studies
- 7. Selected Topic Studies

1. DELIVERANCE SCRIPTURE GENERAL

The following is a partial list of scripture about deliverance. Once you learn to recognize deliverance, you can find scripture throughout the Bible that tells about how demons work in people's lives, and what God thinks about how we should handle deliverance.

LIST OF SCRIPTURE

Old Testament

Ex. 20:2-5 Lev. 20:6,27 Deut. 5:7-9; 7:25-26; 18:9-14	1 Sam. 15:23; 16:14- 18,23 1 Chron. 21:1 Job 1:6-12; 2:4-7; 12:16;	Job 30:3-8 Psa. 18:2; 149:5-9 Isa. 14:4-23; 58:6-7; 61:1-3 Ezek. 20:7,30,43	Dan. 10:12-13 Joel2:32 Zech. 3:1-2
New Testament Matt. 4:23-24; 5:23- 24; 7:22-23; 8:16-17, 28-33; 10:1,7-8; 12:22-29,43-45; 15:22-28; 16:18-19; 17: 14-21;18:18-20; 28:18-20 Mark 1:23-27; 5:2-20; 7:25-30; 9:17-29; 16:15-20 Luke 4:33-36,38-41	6:17-18; 8:26-39; 9:1-2; 10:17-20; 11:14-26; 13:11-16 John 8:31-32,44; 14:12-14 Acts 1:8; 5:3-4,15-16; 8:5-7; 10:38; 19:11-19 Rom. 1:21-32; 16:20 1 Cor. 5:4-5	2 Cor. 10:3-6; 11:13- 15; 12:7 Gal. 5:19-21 Eph. 1:19-23; 2:1-3; 3:10; 4:8-10,26- 27;6:10-18 Phil. 1:28; 2:9-11 Col. 1:13-17; 3:5-8; 2:15, 18,19 1 Thes. 2:18 2 Thes. 2:7-12	1 Tim. 1:18-20; 4:1-3 2 Tim. 2:24-26; 3:1-6 Heb. 4:12; 12:14-16 Jam. 1:5-8; 2:19; 3:14-16; 4:6-8 1 Pet. 1:13-14 1 John 3:8; 4:18 Rev. 12:7-11; 16:13- 14; 20:1-3,7-1
LIST OF DEMONS divers diseases uncleanness strong delusions torments vile affections seducing spirits possessed burning lust	devilish wisdom strong delusion despiteful confusion leprosy boasting evil works blindness	charming unbelief messenger of Satan necromancy Legion idolatry rebellion crying	thrones and domin- ions unthankfulness dumb and deaf spirit lust of flesh deceivable ness fever lust of eyes

lunaticsreprobate minddseared consciencedpalsydunrighteousnessdforbidding marriagedunforgivenessgmaliciousnessdabstaining from meatsdsicknessfenvydroot of bitternessdinfirmitiesddebateaprofanitydfearddeceitddouble mindednessdfiercenessdmalignitydbitter envyingdlittle faithdbackbitersdsensualitydunclean spiritsdhate of Godd	inventor of evil spiritual blindness dumbness covenant breaker demonic miracles blasphemy no affection graven images evil thoughts implacable familiar spirits murder unmerciful wizardry adultery malice child sacrifice fornication evil imaginations divination thief high things observer of times false witness false apostles enchanting vexing self-exaltations	witchcraft stubbornness covetousness hatred provocation wickedness variance baseness sorcery emulations vileness lasciviousness wrath heavy burdens evil eye strife oppression pride sedition demonic yokes foolishness hearsay whisperers faithlessness principalities and powers vanity foul spirit	lying wonders nudeness pride of life curious arts serpents and scorpions anger vainly puffed up filthy communication rulers of darkness evil spirits hypocrisy spiritual wickedness worshiping angels lusts fiery darts bewitchment lying terror voluntary humility disobedience inordinate affections lameness evil concupiscence drunkenness reveling
--	---	--	---

4. GOD SENDS DEMONS AND EVIL ON PEOPLE FOR DISOBEDIENCE (This will not happen if you obey the Bible.)

SCRIPTURE

The following are excerpts from the Bible that show how God sends demons and evil on people when they disobey His Word:

Deut. 28:1-2,15	Blessings and · curses.
Deut. 28:47-48	He will put a yoke of iron on your neck unthankfulness.
Deut. 28:59-61	Sickness is caused by demons - disobedience.
Judges 9:23-24	God sent an evil spirit cruelty.
1 Sam. 16:14-16	Evil spirit from God Saul's disobedience.
1 Kings 22:22-23	Lord hath put a lying spirit in
&	
2 Chron. 18:21-	mouth of prophets and spoken evil Ahab seduced by false prophets and

22	slain.
Job 1:12	God allowed satan to attack Job's possessions to prove Job.
Job 12:16	The deceived and deceiver are His - satan and sinners.
Isaiah 19:14	Lord hath mingled a perverse spirit (perverted, troubling) in midst
Isaiah 29:10-11	Spirit of deep sleep (lethargy) poured out by the Lord heavy judgment on Jerusalem.
Isaiah 45:7	I create evil (misery, destruction, death, ignorance, sorrow, wickedness, bad, adversity, affliction, calamity, displeasure, distress, grief, harm, hurt, mischief, sadness, trouble. vex, wretchedness, wrong), I, the Lord do these things God's omnipotency.
Isaiah 54:15-16	I have created the waster (perish, decay, ruin, corrupt, destroy) to destroy enemies will fall.
Ezekiel 14:9	Lord has deceived (delude, allured, enticed, persuaded) that prophet -God answered idolaters.
Matt. 18:21-36	Heavenly Father do also unto you -unforgiveness.
Rom. 11:8	God hath given them a spirit of slumber (stupor, lethargy) Israel was hard- ened.
2 Cor, 12:7-9	Paul's messenger of satan in the flesh lest he be exalted or proud.
Col. 1:16	All things were created by Him and for Him - describes Christ.
2 Thess. 2:11-12	God shall send them strong delusions (deceit, error)—departure from the faith.

EXAMPLES

Moses disobeyed God and He wouldn't let him go into the promised land (struck the rock rather than speaking to it, Num. 20:8,11-12).

Aaron's sons offered strange fire and were killed by God (improper form of worship, Num. 3:4; 26:61).

Eli did not correct his corrupt sons who committed adultery at the temple and took the wrong pieces of meat from the offering pot. A hook was to pass through the pot and they were to take what it caught. Instead, they took the best pieces before they were put in the pot (adultery and greed, I Sam. 2:12).

King David, a man after God's own heart, went after Bathsheba (2 Sam. 11:4). David received a sword (2 Sam. 12:10) in his house forever. It caused death of Bathsheba's child (2 Sam. 12:15-18). Absalom tried to take David's throne but was killed. By David's example, Absalom was taught rebellion and murder.

David did not go into battle (neglected to fight God's battles, 2 Sam. 11:1), he was a peeping Tom, committed adultery and murder, and was greedy for more women.

Solomon turned his heart from God to worship the Ashtoreth (Venus - goddess of sensual love - licentiousness, sodomites - patroness of sex) and Milcom (Molech - Sacrifice of children) the abominable idol of the Ammonites. God took the kingdom from Solomon's sons. I Kings 11:1-13.

The Jews lost their nation and went into captivity for idol worship and for disobeying God's laws concerning the way they should treat each other. Isaiah and Jeremiah.

Ananias and Sapphira had lust for money and admiration, they were hypocrites, and they lied and died (Acts 5:1-9). They wanted God's blessing and admiration of the people, and some of the money also.

Simon the Sorcerer believed in God but was greedy for money and power, Acts 8:18-19). Paul told him that bad things were going to come upon him (Acts 8:20-23).

SOUL PUT IN RIGHT MIND BY DELIVERANCE

SCRIPTURE

The following are excerpts from the Bible that show how God heals the soul and puts those that are tormented in their right mind by deliverance:

Matthew 4:23-24, They were tormented, possessed with devils and lunatic; He healed them all. Matthew 8:26-33, "Why are ye fearful, oh ye of little faith?" Do not fear deliverance! There were two possessed with devils exceedingly fierce; He said, "Go into the herd of swine." They were delivered and healed.

Matthew 17:14-21, He was a lunatic and sore vexed; Jesus rebuked the devil and he was cured. The disciples had unbelief and little faith. Sometimes we need to fast and pray before deliverance to cast out certain types of strong demons.

Mark 5:2-20, He was possessed with the devil, and had the legion. After casting out the unclean spirits (devils), he was sitting, clothed and in his right mind. Mark 9:17-27, "Thou dumb and deaf spirit, I charge thee, come out of him, and enter no more into him". He could then speak and hear. The father believed. This kind required fasting and praying, which Jesus did.

Luke 8:26-39, He had devils, unclean spirit, Legion, many devils. "He that was possessed of the devils was healed, and in his right mind." Jesus told him to go give his testimony. The people were afraid and asked Jesus to leave rather than glorying in the miracle of setting the man free.

Luke 9:37-42, "The devil threw him down and tare him. And Jesus rebuked the unclean spirit and healed the child." O faithless and perverse generation, why don't you believe in deliverance? "And they were all amazed at the mighty power of God" - deliverance.

Acts 8:22-24, Simon had the gall of bitterness and was in the bond of iniquity. He was bitter and sinning. We should ask forgiveness for bitterness (resentment) and for our sins, then cast bitterness out of the soul. Acts 16:16-18, "A certain damsel possessed with a spirit of divination met us which brought her masters much gain by soothsaying. Paul, being grieved turned and said to

the spirit, I command thee in the Name of Jesus Christ to come out of her." This is the method for deliverance.

These verses talk about those who are tormented, possessed with devils, lunatic, exceedingly fierce or sore vexed; and who had unclean spirits, dumb and deaf spirit, Legion of demons, gall of bitterness, bond of iniquity, and spirit of divination. The demons were cast out in the Name of Jesus Christ and the people were healed, cured and put in their right mind. If we have problems with the mind, will or emotions, we should use deliverance to help ourselves.

Torments, possessed with devils and lunatic - healed.

Two possessed with devils exceedingly fierce - cast out. Lunatic and sore vexed - cured. Unclean spirits - right mind. Dumb and deaf spirit - came out of him.

Legion of demons - in his right mind. Unclean spirit - healed the child. Gall of bitterness and bond of iniquity - forgiven thee. Spirit of divination - came out of her.

4. FROM ADAM TO AHAB MEN'S WEAKNESSES LIST OF SCRIPTURE AND COMMENTS

- 1. Gen. 3:6,12,17-19 Adam followed the wife's leadership, blaming failure on Eve; God cursed the earth and sent death on mankind.
- 2. Gen. 12:11-13 Abraham was afraid and asked his wife to shield him from the Egyptians. Abraham gave Sarai to Pharaoh's harem and received sheep, oxen, he-donkeys, menservants, maidservants, she-donkeys and camels for her. He sold her into prostitution.
- 3. Gen. 16:4 Abraham went in to Hagar. He yielded to Sarai and took the servant to be his secondary wife.
- 4. Gen. 20:2 Abraham denied that Sarah was his wife because of fear the second time. Sarah was given to Abimelech, king of Gerar. He did not trust God to take care of him.
- 5. Gen. 26:7 Isaac denied that Rebekah was his wife (just like his father) because of fear.
- 6. Gen. 27:6-7 Jacob listens to his mother, Rebekah, to steal the blessing of Esau.
- 7. Gen. 30:1, 9 Rachel and Leah give their servants to Jacob to be his secondary wives (same as Abraham). He did not have to accept the offer.
- 8. Gen. 33:1-2 Jacob divided his family into two bands, lead by Leah and Rachel, to go before him and protect him from Esau.
- 9. Gen. 31:32 & 35:16-18 Jacob unknowingly cursed Rachel with death. Rachel died giving birth to Benjamin.
- 10. Gen. 38:15-16 Judah lies with Tamar as with a prostitute. He would not give his last son to be her husband.
- 11. Gen. 44:1-5,15 Joseph used a divining cup; he apparently practiced divination. Divination by cups was one of the prevalent superstitions of ancient Egypt.
- 12. Ex. 4:10-14 Moses does not trust God.
- 13. Ex. 14:10, etc. Israeli men murmured and brought death on their families.
- 14. Ex. 20:18-19 Men were afraid to speak with God. They wanted someone to stand between them and God.
- 15. Ex.32:1, 21,32 Aaron makes a golden calf to please some of the people. He should have stopped the rebellion; instead he leads it and then blames it all on the people.

- 16. Lev. 10:1-2 Nabab and Abihu offered strange fire before God and He killed them. A characteristic of not following God but man.
- 17. Num. 12:1, 10 Aaron listened to Miriam to rebel against Moses. Miriam received leprosy, not Aaron.
- 18. Num. 16:1-3, 27, 31 Korah, Dathan and Abiram rebelled against Moses. God destroyed them and their families.
- 19. Num. 30:6-8 Husbands that do not have the courage to break their wives' foolish vows.
- 20. Num. 31:14-15 Officers saved the women alive who should have been killed.
- 21. Deut. 22:5, 13-19 Sex is to be distinguished by apparel. The punishment of him that slanders his wife -he shall be rebuked, whipped and fined 100 shekels of silver; he may not divorce her.
- 22. Joshua 7:25 Achan and his family are destroyed because of his thievery.
- 23. Judges 16:15-17 Samson deceived by Delilah.
- 24. I Sam. 2:12-17 Eli's sons were sons of Devil.
- 25. 1 Sam. 15:24 Saul tries to blame the people for his sin in disobeying God. It cost him the kingdom.
- 26. II Sam. 11:2-4 David committed adultery with Bathsheba. Then he connived to kill her husband.
- 27. II Sam. 12:9-10 The sword never departed out of David's house and caused him much grief with his sons. Ahab men not satisfied with one wife.
- 28. I Kings 3:1 Solomon married Pharaoh's daughter. He did not trust God to keep the kingdom.
- 29. 1 Kings 11:1-4 Solomon was not satisfied with one wife. They turned his heart to idol worship.
- 30. 1 Kings 16:31 Ahab took Jezebel to be his wife and he followed her religion.
- 31. 1 Kings 19:1-3 Elijah fled Jezebel.
- 32. 1 Kings 21:15 Jezebel gets possession of Naboth's vineyard for Ahab.
- 33. II Kings 5:11-12 Naaman's pride almost cost him his healing.
- 34. II Kings 5:22 Gehazi lied to Elisha and got leprosy. These are the sins of lying and greed.

SOME COMMON WEAKNESSES OF AHABIC MEN

- 1. Do not believe God; cannot understand that (even if born again) they have an abiding connection to God and He to them.
- 2. Do not properly respect and fear God. Have little true respect or love for others or self.
- 3. Are highly motivated to self: comforting, pampering and pleasing self. They are now people, not planners for the long term good of the family, community or nation.
- 4. Have weak characters.
- 5. Have weak convictions.
- 6. Do not hold marriage in high esteem.
- 7. Do not like to work and support family.
- 8. Disobedient to God's Law for them.
- 9. When they get into trouble because they have weakly given in to the wrong actions, they look quickly for someone to blame.
- 10. Do not like to take a stand that is not popular.
- 11. Tend to be sexually loose.
- 12. Have unusually strong desires to watch sports events.
- 13. Weak against the inroads of the Devil in the family.

- 14. Do not teach the children the truth from the Bible.
- 15. Have uncontrollable tempers.
- 16. Pout when they don't get their way.
- 17. Tend to dominate rather than teach and lead.
- 18. Tend to attract Jezebel women.

HOW TO RAISE A CROOK

- 1. Begin from infancy to give the child everything he wants. This way he will grow up to believe that the world owes him a living.
- 2. When he picks up bad words, laugh at him. It will encourage him to pick up "cuter" phrases that will blow the top off your head later.
- 3. Never give him any spiritual training. Wait until he is twenty one and then let him decide for himself.
- 4. Avoid the use of the word "wrong". It may develop a guilt complex. This will condition him to believe later when he is arrested for stealing a car that society is against him and he is being persecuted.
- 5. Pick up anything he leaves lying around books, shoes, clothing. Do everything for him so he will be experienced in throwing responsibility onto others.
- 6. Let him read any printed matter he can get his hands on. Be careful the silverware and drinking glasses are sterilized but let his mind feed on garbage.
- 7. Quarrel frequently in the presence of the children. Then they won't be too shocked when the home is broken up.
- 8. Give the child all the spending money he wants. Never let him earn his own. Why should he have things as tough as you had them?
- 9. Satisfy his every craving for food, drink, and comfort. See that every desire is satisfied. Denial may lead to harmful frustrations.
- 10. Take his part against the neighbors, teachers and policemen. They are all prejudiced against your child.
- 11. When he gets into real trouble, apologize for yourselves by saying, "I never could do anything with him."
- 12. Prepare for a life of grief you will have it.

Train up a child in the way he should go: and when he is old, he will not depart from it, Proverbs 22:6.

LIST OF DEMONS

See the Mass Deliverance Manual, Chapter 13, for the following lists of demons to cast out in deliverance: "Ahab and Jezebel", "Bad Habits of Thinking and Reacting" and "Common Demon Groupings".

REFERENCES

"How to Raise a Crook", *Battle Cry*, Chick Publications, P.O. Box 662, Chino, California 91710.

5. FROM EVE TO JEZEBEL WOMEN'S WEAKNESSES PREFACE

I taught the lesson, "From Adam to Ahab - Men's Weaknesses", first so that I could teach this lesson. I made the men mad while the women gloated. Now the women will get mad while the

men gloat. Actually the purpose is to help both men and women. You should not gloat but try to learn about the other sex. I have learned a lot by listening to Earline talk about herself and women in general, and by us ministering to many women. Women should teach the men and men should teach the women about each other.

It appears that the main weaknesses of women are their feelings of insecurity, inferiority and inadequacy, the little "I". The main reason women are in this condition is because the men have failed as fathers, husbands, sons, grandfathers and men in general. The burden of responsibility is on the men, not the women. Men have the weakness of the big "I": pride, ego and vanity.

A term I coined for Earline and myself is God's Little Trouble Makers. We have made spiritual trouble for a lot of religious people by teaching deliverance. We get these lessons from working with thousands of Christians and their problems. As engineer and school teacher, we are problem solvers; as deliverance ministers, we also are problem solvers. I don't have anything against women or women ministers. Earline ministers with me as an equal. She submits to my leadership and I do the dirty work of casting out demons in mass deliverance.

OLD TESTAMENT - EVE TO JEZEBEL

- 1. Gen. 3:1-5 Adds to God's words, looks for good things, wants to be wise, wants husband to approve.
- 2. Gen 16:1-3 Used a substitute wife trying to help God out.
- 3. Gen. 18:9-15 Laughed at God's promise of a child -not believing God.
- 4. Gen. 19:26 Lot's wife disobeyed the angels and became a pillar of salt curiosity.
- 5. Gen. 21:9 Could not stand mocking or competition for son jealousy, overprotection of male child.
- 6. Gen. 27:6-10 Played the Jezebel interfered with God's plans.
- 7. Gen. 27:46 Lied to Isaac deceiving husband.
- 8. Gen. 30:1-3 Gave maid to husband to wife for childbirth trying to keep husband's affections, competition, envy.
- 9. Gen. 30:9 Leah gave maid to husband competition with sister.
- 10. Gen. 31:19, 34-35 Rachel stole images and lied about them greed.
- 11. Gen. 38:14-16 Tamar took matters into her own hands trying to get justification.
- 12. Gen. 39:7 Lust for a man not her husband harlotry.
- 13. Num. 12:1-2 Desire of women to rule inferiority complex.
- 14. Num. 30:2-5 Woman not bound by her vow God holds man responsible.
- 15. Deut. 25:11-12 The immodest woman source of many problems.
- 16. Jud. 16:4-6,10,13,15-16 Delilah entices Samson.
- 17. Ruth 1:14-15 Natural tendency of woman to stay with her gods.
- 18. I Sam. 1:4-6 Women are jealous and provoke each other.
- 19. 1 Sam. 29:9 Women enter into witchcraft for money and power.
- 20. II Sam. 6:16, 20, 23 Michal despised David and became childless.
- 21. II Sam. 11:2 Bathsheba exposed herself common problem.
- 22. I Kings 19:2 Jezebel threatened Elijah Jezebelic women threaten pastors.
- 23. I Kings 21:5-14 Jezebel connived to kill Naboth helping husband.
- 24. II Kings 9:30-37 Proud Jezebel is eaten by dogs -end of Jezebel.

OLD TESTAMENT - REMAINING CHARACTERISTICS OF WOMEN

II Kings 11:1, Athaliah took matters into her own hands and ended up slain. Some women are calloused enough to have others put to death or even to kill.

Job 2:9-10, Job's wife acted foolishly. Some women ask or demand that their husbands do foolish things.

Proverbs 6:24-26, The mischiefs of whoredom. Evil women use flattery and their alluring eyes to take men into whoredom.

Proverbs 7:10-21, The cunning of a whore. The characteristics of a whore are attire of a harlot, subtle of heart, loud and stubborn, does not stay at home, lies in wait for men, has an impudent face, offers gifts, decorated bed for sex, has an enticing speech and flattering lips.

Eze. 8:13-14, Women weeping for Tammuz. Women today who practice Valentine's Day are worshiping Tammuz, Nimrod and Semiramis.

NEW TESTAMENT - CHARACTERISTICS OF WOMEN

Matt. 19:3-9, There is only one right before God to put away your mate - fornication or adultery. Christian women are frequently looking for some scriptural reason to divorce the husbands that they fell mistreat them. Probably if these women would truly live the life that the Bible outlines, the husbands would want to treat them right and live up to the Bible, also.

Matt. 25:1-13, The parable of the ten virgins talks about the five foolish virgins. You could say that these are women who do not find out what the Bible teaches them to do as daughters, wives, mothers, grandmothers and women in all walks of life, and then follow the instructions.

Mark 6:17-28, Women get inward grudges against others and go to great lengths to retaliate even unto death. The daughter was probably dancing sensuously to entice the king.

John 4:16-20, When confronted with her sin of adultery, she changed the subject from herself to where to worship. Few women can face themselves and their problems.

James 1:5-8, A woman wavers back and forth between choices of what she should do or not do, considering and reconsidering. Women will think of many ideas but not be able to evaluate them. Here again, the natural tendency of a woman is to follow rather than lead. The husband needs to listen to his wife and discuss the alternates. If the wife and husband can not agree, it is the duty of the husband to make the final decision. The husband then must take the consequences of his decision and not blame the wife if things do not go as anticipated.

I Cor. 7, The duties of the married state are discussed in this chapter. Verse 28 states, "Nevertheless such shall have trouble in the flesh". There is no way to be married and raise a family without having troubles and everyone needs to realize this.

Eph. 5:22-33, The duties of wives and husbands are mentioned in these verses. It is very hard for the modern woman to accept the Bible and to follow its directions of submitting in everything and reverencing her husband.

I Tim. 5:3-16, The qualifications of widows to receive help are listed. Note that a divorcee is not a widow! The church today treats the divorcees as widows and neglects true widows. Some weaknesses of women are being idle, wandering about, gossiping and nosing into others' affairs.

I Peter 3:1-7, The duties of wives and husbands are further mentioned in these verses. The key to winning the lost husband is your conduct, not preaching and beating the man over the head with the Bible.

STUDY OF SCRIPTURES

The basic nature of man and woman can be seen by a study of the scriptures and observing human nature. Adam and Eve are good examples to study since they were created without sin. You can study how they were created and how they fell into sin. Another list of weaknesses of women is the opposite of the godly characteristics listed in the Bible.

Women want to be equal with men and to do everything that men do. They want to be admired and for others to think they are spiritual. They want to have the wisdom God gives to a Godly man or be like God. They have spiritual pride and want to be looked up to as one who hears from God. They enter into false gifts to be noticed. Because a woman is programmed by God to follow a man, she will tend to stay in a bad situation. She will tend to follow the gods of her husband.

The Bible tells us what are the responsibilities of the man and the woman. They are not the same. We get into trouble when the man acts like a woman and the woman acts like a man. The woman is not capable of doing all of the jobs that the man can do. Many times when she tries to do the job of a man, she breaks down somewhere and falls back on using womanly wiles (witchcraft) to get the job done.

TREATMENT OF WOMEN BY MEN

I Peter 3:7 and Col. 3:19 - The woman is the weaker vessel. Husband must have knowledge of his wife's weaknesses. He should understand the basic nature of the woman as God made her. He should honor his wife and help her overcome her weaknesses. Husband must not be bitter against his wife.

The husband is the king and the wife is the queen of the household. The children are to stand between the two strong parents who will protect them until they leave home. The man is not a dictator or tyrant. The woman is not a slave, a dog or inferior. She does not walk ahead of him and lead the family. She does not walk behind him as a servant. She walks with him, side by side, to guard the family and be a help mate to him in what God has called him to do.

We compiled a lesson called "Perfect Family With A Perfect Relationship To God". This twentypage lesson outlines what the Bible says about the family. If you believe the Bible and can see what God says about the family, then you will try to follow the instructions. Col. 3:18-21, A summary of the perfect family before God states, "Husbands love your wives," and "Wives submit to your husbands."

AHAB AND JEZEBEL

It is very interesting to study the scriptures about Ahab and Jezebel. We have two excellent tracts that we give to people: The Curse of Ahab and The Curse of Jezebel. We have used this teaching to help many people. Everyone has problems in this area and we can trace our problems back to our ancestors, Adam and Eve.

Women scheme and connive to get their way. They want to control others. Women get into witchcraft so that they can manipulate others for their benefit. Some women despise their husbands when they become priest of the home and the woman is no longer the spiritual head.

Women use their bodies to sensuously attract men and to get their way. Women entice men with their words and exposure of their bodies. Women are afraid that other women will steal their husbands.

THE WOMAN QUESTION

This is a very sensitive area with the women; it is dynamite. Most pastors will not touch this issue with a ten-foot pole; they are afraid of losing their church, congregation and money. We don't have a church to lose and we are not interested in controlling you or your money! I am going to pose the following as questions for you to think about:

- 1. Part of our calling is to minister to pastors, and other Christian leaders and their families. As we have ministered to this class of people, there have been a lot of questions formed in our minds.
- 2. The Bible says that the woman is the "weaker vessel" (I Peter 3:7). What does that mean to you? How is the man the stronger vessel?
- 3. Let's say that the woman is weaker physically and spiritually than the man. How can she be used in the ministry? How did women minister in the Bible?
- 4. The Bible says that the man is "priest and head of the home" (I Cor. 11:3 & Prov. 1:8). How should he minister to, provide for, and protect the wife and children?
- 5. Suppose a man will not be priest and head of the home. Why does a woman then try to manipulate or be a Jezebelic woman to get the things that she and the children need in the spiritual and physical realms?
- 6. Suppose a woman is married and her husband will not provide spiritual protection. Can she shift this responsibility to her pastor or to any man other than her husband to be her protective covering? What is the "covering" of the woman (I Cor. 11:3-16)?
- 7. We have ministered to many women without their husbands present when the husbands were not saved or did not believe in deliverance. What is the frequent result of only ministering to the woman without her husband present?
- 8. There are many women's meetings in the land today. Why do women like to meet without their husbands?
- 9. Consider the basic way a woman thinks. What happens to a woman in her mind when she has no male leadership?
- 10. Should a man minister to a woman alone in deliverance? Should a woman minister to a man alone in deliverance? What is the possible happening?
- 11. The Bible talks about "Priscilla and Aquila" (I Cor. 16:19). Is this a husband and wife team?

- 12. We minister as a husband and wife team. What are the advantages of this method? What about protection from sex traps laid by Satan?
- 13. What characteristics are taken on by women who minister full time? Do they try to emulate or copy men?
- 14. God sent men out "two and two" (Luke 10:1). Did He send out any women one and one, or two and two? Was God discriminating against women?
- 15. Assume a woman minister travels with another woman. What are the pitfalls?
- 16. Assume a woman who ministers by herself is either married or unmarried. What are the pitfalls?
- 17. Assume a woman who ministers is married and her husband is unsaved or saved, and will not travel with her. What are the pitfalls?
- 18. In the Bible the family is considered as an institution (Gen. 2:24) and was created even before the church. What happens when the family is separated by occupations, ministry or the church? How can the church help to destroy the family by having too many meetings for different members of the family? What is gained by keeping the family together as a unit in work, play and church?
- 19. What does the Bible say about the duties of a woman about being wife, mother, Christian and minister?

LIST OF DEMONS

Insecurity	Fornication	Envy	Grief
Inadequacy	Anti-submissive	Overprotection	Vengeance
Exaggeration	Idleness	Jezebel	Strife
Unbelief	Laziness	Lying	Infirmity
Curiosity	Gossiping	Deceiving	Weakness
Jealousy	Nosiness	Competition	Sickness
Theft	Spiritual Pride	Hate	Sexual Diseases
Greed	Masculinized	Fantasy	Ingratitude
Harlotry	Wily	Covetousness	Passivity
Inferiority	Scheming	Undisciplined	Psychoneurosis
Immodesty	Control	Flirtatious	Psychopsychosis
Enticing	Manipulation	Frustration	Psychoneurotic
Provocation	Fear	Evil Speaking	Rebellion
Witchcraft	Bitterness	Haughtiness	Schizophrenia
Despising	Passion	Evil Words	Paranoia
Exposure	Temper	Alluring Eyes	False Tongues
Conniving	Quarreling	Alluring Walk	False Prophesy
Pride	Malice	Foul Language	False Discernment
Calloused	Baseness	Worthless Talk	False Interpretation
Murder	Rage	Outstretched Necks	Contentious
Foolish	Wildness	Deifying Self	Insolent
Whoredom	Indignation	Abusive Language	Treacherous
Flattery	Anger	Wearing Amulets	Tempting to Idolatry
Cunning	Brawling	Uncontrolled Emotion	Desertion
Harlot's Attire	Slander	Wearing Charms	Vile
Subtlety	Spite	Wearing Fetishes	Contention

Loudness Stubbornness	Fury Confusion	Abused Children Bad Habits	Failure Uncleanliness
Wandering	Abortion	Female Problems	Lasciviousness
Impudent	111 Will	Phobias	Strange Women
Grudges	Resentment	Gluttony	Masturbation
Retaliation	Animosity	Charismatic Witch	Lewdness
Sensuous	Clamor	Drunkenness	Perversion
Adultery	Nakedness		Pornography

6. MISCELLANEOUS SCRIPTURAL STUDIES

PREFACE

The following are some miscellaneous scriptural studies and comments. Look up the verses and see what they say to you.

Do you see these signs in the world today? God's love is not partial! See Romans 1:16 thru 2:11 (sin). These are some of God's blessings:

Joshua 1:8	(Meditate on the Bible day and night.)
II Chronicles 26:5	(As long as he sought the Lord)
Psalms 34:8, 10;	(Delivered), (Satisfied), (Conversation)
37:19; 50:23	
Proverbs 12:13-14;	(Satisfied), (Wholesome tongue)
15:4	
Isaiah 53:5	(Healing)
Daniel 11:32	(Do exploits)
Matthew 12:35-37	(Good treasure of heart)
Luke 12:23	(Life more than food), (Body more than clothes)
John 10:10	(Abundant life) Romans 10:13 (Salvation)
Philippians 4:13, 19	(Can do all things), (Supply all your needs)
James 1:5	(Wisdom for the asking)

These are some Scriptural cautions to parents of children or teenagers:

Exodus 20:5	(Cursed to third and fourth generation)
Psalms 15:4-5	(Honor them that fear the Lord)
Proverbs 13:10;	(Pride), (Offended), (Sin), (Repentance)
18:19; 22:8; 28:13	
Jeremiah 29:13	(Search for God with all your heart)
Mark 11:25	(Forgiveness)
Ephesians 4:27	(Do not give place to Devil)
Colossians 3:13, 21	(Forgiveness), (Do not provoke children)
Deuteronomy 28:47-	(Serve the Lord with joy of heart and mind)
48	

Israel rejoiced at the rebuilding of the temple; see the following:

Ezra 3:12-13; 6:16 (Joy)

Nehemiah 8:10 (Joy of the Lord)

Here is a good practice to keep out demons and their conversations. State out loud, "I take authority over Satan in the name of Jesus Christ". Immediately begin to quote Scripture to yourself. Give very close attention to what you are saying. As you do so, the Word of God will minister strength to you and fear to the Devil to drive him away. Satan and his demons don't like to hear about death and resurrection of Jesus Christ.

SECTION 10 - SELECTED TOPIC STUDIES

CONTENTS

- 1. Abortion
- 2. Binding, Loosing And Agreeing
- 3. Satan Is A Gradualist
- 4. Steps Leading To Possession
- 5. Our View Of Possession
- 6. Saul's Experience
- 7. Witchcraft And Black Magic
- 8. Our Sins And Our Ancestors
- 9. End Times
- 10. Disobedience
- 11. Future Of Nations Of World
- 12. Full Gospel Business Men's Fellowship International
- 13. Lake Hamilton Bible Camp
- 14. Comments About Psychiatry And Psychology
- 15. List Of Demons

ABORTION

Abortion is murder in the sight of God. It will probably be the "straw that broke the camel's back" and cause God to allow the United States to be destroyed by its enemies. God, please forgive us for abortion, murder, killing and shedding innocent blood and being in agreement with these evil deeds.

Scripture - See the following scripture:

Ps. 139:13-16	(We are made by God)
Isaiah 29:15-16	(Potter and the clay)
Isaiah 42:5	(God gives us breath and spirit)
Isaiah 43:1 & 7	(Called thee by thy name)
Isaiah 44:24	(Formed thee from the earth)
Isaiah 45:9 & 12	(Created man upon the earth)
Isaiah 49:1 & 5	(Made mention of my name in the womb)
Isaiah 63:16	(Father is the lord)
Isaiah 64:8	(Works of thy hand)

Picketing

It is popular now in Christianity to picket the abortion clinics. The preachers are getting on the bandwagon. What is not popular is teaching the congregation about sexual sin and its consequences, and having deliverance thereafter. If a preacher does not have the courage to teach about sin and the aftermath, then he shouldn't get excited after the damage has been done. As Earline says, "It is like trying to get the animals out after the barn is on fire." It would be better by trying to prevent the barn from catching on fire. Those in the five-fold ministry should pray and ask God to forgive them of cowardliness.

After-Effects To Mother "After abortion there is an increase in sterility of 5%, of miscarriages of an additional 10%, of psychiatric aftermath (9 to 59% in England), of more trouble later. Tubal pregnancies rise from 0.5 to 3.5% and premature babies from 5 to 15%. There can be perforation of the uterus, blood clots to the lungs, infection and later fatal hepatitis from blood transfusions." From Life or Death, Hayes Publishing Co., Inc., 6304 Hamilton Ave., Cincinnati, Ohio 45224.

BINDING, LOOSING AND AGREEING

Binding and loosing in agreement is one of the most effective weapons in our warfare that can be used for deliverance as well as our everyday life. We can bind or loose anything that God has given us the authority to bind or loose.

Scripture

Use the following scripture as your authority:

Matt. 16:18-19 & 18:18-20	(Binding and loosing)
Matt. 28:18-20	(All power is given me in heaven and earth.)
Jn. 20:21-23	(Remitting and retaining sins)
I Cor. 5:4-5	(With the power of our Lord Jesus Christ)
II Cor. 2:10-11	(For your sakes forgave I it in the person of Christ.)
I Jn. 3:22	(Because we keep His commandments)
I Jn. 5:14	(Ask anything according to His will)

Binding

Binding is a temporary measure and should be done daily. If we can't cast out the demons for some reason, then we can only bind them. Binding is also preparatory to casting out demons. Binding a demon will not cause him to leave; he must be cast out.

Loosing

Once the demons are bound, then we can loose them out of a person. We can also loose spirits of God. We prefer to use more direct commands to cast out demons than the word "loose" such as "I command you to come out of him/her in the Name of Jesus" (Mk. 16:17). Repeat this verse three times to let it have an effect on you.

Agreeing

It is very important for us to agree together in prayer to bind and loose. It is very powerful when husband and wife agree in prayer each day. It is extremely powerful when the entire congregation of a church agrees in unity and not dissension.

Daily Prayers

Binding, loosing and agreeing should be done on a daily basis, not necessarily just for deliverance, but for our home and family, finances, job and business, country, ministry, etc. We bind all powers, principalities, evil forces in this world and spiritual forces in high places. Repeat the following: "We loose the powers of God: warring angels, ministering angels, the Holy Spirit and the Seven-Fold Spirit of God. We bind up every force of evil and loose every force of good that we have the power and authority to do so in Jesus' name. We agree together in the name of Jesus Christ."

SATAN IS A GRADUALIST

The way that Satan and his demons trap humans is gradualism, the slow methodical driving of a person to do a little sin at first which leads up to a lot of sin in the end. If Satan tried to get us involved too quickly, we would recognize his tactics and refuse.

So, he paints sin in a beautiful way so that we will try it. For instance, take the cigarette advertisements. The beautiful, sexy woman is used to show how great it is to smoke. Satan doesn't show you the end of the story of the man lying in the hospital coughing up blood, gasping for breath and dying of lung cancer.

STEPS LEADING TO POSSESSION

There are many steps from an innocent child to a demon-possessed old person. Probably the steps would fill a biographical book about the life of the individual. The following are seven steps which Satan uses to take over an immortal soul and were taken from Charismatic Studies - Analysis, Definition and Function - Demon Power, World Harvest Advanced School of Evangelism, South Bend, Indiana.

- 1. "Regression: Reversion to earlier behavior patterns, to go backward.
- 2. Repression: To restrain. To squeeze. To prevent natural expression. To keep down. To hold back.
- 3. Suppression: To press under. Keep back, conceal. An exclusion of desire and feeling.
- 4. Depression: Low spirits, gloominess, dejection, sadness. A decrease in force or activity. An emotional condition, either neurotic or psychotic, characterized by feelings of hopelessness or inadequacy.
- 5. Oppression: Pressure to crush. To smother. To overpower or overwhelm. To harass ravish or rape.
- 6. Obsession: To besiege. To haunt as of evil spirits, a fixed idea to an unreasonable degree.
- 7. Possession: To inhabit. To occupy. To control. To hold as a property. To dominate. To actuate. Being ruled by extraneous forces."

OUR VIEW OF POSSESSION

We have never seen a Christian who was totally possessed by demons. It is common to see Christians who have demons; probably all Christians. If you have a demon that keeps you from obeying the Bible, then you are possessed in that area. For example, suppose that you are an alcoholic or a glutton. Then you are possessed in the area of alcohol or food intake. If you can't control your body, then who is controlling it? Check yourself out by the Father, Son and Holy Spirit. Is there anything in your life that does not glorify Jesus Christ, further the Kingdom of God, follow the Bible, quieting the Holy Spirit within you, make good sense, etc.?

SAUL'S EXPERIENCE

These behavior patterns were probably identified earlier in the series of books Freedom From Evil Spirits, Faith Clinic, Dallas, Texas. "King Saul really had a testimony after his goods were gone (I Sam. 15:13). He even preached. Let's review briefly his experience. He had a new heart, was changed into another man and served God for years; yet he yielded to a suicide spirit and killed himself (I Samuel, chapters 10 to 31). Notice how he went from step to step.

- 1. **Obsession**: Popularity obeyed the people confessed to Samuel instead of God. Pride big in his own sight. Greed thought of the spoil. Evil spirit left his mind when David played music (I Sam. 16:23).
- 2. **Oppression**: Rebellion stubbornness, hypocrisy, justified himself. Hatred envy, because David was more righteous. Anger - murder, tried to kill David. Evil spirit - failed to leave as David played (I Sam. 18:10-11).
- 3. **Depression**: Grief sorrow, trouble, regret, despondency, discouragement, despair.
- 4. **Recession**: Gave up his profession; in desperation, went to a witch.
- 5. **Possession**: Forsaken by the Lord; no answer no deliverance! Witchcraft awful fear, suicide, lost forever!"

The following scriptures were given to Virgil Vis by the Lord. He asked me to tell him what interpretation I received about this sequence of scriptures.

WITCHCRAFT AND BLACK MAGIC

Eze. 13:17-23

- 1. Prophesy out of their own heart (false visions or false prophesy).
- 2. Hunt the souls of my people (practice divination).
- 3. Lies have made righteous sad.
- 4. Vanity, divine divinations, polluting God.
- 5. Through witchcraft, God's people can become depressed, captive, killed, backslidden, entrapped.
- 6. We forgive our enemies, false prophets, diviners, liars, vain people and witches. We break soul ties and curses. We cast out depression, disease, etc.

OUR SINS AND OUR ANCESTORS

Jer. 3:21-25

- 1. Return to God and be healed of backsliding.
- 2. Shame, confusion, sin, faithlessness, idolatry, dishonor.
- 3. God, please forgive our ancestors and us, and heal us from our backslidings. We cast out shame and confusion, in Jesus' name.

END TIMES

Daniel Chapter 8

- 1. Evil coming against the saints, God and church leaders.
- 2. Transgression of God's people who feel secure and do nothing.
- 3. Permission given by God to forces of evil to fight against us.
- 4. Exceeding limits of God's mercy for our sins.
- 5. Dark trickery and craftiness.
- 6. This is a prophecy for the end times. However, it could be happening today in a measure as a beginning of the end. Evil will wax worse and worse.

DISOBEDIENCE

Daniel 9:10

- 1. We have disobeyed God.
- 2. When God's laws are broken, we are cursed.
- 3. God told Earline that He can no longer bless our nation but will only bless individuals!

FUTURE OF NATIONS OF WORLD

Obadiah 3, 10, & 17

- 1. Pride and wronging other Christians.
- 2. There shall be deliverance for those who escape and it shall be holy, and they shall repossess their former possessions.

FULL GOSPEL BUSINESS MEN'S FELLOWSHIP INTERNATIONAL

I am a life member of FGBMFI. This organization introduced me to the full-gospel life. It was a great help to me and I became active in the fellowship. Unfortunately, in Baton Rouge, the chapter stopped spiritually when deliverance was introduced. I would like to say to my brothers and sisters in FGBMFI - go on with God; don't be limited by man.

Like so many groups, churches and denominations, the organizations are in a box. If you stay in the box with their doctrines, you are popular and everyone wants you around. If you open the box lid to look at other teachings of God, then you become unpopular and they want to drive you away. Before deliverance, Earline and I were very popular; after deliverance -very unpopular.

LAKE HAMILTON BIBLE CAMP

Hot Springs National Park, Arkansas

We recommend that everyone attend the camp meetings. They are held six times a year during each of the major holidays. Through the years of visiting and ministering at the camp, we find that the meetings are physically tiring, spiritually refreshing, mentally challenging and materially a blessing to see many people helped by the camp. We support the camp with our talents and offerings.

(L.D. Sledge, Attorney at Law) - I have just returned from a seminar in San Francisco sponsored by the American Bar Association on "Tort and Religion". The things I learned have left me very troubled and I feel that I must share my concerns with you.

I have an unsuitable belief in the spirit and integrity of man and in his right to believe and practice any religious/spiritual persuasion of his choice. The first amendment guarantees mean a great deal to me and what I have observed portends not just an eroding of this right, but a deliberate scheme to destroy it as we have always known it.

You may feel secure as you are among the "mainstream" of religions, and you may feel that you cannot be attacked. But yours is a religion and as such, yours is a potential target for the coming "gold rush" of liability exposure. You may find this incredible, but it is true.

I met an attorney from Minnesota who says cases are flooding into his office against Baptist, Methodist, Presbyterian, Church of God, Catholic, Episcopalian Churches, all "mainstream" churches. He is winning these cases and getting large awards and settlements.

I see not just a "liability crisis" looming, but I see the potential of a stifling of religious activities and practices as a result of the duality born of the need for accountability and a push by psychiatry for control.

Louisiana Revised Civil Code, Article 2315, the basic accountability article in our state reads: "Every act whatever of man that causes damage to another obliges him by whose fault it happened to repair it." This is the basis of Louisiana "tort" law, the side of the ledger dealing with redress of civil wrongs as opposed to the state dealing with criminal wrongs. It is the law of reparations. Every other state has a similar law, though maybe not as poetically phrased.

Other states provide for punitive damages, that is, damages for more than compensating the victim or injured party for the reparations, to punish or to correct as an added element. Louisiana doesn't have punitive damages.

Traditional methods of raising funds and donations, proselytizing for converts, and recruiting for staff and ministers may result in a "violation" of this civil concept and fall into the category of compensable accountability.

For example: A congregation member inherits a large sum of money and decides to donate a portion of it to the Church. Later he changes his mind, prompted by a legitimate change or by some group that wishes to fabricate suits against churches (and there are numerous groups like this forming in this country) alleging that he was defrauded or deluded, or "hypnotized" and he goes to a psychiatrist who supports his position saying that he was "brainwashed," leading to lack of free will to make such a disposition.

A suit is filed and the outraged jury, whipped into a foment by a skilled trial lawyer who sensationalizes the entirety of clerical recruitment and fund raising as carnival and fraud, grants a verdict of repayment and an outlandish and crippling punitive award to the injured contributor.

What if a troubled member seeks counseling and later commits suicide? The Nally v. Grace Community Church of the Valley case in California raged for nearly 10 years before the State Supreme Court finally rejected plaintiffs claims, but set the precedent that a duty of care and foreseeable circumstances are factors to be properly considered in such cases. The original jury held for the plaintiff. If suicide was foreseeable, the Church would be liable unless the member was sent to a psychiatrist. What if a member asserts that the conduct of a church official or minister constitutes molestation, abuse, emotional damage, delusion, psychological injuries, which result in loss of property, status, prestige, family, or money, divorce, suicide, bankruptcy—ad infinitum? Or what if a newly recruited minister says that he or she was brainwashed, psychologically or emotionally harmed by the recruitment, training, drills, catechisms, education or other church routines and activities?

He can go to a psychologist or psychiatrist and the purchased testimony of these "experts" or "doctors of the mind" can result in adverse and bankrupting damage awards.

This all has a severely chilling effect on all phases of religious activities, growth and survival.

There is another contradictory and disturbing phenomena that is developing. A number of Ministers, Rabbis and Priests who spoke say that when a tough situation comes up that they "refer" the member to a psychologist or psychiatrist!!!

I find this to be an incredible incongruity. To avoid the inability to handle a troubled man, woman or child, and to pass the buck (and now the legal responsibility) these shepherds send their sheep to the butcher instead of handling them as we always have handled our troubled folk in the past.

Are they deserting their prime directive? When days are sunny and roads are good, they are all smiles and help with the collection plate in hand. When times get bad they wash their hands of the troubled member and send him off for "treatment" which will invariably involve behavior modifying drugs such as Elavil, Valium, or worse. Frequently this will involve electro convulsive therapy (ECT or commonly known as shock treatment). The doctor ties the patient down, places a towel between his teeth, places an electrode on each temple and slams cell shattering volts of electricity through his brain. This usually calms the patient -- it actually gives him another larger problem. This is a destructive therapy.

This may help his neighbors, but it destroys the patient. Then there will be episodic confinements in various kinds of institutions at great cost from then on, plus loss off memory, productivity, creativity, ability and even individuality.

All of this so called therapy brands and labels him, and effectively removes him from society as being mentally ill, crazy, a pariah.

The ministers are becoming social directors of their social clubs, delivering motivational speeches with an overtone of hope. From the citadel of hope and love there has been a massive AWOL and even treason in many churches and ministries. They are offering hope but the help is being farmed out.

And what is the basis of the expertise of these to whom the hapless member is referred? Dr. Sigmund Freud, father of psychoanalysis, wrote that religion was "the universal obsessional neurosis of humanity," that religion was "patently infantile, and characteristic of a primitive stage in the development of civilization." And, in varying degrees, that view persists in psychology.

These "doctors" deny that man is a spiritual being, but say that he is the coincidental collision of chemicals and neurons in a meaningless and totally accidental and meaningless universe of equally meaningless purpose, all without hope, help, soul or spirit.

Psychiatry rejects all religion as an "opiate" of the people, and denigrates faiths as an "illusion." They label spirituality as pathology and mental illness, and describe religious experience as disorder, all requiring treatment. This is well explained in the texts they study to get their certificates and in their "bible", the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders (DSM III). In this manual almost any activity or behavior of man is labeled symptomatic of a disorder, and further it directs therapies for these created disorders. This treatment is usually behavior modifying drugs to be administered only by the high priests of psychiatry.

Psychology originally meant psyche (spirit) ology (study of), or study of the spirit, but failing to have any faith in or tangible proof of the existence or whereabouts of the spirit, psychiatry and psychology have long since abandoned such foolishness for to them obviously there is no spirit or soul, and any belief in such is clearly symptomatic of a serious mental illness that demands

treatment according to their totally baseless "science." And to make it worse, they will admit that they know nothing of the mind, they admit that they deny the spirit, and they admit that they have never cured anyone!

These are the helpers to whom our hapless sheep are sent by our shepherds of the cloth in the name of help.

A number of nationally prominent psychiatrists and psychologists spoke at the seminar. Three of them were Drs. Richard Delgado, Richard Ofshe, and Louis Jolyn West, all associates and affiliated with Stanford University, who have been involved in experiments with LSD, drugs, brain surgery and ECT. Dr. West gave Tusko, a Los Angeles zoo elephant, such a dose of LSD that the beloved elephant died.

These men were arrogant and sneered at the idea that the first amendment should protect such obviously deluded and mentally disordered people as the Hare Krishnas, Moonies, Syndicalists and Fundamentalists. These same people who I feel should never have been given a forum of such a redoubtable institution as the ABA, are conspicuously present in trials and make themselves available as experts to testify against the churches.

Their anti-clerical intent was not concealed; it was very overt, and clearly these "non mainstream" religious groups were only the appetizers for the big meal to come.

There is a crazy conflict here. All of society and its religions are in a pincer movement, and the single hand of psychiatry, backed by the AMA, holds the tweezers.

Catholics, Jews and many Protestant Churches are requiring that their priests, rabbis and ministers take courses in psychology and psychoanalysis, and even some require psychoanalysis as a requisite to certification. This marriage of conflicting technologies demands the adoption and usage of the techniques and think, and in general getting into bed with, a technology that violently disavows and denies everything sacred and good that we most steadfastly believe in. Incredible!

All speakers against the first amendment and in favor of large judgments against the Churches maintained that the first amendment guarantees the "freedom to believe, but not the freedom to do." This phrase was repeated over and over by the pro-lawsuit speakers, and the psychiatric community, who are all considered national experts and opinion leaders in this country at this time on this subject matter.

Where does this lead?

Logical extension of this through time, by projecting this acceleration and proliferating movement into the next century, leads us to an inescapable and barren millennium of Godless, Soulless autonomy of psychiatry under what they labeled in the seminar as the "secular model" as opposed to the "religious model", to more psych created phrases creeping into our language meaning psychiatry or religion. I see our Churches willingly and even enthusiastically rushing to the embrace of this grinning, knowing seducer, whose purposes are to destroy all religion except its own, which is itself a cult of mind and soul control that smacks of things that go bump in the night.

What can and what must be done? For the remainder of the letter, please contact Mr. L.D. Sledge, Wren-wood Office (504) 927-4357.

COMMENTS ABOUT PSYCHIATRY AND PSYCHOLOGY

These professions are unnecessary for Christians who will follow the Bible and apply the provisions found therein, especially deliverance. Then he or she would not need these services. Earline and me are more successful because we use the Bible and it works. God can cure you but they can't.

Psychiatric Aftermath of Trouble Tubal Pregnancies Premature Babies Perforation of the Uterus Blood Clots Infection Fatal Hepatitis Regression

LIST OF DEMONS

Repression	Rebellion	Black Magic	Delusion
Suppression	Stubbornness	False Visions	Psychological Injury
Depression	Hypocrisy	False Prophecy	Divorce
Low Spirits	Self-Justification	Divination	Brainwashed
Gloominess	Hatred	Lying	Modifying Drugs
Dejection	Envy	Vanity	Elavil
Sadness	Anger	Depression	Valium
Neurotic	Demonic Grief	Disease	ECT
Psychotic	Sorrow	Shame	Shock Treatment
Hopelessness	Trouble	Confusion	Destructive Therapy
Inadequacy	Regret	Faithlessness	Loss of Memory
Oppression	Despondency	Idolatry	Mental Illness
Rape	Discouragement	Dishonor	Crazy
Obsession	Despair	Trickery	Pathology
Possession	Recession	Craftiness	Disorder
Dominate	Desperation	Molestation	LSD
Popularity Pride	Witchcraft	Abuse	Drugs
Greed	Fear	Emotional Damage	

SECTION 11 – FAMILY

CONTENTS

- 1. Perfect Family With A Perfect Relationship To God
- 2. Perfect Family Summary
- 3. From Death Into Real Life
- 4. Earline's Testimony About Byron's Death
- 5. Dedication Of Children
- 6. Perfect Love

1. PERFECT FAMILY WITH A PERFECT RELATIONSHIP TO GOD

PREFACE

We spend a lot of time in deliverance dealing with family problems. If you want to have a successful family, you must have godly counseling, teaching, deliverance and discipline. We believe that God considers the family more important than the church! If you want godly churches, you must have godly families.

INTRODUCTION

Read introduction from How to Cope with a Broken Home, "How to Cope with Life's Problems" by Dr. Lester Sumrall: "Marriage is the greatest and oldest institution known to man. Marriage was created by God in the Garden of Eden (Gen. 2:24). God performed the first wedding ceremony bringing Adam and Eve together. Marriage was ordained before man had sinned. Home was created during the unblemished state of innocence in Eden. Marriage was in force before man had rebellion in his heart or before he had lost his blessed estate in Eden. Before there were any parents on this earth, God commanded that a man or woman should leave their fathers and mothers, and cleave to their wife or husband.

Marriage laws pre-date governments, judges, lawyers or any other human institution. Revealing His great concern for the home, Christ honored a wedding with His presence, and here He performed His initial and first miracle (John 2:11)."

OUR FAMILY

Earline, Marie and I were having problems in our relationship. One Saturday we decided to see what the Word of God had to say. The Bible helped us very much. God began to help us work out our problems. From this experience, God gave us a message for others. It took us four years to develop this lesson. It is basically an outline of the Scripture that pertains to the family. If you will take your family and go through the Holy Bible studying each of these verses, you will have a good overview of what God has to say about the family. Then begin to put into practice what you have learned.

PERFECT FAMILY

COL. 3:18-31

- 1. Husbands love your wives!
- 2. Wives submit to your husbands!
- 3. Children obey your parents!

- 4. Fathers do not provoke your children!
- 5. Memorize and follow these four scriptures. They tell you how to have a perfect family. Fathers do not stimulate your children to anger - to become exasperated to anger - to force contrary to nature.

KEY WORDS FOR FAMILY

- 1. Husbands "Agape Love" to love much (in a social or moral sense); beloved; of the heart; embracing especially the judgment and the deliberate assent of the will as a matter of principle, duty and propriety.
- 2. Wives "To Obey" be under obedience (obedient), put under, subdue unto, (be, make) subject (to, unto), be (put) in subjection (to, under) submit self unto.
- 3. Children "Honor"- (numerous, rich, honorable), to make heavy, weighty, honored.
- 4. Children "Obey" to hear under (as a subordinate), to listen attentively; to heed or conform to a command or authority; hearken, be obedient to, obey.

SCRIPTURES

(Key words and chapters from concordance)

(FAMILY: HUSBAND —- WIFE —- CHILDREN) (Read I Cor. 7 and I Pet. 3 which are the whole duties of the married state.)

HUSBANDS

Responsible for the family to Christ; are priests and heads of the house; and must obey Christ. The keyword and action is "LOVE". A husband should also honor and have knowledge of his wife.

W110.	
I Cor. 7:3	Benevolence (Act of kindness)
Eph. 5:25	Love (1)
Eph. 5:28	Love (2)
Eph. 5:33	Love (3)
Col. 3:19	Love (4)
I Pet. 3:7	Knowledge (To know, understand, allow, be aware [of], feel, have)
	knowledge, perceive, be resolved, can speak, be sure)
I Pet. 3:7	Honor

THE GODLY RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN WIVES AND HUSBANDS

- Eph. 5:22 Submit
- Eph. 5:23 Head
- Eph. 5:24Subject in everything (1)
- Eph. 5:33 Reverence
- Col. 3:18 Submit
- I Tim. 2:11 Subjection (2)
- I Tim. 2:12 Not to usurp authority
- I Peter 3:1 Subjection (3)
- I Peter 3:5 Subjection (4)
- 1 Peter 3:6 Obeyed, calling him Lord Earline submits to my leadership when we minister in churches and in other places. She does what I ask her to do and I maintain control of the service.

I Cor. 16:19 A husband and wife team is scriptural: Aquila and Priscilla The woman should not try to usurp authority over the man or the church.

CHILDREN

Must obey and honor their parents. The key actions are to "OBEY AND HONOR".

Ex 20:12	Honor (1)
Lev. 19:3	Fear
Deut. 5:16	Honor (2)
Eph. 6:1-4	Obey, Honor (3)
Col. 3:20-21	Obey (4)

SOME SCRIPTURAL CAUTIONS TO PARENTS

Ex. 20:5	Idol worship - 3 to 4 generations of spiritual problems.
Ps. 15:4-5	Vile person is despised.
Prov. 13:10	After pride and insolence comes contention and trouble.
Prov. 18:19	A child offended is hard to win or correct.
Prov. 22:8	He that soweth iniquity shall reap calamity and failure.
Prov. 28:13	He that covereth his sins shall not prosper - confess.
Mark 11:25-26	Forgive ought against any or prayers are unanswered.
Eph. 4:26-27	Neither give place to the devil; anger = demons.
Col. 3:13	Forbearing and forgiving one another; be gentle.
2 Thes. 5:22	Abstain from every sort of evil. DUTIES OF A GOOD WIFE
Gen. 2:18-25	Help meet means counterpart, to complete, adaptable.
Gen. 3:16	Desire shall be to husband.
Prov. 1:8	Mothers should teach children.
1 Cor. 7:3-5,15-16	Duties of the married state.
1 Cor. 11:1-7	Covering of head and head of woman.
1 Cor. 14:34-35	Women are forbidden to speak in church.
Eph. 5:21-24	Duties of wives.
Eph. 6:1-9	Duties of children and servants.
Col. 3:18	Duties of wives.
1 Tim. 2:9-15	Women are not permitted to teach.
1 Tim. 3:11-13	Qualifications of wives.
1 Tim. 5:9-15	Rules for widows.
1 Pet. 3:1-6	Old women to teach young ones.

(Duties of wives to love husband and God: subjection, conversation, hidden man of heart, meek and quiet spirit, trust God, called him lord, fit in, pure behavior, Godly lives, beautiful inside, gentle and quiet spirit, obey husband and honor him).

SUMMARY

Bear children; bring-up children well, welcome husband's affections; husband is master; wife is responsible to husband; allow non-Christian mate to leave; marry only once; no longer has full right to her own body; be silent during church meetings; quiet and sensible in manner and clothing; live kind, good and loving lives; listen and learn quietly and humbly; be clean minded, not heavy drinkers, gossipers, lazy and nosey; be thoughtful and faithful, respectful and sensible;

take care of homes; spend time there; help those who are sick or hurt; teach goodness; train younger women; and love husband and children.

SONG OF SOLOMON

A picture of Christ's love for the Church which should be a picture of the husband's love for the wife. (Eph. 5:32, II Cor. 11:2, Rev. 21:2) (Read The Whole Book Of Song Of Solomon.)

HUSBANDS AND WIVES ARE "ONE FLESH"

Gen. 2:23-25	Cleave unto his wife, be one flesh.
Gen. 31:14-16	Stranger in parents' home.
Psa. 45:8-12	Forget parents and own people.
Matt. 19:4-6	Cleave and one flesh.
Mark 10:5-91	Cleave and one flesh.
Cor. 6:13-17	One flesh with a harlot or one spirit with God.
Eph. 5:31-32	One flesh with mate.

Cleave: Cling, adhere, catch by pursuit, abide fast, cleave fast together, follow close hard after, be joined together, keep fast, overtake, pursue hard, stick, take. One: First, agree, one another.

PROVERBS TALKS ABOUT MEN AND WOMEN

2:16-22	Safety from company of an evil woman.
5:15-20	Be happy with wife.
6:20-35	The mischief of whoredom.
7:1-27	The cunning of a whore.
9:13-18	The error of folly of a foolish woman -1 Thes. 5:22.
11:22	Moral virtues and their contrary vices.
12:4	Moral virtues and their contrary vices.
14:1	Moral virtues and their contrary vices.
18:22	Moral virtues and their contrary vices.
19:13-14	Moral virtues and their contrary vices.
21:9 & 19	Moral virtues and their contrary vices.
22:14	Moral virtues and their contrary vices.
23:26-28	Moral virtues and their contrary vices.
25:24	Sundry maxims and observations of Solomon.
27:15-16	Sundry maxims and observations of Solomon.
29:3	Sundry maxims and observations of Solomon.
30:20	Sundry maxims and observations of Solomon.
31:2-3	King Lemuel's lesson of chastity and temperance.
31:10-31	The praise and properties of a virtuous woman.

(READ THE WHOLE BOOK OF PROVERBS.)

ABORTION

Ps. 139:13-16	We are made by God.
Isaiah 29:15-16	Potter and the clay.
Isaiah 42:5	God gives us breath and spirit.
Isaiah 43:1 & 7	Called thee by thy name.

Isaiah 44:24	Formed thee from the earth.
Isaiah 45:9 & 12	Created man upon the earth.
Isaiah 49: 1 & 5	Made mention of my name m the womb.
Isaiah 63:16	Father is the lord.
Isaiah 64:8	Works of thy hand.

WE ARE GOD'S WORKMANSHIP

Jer. 1:5	Knew, sanctified & ordained before conception.
Matt. 1:20-21	Conceived by Holy Ghost.
Luke 1:15 & 41	Filled with Holy Ghost in womb.
Rom. 9:20-21	God formed us.
Gal. 1:15-16	Separated by God from mother's womb.
Eph. 2:10	Christians are workmanship.
	and we have no might to take a shild's life own life

(Abortion is murder and we have no right to take a child's life, our life or anyone else's life. We are created by God for His purpose; not ours.)

ADULTERY

Ex. 20:14	Adulterer and adulteress.
Lev. 20:10	Adulterer and adulteress put to death.
Pro. 6:32-33	Put to death - woman breaketh wedlock.
Mai. 3:5	Put to death - woman breaketh wedlock.
Matt. 5:27,28,32	Commit adultery with divorced woman.
John 4:17-18	Five husbands - no husband now.
1 Cor. 6:15-20	Adultery, fornication, sin, harlotry.
Gal. 5:16-21	Adultery, fornication, uncleanliness, lasciviousness.
Heb. 13:4	Bed is undefiled - God will judge whoremongers.
James 4:4	Adulterers and adulteresses.

Ten Commandments: Thou shalt not commit adultery. Adulterer and adulteress are equally guilty.

Deut. 24:3-4	Going back to former husband after living with another.
Mal. 2:14-16	Dealing treacherously with wife.
Matt. 5:31-32	Except it be for fornication.
Matt. 19:3-9	Except it be for fornication.
Mark 10:11-12	Adultery - put away mate and marry another.
Luke 16:18	Commit adultery through remarriage.
Rom. 7:1-3	Adulteress if husband is living.
1 Cor. 7:10-17	Bond should not be dissolved
7:20 & 24	lightly.

Divorce now affects at least one out of two families and one out of two remarried families also. Frequently a person has multiple divorces. The percentage of divorce will continue to increase in the future. There is only one way to stop divorce, and that is for the family to learn and obey the Holy Bible

SUMMARY

- 1. Do not commit fornication before marriage.
- 2. Get married and do not commit adultery.
- 3. Do not get divorced except for adultery. If possible, forgive mate and live in peace.
- 4. If divorced, do not get remarried, or go back to same mate after fornicating with others.
- 5. If mate is put away for adultery, mate can remarry without committing adultery. Do not marry a divorced woman.

THE CURSE OF AHAB AND THE CURSE OF JEZEBEL

Read these tracts. Jezebel is for women; Ahab is for men. These are strong tracts. Every family has problems in this area of relationships. Adam and Eve had these problems and they have been handed down through the generations to the present time. These tracts were written by Jim Croft and Steve Bell respectively. (Gen. 3:1-24; Ch. 16-17 & 25-27; I Kings 16:30-Ch. 22; II Kings 9)

EFFECT ON CHILDREN BY AHAB/JEZEBEL PARENTS

Children are open to violence or death, even early death, because of tensions, confusions, hurts and insults given them by the family structure being out of order (I Kings 21:21, 24; II Tim. 3:1-8). Confusion, frustration, disgust, hate, etc. lead to suicide. In trying to find their place, these children frequently give in to spirits which drive them to love of power, money, praise, fame, etc. (I Kings 21:20-29).

Children have fear, insecurity, frustration and difficulty learning. It leads to potential corruption, discord, growth in occult and cults, selfishness, doubt, inability to achieve, fake sickness, hypo-chondriacs and church splits.

If someone does not stop the pattern of living in the curse, they will go from generation to generation. A mother who is a Jezebel will raise Jezebel daughters and Ahab sons. Ahab fathers will raise Ahab sons and Jezebel daughters. If sons do not see their father as respected in his office of father, they have no other example to the contrary and will follow him. Likewise, the girls will probably choose a husband like their father. We set the wrong pattern for our children to follow. The children spend the rest of their adult lives trying to live normal lives.

Children will be rebellious, upset and will have rivalry with each other. Drugs, sex and music will attract them as they seek love and satisfaction in life. They are under pressure to prove their love to their parents. Male children will doubt their manhood and tend towards homosexuality. Female children will doubt their womanhood and tend towards lesbianism.

Ahab fathers place curses on male children; Jezebel mothers - female children. Children will have broken marriages and families like their parents. Jezebel mothers cause children to be manipulative. Finally, children are open to satanic attack and will usually become like their parents!

Read Isaiah 3:12. It says clearly, "As for my people, children are their oppressors, and women rule over them. O my people, they which lead thee (children and women) cause thee to err, and destroy the way of thy paths." For instance, Sarah gave Hagar to Abraham and Abraham did not refuse; look at the warring between the Arabs and the Jews it started.

AHAB / JEZEBEL FAMILIES IN THE BIBLE

Learn to identify mistakes the people made as you read their stories. The only person that didn't make any mistakes was the Lord Jesus Christ! The following is a short study of Isaac, Rebekah, Esau and Jacob (Genesis chapters 25 and 27 give a report of contention, strife and wearing down of the families). Jezebel women lead men away from God even when they say they are Christians:

Gen. 3:1-17	(Eve became unsatisfied with her estate and began to be seduced by Satan with greed to rule over Adam. Adam gave in. The first curse on man was giving heed to voice of wife rather than God.)
Gen. 25:23	(Rebekah knew Jacob was to rule over Esau - why didn't she just let it
	happen?)
Gen. 25:29	(Jacob got a Jezebel spirit from his mother, he connived to get Esau's
	birthright.)
Gen. 27:1-29	(Rebekah and Jacob again connive to get Esau's blessing.)
Gen. 27:41	(Esau hated Jacob because he had stolen the elder son's blessing and birth-
	right.)

WINNING THE MATE TO THE LORD

I Cor. 7:12-16Duties to unbelievers1 Peter 3:1-7Duties to each other(Otherwise, simply live a Christian life so that an unbeliever would want what we have.)

FORBIDDEN TO MARRY UNBELIEVERS

Gen. 24:3	Looking for a wife for Isaac
Gen. 28:1	Looking for a wife for Jacob
Deut. 7:3	Heathen
Ezra 9:12	Strange marriages - Heathen
Neh. 13:25	Strange wives
2 Cor. 6:14	Unequally yoked together with unbelievers
2 Cor. 6:17	Unclean things - unbelievers
Eph. 5:11	Have no fellowship with works of darkness

(Unbelievers are strange to Christians and should be avoided in marriage.)

VARIOUS SCRIPTURES ABOUT FAMILY

Gen. 2:18 Help meet for the man
Gen. 29:32 Bearing children desirable for the wife
Lev. 21:7 Priest's wife should be holy
Honor husbands God is husband of widow God is husband of Israel Wine for the wedding Husband of one wife

DUTIES OF HUSBAND

Not to afflict wife Instruction to children Instruction to children. Instruction to children Fathers should instruct sons Instruction to children Correction of children

Head of home Correction not to be unjust Correction not to be unjust Provide for family; have responsibility for finances Priests of God

DUTIES OF A GOOD HUSBAND

Husband to love and honor your wife, do not provoke your children, priest and head of family, obey Christ, cleave unto wife and become one flesh, be happy with wife, give instruction and correction to children, provide for family, enjoy wife sexually and welcome her affections, allow non-Christian mate to leave, marry only once, no longer has full right to his own body, be kind to and have knowledge of wife, follow instructions of the Bible and live a Christian life.

HUSBANDS ARE PRIESTS AND HEADS OF HOMES

Husbands command household to keep way of Lord, tell the sons, teach the children, talk about the Bible, house will serve the Lord, our fathers told us, correct children's behavior and do not provoke children.

Husband to rule over wife, is lord of wife and head of woman. Wife is under obedience to husband, subject to husband in everything, to submit to husband and not to usurp authority of man.

PRIEST OF HOMES

Gen. 18:19 Ex. 10:2; 12:26-27; 13:8 & 14 Deut. 4:9-10; 6:7 & 20; 11:19; 32:7 Josh. 4:6 & 21; 24:15 Ps. 44:1; 71:18; 78:3-8 Prov. 13:24; 19:18; 22:6 & 15; 23:13-14; 29:15 & 17 Joel 1:3 Eph. 6:4 II Tim. 3:15

HEADS OF HOMES

Gen. 3:16; 18:12 I Cor. 11:3; 14:34 Eph. 5:22-24 Col. 3:18 I Tim. 2:11-12 Titus 2:5 1 Peter 3:1, 5 & 6

FINANCES OF HOMES

The following excerpts were taken from "Manners and Customs of Bible Lands" by Fred H. Wight: Payment for Goods - Concerning the money in the sacks of Joseph's brethren, Scripture says: "Every man's money was in the mouth of his sack, our money in full weight" (Gen, 43:21). Thus "Abraham weighed to Ephron the silver, which he had named in the audience of the sons of Heth" (Gen. 23:16). The parable Jesus told of the unjust steward refers to men who owed their lord various amounts such as "an hundred measures of oil," and "an hundred measures of wheat" (Luke 16:5-7).

Money Changers: These men change people's money from one type of currency to another, and also provide change within the same currency. The money-changer sits beside the narrow street and behind a little glass-top table, under which his coins are on display. When the Jewish nation

was numbered, it was required by the law of Moses that every male Israelite who was twenty years or older, pay into the temple treasury a half-shekel as an offering to the Lord (Ex. 30:13-15).

Bankers: Two REFERENCES from Jesus indicate it was done in his day: "Thou oughtest therefore to have put my money to the exchangers, and then at my coming I should have received mine own with usury (interest)" (Matt. 25:27). "Wherefore then gavest not thou my money into the bank, that at my coming I might have required mine own with usury (interest)" (Luke 19:23).

Proverbs 31:10-31 describes the diligent woman. Verses 14, 16, 24 and 29 tell of her buying and selling. Except for Proverbs 31, the Bible generally tells of the men handling the money. The wife in Proverbs 31 probably had the husband's permission to buy and sell.

The person that controls the money controls the organization: family, church or business. We believe that the husband should control the finances of the family; pastor-church. The control should be done in love and with consultation of other members of family and church. Problems arise when the wife controls the finances; this is usually an Ahab / Jezebel relationship.

WHEN THE HUSBAND DOES NOT FULFILL HIS DUTY

What should a woman do in submission when her husband is not fulfilling his duty of being priest and head of their home?

- 1. To whom does the wife and mother do her duty? It is God that tells us to submit to our own husbands! No husband has been instructed by God to make his wife submit. We see a lot of this teaching today, but God told the wife to submit." Rebellion is as witchcraft, and stubbornness as idol worship" (I Sam. 15:23).
- 2. Take a good look at yourself. Ask God to show you yourself as He sees you, so that you can see the results of your attitudes and actions within the family.
- 3. Make an earnest study of your duties as wife and mother.
- 4. Let's look at I Peter Chapter 3:
 - Vs. 2 I've never seen a woman live up to this totally. I have tried and seen women who have tried. I've never seen a perfect woman yet, but it is worth keeping up the try-ing.
 - Vs. 3 Don't use outward beauty and domination to hold family together.
 - Vs. 4 Inward beauty of heart is required.
 - Vs. 5, 6 Examples.
 - Vs. 7 Men cannot blame troubles 100% on wife; at least 50% of the failure rests on them.
 - Vs. 8 How do you get along with a problem husband?
 - Vs. 11 Go for it!
 - Vs. 12 How to get your prayers answered.
- 5. After you begin your work of self-discipline in the Gospel, the people around you will test you; they have every right to. We are instructed to test every spirit. They must see a real change that can stand the test of time (Jer. 12:5).
 - Vs. 2 I've never seen a woman live up to this totally. I have tried and seen women who have tried. I've never seen a perfect woman yet, but it is worth keeping up the try-ing.

- Vs. 3 Don't use outward beauty and domination to hold family together.
- Vs. 4 Inward beauty of heart is required.
- Vs. 5, 6 Examples.
- Vs. 7 Men cannot blame troubles 100% on wife; at least 50% of the failure rests on them.
- Vs. 8 How do you get along with a problem husband?
- Vs. 11 Go for it!
- Vs. 12 How to get your prayers answered.
- 6. After you begin your work of self-discipline in the Gospel, the people around you will test you; they have every right to. We are instructed to test every spirit. They must see a real change that can stand the test of time (Jer. 12:5).

A WISE AND UNDERSTANDING WOMAN

The people (characters) in 1 Sam. 25:3-42 are: Nabal -foolish and wicked; Abigail - joy of the father; and David - anointed King of Israel. The following is a verse by verse explanation of this story: Vs. 3. We meet Nabal, rough and evil descendant of Caleb, and Abigail, woman of good understanding and beautiful. Probably father chose Nabal for her. Vs. 4. David needs provisions and hears of Nabal's sheep shearing (custom to have a celebration at shearing time).

Vs. 5. Sends envoy to request food; David humbles himself.

Vs. 6. Salute him warmly, respectfully and peacefully

Vs. 7. Recount our protection over him and his flocks. Vs. 8. Send whatever you have. Vs. 9. David's men obey.

Vs. 10 & 11. Nabal reviles David and refuses to send food ignoring David's protection. Nabal does not follow area custom of receiving guests and showing gratitude.

Vs. 12. Men return empty-handed and recount their experience.

Vs. 13. David loses his head and becomes angry enough to shed innocent blood. After rejection, bitterness and rebellion follow very quickly. David forgot God's decree. He was willing to involve 400 men in his sin.

Vs. 14. A faithful servant (even the servants knew Abigail to be wiser than Nabal) reports the incident correctly.

Vs. 15 & 16. Reports David's kindness and protection. Vs. 17. Gave advice to Abigail. Abigail not too proud to consider advice from servant; both the servant and Abigail knew the house was in grave danger because Nabal did not act according to custom. Vs. 18. Abigail made haste. David asked for whatever they had. She sends the best and more than was asked: 200 loaves, 2 skins of wine, 5 sheep already dressed, 5 measures parched grain, 100 clusters of raisins and 200 cakes of figs. Abigail did not have to take time to fast or pray - she was on target with God and completely understood her husband. Did not consider her life. David might have attacked and not talked. Only the men's lives were in danger, not hers. Did not consider herself as separate from her husband. Had full understanding of marriage relation and responsibility. If she hated her husband she could have just waited until David killed him.

Vs. 19. Husband was mean even when not drunk. Wisdom - didn't tell him when he was drunk.

COURAGEOUS

"If you do right, and let nothing terrify you, not giving way to hysterical fears or letting anxieties unnerve you" (I Peter 3:6). Desire to appease enemy quickly (Luke 14:32). Didn't look for someone else to assume her duty. Motive was to protect and defend family and servants, not to disobey. (Husbands and wives had joint interest in their worldly possessions - when used for common good - not to waste or spend recklessly. Reckless use is to defraud the family.) Sounds good even for today. Aim was to prevent destruction from reaching family and household, and destroying it.

Vs. 23. Humble and respectful approach to David -hasted off donkey (respectful custom to high-rank people) and fell on her face. Fearless - David could have killed her when she approached. Vs. 24. Took guilt of husband on herself. Husband and wife are one flesh. Asked permission to speak.

Vs. 25. Apologized for husband - explains type of husband he is without being bitter against him. Vs. 26. Reminded David very gently of the curse of shedding innocent blood. Vs. 27 & 28. Allayed David's resentment by wise and humble speech. Endeavored to bring David out of his passionate rage for revenge and reminded David of the cost of revenge.

Vs. 29. Reminded David of his anointing to be king, his safety in God, and God's sure house for David as a reward for David's fighting God's battles. You'll have no staggering grief over getting revenge.

Vs. 30 & 31. Reminds David of God's long-term plan for David, Don't waste life on one man like Nabal.

Vs. 32. David blesses God for sending Abigail.

Vs. 33-35 He recognizes her wisdom. He accepts her apology and gifts.

Vs. 36. Abigail reports all to husband when he is over drunk spree.

Vs. 37. He becomes paralyzed - his heart died.

Vs. 38. Ten days later he is dead.

Vs. 39. Hearing of Nabal's death, David sends for Abigail to be his wife.

Vs. 40-41 God's reward to Abigail for her right attitudes and motives before Him.

IMPORTANT ATTITUDES AND MOTIVES WE LEARN FROM ABIGAIL

- 1. Understand God's idea of the married state.
- 2. Consider ourselves one with mate even if we do not agree with them in all things.
- 3. Never let rejection, bitterness or rebellion come into you because of your circumstances.
- 4. Recognize mate's weaknesses; part of being a help mate.
- 5. Defend the home and marriage from all enemies.
- 6. Let wisdom guide your actions.
- 7. Always be prayed up and ready because of the weakened condition of the family unit due to unsaved mate.
- 8. Don't look for some way out or someone else to do your job.
- 9. Be humble, respectful and full of forgiveness.
- 10. Always give best to God.
- 11. Serve the husband and family with gladness out of obedience to God's commandments.
- 12. Walk humbly with your God and before mankind.

SEXUAL RELATIONS

Comments on what God has shown us about sexual relations. There should be a joy in your relations to your mate. Pray and ask God to help you achieve satisfaction. You should enjoy your mate and no one else. Desire each other's affections. Your body belongs to your mate. You are "one flesh" through sex. This part of your body requires regular exercise.

Prov. 5:15-21 (Be satisfied with your wife's breasts.) Heb. 13:4 (The marriage bed is holy and undefiled.)

SEX AND THE SINGLE CHRISTIAN MALE

It is surprising and dismaying to realize how the Devil can work on a fellow when he does not understand some of the simple physiological mechanics of his own body. Because the sex drive is so very strong (second strongest in the body), it is something with which you will always have to live. The strongest drive is the right to live.

Because human beings are physically able to become parents long before they are mature enough to assume the duties and responsibilities of parenthood, there has to be a wise reason in God's economy for this. I believe it is that God has determined this to be a time in which fellows and girls are to learn self-control. As James points out, the raw material from which patience is manufactured is trial and testing (James 1:2-4).

Even in marriage, there is not unlicensed satisfaction of sexual drives for there are times when abstinence and continence must be practiced. At times during the menstrual cycle, periods of geographical separation from the wife and during pregnancy, sexual relations are either undesirable or impossible.

The basic problem is to learn to live with the sex drive, and avoid sexual impurity and the punishing guilt which follows such involvements. Satan will urge a man to satisfy himself and prove his virility by sleeping with a girl.

Actually all that such episodes prove is that the man has a penis and testicles, and that they work as they were intended to function. Dogs, cats, cattle, horses and pigs are all capable of copulation which leads to the production of offspring.

When a young man becomes a Christian and renounces the past including sexual sins of impurity, Satan immediately sets about to trip him up in the matter of this strong sex drive. Although this practice of masturbation usually does no physical harm, the aftermath of shame, guilt, condemnation and failure are debilitating. Masturbation is a form of self-indulgence and self-love, strictly a selfish pleasure.

To accomplish his designs, Satan works on the vanity of the male ego. He also bends to his purpose physiological facts of male anatomy of which many young men are unaware. The more times a man has crossed the sexual lines of demarcation in the past, whether in masturbation, heterosexual or homosexual activities, the more difficulties he will have in breaking with the past.

Regarding the morning erection; the Devil lies, the man is not over-sexed at all. If he will go to the washroom and urinate, most of the time the erection automatically deflates. There are other

times when passion presses strongly. Again, there is at least a partial reason for this, from a physical standpoint.

During these periods, the penis may erect partially or completely, on the slightest or practically no stimulation. If not relieved by masturbation, the man will soon have a wet dream (nocturnal emission) which will bring a sense of deep relief to the sexual system outside of marriage.

Even when a wet dream has provided a physical relief, Satan tries to rob the man of its value. Seeking to destroy the feeling of relaxation and well-being following the emission, the Devil immediately begins to accuse of lewdness.

When the accuser comes, he must be rebuked in Jesus' name. Praise the Lord because Satan is a liar and the person so attacked is not really that awful wretch anymore, although he might well have been once.

Now a problem arises. A man knows I Cor. 10:13, and understands all the mechanics of physical sex pressure and even the psychological warfare Satan wages to lead into sexual sin. In spite of all this, he falls by going beyond what he knows and lets the Devil goad him into masturbating.

The Devil is quick to supply an answer, "Give up, you can never change". Do not be hoodwinked by his lies. All that is proved is the well-known fact that we are very sexual creatures.

Don't waste time with vain recriminations over your failure* Use I John 1:9, admitting your slip to the Lord, and letting Him forgive you and cleanse you. Forgive yourself also. The episode may have opened your mind and body to sex spirits, therefore pray something like this: "Satan, I rebuke you in Jesus' name and command that every spirit of Masturbation, Lewdness, Uncleanness, Adultery, Fornication, Perversion, Pornography, etc., leave me now". Stop praying and breathe slowly and deeply three or four times. Be persistent, and repeat until they leave.

Analyze the circumstances which lead up to your failure. Avoid that pathway the next time Satan attempts to maneuver you into it. Usually the heaviest temptations come when you are alone. Study God's Word and pray; get plenty of physical exercise in sports and other physical outlets you find rewarding.

Find methods which are helpful to you personally and use them to reinforce your good resolutions. As Paul admonished young Timothy, "Keep thyself pure," and "Flee youthful lusts" (I Tim. 5:22; II Tim. 2:22; I Cor. 9:27).

These excerpts were taken from *Conquering The Hosts Of Hell* by Win Worley.

THE SINGLE FEMALE

Under the guise of female liberty, the American woman has lost a lot. She has been told she has sexual liberty and can, if she so desires, pick up a man and have sex - no strings attached. While this may sound very interesting, even exciting to some, let's examine the results of such actions.

She is forming soul ties with each man (I Cor. 6:15-16). This means that she is attached in her soul to every man she has had sex with; this tie will interfere with her total relationship with her

husband. Each man goes to bed with her and her husband, and interferes with their sex life. Because of attitudes which she has formed about life, men and herself, she will usually not be able to be happy even if she should marry a good man. She may not be able to persist in hard times.

She may get sexual diseases for herself and even pass them on to her children or they may kill her children. She may become pregnant and bear a child; an act she did not even consider at the time of the sex act. If she has an abortion these curses will be upon her and also the father (Ex.21:12;Deut. 19:10; Pro.6:17; Lev.20:2).

She invites the curse of the bastard upon herself and gives it to ten generations of her descendents (Deut. 23:2). This curse will follow her into a marriage and fall on all of her children. Some of the attributes of this curse are: family members do not get along, they do not feel at home in the church, create more bastards, are cruel and unkind.

She will not escape the psychological and spiritual attacks of Satan through curses and the demons. She suffers shame, feelings of being degraded, maybe becomes truly degraded, emotional illness torments her, feelings of loss and dread follow her, she will feel fragmented and loose the ability to trust herself, men and God. Sexually transmitted diseases may not be curable. After a time she will either loathe her life or go beyond the point of having any desire to return to God.

It is strange, but in my school classes very young children have a knowing that it is wrong for mom or dad to associate in intimate ways with someone not their mate. They know this without ever having anyone tell them. This knowing can be abused but cannot be denied and sooner or later will convict the woman. In later life her loss will become more evident to her and bring even more grief or suicide. There is no sadder person than the old woman who has been destroyed through unlawful sexual activity, and has lost the respect and love of her children and husband.

Let's take a look at the average young lady who has followed the so called "new liberty". This may surprise you. She is generally in her early to mid-twenties. This is very young to have ruined your life and maybe your children's lives. She has usually been married, may have a child, has become envious of others, considers her life boring, over or to much for her, and she would like to live in a fantasy world. The pasture looks brighter out there. She divorces her mate or just leaves. Next step is the job market; there she finds sexual favors will get what she thinks she wants, but again she is cheated. Now she is often alone because the courts will give the children to the husband if she is not a fit parent. She finds that men talk sweet and walk out fast.

After all this, a few come to their senses and repent in true repentance. They get saved and begin to change their life, but the demons they have collected will not leave them alone and exert pressure to return to the old life. If she holds out and comes to Jesus Christ for deliverance, she will still have to be diligent in her resistance to immorality if she is to regain her life. If she does not hear of nor get deliverance, the chances are very great she will go back to the old life.

We have seen that those getting deliverance and teaching about how to win over Satan and the demons can persevere and recover all or almost all that they have lost. We've seen many return to their homes and families and make beautiful Christian wives and mothers. We have seen sexual

diseases cured, and mental and physical health restored. This is the reward we get which keeps us filled with desire to see everyone win over Satan.

I urge all young ladies to treasure what God has given. Don't fall for Satan's lie and become polluted, filled with demons and laden with guilt. Get yourself delivered from the curses that have been handed to you by your ancestors and enjoy a clean life with God.

There is one young man in the Bible that I feel is smarter even than Solomon. He is in I Chron. 3:9-10. He cried out to God that he be kept from evil so that he would not be hurt by it. The request must have pleased God for it says He granted him his request.

As you can see, there are curses, pain and punishment for all who transgress God's laws on sex. When you think you have succeeded in hiding it, guess who saw you. When you think you got away scott free, wait a few years and you will see. When you are tempted to think you have hurt no one but yourself, see what happens to your children. If this has been your life or if you are beginning to think that a life of sexual promiscuity would be fun, see now that the price is too great.

Pray, out loud, putting all your guilt before God: "Father in Heaven, I now recognize my sin or sins and I ask for the cleansing power of Jesus Christ's blood to cleanse all of these sins. I forgive all ancestors who have cursed me by their sexual sins. I ask that my descendents will be able to forgive me for the curses I have placed on them. Father, I ask You to forgive me for not protecting those you entrusted to my care. I now break all soul ties with every man or woman (name each one to God) that I have ever had any sexual relations with. I ask that You completely sever all these ties. I forgive all who have hurt me in any way. I ask You to forgive me for having unforgiveness in my heart for others. I ask You to send health and healing to my body and soul. Lord, please begin a restoration of our family and please begin with me. Lord, I am so thankful You have provided a way for me to be forgive. I turn from my sins and follow You. I ask these things in Jesus Christ's name. Amen."

LIVING THE CHRISTIAN LIFE

Living an effective Christian life contributes to a happy family and proper relationship to God. Overnight, you are not going to become a perfect Christian or have a perfect family. You will work all your life trying to be more like Jesus. You will succeed in the degree that you are willing to work at these tasks.

The ideal is for both husband and wife to be Christians. They should then learn what the Holy Bible says and follow its instructions.

These principles will work even if you are not a Christian. However, they are much harder to apply if you don't have the help of Jesus Christ.

Pigs In The Parlor, Ch. 8 - "Seven Steps for Retaining Deliverance" and Ch. 9 - "Filling the House" (with Jesus), pp. 35-47, are the same as seven steps for living the Christian life. This book is about basic deliverance; every Christian should have a copy. You cannot succeed in your family relationships without Godly counsel, deliverance from demons, and discipline of your life!

SEVEN WAYS TO DETERMINE THE NEED FOR DELIVERANCE

The presence and nature of evil spirits can be known by two principle methods - discernment: I Cor. 12:10 lists "discerning of spirits" as one of the nine supernatural gifts of the Holy Spirit, and detection: The second method of knowing the presence and nature of evil spirits. Detection is simply observing what spirits are doing to a person (Mark 7:24-30):

- 1. Disturbances in the emotions which persist or recur.
- 2. Disturbances in the mind or thought life.
- 3. Outbursts or uncontrolled use of the tongue.
- 4. Recurring unclean thoughts and acts regarding sex.
- 5. Addictions to nicotine, alcohol; drugs, medicines, caffeine, food, etc.
- 6. Many diseases and physical afflictions are due to spirits of infirmity (Luke 13:11).
- 7. Involvement to any degree in religious error can open the door for demons as follows:
 - a. False religions, e.g. Eastern religions, pagan religions, philosophies and mind sciences.
 - b. Christian Cults all such cults may be classified as bloodless religions "having a form of godliness, but denying the power thereof" (II Tim. 3:5).
 - c. Occult and Spiritism Any method of seeking supernatural knowledge, wisdom, guidance and power apart from God is forbidden (Deut. 18:9-15).
 - d. False Doctrine a great increase of doctrinal errors will be promoted by deceiving and seducing spirits in the last days (I Tim. 4:1).

SEVEN STEPS TO DELIVERANCE

- 1. One must be honest with himself and with God if he expects to receive God's blessing of deliverance. Ask God to help you see yourself as He sees you and to bring to light any-thing that is not of Him (Psalm 32:5 and 139:23-24).
- 2. Humility involves a recognition that one is dependent upon God and His provisions for deliverance (James 4:6-7). It also involves a complete openness with God's servants ministering in the deliverance (James 5:16).
- 3. Repentance is a determined turning away from sin and Satan (Amos 3:3). One must loathe his sins (Ezekiel 20:43).
- 4. Renunciation is the forsaking of evil. Renunciation is action resulting from repentance (Matt. 3:7-8). If one has repented of religious error, he may need to completely renounce it by destroying all literature and items associated with that error (Acts 19:18-19).
- God freely forgives all who confess their sins and ask forgiveness through His Son (I John 1:9). He expects us to forgive all others who have ever wronged us in any way (Matt. 6:14-15). Willingness to forgive is absolutely essential to deliverance (Matt. 18:21-35).
- 6. In prayer ask God to deliver you and set you free in the name of Jesus (Joel 2:32).
- 7. Prayer and warfare are two separate and distinct activities. Our warfare against demon powers is not fleshly but spiritual (Eph. 6:10-12 and II Cor. 10:3-5). Use the weapons of submission to God, the blood of Jesus Christ, the Word of God, and your testimony as a believer (James 4:7; Rev.l2:ll and Eph.6:17). Christ cannot fail! He is the Deliverer (Mark 16:17; Luke 10:19 and Psalm 18:2)!
 - a. False religions, e.g. Eastern religions, pagan religions, philosophies and mind sciences.
 - b. Christian Cults all such cults may be classified as bloodless religions "having a form of godliness, but denying the power thereof" (II Tim. 3:5).

- c. Occult and Spiritism Any method of seeking supernatural knowledge, wisdom, guidance and power apart from God is forbidden (Deut. 18:9-15).
- d. False Doctrine a great increase of doctrinal errors will be promoted by deceiving and seducing spirits in the last days (I Tim. 4:1).

SEVEN STEPS TO DELIVERANCE

- 1. One must be honest with himself and with God if he expects to receive God's blessing of deliverance. Ask God to help you see yourself as He sees you and to bring to light any-thing that is not of Him (Psalm 32:5 and 139:23-24).
- 2. Humility involves a recognition that one is dependent upon God and His provisions for deliverance (James 4:6-7). It also involves a complete openness with God's servants ministering in the deliverance (James 5:16).
- 3. Repentance is a determined turning away from sin and Satan (Amos 3:3). One must loathe his sins (Ezekiel 20:43).
- 4. Renunciation is the forsaking of evil. Renunciation is action resulting from repentance (Matt. 3:7-8). If one has repented of religious error, he may need to completely renounce it by destroying all literature and items associated with that error (Acts 19:18-19).
- God freely forgives all who confess their sins and ask forgiveness through His Son (I John 1:9). He expects us to forgive all others who have ever wronged us in any way (Matt. 6:14-15). Willingness to forgive is absolutely essential to deliverance (Matt. 18:21-35).
- 6. In prayer ask God to deliver you and set you free in the name of Jesus (Joel 2:32).
- 7. Prayer and warfare are two separate and distinct activities. Our warfare against demon powers is not fleshly but spiritual (Eph. 6:10-12 and II Cor. 10:3-5). Use the weapons of submission to God, the blood of Jesus Christ, the Word of God, and your testimony as a believer (James 4:7; Rev.l2:ll and Eph.6:17). Christ cannot fail! He is the Deliverer (Mark 16:17; Luke 10:19 and Psalm 18:2)!

SEVEN STEPS FOR RETAINING DELIVERANCE

- 1. Put on the whole armour of God as set forth in Eph. 6:10-18. There are seven pieces of armour:
 - a. Loins girt about with truth.
 - b. The breastplate of righteousness.
 - c. Feet shod with the preparation of the Gospel of peace.
 - d. The shield of faith.
 - e. The helmet of salvation.
 - f. The sword of the Spirit which is the Word of God.
 - g. Praying in the Spirit. Refuse the thoughts that demons give you and replace them with spiritual thoughts (Phil. 4:8).
- 2. Positive confession is faith expressed. Negative confessions characterize demonic influence and will open the door to the enemy (Mark 11:23).
- 3. Jesus withstood Satan's temptation by using Scripture. The Word is a mirror to the soul (James 1:22-25); it is a lamp unto the feet for guidance (Ps. 119:105); it is a cleansing agent (Eph. 5:25-26); it is a two-edged sword, laying bare the heart (Heb. 4:12); it is food for the spirit (I Pet. 2:2 and Matt. 4:4). No person can long maintain deliverance apart from the Word of God as a primary factor in his life (Ps.1:1-3)!

- 4. Take up your cross daily and follow Jesus (Luke 9:23). If fleshly appetites, desires and lusts are not brought to the cross, a way for demons to return will be left open (Gal. 5:19-21 and 24).
- 5. Develop a life of continuous praise and prayer which silences the enemy. Pray in the Spirit (in tongues) and also in the understanding (I Cor. 14:14). "Pray without ceasing" (I Thes. 5:17).
- 6. Maintain a life of fellowship and spiritual ministry. It is the sheep that wanders from the flock that is most endangered. Desire spiritual gifts and yield to their operation through you within the body of Christ (I Cor. 12:7-14).
- 7. Commit yourself totally to Christ. Determine that every thought, word and action will reflect the very nature of Christ. Faith and trust in God is the greatest weapon against the Devil's lies (Eph. 6:16).

Doing these seven things will insure that your "house" (life) is filled after having been cleansed. Do not settle for anything less (Romans 5:10)!

AN ATTITUDE OF GRATITUDE

Sometimes to understand what something is, it is good to know what it is not. Let's consult Webster's Dictionary: "Ingratitude - n., ungratefulness, lack of gratitude; adj., unthankful, unmindful, thankless." And what it is: "Gratitude -n., thanks, thankfulness, appreciation, indebtedness; adj., to be beholding, indebted, in one's debt."

"Thanks", "thanksgiving" and "thankful" are used 137 times in the Bible. If the ingredients of gratitude were counted, it would include praise, joy, rejoicing, etc. If all these were counted, the number of times "gratitude" appears in its many forms would be staggering.

I began a study about gratitude to God. This is what I found: I Chron. 16:4, & 7-11 is the first account of God's people (Levites) appointed to give praise and thanks to God continually. II Chron. 20:21-22 shows praises go before the people for victory against overwhelming odds. Acts 16:25 says Paul and Silas were delivered out of prison after they continually sang praises to God.

Read these accounts for realization of the value of gratitude to God: Deut. 28:47-48 Amplified Bible, "Because you did not serve the Lord your God with joyfulness of mind and heart in gratitude for the abundance of all with which He both blessed you, therefore, you shall serve your enemies whom the Lord shall send against you, in hunger, in thirst, in nakedness, and in the want of all things: and He will put a yoke of iron upon your neck until He has destroyed you."

See James 4:7-8 and Heb. 3:17-18. The Devil does not flee from you because you have not submitted yourself to God. You should rejoice in your salvation even if all else fails.

It is very important to serve the Lord with joy; joy being a large part of gratitude: Eph. 5:20, Amplified Bible, "At all times and for everything giving thanks in the name of our Lord Jesus Christ to God the Father." I Thes. 5:18, "Thank God in everything no matter what the circumstances may be, be thankful and give thanks; for this is the will of God in Christ Jesus concerning you." Here thankfulness is emphasized by its double usage.

You will never escape the fact that you are in charge of your attitudes. Attitudes reside in the mind. You are in charge of that mind in your head (II Cor. 10:5). The way you allow your mind to think will eventually become YOU (Matt. 12:35-37)!

Here are some verses to clarify your thinking: Ezra 3:10-13 & 6:16-22, account of triumph and joy at the destruction of idol worship and renewed worship of God; Prov. 4:23, guard your heart - life flows from it; Matt. 12:35-36, you are what flows out of you; Prov. 18:21, death and life are in your tongue (watch it, man); Prov. 12:25, anxiety - heavy heart, encouragement, help; Josh. 1:8, formula for good success. Phil. 4:8, think on these things; Col. 3:16, let Christ's words live in you; Mark 11:23, you have what you believe and say; Ps. 50:23, order your conversation rightly (if you say with your lips "yea", but in your heart "nay", you just cancelled); and II Tim. 3:2, ungrateful is high on the list of signs of the end times in personal life.

HOW TO BE MISERABLE

- 1. Think only about yourself.
- 2. Talk only about yourself.
- 3. Use "F as often as possible.
- 4. Mirror yourself continually in the opinion of others.
- 5. Listen greedily to what others say about you.
- 6. You be suspicious of others.
- 7. You expect to always be appreciated by others.
- 8. You be jealous and sensitive of others.
- 9. You never forgive others.
- 10. Trust nobody but yourself.
- 11. You insist on consideration and respect by others.
- 12. You demand agreement with your own views.
- 13. Sulk if people are not grateful to you.
- 14. Never forget a service you have rendered.
- 15. Be on the look-out always for a good time for yourself.
- 16. Shirk your duties when you can.
- 17. You do as little for others as possible.
- 18. Love yourself supremely.
- 19. You always be selfish towards others.
- 20. Think only of me, I and mine, and you, yours and yourself.

ANALYSIS OF THE HOLY BIBLE , BOOK 16. THE FAMILY

Twenty pages of scriptures about the family and its different functions (we recommend that you look these scriptures up in your Bible and read them to the family):

Chapter 1. Virginity

- 1. Virgins mentioned: Gen. 24:16; Num. 31:35; Jud. 21:12
- 2. Dress of virgin princesses: 2 Sam. 12:18
- 3. The charms of the Shulamite: Sol. 6:4-10
- 4. Another picture of the same: Sol. 7:1-9
- 5. Virgin captives spared: Num. 31:13-19
- 6. The perpetual virginity of Jeptha's daughter: Jud. 11:30-31, 34-36, 39-40
- 7. This virginity bewailed: Jud. 11:37-38

- 8. Brothers guarding a sister's honor: Sol. 8:8-9
- 9. Her chastity invincible: Sol. 8:10-12
- 10. Not to be married, looked upon as a calamity: Ps. 78:63-64
- 11. Paul thought it better not to be married, as things then were: 1 Cor. 7:1, 7, 8, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 32, 33, 36, 37, 38
- 12. But better to marry than to burn: 1 Cor. 7:2, 9
- 13. The gift of continence: Mat. 19:10-12
- 14. Continence rewarded: Rev. 14:4

Chapter 2. The Institution And Laws Of Marriage

- 15. Marriage a divine ordinance: Gen. 2:18, 20, 22, 23; 3:20; 5:2; 9:1, 7; I Cor. 11:11-12
- 16. But only for this life: Luke 20:27-36
- 17. Marriage commended: Ruth 1:9; Prov. 18:22; 31:10-12; Heb. 13:4
- 18. Asceticism rebuked: I Tim. 4:3; 5:14-15
- 19. Monogamy: Gen. 2:24
 - 1. Implied in the original institution of marriage: Gen. 2:24
 - 2. In what is said of the wives of Noah and his sons: Gen. 7:13
 - 3. And in what Christ said: Mat. 19:5-6; Mark 10:7-8.
- 20. Polygamy and concubinage practiced:
 - 1. A Cainite the first polygamist: Gen. 4:19
 - 2. The Patriarchs: Gen. 25:1-6; 36:2-3; 29:25-28, 30; I Kings 11:1-3; Sol.6:8; 2 Chron. 11:21
 - 3. Gideon the Judge: Jud. 8:30
 - 4. Elkanah the Levite: I Sam. 1:2
 - 5. Trouble from it: I Sam. 1:6-8; Gen. 21:14; Gen. 16:4-6
 - 6. Saul: 2 Sam. 3:7
 - 7. David: I Sam. 27:3; 2 Sam. 5:13; I Chron. 14:3
 - 8. Solomon: I Kings 11:13; Sol. 6:8
 - 9. Rehoboam: 2 Chron. 11:21
- 21. Polygamy not prohibited by Moses, but restrained and discouraged:
 - 1. Two sisters not to be taken together: Lev. 18:18
 - 2. The firstborn to have his right: Deut. 21:15-17
 - 3. Ceremonial burdens imposed: Lev. 15:18
 - 4. Citizenship Denied to Eunuchs: Deut. 23:1
- 22. Marriages with heathen:
 - 1. Objected to: Gen. 24:3-6, 37-38; 27:46; 28:1-2; Jud. 14:1-3; Gen. 34:13-14
 - 2. But sometimes happened: Lev. 24:10; Gen. 41:50; Num. 12:1; I Kings 3:1
 - 3. In the case of Samson by divine appointment: Jud. 14:4
 - 4. Circumcision required: Gen. 34:15-17
 - 5. Female captives in war, if not Canaanites: Deut. 21:10-14
- 23. Marriages with near relations:
 - 1. Prohibited by the Mosaic Law: Lev. 18:6-17; 20:11-12, 14, 17, 19-21; Mark 6:17-19
 - 2. But had been allowed before the giving of the Law: Gen. 12:13, 16-20; 20:2, 9-14; 20:16; 26:7; 27:9-11; Ex. 6:20; Num. 26:59
- 24. Levirate marriages:
 - 1. In the Patriarchal Period: Gen. 38:8-11

- 2. As regulated by Moses: Deut. 25:5-10
- 3. Boaz and Ruth: Ruth 2:1, 10-13; 3:2, 4-18
- 25. Heiresses: Num. 36:1-8, 10-12; I Chron. 23:22
- 26. Hebrew priests: Lev. 21:7-8, 13-15; Ezek. 44:22
- 27. Christian ministers: I Tim. 3:2, 12
- 28. The Mosaic law of divorce: Deut. 24:1-4 1. Metaphorical use: Is. 50:1
- 29. The Christian law: Mat. 5:31-32; 19:3-9; Mark 10:2-12; Luke 16:18; I Cor. 7:10-17

Chapter 3. Modes Of Getting A Wife

- 30. By violence: Jud. 21:1, 14, 16, 18-23
- 31. By parental authority: Gen. 31:26, 31; Jud. 14:20; 15:1-3, 6; I Sam.18:17-24; 25:44; 2 Sam. 3:13-16; 13:13
 - 1. In requital of military prowess: Jos. 15:16-17; I Sam. 18:25-27
- 32. Chosen or procured by others:
 - 1. By parents: Gen. 34:4, 6, 8-10; 38:6; Jud. 14:10
 - 2. By a household servant: Gen. 24:1-9, 49
 - 3. By messengers: I Sam. 25:39-43
- 33. Proposals:
 - 1. Refused: I Kings 2:19-22; Sol. 6:13
 - 2. The suitor slain: I Kings 2:23-25
 - 3. Parable of Joash: 2 Chron. 25:18; 2 Kings 14:9
- 34. Choice by the parties themselves:
 - 1. In accordance with the wish of parents: Gen. 28:5-9
 - 2. Consent of the bride: Gen. 24:57-59
 - 3. After that of relatives: Gen. 24:51, 60; 25:20
 - 4. Independently of Others: Gen. 38:1-2; 11:29-30; Ex. 6:23, 25
 - 5. Moved by ardent affection: Gen. 29:11, 18-20; 34:3, 18-19; I Sam.18:28; Ps. 45:10-11; Sol. 1:2-4; 3:1-5; 8:5-7
 - 6. The Christian rule of choice: 2 Cor. 6:14, 17

Chapter 4. Betrothal And Wedding

- 35. Betrothal:
 - 1. Betrothal presents: Gen. 24:21-23, 53
 - 2. Blessings from friends: Ruth 4:11-12
 - 3. Feast: Gen. 24:54-56
 - 4. Exemption from military service: Deut. 20:7
 - 5. Spiritual Betrothal: Hos. 2:19-23; 2 Cor. 11:2
- 36. The bridegroom:
 - 1. His companions: Jud. 14:11; Mat. 9:15; John 3:29
 - 2. Comes by night, and is met with torches: Mat. 25:1, 5-9
 - 3. Longing for the bride: Sol. 4:7-16
- 37. The bride:
 - 1. Her bath: Ruth 3:3
 - 2. Veil: Gen. 24:62-65
 - 3. Attire: Rev. 19:7-8; Ps. 45:14
 - 4. Jewels: Is. 61:10; Jer. 2:32
 - 5. Dowry: Gen. 34:11-12; Ps. 45:12

- 6. Response to the bridegroom: Sol. 4:6, 16; 5:2-8; 8:1-4, 13-14
- 7. The bride of the Lamb: Rev. 21:9
- 38. The wedding:
 - 1. Guest: Ps. 45:15; Mat. 25:10-12; John 2:1-2
 - 2. Wedding Garments: Mat. 22:11-13
 - 3. Festivities: Gen. 31:27-28; Is. 62:5; Jer. 7:34; 25:10
 - 4. Entertainments: Jud. 14:12-14, 18
 - 5. Consummation: Gen. 29:21-23; 24:66-67; Sol. 1:12-17; 2:1-7; 5:1
 - 6. Tokens of virginity: Deut. 22:13-21
 - 7. Exemption from military service: Deut. 24:5; 20:7

Chapter 5. Married Life

- 39. The married state:
 - 1. Its joys: Ruth 3:1; Ecc. 9:9
 - 2. Its cares: I Cor. 7:34-35
 - 3. Metaphorical: Jer. 3:14
- 40. Marital rights: Gen. 26:8; 30:15-16; I Cor. 7:3-6 1. Ablution: Lev. 15:18
- 41. Duties of husbands: Gen. 31:50; Prov. 5:15-20; Eph. 5:28, 31-33; Col. 3:19; I Tim. 5:8; I Pet. 3:7
- 42. Duties of wives: Gen. 3:16; I Cor. 7:39; 11:8-9; Eph. 5:22-24; Col. 3:18; I Tim. 2:11-14; Tit. 2:1, 4-5; I Pet. 3:1-2, 5-6
- 43. A good wife: Prov. 11:16; 12:4; 14:1; 19:14; 31:16-18, 20, 25-31
- 44. A bad wife:
 - 1. Contentious: Prov. 19:13; 21:9, 19; 25:24; 27:15-16
 - 2. Insolent: 2 Sam. 6:20-23
 - 3. Treacherous: Jud. 14:15-17
 - 4. Tempting to idolatry: Jud. 3:5-6; Jer. 44:9-10, 15-16
 - 5. Jezebel an instance: I Kings 21:7, 14-15, 25
 - 6. Deserting her husband: Jer. 3:20
- 45. The Hebrew wife's position:
 - 1. Preparing food: Gen. 18:6
 - 2. Dispensing hospitality: 2 Kings 4:8
 - 3. Siding with the husband against the father: Gen. 31:14-16
 - 4. Pacifying an enemy: I Sam. 25:14, 25-26, 35
 - 5. Saving the husband's life: I Sam.19:11-12, 14-17
 - 6. Devoting a son to the Lord: I Sam. 1:22, 25-28
 - 7. The law of a wife's vow: Num. 30:6-8, 10-16
 - 8. The trial of jealousy: Num. 5:12-15
 - a. The ordeal water: Num. 5:16-18
 - b. The woman's oath: Num. 5:19-22
 - c. The divine judgment: Num. 5:23-31

Chapter 6. Parents and Children

- 46. Children, the gift of god: Gen. 4:1, 25; 30:2, 5-6, 17-21, 24; 29:32-33; 33:5; Ps. 127:3; Ruth 4:13;
 - 1 Sam. 1:19-20

- 47. Children a blessing and a credit: Gen. 5:29; Job. 21:11; Prov. 17:6; Ruth 4:14-15; Ps. 107:41; 127:4-5
- 48. Promised as a reward: Deut. 7:12, 14; Job 5:24-25; Ps. 45:16-17; 128:2-6; Is. 48:19
- 49. Taken away in punishment: Deut. 28:32, 41; 2 Sam. 12:14; Job 18:19; 27:14-15; Ps. 21:10-11; Hos. 9:12
- 50. Barrenness:
 - 1. An affliction: Gen. 15:2-3; Jud. 13:2: Luke 1:7, 24-25; Gen. 11:30; I Sam. 6:1-8
 - 2. Miraculously removed: Gen. 18:11-13, 15; Luke 1:36
- 51. Abortive births: Job. 3:16; 10:18-19; Jer. 20:15-17; Hos. 9:11, 14; Ps. 58:8
- 52. Desire for children: Gen. 30:1, 3-4; I Sam. 1:11, 26, 27
- 53. Conception and pregnancy: Num. 11:12; Ps. 139:14-16; Ecc. 11:5; Luke 1:41
- 54. Birth: Gen. 29:34-35; 30:7, 9-10, 12; 38:3-5; 41:50; Ex. 2:1-2; I Kings 3:17-18; 2 Kings 19:3; Ps. 7:14; 22:9-10; 71:6; Is. 26:17-18; 42:14; Jer. 4:31; 20:14, 18; Micah 4:9-10; John 16:21; I Tim. 2:15; Rev.l2:2
- 55. Twins: Gen. 25:24-26; 38:27-30
- 56. Death in childbed: Gen. 35:16-18; I Sam. 4:19-20
- 57. Midwives: Ex. 1:15-21
- 58. Treatment of newborn child: Ezek. 16:4-6
- 59. Naming at birth: Gen. 21:3; 30:8, 11, 13; 41:51-52; Ex. 2:22; Ruth 4:17; I Sam. 4:21-22; I Chron. 4:9
- 60. Death of infant by overlying: I Kings 3:19-21
- 61. Care of infants:
 - 1. Nursing: Ex. 2:7-9; Ruth 4:16; Acts 7:20
 - 2. Weaning: Gen. 21:8; I Sam. 1:23; I Kings 11:20; Ps. 131:2; Is. 28:9
 - 3. Teaching To Walk: Hos. 11:3
- 62. Adoption: Gen. 48:5-6; Ex. 2:3-6, 10; Acts 7:21; Gen. 16:2; 30:3-7, 9-13; Rom. 8:15-23; Gal. 4:5; Eph. 1:5
- 63. Noteworthy families: Gen. 29:16-17; Num. 26:33; I Sam. 14:49; 2 Kings 10:1
- 64. Parental authority: Gen. 18:19; 50:15-18, 21; Num. 30:3-5; 2 Sam. 14:23-24
- 65. Example: Ps. 49:13; 2 Tim. 1:5
- 66. Instruction: Ex. 10:2; 13:8-10; Deut. 4:9-10; 11:19; I Sam. 2:26: Ps. 78:3-8; Prov. 22:6
- 67. Correction:
 - 1. Should be effective: Prov. 13:24; 19:18; 22:15; 23:13-14; 29:15, 17
 - 2. But not unjust: Eph. 6:4; Col. 3:21
- 68. Parental indulgence:
 - 1. In the case of Eli: I Sam. 2:22-24
 - 2. Penalty announced: I Sam. 3:13-14
 - 3. And inflicted: I Sam. 4:13-14, 16-17
 - 4. David's care for Absalom: 2 Sam. 18:5
 - 5. His inefficient wrath at Amnon: 2 Sam. 13:21
- 69. Duties of children to parents:
 - Reverence: Deut. 5:16; 27:16; Lev. 19:3; Is. 45:10; Luke 18:18, 20-21; Eph. 6:2-3
 a. Reverence and irreverence exemplified: Gen. 9:22-23
 - 2. Obedience: Prov. 6:20-22; 23:22; Jer. 3:4-5, 19; Eph. 6:1; Col. 3:20
 - a. The penalty of disobedience: Deut. 21:18-21; Prov. 30:17
 - 3. Docility: Ps. 34:11; Prov. 1:8-9; 4:1-4, 10-13, 20-22; 8:32-33; 12:1; 13:1; 15:5; 20:11; 23:19

- 70. Offences against parents:
 - 1. Robbing: Prov. 28:24; 19:26
 - 2. Smiting: Ex. 21:15
 - 3. Cursing: Ex. 21:17; Lev. 20:9; Prov. 20:20; 30:11; Mat.15:4-6; Mark 7:10-12
- 71. The gladness and shame of parents: Prov. 10:1; 15:20; 17:21, 25; 23:15-16, 24-25; 27:11; 28:7

Chapter 7. Widows And Orphans

- 72. The bitterness of their lot: Ruth 1:5, 19-21; Job 24:3; Ps. 94:6-7; Jer.15:8-9; Lam. 5:2-3; Is. 51:18
- 73. Their claim to protection: Deut. 24:17; Job 29:11-13; 31:16-23; I Tim. 5:16; James 1:27
- 74. God their avenger: Ex. 22:22-24; Deut. 10:18; 27:19; Job 22: 9-11; Ps. 68:5; 146:9; Prov. 15:25
- 75. Widows to be honored, if widows indeed: I Tim. 5:3-71. A notable example: Luke 2:37
- 76. A widow's vow binding: Num. 30:9
- 77. For service in the church: I Tim. 5:9-13

Chapter 8. Family Affections

- 78. The old home: Gen. 31:3; Ex. 4:18-19
- 79. Parents-in-law: Ex. 18:1-4,27; Ruth 1:7-8,10-18,22
- 80. Grandfather: Gen. 48:8-12, 20
- 81. Uncle and nephew: Gen. 29:12-14
- 82. Parents and children:
 - 1. Love to children: Gen. 21:15-16; 31:55; 42:36; 45:28; 46:29-30; I Kings 3:26; 2 Sam. 13:37-39
 - 2. God's love like that of a father: Deut. 1:31; 2 Cor. 6:18
 - 3. Gifts to children: Gen. 25:5; Jos. 15:18-19; 2 Chron 11:23; Luke 11:11-12
 - 4. Favorite children: Gen. 25:28; 37:3-4, 35; 42:4, 38; 43:13-14; 44:19-22, 27-31; 48:22; 2 Chron. 11:22
 - 5. Rebekah's unscrupulous favoritism: Gen. 27:8, 12-13
 - 6. The blessing stolen in consequence: Gen. 27:18-20, 24, 26, 29
 - 7. Esau's disappointment and grief: Gen. 27:32-38
- 83. Brethren:
- 1. Brotherly love: Gen. 42:7-8; Ex. 4:27; Jud. 8:19; Ps. 133:1-3
- 2. Hatred and injury by brethren: Gen. 27:41-45; 37:11, 18-22, 24, 26-27, 30; 2 Sam. 13:22; Prov. 18:19
- 3. But not revenged: Gen. 33:4; 42:24; 43:30; 45:1-4,13-15, 22-24

2. PERFECT FAMILY SUMMARY

COLOSSIANS 3:18-21 Husband love your wife! Wife submit to your husband! Children obey and honor your parents! Father do not provoke your children!

HUSBAND IS PRIEST AND HEAD OF HOME

Husband is responsible for the family and must obey Jesus Christ. He is to command household to keep the Way of the Lord, teach and correct the children, talk about the Bible, and serve the Lord.

Husband is to be lord of wife and head of home. Wife is to obey husband, be subject to husband in everything and not to usurp the authority of man.

DUTIES OF A GOOD HUSBAND

Husband is to love, honor, be happy with, be kind to, have knowledge of and cleave unto wife, and become one flesh. He is to provide for family, follow instructions of the Bible, live a Godly life and not to provoke his children.

DUTIES OF A GOOD WIFE

Wife is to bear children and raise children well. She is to be quiet and sensible in manner and clothing; live kind, good and loving life; listen and learn quietly and humbly; be thoughtful, faithful, respectful and sensible; take care of home and spend time there; help those who are sick or hurt; teach goodness and train younger women; have Godly conversation, trust God and live Godly life; have gentle and quiet spirit; fit in with husband's plans; have pure behavior and be beautiful inside; and love husband and children. She should be clean minded, not a gossiper nor lazy and nosey.

SEXUAL RELATIONS: PROVERBS 5:15-21 AND HEBREWS 13:4

There should be a joy in your relations to your mate. Ask God to help you achieve satisfaction. You should enjoy and desire each other's affections. Your body belongs to your mate.

LIVING THE CHRISTIAN LIFE

Living an effective Christian life contributes to a happy family. In a short period of time you are not going to become a perfect Christian or have a perfect family. You will work all of your life trying to be more like Jesus Christ. You will succeed in the degree that you are willing to obey the Bible.

3. FROM DEATH INTO REAL LIFE

This is the testimony of my family: Earline, my wife; Marie, my daughter; and Byron, my son. We were married in 1955 by Dr. Lee Roberson, who had a practice of not marrying anyone who was not a Christian. Little did we realize then what a difference it makes for both spouses to be Christians and for God to control your family. We give God the credit for our successful marriage of 25 years.

We were average Christians who never had really done anything very bad or very good. Although I had held most of the positions in the church, there was not much love in my heart for others. Nor did we see much love in the many churches we attended as I moved around the United States following the engineering profession. Worship services were more of a formality.

Earline had a number of miscarriages. Thyroid and parathyroid were completely removed as a teenager. The doctors said that we could not have any children. Earline began praying, and in 1960 God rewarded us with a beautiful baby boy we named Byron. Two years later, God gave us a beautiful baby girl we named Marie. They were all the children we could have because of Earline's health.

We went to traditional churches. They did not teach us about the miracle-working God. We did not see the miracles of God for twenty years. After several medical checkups culminating in a \$500 one in 1973, it was conclusively proven that Earline had no thyroid or parathyroid. According to the doctors, she could not be alive, but was doing fine at 40 years of age. We later recognized that our children were medical miracles.

We had a near perfect family for 12 years, then tragedy struck. Byron climbed a tree and touched a 4000-volt power line and fell 50 feet. We really began to see God at work in our lives. I would like for Earline to tell what happened. We still don't understand why it had to happen or what all God has done for us.

On May 22, 1973, my world came to a crushing halt! As the children played, two neighbors came over to join me for tea. The children came in for cookies and went out again. Byron stood by my chair, his arm on my shoulder, gave me a little hug and said some day he would climb a tree to the very top. Turned, on the run, and said, "You're a nice mom", went out the door and climbed a tall cottonwood.

Soon, one of the children said that Byron had fallen out of the tree. One look at Byron and I knew only God could help him. Marie and I began to pray as never before. Nothing in my life had prepared me for this moment. No faith in God rose to meet this crisis.

On the way to the hospital, we became sure that God didn't love us or He would never have let this happen. Having nothing else to cling to, we clung to God anyway (Ps. 50:15).

At the hospital, I accused God of not living, not caring, not being. He so lovingly said, "I love you, Gene and

Marie more than you love each other, more than you love yourselves. I love Byron more than you do". I couldn't believe Him. I told God, if He didn't do something to prove He loved us and that Byron was in Heaven, I would kill them and myself. I told Him if Byron was not in Heaven I didn't want any part of it either.

With all this fussing at God, I could only feel love coming to me. He said, "All things are His including the tree, the power line and all the earth" (Ps. 50:10-12). I heard myself telling satan to remove death from Byron in the name of Jesus. Byron lived on as a miracle. 1 didn't know this was possible (rebuking satan in Jesus name).

After Gene arrived, I told him all that God had said. We could not believe that God really was talking. We didn't know He talked today.

As we prayed together, God assured us of His love and His everlasting knowledge. He knew Byron's future and asked if we did or would be responsible for it. A real belief and reliance in God's words sprang up in us and we were able to give Byron into the hands of this loving God. At that moment, he died.

One glance at the doctor's face and we knew before he spoke "death". I had been in the hospital with an extremely rapid heart beat. Now I could hardly see and my heart had gone mad - beating

wildly. As I stood, God acted. Something very wonderful began at the top of my head, eyes were suddenly clear, heart suddenly regular. I was so calm I was startled. Peace had come over me so that I could hardly bear it. I didn't understand "peace that passes understanding" (Phil. 4:7). Now I knew this peace and understood Jesus more.

People came to console us. All we could do was tell them about this Jesus we had just experienced and all He had done for us. We had no need for the pills that were offered. We had just met the God of power and were sure we could rely on Him for all things. God had become greater than our loss and fears. He is real, He is alive, He has power, He loves us.

We saw visions, had dreams and interpretations of dreams, and had words of knowledge and words of wisdom. We didn't know where these things came from. In John 16:13 we found the answer. Later on we met people who could explain the Baptism of the Holy Spirit. We received this Baptism, a prayer language, a new joy in reading the Bible and understanding. Isaiah 16:14 is a promise which God has richly kept.

Once it seemed that Byron visited me - whether in a dream or vision I'm not sure. I asked about his death; he said it was terribly cold but now everything was fine. I asked if he had seen Jesus; he said Jesus was nearly always with the children but was not there - and then Byron left.

God came to Marie in a terrible dream that showed Byron coming out of the casket, sitting in a wheel chair and talking out of the side of his mouth. God gave me the interpretation. If we had not let God's perfect will be done, Byron would have been a living vegetable. We would have regretted praying for him to live.

God did many kindnesses for us to show that He was alive and loved us. Before we knew about raising our hands and praising God, He held our hands and walked with us. God spoke audibly to Earline several times. Byron had only been dead a short time when God told us that we must share what He had done for us with others. God told us when Byron accepted Christ and that Proverbs 20:11 changed him from death to life.

Jesus Christ was Savior but not Lord and Master for 20 years. We dedicated ourselves totally to God in 1973 and things began to happen. We had never tithed. We started tithing 10% after deductions and God cut my salary to 10 times the tithe. After we searched the Bible and found out that we owe God a tenth of gross income, then God found me another job. He had cut my salary \$2,000 a year but he gave back \$5,000 a year after my heart was right.

God has given our family divine health for the past seven years. The first major miracle was to heal Earline's back. She had been losing calcium for five years and was becoming a cripple. In addition to healing her back, God lengthened her leg. Then God healed Earline of her allergies. She went to a world renowned doctor, Dr. Browning, who found that she had 175 allergies and he said that she could never be cured. One night when she was about to take her shot, God spoke and said she didn't need her shots. She has not taken a shot since and is completely healed. When I saw God heal Earline, I decided by faith to stop taking my shots; God faithfully healed me from my allergies. Marie has been healed of many minor ailments by prayer such as a broken tail bone and ear ache. We could spend many days telling about people that we have seen God heal.

One Sunday afternoon, Marie decided to get her horse, King Fox, and go riding. When we got back to the stables, Marie had fallen off King Fox and broken her arm. This shocked Earline and I but we had the presence of the Holy Spirit so we prayed for Marie.

We didn't know whether to take her to the hospital or to the doctor or to depend upon God for healing. As we rode back home, the Lord quickened Psalm 37:23 to my mind, "The steps of a good man are ordered by the Lord". I asked God to order our steps.

Marie sat in the car, she could feel the dislocated broken bones. We called our family doctor, Dr. Lee. He was out and his backup was out too.

I went to my study to get the anointing oil. As I came out, Earline said, "Go get your oil and pray for Marie". God had given us a "Word of Wisdom" (I Corinthians 12:8). We were familiar with James 5:14 and 15 about anointing with oil and praying the prayer of faith. I then anointed Marie's forehead, held her hand of the broken arm, and we prayed again. Her arm tingled and she could feel the bones moving within the arm.

We then took her to Doctor's Memorial Hospital where she was x-rayed and attended by Dr. Kilroy, a bone specialist who showed us the x-ray. We could see a complete break through the shoulder socket; the bone was perfectly set. He said that it was unusual to see that type of break and not have to set the bone.

Earline and Marie prayed that she would be completely healed in three weeks. Dr. Kilroy took an x-ray to prove she was not healed. PRAISE THE LORD, she was healed, the cast was taken off, and she rode King Fox three weeks after the arm was broken! Any doctor will tell you that it takes six to eight weeks to heal an ordinary break and longer for complicated breaks.

Jeremiah 32:27 says, "Behold I am the Lord, the God of all flesh; is there anything too hard for Me?" God is only limited by our faith. Since then, I have learned of three other cases where God set the bones. To God be the glory, honor and praise for everything that was done.

We were baptized in the Holy Spirit at the Full Gospel Business Men's Fellowship International meeting in Baton Rouge. We have received the fruit of the Spirit: love, joy, peace, longsuffering, gentleness, goodness, faith, meekness and temperance. Spiritually, God has filled our cups to overflowing with His love and grace. Materially, God has met all of our needs out of His riches in Glory through Christ Jesus.

The first year after the Baptism we went to as many meetings as we could attend to learn and be blessed. Then God began to deal with us about helping others. Now, we minister to whoever God puts in our path. We pray for the sick and those needing deliverance. We have seen the sick healed and God grow out arms and legs as much as 2". We have seen demons cast out and the dead raised (Matthew 10:78).

4. EARLINE'S TESTIMONY ABOUT BYRON'S DEATH

There are days you never forget. Some are joyful, happy, fun days and others are terrifying, horrible days. May 22, 1973 was one of those terrifying days.

It started off as a lovely day. Spring in Minnesota is a beautiful, delicate time of year. It begins in lovely pastels and flows into stronger hues. This day was so lovely in its beginning. The children are off to school. I spend some time reading my Bible and praying for the members of my family. Then it's time for the housework. I've been busy all day and in a hurry to finish so that I'm free by the time the children come home from school.

Here they are at the door eager to get in and tell all about the day's events. Byron hits the back steps on the run with the usual "Hi Mom!" Marie is not far behind. They have some snacks, change clothes, and run out to play.

Our pastor's wife and children, and a neighbor come by. I make tea for the adults and the children go off to play. Byron comes in, hugs me where I sit, tells me, "You're a good Mom," and sneaks a cookie out of my saucer. Tells me as he rushes out the door that, "Someday I'm going to climb to the top of a tree". He's gone but I hear me saying, "Don't climb the tree at the top of the hill". He doesn't hear.

The talk among adults begins again, pastor's wife leaves, and neighbor stays. The door slams and the pastor's son says, "Byron fell out of the tree". I rush up the hill to where he lays. One look and I know there is no hope except in God. We begin artificial respiration but there's no response. I hurry to call the rescue unit. They are here in no time. The route to the hospital is cleared; we're there in a matter of minutes. All the way Marie and I pray begging God to help him, to heal him.

Now he's in the emergency room; they are trying so hard to help him. We're in the waiting room praying; praying as we have never prayed before. They've called Gene; I'm praying for him. His children are the light and joy of his life, and now only God can restore his son. Oh God, please help him!

During this wait, I hear myself thinking, "Where in God's Word can I find help?" By a miracle He has given this child, how can He let him die? How can I let him die? I hear my voice asking God, "How can You say You love him and us if You will not hear and heal?" And God said, "I love him more than you do". I tell God I don't understand it. I reason with Him that Jesus didn't have children here so how can He understand? All He says is, "I love you, Gene and Marie more than you do. I know the present, past and future of all things". Not once did I feel He did not love me or them but I truly could not understand.

Gene is here now; a moment I've desired and dreaded. He is told everything; I tell him what God has said. We still cannot say "Lord we trust You, have Your way here".

As in a distance, I hear myself tell the Devil to remove death from this child; that in Jesus' name he cannot have him. And Byron lives on in a coma.

As time passes, God's love and assurance penetrates us; at least we are able to say, "He is Yours". At this moment God removed his spirit. We never had been able to dedicate our children to God. Somehow we were afraid of God. He had not become a God of love and power to us but He is becoming so now.

Now I am letting all my fear out to God. I tell Him, "If this child dies, Twill kill myself, Gene and Marie because I know with certainty that I cannot help it". Even knowing what the Bible says about suicide and murder, I know I cannot help myself.

Byron had never been down the church aisle nor had he joined the church. When he was a baby, he was loving and a joy to behold. All of his life he excelled in all things: school, sports, etc. Instead of growing away from his family, he seemed to grow closer.

In the year before his death, he was happiest when we did things as a family. At night he would study or pretend to until Gene finished his work in the study and came down to the den. He had a favorite chair. He would get up and walk around the room and his dad would sit in Byron's favorite chair. Byron jumps in his dad's lap and sits there during the news. He's 12 years old and we're wondering when he will start to rebel.

I'm remembering how Byron, Marie and Gene play together, and now one will not be present anymore. The pain is so great that I tell God, "If Byron does not make it into Heaven, I don't want any part of Your Heaven". I tell Him that He must do something for me so I will know where Byron is and that God himself really exists and has a personal love for each of us because if He does not I don't need Him or want Him.

For 2 years before Byron's death, I had begun to feel there must be more to being a Christian than I saw in myself or in any other Christian I ever knew. If there was no more than what I had and had seen in others, it was not enough.

One Sunday I issued God an ultimatum; He had three Sundays to do something to prove His existence. Now I couldn't see that He performed at all that first week nor the second week. At last the third week came and I was truly expecting something to happen. I didn't know what but something—nothing happened. I quit church that day spiritually.

Friends had started a Bible study group. They were going to skip around and study different books of the Bible. I told them, "No, I'd quit". Their shocked faces amazed and amused me. They didn't seem to have any more of God in their lives than I did. I retorted that, "If I ever read again in that Book, I'll start with Genesis, and go all the way through the Book. If I find no more than I have before, I'll burn the Book and think of it no more".

Well, they started in Genesis and found some very interesting things. Like that group in the desert that was at least as big a group as all the people in Houston (where we lived at that time) plus all the surrounding area. Now Houston had 2 million people there.

That set me off. I had just been hearing how much water we used in Houston including food, clothing, etc. I was in amazement at how God cared for the people. I got my Bible and I read, "Did your clothes get threadbare or your shoes wear out?" I then am truly amazed because I do already know about the manna and quail. Well, I didn't stop going to church but I did begin to look at the Bible differently. I learned a lot about the Bible and believed in God more.

But here I am living by Baptist standards and by then my child may be on his way to Hell; only God knows and I must know. I asked God for a sign or I told Htm that I would die and my family also.

The doctor comes in now. One look at his face and I know his words will be "death". As I try to get up, I realize my heart is beating so hard I cannot see. As I stand up and grab for his jacket to hold on to, something begins to happen. I can see and besides there is a sweet, sweet peace coming over my head. It's down to my shoulders and now my heart instantly begins to beat properly. The sweet peace continues until I am strengthened even to my feet.

At the moment the doctor says he is gone, that sweet peace begins to flow down over me assurance un-shakable that comes from God. Byron is with Him, God exists, Hallelujah! He loves us, will strengthen us, will be with us, and preserve us. No one has ever been able to shake this answer in my mind or spirit.

As we go in to tell Byron good-bye, our hearts realize that he is already with God—what can I say to his body? I love him so much I cannot cry. I want to scream it cannot be so. I want to grab him up and run away where no one can take him from me, but that sweet, sweet peace comes. I cannot shake it—I want to—I don't want to. We are told we must leave. It is like ripping us into shreds but we know we must go.

There are things we must take care of. As the problems appear, we pray that God shows us what to do. Where do we bury Byron? Our home then was in Minnesota but we didn't believe we would stay there long. We could not bear to leave him there. God gives me a vision of a place I had not seen since I was about five years old; didn't know where it is or even if it exists. Mother tells me it is where my grandparents on my dad's side are buried. It's a family plot in Tennessee. As questions come up, God gives the answers.

As we are going through the church services, I am numb. I can only feel pain and that sweet, sweet peace. All the children from his school come to the funeral. Gene has asked the pastor to tell the children of God's love and Jesus' provision for salvation. God anoints the pastor and it is a truly inspired service. It is over; I still am numb and in great pain but that sweet peace refuses to leave.

We fly to Tennessee to complete the service of burial; now it's over. Still I cannot sleep; I pray and wait. I cannot see how I can go on living. I'm always asking God just to give me strength in body, soul and spirit for the next job and after that the next.

I am very pained because we had planned for Byron to have a jet ride; now he is but he cannot see or enjoy it. The pain is too great to cry—only moans come out. Marie reminds me that his spirit has already flown higher than jets.

I don't want to go home to Minneapolis but I know I must. I'm the type that if I run from pain or unpleasantness, I will continue running. This is why I have to guard against anything which gives artificial help like drink, drugs, people, etc.

We drive to Atlanta to the airport. Atlanta has over one hundred tornadoes that day—some big, some small. The plane sits on the ground for hours. At takeoff it labors and shakes until we are beginning to wonder if it will make it. I'm thinking that maybe God will answer my prayer and help us to get to Heaven together: all three of us right now. So I don't pray for the plane or even the other people because my pain is too great.

Later on I ask God to reveal to me when and how Byron was saved. He flashed an incident across my memory. Byron had read Proverbs 20:11 one day in Sunday school. The lesson was not interesting so he read on in his Bible. On arriving home (then I'm suffering from allergy) he was glowing and he told me this verse. From then on his life was changed.

I am sharing these events in my life with you so that you may know of the love of God for you personally. He has asked all saved people to tell others of this great love which welcomes all people regardless of condition to the Savior who loved us so much that He died on the cross to redeem us to Himself.

In a few nights I'm praying and asking God if I might see Byron in a dream or vision if it wasn't against His rules. As I was sleeping this night I heard a loud sound like a knife falling on concrete. I think I'm awake; even now I'm not sure. I feel this presence at the head of my bed. I cry out, "what are you?" Byron says, "It's me, Mom". I immediately asked Him, "How is everything with you?" He says, "It's fine, so very fine". Then I asked him if Jesus is there. This had been an important question on my mind and only Jesus could answer it. He said, "Jesus is not here just now but is here most of the time". I asked, "How was death?" He said, "It was so cold and terrible when the accident happened", but hastened with much joy to add that "everything is wonderful and fine now".

A few days later I am so close to the brink of despair or insanity. I asked God why He let this happen to us. I know a family with several children they do not want. The children are pitiful in every way. "God, why didn't You take one of them?" He only answered, "I began to prepare your family for this time 2 years ago. I drew you back, Gene back, and Marie was saved. I love and prepare My children for all things." But why he died, God did not say.

We knew nothing of the Gifts of the Holy Spirit, yet they were operating in our lives then. I had dreams, Marie had a vision, and Gene had the interpretation.

There were many times I would reach points of no return knowing that easing into insanity was next and that was welcome. I'd just scream "Jesus" until it became a whisper, and peace and strength would return. There is more power in that name than any man has yet understood.

It is now four years later. We have found out much more about the God of love and power. About 1 to 2 years after Byron's death, we were still earnestly seeking God. We had discovered that God heals and baptizes in the Holy Spirit. Now we know He loves us, cares for us, and protects us.

I received a healing in my back in 1975. Later on in that year God told me that I need not take any more allergy shots. I had 175 severe allergy problems and had been treated over five years by doctors. I didn't take any more shots. Now in 1986 I am still healed-Praise The Lord!

5. DEDICATION OF CHILDREN HENRY NATHAN LEVY, IV BY HENRY NATHAN LEVY, III AND IVA MARIE MOODY LEVY

Note: This lesson may be used by parents to dedicate their children to the Lord. You only have to replace the names of my family with the names of your family and speak from your heart.

- 1. Prayer: Nathan would you start the dedication with prayer?
- 2. Story of Samuel: 1 Samuel Hannah gave Samuel to the Lord. Nathan and Marie, are you willing to give Nat to the Lord and let God choose his path in life?
- 3. Story of Jesus: Luke 2:21-52 the parents dedicate Jesus to the Lord. Nathan and Marie, are you willing to dedicate Nat to the Lord according to the Holy Bible?
- 4. God / Parents / Child Relationship: It is most important to establish the right perspective between the parties to this solemn covenant: God and the parents. The child is being dedicated to the Lord with the parents' desire and consent. The parents are vowing to raise the child in the Lord which is even more important than dedicating the child to the Lord. Almighty God will bless this family according to how they keep their vows and follow the Word of God.
- 5. Comments by the Grandparents: Gene: I never thought that I would have a grandchild. Nat is a real blessing to me. My prayer for Nathan and Marie is that they would follow the Lord and all of the precepts of the Bible. They have an opportunity to raise an unusual child by following what they know about the Bible. I love Nathan, Marie and Nat. Earline would you comment likewise? Henry and Patricia Levy, will you comment about Nathan, Marie and Nat?
- 6. Comments and Prayers by Nathan and Marie: Nathan and Marie would you tell the congregation what is in your heart?
- 7. Vows by Parents: Numbers 30:1-2 & 6-16 Nathan, do you allow Marie to make these vows? Ecclesiastes 5:4-6 Nathan, do you understand the seriousness of making a vow? Do you intend to keep these vows?
- 8. Presentation of Henry Nathan Levy, IV: Luke 2:22,23,28,38 & 40 Henry Nathan Levy, III and Iva Marie Moody Levy, place your arms around each other and the baby. Repeat after me: I vow to raise this child according to the Holy Word of God. "I do hereby dedicate Henry Nathan Levy, IV to the Lord Jesus Christ to do with according to His Perfect Plan Of Life. I praise and thank God for this child. I pray that the child will be strong in spirit, filled with wisdom and grace, and that he will have favor with God and man. I ask these desires of my heart in the Name of The Lord Jesus Christ, my Lord, my Master and my Savior, Amen.

Of Life. I praise and thank God for this child. I pray that the child will be strong in spirit, filled with wisdom and grace, and that he will have favor with God and man. I ask these desires of my heart in the Name of The Lord Jesus Christ, my Lord, my Master and my Savior, Amen.

6. PERFECTING LOVE PREFACE

I began this study of love quite some time ago. After the first deliverance in 1975, I became aware of my lack of any kind of love that did not have a large tinge of selfishness in it. As I would read and reread I Cor. 1.3, I tried desperately to understand what God could possibly mean by the things Paul was saying by the Spirit.

I have found a very important reason to grow up in love until we reach agape love. Do you know why there is so very little discernment in the church? Let's look at Phil. 1:8-11, For God is my witness how I long for and pursue you all with love, in the tender mercy of Christ Jesus (Himself)! And this I pray: That your love may abound yet more and more and extend to its fullest development in knowledge and in all keen insight (that your love may display itself in greater depth of acquaintance and more comprehensive discernment). So that you may surely learn to sense what is vital, and approve and prize what is excellent and of real value (recognizing the highest and the best, and distinguishing the moral differences), and that you may be untainted and pure and unerring and blameless (so that with hearts sincere and certain and unsullied, you may approach) the day of Christ (not stumbling nor causing others to stumble). May you abound in and be filled with the fruits of righteousness (of right standing with God and right doing) which come through Jesus Christ (the Anointed One), to the honor and praise of God (that His glory may be manifested and recognized).

Discernment is an important area that is missing from most of the church. I have witnessed many church failures and many broken lives because the pastors could not discern the evil spirits in a man they brought into the church and loosed on the congregation. Even if some one in the church did discern the spirits of the man and warn the pastor, that person would by told about their critical spirit and told not to criticize God's anointed man. Because of the types of love shown in the home, church and community today, we have many people both young and old who do not seem to be able to distinguish moral values.

GENERAL

Love is one of those words we use often and know very little about.. In the world we say, "I love french fries, I love you to death (that's a strange saying), I love him or her for how they make me feel or how they treat me". We are going to study a much greater meaning of love, which will include all of these. We would probably rather not have to examine ourselves and our motives this much, but we should.

How about our flippant phrase, T love Jesus so much to die for Him"? Do you really? I don't see you looking for the martyr line. I became aware of my flippant attitude concerning this statement when I began to be persecuted over having received deliverance. I began to think that I had maybe lied to myself, others and God. I did not feel very happy and glad to be persecuted, in fact it hurt a great deal. I decided that if I did not love God enough to pay no attention to persecution, I probably would lie or do something to try and not die for Jesus.

Love with all its various meanings is one of the most often repeated words in the Bible. The Bible has three major divisions of love. They are phileo, agapeo, and agape. These three divisions overlap in some ways and stand distinctly separate in others.

G5368 phileo, fil-eh'-o; from 5384; to be a friend to (fond of an individual or an object), i.e. have affection for (denoting personal attachment, as a matter of sentiment or feeling; while G25 is wider, embracing especially the judgment and the deliberate assent of the will as a matter of principal, duty and propriety; the two thus stand related very much as 2309 and 1014, or as 2372 and 3563 respectively; the former being chiefly of the heart and the latter of the head); spec, to kiss (as a mark of tenderness): - kiss, love.

Here are some verses to study on phileo:

G5384 philos, fee'-los; prop, dear, i.e. a friend; act

Matt. 6:5	love to be seen praying (admiration of men and pride)
Matt. 23:6	love the uppermost rooms, chief seats (admiration of men, pride)
Luke 20:46	scribes love long robes, love greetings (for admiration of men)
John 15:19	the world loves its own (have accepted rule of men)
John 21:15	Do you love me ' (for the benefits I give and admiration of others)
John 21:16-17	same as above (proof of love for Jesus is feeding His sheep)
1 Cor. 16:22	those who do not love Jesus are accursed
Titus 3:15	greet those who love me in faith
Rev. 3:19	as many as the Lord loves He rebukes and chastens fond, i.e. friendly (still
	as a noun, an associate, neighbor, etc.): - friend.

It would seem that in this stage of our growth toward Godly love, we are predominately interested in ourselves (selfish), getting others to accept us (rejection and feelings of inferiority) and the benefits (greed) we get from our decisions. This is the kind of love we have when we are first born, the world revolves around us and our needs, and that is all we are interested in. It's like when we say, "I love apple pie", or "I'd love to be president", or "I'd love it if everyone liked me."

If we are Christians, we might feel like we would like to have a world-wide ministry so that we can help people (really it is often a way to try to satisfy rejection or pride). We want people to admire, approve and accept us (worship from men). There actually is nothing really wrong with liking apple pie, having high goals, or wanting people to like us, or having a world wide ministry. The problem comes in when we do these things not in obedience to God but for admiration of men or if we are trying to show we are the best.

I feel that in John 21:15-17, Jesus, knowing Simon Peter so well and knowing the way Peter had reacted to the things that had just happened, is possibly leading him through these three main areas of love. Peter, like us, needed to really look into his motivations for service to Jesus and his expectations in regard to Jesus Christ.

We need to consider our walk with Him. He says that if we put our hand to the plow and look back to the things we left behind, we will be unfit for the Kingdom of God, Luke 9:62. If a person keeps looking back longingly to the things he left behind when he became a Christian, he will always find an excuse to go back to them. This* longing will be an invitation to demon attack. Peter had quickly gone back to fishing; he was hot tempered and a braggart. He did not know himself nor his motivations. He really had not evaluated the worth of Jesus nor the value of

his relationship to Him. He is still thinking of Peter only. He is not yet mature in his ability to love.

Jesus' desire for Peter was to teach others about the love Jesus had given him: to love with an unselfish love those who would try and fail and to know from experience how to get up and go at it again and again. We can see in verse 22 that Peter has a way to go because he asks about John's future. By the way Jesus answers him, we know Peter was maybe a little jealous of John, competing with John or insecure in his own relation to Jesus. Peter will not be of much use to the Kingdom of God if he does not come to understand what is in him and deal with those things in a scriptural manner. You see, we are supposed to have died to our selfish life when we accepted Jesus Christ as our Savior. Dead men are not jealous, competing or fearful, etc.

G25 agapao, ag-ap-ah'-o; perh. from agan (much) or comp. H5689 to love sensually, dote, lover; to love in a moral sense: beloved, loved, love. Comp. H5368 which corresponds to H5367 meaning to entrap (with a noose) lit. or fig.; - catch, lay a snare.

This level of love is of better quality than phileo. It covers a wider range from its lower level to its higher. It can be seen that the Christian is moving from a love that is purely selfish and self-serving to a little more generous love.

Studying these and other related scriptures will give a better understanding of this level of love:

Matt 5:43-46; 6:24Rom 8:28; 13:8-9Mark 12:331 Cor 2:9Luke 6:27, 32, 35; 10:27;2 Cor 12:1511:43Eph 5:25, 28, 33; 6:24John 8:42; 10:17; 13:34;Col 3:1914:15, 21, 23, 31; 15:12, 171 Thes 4:92 Tim 4:8

James 1:12; 2:5,8 1 Pet 1:8, 22; 2:17; 3:10 1 John 2:15; 3:11, 14, 18, 23; 4:7, 11, 19-21; 5:2 2 John 1, 5 3 John 1

Here is just a sampling of these verses. Mat. 22:37, 39 Jesus said unto him, You shall love the Lord your God with all your heart, and with all your soul, and with all your mind (intellect). (Deut. 6:5) And the second is like it, You shall love your neighbor as (you do) yourself. (Lev. 19:18).

Mat. 5:44 But I tell you, Love your enemies, bless them that curse you, do good to them that hate you, and pray for them which despitefully use you, and persecute you. This one like the last one is a big order for us when we first begin to try to love (Prov. 25:21,22).

John 14:21 The person who has My commandants and keeps them is the one who (really) loves Me, and whoever (really) loves Me will be loved by My Father, And I (too) will love him and will show (reveal, manifest) Myself to him - I will let Myself be clearly seen by him and make Myself real to him.

At the start of this level of love, we are beginning to give out a more unselfish love to other people. We are trying to learn to love outwardly. We are still trying to get things properly organized in our mind. As a teacher, I have had many children pass by my desk. After many years and many children, I could almost tell you without fail the nature of the family they came from. Children who have not received proper bonding with parents in a loving family relationship or who have been really rejected will take up strange, wild, and sometimes bizarre and crazy behavior to try to make themselves feel okay.

A lot of children rebel because that is the only way to get any attention, thus training himself or herself in bad or outrageous behavior. Children learn what you and they live. They do not learn what you teach, unless what you teach is the same as what you live. With what attitude do you fix the meals, clean the house, and meet regular daily problems? With what attitude does dad go off to work? Does dad express an attitude of gratitude to God for his work? How does he approach his job as teacher, disciplinarian and leader of the family? Does dad come home and show his dissatisfaction with everything and everybody? Are his first words of peace and joy, or are they harsh, uncaring and uninterested?

I was an abused child until I was around ten to twelve years old. Somehow by the mercy of God that slipped from my memory. I can remember saying this when I was going to have my first child, "I will never, never touch them when I am really, really angry." I said this over and over to myself. If I had been alert, I should have caught a clue that something was wrong but I didn't. I was not to find out about the abuse until I was fifty years old. It did affect me, my life and my family's life.

I made a commitment to them that they should know that I really enjoyed and wanted them. If we do not give our children a sense of belonging to us and that we want them with us, we will help turn them to drugs, sex perversions, cults, occult, to tremendous and unnatural attempts to feel a sense of belonging, to get power, attention and money. Then we turn on them. If a person doesn't have a feeling of belonging, many times they will find it difficult to feel that they belong to God or that He could love them. If we or our children have been manipulated by conditional love, we will feel that God will only love us if we are perfect.

G26 agape, ag-ah'-pay; from 25; love, i.e. affection or benevolence; spec, (plur.) a love feast: - (feast of) charity, charitably, dear, love.

John 15:13 No one has greater - no one has shown greater affection - than to lay down (give up) his own life for his friends. This verse shows human action motivated by agape love. It does not require you to lay down your life carelessly. It might require you to show love, compassion and understanding in the face of rejection.

Rom. 5:8 But God shows and clearly proves His (own) love for us by the fact that while we were still sinners Christ, the Messiah, the Anointed One, died for us.

Luke 11:42 But woe to you, Pharisees! for you tithe mint and rue and every (little) herb, and disregard and neglect justice and the love of God. These you ought to have done without leaving the others undone. (Lev. 27:30; Mic. 6:8) We seem to place too much emphasis on trivial things and not enough on the most important things like love, mercy and justice.

Rom. 13:10 Love does no wrong to one's neighbor - it never hurts anybody. Therefore love meets all the requirements and is the fulfilling of the Law.

Gal. 5:22-23 But the fruit of the (Holy) Spirit, (the work which His presence within accomplishes) is love, joy (gladness), peace, patience (an even temper, forbearance), kindness, goodness (benevolence), faithfulness; (Meekness, humility) gentleness, self-control (self-restraint, continence). Against such things there is no law (that can bring a charge). Love mentioned here is agape. I wonder if any of us would be judged a follower of Jesus if this verse alone were applied to us. This verse will clearly show us where we stand and where and how we need to grow.

See these verses for agape love:

Matt. 24:12 Luke 11:42 John 5:42; 15:9,10,13; 17:26 Rom. 5:5,8; 8:35,39;12:9;13:10; 15:30 1 Cor. 4:21; 16:24 2 Cor. 2:4,8; 5:14;	2 Cor. 13:11,14 Gal. 5:6,13,22 Eph. 1:4,15; 2:4; 3:17,19; 4:2,15,16; 5:2; 6:23 Phil. 1:9,17; 2:1,2 Col. 1:4,8; 2:2 1Thes. 1:3, 3:12; 5:8,13	1 Tim.l:14;6:ll 2 Tim 1:7,13 Philm. 5,7 Heb.6:10;10:24 1 Jn. 2:5,15; 3:1,16,17;4:7-10 12,16-18; 5:3 2 Jn. 3,6 Jude 2, 21
6:6; 8:7,8,24;	2 Thes. 2:10; 3:5	Rev. 2:4

Children learn about love in every day experiences. They see your attitude as you do your work, care for them and teach them. Parents give the first and most lasting pictures of love. Lack of experiencing proper and enduring love in the home will leave children with a need to search for love. This need will help make them a prey to phony love, and opens them to great suffering as they try to feel the love they have never had. These children will be prey for cults, both Christian and non-Christian. Drugs, sex, power and the occult will have an extremely strong attraction for them.

The greatest hindrance to giving and receiving love is rejection followed by bitterness and rebellion. Rejection is first experienced in the family situation. For most of us, rejection comes so early in life that we have no idea how to handle it. Rejection cuts us off from other people and from God. People usually relate to other people the way they related to their parents, especially the way they related to their father.

When we think people reject us, we have a hard time feeling close to them. If you have a hard time feeling close to God, you need to examine yourself to see if you have dealt with the rejection in your life. I feel rejection is the Devil's number-one trump card which he plays on every-one. He used it on Jesus Christ from birth to death. He will use it on you too. You will not escape. Even if you know your parents love you, he will come and pick some action of theirs and tell you lies about their love for you. Using a child's limited knowledge and understanding, he will make suggestions that if they loved you they would do what you wanted them to do. He'll suggest they love another child more than you.

Bitterness is the most common reaction to rejection. It includes such things as feeling hurt, resentment, hatred, retaliation, etc. After these have a good hold in your life, rebellion is the next step. When we get into rebellion, we do not want to be entreated, change our mind or accept love.

Study the characters in the Old Testament. You can watch rejection go swiftly into bitterness and then rebellion. Then the door is wide open for demon invasion. See Absalom for wrong handling of rejection and Joseph for right handling of it. Absalom's rejection resulted in death. Joseph's resulted in life for himself, those who rejected him and a whole nation.

I would like to share some things I have had to learn and do to grow in love. I Cor. 13 is a portion of scripture we know from memory but do not know from the heart. I had known them but could never see how I could ever do them. I never grew much in them until after I confronted rejection, cast him out and learned to live without him. I have often considered my lack of growth in love and repented. I have had to forgive myself for being so lazy and careless. I would read this portion and comment to God, "This is absolutely, totally impossible." Rejection fought to keep me from understanding.

I would keep score of those who offended me and I saw to it that I got even, sometimes more than even. I didn't know that my thoughts were demon sent. I would plot with them to get even with this person publicly. Just as we plotted, it would come to pass. This is the state of love in my life when I became aware that I Cor. 13 applied to me. Up to then I figured it only applied to someone else. At best, my ability to love was below the lowest level, and how could God require me to do these things? I would read these verses and work on myself. Progress seemed so painfully slow but one day I noticed there were changes in me. I saw a little growth; I was beginning to grow up a little in love. I might add that learning to forgive freely from your heart will help make room for love to flourish. How do you learn to love, forgive, repent? You begin to do it. We learn both good and bad habits by practice. So start practicing today.

I Corinthians Chapter 13 - 1. If I (can) speak in the tongues of men and of angels, but have not love (that reasoning, intentional, spiritual devotion such as inspired by God's love for and in us), I am only a noisy or a clanging cymbal.

If we ever grow in love, we will have to use our reasoning power which God gave us. Some people (usually those who want to weasel out of the hard work of study, learning, discipline, and obedience) say bypass the mind. It seems God would rather we use it in a disciplined manner for He will not bypass it. He has not asked for a company of robots but for followers, who by disciplined mind, follow and obey because they have chosen to do so. I often felt like a noisy, clanging cymbal going around making a lot of noise accomplishing no real growth.

It's not a matter of can you speak in tongues, interpret tongues or be very impressive in open meetings. It's what you do when you are not speaking in tongues, what you think and plan on doing when you are all alone in the dark, and you know nobody is looking or present (we forget God is looking). Are you, like me, flirting around with retaliation? Are you thinking, "Lord bless those who hurt me, forgive them Lord, give them all the Grace and Mercy they need"? I want to be forgiven, so I freely forgive (Matt. 6:12-15; 18:35). I have learned to obey another verse that tells me to pray for those who despitefully use me. Forgive, bless them and curse not.

2. And though I have the gift of prophecy, and understand all mysteries and all knowledge, and though I have all faith so that I could remove mountains, but have not charity, I am nothing. 1 Cor 13:2

I have never moved any physical mountains. I know that my prayers and action, added together with others, have moved spiritual forces that have been arrayed against us and others. As for prophetic powers, I have never to my knowledge been used in that way. I do not understand tongues when they are given in the congregation, yet I can recognize if it is not right even before it is interpreted. I do not understand why that is. I do understand more of the truth of God than I did years ago, yet I feel lacking in a thorough knowledge of all mysteries. When we say we have great knowledge of secret truths and mysteries and we don't exercise love, mercy and justice we just fool ourselves.

3. Even if I dole out all that I have (to the poor in providing) food, and if I surrender my body to be burned (or in order that I may glory), but have not love (God's love in me), I gain nothing.

After Gene, Marie and I lost Byron and returned to Baton Rouge, Gene would dole out everything we had to anybody who came and stood in the pulpit. We used to have fighting matches right in the congregation.

One time a man came through giving a very pitiful plea. When I saw Gene going for his checkbook, I got almost violent. He told me to be quiet and behave myself because people were looking at me. I was angry because I didn't like that man. I felt he was manipulating the congregation, that he was a complete phony. I repented until I was sick of repenting but I never could shake the feeling he was a phony (turned out he was). I thought I was on my way to Hell because I was thinking these things about one of God's anointed men. I still believe we had better be very careful about what we say about any Christian. I was to learn that in a small way I had begun to discern spirits.

At that time, Gene thought that by giving away all we earned, he could make up to God for all the times he had neglected his duty to God in the past. I was also guilty; I was into giving things away. We were both moved by demon spirits of guilt and failure. We didn't feel quite up to par; we didn't realize that God had already forgiven us for our failures.

Here in verse 4, He begins to deal with me as a wife and mother. Before, He had dealt with things outside the home, but now He narrows His focus. He gets right down to where I am.

4. Love endures long and is patient and kind; love never is envious nor boils over with jealousy; is not boastful or vainglorious, does not display itself haughtily.

Now we are really getting into my area. I am of German, English, French, and American Indian background. If you know anything about these nationalities, you know that patience and enduring long is not one of their nicer qualities. I could get extremely violent inside. If it did come outside, my whole family would scatter. Patience and kindness were not virtues of mine. I had grown up in a family of five brothers. To hold my own with them, I developed a sharp tongue. I could come back at them very quickly with my tongue. I actually was more kind with actions than with my tongue. I became aware that I would give an account of every idle word.

Love never is envious. After I married Gene, he bought me some of the finest homes in some of the nicest sections of the best southern cities and furnished them well. I didn't realize I had come to love these things, that I felt better about myself because of things.

When we changed our life-style, I found I was envying all of my friends who lived where I had and still had the big houses (boiling over with jealousy). I didn't want them to come into my neighborhood to see me. Envy grows very rapidly; before long I would say again and again how much I hated the house. I began to roam all over town going to ladies' Christian meetings because I didn't want to be in the house. The meetings didn't do me any good. After deliverance I saw that In many cases they were places where Jezebels went to try to impress each other and get out of their duties. I no longer desired to attend; it became more important to me for me to obey God in completing my God given duties.

Having suffered a lot of rejection, I was boastful and vain. I would not wear anything bought from the store. I didn't want to see anyone else wear what I wore. I became a fine seamstress designing and making my own clothes. I justified my attitude by saying it saved a lot of money. Here we see that doing these things was not wrong, but the motives were wrong.

I was haughty. I came from the mountains of Tennessee and my parents were probably lowermiddle class. When I got into a "better class" of people, I no longer wanted to be with the ones I grew up with. If you came to church "all fixed-up just right", drove a car at least as good as mine, I'd have something to do with you. Otherwise I didn't have time for you. Does not display itself haughtily. I pleaded guilty. Men have these problems as much as women. You've seen them all decked out, smelling like a rose, velvet lapels and studded buttons, but their wives look and smell like a "haint" (mountain word). Fellows don't sit there saying, "O those poor little pitiful women". You can have these demons just as big as we can.

5. It is not conceited - arrogant and inflated with pride; it is not rude (unmannerly), and does not act unbecomingly. Love (God's love in us) does not insist on its own rights or its own way, for it is not self-seeking; it is not touchy or fretful or resentful; it takes no account of the evil done to it - pays no attention to suffered wrong.

I was very conceited, arrogant, inflated with pride. If you had stuck a pin in me, you'd have let out about a hundred gallons of hot air. Not only did Gene put me in fine homes, I was talented in art, and with the sewing machine and needle, I'd go to work. I "had" to decorate mine prettier than the rest on that street.

Is not rude. Now I would have said I was not rude but in the Amplified there in parentheses is a little word unmannerly. I used manners to get what I wanted. If manners didn't work, I could be very unmannerly.

Does not act unbecomingly. Guess there's no need to try to explain that considering the above.

Love (God's love in us) does not insist on its own rights or its own way. Gene[^] was not one to give in to my whims. He didn't make a very good Ahab but I was a pretty good Jezebel. There was some pretty good knocking of heads at our house as I worked quietly and manipulatively to get my way. I learned when Gene was around to do what he said and be very cooperative, but when he was no longer around, I did what I pleased. I had learned just how far to go and not get into trouble. Gene and I had word wars over my rights (how not to endear yourself to your husband). The last sixteen years have seen few of these wars.

Does not insist on its own way. I felt that my way was the best and only right way. I was to live and reap some bad results of getting my way. Sometimes I am right, but now I pray and ask God to show Gene if I am right. After I pray, I don't bother trying to get Gene to agree with me. Often I see later how bad the results would have been if we had done as I wanted. I have learned to trust God first and Gene second. God was to show me how I had allowed the Jezebel spirit to needle Gene and break his confidence. We can pollute those around us when we insist on satisfying our greed, having our rights and own way.

Is not self-seeking. I wanted everything for my family. I had excused greed and covetousness by saying it was for others. I went to great lengths to get everything for my family. If Gene had not balanced me, our children could have been ruined by age two.

It is not touchy or fretful or resentful. I had probably the best grade of all humans in each of these. If Gene or anyone rubbed me the wrong way, I could decide to give them the cold treatment and could carry it to great lengths. Touchy? Just don't touch me the wrong way. I learned it was not necessary to react to rejection. I learned to pray that God would bless the one who rejected or was unkind to me. Often I'd hear later of some problem they had faced at that very time.

I could fret over everything. If I didn't have anything of my own to fret over, I'd find something of yours and fret over that until I got you to fretting over it too.

Resentful. I kept score of all the things people did to me and could recall the incident and words twenty years later. Retaliation is the natural result of resentment.

Takes ho account of the evil done to it - pays no attention to a suffered wrong. I cannot say that I never see what is done against me, but for the majority of the times I am unaware of it. Lately someone will have to point it out to me. This is such a relief for the mind; just think of all the effort I put into keeping all those resentful accounts. I believe these two phrases, if put into practice, would probably remake and restore most marriages. My practice was to make Gene suffer if he made me suffer. Does that sound like not returning evil for evil? I learned that God is keeping score so I don't have to bother.

6. It does not rejoice at injustice and unrighteousness, but rejoices when right and truth prevail.

Romans 1:32 Though they are fully aware of God's righteous decree that those who do such things (see verses 20-31) deserve to die, they not only do them themselves but approve and applaud others who practice them. God has set up a system of perfect justice. When we rejoice over

or are a part of injustice, we are in direct opposition to God. He is also perfect in righteousness, therefore for our own good, we should agree with Him and with the Tightness of His orders.

We should rejoice when right and truth win the struggle with wrong and lies. We should pray for and help those who fall in their Christian life. Tomorrow we may need our brothers' and sisters' support in prayer and love.

7. Love bears up under anything and everything that comes, is ever ready to believe the best of every person, its hopes are fadeless under all circumstances and it endures everything (without weakening).

Right before I got the first deliverance, I was threatening divorce. I was not bearing up under anything and everything that came. While it was true I had suffered greatly because of Byron's death, I had not yet resisted sin to the shedding of blood. I was engaging in a lot of sin. However, it was nice acceptable sins like self-indulgence, etc. I didn't want to leave because I no longer loved Gene, but because he would not do everything I wanted him too. In the years to come I was to learn to bear up under a lot of real problems both in the family and in work. I learned I can do all things through Christ who strengthens me.

Is ready to believe the best of every person. This was not one of my virtues. When you are abused over and over by those who are supposed to protect you, you learn to distrust everyone until they have proved beyond every doubt that they will under no circumstance fail you. Since this is an impossible demand to make on another person, you find yourself more and more filled with distrust. It gets to the point you don't comprehend that you do not trust anyone. I remember the day I came to realize I didn't trust Gene. It was on the subconscious level.

Its hopes are fadeless under all circumstances. Back then you could dash my hopes just a little, I would fall apart at the seams and get in the dumps very easy. I never realized I should hope in God and not in worldly things. I am happy to tell you that since I have placed my hope in God and thank Him for all His goodness to me, I do not get depressed. Praise God.

It endures everything without weakening. I have learned that there is no need to cave in at the threat or presence of trouble or persecution. God has made us much stronger than we think we are. There is strength in the time of trouble and a sure foundation in God. He keeps His promises. I have learned that everything the Devil tries to do to me, God can bring a lot of good out of it. So I have purposed to just stand therefore.

8. Love never fails - never fades out or becomes obsolete or comes to an end. As for prophecy (that is, the gift of interpreting the divine will and purpose), it will be fulfilled and pass away; as for tongues, they will be destroyed and cease; as for knowledge, it will pass away (that is, it will lose its value and be superseded by truth).

My desire is to grow up in God's love. This love is not talking about the kind of love where you get what you want for yourself or your group, to look good or to impress others. If we desire to speak in tongues or to prophesy for admiration of others, we can very well get a gift of pretending or divination. Both of these operate freely in churches. Even the real God-inspired utterance

in tongues and real God-inspired prophecy will not be needed when we are in His presence. So what will endure for all time? Only God's kind of love.

13. And so faith, hope, love abide; (faith, conviction and belief respecting man's relation to God and divine things; hope, joyful and confident expectation of eternal salvation; love, true affection for God and man, growing out of God's love for and in us), these three, but the greatest of these is love. This verse needs no explanation.

Eze. 33:31 And they come to you as people come, and they sit before you as My people, (just like we do) and hear the words you say, but they will not do them; (just like us) for with their mouth they show much love, ("Hug everyone and tell them you love them." If you have to be told to do it, you probably don't mean it. How about all that show of praise to God but acting like the Devil when you think no one is looking?) but their heart goes after and is set on their (idolatrous greed for) gain. This means doing the commandments not just memorizing them. We (many Christians) are so greedy for gain that we refuse to have children. We say we can't afford them.

FORGIVENESS AND REPENTANCE

We have found that forgiveness and repentance are essentials to prepare for deliverance. Does this mean that you will have to totally forgive everybody, including yourself, everything before God will begin a work in you? Of course not, but you must be true hearted and honest. As you are made aware of unforgiveness, you must act to forgive freely from the heart (Mat. 18:18-35). Repentance must be sincere enough to bring Godly grief which will strengthen you to resolve to not enter that sinful area again.

When God presented the area of deliverance to us I did not know how to forgive and had no knowledge that I would have to do further repenting after salvation.

There are many things in our life that we fail to bring to God at the time we decide to follow Jesus. Part of the working out of our salvation with fear and trembling comes in these areas. Put simply, forgiving another does not mean you will not remember what was done to you. You will evaluate it according to what Jesus has done for you and count the offence to you as having no value at all (Mat. 18:18-35).

I have one friend in particular; we had both done things to each other that hurt. I asked forgiveness for my part in it and forgave her; and now we are very good friends. Do we remember? Yes, but we are both stronger because we have forgiven. We value each other and the understanding we have received because we put the instructions of the Bible to the test and they work!

I asked God to help me understand unforgiveness and this came to me, "Earline, look and think of all these things you have held against people as old, dead, stinky fish. You have been carrying them around with you all these years. It stinketh. Why don't you put them down, let them go and walk on without them?" I thought, "I understand that perfectly; I can do that.' So I began to forgive. The demons in their attempts to get you back into unforgiveness will bring up things long forgotten - no need to get upset or fret, be glad they gave themselves away (they are not totally smart) and forgive promptly. While I was learning this lesson, people would do me wrong, treat me unfair or lie about me. I would think of getting even and would find, Vengeance is Mine I will repay, sayeth the Lord. I'd stew and fume for a few days and work on forgiving. When I finally could forgive freely from my heart, I felt very clean and strong where I had felt very depressed and weak before I could forgive.

God will use many incidents in our lives to teach us to have greater understanding and love. Gene and I went to Louisiana Training Institute for about two and one - half years. Our plans were not to stay there longer than three meetings. We were to go and help the young people from our church become established there as missionaries or teachers. Our plans were to leave the project in the hands of those who had planned it. On the third visit which was to be our last (we thought), there were no young people to meet us when we arrived. Thinking we were late, we went back to the Diagnostic Center. No one was outside, so we went to our respective centers.

When the guard opened the door to the place I went to, in my shock I saw no other people from our church. I felt a few moments panic as they locked the door behind me and I realized I was there to stay until the door was unlocked. I had not prepared to teach, neither did I want to. Even though I had been a rebel, I had no sympathy for those who went this far. I asked to leave but the guard asked me to please stay since the boys were waiting to hear. Being desperate I sent up a frantic prayer, "O Lord, what shall I teach about? I don't understand these kind of people." I thought I heard something like this, "You might ask them about how long they planned, worked and saved their money to come to this place?" Being desperate, I asked. They poked their fingers, laughed, fell onto the floor and rolled. It must have taken the guard ten minutes or more to get them back in order. I still had no subject so I asked again what to talk about. This time I thought I heard, "Ask who made a fool of you then?" To me, this didn't sound any better than the last one, but I thought, "Why not?" This time no laughter.

I felt I should share some simple verses that had helped me. Mat. 19:19, The Bible says to love your neighbor as you love yourself; most of us do just that. By the way you have treated yourself, I know I wouldn't want to live beside you. Romans 6:16, You are here because you have yielded yourself to the wrong master.

After two and one-half years I can tell you that I had learned to love those boys. If Gene would have let me, I would have taken them all home with me. I also learned that improper love experiences had brought them there.

You must forgive yourself and learn to love yourself properly. One day I was reminded to ask God to forgive me for the things I had done to others that showed a lack of love.

The desire of my heart is to taste the things that God has made available for me. I have finally learned not to listen and then go away and forget all I have heard. I usually have a little note pad to write down the scriptures I hear and later I will study them. I will use the computer to check them all out and see if you knew what you were talking about. My desire is to learn how to love as God expects me to. I have learned to love a lot of you people because I have gotten to know you. My desire is to learn to love others without needing to know them. I haven't completed my training yet but I've come a long way from the beginning. I had to learn to receive from God. My father did not speak to me in a loving way. He issued orders most of the time. At fifteen years

old, he said something to me that made me realize he loved me. I really felt afraid to allow myself to accept that he loved me after all those years of growing up thinking no one did. Later it was to mean a great deal to me.

Having taken care of myself most of my life, I had developed a very independent spirit. Frank Hammond was teaching on deliverance and called out an independent spirit. My legs jerked violently and the back of my legs hurt for a week. I learned that God likes a independent spirit as long as it is in right relationship to Him.

When you haven't been taught the right way to love, you probably will not be able to teach love in the right way. What do you do? I began to pray that God would teach me as I read and studied the Bible how to love others in my family.

When our daughter was thirteen years old, I began to ask God to show me how to love her and relate to her. I thought I heard, "Earline, you can love her unconditionally and become her greatest rooter. Don't cut her up and spit her out, but love, teach, and lead her." The Lord promises in James 1 to give wisdom if we ask and I began to ask.

If there is anyone here who needs to learn to love in a Godly, unconditional, proper way, let's pray about it. I will lead you in a prayer but you will have to be honest with yourself and God. No one can forgive, hope, walk out your deliverance, or say no to the demons but you. In this walk with God, we have to do our part of the covenant ourselves. We give each other a lot of help, but in the end we go home to face the demons alone with God. You must forgive, you have no choice not to. Read and study Mat. 18.

Parents, get in order so that your children will see the value of God and His love for you and them. Show them how the Kingdom of God really works so that they will want to live their whole life by Godly precepts. You have to want to follow God and His ways more than you want your dinner tonight. If you don't want Him that much, you will never grow very much.

TEACHING

I taught both in public and Christian private schools. I saw that children of Christians were for the most part as rejected as those on the street. I watched and many went to the streets. Don't think that because you are a Christian, your children will automatically follow Jesus. Unless you really live what you say, you make the Christian life meaningless to them. Does this mean you must be perfect? No! It does mean you should be sincere, honest, and use Bible means to correct your actions. Children are most forgiving when you show them you are sincere. If you do not give them the love, discipline and leadership they need, they will find someone else to follow.

PRAYER

We have learned to repent and forgive in preparation for deliverance. Be honest with yourself and God: Dear Heavenly Father, I come to You now in the name of Jesus Christ to ask for Your help and guidance at this time. I want to thank You for loving me enough to die for me so that I might have Your life. I thank You for continuing to teach me to understand Your love. I thank You for forgiving me for holding unforgiveness against others, You and myself. I do now forgive these people freely from my heart, I also forgive myself in like manner. I will forgive all others as the Holy Spirit reminds me of them. I repent of using the fear of loosing my love to dominate others, to get them to do what I want them to. I repent of manipulating others. I repent of rejecting others, especially those in my family, and causing them to feel the loss of love. I repent of loving the admiration of the world and for doing crazy things to try to get love. I repent of not loving myself properly as one of Your creations. I have loved myself and others in the phileo sense and not in an unselfish and Godly way. I now let go of all resentment and bitterness which I have held against people for rejecting me. I break the curse of incest, bastard and occult on me and my family line. As I go through deliverance, help me to understand how these demons have worked me in the past and how I have used them to work on others. Help me to make amends where You tell me to. Help me to understand more about Your kind of love and help me see how to work this love into my life. In Jesus Christ's name I pray, Amen.

Cast out demons after you have forgiven and repented. It is good to begin with the list on Rejection, Bitterness and Rebellion in Basic Deliverance and Schizophrenia. See also chapters on Mind and Family. Take time to let the Holy Spirit lead you since everyone has their particular problems. You will discover demons not on the list. The list is for those commonly found associated with these problems. It is good to read scriptures on deliverance during the deliverance sessions.

Lying	Alcohol	Lonely	Destruction
Unstable	Drugs	Witchcraft	Timid
Fear	Fighting	Unfeeling	Silly
Sly	Fear of loss of love	Pouting	Loveless
Cursing	Unlovable	Violent	Jezebel
Victim	Torment	Fear of being loved	Shy
Demonic manipula-	Suicide	Guilt	Foolishness
tion	Morbid	Inferiority	Don't Care
Cunning	Coldhearted	Uncalled for laughter	Ahab
Berating	Beating	Unstable	Suspicious
			Pride

LIST OF DEMONS

SECTION 12 - WOMAN'S VIEWPOINT

CONTENTS

- 1. Our Inheritance From A Woman's Viewpoint
- 2. A Wise And Understanding Woman
- 3. Good Homemakers (Booklet)
- 4. The Woman Question
- 5. Keeping What You Have Maintaining Deliverance

1. OUR INHERITANCE FROM A WOMAN'S VIEWPOINT

GENERAL

We all have both good and bad parts to what we have inherited from our ancestors. We will dwell on the bad so that we can destroy these works.

Mankind started in Eden with bodies that could live forever, spirits that were totally alive to God, and minds capable of naming all of the animals (Gen. 1:27 through 2:25).

Mankind still has an adversary - the Devil. He is very cunning and sly. The Devil attacks the weakest things around, working his way up to the larger things within a person. His attack was on Eve not Adam (Gen. 3:1-7). Men, in general, will make up their minds and stick to their decisions. Women will often make up their minds, unmake and remake them over and over, suffering with every decision. Adam and Eve faced Satan just like we do.

Eve was tricked in much the same way and over the same things that we are tricked with today (Gen. 3:5): to be as big as God, as smart as God, pleasant food, things delightful to look at, and greed. Women are not content to be disobedient alone (Gen. 3:7); she gave the fruit to Adam to eat too.

BLESSINGS AND CURSES

We all live with the results of our actions. Blessings are the result of obeying God. Curses are the result of obeying the Devil - disobeying God.

We already had the blessings in the Garden - now begin the curses of God (Gen. 3:16-19). Pain in childbearing is not something that women suffer alone; her husband suffers emotionally at this time too. The ground is cursed because man gave heed to his wife and obeyed her against God's commandments. Women suffer as they watch the hard, back-breaking or stressful work of their husbands. And so began the power struggle that all men and women engage in.

EARLINE'S BACKGROUND

I have an Indian - English - German - French background. There are curses on each of these people: Indians worshipped demons; some English and Europeans were Druids - they worshipped Satan. In innocence, my father participated in some occult practices: wart removal and water witching. From my father came curses of Masons and Indians. Physical problems came as a result of curses on Indian worship: inactive thyroid, female disorders and heart disease.

My mother was a paranoid schizophrenic with an Indian - English background. Her emotional illness caused me to need a lot of deliverance from emotional problems.

BLACK PEOPLE

I really don't know about problems of black people like I do those of Indians - Europeans. Together, maybe we can follow the leadership of the Holy Spirit and learn to solve problems of many races of people with God's provisions.

My dearest friend is in Camaroon, Africa. She is a close observer of people. She and I discussed the women she had met and what she had observed of real fruit in the Christian women's lives. Although the majority of the people who are not Muslims claim to be Christian, there is still more fear of the witch doctor than of God.

On the surface it looks like a male dominated society, but with close observance it may not be so. Men do not own as much property as women. Each wife has to have her own hut and lot. She provides for herself and children. Men go from wife to wife and do not take any authority or responsibility for children. All men are scared of the witch doctor.

Here you can see the Ahab man. If he wants a woman other than his wife he simply leaves. The other woman is invited to the hut by his wife in order to get him to come around (I Kings 21:1-29).

Maturity means you care for your own needs and those of your dependents. We see immature and irresponsible men, both black and white, very often in Louisiana.

It has been especially hard on the black man to take his place in our society. After he was freed as a slave, there was little work for him that paid enough to support his family, but a wife could always get a job. This helps keep the applecart upset with the cart in front of the horse. Because women are hired for lower wages than men, they can almost always get a job outside of the home. After a wife has worked on an outside job, she will not be able to handle her home and children as well. If a husband does not find a job, both his wife and children will lose respect for his leadership. Then there are the curses upon the man, wife and children from his forbearers.

- 1. Children born out of wedlock cursed for ten generations (Deut. 23:2).
- 2. Making and worshipping other gods cursed for three to four generations (Ex. 20:3-6).
- 3. All occult practices cursed three to four or more generations.
- 4. All the things you can be cursed for (Deut. 27:15-26; 28:16-68; Isa. 3:16-26).

LIST OF BLESSINGS

How not to be cursed is found in Deut. 28:1-14. Obedience in the spiritual (supernatural) world is blessed in everyday (natural) life. This is a list of blessings:

In city or country; In children and animals; In food supply; In coming and going; Enemies will not defeat you; In store for the future; In all you undertake; In holiness.

AHAB- JEZEBEL

Do you have more than the usual problems in finances, housing, family, etc.? This may be the curse of improper family structure (Mai. 4:6). If someone does not stop the pattern of living in the curse, they can go from generation to generation. A mother who is a Jezebel will raise Jezebel daughters and Ahab sons. Ahab fathers will raise Ahab sons and Jezebel daughters. If sons do not see their father as respected in his office of father, they have no other example to the contrary and will follow him; likewise, the girls will probably choose a husband like their father.

When you have a Jezebel-Ahab marriage, you will have men not committed to God, home or children. These men prefer to play, pretend they are men but only deceive themselves. Likewise the women, who have to take over the financial care and sometimes total responsibility for the children, are equally deceived.

Deut. 28:47 discusses attitudes. We may sometimes feel we have a yoke of iron on our neck. Guess who put it there? God did because we do not serve Him with joyfulness. How do we serve God here? We keep ourselves unspotted from sin of any kind. We learn to obey God at home with our own parents. We take care of our daily duties (Luke 16:10-13). If we serve God with joy in all these ways, our lives are usually blessed.

WIFE AND MOTHER

If you want to break out of this pattern, you need to study all scriptures on wives:

I Samuel 25; Luke 17:32; I Cor. 5:1; 7:2-4,10-16; 11:3; Eph. 4:21-32; 5:22-28, 31 & 33; Col. 3:18-19; I Tim. 3:2, 11,12; 4:7; Titus 2:3-5; I Peter 3:1, 7.

Earnestly seek God for direction in your own family. There is a great need for all mothers to observe Proverbs 31:10-31 and to seek, as their necessary food, instructions from God.

If you have had sex with men other than your husband, you have a mental and emotional tie to them called a soul tie. How does this tie or bond work? In I Cor. 6:15-16 we become one flesh with those we have sex with. We must repent, turn away from sin, break the soul tie with each person and cast out the demons (Lev. 26:40-42). The demons in each person, desiring more sexual activity, traffic between the people reminding each of the other, trying to create desire and fanning desire into reality.

WHOLE FAMILY

We must first acknowledge our guilt and our ancestors' guilt. Humble your heart and accept punishment. Then God will remember His promises to the redeemed, heal and restore. For some of us, the sins of up to four hundred years ago are keeping us from our natural everyday provisions, physical and mental health, and most of all our spiritual health.

We can reverse curses on the sender (Ps. 109:17). We can stop the openings for curses to land on us (Prov. 26:2). We can break curses on our families (Deut. 27:15-26 and 28:15-68).

MINISTRY

Break the following ancestral curses brought about by our inheritance:

Demonic subjection or slavery to any other human. Stealing lands or property from neighbors. Crooked business deals. Failure to fight God's battles. Demon and Satan worship. Shedding innocent blood. Jezebel / Ahab. Desertion. Divorce. Incest. Bastard. Adultery. Immorality. Abuse. Lesbianism. Homosexuality. Striking Parents.

Ask God to send Godly spirits to minister to us:

Council and Might	Faithfulness	
Truth	Loving Hearted	
Kindness	Respect and obedient fear of God	
Healing for soul and body	Knowledge	

CAST OUT THE FOLLOWING DEMON SPIRITS FROM BODY AND SOUL

Fantasy	Selfishness	
Alluring eyes and walk	Troublemakers	
Rage	Retaliation	
Confusion	Cheating	
Greed	Desertion	
Demon and Satanic worship	Abandonment	
Ahab Jezebel	Divorce	
Homosexuality	Abusive or Blasphemous Language	
Abuse	Wearing of Amulets, Charms and Fetishes	
Wildness	Foul or Polluting Language	
Abortion	Unwholesome or Worthless Talk	
Covetousness	Outstretched Necks and Nosiness	
Gossipers	Uncontrolled Emotions and Deifying Self	

2. A WISE AND UNDERSTANDING WOMAN

GENERAL

The people (characters in the story) in I Sam. 25:3-42 are Nabal - foolish and wicked; Abigail - joy of the father; and David - anointed King of Israel. The following is a verse by verse explanation of this story.

SCRIPTURE

- V3. We meet Nabai, rough and evil descendant of Caleb, and Abigail, woman of good understanding and beautiful. Probably father chose Nabal for her.
- V4. David needs provisions and hears of Nabal's sheep shearing (custom to have a celebration at shearing time).
- V5. Sends envoy to request food; David humbles himself.
- V6. Salute him warmly, respectfully and peacefully.
- V7. Recount our protection over you and your flocks.
- V8. Send whatever you have.
- V9. David's men obey.
- V10-11. Nabal reviles David and refuses to send food ignoring David's protection. Nabal does not follow area custom of receiving guests and showing gratitude.
- V12. Men return empty-handed and recount their experience.

- V13. David loses his head and becomes angry enough to shed innocent blood. Rejection, bitterness and rebellion against God's decree happened very quickly. Willing to involve 400 men in his sin.
- V14. A faithful servant (even the servants knew Abigail to be wiser than Nabal) reports the incident correctly.
- V15-16. Reports David's kindness and protection.
- V17. Gave advice to Abigail. Abigail not too proud to consider advice from sen-ant; both the servant and Abigail knew the house was in grave danger because Nabal did not act according to custom.
- V18. Abigail made haste. David asked for whatever they had. She sends the best and more than was asked: 200 loaves, 2 skins of wine, 5 sheep already dressed, 5 measures parched grain, 100 clusters of raisins and 200 cakes of figs. Abigail did not have to take time to fast or pray she was on target with God and completely understood her husband. Did not consider her life. David might have attacked and not talked. Only the men's lives were in danger, not hers. Did not consider herself as separate from her husband. Had full understanding of marriage relation and responsibility. If she hated her husband she could have just waited until David killed him.
- V19-22. Husband was mean even when not drunk. Wisdom didn't tell him when he was drunk. Courageous "If you do right, and let nothing terrify you, not giving way to hysterical fears or letting anxieties unnerve you" (I Peter 3:6). Desire to appease enemy quickly (Luke 14:32). Didn't look for someone else to assume her duty. Motive was to protect and defend family and servants, not to disobey. (Husbands and wives had joint interest in their worldly possessions when used for common good not to waste or spend recklessly. Reckless use is to defraud the family.) Sounds good even for today. Aim was to prevent destruction from reaching family and household, and destroying it.
- V23. Humble and respectful approach to David -hasted off donkey (respectful custom to high-ranking people) and fell on her face. Fearless David could have killed her when she approached.
- V24. Took guilt of husband on herself. Husband and wife are one flesh. Asked permission to speak.
- V25. Apologized for husband explains type of husband he is without being bitter against him.
- V26. Reminded David very gently of the curse of shedding innocent blood.
- V27-28. Allayed David's resentment by wise and humble speech. Endeavored to bring David out of his passionate rage for revenge and reminded David of the cost of revenge.
- V29. Reminded David of his anointing to be king, his safety in God, and God's sure house for David as a reward for David's fighting God's battles. You'll have no staggering grief over getting revenge.
- V30-31. Reminds David of God's long-term plan for David. Don't waste life on a man like Nabal.
- V32. David blesses God for sending Abigail.
- V33-35. He recognizes her wisdom. He accepts her apology and gifts.
- V36. Abigail reports all to husband when he is over drunk spree.
- V37. He becomes paralyzed his heart died.
- V38. Ten days later he is dead.
- V39. Hearing of Nabal's death, David sends for Abigail to be his wife.

V40 - 42. God's reward to Abigail for her right attitudes and motives before Him.

IMPORTANT ATTITUDES AND MOTIVES WE LEARN FROM ABIGAIL

- 1. Understand God's idea of the married state.
- 2. Consider ourselves one with mate even if we do not agree with them in all things
- 3. Never let rejection, bitterness or rebellion come into you because of your circumstances.
- 4. Recognize mate's weaknesses; part of being a help mate. Defend the home and marriage from all enemies.
- 5. Let wisdom guide your actions.
- 6. Always be prayed up and ready because of the weakened condition of the family unit due to unsaved mate.
- 7. Don't look for some way out or someone else to your joy. Be humble, respectful and full of forgiveness.
- 8. Always give best to God.
- 9. Serve the husband and family out of obedience to God's commandments.
- 10. Walk humbly with your God and before mankind.

3. GOOD HOMEMAKERS

GENERAL

This lesson is not meant to encourage Jezebel and Ahab, but to help men and women work together for mutual good. It is God's plan for every one of His creatures to develop to full potential. Our aim here is to encourage communication, planning and development. After all, if the family is to show the world a picture of Christ and His Church, we all know we have a lot of work to do. On the whole, the picture Christians present to the world does not encourage them to get saved. When these duties come before God, we have begun to become Jezebelic. God is first; duties are second.

Have you ever spent much time in study about being a Godly wife and mother? I spent the first ten years of my marriage and parenthood trying to put into practice all I knew about being a good wife and mother, mostly learned from the world. Of course I had been trained in the principles of the Bible but I had received very little practical instruction on how to incorporate the teachings into my daily life. I had been called the super mom and wife, and I was out to prove it was so. I was struggling to do every thing better than you. One of my frequent thoughts was "anything you can do, I can do better" never realizing this came from trying to satisfy rejection.

One observation I have made throughout the years is that women tend to allow themselves to be led into "spiritualizing" the Bible. While it is true it is a spiritual book, it is mainly a practical book for every day life. It seems that all spiritual truths parallel natural truths. An example: as a young, Spirit-filled Christian, I witnessed some strange phenomena. One thing I saw greatly puzzled me. I saw women lock very young children outside and hold prayer meetings until late evening, neither feeding the children, allowing them into the house to use the bathroom or supervising their fights. Some of these women began to engage in homosexuality. Of these children, one is dead of bizarre circumstances, some gave birth to illegitimate children and more than one has had problems with drugs. I felt at that time and still do now that this was a case of spiritual fantasy. God says we must first be faithful in mammon (which is not only money but time, earthly duties, thoughts, priority, home and personal relationships) before He will give us spiritual duties.

SCRIPTURE

Proverbs 31:10-31 was very helpful to me as I struggled to become a more practical Christian wife and mom. I will share some of the things I learned.

10. A capable, intelligent, and virtuous woman, who is he who can find her? She is more precious than jewels, and her value is far above rubies or pearls. [Pro.12:4; 18:22; 19:14.] The verse seems to imply this type of woman is rare. This made me want to become one more than ever. I know this picture of a lovely wife is drawn from Eastern customs so I asked the Lord to help me implement its moral and spiritual meanings into my modern American life.

First, I saw that I must change my attitude about myself. If I am to become this wife, I must begin to see myself becoming her. I knew I was capable, intelligent and virtuous [maybe a little less than perfect, maybe a little tarnished]. Now I see the Bible says I am very precious. I must not think of myself as worthless anymore. Am I thinking, behaving as one who is precious? There are many corrections to be made in my attitudes, priorities and behavior. Would one who is precious give way to tormenting fears and anger or be irrational, lazy, unrealistic, greedy, etc.? Men, do you consider your wives more valuable than rubies? Wives, do you consider yourself valuable?

11. The heart of her husband trusts in her confidently and relies on and believes in her safety, so that he has no lack of honest gain or need of dishonest spoil.

A husband should never have the distraction of worrying about his wife's conduct or faithfulness [nor she his]. He can rely on her wise use of the money he earns; she will not be coveting material things beyond their means. She will remember to be grateful to God for the husband and the provisions the husband has obtained, so that there is no need for the husband to seek wealth in an evil or unlawful manner [Isa.3:16-26.]

12. She will comfort, encourage and do him only good as long as there is life within her. I will not nag, but encourage and be enthusiastic about our progress. I will not bring my husband harm or embarrassment by behavior, words or actions. At that time I was given a copy of the Amplified Bible. It helped me to understand how I should think about and relate to my husband. Lest you begin to get upset, let me tell you that relating to your husband and children is meant to be an enriching experience.

See I Peter 3:1-7. In verse 2,1 found an overall picture of what it is all about: "When they observe the pure and modest way in which you conduct yourselves, together with your reverence [for your husband. That is, you are to feel for him all that reverence includes] - to respect, defer to, revere him; [revere means] to honor, esteem (appreciate, prize), and [in the human sense] adore him; [and adore means] to admire, praise, be devoted to, deeply love and enjoy [your husband]." Does this sound like slavery? I don't think so. And to think the ladies who were instructed to do this did not often have any choice in the selection of their husbands. How much more shall it be required of us, seeing we are given the freedom to chose our mate? Many unsaved husbands have many very good qualities and a saved wife should recognize and appreciate these qualities. By letting him know you recognize and appreciate him many a husband gets saved. Ingratitude to God and the people around you will be a deterrent to their salvation.

13. She seeks out the wool and flax and works with willing hands to develop it. Women are endowed with great ability to work and produce goods. If a husband does not believe this, I challenge him to encourage, honor and respect her, and he will see [many men bite and devour their wives and then wonder why they cannot be what they should be]. When I began to try this, Gene began to compliment and encourage me. His encouragement was like fresh coal to a roaring fire. I was more determined than ever to succeed and I was enjoying every bit of progress I made. I began to do more careful buying of cloth, both for clothes and decorating.

14. She is like the merchant ships loaded with foodstuffs, she brings her household's food from a far [country]. I saw a bumper sticker on a car which read "Born to Shop". Ladies, right here is your charge to shop very wisely. I was to give attention to the prudent (shrewd in the management of practical affairs) buying, preparing and storing of food. Canning and freezing foods during times of plentiful supply will save many dollars. The food you carefully put up will be more nutritious than that you buy.

15. She rises while yet it is night and gets spiritual food for her household and assigns her maids their tasks. [Job 23:12.] According to Jamieson's Commentary, this verse means to diligently attend to expanding as well as gathering wealth. I believe that is true, but I also believe it includes the whole of the family as well as material wealth. This was applied to me this way. Since I had always been prudent in money and product matters, I was lacking in prudently working with the people in the family and helping develop them. I needed to have a time during each 24 hour day to read my Bible, pray and seek God's Wisdom, implement it in my life and teach His Wisdom to my children.

Most of us do not have maidens to assign tasks to, but it occurred to me I have children who need to learn to contribute to the family good and to learn to take care of their own needs. Since I had not yet gotten myself well disciplined, I made a chart of their duties for each day so that I would remember each day's duties. As we made progress, we began to see a more smoothly run household. Plus, I watched the children grow in self-discipline, have better attitudes and respect each other more.

I watched a little dyslexic, slightly brain - damaged, daughter begin to succeed. She was applying the principles of consistent discipline and hard work; and she was winning. Her accomplishments include graduating from L.S.U. with a high average in pre-med. All of which we had been told she would never be able to do.

16. She considers a new field before she buys or accepts it - expanding prudently [and not courting neglect of her present duties by assuming others]. With her savings [of time and strength] she plants fruitful vines in her vineyard. [S. of Sol. 8:12.] I was not to run headlong into things, but I was to carefully consider each new activity and consult with my husband. Ask my-self if I will be able to include this new activity in my life and not neglect my present God given duties of cleaning, child rearing, food preparation, etc. If I could not work it in without neglect, then I should pass it up for now. I should be allowed to keep some proceeds from my industry and thereby have money to purchase property, etc. By teaching my children to participate in family work, I found I had time to become interested in other things. When Marie was 15 years old, I had a craft business [this was something I had always wanted to do]. When I saw it was time to

close it, I did; it had served its purpose in our life. Your vineyard may be your children or husband; it may not be a grape vineyard.

17. She girds herself with strength [spiritual, mental, and physical fitness for her God-given task] her arms are strong and firm. I learned better how to take care of myself mentally, physically and spiritually. I was prone to work too long and not rest enough, so I learned to pace myself throughout the day. While I had not been much of a Bible reader, I began to do it anyway. Little did I know that within two years I was going to need everything I had absorbed from these times of study when our son would meet death in his play.

18. She tastes and sees that her gain from work [with and for God] is good; her lamp goes not out; but burns on continually through the night of trouble, privation, or sorrow, warning away fear, doubt and distrust. I was to see just how much pain and sorrow death would bring into each of our lives, but the knowledge of God and His words sustained. I was to know times when I would desire to cease to feel anything, but in all these things God remained sure. I was to see thirteen years come and go before I would see our daughter freed from the death of her brother. We would have despaired completely if we had not already become used to believing God. When you start on this walk, you should not expect everything to get perfect overnight. It may take years but it will be worth the walk.

19. She lays her hand to the spindle, and her hands hold the distaff. Whatever work needs to be done, I will not disdain it nor put it off. All honest work is honorable. Sometimes one of your children will need your help in some area. Take the time to seek God for how to help; He will tell you how. After years of working with Marie, I had doctors at the University of Houston ask what had been done to help her.

20. She opens her hand to the poor; yes, she reaches out her filled hands to the needy [whether in body, soul, mind or spirit]. There is always excess to share with those in need. By training yourself in Godly wisdom, there is also spiritual and material abundance to share.

21. She fears not the snow for her family, for all her household are doubly clothed in scarlet. [Josh. 2:18,19; Heb. 9:19-22.] I should be looking ahead to winter and making preparations before the winter cold arrives. The gathering together of my family's clothing is my responsibility. It should be sufficient for the needed warmth.

22. She makes for herself coverlets of scarlet, cushions and rugs of tapestry. Her clothing is of linen, pure white and fine, and of purple [such as that of which the clothing of the priests and the hallowed cloths of the temple are made]. [Isa. 61:10; I Tim. 2:9; Rev 3:5; 19:8,14]. I am to seek bargains in furnishings for my home; each purchase should be of the best quality I can afford. It will last longer; by this I will save money in the long run. I probably will not have to buy that thing again. I should dress myself and my family well, not to impress man with my goods, but to show to all men that a Godly life is good and that God will meet all of your needs just as He has promised. I should apply myself to my business which is the wife's business. The comfort of the home is the wife's responsibility. Rugs of tapestry speaks to me of warmth and beauty.

23. Her husband is known in the cities gates, when he sits among the elders of the land. [Pro. 12:4.] God showed me that my ineptitude had bothered my husband at work. When he should have been concentrating on work, he was sometimes worried about me. This kept back his progress to the degree that he was concerned. If I would take up my responsibility at home, play on his team and pull my share of the load, he would be freer to apply himself to his job while there and to the family while with us.

24. She makes fine linen garments and leads others to buy them; she delivers to the merchants girdles [or sashes that free one for service]. I will apply my hand to work for my family and will look out for something that I can put in the market place that will fill a need there and bring in good return. In the days this verse was written these girdles were expensive and highly valued. They would bring a good return on the time and effort put into them.

25. Strength and dignity are her clothing and her position is strong and secure. She rejoices over the future « the latter day or time to come [knowing that she and her family are in readiness for it]! By applying myself correctly, I will have no need to feel worthless any longer. I now see I have worth and ability, and others also see this. I shall have no fear for old age because I have helped to prepare for it.

26. She opens her mouth with skillful and Godly Wisdom, and in her tongue is the Law of Kindness — giving counsel and instruction. After I have learned to apply this wisdom to my life, I will be ready to give wise counsel and instruction but not before (Titus 2:3-5).

27. She looks well to how things go in her household, and the bread of idleness [gossip, discontent and self-pity] she will not eat. [I Tim. 5:14; Titus 2:5.] I was shown I should not let my children bring things into our home which were evil or hurtful to us. I was to take the time to find out what was wrong with it and teach this to the children. If they did not obey me, the matter was then turned over to Daddy. He would then instruct the child. If this did not bring the correct behavior, punishment was sure. If I engage in gossip, discontent or self-pity, I teach my children these things and create a place of trouble in which to live. I should be observant of any problem in the children, begin to seek God for the solution and minister the answer to the children.

28. Her children rise up and call her blessed [happy, fortunate and to be envied]; and her husband boasts of and praises her, saying, Your children may not tell you this until they are old enough to begin to see that correct and obedient living saves them a lot grief. Be patient - it will come. Our daughter didn't tell us until this year.

29. Many daughters have done virtuously, nobly and Well [with the strength of character that is steadfast In goodness] but you excel them all. Wives, these are the words of her husband. These would not have been my husband's words without my change. God also showed me I was to begin the correction in my life whether or not my husband cooperated or appreciated it. I was amazed to see the change in my husband's attitude toward me as I changed. I was not to change to get my husband's approval, but in obedience to God.

30. Charm and grace are deceptive, and beauty is vain [because it is not lasting], but a woman who reverently and worshipfully fears the Lord, she shall be praised! As we all are witnesses, beauty fades away. We may do every thing in this list but if we do not have that beauty of

heart which comes from having learned to trust and obey God, we will not accomplish our goal. For what is in the heart comes up on the lips. If with a true heart we serve our Lord and our families, then we will have no occasion for shame when we see our Lord Jesus.

31. Give her of the fruit of her hands, and let her own works praise her in the gates of the city! [Phil. 4:8 -Think on what is true, pure, lovely or excellent - fix your mind on it.] This is one of the New Testament commandments. I believe this verse means she should receive some of the money of her labors. But it means more than that; it means she should be allowed to enjoy and receive the benefits of her life-long labors. I have witnessed much ill treatment of women because of the hardness of the men's hearts. If there ever was any scripture to prove the abilities and station of women, this is it. No inferior creature will be able to accomplish this. Woman is parallel to man. If she either does not do her duty or is not allowed to do it, the whole family suffers, especially the children.

HUSBANDS AND FATHERS

Men, you are the main source of women's problems. Check yourself out as I explain. The father is head and priest of the family. A passive father who does not lead the family in Biblical teaching and behavior, one with bad temper, unkindness and shirking duty is failing both wife and children. What about child abuse such as beatings, rape, not providing loving support with your discipline, mental cruelty, etc.?

Have you taught your family in the Law of God? Do you remember you're the leader? Do you see to it that each person knows you know they are precious in your eyes?

If you fall down on your job of respecting and protecting their mother, children will feel the same thing about themselves that you do and say about their mom. Girls assume all men are like you. If you commit adultery, your daughter will feel all men are dishonest in this area. She will have a hard time trusting her husband.

Even if a young girl should come from a bad home and by a very fortunate event marry a good man who does fill his role, she will still have an almost impossible task to be a good co-operative wife being as she is trained to fail, blame herself, have no self-worth and no idea what should be done.

Next, it's husbands who cause problems. In all my fifty years, I've seen few men even vaguely fulfill their role as husband or father. By the time a child starts to school, he or she has already accepted the standard set by the father. As a teacher, I have found it is a very hard, if not impossible, task to change a child's opinion of themselves. Men, the whole family needs you to be a man working at doing the job of husband and father God's way.

I believe it is "selfishness" according to II Tim. 3:1-5 that keeps men and women from prospering in all areas as God would have us to. Wives, the "submit" in the Bible means to play on his team. If you have or want to have a good husband, you'll have to begin to play on his team. When you married him, you said you would; now is the earliest time you can start. Moms, we're next in breaking down or building up our girls. By our attitude toward their fathers and ourselves, we teach or perpetuate our values. If you've accepted bad behavior or treatment and have taught it to your daughters, today is the best day to start a change.

Our daughters accept our values and attitudes as the Gospel. They do it so early in life that they are seldom questioned. Like mother, like daughter is truer than you think.

When you want anything in your life to get lined up with God, all wrong in that area must be truly repented of with a Godly hatred and shame. The repentance needs to be so strong and clear in your mind that it will always remind you of the incident.

MINISTRY AND LIST OF DEMONS

As fathers and mothers, we repent of all things we have failed to do that were our responsibilities:

Lovers of Self	Lovers of Vain	Ungodly
Utterly Self-centered	Amusements	Sex
Inordinate	Having a Form of	Satan
Greedy	Godliness	Worship
Desire for Wealth	Denying the Power of	Bastard
Proud	God	Incest
Arrogant	Strangers to God	Sexual
Contemptuous Boast-	Weak Natured / Spiri-	Abuse
ers	tually Dwarfed Easily	Rape
Abusive	Swayed / Silly	Divorce
Blasphemous Scoffers	Evil Desires	Adultery
Disobedient to Parents	Seductive Impulses	Harlotry
Ungrateful	Inquiring	Prostitution
Unholy	Never Acquiring	Homosexual
Profane	Depraved Minds	Pride
Without Natural	Distorted Minds	Willing
Affection	Counterfeit	Deceivers
Callous / Inhuman	Rash	Disobedient to God
Relentless	Folly	Dishonoring Parents
False Accusers	Wicked	Stubbornness
Trouble Makers	Men	Bestiality
Intemperate	Imposters	Striking Parents
Loose in Morals and	Deceivers	Cursing Parents
Conduct	Leading	Jezebel
Uncontrollable	Astray	Ahab
Fierce	Lazy	Turning Someone
Haters of Good	Unorganized	from God
Treacherous Betrayers	Spiritual fantasy	Not Properly Disci-
Rash	Wrong Priorities	plining
Inflated with Self-	Witchcraft	Children
conceit	Drugs	Sexual Sins
Lovers of Sensual	Rock	Offending Children
Pleasures	Music	Who Believe

This lesson was taken from a teaching given at Lake Hamilton Bible Camp and also is in booklet form by the same name.

4. THE WOMAN QUESTION

Part of our calling is to minister to pastors and other Christian leaders and their families. As we have ministered to this group of people, there have been a lot of questions formed in our minds about the role of a woman. We are going to pose several questions for you to consider in regard to this sensitive area.

- 1. The Bible says that the woman is the "weaker vessel" (I Peter 3:7). What does that mean to you? How is the man the stronger vessel?
- 2. Let's say that the woman is weaker physically and spiritually than the man. How can she be used in the ministry? How did women minister in the Bible?
- 3. The Bible says that the man is "priest and head of the home" (I Cor. 11:3; Prov. 1:8). How should he minister to, provide for, and protect the wife and children?
- 4. Suppose a man will not be priest and head of the home. Why does a woman then try to manipulate or be a Jezebelic woman to get the things that she and the children need in the spiritual and physical realms?
- 5. Suppose a woman is married and her husband will not provide spiritual protection. Can she shift this responsibility to her pastor or to any man other than her husband to be her protective covering? What is the "covering" (I Cor. 11:3-16) of the woman?
- 6. We have ministered to many women without their husbands present who either were not saved or did not believe in deliverance. What is the frequent result of only ministering to the woman without her husband present?
- 7. There are many woman's meetings in the land today. Why do women like to meet without their husbands?
- 8. Consider the basic way a woman thinks. What happens to a woman in her mind when she has no male leadership?
- 9. Should a man minister to a woman alone in deliverance? Should a woman minister to a man alone in deliverance? What is the possible happening?
- 10. The Bible talks about "Priscilla and Aquila" (I Cor. 16:19). Is this a husband and wife team?
- 11. We minister as a husband and wife team. What are the advantages of this method? What about protection from sex traps laid by Satan?
- 12. What characteristics are taken on by women who minister full time? Do they try to emulate or copy men?
- 13. God sent men out "two and two" (Luke 10:1). Did He send out any women one and one, or two and two? Was God discriminating against women?
- 14. Assume a woman minister travels with another woman. What are the pitfalls?
- 15. Assume a woman who ministers by herself is either married or unmarried. What are the pitfalls?
- 16. Assume a woman who ministers is married and her husband is unsaved or saved, and will not travel with her. What are the pitfalls?
- 17. In the Bible the family is considered as an institution or unit (Gen. 2:24) and was created even before the church. What happens when the family is separated by occupations, ministry or the church? How can the church help to destroy the family by having too many

meetings for different members of the family. What is gained by keeping the family together as a unit in work, play and church?

18. What would you like to add to these questions from your viewpoint as a wife, mother, Christian woman and deliverance minister?

KEEPING WHAT YOU HAVE MAINTAINING DELIVERANCE

WHY DO YOU WANT TO BE DELIVERED?

If your desire is to feel more comfortable inside, to be more successful in life or just to get out of some mess you've gotten into, I can assure you that you will keep little of your deliverance. The main reason to seek deliverance is to fulfill God's plan for your life here on earth. If that is your motivation, you will do well in keeping your deliverance and getting more and more freedom. You will be able to serve God in the family, church and community.

Gal. 6:7-10, Do not be deceived and deluded and misled; God will not allow Himself to be sneered at -scorned, disdained or mocked (by mere pretensions or professions of His precepts being set aside). (He inevitably deludes himself who attempts to delude God.) For whatsoever a man sows, that and that only is what he will reap. Most of us are here seeking help because we have now reached the reaping stage of our life. For he who sows to his own flesh (lower nature, sensuality) will from the flesh reap decay and ruin and destruction; but he who sows to the Spirit will of the Spirit reap life eternal. And let us not loose heart and grow weary and faint in acting nobly and doing right, for in due time and at the appointed season we shall reap, if we do not loosen and relax our courage and faint. So then as occasion and opportunity open to us, let us do good (morally) to all people (not only being useful or profitable to them, hut also doing what is for their spiritual good and advantage). Be mindful to be a blessing, especially, to those of the household of faith - those who belong to God's family with you, the believers.

II Tim. 3:16-17, Every scripture is God-breathed given by His instruction - and profitable for instruction, for reproof and conviction of sin, for correction of error and discipline in obedience, and for training in righteousness (that is, in Holy living, in conformity to God's will in thought, purpose and action), So that a man of God may be complete and proficient, well-fitted and thoroughly equipped for every good work. It is from God's word we will learn how to live and gain more and more deliverance.

IF YOU ARE GOING TO WIN A WAR, YOU MUST KNOW YOUR ENEMY.

No natural army would go out to fight an enemy whose action and activities he has not studied, neither should we. John 10:10, The thief comes only in order that he may steal and may kill and may destroy, I have come that they may have and enjoy life, and have it in abundance - to the full, till it overflows. Anything you do to yourself that destroys or brings harm to your life is inspired of the devil.

I Pet. 5:6-11 tells us how careful we need to be. Vs. 8. Be well-balanced - temperate, soberminded; be vigilant and cautious at all times, for that enemy of yours, the Devil, roams around like a lion roaring (in fierce hunger), seeking someone to seize upon and devour. Vigilant, cautious, temperate, well-balanced and sober-minded are strong words. They help make us aware that we must lead our life correctly. I heard a prophecy from Jack Harris in which God said, "This is a real war against a real enemy over a real truth." If we could get this settled in our mind we would do better in every skirmish. When a person becomes a Christian he has been born to war. This war is against our real enemy the Devil.

THE DEVIL HAS SOME TRICKS HE PLAYS ON US - NO ONE ESCAPES.

The Devil wants to lull us into carelessness, seduce with selfish desire and destroy us with gradualism. He whispers, "Throw all caution to the wind, be wild, crazy and reckless, follow the crowd, look for worldly excitement." He'll paint sin up real pretty. Heb. 3:13, But instead warn (admonish, urge and encourage) one another every day, as long as it is called Today, that none of you may be hardened (into settled rebellion) by the deceitfulness of sin - (that is,) by the fraudulence, the stratagem, the trickery which the delusive glamour of his sin may play on him. Satan never has his cigarette ads show an older person throwing up his lungs in the death grip of lung cancer. When he suggests sex sin, it is not shown as it is -death from sexual disease or diseased, deformed and retarded children, mental, emotional terrors and grief over sins, and the curses put upon oneself and descendents. He paints a pretty picture and uses peer-pressure to try to force us into his trap.

The Devil knows humans very well. He has had many centuries to learn to trap us. Humans have a great weakness. It's called self. We like to see, own and eat pretty things, we love the praise of our peers and we like to think we're smarter than the average human. We like short cuts to all the above.

When we see we are caught in his trap, we get mad at each other and blame each other or God, but we seldom blame the Devil. So, he generously adds hate to the list of demons he has in us. The demons' job is to play us along and when we begin to realize what has happened, they slam the trap door shut and try to convince us that there is no way out. But, God has made a way out for all Christians.

Satan and his host have power and authority (Eph. 6:12) in the heavenly sphere. If we follow the suggestions given us by his demons, he will gain more and more power and authority to hold us captive until he has destroyed not only us but our children for many generations.

But God - these two little powerful words hold the key to triumphing over the power of the Devil.

If we turn from Satan to God, we qualify to use the power and authority over Satan that God has given to all his followers. **LUKE 10:19, BEHOLD! I HAVE GIVEN YOU AUTHORITY AND POWER OVER ALL THE POWER THE ENEMY POSSESSES.** This power we have is through the blood and name of Jesus Christ, God's Son, and our obedience to His commandments. Our trouble is that most of us do not use hardly any of the power we have been given. In fact, we'd rather believe the love gospel than to have to resist anything. We certainly do not want to wage war against the Devil and the demons.

Even as Christians, we do not have the right to attempt to use this power unless we are willing to study the Bible and discipline our lives. This does not mean that we have to be perfect in every way; it means that we are always going after God and learning to obey more and more.

SUBMIT TO GOD

James 4:7, Submit yourselves therefore to God. Resist the devil, and he will flee from you. We are always getting things out of order. We want to resist the Devil before we submit to God. It requires:

- 1. We must accept Jesus Christ as our Lord, Master and Saviour.
- 2. We will begin a diligent study of the Bible.
- 3. We will accept Biblical principles as our own.
- 4. We will begin to live by these Godly principles.
- 5. His will for our life is more desirable to us than our necessary food.

Only as we begin and continue these things, can we say we are submitted to God. Then and only then will we begin to be able to resist the Devil and have him flee from us. With the Devil and demons, our words don't work but our actions will. We can only say we have put on the whole armour of God after we have actually done it. Eph. 6:11-18 must be an active part of our life.

God wants obedience that comes from our desire to please God. As we are learning to bring ourselves into subjection to God we may have to force ourselves to obey. It is our actions we force not our desire. Breaking old habits requires diligence.

We have power to bind and loose according to Mat. 16:18-19. We bind the demonic activity within us and attacks on us in the name of Jesus Christ. Our purpose in binding them is to cast them out. Binding demons in someone is not done to control their will but to control the demon in them. God has given each of us a free will so we do not ever try to control another person's will.

LET'S CONSIDER TEMPTATION

1 Cor. 10:13, For no temptation - no trial regarded as enticing to sin (no matter how it comes or where it leads) - has overtaken you and laid hold on you that is not common to man • (that is, no temptation or trial has come to you that is beyond human resistance and that is not adjusted and adapted and belonging to human experience, and such as man can bear). But God is faithful (to His Word and to His compassionate nature and He can be trusted not to let you be tempted and tried and assayed beyond your ability and strength of resistance and power to endure, but with the temptation He will (always) also provide a way out - the means to escape to a landing place - that you may be capable and strong and powerful to bear up under it.

This tells us that temptation is common to mankind and we are able to resist. Our problem - we don't take the escape route! In fact, it is one of Satan's best wiles to use on us. We often feel guilty of sin when some shameful thought occurs to us. Actually, it is an attempt of a demon to get you to follow the suggestion. I have learned to stamp it reject and send it out of my mind. You see, the thought is not sin but to begin to elaborate on it, will lead to sin. Don't converse with demons and miss the escape route.

Study verse 14. Therefore, my dearly beloved, shun (keep clear away from, avoid by flight if need be) any sort of idolatry (of loving or venerating anything more than God). The Devil and demons watch us to see what we like and then try to push us into worship of it. That is idolatry.

Be careful, remember what the Bible says about temptation and respond correctly and immediately.

I Pet. 5:8 Be well balanced (temperate, sober of mind), be vigilant and cautious at all times; for that enemy of yours, the Devil, roams around like a Hon roaring (in fierce hunger), seeking someone to seize upon and devour. Withstand him; he firm in faith (against his onset - rooted, established, strong, immovable, and determined), knowing that the same (identical) sufferings are appointed to your brotherhood (the whole body of Christians) throughout the world.

GRADUALISM

One other very successful wile of Satan is gradualism. Humanism is taking our society over very gradually. We in America are loosing our God given freedom gradually. Satanism is moving in on us gradually.

I can remember a time when each state controlled its schools. Federal aid came in very slowly and very subtly. At first, the aid did not have any strings attached but as time passed and the state became dependent on the aid, the federal government began to impose rules and regulations. Beware of gradual seduction.

We get into trouble gradually: too much T.V., too much food, too much self- indulgence. Soon we are addicted and have become something we never thought we'd become.

I Cor. 10:21-22, You cannot drink the Lord's cup and demon's cup. You cannot partake of the Lord's table and demon's table. Many times we try to partake of both and find that we indeed cannot serve two masters. A Christian cannot serve two masters and we will find ourselves gradually drifting away from God and maybe willfully giving up our salvation in the end.

Our mind is the best entry way Satan has. II Cor. 10: 3-5, For though we walk (live) in the flesh, we are not carrying on our warfare according to the flesh and using mere human weapons. We do not wage war on other people to get ups on them by using natural wiles or strategy to win over them. For the weapons of our warfare are not physical (weapons of flesh and blood), but they are mighty before God for the over throw and destruction of strongholds. We wage a spiritual war of binding and loosing demonic strongholds over our life first, then over the nation, our locality and other people. (Inasmuch as we) refute arguments and theories and reasonings and every proud and lofty thing that sets itself up against the (true) knowledge of God; and we lead every thought and purpose away captive into the obedience of Christ, the Messiah, the Anointed One. I would read this and pray what I thought was a most holy prayer. Over and over I pleaded with God for Him to take my thoughts. One day I heard, "I would not touch your thoughts with a ten foot pole. My thoughts are not your thoughts, neither are your ways. For as the heavens are higher than the earth, so are My ways higher than your ways, and My thoughts than your thoughts (Isa. 55:8-9)."

COVENANT

When we accepted salvation through the sacrifice of Jesus Christ, we made covenant with God. In this covenant there are duties of God to us and from us to God. Controlling our mind is not God's duty but ours. God gave detailed directions in Phil. 4:8.

For the rest, brethren, whatsoever is true, whatsoever is worthy of reverence and is honorable and seemly, whatsoever is just, whatsoever is pure, whatsoever is lovely and lovable, whatsoever is kind and winsome and gracious, if there is any virtue and excellence, if there is anything worthy of praise, think on and weigh and take account of these things (fix your minds on them). I often had to check this list when I had let my mind get under the control of some demon (such as re-taliation). If it was not on the list, I would not think on that thing.

Most of our entertainment today goes back to the ancient pagan worship of gods and goddesses: all acts of perverted sex, sports from Olympia, demonic music from old music used in old pagan temple worship, the use of drugs for temple worship also. Most nursery rhymes come from old Druid tales.

Let the scripture mold you, correct you, and refine you. II Tim. 3:16, Every Scripture is Godbreathed (given by His inspiration) and profitable for instruction, for correction of error and discipline in obedience, (and) for training in righteousness (in holy living, in conformity to God's will in thought, purpose and action).

Read and study I Cor. 13:1-13. If I (can) speak in the tongues of men and (even) of angels, but have not love (that reasoning, intentional, spiritual devotion such as is inspired by God's love for and in us), I am only a noisy gong or a clanging cymbal. And if I have prophetic powers (the gift of interpreting the divine will and purpose), and understand all the secret truths and mysteries and possess all knowledge, and if I have (sufficient) faith so that I can remove mountains, hut have not love (God's love in me) I am nothing (a useless nobody). Even if I dole out all that I have (to the poor in providing) food, and if I surrender my body to be burned or in order that I may glory, but have not love (God's love in me), I gain nothing. Love endures long and is patient and kind; love never is envious nor boils over with jealousy, is not boastful or vainglorious, does not display itself haughtily. This is a good balance verse. It is not conceited (arrogant and inflated with pride); it is not rude (unmannerly) and does not act unbecomingly. Love (God's love in us) does not insist on its own rights or its own way, for it is not self-seeking; it is not touchy or fretful or resentful; it takes no account of the evil done to it (it pays no attention to a suffered wrong). It does not rejoice at injustice and unrighteousness, but rejoices when right and truth prevail. Love bears up under anything and everything that comes, is ever ready to believe the best of every person. Its hopes are fadeless under all circumstances, and it endures everything (without weakening). Love never fails (never fades out or becomes obsolete or comes to an end). As for prophecy (the gift of interpreting the divine will and purpose), it will be fulfilled and pass away; as for tongues, they will be destroyed and cease; as for knowledge, it will pass away (it will lose its value and be superseded by truth). For our knowledge is fragmentary (incomplete and imperfect), and our prophecy (our teaching) is fragmentary (incomplete and imperfect).

It is good to read and study this chapter and compare your state of mind and action to it. It will give you a good idea how you are doing. I find that I have made a lot of improvement over the years but I have much work left to do.

EZRA, NEHEMIAH AND ESTHER

These chapters contain helpful information for us as we get and maintain our deliverance. The Jews are given the order by the King to return to Jerusalem and rebuild the Temple of God. The

King (as God has for us) made provision for the building of the temple (we are now the temple where God lives on earth).

You notice the king did not build the temple, the people were to build it. When the people began to work, there was not much opposition until the foundation was laid (we also get little opposition until we have laid the foundation of salvation). When your enemies (Devil and demons) see that you are going on with your Christian life, they will rise up just as the Samaritans did and try to stop the progress.

The prophets continue to teach the people and the people continue to get right with God while they build the temple. The progress is opposed all the way. Finally, they see that the enemy has a room right in the middle of the temple (just as we discover the enemy in the form of demons is sitting right in the middle of our temple and opposing all our progress). The enemy is thrown out and the work continues (demons are cast out but the work is not yet complete.)

The Hebrews still have a strong enemy who intends to kill them all (Haman). God always has a people who will follow Him without regard to cost. They remain true (conduct spiritual warfare), God works with them and they conquer their enemies. After you begin to receive deliverance, this section of Scripture will help you understand your work and the enemy's attacks against you.

HOW SHALL WE KEEP DELIVERANCE?

- 1. Study and apply the Word of God to your thoughts and actions (I Peter 3; II Tim. 2:15).
- 2. Discipline your mind and life according to God's directions. You are responsible for the use of your mind and the actions of your life (II Cor. 10:5).
- 3. Remember, no action takes place until the mind plans the action (I Cor. 10:13).
- 4. When you fail, get up and start over, remember the Bible says that we are knocked down but not knocked out (Rom. 6:16; 12:21; II Cor. 4:8).
- 5. Use the Word of God against evil thoughts and demonic attack. Jesus did this at His temptation. When demons come back to attack or tempt you, take authority over them in the name of Jesus Christ. Immediately begin to tell them about Jesus' death and resurrection which were done for you (Matt. 4:4,7 & 10).
- 6. Don't fear demons; be consistent and fearless against them. Remember, no demon gets into anyone who has not given ample ground for its entry (Phil. 1:28).
- 7. Clean out the home you live in. There should not be anything in your house that calls demons. Ask the Lord to guide you to things in your home that displease Him. Be sure and check out all your jewelry. Most of our Christian jewelry is actually from pagan origin (Deut. 7:26).
- 8. Fellowship with other Christians (Heb. 10:25).
- 9. Fight against fleshly appetites daily (Gal. 5:19-21,24).
- 10. Don't return to old sinful friends or places or old thought life (I Cor. 5:7).
- 11. Maintain an attitude of gratitude and praise to God for all His blessings (Deut. 28:47-48).
- 12. Pray always in all manner of prayer (Matt. 13:33)
- 13. Maintain a loving attitude even to your human enemies (Matt. 5:44-46).

This is an extremely important part of deliverance. We can spend a long time casting out demons but maintaining your deliverance is your part and no one can do this part for you. You have to maintain your own deliverance; it is the hardest part of deliverance. You will have to change your mind, the way you think, and you and you alone will have to change the way you act. You will have to study and obey the Word of God. It's not a matter of how much you read the Bible but how much you obey its precepts.

PRAYER

This is a sample prayer, you may be led by the Holy Spirit to add or change it to suit you own needs. Dear Heavenly and Gracious Father, I agree with this lesson. I agree with the Holy Word of God. I want deliverance for the right reasons, so that I might serve You and do the things You would have me to do. I renounce all selfishness so that I can do my own thing. I want to do and be all You have planned for me. I want to walk within Your perfect will. Help me, Lord Jesus, to maintain my deliverance. As I seek Your face, show me how to do this. As I agree with You, Lord, I will maintain my deliverance. I will submit myself to You and I will seek Your face. I thank You, Lord Jesus, that You will help me maintain my deliverance, stay free and go on with You. Now, Lord Jesus, I forgive my ancestors and my descendents and anyone else that has hurt me or sinned against me. I ask that You forgive them and bless them with all spiritual blessings. Forgive me for my many sins, I forgive myself for sins against my body. I break every curse, every hex and every demonic tie that binds. I break every soul tie brought about by witchcraft or sexual impurity. Lord Jesus, restore my fragmented soul. Send your angels out to recover anything Satan has stolen from me. Lord Jesus, stir up the demons in my subconscious mind. Command them to identify and reveal themselves as unto Jesus so that they can be cast out. I ask all these things in the name of Jesus Christ, my Lord, my Master and my Saviour. I take authority over Satan according to the whole Word Of God which I accept in simple childlike faith. It is in Jesus' name I pray. Amen.

LIST OF DEMONS

Names of possible demons; others should be added as directed by the Holy Spirit for deliverance. See the Mass Deliverance Manual for Lists of Demons:

- 1. Bad Habits of Thinking and Reacting
- 2. Common Demon Groupings
- 3. Ingratitude
- 4. Maintaining Your Deliverance from Evil Spirits.

Start off with Common Demon Groupings and then go on to other lists.

SECTION 13 - TESTIMONY AND FAMILY DELIVERANCE

CONTENTS

- 1. Our Deliverance Testimony
- 2. Earline's Testimony About Her Deliverance
- 3. Children's Deliverance

1. OUR DELIVERANCE TESTIMONY

GENERAL

- 1. Pray and bind spirits over spirit, soul and body.
- 2. Read Matt. 10:7-8; Mark 16:17-18; II Tim. 2:19-22.
- 3. Testimony of ten years in deliverance.
- 4. Jesus: Savior, Baptizer, Healer, Deliverer and Prosperer.

PIGS IN THE PARLOR

- 1. Every Christian should have a copy.
- 2. Read cover.
- 3. Seven Ways to Determine the Need for Deliverance, Seven Steps to Deliverance and Seven Steps for Retaining Deliverance.
- 4. The deliverance prayer (salvation and deliverance).
- 5. 53 Common Demon Groupings.
- 6. Three R's: Root of Bitterness, Rejection and Rebellion.
- 7. Schizophrenic Paranoid: Satan's Master Plan*

FAITH TABERNACLE

- 1. Wednesday Basic deliverance.
- 2. Thur. & Fri.- Schizophrenic Personality: Inward and Outward Signs.
- 3. Saturday Coming out party (demon manifestations).
- 4. Sunday How to stay delivered.

CAN A CHRISTIAN HAVE A DEMON?

Human: Spirit Soul Body

Temple: Holy of Holies Inner Temple Outer Temple

Spirits: Holy Spirit Unholy Spirits

(Mental-Physical-Spiritual-Material)

Control: Possession Oppression by Demons

ALL CHRISTIANS

- 1. Demons come out of Spirit-filled Christians.
- 2. All Christians need deliverance: II Tim. 2:19-22.
- 3. We must also cleanse our houses of anything displeasing to God.

OUR FAMILY

- 1. Earline delivered Marie in Mexico.
- 2. Earline and I had problems for 1 1/2 years.
- 3. "I Like To Eat Spirit" Lost 70 pounds.

OUR MINISTRY

- 1. Our Family Common Demon Groupings.
- 2. Week Nights We have seen many demons leave.
- 3. Infirmity Disease and sickness yield to deliverance rather than healing prayers.
- 4. Individuals or families.
- 5. Group mass deliverance.

2. EARLINE'S TESTIMONY ABOUT HER DELIVERANCE BACKGROUND

I have an Indian-English-German-French background. There are curses on each of these people. Indians worshipped devils. Some English and Europeans were Druids who worshipped Satan.

In innocence my father participated in some occult practices - wart removal and water witching. From my father came curses of Masons and Indians. Physical problems came as a result of curses on Indian worship: Inactive thyroid, female disorders and heart disease.

My mother was a paranoid schizophrenic with an Indian-English background. Her emotional illness caused me to need a lot of deliverance from emotional problems.

The following testimony will help you understand how the soul (mind, will and emotions) works. It will also show you how Satan attacks the physical body with demons by curses.

MAIN TESTIMONY ABOUT DELIVERANCE

In July of 1975 I came into deliverance. Do you know it is truly possible to have peace in your mind? For most of my life, I was your average daughter, wife, mother and woman. In my mind there was never any real peace, only a sort of make-believe peace. I was not particularly moody, not often angry and not often depressed.

Life for me after I married was a continual move—new places—new people—new houses; all of which I enjoyed. Our homes were among the best and most beautiful around. Decorating them was a lot of joy for me. Taking my children to new places and introducing them to new experiences was exciting. We toured all of the U.S., Canada and Mexico. The greatest fun was watching the children enjoy all the new and unusual things we came across. Life was very exciting.

On May 22, 1983 we were devastated. Our son died from an accident at play. Now all of these lovely homes, beautiful furniture, exciting places, fun people and fun times seemed like trash. At this time we came to know the love of Jesus and the power of God. Never would we be the same again.

After five months passed, we returned south from Minneapolis. In Baton Rouge at the Full Gospel Business Men meetings, we heard about divine healing and the Baptism in the Holy Spirit; I needed both. In time I was healed of my allergies, bad back, etc. and got the Baptism in the Holy Spirit. Gene and I went to meetings, testified and prayed for people, and saw miracles of healing and Baptisms. For about six months things went fine but as time passed, some attitudes and hurts began to show up and I was very unhappy, moody, and depressed.

I spent hours telling Gene how badly he had treated me. I came to believe he had done things that he had not. If you look at my previous statement, you'll see I enjoyed moving. One time when I was ill, I didn't want to move. The rest of the time I enjoyed it. So, I let myself come to believe that he moved just to hurt me and to make life bad for me. I accused him of shutting Marie and me out of his life since Byron died. Gene never knew what to expect when he got home—maybe a frying pan on the noodle. No amount of Bible reading, prayer of fasting helped for more than a week or two at the most.

I was trying to help Marie who was going through all kinds of adjustments to her brother's death but only made matters worse. She also became full of resentment and hurt, and was bitter and angry.

Gene and I fasted, prayed and talked. I was fasting and praying that God would fix Gene up. I was so blind I was sure that I was perfect—well almost.

After a year or so, I was sitting reading Psalm 91.1 had always loved it but suddenly like a bucket of ice water it hit me. The Psalm was not true for me. I had no peace, and was always angry and moody. I (when you are persuaded by the Devil to look on others as the problem) was even beginning to wonder if God was just being bad to me.

I sat on the couch and began to pray: "God, if You don't help me tonight I am going out of the church altogether, and into the world for good". I told God that Gene is worse off than me; he's all of my problems. God just stopped talking so I started praying again the same prayer. God said again, "Get Gene to pray deliverance for you". I asked about all the pastors, teachers and evangelists we knew doing the prayers. God did not answer; have you ever noticed He does not argue with you? Being one of determination, I started out again, "God, I must have help tonight; if I don't get it, I flat quit." He said, "Get Gene to pray deliverance for you". God was not harsh, neither was He condemning. He seemed to be pleased that I had finally asked for help and really meant it.

I called Gene; he didn't seem particularly impressed. He also suggested the same people and the same excuses. But the best one was, "I don't know what deliverance is; I don't know how to do that".

After some discussion, we decided to go to the bedroom and get in the middle of the bed. We were sitting facing each other, Gene started praying, and my mind started wandering. He prayed a while in tongues and started saying strange things such as, "You come out of my wife in the name of Jesus". One thing I remember well was that at the beginning, when each demon was named, I had a thought, "I don't have that".

As he called out Rejection, its hurts and kindred spirits, I was being shown by the Holy Spirit how these spirits had gained entrance into me, and how they had checked and bound me in all attempts to be myself. Rejection kept me just short of my goals in life. Mostly it kept me from doing what God said to do due to a fear that the other person would disagree or reject me and my idea. I always worked better and succeeded best in those things that I did alone.

Next came Bitterness; I never even considered myself bitter. But as he called out demons under this ruler, I saw hate, violence and anger. I had much trouble with temper. Not that I was always violent, on the contrary I was seldom angry to the observer. When I did get angry or lose my temper, my husband and children usually found some other more suitable place to be.

At the naming of Rebellion, I thought, "I surely don't have this spirit." As he called it out again, I balled up my fist, drew back to back-hand him, and was consumed with a fit of coughing and mucus.

As this was going on, I was shown how there is only one real rebellion, and it is pointed toward God. Even if we say, "My husband just does not accept God's way so I am going to—", in the end, when it's traced back, it is rebellion to God for God gave directions about how to live with an unsaved mate. If it is against circumstances, God says, "This is the will of God in Christ Jesus concerning you". In whatever circumstances, I am therewith to be content.

One of my rebellions was against circumstances. I had always had such lovely homes with rooms to spare, so that Gene always had an office, and I always had a sewing and craft room. When we came here, Gene bought a three bedroom house with only two baths. His reason was that I couldn't set up Byron's bedroom; I became bitter. I said, "Yes, but you still have your office; I don't have a room. You always get what you want." And I became more rebellious.

When I first moved here I didn't hate this house but little by little it crept up on me. At first it was just the things packed together. Then it grew until I hated the house twenty-four hours a day. Then my ingratitude reached other branches of my life. My wheels were the wheels of a camper truck. I didn't like the truck anymore. Next came Gene, and then living in this bug-infested hot climate with people who can't speak good English. Next the ungrateful person begins to blame others even if he sees it's as much his fault as the other person's. He lies to himself until in his eyes, at least, the other person is entirely at fault.

God showed me my attitude in light of His attitude, letting me know that He could take even this house away; that He had provided it and I was ungrateful for His provision. Oh my, this really was sobering me up. After these three main ruler demons were cast out, I gave up if he called a demon out. I just agreed and became free of it.

I had a habit of getting my work done as fast as I could because I didn't like being in the house alone. So, I roved all over this town looking for plants and cloth to work on the house, but I never worked on it. I did a lot of visiting with other Christian women which is not necessary.

Since neither Gene nor I knew anything about this turn of events, I asked God to teach me so I wouldn't go backwards. I rather liked the changes in my mind and attitude.

The morning after this experience I came down the hall to the kitchen and was greeted pleasantly by my daughter. Now, this was a surprise because she was not so pleasant at the time either. I noticed that she began to change. I asked God about this often and learned that my condition had put such a strain on her that she was being broken under it. I didn't tell her about my deliverance; I didn't know I should. She became a very obedient and joyful person. I began to enjoy Marie and not worry about her so much.

TESTIMONY ABOUT OVEREATING

After casting out the demon, "I Like To Eat", I told God how I had tried dieting and I knew that was hopeless. I was told obedience is better than sacrifice, and I knew how to eat but was not doing it. Plenty of fresh fruits and vegetables, not much meat and very little sweets is the basis of a proper diet.

Asked if I'd do what I was told, I assured God that I would. He said that food can be divided into two groups: God's and Devil's. Devil's food includes sweets to excess, junk food, and liquids which are mostly empty calories.

It's not bad manners not to eat sweets or any other food when you know your body has not used up the last meal. I was intelligent enough to know if I truly needed food. Here are God's rules in summary:

- 1. Eat fruit and vegetables; include leafy greens.
- 2. Do not each much meat three or four servings weekly.
- 3. Don't eat unless you truly need to.
- 4. Don't let others stuff you.
- 5. Seldom eat sweets.
- 6. Almost never eat junk food.
- 7. Remember those whose God is their belly.
- 8. Cook all foods simply.
- 9. Use little fat and cut fat from meat.

TESTIMONY ABOUT DELIVERANCE FROM INDIAN CURSES

I had a heart condition which was unusual. It never occurred with regularity nor under any specific condition.

While taking a tread mill test, I experienced tremendous pain in the chest, arms and neck. Having been examined by a "great heart specialist" in Minneapolis, he told me that my heart was good but he had written "death by heart attack" on many people's certificates like myself. These were people who didn't really have anything wrong with their hearts.

A year or so after my dad's death I found my heart acting up again. Sometimes one to five years would elapse between seizures. I began to ask God to show me why my brothers, dad, dad's brothers, and his dad, all had heart problems. He showed me Exodus 20 and Ezekiel 18. He told me to repent for my ancestors and myself for the sin of idol worship in Lev. 26:40-41. The curse of idol worship follows the blood line. I did these things and have been free for over seven years. I was only the second generation from this Indian worship and also had curses from previous generations.

TESTIMONY ABOUT SCHIZOPHRENIA

Schizophrenia means split mind (schizein = to split and phren = mind). I had a lifetime of mental and emotional tension. I was unable to decide what to do and see it through. I had many fears that something bad was going to happen.

All of my life I had great fears of bad things happening: fears of failing and fears of people. I was often tense for weeks and I did not know why.

This is the earliest memory I have of going to school. I was so afraid of all the people I could not go into the school but hid behind the well house until my brother came and took me into the first grade. I was disoriented that day; strange feelings and fears tormented me.

I have very few memories from childhood below the age of nine or ten years. Generally speaking, I lived in two worlds: home and away from home. I became very good at forgetting everything bad (parents' fights and my own troubles) that happened at home the minute I walked out the door. I felt more freedom and ease away from home. At high school and college I had trouble with certain subjects like algebra and chemistry. They had things too similar for me to distinguish between them. Both of these subjects ended in frustration and low grades for me.

In my marriage, I had some problems accepting my husband as one who would provide for me, take care of me, and continue to love me. I was always expecting the marriage to end badly.

After six years of marriage, we had a delightful son and two years later we had a beautiful daughter.

Double-mindedness wears the person out, and frustrates and confuses him. Deciding, then undecid-ing stagnates a person. For example, my mom was here for a while; she couldn't be content for desiring to go home. When at home, she was pressed to stay somewhere else besides her home. When away from home, great fears filled her about the house. She was miserable and made those around her miserable (James 1:5-8).

TESTIMONY ABOUT MAINTAINING DELIVERANCE

The scriptural basis for giving a testimony is found in Rev. 12:11, where we overcome Satan by three things: the blood of Jesus, our testimony, and not loving our lives. God told me that if I was unwilling to tell about my deliverance, I would lose it. And furthermore, if I was ashamed of Him and His provisions, He would be ashamed of me in Heaven.

The day after I received my main deliverance, I had an empty feeling and did not know what to do. My reaction was to ask God continually for direction.

I learned that I didn't really know God's Word. I didn't know how to use God's Word or how to use my mind. I asked God to take my thoughts. He told me that He wouldn't touch my thoughts with a ten foot pole; that His thoughts were higher than mine and that I must control my thoughts.

I started marking everything that God said in the Bible in red. I found there is much said about the mind in Deuteronomy. Next, I was impressed to underline every verse in the New Testament that told me something that I should do.

I soon realized that I really didn't know what I should think with my mind. It occurred to me that my mind is to be an instrument for my spirit's use and not the other way around. The hands, feet, eyes, ears and body obey, so why not make the mind obey? To make the mind obey, I needed to know what to make it do.

I had to learn how to tell the difference between God's and the Devil's thoughts. The battleground for the Christian is primarily for his soul, not body or spirit. The demons want to re-enter through your mind.

Situations around you will not necessarily change immediately now that you have changed. Just as you practiced obedience to the demons' words, now practice obedience to God's Word.

This is my first encounter with the Devil after I was delivered. Before I was delivered, I would get very-angry and depressed when I cleaned house. At that time, we had wall-to-wall furniture. The living room was really badly cluttered. Each piece of furniture had to be moved to vacuum around it. I was happy and didn't hate this house anymore.

As I was vacuuming the living room, I dropped a table on my toe and was having trouble getting the vacuum nozzle under the sofa. I raised up and let out a loud, "I hate this—". God quickly warned me that "life and death is in the tongue, and they that love it will eat the fruit thereof (Prov. 18:21). I knew that I must not complete the sentence as I would be back where I started from. I repented and repeated until I believed it, "I love this house and I thank God for it".

God also told me at this time that He had given it to my family. If I didn't have an attitude of gratitude about the house and furniture, He could easily remove them from me (Deut. 27:48).

My next attack was sent through people who asked why I looked so much better and was losing weight. I would answer truthfully and say, "I was delivered of demons and no, I was not dieting". If three people were present, you would get three distinct reactions. One would leave pronto, one would regard you as if you were radioactive, and one would grab your arm and want to know more.

Then you'd hear whispers—she had demons! They only talk about demons; do they worship them? They are fanatical; they believe there is a demon under every bush!

Next, I was tempted to go back to some of my old habits of retaliation, etc. I must crucify the flesh-God said that vengeance belongs to Him (Rom. 12:19). I must not habitually sin or else I become the demon's house in that area again (I John 3:8-9).

Mental suggestions by the Devil must be put down. He will suggest a what if, could be or maybe. If this happens, what will you do (fear and more fear)? Unless you have facts to base your knowledge on, don't let the Devil play you along.

One of his tactics was to attack me about Marie: what if Marie can't adjust to her brother's death? Before deliverance, I would cringe in fear and worry. After deliverance, I learned to tell Satan that Marie can do all things through Christ who strengthens her; I can too!

You don't have to be perfect to give a word of encouragement, share an experience, help someone or even cast out a demon. If God wanted perfection, nothing would ever get done. I'm almost fifty-two years old and I have yet to meet a perfect person.

You must have a total commitment to Jesus Christ. Rely totally on Him and His Word. Do these things and you will continue to get free and stay free. Don't be double minded: deciding and undeciding. Remember that a double-minded man is unstable in all his ways. Give very careful study to what you read in the Bible and carefully compare it to the thing you need to make a decision on. When you have judged it by the Biblical instructions then don't waver.

3. CHILDREN'S DELIVERANCE

GENERAL

Husbands are often the most effective in commanding spirits to leave their wives, with the support of others. This is true with his children also. (Sit together as families during deliverance. A husband has special power and authority over his family that even I don't have as a deliverance minister.)

Children must be disciplined by their parents (Proverbs 13:23). The prayerful and judicious application of the rod can act as a deterrent to childish and foolish behavior (Proverbs 22:15). Parents many times prepare the way for deep-seated spirits of Fear, Rejection and Conditional Love to enter. God will turn the heart of the father (not the mothers) to the children (Malachi 4:6 and Colossians 3:21). A child left to rear himself is a disaster going somewhere to happen (Proverbs 29:15). Indwelling demons can be present because of inheritance, curses, habitual sin, or legal holds or grounds from other sources. The punishment should equal the offence. We provoke our children to wrath when we punish more severely than the offence justifies. The offence should be explained. Other ways to behave should be explored. Then show love; give a hug, approval, compliment on good behavior or improvement of conduct. (The book of Proverbs was a special comfort to me after Byron died because we had disciplined him; he was a well-behaved son.)

Scripture warns us to have nothing to do with fairy tales, fables, enchantments, charmers or such like:

Titus 1:14 (fables turn one from truth) and II Peter 1:16 (declares importance of truth). Children at a susceptible age may well be opened up to spirits of Fear, Error, Perversity, Lying and Fantasy. (God is ultimate truth and there is no fantasy in God or in His Word. Fantasy causes most of our young people's problems: drugs, drink, sex, etc.)

The truth is important to God and many, ignorantly, cause children to believe a lie in the guise of a friendly, jolly, phoney, called Santa Claus. This lie caused our daughter to doubt that her parents would tell her the truth. All lies come from the Devil (John 8:44). (God taught us to tell the truth in love, we practice tough love!)

The encyclopedia says that the origin of dolls is witchcraft and magic. Only witch doctors or medicine men were allowed to handle them. To this day, multitudes of idol (demon) worshippers

use dolls in pagan religious ceremonies. Exodus 20:4 - No graven images and Jeremiah 48:10 - Lord places a curse on those that use deceit. (Pray and ask the Holy Spirit to show you what dolls to throw away; be cautious about any doll.)

The inventor of the first deck of cards evidently hated God and the Bible, and designed a message in the cards which was the exact opposite of the truth of Scripture. Jesus is supposed to be the joker. Witches, psychics and Satan worshippers use playing cards for divination, and to cast spells and curses. It is time that Christians clean house and destroy the hidden works of darkness. (I John 2:15-17; Romans 12:1-2; II Corinthians 6:17-18 and I Timothy 6:12). (Playing card games can become addictive.)

By initiating young, interested believers into the battle for deliverance, they soon become seasoned soldiers, learning tactics of war in the battlefield. (We have taught small children to cast out demons; the demons hate to have to obey children! First grade children were taught to war in the spirit.)

MINISTRY TO CHILDREN

(Excerpts) Since it has already been shown that demon spirits are able to gain entrance to a fetus and to children, it is obvious that there should be deliverance for them.

Demons can be called out of children in the same way they are called out of older persons. There will be manifestations of the spirits leaving through the mouth and nose as in other deliverances. (They can also be cast out of the fetus in the womb.)

Ordinarily, children are quite easily delivered. Since the spirits have not been there very long, they are not as deeply embedded in the flesh. There are exceptions to this, as in the case of children who have been exposed to demonic attack through severe circumstances. The manifestations of the demons can be quite dramatic, even in children. (It is fun to cast demons out of babies, watch demons manifest and watch them leave.)

A young Christian couple brought their three month old child for ministry. This was their first baby and they had disagreed as to how to discipline the child. The father and mother had a violent argument over the matter. While they were having this argument, the child began to scream, and since the incident it was apparent that the child was suffering from tormenting spirits. My wife held the child in her arms and began to command the troubling spirits to go in the name of Jesus. As the first spirit came out, the baby stiffened and cried out. Two other demons came out in the same way. Then the child grew quiet and relaxed, and was soon asleep.

Most children by the age of five or six can be given a simple explanation of what you are going to do before you begin the ministry. They need to know that you are not talking to them but to the spirits in them, otherwise they may be offended or frightened by words of command addressed to the evil spirits. Usually the children are quite cooperative. Since the children may feel more secure with a parent, it is often best for the parent to hold the child during the ministry. The deliverance minister must discern reactions in the child attributable to the spirits being stirred up. The spirits may cause the child to resist being held. He may cry or scream and show signs of great fear. The demons may try various tactics to make one think it is, the child being hurt or wronged. The minister and/or parent will then become so sympathetic with the child that they

will stop the ministry and the demons retain their hold. (Don't be fooled or become sympathetic to the demons!)

Especially in ministry with children it is well to remember the fact that it is not the loudness of a command that moves the demon but the authority of the name and of the blood of the Lord Jesus Christ. The commands can be given with such calmness and matter-of-factness that the child will scarcely realize what is taking place. (Speak quietly and softly; this infuriates the demons! Know your authority over the forces of evil.)

How do infants and children keep themselves free from the demons once they are delivered, since they are not competent to protect themselves? It is not the responsibility of the child but of his parents or guardians. I believe you will find in the Scripture that when Jesus ministered to children, one or both of the parents were present. It is the responsibility of parents to be the spiritual guardians of their children. (Very few parents do their job properly.)

CHILDREN AND DELIVERANCE

(Excerpts) Some people say that children do not need deliverance. I could not disagree more. Parents have a solemn responsibility to provide protection for their offspring in the matter of spiritual warfare. So many curses, legal holds, and other legal grounds can be inherited through the ignorance, curiosity, and/or willful disobedience of the parent. In addition, our society provides a climate for demon infestation. (We have not seen any parents that have protected their children completely or properly; we didn't.)

Once one is alerted to the dangers of passing on weaknesses, infirmities and other unpleasant things to offspring, he should begin breaking curses, destroying legal holds and grounds, and binding any inherited spirits. This is preparation for casting them out. The occult demons are tremendously powerful and tenacious, often staying in families for centuries. People afflicted with them are highly susceptible to psychic phenomena and influence. (Notice that the deliver-ance prayers are establishing the basis for casting out the demons.)

We have seen children (from babies to teens) receive significant deliverance in the church and at home.

Parents are able to minister some of this to younger ones while the child is sleeping. There need be no fear created in the child about deliverance.

They will usually be able to handle the idea of casting out evil spirits better than many adults. (Adults have to overcome false religious teaching, ignorance of the Bible, and fear of deliverance.)

When a child is brought to us for prayer, we ask that one or both parents accompany them, preferably the father, since he has the most spiritual authority.

Often I will talk briefly with the child, allaying any fears, with love for him. (We will not minister to the children without the parents present.)

Usually I ask if he sometimes does or says things he doesn't really want to do, things which get him into trouble. After an affirmative answer, I will mention that often ugly things called spirits get into a boy or girl and cause this sort of thing. I also talk with the child about asking the Lord Jesus to come into his heart (Revelation 3:20) if he has not already done so. I then ask if he would like for those things to come out of him if they are there. Children seldom want problem-causing things and usually readily consent to prayer.

I pray for them, quietly taking authority over the spirits and commanding them to manifest and leave. If they are stubborn and the father is present, I will have him take authority and guide him in what to pray. In practically every case this combined assault will rout the demons. (The parents should enter into the deliverance of their children in church and at home.)

If parents wait until the child is grown up before attempting deliverance, they will discover the enemy has wasted no time and has burrowed in deeply, often scarring body and mind. They will work tirelessly to put a child in bondage, drag him out into the world, and enslave him with many sinful habits. An ounce of prevention here is certainly worth the proverbial pound of cure. (Full Gospel Christians are in general very demonized, not demon possessed, but simply have many demons!)

CURSES ON CHILDREN

- 1. Children born from incestuous unions (Gen. 19:36-38).
- Curse of idol worship extends to fourth generation of great-grandchildren (Exodus 20:1-5).
- 3. Children who strike their parents (Exodus 21:15).
- 4. Those who curse their parents (Exodus 21:17).
- 5. Iniquity of fathers on children (Exodus 34:6-7).
- 6. Children wandered for 40 years (Numbers 14:18 & 33).
- 7. Idol worship (Deut. 5:9-10).
- 8. Rebellious children (Deut. 21:18-21).
- 9. Curse of the bastard extends to tenth generation of descendants (Deut. 23:2).
- 10. In son's days evil will come on his house (I Kings 21:19).
- 11. The iniquity of the father upon the children (Jer. 32:18).

DEMONIC RELIGIOUS CULTS FOR THE YOUNG

(Excerpts) There is a strange hold that many weird cults have on thousands of ensnared young people which is through demonic control spirits. In the name of liberty, they have opened the door for terrible bondage (II Peter 2:19, 20).

Some of the most well-known are: Children of God, Unification, International Society of Krishna Consciousness, Forever Family, The Mission, The Process, Scientology, Love Israel, The Assembly, The Body, The Farm, The Way, etc.

Deeply craving and seeking peer approval, a disciplined life and a better world than the one they see, these youngsters do not realize how easily they can be deceived. Knowing the vulnerability of the group, unscrupulous promoters work zealously to exploit them and their unspoken cry, "I am important, please notice me".

In the beginning, the approach is always warm, friendly and accepting. Chanting is often used to focus attention and limit peripheral vision.

The cruelty, selfishness and egotism of the leaders is unbelievable. Many are Jezebellian women, some are charismatic witches. Others are vicious and unprincipled men, depraved and driven to all sorts of excesses.

Jesus said, "Ye shall know the truth and the truth shall set you free" (John 8:32). Paul admonished believers not to be entangled again in the yoke of bondage (Galatians 5:1). God's people are to be peculiar (I Peter 2:9; Titus 2:14) but that peculiarity is to be found in the fact that they are zealous of good works and seek to honor God's name.

Proverbs 22:6 says train up a child, Prov. 23:13 says withhold not correction and Prov. 29:15 says rod and reproof bring wisdom. Rejection or withholding love, correction, praise or instruction will open a child to receive a counterfeit for the real love he or she needs. Even though a child would probably not realize it, his soul cries for love, discipline, training and instruction. They will find someone to do these things for them, even if what they find is a counterfeit.

ABUSED CHILDREN

Abuse means to use ill; to maltreat; to misuse; to use with bad motives or wrong purposes; to violate; to defile; to deceive; to impose on; to treat harshly; to use insulting, coarse, or bad language about or to; to revile. Rejection is the basic cause of abuse. All types of rejection work to destroy the mental and emotional health of an individual.

You are rejecting when you do not set a proper example, or withhold correction or instruction or love.

As you can see, abuse (whether verbal, physical, mental or sexual) has a deep and lasting effect on a person. It affects all their relationships and all they do. This includes neglect. II Tim. 3:2 says that in the end times people will be lovers of self, utterly self-centered. Most child abuse comes from selfish parents. When a child is neglected or rejected, damage is done to them emotionally, mentally and physically which is almost impossible to overcome without God's provision of salvation and deliverance. Psychiatry and psychology attempt to help you live with effect of abuse. God has provided a way to get rid of the effects.

Emotionally these children are unsure of themselves, and everyone or almost everyone around them. Often they are unable to be still or concentrate.

Emotions are always at an extreme pitch. They cannot handle conflict but are threatened by it. Often they lash out in temper when problems need to be solved.

Mentally they cannot trust others or themselves. They have difficulty learning due mainly to being emotionally unsound. Some become so fearful they are always watching everyone around them. Some are pressured so by rejection, they go to unnatural or extreme means to succeed. Lying does not seem so bad if it will stop the abuse. Many become schizophrenic, paranoid and psychotic. Schizophrenics are double or many minded, and unable to cope with reality (James 1:4-6). Some become either catatonic, rejecting any activity, or extremely active and talkative, and have hallucinations (II Tim. 3:3). The paranoid mind has delusions of grandeur and persecution. Psychotics simply refuse to acknowledge reality (II Tim. 3:4): the town bum, drunks, sexual perverts, etc. Many that we call hypocrites are in this group (II Tim. 3:5). They will put on whatever face they feel will get the best treatment for them.

Many times an abused child will mildly or completely neglect themselves to convey the idea to others that they are worthless or at fault. By their attitudes they invite sickness, etc. Or, they go to the other extreme -they must always look beautiful to hide their real selves. Doing many things to harm themselves, they always have a hate/love relationship with themselves.

If a child is beaten, it will, when it becomes an adult, tend to do the same thing to its children. I know that God helped me in this area. As a small child coming home from school one day after a particularly hard time, a voice told me, "You don't have to be like your people, you have the ability to choose which way you will go". With my children, I would never touch to punish when I was really mad or upset.

Since these senseless beatings have no reason, the child becomes confused and frustrated. Many work extremely hard to prove themselves. Many go to great lengths to succeed but are riddled by self-doubt. They stop short of their goals adding more failure and self-hatred, etc. to their life.

In mental abuse, children follow pretty much the same pattern as physical abuse. Eventually they accept or partially accept the verbal abuse as true. Dishonest dealing with children makes them fearful of trusting.

Hence they have trouble trusting God because parents who are authority figures have not been trustworthy. They always have nervous problems.

Sexually abused children have all the above problems. Hate figures in all abuse, but is extreme in a sexually abused child. The abused child may take up homosexuality, sadism, etc. and become frigid. Any form of abuse can lead to mental illness.

First, the child who has been abused must learn to forgive. When tempted to hate again, the child must not let it rule him or her.

Come to understand that the parent or abuser has had much trouble in his or her life. If the person is young, you should seek help and protection from this abuser.

If you have had unexplained nervousness, fears, lying, inability to trust, always having to prove yourself, in dead-heat competition, hate and hatefulness, strong leaning to sexual perversions, hypocritical, fantasy, inability to cope with life or people, extreme self-centeredness, extreme emotions, bad temper, depression, confusion, frustrations, being victimized or unable to control your actions, then you probably need deliverance in your subconscious mind as well as conscious mind. After deliverance, you will need to learn what the Bible says about each area where you obtained deliverance and teach yourself to obey. Without the demons inside, you should be able to obey God's instructions. Ask God for understanding of yourself. Learn to think differently than before.

For example: most abused people have a problem feeling gratitude because they have been victimized repeatedly. They cannot be glad or grateful when something good happens because they fear it has a price to be paid. Learn Deut. 28:47 - to serve the Lord in gratitude of heart and mind for all that He has blessed you with (an example of what parents' attitudes should be). Remember, Jesus died for you before you were ever born. Forgive everyone to the degree that you can truly pray for them to be saved and receive blessings of God. Realize that their troubles are probably as great or greater than yours. Realize it is not entirely or maybe not at all your fault.

DOLLS

(Excerpts) Dolls were believed to bring good luck to their owners, to make livestock give more milk, help win wars, and heal the sick. Only witch doctors or medicine men were allowed to handle them.

The dictionary defines a doll as a small carved or molded figure which served as a cult object or representation of a nursery story, cartoon or puppet character.

Both World Book and Britannica point out that dolls were buried with people and were supposed to be friends and servants in the spirit world.

Roman and Greek girls, in preparation for marriage, would leave their dolls on the altar of the temples of Artemis and Diana. To this day multitudes of idol (demon) worshippers use dolls in pagan religious ceremonies.

DOLLS IN TOLEDO, OHIO

(Excerpts) One night when my wife was complaining to me about the child's insolence, out of nowhere, I said, "Her problems are those stinking doll babies, it's witchcraft."

Read Daniel 11:38; God of forces means munitions. The below games include force or munitions. In the games munitions is associated with occult, charms and magic.

Years ago God showed me the reason for Walt Disney movies, full of occult workings and such as E.T. It was to get the children to feel comfortable, even to love the better of the evil presented to them. Do you think it has worked?

The next night while I was praying for someone's deliverance, she picked up an encyclopedia to check what it said about dolls! There it was: "origin in witchcraft and magic".

DOLLS FOR BABY - SEVEN MONTHS OLD

(Excerpts) The Lord began to show us the legal grounds Satan held. It was in his dolls! He had received one for Christmas and a small plastic boy sailor doll at birth. The Lord also told my husband of various stuffed toys (in shapes of animals - whales, dogs and kangaroos), a plastic toy "Big Bird" and matching bib. These were thrown away and curses from them broken. (Look for strange sicknesses or sicknesses that will not heal in children).

When the Lord commanded that "no graven images" were to be made, He wasn't being cruel and heartless. He knew the damage they could put upon people (Exodus 20:4). The Lord has also shown us that puppets are a deception and the Lord places a curse on those that use deceit (Jer. 48:10).

MARIONETTES, MARIOLATRY, MUMMERY, PUPPETRY & VENTRILOQUISM (See Section 7: Holidays and Puppetry, Marionettes, Mariolatry)

CONCLUSION

God is total reality; there is no fantasy or play acting in God! There is no unreality in the Bible! Christians should not deal in any spiritual fantasy. Fantasy is very simply a lie that is not from God.

God does not need any human circus or side shows to sell and promote the Kingdom of God! All it takes is a straight forward application of the Bible with signs, wonders and miracles following the true teaching of the Word of God to attract people to church. Jesus said if you don't believe me then believe my miracles.

SATAN IN THE TOY STORE

How can a child be influenced to readily accept demons? Webster's defines fantasy as 1) imagination or fancy, especially wild, visionary fancy; 2) unreal mental image; illusion; phantasm; 3) whim; queer notion; caprice; 4) an imaginative poem, play, etc.; and 5) in psychology, a mental image as in a day dream.

Movies - Star Wars, Dark Cauldrons, etc. aim to frighten, to deceive, to familiarize children with hideous characters, to entice children to accept evil as good, etc. "Woe to those who call evil good and good evil" (Isa.5:20). For instance, consider E.T. He could heal, raise the dead, etc.; a mockery of Jesus and a horrible creature.

In our work with people, we have found fantasy to be a major problem. Many people under 35 years old have a hard time living in a real world. Dwelling in fantasy has become to them the real world; the real world is fantasy. Fantasy costs in lost mental power, satisfaction of life and work.

Cartoons draw on Egyptology - Isis, mythology, witchcraft, occult, Smurfs, Dungeons & Dragons, Little People and Gremlins. The most violent block of T.V. time is Saturday morning.

Fairy Tales and Walt Disney movies are full of occult practices: Mary Poppins, Dark Cauldron, etc. Video games incite destruction and death. Rock music and subliminal music is meant to operate on stimuli that exist below the threshold of the conscious mind. Its goal is to awaken the energy center (in the brain) and to expand mental awareness. Scientific instruments have proved it reaches its goal. Music is more powerful than drugs.

New Age Children's music is to incite rebellion and self elevation. Rock music leads young people into sexual perversions and violence.

TOYS WITH OCCULT LINKAGE OR EXCESSIVE VIOLENCE

SMURFS:(German word for demon) - Papa Smurf is a wizard who casts spells and mixes potions, and often refers to Beelzebub (Satan) in the cartoons. He practices sorcery and witchcraft. Wizards and witches were put to death in the Old Testament. Paying heed to them, however amusing or cute and innocent they seem to be, gives respectability to that which God forbids for He knows it leads to one opening up oneself to satanic bondage. Ignore and Renounce!

STAR WARS: The theme is based on a cosmic force taken from Zen Buddhism and Eastern religions.

EMPIRE STRIKES BACK: Yoda is referred to as a Zen master.

E.T. TOYS: E.T. levitates, uses mental telepathy, heals supernaturally, resurrected, imitation of the life of Jesus, operates in the occult.

DUNGEONS & DRAGONS: Fantasy game fought in the minds of the players. Teaches demonology, witchcraft, voodoo, murder, rape, blasphemy, suicide, assassination, insanity, sex perversion, homosexuality, Satan worship, barbarianism, cannibalism, sadism, demon summoning, necromancy and divination. Human sacrifice. Some game!!

RAINBOW BRITE AND SPRITES: Sprites are listed in the advanced D & D Monster Manual. New Age Movement uses rainbow symbol with the star.

SHE-RA: Princess of power, magic power, female defender of the universe. RA is the name of an Egyptian sun god.

PEGASUS: Flying horse from D & D monster manual. New Age Movement uses it for astral flight/meditation.

UNICORNS: D & D Monster Manual; Medieval kings and popes used amulet made from horn; believed to have magical and healing powers.

CARE BEARS: (Not Really???) Wear charms (amulets) to keep away evil spirits (occult symbols). Rabbit foot, rainbow with star (New Age symbol), horseshoe, four leaf clover. Latest character, wizard. HERSELF THE ELF: Elves are inferior spirit beings with great powers supposedly. Magical flowers. MAGIC KIT: It's magic, spirit slate with mystery computer. Teaches how to become a magician. CABBAGE PATCH DOLLS: Creates soul tie with child; mockery of life and death and natural emotions. CABBAGE PATCH PLAYMATES - (to promote illegitimacy) - Amulets Koosas - mysterious cuddly creature which brings good luck - adoptable -you name them.

PUNK ROCK DOLL: Name and adopt, same as above. GREMLINS: Violent, sadistic; use transformation (New Age concept), Cannibalism, and promotional scheme. From English word "germane" to vex. Kill and viciously attack people.

CROSSBOWS & CATAPULTS: Designed from "Dark Ages"; Vikings vs. Barbarians, very violent. Fantasy. SWORD & SORCERY BATTLE GEAR: Fantasy, sorcery, occult, violence.

G.I. JOE: Now adding occult characters to their ranks of regular army characters.

STARRIORS: Warrior robots kill for control of earth using chain saws, buzz saw, drills, spiked ream, vibrator chisel.

SECRET WARS: Fight aliens with secret messages (occult); the 'Force', wild mutants and hideous creature transformation.

OTHER WORLD: Similar to D & D. Violence with warlords, demons, dragons.

BLACK STAR: Warlock with alien demon; similar to D&D.

BLACKSTONE: Teaches magic.

MASTERS OF THE UNIVERSE: Evil lords of destruction, beast man, evil ocean warlord ... sorcery. Trying to take the place of Jesus as protector of His creation.

TRANSFORMER: New Age concept. The deceptive leader promotes peace through tyranny. Links up to Black Hole. Occult practice can change body into another form.

SNAKE MOUNTAIN: Player becomes the snake and works the demon's jaws as he speaks. Experiment with demon power.

ROBO FORCE: Evil Robot Empire, very violent, "He has killer instinct and a crusher hand". Dictator and destroyer.

GO BOTS: Alien robots? Transformation into vehicles. Confuse good and evil.

BOARD GAMES: These games open children to the influence of occult power, wizardry, violence, mind control and witchcraft: Thundar-Barbarian, Pandemonium, Magic 8 Ball, Monster Mansion, Krull (occult with sorcerer),

Herself the Elf, Gremlins, Dragon Master, Mythical Cards, Dungeon, Ouija, Dark Towers, Magical Crystals, Dragon Lords, Towers of Night, Forest of Doom, Fires of Shadarr, Star Wars and Yoda, Fantasy Card Game, Hell Pits of Night-Fang, Rune Quest, Chivalry, Sorcery and Arduin-Grimoire.

SUMMARY

II Timothy 4:4 - "In the last days they will not endure sound DOCTRINE. They shall turn away their ears from hearing the truth; they shall turn unto FABLES and MYTHS!" Webster's Dictionary defines FABLES as a fictitious narrative, legendary story of supernatural happenings, a narrative story in which animals SPEAK AND ACT LIKE HUMAN BEINGS. Beware Christian, these are the END TIMES!

SCRIPTURES PERTAINING TO OCCULT PRACTICES

ENCHANTMENTS: The act of influencing by charms and incantations, the practice of magical arts.

ENCHANTER: Sorcerer, magician, one who uses the human voice or music to bring another person under psychic control (Lev. 19:26; Deut. 18:10-12; II Chron. 33:6; II Kings 17:17; Isa. 47:8-11; Jer. 27:8-9; Daniel 1:20).

WITCHCRAFT: The practice of dealing with evil spirits, the use of sorcery or magic (Deut. 18:10-12; II Chron. 33:6; I Sam. 15:23; Gal. 5:19-21).

SORCERY: The use of power gained from the assistance or control of evil spirits, especially for divining (Jer. 27:9; Isa. 47:9; Rev. 21:8).

DIVINATION: Fortune telling (Deut. 18:10-14; II Kings 17:17; Jer. 27:8-9; Jer. 29:8-9; Acts 16:16-24).

WIZARDRY: The art or practices of a wizard, sorcery.

WIZARD: One skilled in magic, sorcerer, male witch, to be destroyed in Israel (Deut. 18:11; 2 Kings 17:17; Ex. 22:18).

NECROMANCY: Communication with the dead, conjuration of the spirits of the dead for purposes of magically revealing the future or influencing the course of events (Deut. 18:11; I Sam. 28:1-25; Isa. 8:19; I Chron. 10:13-14).

CHARM: Put a spell upon someone, to affect by magic, (Deut. 18:11; Isa. 19:3).

STAR GAZING OR ASTROLOGY: The divination of the supposed influence of the stars upon human affairs and terrestrial events by their positions and aspects (Isa. 47:12-15; Jer. 10:2; Dan. 1:18-20; 2:1-49; 4:1-37; 5:7-15).

SOOTHSAYING: The act of foretelling events, prophesying by a spirit other than the Holy Spirit (Jos. 13:22; Micah 5:12-15; Acts 16:16-18).

PROGNOSTICATION: To foretell from signs or symptoms, prophesying without the Holy Spirit, soothsaying (Isa. 47:12-15; Jos. 13:22; Micah 5:12-15).

OBSERVING TIMES: Astrology (Lev. 19:26; Deut. 18:10-14; II Kings 21:6; II Chron. 33:6).

MAGIC: Witchcraft (See same scriptures).

SINS OF THE ANCESTORS: (See Section 5: Curses, Curse of the Bastard).

REFERENCES

- 1. Pages 65 and 66, Chapter 14, Ministry to Children, *Pigs In The Parlor*.
- 2. Pages 33 through 35, Children & Deliverance, *Demolishing The Hosts Of Hell*.

3. Tracts on demonic toys, movies, games and music written by Shirley Smith, 9700 Highway 107, Sherwood, Arkansas 72116.

LIST OF DEMONS FOR ABUSED CHILDREN GENERAL LIST OF DEMONS TO CAST OUT

A good general list of demons to cast out of children is the Schizophrenia-Paranoid Hands list of demon families found on Pages 126 and 127, Chapter 21, Schizophrenia, "Pigs in the Parlor". It can be used for mass or individual deliverance. Start with Rejection, then Root of Bitterness, then Rebellion families. After going through basic deliverance, the three R's, then start to cast out the other demon families (Schizophrenia-Paranoia).

Find out the child's problems by talking to the parents (and the child if possible). After doing deliverance in paragraph above, then work on specific demon families identified for the individual. You can also use the previously listed names of demonic toys, movies, games and music as the names of demons in deliverance. Very simply, there is a name of a demon for every evil practice that is contrary to the Holy Bible!

	Cast Out of Abused Children	1
Beating	Spite	Drugs
Discontent	Mental Illness Forgetfulness	
Covetousness	Heartbreak	Self-Awareness
Hate	Hatred	Quarreling
Dejection	Retarded	Incoherence
Stealing	Crying (For Control Of Oth-	Self-Condemnation
Guilt	ers)	Fighting
Hopelessness	Cruelty	Doubt
Kleptomania	Madness	Self-Protection
Retaliation	Contention	Torment
Suicide	Manic Depressive	Unbelief
Material Lust	Sadness	Sexual Impurity
Destruction	Daydreaming	Harassment
Death (Welcome Fantasy)	Paranoia	Skepticism Lust Funk
Food Lust	Laziness	Indecision
Pouting	Fantasy	Incest
Morbidity	Unfairness	Listlessness
Greed	Death	Procrastination
Cursing	Distrust	Fantasy Lust
Heaviness	Fear Of Judgement	Lethargy
Criticism	Cursing	Compromise
Berating	Pretension	Masturbation
Gloom	Fear Of Condemnation	Depression
Intolerance	Gossip	Pride
Inferiority	Unreality	Homosexuality
False Burdens	Fear Of Accusation	Despair
Irritability	Mockery	Ego
Lonely	Escape	Harlotry
Worry	Fear Of Reproof	Despondency
Competition	Belittling	Fear Of Authority

Names of Possible Demons to Cast Out of Abused Children

Timid And Shy	Indifference	Rape
Dread	Sensitiveness	Disgust
Driving	Railing	Lying And Deceit (For
Inadequacy	Stoicism	Protection)
Apprehension	Hallucinations	Exposure
Argument	Idleness	Discouraged
Ineptness	Passivity	Frigidity
Nervousness	Nightmares	Defeated
Grief	Self-Pity	Pretense
Suspicion	Sleepiness	Murder
Excitement	Confusion	Sadism
Sorrow	Self-Reward	Backbiting
Jealousy	Alcohol	Hyperactive
Schizophrenia	Frustration	Driving
Heartache	Self-Hatred	No Peace

SECTION 14 - HEALING AND BODY

CONTENTS

- 1. Jesus Set Marie's Broken Arm
- 2. Body Cured And Healed By Deliverance
- 3. Drunkenness And Gluttony
- 4. Drugs & Medicine
- 5. Child Drug Addicts

1. JESUS SET MARIE'S BROKEN ARM

One Sunday after going to church, we decided to get Marie's horse, King Fox, and go to Highland Park near Baton Rouge, Louisiana. After enjoying an afternoon in the sun, we told Marie to ride back and stable the horse so that we could go to Sunday evening services. She rode through the woods and we rode around the woods in our car.

When we got back to the stables, the horse was tied up and Marie was lying in a car. She had fallen off King Fox and broken her arm. Her face was white and her lips were blue. This shocked Earline and I but we had the presence of the Holy Spirit so we prayed for Marie; nothing happened outwardly.

After putting the horse in the stable and Marie in our car, we headed for home. We didn't know whether to take her to the hospital or to the doctor or to depend upon God for healing. As we rode back home, the Lord quickened Psalm 37:23 to my mind, "The steps of a good man are ordered by the Lord". I asked God to order our steps about what to do.

After we reached home, Marie sat in the car and felt of the bones in her arm. She could feel the dislocated broken bones. We called our family doctor, Dr. Lee, but he was out and his backup was not to be found either, PRAISE THE LORD! Earline said that one of us should be in the car with Marie.

I said I would go and went back to my study to get the anointing oil. As I came out, Earline said, "Go get your oil and pray for Marie". God had given us a "Word of Wisdom" found in I Cor. 18:8, one of the nine gifts of the Holy Spirit. We were familiar with James 5:14-15 about anointing with oil and praying the prayer of faith. I then anointed Marie's forehead, held her hand of the broken arm, and we all prayed again. Her arm tingled and she could feel the bones moving within the arm, PRAISE THE LORD!

We then took her to Doctor's Memorial Hospital where she was x-rayed and attended by Dr. Kilroy, a bone specialist. He was a very talkative doctor and showed us the x-ray. He could see a complete break through the shoulder socket. The bone was perfectly set and a chipped bone was perfectly in place. We told Dr. Kilroy about praying for her arm and he said that it was unusual to see that type of break and not have to set the bone.

He put a cast just past Marie's elbow and said come back in three weeks. Earline and Marie prayed that she would be completely healed by then. Dr. Kilroy examined her and took another x-ray to prove she was not healed. PRAISE THE LORD, she was healed, the cast was taken off,

and she rode King Fox three weeks after the arm was broken! Any doctor will tell you that it takes six to eight weeks to heal an ordinary break and longer for complicated breaks.

We had memorized a verse in church the Sunday before the accident, Jer. 32:27, "Behold I am the Lord, the God of all flesh: is there anything too hard for Me?" The answer naturally is, no; God is not limited by our faith.

Since then I have heard of three other cases where God set the bones and I personally know two of the individuals.

THE LORD TAUGHT US A NUMBER OF LESSONS:

- 1. Anointing with oil is important to Him.
- 2. Plead the blood of Jesus over your family everyday.
- 3. He will heal injuries as well as sickness.
- 4. Be ready to pray at all times.

To God be the glory, honor and praise for everything that was done.

2. BODY - CURED AND HEALED BY DELIVERANCE LIST OF SCRIPTURE

There are many healing Scriptures in the Holy Bible; the following is a good list:

Exodus 15:26; 23:25-26	
Numbers 12:13; 16:46-48; 21:7-9; 23:19	
Deut. 7:15; 28:15-61	
2 Kings 5:14; 20:5	
2 Chron. 16:12-13	
Job 2:6-7; 5:26	
Psalms 27:1; 30:2; 34:19-20; 37:25; 42:11; 91:10, 14-16; 103:1-3; 105:37; 107:20	
Proverbs 3:7-8; 4:20-22; 12:18; 13:3; 16:24	
Isaiah 53:4-5; 58:6,8; 59:19; 61:1	
Jeremiah 8:22; 16:19; 17:14; 30:17; 33:3,6	
Matthew 4:23-24; 7:7-8; 8:6-17; 9:2,5-6,20-22; 9:27-30,32-35; 10:1, 7-8; 12:13,15,	22,
24; 13:15; 14:14,36; 15:28; 17:14-21; 18:19-20	
Mark 1:22-25,40; 2:5,9,11; 3:10-15; 5:23, 28-31,34,36; 6:1-6,13,56; 9:23-25;	
10:46-47,52; 11:20-24; 16:14-20	
Luke 1:37-38; 4:8-32, 35, 39, 41; 5:9-13; 6:19, 37-42; 7:21-23; 8:28-30, 36; 9:1-	-
2; 10:8-9,17-20; 11:14; 13:11-17; 17:11-19; 18:35-43	
John 4:47-53; 5:5,14; 6:2,63; 8:32,36; 10:10; 14:12-16; 15:5,7; 16:23-24	
Acts 1:8; 3:4-6; 4:9; 5:12,14-16; 8:5-8; 9:18,34; 10:38; 14:8-11; 16:18; 19:11-	
16; 28:8-9	
1 Cor. 12:9-10	
2 Cor. 9:8; 10:4-5	
Galatians 3:13	
Ephesians 3:20; 6:10-18	
Phil. 2:27; 4:13	
2 Timothy 1:7	

Hebrews	2:4; 11:1,6,11, 34; 12:2,6-8; 13:8
James	4:7; 5:13-16
1 Peter	1:3-7; 2:20,24; 4:12-19; 5:7-8,10
2 Peter	1:3-4
1 John	4:4; 5:4,14-15
Rev.	12:10-11

Also see I Corinthians 5:4-8 for the destruction of the flesh for sin and II Corinthians 12:7-9 for the messenger of Satan to buffet Paul to keep him humble.

Jeremiah 33:6	(health and cure)
46:11	(not be cured)
53:6	(cure them)
Hosea 5:13	(cure them)
Matthew 17:16	(not cure him)
17:18	(child was cured)
Luke 7:21	(cured many of their infirmities)
9:1	(cure diseases)
13:32	(I do cures)
John 5:10	(him that was cured)

OLD TESTAMENT MEDICINE AND HEALING

- 1. A medicine, healing (cure).
- 2. To mend, to heal (cure).
- 3. Heal it, to remove (cure).
- 4. Bandage as placed on a wound (cured).

NEW TESTAMENT (RELIEVING AND MAKING WHOLE)

- 1. To relieve of disease.
- 2. To attend (cure, cured).
- 3. Healing, make whole (cures).
- 4. I made a study of cures in the Bible; here is what I found. Either you can pray to God or you can go to the physicians to be cured. Medicine is used to relieve diseases. The Israelites had to depend on God for their cures; they were not trained medically. God is displeased when Christians do not seek God first for their cures. We have found that demons come into a person when they have an operation and are given an anesthetic. Demons also come into the child during birth by operation and drugs.

EXCERPTS FROM THE BIBLE

The following are excerpts from the Bible that show how the body can be cured and healed by the casting out of demons:

Matt. 4:23-24	Torments, lunatic, possessed with devils - healed.
8:16-17	Possessed with devils - healed sick.
12:22	Possessed with devil, blind and dumb healed him.
17:14-21	Rebuked the devil - child was cured.

Luke 4:38-39	Rebuked the fever and it left her.
6:17-19	Vexed with unclean spirits and they were healed.
7:21	And plagues and of evil spirits - cured.
8:2	Of evil spirits and infirmities - healed.
9:37-42	Rebuked the unclean spirit - healed the child.
13:11-17	Spirit of infirmity- healed.

Apparently the casting out of demons is considered healing by the Bible; it frequently says that demons were cast out and they were healed. Other verses make a strong REFERENCES to this phenomenon.

Demons can lie dormant while waiting for the right opportunity to strike. They can be in the body due to inherited sins from the ancestors.

POSSIBLE ROOTS OF INFIRMITY

John 10:10, "The thief cometh not, but for to steal, and to kill, and to destroy." We have seen people exclaim they were healed when the casting out of demons is taking place and there was no prayer for healing. There are evil forces (demons) behind many illnesses from minor to life threatening.

Behind a screen of bitterness, rebellion, ingratitude, and rejection hide evil spirits which work on the mind and on body chemistry and cause disturbances in physical, mental and emotional health.

God has designed all the parts of the human body to work in harmony.

In some cases a person will repent of their sins and forgive all who have hurt them and receive healing but will later allow themselves to get into a pattern of unforgiveness again and allow the problem to recur.

Here are a few Scriptures which show the correlation between attitudes, sins and actions with sickness or disease: Proverbs 12:4; 14:30 - rottenness in bones - incurable disease, stink maybe cancer, etc. Psalms 6:7 -eyes dim because of grief. II Chronicles 21:12-15 -intestinal disease because of idol worship and murder. Isaiah 3:16-26 - ladies who are haughty, undisciplined, flirtatious, and proud may suffer scabs on the crown of heads, stench of rottenness, and/or baldness and poverty. Deuteronomy 28:21-35 - disobedience brings many consequences; some are physical and mental illnesses.

ACUPUNCTURE

Stay away from acupuncture, acupressure, Spiritualism or Christian Science for healing. According to recent medical reports it has been found that treatment by acupuncture brought relief to only one-third of the people who have used this procedure to cure chronic pain.

According to Encyclopedia Britannica acupuncture comes from two Latin words "acus" meaning needle and "pungere" to prick. The Chinese, 5,000 years ago used this method to relieve pain. According to The New Family Encyclopedia it is the yin/yang theory and many investigators attribute its effects to hypnosis. This information alone should warn a Christian not to allow these

methods to be used on them. The practice of medicine was limited to the occult priests in the Hindu religion; the oldest recorded medical information comes from them. Because of this we know acupuncture is witchcraft. The ancient Chinese were expert in the use of acupuncture and acupressure. Acupressure which uses pressure points and massage instead of needles, is still based on the occult.

Often when a person receives a healing through some occult practice they will soon find themselves with a greater illness. My father used an occult practice of tying knots in a string and burying it in the drip of the house to cure one of my brothers of warts, later he had spinal meningitis.

SICKNESS AND DEMONIC SYMPTOMS

Some examples are as follows:

EPILEPSY

According to Taber's Cyclopedic Medical Dictionary, epilepsy is a recurring paroxysmal disorder of cerebral function characterized by sudden, brief attacks of altered consciousness, motor activity, or sensory phenomena. Convulsive seizures, hyperpyrexia, metabolic disturbances, recurrent attacks of abdominal pain, headaches, falling, dizziness, vomiting, emotional instability, fainting spells and the like. Psychomotor attacks cause mental confusion, staggering, purposeless movements, may make unintelligent sounds, may have occasional outbursts of irrational and even violent behavior.

SCHIZOPHRENIA

This personality problem begins when a person withdraws from friends, has morbid introspections, reduced initiative, strange behavior, delusions, hallucinations, and thought disturbances. Three main groups: Catatonic will have one or more of the following problems: catatonic stupor, mutism, negativism, rigidity, excitement, and violence. Paranoid will have these problems: delusions of grandeur, persecution, jealousy, or hallucination of these. Undifferentiated will have some of these: delusions, incoherence, and grossly disorganized behavior. We have seen all these types of schizophrenics freed by the casting out of demons. Most of the time the thoughts these people have are the thoughts of demons and are always meant to incapacitate the individual. In James 1:8, the Bible calls this double mindedness.

COPROLALIA

This disease was recognized by Gilles de la Tourette, a French neurologist. It is the compulsion to scream obscenities. The afflicted person may have a lack of muscle coordination, involuntary purposeless movements, facial and muscle ticks, incoherent grunts and barks may accompany the obscenities. They may appear to be very vulgar, drunk or psychotic. There is little or no help in medicine. This ailment usually begins in childhood with uncontrollable twitching, especially of the facial muscles. This is usually helped by repentance and deliverance from spirits of swearing, hate, obscenities, etc.

We have seen that deliverance from demonic bondage often cures medical or mental problems that have "no known cure" associated with their names.

MUTILATION

It is strange that some people seem to be needing operations on a fairly routine basis. There have been a number of times we have found Mutilation to be the ruler. He often has a partner named Accident Prone, they seem to work together to bring a person accidents and operations. I had many operations until it was cast out.

Traumatic shocks open the way for many demons to enter. Some of the natural ones are paranoid fear, depression, despair, discouragement, suicides, paralysis, demons of affliction, death and fear of death, etc.

I was prayed for many times in an attempt to overcome demons who had come in at our son's death. These demons strengthened those already in my mind and body. Every Sunday for almost two years I was prayed for and the demons would be quiet for a week or less. I became convinced that my problems were too much for God, I had not repented enough, or God hated me. After God told me to ask Gene to pray for me in deliverance I realized I had not been prayed for correctly. Prayers of faith do not do much good unless the right thing is prayed for.

SPIRIT OF PARALYSIS

(Excerpts) Is it not strange that in the realm of healings there are relatively few among the paraplegics and quadriplegics? Although demons do not know everything about the future, they certainly know a great deal more than we do.

Spirits called Accident and Accident Prone work with others named Bone Breaker and Back Breaker to open the way for a character called Traumatic Shock.

Once the base is established and the headquarters in the nervous system is secured, Paralysis calls in spirits of Crippling, Deformity, Atrophy, Depression, Discouragement, Hopelessness, Despair, Suicide, Death and many others and begins the systematic destruction of the victim.

Paralysis sneered at the many preachers and others in healing ministries who had prayed for this man in the wheelchair and others in similar bondage with little or no results. He called them fools because they refused to recognize the presence and the work of demons and thereby could not deal with the problem adequately.

Apparently, there were ruling demons of Paralysis, Affliction, and Spinal Cord Scar Tissue present. I'm sure that there are others yet to be rebuked and cast out.

I am convinced that some people have such a strong gift of faith for healing that when they pray evil spirits are literally thrown out whether the person praying knows this or not. On the other hand, if the demons are only stunned or immobilized temporarily by believing prayer, then there is always a possibility of a later revival of their work and activity.

LIST OF DEMONS Princes, Kings & World Rulers

Accident	Bone Breaker
Accident Prone	Back Breaker

Paralysis Crippling Deformity Atrophy Depression Discouragement Roots of Infirmity Shame and Embarrassment Rebellion & Idolatry	Traumatic Shock Hopelessness Despair Suicide Death Affliction Spinal Cord Scar Tissue Grief Troubled Will in Conflict Resentment & Envy	
Disobedience Curse of Jezebel	Hernia Kidney Stones	Madness Emerods (Hemorrhoids) Blindness
Vanity & Pride Curse of the Law	Kidney Failure	
	Kidney Infection Kidney Panic	Encephalitis Schizophrenia
Acupuncture & Acupressure Witchcraft & Occult	Heart Disturbances	Tourette Syndrome
Envy & Jealousy	Melancholy (sadness)	Polio
Hypnotism & Demonism	Scalp Ailments	Huntington's Chorea
Ailments	Falling Hair	Multiple Sclerosis
Tooth Decay	Restlessness	Stroke
Christian Science Healing	Inability to Sleep	Scab (measles, small pox)
Traumatic Shock	Aimlessness	Spinal Meningitis
Leukemia	Taoism & Pantheism	St. Vitus Dance
Cancer of Bone	Reincarnation	Blasting (prevents growth)
Traumatic Death	Astrology	Scoliosis
Tuberculous of Bone	Psychic Healing	Brutishness (unteachable igno-
Acne	Spiritualistic Healing	rance)
Carbuncles	Hate	Female Cancer (uncontrollable
Skin Cancer	Metaphysical Healing	body odor)
Menstrual Cramps	Occult Healing	Heart Attack (astonishment of
Diarrhea	Futility	heart)
Colitis	Pestilence	Venereal Disease (inflamma-
Cancer of Bowels	Consumption (T.B.)	tion of a fungus infection in
Eye Trouble	Fever	sex organs)
Bowel Upset	Inflammation	
Cancer	Botch (boils)	

Diseases Found in the Bible

Ague	Crook-Backed	Inflammation	Pestilence
Blains	Dropsy	Issue	Scab
Boils	Dwarf	Itch	Scale
Blemish	Emerods	Lameness	Scurvy
Blindness	Flat Nose	Leprosy	Sores
Botch	Flux	Lunacy	Wen
Broken-Handed	Gangrene	Madness	Withered

Broken-Footed	Halt	Maimed	Worms
Bruises	Impotent	Murrain	Wound
Canker	Infirmity	Palsy	

FUNCTIONAL DISEASES OF BODY

Meriham (controller - females allergies), Tiepea (mouth, gums), Woteige (gluttony, body illness, ruler of Octopus), Felus (gluttony), Arcolias (fatness, sins of Sodom and Gomorrah), Lukolias (pain of sternum), Blargy (infection of colon and colon cancer), Bozo (stomach infection), Boice (pancreas), Carpa (stomach nerves), Denemis (Gall Bladder), Hiawatha Indian (glandular malfunctions and body fluids, swelling), Moxie (chest pains), Monroe (breast cancer under ruler Cerulias - controller), Prince Damulias (right breast), Ruler Arculias (left breast), Taife (lymph glands of breast), Verico (mushroom growth type breast cancer), Colbeck (bone marrow), Upeedes (ear, deafness), Optias (puts parasites and organisms into body), Targa (broken rhythm into heart), Yon-dacola (blood cancer), Citicizan (convulsions and epilepsy), Rezpan (pituitary glands), Goratus (pituitary glands - violent), Woepe (heart blockage), Csarbolias (foot pain), Pontolias (right foot), Pin-tolias (left foot), Nickulias (pain in neck), Eraualias (ear infections)

Emotional

Belfagar (vanity), Contressie (flippancy of emotions), Collodus (stoicism - no feeling), Repanel (controller), Ashtroth (accusation, criticism), Petragrammation (selfishness), Philanfesus (sloth), Felix (self-pity, fear of disapproval), Varrier (controller - disobedience against obedience), Vermo (Guilt), Eland (resentment, sorrow), Remus and Remur (cause sleep in spiritual environment), Soonelton (rebellion), Vormo (excessive tiredness), Phonique (play acting, dramatic, choreography), Voltare (game playing, taunting), Boletta (game playing, taunting), Whocar-to (over concern of what others think), Puno (blood pressure), Triano (blood pressure), Targa (rapid heartbeat), Woepe (heart blockage), Optias (puts cancer cells into human anatomy).

Body Pain

Condor (controller prince), Artrize (shaking of the body), Colbeck (bone and marrow), Sutias (back pain), Shiton (back pain in spine, serpent - Jean Dixon's snake), Larkopious (knee), Rockalious (knee), Lukolidus (sternum), Damelious (body pain), Sarkolious (pain - energy force - from outer space), Romulious, Nickolious (pain from outer space), Arkilious (radiational force), Taepe (copy demon -copy other characteristics), Pycone (back of neck), Osmodaus (back of neck), Porox (blocks human will), Carbare (ruler of spiritual blockage), Ruschon (fights against Jesus Christ), Morondo (blocks reading of Word), Meganosis (blocks all knowledge), Armenious (false doctrine)

REFERENCES

Conquering The Hosts Of Hell, "Possible Roots of Infirmity," pp. 63-66 and "Sicknesses and Demonic Symptoms," pp. 68-70.

3. DRUNKENNESS AND GLUTTONY

Gen. 9:20-25	(Drunk - Naked - Cursed son)
Lev. 10:9	(Priest)
Lev. 17:10-11	(Do not eat blood - blood sausage)
Num. 11:4-6	(Lust for food, hated God's manna)

Deut. 29:18-21 I Sam. 25:36-37 I Kings 20:12, 16 Job 15:27 Psalm 69:22 Psalm 75:4-8 Psalm 75:4-8 Psalm 104:10-18 Psalm 104:10-18 Psalm 106:14-15 Proverbs 9:1-6 Proverbs 20:1 Proverbs 23:2, 21 Proverbs 23:29-35 Proverbs 25:16 Proverbs 31:4-7 Ecc. 10:16-18 Isaiah 5:11-13 Isaiah 5:22-23 Isaiah 24:9, 11 Isaiah 28:1-3 Isaiah 28:7-8 Ezekiel 44:21 Hosea 4:11-13 Joel 1:5 Nahum 1:10 Habakkuk 2:15-16 Matt. 24:48-51 Luke 21:34-36 John 6:26 Rom. 13:11-14 I Cor. 6:9-13 Gal. 5:19-21 Eph. 5:15-20 Phil. 3:18-19 I Thes. 5:4-8 Titus 2:3-5	 (Great wrath of God - curses for disobedience) (Very drunken - paralyzed - died) (Drunk kings - lost battle) (Fatness of face and flanks) (Trap) (Wine) (Slew the fattest) (Wine) (Leanness of soul) (Wine) (Mocker) (Appetite - Gluttony) (Sting like snake) (Vomit honey) (Dies) (Drunkenness of Princes and King) (Inflamed) (Wicked) (Judgment) (Pride) (Tables full of vomit and filth) (Priest shall not drink wine.) (Whoredom and wine caused them to err) (Howling and weeping for wine) (Drunkenness for sex) (Drunkenness and gluttony - not aware) (Surfeiting and drunkenness - not watching) (Seeking Jesus for food not for worship) (Rioting and drunkenness) (Drunkards shall not inherit the kingdom.) (Drunkenness and other works of the flesh) (Drunk with wine) (Whose god is your belly) (Drunken in the night - thief will rob) (Be sober - not given to much wine.)
I Peter 4:1-3	(Excess of wine and banquetings)

KEY SCRIPTURES

Lev. 17:10 Numbers 11:4 Job. 15:27 Psalm 69:22 Psalm 78:29-31 Psalm 106:14-15 Proverbs 23:2 Pro. 23:20-21 (Boudan sausage is made with blood)
(Lust for blood)
(Fatness of face and flanks)
(Table is a snare)
(Slew the fattest of them)
(Leanness of their souls)
(Put a knife to your throat)
(Poverty for drunkard and glutton)

Proverbs 25:16	(And vomit it)
John 6:26	(Seek Jesus, not food from Jesus)
Phil. 3:18-19	(God is belly)

GENERAL

I am a serious person about the Lord. This is a serious lesson. I will try to start off on a humorous note. "Fools rush in where angels fear to tread." Earline and I rush in where preachers fear to tread. We have discussed starting an organization called "Cowards for Christ". We could even have a chapter called "Cowardly Preachers". We could have millions of members. Now back to a serious vein. Paul said that he declared the whole truth to the people in his day. That is what we should do in these modern days.

How many of you believe that you should avoid the hard sayings of the Bible? I want to talk to you about an area that most preachers shun. It is hard on men of God as well as women in general. I don't have the preachers' problems about your leaving the church if your ears are not tickled or quit giving to the church if your toes have been stepped on. One of the hard sayings of the Bible is that drunkenness and gluttony are the same! You will either love or hate us.

AMERICANS MUST CHANGE THEIR EATING HABITS!

Jeanne Paul, Nurse Anesthesiologist, sent us the following horrible statistics about illnesses that are happening to modern men, women and children because of the way they eat. Do you live to eat or eat to live? You cannot eat like the Devil and live like the Lord.

- 1. 80 million Americans are overweight. 30 million are obese (20 % above ideal weight). 30 to 50 % of these are Christians. 50 % of males over 30 and 75 % of females over 40 are overweight.
- 2. Some chronic conditions comparing normal to overweight people follow: Cholesterol gallstones are 300 % more frequent. Toxemia of pregnancy is 700 % higher. Infection of urine collecting part of the kidney is 500 % greater. Diabetes Mellitus is 400 % more common. There are more maternal deaths. Infections are 200 % more frequent. Postoperative mortality is 250 % greater. High blood pressure is found 250 % more frequently when you reach age 45.
- 3. Over consumption of meat, fats, sugar, cholesterol, salt and alcohol have been linked with a higher incidence of six of the ten leading causes of death in the U.S.: heart disease, cancer, strokes, diabetes, arteriosclerosis and high blood pressure.
- 4. Turn of the century Americans were eating 4 pounds of sugar a year; today we consume 130 pounds per person per year some statistics put it as high as 200 pounds because of the different type sugars being added to most prepared foods.
- 5. Readers Digest, September, 1987, stated that Americans eat 3 million gallons of ice cream per day and 3,000 tons of candy per day.
- 6. 20 % of the American diet is now sugar. At the turn of the century there were very few diabetics; now there are 10 million with 600,000 new cases annually.
- 7. 20 years ago they never heard of hyperactive children; now there are 1 million.
- 8. Many pre-school children have rotted-off teeth.

- 9. At the turn of the century, people died most often from bacterial-type disease. Now they are dying from degenerative disease: diabetes, cancer, heart disease and strokes. Then, 1 in 13 had cancer, now 1 in 3, and by 1990, 1 in 2. The age of chronic disease onset is much earlier.
- 10. The annual death rate from hardening of the arteries and degenerative heart disease in the U.S. for men age 50 to 59 is the highest in the world. Many accident victims and young men killed in Vietnam had the arteries of 55 to 60 year olds. The most common surgery in men under 55 is coronary by-pass surgery: 2 to 5 % die on the operating table. 42 % are back in two years for more heart surgery. 47 % are dead in 5 years.
- 11. There are now more children born with plugged arteries and children having heart attacks by age 5 to 6 years.
- 12. In 1912 the first heart attack was reported. Now 1 million Americans have heart attacks per year and spend 5 billion dollars trying to recover. Heart disease is not world wide. South Africa has to import American doctors to teach them how to treat tourists who have heart attacks.
- 13. Metropolitan Life Insurance Company has shown that a man 45 years old, who increases his weight by 25 pounds over standard weight, reduces his life expectancy by 25 %, i.e. he dies at age 60 instead of 75.
- 14. Every pound of fat you add to your body forms and must nourish approximately 3/4 mile of blood vessels and flush them with blood every 5/6th of a second. The extra burden on the heart has statistical results as follows:
 70 % of the new cases of hypertension are directly attributed to weight gain. For every 10 pounds a man puts on, his blood pressure rises 6.5 points systolic (top number).
 30 million Americans have high-blood pressure.
- 15. The American Cancer Society says that at least 60 % of cancer is diet related. 90 % of colon cancer could be avoided with fiber. Breast cancer can be greatly reduced by lowering sugar, fat and caffeine consumption.
- 16. The American Heart Association suggests the percent of calories from fat must not exceed 25 to 30 %. The average for Americans now is 40 % and some think much higher.
- 17. People are misled by the polyunsaturates in margarines and oils. You must look for hydrogenated on the label which is simply eating plastic. The only way the body can handle this is to deposit it in the arteries.
- 18. 30 % of American women have osteoporosis and that is a world record. Many factors are involved such as low calcium intake, birth control pills, less weight-bearing exercise and higher consumption of phosphoric acid (the fizz in pops). The onset of this disease is much earlier after the 30's and even some men are developing it.

EARLINE'S TESTIMONY

The following is a summary of her testimony:

- 1. After casting out the demon, "I Like To Eat", I told God how I had tried dieting and I knew that was hopeless.
- 2. I was told obedience is better than sacrifice, and I knew how to eat but was not doing it. Plenty of fresh fruits and vegetables, not much meat and very little sweets is the basis of a proper diet.

- 3. Asked if I would do what I was told, I assured God that I would. He said that food can be divided into two groups: God's and Devil's. Devil's foods include sweets to excess, junk food, and liquids which are mostly empty calories.
- 4. It's not bad manners not to eat sweets or any other food when you know your body has not used up the last meal. I was intelligent enough to know if I truly needed food.
- 5. Here are the rules in summary:
- a. Eat fruits and vegetables; include leafy greens.
- b. Do not eat much meat three or four servings weekly.
- c. Don't eat unless you truly need to.
- d. Don't let others stuff you.
- e. Seldom eat sweets.
- f. Almost never eat junk food.
- g. Remember those whose God is their belly.
- h. Cook all foods simply.
- I. Use little fat and cut fat from the meat.
- 6. Earline lost about seventy pounds and weighed less than she did when we got married and after she had two children. I got a new wife!

CONCLUSION

You can be healed by God or cured by a doctor. You can mentally discipline your body. Your demons can be cast out in the name of Jesus. You can ask God to help you control your weight. There are no excuses (mentally, physically or spiritually) for being overweight in the Bible!

LIST OF DEMONS

Forgive those who have rejected you and caused you to seek food and drink for comfort. Ask God for forgiveness for drunkenness and gluttony, and any other addictions such as drugs and medicines. Then break curses and demonic ties on you because of your ancestors who were drunkards and gluttons. Finally, cast out the following lists of demons.

START WITH BASIC DELIVERANCE:

- 1. Rejection/Bitterness/Rebellion
- 2. Drunkenness/Gluttony
- 3. Drugs and Medicine
- 4. Ungodly Spirits
- 5. Common Demon Groupings

Gluttony	Frustration	Fears	Cravings for Particu-
Drunkenness	Addiction to Alcohol	Diet Pills	lar Foods
Nervousness	Idleness	Flashback	Addiction to Any kind
Alcohol	Bondage	Indulgence	of Beverage
Compulsive Eating	Self-Pity	Habit	I Like To Eat
Medications for	Slavery	Surfeiting	
Drunkenness	Self-Reward	Unreality	
Resentment	Fantasy	Addiction to Food	
Desire	Caffeine	Craving for Alcoho	

4. DRUGS AND MEDICINES

LIST OF SCRIPTURE	
Ex. 7:10-12;	(Aaron's rod swallowed their rods)
22:18	(Kill the witches)
Lev. 19:26-31	(God forbids these practices)
20:6	(Rejected by God)
20:27	(Punished by death)
Deut. 18:9-12	(Abominations)
I Sam. 15:23	(Rebellion and stubbornness)
28:3	(Familiar Spirits)
II Kings 21:5-6	(Wickedness)
II Chron. 33:6	(Evil)
Psalm 73:9	(Evil tongue)
Isa. 2:6	(Soothsayers)
5:13-14	(Alienate believer from God)
8:19	(Familiar Spirits)
Jer.17:5	(Oath brings a curse from God.)
27:9-10	(Prophesy lies)
Zech. 10:2	(God's presence)
Hosea 4:6	(Ignorance of Word of God)
Mal. 3:5	(Fear not God.)
Matt. 5:14-16	(Help others)
5:34-37	(Swearing or taking an oath)
Acts 8:9	(Sorcery)
16:16-18	(Soothsaying)
19:19	(Curious arts)
Rom. 6:16	(Slaves)
I Cor. 6:19	(Sacred Temple)
10:31	(Glorify God)
II Cor. 4:4	(Satan is god of this world.)
I Tim. 4:1-3	(Depart from faith)
II Tim. 1:7	(Sound mind)
3:8	(Corrupt minds)
Rev. 9:11	(Apollyon)
9:21; 18:23;	(Sorcery)
21:8; 22:15	(Sorcery)

DRUG ABUSE IN THE WORKPLACE

STARTLING FACTS IN OUR TIMES - There is growing concern among America's CEOs over the toll that our national drug problem is taking on their organizations and communities. A recent Allstate/Fortune magazine survey underscores how troubled corporate America is about this issue. The drug problem ranked second to the federal deficit in responses to the question: "What is the largest problem facing the U.S. today?"

1. The drug generation has entered the work force. Young adults tend to bring their drug habits with them. A 1986 survey showed that five years after graduating from high school, half of those who used marijuana daily in high school continue to do so.

- 2. One in four employed twenty to forty year old adults reported using an illicit drug in 1986; one in five reported at least one use in the past month.
- 3. As many as one in five American workers may have alcohol and drug problems. Ten percent of the labor force (11.5 million people) have a drinking problem.
- 4. A majority of employers responding to a recent survey said that between 6% and 15% of their empoyees have an alcohol or drug problem.
- 5. Approximately half a billion workdays are lost each year because of alcoholism alone, a 2% loss in productivity.
- 6. The federal government estimates that alcohol and drug abuse cost the economy \$177 billion a year, including \$99 billion attributed to lost productivity. Two-thirds of the cost is attributed to alcohol.
- 7. A University of Michigan study shows that lost profits as a result of abuse amount to \$10 billion in the construction industry alone.
- 8. Nine of ten utilities, eight to ten transportation operations and over half of all sports associations and government agencies have implemented some kind of drug testing program.
- 9. Over half (57%) of all high school seniors had tried an illicit drug; and over a third had tried an illicit drug other than marijuana.
- 10. Among college students one to four years beyond high school, one in three used marijuana in the last year. Nine of ten used alcohol, and more than one in ten used cocaine.
- 11. Abuse of prescription drugs is a widespread problem, especially among adult women. The non-medical use of tranquilizers doubled between 1982 and 1985.
- 12. Absenteeism, medical expenses and lost productivity as a result of abuse are costing employers an average of 3% of their total payroll roughly half the typical company's payments for an employee's Social Security coverage.
- 13. At least seven companies in the study said they calculated the cost of alcohol and drug abuse at more than \$50 million each.

WHY DO PEOPLE TAKE DRUGS?

I am always interested in the reasons why we (people) do the things we do. The Bible tells us in Gal. 6:7-8, Do not be deceived and deluded and misled; God will not allow Himself to be sneered at - scorned, disdained or mocked (by mere pretensions or professions, or His precepts being set aside.) He inevitably deludes himself who attempts to delude God. For whatsoever a man sows, that and that only is what he will reap. For he who sows to his own flesh (lower nature, sensuality) will from the flesh reap decay and ruin and destruction; but he who sows to the Spirit will from the Spirit reap eternal life. If you are in trouble, the Bible tells you that you are reaping what you have sown. The Bible also tells us that God has made a way for us to recover all (some times even better than it was before). We have to apply ourselves to diligently follow the instructions given in the manual (Bible).

As I have pondered, prayed and studied the problem of drugs and their destructive power, I have become convinced that the overriding problem behind the use of destructive drugs is rejection. Many children today are not allowed to bond with their parents, therefore they never feel truly accepted or at oneness with the people they are naturally supposed to bond with. One of the causes of this is early baby days spent in nursery or day care situations where the care giver changes rapidly. It is very unsettling to try to settle alignment and affections on someone and have them leave you too quickly. Because of this, we have a whole generation of young people

trying to fix something but they do not know what it is that needs fixing so how can they fix it? Another reason is being brought up in an unhappy, uncaring home. God has rear children (tenderly) in discipline, wise counsel and admonition of the Lord (Eph. 6:1-4 and 2 Tim. 3:1-3). One reason for so much divorce is this inability to relate intimately with others. The abuse of drugs is an attempt to satisfy rejection.

Looking up rejection in the Bible, I have found that God has not rejected a single person who has not persisted in rejecting God. See 1 Sam. 8:7; 10:19; 15:23, 26; 16:1; 2 Kings 17:15,29; Isa. 53:2; Jer. 6:19; 7:29-30, etc. All of these scriptures reassure us that if we heed God's call to us, He will not reject us.

When people come into the world we say, "What a cute, little innocent baby." As far as sins they have committed, they are innocent. But some other gifts besides life that we have given them frequently put them in bondage before birth. Because of the sins of their ancestors they may be in bondage due to curses lasting many generation. These curses allow demon spirits to follow them, coerce them, and try to trick them into sins that will allow demons to control them in that demon's particular area.

We have not found a single person who has escaped the problem of rejection. Even if we are not rejected, rejection works very well when demons can convince us that we are rejected. Rejection is one of the best ideas the devil ever had and it works so well he uses it against all people. Even Jesus did not escape rejection. Isa. 53:3, He was despised and rejected and forsaken by man, ... He was despised, and we did not appreciate His worth or have any esteem for Him. Jesus was to-tally rejected of men. The devil did not stop using rejection on Jesus even when He was on the cross. Jesus' response was, "Father, forgive them for they don't know what they do."

The devil used rejection on Eve when he told her she would be like God. Was not that question in response to what Eve was probably thinking? If she had not been thinking this she would not have taken the bait.

What does rejection do to you? It makes you open to all kinds of seduction because you do not feel complete nor settled. It may be a respectable seduction like food, work, play, prestige, money; or non-respectable like street drugs, abnormal sexual activities, murder, abortion, witch-craft, etc. The person is always trying to find something to fix that spot so they will feel all right. Rejection is behind over-doing, lying, greed, denying a problem exists or our ability to control it, deception, etc. The work of the Holy Spirit within us is (Gal. 5:22-26) to bring us into proper self-control, peace and joy.

We have a very large portion of young people today into all kinds of self-destructive practices. They can be seen congregating in many areas across the country. They are usually rejected children from rejected parents. As rejection passes down the generations, it picks up momentum in each succeeding generation unless someone applies the Biblical process to destroy its effects in a family.

One of the main reasons we go to doctors so much is to try to fix that spot of rejection. Before I received deliverance from rejection, I used to go to doctors who seldom could find anything

wrong with me. I thought some drug would fix "it". I was trying to get something done about the spot that was not satisfied.

Do you know that the rejection demons that have been cast out of you are always around looking for a chance to trap you and get back in. Here's an example of rejection at work: I went to the doctor to have him check to see if I had cracked any ribs. I had a minor wreck with my car and I hit my chest on the seat belt. I was feeling great when I went in but tested with high blood pressure. I was given a medicine for high blood pressure. I took one tablet and shortly began to see a kaleidoscope before my left eye. Since the pressure was not down enough, I was given another pill to try. I was discussing with Gene whether to take it or not. In the midst of this conversation Gene told me I had always been stubborn. I decided to take the pill and be a nice, obedient patient. By the end of three weeks I had depression, diarrhea if I ate, stomach pains if I didn't eat, bad headaches, dizziness, etc. When I returned in two weeks, I was indeed very ill. I also noticed that I had the symptoms of all the things he had said the blood test suggested I might have. I am beginning to wonder if drugs to cause emotional problems and symptoms are not added to curative drugs. Since I have been off the drug for three weeks, I no longer feel any symptoms that were suggested to me. I feel that often times the side effects of medicines are demon spirits. As you can see, I had played with one demon, Rejection, and had several of his friends come along with him.

When rejected people have not recognized that they are dealing with rejection, they will look all over, into and try a lot of things to help themselves. Their demons are so happy. The demons will help each other get into you. Of course they cannot just jump in; they have to have you give them the right to come in. Demons are just like us in that they are a spirit with a soul (mind, will and emotions) but they have no body. A body is what you have that they want. Many of the bad emotions we have are theirs. We must learn to separate our emotions and thoughts from theirs. Demons are never going to tell you that they are talking. They talk just like the body belongs to them. Ask the Lord to show you how they have worked you all this time. In James, Chapter 1, God promises to give wisdom to all who ask.

Why would a person of normal intelligence do things that will destroy themselves? The Bible tells us that no man ever hated his own body (Eph. 5:29). If one desires to destroy himself, it must be someone using his mind and not him. Why do some people get on harmful drugs, become grossly overweight, work themselves to death or live in terrible fears? Often these things have roots in rejection.

GENERAL

- 1. Only the cleansed priest could go into the Holy of Holies. If he was not right with God he was killed and pulled out by a rope.
- 2. Drugs To prescribe or administer drug mixtures.
- 3. Pharmacist (Greek Pharmakia) To practice witchcraft or use medicine; also poison or medicine.
- 4. Pharmacological (Gr. Pharmakia) Drugs, mania, madness, inordinately addicted to using drugs.
- 5. Witchcraft One type is charmer or enchanter who uses amulets, potions or drugs to cast spells and control others for personal gain. This is the power or practices of witches, sorcery, black magic or irresistible fascination with Satan and his demons.

- 6. Idolatry (worship of evil spirits) enchantment (sorcery), occultism, magic, witchery, witchcraft, charm, bewitched and medicine man; all these use drugs (poisons) to cause illness or influence others against their will.
- 7. God says this about witchcraft, enchanters and others who use these methods to change or control other people see beginning Old Testament verses.
- 8. Your mind is unsound when under the influence of drugs or alcohol. Satan becomes a part of your mind at those times, not God.

MEDICINE'S BONDAGE TO SATAN

(Excerpts)

- 1. "Medicine" and "physician" in the Scriptures mean "to cure, heal or recover completely". Satan has managed to reverse these meanings.
- 2. Matthew 5:34-37 forbids swearing or taking an oath to false gods. It is interesting to see the oath Satan has most doctors taking. Although it sounds good it brings a curse from the Father Himself (Jer. 17:5).
- 3. The first part of the Hippocratic Oath is a covenant or solemn agreement concerning the relationship of apprentice to teacher and the obligations of the pupil. The second part is the ethical code which reflects Pythagorean ethics.

THE HIPPOCRATIC OATH

(Excerpts) "I swear by Apollo the physician and Aesculapius and health and all the gods and goddesses that according to my ability and judgement I will keep this oath and this stipulation to reckon him who taught me this art equally dear to me as my parents; to share my substance with him and relieve his necessities if required; to look upon his offspring in the same footing as my own brothers and to teach them this art if they shall wish to learn it without fee or stipulation; and that by precept, lecture, and every other mode of instruction I will impart a knowledge of the art to my own sons and those of my teachers and to disciples bound by a stipulation and oath according to the law of medicine but to none others.

I will follow that system of regimen which, according to my ability and judgement I consider for the benefit of my patients, and abstain from whatever is deleterious and mischievous. I will give no deadly medicine to anyone if asked nor suggest any such counsel, and in like manner I will not give to a woman a peccary to produce abortion. With purity and with holiness I will pass my life and practice my art.

I will not cut persons laboring under the stone but will leave this to be done by men who are practitioners of this work. Into whatever houses I enter, I will go into them for the benefit of the sick and will abstain from every voluntary act of mischief and corruption, and further, from the seduction of females or males, of freemen and slaves.

Whatever, in connection with my professional practice, or not in connection with it, I see or hear, in the life of men, which ought not be spoken of abroad, I will not divulge as reckoning that all such should be kept secret.

While I continue to keep this oath unviolated, may it be granted to me to enjoy life and the practice of the art, respected by all men, in all times, but should I trespass and violate this oath, may the reverse be my lot." The word Apollyon (Revelation 9:11) comes from the same root as Apollo. He is the god of destruction, medicine, archery, prophecy, music, poetry and represents the highest type of masculine beauty.

Aesculapius is the god of medicine, the son of Apollo by a demon nymph. "All gods and goddesses": the caduceus is the staff of Mercury (twined by two serpents) god of commerce, messenger of the gods, cleverness, lying, thievery, eloquence, travel, etc.

Satan plans the sickness, then programs the symptoms which are treated by sincere and dutybound doctors. Because of this a believer should move to break any evil soul ties with satanic medication and pray much about use of such things.

For a real eye-opener, go to the public library and ask to see the "Physicians Desk REFER-ENCES" (PDR). It lists all the prescription drugs and their possible side effects. Sometimes the side effects produced by the chemicals are similar to the symptoms being treated.

MEDICINE AND THE BELIEVER

(Excerpts) The word "medicine" is used twice in the Old Testament (Prov. 17:22; Jer. 30:13). "Medicine" also occurs two other times (Ezek. 47:12; Jer. 46:11). The root words are Gehah (a cure); Gahah (to remove or heal); Teruwthah (a remedy) and Rephuah (heal). In each case the words mean to effect a complete cure or restoration to the one treated - to heal or restore completely.

The word "physician" is used five times in the Bible.

In the Old Testament the Hebrew root word is Rapha or Raphan meaning to stitch, restore, make whole and heal thoroughly. The Greek root word in the New Testament means to cure or make whole.

Satan, as the god of this world, has introduced into the realm of medicine a group of chemicals and drugs spelled relief, relievers, tranquilizers, uppers, downers, etc. These are both prescribed and are on the shelf with the assumption they are safe to use or they would not be available. Such drugs and chemicals in the Bible are associated with sorcery (Greek: Pharmakeus) - medication: Pharmacy: means magic, witchcraft, a drug, spell-giving potion, a druggist, pharmacist, magician, sorcerer, poisoner. In other words, the uses of chemicals by sorcerers in the Bible was to make it easy for the user to be invaded by evil spirits. Scriptures on sorcery: Acts 8:9; Rev. 9:21; 21:8; 22:15; 18:23.

In the light of these facts the question arises: "What chemicals or drugs can a Christian take without affecting his spiritual sensitivity and desire to serve the Lord?"

Scripture declares that real medicines heal or cure. Our problem arose when Satan caused worldly scientists, researchers and the medical profession to endorse "reliever drugs" which have no curative value but only serve to deepen the plight of the victim. So often a "righteous" church member may condemn alcohol as a "reliever" yet in her purse she carries Valium or Librium as a reliever for herself. (Have a pill dumping!)

Behind the scenes Satan's demons manipulate and interfere to bring about aches, pains, agony, diseases, etc. which afflict the minds, wills and emotions of their victims. "Reliever" drugs only mask the symptoms but do not cure them. Many of the modern pain relievers are so powerful they are capable of veiling the mind or setting up barriers between the Holy Spirit and the person's will or desire to seek the Father. This produces tension, worry and anxiety, necessitating an even stronger mind separator, i.e., tranquilizers. These can separate a person's mind from reality and (when prescribed by a reputable doctor, psychologist, or specialist) can further alienate the uninformed believer from God (Isaiah 5:13-14).

Viewed this way, many strong pain killers, tranquilizers and mind altering drugs constitute instant witchcraft, regardless of who prescribes or advises taking them. In a sense, a believer taking some of these drugs while crying out to God for healing would be like a man begging the fireman to extinguish a fire while he continues to pour gasoline on it!

A mind-boggling drug produces two complications for a believer. First it may well constitute sorcery or witchcraft - seeking help from man, the flesh and the demonic. In that instance he would come under a curse from God because of involvement with the occult. It could also paralyze built-in defenses against the demonic opening the way for entrance of evil spirits just as in hypnosis, transcendental meditation and yoga.

Is all medicine bad? No, curative and healing arts which do not alter the mind or attitude toward God are what the Scripture calls medicine. But mind altering drugs are definitely in the caution area for believers.

Believers have an obligation to ask their physician or other knowledgeable person just what the function and action is for any so-called medication which is prescribed. They then have a choice and can pray to determine whether or not they should use any substance. The Bible definition of "physician" is one who restores (by stitching) or makes whole.

When considering the drug world it becomes obvious that we have been snared in a clever trap of Satan. Many mental institutions routinely give most inmates tranquilizers daily. Even in some schools, hyperactive children are given a pill a day to make them more controllable. Rather than following scriptural admonitions to do the work of Christ by delivering the bound person from spirits of nervousness, confusion, mind control, etc., chemical controllers are administered. Only obeying the full gospel will bring curative, rather than covering, action.

Because Satan is the god of this world (II Cor. 4:4), his philosophy and definitions, almost universally are accepted, even by the Christian community. Truly his "tongue" walks through the earth (Psalm 73:9). His control of the mental institutions, hospitals and their policies and procedures is often covert and cleverly hidden. This is due to the widespread ignorance of God's people of the warnings and instructions of the Word of God (Hosea 4:6). When inmates are treated with daily dosages of mind-boggling pills they are further separated from reality and mental awareness and any real help.

If a believer is attempting to become more sensitive to the Father's guidance, he must realize that even the mildest pain killers (aspirin) or tranquilizers (promethazine) desensitizes the mind

somewhat so as to dull sensitivity to the leadership of the Holy Spirit. In other words, the chemical changes can definitely affect areas of spiritual communication. This will be to a greater or lesser extent, depending on the strength and effects of the chemical substances, coupled with the vulnerability and susceptibility of the individual patient.

When God is dealing with a person by permitting buffeting of some nature, drugs maybe employed to mask symptoms, thus delaying the showdown called for by the Lord. We routinely advise persons to leave off all drugs for at least a day before coming for prayer. Strong drugs surround and protect the demons, making it much more difficult to cause them to manifest or come out.

It must be emphasized here that, although we are quite sure of the demonic roots of many of these afflictions, we are still searching for the keys to dislodge all the intruders. The progress made thus far is indeed encouraging, but we are always learning more.

A recent pharmaceutical survey of practicing physicians shows the number one prescribed drug to be Valium for the four previous years (millions of doses). This demonstrates that nerves, tension, anxiety, worry and related problems are connected with the majority of cases they see.

Also many doctors apparently have found that rather than to attempt to probe and reprogram the real cause of worry, anxiety and nervousness it is far easier to disconnect patients from reality. With Valium or some similar drug, the mind is floated to a new level of unreality and kept there by a regulated dosage. This makes it more unlikely that the person will ever really seek and find help from the Lord.

TRANQUILIZERS	ANTI-	Mellaril	Cantil
Ativan	DEPRESSANTS	Permitil	Carbrital
Serax	Adapin	Prolixin	Dialog
Verstran	Aventyl HCL	Quide	Donphen
Haldol	Deprol	Serentil	Emesert
Inapsine	Elavil	Stelazine	Eskabarb
Innovar	Engep	Thorazine	Levsin/Phenobarbital
Libritabs	Etrafon	Tindal	Matropinal
Menrium	Imavate	Triavil	Mebaral
A-poxide	Janimine	Trilafon	Nembutal
Librium	Marplan	Vesprin	Pamine
Lavium	Nardil	_	Plexonal
Atarax	Norpramin	HYPNOTICS	Repan
Vistaril	Pamelor	Aquachloral	Seconal
Eskalith	Parnate	Carbrital	Sedapap
Lithane	Petrofrane	Dalmane	Solfoton
Lithium	Presamine	Doriden	Aquachloral
Lithonate	Sinequan	Matropinal	Beta-Chlor
Deprol	Togranil	Nebutal	Dalmane
Equanil	Triavil	Noctec	Equanil
Meprospan	Vivactil	Noludar	Levoprome

A PARTIAL LIST OF DRUGS IN THE "PHYSICIAN'S DESK REFERENCES"

Millpath		Placdyl	Noctec
Milprem	SEDATIVES	Quaalude	Noludar
Miltown	Alurate	Triclos	Parest
Miltrate	Amytal	Valmid	Phenergan
Pathibamate	Belap		Quaalude
Lidone	Bentyl	PAIN KILL-	Sopor
Compazine	Buticaps	ERS	Tranxene
Etrafon	Butisol	Aspirin, Etc.	

VALIUM AND LIBRIUM

(Excerpts) - Introduced in 1963, by 1975 the Federal Drug Administration announced that Valium had become the most abused drug in the nation. In 1976, 60,000,000 prescriptions were written bringing \$300,000,000 to the manufacturers.

Valium is prescribed to relieve tension; muscle aches; control spasticity; aid withdrawal from alcohol; calm presurgery patients and induce labor.

The drug is a crutch, a sister to Librium, which tranquilizes without reducing alertness. There have been no deaths from over-doses but it is highly addictive.

The drug is common among the higher income middle-aged housewives. Daily dosages range from 80-120 mg. of Valium. In forty to sixty days it brings addiction. Sudden withdrawal can cause severe convulsions. Usually a more gentle withdrawal is cushioned with three weeks of phenobarbital to prevent convulsions. Self-treatment results in seizures 30 percent of the time.

ADIRECTORI	OF DRUGS - Handeine	Jgens	
DRUGS &	DESCRIPTION	MEDICAL USE	RISK OF ABUSE
SLANG NAME	Flowering resinous	None	Altered perceptions,
Marijuana (Pot,	top of		impaired judgement
Grass, Boo)			
Peyote (Magic	Dried cactus buttons	Some experimental	Visual hallucinations,
Mushroom, Cac-	containing mescaline	study	impaired
tus)	C	•	judgement, possible
,			psychosis
LSD (Acid,	Synthetic chemical	Some experimental	Visual and auditory
Hawk, The	400 times more pow-	study	hallucinations,
Chief)	erful than mescaline	5	impaired judgment,
)			possible psychosis
DMT	Synthetic chemical	Some experimenta-	Possible psychotic
21111	similar to mushroom	tion,	reaction
	alkaloid psilocybin	chemical warfare.	reaction
STP	Atropine-like syn-	None	Same effects as LSD,
511	thetic	None	but
	uleuc		more intense and last-
		T () ()	ing 3-4 days
Narcotics Opium	Dried coagulated	Treatment of pain,	Loss of appetite,
	milk of unripe	severe diarrhea	temp diarrhea
	opium-poppy pod		ovary impotency or

A DIRECTORY OF DRUGS - Hallucinogens

sterility. Painful withdrawal symptoms

DRUGS & SLANG NAME	DESCRIPT	TION	MEDICAL USE	RISK OF ABUSE
Morphine (M, Miss Emma)	10-1 reducti crude opium	1	Treatment of severe pain None	Same as above
Heroin (H, Horse, Junk, Smack)	Converted N	viorphine	None	Same as above
Stimulants Cocaine (Coke, Corrine, Happy Dust, Snow)	Isolated alka cocoa leaf	aloid of	Anesthesia of eye and throat	Loss of appetite, irri- tability, weight loss, insomnia
Benzedrine (Bennies-Pep)	Synthetic ce nervous syst stimulant		Treatment of obesity, narcolepsy, encepha- litis, fatigue, depres- sion	Nausea, hyperten- sion, irritability, con- fusion, delirium, ag- gressiveness includ- ing vomiting, trem- ors, convulsions
Depressants Nembutal (Yel- low Jackets)	Barbituric a rivative	cid de-	Sedation, treatment of insomnia	Incoherency, depres- sion, possible respira- tory arrest, addiction with withdrawal symptoms,
Seconal (Red Birds)	Same as abo	ove	Same as above	Same as above
Luminal (Purple Hearts)	Same as abo	ove	Same as above	Same as above
Amytal (Blue Heavens)	Same as abo	ove	Same as above	Same as above
Miltown & Equanial	Non-barbitu tive	rate seda-	Same as above	Same as above
Doriden Librium	Same as abo Tranquilizer		Same as above Treatment of anxiety, tension, alcohol, neu- rosis	Same as above Blurring of vision, confusion, possible severe depression when combined with alcohol
LIST OF DEMO Appetites & Addic 10-1 reduction of c opium Converted Morphi Isolated alkaloid o	ctions crude ne	and sla Barbitura slang r	mine (also medical ang names) tes (medical and names) for and addiction to	Treatment of severe pain None Anesthesia of eye and throat Treatment of obesity, narco- lepsy, encephalitis, fatigue,

cocoa leaf Synthetic central nervous system stimulant Barbituric acid derivative Same as above Same as above Same as above Non-barbiturate sedative Same as above Tranquilizer Addiction to drugs and many other things Drugs Bondage; slavery Craving for and addiction to cigarettes Craving for and addiction to alcohol Cigarette Nicotine

LIST OF DEMONS

Appetites & Addictions 10-1 reduction of crude opium **Converted Morphine** Isolated alkaloid of cocoa leaf Synthetic central nervous system stimulant Barbituric acid derivative Same as above Same as above Same as above Non-barbiturate sedative Same as above Tranquilizer Addiction to drugs and many other things Drugs Bondage; slavery Craving for and addiction to cigarettes

drugs Downers Fantasy Fears Flashback Habit Methadone Phenobarbital THC Hashish Pipe smoking Unreality and many others Various Spirits Nervousness Confusion Mind Control Tension Anxiety Worry Drugs and Medicine Apollo and Apollyon Aesculapuis

Amphetamine (also medical and slang names) Barbiturates (medical and slang names) Craving for and addiction to drugs Downers Fantasy Fears Flashback Habit Methadone Phenobarbital THC Hashish Pipe smoking Unreality and many others Various Spirits Nervousness Confusion Mind Control Tension

depression Sedation, treatment of insomnia Same as above Treatment of anxiety, tension, alcohol, neurosis Same as above Same as above Loss of appetite, irritability, weight loss, insomnia Nausea, hypertension, irritability, confusion, delirium, aggressiveness Incoherency, depression, possible respiratory arrest, addiction with withdrawal symptoms,

Treatment of severe pain None Anesthesia of eye and throat Treatment of obesity, narcolepsy, encephalitis, fatigue, depression Sedation, treatment of insomnia Same as above Treatment of anxiety, tension, alcohol, neurosis Same as above Same as above Loss of appetite, irritability, weight loss. insomnia Nausea, hypertension, irritability, confusion,

Craving for and addiction to alcohol Cigarette Nicotine	Anxiety Worry Drugs and Medicine Apollo and Apollyon Aesculapuis	delirium, aggressiveness Incoherency, depression, possible respiratory arrest, addiction with withdrawal symptoms,
Bewitched Medicine Man	Diseases Anxiety	Downers Aches
Unsound Mind	Mind Boggling	Tension
Swearing	Yoga	Alienation
Taking Oath	Confusion	Paralyzing
Hippocratic Oath	Dull	Hyperactive
Apollo	Unreality	Mind Control
Aesculapius	Convulsions	Sensitivity
Gods	Psychosis	Vulnerability
Goddesses	Diarrhea	Muscle Aches
Corruption	Anesthesia	Phenobarbital
Seduction	Fatigue	Hallucinations
Caduceus	Hypertension	Loss of Appetite
Cleverness	Neurosis	Obesity
Thievery	Vomiting	Irritability
Uppers	Mischievous	Delirium
Librium	Soul Ties	Incoherency
		Tremors

MINISTRY TO THE OPPRESSED

Break soul ties with doctors, psychiatrists, social workers, psychologists, mental institutions, nurses, etc.

Cast out demons of drugs and medicines, various spirits, groups of drugs, appetites and addictions, hallucinogens, narcotics, stimulants, depressants, tranquilizers, antidepressants, sedatives, pain killers, Valium, Librium, etc.

REFERENCES

Books written by Rev. Win Worley. Most of the research was done by Dr. J.M. Haggard, (Doctor Veterinarian Medicine).

CHILDREN DRUG ADDICTS

PREFACE

This lesson is meant for ministry to children and also adults who have been treated with drugs to control the mind. It could also apply to "street drugs" which have similar effects on the person. The saddest thing to us is that the Christian world looks to the psychiatric profession and associated occupations rather than to the Holy Bible and Almighty God about how to handle illnesses of the mind and raise children. God's Word shows you how to do these things.

INTRODUCTION - There are countless children in this country on very dangerous psychiatric drugs. They are the unwitting guinea pigs of an experiment which is turning into a nightmare of monstrous proportions. In the past five years alone, the number of children committing suicide is up over 600%. Evidence is mounting, on a daily basis, that this tragedy is directly related to psychiatric treatment of children at an early age. Even if you have no children, children are the future of this nation. You doubtlessly have been and will be affected by what is going on.

Over the past ten years, psychiatry has shifted its income base from primarily treating adults to primarily treating children. This has been made possible by group medical plans which have recently (over the past 12 to 15 years) included coverage for psychiatric "treatments".

As a result, there are over 400% more children in psychiatric hospitals today than in 1980. It is estimated that the number of school children carrying psychiatric "diagnoses" of "mental illness" is up over 1000% in the same time period. In today's society, hanging a label of 'mental illness' on a child is like hanging a sign around the child's neck saying, "GARBAGE: TAKE IT AWAY!"

HOW CHILDREN BECOME "MENTALLY ILL" -

Under psychiatry's invented criteria, there isn't a single normal childhood behavior which doesn't fall within the broad "symptoms" which comprise so-called "mental illness".

Psychiatry has implanted into our lives their solution to the age-old problems of life, as well as their solution to the problems encountered in the education of children. Psychiatry's solution is to medicalize, label and then to cash in on the most common problems of life, including those experienced daily by people who educate and live with children.

HOW THE CHILD IS LABELED - The American Psychiatric Association published a test called the "Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders". In the psychiatric industry it is known as the "bible of psychiatry". It is so highly regarded because if a "mental illness" is not in this book, insurance companies will not pay the bill.

WHOSE OPINION COUNTS? - Whether any of the above "criteria" fit any particular child, depends only on the subjective opinion of the "adult" making the "diagnosis". As anyone can observe, some adults are better able to tolerate activity in children than others. This tolerance or intolerance for that matter can even vary, in the same adult, over a period of time.

GETTING PARENTS TO BUY THE "DIAGNOSIS" -The real trick is to get the parents to buy the "diagnosis" of "mental illness". Parents are often told or led to believe that "there is a real 'scientific' basis for the 'disease'." This is an utter falsehood. The only "criteria" are those listed above and the obvious financial benefits to the psychiatrist and other so-called "mental health professionals".

The truth is, psychiatrists say they "don't know what causes children to act as they do". The main criteria for having the "disease" seems to be the parents' willingness and ability to pay for "treatment" and often whether the parents have psychiatric coverage on their medical insurance.

HOW TO PROTECT YOUR CHILD - We also want any parent who still believes a child is too active, to know there are alternatives to drugging the child. In fact, there is extensive information available on handling active children without drugs. However, the first alternative to drugging a child, which the parent must recognize and choose, is to "not drug the child".

LIST OF DEMONS, DRUGS, SIGNS, SYMPTOMS AND REACTIONS

- 1. Cylert, Dexedrine, Mellaril, Tofranil, Haldol, Thorazine, Ritalin, Speed and Amphetamine-Like Drugs
- 2. Withdrawal, Depressed Mood, Fatigue, Psychotic Episodes, Severe Prolonged Depression, Paranoia, Suicidal, Severe Sleep Disturbances, Bed Wetting, In-creased Dreaming with Nightmares
- 3. Mental Illness, Crazy, Insanity, Nutritional Deficiencies, Stunting of Growth, Allergic Reactions
- 4. Anxiety, Tension, Extreme Agitation, Irritability, Psychosis
- 5. Mood Swings, Nervousness, Insomnia, Dizziness, Headache, Appetite Loss, Unexplained Fever, Blurred Vision, Joint Pain, Uncontrolled Movements, Rash, Hives, Sore Throat, Nausea, Abdominal Pain, Chest Pain, Fast/Irregular Heart Beat, Unusual Bruising, Unusual Tiredness, High Blood Pressure
- 6. Confusion, Behavior Problems
- 7. Tourette's Syndrome, Body Ticks, Spasms, Barking Sounds, Screaming Babble, Screaming Obscenities
- 8. Seizures, Epileptic, Convulsions, Fits, Grand Mai, Petit Mai, Body Twitches, Violent Muscular Spasms, Unconsciousness, Brain Damage
- 9. Over Stimulation of Central Nervous System, Death, Vomiting, Tremors, Exaggeration of Reflexes, Muscle Twitching, Convulsions, Coma, Euphoria, Confusion, Hallucinations, Delirium Sweating, Flushing, Headache, High Fever, Abnormally Rapid Heart Rate, Irregular Heart Beat, Pounding Heart, High Arterial Blood Pressure, Pupil Dilation, Dryness of Mucous Membranes
- 10. Thorazine, Chemical Lobotomy, Thorazine Shuffle, Slack Jawed, Drooling, Palms Turning Back, Arms Hanging Slack, Tardive Dyskinesia, Uncontrollable Muscle Spasm, Tongue Rolled Over, Tongue Protruding, Limbs Shake, Parkinson's Disease
- 11. Attention Deficit Disorder, Minimal Brain Dysfunction, Learning Disability, Impulse Disorder
- 12. Hyperactivity, Inattention, Impulsivity

REFERENCES

- 1. Dr. Caligari's Psychiatric Drugs from Network Against Psychiatric Assault
- 2. Drugs by H. Winter Griffith, M.D.
- 3. *Physicians Desk REFERENCES* from Medical Economics Company
- 4. Use a large medical dictionary or standard dictionary.
- 5. The above was excerpted from brochures of The Citizens Commission on Human Rights, 5265 Fountain Avenue, Suite 2, Los Angeles, California 90029. You can obtain more de-tailed information from them about drug effects on people.

SECTION 15 – SEX

CONTENTS

- 1 Sexual Diseases, Impurities and Demons
- 2 The AIDS Epidemic
- 3 Effeminacy Sins of Sodom
- 4 Rape
- 5 Sexual Harassment Abuse Assault Violence

1. SEXUAL DISEASES, IMPURITIES AND DEMONS LIST OF SCRIPTURES

Look these up at your convenience; they illustrate different points in the lesson:

Ex. 20:4 & 32:1-25	Do not make any graven images; Aaron makes a golden calf - Moses destroys it.
Psalm 34:1	I will bless and praise the Lord at all times continually.
John 8:34	If you commit sin, you are the servant of sin.
Rom. 7:8; 8:7; 13:12; 14:13	Is the law sin? Carnal mind is enmity; cast off works of darkness; do not place a stumbling block.
I Cor. 1:23; 5:1; 6:9; 8:9; 9:27; 10:5-8, 13; 14:14	Christ crucified; father's wife; unrighteous; liberty; subjection, idola- ters; temptation; tongues.
II Cor. 5:16-17; 6:17; 10:5; 12:21	New creature; separate; control thoughts, church is reproved.
Eph. 2:1-2; 4:29, 5:11,	Quickened in God; communication corrupt; works of darkness; sanc-
19, 26	tify and cleanse.
Phil. 4:8	Think on these things.
Col. 3:5, 8	Mortify your members; put off all these sins.
I Thes. 4:5, 11; 5:17	Lust of concupiscence; study to be quiet, pray without ceasing.
I Tim. 5:22	Keep thyself pure from sins.
II Tim. 2:22; 3:4,6	Flee youthful lusts; lovers of pleasure more than God; lead captive silly women with divers lusts.
Hebrews 13:4	Marriage is honorable and bed undefiled.
Titus 2:3-5	Old women to teach young women.
James 1:2-4; 4:7	Trying of your faith works patience; submit to God then resist the devil.
1 John 1:9; 2:10, 14	Confess our sins, love our brothers; you have overcome the wicked one.
Jude 18-20	Mockers, sensual, ungodly lusts; praying in the Holy Ghost.

PREFACE

This is a strong lesson but there is nothing to be embarrassed about. The Bible tells it like it is sin is sin. You also need to learn how demons talk and think. Sex according to God is pure, uplifting and clean; sex according to Satan is perverted, degraded and filthy. Children and adults need to learn about the right and wrong ways of sex. This lesson is for pastors, ministers and those who have committed sexual sin before or after marriage. Do you know what the Bible says about sexual sin? Have you committed any sexual sin in your life? Do you know the long reaching results of your actions? Do you know you cursed your children?

HOW WE GET CAUGHT IN SEXUAL TRAPS

I am going to briefly discuss some of the traps Satan has set for us in the sexual area which will hold not only us but generations of our descendents in its bondage. It will not be a pretty picture but perhaps you will see yourself and your children in these traps. There is good news for all Christians who desire to stop the effects of past sins. Jesus was made accursed for us, therefore we may break the curses, call out demons and watch very carefully for Satan's tricks in the sexual area.

The number one reason we have found for the sinful sexual activity of our day is that proper love relationships are not shown in the home. In many homes, even Christian homes, the proper relationships are not lived. Children need to see and feel the love between parents and themselves. Many people do not love their children. Many who do may not be able to show love properly to the children due to the problems they have with rejection themselves. Love is constant; it does not turn off when you don't get your way or when you fail or when someone you love fails. Please read and study II Tim. 3:1-5.

The next reason (one which grows out of number one) is rejection. A rejected person is one who is always looking for someone to love them without reservation. Many substitute lust (which tries to grab for itself) in place of love (which is caring, giving and protecting). Isa.53:3, "He was despised and rejected of men" (all men). Rejection is a tool Satan uses on all of us. He used it repeatedly on Jesus. We have come to believe it is the first deep wound a person receives and, if not healed, provides the doorway for demons to enter.

Much of the sexual activity of today is rejected people trying to feel loved. They have just fallen for one of Satan's tricks. Sexual activity is not love; it is just sex. Rejection causes us not to respect ourselves therefore we do not respect others nor their rights.

Reason number three is curses playing out their legal hold. When you or one of your direct line ancestors commits a sexual sin which carries a curse, demons which accompany that curse will follow all the descendents and try to bring each one into sexual sin. The demons have a right to do this until the curse runs out provided no one else adds to the curse or someone learns of breaking the curses and the casting out of the demons which accompany the curse. The purpose of this is to destroy whole family lines; I have seen this happen (King David's family and Saul's family).

"But God" (two of the loveliest words in the Bible) made a way out of this mess. It will not be easy; it will require diligence which we are commanded to have and to practice (2 Pet.3:14; Ex.15:26; Heb. 11:6; etc.)

If you want to get some idea how important God considers our relationship to family members and other people, just consider this. In Exodus 20 God says we will be cursed for three and four generations for worshiping other gods, but in Deut. 23 he says we will be cursed for ten generations for creating a bastard or for incest. A bastard is one conceived out of wedlock. Incest is sex with someone you are kin to. Here are some curses which you may have started or which may have been handed to you: Lev. 20:13 -homosexuals (male or female) often come from homes where there is an Ahab (dominate) father and a Jezebel (dominate) mother. They also come from homes where one or both parents may be closet homosexuals. Homosexuality is perverse, unnatural, abhorrent, detestable and it brings confusion and every evil work.

Deut.22:20-21; Num. 5:27 - Adulterous women loose demons of adultery on their children along with all the shame, insecurity, hurt, sickness, and the tendency to be a victim, etc.

Deut. 22:22-27; Lev. 20:10 - Adulterous men loose demons of adultery on their children the same as women along with the tendency to be cruel.

Deut. 23:2 - Creating a bastard looses demons to lead your children away from God, to cause trouble between family members and create more bastards.

Deut. 23:3 - Having incestuous relationships looses demons to cause all that is in the bastard curse, and also hardness, hate, insanity and deformity, confusion, perverse and defilement.

Deut. 27:21, Lev. 18:23 - Sex with beasts creates a very degenerate mind, physical deformities and is a form of Satan worship. Satan hates us and wants to make us lower than the animals. Some families have animal physical features. When questioned once about club feet, one demon said he was there because a great grandfather had sex with horses. It is confusion, perverse and degradingly carnal.

If you have ever said something like this, "It isn't anyone's business what I do, I'm not hurting anyone but myself, think how you will answer God. Think how you will feel as you watch the payoff from Satan to your descendents.

Demons exert pressure (a lot of pressure = a lot of demons).

ACTIONS AND RESULTS

If you had sex before marriage, even with your future mate, you committed fornication. If you then married your sexual partner, your marriage and all your children were cursed. You have loosed demons to pressure all your children to this sin and to greater sexual sin.

If you conceived a child before marriage, you conceived a bastard. If you conceived a bastard child, you cursed your descendents for ten Bible generations (400 years). The descendents will tend to conceive bastards generation after generation.

If you fornicated before marriage, you are likely to commit adultery after marriage. Adultery is also committed by someone who marries a divorced person. If you had sex before marriage, you set a pattern for your children to commit fornication. Like father - like son; like mother - like daughter. The sins that the parents commit will tend to be repeated by the children and their descendents. Sexual sins of the pastor will also tend to be repeated in his congregation; he looses sexual demons to rule over the church.

Jezebelic mothers and Ahab fathers will raise children who may become masculine women and effeminate men. Homosexuality and lesbianism can be caused by parents not setting the proper example in the home. Man is head of home; woman submits to man in divine order. Man is to love the wife as Christ loved the church. Many women do not submit properly to their husbands because the husband does not properly love the wife and submit properly to God. When men show harshness, lack of concern, do not value and are unkind to the wife, she will not only loose respect for him but will not trust his leadership.

Pornography can come into the home through television, radio or the printed word. Seeing, listening or reading pornography will cause the person to want to repeat these acts. Once seen, these scenes are extremely hard to wipe out of the mind.

Incest or rape by your relatives destroys the natural sex life with your mate. Rape can cause harlotry or frigidity; it produces hate, distrust and hardness.

I have begun to suspect that any sexual activity that is contrary to God's Law will bring curses for some number of generations. Read Rev. 21:8. We must overcome these things before we finish this life. If you once transgress the realm of proper sex according to God, you have softened your resistance to improper sex.

How can you tell if you have a demon in this area? You may not have a demon if you are mildly enticed to sexual fantasy or sexual activity and you do not attempt to carry the fantasy out. You may be plagued by demons from past generations whose job it is to continually harass you until you give in enough for them to get control over you in this area. You do have one or more demons if the pressure mounts and you find it very difficult or impossible to resist the temptation.

Occult sex or sex orgies cause a person to become very demonized. Demons of Succubi and incubi lead to depravity. Exposure and unclean sex loose sensual appetites and lewd emotions.

Bestiality can lead to horrible offspring. You may even create a type of demonic tie with that animal.

AIDS is a curse from God on those who practice homosexuality and fornication. It will become a terrible plague in our country. If you remain sexually pure, depend on God to protect you from AIDS.

We know a single man who went six years without a wet dream or masturbating. Satan even sent three beautiful demons of Succubi to trap him; he didn't fall for the trap.

A soul tie is formed with all sexual partners, even with the same sex through homosexuality and lesbianism.

The only way the above patterns can be stopped is to practice deliverance: confession of sins, breaking curses and soul ties, casting out demons, and living a scripturally disciplined life. Then the descendent will be free to make their own choice.

You should enjoy the sexual affections of your mate. The bed is holy and undefiled. Your body belongs to your mate. Intercourse is the only Godly form of sex. Sexual deviation such as oral sex and anal sex with your mate is demonic.

DEMONS THAT BREAK UP MARRIAGES

It is the duty of marriage breaking spirits to work in the husband and wife. One strong one is lust. In our society men have been programmed to lust for and not truly love the wife. When a man uses this tactic on the wife, her ego is wounded. Because lust is seeking only its own gratification, the wife will feel used or violated, which leaves her feeling degraded. The person who is the object of lust will often become repulsed at having sexual contact with the spouse.

Lust, instead of love, often causes the wife to use sex as a bargaining device. This happens because the wife knows she is not being loved, just used as a prostitute, so *!:c uses the person who has used her. When a woman uses these tactics on the man, his ego is wounded. As you can see, this is a satanic game which continues the rejection process until there is only hate left. Woe to the men and women who get caught in this trap and never get out; woe to the children so educated about love, sex and marriage. Thus the true meaning of the sex act and the satisfaction it should bring can easily be destroyed for the couple (Titus 2:3-5).

Just a question to the older women. Are you qualified to teach younger women how to love their husbands and children (Titus 2:3-5)? By your own life you do teach.

One of the most urgent needs of the American husband is to learn what God means when He says a man should love his wife. He will learn to control his sexual desires, and consider the wife's needs and condition as well as his own.

Due to the wide spread of pornographic material, many men force their wives into oral, anal and other sexual perversions, often leading the wife into deviate sex.

Fear of homosexuality is great among American men. A large number of men have had minor or major contact with homosexuality as young boys. Young boys often get their hands on pornographic material by accident and follow its instructions. Here are some common traits in husbands who have had some homosexual contact. When he marries, he will not see the need to provide financially or spiritually for the wife and children. He often hates the wife and children, and feels they hamper him. He does not understand his responsibility for the family, neither does he care. He usually will not hold a steady job. They are all laden with fear which torments them. Oral sex is a powerful spirit and will not give up easily. They reside in the mouth, lips, tongue, taste buds, throat, sex organs and the mind. There must be sincere repentance followed by determined discipline. We have seen men recover from this spirit's control. Many young children are forced into oral sex by some one they trust or are kin to. Even though they hate it, they cannot stop the demon's demand for it and will often continue to seek it even when no one forces them.

PREACHERS AND SEX SCANDALS

We have all watched and been greatly shaken when preachers and Christian leaders we have respected reach their goals and have a ministry that is successful, fall into sexual sin destroying all they have accomplished as well as many young Christians. The Bible gives us the order in which we should grow: (1) Salvation, (2) Casting out demons, (3) Baptism in Holy Spirit, (4) Safety in accidents and (5) Healing. Many pastors and Christian leaders have never been delivered of evil spirits. Because of their resistance to the demons, the demons just play a waiting game. They may even help the man succeed, knowing their success in causing the man's fall is sure, they just act like they are gone (Mark 16:16-19). The demons watch as they go around in the man for just the right time, place and person to catch him. They will never strike too soon. Had this man been delivered and understood the attempts of demons to re-enter, he would have had a chance against the fall. We know a pastor who says, "If you let the Devil ride, he's going to drive." Sex, power, and money are three main destroyers of man. If you let any of these control you, it can destroy you.

INCUBI AND SUCCUBI

Those attacking females are called incubus and those concentrating on males are called succubus. These are vicious sexual spirits which can molest and torment susceptible individuals. Most attacks are at night and the person its awakened by fondling hands, caressing hot lips and tongue, and other forms of lust inducing stimulation. Every kind of abnormal and deviate sexual experience can be generated by these spirits.

These demons cruelly torment their victims to satisfy their filthy cravings. Some people have told us that they get to the point they are afraid to go to sleep at night. Their days are filled with shame and they feel everyone knows what they do. They have no hope of escape. Many consider suicide and a good number carry it out. Some of these demons have been loosed on these help-less people by curses from their ancestors, and some by their own sins.

INORDINATE AFFECTIONS WITH OTHERS

Inordinate - (1) disorderly, unregulated, (2) exceeding reasonable limits, immoderate, excessive. After we accept Christ as Savior, we need to carefully consider our former relationships with people. Any wrong activities, actions, thoughts, desires, and attitudes should be confessed as sin and never be engaged in again. We need to recognize the cleansing and forgiveness provided by Jesus Christ (I John 1:9).

Inordinate affections include unnaturally close friendships involving affections, heterosexual or homosexual contacts, and fellowship in other sinful practices. This will include all blood covenants.

We know that before salvation we knew people in a purely human way (II Cor. 5:16). After salvation, all of our relationships need to be examined to make sure none of them are in violation of God's Word. Since the fleshly or carnal mind is enmity with God; not subject to, nor can it ever be subject to God (Rom. 8:7), we must be careful what we subject it to. Remember, evil companionships, communion and associations corrupt and deprave good manners, morals and character (I Cor. 15:33-34). "If any man be in Christ, he is a new creature; old things are passed away, behold all things are become new" (II Cor. 5:17).

Pray this or a similar prayer to break ungodly connections with the past (pray out loud for more power and authority): "Satan, in the name of Jesus, I come against the demon authorities who controlled and motivated my relationship with (friend's name) and break your power and authority over my life and affections, especially as related to him/her. By the blood of the Lord Jesus Christ, I remove myself from any authority you ever exercised over me. I renounce all such ties

of affection and ask that the Lord Jesus help me to love him/her only with His agape love, "in the bowels (affections) of Jesus Christ". I give my affections (desire) completely to the Lord Jesus Christ for His use. Amen".

After you have prayed this prayer and accepted the cleansing of Jesus, you may find it better to stay away from these friends long enough to become spiritually stable yourself (II Cor. 6:17).

If your former friend will not come to Christ for salvation and cleansing, then part company with them. You can ask God to bring that person across your path when you are stronger spiritually, and when they have been drawn and convicted by the Holy Spirit.

You will need to renounce all pacts, covenants, promises and other binding allegiances to former friends in the world, and break all curses which may have been incurred by such relationships or agreements.

Pray this prayer (pray out loud for more spiritual authority): "Since I have confessed my former relationship with (name) as sin and the sinful practices that were involved, I now break any curses which have come to me as a result of this association. According to Gal. 3:13, Jesus became a curse for me on the cross and blotted out the handwriting of ordinances which were against me. In the name of Jesus, I take authority over every demon who has inhabited my mind, will, emotions, body or spirit because of any friendship outside of Jesus Christ. I have confessed these relationships (with their activities, thoughts, desires and attitudes) as sin. I now command all demons associated with these relationships to leave me now in Jesus' name. Amen".

I now follow Rom. 12:1, and present all my members and faculties to God. I desire to be well pleasing to God. Carefully begin to make new friendships only in Jesus Christ which will be based on true love as outlined in I Cor. 13.

Continually renew your emotions and mind in scripture, praise, spiritual songs, and pure and wholesome thoughts (Eph. 5:19, 26; Psalm 34:1; Phil. 4:8). Fix your mind on things outlined in Phil. 4:8. This suggests we may need to use force on our minds. Think about and tell the demons about Jesus' love for you, His last supper, His submission in the garden, His death, His resurrection, His ascension and His priesthood - all for you. It makes the demons recede when you force your mind to think about the love Jesus Christ has for you and to remember that they have no chance for salvation. In I Thes. 5:18 we are told to thank God in everything. If you are busy thanking God for all He does for you, you cannot be depressed. Pray with the understanding and in the Spirit (Jude 20; I Cor. 14:4). Memorizing and singing scripture can be an invaluable aid (I John 2:14).

Thankfully and joyfully fill your days with good hard work (I Thes. 4:11). See Luke 16:10-12 and learn to take responsibility for your small earthly duties so that you can be trusted in much. Serve in the church and fellowship with Christian companions (Heb. 10:25).

Since bad music is often associated with bad relationships, renounce and destroy all rock, country, blue grass, melancholy and sensual music. Especially shun music which brings remembrance of former sinful activities and friends. Have the one working with you call out names of artists and types of music as names of demons.

SUBLIMINAL ADVERTISING IN WHAT YOU SEE AND READ

What would have seemed impossible thirty years ago has come to pass, you can receive a message to your mind and never see the message with your conscious mind or physical eyes. This is a subliminal message. We were given a book about subliminal messages. In one ad, very cleverly concealed in the ice cubes, was a woman in a sexual pose with an animal. Although you probably would not see it with your eyes, unconsciously you would get the message: drink - sex - bestiality.

We must guard good moral values. If we are weak in our convictions, our moral values can be changed subliminally by suggestion in rock music, TV, radio, newspapers, magazines, posters, billboards, etc.

One form of subliminal message is the sub-audio suggestions on rock records saying: Communism is the perfect form of government; hate your parents; you are no good; commit suicide; kill others: take drugs; they taste good; your parents hate you; police are pigs; and the whole world is crooked.

If we as Christians do not cultivate the Word of God, accept its values and be taught of the Holy Spirit, our spiritual fences will not be up and intact when the enemy attacks. We have adequate protection but it is not automatic.

Hosea 4:6 says we are destroyed for lack of knowledge of the Law of God. Those who do not take time to learn what is righteous in the sight of God will be swept along to destruction which is Satan's plan for you (Eph. 2:1-2).

THE SINGLE MALE

Because the sex drive is second strongest in the body, it is something with which you will always have to live. Because humans are able to become parents long before they are mature enough to assume the duties and responsibilities of parenthood, there has to be a wise reason in God's time table in this. Could it be that God has given young men and young ladies this problem to teach self-control? James 1:2-4 points out that trials bring endurance and steadfastness. Let endurance, steadfastness and patience have full play and do a thorough work, so that you may be fully developed, lacking nothing.

It is the desire of Satan to have you laden down by guilt, curses and sin before you mature enough to form a family. You automatically get demons and curses when you are not chaste: for incest - ten generations; for creating a bastard - ten generations; for being a father to a baby aborted - the curses for shedding innocent blood and murder indirectly, adultery, whore monger and failing to provide for your offspring, just to name a few.

In marriage there are times when abstinence and continence must be practiced. During the menstrual cycle, periods of geographical separation from the wife and during pregnancy, sexual relations are either undesirable or unwise. The basic need is to bring the sex drive under control. Learn to avoid sexual impurity and the debilitating guilt which follows such involvements. Satan urges a man to involve himself in sexual activity without regard for his physical or mental health and by this prove his manhood.

He only proves he has the equipment, that it works and he just fell for one of Satan's big ones. He has just laid curses on himself, his wife, his marriage, all his sons and daughters, and several generations of descendents. He has loosed sexual demons to harass and torment them, and he may have gotten a sexually transmitted disease for himself and his descendents.

Satan uses the sex drive to trap all people but even more so the Christians. Masturbation is a form of self-indulgence and self-love, strictly a selfish pleasure. It produces shame, doubt, condemnation and failure. Satan's lie is that it does not involve anyone else, so it is all right.

The more times a man has engaged in sexual activity in the past, whether it was masturbation, heterosexual or homosexual activities, the more difficulties he will have in breaking these practices. Being as persistent to resist the demons as the demons are persistent against you will put you in proper submission to God and the Devil will flee. Read James 4:5-8.

The morning erection is caused by the need to urinate; the erection then leaves and the penis goes back to normal. Arousal can be caused by other reasons such as pornography, watching women, tight clothing, etc.; the penis may then achieve a erection. If the man does not masturbate, he will have a wet dream which will relieve the pressure of the sperm.

There is no condemnation for having a wet dream. You have committed no sin because this is a natural function of the body. Don't let Satan talk to you and get you to masturbate.

When the demon comes, he must be rebuked in Jesus' name. Because Satan is a liar, the person so attacked does not have to agree with Satan's evaluation of himself. It is time now for you to force your mind to think on what you tell it to do.

Now a problem arises. A man knows I Cor. 10:13, and understands all the mechanics of physical sex pressure and even the psychological warfare Satan wages to lead into sexual sin, in spite of all this, he falls, by letting the Devil goad him into masturbating. Before the act, the demon pushed for it; now he begins to attack with guilt thoughts, shame, giving up. After repenting instead of giving up, show your thanks to God for His forgiveness and cleansing. Forgive yourself. Get up and go for Success again (I John 1:9). Don't waste time with vain recriminations over your failure. If you continue you will succeed. The episode may have opened your mind and body to sex spirits.

Pray out loud for more power and authority: "Satan, I rebuke you in Jesus' name and command that every spirit of masturbation, lewdness, uncleanness, adultery, fornication, perversion, pornography, etc. leave me now". Stop praying and breathe slowly and deeply three or four times. Be persistent, and repeat until they leave.

In the future, avoid the circumstances, contacts and actions which led up to your failure. Begin new thought patterns at the very onset of temptation. Usually the greatest pressures come when you are alone. Study the Bible and pray, do binding and loosing warfare, get plenty of physical exercise, work hard at your job.

Find methods which are helpful to you personally and use them to reinforce your good resolutions. As Paul admonished young Timothy, "Keep thyself pure", and "Flee youthful lusts." (I Tim. 5:22; II Tim. 2:22; I Cor. 9:27).

THE SINGLE FEMALE

Under the guise of female liberty, the American woman has lost a lot. She has been told she has sexual liberty and can, if she so desires, pick up a man and have sex - no strings attached. While this may sound very interesting, even exciting to some, let's examine the results of such actions.

She is forming soul ties with each man (I Cor. 6:15-16). This means that she is attached in her soul to every man she has had sex with; this tie will interfere with her total relationship with her husband. Each man goes to bed with her and her husband, and interferes with their sex life. Because of attitudes which she has formed about life, men and herself, she will usually not be able to be happy even if she should marry a good man. She may not be able to persist in hard times.

She may get sexual diseases for herself and even pass them on to her children or they may kill her children She may become pregnant and bear a child; an act she did not even consider at the time of the sex act. If she has an abortion these curses will be upon her and also the father (Ex.21:12;Deut. 19:10; Pro.6:17; Lev.20:2).

She invites the curse of the bastard upon herself and gives it to ten generations of her descanters (Deut. 23:2). This curse will follow her into a marriage and fall on all of her children. Some of the attributes of this curse are: family members do not get along, they do not feel at home in the church, create more bastards, are cruel and unkind.

She will not escape the psychological and spiritual attacks of Satan through curses and the demons. She suffers shame, feelings of being degraded, maybe becomes truly degraded, emotional illness torments her, feelings of loss and dread follow her, she will feel fragmented and loose the ability to trust herself, men and God. Sexually transmitted diseases may not be curable. After a time she will either loathe her life or go beyond the point of having any desire to return to God.

It is strange but in my school classes very young children have a knowing that it is wrong for mom or dad to associate in intimate ways with someone not their mate. They know this without ever having anyone tell them. This knowing can be abused but cannot be denied and sooner or later will convict the woman. In later life her loss will become more evident to her and bring even more grief or suicide. There is no sadder person than the old woman who has been destroyed through unlawful sexual activity, and has lost the respect and love of her children and husband.

Let's take a look at the average young lady who has followed the so called "new liberty". This may surprise you; she is generally in her early to mid-twenties. This is very young to have ruined your life and maybe your children's lives. She has usually been married, may have a child, has become envious of others, is unthankful, considers her life boring, over or to much for her, and she would like to live in a fantasy world. The pasture looks brighter out there. She divorces her

mate or just leaves. Next step is the job market; there she finds sexual favors will get what she thinks she wants, but again she is cheated. Now she is often alone because the courts will give the children to the husband if she is not a fit parent. She finds that men talk sweet and walk out fast.

After all this, a few come to their senses and repent in true repentance. They get saved and begin to change their life, but the demons they have collected will not leave them alone and exert pressure to return to the old life. If she holds out and comes to Jesus Christ for deliverance, she will still have to be diligent in her resistance to immorality if she is to regain her life. If she does not hear of nor get deliverance, the chances are very great she will go back to the old life.

We have seen that those getting deliverance and teaching about how to win over Satan and the demons can persevere and recover almost all that they have lost. We've seen many return to their homes and families and make beautiful Christian wives and mothers. We have seen sexual diseases cured, and mental and physical health restored. This is the reward we get which keeps us filled with desire to see everyone win over Satan.

I urge all young ladies to treasure what God has given. Don't fall for Satan's lie and become polluted, filled with demons and laden with guilt. Get yourself delivered from the curses that have been handed to you by your ancestors and enjoy a clean life with God.

There is one young man in the Bible that I feel is smarter even than Solomon. He is in I Chron. 3:9-10. He cried out to God that he be kept from evil so that he would not be hurt by it. The request must have pleased God for it says He granted him his request.

As you can see, there are curses, pain and punishment for all who transgress God's laws on sex. When you think you have succeeded in hiding it, guess who saw you. When you think you got away scoot free, wait a few years and you will see. When you are tempted to think you have hurt no one but yourself, see what happens to your children. If this has been your life or if you are beginning to think that a life of sexual promiscuity would be fun, see now that the price is too great.

Pray, out loud, putting all your guilt before God: "Father in Heaven, I now recognize my sin or sins and I ask for the cleansing power of Jesus Christ's blood to cleanse all of these sins. I forgive all ancestors who have cursed me by their sexual sins. I ask that my descendents will be able to forgive me for the curses I have placed on them. Father, I ask You to forgive me for not protecting those You entrusted to my care. I now break all soul ties with every man or woman (name each one to God) that I have ever had any sexual relations with. I ask that You completely sever all these ties. I forgive all who have hurt me in any way. I ask You to forgive me for having unforgiveness in my heart for others. I ask You to send health and healing to my body and soul. Lord, please begin a restoration of our family and please begin with me. Lord, I am so thankful You have provided a way for me to be forgiven. I turn from my sins and follow You. I ask these things in Jesus Christ's name. Amen."

SEX PERVERSION

In Unger's Bible Dictionary under False Gods you can get an education on the gods that Israel worshiped. In this study you will discover that illegal sexual activity was, in fact, worship of that god. Perhaps that is why there is such an increase in sexual perversion. Satan is trying to restore

worship of these gods knowing that most people do not know they are performing an act of worship when they do sexually perverted things:

In Romans 13:12 and in Ephesians 5:11 we are commanded to have nothing to do with the unfruitful works of darkness. Ancient cults and their activities are becoming popular in our land today.

Romans 6:16 say» that to whomever we yield ourselves to obey that's whose slave we become. In II Tim. 3:4-6 we learn that treacherous, inflated with self-conceit, unscrupulous men (lovers of sensual pleasures) acting like they are true Christians worm their way into the homes of silly, weak-willed, spiritually dwarfed women and lead them astray. We have observed that the purpose of all this deceit is sexual activity.

Today most people seem unaware of or are indifferent to the condemnation in God's Word against all sexual perversions. In the first chapter of Romans we can follow the descent of man into depravity. First the position of God is reduced to the position of the creation. At this point, a man's heart is filled with vain imaginations and he becomes deceived. His worship is centered upon graven images (Ex. 20:4). The images are in descending order. First worshipped is the likenesses of men (we are into body worship today), then his gods become lower creatures like birds, next four-footed beasts, and finally creeping things. For this rebellion, the Lord gives them up to illicit sex between men and women, thus destroying the marriage relationship and undermining the family. The next step down is homosexuality and perversion, again practiced in worship of the "gods" set up by foolish and blinded men. See Unger's Bible Dictionary, pages 411-418.

Fornication is the word which covers all unlawful sexual acts. In the Scriptures - incest, adultery and idolatrous sex orgies are all called fornication (Matt. 5:32; I Cor. 5:1; 10:5-8; Ex. 32:1-25). Adultery is voluntary sexual intercourse between a married person and someone who is not their legitimate mate. Effeminate refers to a homosexual man, a catamite (I Cor. 6:9). Abusers of themselves with mankind (I Cor. 6:9) is the Greek word arsenokoites or sodomite; one guilty of unnatural offenses, one who practices sodomy. I Kings 11 tells us that Solomon worshiped at the Ashtoreth.

Many Christian married couples use Heb. 13:4 as an excuse to practice sodomy. They believe they can have perverted sex just because they are married. They are in deep deception.

Let us consider these translations: "Let marriage be held in honor among all, and let the marriage bed be undefiled, for fornicators and adulterers God will judge" (New American Standard). "Let marriage be held in honor - esteemed worthy, precious, (that is,) of great price and especially dear - in all things. And let the marriage bed be (kept undishonored) undented; for God will judge and punish the unchaste (ail guilty of sexual vice) and adulterous" (Amplified). "Marriage must be held in honor by all, and the marriage relations kept sacred. Persons who are sexually vicious and immoral God will punish" (Williams).

God has never and will never agree with you that fornication, sodomy or any type of uncleanness, in or out of marriage is acceptable to Him. According to Pro. 23:7, as a man thinketh in his heart so is he. Because we become what we think about, Paul points out that we should think on things that are honest, pure, lovely, virtuous, and of good report (Phil. 4:8). In II Cor. 10:5, we are told

to cast down vain imaginations which would rear up against the teachings of God and we are commanded to bring every thought into captivity to Christ Jesus. I Cor. 15:33-34 tells us not to be deceived or misled because evil companionships, (communion, associations) corrupt and deprave good manners and morals and character. We should be holy in all conversation even as Christ is holy.

God has made a way for us to escape from temptation but most of the time we don't take it. There is a difference between temptation and sin. Demons usually put thoughts of sins in our head. To have the thought pass through your head is not sin. To obey or continue the thoughts and act on them is sin (I Cor. 10:13).

Sensual relates to or consists in the gratification of the senses or the indulgence of appetite; to be devoted to or preoccupied with the senses or appetites; voluptuous; deficient in moral, spiritual or intellectual interests. Synonym - carnal; see Jude 18, 19. Evil concupiscence is to desire ardently; strong desire especially in the sexual area (Col. 3:5; I Thes. 4:5; Rom. 7:8). Inordinate affection refers to that which is unregulated, disorderly, exceeding reasonable limits; immoderate; excessive (Col. 3:5). Lasciviousness is the promoting or partaking of that which tends to produce lewd emotions; anything which fosters sexual sin and lustfulness. Today it seems both men and women can dress and conduct themselves in a lascivious manner. Christians should not do anything in dress or conduct that would cause others to stumble (II Cor. 12:21; Rom. 14:13; I Cor. 1:23; I John 2:10). Filthy communication is derived from the Greek word meaning useless, putrid, or obscene. Suggestive body or eye movements, obscene jokes, pornographic books, movies, pictures, rock music, profanity and blasphemy all come under this classification (Eph. 4:29; Col. 3:8).

In the bonds of holy matrimony, sexual intercourse is not an evil thing. Couples find a closeness, joy and blessing impossible to attain by any other means.

If you are unable to stop filthy memories, words or voices coming into your mind; if you are constantly undressing others with your eyes, and lewd and evil thoughts constantly flood your mind; if you are a masturbator, fornicator, homosexual or lesbian; then you are most probably host to evil spirits.

Here is a prayer which has helped many to untangle the bondage and break free (pray out loud for more spiritual power): "Lord Jesus, I bring before You all my sexual sins (by name); I renounce them all and I am sorry for participations in them. I do now repent and ask forgiveness for them all. I now break in the name of the Lord Jesus the hold these sins have had on me. I also break all soul ties between me and every person (name each person). In Joel, I am told that those who call on the name of the Lord shall be delivered. In particular I confess the following: all preoccupation with the sensual desire and appetites, and indulgences of them; all longing and ardent desire for what is forbidden; all inordinate affection, all unnatural and unrestrained passions and lusts; all promoting or partaking of that which tends to produce lewd emotions, and foster sexual sin and lust. I further confess all filthy communication: obscene and filthy language, conversation and jokes; lewd and obscene music, poetry, literature and art; all pornography; all acts of sodomy, adultery, immorality, fornication, masturbation, oral sex, effeminacy and homosexuality; also all affection for and attachment to philosophies, religions, and life styles which glorify,

promote and condone sexual conduct in thought, word and deed contrary to the standard for believers in the Bible.

I further renounce the expression of these philosophies, religions and life styles in art, literature, mass media, and public practices and attitudes. Lord, I ask that Your Spirit reveal other sexual offenses in my life that I have committed.

Father, I confess and renounce all occult involvement, both known and unknown, by me or my ancestors. I hate Satan, his demons, and all his works; I count all that offends You, Father, as my enemy.

Lord, I ask You to cleanse, heal and deliver me. I thank You for forgiving my sin and cleansing me from all unrighteousness. I also now break all curses (here break all curses known to you and ask God to reveal any others) I have brought upon myself and my children, and I break all those I inherited in the name of Jesus Christ, God's Son. I do now claim and accept Your forgiveness and cleansing.

Satan, I have confessed my sins, and broken all soul ties and curses in the name of Jesus, and I rebuke you in the name of Jesus Christ my Saviour. I am reclaiming every area of my mind and body which I formerly gave to you and your demons. I claim freedom and cleansing in the areas of sexual sin, and I renounce you and your hosts, and command that they leave me now in the name of Jesus Christ.

I now reclaim all ground that I have ever given to Satan in body, mind, soul, or spirit. I dedicate all of my life to You Dear Lord, to be used by You. I ask You to empower every area of my life, so that in the future they might be used in service to You. Amen".

Note: It is always good to lead the group or the person being delivered through basic deliverance: Rejection, Bitterness, and Rebellion. Break all Biblical curses relating to sexual impurity and all ungodly soul ties with any person they have had sex with including any animals. Break unnaturally close friendships, blood covenants, pacts, other demonic covenants, promises and allegiances.

	•		
Curses • Soul Ties • Frag-	Uncleanness	Diseases	
mented Soul	Perversion	Accidents	
Unnaturally Close Friend-	Lust & Passions	Pride, Ego, Vanity	
ships, Blood Covenants	Fantasy Lust	Self-Conceit, Lovers of	
Pacts, Covenants, Promises,	Sexual Fantasies	Pleasure	
Allegiances	& Activities	Flirting	
Sins	Obscene Music, Poetry,	Masochism	
Fornication	Literature and Art	Nymphomania	
Adultery (Also Marriage To	Occult Sex, Sex Orgies	Succubus, Incubus	
Divorced Person)	Immorality	Oversexed, Undersexed	
Masculine Women, Lesbian-	Incest, Bastard	Prostitution, Harlotry,	
ism	Rape, Fondling	Whore	
Effeminate Men, Homosexu-	Bad Dreams	Voyeurism	

LIST OF SEXUAL DEMONS

ality, Sodomy, Catamite	Frigidity, Impotence	Bestiality	
Abusers of themselves with	Pornography	Deviation, Depravity	
mankind (Arsenokoites and	Child Pornography	Playboy Channel	
Sodomites; Oral and Anal	X-Rated Movies	Porno Pictures	
Sex)	Obscene Jokes	Porno Books	
Sensual (Carnal and Voluptu-	Diseases	Syphilis	
ous Senses and Appetites)	Venereal Diseases	Yaws	
Evil Concupiscence	Insanity	Congenital Syphilis	
Inordinate Affections (Exces-	Endocarditis	Bejel	
sive, Disorderly, Unregu-	Gonorrhea	Gonorrheal Arthritis	
lated, Immoderate)	Staggering Gait	Pinta	
Lasciviousness, Lewdness	Weil's Disease	Venereal Granuloma	
(Lewd Emotions)	Chancroid (Soft)	Relapsing Fever	
Filthy Language (Obscenity,	Heart Disease	AIDS	
Blasphemy, Profanity)	Sterility	Tropical Ulcer	
Masturbation	Granuloma Inguinal	Meningitis	
Abortion, Murder, Killing	Blindness	Rat-Bite Fever	
Ahab, Jezebel	Herpes I and II	Sicknesses	
Exposure	Spirochetal Infections	Structural Damage	
	Ulcerative Lesions	Deformities	
	Injuries		
	Mumps		

General

General			
Rejection, Bitterness, Rebel-	Spiritually Dwarfed Manhood	Doubt, Condemnation, Pres-	
lion, Unforgiveness	and Womanhood	sure	
Shame, Insecurity, Hurt, Vic-	Defiled, Degraded, Violated	Lewdness, Uncleanness, Sex-	
tim, Suicide, Debilitating	Sexual Bargaining, Married	ual Liberty, Lustfulness	
Guilt	Prostitute and Pimp	Whore, Prostitute, Harlot, Sex	
Cruelty, Hardness, Hate,	Fear of Homosexuality and	Slave	
Harshness, Unscrupulous	Lesbianism	Enviousness, Jealousy, Cheat-	
Insanity, Degenerate Mind,	Love of Sex, Power and	ing	
Carnal Mind	Money	Vain Imaginations, Deficient	
Satan Worship, Idolatry, Wor-	Sexual Molestation, Child	Thinking	
ship of Sex	and. Adult	Evil Companionship and Con-	
Distrust, Lost Respect for	Fondling Hands, Caressing	versation	
Mate, Deceit	Hot Lips	Useless, Putrid	
Undisciplined, Self-	Abnormal and Deviate Sex	Unrestrained Passions and	
Gratification	and Impurities	Lusts	
Enmity Towards God, Works	Depraved Manners, Morals	Sensual Art, Literature and	
of Darkness, Mockery	and Character	Mass Media	
Divers Lusts, Lusts of Eyes,	Sensual Music: Rock, Coun-	Lack of Concern, Indifference	
Lusts of Flesh	try, Blue Grass,		
Subliminal Messages, Sub-	Melancholy		
audio Suggestions	Ignorance, Irresponsibility,		
Alcohol and Drugs	Boredom		

Mass Deliverance Manual contains a list of demons for Abused Children (Deliverance for the Subconscious Mind) which is helpful to use after teaching or reading this lesson.

2. THE AIDS EPIDEMIC

SCRIPTURE

Groves are altars to Asherah; homosexuality practiced there.
Homosexuality is an abomination to God.
You shall utterly destroy Asherah groves and altars.
Destroy obelisks (symbols) and altars with fire.
Israel serving Baal and Ashtaroth; perverted sex in worship.
Captivity for making Asherim (symbol of Asherah) phallic sign.
Sodomites (male cult prostitutes) did all abominations of Baal.
Showdown between 400 prophets of Baal and Elijah; Baal lost.
Back to Asherah again.
Hezekiah destroys the groves and high places.
Josiah destroys all houses of male all cult prostitutes.
Asa destroys idolatrous obelisks, phallic symbols, and altars.
Back to Asherim and idols; wrath of God falls on them.
Same as II Ki. 18.
Manasseh - back to the groves and astrology.
Same as II Ki. 23.
Do not look to Adonis nor respect idols, groves or images.
Iniquity cleansed by destroying every thing of idol worship.
Children earnestly remember the idols, not God.
God will destroy all false worship.
Idol worship and immoral sex death; traits of homosexuals.
Homosexuals and Satan worshipers will not be in heaven.

DEFINITION OF SODOMY

(Unger's Bible Dictionary) - "Sodomite - Gen. 19:5 and Romans 1:27, men consecrated to the unnatural vice of Sodom as a religious rite. The dreadful consecration was to the Greek Astarte (Asherah - male, Ashtaroth - female). Term was applied to the emasculated priests of Cybele. Sodomite, Deut. 23:17-18, sodomy was forbidden. Verse 18, the price of a dog is a figurative expression used to denote the gains of a sodomite (qadish). From the dog, like the way in which he debases himself. Rev. 22:15, unclean called dogs." Webster's -"sodomy, n. any sexual inter-course regarded as abnormal, as between persons of the same sex, especially males, or between a person and an animal."

HOMOSEXUALS TO PARENTS

(Gay Community News) - "We shall sodomize your sons, emblems of your feeble masculinity, of your shallow dreams and vulgar lies. We shall seduce them in your schools, in your dormitories, in your gymnasiums, in your locker rooms, in your sports arenas, in your seminaries, in your truck stops, in your all-male clubs, in your houses of Congress, wherever men are with men

together. Your sons shall become our minions and do our bidding. They will be recast in our image. They will come to crave and adore us.

All laws banning homosexual activity will be revoked. If you dare cry faggot, fairy, queer at us, we will stab you in your cowardly hearts. All churches who condemn us will be closed. Our only gods are handsome young men.

We shall be victorious because we are fueled with the ferocious bitterness of the oppressed. We too are capable of firing guns and manning the barricades of ultimate revolution."

SODOMY IN THE TEMPLE

(The Matthew Henry Commentary) - "II Ki. 23 - Josiah's Reformation. In chapter 22 Josiah began his reign at age 8. He sought to repair the house of the Lord. In its repair, a book of the law was found and read to Josiah. Because Josiah repented at the reading of the words and began to restore the worship of the true God, God promised him that he would go to his grave in peace. This is what was found in and around the temple.

Verses 4-14 - an account of such a reformation as we have not met with in all the history of the kings of Judah, such thorough riddance made of all the abominable things and such foundations laid of a glorious good work. The generality of the people, after all, hated to be reformed.

I. What abundance of wickedness there was, and had been, in Judah and Jerusalem.

1. Even in house of the Lord, that sacred temple which Solomon built and dedicated to the honor and for the worship of the God of Israel, there were found vessels, all manner of utensils, for the worship of Baal, and of the groves (Astaroth), and of all the host of heaven (astrology). V.4, Though Josiah had suppressed the worship of idols, yet the utensils made for that worship were all carefully preserved, even in the temple itself.

2. Just at the entering in of the house of the Lord was a stable for horses kept for a religious use; they were holy horses, given to the sun (v.ll), as if he needed them who rejoiceth as a strong man to run a race (Ps.19:5), making their religion to conform to the poetical fictions of the chariot of the sun. Some say that those horses were to be led forth in pomp every morning to meet the rising sun, others that the worshipers of the sun road out to adore the rising sun; it would seem that they drew the chariots of the sun, which the people worshiped.

3. Hard by the house of the Lord there were houses of the sodomites, where all manner of lewdness and filthiness, even that which is most unnatural, was practiced, and under the pretence of religion too, in honor of their impure deities. Those that dishonor their God were justly left to dishonor themselves, Romans 1:24, etc. There were women that wove hangings for the groves. These groves were not groves of trees but groves of poles (obelisks or phallic symbols), V.7, tents which encompassed the image of Venus, where the worshipers committed all manner of lewdness, and this in the House of the Lord.

4. There were many idolatrous altars found (v.12), some in the palace, on top of the upper chamber of Ahaz. The roofs of their homes being flat, they made them their high places, and set up altars upon them. (Jer. 19:13; Zeph. 1:5), domestic altars.

5. There was Tophet, in the valley of the son of Hinnom, very near Jerusalem, where the image of Molach (that God of unnatural cruelty, as others were of unnatural uncleanness) was kept, to which some sacrificed their children, burning them in the fire, others dedicated them, making them to pass through the fire (v.10), laboring in the fire, Hab.2:13. It is supposed to have been called Tophet from toph, a drum, because they beat the drums at the burning of the children, that their shrieks might not be heard.

6. There were high places before Jerusalem which Solomon had built, v.13. There were high places all the kingdom over, from Geba to Beer-sheba (v.8), and high places at the gates, in the entering in of the gate of the governor.

7. There were idolatrous priests that officiated at all those altars (v.5), Chemarin, black men, or that were black. See Zeph. 1:4. Those that sacrificed to Osiris or wept for Tammuz (Ezek. 8:14), or that worshiped the infernal deities, put on black garments as mourners.

8. There were conjurers and wizards, and such as dwelt with familiar spirits, v.24.

II. What a full destruction good Josiah made of all those relics of idolatry.

1. He ordered Hilkiah, and all the other priests to clear the temple. Away with all the vessels that were made for Baal. They must all be burnt, and the ashes of them carried to Bethel. That place had been the common source of idolatry, for there was set one of the calves.

2. The idolatrous priests were all put down. Those of them that were not of the house of Aaron, or had sacrificed to Baal or other false gods, he put to death, according to the law, v.20. He slew them upon their own altars, the most acceptable offering that had ever been offered on them. Those that were descendants from Aaron, and yet had burnt incense in the high places, but to the true God only, he forbade ever to approach the altar of the Lord; but he allowed them to eat of the unleavened bread among their brethren, with whom they were to reside, that unleavened bread (heavy and unpleasant though it was), was better than they deserved, and that would serve to keep them alive.

3. All the images were broken to pieces and burnt. The images of the grove (v.6) some goddess or other was reduced to ashes, and the ashes cast upon the graves of the common people the common burying place of the city. By law a ceremonial uncleanness was contracted by the touch of a grave, so that by casting them there he declared them most impure. He filled the places of the groves with the bones of men; as he carried the ashes of the images to the graves, to mingle them with men's dead bones, so he carried dead men's bones to the places where the images had been, and put them in the room of them, that, both ways, idolatry might be rendered loathsome, and the people kept both from the dust of the images and from the ruins of the places where they had been worshipped.

4. All the wicked houses were suppressed, those nests of impiety that harbored idolaters, the houses of the sodomites, v.7. The high places were in like manner broken down and leveled with the ground, v.8. Tophet, which contrary to other places of idolatry, was in a valley, whereas they were on hills or high places, was likewise defiled (v.10), was made the burying place of the city.

Concerning this we have a whole sermon, Jer. 19, where it is said, they shall bury in Tophet, and the whole city is threatened to be made like Tophet.

5. The horses that had been given to the sun were taken away and put to common use, and the chariots of the sun he burnt with fire.

6. The workers with familiar spirits and the wizards were put away.

COMMENTS

We have often wondered why it is so difficult for people who have been into sexual sin and drugs to hold their deliverance. Just recently a young man and I were discussing this problem; we both realized at the same time that both of these actions were part of Satan worship. Drugs are used in the practice of sorcery. Many young people on drugs see and communicate with spirits. Pharmaceutical comes from a Greek word pharmakon, to practice witchcraft, or use medicine or poison. Since the first use of mind drugs was to communicate with spirits, it is an act of worship. People are spirits, which have souls and bodies. Each person's spirit is to control his mind. When a person takes a mind altering drug, he gives his mind over to the control of some other spirit; the other spirit is a demon.

Since perverted sex is used to worship evil gods, demons come into the person's body and are very difficult to keep out after being cast out. All of the pagan cults were worshipers of demons and served their gods by partaking of impure sex.

If we have been trained to worship in some manner as a very young person, it is very hard for us to give up these wrong ways of worship. This is because demons come into us when we do acts of worship that are incorrect and they have no intention of giving up their home. In the last generation, we have witnessed the attacks of Satan beginning earlier and earlier. It is his desire to get the very young children to commit some sexual sin which carries a curse. There are curses which go on for as long as ten generations, such as sex with family members, those near kin to you, playing with animals sexually, rape and homosexuality, etc.

This portion of scripture, Romans 1:21-32, shows the descent of men as they turn away from God, for it says they knew Him. As you hear these verses check them for accuracy as to what you see in the homosexuals you know. If you are one look at yourself honestly.

21. Because when they knew and recognized Him as God, they did not honor and glorify Him as God, or give Him thanks. But instead they become futile (worthless, ineffectual and vain) and godless in their thinking - with vain imagining, foolish reasonings and stupid speculations and their senseless minds were darkened.

22. Claiming to be wise, they become fools - professing to be smart, they made simpletons of themselves.

23. And by them the glory and majesty and excellence of the immortal God were exchanged for and represented by images, resembling mortal man and birds and beasts and reptiles.

24. Therefore God gave them up in the lusts of their (own) hearts to sexual impurity, to the dishonoring of their bodies among themselves, abandoning them to the degrading power of sin.

25. Because they exchanged the truth of God for a lie and worshiped and served the creature rather than the Creator, Who is blessed forever! Amen - so be it (Jer. 2:11.)

26. For this reason God gave them over to and abandoned them to vile affections and degrading passions. For their women exchanged their natural function for an unnatural one;

27. And the men also turned from natural relations with women and were set ablaze (burned out,, consumed) with lust with one another, men committing shameful acts with men and suffering in their own bodies and personalities the inevitable consequences and penalty of their wrong doing and going astray, which was (their) fitting retribution.

28. And so, since they did not see fit to acknowledge God or approve of Him or consider Him worth the knowing, God gave them over to a base and condemned mind to do those things not proper or decent but loathsome;

29. Until they were filled - permeated and saturated - with every kind of unrighteousness, iniquity, grasping and covetous greed, and malice. (They were) full of envy and jealousy, murder, ill-will and cruel ways. (They were) secret backbiters and gossipers.

30. Slanderers, hateful to and hating God, full of insolence, arrogance and boasting; inventors of new forms of evil, disobedient and undutiful to parents.

31. (They were) without understanding, covenant breakers, conscienceless and faithless, heartless and loveless (and) merciless.

32. Though they are fully aware of God's righteous decree that those who do such things deserve to die, they not only do them themselves but approve and applaud others who practice them. This portion of scripture describes homosexuals exactly. There are two ways to save yourself from this kind of life: (1) Never, not even once engage in homosexuality. (2) If you have engaged in homosexuality, you may sincerely repent of your sin acknowledging your guilt, believe Jesus' promise that all who call on the name of the Lord shall be saved from their sins and for-give all people who have ever done you any wrong. Recognize the attempts homosexual spirits in people will try to get you into it again. Determine that you will fight the good fight of faith and never allow yourself even the appearance of that sin. Change any wrong behavior patterns, repent of wrong thoughts and correct them according to the Bible. Change your body movements and action from effeminate to manly or if you are female to feminine.

HERALD OF HOPE - "When the disciples asked the Lord what would be the sign of His coming again, He replied by giving them a number of signs, and one of them was pestilences (Luke 21:11). This 20th century has seen some devastating epidemics, or pestilences. The flu epidemic of 1918-19 has been estimated to have accounted for 10,000,000 lives. The cancer scourge still continues to take its toll of human life throughout the world.

Now the world is faced with an epidemic, which according to one authority will make previous epidemics such as typhus, smallpox or even the black death 'look very pale by comparison.' Time magazine says concerning the bubonic plague of the 14th century, 'by the time the epidemic sub-

sided a few years later, at least a quarter to a third of all Europeans - perhaps 25 million - had perished.'

Then adds the Time article, 'Today's plague is a very different beast. AIDS works its way through a population slowly, over a period of years and even decades. It also tends to kill slowly, laying waste the immune system so that patients fall prey to a debilitating succession of infections. Yet as the AIDS death toll climbs and statisticians project its probable course into the next decade, comparisons with history's greatest killers begins to make sense. If we can't make progress, we face the dreadful prospect of a worldwide death toll in the tens of millions a decade from now.'

So far the worst hit countries are in Central and East Africa. According to the Times in another article, 'In Uganda the number of AIDS victims is doubling every four to six months.' Says Dr. Samuel Okware, the Ministry of Health official in charge of Uganda's AIDS prevention program, "In the year 2000, one in every two sexually active adults will be infected."

Leading researchers believe at least 50,000 people have already died of AIDS in Africa, and unless a treatment and vaccine are found, a million and a half more may succumb over the next decade. The first cases of AIDS arose among African prostitutes in the late 1970's. At about the same time, it first appeared among Americans and Haitians. The disease has now spread to some thirty African countries.

Few seem to recognize this tragedy as the judgment of God upon sin. The thrust of public opinion and effort is how to beat the disease, but there seems little effort to remove the real cause, illicit sex. God is doing what He said He would do. 'Marriage is honourable in all, and the bed undefiled: but whoremongers and adulterers God will judge' (Heb. 13:4).

And homosexuality will reap its own consequences as Paul tells us, 'For this cause God gave them up unto vile affections: for even their women did change the natural use into that which is against nature, and likewise also the men, leaving the natural use of the woman, burned in their lust one toward another; men with men working that which is unseemly; and receiving in themselves that recompense of their error which was meet' (Rom. 1:26-27).

AIDS may be a very terrible disease, but is it any more terrible than the sin that caused it? There seems to be some thought that the present scare may lead to a return to continence and monogamy, the only safe ground. This however, seems impossible while the present immodesty and sexual license prevail.

One of the most serious factors confronting those attempting to control the disease is the indifference of some. Time mentions a case in point, 'A frank lecture last year to a group of medical students at the University of Zambia on the dangers was greeted with jeers and derision.'

While the world may be terrorized by the present scare, the Christian can look up and see in it a further sign that the Lord is coming.

Pray for repentance on the part of those whose sinful life-style is contributing to the spread of AIDS. Pray for the mercy of God to preserve innocent people from the plague. Pray for protection of those who reach out to minister in Christ's name to victims of the plague."

SURGEON GENERAL'S REPORT ON AIDS

This is a report from the Surgeon General of the US Public Health Service to the people of the United States on AIDS. Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome is an epidemic that has already killed thousands of people, mostly young, productive Americans. In addition to illness, disability, and death, AIDS has brought fear to the hearts of most Americans - fear of disease and fear of the unknown. Initial reporting of AIDS occurred in the United States, but AIDS and the spread of the AIDS virus is an international problem. This report focuses on prevention that could be applied in all countries.

Excerpts

1. AIDS is caused by a virus.

2. There is presently no cure for AIDS.

3. AIDS virus invades the blood stream.

4. Some people remain apparently well after infection with the AIDS virus.

5. ARC, AIDS-Related Complex, is a condition caused by the AIDS virus in which the patient tests positive for AIDS infection.

6. Only a qualified health professional can diagnose AIDS.

7. The AIDS virus may also attack the nervous system and cause delayed damage to the brain.

8. The number of people estimated to be infected with the AIDS virus in the United States is about 1.5 million. All of these individuals are assumed to be capable of spreading the virus sexually (heterosexually or homosexually) or by sharing needles and syringes or other implements for intravenous drug use. Of these, an estimated 100,000 to 200,000 will come down with ARC. It is difficult to predict the number who will develop ARC or AIDS because symptoms sometimes take as long as nine years to show up. With our present knowledge, scientists predict that 20 to 30 percent of those infected with the AIDS virus will develop an illness that fits an accepted definition of AIDS within five years. The number of persons known to have AIDS in the United States to date is over 25,000; of these, about half have died of the disease. Since there is no cure, the others are expected to also eventually die from their disease.

9. The majority of infected antibody-positive individuals who carry the AIDS virus show no disease symptoms and may not come down with the disease for many years, if ever.

10. There is no risk from casual contact.

11. Only health workers who had accidentally stuck themselves with a needle were exposed to the AIDS virus.

12. Control of certain behaviors can stop further spread of AIDS.

13. At risk are homosexual, heterosexual, black, white, male, female and children.

14. Men who have sexual relations with other men are especially at risk. Infection results from a sexual relationship with an infected person.

15. The risk of infection increases according to the number of sexual partners one has, male or female.

16. A person acquires the virus during sexual contact with an infected person's blood or semen and possibly vaginal secretions.

17. Couples who maintain mutually faithful monogamous relationships (a continuing sexual partner) are protected from AIDS through sexual transmission.

18. You can protect yourself from infection. If you have been involved in any of the high risk activities, you should have a blood test. If you or your partner are at risk, you must use a condom during intercourse to protect each other. Avoid mouth contact with the penis, vagina or rectum (oral sex is sodomy before God). Avoid all sexual activities which could cause cuts or tears in the linings of the vagina or penis. Single teenage girls and boys, by saying NO to sex and drugs, can avoid AIDS which can kill them! Do not have sex with prostitutes.

19. Drug abusers who inject drugs into their veins are another population group at high risk and with high rates of infection by the AIDS virus.

20. Some persons with hemophilia (a blood clotting disorder that makes them subject to bleeding) have been infected with the AIDS virus either through blood transfusion or the use of blood products that help their blood to clot.

21. Currently all blood donors are initially screened and blood is not accepted from high risk individuals.

22. The mother can infect the unborn child.

23. AIDS affects certain groups of the population. Homosexual and bisexual males who have had sexual contact with other homosexual or bisexual males as well as those who 'shoot' street drugs are at greatest risk of exposure, infection and eventual death. Sexual partners of these high risk individuals are at risk, as well as any children born to women who carry the virus. Heterosexual persons are increasingly at risk.

24. You cannot get AIDS from casual social contact. Casual social contact should not be confused with casual sexual contact which is a major cause of the spread of the AIDS virus. 25. You cannot get AIDS by donating blood.

26. Because antibodies do not form immediately after exposure to the virus, a newly infected person may unknowingly donate blood after becoming infected but before his/her antibody test becomes positive.

27. None of the identified cases of AIDS in the United States are known or are suspected to have been transmitted from one child to another in school, day care, or foster care settings.

28. There are no known cases of AIDS transmission by insects, such as mosquitoes.

29. Dogs, cats and domestic animals are not a source of infection from AIDS virus.

30. Although the AIDS virus has been found in tears and saliva, no instance of transmission from these body fluids has been reported.

31. AIDS comes from sexual contacts with infected persons, and from the sharing of syringes and needles.

32. Live virus vaccines could activate disease and be potentially life-threatening to those who are AIDS virus carriers.

33. Although AIDS is still a mysterious disease in many ways, our scientists have learned a great deal about it.

34. We still do not know why the AIDS virus is not destroyed by man's immune system.

35. AIDS no longer is the concern of any one segment of society; it is the concern of us all. No American's life is in danger if he/she or their sexual partners do not engage in high risk sexual behavior, or use shared needles or syringes to inject illicit drugs into the body.

36. People who engage in high risk sexual behavior or who shoot drugs are risking infection with the AIDS virus, and are risking their lives and the lives of others, including their unborn children.

37. We cannot yet know the full impact of AIDS on our society. From a clinical point of view, there may be new manifestations of AIDS - for example, mental disturbances due to the infection of the brain by the AIDS virus in carriers of the virus. From a social point of view, it may bring to an end the free-wheeling sexual life-style which has been called the sexual revolution. Economically, the care of AIDS patients will put a tremendous strain on our already overburdened and costly health care delivery system.

38. The most certain way to avoid getting the AIDS virus and to control the AIDS epidemic in the United States is for individuals to avoid promiscuous sexual practices, to maintain mutual faithful monogamous sexual relationships and to avoid injecting illicit drugs.

39. AIDS is bound to produce profound changes in our society, changes that will affect us all.

40. Information and education are the only weapons against AIDS.

41. The changes in our society will be economic and political, and will affect our social institutions, our educational practices, and our health care.

42. Be prepared; learn as much about AIDS as you can.

43. It is likely that cases of AIDS will appear far and wide.

44. There are special educational concerns for adolescents and the illiterate.

45. The high risk should get a blood test.

46. Some people afflicted with AIDS will feel a sense of anger and others a sense of guilt.

47. Current public health practice is to protect the privacy of the individual infected with the AIDS virus and to maintain the strictest confidentiality concerning his/her health records.

48. Insure enforcement of public health regulation of such practices as ear piercing and tattooing to prevent transmission of AIDS virus.

49. Conduct AIDS education programs for police, firemen, correctional institution workers and emergency medical personnel for dealing with AIDS victims and the public.

50. Insure that institutions catering to children or adults who soil themselves or their surroundings with urine, stool and vomitus have adequate equipment for cleanup and disposal, and have policies to insure the practice of good hygiene.

51. Schools will have special problems in the future.

52. Education concerning AIDS must start at the lowest grade possible as part of any health and hygienic program.

53. Because of the right to special education of the handicapped and the mentally retarded, school boards and higher authorities will have to provide guidelines for the management of such children on a case-by-case basis.

54. Labor and management can do much to prepare for AIDS so that misinformation is kept to a minimum.

55. Offices, factories and other work sites should have a plan in operation for education of the work force and an accommodation of AIDS or ARC patients before the first such case appears at the work site.

56. The health care system in many places will be overburdened as it is now in urban areas with large numbers of AIDS patients.

57. Our society will also face an additional burden as we better understand the mental health implications of infection by the AIDS virus.

58. Controversial issues are compulsory blood testing, quarantine and identification of AIDS carriers by some visible sign.

59. Compulsory blood testing of individuals is not necessary and could give a false sense of security to the individual recently exposed to the AIDS virus. The only time that some form of quarantine might be indicated is in a situation where an individual carrying the AIDS virus knowingly and willingly continues to expose others through sexual contact or sharing drug equipment. AIDS should not be used as an excuse to discriminate against any group or individual. AIDS must and will be treated as a disease that can infect anyone."

3. EFFEMINACY - SINS OF SODOM

Vine's Expository Dictionary of New Testament Words - Effeminate: Malakos, soft, soft to the touch (Eng., mollify, emollient; metaphorically, in a bad sense, I Cor. 6:9, "effeminate," not simply of a male who practices forms of lewdness, but persons in general, who are guilty of addictions to sins of the flesh, voluptuous.

Jamieson, Fausset, and Brown's Commentary on the Whole Bible - I Cor. 6:9; effeminate - self-polluters, who submit to unnatural lusts.

J. H. Thayer's, The New Thayer's Greek-English Lexicon - effeminate, of a catamite, a male who submits his body to unnatural lewdness.

The Interlinear Bible - Greek to English - Volume IV - New Testament -1 Cor. 6:9; Strongs #733 from 730 and 2845; a sodomite - abuser of (that defile) self with mankind.

Webster's New Twentieth Century Dictionary - effeminate, (L. effeminate, pp. of effeminate, to make womanish.) 1. having the qualities generally attributed to women, as weakness, gentleness, delicacy, etc.; unmanly. 2. characterized by such qualities; weak; soft, decadent, etc.; as effeminate art. 3. womanlike, tender; gentle.

Let us look at some meanings of the words used to explain effeminate. Weakness:

- 1. the state or quality of being weak.
- 2. a weak point; a fault; a defect, as in one's character.

3. a liking; especially, an unreasonable fondness (for something). Syn. - debility, failing, foible, feebleness, folly, frailty, imbecility, impotence, infirmity. Gentleness

5. Easily handled; tame. Delicacy -fineness; frailty; softness; weakness of constitution or health; the condition of requiring careful and deft handling.

6. Unmanly - deprived of manly qualities; emasculated; to deprive of virility; to castrate. Soft - weak; delicate; not strong or vigorous; not able to endure hardship, privation; subdued; not bright

or intense. Decadent - a state of decline; characterized by decadence. Decadence - a falling away; decline in force or quality; a process, condition, or period of decline, as in morals; decay; deterioration. (Decay - to deteriorate; to become rotten; tendency toward dissolution or extinction; rottenness; destruction; death.) (Deterioration - to make worse; to lower the value of; to reduce in quality; to depreciate. Syn. - depreciate, degeneration, impair, corrupt, debase.) If we took the time to look up all the words used to describe effeminate the picture would get progressively worse.

As we have worked with people over the years, we have noticed some common contributing factors in the lives of those who have problems with effeminacy. Some people have only slight problems while others have incapacitating problems. Here we will consider people with normal capacities. It seems that the attitudes of the parents toward the child have a profound effect.

While it is a good idea for each succeeding generation to work toward improving life standards, it is better not to veer off to the extreme of giving the children everything and every advantage. The idea that you don't want your children to have it as bad as you did should be replaced by using wisdom in guiding children to growth and maturity. We could not use the excuse, "We can't afford it" when our children wanted something common sense said they were not ready for or that would over indulge them. We had to really communicate with them and teach them so that they would have a good understanding of our reasons and a cooperative spirit. It is very important that the children know beyond any doubt that you love and consider what is to their best interest.

God gave children to parents not parents to children, and He gave parents the responsibility to teach, guide and discipline. When we give our children more freedom than they can handle or over indulge them they tend to turn into selfish brats and we don't like them anymore.

A child needs to know that you watch over him and love him, but he should not feel that you are watching every move he makes. He needs to know that you trust him to do the right thing and that when he fails you, will use the proper method to encourage him into the right path. Most of all he needs to see the same high standards in you that you expect to see developing in him.

Respect the child as a person; do not degrade them for their failures but use them as teaching opportunities. When we reached our teen years, our dad used to tell us that if we got into trouble he would not get us out of it but he would be by our side as us took our punishment.

Don't call them stupid and dumb or by great sighs let them know they have absolutely exasperated you. I

believe that the Holy Spirit helped me realize that children are new to this life and they have not passed this way before and so I should expect them to make many mistakes; that I should form an alliance with them in training and discussion of the situation they get into, encourage them to consider other methods of handling that particular problem should they be faced with it again. Teach them to learn from their mistakes; don't brood over them. Brooding over them will tend to hold you to do the same thing again, consider what you have learned, put the mistake behind you and go on. God's mercy is fresh every day, so should a parent's be.

Don't make unrealistic demands on them; encourage them to do their best. It will bless you as you see what the child can accomplish with the proper leadership training and love. One young man told us that even when he made a four point average, his dad would say, "Is that the best you can do?" Use praise to encourage more good growth and loving discipline to correct unacceptable behavior.

One more thing, children see we really are not what we say we are. If you are effeminate in your life style, they will know and copy it. If you are more interested in fitting in this world than living by Godly principals, they will know. If you love carnal things more than righteous things, they will know. If you cannot live without your possessions, they will know.

Psalms 78:8-11, And might not be as their fathers, a stubborn and rebellious generation, a generation that set not their hearts aright nor prepared their heart to know God, and whose spirit was not steadfast and faithful to God. The children of Ephraim were armed and carrying bows, yet they turned back in the day of battle. They kept not the covenant of God and refused to walk according to His law, And forgot His works and His wonders that He had shown them. Verses 12-17 recount God's acts of loving protection and provision during the wilderness journey, In 18-19, And they tempted God in their hearts by asking God for food according to their (selfish) desire and appetite. Yes they spoke against God; they said, Can God furnish (the food for) a table in the wilderness.

Let's look at ourselves and our motives honestly. We could and should ask ourselves if we are not as these people. Are our hearts right with God? Do we really trust God enough to believe that He will deal with us as we need him to? Or do we want Him to give us our desires NOW? Do we ask in prayer for the things we selfishly want to satisfy our selfish desire? If we don't get what we want, do we then accuse God of failure while we refuse to look at our own failure to love, obey, trust and serve Him? Does God give us ample instruction on how to live a successful Christian life? Why then are we not doing just that? I believe that if people who call themselves Christian would live life as He has directed, the unsaved would be beating at the door to acquire salvation.

As a Christian we have access to armor and have bows to carry, but do we use our armor or shoot our bows? Jesus Christ has provided our armor. Eph. 6:11-18, Put on God's whole armor (the armor of a heavy-armed soldier which God supplies), that you may be able successfully to stand up against all the strategies and the deceits of the devil. Most Christians that I know don't even recognize they have an opponent or need to use the armor or bows. So they conclude that they do not need to know about the Devil's strategies and plans. So while they pretend he doesn't exist, the Devil slowly eats away at their very soul, their children, their health, etc. After the destruction is almost completed, the Christian will become mildly aware that there might be a problem. Only then will they stir themselves to see what the problem is, and then go back to sleep and wonder why they have lost that which is nearest and dearest to them.

One time some years ago I had a scene flash through my mind. At the time of this revelation I was thinking I was really serving God. I was so concerned with lost children. Many efforts and thoughts went into attempting to help others. Now I know that God wants us to help others. But the Devil is so clever in convincing us that if we'll help others, God will take care of ours. I have

had pastors use this statement on me to get me to work in their vineyards - howbeit it was not God's vineyard.

I awoke from my deception almost too late. In this scene I was standing before God's throne. I was so proud of my life and expecting Him to really be pleased with me. I was standing there with a very large group of children I had been instrumental in bringing to the Lord. I began to sense that something was very, very wrong. God seemed to be extremely dissatisfied with me. I heard this question, "Where is Marie?" I began to look for her, feeling sure she was in the group. Finally I found her. She was not in the group. As she came around the edge of the group and looked up to God, I saw Him point the other way. I cannot tell you all the emotions I felt. All my pride was replaced with shame and failure.

God told me that Marie was the only person I had been given responsibility for. She was given to me to love and guide but I had shunned what I had been given and had looked for something else to do. I was to have been her greatest rooter and one of her most important teachers. I began at that point to repent (change directions completely and go the other way) and seek knowledge from God as to how I should perform on His job. I'd like to tell you that the problem was solved and that we all lived happily ever after, but that was not the case. What was to follow was YEARS of heartache and mental pain but one day I noticed that things were just slightly beginning to get in correct order.

A time period of probably ten years was needed for us following the leadership of the Lord to undo the works of the Devil in this area. I had seen a glimmer of light and I was not going to let it go. My hand was on the plow never to let go again. I looked up every verse in the Bible about mothers and daughters, and began to correct my thoughts and actions. I must come into obedience to God if I was to see any change in our relationship. I also realized that I could no longer blame my failure as a mom on anyone but me.

These are some of the spiritual forces at work in this case: ignorance, dissatisfaction, rejection, irreverence for God, lack of natural affection, shirking God given duties, selfishness, lazy, arrogant, greedy for acceptance, generational gap, abandonment, bitterness and rebellion.

Let's look and see who God considers our enemy to be (Eph. 6:11-18).

12. For we are not wrestling with flesh and blood (contending only with physical opponents), but against the despotisms, against the powers, against (the master spirits who are) the world rulers of this present darkness, against the spirit forces of wickedness in the heavenly (supernatural) sphere. My observation of churches, pastors and Christians has mostly been that they fight and devour each other and not the Devil and his gang.

13. Therefore put on God's complete armor, that you may be able to resist and stand your ground on the evil day (of danger), and, having done all (the crises demand), to stand (Firmly in your place). Are we Christians knowledgeable and settled in the truth of the Bible or do we compromise the truth to be accepted by our peers? If we do not stand firmly grounded in truth, we will not stand in the time of danger.

14. Stand therefore (hold your ground), having tightened the belt of truth around your loins and having put on the breast plate of integrity and of moral rectitude and right standing with God. A Christian cannot stand who does not know Biblical truth and who does not implement truth in his own life.

15. And having shod your feet in preparation (to face the enemy with firm-footed stability, the promptness, and the readiness produced by the good news) of the gospel of peace (Isa. 52:7.) Christians get cut down early and swiftly when they fail to study the Bible.

16. Lift up over all the (covering) shield of saving faith, upon which you can quench all the flaming missiles of the wicked (one). Decide that God's way is best and never change your mind no matter how things look. After you have come through the testing you will often look back and see why it was needed.

17. And take the helmet of salvation and the sword that the Spirit wields, which is the Word of God. There are a lot of "good plans" around in the world. Only one is guaranteed to bring success. Josh. 1: 6-8. God's truth will work to some degree for all people, however for it to work completely you must become converted as God directs through faith in the shed blood of Jesus Christ.

18. Pray at all times (on every occasion, in every season) in the Spirit, with all (manner of) prayer and entreaty. To that end keep alert and watch with strong purpose and perseverance, interceding in behalf of all the saints (God's consecrated people). This is where we fall down, failing to obey God's directions, to support each other in prayer, to be very alert with strong purpose and perseverance. Could it be we are very lazy?

Just getting up in the morning and saying you put on the armor of God will not cut it with God or the devil. It takes much hard work over a long time! This is God's armor given to us; it is our duty to take up the armor.

Now to our bows that God has given:

1. Salvation through Jesus Christ - John 3:16. Now we are in a position to use the other equipment that is provided.

2. Baptism of Holy Spirit - Lu. 24:49; Acts 2:1-4. God has given us the Holy Spirit to guide, empower, comfort and teach us.

3. The Bible - our manual (book of instruction for this life). II Tim.2:15, Study and be eager and do your utmost to present yourself to God approved (tested by trial) a workman who has no cause to be ashamed, correctly analyzing and accurately dividing (rightly handling and skillfully teaching) the Word of Truth.

4. Power and authority in the name of Jesus Christ. Mat. 28:18, Lu. 10:19. He gives us His authority over all the power of the enemy.

5. Our work - Mark 16:17-18. These signs will follow them that believe: In My name they will drive out demons; they will speak with new tongues; They will pick up serpents; and (even)

if they drink anything deadly, it will not hurt them; they will lay their hands on the sick, and they will get well.

If we would get saved, study, be vigilant, completely trust God and be obedient to our instruction and do our duties then we would stand strong in truth in the evil day of danger.

Rev. 3:16, So, because you are lukewarm and neither cold or hot, I will spew you out of My mouth! There is no attraction for nor fear of things lukewarm. If we say we are Christians and we are not red hot in our pursuit of God and righteousness we will get spewed out of God's mouth.

Let's examine some people in the Bible who loved having things soft and effeminate. Genesis 13, In this chapter Abram and Lot lived together. The land was not able to support all of their cattle. Abram suggested Lot choose any land he wanted. Lot looked and saw that the Jordan valley was well watered everywhere. You almost get the idea he doesn't want to work hard but to have a plush and easy life. Soon he is in Sodom. Genesis 14. This account is of four kings against five. The four came into the area of Sodom and Gomorrah and took all the wealth, pro-visions and people. Now Lot was taken and all that he had. One who managed to escape came and told Abram. Abram could have chosen the easy way and just ignored the problem but he chose to get involved, to risk his life and the lives of his servants, to risk loss of wealth and to rescue Lot. Before this we are told that Lot has much cattle and goods.

Why did Lot not fight to keep from being taken? There probably were no strong men to help him. The men of this place were wicked and exceedingly great sinners. The men of Sodom were guilty of all types of sexual vice, and as homosexuals were probably not prepared to fight for Sodom. In our ministry we have found that people given over to sexual vices do not have normal natural affections and do not feel natural responsibilities.

Abram had 318 trained servants. He and his servants routed the enemy and brought back all that was stolen.

When the battle was over, the King of Sodom offered Abram all the goods and Abram said he would take nothing for himself. Abram showed no tendency to effeminacy.

In Genesis 18, Abraham receives a visit from angels, is told of Sodom's destruction and entreats God for ten souls. That must have been all of Lot's family plus his sons-in-law. In Genesis 19, Sodom receives a visit from two angels who have come to warn Lot to remove all of his family. The sons-in-laws thought he was joking and they chose not to go. It seems his married daughters did not go out either. Life was easy and there were no standards to live up to in Sodom.

In Sodom, as in America today, effeminacy can lead to homosexuality and all other types of sins. When men and women seek the "easy life", give up Godly standards, and rebel against God they begin to become decadent. We learn in chapter 19 that "all the men from every quarter" came to Lot's house and wanted to have homosexual relations with the two angels. Lot had no authority with these people; he had compromised with their life-style by choosing L, live there. His own children chose to side with the sins of that place. Only two unmarried daughters came out with him. His wife longed so for the "good life" that she disobeyed the angels, and looked back with longing for Sodom and her things there. It cost her life. The daughters were so conditioned to the

attitudes and sins of Sodom that they got their father drunk and conceived children by him, thereby cursing themselves and all their children for ten generations. Why would a man of God be drinking enough to become dead drunk two nights in a row? By his laxness toward God, his longing to have the easiest and best, his compromise in morals, his lack of instruction to his children, the bad example he set in male leadership compromised his family and their future.

Jeremiah 12, Jeremiah has a complaint to discuss with God. He is complaining because he sees the wicked prosper and thrive. Verse 5, (But the Lord rebukes Jeremiah's impatience, saying) If you have raced with men on foot and they have tired you out, then how can you compete with horses? And if you take to flight in a land of peace where you feel secure, then what will you do (when you tread the tangled maze of jungle, haunted by lions) in the swelling of the Jordan. If we cannot stand for truth now, if we cannot take persecution now in the land of peace what will we do when we are asked to renounce our faith in God? I hear people say casually, "I'd die for Jesus." I see those same people cringe and wilt at the possibility of persecution. God's people should not look to be blessed but to be strong in righteousness and obedience to GOD. We are told that then God's blessing will overtake us.

Throughout the Old Testament we read of Israel's times of obedience to God. He blesses them and they got to enjoying the blessings so much that they forgot God and then they entered into sin. They knew the warning that departure from God's law would bring decay and destruction but they loved the blessings and soft life more than God.

Remember the meaning of effeminate that we studied at the beginning of this study? Is it possible for a woman to abuse her femininity? In this study we are looking at the ways we as women misuse our femininity.

Let's look at Ezekiel 16:49-50. Behold, this was the iniquity of your sister Sodom: pride, overabundance of food, prosperous ease and idleness were hers and her daughters'; neither did she strengthen the hand of the poor and needy. They were haughty, and committed abominable offences before Me; therefore I removed them when I saw it and I saw fit. Here God is dealing with the effeminacy of the daughters of Sodom who were also guilty.

We can begin to love and enjoy our possessions so much that we become self-indulgent, demanding, critical of others, greedy, complain, and become lazy, etc. We expect others to make our life easy. We get ugly and nasty, and push our husbands to get us more and more. If we don't have all the possessions we see others have, we decide there is something wrong in our relationship to God.

In Proverbs 31:11, we learn that the heart of a husband should be able to trust confidently in the wife, so that he will have no need of dishonest spoil and have no lack of honest gain. The next few verses suggest ways we can add to our gain.

In Isaiah 3:16-26, Moreover the Lord said, Because the daughters of Zion are haughty and walk with outstretched necks and with undisciplined (flirtatious and alluring) eyes, tripping along with mincing and affected gait, and making a tinkling noise with (the anklets on) their feet; Therefore the Lord will smite with a scab the crown of the heads of the daughters of Zion (making them bald), and the Lord will cause them to be (taken as captives and suffer the indignity of being)

stripped naked. In that day the Lord will take away the finery of their tinkling anklets, the caps of network, the crescent head ornaments, The pendants, the bracelets or chains, and the spangled face veils and scarves, The headbands, the short stepping-chains (attached from one foot to the other to insure a measured gait), the sashes, the perfume boxes, the amulets or charms (suspended from the ears or neck), The signet rings and nose rings, The festal robes, the clocks, the stoles and shawls, and the handbags, The hand mirrors, the fine linen (undergarments), the turbans, and the (whole body enveloping)veils. And it shall come to pass that instead of the sweet odor of spices there shall be the stench of rottenness; and instead of a girdle, a rope; and instead of well-set hair, baldness; and instead of a rich robe, a girding of sackcloth; and a searing (of captives by the scorching heat) instead of beauty. Your men shall fall by the sword, and your mighty men in battle. And (Jerusalem's) gates shall lament and mourn (as those who wail for the dead); and she, being ruined and desolate, shall sit upon the ground.

Makes one wonder if some of the physical problems we women have today could be caused by our being like these verses. Even though we are female there is no reward for those who misuse their femininity. As women we need to be strong enough to endure hardship and take a stand for righteousness. We should not let ourselves become self-indulgent, pouters, clinging vines and naggers. There should be gratitude to God for all His provisions.

Matt. 11:8, What did you go out to see? A man clothed in soft clothing? Behold those who wear soft clothing are in the houses of kings. Soft here in the Greek (3120) fine (clothing) fig. a catamite: - effeminate, soft. 3119 softness, enervation (debility): disease. Webster's dictionary, enervation 1: to lessen the vitality or strength of, 2: to reduce the mental or moral vigor, Syn. see unnerve.

In the days of the Roman Empire the Emperors often had their catamite painted in the pictures of themselves. Homosexuals were accepted and encouraged in the pagan religions. In fact all forms of sexual deviation were encouraged. The Bible tells us about some of this in I Kings 15:12. He put away the sodomites (male cult prostitutes) out of the land that his fathers (Solomon, Rehoboam, and Abijam) had made or promoted. I Kings 11:5-11, For Solomon went after Ashtoreth the goddess of the Sidonians, and after Milcom the abominable idol of the Ammonites! Then Solomon built a high place for Chemosh the abominable idol of Moab, on the hill opposite Jerusalem and for Molech the abominable idol of the Ammonites.

The Ammonites and the Moabites were the sons of Lot by incest with his daughters. Sex with relatives carries a ten generation curse.

Ashtoreth worship included all types of deviate sex. This new morality is not new but the old immorality that God said would bring curses on us and our children for many generations. Ashtoreth, Heb. for Astarte: the Phoneician goddess of fertility and of sexual love. In her worship, newborn animals and firstborn children were sacrificed in order to increase fertility. The worship of this goddess will bring several curses on you. Ex. 20:1-6, worshiping other gods -three to four generations are cursed. Ex.20:13; 23:7, commit no murder, shed not innocent blood. In I Kings 21:1-29, Elijah tells Ahab what will be the curse on him and his family because Ahab had Naboth killed and took his land. Every male offspring of Ahab's shall die. People under curses for unlawful sex acts seem to lose a lot of their abilities. They become so passive and soft that

they seem to accomplish very little. In fact about the only thing they seem to have much energy for is defending their sex rights. Isn't it a shame that so much effort is put into self-destruction?

Effeminate not only means soft like a homosexual but addictions to sins of the flesh, decadent, corrupt, rotten and being in a state of decline physically, morally and spiritually.

We must recognize our faults for what they are - SINS. First the sin is against God, then ourselves and then others. We must forgive those who have wronged us in this regard. We confess our sins to God asking for forgiveness and cleansing. We forgive ourselves for sins against our life and our body. We confess that we have deeply hurt those who love us the most. We break soul ties and curses. Then we are ready to cast out the demons we have allowed to use our bodies and minds for their sinful purposes.

Dear Heavenly Father, I come to You now confessing all my sins (name them to the Lord quietly). I confess that I have sinned against You and against others and myself. I brought shame on Your name by being lazy, ignorant and disobedient to Your word. I have wanted all Your blessings without complying to Your principals. I know that the blood of Jesus Christ is for my cleansing from these sins. With Your help, I will begin right now to learn and aggressively change my way of thinking and acting. I repent of all my desires for soft, easy, lazy living.

Others were involved with me in some of these sins and I now break soul ties with them. I break soul ties with these people (name them to God) with whom I have engaged in sexual vices. I also break soul ties I have made with groups that condone such actions and attitudes. I break ties with all false religions I have been in or approved of, and with movements such as the new age movement, etc. I confess that I have been willingly deceived and have deceived others. I have used others for my gain. I repent of all this sin. I repent of not valuing Your Word, principals and plan for my life.

I repent of having in my possession cursed objects. I will destroy all those belonging to me. I break soul ties with anyone who has dominated me. I release those that I have tried to dominate.

Because Jesus became accursed for us we are given the opportunity to break them and free ourselves from their effects. I break in the Name of Jesus Christ the curses: being a willing deceiver, disobedient to the Lord's commandments, idolatry, owners of cursed objects, house of wicked, not giving to poor, lightly esteeming parents, makers of graven images, cheating to gain property, incest, adultery, slaying the innocent for money, bestiality, homosexuals-male/female, bastards, witchcraft, those who attempt to turn anyone away from God, followers of horoscopes, failure to discipline children, abuse of children, liars, the carnal minded, sodomy, rebellion, rebellious children, non-productivity, fugitive, vagabond, those who hate, Ahab and Jezebel, cursing parents, pride and any others not mentioned.

I no longer will serve these demon spirits. I am a believer and I will cast out the demons residing in my body in the Name of Jesus Christ my Saviour. Amen.

LIST OF DEMONS

Rejection Effeminacy Unable to Endure Hardship/Privation Fear of Rejection Softness (in bad sense) Self-Rejection Lewdness Subdued **Rejection of Others** Womanish Dull Voluptuous Decline in Force and Quality Bitterness Delicate Resentment Decadent **Declining Morals** Hatred Unmanly Deterioration Self-hatred Gentleness (in bad sense) Destruction Violence Weakness Death Rage Unreasonable Fondness Rottenness Temper Debility Lacking Quality and Intensity Anger Failure I Automatic Failure

Retaliation Foible Impaired Murder I Abortion Feebleness Corrupt Unforgiveness Victim **Debilitating Guilt** Folly Debased Rebellion Frailty Selfishness Self-will Explosiveness Distrust Stubbornness Deprived of Manly Qualities Impotent Disobedience Emasculated Passivity Anti-Submissiveness Not Vigorous Undisciplined Flirtatious Immorality Unregulated Haughty Disorderly Immoderate Carnal Minded Pride Ego/Vanity Insecurity Sexual Impurity Self-Conceit Lovers of Pleasure Catamite Evil Concupiscence

Uncontrolled Passions Sodomite Inordinate Affection Fantasy Lust Unnatural Lewdness Filthy Language Sexual Lust Masturbation Lewd Emotions Obscene Music, Art, Literature, Poetry Sexual Deviate Exposure Fornication Pornography Occult Sex Adultery Uncleanness Sex Orgies Arsenokoites Lust Incest **Creating Bastards** Rape. Fondling Dirty Old Man Sex Dreams Succubus Incubus Oversexed Under Sexed Nymphomania Child Pornography **X-Rated Movies Obscene** Jokes **Demonic Domination** Overeating Shame Burning with Lust Cursing Suicide

Weil's Disease Meningitis Harshness Venereal Disease Insanity Unscrupulous Gonorrhea Staggering Gait Degenerate Mind Chancroid (Soft) Heart Disease Self -Gratification **Spirochetal Infections** Blindness Lusts of the Eyes Granuloma Inguinal Ulcerative Lesions Lust of the Flesh **Gonorrheal Arthritis Relapsing Fever** Pride of Life **Syphilis** Tropical Ulcer Defiled Venereal Lympogranuloma Herpes I & II Impure Thoughts and Actions **Congenital Syphilis** Endocarditis Putrid AIDS I Yaws I Bejel Pinta I Warts Sterility Criticism Gossip Cancer Arthritis

4. RAPE

SCRIPTURE

Many words that we use to describe sexual sins, diseases and impurities are not found in the King James Bible; it is necessary to look for other words God used to describe these actions. You will find words like fornication, adultery, effeminate, abusers, Sodomites, sensual, carnal, concupiscence, inordinate, lasciviousness, lewdness, filthy, blasphemy, murder, killing, uncleanness, lust, passions, bastard, dreams, prostitute, harlot, whore, and lovers of pleasure. A study was made of the following words: ravished, forced, shame, folly, lay, lie, defiled and some key stories of the Bible.

Ravished

Isa. 13:16 - wives ravished Lam. 5:11 - ravished the women and maids Zech. 14:2 - women ravished

Forced

Jud. 20:5 - my concubine have they forced that she is dead II Sam. 13:14, 22, 32 - forced his sister Tamar Prov. 7:21 - with the flattering of her lips she forced him

Shame

Ex. 32:25 - for Aaron had made them naked unto their shame among their enemies II Sam. 13:13 - shall I cause my shame to go; shalt be as one of the fools Isa. 20:4 - even with their buttocks uncovered, to the shame of Egypt Isa. 47:3 - thy nakedness shall be uncovered, yea, thy shame shall be seen Jer. 13:26 -1 discover thy skirts upon thy face, that thy shame may appear Hos. 4:18 - committed whoredom continually: her rulers with shame do love Mic. 1:11 - having thy shame naked Nah. 3:5 - I will shew the nations thy nakedness, and the kingdoms thy shame Hab. 2:16 - let thy foreskin be uncovered; shameful spewing be on thy glory Rev. 3:18 - that the shame of thy nakedness do not appear Folly Gen. 34:7 - he had wrought folly in Israel in lying with Jacob's daughter Deut. 22:21 - she hath wrought folly in Israel, to play the whore Jud. 19:23 - seeing that this man is come into mine house, do not this folly Jud. 20:6 - for they have committed lewdness and folly in Israel II Sam. 13:12 - do not force me; do not thou this folly Lay Gen. 19:33 - the firstborn went in, and lay with her father Gen. 30:16 - I have hired thee with my son's mandrakes; and he lay with her Gen. 34:2 - saw her, he took her, and lay with her, and defiled her Gen. 35:22 - Reuben went and lay with Bilhah his father's concubine Deut. 22:22, 25, 28, 29 - adultery, force her, virgin, humbled her I Sam. 2:22 - how they lay with the women that assembled at the tabernacle II Sam. 11:4 - she came in unto him, and he lay with her Eze. 23:8 - in her youth they lay with her; bruised the breasts of virginity

Defiled

Gen. 34:2, 5, 13, 27 - defiled Dinah; daughter and sister Num. 5:13, 14, 20, 27, 28, 29 - adultery, spirit of jealousy, shall be a curse Deut. 24:4 - may not take her again to be his wife, after that she is defiled I Chron. 5:1 - he defiled his father's bed Eze. 18:6, 11, 15 - neither hath defiled his neighbor's wife Eze. 22:11 - hath lewdly defiled his daughter-in-law; hath humbled his sister Eze. 23:17 - they defiled her with their whoredom Lie Gen. 19:32, 34 - we shall lie with him Gen. 30:15 - therefore he shall lie with thee tonight for thy son's mandrakes Gen. 39:7, 10, 12, 14 - she said, lie with me Ex. 22:16 - if a man entice a maid that is not betrothed, and lie with her Lev. 15:18, 24 - the woman also with whom man shall lie with seed of copulation Lev. 18:20, 22, 23 - shalt not lie with neighbor's wife, mankind, any beast Lev. 20:12, 13, 15, 16, 18, 20 - in-laws, mankind, beast, sickness, relatives Num. 5:13 - a man lie with her carnally Deut. 22:23, 25, 28 - lie with a damsel: virgin, betrothed, not betrothed Deut. 28:30 - thou shalt betroth a wife, and another man shall lie with her II Sam. 11:11 - shall I then go into mine house, and lie with my wife II Sam. 12:11 - he shall lie with thy wives in the sight of this sun II Sam. 13:11 - come lie with me, my sister

BIBLE STORIES

God has given us some graphic stories which illustrate what are abominations to Him and what the consequences are of these sexual sins. These are about Ammon and Tamar, Shechem and Dinah, Lot and daughters, and Reuben and concubine.

5. SEXUAL HARASSMENT - ABUSE ASSAULT - VIOLENCE

SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Sexual harassment is unwanted, deliberate or repeated sexual behavior: comments, gestures or touching. The person hearing, seeing or being touched does not want this attention and is frequently uncomfortable and embarrassed. Sexually suggestive objects, signs, magazines or pictures may be sexual harassment, too.

Sexual harassment can also be unlawful sex discrimination if there is a subtle or direct threat that a sexual or social relationship is part of your job or your educational performance. The threat can be about any part of your job: wages, promotions, REFERENCES, working conditions; or your educational performance: grades, honors, course work, scholarships.

SEXUAL ABUSE

Indicators from the child's behavior: visible emotional distress; fear of specific persons; regression into outgrown behavior, such as bed-wetting or thumb sucking; complaints of abdominal pain or sore throat; fear of going to bed or of sleeping alone; poor concentration and short attention span, especially at school; withdrawal from others; foreign objects collected from the child's clothing or body; running away; alcohol and substance abuse. Your child may be very upset. Your child may have disturbed sleeping patterns such as nightmares, fear of going to bed, fear of sleeping alone or bed-wetting, loss of appetite, irritable nature and lose patience easily, more temper tantrums, the wish to withdraw from usual activities, difficulty at school such as poor concentration, short attention span and loss of interest in classroom activities.

When you take the child to a doctor, hospital or clinic, you may be given other information which might serve to corroborate sexual abuse: a description of injuries to the child, results of laboratory tests and examinations for spermatozoa or seminal fluid, results of tests for sexually transmitted diseases or pregnancy, posttraumatic stress disorder.

What is child sexual abuse? Since childhood sexual curiosity is normal, it is important to understand what is meant by child sexual abuse. The victim can be found in all social and economic levels and in all ethnic groups.

In the broadest sense of the term, child sexual abuse may refer to any situation of forcible sexual activity involving a child sixteen years old or younger: sexual contact between a child and another person in which threats, bribery or similar methods are used to get the child to participate; any sexual contact between a child and an adult; sex crimes against children such as rape, fondling, incest, molestation, exhibitionism, sodomy, childhood pornography and child prostitution.

Sexual abuse is seductive behavior; indecent exposure; sexual touching, fondling or game playing; oral, anal or vaginal intercourse. Boys as well as girls may have been sexually abused. Incidents may have occurred just once or many times.

Sexually transmitted diseases: gonorrhea, syphilis, herpes genitalis, Chlamydia trachomatis, venereal warts, Trichomoniasis, Gardnerella, human immune deficiency virus.

SEXUAL ASSAULT

Sexual assault (and sexual abuse) are terms that refer to sexual contact without your consent. Rape, incest, attempted rape and unwanted sexual touch are often called sexual assault.

What are the facts about sexual assault? There is no typical victim: anyone can be a victim of sexual assault. A woman is raped every six minutes. In a single year, over 90,000 women in the United States report a rape to law enforcement officials. Only one out of every ten rapes is reported. Sexual assault is not sex. Sexual assault is a violent abuse of power. Sexual assault victims need your support.

What are the facts about child sexual assault? One in three females will be sexually assaulted by age 18. One in six males will be sexually assaulted by age 18. A large majority of child sexual assault cases are not reported. Ninety percent of sexually assaulted children are assaulted by someone they know. Child sexual assault is not sex. Child sexual assault is a violent abuse of power. Child sexual assault victims need your support. In the United States, a child is sexually victimized in some way, every two minutes. It is estimated that only one out of every ten cases is reported; so that each year, there may be between 200,000 to 500,000 child victims of sexual abuse.

Facts: Statistics indicate that more than one-third of all rapes take place in the victim's home and over half of the attackers are known to the women who become their victims. Researchers estimate the actual number of rapes to be approximately four times the reported number, or one quarter of a million rapes per year. Sixty to seventy-five percent of all rapes are planned in advance. Eighty-five percent of all rapes are accompanied by violence or the threat of violence.

There is no single reaction to the experience of sexual assault, but there are common patterns of response. The return to trust may be a long and arduous process. The reactions of family and friends to the rape victim have a strong effect on her recovery from crisis. Doctors, police and attorneys in many states have joined together to support the victim as she moves through the system of justice. Community rape crisis centers provide support to the victim.

SEXUAL VIOLENCE

Domestic violence is the intimidation and physical abuse of one family or household member by another. This abuse may range from harassment to battery to murder.

Violence: Acceptable behavior toward women? Every eighteen seconds a woman is beaten or abused by someone she loves. Both domestic violence and sexual assault have a long history as acceptable behavior toward women. Both are violent crimes and women share with the victims of other types of violent crimes the feelings of helplessness and loss of control which are typical responses.

Women may be assaulted or abused, not as individual persons, but for what they represent. Violence toward women is most appropriately viewed as the historical and current expression of male dominance.

Both of these crimes against women may be seen as a show of masculinity motivated by power and anger with the purpose of controlling or dominating the victim. There is no "typical victim" of sexual assault or domestic violence, there are only women who unwittingly become caught in a brutal power game over which they feel little or no control.

Domestic Violence: The denial surrounding domestic violence is astonishing given its long history and acceptance by society. Researchers estimate that one and a half to three million women are beaten each year. This means that domestic violence occurs in one out of every four homes. And forty percent of all the women who are murdered annually are killed by their husbands or boyfriends. Physical abuse is happening all the time to all kinds of women. It cuts across economic, social and ethnic lines. And the man who beats his partner could be any man. He beats her not because she provokes him or because she deserves it, but because he can get away with it. The notion of women as property, the idea that a man may chastise his wife to keep her "in line" is inherent in this socially accepted violence. The abused woman is the victim of a violent crime, but she may have no other place to go.

The battered woman lives in fear. If she tries to defend herself, the violence may escalate. If she leaves, she may be pursued and beaten even more brutally as punishment for her flight. The abused woman is trapped in her violent home. They are truly not responsible for their partners' violence.

A battered woman soon learns that any action on her part can be the excuse for a violent episode. The battered woman may have seen violence in her family. Afraid to leave and afraid to stay, tied economically and emotionally to the abuser, the battered woman may slip into despair.

LIST OF DEMONS

Use the list of demons in the lesson, Rape. The following are characteristics of sexual harassment - abuse - assault - violence: sexual harassment, embarrassment, sexual abuse, emotional distress, fear of specific persons, regression, bed-wetting, thumb sucking, pain, short attention span, withdrawal, escape, substance abuse, nightmares, fear of going to bed, fear of sleeping alone, irritability, temper tantrums, loss of interest, injuries, sexually transmitted diseases, posttraumatic stress disorder, forcible sexual activity, sexual contact, rape, fondling, incest, molestation, exhibitionism, sodomy, pornography, prostitution, seductive behavior, indecent exposure, sexual touching, game playing, oral sex, anal sex, gonorrhea, syphilis, herpes genitalis, Chalamydia trachomatis, venereal warts, Trichomoniasis, Gardnerella, human immune deficiency virus, tay sacks, spinal bifida, downs syndrome, mental retardation, emotional diseases, sexual assault, attempted rape, distrust, sexual violence, intimidation, battery, murder, victim, helplessness, loss of control, domination, anger, control, domestic violence, physical abuse, slavery, trapped, despair.

REFERENCES

The background for this lesson was taken from publications provided by the following organizations: Illinois Coalition Against Sexual Assault, Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority, Illinois Department of Human Rights, Children's Hospital National Medical Center, and Rape Information and Counseling Service. Also About Adults Abused As Children by Channing L. Bete Co., Inc. was very helpful.

SECTION 16 – MASS DELIVERANCE MANUAL

CONTENTS

- 1. Lists Of Demons
- 2. Mass Deliverance
- 3. Mass Deliverance Supplement
- 4. How To Identify Godly And Ungodly Spirits

1. LISTS OF DEMONS

1. LISIS OF DEMON	15		
Abused Children (De-	Drunkenness and	Ahab - Men's Weak-	Scripture (Deliver-
liverance for the	Gluttony	nesses)	ance Scripture)
Subconscious	Fears Of (How to	Mind (The Mind:	Self (How to be
Mind)	Identify Godly and	Freeing - Restoring	Miserable)
Ahab and Jezebel	Ungodly Spirits)	- Protecting)	Sexual Sin and Dis-
(The Curse of	Good Homemakers	Occult (Forbidden	eases (Sexual Dis-
Ahab and Jezebel)	Grief and Bitterness	Practices of the	eases, Impurities
Bad Habits of Think-	(Deliverance from	Occult)	and Demons) Toys
ing and Reacting	Grief and Bitter-	Passive Mind	and Games (Chil-
Bastards (The Curse	ness)	Psychoneurosis (The	dren's Deliverance)
of the Bastard)	Hate, Vengeance,	Neurotic Personali-	Ungodly Spirits
Biblical Curses	Envy and Strife	ties) Psychoneu-	(How to Identify
Catholic Spirits	Holidays	rotic (The Delin-	Godly and Un-
Charismatic Witch-	Humanism	quent Personali-	godly Spirits) Val-
craft	Idols Worshipped by	ties) Psychopsy-	entine's Day
Children Drug Ad-	Countries (How to	chosis (The Patho-	(What's Wrong
dicts	Identify Godly and	logic Personalities)	with Valentine's
Children's Deliver-	Ungodly Spirits)	Rebellion	Day?)
ance	Indians (Indian	Religious Error (Spir-	When Demonization
Christian Fantasy -	Curses)	its of Religious Er-	of Christians is
Lies not Truth	Infirmity, Weakness,	ror)	Denied (Can a
Classical Mythology	Sickness, Disease	Satan, Fallen Angels	Christian Have a
(How to Identify	(Body - Cured and	and Demons	Demon?) Witch-
Godly and Ungodly	Healed by Deliver-	(Learn About the	craft (Winning
Spirits) Common	ance)	Real Enemy - Sa-	over Witchcraft)
Demon Groupings	Ingratitude (An Atti-	tan/Followers)	Women's Inheritance
(How to Minister Ba-	tude of Gratitude)	Schizophrenia and	(Our Inheritance
sic Deliverance)	Maintaining Your De-	Paranoia (Schizo-	from Woman's
Cursed Objects	liverance from Evil	phrenia)	Viewpoint)
(Cleaning Your	Spirits	Schizophrenia and	Women's Weak-
House) Drugs and	Men's Weaknesses	Related Diseases	nesses (From Eve
Medicines Drunk	(From Adam to	(How to Identify	to Jezebel -
		Godly and Ungodly	Women's Weak-
		Spirits	nesses)

2. MASS DELIVERANCE HOW TO GET DELIVERED

Relax and cooperate with the deliverance minister and workers. There is nothing to be afraid of. We have not lost a deliveree in thirteen years of ministry. God never gives a spirit of fear; all fear is from Satan.

Demons are like air. They are usually expelled by the exhaling of breath. This can be by yawning, coughing, deep breathing or gentle exhaling of breath. Demons can have nests in the body which have substance. They are usually expelled by blowing the nose, coughing up phlegm or vomiting. Don't feel bad when this happens. For instance, it is beautiful to see a cancer vomited out of a person during deliverance. Paper towels and waste cans are provided for this reason.

Demons can temporarily take over your body and manifest their characteristics. They can look through your eyes, cause the body to assume grotesque shapes, temporarily paralyze the body, throw the body on the floor and cause it to squirm around, and talk using your voice.

Deliverance is the casting out of demons from your body. Prayer is the infilling of the Holy Spirit. Leave the passages open so that the spirits can leave. Do not pray, pray in tongues or chant. Chanting is the repetition of a word or phrase such as saying Jesus repeatedly.

Decide that you want to get rid of the demons within your body. You no longer agree with them and they no longer will be your pets. Exercise your mind and will to be delivered. If the demons do not leave, command them, by name, to go; do this verbally, out loud, for more power.

Do not hold back or be embarrassed. As they come up and out of your chest, let them go even if you have to spit or whatever. It is all right even if they take over some part of your body. If you have too much pride to let the demons manifest to get delivered, you give the demons a right to stay. God hates pride; it is an abomination to Him!

Deliverance workers should move around quietly. Provide paper towels to those who need them. Lay hands on those who are having trouble, agree with them, and command the demons to come out. Do not start a conversation with the person during mass deliverance. This interrupts the flow of the deliverance and you then have your own private meeting.

Deliverance is not prayer. You command the demons to go in Jesus' Name. He will not cast the demons out. He has given us that authority and He expects us to use it.

Babies and children generally get delivered easily. Babies can even get delivered in the womb. Women generally manifest more than men do. Women usually get into and out of spiritual trouble more quickly than men. Men generally get delivered by the simple exhaling of the breath. The more a person is in bondage, the greater the manifestations will be. Deliverance is dynamic and exciting. It is wonderful to see people getting set free from demon bondage. Jesus Christ is glorified when Satan is defeated by Christians here on earth.

Families should sit together. Husbands are the most effective in casting demons out of their family because they are given spiritual authority over it. We believe this authority is even greater than that of the deliverance minister. It is not the loudness of a command that moves the demon but the authority of the name and blood of the Lord Jesus Christ. You must know your authority or the demons will recognize your weakness. By initiating young, interested believers into the battle for deliverance, they soon become seasoned soldiers, learning tactics on the battlefield.

DELIVERANCE PRAYERS

General

There are many good deliverance prayers that have been written and printed in books and in loose-leaf form. Some of these prayers are general and some have been written for specific purposes.

The ideal prayer is the one prayed by the individual to cover the specific area of that person's life that is being ministered to at that time. The next best prayer is the form prayer which the person repeats after the deliverance leader.

The following prayers have been used many times by us and have produced good results. One side benefit is that the people can see what is wrong and evil in their lives by what is contained in the prayers.

These prayers can be used for individuals, small groups or large groups equally well.

Short Prayer

"Lord Jesus Christ, I believe You died on the cross for my sins and rose again from the dead. You redeemed me by Your blood and I belong to You, and I want to live for You. I confess all my sins--known and unknown—I'm sorry for them all. I renounce them all. I forgive all others as I want You to forgive me. (Pause) Forgive me now and cleanse me with Your blood. I thank You for the blood of Jesus Christ which cleanses me now from all sin. And I come to You now as my deliverer. You know my special needs—the thing that binds, that torments, that defiles; that evil spirit, that unclean spirit—I claim the promise of Your word, "Whosoever that calleth on the name of the Lord shall be delivered.' I call upon You now. In the name of the Lord Jesus Christ, deliver me and set me free. Satan, I renounce you and all your works. I loose myself from you, in the name of Jesus, and I command you to leave me right now in Jesus' name. Amen!"

This is my favorite prayer because it is short and effective. The first part is salvation and the last part is deliverance. You can pause after the sentence highlighted about forgiveness and let the people forgive others as the Holy Spirit leads them. This prayer was written by Derek Prince.

Gene Moodys' Prayers - The first thing we do is get the people to pray about their specific problems and sins, so that the blood of Jesus can cleanse the people and take away legal rights that the demons have to remain, and God can begin to act. You must personally repent of your sins!

Then we get the people to repeat the Short Prayer out loud with sincerity after me.

Finally, we lead the people in a prayer out loud that covers Sins of Ancestors, Curses, Soul Ties, Fragmented Soul, and Subconscious Mind as follows:

"Lord Jesus Christ, I forgive my ancestors and descendants, and I ask You to forgive and bless them. Forgive me for my many sins and I forgive myself for sins against my body. I break all curses, charms, spells, jinxes, psychic powers, hexes, vexes and demonic ties that bind. I break all soul ties caused by witchcraft, sorcery, bewitchment or sexual sins. Lord Jesus, restore my fragmented soul: mind, will and emotions; send Your angels out to recover anything that was stolen from me. Lord Jesus, stir up the demons in my subconscious mind so that they can be identified and cast out. All these things I ask in the blessed name of my Lord Jesus Christ: My Lord, Master and Savior. I now take authority over Satan and all the forces of evil according to the whole Word of God and command that you obey it. In the Name of Jesus Christ, I ask these things. Amen."

After the people have prayed and been led in prayer, then I take spiritual authority over the meeting as follows:

"Satan, we come against all powers, principalities, evil forces in this world and spiritual wickedness in high places. We come against all demons inside or outside of anyone present, over this city, state, nation and world, in Hell or out of Hell. The Bible says, 'Behold, I give unto you power to tread on serpents and scorpions, and over all the power of the enemy: and nothing shall by any means hurt you.' We intend to exercise that power to set ourselves free. Satan, we come against you by the power and blood of Jesus Christ, by the Word of God, by the name of Jesus, by the authority of the believer, in the unity of our spirits. Satan, we tell you that we sit in heavenly places with our Christ Jesus. We are over you, your fallen angels, your demons and all forces of evil. We command you to line up in rank and file and order, and come out quickly. We bind every power that you have and loose ourselves from you in the name of Jesus.

Lord Jesus Christ, we ask that You would send the gifts of the Holy Spirit as needed to minister to the needs of the people and to accomplish what You want done here today. We are careful to give You all the glory, honor, praise and credit for everything that is said or done. We ask all these things in the blessed name of Jesus Christ, our Lord and Master and Savior. And we take authority over Satan according to the whole Word of God. For it's in Jesus' name we pray. Amen!"

BIBLICAL CURSES

"I break any curses placed on me or my descendants from uttering a wish of evil against one; to imprecate evil, to call for mischief or injury to fall upon; to execrate, to bring evil upon or to; to blast, vex, harass or torment with great calamities. I break these curses in Jesus' name. I break the curses back to ten generations or even to Adam and Eve on both sides of my family, and destroy every legal hold and every legal ground that demons have to work in my life. I break curses that follow in the name of the Lord Jesus Christ."

LIST OF DEMONS RELATED TO BIBLICAL CURSES

Mistreating God's chosen people Willing deceivers Adultery, harlotry, prostitution Disobedience to bible Idolatry Keeping cursed objects Refusing to fight for God House of wicked Not giving to poor Stealing Swearing falsely by God Failing to give glory to God Robbing God of tithes Dishonoring parents Hearkening to wives rather than God Making graven images Cheating people out of property Taking advantage of blind Oppressing strangers, widows, or orphans **Bestiality** Incest with sister or mother Murder secretly or for hire Pride Putting trust in man Doing the work of God

Deceitfully Rewarding evil for good Abortion or causing unborn to die Having bastards Murdering indirectly Striking parents Kidnapping Cursing parents Not preventing death Sacrificing to Gods Witchcraft Turning someone away from God Following horoscopes Rebelling against pastors Losing virginity before marriage False prophets Rape Not disciplining children Teaching rebellion Against God Cursing rulers Refusing to warn sinners Defiling the Sabbath Sacrificing humans Seances and fortune telling Intercourse during menstruation

Homosexuals and lesbians Necromancers Blaspheming lord's name Being carnally minded Oral and anal sex Children rebelling Nonproductivity Fugitive and vagabond Improper family structure Destruction of family Priesthood Refusing to do the word of God Family disorder Failure and poverty Any sin worthy of death Touching God's anointed Perversion of gospel Loving cursing Choosing that which God delights not in Looking to world for help Stubbornness and Rebellion Offending children that believe in Christ Adding to or taking away from the bible

Any biblical curse not listed above.

But it shall come to pass, if thou wilt not hearken unto the voice of the Lord thy God, to observe to do all His commandments and His statutes which I command thee this day; that all these curses shall come upon thee, and overtake thee and overtake thee (Deut. 28:15). I believe that there is a curse for every verse that you disobey and a blessing for every verse that you obey. If you obey half the Bible, you are half-blessed and half-cursed.

SOUL TIES

I renounce these evil soul ties, break them and wash them away with the shed blood of the Lord Jesus Christ. I break all evil soul ties with the following: Beasts

Anyone I have had sex with outside of marriage divorced mates

By incest, rape, fornication, adultery, homosexuality, bestiality, lesbianism bloodless religions, religious cults blood brothers/sisters by rites witchcraft, occult, satan worship fortune tellers, mediums

Psychiatrists, social workers, psychologists, mental institutions

Finally, I break any agreement with anyone that forms an evil soul tie:

Enchantments	Observer of times
Wizardry	Fortune telling
Necromancy	Consulting with familiar spirits
Witchcraft	Occult practices

OCCULT AND FALSE RELIGIONS

"I renounce all fortune telling, magic practices and spiritism, cults and false teachings, and Satan worship. I break every curse and soul tie brought about by psychic heredity, occult contacts and religious cults. I now break any demonic hold on my family line due to supernatural experiences apart from God including the following forbidden practices and all that they entail."

LOOSING GODLY SPIRITS

We can bind and loose spirits (Matt. 18:18-20). We can loose ministering spirits from the Lord. We bind the spirits (demons) of Satan and loose the spirits (angels) of God. We cast demons out of people and ask God to direct the angels to minister to our needs.

Godly spirits commonly mentioned are spirit, Spirit of God, Spirit of the Lord, Holy Spirit (human spirit, angels and Holy Spirit). Ungodly spirits commonly mentioned are evil spirits, demons and devils. There is actually only one Devil, Satan; demons are the correct terminology. There are millions of fallen angels and billions of demons.

"Lord Jesus Christ, we ask that You direct the angels to minister to our needs. We loose warring angels, ministering angels, the Holy Spirit and the Seven-Fold Spirit of God. We loose legions of angels including the following godly spirits."

Advanced Deliverance - After basic deliverance, go on to other demonic families. The list of names of demons seems to be endless. There is a name of a demon for everything that is contrary to the Word of God. Call the demon out by his characteristic or personality. Demons will answer to their medical names, common names, symptoms or names they are given in the spiritual world.

LISTS OF DEMONS

Abused children (deliverance for the subconscious mind) Ahab and jezebel (the curse of ahab and jezebel) Bad habits of thinking and reacting Bastards (the curse of the bastard) **Biblical curses** Catholic spirits Charismatic witchcraft Children drug addicts Children's deliverance Christian fantasy - lies not truth Classical mythology (how to identify godly and ungodly spirits) Common demon groupings (how to minister basic Deliverance) Cursed objects (cleaning your house) Drugs and medicines Drunkenness and gluttony Fears of (how to identify godly and ungodly spirits) Good homemakers Grief and bitterness (deliverance from grief and bitterness) Hate, vengeance, envy and strife Holidays Humanism Idols worshipped by countries (how to identify godly and ungodly spirits) Indians (Indian curses) Infirmity, weakness, sickness, disease (bodycured and healed by deliverance) Ingratitude (an attitude of gratitude) Maintaining your deliverance from evil spirits

Men's weaknesses (from Adam (ahab - men's weaknesses) Mind (the mind: freeing - restoring - protecting) Occult (forbidden practices of the occult) Passive mind Psychoneurosis (the neurotic personalities) Psychoneurotic (the delinquent personalities) Psychopsychosis (the pathologic personalities) Rebellion Religious error (spirits of religious error) Satan, fallen angels and demons (learn about the Real enemy- satan/followers) Schizophrenia and paranoia (schizophrenia) Schizophrenia and related diseases (how to identify Godly and ungodly spirits) Scripture (deliverance scripture) Self (how to be miserable) Sexual sin and diseases (sexual diseases, impurities and demons) Toys and games (children's deliverance) Ungodly spirits (how to identify godly and ungodly spirits) Valentine's day (what's wrong with valentine's day?) When demonization of Christians is denied (can a Christian have a demon?) Witchcraft (winning over witchcraft) Women's inheritance (our inheritance from woman's viewpoint) .. Women's weaknesses (from eve to jeze-

bel ·women's weaknesses)

3. MASS DELIVERANCE SUPPLEMENT PREFACE

The only way for deliverance to spread around the world is for many people to begin to practice deliverance. I encourage you to take this guide, begin to practice deliverance and help others as you grow stronger. God told us to help train an army to minister deliverance.

Mass deliverance is simply deliverance for everyone that can hear your voice. You can use this lesson for your family or church. Normally we only work on one area of a person's life at a time and do not try to cover all areas at the same time in mass deliverance.

There is nothing mysterious about deliverance; any Christian can cast out demons. As a teacher, I am worthless if I cannot show you how to practice what I teach. The Bible is also worthless unless you put it into practice.

SIX STEPS TO DELIVERANCE OF AN INDIVIDUAL

- 1. Find out what your problems are.
- 2. Forgive, pray and get yourself right with God.
- 3. Break the curses and soul ties on you and your descendents.
- 4. Cast out the demons.
- 5. Pray for healing of soul and body.
- 6. Discipline your life by changing your way of thinking and acting.

It is easy to cast out demons but hard to discipline your life!

AIDS TO CASTING OUT DEMONS General

General

Practice systematic deliverance: basic then advanced - mass and individual. Work on one area of a person's life at a time in mass deliverance. You cannot cast out all of the demons at one time!

Pray deliverance prayers - break Biblical curses and soul ties - renounce occult and false religions - loose Godly Spirits - destroy or exorcise cursed objects -make positive confessions in Christ - read deliverance Scripture.

Scripture - Read deliverance Scripture out loud to the spiritual world. There are many Scriptures that can be used in the Old and New Testaments. Several Scriptures follow:

The weapons of our warfare are not carnal but mighty through God to the pulling down of strongholds, casting down imaginations and every high thing that exalts itself against God.

No weapon formed against us will prosper.

Statements - Make positive confessions to God and to each other about living our life for Christ. Some of these types of statements follow:

We forgive everyone that has hurt or sinned against us, and we pray for our enemies.

We exercise honesty - humility - repentance - renunciation - forgiveness - prayer - warfare.

We seize the Kingdom of Heaven and take it by force from Satan.

We overcome Satan by the Blood of the Lamb, by our testimony for Jesus Christ, and we love not our lives unto death.

We send back every fiery dart and demon attack that has been sent against us. We give no opportunity to the Devil. We cast out the demons and their works. We eject, drive out, pluck out, thrust out, expel, rebuke, censure, admonish, send away, put out, loosen holds, break up nests, and put off works of demons.

We have power, authority, mastery, superhuman force and control over all the works of the enemy; you must obey and subordinate yourselves to our commands.

We resist, despise, have contempt for, speak doom to, abhor, loathe, detest and hate everything that God hates, all sin and evil, Satan, fallen angels and demons.

We break the power of cursed objects, hex signs, demonic toys and games, and objects infested by demons.

We put on the Whole Armor of God and cover ourselves with the Blood of Jesus Christ. We accept Jesus Christ is our Lord, Master and Savior!

We close all doorways for Satan in the occult, addictions, sexual impurities, demonic healing, demonic religions, rock music, inheritances and any others known or unknown.

Casting Out -1 now command all controlling spirits to come out of the human being as follows:

Soul: Mind - Will - Emotions Conscious - Subconscious - Unconscious Body: Physical - Brain - Sexual Organs

I now command all special demons to manifest and come, out or leave as your name is called:

Wer Beasts: Vampires - Werewolves - Zombies Manifestations: Changelings - Incubi/Succubi - Dopple Gangers

Objects: Familiar Objects - Fetish, Talisman and Amulets - Marks - Hagstones - Biofeedback Curses: Spells - Incantations - Hexes - Vexes

I now command all demons associated with the above practices to come out as well as the following demonic families:

Demons: Son of Satan - Mind Control - Death - Occult - Magic - Witchcraft - Drugs - Child Abuse - Fornication - Demonic Healing - Eastern Religions -Demonic Inheritance - Demonic Games - Rock Music - Voodoo - Familiar and Guiding Spirits - Forces and Powers

4. HOW TO IDENTIFY GODLY AND UNGODLY SPIRITS

HOW TO RECOGNIZE EVIL SPIRITS

- 1. Discerning of spirits, word of knowledge and word of wisdom: three gifts of the Holy Spirit.
- 2. Names claimed by demons which describe their work: such as anger to make angry.
- 3. Counterfeiting and imitating spirits of God (spirit of divination for word of knowledge).

- 4. Synonyms for evil spirits (Roget's Thesaurus).
- 5. Personality of demon (soul mind, will and emotions). Just like you are except it does not have a physical body.
- 6. Cause demons to manifest and identify their names and characteristics (spiritual warfare).
- 7. Detection by common symptoms or problems: emotional, mental, speech, sex, addictions, physical and religious (false religions, Christian cults, occult and spiritism, false doctrine) (Pigs In The Parlor, "Seven Ways To Determine The Need For Deliverance").

THE SPIRITS OF GOD AND SATAN

(Excerpts)

- 1. Beloved, believe not every spirit, but try the spirits whether they are of God (I John 4:1).
- 2. We can bind and loose spirits.
- 3. Therefore, we are safe in assuming that for every ministering spirit of the Lord, there will be one, and often many, satanic counter spirits.
- 4. Loosing spirits from the Lord.

GENERAL

- 1. We bind the spirits (demons) of Satan and loose the spirits (angels) of God. We cast the demons out of people and God directs the angels to minister to our needs.
- 2. Godly spirits commonly mentioned are spirit, Spirit of God, Spirit of the Lord, Holy Spirit (human spirit, angels and Holy Spirit).
- 3. Ungodly spirits commonly mentioned are evil spirits, demons and devils. There is actually only one Devil, Satan; demons are the correct terminology. There are millions of fallen angels and billions of demons.
- 4. The following are lists of godly and ungodly spirits found in the Bible. You can identify many more after you have been in deliverance awhile. Ungodly spirits generally are found grouped in families. Where you find one demon, you frequently find a family of demons with the same characteristics.

GODLY SPIRITS

Spirit of Wisdom (Ex. 28:3) Poor in spirit (Matt. 5:3) Spirit of God (Gen. 1:2) Spirit of your father (Matt. 10:20) Spirit of the Lord (Jud. 3:10) Strong in spirit (Luke 1:30) Right spirit (Psalm 51:10) Spirit of truth (John 14:17) Holy Spirit (Psalm 51:11) Spirit of life (Rom. 8:2) Broken spirit (Psalm 51:17) Spirit of adoption (Rom. 8:15) Spirit of princes (Psalm 76:12) Fervent in spirit (Rom. 12:11) Faithful spirit (Prov. 11:13) Spirit of meekness (I Cor. 4:21) Humble spirit (Prov. 16:19)

Patient in spirit (Ecc. 7:8) Meek and quiet spirit (I Pet. 3:4) Spirit of the ruler (Ecc. 10:4) Spirit of glory (I Pet. 4:14) Spirit of judgment (Isa. 4:4) Spirit of prophecy (Rev. 19:10) Spirit of understanding (Is. 11:2) Spirit of Elijah (II Kings 2:15) Spirit of counsel/might (Is. 11:2) Contrite spirit (Psalm 34:18) Spirit of knowledge (Is. 11:2) Good spirit (Psalm 143:10) New spirit (Ezek. 11:19) Spirit of deep sleep (Isa. 29:10) Spirit of holy gods (Dan. 4:8) Spirit of living creature (Ez. 1:20) Spirit of grace and supplication (Zee. 12:10) Spirit of faith (II Cor. 4:13) Excellent spirit (Prov. 17:27) Spirit of Jesus Christ (Phil. 1:19) Spirit of man (Prov. 20:27) Eternal spirit (Heb. 9:14)

UNGODLY SPIRITS (FAMILIES)

Spirit of infirmity or weakness (Luke 13:11) Spirit of Antichrist (I John 4:3) Spirit of fear (II Tim. 1:7) Deaf spirit (Mark 9:25) Perverse spirit (Isa. 19:14) Dumb spirit (Mark 9:25) Sorrowful spirit (I Sam. 1:15) Blind spirit (Matt. 9:27) Spirit of slumber (Rom. 11:8) Foul spirit (Mark 9:25; Rev. 18:2) Spirit of whoredoms (Hos. 5:4) Unclean spirit (Matt. 14:43;Mark 1:23, 26; 3:30; 5:2,8; 7:25) Destroying spirit (Deut. 13:15) Evil spirit (Judges 9:23; I Sam. 16:14-16,23; 18:10: 19:9 Spirit of divination (Acts 16:16) Another spirit (II Cor. 11:4) Spirit of bondage (Rom. 8:15) Hasty of spirit (Prov. 14:29)

Spirit of holiness (Rom. 1:4) Spirit of Christ (Rom. 8:9) Spirit of grace (Heb. 10:29) Quickening spirit (I Cor. 15:45 Free spirit (Psalm 51:12)

Spirit of error (I John 4:6) Haughty spirit (Prov. 16:18) Spirit of false doctrines (Ex. 23:1; Matt. 16:12) Perverse spirit (Isa. 19:14) Spirit of jealousy (Num. 5:14) Seducing spirits (I Tim. 4:1) Sad spirit (I Kings 21:5) Jealous spirit (Num. 5:14, 30) Wounded spirit (Prov. 18:14) Lying spirit (I Kings 22:22-23; II Ch. 18:21-22) Proud in spirit (Ecc. 7:8) Spirit of burning (Isa. 4:4) Familiar spirit (Lev. 20:27; I Sam. 28:7-8; I Ch. 10:13; II Ch. 33:6) Spirit of Egypt (Isa. 19:3) Spirit of heaviness (Isa. 61:3) Spirit of unclean devil (Luke 4:33) Spirit of the world (I Cor. 2:12)

DICTIONARY OF CLASSICAL MYTHOLOGY

"A knowledge of the classics and an acquaintance with the imaginary characters, places, and incidents of ancient mythology which have been such an inspiring influence to writers of all ages adds greatly to one's enjoyment of literature, art and conversation. The people outside literary and educational pursuits have sufficient opportunity or leisure to acquire or keep up a knowledge of this popular branch of learning. It is important, therefore, to present in dictionary form the story of gods, goddesses, heroes, and heroines of the old Grecian and Roman literature. It will lead to a better understanding of the countless REFERENCES which are made from time to time in the literature of the day to classic subjects. It is a great wonderland of posy and romance, and forms a realm ail its own, the realm of antiquity's gods and demons and of prehistoric heroes."

Notice the highlighted words and what they say to you. They are talking about gods, goddesses and demons. There is a demon behind every god and goddess worshipped by man! You are seeing products with these names more and more today. Is this innocent or deliberate? The definitions of these names can be found in unabridged dictionaries. We recommend that you purchase one for spiritual research.

IDOLS WORSHIPPED BY COUNTRIES

The names of idols are the same as names of demons. There is a demon behind every idol that is worshipped by man. Notice that there are male and female gods and goddesses. Satan has something for everyone. Temple prostitutes included male homosexuals, female lesbians and female prostitutes.

TABER'S CYCLOPEDIC MEDICAL DICTIONARY

The following is Taber's definition of multiple sclerosis: "A chronic, slowly progressive disease of the central nervous system characterized by development of disseminated demyelinated glial patches called plaques. Symptoms and signs are numerous, but in later stages those of Charcot's triad (nystagmus, scanning speech, and intention tremor) are common. Occurs in the form of many clinical syndromes, the most common being the cerebral, brain stem-cerebellar, and spinal. A history of remissions and exacerbations is diagnostic. Etiology is unknown and there is no specific therapy."

Notice the highlighted words. They tell you the symptoms of the disease and where it is located in the body. With this information, you can pray more effectively. The symptoms can be called out as names of demons such as plaques, Charcot's triad, nystagmus, scanning speech and intention tremor. Demons will answer to their medical names, common names, symptoms or names they are given in the spiritual world.

We worked with a woman in deliverance who had this disease by using the above method. We would get manifestations as we called out the demons by their medical names. She was delivered and healed.

NEUROTIC AND ABNORMAL PERSONALITIES

(The Three P's, Psychoneurosis, Psychoneurotic and Psychopsychosis) - These lists of demons help you to understand those you are ministering to who have these personalities. A study of psychology and psychiatry can be very helpful in deliverance. The method of treatment can also open the door to demons.

PHOBIAS

Phobias are fears. There are 210 phobias recognized by psychiatrists.

SOURCE AND BRANCHES OF FALSE RELIGIONS DIAGRAM:

Catholic Mas (Religious) (Busines		onic ss Success)	Occult (Drugs, Sex, Power)	
			nrod & Semiramus)	

The first false religion in the Bible can be traced back to Nimrod, his wife, Semiramus, and her child, Tammuz. From this source branched out other false religions. The Catholic religion is for those who want to be religious. The Masonic religion is for those who want business success. The Occult religion is for those who want power, sex and drugs. This is true of anyone who follows a bloodless religion without the blood of Jesus Christ and has not had a born-again experience with Jesus Christ, our Lord, Master and Savior.

REFERENCES

- 1. *Pigs In The Parlor* 3 R's (Root of Bitterness, Rebellion and Rejection) and 53 Common Demon Groupings.
- 2. *Demolishing The Hosts Of Hell*, "Names Claimed By Demons" pages 51-59 (1300 Demons).
- 3. *Roget's Thesaurus* Synonyms (names of demons).
- 4. *Battling The Hosts Of Hell* "Names of Demons", pages 233-235
- 5. *Conquering The Hosts Of Hell* "The Spirits of God and Evil Spirits Mentioned or Implied in Scripture", pages 61-62.
- 6. *Education Book Of Essential Knowledge*, An Addition Of Webster's Encyclopedic Dictionary, Consolidated Book Publishers, U.S.A.
- 7. *Unger's Bible Dictionary* by Merril F. Unger, Moody Press, Chicago
- 8. Taber's Cyclopedic Medical Dictionary, F.A. Davis, Co., Philadelphia, PA
- 9. *Psychology Made Simple*, by Abraham P. Sperling, Made Simple. Books, Double Day and Company, Inc., Garden City, New York

LISTS OF DEMONS

PREPARATION FOR CASTING OUT DEMONS

Before you start casting out demons, go to the appropriate lessons and use the prayers to establish repentance, break curses and soul ties, and call on the Lord to help you.

ABUSED CHILDREN DELIVERANCE

(**DELIVERANCE FOR THE SUBCONSCIOUS MIND**) - Start with basic deliverance in subconscious mind and conscious mind (Rejection, Bitterness and Rebellion). Then call for demon spirits that went in from the abuser (Spirits of Abuse). Call out the Victim Spirit (advertises to be victimized).

Beating	Cursing	Nervous	Sadness
Discontent	Heaviness	Grief	Daydreaming
Covetousness	Criticism	Suspicion	Paranoia
Hate	Berating	Excitement	Laziness
Dejection	Gloom	Sorrow	Fantasy
Stealing	Intolerance	Jealousy	Unfairness
Guilt	Inferiority	Schizophrenia	Death
Hopelessness	False burdens	Heartache	Distrust
Kleptomania	Irritability	Spite	Fear of judgement
Retaliation	Lonely	Mental illness	Cursing
Suicide	Worry	Heartbreak	Pretension
Material lust	Competition	Hatred	Fear of condem-
Destruction	Timid and shy	Retarded	nation
Death (welcome	Dread	Crying (for con-	Gossip
fantasy)	Driving	trol of others)	Unreality
Food lust	Inadequacy	Cruelty	Fear of accusation
Pouting	Apprehension	Madness	Mockery
Morbidity	Argument	Contention	Escape
Greed	Ineptness	Manic depressive	Fear of reproof

Belittling Indifference Sensitiveness	Drugs Forgetfulness Self-awareness
Railing	Quarreling
Stoicism	Incoherence
Hallucinations	Self-
Idleness	condemnation
Passivity	Fighting
Nightmares	Doubt
Self-pity	Self-protection
Sleepiness	Torment
Confusion	Unbelief
Self-reward	Sexual impurity
Alcohol	Harassment
Frustration	Skepticism
Self-hatred	Lust

Funk Indecision Incest Listlessness Procrastination Fantasy lust Lethargy Compromise Masturbation Depression Pride Homosexuality Despair Ego Harlotry Despondency

Fear of authority Rape Disgust Lying and deceit (for protection) Exposure Discouraged Frigidity Defeated Pretense Murder Sadism Backbiting Hyperactive Driving No peace

AHAB AND JEZEBEL (THE CURSE OF AHAB AND JEZEBEL)

Ahab Idol worship Abdicating leadership Impotence Adultery Joblessness Aggression Laziness Angry Leaving things of god to wife Bitterness Lust Communication breakdown Lust of material things Conditional love Lack of confidence Childish behavior Liking sensual women Competition Macho spirit Covetousness Misunderstandings Compromise Manipulating women Clashing conflict Murder

Considering god's things Trivial No order Call evil good - good, evil No peace Displeased No unity Disobedient Overloading wife **Dirty stories** Pride Degradation Jezebel Accusation Indecision Aggression Intimidation Attention seeking Insinuation Arrogance Insecurity Beguiling Inadequate Belittling Pornography Destruction of family Priesthood Pouting

Doubting manhood Passive quitter Drunkenness Rebellious children Emasculations Rejection **Emotional cripple** Resentment Failure Scared Fearful Separation & divorce Fear of getting hurt Sibling rivalry Fear of women Sluggishness Filth Stoicism Following sins of the Father Tragic mistakes God of sports Unemotional God of jobs Upset children Heavy spirited Workaholic Hatred of women

Worship of enterprise, Success, profit, promotion & wealth Homosexuality Hurts X-rated movies Inability to designate Authority Intellectualism Bickering Inhospitable Backbiting Interference Brash, bossy woman Jealousy Bedroom blackmail Jezebel Conniving Lack of confidence Contention Lying dominance Continuous complaining Short temper Lawlessness Emotional outburst Condemnation sorcery

Laziness failure Confusion shirking responsibilities Manipulation fear Counterfeit spiritual gifts sensitive Mistrust frustration Conditional love sharp tongue Nagging forsaking protection Charming sleepiness Overindulgence female dominance & con-Controlling spirits Pouting shame **Dissatisfaction female** hardness Pride suicide Demands fierce determination Perversion (sexual & spiritual blindness spiritual) False sickness Double mindedness selfdefeating

Psychology finger pointing Doubt sorrow Philosophy frigidity Disunity turmoil Projected guilt grief Discord ungodly discipline Quick temper hatred of men Disruption unbelief Retaliation hot temper Distrust ugliness Revenger hasty marriage Deception vanity Rationalization hopelessness Delusion witchcraft Rebellion hypnotic control Demanding worldly wisdom Strife inability to give or receive Defeat love Slander whining Determined maneuvers irresponsibility Sharp temper

BAD HABITS OF THINKING AND REACTING

Fear of rejection Dread Shame Fear of men's opinions Apprehension Sexual impurity Fear of disapproval Roving Cult involvement Bitterness Restlessness Embarrassment Rebellion Unreality Self-will Stubbornness Indifference Disgust Anti-submissiveness

Passivity of mind Worry Disobedience Lethargy Anxiety Fear of criticism Depression Fear of reproof Insecurity Discouragement

Fear of confrontation Timidity Defeatism Confusion Inadequacy Hopelessness Doubt Ineptness Heaviness Unbelief

- Distrust Burden Indecision Fantasy Forgetfulness Procrastination Compromise Rationalization Pride
- Fear of failure Deception Play-acting Ego Discontent Frustration Pretense Fatigue Hyperactivity

BASTARDS (THE CURSE OF THE BASTARD)

Sins **Bastard** Fornication (idolatrous sex orgies) Adultery Masculine women Effeminate men Abusers of themselves with mankind (arsenokoites Or sodomite, oral or anal copulation) Sensual (carnal, voluptuous, senses, appetites) Evil concupiscence Inordinate affections (excessive) Lasciviousness (lewd emotions)

BIBLICAL CURSES

Pestilence Idol worship Graven images Consumption Gonorrheal arthritis Pinta Venereal Lympogranuloma Relapsing fever Aids Topical ulcer Meningitis Endocarditis Rat-bite fever Filthy communication (obscene, blasphemy, **Profanity**) Masturbation Homosexuality and catamite Lesbianism Pornography Exposure Uncleanness Perversion Lust and passions, fantasy lust Fantasies Obscene music, poetry, literature and art Occult sex Immorality Incest Harlotry, rape, frigidity

Sterility Weil's disease Feeble-mindedness Herpes 1 and 11 Epilepsy Alcoholics Bastard Pride Fever Wicked balances Catholic prayers Inflammation Dislike/hatred/murder Prince of southern curses Hypocrisy Heedlessness Cynicism Smug complacency Bad dreams Heterosexuality Drunkenness Drugs Diseases Venereal diseases Insanity

Argument

Selfishness

Mockery

Carelessness

Heterosexuality Drunkenness Drugs Diseases Venereal diseases Insanity Gonorrhea Staggering gait Chancroid (soft) Heart disease Granuloma inguinal Blindness Spirochetal infections Ulcerative lesions **Svphilis** Yaws Congenital syphilis Bejel

Extreme burning Curse of the law Prince of occult Blasting Bless you spirits Witchcraft curses Mildew Incest Voodoo curses Botch of Egypt Lesbians Occult curses Emerods Necromancers American Indian curses Diseases of Egypt Scab Deceiving Blaspheming Personal poverty Charismatic witchcraft Trembling of heart Itch Adulterv Sodomy Misrepresentation Horoscopes Failing of eyes Madness Disobedience Oral & anal sex Perversion of judgment Rebellion Sorrow of mind Cursed objects Blindness Slackness Doubt False prophets Broken vows Astonishment of heart Thievery Deeper teachings Homosexual Seances Unicorn Plagues False swearing Irish shamrock hex Tulip Fortune telling Twelve petal rosette Sore sicknesses The Distlefink Fertility Your lucky stars Nonproductive Love & romance

Eight pointed star Friendship hex Pentacle/pentagram Eastern star Hexagram Star of David Mogen David Cabalistic magic symbol White magic Masonic symbols Freemasonry Italian horn Leprechaun's staff Unicorn's horn Egyptian ankh Egyptian sun god ra Zodiac Mexican sun god **Buddhas** Crescent moon & star

(Cursing, Vexation, Rebuke, Destroying, Perishing, Consuming, Groping)
(Not Prosper, Oppressed, Spoiled, Failure, Crushed, Smite, Pursuing)
(Sore Botch of Knees, Legs and Whole Body)
(Overtaking, Distress, Plucked, Chastisement, Removed, Not Healed)
(Astonishment, Proverb, Byword, Want, Besiege, Straitness, Evil)

CATHOLIC SPIRITS

General - Burning of Votive Candles, Catholic Hymns, Catechism, Penance, Confessional, Confession, Lying in the Confessional, Confirmation, False Baptism, Fear of Priest, Fear of Nun,

Fear of Being a Priest or Nun, Relics, Veneration of Relics, Fear of Excommunication, Burning Incense, Blind Obedience to the Priest, One Holy Priesthood, One True Church, Prayers to Saints, Novenas, False Confession, Rosary (this includes spirits of Buddha, because the rosary was adopted from Buddhism, and spirits of Death coming from Buddha), Purgatory, Fear of Judgment and Hell, False Celibacy, Idolatry, Holy Water, Way of the Cross.

Benediction Services - Genuflecting, Sorrowful Mysteries, Joyful Mysteries, Veneration of Saints, Sacred Pictures, Holy Cards, Icons, Sacred Medals, Sacred Heart of Jesus, Sign of the Cross, Crucifix, Belief in the Pope as Head of the Church, Sacred Silence, Jesuit Spirits.

False Religious Rites - Liturgy, Holy Rites, Ceremony, Processional, Litany, Greater or Lesser Litany, Invocation, Invocation of the Saints, Confirmation, Auricular Confession, The Confessional, The Confessionary, Sign of the Cross, Pax, Kiss of Peace, Reciting the Rosary, Telling of Beads, Thurification, Incense, Aspersion, Asperges, Lustration, Seven Sacraments, Mysteries, Baptism, Confirmation, Eucharist, Penance, Extreme Unction, Holy Orders, Matrimony, Burning Candles.

Unction - Sacred Unction, Sacramental Anointment, Chrism or Chrisom, Chrismation, Chrismatory, Last Rites, Viaticum, Last Supper, Lord's Supper, Holy Communion, The Sacrament, Holy Sacrament, Intinction, Consubstantiation, Impanation, Transubstantiation, Real Presence, Elements, Host, Wafer.

Mass - Missa, The Divine Liturgy, High Mass, Missa Solemnis, Low Mass, Missa Bassa, Rosary Mass, Rosary of the Seven Dolors of Mary, Lady Mass, Dry Mass, Missa Sicca, Liturgy of the Presanctified, Missa Praesanctificatorum, Missa Publica, Missa Privala, Missa Cantata, Missa Media, Missa Adventitia, Missa Manualis, Missa Capitularis, Missa Legata, Requiem, Requiem Mass, Dirge, Memento of the Dead.

Parts of the Mass - Prayers at the Foot of the Altar, Introit, Kyrie, Kyried Eleison, Gloria, Collect, Epistle, Gradual, Alleluia, Tract, Gospel, Credo, Offertory, Lavabo, Secreta, Preface, Sanctus, Tersanctus, Canon, Memento of the Living, Consecration, Elevation of the Host, Anamnesis, Memento of the Dead, Paternoster, Fraction, Agnus Dei, Pax, Communion, Post Communion, Dismissal, Blessing, Last Gospel.

Sacred and Ritualistic Articles - Relics, Sacred Relics, Monstrance, Ostensorium, Host, Eucharistia, Pyx, Ciborium, Tabernacle, Ark, Crucifix, Cross, Rood, Holy Cross, Osculatory, Pax, Agnus Dei, Icon, Bambino, Veronica, Pieta, Sacramental, Holy Water, Holy-Water Sprinkler, Aspergillum, Asperges, Asperger, Thurible, Censer, Incensory, Cruet, Ur-ceole, Rosary, Beads, Beadroll, Chaplet, Votive Candle, Vigil Light, Paschal Candle, Sanctus Bell, Sacring Bell, Sangrall, Holy Grail, Missals, Mass Book, Formulary.

Holy Days - Advent, Christmas, Candlemas, Candlemas Day, Epiphany, Three Kings' Day, Twelfth-Tide, Twelfth-Night, Twelfth-Day, Sep-tuagesima, Shrove Tuesday, Mardi Gras, Carnival, Pancake Day, Ash Wednesday, Lent, Lententide, Quadragesima, Quadragesima Sunday, Holy Week, Passion Week, Palm Sunday, Holy Thursday or Maundy Thursday, Good Friday, Easter, Eastertide, Easter Sunday, Easter Monday, Annunciation, Annunciation Day, Lady Day, Ascension Day or Holy Thursday,

Pentecost, Whitsuntide, Whitsun, Whitweek, Whitsunday, Whit-Monday, Whit-Tuesday, White Sunday, Trinity Sunday, Corpus Christi, Lemmas, Lemmas Day, Lamaestone, Michaelmas, Michaelmas Day, Michaelmastide, Halloween, Hallowmas, Allhallow-mas, Allhallowtide, Allhallows, All Saints' Day, All Souls' Day, Martinmas, Ember Days.

Allegiance to Pope - Pontiff, Papa, Holy Father, Servant of the Servants of God, Cardinal, Primate, Exarch, Metropolitan, Abuna, Archbishop, Bishop, Prelate, Diocesan, Suffragan, Coadjutor, Dean, Rector, Vicar, Chaplain, Curate, Penitentiary.

False Religion - False Doctrines, Mind Idolatry, Mind Binding, Babylonian Spirits, Nimrod, Semiramus, Tammuz, Babel, Confusion, Deception, Pipytheas (religious lying), Orion (compromises the truth; gives false gifts), Python (spirit of divination), Divination, Parricide (murder of parents). Religious Orders - Franciscan, Gray Friar, Friar Minor, Minorite, Observant, Recollect, Conventual, Capuchin, Dominican, Black Friar, Friar Preacher, Preaching Friar or Brother, Carmelite, White Friar, Augustinian, Augustinian Hermit, Austin Friar, Begging Hermit, Benedictine, Black Monk, Jesuit, Loyolite, Crutched Friar, Crossed Friar, Templar, Hospitaler, Bernardine, Bonhomie, Carthusian, Cistercian, Cluniac, Gilbertine, Lorettine, Maturine, Premonstratensian, Trappist, Brigittine, Marist, Maryknoll, Oratorian, Redemptorist.

Patron Saints - There are also patron saints over various occupations, diseases, certain groups of people (expectant mothers, falsely accused persons, etc.), countries and places. Various symbols in art represent saints (George - dragon and Francis - birds, also deer, fish, skull, stigmata, wolf, etc.) The Roman calendar has a special saint or saints for every day of the year. There are over 5,000 saints in all.

CHARISMATIC WITCHCRAFT

Rejection by Christian brothers, sisters, pastors. Rejection of deliverance.

Rejection by husband, wife, mother, father, children Rejection between deliverance workers, pastors. Rejection in womb, of self, of others Hurts and deep hurts by Christians Touch me not, inability to give or receive love, conception in lust

False doctrine, hearsay

False preachers, teachers, evangelists, prophets, apostles

False tongues, prophecy, interpretation, demonic gifts False religions, religious cults, eastern religions False love, sweetness, sentimentality False prosperity, love of money, think and grow rich, money by faith

False positive thinking, metaphysical faith, soulish faith

False charismatic movement, false partial gospel False shaking, quaking, crying, putting on a show False cooperating, discipleship

Charismatic witchcraft, witches, warlocks Domination, control, manipulation, dictatorial Mind control, blanking, blocking, binding, confusion Witchcraft, occult, antichrist, familiar spirits, divination

Jezebel, Ahab, passivity, destruction of family priesthood, lukewarmness Commanding angels for riches, imaging, visualization Greed, covetousness, mammon Financial poverty of workers, pastors, churches, camps A different gospel, another Jesus Apostate religion, almost fooling the very elect Spirit of error, spirit of the world,, aborted spirit Ruler demons over workers, pastors, families, churches, camps Soul ties and curses from control Despondency, despair, defeat, hopelessness, morbidity Strife, contention, bickering, quarreling among brethren Inability to work with other Christians Denominational spirits, separation, infighting Spiritual pride, ego, vanity, pre-eminence, haughtiness Self idolatry, we are gods, worship of man, fear of man Mormonism, Jehovah Witnessism, bloodless religions Catholicism, occult, Masonry, religious demons Evil eye, third eye, Masonic eye, all seeing eye Christian fantasy, falseness, false love Playacting, theatrics, affectation, pretension Hypocrisy, lying, deceit, deception, delusion, compromise

Cursing, Vexation, Rebuke, Destroying, Perishing, Consuming, Groping) Not Prosper, Oppressed, Spoiled, Failure, Crushed, Smite, Pursuing) (Sore Botch of Knees, Legs and Whole Body) (Overtaking, Distress, Plucked, Chastisement, Removed, Not Healed) (Astonishment, Proverb, Byword, Want, Besiege, Straitness, Evil)

CHILDREN DRUG ADDICTS

Cylert, Dexedrine, Mellaril, Tofranil, Haldol, Thorazine, Ritalin, Speed and Amphetamine-Like Drugs

Withdrawal, Depressed Mood, Fatigue, Psychotic Episodes, Severe Prolonged Depression, Paranoia, Suicidal, Severe Sleep Disturbances, Bed Wetting, Increased Dreaming with Nightmares Mental Illness, Crazy, Insanity, Nutritional Deficiencies, Stunting of Growth, Allergic Reactions Anxiety, Tension, Extreme Agitation, Irritability, Psychosis

Mood Swings, Nervousness, Insomnia, Dizziness, Headache, Appetite Loss, Unexplained Fever, Blurred Vision, Joint Pain, Uncontrolled Movements, Rash, Hives, Sore Throat, Nausea, Abdominal Pain, Chest Pain, Fast/Irregular Heart Beat, Unusual Bruising, Unusual Tiredness, High Blood Pressure Confusion, Behavior Problems

Tourette's Syndrome, Body Ticks, Spasms, Barking Sounds, Screaming Babble, Screaming Obscenities Seizures, Epileptic, Convulsions, Fits, Grand Mai, Petit Mai, Body Twitches, Violent Muscular Spasms, Unconsciousness, Brain Damage

Over Stimulation of Central Nervous System, Death, Vomiting, Tremors, Exaggeration of Reflexes, Muscle Twitching, Convulsions, Coma, Euphoria, Confusion, Hallucinations, Delirium Sweating, Flushing, Headache, High Fever, Abnormally Rapid Heart Rate, Irregular Heart Beat, Pounding Heart, High Arterial Blood Pressure, Pupil Dilation, Dryness of Mucous Membranes Thorazine, Chemical Lobotomy, Thorazine Shuffle, Slack Jawed, Drooling, Palms Turning Back, Arms Hanging Slack, Tardive Dyskinesia, Uncontrollable Muscle Spasm, Tongue Roiled Over, Tongue Protruding, Limbs Shake, Parkinson's Disease Attention Deficit Disorder, Minimal Brain Dysfunction, Learning Disability, Impulse Disorder Hyperactivity, Inattention, Impulsivity

CHILDREN'S DELIVERANCE

A good general list of demons to cast out of children is the Schizophrenia-Paranoid Hands list of demon families found on Pages 126 and 127, Chapter 21, Schizophrenia, "Pigs in the Parlor". It can be used for mass or individual deliverance. Start with Rejection, then Root of Bitterness,

then Rebellion families. After going through, basic deliverance, the three R's, then start to cast out the other demon families (Schizophrenia-Paranoia).

Find out the child's problems by talking to the parents (and the child if possible). After doing deliverance in paragraph above, then work on specific demon families identified for the individual. You can also use the previously listed names of demonic toys, movies, games and music as the names of demons in deliverance. Very simply, there is a name of a demon for every evil practice that is contrary to the Holy Bible!

CHRISTIAN FANTASY (LIES NOT TRUTH)

Mass Deliverance manual, lists of demons - use "ahab and jezebel", "bad habits of thinking and reacting", "charismatic witchcraft", "holidays", and "when demonization of Christians is denied".

The following is a general list to use: Christian fantasy and fables Christian tradition and cliches Lies, lying, deceit, deception Ignorance, laziness, slothfulness Playing church, play acting Lying teachers and prophets False witness, falsehood Pat phrases Soulish prophecy

COMMON DEMON GROUPINGS

Spiritual adultery False dreams and visions Charismatic witches and warlocks False prophetesses, hypocrisy Vile affections, theatrics Sophistication, pretension Divination, false gifts and fruits Greed, gluttony, drunkenness Mind control, witchcraft, rebellion

Abderus	Anaceus	Acheron	Antiphus
Aeolus	Ascalaphus	Alcathous	Atlantis
Amphitryon	Achaei	Andromeda	Acrisius
Arion	Agenor	Atalanta	Alcmaeon
Absyrtus	Anchises	Acherusia	Aon
Aerope	Ascanius	Alcestis	Atlas
Amycus	Achaemenides	Antaeus	Actaeon
Aristaeus	Aglaia	Ate	Alcmene
Acamas	Anchurus	Achilles	Aphrodite
Aeseaus	Astarte	Alcestis	Artreus
Amyntor	Achates	Antigone	Admenta
Arne	Ahenobarbus	Athamas	Alectryon
Acantha	Androcles	Achillides	Apollo
Aesculapius	Asteria	Alcimede	Atrides
Amyone	Acheloides	Antilochus	Admetus
Artemis	Ajax	Athena	Alpheus
Acarnas	Androgynae	Acis	Arachne
Aeson	Astraea	Alcinous	Atropos
Anaxibia	Achelous	Antiope	Adonis
Aruntius	Albion	Atlantides	Althaea
Acestes	Andromache	Aconteus	Areas
Agamemnon	Astyanax	Alcithoe	Attis or Atys

А	drastus	Camilla	Dioscuri	Hydra
А	malthaea	Ceres	Danaus	Harpies
А	res	Clythemnestra	Delphi	Helicon
А	lugeas	Cadmus	Dido	Hesperides
	leacus	Capaneus	Dirce	Hygeia
	mata	Chaos	Daphne	Hebe
	rethusa	Clythie	Demeter	Helios
	urora	Caduceus	Diomedes	Hesperus
	leetes	Cassandra	Dryads	Hylas
	mazons	Charon	Daphnis	Hecate
	rgia	Comus	Echo	Heile
	luster	Caeneus	Erato	Hippocrene
	legeus	Cassiopein	Eumenides	Hymen
	mbrosia	Charybdis	Eurystheus	Hector
	rgiphontes	Coriolanus	Electra	Hera
	01	Calchas	Erebus	
	lutolycus	Castalia		Hippolytus
	.egis .mmon	Chimaera	Euphrosyne	Hyperion Icarus
			Euterpe	
	rgo	Cornucopia	Elysium Eros	Iphigenia
	utomedon	Calliope		Iris
	egisthus	Castor	Europa	Ixion
	mphiaraus	Chiron	Evander	Io
	rgonauts	Creon	Endymion	Janus
	vernus	Callirrhoe	Eteocles	Jason
	eneades	Cecrops	Eurydice	Juno
	mphion	Chryseis	Fates	Jupiter
	rgus	Cronus	Faunus	Lachesis
	leneas	Callisto	Flora	Laodamia
	mphitrite	Celaeno	Furies	Lares
	riadne	Circe	Galatea	Leda
	acchanalia	Cupid	Genius Loci	Laertes
	ellerophon	Calydon	Golden Fleece	Laomedon
	omonicae	Centaurs	Graces	Latona or Leto
	riareus	Clio	Ganymede	Laocoon
	acchantes	Cybele	Glaueus	Lapithae
	ellona	Calypso	GorgQns	Leander
	ona Dea	Cereberus	Hades	Mars
	riseis	Clotho	Hecuba	Melpomene
	acchus	Cyclopes	Heracles	Midas
	ergion	Camenae	Horatius Codes	Minotaur
	oreas	Daedalus	Haemon	Medea
	uchephalus	Dardanus	Helen	Menelaus
	aucis	Deucalion	Hermes	Minerva
	eroe	Dionysus	Hyacinthus	Morpheus
	ranchus	Danae	Hamadryads	Medusa
	u Siris	Dejanira	Helenus	Mentor
С	acus	Diana	Hero	Minos

Muses Meleager Mercury Naiads Nephele Nessus Nisus Narcissus Narcissus Neptune Nestor Notus Nemesis Nereus Niobe Nymphs Neoptolemus Oceanus Oenomaus Omphale Orion Odysseus Oenone Oreads Orpheus Oedipus Olympus

Sadism

Cruelty

Sensitiveness

Self-Awareness

Hurt

Orestes Ossa Palamedes Pax Phaedra Priam Palladium Pegasus Phaethon Priapus Pallas or Peleus Philemon Prometheus Passas Athene

COMMON DEMON GROUPINGS

Bitterness Resentment Hatred Unforgiveness Violence Temper Anger Retaliation Murder

Rebellion Self-will Stubbornness Disobedience Anti-Submisiveness

Strife Contention Argument Quarreling Fighting

Control Possessiveness Dominance Witchcraft

Retaliation Destruction Spite Hatred Fear of Man Fear of Disapproval Persecution Unfairness Fear of Judgment Fear of Condemnation Fear of Accusation Fear of Reproof Driving Sensitiveness

Mental Illness Insanity Madness Mania Retardation Senility Schizophrenia Paranoia Hallucinations Accusation Judging Criticism Faultfinding

Rejection Fear of Rejection Self-Rejection

Insecurity Inferiority Self-Pity Loneliness Timidity Shyness Inadequacy Ineptness

Jealousy Envy Suspicion Distrust Selfishness

Withdrawal Pouting Daydreaming Fantasy Pretension Unreality

Escape Indifference Stoicism Passivity Sleepiness Alcohol Drugs

Pelias

Pan

Pelion

Phryxus

Proteus

Pandora

Pleiades

Pelops

Phoebus

Proserpina

Perfection Pride Vanity Ego Frustration Criticism Irritability Intolerance Anger

Competition Fear of Reproof Driving Argument Pride Ego

Impatience Agitation Frustration Intolerance Resentment Criticism

Accusation Judging

Criticism Faultfinding

Rejection Fear of Rejection Self-Rejection

Insecurity Inferiority Self-Pity Loneliness Timidity Shyness Inadequacy Ineptness

Jealousy Envy Suspicion Distrust Selfishness

Withdrawal Pouting Daydreaming Fantasy Pretension Unreality

Escape Indifference Stoicism Passivity Sleepiness Alcohol Drugs

Perfection Pride Vanity Ego Frustration Criticism Irritability Intolerance Anger Competition Argument Pride Ego

Impatience Agitation Frustration Intolerance Resentment Criticism Passivity Funk Indifference Listlessness Lethargy

Depression Despair Despondency Discouragement Defeatism Dejection Hopelessness Suicide Death Insomnia Morbidity Heaviness Gloom Burden Disgust

Worry Anxiety Fear Dread Apprehension Nervousness Tension

Headache Nervous Habits Restlessness Excitement Insomnia Roving Sexual Impurity Lust Fantasy Lust Masturbation Homosexuality Lesbianism Adultery Fornication Incest Harlotry Rape Exposure Frigidity Cults Jehovah's Witnesses Christian Science Rosicrucianism Theosophy Urantia Subud Latihan Unity Paranoia Jealousy Envy Suspicion Distrust

Cult's Cont'd. Mormonism Bahaism Unitarianism (Lodges, societies and social agencies using

the Bible & God as a basis but omitting the blood atonement of Jesus Christ.) Doubt Unbelief Skepticism Death Indecision Procrastination Compromise Confusion Forgetfulness Indifference Self-Deception Self-Delusion Self-Seduction Pride Mind Binding Confusion Fear of Man Fear of Failure **Occult Spirits Spiritism Spirits** Mind Idolatry Intellectualism Rationalization Pride Ego Fears (All Kinds) Phobias (All Kinds) Hysteria Fear of Authority Lying Deceit Pride

Ego		Compassion	Conjuration
Vanity	Infirmity		Encantation
Self-Righteous -	(May include	Gluttony	Fetishes
ness	any disease or	Nervousness	
Haughtiness	sickness.)	Compulsive	Religious
Importance		Eating	Ritualism
Arrogance	Inheritance	Resentment	Formalism
-	Physical	Frustration	Legalism
False Burdens	Emotional	Idleness	Doctrinal Obses-
False	Mental	Self-Pity	sion
Responsibility	Curses	Self-Reward	Fear of God
Affectation			Fear of Hell
Theatrics	Hyper-Activity	Self-Accusation	Fear of Lost
Playacting	Restlessness	Self-Hatred	Salvation
Sophistication	Driving	Self-	Religiosity
Pretension	Pressure	Condemnation	0,
			Spiritism
Persecution	Cursing	Occult	Seance
Fears	Blasphemy	Ouija Board	Spirit Guide
Confrontation	Coarse Jesting	Palmistry	Necromancy
	Gossip	Handwriting	2
Confusion	Criticism	Analysis	False Religions
Frustration	Backbiting	Automatic	Buddhism
Incoherence	Mockery	Hadwriting	Taoism
Forgetfulness	Belittling	C	Hinduism
e	Railing		Islam
Grief	C	ESP	Shintoism
Sorrow	Addictive &	Hypnotism	Confucianism
Heartache	Compulsive	Horoscope	
Heartbreak	Nicotine	Astrology	Covetousness
Crying	Alcohol	Levitation	Stealing
Sadness	Drugs	Fortune Telling	Kleptomania
Cruelty	Caffeine	Water Witching	Material Lust
5	Medications	Tarot Cards	Greed
Fatigue	Gluttony	Pendulum	Discontent
Tiredness	5	Witchcraft	
Weariness	False Burdens	Black Magic	
Laziness	FaRp	White Magic	
	Ŧ	5	

CURSED OBJECTS (CLEANING YOUR HOUSE)

Books and objects identified with anything related to Satan's Kingdom. Sinful activities of former residents. Knocking or noisy ghosts (poltergeist) and apparitions. Owl and frog images of all types. Witch's mask and fetishes used by witch doctors. Objects and literature that pertain to false religions, cults, the occult and spiritism. Graven images of gods (demons). Objects dedicated to demons (idols and artifacts). Ouija boards or other occult paraphernalia. Prayers and worship to demons. Mexican sun gods; idols, incense; Buddhas; hand carved objects from Africa or the Orient; anything connected with astrology, horoscopes, fortune telling, etc.; books or objects associated with witchcraft, good luck charms or cult religions (metaphysics, Christian Science, Jehovah's Witnesses, etc.); rock and roll records and tapes. Jewelry given to a person by someone in witchcraft, hex signs, ancient geometric and mystical motifs, jewelry designed to bring good luck and act as talisman to chase evil.

Egyptian ankh, broken cross (peace symbol), chais, Polynesian tikkis of gods, African jujus, Italian horn, protectors from the evil eye, hand with index and little fingers pointing up, crosses, clovers, stars, wishbones, luck coins, mystic medals, horseshoes, religious fetishes and statues. Products with cryptic curses (hidden secret, occult curses).

Dolls used for witchcraft and magic; puppets, cult objects or representations.

DRUGS AND MEDICINE

DRUNKENNESS AND GLUTTONY. Start with Basic Deliverance: Rejection *I* Bitterness *I* Rebellion, then

Drunkenness *I* Gluttony, Drugs and Medicine, Ungodly Spirits and finally Common Demon Groupings.

Appetities and ad- dictions Addiction to drugs and many other things Drugs Bondage; slavery Craving for and addiction to cigarettes Craving for and	and slang names) Barbiturates (medical and slang names) Craving for and addiction to drugs Downers various spirits Fantasy nervous-	Phenobarbital anxiety Thc worry Hashish Pipe smoking Unreality and many Others Drug groups Pain killers Tranquilizers	Stimulants Depressants Physicians & pharmacies Apollo & apol- lyon Aesulapius All gods & god- desses. Hippocratic oath Caduceus
addiction to	Downers various	Drug groups	desses
		001	
0	-		
addiction to al-	ness	Anti-depressants	Pharmakeus
cohol	Flashback confu-	Drug groups	Pharmacy
Cigarette	sion	(cont'd.)	Pharmacist
Nicotine	Habit mind con-	Sedatives	Witchcraft & sor-
Amphetamine	trol	Hypnotics	cery
(also medical	Methadone ten-	Hallucinogens	
	sion	Narcotics	

DRUNKENNESS AND GLUTTONY·

Start with Basic Deliverance: Rejection / Bitterness / Rebellion, then Drunkenness / Gluttony, Drugs and Medicine, Ungodly Spirits and finally Common Demon Groupings.

Gluttony	Fantasy
Drunkenness	Caffeine
Nervousness	Fears
Alcohol	Diet Pills
Compulsive Eating	Flashback

Medications for Drunkenness	Habit
Indulgence	Resentment
Surfeiting	Desire
Unreality	Frustration
Addiction to Food	Addiction to Alcohol
Craving for Alcohol	Idleness
Cravings for Particular Bondage Foods	Self-Pity
Addiction to Any kind of Beverage	Slavery
Self-Reward	I Like To Eat

FEARS OF (HOW TO IDENTIFY GODLY AND UNGODLY SPIRITS)

Air	Blushing	Parasites	Insanity
Excrement	Fish	Confinement	Rectal Excreta
Medicine	Naked Body	Hair	Deformity
Aloneness	Brain Disease	People	Insects
Eyes	Floods	Contamination	Rectum
Metals	Name	Heat	Demons
Animals	Bridges	Place	Jealousy
Failure	Fog	Corpses	Red
Meteors	Needles	Height	Depth
Anything New	Burglars	Pleasure	Justice
Fatigue	Food	Crossing Streets	Responsibility
Mice	Negroes	Hell	Devil
Bacilli	Buried Alive	Points	Knife
Fearing	Forest	Crowds	Ridicule
Mind	Night	Heredity	Dirt
Bad Men	Cats	Poison	Large Objects
Feathers	Frogs	Dampness	Right
Mirror	Northern Lights	High Objects	Disease
Barren Space	Change	Poverty	Left
Female Genitals	Functioning	Darkness	River
Missiles	Novelty	House	Dogs
Bearing a De-	Childbirth	Precipices	Light
formed	Ghosts	Dawn	Robbers
Child	Odor	Ideas	Dolls
Fever	Choking	Punishment	Lightning
Moisture	Girls	Daylight	Rod
Bees	Odor, Personal	Infinity	Dust
Filth	Cold	Rabies	Locked In, Being
Money	Glass	Death	Ruin
Birds	Open Space	Injury	Eating
Filth, Personal	Color	Railroad or Train	Looked At, Being
Motion	God	Defecation	Sacred Things
Blood	Pain	Innovation	Electricity
Fire	Comet	Rain	Machinery
Myths	Gravity	Definite Disease	Scabies

Emptiness Stairs Man School Enclosed, Being Many Things Scratches Sin Everything Marriage Sea Examination Materialism Self Semen Speaking Aloud Thunder Sex Spider Time Sexual Intercourse

Touched, Being Shock Standing Up Travel Standing Up & Walking Trembling Sinning Stars Trichinosis Sitting Stealing Tuberculosis Sitting Down Stillness Vaccination Skin Disease

Stories Vehicle Skin Lesion Strangers Venereal Disease Skin of Animals Street Void Sleep String Vomiting **Small Objects** Sunlight Walking Smothering Symbolism Water Snake **Syphilis**

Inquiring Never

Wind Solitude Tapeworms Women Sound Taste Hearing Certain Words Sourness Teeth Work Speaking Thinking Writing Harlotry Prostitution

Weakness

Snow

Talking

GOOD HOMEMAKERS

Lover's of Self Utterly Selfcentered Inordinate Greedy Desire for Wealth Proud, Arrogant, Contemptuous Boasters Abusive, Blasphemous **Scoffers** Disobedient to Parents Ungrateful Unholy Profane Without Natural Affection Callous I Inhuman Relentless False Accusers **Trouble Makers** Loose in Morals and Conduct

Uncontrollable Fierce Haters of Good Treacherous I Betrayers Rash Inflated with Selfconceit Lovers of Sensual Pleasures Lovers of Vain Amusements Having a Form of Godlessness Denying the Power of God Strangers to God Weak Natured I Spiritually Dwarfed Easily Swayed I Silly **Evil Desires** Seductive Impulses

Acquiring **Depraved Minds Distorted Minds** Counterfeit Rash Folly Wicked Men Imposters Deceivers Leading Astray Lazy Unorganized Spiritual fantasy Wrong Priorities Witchcraft Drugs Rock Music Ungodly Sex Satan Worship Bastard Incest Sexual Abuse Rape Divorce Adultery

Homosexual Pride Willing Deceivers Disobedient to God **Dishonoring Par**ents **Stubbornness** Bestiality **Striking Parents Cursing Parents** Jezebel Ahab **Turning Someone** From God Not Properly Disciplining Children Sexual Sins Offending Children Who Believe

DELIVERANCE FROM GRIEF AND BITTERNESS

Unforgiveness Rejection Fear of Rejection Self-Rejection Rejection of Others **Root of Bitterness** Resentment Hatred Unforgiveness Rebellion Self-Will Stubbornness Disobedience Anti-Submissiveness Depression Despair Disgust Despondency **Root of Bitterness** Violence Towards Self Violence Towards Others Temper Anger Rage Murder Grief Suicide Death Insomnia Wrath Malice **Bitter Wailing** Bitterness of Death Escape

Indifference Stoicism Passivity Sleepiness Alcohol Drugs Listlessness Lethargy Weariness Tiredness Laziness Doubt **Doubting God's** Word Indecision Indifference Self-Deception Grief Sorrow Heartache Crying Sadness Cruel Burdens **Oppressive Grief** Pain of Mind Pain of Emotions Regret **Suffering Spirits** Distress Heaviness Cursing Morbidity Confusion Frustration Incoherence Lying **Spirits Guilt** Self-Hatred Condemnation Shame Unworthiness Embarrassment Pressure Railing

Confrontation Depression Discouragement Defeatism Dejection Hopelessness Envy Distrust Selfishness Fantasy Unreality Spite Hateful Hatred Deceit Disease Cancer Ulcers Arthritis Worry Anxiety Fear Dread Apprehension Restlessness Roving HATE, VENGE-ANCE, **ENVY AND** STRIFE Ill-Will Opposition Grudge Malice Preiedice Debate Yellow Jaundice Backbiting Covetousness Spiteful Flare up Go on the warpath Go into orbit Look black Become Insane

Hatred Wrath Proud Froward Whisperer Meddling Foolish Scorner Reproach Contradicting Lewd Rioting Drunkenness Chambering Wantonness **Tumults** Riflings Disputings Earthly Sensual Devilish HATE, VENGEANCE, **ENVY AND** STRIFE (Cont'd.) Confusion **Evil-Works** Wars Fightings Condemnation Hypocrisy Ought Discontentment Lusting Hard feelings Cravings Resentments Rivalry Strife Controversy Lack of Christian

Charity

Trying to imitate One who divides homes/ church Dubious Distrustful Skeptic Indignation Annovance Tantrum Enmity Murder Non-Conformist Full of Doubts Without faith Peculiar Fury and Temper Impatience Violence Fretful Out of Humor Get one's goat Get one's dander up Stir up a hornet's nest Rage and Outbursts Bitterness Hemorrhage Yell and Scream Boil Over Seethe Have a fit Bristle Up Gnash one's teeth Fly off the handle Snap the mind/go mad Crack Up Meddleth Forcing Vainglory Unlearned Opposition Leprosy Silliness

Rottenness Shame Blasphemies Boasting Desolation Deceit Malignity Divisions Get one's back up Get in one's hair Keep at boiling point Make one blow his top Eruption (get in a huff) Apoplexy (bad veins) Fume and sputter Fail at Fulminate Have a Tantrum Provoking Despise **Evil-Surmisings** Corrupt Disobedient Deceiving Lies Adultery Guile Evil-Speaking Contentions Selfishness Greedy Competitive Evil Eve Looks that kill Pairing off Anger - Rage Revenge - Wrath Ouarrel - Hostile Ultraminiature Abnormal-Rebel Suspicious Unbelief Out of line Displeasure

Vexation Frenzy Sharpness Gall, Chafe, ruffle Make the fur fly Make bad blood Make sore Hysterics Irritate To Rant Roar Shake and Quiver Scold Fly Apart Carry on Quarrel Hateful **Furious** Bitterness Resentment Withdrawal Deceit Anger Retaliation Revenge Hurt Guilt Unforgiveness Cancer Arthritis Idol Worship Graven Images Sacrifice Children Pride Violence Carnality Swellings Provoking False Teaching Indecision Lying Lies Folly Dishonesty Bribery Hate Piousness

Hypocrisy Divorce Cruelty Licentiousness Sexual Sin Wantonness Haughtiness Murder Raise the Devil Stamp with rage Look daggers Arrogance Voluptuousness Vengeance Root of Bitterness Raking Wrath Grudge False witness Sowing discord Plotting Evil Pretense False Glory Swearing Vulgarity Corruption Judgemental False rebuke

HOLIDAYS

Idol Worship Image of Jealousy Chambers of Imagery Mourners for Tammuz Sun Worship Idolatry Heathen Worship Unclean Things Falsity Pagan Rituals Witchcraft **Familiar Spirits** Witches/Wizards Abominations Soothsaying

Demonic Images False Worship Divination Worship of Rabbit Occult Supernatural Bragging **Evil Competition** Demonic Manipulation Hurt Doubt Traditions Wanting Saturn Janus Druids Sacred Oaks Charms Misleading Children Eroticism Lust Conception in Lust St. Patrick Necromancy Abstinence of Lent False Healing Powers Eastre Satan Worship **Casting Spells** Fertility Symbols Asiris Eucharist Hot Cross Buns Hate Selfishness Harshness Violence Depression Distrust Fear of Failing Confusion **Occult Practices** Halloween

Wicked Spirits Oueen of Heaven Baal Jack-O-Lantern Haunted Houses Rebellion **Unclean Spirits Devil's Colors** Reveling Reign of Evil Easter Futility Fear Mass for Christ Diana of Euphrates Vanity Dead Stock of Nimrod Envy Fantasy Laziness Embarrassment Disappointment Ahab Fear Pressure Oannes Sorcery Pride Greed Cruel Pouting Shame Lying Jezebel Unhappiness Negative Sacrifice to satan Worship of Firs, Cedars. and Oaks Honoring Dead Saints Goddess of Flowers (Flora)

Blessed Palm, Willow, & Olive Black Sabbath Mass Transubstantiation Saturn Worship (Saturnalia) Goddess of Rising Light of Day Lord of Dead (Shamhain) Mother of Mercury (Maia) HUMANISM Rejection Fe&r of Rejection Demonic Subjection Escape Drugs: Street & Prescription Alcohol Self-Rejection and Hatred Rejection of Others Rejection of God Bitterness Resentment Hatred Unforgiveness Toward Self Unforgiveness Toward Others Unforgiveness Toward God Temper Violence Rage Anger Retaliation Murder

Idol Worship Witchcraft Deception Stupor Anti-God Anti-Salvation Anti-Bible Anti-Christ Anti-Salvation by Jesus Lies and Lying Human Reasonings Stupid Imaginations Vain Imagination Anti-Godly Supernatural Worship of: Medicine Demons Science Man's Reason Man's Intellect Self Pride Ego, Vanity Man's Ideas Aggression: Against God Against Others Against God's Law Violence **Over Sleeping** Indifferent Stoicism Lethargy Depression Despair Despondency Discouragement Defeat Hopelessness Morbid Gloom Disgust

Heaviness Evil Spirit of Unbelief Occult ESP Hypnotism Horoscope - Astrology Joannes Fairies Elves Ego Astarte May Pole Ishtar Sun God Liber Ostera Tammuz Adonis Bacchus Nimrod Santa Claus Sacred Egg Abortion Suicide Rebellion Self-Will Stubbornness Disobedience Anti-Submission Strife in Family Quarreling **Fighting: Physical** and Verbal Demonic Domination Self-Idolatry Humanism Demonic Denomination Levitations Fortune Telling

Tarot Cards

Tea Leaf Reading Witchcraft Black & White Magic Conjuration Soul Travel Charms, Fetishes. Talisman, Amulets Self-Worship Man is God One-World Government One-World Money New Age Movement Irresponsibly Evaluation Situational Ethics Can't Comprehend Denial Denying God's Protection Denying God's Provision Denying God's Love Denying God's Presence Denving God Provided Man with a Spirit Denying that God is Supernatural Denying True Worship of God **Denying Prayer** and Power of Praver Denying God Will Answer Prayer Denying Religious

Emotions Denying Godly Hope Unreasonableness False Religions Buddhism Taoism New Age Hinduism Islam Shintoism Confucianism and Ancestor Worship Masons Pantheism Hate Envy **Empty Headed** Fool Lust of the Eye Greed Covetousness Fervent and Uncontrollable Desire Conquest for Good Life Envy Pleasure Grasping Lust of the Flesh **Over Indulgent** Food, Things, Etc. Self-Gratification Comfort Self-Seduction **Effeminate Life:** Soft, Pampered, Weakness, Delicacy, Unmanly, Decadent, Decline in Force. Decline in

Morals, Decay, Rot Adultery Fornication Sodomy Demonic Sex Deviate Sex Perverted Pornography Homosexual Divorce Passivity God & Goddess Worship Unnatural Affections Unreal Expectations Wishful Thinking Hateful Thinking Demonic Domination **Unreal Hopes** Socialism Pride of Life Self-Righteousness Self-Realization Self-Fulfillment Self-Worship Self-Glorification Compromise Haughty Vain Pride Ego Hard-Hearted Calloused Vain Imagination Shedding Innocent Blood Abortion Murder Euthanasia Infanticide Infirm Demons

IDOLS WORSHIPPED BY COUNTRIES

(HOW TO IDENTIFY GODLY & UNGODLY SPIRITS) Babylonia and Assyria Nusqu Ishtar - goddess of propagation Tammuz husband of Ishtar Dagon - father of Baal Egyptian Anath - virgin goddess of fertility An shy god fertility Astarte En-Ul - wind god Enki - earth and water god Ningal - mother goddess Namuzi - Tammuz Canaan Utu - sun god Nannar - moon god Melcarth Marduk - chief god of Babylon Ashur - principal god of Assyrians Nabu - patron of learning Venus, Adonis Nergal - god of war and underworld

Sin - moon god Shamash - sun god Amun-Re - sun god Aton - solar disc Isia -Osiris - agricultural deity Horus Nut, Seb, Set, Temu, Tefnut, Shu, Ptah, Knum, Hathur, Sobek El - unbridled tyrant Baal - god of the storm Koshar - the vulcan Hauron - shepherd god Mot - god of death Shapash - sun goddess

FALSE GODS

ADRAM'MELECH (Adad-Milki) (Hadad) - Adar is king; burned children in the fire. ANAM'MELECH (Ann is King) - God of the sky; burned children in fire. ASHTMA - God of Hammath.

A'SHER'AH (ASHERIM) - Pagan goddess (Asherat Lady of the eat and consort of El) (Qudshu holiness) (Astouth - Asterte - Anath) (Qedishim - sodomites) (Ashtoroth - Asherah - Anathoth) ASH'TORETH (Astorte) - Goddess (Athter - Ishtar - Asherah - Anat - Ashtortu, Athten, Athtert), goddess of sensual love.

ASTAR'TE - Greek name for Ashtoreth. BAAL - Master, lord (sin of El) (Baal-ged; lord of good fortune) (Baal-hummen, Baal-hazer, Baal-meon, Baal-peer, Baal-Tamar) (Most common name of idols in Bible)

BAAL-BERITH - Lord of the covenant (El-berith) BA'ALIM - (Baal-shamen, Baal-melkart, Baal-Saphin, Baal-Berith, Baal-Peor, Baal-Tebuh) BAAL-PEOR - licentious worship (Chemosh) BAAL-ZEBUB - producer of flies BEL - lord

BERITH - see Baal-berith CALF WORSHIP

CAS'TOR and POL'LUX - horse tamer and master of the art of boxing

CHE'MOSH - children were sacrificed in the fire. CHI'UN - star god DA'GON - god of grain DIA'NA - goddess

GAD - god of good fortune

JUTITER - highest god in heaven

MAL'CHAM - their king

ME'NI - god of destiny or fortune

MER'CURY - god of commerce

MERO'DACH - head god of Babylon

MIL'COM - national god of Ammorites

MO'LECH - sacrifice of children (Found in women

who have had an abortion.)

MOLOCH - (Molech) (Notice different spellings of same idol.)

NE'BO - god of wisdom and literature

NEHUSHTAN - brazen thing

NER'GAL - sun god

NIB'HAZ - idol worshipped by Amvites

NISROCH - god

POL'LUX - (see Castor)

REPHAN - the star of the god Rephan

RIM-MON - sun god

SATYR - demonic creatures

SIC'CUTH - stellar deity

SUC-COTH-BENOTH - supreme orbiter of the world TAM'MUZ - god of pasture and flocks TAR'TAK - heathen deity

Israel

SUCCOTH-BENOTH - idolatrous tents for impure purposes

NERGAL-SHAREZER - a CUTHITE deity, fire

prince, the war god of men of Cuth

ASHIMA - a deity of HAMATH

NIBHAZ - a deity of the AVITES in the form of a

god-headed man

TARTAK - a deity of the AVITES in the form of an ass, hero of darkness (prince)

ADRAMMELECH - The name of an Assyrian idol -burned children, female power of sun ANAMMELECH - An Assyrian deity - burned children in the fire, self-torture and human of-

ferings BAAL (etc.) - a PHOENICIAN deity - master, possessor, "male deity".

ASHERIM - type of abounding fertility MOLECH (etc.) - fire god, chief deity of the AMMON-ITES - counselor

NISROCK - a BABYLONIAN idol - great eagle -human form with eagle's head

ASHERAH - (ASHTAROTH) - star worship? by BASHANITES

NEHUSHTAN - the copper servant of the desert -brazen serpent

ASHTORETH - chief "female deity" of PHOENICIANS - star goddess of love

APIS - golden calves SAKKUTH, KEWAN, BAAL-PEOR BAAL, ASTAROTH BACCHUS - Mardi Gras

INDIANS (INDIAN CURSES)

Alcoholic spirits (especially firewater & whiskey)

Akeyla (Sun God)

Astrology

Anger

Anti-Christ

Aiy

Ancestor Gods

INDIANS (INDIAN CURSES) Cont'd.

Amulets Batgod - Jaguar Buffalo

Buffalo child (croaton) Blood thirsty

Break curse of loss of prosperity Blood brothers & sisters (break ties) Baby Pow

Baby Pow Reincarnation Baal Worship

Beads-white meant peace; purple meant war, death

or mourning Birdgod - Crocodile Bitterness

Cannibalism (Ojibway, Medicine Man) Caribou spirit Curse on Arrowhead Curse to cause cutting off Curse of firstborn to pass through the fire Child sacrifice Charms - war, health, ward off evil spirits Chac (water god) Drums Dominance Dances - owl, charcoal, sun, snake, duck, chicken, horse, fire leaping, fish, alligator, crow, ghost, buffalo, scalp, eagle Divorce Desertion Elk spirits Eliminate curse on American Indians Earth Mother Eagle Estsanatlehi - old woman who rejuvenates self Earth monster - Tlalaltecuhtli Hiawatha - glandular malfunctions, swelling Father sky Fox spirit (makes a witch pass through fire) Fireside dancer Fear of lack of provision False prophecy through money False Indian prophecy False tongues Feathers Firebird Firegod - Xiutechli Great Buffalo spirit God of war (Ojibway) God fouls of the air (Ojibway) God of the stars (Ojibway) God of herbs of the earth (Ojibway) Great spirit Great Lodge God of the harvest God of death (Aztec) associated with group Geronimo God's eye Great father God of hunting (Ojibway) Greed Heavy heart Human sacrifice Hoop dance Horoscopes Hatred

Hopa doll Hypnotic trance Idol worship Incantation Indian Art Indian rituals

Magic - arrowheads, string, gourd rattles, rawhide, roots, twigs, berries, beaks of birds, bird wings, pure white pebbles, turquoise, eagles, blackbirds, peace pipe Mother earth Murder Indian artifacts Indian folklore Indian curses Indian pierced ears in women, men and children Indian scalp spirit Indian pierced ear spirit Indian spirit of poverty Indian spirit of bondage Indian chants Indian corn Indian sorcery Indian witchcraft (ability to turn oneself into a bear, wolf, fox, owl, snake) Indian Astrology spirits (believed to be ruling spirits) when a star comes to earth, it is believed to change into a demon Indian Mythology spirits (for youth) Indian spirit of war Indian Jezebel Indian Fireside Humor spirit (Sioux) Indian drumbeat (Voodoo worship) Indian magic spirits Inherited incest Indian eye Knives Ka-du-te-ta (older women who never die) Kachina doll Long house Lenelanapa (Indian Macho man) Masks for dances Medicine Bag Medicine Lodge Maid of the Mist Moloch Medicine man Matolu (chief) Moon worship Spirit of the Prairie Wolf Spirit of the Sun Spirit of the Clouds Spirit of the Sky Spirit of the Moon Spirit of Animals Spirit of Trees Spirit of Grass Spirit of Water Spirit of Stones Spirit of Maize Spirit of Maple Syrup in trees

Spirit of Nature Worship Spirit Guides **Squirrel Spirits** Submission to tribal custom Medicine tipis Mediums Necromancy (Ojibway & Cherokee) Nakedness Order of the Arrow Prayer to the dead (Winnebego, Peyote cult) Peyote eating (open to all drug spirits) Power over life of animals Power over death of animals (especially wolf) Crow medicine man Peace piper Peace pipe worship - Calumet Poverty Pow-wow Pride Priesthood of the Bow Rejection **Raccoon Spirits** Reincarnation Rain dance Rebellion Resentment Retaliation Religious spirits (prophets, priests) Regeneration, green corn dance Sacrificial pole Sorcery Snake dance Serpent swastika Sun worship **Scout Societies** Scout Idols Spirit of Happy Hunting (powerful death spirit) Shamans (medicine man) seer Superstition Seances (Croaton) Sun Dance (all) Song to the Morning Star (Pawnee) Si-ka-ma-hi-fi (Elder creator spirit, Hidatsa) Bitterness Hate Sacrifice to god of the Harvest Scout oaths Sitting Bull Stooped shoulder Squash Blossom Stag Sweat lodges and puberty rites Break Curse of Half Breed

Will of Whisp War Whoops Wolf Warpath War god Wigwam (Ojibway) Thief Teepee Thunderbird (Eagle, no head, beak full of rows of wolfs teeth, powerful ruling spirit in American Indians) Totem pole - Spirit of The clan Woe from long march (Mohawk), Six Nations Tobacco Spirits - nicotine, cigarettes, cigar Sisuitl (soul catcher) Thunder god - Ibeorhum Prince, Kings & World Rulers Accident Back Breaker Accident Prone Traumatic Shock Bone Breaker **Paralysis** Crippling Depression Despair Affliction Deformity Discouragement Suicide Spinal Cord Atrophy Hopelessness Death Scar Tissue Roots of Infirmity Shame and Embarrassment Troubled Will in Conflict Curse of Jezebel Acupuncture & Acupressure Hypnotism & Demonism Astrology Rebellion & Idolatry Resentment & Envy Vanity & Pride Witchcraft & Occult Taoism & Pantheism Psychic/Metaphysical Healing Grief Disobedience Curse of the Law Envy & Jealousness Reincarnation Spiritual or Christian Science Ailments Tooth decay Tuberculous of Bone Skin Cancer Colitis Bowel Upset Kidney Stones Kidney Panic Scalp Ailments Inability to Sleep Pestilence Inflammation Emerods (Hemorrhoids) Schizophrenia Huntington's Chorea Scab (measles, small pox) Blasting - prevents growth Ailments (Cont'd.) Brutishness (unteachable ignorance) Female Cancer (uncontrollable body odor) Heart Attack (astonishment of heart) Venereal Disease (inflammation of a fungus infection in sex organs) Leukemia Acne Menstrual Cramps Cancer of Bowels Cancer

Kidney Failure Heart Disturbances Falling Hair Aimlessness Consumption (T.B.) Botch (boils) Blindness La Tourette Syndrome Muscular Sclerosis Spinal Meningitis Cancer of Bone Carbuncles Diarrhea Eye Trouble Hernia Kidney Infection Melancholy (sadness) Restlessness Futility Fever Madness Encephalitis Polio Stroke St. Vita's Dance Scoliosis Diseases Found in the Bible Ague Blains Boils Blemish Blindness Botch Broken-Handed Broken-Footed Bruises Canker Crook-Backed Dropsy Dwarf Emerods Flat Nose Flux Gangrene Halt Impotent Palsy Pestilence Scab Scall Scurvy Sores Wen Withered Worms Wounds Diseases Found in the Bible (Cont'd.) Infirmity Inflammation Issue Itch

Lameness Leprosy Lunacy Madness Maimed Murrain Functional Diseases of Body Meriham (controller - females, allergies) Tiepea (mouth, gums) Woteige (gluttony, body illness, ruler of Octopus) Felus (gluttony) Arcolias (fatness, sins of Sodom and Gomorrah) Lukolias (pain of sternum) Blargy (infection of colon and colon cancer) Bozo (stomach infection) Boice (pancreas) Carpa (stomach nerves) Denemis (Gall Bladder) Hiawatha - Indian (glandular malfunctions & body fluids, swelling) Moxie - (chest pains) Monroe - (breast cancer under ruler Cerulias - controller) Prince Damulias (right breast) Ruler Arculias (left breast) Taile (lymph glands of breast) Verico (mushroom growth type breast cancer) Colbeck (bone morrow) Upeedes (ear, deafness) Optias (puts parasites & organisms into body) Targa (broken rhythm into heart) Yondacola (blood cancer) Citicizan (convulsions and epilepsy) Rezpan (pituitary glands) Goratus (pituitary glands - violent) Woepe (heart blockage) Csarbolias (foot pain) Pontolias (right foot) Pintolias (left foot) Nickulias (pain in neck) Eraualias (ear infections) Emotional Belfagar (vanity) Contressie (flippancy of emotions) Collodus (stoicism - no feeling) Rapanel (controller) Ashtroth (accusation, criticism) Petragrammation (selfishness) Philanfesus (sloth) Felix (self-pity, fear of disapproval) Varrier (controller - disobedience against obedience) Vermo (Guilt) Eland (resentment, sorrow) Remus and Remur (cause sleep in spiritual environment) Soonelton (rebellion) Vormo (excessive tiredness) Phonique (play acting, dramatic, choreography)

Emotional (Cont'd.) Voltare (game playing, taunting) Boletta (game playing, taunting) Whocarto (over concern of what others think) Puno (blood pressure) Triano (blood pressure) Targa (rapid heartbeat) Woepe (heart blockage) Optias (puts cancer cells into human anatomy) Body Pain Condor (controller prince) Artrize (Shaking of the body) Colbeck (bone and marrow) Sutias (back pain) Shiton (back pain in spine, serpent - Jean Dixon's snake) Larkopious (knee) Rockalious (knee) Lukolidus (sternum) Damelious (body pain) Sarkolious (pain- energy force- from outer space) Romulious, Nickolious (pain from outer space) Arkilious (radiational force) Taepe (copy demon- copy other characteristics) Pycone (back of neck) Osmodaus (back of neck) Porox (blocks human will) Carbare (ruler of spiritual blockage) Ruschon (fights against Jesus Christ) Morondo (blocks reading of Word) Meganosis (blocks all knowledge) Armenious (false doctrine)

INGRATITUDE • AN ATTITUDE OF GRATITUDE

Ingratitude to God Thanklessness	Unrighteousness Covetousness	Poverty in Pock- etbook	Troublemakers Loose Morals
Punishment	Envy	Self-centeredness	Treacherous
Cover-Up Lies	Strife	Murmuring &	Self -conceited
Fear of Failure	Ill-will	Complaining	Anger Towards
Futility	Gossip	Abu-	God
Stupid Specula-	Insolence	sive/Contempt	Dishonor of God
tions	Inventors of Evil	uous	Hatred Towards
Lack of Knowl-	Without Con-	Disobedient to	God
edge∙	science	Parents	Discontent
Sexual Impurity	Loneliness	Unholy	Cringing Fear
Incest	Poverty in Soul	Relentless	Dishonor of Self

Foolish Reasonings Senseless Minds Lack of Wisdom Homosexuality (Male or Female) Iniquity **Grasping Greed** Jealousy Deceit Cruel Ways Slandering Arrogance Undutiful to Parents Faithlessness Mercilessness Poverty of spirit

Want Insufficiency Proud Blasphemous Scoffers Ungrateful Profane Unforgiving **False Accusers** Fierce Betrayers Hypocrites Rejection of God and His dealings with you Lying to Self Ineptness

Dishonor of Others Vain/Godless Imaginings Foolishness Idolatry Indecency Loathsomeness Guilt Malice Murder Treachery Secret Backbiting Hateful to God Boasting Having no understanding Heartlessness

Fantasy Poverty in body Lack Rationalization Proud Arrogant & Contemptuous **Boasters** Callous and Inhuman Lacking Natural Affection Intemperate Haters of Good Rash Lovers of Sexual Pleasures & Vain Amusements

MAINTAINING YOUR DELIVERANCE FROM EVIL SPIRITS

Scornful Destroyer Fear Death Poverty Afflictions Trouble Confusion Terror Hate Diseases Distress Domination **Broken Heart** Dismay Heaviness Mourning Infirmities Sicknesses Stealing Murder Doubt Condemnation False Gifts Imaginations

High Things Unclean spirits Resentment Hatred Anger Rejection Self-Pity Jealousy Depression Worry Inferiority Insecurity Mental Torment Procrastination Indecision Compromise Rationalization Loss of Memory Spiritual Wickedness False Gospel Sore Boils Self-Willed Deceiving Madness

Wantonness Filthy Dreamers Sensual Anger Murder Lying Cursing Blasphemy Criticism Mockery Railing Gossip Fantasy Sex Masturbation Lust Perverseness Homosexuality Fornication Adultery Incest Provocativeness Harlotry Nicotine Alcohol Drugs

Medicines Caffeine Addiction to Food Eastern Religions Pagan Religions Philosophies Mind Sciences **Yoga Exercises** Karate Mormonism Jehovah's Witnesses Christian Science Restrictionist Theosophy Unity **Bloodless Relig**ions Occult Spiritism Seances Witchcraft Magic **Ouija Boards** Levitation

Fiery Darts Hypnosis Cursing Horoscopes Lust of Unclean-Astrology ness Divination Corruption False Doctrine Adultery Deceiving Vanity Seducing Pollutions Asceticism Vegetarianism Murmurers Dumb Dishonesty Proudness Wrath Pornography Plague Palmistry Unforgiveness Handwriting Yoke of Bondage Serpents & Scor-Analysis Automatic Handpions writing Blindness ESP Retaliation

Striving Sinus Trouble Migraine Headaches Negative Confessions Principalities Powers World Rulers of Darkness Spiritual Hosts of Wickedness Guilt Temptation Strongholds Imaginations **High Things Evil Thoughts**

Disobedience **Evil Weapons Evil Tongues** Nets and Pits Wiles Mockery Affliction Presumptuous Spots & Blemishes Covetousness Lust of Flesh Unrighteousness Complainers Lunatic **Divers Diseases** Dead Works

Lieth with his sister Lieth with his father's wife Smiteth his neighbor secretly Removeth his neighbor's landmark Taketh reward to slay an innocent person Maketh the blind to wander out of the way Confirmeth not all the words of this law to do them Perverteth the judgment of the stranger, fatherless and widow Lieth with his mother-in-law

FROM ADAM TO AHAB - MEN'S WEAKNESSES

See the Mass Deliverance Manual, Chapter 13, for the following lists of demons to cast out in deliverance: "Ahab and Jezebel", "Bad Habits of Thinking and Reacting" and "Common Demon Groupings".

MIND (THE MIND: FREEING - RESTORING - PROTECTING)

Resentment, Unforgiveness Occult sins and practices Demonic subjection to authority Psychic powers or bondages of physical or mental illness Evil curses, charms, vexes, hexes, spells, jinxes, bewitchment, witchcraft and sorcery

Every dark spirit, evil influence

Pride, haughty look, lying tongue, hands that shed innocent blood, heart that deviseth wicked imaginations, feet that be swift to running to mischief, false witness and he that soweth discord among the brethren Unbelief and doubt, care, worry, anxiety

Evil soul ties

All fetters, bonds, ties and bands, whether they be by word or deed Fragmented mind, will and emotions Retardation, insanity and senility, madness Mind control and prince of mind occult Sins of blood ancestors Cults, eastern religions and false religions Mind altering medicines such as Valium, Librium, Serax, Phenobarbital, sleeping pills, etc. Early retirement, defeat, giving up easily automatic failure mechanism ' Forgetfulness, vows, confusion, envy, jealousy, gossip compromise, cravings, addictions ' Sickness, poverty, oppression Smoking, nicotine, craving of smoke Adultery, harlotry, fornication, lewd sex sexual exploits

Acting, deceit, role playing, fantasy Depression, imaginations, daydreaming intellectual idolatry, infirmity Blindness, astonishment of heart Anger, hate, low I.Q., fear of failure, aging antichrist, fear of man, divorce, self-centeredness, ego nervous habits, fatigue, religion without Christ, suicide Diabetes, kidney stones, cancer, hepatitis, arthritis kidney infection ' All fears and phobias Self-gratification and selfish pleasure, surfeiting Derangement, dumb, crazy Worship of objects or persons Incantations and psychic prayers Trauma of accidents, fire, shock, etc. No incentive, victim of chance, mental acceptance of mediocrity and low man on scale

OCCULT (FORBIDDEN PRACTICES OF THE OCCULT)

Forbidden Practices in the Bible Enchantments Ate sacrifices of Heeding seducing Idolatry False prophets Sorcery the dead spirits Charming Soothsaying Curious arts Witchcraft Sacrificed to dev-Divination Wizardry Sold themselves Observer of times Astrology ils to do evil Worship of devils Star gazers Rod became a Unfruitful works serpent Wise men Chaldeans of Graven images Pass through the Dreamer Darkness Doctrines of devfire Magic ils Necromancy

Magic Practices and Spiritism

Mediums	Second Sight
Metaphysical	Mental Science
Healing	Auras
Necromancy	Psychokinesis

Dowsing Table Tipping Divining Self-Realization Trances Witchcraft Black Magic Charms Fetishes Amulets Mascots Ankh Spells Potions Curses Apparitions Poltergeists Burn Charming Spiritualism Trance Diagnosis Yin-Yang Seances Levitation **Spirit Guides** Self-Hypnosis Water Witching Superstition Telepathy White Magic **Metaphysics** Runes Visions Medals Good Luck Incantations Talismans Apport

Occult Books

Magical Books Astrology Fantasy Books KISS Rock & Roll Witchcraft Books

Occult Movies

Movies Containing Seances Any Horror Movie

Birth Signs Wart Charming Sorcery **Psychic Powers** Automatic Writing Acupuncture Christian Science Powwow Pendulum Diagnosis Ghosts Occult in General Ruler of Witchcraft Martial Arts Snake Lust for Dominance Spider **Open Doors** Female Dominance Black Arts Conjuration Prognostication Stubbornness **Psychic Portraits** Great Seal

Kabala - Magic Book Christian Science Arthur Ford Tolkien Mormon Books Satanic Bible

Bewitched Movies With Slight of Hand Rosemary's Baby

Calling Evil Spirits Death by Hypnosis Third Eye Mongoose Swan Jezebel Rappings on Wall Yielding Male Luv Knot Occult Symbols Pass Through the Fire Parapsychology Macabre Alchemy Baptism in Witchcraft Eye Judo Cat Lust for Power Ahab Foundation Trance **Devil's Foot** Serpent Charmer Augur Yoga Phrenology

Porno Novels Hypnosis Jeane Dixon Jehovah Witness books Rolling Stone books

Raiders of the Lost Ark Monsters Poltergeists Star Trek

Satan Worship Karate Kung Fu Cobra **Multiply Curses** Black Mass **Occult Fears** Indian Kachina Omens Rebellion Hearing Voices Numerology Fortune Telling Palm Reading Handwriting Analysis Horoscope Fortune Telling Crystal Ball **Ouija Boards** Voodoo Star Gazing Cards Telepathy Pendulums Clairvoyance Tea Leaves Kabala Astrology Clairaudience

Martial Arts books Porno Magazines Horoscopes Ruth Montgomery

Texas Chain Saw Massacre Dracula E.T. Birdie Murphy Soap Operas Science Fiction Movies Adams Family

The Exorcist The Omen Star Wars

Close Encounters Third Kind Frankenstein Friday the 13th

Jesus Christ Superstar

Any other movie which depicts a power not from God

Superstition/Good Luck

Throwing Salt Walking Under Ladders	Wishbone Gambling (all kinds)	Wart on Finger 4-Leaf Clover Black Cats	Rabbit's Foot
Horseshoes	Friday the 13th	Crossing Fingers	
Witchcraft Jewelry			
Star of David (Hexagram)	Italian Horn Pierced Earrings	Ankh	
Occult Objects			
Dolls (Originated in Voodoo)	Weight-Machine Cards	Lotus Flower Fortune Cookies	Horseshoe Over Door
Occult Games			
I Ching	8 Ball	Stiff as a Board	HeMan
Ouija Board	Gambling (Any	Levitation	Disney Cartoons
Chinese Checkers	Kind)	Bingo Rubik's Cube	(Witches, etc.)
Light as a Feather	Dungeons &	Occult Cartoons	
Bloody Murder	Dragons	Occurt Cartoons	
Occult Cartoons			
HeMan			
Disney Cartoons (Wite	ches, etc.)		
Spiritism			
Jezebel (Female	Ankh	Automatic Hand-	Bleeding for Ritu-
Dominance)	Apparitions	writing	als
Ahab (Yielding	Astral Projection	Belomancy	Blood Pacts
Male)	Astrology	Birth Signs	Kabala
Acupuncture	Auras	Black Magic	
Amulets		Black Mass	
Case Reading	Cursing	Fire Psyche	Idolatry
Cards	Enchantment	Fortune Telling	Judo
Charms	E.S.P.	Handwriting	Karate
Clairvoyant	Eye (Death by	Analysis	Martial Arts
Cobra	Hypnosis)	Hexing	Levitation

Cobra Conjuring Crystal Ball Curses

Hypnosis) Fairy Tales Fetishes Fire-Gazing

Hexing Horoscopes Hypnosis Incantation

Levitation Magic of Any Kind Materialization or Apport Meditation Medium Mental Telepathy Metaphysics

Occult Music

Rock N Roll Soul Music Christian Rock Heavy Metal

Drugs

LSD Marijuana Valium Pain Relievers Peyote

False Religions and Cults

Jehovah Witnesses Rosicrucianism Bahai Christodelphianism Association for Research and Enlightenment **Religious Re**search Foundation Subud Roman Catholic Church Children of God Shintoism Nihilistic Philosophies Anglo-Israelism **Black Muslim** Theosophical Society Zen Transcendental Meditation

Mind Control Mind Expansion Mind Reading Clairaudience

Acid Rock Popping Music Jesus Rock Punk Rock

Embalming Fluid Amphetamines Alcohol Cocaine PCP

Mind Science Palmistry Pendulum Potions Puppetry Second Sight Spells Star of David Tarot Cards Transcendental Meditation Warlock White Magic Psychokinesis Teraphim Mormon Theosophy Spiritualism Latihan Hare Krishna Confucianism Armstrong and the Worldwide Church of God Concept logy Unity School of Christianity

Psycho-Cybernetics Christian Science Healings

Rhythm & Blues Country Rock Break Musk The Oldies

Diet Pills Nicotine Heroin Hash Tranquilizers

Numerology Palm Reading Phrenology **PowWow Pyramid Power** Snakes Spiritualism Superstition **Tea Leaf Reading** Wart or Burn Charming Eckankar Reincarnation Trance **Christian Science** Unity Scientology Urantia Islam Koran Taoism I Ching Reincarnation I Am Witchcraft Ouija Board Parapsychology

Psychic Predictions Zen Meditation Tattoos Voodoo

Country & Western

Mescaline Opium

Pierced Ears Psychic Powers Runes Sorcery St. Germane (Babylonian Spirits) Table Tipping Third Eye Vexes Mind Programming Seances Trance Diagnosis Unitarianism Swedenborgianisll **Spiritual Frontiers** Moonies The Way Marxism Hinduism **Religious Science** Eclectic New Thought Eastern Mysticism **Owls and Frogs** Peace Sign

Poltergeists	Soul Travel	Voodoo	Spirit Guide
Psychic Readings	Talismans	Water Witching	
Satan Worship	Ventriloquism	Necromancy	

PASSIVE MIND - THE DEVIL'S WORKSHOP

Deceptions, Areas and Order of Invasion

Passive Will - indecisive, torture of mind, embarrassment

- **Passive Mind** inactive mind, hesitation, rashness, lack of concentration, lack of judgment, bad memory (can't remember names, numbers, dates, important facts)
- **Passive Imagination** gazing, evil gazes, dulled vision, bound mind, can't think (mind held by iron band, mental pressure, mental weights, fetters on mind, mental chains, mental yokes and fetters) Passive Judgment can't make a clear judgment on issues, misuses the verse on judge not. Many do not realize they are to judge every prophecy, fruit in our lives and in the lives of others, etc. I once heard a pastor tell his people they should not criticize him even when he is wrong neither should they talk about him. I have seen a strange thing in that church an unusually large number of divorces, illegitimate children, crimes of theft and forced entry and idolatry, etc. People should be taught to properly make Scriptural judgment.

Passive Reason - closed mind, evil positiveness, infallibility

- **Passive Conscience** moral degradation, moral stagnation, retrogression in life and service, false voice of God, false reasoning
- Passive Spirit wrong thoughts, wrong spirit, inactive spirit, faint spirit, bound spirit, filthy spirit, mixed condition, impure spirit, absolutely powerless spirit, bound use of Tongues, no liberty, wrong mental conclusions, mixed feelings about God, soulish spirit, quenching spirit, ignoring spiritual truths, (exhaustion of spirit, body and mind), (strained spirit, mind, body) Passive Body cessation of consciousness, passive sight, passive hearing passive smell, passive taste, passive feeling, dulled consciousness, dead consciousness, unconscious habits, repulsive habits, peculiar habits (hyper-personality conscious), lethargy, heaviness, (stooping of back, shoulders, spine), dullness on eyes, passive eyes
- **Passive Whole Man** dormant affections (dormant faculties of mind and body) dormant bodily needs, severity to body, indulgence of flesh, stoical feelings, sensuous domination, physical domination (physical spiritual experiences); senses feed on thrills, glow, fire, sense realm, walk after flesh, aroused sense life, (acute sensation of body consciousness), dulled sense of God, loss of God's presence, crutches, veiled in ignorance of God, natural idiosyncrasies, in-firmities, over-stressed, nervous mind, timid mind, no gift of speech, no power to think, (incapable for God's service), apathy, (passive state of rest, peace, love, joy, fruit of spirit), passive holiness, misconception of self-effacement, counterfeit suffering, weak-willed, spasmodic spirit, mind and body

General Passivity	Mind Control	Heresies	Despair
Rebellion	Drugs	Envy	Discouragement
Passive Mind	Enmity	Drunkenness	Gloom
Fleshly Mind	Strife	Carousing	Burden
Immorality	Jealousy	 Depression 	Disgust
Impurity	Anger	Despondency	Withdrawal
Indecency	Ill Temper	Defeatism	Daydreaming
Sorcery	Party Spirit	Doubt	Pouting
	Peculiar Opinions	Dejection	Fantasy

Pretension Unenthusiastic Unreality Escape Deceit Importance **Believing Lies** Demonic Manipulation Restless Darkened Mind **Spiritism Spirits Excessive Talking** Pushing to Extremes Uncontrolled Will Attitude of Infallibility Inability to Reason Lazy Unteachableness Spirit of Division Moral Stagnation Stoicism Filthy Minded Conditional Love **Double Minded** Glutton Weak-Willed Unlawful Lack of Concentration Retrogression Listlessness Lethargy Skepticism Indecision

Drugs Dread Compromise Hopelessness Self-seduction Heaviness Fear of Failure Nervousness General Passivity (Cont'd.) Unbelief Tension Mental Illness Madness Senility Schizophrenia Paranoia Carelessness Suspicion False Love Fear of Women Distrust Automatic Failure Confusion Frustration Self-righteousness Arrogance Lying Recriminations Unrepentant Blinded Mind Mind Control Excuses Dissension Not Making Decisions Pride Inability to Listen

Nerve Irritation **Evil Positiveness** Prejudice Mental Stagnation Incoherence Hesitation Tortured Mind Backsliding Unsettled Mind/Emotions Idiosyncrasies Futile Mind **Evil Plotting** Planning Intimidation Doubt Unbelief Indecision Worry Forgetfulness Procrastination Insomnia Roving Morbidity Maniac Apprehension Self-deception **Unfounded Fears** Self-delusion Pride Fear of Men **Occult Spirits**

Spiritism Spirits

Mind Idolatry

Intellectualism

Rationalization

Unholy laughter

Ego

Vanity Hate of Men/Women Hysteria Mockery Haughtiness Unresisting (to evil) Unresponsive (to God) Unproductive behavior **Reprobate Mind Cult Spirits** Hysterical Babbling Unproductive Excessive Weeping Incorrect Judgment Shame/Embarrass ment Mental Lethargy Impatient Restlessness No Power of Choice Marred Judgment Emotionalism Ignorance of God's Word Rage Vain Imaginations

Antagonism to Truth About Evil Spirits Lack of Moral Vision or Judicial Balance Oppression of Self and Others Believing Teachings of Demons Exaggerated View of Self (Good or Bad) Unqualified Obedience to Demons Counterfeiting God, Presence of God, Divine, Human, Angelic and satanic things

PSYCHONEUROSIS (THE NEUROTIC PERSONALITIES)

Anxiety Continuous fear Fear of future trouble Fear of dying Fear of going crazy Fear of serious illness Fear of change Fear of rejection Worry Panic Compulsions Over inhibited Over conscientious Rigid Chronic tension Kleptomania and other manias Stealing/shoplifting neurotic kleptomania repressed fear resentment of rejection criminal Disassociated personalities Split personality Sleep walking Fugue Flight Amnesia Anxiety of conflict Psychosomatic Medicine Psychotherapy Release therapy psychodrama

group therapy interview therapy free word association Traumatic neurosis Trauma Self-gratification spoiled brat unsuccessful adjustments withdrawal flight childish reactions retrogression success - boasting regression failure - denial jealousy Inordinate desire for praise, attention and satisfaction dependence passive True motive denial bed wetting fantasy Thumb sucking primitive aggression tantrums Demonic domination Homesickness Inability to handle Frustration Panic Blind rage hysterical unreasonableness don't care attitude irritable

Traumatic neurosis (cont'd.) Sour grapes Temperamental Detachment Unthinking Unjustified elation Uncaring Unjustified depression Ungrateful Irresponsible Hostility Acting superior Cruelty Paranoia **Suspicious** Compensation Unable to trust Rationalization Delinquency Bullying Rebellious Sadism Homosexuality Repressed emotional excitement Shameful desires wrong motives repressed frustrations Obsessive Irrational idea or desire (homosexuality) Preiudices Indecent or criminal acts Compulsive/obsessive Extremes: Orderly/sloppy Generous/stingy

Courteous/discourteo us Kind/cruel ritualistic Hysteria Hysterical paralysis glove anesthesia stupidity convulsions Neurasthenia Death wish or wish to Stop functioning Continuous fatigue Diseases Colitis Asthma Hives High blood pressure migraine headaches impotence & frigidity Phobias (fears of) Bathoohobia: falling from high places Phobias (fears of) (cont'd.) Claustrophobia: tight places Necrophobia: fear of the dead Agoraphobia: fear of open space Psychopathic personality Emotional disequilibrium gross errors in judgment egocentric disdain

for love scoffers at bible and god sneers No human affection Unheeding No understanding Extreme selfishness Paranoid Strutters No fair plan Sniveling Quaking Cringing Emotionally unstable personality Passiveaggressive type Passive with Aggressiveness Pouting Stubbornness Procrastination Inefficiency Obstructionism Chronic objector Compulsive personality Over inhibited Overcompensates Chronic, excessive, Obsessive concerns Work-a-holic Rigid Tense Neurotic illness regression from maturity Passive type Photophobia: fear of bright light Snakes, people and many others

PSYCHONEUROTIC (THE DELINQUENT PERSONALITIES)

Psychopathic personality Emotional disequilibrium Gross errors in judgment Egocentric Disdain for love Scoffers at bible and god Sneers No human affection Unheeding No understanding Extreme selfishness Paranoid Strutters No fair plan Sniveling Quaking Cringing Emotionally unstable Personality Passiveaggressive type Passive with Aggressiveness Pouting

Stubbornness Procrastination Inefficiency Obstructionism Chronic objector Compulsive personality Over inhibited Overcompensates Chronic, excessive. Obsessive concerns Work-a-holic Rigid Tense Neurotic illness Regression from maturity Passive type Helplessness Indecisiveness Clinging vine Aggressive type Frustrated Irritable Temper tantrums Destructive Trying to dominate Hidden deep

Dependency Homosexuality Male Cosmeticized Effeminate Sissified Female • lesbian Gruff Swaggering Aggressive Masculine General Emotionally unstable Sexually confused Alcoholism Ahab and jezebel home Overextending to mother Or father Unusual hate for mother Or father Everlasting of genital Stimuli Fear of father or mother Jealousy of sibling

Homosexual seduction Masturbation Abnormal erotic interest Sexual deviation Alcoholism, drugs, Crime, rebellion Voyeurism Peeping toms Girlie shows Movies Fetishism Inanimate sex object Body erotic stimulation Flagellation Whipping (sadism) Desire to inflict pain Masochism • desire to Receive pain Pederasty Anal sex Buggery Sodomy **Bestiality**

Fellatio and Cunnlingus Oral Sex Exposure Senile Dirty Old Man Antisocial Reaction (Sociopathic) Chronic Antisocial Can't Learn From Experience or Punishment Stoic Irresponsible Disloyal Poor Judgement Callous Rationalization Hedonistic Radical Emotional Immaturity Shirks Duties Dyssocial Reaction (Sociopathy) Disregard for Social Codes Catastrophic Childhood Frustrations **Repeated Conflict** Juvenile Delinquency Unstable Demon Sympathetic to Crime Hostile to Authoritv Low Moral Standards Criminal Mind Pains of Broken Family

Anti-Religion PSYCHO PSY-CHOSIS (THE PATHO-LOGIC PERSONALI-TIES) The Organic Psychosis (Physical) Kinds and Causes: Inborn Brain Defects **Brain Infections** Intoxication Head Injuries Circulation Disorders Seizures **Bodily Changes of** Growth & Aging Tumors or Cancers Unknown Physical Causes General Paresis-Syphilitic Damage Psychological Discord Anxiety - Escape Behavior **Psychic Shocks** Death Deceived Divorce Hate Psychological Discord (Cont'd.) Rejection Terror Fears of Catastrophe

Depressed Nervous System The Organic Psychosis (Physical) Alcoholic Reactions Regression Pathological Intoxication Acute Alcoholic Hallucinations **Delirium Tremors** Korsakoffs Syndrome Blackouts Senile Dementia **Symptoms** Release Interference Amnesia Dementia Aphasia Compensation: Avoids Replaces Repeats Psychotic Depression In Emotions, Physical, Intellectual Hopeless Discouragement (Devil's D's) Worthless Fantasy Introvert Stupor Involutional Melancholia Regret of Past Fear of Future Fear of Change Death Wish Fear of Death

Suicide Despair Sexual Impotence Despondent Manic-Depressive Maniacal Wild Elation Depression Distorted Perverted Values Change of Life Stress Male/Female Guilt Uselessness Irritable Restless Change of Life Headaches **Heart Palpitations** Dizziness Sleepiness Forgetfulness Depression **Psychotic Mania** Excessive Outgoingness Talking Laughing Shouting Artificial Jov Flitting Mind Spend Thrift Hypomaniac Flouting Restraints Sexual Problems Accompanying **Psychotic Mania** Promiscuous Arrogant Bold Exhibitionistic Denial Schizophrenia **Double Minded**

Split Mind Fantasy Indifference Inconsistency Unreality Emotional Disorders Excitement Exaggeration Hallucination Dementia Praecox Apathetic Vain Imaginations **Deny Reality** False Perceptions Delusion False Beliefs Withdrawal Detachment No Communication Simple Schizophrenia Vagabonds Prostitutes Delinquents Wanderers Unsettled Undependable Stealing Indifferent Filthy Dangerous Disgrace Drunks Acute Schizophrenia Panic Agitated Nervous Breakdown

Catatonic Schizophrenia Indifference Hostile Childish Negativism Temper Tantrums Sheer Aggressive Energy Killing Superhuman Demonic Strength Regression Hebephrenic Schizophrenia Crazy Fool Silliness Disassociated Emotions **Peculiar Delusion** & Hallucinations Grimaces Gestures Fantasy Insane Symbolism Paranoid Schizophrenia Disordered Emotion Delusion of Persecution Delusion of Grandeur Anxiety Guilt Deep Fear Frustration Fear of Homosexuality

Fears of Failure Fear of Competition Persuasive Delusional System Tranquilizing Drugs Chlordiazepoxide/ Librium Chlorpromazine/ Thorazine Diazepam - Valium Meprobamate -Miltown & Equanil Promazine - Saparine Reserpine - Serpasil Street Drugs/Rock Music Side Effects of Drugs Jaundice Nausea Rashes Severe Mental Depression Suicidal Tendencies REBELLION Rebellion Greed Disobedience Lying Self-will Hate Stubbornness Evil Plotting and Planning

Antisubmissiveness Evil Control of Others Destruction Unrighteous Judgement Subversion **Rock Music** Resistance Christian Rock Interference Deceit Friction Trickery Repulse Betrayal Defiance Pride Aggressiveness False Love Scorn. Arrogance Sorcery Conniving Seduction Confusion Sullen Masculine Women Taking Tranquilizers Effeminate Men **Taking Drugs** Insecurity Restless Frustration Witchcraft Depression Unholv Sex Doubt

RELIGIOUS ERROR (SPIRITS OF RELIGIOUS ERROR)

General - Lodges, societies and social agencies using the Bible and God as a basis but omitting the Blood Atonement of Jesus Christ.

Cults that deny the Blood of Christ or philosophy that denies the divinity of Christ.

Books, literature, music, etc. dealing with false religions.

Demons from all false doctrines studied, believed and taught; all unrighteous practices engaged in. A great many come in through family background, curses and inheritance. There must be legal grounds or holds to open a personal attack.

Practices and Teaching	S		
Jehovah's Wit-	Unification	Christodelphian-	Seventh-Day Ad-
nesses	Forever Family	ism	ventism
Christian Science	The Mission	Inner Peace	Mary Baker Eddy
Rosicrucianism	The Process	Movement	Spiritual Frontiers
Theosophy	Scientology	Edgar Cayce	Fellowship
Urantia	Love Israel	Jean Dixon	Association for
Subud	The Assembly	Arthur Ford	Research and
Latihan	The Body	Ruth Montgomery	Enlightenment
Unity	The Farm	Eckankar	Religious Re-
Mormonism	The Way	Herbert Arm-	search Founda-
Bahaism	Spiritualism	strong	tion of Amer-
Unitarianism	Swedenborgian-	Eastern Star	ica
Children of God	ism	Freemasonry	
Practices and Teaching		TT (1 X 7	
Ritualism Fear of	Idol Worship	Hatha Yoga	Confession to
God	Incense	Rage	Priest
Formalism Fear of	Yoga (Lotus)	Tae Kinon Do	Confirmation
Hell	Fear of Lost Sal-	Ike to	Fear of Priest
Legalism Religi-	vation	Suicide	Holy Eucharist
osity	Cult Book Read-	Jiap	Lourdes
Doctrinal Obses-	ing	Destruction (Os-	Fatima
sion Reincar-	Bloodline - Cult	modeus)	Incense
nation	lies	False Religions	Mariolatry
Seduction De-	Transcendental	Buddhism	Fear of Excom-
monic Healing	Meditation	Taoism	munication
Groups	Consecration	Hinduism	Obedience to
Doctrinal Error	Deception	Islam	Priest
Astral Projec-	Baptismal Regen-	Shintoism	One Holy Priest-
tion	eration	Confucianism	hood
Practices &	Martial Arts	Catholic Spirits	One True Church
Teachings	Karate	Candles	One Only Church
(Cont'd.)	Ushito	Catholic Hymns	Prayers to Saints
Chanting	Lust (Asmodeus)	Saints (by name)	Pope
Charismatic	Kung Fu	Dedication to	Queen of Heaven
Witches	Ki-Ya	Saints	Queen of Peace
Soul Travel	Fighting	Confessional	Queen of Right-
Karma	Judo		eousness

300 Good Works **Metaphysics** Jesus Only Predestination Holy Ghost Fear **Psychocybernetics** Jerking Six-Six-Six Varied Studies in Cults Clearing House -Cult Control **Evolution Study**ing and Teaching Eastern Religion Interest and Study "Enter The Dragon" Acupuncture "Way of The Dragon" Masochism Remedial Message "Game of Death" Meditation

Celebrating Mass

Religious Mind Control Mediatrix of all Graces False Salvation Doctrine False Laying on of Hands Ordination to Priesthood False Religious Authority Spirit o(Death Stoicism

Herbal Remedies Murder Hypnosis Kung Fu-Wu-Su Hate False Honor Kat a Violence Hare Krishna Zen Buddhism Ching Indian Fakir Krishna Consciousness Catholicism Spirits of Babylon Angel Worship Idolatry Medals Miraculous Medal Scapulars Feast Days Assumption Easter Bunny Santa Claus Hail Mary Sign of the Cross Way of the Cross Masochism Infant' Baptism

Penance First Communion Extreme Unction Mariology-Study Rosary-Buddhism Holy Water Missals Catechisms Catholic (Cont'd.) Titles of Mary Mother of God Great Harlot Nimrod Tammuz Knights of Columbus Holy Mother Church Statues (by name) Sacred Heart Lady of Mt. Carmel Worship of Host Immaculate Conception Anti-Christ Christmas Infant of Prague Our Lady of Guadelupe

Glory be Ejaculations Catholic Matrimony Semiramis Veneration of Crucifix Spirit o(Death Stoicism Sadism Eucharistic Devotion **False Confession** False Orders False Devotions **Religious Decep**tion False Confirmation False Vows **False Obedience** Virgins (by name) **False Ordination False Tongues False Visions False Dreams** False Prophecy **False Preaching** False Celibacy

Sadism Eucharistic Devotion False Confession False Orders False Devotions Religious Deception False Confirmation False Vows False Obedience Virgins (by name) False Ordination False Tongues False Visions False Dreams False Prophecy False Preaching False Celibacy Magic of Seven Sacraments Spirit of Man in Black Suit Obedience to the Priesthood Blind Obedience to Superiors

Prayers and Novenas to Saints Doctrine of Transubstantiation Plenary and Partial Indulgences Armenianism -Loss of Salvation Consecration to Mary as a Slave Necromancy-Praying to the Dead Going to and Hearing Confessions Consecrating and Adoring the Host

Works Religion

Good Works Unbelief Doubt Another Jesus False Tongues False Baptism False Gifts Anti-Christ with Power and Strength Veneration of Pope, Bishops, Priests Kissing, Bowing and Incensing Relics

False Divine Healing False Dreams False Prophecy False Prophets False Hope False Joy False Testimony Praying, False Baptism in Holy Spirit Receiving and Administering Sacraments Veneration of Relics, Tabernacles, Chalice

False Visions False Holiness Hypocrisy Holy Ground Holy Roller Poison Drinking Snake Handling False Anointings of Baptism and Confirmation Making Vows of Obedience, Chastity and Poverty and Breaking Them

Passing Through The Fire Woman Preacher False Purity False Virginity Snake Venom Shaking - Inside and Outside

SATAN, FALLEN ANGELS AND DEMONS (LEARN ABOUT REAL ENEMY- SATAN AND FOLLOWERS)

Gehenna

Fallen Angel Authorities Whoredoms Charmer Ruler of World **Evil Practices** Death Thief Evil Supernaturalism Devils Wickedness Hindrance Divination Lucifer Betraving Enchantment King of Babylon Denving Familiar King of Tyre Vipers Giants Chief Kings

Leviathan **Chief Princes** Tarsus Magic Kings Children of Devil Necromancy Princes Fever Satan Kingdoms Dumbness Serpent Principalities Blindness Evil Unclean Spirits Dominions Infirmities Witch Powers **False Prophets** Wizard

Prince of Southern Curses Thorn in the Flesh Anakim Hymenaeus Avim • Generals Alexander Emim Legions Self Control Horim Rulers Corruption Nephilim Captains Ananias & Sapphira Rephaim **Chief Captains** Covetousness Zamzummim **Chief Rulers** Elymas

Antichrist Centurion Jezebel Strongman False Apostles Belial Imps False Gospel Darkness Pain Nicolaitans Demons Affliction Pergamos Lion Interference Conformance Sorcery Deceiving Oppression Tempter Nimrod Python Accusation

Tower of Babel Unbelief	Mediums Slumber	Appolyon Destroyer	Worship of Stars Bondage
Adversary	Lies	Prince of Devils	Slavery
Sodomy	She dim	World Rulers	Licentiousness
Fear of Death	Strange Gods	Teachings	Lasciviousness
Great Red Dragon	Murder	Rebellion	Orgies
Idolatry	Seirim	Hatred	Fury
Spirit of Bondage	Soul Power	Anger	Violence
Enemy	Slander	Ugliness	Resentment
Balaam	Jealousy	Dread	Wicked Spirits in
Spirit of World	Rage	Rage	High
God of Age	Mockery	False Religion	Places
Disobedience	Beast	Rejection	Host of Hell
Fear and Coward-	Babylon	Curses	Illegitimate Birth
ice	Carnality	Depravity	
Liar	Son of Morning	Incest	

SCHIZOPHRENIA AND PARANOIA

- Rejection (Beginning of Schizophrenia) Pre-natal rejection, Rejection in the womb, Rejection after birth, Self-rejection, Fear of rejection, Inability to give or receive love, Starved for love Rebellion (Rejection and Rebellion are the core, the two main personalities.) Self-Will, Selfishness, Stubbornness, Disobedience, Anti-Submissiveness, Aggression, Unteachable
- Root of Bitterness (Three main areas are Rejection, Rebellion and Bitterness) Resentment, Bitterness, Unforgiveness, Hatred, Violence, Temper, Anger, Retaliation, Murder, Memory Recall Double Mindedness (Schizophrenia or Double Mindedness are Controls) Hesitating, Dubious, Irresolute, Unstable, Unreliable, Uncertain Paranoia (Strong area - Paranoid Schizophrenic -rooted in fear) Jealousy, Envy, Suspicion, Distrust, Persecution, Fears, Confrontation, Many Voices, Insensitive, Confrontation with honesty at all costs, Delusions, False Grandeur, Omnipotence, False Beliefs
- Mental Illness (Schizophrenia Paranoia Mental Illness) Insanity, Madness, Mania, Retardation, Senility, Hallucinations
- Self (The schizophrenic is constantly looking at self.) Self Pity: Fear of Judgement, Insecurity, Inferiority Self Accusation: Compulsive Confession, Self-Hatred, Self-Unforgiveness, Self-Condemnation, Attention Seeking Self-Will: Selfishness, Stubbornness Self-Deception: Self-Delusion, Self-Seduction, Pride, Unteachableness Self-Awareness: Timidity, Shyness, Loneliness, Sensitiveness
- Lust (Weds a person to the world for love). Fantasy Lust, Harlotry, Perverseness, Sexual Impurity, False Compassion, False Love Depression (The Devil's D's: Rejection to Depression to Suicide.)

Despondency, Despair, Discouragement,

- Defeatism, Dejected, Helplessness, Hopelessness, Suicide, Death, Insomnia, Morbidity, False spirits Fears (Paranoia - Phobias - Fears) People, Mental Insanity, Germs, Hysteria, Phobias Control (Demonic control of others: parents, mates, pastors, etc.)
- Domination, Witchcraft, Possessiveness, Conniving, Manipulation

Indecision (Double Mindedness - Indecision) Procrastination, Compromise, Confusion, Forgetfulness, Indifference, Apathy

Unfairness (No one treats them fairly) Withdrawal, Fantasy, Daydreaming, Unreality, Vivid Imagination, Pouting, Pretension Talkativeness (Can not let others talk) Nervousness, Tension Accusation Towards Others (Keeps one from looking at self.)

Projection, Criticism, Faultfinding, Judgementalism False Compassion (False concern for others - false spiritual gifts.) False Responsibility, False Burden, False Love, Inordinate Affection for Animals Guilt (Demonic prolonged false emotions). Condemnation, Unworthiness, Shame, Embarrassment

Perfection (An effort to earn respect and acceptance of others).

Pride, Intolerance, Irritability, Vanity, Frustration,

Anger, Ego, Impatience, Criticism

Soul Ties, Demonic Subjection (Control Spirits -

Break these with those who have treated you.)

Psychiatrist, Psychotherapist, Psychologist,

Neurologist, Social Worker, Group Therapist, Mental

Institutions

Phobias (There are 210 recognized phobias by psychiatrists.)

Persistent Abnormal Fear, Aversions to Subjects, Anxiety, Morbid Fears

Tranquilizing Drugs (Controls the soul - mind, will and emotions).

Ataraxics, Indian Snake Root, Rauwolfia Serpentina, Chlorpromazine, Reserpine, Meprobamate, Barbiturates, Sedatives, Peptic Ulcers, Ulcerative Colitis Demonic Techniques Lobotomy, Shock Therapy, Drug Therapy, Tranquilizing Drugs, Narcosis, Diets, Fever Therapy, Release Therapy, Psychodrama, Group Therapy, Interview Therapy, Free Word Association

SCHIZOPHRENIA AND RELATED DISEASES

(HOW TO IDENTIFY GODLY AND UNGODLY SPIRITS)

Schizophrenia and Related Diseases	Mania (Cont'd.) Excessive Excitement Exalted
Psychosis (Cont'd.)	Feelings Delusions of Grandeur Elevated
Mental Disorder	Mood Overactivity Idea Overproduction
Personality/Disintegration	Obsessive Preoccupation Maniac
Unreality	Schizophrenia/ Hebephrenic
Delusions	Silliness
Hallucinations	Speech Problems
False Concepts	Hysteria
Anti-Social	Delusions
Peculiarity	Hallucinations
Abnormality	Childishness
Inefficiency	Schizophrenia/General
Schizophrenia/Paranoid	Enzyme Unbalance Always Guarded Split
Persecution Delusions	Mind
Schizophrenia/Catatonic	Unreality Regressiveness Bizarre Behavior
Stereotyped Excitement Stupor	Manic-Depressive Psychosis
Mania	Alternate Depression/ Mania
Puerperal Religious Transitory Unproductive	Extreme Depression Melancholia
	Manic-Depressive Psychosis
	Unworthiness Exalted Feelings Unstable

Idea Overproduction Obsessive Preoccupation	Divers Diseases
Maniac	Uncleanness
Schizophrenia/Schizoid	Strong Delusions
Seclusiveness Reduced Initiative Morbid In-	Torments
trospection Queer Behavior	Vile Affections
Neurosis	Seducing Spirits
Accident	Possessed
Anxiety	Burning
Association	Lust
Compensation	Doctrines Of Devils
Compulsion	Neurosis
Craft	

SCHIZOPHRENIA AND RELATED DISEASES

(HOW TO IDENTIFY GODLY AND UNGODLY SPIRITS)

IOW TO IDENTIFIT OODET AND UNGODET
Schizophrenia and Related Diseases
Psychosis
Mental Disorder
Personality/Disintegration
Unreality
Delusions
Hallucinations
False Concepts
Anti-Social
Peculiarity
Abnormality
Inefficiency
Schizophrenia/Paranoid
Persecution Delusions
Schizophrenia/Catatonic
Stereotyped Excitement Stupor
Mania
Puerperal Religious Transitory Unproduc-
tive
Mania Excessive Excitement Exalted Feel-
ings Delusions of Grandeur Elevated F
Mood Overactivity Idea Overproduction 0
Obsessive Preoccupation Maniac O
Schizophrenia/ Hebephrenic F
Silliness
Speech Problems 7
Hysteria V
Delusions
Hallucinations F
Childishness H

Schizophrenia/General

Enzyme Unbalance Always Guarded Split Mind Unreality Regressiveness Bizarre Behavior Manic-Depressive Psychosis Alternate Depression/ Mania Extreme Depression Melancholia Manic-Depressive Psychosis Unworthiness Exalted Feelings Unstable Idea Overproduction Obsessive Preoccupation Maniac Schizophrenia/Schizoid Seclusiveness Reduced Initiative Morbid Introspection Queer Behavior Neurosis Accident Anxiety Association Compensation Compulsion Craft Expectation Fatigue Obsessional Occupational Pension Sexual Traumatic War Simple Nervousness Phobic Hysteria Hypochrondriac

Depression Unresolved Conflict Maladjustment Nervous Disorder Schizophrenia/Dementia Praecox Precocious Dementia Dementia Alcoholic Apoplectic Epileptic Organic Paralytic Paranoids Postfebrile Prisincle Primary Secondary Senile

Syphilitic Tabetic Terminal Toxic Paranoia (Fear) **Delusions of Persecution** Sensitiveness **Suspiciousness** Jealousy Brooding Self -Consciousness Logical Delusions Megalomania **Rare Hallucinations** Inability to Concede Resentful Bitterness Toxic Alcoholism

SCRIPTURE (DELIVERANCE SCRIPTURE)

Divers diseases Uncleanness Strong delusions Torments Vile affections Seducing spirits Possessed **Burning** lust Doctrines of devils Lunatic Reprobate mind Seared conscience Palsy Unrighteousness Forbidding marriage Unforgiveness Maliciousness Abstaining from meats Sickness Envy Root of bitterness Infirmities Debate

Profanity Fear Deceit Double mindedness Fierceness Malignity Bitter envying Little faith Backbiters Sensuality Unclean spirits Hate of god Devilish wisdom Strong delusion Despiteful Confusion Leprosy Boasting Evil works Blindness Inventor of evil Spiritual blindness Dumbness Covenant breaker Demonic miracles

Blasphemy No affection Graven images Evil thoughts Implacable Familiar spirits Murder Unmerciful Wizardry Adultery Malice Child sacrifice Fornication Evil imaginations Divination Thief High things Observer of times False witness False apostles Enchanting Vexing Self exaltations Charming Unbelief

Messenger of satan Necromancy Legion Idolatry Rebellion Crying Witchcraft Stubbornness Covetousness Hatred Provocation Wickedness Variance Baseness Sorcery Emulations Vileness Lasciviousness Wrath Heavy burdens Evil eye Strife Oppression Pride Sedition

Demonic yokes Foolishness Hearsay Whisperers Faithlessness Principalities and powers Vanity Foul spirit Thrones and dominions Unthankfulness Dumb and deaf spirit Lust of flesh Deceivableness Fever Lust of eyes Lying wonders Nudeness Pride of life Curious arts Serpents and scorpions Anger

SELF (HOW TO BE MISERABLE)

Self-abasing Self-abhorring Self-abnegation Self-absorbed Self-absorption Self-abuse Self-accusation Self-admiring Self-affrighted Selfaggrandizement Self-annihilation Self-applause Self-appointed Self-approbation Self-assumed Self-awareness Self-banished Self-baptizer Self-begotten Self-beguiled Self-betrayal Self-blinded Self-centered Self-collected Self-conceited Self-concern Selfcondemnation Self-condemning Self-conflict Self-conscious Self-consuming Self-contained Self-contempt Self-contradiction Self-criticism Self-crucifixion Self-deceiving Self-deception Self-degradation Self-deluded Self-delusion Self-depraved Self-depreciation Self-deserving Self-despair Self-despraise Self-destroying Self-destruction Self-devouring Self-diffidence Self-diffusive Selfdisparagement Self-display Self-distrust Self-ease Self-esteem

Vanity puffed up Filthy communication Rulers of darkness Evil spirits Hypocrisy Spiritual wickedness Worshiping angels Lusts Fiery darts Bewitchment

Self-evolution Self-exaggeration Self-exalting Self-exposure Self-exulting Self-flattering Self-forgetfulness Self-harming Self-hatred Self-hood Self-idolized Self-ignorance Self-immolating Self-importance Self-indignation Self-indulging Self-infliction Self-interest Self-ishness Self-killed Self-lauding Self-loathing Self-loving Self-made Self-neglecting Self-oblivion Self-opinionated Self-partiality Self-pity Self-pleasing

Lying Terror Voluntary humility Disobedience Inordinate affections Lameness Evil concupiscence Drunkenness Reveling

Self-pollution SelfpREFER-ENCES Self-pride Self-repression Self-reproving Self-repulsive Self-restriction Self-reverence Self-righteous Self-ruined Self-scorn Self-seduction Self-seeking Self-starved Self-subjugation Self-subversive Self-suppression Self-suspended Self-suspicious Self-tormenting Self-torture Self-torturing Selfunforgiveness Self-willed Self-worshiper Self-wrong

SEXUAL SIN AND DISEASES

(SEXUAL DISEASES, IMPURITIES AND DEMONS)

Sins Fornication (Idolatrous Sex Orgies) Adulterv Masculine Women Effeminate Men Abusers of themselves with mankind (Arsenokoites or Sodomite. Oral or Anal Copulation) Sensual (Carnal, Voluptuous, Senses, Appetites) Evil Concupiscence Inordinate Affections (Excessive) Filthy Communication (Ob-

scenity, Blasphemy, Profanity) Masturbation Homosexuality and Catamite Lesbianism Exposure Ego Uncleanness Vanity Perversion Pride Lust and Passions Fantasy Lust Fantasies Flirting Obscene Music, Poetry, Pornography Child Pornography X-Rated Movies Diseases Venereal Diseases Insanity

Gonorrhea **Staggering Gait** Chancroid (Soft) Heart Disease Granuloma Inguinal Blindness Spirochetal Infections Ulcerative Lesions **Syphilis** Yaws Congenital Syphilis Injuries Mumps Accidents Literature and Art Masochism Nymphomania Occult Sex Succubi Immorality Incubus Incest Prostitution

Harlotry, Rape, Frigidity Voveurism Bad Dreams **Bestiality** Heterosexuality Deviation Playboy Channel **Porno Pictures** Bejel Gonorrheal Arthritis Pinta Venereal Lympogranuloma **Relapsing Fever** AIDS Tropical Ulcer Meningitis **Rat-Bite Fever** Endocarditis Weil's Disease Sterility Herpes I and II Diseases Structural Damage

TOYS AND GAMES (CHILDREN'S DELIVERANCE)

Pegasus	Gremlins	Black Star
Unicorns	Crossbows &	Blackstone
Care Bears	Catapults	Masters of the
Herself the Elf	Sword & Sorcery	Universe
Magic Kit	Battle	Transformer
Cabbage Patch	Gear	Snake Mountain
Dolls	G.I. Joe	Robo Force
Cabbage Patch	Starriors	Go Bots
Playmates	Secret Wars	
Punk Rock Doll	Other World	
	Unicorns Care Bears Herself the Elf Magic Kit Cabbage Patch Dolls Cabbage Patch Playmates	UnicornsCrossbows &Care BearsCatapultsCare BearsCatapultsHerself the ElfSword & SorceryMagic KitBattleCabbage PatchGearDollsG.I. JoeCabbage PatchStarriorsPlaymatesSecret Wars

Board Games • Thuodar-Barbariao, Pandemonium, Magic 8 Ball, Monster Mansion, Krull (occult with sorcerer), Herself the Elf, Gremlins, Dragon Master, Mythical Cards, Dungeon, Ouija, Dark Towers, Magical Crystals, Dragoo Lords, Towers of Night, Forest of Doom, Forest of Shadarr, Star Wars and Yoda, Fantasy Card Game, Hell Pits of Night-Fang, Rune Quest, Chivalry, Sorcery and Arduin-Grimoire.

UNGODLY SPIRITS

(HOW TO IDENTIFY GODLY AND UNGODLY SPIRITS)

Spirit of infirmity or weakness Spirit of Antichrist Spirit of fear Deaf spirit Perverse spirit Dumb spirit Sorrowful spirit Blind spirit

Spirit of slumber Foul spirit Spirit of whoredoms Unclean spirit Destroying spirit Spirit of the World Evil spirit Spirit of divination

Another spirit Spirit of bondage Hasty of spirit Spirit of error Haughty spirit Spirit of false doctrines Perverse spirit Familiar Spirit Spirit of jealousy Seducing spirits

Rukmini Perverted Love Dejected

Sad spirit Jealous spirit Wounded spirit Lying spirit Proud in spirit Spirit of unclean devil Spirit of burning Spirit of heaviness Spirit of Egypt

Third Eye Semiramis Nymphs Rati Jezebel Bestiality Voluptuousness Depression Abortion Fantasy Sex **Pierced Heart** Broken Heartedness **Pierced Five** Senses Anti-Christ Zodiac Signs Cain's Religion **Patron Saints** Seduction

VALENTINE'S DAY

Rejection Bitterness Rebellion Idol Worship Hermes Kama Witchcraft Adultery Brahma Pan **Bastards** Dharma Cupid Nakedness **Bee-Strung Bow** Lupercus **Pining Away** Let Yourself Go Goats Despondency

Dog Cheating Zeus Sadism Rainbow Fear Romulus Desire Imp Remus Seduction Evil Dreams Murder Kamadeva Ahab Mockery Krishna Druids Human Sacrifice

Dryads

Hearts Erotic Love Pradyumma Despair **Five Arrows** Lying Lust Olympic Dissatisfied Fantasy Lust Dionipus Killing Longing Panic Callisto Siva Tammuz

WHEN DEMONIZATION OF CHRISTIANS IS DENIED

(CAN A CHRISTIAN HAVE A DEMON?)			
Unclean spirit	Fever	Unforgiveness	Messenger of Satan
Devils	Infirmity	Another Jesus	Disobedience
Divers Diseases	Lies	Another Spirit	Anger
Leprosy	Falsities	Another Gospel	Lusts of the Flesh
Satan	Sorcery	Beguiling	Blasphemy
Dumb	Bewitchment	Subtlety	Seducing Spirits
Foul spirit	Fornication	Corruption	Desires of the Flesh
Deaf	Destruction	Weakness	& Mind

Hypocrisy	Root of Bitterness	Suicide	Teachers
Profanity	Cults	Occultism	Magic
Doctrines of Devils	Despair	Fear	Ignorance
Striving	Angels of Light	Resentment	Death
Proudness	Error	Doubt	Hate
Seared Conscience	Hopelessness	Depression	
Afflictions	Spiritual Pride	Sickness	
Foolishness	Deceiving	False Doctrine &	

WITCHCRAFT (WINNING OVER WITCHCRAFT)

Occult Practices Fortune Telling Ouija Board Cards Good Luck Charms Seances Edgar Cayce Jeanne Dixon Mind Control Witchcraft Four Leaf Clover Rabbit Foot Wishbone ESP Transcendental Meditation Yoga Hypnosis Incense Pendulum Palm Reading Automatic Handwriting **Pierced Ears** Horoscopes Signs of the Zodiac Voodoo Magic Levitation Water Witching Tea Leaf Reading Secret Organizations and Lodges Eight Ball

Smoking Chewing Tobacco **Dipping Snuff** Drinking Alcoholic Beverages Kabala Handwriting Analysis Strychnine Arsenic Gene/ Chromosome Damage Crystal Ball Tarot Cards **Psychic Readings** Sorcery Drug/Pharmakia LSD Rubik's Cube Witchcraft (Cont'd.) Clairvoyance Telepathy Parapsychology Enchantments Potions Ankh Peace Sign Star of David Five Pointed Star Artifacts Tattoos Owls and Frogs Snakes Self-Realization

Deja-Vu Martial Arts Zen Buddhism Hinduism Taoism Yin and Yang Confucianism Acupuncture Hare Krishna Bingo Gambling Playing Cards Gambling Reincarnation Arthur Ford Ruth Montgomery Divining Psychocybernetics Mind Over Matter UFO Trances Dolls Psychometry Psychic Predictions Clairaudience Second Sight Auras Metaphysics Mental Science Visions Superstition Fetishes Runes Amulets Talismans Satanism Indian Witchcraft

Worship **Spiritual Healing** Italian Horn Indian Religions War Paint Maize Fertility Christian Science Healing Omens Karma Mediums Hex Signs "Jesus" Rock & Roll Poltergeists Irish Gypsy Science Witchcraft Rappings Conjuration Haunted Houses Fantasy ΤV Shows like "Merlin" "Walt Disney" "Rosemary's Baby" Fiction Tolkien Incantation Pornography Blood Transfusions Seduction

Sun or Moon

Rebellion	Imaginations	Counterfeit	Orneriness
Country Music	High Things	Disco Lights	Divorce
White/Black	Disobedience	Nimrod	Halloween
Magic	Occult	Scouting	Ghosts
White/Black	Soul Ties	Ritualism	Demon Associa-
Witchcraft	Valium	Symbolism	tion
Astrology	Serex	Demonology	Jack-0-Lanterns
Signs of Zodiac	Phenobarbital	Death and Hell	Goblins
Self-Help Pro-	Anesthesias	Love Potions	Barrenness
grams	Fantasy	Lotus	Sterility
Self-Hypnosis	Lust	Oral Sex	Diseases
Principalities	Bankruptcy	Confusion	Mind Occult
Powers	Poorness	Forgetfulness	Foul and Evil
Authorities	Lack	Poverty	Spirits
Kingdoms	Loss	Failure	Idolatry
Rulers	Need	Serpents	
Strongmen	Greed	Scorpions	
Strongholds	Covetousness	Dirtiness	

EDUCATION - parapsychology, Dungeons and Dragons, folklore, mythology ENTERTAINMENT- rock music.

GOVERNMENT AGENCIES - (both state and federal) Federal Reserve System.

LODGES - origins in witchcraft - Masons, DeMolay, Eastern Star, Jobs Daughters.

RELIGIONS - Protestant, Catholic, Cults (World Council of Churches).

RECREATIONS- games with demonic influence.

TRAVEL - soul travel, astral projection.

HOME LIFE- mind control, Jezebel and Ahab.

BUSINESS witchcraft promises promotions, forecasts based on astrology readings, sales power (soul power) pyramid power.

LAW ENFORCEMENT - using psychics, and hypnosis.

PSYCHIATRY - almost 100% using some form of witchcraft.

MEDICINE- Hippocratic oath, sorcery, tranquilizers, pain pills.

OTHER DEMONS

Pornography	Poorness	Blood Transfu-	Lack
Rebellion	Need	sions	Greed
White/Black	Counterfeit	Country Music	Disco Lights
Witchcraft	Scouting	Astrology	Ritualism
Self-Help Pro-	Demonology	Self-Hypnosis	Death and Hell
grams	Lotus	Authorities	Oral Sex
Powers	Forgetfulness	Strongmen	Poverty
Rulers	Serpents	High Things	Scorpions
Imaginations	Orneriness	Soul Ties	Divorce
Occult	Ghosts	Phenobarbital	Goblins
Serex	Barrenness	Lust	Sterility
Fantasy	Mind Occult	306	

Foul and Evil **Spirits** Seduction White/Black Magic Signs of Zodiac Principalities Kingdoms Strongholds Disobedience Valium Anesthesias Bankruptcy Loss Covetousness Nimrod **Symbolism** Love Potions Confusion Failure Dirtiness

Halloween Diseases Rejection Bitterness Rebellion Passion **Bad Temper** Quarreling Contention Malice Baseness Rage Ahab Wildness Selfishness Desertion **Double Minded** Indignation Incest Witchcraft Anger

Brawling Slander Spite Fury Confusion Jezebel Abortion Troublemakers Abandonment Occult Ill will Adultery Resentment Animosity Clamor Nakedness Hate Fantasy Greed Homosexuality Covetousness

Retaliation Divorce Bastard Undisciplined Ungrateful Flirtatious Frustration **Evil Speaking** Haughtiness Evil Words Alluring eyes and walk Demon and satanic worship Abuse Gossipers Cheating Abusive or Blasphemous Language

Wearing of Amulets, Charms and Fetishes Foul or Polluting Language Unwholesome or Worthless Talk Outstretched Necks and Nosiness Uncontrolled Emotions and Deifying Self

WOMEN'S WEAKNESSES

(From Eve To Jezebel • Women's Weaknesses)			
Insecurity	Abortion	Contentious	Bitterness
Curiosity	Clamor	Desertion	Malice
Jezebel	Covetousness	Uncleanliness	Indignation
Theft	Evil Speaking	Lewdness	Spite .
Immodesty	Alluring Walk	Inadequacy	Ill Will
Despising.	Deifying Self.	Jealousy	Nakedness
Calloused	Wearing Charms	Lying	Undisciplined
Flattery	Female Problems	Greed	Haughtiness
Loudness	Drunkenness	Enticing	Foul Language
Grudges	Infirmity	Exposure	Abusive Lan-
Fornication	Ingratitude	Murder	guage
Gossiping	Weaknesses	Cunning	Wearing Fetishes
Wily	(Cont'd.)	Stubbornness	Phobias
Fear	Psychoneurotic	Retaliation	Grief
Quarreling	False Tongues	Anti-submissive	Weakness
Wildness	False Interpreta-	Nosiness	Passivity
Slander	tion	Scheming	Rebellion

False Prophesy Insolent Vile Lasciviousness Perversion Exaggeration Envy Deceiving Harlotry Provocation Conniving Foolish Harlot's Attire Wandering Sensuous Idleness **Spiritual Pride** 307 Control Passion

Baseness Anger Fury Resentment Hate Flirtatious Evil Words Worthless Talk Wearing Amulets Abused Children Gluttony Vengeance Sickness Psychoneurosis Schizophrenia False Discernment Treacherous Contention Strange Women Pornography

Unbelief Overprotection Competition Inferiority Pride Witchcraft Pride Whoredom Subtlety Impudent Adultery Laziness Masculinized Manipulation Temper Rage Brawling Confusion Animosity Fantasy

Frustration Alluring Eyes Outstretched Necks Uncontrolled Emotion **Bad Habits** Charismatic Witch Strife Sexual Diseases Psychopsychosis Paranoia Tempting to Idolatry Failure Masturbation

SECTION 17 – HOW TO DO DELIVERANCE

CONTENTS

- 1. Preface
- 2. Looking at Deliverance
- 3. Basic Deliverance
- 4. Children's Deliverance
- 5. Mass Deliverance
- 6. Deliverance Prayers
- 7. Biblical Curses
- 8. Aids to Casting Out Demons
- 9. Casting Out demons
- 10. Deliverance Scripture
- 11. Identify Godly/Ungodly Spirits
- 12. Names of Demons
- 13. Cursed Objects
- 14. Learn About Deliverance
- 15. Practical Deliverance Books
- 16. How Not To Do Deliverance

1. PREFACE

General

The only way for deliverance to spread around the world is for many people to begin to practice deliverance. I encourage you to take this guide, begin to practice deliverance and to help others as you grow stronger. God told us to help train an army to minister deliverance.

Mass deliverance is simply deliverance for everyone that can hear your voice. You can use this lesson for your family or church. Normally we only work on one area of a persons life in a meeting and do not try to cover all areas at the same time.

There is nothing mysterious about deliverance; any Christian can cast out demons. As a teacher, I am worthless if I can not show you how to practice what I teach. The Bible is also worthless to you unless you put it into practice.

TYPES OF DELIVERANCE

- 1. **Individual**: this is a personal ministry to an individual a one on one confrontation with the forces of evil. It is the most successful but the most time consuming. You can get very personal about a persons sins and deal with these sins in a Godly manner. An effective individual deliverance can easily take three hours or more. If you are willing to take the time with people, you will see many signs, wonders and miracles take place in their lives.
- 2. **Small Group**: this is a relatively personal ministry to a small group of people such as husband and wife, parents and children, concerned person bringing another for deliver-ance or small group sitting in a circle.

3. **Large Group**: this is a mass ministry to a large group of people such as a prayer group, church, camp or any other type of large audience. There is no limit to the number of people you can cast demons out of at the same time by the hearing of your voice. Remember that the Bible says that the casting out of a demon is a miracle.

Encouragement - Deliverance is the last battleground to complete freedom of the Christian. The battle is the greatest and Satan will fight the hardest against this ministry. You are fighting God s battles; you are cursed if you are unwilling to fight.

The benefits far outweigh having to go through the battle. You will learn things about the spiritual world that can not be learned in any way other than being involved in deliverance. You will see many signs, wonders and miracles performed by God. You will see peoples lives changed before your eyes and dramatically changed for the better. You will help your family as you are helping others; the fringe benefits are great!

Healing and deliverance go hand-in-hand. Many can not get healed without deliverance. You will see many healings and miraculous healings by the Lord through praying for healing and casting out of demons of infirmities.

Six Basic Steps To Your Deliverance

- 1. Identify your problems.
- 2. Forgive, pray and get yourself right with God.
- 3. Break the curses and soul ties on you and your descendents.
- 4. Cast out your demons.
- 5. Pray for healing of your soul and body.
- 6. Discipline your life by changing your way of thinking and acting.

These six steps would also apply to any person that you are ministering to. It is easy to cast out demons but hard to discipline your life.

2. LOOKING AT DELIVERANCE

Summary

- 1. Take the abundant life by force from Satan.
- 2. Forcefully drive out demons.
- 3. Hate sin and everything that God hates; hate Satan, demons and evil.

Take Heaven By Force - We are not wrestling against the Father, Son and Holy Spirit, but against Satan and his forces of evil. God has given us the abundant life but we have to take it by force from Satan! This is analogous to Israel; God gave them the promised land and then told them to take it by force (Eph. 6:12).

Two verses clearly illustrate this Bible principle: Matt. 11:12, Kingdom of heaven suffereth violence and the violent take it by force (abode of God is to be seized and the forces seized it). Luke 16:16, Kingdom of God is preached, and every man presseth into it (rule of Supreme Deity is preached and every man forces into it).

Psalm 57:6	Some other good fighting verses are:
Isa. 54:17	They have digged a pit before me.
Matt. 15:26 (15:21-	No weapon formed against thee shall prosper.
28)	
II Cor. 10:3-6	The woman fought for deliverance for her child
Eph. 6:10-18	Put on the whole armour of God.
Rev. 12:11	And they overcame him.

How To Treat Demons

Matt. 9:33	Cast - to eject, drive out, pluck (dumb demoniac).
Matt. 9:34	Casteth - thrust out, expel (dumb demoniac).
Matt. 17:18	Rebuked - censure, admonish, tax upon (epileptic).
Mark 1:34	Suffered - to send forth (sick or possessed with demons).
Luke 11:14	Casting - put out, send away (demon that was dumb.)
Eph. 4:27	Place - location, condition (Give no opportunity to the Devil.)
James 4:7	Resist - oppose, withstand (Resist the Devil.)
II Pet. 2:11	Railing - blasphemer, slanderous, profane, wicked (judgement)
I John 3:8	Destroy - loosen, break up, put off (Destroy works of Devil.)
Jude 9	Railing - vilification, evil speaking (reviling judgement).

As you can see from the above scripture, we forcefully drive demons out of Christians but we do not rail at demons. Luke 9:1 says we have power and authority (mastery, superhuman force, violence, control) and Luke 10:7 says the demons are subject (subordinate, obey) to Christians.

Cursing Demons And Infirmities - The Psalms contain imprecations (call down curses and evil) upon enemies and transgressors. For a good study, see "Strongs" or "Young's" Concordance for "curse, cursed, curses, cursest, curseth, cursing, accursed and cursedst". The following verses describe the meaning of cursing:

Gen. 9:24-27	Execrate - to abhor, loathe, detest (cursed younger son.)
Num. 22:6 & 23:8	Blaspheme - perforate, bitterly curse (King of Moab asked Balaam, prophet, to curse Israel.)
Deut. 11:26-28;	Blessing and curse, curses and more curses.
27:15-26; 28:15-68	
Judges 5:23	Execrate - (Curse bitterly its inhabitants.)
II Sam. 16: 10-12	Vilification - revile, slander (curse David).
II Kings 2: 23-25	Despise - speak evil of (Cursed them in the name of the Lord.)
Job 3:1-10	Contempt - vile (Cursed the day of his birth.)
Mark 11:21	Doom - execrate, imprecate (fig tree which you cursed.)
Gal. 1:8-9	Anathema - solemn curse, excommunicated (Let him be accursed.)

3. BASIC DELIVERANCE

Reason For Learning - The main reason we are teaching you how to do basic deliverance is that every Christian should be able to cast out demons at least in their own family. Later on God may lead you to have deliverance services in your home or church. God told us to train an army for His use; you are part of that army! Deliverance will assist in establishing family order and God's order. Every Christian should cast out demons (Mark 16:17). There are not many "Deliverance Ministers" to help people. Christians have many demons; proper deliverance takes a lot of time. Deliverance is a way of life and not a grand event.

Parents are the best persons to minister to their children; husband to wife and wife to husband. Parents need to protect their children and set the family free from demons.

Deliverance gives an understanding of God's and Satan's kingdoms that you will not get any other way. Deliverance allows you to see into the spiritual world by the manifestations of demons and angels.

General

- 1. Basic Deliverance consists of setting a person free from three common demon families: Rejection, Bitterness and Rebellion (also common to Schizophrenia).
- 2. Typically a person becomes rejected, then becomes bitter and finally rebels (then come other problems).
- 3. The most important key in setting a person free from these families is to get the person to forgive anyone that has hurt him!
- 4. First, unforgiveness should be dealt with before the families of Rejection, Bitterness and Rebellion are cast out.
- 5. After basic deliverance, then other demon families can be attacked. For example, Cancer and Arthritis can come into a person thru the open door of bitterness. After basic deliver-ance, cast out the spirits of Cancer and Arthritis.
- 6. A person may have become demonized while in the womb by sins of the ancestors for causes other than rejection, bitterness and rebellion. If so, another approach is required.
- 7. Again, the most important key in setting a person free from the sins of the ancestors is to get the person to forgive his ancestors, and ask God to forgive them and bless them if they are alive (parents are also ancestors).
- 8. After forgiveness for any hurt or sin, then any demonic ties should be broken. For example, curses of the ancestors passed down thru the generations, or soul ties caused by sexual sin or witchcraft control are demonic ties.
- 9. After breaking curses and soul ties, we ask God to restore the fragmented soul mind, will and emotions. We ask God to send out angels to restore anything that the demons have stolen.
- 10. After restoration of the fragmented soul, we ask God to stir up the demons in the subconscious mind so that they can be identified and cast out.
- 11. The person can then be led in a general prayer of salvation / deliverance to God. There are many good prayers.
- 12. The leader should then pray and take authority over the demonic spirit world and ask God for help.
- 13. After the grounds for deliverance are established (taking away the legal rights before God for the demons to stay), then start casting out demons.
- 14. Use all the weapons of the warfare in the Bible against the demons. These include reading Scripture to the demons, exercising the Gifts of the Holy Spirit, causing the demons to reveal information against themselves, seeking discernment from God thru the Holy

Spirit, praying to God in other tongues, asking Jesus for help, and any other methods that are helpful in gathering data, taking away legal rights and casting out. By all means, do what God tells you to do even if you do not understand it.

- 15. Unforgiveness get the person to forgive others by an act of his will which God will honor. It may be very difficult for the person but God accepts their willingness to forgive.
- 16. Unforgiveness Cancer or Arthritis can come into the person later on.
- 17. Before any deliverance starts, a person should be given an opportunity to discuss his problems and background so that you can get to know the person and properly minister to him.
- 18. After deliverance is ended, a person should be counseled about how to walk out his deliverance and discipline his life.
- 19. It is good if teaching on basic deliverance or sins of ancestors precedes the deliverance. After counseling, anoint with oil and pray for any healing needed or for scars in the body where the demons left (inner healing).

Steps To Minister Deliverance

- A. Steps for Basic Deliverance for Individual
 - 1. Find out about the persons problems and background.
 - 2. Some discussion about how they got into trouble may be helpful.
 - 3. Get the person to forgive others and lead him in a specific prayer about his problems.
 - 4. Start casting out the families of Rejection, then Bitterness and finally Rebellion.
 - 5. Counsel the person about how to walk out his deliverance and how to discipline his life.
 - 6. Anoint with oil and pray for healing (physical and/or inner).
 - 7. The above steps could be used after a church service at the altar or in the prayer room, in the home or over the phone.
- B. Steps for Sins of Ancestors for Individual
 - 1. Follow steps A.1 thru A.3 above.
 - 2. Lead the person thru a prayer to break curses and soul ties, restore the fragmented soul, stir up the demons in the subconscious mind, and finally salva-tion/deliverance.
 - 3. Here again, it is good to start with basic deliverance of Rejection, Bitterness and Rebellion. Then go into other areas that have been identified and legal grounds established for casting out.
 - 4. Follow steps A. 5 thru A.7.
- C. Steps for Basic Deliverance / Sins of Ancestors for Group / Church
 - 1. Teach on Basic Deliverance, Sins of Ancestors or any other deliverance topic.
 - 2. Lead the congregation in a mass prayer about that topic, and include curses, soul ties, fragmented soul, subconscious mind, unforgiveness and salvation.
 - 3. The pastor / evangelist will then pray and take authority over the demonic spiritual world, and ask God to send his forces and take charge of the deliverance.
 - 4. Start the mass deliverance with basic deliverance and then go to any other topic. Workers shall help individuals having trouble getting free.

- 5. After mass deliverance, work with individuals and follow steps A.5 thru A.7.
- 6. The above steps could be used in a prayer group, church, home or any meeting about deliverance.

D. Steps for Basic Deliverance / Sins of Ancestors for Home Ministry Meeting

- 1. Provide specific counseling to the individuals as God leads.
- 2. Follow steps A.1 and A.2. Take a refreshment / bathroom break of about fifteen minutes.
- 3. Follow steps A.3 and C.2 thru C.5.

E. Variations

The above procedures can be varied to fit the situation or at the leadership of the Holy Spirit.

4. CHILDREN'S DELIVERANCE

Summary

- 1. Sit together as families during deliverance. A husband has special power and authority over his family that even we don t have as deliverance ministers.
- 2. The Book of Proverbs was a special comfort to me after Byron died because we had disciplined him; he was a well-behaved son.
- 3. God is ultimate truth and there is no fantasy in God or in His Word. Fantasy causes most of our young peoples problems: drugs, drink, sex, etc.
- 4. God taught us to tell the truth in love; we practice tough love!
- 5. Pray and ask the Holy Spirit to show you what dolls to throw away; be cautious about any doll.
- 6. Playing card games can become addictive.
- 7. We have taught small children to cast out demons; the demons hate to have to obey children! Children in the First Grade were taught to war in the spirit.
- 8. Demons can also be cast out of the fetus in the womb.
- 9. It is fun to cast demons out of babies watch demons manifest and watch them leave.
- 10. Don t be fooled or become sympathetic to the demons!
- 11. Speak quietly and softly; this infuriates the demons! Know your authority over the forces of evil.
- 12. Very few parents do their job properly.
- 13. We have not seen any parents that have protected their children completely or properly; we didn't.
- 14. Notice that the deliverance prayers are establishing the basis for casting out the demons.
- 15. Adults have to overcome false religious teaching, ignorance of the Bible and fear of deliverance.
- 16. We will not minister to the children without the parents present.
- 17. The parents should enter into the deliverance of their children in church and at home.
- 18. Full Gospel Christians are in general very demonized, not demon possessed, but simply have many demons!
- 19. The lie about Santa Claus caused our daughter to doubt that her parents would tell her the truth. All lies come from the Devil (John 8:44).

General

(Excerpts) - Husbands are often the most effective in commanding spirits to leave their wives, with the support of others. This is true with his children also. Children must be disciplined by their parents (Proverbs 13:23). The prayerful and judicious application of the rod can act as a deterrent to childish and foolish behavior (Proverbs 22:15). Parents many times prepare the way for deep-seated spirits of Fear, Rejection and Conditional Love to enter. God will turn the heart of the father (not the mothers) to the children (Malachi 4:6 and Colossians 3:21). A child left to rear himself is a disaster going somewhere to happen (Proverbs 29:15). Indwelling demons can be present because of inheritance, curses, habitual sin, or legal holds or grounds from other sources. The punishment should equal the offence. We provoke our children to wrath when we punish more severely than the offence justifies. The offence should be explained. Other ways to behave should be explored. Then show love; give a hug, approval, compliment on good behavior or improvement of conduct.

Scripture warns us to have nothing to do with fairy tales, fables, enchantments, charmers or such like: Titus 1:14 (fables turn one from truth) and II Peter 1:16 (declares importance of truth). Children at a susceptible age may well be opened up to spirits of Fear, Error, Perversity, Lying and Fantasy. The truth is important to God and many, ignorantly, cause children to believe a lie in the guise of a friendly, jolly, phoney, called Santa Claus.

The encyclopedia says that the origin of dolls is witchcraft and magic. Only witch doctors or medicine men were allowed to handle them. To this day, multitudes of idol (demon) worshippers use dolls in pagan religious ceremonies. Exodus 20:4 - no graven images, and Jeremiah 48:10 - Lord places a curse on those that use deceit.

The inventor of the first deck of cards evidently hated God and the Bible, and designed a message in the cards which was the exact opposite of the truth of Scripture. Jesus is supposed to be the joker. Witches, psychics and Satan worshippers use playing cards for divination, and to cast spells and curses. It is time that Christians clean house and destroy the hidden works of darkness (I John 2:15-17, Romans 12:1-2, II Corinthians 6:17-18 and I Timothy 6:12).

By initiating young, interested believers into the battle for deliverance, they soon become seasoned soldiers, learning tactics of war in the battlefield. *How To Do Deliverance* - Page 7.

Ministry To Children (Excerpts) - Since it has already been shown that demon spirits are able to gain entrance to a fetus and to children, it is obvious that there should be deliverance for them. Demons can be called out of children in the same way they are called out of older persons. There will be manifestations of the spirits leaving through the mouth and nose as in other deliverances.

Ordinarily, children are quite easily delivered. Since the spirits have not been there very long, they are not as deeply embedded in the flesh. There are exceptions to this, as in the case of children who have been exposed to demonic attack through severe circumstances. The manifestations of the demons can be quite dramatic, even in children.

A young Christian couple brought their three-month-old child for ministry. This was their first baby and they had disagreed as to how to discipline the child. The father and mother had a vio-

lent argument over the matter. While they were having this argument, the child began to scream, and since the incident it was apparent that the child was suffering from tormenting spirits. My wife held the child in her arms and began to command the troubling spirits to go in the name of Jesus. As the first spirit came out, the baby stiffened and cried out. Two other demons came out in the same way. Then the child grew quiet and relaxed, and was soon asleep.

Most children by the age of five or six can be given a simple explanation of what you are going to do before you begin the ministry. They need to know that you are not talking to them but to the spirits in them, otherwise they may be offended or frightened by words of command addressed to the evil spirits. Usually the children are quite cooperative. Since the children may feel more secure with a parent, it is often best for the parent to hold the child during the ministry. The deliverance minister must discern reactions in the child attributable to the spirits being stirred up. The spirits may cause the child to resist being held. He may cry or scream and show signs of great fear. The demons may try various tactics to make one think it is the child being hurt or wronged. The minister and/or parent will then become so sympathetic with the child that they will stop the ministry and the demons retain their hold.

Especially in ministry with children it is well to remember the fact that it is not the loudness of a command that moves the demon hut the authority of the name and of the blood of the Lord Jesus Christ. The commands can be given with such calmness and matter-of-factness that the child will scarcely realize what is taking place.

How do infants and children keep themselves free from the demons once they are delivered, since they are not competent to protect themselves? It is not the responsibility of the child but of his parents or guardians. I believe you will find in the Scripture that when Jesus ministered to children, one or both of the parents were present. It is the responsibility of parents to he the spiritual guardians of their children.

Children And Deliverance (Excerpts) - Some people say that children do not need deliverance. I could not disagree more. Parents have a solemn responsibility to provide protection for their offspring in the matter of spiritual warfare. So many curses, legal holds, and other legal grounds can be inherited through the ignorance, curiosity, and/or willful disobedience of the parent. In addition, our society provides a climate for demon infestation.

Once one is alerted to the dangers of passing on weaknesses, infirmities and other unpleasant things to siblings, he should begin breaking curses, destroying legal holds and grounds, and binding any inherited spirits. This is preparation for casting them out. The occult demons are tremendously powerful and tenacious, often staying in families for centuries. People afflicted with them are highly susceptible to psychic phenomena and influence. We have seen children (from babies to teens) receive significant deliverance in the church and at home. Parents are able to minister some of this to younger ones while the child is sleeping. There need be no fear created in the child about deliverance. They will usually be able to handle the idea of casting out evil spirits better than many adults.

When a child is brought to us for prayer, we ask that one or both parents accompany them, preferably the father, since he has the most spiritual authority. Often I will talk briefly with the child, allaying any fears, with love for him.

Usually I ask if he sometimes does or says things he doesn't really want to do, things which get him into trouble. After an affirmative answer, I will mention that often ugly things called spirits get into a boy or girl and cause this sort of thing. I also talk with the child about asking the Lord Jesus to come into his heart (Revelation 3:20) if he has not already done so. I then ask if he would like for those things to come out of him if they are there. Children seldom want problem-causing things and usually readily consent to prayer.

I pray for them, quietly taking authority over the spirits and commanding them to manifest and leave. If they are stubborn and the father is present, I will have him take authority and guide him in what to pray. In practically every case this combined assault will rout the demons.

If parents wait until the child is grown up before attempting deliverance, they will discover the enemy has wasted no time and has burrowed in deeply, often scarring body and mind. They will work tirelessly to put a child in bondage, drag him out into the world, and enslave him with many sinful habits. An ounce of prevention here is certainly worth the proverbial pound of cure.

REFERENCES

Pigs In The Parlor - "Ministry to Children", pages 65-66 *Demolishing The Host Of Hell* - "Children & Deliverance", pages 33-35

5. MASS DELIVERANCE

Summary

- 1. Pray out loud one or more "Deliverance Prayers" selected for the meeting or appropriate for the teaching preceding deliverance.
- 2. "Prayer Against Biblical Curses"
- 3. "Prayer Against Soul Ties"
- 4. "Prayer Against Occult and False Religions"
- 5. "Prayer Against Cursed Objects and Demon Infestation"
- 6. "Prayer to Loose Godly Spirits"
- 7. One or all of the above prayers can be used in a mass deliverance meeting. Once the prayers have been prayed, call out the demons associated with the lists under each prayer.
- 8. Call out the list of demons associated with the teaching such as "Sexual Sin and Diseases".

How To Get Delivered - Relax and cooperate with the deliverance minister and workers. There is nothing to be afraid of. We have not lost a deliveree in twenty years of ministry. God never gives a spirit of fear; all fear is from Satan.

Demons are like air. They are usually expelled by the exhaling of breath. This can be by yawning, coughing, deep breathing or gentle exhaling of breath. Demons can have nests in the body which have substance. They are usually expelled by blowing the nose, coughing up phlegm or vomiting.

Don't feel bad when this happens. For instance, it is beautiful to see a cancer vomited out of a person during deliverance. Paper towels and waste cans are provided for this reason.

Demons can temporarily take over your body and manifest their characteristics. They can look through your eyes, cause the body to assume grotesque shapes, temporarily paralyze the body, throw the body on the floor and cause it to squirm around, and talk using your voice.

Deliverance is the casting out of demons from your body. Prayer is the infilling of the Holy Spirit. Leave the passages open so that the spirits can leave. Do not pray, pray in tongues or chant. Chanting is the repetition of a word or phrase such as saying Jesus repeatedly.

Decide that you want to get rid of the demons within your body. You no longer agree with them and they no longer will be your pets. Exercise your mind that you "will" to be delivered. If the demons do not leave, command them by name to go; do this verbally out loud for more power.

Do not hold back or be embarrassed. As they come up and out of your chest, let them go even if you have to spit or whatever. It is all right even if they take over some part of your body. If you have too much pride to let the demons manifest to get delivered, you give the demons a right to stay. God hates pride; it is an abomination to Him!

Deliverance workers should move around quietly. Provide paper towels to those who need them. Lay hands on those who are having trouble, agree with them, and command the demons to come out. Do not start a conversation with the person during mass deliverance. This interrupts the flow of the deliverance and you then have your own private meeting.

Deliverance is not prayer. You command the demons to go in Jesus' Name. He will not cast the demons out. He has given us that authority and He expects us to use it.

Babies and children generally get delivered easily. Babies can even get delivered in the womb. Women generally manifest more than men do. Women usually get into and out of spiritual trouble more quickly than men. Men generally get delivered by the simple exhaling of the breath. The more a person is in bondage, the greater the manifestations will be.

Deliverance is dynamic and exciting. It is wonderful to see people getting set free from demon bondage. Jesus Christ is glorified when Satan is defeated by Christians here on earth.

Families should sit together. Husbands are the most effective in casting demons out of their family because they are given spiritual authority over it. We believe this authority is even greater than that of the deliverance minister.

It is not the loudness of a command that moves the demon but the authority of the name and blood of the Lord Jesus Christ. You must know your authority or the demons will recognize your weakness. By initiating young, interested believers into the battle for deliverance, they soon become seasoned soldiers, learning tactics on the battlefield.

Demonic Areas To Cover - It is not be possible to cover all areas of deliverance in one meeting. You may want to only cover one area at a meeting such as Sexual Sin and Diseases. Mass deliverance at some time should cover the following areas: deliverance prayers, Biblical curses, soul ties, occult and false religions, cursed objects and loosing Godly spirits.

Deliverance Prayers - "Deliverance Prayers" are found in the next chapter. Choose the prayer or prayers that are appropriate for the meeting. These are prayers to use before starting to cast out demons.

Prayer Against Biblical Curses - "I break any curses placed on me or my descendants from uttering a wish of evil against one; to imprecate evil, to call for mischief or injury to fall upon; to execrate, to bring evil upon or to; to blast, vex, harass or torment with great calamities. I break these curses in Jesus' name. I break the curses back to ten generations or even to Adam and Eve on both sides of my family, and destroy every legal hold and every legal ground that demons have to work in my life. I break curses that follow in the name of the Lord Jesus Christ:

Mistreating God's Chosen People Adultery, Harlotry, Prostitution Idolatry Refusing To Fight For God Not Giving To Poor Stealing	Willing Deceivers Disobedience to Bible Keeping Cursed Objects House of Wicked
Swearing Falsely By God	Failing To Give Glory to God
Robbing God of Tithes	Dishonoring Parents
Hearkening to Wives Rather Than C	od Making Graven Images
Cheating People Out of Property	Taking Advantage of Blind
Oppressing Strangers, Widows, Orp	hans
Bestiality	
Incest With Sister, Mother, Others	
Murder Secretly or For Hire	
Pride	Putting Trust In Man
Doing The Work of God	
Deceitfully	Rewarding Evil For Good
Abortion or Causing Unborn To Die	
Having Bastards	
Murdering Indirectly	Striking Parents
Kidnapping	Cursing Parents
Not Preventing Death	Sacrificing to Gods
Witchcraft	Turning Someone Away
	From God
Following Horoscopes	Rebelling Against Pastors
Losing Virginity Before Marriage	False Prophets
Rape	Not Disciplining Children
Teaching Rebellion Against God	Cursing Rulers
Refusing To Warn Sinners	Defiling The Sabbath
Sacrificing Humans	Seances and Fortune Telling
Intercourse During Menstruation	Homosexuals and Lesbians

Necromancers	Blaspheming Lord's Name
Being Carnally Minded	Oral and Anal Sex
Children Rebelling Nonproductivity	
Fugitive and Vagabond	Improper Family Structure
Destruction of Family Priesthood	Refusing To Do The Work
-	of God
Family Disorder	Failure and Poverty
Any Sin Worthy of Death	Touching God's Anointed
Perversion of Gospel	Loving Cursing
Choosing That Which God Delights	
Not Looking To World For Help	
Stubbornness and Rebellion	Offending Children Believing
	Christ
Adding To or Taking Away From Bi	ible
Any Biblical Curse Not listed Above	

Failure to hearken unto the voice of the Lord God, to observe to do all His commandments and His statutes; then all these curses shall come upon thee, and overtake thee. This verse says it all!

Prayer Against Soul Ties - "I renounce these evil soul ties, break them and wash them away with the shed blood of the Lord Jesus Christ. I break all evil soul ties with the following: Beasts

Anyone I Have Had Sex With Outside of Marriage Divorced Mates

By Incest, Rape, Fornication, Adultery, Homosexuality, Bestiality, Lesbianism

Bloodless Religions, Religious Cults Blood Brothers / Sisters By Rites Witchcraft, Occult, Satan Worship Fortune Tellers, Mediums

Psychiatrists, Social Workers, Psychologists, Mental Institutions Finally, I break any agreement with anyone that forms an evil soul tie."

Prayer Against Occult And False Religions - "I renounce all fortune telling, magic practices and spiritism, cults and false teachings, and Satan worship. I break every curse and soul tie brought about by psychic heredity, occult contacts and religious cults. I now break any demonic hold on my family line due to supernatural experiences apart from God including the following forbidden practices and all that they entail:

Enchantments Witchcraft Consulting With Familiar Spirits Sorcery Son or Daughter Passing Through Fire False Religious Cults Wizardry Necromancy Observer of Times Fortune Telling Occult Practices Spiritism Magic Practices Divination Charmers

Prayer Against Cursed Objects And Demon Infestation (People And Houses)

"We command all demons to go by these names or associated with these objects:

- 1. Books and objects identified with anything related to Satan's Kingdom.
- 2. Sinful activities of former residents left curses; we break those curses.
- 3. Knocking or noisy ghosts (poltergeist) and apparitions.
- 4. Owl and frog images of all types.
- 5. Witch's mask and fetishes used by witch doctors.
- 6. Objects and literature that pertain to false religions, cults, occult and spiritism.
- 7. Graven images of gods (demons).
- 8. Objects dedicated to demons (idols and artifacts).
- 9. Ouija boards or other occult paraphernalia.
- 10. Prayers and worship to demons bring curses on home; we break those curses.

11. Mexican sun gods; idols, incense; Buddhas; hand carved objects from Africa or the Orient; anything connected with astrology, horoscopes, fortune telling, etc.; books or objects associated with witchcraft, good luck charms or cult religions (metaphysics, Christian Science, Jehovah's Witnesses, etc.); rock and roll records and tapes.

12. Jewelry given to a person by someone in witchcraft, hex signs, ancient geometric and mystical motifs, jewelry designed to bring good luck and act as talisman to chase evil.

13. Egyptian ankh, broken cross (peace symbol), chais, Polynesian tikkis of gods, African jujus, Italian horn, protectors from the evil eye, hand with index and little fingers pointing up, crosses, clovers, stars, wishbones, lucky coins, mystic medals, horseshoes, religious fetishes and statues.

14. Products with cryptic curses (hidden secret, occult curses).

15. Dolls used for witchcraft and magic; puppets, cult objects or representations."

Prayer To Loose Godly Spirits - "Lord Jesus Christ, we ask that you direct the angels to minister to our needs. We loose warring angels, ministering angels, the Holy Spirit and the Seven-Fold Spirit of God. We loose legions of angels including the following Godly spirits:

Spirit of Wisdom	Patient in Spirit	Spirit of the Ruler
Spirit of God	Spirit of Judgement	Spirit of Understanding
Spirit of the Lord	Spirit of Knowledge	Spirit of Christ
Right Spirit	New Spirit	Spirit of the Holy God
Holy Spirit	Poor in Spirit	Spirit of Grace and
Free Spirit	Spirit of Your Father	Supplications
Broken Spirit	Strong in Spirit	Spirit of Truth
Spirit of Princes	Spirit of Truth	Spirit of Life

Faithful Spirit	Spirit of Adoption	Fervent in Spirit
Good Spirit	Spirit of Meekness	Spirit of Faith
Spirit of Grace	Spirit of Jesus Christ	Eternal Spirit
Humble Spirit	Meek and Quiet Spirit	Spirit of Glory
Excellent Spirit	Spirit of Man	Spirit of Prophecy
Spirit of Elijah	Contrite Spirit	Spirit of the Living
Spirit of Holiness	Spirit of Counsel Creature"	Quickening Spirit and Might

6. DELIVERANCE PRAYERS

Summary

- 1. Pray out loud for the most power in the spiritual world.
- 2. If you are working in personal deliverance, get the individual to pray about their specific problems and sins.
- 3. If you are working in mass deliverance, lead the group in praying the form prayers.
- 4. A good selection of prayers to use in and meeting is the "Moodys' Prayers".
- 5. You can choose to use the "Short Prayer", "Medium Prayer" or "Long Prayer", or the "Moodys Prayers".

General

There are many good deliverance prayers that have been written and printed in books and in loose-leaf form. Some of these prayers are general and some have been written for specific purposes.

The ideal prayer is the one prayed by the individual to cover the specific area of that person's life that is being ministered to at that time. The next best prayer is the form prayer which the person repeats after the deliverance leader.

The following prayers have been used many times by us and have produced good results. One side benefit is that the people can see what is wrong and evil in their lives by what is contained in the prayers. These prayers can be used for individuals, small groups or large groups equally well.

Short Prayer - "Lord Jesus Christ, I believe you died on the cross for my sins and rose again from the dead. You redeemed me by your blood and I belong to you, and I want to live for you. I confess all my sins—known and unknown—I'm sorry for them all. I renounce them all. I forgive all others as I want you to forgive me. (Pause) Forgive me now and cleanse me with your blood. I thank you for the blood of Jesus Christ which cleanses me now from all sin. And I come to you now as my deliverer. You know my special needs—the thing that binds, that torments, that defiles; that evil spirit, that unclean spirit—I claim the promise of your word, <Whosoever that calleth on the name of the Lord shall be delivered.' I call upon you now. In the name of the Lord Jesus Christ, deliver me and set me free. Satan, I renounce you and all your works. I loose myself from you, in the name of Jesus, and I command you to leave me right now in Jesus' name. Amen!"

This is my favorite prayer because it is short and effective. The first part is salvation and the last part is deliverance. You can pause after the sentence underlined about "forgiveness" and let the people forgive others as the Holy Spirit leads them.

Gene Moody's Prayers - The first thing we do is get the people to pray about their specific problems and sins, so that the Blood of Jesus can cleanse the people and take away legal rights that the demons have to remain, and God can begin to act. You must personally repent of your sins! Then we get the people to repeat the Short Prayer out loud with sincerity after me.

Finally, we lead the people in a prayer out loud that covers Sins of Ancestors, Curses, Soul Ties, Fragmented Soul and Subconscious Mind as follows:

"Lord Jesus Christ, I forgive my ancestors and descendants and anyone else that has sinned against me, and I ask you to forgive and bless them with all spiritual blessings. Forgive me for my many sins and I forgive myself for sins against my body. I break all curses, charms, spells, jinxes, psychic powers, hexes, vexes and demonic ties that bind. I break all soul ties caused by witchcraft, sorcery, bewitchment or sexual sins. Lord Jesus, restore my fragmented soul: mind, will and emotions; send your angels out to recover anything that was stolen from me. Lord Jesus, stir up the demons in my subconscious mind so that they can be identified and cast out. All these things I ask in the blessed name of my Lord Jesus Christ: My Lord, Master and Savior. I now take authority over Satan and all the forces of evil according to the whole Word of God and command that you obey it. In the Name of Jesus Christ, I ask these things. Amen."

After the people have prayed and been led in prayer, then I take spiritual authority over the meeting as follows:

"Satan, we come against all powers, principalities, evil forces in this world and spiritual wickedness in high places. We come against all demons inside or outside of anyone present, over this city, state, nation and world, in Hell or out of Hell. The Bible says, "Behold, I give unto you power to tread on serpents and scorpions, and over all the power of the enemy: and nothing shall by any means hurt you.' We intend to exercise that power to set ourselves free. Satan, we come against you by the power and blood of Jesus Christ, by the Word of God, by the name of Jesus, by the authority of the believer, in the unity of our spirits. Satan, we tell you that we sit in heavenly places with our Christ Jesus. We are over you, your fallen angels, your demons and all forces of evil. We command you to line up in rank and file and order, and come out quickly. We bind every power that you have and loose ourselves from you in the name of Jesus.

Lord Jesus Christ, we ask that you would send the gifts of the Holy Spirit as needed to minister to the needs of the people and to accomplish what you want done here today. We ask that you send legions of angels, warring angels, ministering angels, Holy Spirit, and Seven-Fold Spirit of God. We ask that you cut off all communications between the demons outside and the demons inside of the people. We ask that you remove all demons from the air around us. We are careful to give you all the glory, honor, praise and credit for everything that is said or done. We ask all these things in the blessed name of Jesus Christ, our Lord and Master and Savior. And we take authority over Satan according to the whole Word of God. For its in Jesus name we pray. Amen!"

Medium Prayer - "Thank you, Lord, for dying for my sins, for your glorious resurrection, and for making me a new creature in Christ by faith in your precious blood. Dear Lord, I have a confession to make:

- 1. I have sought supernatural experience apart from you.
- 2. I have disobeyed your Word.
- 3. I want you to help me renounce all these things, and cleanse me in body, soul and spirit in Jesus' name.
- 4. I renounce witchcraft and magic, both black and white.
- 5. I renounce Ouija boards and all other occult games.
- 6. I renounce all séances, clairvoyance and mediums; ESP, second sight, and mind reading.
- 7. I renounce all fortune telling, palm reading, tea-leaf reading, crystal balls, Tarot and other card laying.
- 8. I renounce all astrology and interest in horoscopes.
- 9. I renounce the heresy of reincarnation and all healing groups involved in metaphysics.
- 10. I renounce all hypnosis under any excuse or authority.
- 11. I break any curse placed on me from any occult source, in Jesus' name.
- 12. I renounce all curiosity about either future or past, and which is outside Thy Will.
- 13. I renounce water witching or dowsing, levitation, body lifting, table tipping, psychometry and automatic writing.
- 14. I renounce astral projection and other demonic skills.
- 15. I renounce all literature I have ever read in any of these fields and vow that I will destroy such books in my own possession.
- 16. I now break, in the name of Jesus Christ, all psychic heredity, and any demonic hold upon my family line as a result of the disobedience of any of my ancestors. I also break any bonds of physical or mental illness, in Jesus' name.
- 17. I also break all demonic subjection to my mother, father, grandparents or any other human being.
- 18. In the name of Jesus Christ I renounce everything psychic and occult.
- 19. I renounce every cult that denies the Blood of Christ.
- 20. I renounce every philosophy that denies the Divinity of Christ.
- 21. I call upon the Lord to set me free.
- 22. Lord, I have another confession to make. I have not loved, but have resented certain people. I call upon you, Lord, to help me forgive them. I do now forgive...(Here we pause for several minutes while each person puts the names in there which the Lord brings to mind, either of persons living or dead.)
- 23. I do now forgive myself.
- 24. I renounce every evil spirit that binds or torments me and I call upon the Lord to set me free."

Long Prayer

Warfare Prayer - "Heavenly Father, I bow in worship and praise before you. I cover myself with the Blood of the Lord Jesus Christ as my protection. I surrender myself completely and unreservedly in every area of my life to you. I take a stand against all the workings of Satan that would hinder me in my prayer life. I address myself only to the true and living God and refuse any involvement of Satan in my prayer. Satan, I command you, in the Name of the Lord Jesus

Christ, to leave my presence with all your demons. I bring the Blood of the Lord Jesus Christ between us. I resist all the endeavors of Satan and his wicked spirits to rob me of the will of God. I choose to be transformed by the renewing of my mind. I pull down the strongholds of Satan.

General Confession and Prayer - Lord Jesus Christ, I believe that you are the Son of God, that you are the Messiah come in the flesh to destroy the works of the Devil. You died on the cross for my sins and rose again from the dead. I now confess all of my sins and repent. I now ask you to forgive me and cleanse me in your blood. I believe that your blood cleanses me now from all sin. Thank you for redeeming me, cleansing me, justifying me and sanctifying me in your blood.

Forgiveness Prayer - Lord, I have a confession to make: I have not loved, but have resented certain people and have unforgiveness in my heart, and I call upon you, Lord, to help me forgive them. I do now forgive (name them, both living and dead) and ask you to forgive them also, Lord. I do now forgive and accept myself, in the name of Jesus Christ.

Occult Confession Prayer - Lord, I now confess seeking from Satan the help that should only come from God. I now confess as sin (name them, occult sins) and also those sins I cannot remember. Lord, I now repent and renounce these sins and ask you to forgive me. I renounce Satan and all his works: I hate all his demons; I count them my enemies. In the Name of Jesus Christ I now close the door on all occult practices, and I command all such spirits to leave me in the Name of Jesus Christ.

Loosing From Domination Prayer - In the Name of Jesus Christ I now renounce, break and loose myself from all demonic subjection to my mother, father, grandparents, or any other human beings, living or dead, that have dominated me in any way, and I thank you, Lord, for setting me free.

Psychic Heredity and Bondage Prayer - In the Name of Jesus Christ, I now renounce, break and loose myself and my children from all psychic powers or bondages or bonds of physical or mental illness, upon me or my family line, as the results of parents or any other ancestors. I thank you Lord, for setting me free.

Loosing of Curses, Spells, Etc. Prayer - In the Name of Jesus Christ I now rebuke, break, loose myself and my children from any and all evil curses, charms, vexes, hexes, spells, jinxes, psychic powers, bewitchment, witchcraft and sorcery, that have been put upon me or my family line from any persons or from any occult or psychic sources, and I cancel all connected or related spirits and command them to leave me. I thank you, Lord, for setting me free.

Come to Jesus Deliverer Prayer - I come to you, Jesus, as my Deliverer. You know all my problems (name them), all the things that bind, that torment, that defile, and harass me. I now loose myself from every dark spirit, from every evil influence, from every satanic bondage, from every spirit in me that is not the Spirit of God, and I command all such spirits to leave me now in the Name of Jesus Christ. I now confess that my body is a temple for the Holy Spirit, redeemed, cleansed, sanctified, by the Blood of Jesus. Therefore, Satan has no place, no power over me, through the Blood of Jesus.

Prince's Blood of Jesus Prayer - Through the Blood of Jesus I am redeemed out of the hand of the Devil. Through the Blood of Jesus all my sins are forgiven. The Blood of Jesus Christ, God s Son, cleanses me continually from all sin. Through the Blood of Jesus I am justified, made righteous, just as if I'd never sinned; I am sanctified, made holy, set apart to God. My body is a temple for the Holy Spirit, redeemed, cleansed, sanctified, by the Blood of Jesus. Therefore Satan has no part in me, no power over me, through the Blood of the Lord Jesus Christ. I renounce him, loose myself from him, command him to leave me, in the Name of the Lord Jesus Christ!

Pride - Father I come to you in the Name of Jesus Christ. I know pride is an abomination to you, that a haughty look, a lying tongue, hands that shed innocent blood, a heart that deviseth wicked imaginations, feet that be swift in running to mischief, a false witness that speaketh lies, and he that soweth discord among brethren are seven things doth the Lord hate and are an abomination unto Him. (Proverbs 6:16). Father I renounce these and turn away from them. I humble myself before you and come to you as a little child.

Soul Ties - Father I break and renounce evil soul ties that I have had or may have had with (lodges, adulterers, close friends, husbands, wives, engagements, cults, binding agreements between buddies). I renounce these evil soul ties, break them and wash them away with the shed blood of the Lord Jesus Christ."

REFERENCES

Pigs In The Parlor - "Short Prayer" *Out In The Name Of Jesus* - "Medium Prayer" *Hegewisch Baptist Church* - "Long Prayer"

7. BIBLICAL CURSES Summary

- 1. God cursed the earth when Adam and Eve fell.
- 2. "Biblical Curses" apply to those or their descendents who have committed these sins.
- 3. "Curses on Children" can be used when specifically working with children.
- 4. "Hex Signs" and all associated with these symbols are demonic. Blessings, Curses And Duration

Exodus 20:1-5	(Curse of idol worship extends to fourth generation of great grandchildren.)
Deut. 23:2	(Curse of the bastard extends to tenth generation of descendants.)
Deut. Ch. 28	(Blessings are for obeying and curses for disobeying the Holy Bible; verses 1-14: blessings, 15-44: curses and 45-68: wrath of God.)
Exodus 20:1 -5	(God showed Earline that this was the curse of idol worship
Ezekiel 18:1-9	(Brought on her by her Indian ancestors which caused her and her fam- ily heart trouble. He also showed her how to break the curse.)

Notice how a family can be cursed to the fourth or tenth generation by the ancestors. Actually there are curses on the human race that go all the way back to Adam and Eve.

Blessings can go from generation to generation if not broken by sin. Curses can also go from generation to generation if not broken by prayer.

Very simply, we are blessed for obeying the Word of God and cursed for disobeying the Word of God. Blessings and curses are promises from God which will either bring down the wrath of God or His favor on your family.

God will supply all of your needs: mental, physical, spiritual and material. He can become your Savior, Baptizer, Healer, Deliverer and Prosperer. These things will only come to pass if you follow the Bible - for every promise there is a condition.

If you do not meet the condition, you will not receive the promise!

There is probably a curse for every scripture that is disobeyed. Sixty-six curses are listed under Biblical Curses which follow:

Biblical Curses

(Excerpts)

- 1. Those who curse/mistreat Jews (Deut. 27:26; Gen. 27:29; 12:3; Num. 24:9).
- 2. Those willing deceivers (Jos. 9:23, Jer. 48:10; Mai. 1:14; Gen. 27:12).
- 3. An adulterous woman (Numbers 5:27).
- 4. Disobedience of Lord s commandments (Deut. 11:28; Dan. 9:11; Jer. 11:3).
- 5. Idolatry (Jer. 44:8; Deut. 29:19; Ex. 20:5; Deut. 5:8-9).
- 6. Those who keep or own cursed objects (Deut. 7:25; Jos. 6:18).
- 7. Those who refuse to come to the Lords help (Judges 5:23).
- 8. House of the wicked (Prov. 3:33).
- 9. He who gives not to the poor (Prov. 28:27).
- 10. The earth by reason of mans disobedience (Isa. 24:3-6).
- 11. Jerusalem is a curse to all nations if Jews rebel against God (Jer. 26:6).
- 12. Thieves and those who swear falsely by the Lords Name (Zech. 5:4).
- 13. Ministers who fail to give the glory to God (Mai. 2:2; Rev. 1:6).
- 14. Those who rob God of tithes and offerings (Mai. 3:9; Haggai 1:6-9).
- 15. Those who hearken unto their wives rather than God (Gen. 3:17).
- 16. Those who lightly esteem their parents (Deut. 27:16).
- 17. Those who make graven images (Deut. 5:8; 27:15, Ex. 20:4).
- 18. Those who willfully cheat people out of their property (Deut. 27:17).
- 19. Those who take advantage of the blind (Deut. 27:18).
- 20. Those oppressing strangers, widows, fatherless (Deut. 27:19; Ex. 22:22-24)
- 21. Him who lies with his fathers wife (Deut. 27:21; Ex. 22:19).
- 22. Him who lies with his sister (Deut. 27:22).
- 23. Those who smite their neighbors secretly (Deut. 27:24).
- 24. Those who take money to slay the innocent (Deut. 27:24).

- 25. Him who lies with any beast (Deut. 27:21; Ex. 22:19).
- 26. Adulterers (Job 24:15-18).
- 27. The proud (Psalm 119:21).
- 28. Those who trust in man and not the Lord (Jer. 48:10).
- 29. Those who do the work of the Lord deceitfully (Jer. 48:10).
- 30. Him who keeps back his sword from blood (Jer. 48:10; I Kings 20:35-42).
- 31. Those who reward evil for good (Prov. 17:13).
- 32. Illegitimate children (Deut. 23:2).
- 33. Children born from incestuous unions (Gen. 19:36-38).
- 34. Murderers (Exodus 21:12).
- 35. To murder indirectly (Exodus 21:14).
- 36. Children who strike their parents (Exodus 21:15).
- 37. Kidnappers (Exodus 21:16; Deut. 24:7).
- 38. Those who curse their parents (Exodus 21:17).
- 39. Those who cause the unborn to die (Exodus 21:22-23).
- 40. Those who do not prevent death (Exodus 21:29).
- 41. Those involved in witchcraft (Exodus 22:18).
- 42. Those who sacrifice to false gods (Exodus 22:20).
- 43. Those who attempt to turn anyone away from the Lord (Deut. 13:6-9).
- 44. Those who follow horoscopes (Deut. 17:2-5).
- 45. Those who rebel against pastors (Deut. 17:12).
- 46. False prophets (Deut. 18:19-22).
- 47. Women who keep not their virginity until they are married (Deut. 22:13-21)
- 48. Adulterers (Deut. 22:22-27).
- 49. Parents who do not discipline their children, but honor them above God (I Sam. 2:17, 27-36).
- 50. Those who curse their rulers (I Kings 2:8-9; Ex. 22:28).
- 51. Those who teach rebellion against the Lord (Jer. 28:16-17).
- 52. Those who refuse to warn them that sin (Ezek. 3:18-21).
- 53. Those who defile the Sabbath (Ex. 31:14; Num. 15:32-36).
- 54. Those who sacrifice human beings (Lev. 20:2).
- 55. Participants in séances and fortune telling (Lev. 20:6).
- 56. Homosexual and lesbian relationships (Lev. 20:13).
- 57. Sexual intercourse during menstruation (Lev. 20:18).
- 58. Necromancers and fortune tellers (Lev. 20:27).
- 59. Those who blaspheme the Lords name (Lev. 24:15-16).
- 60. Those who are carnally minded (Romans 8:6).
- 61. Sodomy (oral and anal sex) (Gen. 19:13, 24-25).
- 62. Rebellious children (Deut. 21:18-21).
- 63. Possibly from murder, nonproductivity, a fugitive, vagabond (Gen. 4:11; Matt. 5:21-22, Jesus' statement on hatred equals murder, John 3:15).
- 64. Possible curse upon improper family structure destruction of family priesthood (Mai. 4:6) with special attention given to the relationship between father and children.
- 65. The curse causeless shall not come (Prov. 26:2).
- 66. Any sin worthy of death is also cursed by God (Deut. 21:22-23).

Curses On Children

- 1. Children born from incestuous unions (Gen. 19:36-38).
- Curse of idol worship extends to fourth generation of great grandchildren (Exodus 20:1-5).
- 3. Children who strike their parents (Exodus 21:15).
- 4. Those who curse their parents (Exodus 21:17).
- 5. Iniquity of fathers on children (Exodus 34:6-7).
- 6. Children wandered for forty years (Numbers 14:18 & 33).
- 7. Idol worship (Deut. 5:9-10).
- 8. Rebellious children (Deut. 21:18-21).
- 9. Curse of the bastard extends to tenth generation of descendants (Deut. 23:2).
- 10. In son's days evil will come on his house (I Kings 21:19).
- 11. The iniquity of the father upon the children (Jer. 32:18).

Symbols Of Hex Signs

- 1. Six Petal Rosette and Lucky Stars these are your lucky stars.
- 2. The Irish Shamrock Hex good luck, fast life, good fortune and fidelity.
- 3. Tulip faith, hope and charity.
- 4. Unicorn virtue and piety.
- 5. Fertility.
- 6. Twelve Petal Rosette that each month of the year be joyous ones.
- 7. The Distelfink the bird of happiness always near you and good fortune.
- 8. Your Lucky Stars lucky stars that guide your heart.
- 9. Love and Romance rosette and hearts of love and romance.
- 10. Eight Pointed Star star and rosette to bring abundance and goodwill.
- 11. Friendship.
- 12. There is a symbol for each of the above listed hex signs.

REFERENCES

Annihilating The Host Of Hell! - Book 1 - "Biblical Curses", pages 56-59

8. AIDS TO CASTING OUT DEMONS

Summary - Practice systematic deliverance: basic then advanced then special deliverance - mass and individual deliverance. Work on one or more areas of a persons life at a time or in mass deliverance. You can not cast out all of the demons at one time; Christians are very demonized!

Pray deliverance prayers - break Biblical curses and soul ties -renounce occult and false religions - loose Godly Spirits -destroy or exorcise cursed objects - make positive confessions in Christ - read deliverance Scripture.

If the demons do not leave, find out what their legal right is and remove it. Ask God what it is, force the demon to tell you and/or ask the person what sin they or their ancestors committed to get them in that trouble.

Statements - Make positive confessions to God and to each other about living our life for Christ such as the following:

- 1. We forgive everyone that has hurt or sinned against us, and we pray for our enemies.
- 2. We exercise honesty humility repentance renunciation forgiveness prayer and warfare.
- 3. We seize the Kingdom of Heaven and take it by force from Satan.
- 4. We overcome Satan by the Blood of the Lamb, by our testimony for Jesus Christ, and we love not our lives unto death.
- 5. We send back every fiery dart and demon attack that has been sent against us. We give no opportunity to the Devil.
- 6. We cast out the demons and their works. We eject, drive out, pluck out, thrust out, expel, rebuke, censure, admonish, send away, put out, loosen holds, break up nests, and put off works of demons.
- 7. We have power, authority, mastery, superhuman force and control over all the works of the enemy; you must obey and subordinate yourselves to our commands.
- 8. We resist, despise, have contempt for, speak doom to, abhor, loathe, detest and hate everything that God hates, all sin and evil, Satan, fallen angels and demons.
- 9. We break the power of cursed objects, hex signs, demonic toys and games, and objects infested by demons.
- 10. We put on the Whole Armor of God and cover ourselves with the Blood of Jesus Christ. We accept Jesus Christ as our Lord, Master and Savior!
- 11. We close all doorways for Satan in the occult, addictions, sexual impurities, demonic healing, demonic religions, rock music, inheritances and any others known or unknown.

If The Demons Do Not Leave - No demon can resist the name of Jesus or disobey the Word of God when they are being used properly in deliverance. If this happens, then they have a legal right before God to remain.

You must search out this legal right and remove it. The person being ministered to must do their part! Generally, the right to remain has to do with what other people have done to that person or what that person has done to himself. The most common ground is unforgiveness. Other common grounds are sins of ancestors or anyone who had authority over that person, or the personal sins of that person.

9. CASTING OUT DEMONS

Summary

- 1. Cast out demons associated with "Basic Deliverance", then "Advanced Deliverance" and then "Special Deliverance".
- 2. Cast out demons that the Holy Spirit or the people tell you about.

1. Rejection Fear of Rejection Self-Rejection 2. Bitterness Resentment Hatred Unforgiveness Violence Temper **3. Rebellion** Self-Will Stubbornness Disobedience Anti-Submissiveness Anger Retaliation Murder

Basic Deliverance - Start with casting out families of demons that comprise basic deliverance: Rejection, Bitterness and Rebellion in that order.

Advanced Deliverance - After basic deliverance, go on to other demonic families. The list of names of demons seems to be endless. There is a name of a demon for everything that is contrary to the Word of God. Call the demon out by his characteristic or personality. Demons will answer to their medical names, common names, physical symptoms or names they are given in the spiritual world.

Special Deliverance - Caution: The following list was made for those that have been involved in Satan worship. They are very demonized and will require personal deliverance as the demons may tear their bodies when coming out.

I now command all controlling spirits to come out of the human being as follows:

Spirit: Conscience - Intuition - Worship Soul: Mind - Will - Emotions Conscious - Subconscious - Unconscious Body: Physical - Brain - Sexual Organs

I now command all special demons to manifest and come out or leave as your name is called:

Weer Beasts: Vampires - Werewolves - Zombies Manifestations: Changelings - Incubi / Succubi - Dopple Gangers Objects: Familiar Objects - Fetish, Talisman and Amulets -Marks - Hagstones Biofeedback Curses: Spells - Incantations - Hexes - Vexes Demons: Son of Satan - Mind Control - Death - Occult - Magic -Witchcraft - Drugs - Child Abuse - Fornication - Demonic Healing -Eastern Religions- Demonic Inheritance - Demonic Games - Rock Music -Voodoo – Familiar and Guiding Spirits - Forces and Powers

Led By Holy Spirit - Be sensitive to the Holy Spirit and let him lead you in the names and sequence of calling out demons!

10. DELIVERANCE SCRIPTURE

SUMMARY

- 1. Read "Deliverance Scripture" out loud to the spiritual world.
- 2. Mark and/or underline the Scriptures in your Bible for REFERENCES.
- 3. Memorize your favorite fighting verses to quote to the enemy.
- 4. Read "Cleaning Your House" verses when exorcising a house or building.

GENERAL

The following is a partial list of scripture about deliverance. Once you learn to recognize deliverance, you can find scripture throughout the Bible that tells about how demons work in peoples lives and what God thinks about how we should handle deliverance.

OLD TESTAMENT

Ex. 20:2-5 I Chron. 21:1 Ezek. 20:7, 30, 43 Lev. 20:6, 27 Job 1:6-12; 2:4-7; Dan. 10:12-13 Deut. 5:7-9; 7:25-26; 12:16; 30:3-8; Joel 2:32; 18:9-14 Psalms 18:2; 149:5-9 Zech. 3:1-2 I Sam. 15:23; 16:14-18,23 Isa. 14:4-23; 58:6-7; 61:1-3

NEW TESTAMENT

Matt. 4:23-24; 5:23-24; 7:22-23; 8:16-17, 28-33; 10:1, 7-8; 12:22-29, 43-45

Luke 9:1-2; 10:17-20; 11:14-26; Col. 2:15, 18-19

John 8:31-32, 44; 14:12-14 I Thes. 2:18 II Thes. 2:7-12 Acts 1:8; 5:3-4,15-16; 8:5-7; 10:38; 19:11-19 1 Tim 1:18-20;4:1-3

Rom. 1:21-32; 16:20 Heb. 4:12; I Cor. 5:4-5 James 1:5-8; II Cor. 1 0:3-6; I Pet. 1:13-14 Mark 1:23-27; 5:2-20; Gal. 5:19-21 I John 3:8; Eph. 1:19-23; 2:1-3; Rev. 12:7-11 Luke 4:33-36, 38-41 Phil.1 :28; 2:9-11

READING SCRIPTURE TO DEMONS

(Excerpts) - It is very handy to have your Bible scriptures about deliverance underlined and marked with a "D" so that you can them to loosen the hold of the demons when they are hard to cast out. It is even better to memorize effective scripture verses in fighting through to victory.

GENERAL VERSES FOR SPIRITUAL WARFARE

James 4:7	Luke 10:19
Prov. 18:10	Mark 16:17
Eph. 6:10-18	II Cor. 10:3-5
Rev. 12:11	I John 4:4-14

VERSES TO USE AGAINST THE RULER DEMONS

Hate	
I John 4:16b, 19-21	Prov. 10:12
I John 3:14	I Thes. 4:8
Psalm 60:4	Phil. 2:1-2
Song of Sol. 2:4	Eph. 3:16-19
Luke 10:27	I Cor. 13:4-8
Matt. 22:37-39	Gal. 5:22-23
Pride	
Prov. 16:18-19	Prov. 21:23-24
Prov. 3:34	Prov. 28:9
Prov. 13:10	Prov. 19:1, 23
Prov. 16:16-17	II Tim. 3:1-2
Prov. 14:3	Phil. 2:5-8
Prov. 15:25	James 4:10
Prov. 16:5	I Peter 5:6
Self-Pity	
Self-Pity Nehemiah 8:10	Psalm 104:33-34
Nehemiah 8:10	Psalm 104:33-34 Phil. 4:11, 13, 19
•	Psalm 104:33-34 Phil. 4:11, 13, 19 I Tim. 6:6
Nehemiah 8:10 Phil. 3:4; 4:13	Phil. 4:11, 13, 19
Nehemiah 8:10 Phil. 3:4; 4:13 Psalm 33:1	Phil. 4:11, 13, 19 I Tim. 6:6
Nehemiah 8:10 Phil. 3:4; 4:13 Psalm 33:1 Psalm 34:1-3 Psalm 50:23	Phil. 4:11, 13, 19 I Tim. 6:6
Nehemiah 8:10 Phil. 3:4; 4:13 Psalm 33:1 Psalm 34:1-3 Psalm 50:23 Fear	Phil. 4:11, 13, 19 I Tim. 6:6 I Thes. 5:18
Nehemiah 8:10 Phil. 3:4; 4:13 Psalm 33:1 Psalm 34:1-3 Psalm 50:23 Fear Psalm 56:3	Phil. 4:11, 13, 19 I Tim. 6:6 I Thes. 5:18 Is. 44:2-3
Nehemiah 8:10 Phil. 3:4; 4:13 Psalm 33:1 Psalm 34:1-3 Psalm 50:23 Fear Psalm 56:3 Psalm 46:1-2	Phil. 4:11, 13, 19 I Tim. 6:6 I Thes. 5:18 Is. 44:2-3 I John 4:18
Nehemiah 8:10 Phil. 3:4; 4:13 Psalm 33:1 Psalm 34:1-3 Psalm 50:23 Fear Psalm 56:3	Phil. 4:11, 13, 19 I Tim. 6:6 I Thes. 5:18 Is. 44:2-3
Nehemiah 8:10 Phil. 3:4; 4:13 Psalm 33:1 Psalm 34:1-3 Psalm 50:23 Fear Psalm 56:3 Psalm 46:1-2 Psalm 107:2 IITim. 1:7	Phil. 4:11, 13, 19 I Tim. 6:6 I Thes. 5:18 Is. 44:2-3 I John 4:18 Heb. 13:6
Nehemiah 8:10 Phil. 3:4; 4:13 Psalm 33:1 Psalm 34:1-3 Psalm 50:23 Fear Psalm 56:3 Psalm 46:1-2 Psalm 107:2 IITim. 1:7 Fear of Man	Phil. 4:11, 13, 19 I Tim. 6:6 I Thes. 5:18 Is. 44:2-3 I John 4:18 Heb. 13:6 Josh. 1:9
Nehemiah 8:10 Phil. 3:4; 4:13 Psalm 33:1 Psalm 34:1-3 Psalm 50:23 Fear Psalm 56:3 Psalm 46:1-2 Psalm 107:2 IITim. 1:7	Phil. 4:11, 13, 19 I Tim. 6:6 I Thes. 5:18 Is. 44:2-3 I John 4:18 Heb. 13:6

Rebellion

Prov. 17:11 I Sam. 15:23 Jer. 28:16 Jer. 29:32 II Tim. 3:1-3 Eph. 5:21

Lust

II Tim. 2:22 I Cor. 6:9-10 I Cor. 6:17-20 I Cor. 3:16-17 Eph. 5:3 Lev. 19:2

Unbelief

Mark 11:23-24 John 7:38 Heb. 11:1 Mark 16: 1 7-18 Luke 1:45

Rejection

John 3:16 I John 4:16, 19 Phil. 2:1-11 John 4:10 Psalm 55:22 Eph. 1:4-6 I Thes. 3:12-13

I Thes. 5:18 Rom. 12:1-2 Rom. 13:1-2 Heb. 12:14 I Peter 2:11 Isaiah 52:11 Matt. 5:8, 27-28 Heb. 13:4 Titus 1:15

Phil. 2:5-8

Phil. 2:14

John 6:29 I Peter 1:6-7 John 8:31-32 Acts 27:25 Gal. 2:20

John 15:7-12 Psalm 23 Psalm 16:5-8 Heb. 13:5b I Thes. 5:15-18 John 6:37 Psalm 91:1-2

Cleaning Your House

U		
These are verses to read out loud while you exorcise your house of demons:		
Num. 23:8, 23	Can only curse if God curses (notice that God curses.)	
Deut. 21:23	Anyone hanged is accursed of God.	
Deut. 32:5	Have corrupted themselves.	
Josh. 6:18	Those who keep or own cursed objects (you are cursed.)	
II Sam. 7:29	Blessing of the Lord.	
Gal. 3:13	Christ has redeemed us from the curse (must be applied.)	
Col. 2:14-15	Blotting out ordinances against us.	
Rev. 12:11	Overcome by word of testimony.	
Rev. 22:3	No more curse in Heaven.	

REFERENCES:

Out In The Name Of Jesus - "Reading Scripture to Demons"

11. IDENTIFY GODLY AND UNGODLY SPIRITS SUMMARY

1. Discerning of Spirits, Word of Knowledge and Word of Wisdom: three gifts of the Holy Spirit.

2. Names claimed by demons which describe their work: such as anger - to make angry.

3. Counterfeiting and imitating spirits of God (spirit of divination for Word of Knowledge).

4. Synonyms for evil spirits (Roget's Thesaurus).

5. Personality of demon (soul - mind, will and emotions); just like you are except it does not have a physical body.

6. Cause demons to manifest and identify their names and characteristics (spiritual warfare).

7. Detection by common symptoms or problems: emotional, mental, speech, sex, addictions, physical and religious (false religions, Christian cults, occult and spiritism, false doctrine).

8. The Bible contains many names of demons and angels.

9. Dictionaries, encyclopedias and medical books are a good source of names of demons.

10. Study false religions, carnal worldly practices, and effects of drugs, sex and power to identify demonic practices.

THE SPIRITS OF GOD AND SATAN

(Excerpts)

1. "Beloved, believe not every spirit, but try the spirits whether they are of God ... " (I John 4: 1).

2. We can bind and loose spirits.

3. Therefore, we are safe in assuming that for every ministering spirit of the Lord, there will be one, and often many satanic counter spirits.

4. Loosing spirits from the Lord.

GENERAL

1. We bind the spirits (demons) of Satan and loose the spirits (angels) of God. We cast the demons out of people, and God directs the angels to minister to our needs.

2. Godly spirits commonly mentioned are spirit, Spirit of God, Spirit of the Lord, Holy Spirit (human spirit, angels and Holy Spirit).

3. Ungodly spirits commonly mentioned are evil spirits, demons and devils. There is actually only one Devil, Satan; demons are the correct terminology. There are millions of fallen angels and billions of demons.

4. Ungodly spirits generally are found grouped in families. Where you find one demon, you frequently find a family of demons with the same characteristics.

DICTIONARY OF CLASSICAL MYTHOLOGY

(Excerpts And Comments) - "A knowledge of the classics and an acquaintance with the **imaginary characters, places, and incidents of ancient mythology** which have been such an inspiring influence to writers of all ages adds greatly to ones enjoyment of literature, art and conversation. The people outside literary and educational pursuits have sufficient opportunity or leisure to acquire or keep up a knowledge of this popular branch of learning. It is important, therefore, to present in dictionary form the story of gods, goddesses, heroes, and heroines of the old Grecian and Roman literature. It will lead to a better understanding of the countless REFERENCES which are made from time to time in the literature of the day to classic subjects. It is a great wonderland of posy

and romance, and forms a realm all its own, the realm of antiquity's gods and demons and of prehistoric heroes."

Notice the underlining and what it says to you. It is talking about gods, goddesses and demons. There is a demon behind every god and goddess worshiped by man!

You are seeing products with these names more and more today. Is this innocent or deliberate? The definitions of these names can be found in unabridged dictionaries. We recommend that you purchase one for spiritual research.

Idols Worshipped By Countries - The names of idols are the same as names of demons. There is a demon behind every idol that is worshipped by man. There are male and female gods and god-desses. Satan has something for everyone. Temple prostitutes included male homosexuals, female lesbians and female prostitutes.

Taber's Cyclopedic Medical Dictionary (Excerpts And Comments) - The following is Taber's definition of **multiple sclerosis:** "A chronic, slowly progressive disease of the **central nervous** system characterized by development of disseminated demyelinated glial patches called **plaques**. Symptoms and signs are numerous, but in later stages those of Charcot's triad (**nystagmus, scanning speech, and intention tremor**) are common. Occurs in the form of many clinical syndromes, the most common being the **cerebral, brain stem-cerebellar, and spinal.** A history of remissions and exacerbations is diagnostic. Etiology is unknown and there is no specific therapy."

Notice the highlighted words. They tell you the symptoms of the disease and where it is located in the body. With this information, you can pray more effectively. The symptoms can be called out as names of demons such as plaques, Chariot s triad, nystagmus, scanning speech and intention tremor. Demons will answer to their medical names, common names, symptoms or names they are given in the spiritual world.

We worked with a woman in deliverance who had this disease by using the above method. We would get manifestations as we called out the demons by their medical names. She was delivered and healed.

NEUROTIC AND ABNORMAL PERSONALITIES

(The 3 P's -Psychoneurosis, Psychoneurotic And Psychopsychosis) - A study of psychology and psychiatry can be very helpful in deliverance. **The method of treatment can also open the door to demons.**

Phobias - Phobias are fears. There are 210 phobias recognized by psychiatrists.

USING A THESAURUS IN DELIVERANCE

(Excerpts)

1. Because demons tend to "cluster" in family groupings, the thesaurus can be an amazingly helpful instrument to identify demons within a specific category.

2. When the spirit is forced to manifest, his name, located in the thesaurus, becomes a tool to uncover his supportive network of demons.

3. This method has been tried in the laboratory of experience and many times has been the key to a breakthrough in cases where the demons have a particularly stronghold on the individual.

CatholicMasonicOccult(Religious)(Business Success)(Drugs, Sex, Power)

<u>Nimrod</u> (Tammuz & Semiramus)

The first false religion in the Bible can be traced back to **Nimrod, his wife, Semiramus, and her child, Tammuz.** From this source branched out other false religions. The Catholic religion is for those **who want to he religious.** The Masonic religion is for those **who want business success.** The Occult religion is for those **who want power, sex and drugs.** This is true of anyone who follows a bloodless religion without the Blood of Jesus Christ and has not had a born-again experience with Jesus Christ, our Lord, Master and Savior.

REFERENCES:

1. *Pigs In The Parlor* - 3 R's (Root of Bitterness, Rebellion and Rejection) and 53 Common Demon Groupings.

2. *Demolishing The Hosts Of Hell*, "Names Claimed By Demons" - pages 51-59 (1300 Demons) and "Using a Thesaurus in Deliverance" - page 61.

3. Roget's Thesaurus - Synonyms (names of demons).

4. Battling The Hosts Of Hell - "Names of Demons", pages 233-235

5. Conquering The Hosts Of Hell - "The Spirits of God and Evil Spirits Mentioned or Implied in Scripture", pages 61-62.

6. Education Book Of Essential Knowledge, An Addition Of Webster's Encyclopedic Dictionary, Consolidated Book Publishers, U.S.A.

7. Unger's Bible Dictionary by Merril F. Unger, Moody Press, Chicago

8. Taber's Cyclopedic Medical Dictionary, F.A. Davis, Co., Philadelphia, PA

9. *Psychology Made Simple*, by Abraham P. Sperling, Made Simple Books, Double Day and Company, Inc., Garden City, New York

12. NAMES OF DEMONS

SUMMARY

- 1. The different names and list of demons seems endless.
- 2. There is a name of a demon for any practice that is contrary to the Bible.
- 3. There is a name of a demon for any idol that is worshipped by man.
- 4. Choose the "List of Demons" that pertains to the area of ministry such as to children.

5. "Common Demon Groupings" are families of demons that are commonly found. It is a good all around list to use.

LISTS OF DEMONS

The following are the titles of different lists of demons which are found in the Mass Deliverance Manual written by Gene and Earline Moody (see Manual for updated list): Abused Children (Deliverance for the Subconscious Mind) Ahab and Jezebel (The Curse of Ahab and Jezebel) Bad Habits of Thinking and Reacting Baldness - Beards - Hair Bastards (The Curse of the Bastard) **Biblical Curses Catholic Spirits** Charismatic Witchcraft Children Drug Addicts Children's Deliverance Christian Fantasy - Lies not Truth Christmas - Pagan or Christian Holiday? Classical Mythology (How to Identify Godly and Ungodly Spirits) Common Demon Groupings (How to Minister Basic Deliverance) Cursed Objects (Cleaning Your House) Cursing Others and Being Cursed **Drugs and Medicines** Drunkenness and Gluttony Effeminacy - Sins of Sodom Fears Of (How to Identify Godly and Ungodly Spirits) Good Homemakers Grief and Bitterness (Deliverance from Grief and Bitterness) Hate, Vengeance, Envy and Strife Holidays Humanism Idols Worshipped by Countries (How to Identify Godly and Ungodly Spirits) Indians (Indian Curses) Infirmity, Weakness, Sickness, Disease (Body - Cured and Healed by Deliverance) Ingratitude (An Attitude of Gratitude) Lies, Deceit and Flattery Maintaining Your Deliverance from Evil Spirits Mass Deliverance Supplement Mind (The Mind: Freeing - Restoring - Protecting) Occult (Forbidden Practices of the Occult) Passive Mind (Passive Mind - The Devils Workshop) Perfecting Love Psychoneurosis (The Neurotic Personalities) Psychoneurotic (The Delinquent Personalities) Psychopsychosis (The Pathologic Personalities) Rape Rebellion Religious Error (Spirits of Religious Error) Respect, Fear and Nervousness Satan, Fallen Angels and Demons (Learn About the Real Enemy -Satan/ Followers) Schizophrenia and Paranoia (Schizophrenia) Schizophrenia and Related Diseases (How to Identify Godly and Ungodly Spirits) Scripture (Deliverance Scripture) Selected Topic Studies

Self (How to be Miserable)
Sexual Harassment - Abuse - Assault - Violence
Sexual Sin and Diseases (Sexual Diseases, Impurities and Demons)
Toys and Games (Children's Deliverance)
Ungodly Spirits (How to Identify Godly and Ungodly Spirits)
Valentine's Day (What's Wrong with Valentine's Day?)
When Demonization of Christians is Denied (Can a Christian
Have a Demon?)
Witchcraft (Winning over Witchcraft)
Women's Inheritance (Our Inheritance from Woman's Viewpoint) Women's Weaknesses (From Eve to Jezebel - Women's Weaknesses)

GENERAL LIST OF DEMONS TO CAST OUT OF CHILDREN

A good general list of demons to cast out of children is the Schizophrenia - Paranoid Hands list of demon families found on pages 126 and 127, Chapter 21, Schizophrenia, *Pigs In The Parlor*. It can be used for mass or individual deliverance.

Start with Rejection, then Root of Bitterness, then Rebellion families. After going through basic deliverance, the three R's, then start to cast out the other demon families (Schizophrenia-Paranoia).

Find out the child's problems by talking to the parents (and the child if possible). After doing deliverance in paragraph above, then work on specific demon families identified for the individual.

You can also use the names of demonic toys, movies, games and music as the names of demons in deliverance. Very simply, there is a name of a demon for every evil practice that is contrary to the Holy Bible!

COMMON DEMON GROUPINGS

A good general list of demons to cast out of families and to use in mass deliverance is Common Demon Groupings from *Pigs in the Parlor* as follows:

Bitterness	Accusation	Passivity
Resentment	Judging	Funk
Hatred	Criticism	Indifference
Unforgiveness	Faultfinding	Listlessness
Violence	Lethargy	
Temper		
Anger	Rejection	
Retaliation	Fear of Rejec-	Depression
	tion	
Murder	Self-Rejection	Despair
		Despondency
	Insecurity	Discouragement
Rebellion	Inferiority	Defeatism
Self-will	Self-Pity	Dejection
Stubbornness	Loneliness	Hopelessness

Disobedience Anti-	Timidity Shyness	Suicide Death
Submissiveness	2	
	Inadequacy	Insomnia
Strife	Ineptness	Morbidity
Contention		
Argument	Jealousy	Heaviness
Quarreling	Envy	Gloom
Fighting	Suspicion	Burden
	Distrust	Disgust
Control	Selfishness	
Possessiveness		Worry
Dominance	Withdrawal	Anxiety
Witchcraft	Pouting	Fear
	Daydreaming	Dread
Retaliation	Fantasy	Apprehension
Destruction	Pretension	
Spite	Unreality	Nervousness
Hatred		Tension
Sadism	Escape	Headache
Hurt	Indifference	Nervous Hab-
		its
Cruelty	Stoicism	Restlessness
	Passivity	Excitement
Sensitiveness	Sleepiness	Insomnia
Self-Awareness	Alcohol	Roving
Fear of Man	Drugs	
Fear of Disap-		Sexual Impurity
proval		
	Perfection	Lust
Persecution	Pride	Fantasy Lust
Unfairness	Vanity	Masturbation
Fear of Judg-	Ego	Homosexual-
ment		ity
Fear of Condem tic		Lesbianism
Fear of Accusa- tion	Criticism	Adultery
Fear of Reproof	Irritability	Fornication
Sensitiveness	Intolerance	Incest
	Anger	Harlotry
Mental Illness		Rape
	competition	Exposure
Madness	Driving	Frigidity
Mania	Argument	inguity
17101110	mguillellt	

Retardation	Pride	Cults Jehovah's Wit-
Senility	Ego	nesses
Schizophrenia		Christian Science
Paranoia	Impatience	Rosicrucianism
Hallucinations	Agitation	Theosophy
Thandemations	Frustration	Urantia
Paranoia	Intolerance	Subud
Jealousy	Resentment	Latihan
Envy	Criticism	Unity
Suspicion		Mormonism
Distrust	False Burden	Bahaism
Persecution		bility Unitarianism
Fears	-	(Lodges, societies
· ·	sion	
Confrontation		and social agen-
	a : (cies
	Grief	using the Bible &
Confusion	Sorrow	God as a basis but
Frustration	Heartache	omitting the blood
Incoherence	Heartbreak	atonement of Je-
		sus
Forgetfulness	Crying	Christ)
_	Sadness	
Doubt	Cruelty	Occult
Unbelief		Ouija Board
Skepticism	Fatigue	Palmistry
Skepticism	Fatigue Tiredness	Handwriting
-	Tiredness	Handwriting Analysis
Death	Tiredness Weariness	Handwriting Analysis Automatic
Death	Tiredness	Handwriting Analysis Automatic Handwriting
Death	Tiredness Weariness Laziness	Handwriting Analysis Automatic Handwriting ESP
Death Indecision Procrastination	Tiredness Weariness Laziness Infirmity	Handwriting Analysis Automatic Handwriting ESP Hypnotism
Death Indecision Procrastination Compromise	Tiredness Weariness Laziness Infirmity (May include	Handwriting Analysis Automatic Handwriting ESP Hypnotism Horoscope
Death Indecision Procrastination Compromise Confusion	Tiredness Weariness Laziness Infirmity (May include any disease	Handwriting Analysis Automatic Handwriting ESP Hypnotism Horoscope Astrology
Death Indecision Procrastination Compromise Confusion Forgetfulness	Tiredness Weariness Laziness Infirmity (May include	Handwriting Analysis Automatic Handwriting ESP Hypnotism Horoscope Astrology Levitation
Death Indecision Procrastination Compromise Confusion	Tiredness Weariness Laziness Infirmity (May include any disease or sickness)	Handwriting Analysis Automatic Handwriting ESP Hypnotism Horoscope Astrology Levitation Fortune Telling
Death Indecision Procrastination Compromise Confusion Forgetfulness Indifference	Tiredness Weariness Laziness Infirmity (May include any disease or sickness) Inheritance	Handwriting Analysis Automatic Handwriting ESP Hypnotism Horoscope Astrology Levitation Fortune Telling Water Witching
Death Indecision Procrastination Compromise Confusion Forgetfulness Indifference Self Deception	Tiredness Weariness Laziness Infirmity (May include any disease or sickness) Inheritance (Physical)	Handwriting Analysis Automatic Handwriting ESP Hypnotism Horoscope Astrology Levitation Fortune Telling Water Witching Tarot Cards
Death Indecision Procrastination Compromise Confusion Forgetfulness Indifference Self Deception Self-Delusion	Tiredness Weariness Laziness Infirmity (May include any disease or sickness) Inheritance (Physical) (Emotional)	Handwriting Analysis Automatic Handwriting ESP Hypnotism Horoscope Astrology Levitation Fortune Telling Water Witching Tarot Cards Pendulum
Death Indecision Procrastination Compromise Confusion Forgetfulness Indifference Self Deception Self-Delusion Self-Seduction	Tiredness Weariness Laziness Infirmity (May include any disease or sickness) Inheritance (Physical) (Emotional) (Mental)	Handwriting Analysis Automatic Handwriting ESP Hypnotism Horoscope Astrology Levitation Fortune Telling Water Witching Tarot Cards Pendulum Witchcraft
Death Indecision Procrastination Compromise Confusion Forgetfulness Indifference Self Deception Self-Delusion	Tiredness Weariness Laziness Infirmity (May include any disease or sickness) Inheritance (Physical) (Emotional)	Handwriting Analysis Automatic Handwriting ESP Hypnotism Horoscope Astrology Levitation Fortune Telling Water Witching Tarot Cards Pendulum Witchcraft Black Magic
Death Indecision Procrastination Compromise Confusion Forgetfulness Indifference Self Deception Self-Delusion Self-Seduction Pride	Tiredness Weariness Laziness Infirmity (May include any disease or sickness) Inheritance (Physical) (Emotional) (Mental) (Curses)	Handwriting Analysis Automatic Handwriting ESP Hypnotism Horoscope Astrology Levitation Fortune Telling Water Witching Tarot Cards Pendulum Witchcraft Black Magic White Magic
Death Indecision Procrastination Compromise Confusion Forgetfulness Indifference Self Deception Self-Delusion Self-Seduction	Tiredness Weariness Laziness Infirmity (May include any disease or sickness) Inheritance (Physical) (Emotional) (Mental)	Handwriting Analysis Automatic Handwriting ESP Hypnotism Horoscope Astrology Levitation Fortune Telling Water Witching Tarot Cards Pendulum Witchcraft Black Magic

Fear of Man Fear of Failure Occult Spirits	Driving Pressure	Fetishes Etc.
Spiritism Spirits C	Tursing F	Religious
opiniisiii opiniis C	Blasphemy	Ritualism
Mind Idolatry (Course Jesting	Formalism
Intellectualism	0	
	Gossip Criticism	Legalism
Rationalization	Criticism	Doctrinal Obses-
Pride	Packhiting	Fear of God
	Backbiting Mockery	Fear of Hell
Ego	•	
	Belittling	Fear of Lost Sal- vation
Fears (All Kinds)	Railing	Religiosity
Phobias (All	Runng	Etc.
Kinds)		Ltc.
i (indis)		
	Addictive &	
	Compulsive	Spiritism
Fear of Authority	-	Seance
Lying	Alcohol	Spirit Guide
Deceit	Drugs	Necromancy
Decen	Caffeine	recromancy
Pride	Medications	False Relig-
Thức	Wiedledtions	ions
Ego	Gluttony	Buddhism
Vanity	Olutiony	Taoism
Self-	Cluttoner	
	Gluttony	Hinduism
Righteousness	NT	T 1
Haughtiness	Nervousness	Islam
Importance	Compulsive Ea	t- Shintoism
	ing	
Arrogance	Resentment	Confucian-
	_ .	ism
	Frustration	Etc.
Affectation	Idleness	
Theatrics	Self-Pity	Covetousness
Playacting	Self-Reward	Stealing
Sophistication		Kleptomania
Pretension	Self Accusation	Material
		Lust
	Self-Hatred	Greed
	Self-	Discontent
	Condemnation	1

13. CURSED OBJECTS

Summary

- 1. Be led by the Holy Spirit and search your home and possessions for cursed objects; then destroy the objects.
- 2. You can't destroy someone else's possessions. So, anoint with oil and exorcise the object.
- 3. Follow the "Five Steps to Cleaning House".
- 4. If you know of demonic prayers against your family, break the curses.
- 5. There is more power in the spoken word.
- 6. Read Scripture for "Cleaning Your House" out loud in your home during the exorcism.

General

If you have a cursed object, you become cursed by God! Remove all cursed objects from your being and from your home; destroy by breaking, burning or at least throw them in the trash can. Do not keep the cursed silver or gold of the object. If the cursed object belongs to someone else and you can not throw it away, then anoint with oil and cast the demons out of it. Anoint your house with oil and cast out evil spirits from your house and possessions.

To Exorcise Inanimate Objects

(Excerpts) In the case of objects dedicated to demons (idols, artifacts, etc.), the best course of action is to destroy them. However, it is well to check secondhand cars, homes and apartments also because if the former owners had Ouija boards, or other occult paraphernalia, or were involved in serious bondage to sin, then there is every reason to suspect that evil spirits could be lingering behind. These spirits can and will cause trouble to the new owners.

Keep in mind that any prayers offered to anyone or anything other than God the Father, Son and Holy Spirit constitute prayers and/or worship to demons. Very often these are answered in the form of curses, for demons can and do respond to those who request of them.

We suggest that two believers go on a mission such as this with Bible in hand. These should be destroyed: Look for little Mexican sun gods, idols, incense, Buddhas, hand carved objects from Africa or the Orient, Ouija boards, anything connected with astrology, horoscopes, fortune telling, and so on. Books or objects associated with witchcraft, good luck charms, or the cult religions (metaphysics, Christian Science, Jehovah's Witnesses, etc.). Rock and roll records and tapes all fall in the category of things which have been often loaded with evil spiritual power.

Verbally denounce Satan and his power, and all of his demon hosts and claim authority as a believer-priest because of the name of Jesus Christ and the authority of His shed Blood.

In some cases the door lintel and window sills have been anointed by touching them with olive oil. Other things such as statues have been so anointed in Jesus name and many times the demonic power is checked or destroyed. Any specific areas of demonic activity or influence of which you are aware should be denounced by name (Prov. 3:33).

FIVE STEPS TO CLEANING YOUR HOUSE

- 1. Seven-way prayer of forgiveness you forgive your ancestors, descendants and others; ask God to forgive and bless them. Ask God to forgive you; you forgive yourself for sins against your body. Ask forgiveness for spiritual adultery.
- 2. Break curses and soul ties from others (ancestors) and to others (descendants); break curses of psychic or Catholic prayers.
- 3. Clean out house of those objects or exorcise objects (you do this).
- 4. Anoint house with oil and cast evil spirits out of house (you do this).
- 5. Cast demons out of people that came in thru curses (optional); for mass deliverance, see Cursed Objects and Demon Infestation.

REFERENCES

Battling The Hosts Of Hell, "How to Exorcise Inanimate Objects", pages 220-222 *Conquering The Hosts Of Hell*, "Notes on Witchcraft, Symbols and Accursed Objects", pg 18-20

14. LEARN ABOUT DELIVERANCE

Summary

- 1. Get involved!
- 2. Study to show yourself approved by God.
- 3. Seek God about deliverance.
- 4. Deliverance is a constant learning process. Satan has spent thousands of years weaving a very complicated system to trap you and take you to Hell or cause you to live a miserable Christian life here on earth.

General

- 1. Get Experience start casting out demons and get involved.
- 2. Study Bible use a concordance and study Gospels mainly.
- 3. Fast and pray seek the Lord about your problems.
- 4. Study deliverance books learn as much as you can.
- 5. Study books on the mind, will and emotions.
- 6. Go to deliverance meetings participate in teaching and ministry: mass, small groups and individuals.
- 7. Study Satan from a Christian viewpoint to see how he is trying to destroy you, your family and your church.
- 8. Emphasize practical methods put the Bible to work.
- 9. Clean out your house get rid of demonic objects.
- 10. Be persistent keep after the demons in an area of your life until you are successful.
- 11. Learn to research a subject use encyclopedias, dictionaries, medical and psychiatric books.
- 12. Learn the three phases of deliverance:
 - a. How to Determine the Need for Deliverance
 - b. How go Get Delivered
 - c. How to Stay Delivered

15. PRACTICAL DELIVERANCE BOOKS

Summary

1. Buy, study and follow the "Basic", "Advanced" and "Mind" books; start with "Basic". 2. "Deliverance Manuals" are practical how-to-do-it books.

Basic

Pigs In The Parlor - Frank and Ida Mae Hammond, Impac Books, 137 W. Jefferson, Kirkwood, MO 63122

Advanced

Battling The Hosts Of Hell Conquering The Hosts Of Hell Demolishing The Hosts Of Hell Annihilating The Hosts Of Hell, Volume I Annihilating The Hosts Of Hell, Volume II Eradicating The Hosts Of Hell Smashing The Hosts Of Hell By Win Worley, Hegewisch Baptist Church, Highland, Indiana 46322

Mind

War On The Saints (Unabridged Edition) - Jessie Penn Lewis and Evans Roberts, Thomas E. Lowe, LTD., New York, New York

REFERENCES:

The above listed books have been freely referred to in this booklet. They are classics in the field of deliverance. Every Christian should have a copy of these books. We strongly recommend that you purchase a copy of each book; then use them to set you, your family and your church free. They are available from Lake Hamilton Bible Camp.

Deliverance Manuals - Gene and Earline Moody have written four books: **Basic Deliverance, Ad-vanced Deliverance, Mass Deliverance and How To Do Deliverance.** These are practical lessons of how to do deliverance and are available for purchase from the Moody's or Lake Hamilton Bible Camp. The cost for the manuals (about 615 pages) which includes shipping is \$43.00.

16. HOW NOT TO DO DELIVERANCE

Some Advice - For the person who wants God to use him or her for deliverance work among those possessed by evil spirits, here is some advice:

- 1. The person ministering in the area of deliverance is in a position of all- out warfare with the forces of evil. Many have fallen by the wayside because of ignorance of Bible and deliverance, still having many demons within themselves, women and men ministering by themselves, being lured by false doctrines, etc.
- 2. Demons can be very stubborn and highly seductive. Demons do not easily come out when they have a right before God to stay due to unconfessed sin, curses, soul ties, etc. They can lure the man or woman who is alone into a sex trap destroying the ministry, their family and others who are following that leader.

- 3. Effective weapons used against ministers are carelessness, pride, immorality, taking God for granted, spiritual weakness, and affliction of wife or husband where the minister refuses to yield to God.
- 4. Deliverance ministers should train their families and involve them in deliverance work. **Husband and wife should** minister **together as a team if possible.**
- 5. Unforgiveness is the biggest hindrance to answered prayer and to casting out demons. Unforgiveness between husband and wife is especially a hindrance.

OVERALL VIEW OF DELIVERANCE

Deliverance consists of about three equal parts: teaching, casting out and counseling. Christians generally either do not get involved or only get involved slightly. Because of this, there are weaknesses in the ministry of deliverance. Deliverance will not be completely successful unless there is a balance in the church of teaching, ministry and counseling.

The biggest weakness is trying to cover deliverance by just casting out demons without proper teaching or counseling. Here, many Christians only go after the surface demons and do not go after the root causes of why the person got into those problems in the first place. The second biggest weakness is not walking out the deliverance. After the demons are cast out, a person must change their ways of thinking and acting, and discipline their life or they will let the demons come back into them. A person needs extensive counseling to help them do this and they must decide to change their lives.

The third biggest weakness is the lack of teaching on deliverance. There is a large body of knowledge about deliverance but you hear little practical teaching come from the pulpit.

Comments - Single men and women must be very careful in ministering deliverance. Satan wants to destroy your ministry by the appearance of sexual sin or by falling into that trap. Deliverance **Myths - There is much ignorance and many myths about deliverance.** Deliverance is the most misunderstood part of the Christian life. Many deliverance workers and ministers do not realize how demonized they and the Christian body are. Sometimes they fall by the wayside because they do not continue to purge their bodies of demons. **Unless the Church gets involved on** a **regular basis with deliverance, many Christians will continue to be defeated by Satan.**

When the young Christian starts to cast out demons, he will make statements like, "You are completely free of demons." Jesus never told anyone in the Bible that they were completely free of demons.

BATTLE MYTHS

There are many myths about Christian warfare. Satan is a good Devil, a worthy Adversary, at what he does; he works twenty-four hours a day to destroy us. He will probably take about 98% of the world population and 75% of the church population to Hell with him. Matt. 7:14, Because strait is the gate, and narrow is the way, which leadeth unto life, and few there be that find it. All we need to have in the church is token deliverance. I can keep my cursed objects without causing any harm. We can get all of our demons cast out in one grand event. I am sure you realize that these are false statements.

The Woman Question - Should a man minister to a woman alone in deliverance? Should a woman minister to a man alone in deliverance? What is the possible happening? We minister as a husband and wife team. What are the advantages of this method? What about protection from sex traps laid by Satan? Assume a woman minister travels with another woman. What are the pit-falls? Assume a woman who ministers by herself is either married or unmarried. What are the pitfalls? Assume a woman who ministers is married and her husband is unsaved or saved, and will not travel with her. What are the pitfalls?

Comments - Common teaching is that a Christian can not have a demon. Churches need demonstrations to show the manifestations to the congregations. It will be very difficult for a woman who has an unsaved husband to be effective in deliverance. They are not in agreement, woman is weaker vessel, she must go by herself, etc. A woman is much more effective when she is married and her husband is a believer who practices deliverance. Transfer of spirits can not occur unless there is a crack in your armour.

Loudness Of Voice - Many people feel that if you shout or scream at demons that they will come out sooner. The contrary is true. If the demons feel that you don't know your authority or how to cast out demons, they will feel that you are in a weak position and will resist leaving.

The formula for casting out demons is Mark 16:17, **And these signs** (signs, wonders and miracles) **shall follow them that believe** (Christians that believe the Bible); **In my name** (Jesus Christ) **shall they cast out** (command out) **devils; they shall speak with new tongues.** An *analysis of this* verse reveals that you must believe the Bible in what it says about casting out demons, you cast them out in the Name of Jesus, and signs will follow your ministry. I charge you by Jesus Christ to cast out demons if you are a Christian. Even children can cast out demons in the Name of Jesus.

LAYING HANDS ON OTHERS

This is an area that is dangerous and caution must be exercised because of the potential harm to individuals and God's Kingdom. A good verse to ponder is I Tim. 5:22, Lay hands suddenly on no man, neither be partaker of other men's sins: keep thyself pure.

It is not necessary to lay hands on someone to cast out demons. In some cases it is better not to lay hands on the person being ministered to. This is especially true when casting out sexual demons from the opposite sex. You need to be led by the Holy Spirit in what to do.

If you have sexual demons within you, they will interact with the sexual demons in the other person. They will stir up emotions in either or both individuals. This is especially true between the opposite sex, or between homosexuals, or between lesbians.

We have observed men laying hands on women, and women laying hands on men. The safest way is to lay hands on the top of the head. Next in safeness is to lay hands on the shoulder. Many times God heals by the lengthening of legs and straightening of the back. In this instance it is safe to hold a persons shoes and pray for them. In between the head and shoulders, and the feet is the danger zone of eroticism (sexual arousal). This is the area that stirs up sexual feelings.

The way a person ministers to others reveals what is going on inside them.

Suppose that a person has latent homosexual or lesbian demons that they are not aware of. Then, they will want to love on men and boys, or women and girls. They may want to lay hands on their sexual organs and to kiss them to get rid of the homosexual or lesbian demons. This actually invites these type of demons to attack the person being ministered to and satisfies the demons within the person doing the ministering. Ministers have that tendency if they are not careful.

Comments - Some women want to be lord over the men in deliverance; they feel justified even if they are wrong. Men and women should not be in competition. Some deliverance does more harm than good if not done properly such as pulling out a persons eye to get rid of the demon. Their doctrine should be sound and according to the Bible.

Traveling Ministries - Suppose that a man or woman travels alone in the ministry. This person could be single or married. If married, the mate is not traveling with that person. Sexual pressures and loneliness may build up in the traveling evangelist. There may be an unconscious desire to love on the person being ministered to; this satisfies the unfulfilled desire within the minister. This is extremely dangerous and has caused many divorces and loss of ministries.

Outside of the desire to live, sex is the greatest drive in mankind. The big three used to destroy a persons relationship with God are money, sex and power. Sex is a playground for Satan and he has used it to destroy multitudes of Christians, ministers and churches.

The Bible clearly states that the woman is weaker than the man. A woman traveling alone is more vulnerable than a man traveling alone. The woman is also subject to being raped or molested. However, it is now getting to the point where men are being raped too.

Suppose that the woman is a lesbian or has lesbian tendencies, is manly or has manly qualities, or has problems with rejection and not being loved. Traveling with another woman may lead to a lesbian relationship. If a woman looks like, acts like or dresses like a man, then she is a candidate for this problem.

Private Ministry - A man should not minister to a woman alone and a woman should not minister to a man alone. What frequently happens is that the couple ends up in bed having sex. Suppose that the minister is a man of God. Many women will come to him with their problems of a serious nature. He may feel sorry for them and try to comfort their feelings. If he does not go about this ministry in a proper way, then he is on the abbess of destruction which can lead to Hell.

Suppose that the minister is a woman of God. She may feel that she is strong and not subject to the temptations of mortal woman. Due to her lack of a man, she may go overboard in ministering to the man and make a fool out of herself. She may feel that she can minister to the man in her motel room which is the ideal setup for Satan's mischief.

Husband and wife can protect each other from the opposite sex. You should ask yourself this question, "How am I opening myself up to sexual attack?"

Comments - Pastors can lay hands on women improperly and open themselves up to demon attack. Women should lay hands on women and men on men in places where it would be inappropriate for the opposite sex to place their hands. One problem area is that women want to be counseled privately by their male pastor. A lot of mischief can happen behind closed doors leading to sex even in the church.

Deliverance is not a parlor game! - Deliverance is not a plaything to make the meeting interesting. It is deadly serious and can make the difference between life and death, or a victorious life here and in the hereafter. We should not practice token deliverance in our meetings or churches.

Deliverance is not a grand event! - Deliverance is a way of life probably until we die and God takes over our training.

Christians are very demonized and require years for cleansing and retraining so that the demons are not let back in.

You can't keep your cursed objects and stay free! - If you persist in keeping your cursed objects, then you are cursed and the demons have a right to attack you, your family and what you have. Don't expect the demons to let you alone when you give them a right before God to torment you.

Fallen Deliverance Ministers - It is amazing to see the casualties among deliverance ministers.

These should be the strongest of Christians and the most knowledgeable of the Word. They are trapped by not confessing sin, not crucifying the flesh and not casting out demons in their lives. They are trying to help others when they need help themselves. They are immature and do not know the Word of God or much about deliverance. They have received a measure of deliverance but need much more.

It is also amazing to see these fallen men and women get into false doctrine. A big problem is their pride, ego and vanity. They want to be Number One or have the Preeminence. They want others to tell them how great they are. A common problem is being overweight and indulging themselves on food rather than the food of the Word. Most can not take constructive criticism and are very sensitive about their weight.

We all pay for our mistakes in the here-and-now and in the here-and-after. These people are not open minded and will not change. Therefore, their organizations suffer from their bad decisions of judgement in the mental, spiritual and material realms.

Comments - When praying for someone in a group, the group needs to yield to the person that God has given the authority and discernment. Follow their leadership. Share a Word of Knowledge with the leader. There needs to be discipline and not confusion. Everybody does not have to call the demon out. You do not need crying, loudness, wildness, shouting and disorder. The group needs to pray, agree, give support and have unity. The Holy Spirit needs to be followed so that God's battle for the individual can be won. The leader should not fall for trying to take God's glory.

DIFFICULTY IN DRIVING DEMONS OUT

Some demons come out easily and some demons take hours to drive out. A worthless command is, "All demons come out of this person or everyone in the congregation or everyone in the world now in the Name of Jesus." Another worthless statement is, "All of your demons are gone." How do you know that all of their demons are gone? Can you see into the body and soul of the person? If Jesus didn't say this, how can you?

AGREEMENT BETWEEN HUSBAND AND WIFE

When husband and wife agree, there is great power before God. When husband and wife disagree, there is weakness before God. In the deliverance ministry, they need to support each other. They can not be careless, take God for granted, or not do the things that a Christian must do. They need to train the children also about the battle. Satan will attack the children of a couple that minister in deliverance.

Comments - Inner healing, visualization, etc. is a cop-out for not doing deliverance. If you do deliverance, then inner healing is not required. If you only teach deliverance or only cast out demons or only counsel about deliverance, you will fail; to succeed you must do all of these things. A lot of Christians quit along the way such as after salvation, baptism, healing; you need to follow through to freedom. Teach deliverance - minister by casting out - counsel afterwards.

THREE-FOLD DELIVERANCE

The three arms of deliverance are teaching, ministering and counseling. If they ever get around to it, the church usually wants to cast out the demons and get this messy subject over with so that they can go on to more glorious services. Suppose the man is a drunk. Then, they will try to cast out drunkenness and not find out why the man became a drunk. This is surface or token deliverance: deal with the surface demons and not the root causes. If you don't deal with the reasons why the person became an alcoholic, then he will probably let the demon back in. It is difficult to dig out the root causes and is time consuming, requires discernment and must have the power of God.

Those who don't believe in deliverance say that all a Christian has to do it to crucify the flesh. In a sense they are right; you must crucify the flesh to be successful in deliverance. You can't get your pet demon cast out and go back and do the same thing again. Examples: smoking - the demon is cast out and the person goes out and buys a pack of cigarettes again; gluttony - the demon is cast out and the person goes and eats three pieces of pie.

Teaching and counseling must be continuing. You don't just bring in the deliverance minister once a year and that takes care of everything, or you minister to a person and you don't need to talk to that person again. This is the same problem that a new Christian faces after salvation - the need for continual feeding and growth.

Comments - Christians have many demons including the fivefold ministry. It is fantasy to believe that all it takes is one session of deliverance for life. Demons are very common are there are multiplied billions so that everyone can have their share. We cast about 10,000 demons out of one man over a period of about a year. This helped show us how demonized people were. Most of the people we have worked with are Full Gospel Christians. You are like a house with many rooms; every room needs to be cleaned. Search and destroy every problem that is ungodly so you can follow God. Deliverance is not for the unwilling or un- Christian; it is a waste of time. You can intercede, pray and war for them. Don't cast out demons from the non-Christian; you are doing them a disservice. Try to get them to accept Christ. The best way is face-to-face; next best is phone line to phone line. You can cast out demons across the world on the phone. If the person is willing and will submit to your leadership, then deliverance can be effective over the phone. There is no distance in God and He can be everywhere at once. Your mate needs to agree with you and both need to walk the Christian walk. There must be good communications and openness between mates who are in deliverance. Allow you wife to have her say and do not become bitter against her.

LIST OF DEMONS TO USE WITH HOW NOT TO DO DELIVERANCE

You can use Lists of Demons found in the lessons: **Bad Habits of Thinking and Reacting, Charismatic Witchcraft, Drunkenness and Gluttony, and Ingratitude.** The following are characteristics of those in this lesson: hate, vengeance, envy, strife, rejection, bitterness, rebellion, selfishness, Ahab, Jezebel, ignorance, false doctrines, seduction, soul ties, alluring, carelessness, pride, immorality, taking God for granted, spiritual weakness, unforgiveness, cursed objects, sexual demons, homosexuality, lesbianism, eroticism, demonic sexual feelings, demonic kissing, sexual pressures, loneliness, divorce, separation, love of money, manly women, effeminate men, inability to give or receive love, token deliverance, immaturity, ego, vanity, overweight, drunkenness, smoking.

SECTION 18 - SUPPLEMENT TO DELIVERANCE MANUAL

CONTENTS

- 1. Preface
- 2. Battle
- 3. Basic Deliverance
- 4. Advanced Deliverance Manual
- 5. Curses
- 6. Scriptural Studies
- 7. Healing And Body
- 8. Sex
- 9. Religions

PREFACE

General

The only way for deliverance to spread around the world is for many people to begin to practice deliverance. I encourage you to take this guide, begin to practice deliverance, and to help others as you grow stronger. **God told us to help train an army to minister deliverance.** May God bless you with all spiritual blessings and bring you into all spiritual truth!

Mass deliverance is simply deliverance for everyone that can hear your voice. You can use this lesson for your family or church. Normally we only work on one area of a persons life in a meeting and do not try to cover all areas at the same time.

There is nothing mysterious about deliverance; any Christian can cast out demons. As a teacher, I am worthless if I can not show you how to practice what I teach. The Bible is also worthless to you unless you put it into practice.

Encouragement - Deliverance is the last battleground to complete freedom of the Christian. **The battle is the greatest and Satan will fight the hardest against this ministry.** You are fighting Gods battles; you are cursed if you are unwilling to fight.

The benefits far outweigh having to go through the battle. You will learn things about the spiritual world that can not be learned in any way other than being involved in deliverance. **You will see many signs, wonders and miracles performed by God.** You will see peoples' lives changed before your eyes and dramatically changed for the better. You will help your family as you are helping others; the fringe benefits are great!

Healing and deliverance go hand-in-hand. Many can not get healed without deliverance. You will see many healings and miraculous healings by the Lord through praying for healing and casting out of demons of infirmities.

Reason For Learning - The main reason we are teaching you how to do basic deliverance is that every Christian should be able to cast out demons at least in their own family. Later on God may lead you to have deliverance services in your home or church. God told us to train an army for His use; you are part of that army! Deliverance will assist in establishing family order and God's order. Every Christian should cast out demons (Mark 16:17). There are not many "Deliverance Ministers" to help people. Christians have many demons; proper deliverance takes a lot of time. Deliverance is a way of life and not a grand event.

Parents are the best persons to minister to their children; husband to wife and wife to husband. Parents need to protect their children and set the family free from demons.

Deliverance gives an understanding of God's and Satan's kingdoms that you will not get any other way. Deliverance allows you to see into the spiritual world by the manifestations of demons and angels.

Get involved! Study to show yourself approved by God. Seek God about deliverance. **Deliverance is a constant learning process.** Satan has spent thousands of years weaving a very complicated system to trap you and take you to Hell or cause you to live a miserable Christian life here on earth.

GOD IS A MAN OF WAR SCRIPTURES

Nu. 23:8How shall I curse, whom God hath not cursed?De. 29:20All the curses that are written in this book shall be upon him.Jos. 11:20That he might destroy them utterly.ISa. 19:5And the Lord wrought a great salvation for all Israel.25:28Because my lord fighteth the hatdes of the Lord.II Sa. 23:12And the Lord wrought a great victory.ICh. 29:11Is the greatness, and the power, and the glory, and the victory.II Ch. 34:24Thus saith the Lord, Behold, I will bring evil upon this place.Ps. 24:8The Lord strong and mighty, the Lord mighty in battle.68:18Thou hast led captivity captive.89:8O Lord God of hosts, who is a strong Lord like unto thee?Is. 3:1For, behold, the Lord, the Lord of hosts.10:16The Lord of hosts, sent among his fat ones leanness.11:4And he shall smite the earth with the rod of his mouth.13:5Even the Lord, and the weapons of his indignation, to destroy.42:13He shall stir up jealousy like a man of war.14: 3:10Israel is the rod of his inheritance; Lord of hosts is his name.51:20Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war.14: 3:11I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath.17: 9Israel is the Lord God of Israel.70: 22And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.16: 0In event of the leaven shall be shaken.17: 19Israel is the votory, brough of Israel.70: 24:29And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.7	Ex. 15:3	The Lord is a man of war: the Lord is his name.
Jos. 11:20That he might destroy them utterly.ISa. 19:5And the Lord wrought a great salvation for all Israel.25:28Because my lord fighteth the hatdes of the Lord.II Sa. 23:12And the Lord wrought a great victory.ICh. 29:11Is the greatness, and the power, and the glory, and the victory.II Ch. 34:24Thus saith the Lord, Behold, I will bring evil upon this place.Ps. 24:8The Lord strong and mighty, the Lord mighty in battle.68:18Thou hast led captivity captive.89:8O Lord God of hosts, who is a strong Lord like unto thee?Is. 3:1For, behold, the Lord of hosts.10:16The Lord of hosts, sent among his fat ones leanness.11:4And he shall smite the earth with the rod of his mouth.13:5Even the Lord, and the weapons of his indignation, to destroy.42:13He shall stir up jealousy like a man of war.16:20Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war.16.3:1I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath.11:20Till he send forth judgment unto victory.24:29And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken.11:16Blessed be the Lord God of Israel.70:20And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	Nu. 23:8	How shall I curse, whom God hath not cursed?
ISa. 19:5And the Lord wrought a great salvation for all Israel.25:28Because my lord fighteth the hatdes of the Lord.II Sa. 23:12And the Lord wrought a great victory.ICh. 29:11Is the greatness, and the power, and the glory, and the victory.II Ch. 34:24Thus saith the Lord, Behold, I will bring evil upon this place.Ps. 24:8The Lord strong and mighty, the Lord mighty in battle.68:18Thou hast led captivity captive.89:8O Lord God of hosts, who is a strong Lord like unto thee?Is. 3:1For, behold, the Lord, the Lord of hosts.10:16The Lord of hosts, sent among his fat ones leanness.11:4And he shall smite the earth with the rod of his mouth.13:5Even the Lord, and the weapons of his indignation, to destroy.42:13He shall stir up jealousy like a man of war.16:25Opened his armory, brought forth weapons of his indignation.51:19Israel is the rod of his inheritance; Lord of hosts is his name.51:20Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war.La. 3:1I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath.Mt. 12:20Till he send forth judgment unto victory.24:29And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken.Lu. 1:68Blessed be the Lord God of Israel.Ro. 16:20And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	De. 29:20	All the curses that are written in this book shall be upon him.
 25:28 Because my lord fighteth the hatdes of the Lord. II Sa. 23:12 And the Lord wrought a great victory. ICh. 29:11 Is the greatness, and the power, and the glory, and the victory. II Ch. 34:24 Thus saith the Lord, Behold, I will bring evil upon this place. Ps. 24:8 The Lord strong and mighty, the Lord mighty in battle. 68:18 Thou hast led captivity captive. 89:8 O Lord God of hosts, who is a strong Lord like unto thee? Is. 3:1 For, behold, the Lord, the Lord of hosts. 10:16 The Lord of hosts, sent among his fat ones leanness. 11:4 And he shall smite the earth with the rod of his mouth. 13:5 Even the Lord, and the weapons of his indignation, to destroy. 42:13 He shall stir up jealousy like a man of war. Je. 35:17 Therefore thus saith the Lord God of hosts, the God of Israel. 50:25 Opened his armory, brought forth weapons of his indignation. 51:20 Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war. La. 3:1 I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath. Mt. 12:20 Till he send forth judgment unto victory. 24:29 And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken. Lu. 1:68 Blessed be the Lord God of Israel. Ro. 16:20 And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly. 	Jos. 11:20	That he might destroy them utterly.
II Sa. 23:12And the Lord wrought a great victory.ICh. 29:11Is the greatness, and the power, and the glory, and the victory.II Ch. 34:24Thus saith the Lord, Behold, I will bring evil upon this place.Ps. 24:8The Lord strong and mighty, the Lord mighty in battle.68:18Thou hast led captivity captive.89:8O Lord God of hosts, who is a strong Lord like unto thee?Is. 3:1For, behold, the Lord, the Lord of hosts.10:16The Lord of hosts, sent among his fat ones leanness.11:4And he shall smite the earth with the rod of his mouth.13:5Even the Lord, and the weapons of his indignation, to destroy.42:13He shall stir up jealousy like a man of war.19: 35:17Therefore thus saith the Lord God of hosts is his name.51:20Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war.14. 3:1I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath.Mt. 12:20Till he send forth judgment unto victory.24:29And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken.Lu. 1:68Blessed be the Lord God of Israel.Ro. 16:20And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	ISa. 19:5	And the Lord wrought a great salvation for all Israel.
ICh. 29:11Is the greatness, and the power, and the glory, and the victory.II Ch. 34:24Thus saith the Lord, Behold, I will bring evil upon this place.Ps. 24:8The Lord strong and mighty, the Lord mighty in battle.68:18Thou hast led captivity captive.89:8O Lord God of hosts, who is a strong Lord like unto thee?Is. 3:1For, behold, the Lord, the Lord of hosts.10:16The Lord of hosts, sent among his fat ones leanness.11:4And he shall smite the earth with the rod of his mouth.13:5Even the Lord, and the weapons of his indignation, to destroy.42:13He shall stir up jealousy like a man of war.Je. 35:17Therefore thus saith the Lord God of hosts, the God of Israel.50:25Opened his armory, brought forth weapons of his indignation.51:20Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war.La. 3:1I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath.Mt. 12:20Till he send forth judgment unto victory.24:29And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken.Lu. 1:68Blessed be the Lord God of Israel.Ro. 16:20And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	25:28	Because my lord fighteth the hatdes of the Lord.
II Ch. 34:24Thus saith the Lord, Behold, I will bring evil upon this place.Ps. 24:8The Lord strong and mighty, the Lord mighty in battle.68:18Thou hast led captivity captive.89:8O Lord God of hosts, who is a strong Lord like unto thee?Is. 3:1For, behold, the Lord, the Lord of hosts.10:16The Lord of hosts, sent among his fat ones leanness.11:4And he shall smite the earth with the rod of his mouth.13:5Even the Lord, and the weapons of his indignation, to destroy.42:13He shall stir up jealousy like a man of war.Je. 35:17Therefore thus saith the Lord God of hosts, the God of Israel.50:25Opened his armory, brought forth weapons of his indignation.51:20Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war.La. 3:1I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath.Mt. 12:20Till he send forth judgment unto victory.24:29And the God of Jerael.Ro. 16:20And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	II Sa. 23:12	And the Lord wrought a great victory.
Ps. 24:8The Lord strong and mighty, the Lord mighty in battle.68:18Thou hast led captivity captive.89:8O Lord God of hosts, who is a strong Lord like unto thee?Is. 3:1For, behold, the Lord, the Lord of hosts.10:16The Lord of hosts, sent among his fat ones leanness.11:4And he shall smite the earth with the rod of his mouth.13:5Even the Lord, and the weapons of his indignation, to destroy.42:13He shall stir up jealousy like a man of war.Je. 35:17Therefore thus saith the Lord God of hosts, the God of Israel.50:25Opened his armory, brought forth weapons of his indignation.51:19Israel is the rod of his inheritance; Lord of hosts is his name.51:20Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war.La. 3:1I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath.Mt. 12:20Till he send forth judgment unto victory.24:29And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken.Lu. 1:68Blessed be the Lord God of Israel.Ro. 16:20And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	ICh. 29:11	Is the greatness, and the power, and the glory, and the victory.
68:18Thou hast led captivity captive.89:8O Lord God of hosts, who is a strong Lord like unto thee?Is. 3:1For, behold, the Lord, the Lord of hosts.10:16The Lord of hosts, sent among his fat ones leanness.11:4And he shall smite the earth with the rod of his mouth.13:5Even the Lord, and the weapons of his indignation, to destroy.42:13He shall stir up jealousy like a man of war.Je. 35:17Therefore thus saith the Lord God of hosts, the God of Israel.50:25Opened his armory, brought forth weapons of his indignation.51:19Israel is the rod of his inheritance; Lord of hosts is his name.51:20Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war.La. 3:1I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath.Mt. 12:20Till he send forth judgment unto victory.24:29And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken.Lu. 1:68Blessed be the Lord God of Israel.Ro. 16:20And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	II Ch. 34:24	Thus saith the Lord, Behold, I will bring evil upon this place.
89:8O Lord God of hosts, who is a strong Lord like unto thee?Is. 3:1For, behold, the Lord, the Lord of hosts.10:16The Lord of hosts, sent among his fat ones leanness.11:4And he shall smite the earth with the rod of his mouth.13:5Even the Lord, and the weapons of his indignation, to destroy.42:13He shall stir up jealousy like a man of war.Je. 35:17Therefore thus saith the Lord God of hosts, the God of Israel.50:25Opened his armory, brought forth weapons of his indignation.51:19Israel is the rod of his inheritance; Lord of hosts is his name.51:20Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war.La. 3:1I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath.Mt. 12:20Till he send forth judgment unto victory.24:29And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken.Lu. 1:68Blessed be the Lord God of Israel.Ro. 16:20And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	Ps. 24:8	The Lord strong and mighty, the Lord mighty in battle.
Is. 3:1For, behold, the Lord, the Lord of hosts.10:16The Lord of hosts, sent among his fat ones leanness.11:4And he shall smite the earth with the rod of his mouth.13:5Even the Lord, and the weapons of his indignation, to destroy.42:13He shall stir up jealousy like a man of war.Je. 35:17Therefore thus saith the Lord God of hosts, the God of Israel.50:25Opened his armory, brought forth weapons of his indignation.51:19Israel is the rod of his inheritance; Lord of hosts is his name.51:20Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war.La. 3:1I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath.Mt. 12:20Till he send forth judgment unto victory.24:29And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken.Lu. 1:68Blessed be the Lord God of Israel.Ro. 16:20And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	68:18	Thou hast led captivity captive.
10:16The Lord of hosts, sent among his fat ones leanness.11:4And he shall smite the earth with the rod of his mouth.13:5Even the Lord, and the weapons of his indignation, to destroy.42:13He shall stir up jealousy like a man of war.Je. 35:17Therefore thus saith the Lord God of hosts, the God of Israel.50:25Opened his armory, brought forth weapons of his indignation.51:19Israel is the rod of his inheritance; Lord of hosts is his name.51:20Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war.La. 3:1I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath.Mt. 12:20Till he send forth judgment unto victory.24:29And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken.Lu. 1:68Blessed be the Lord God of Israel.Ro. 16:20And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	89:8	O Lord God of hosts, who is a strong Lord like unto thee?
11:4And he shall smite the earth with the rod of his mouth.13:5Even the Lord, and the weapons of his indignation, to destroy.42:13He shall stir up jealousy like a man of war.Je. 35:17Therefore thus saith the Lord God of hosts, the God of Israel.50:25Opened his armory, brought forth weapons of his indignation.51:19Israel is the rod of his inheritance; Lord of hosts is his name.51:20Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war.La. 3:1I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath.Mt. 12:20Till he send forth judgment unto victory.24:29And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken.Lu. 1:68Blessed be the Lord God of Israel.Ro. 16:20And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	Is. 3:1	For, behold, the Lord, the Lord of hosts.
13:5Even the Lord, and the weapons of his indignation, to destroy.42:13He shall stir up jealousy like a man of war.Je. 35:17Therefore thus saith the Lord God of hosts, the God of Israel.50:25Opened his armory, brought forth weapons of his indignation.51:19Israel is the rod of his inheritance; Lord of hosts is his name.51:20Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war.La. 3:1I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath.Mt. 12:20Till he send forth judgment unto victory.24:29And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken.Lu. 1:68Blessed be the Lord God of Israel.Ro. 16:20And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	10:16	The Lord of hosts, sent among his fat ones leanness.
 42:13 He shall stir up jealousy like a man of war. Je. 35:17 Therefore thus saith the Lord God of hosts, the God of Israel. 50:25 Opened his armory, brought forth weapons of his indignation. 51:19 Israel is the rod of his inheritance; Lord of hosts is his name. 51:20 Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war. La. 3:1 I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath. Mt. 12:20 Till he send forth judgment unto victory. 24:29 And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken. Lu. 1:68 Blessed be the Lord God of Israel. Ro. 16:20 And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly. 	11:4	And he shall smite the earth with the rod of his mouth.
Je. 35:17Therefore thus saith the Lord God of hosts, the God of Israel.50:25 Opened his armory, brought forth weapons of his indignation.51:19Israel is the rod of his inheritance; Lord of hosts is his name.51:20Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war.La. 3:1I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath.Mt. 12:20Till he send forth judgment unto victory.24:29And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken.Lu. 1:68Blessed be the Lord God of Israel.Ro. 16:20And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	13:5	Even the Lord, and the weapons of his indignation , to destroy.
50:25Opened his armory, brought forth weapons of his indignation.51:19Israel is the rod of his inheritance; Lord of hosts is his name.51:20Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war.La. 3:1I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath.Mt. 12:20Till he send forth judgment unto victory.24:29And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken.Lu. 1:68Blessed be the Lord God of Israel.Ro. 16:20And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	42:13	He shall stir up jealousy like a man of war.
51:19Israel is the rod of his inheritance; Lord of hosts is his name.51:20Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war.La. 3:1I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath.Mt. 12:20Till he send forth judgment unto victory.24:29And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken.Lu. 1:68Blessed be the Lord God of Israel.Ro. 16:20And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	Je. 35:17	Therefore thus saith the Lord God of hosts, the God of Israel.
51:20Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war.La. 3:1I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath.Mt. 12:20Till he send forth judgment unto victory.24:29And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken.Lu. 1:68Blessed be the Lord God of Israel.Ro. 16:20And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	50:25	Opened his armory, brought forth weapons of his indignation.
La. 3:1I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath.Mt. 12:20Till he send forth judgment unto victory.24:29And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken.Lu. 1:68Blessed be the Lord God of Israel.Ro. 16:20And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	51:19	Israel is the rod of his inheritance; Lord of hosts is his name.
Mt. 12:20Till he send forth judgment unto victory.24:29And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken.Lu. 1:68Blessed be the Lord God of Israel.Ro. 16:20And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	51:20	Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war.
24:29And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken.Lu. 1:68Blessed be the Lord God of Israel.Ro. 16:20And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	La. 3:1	I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath.
Lu. 1:68Blessed be the Lord God of Israel.Ro. 16:20And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	Mt. 12:20	Till he send forth judgment unto victory.
Ro. 16:20 And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.	24:29	And the powers of the heavens shall be shaken.
-	Lu. 1:68	Blessed be the Lord God of Israel.
I Co. 15:57 Which giveth us the victory through our Lord Jesus Christ.	Ro. 16:20	And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly.
	I Co. 15:57	Which giveth us the victory through our Lord Jesus Christ.

II Co. 10:4 Col. 2:15 I Jo. 3:8 5:4 Ex. 15:3 Nu. 23:8 De. 29:20 Jos. 11:20 ISa. 19:5 25:28 II Sa. 23:12 ICh. 29:11 II Ch. 34:24 Ps. 24:8 68:18 89:8 Is. 3:1 10:16 11:4 13:5 42:13 Je. 35:17 50:25 51:19 51:20 La. 3:1 Mt. 12:20 24:29 Lu. 1:68 Ro. 16:20 I Co. 15:57	 Weapons of our warfare are not carnal, but mighty through God. And having spoiled principalities and powers. That he might destroy the works of the devil. And this is the victory that overcometh the world. The Lord is a man of war: the Lord is his name. How shall I curse, whom God hath not cursed? All the curses that are written in this book shall be upon him. That he might destroy them utterly. And the Lord wrought a great salvation for all Israel. Because my lord fighteth the hatdes of the Lord. And the Lord wrought a great victory. Is the greatness, and the power, and the glory, and the victory. Thus saith the Lord, Behold, I will bring evil upon this place. The Lord of hosts, who is a strong Lord like unto thee? For, behold, the Lord of hosts. The Lord of hosts, who is a strong Lord like unto thee? For, behold, the Lord of hosts. The Lord of hosts, sent among his fat ones leanness. And he shall smite the earth with the rod of his mouth. Even the Lord, and the weapons of his indignation, to destroy. He shall stir up jealousy like a man of war. Therefore thus saith the Lord God of hosts, the God of Israel. Opened his armory, brought forth weapons of his indignation. Israel is the rod of his inheritance; Lord of hosts is his name. Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war. I am the man that hath seen affliction by the rod of his wrath. Till he send forth judgment unto victory. And the God of peace shall bruise Satan under your feet shortly. Which giveth us the victory through our Lord Jesus Christ.
I Co. 15:57 II Co. 10:4	Weapons of our warfare are not carnal, but mighty through God.
Col. 2:15	And having spoiled principalities and powers.
I Jo. 3:8	That he might destroy the works of the devil.
5:4	And this is the victory that overcometh the world.

PREFACE - Before we taught this lesson at Lake Hamilton Bible Camp, there was a prophecy about God being a Man of War with His related activities. Glen Miller then defined the phrase, God of Hosts, as God of Armies. **We are soldiers in the Army of God.**

Earline and I have been going through a personal battle since she had kidney failure. We have been in the valley of the shadow of death. Someday Earline will write a lesson about what she has learned in this experience. Earline taught a lesson, Curses for Shedding Innocent Blood, just before we found out about her kidneys. She may have been attacked for teaching this important lesson. Innocent blood of aborted babies is probably what will bring down the United States of America through God s punishment of our nation. We want to thank everyone for their prayers, letters, phone calls and visits. We especially needed them in this time of crisis and we need them in the future. We are believing for a supernatural healing and miracle of restoration for Earline's kidneys. Please keep praying and agreeing for God to work that in miracle in our lives.

We work together as a deliverance team. I don't feel that God called me to go forth around the world without Earline. We are wondering what will become of the ministry. I wasn't sure that I would be back to teach at camp.

YOUNG'S ANALYTICAL CONCORDANCE TO THE BIBLE

Young's defines the key words in the above verses as: fighting, war, battle, arms, victory, pierce, execrate, oath, imprecation, destroy, cut off, waste, loose, strip off, unclothe, rub together, shake ability, warfare, service, conflict, eating up, badness, pre-imminence, security, safety, and hammer.

DESCRIPTIONS OF GOD

The Lord is described by different phrases: man of war, strong and mighty, mighty in battle, God of hosts, God of Israel, God of peace, Lord Jesus Christ and Lord God. It is clear that He is God and Lord, even The Lord God. He is God over all and He delegates authority to whom He will.

The verses above list characteristics of God: God curses people, sends all the curses, destroy them utterly, wrought a great salvation, wrought a great victory, victory of God, I will bring evil, smite the earth with the rod of his mouth, the weapons of his indignation, opened his armory, the rod of his wrath, he sent forth judgment unto victory, powers of the heavens shall be shaken, God of peace shall bruise Satan, giveth us the victory through our Lord Jesus Christ, spoiled principalities and powers, destroy the works of the devil, and the victory that overcometh the world.

DOES GOD CURSE PEOPLE?

It is probably worthwhile to comment about where curses come from. All of the curses were written in the Holy Bible by God. These are curses that God put into effect to penalize us for not following the Word of God. Satan did not invent these curses.

People do not like to say that God cursed them or others. However, the Bible says that we can not curse whom God hath not cursed. If a people is blessed by God, then the curse will not land. They are blessed because they follow God and obey Him. If a people is cursed by God, then we can not bless them and reverse the curse unless the people repent and change their ways.

THE NATION OF ISRAEL

Simply, we are blessed when we obey and cursed when we disobey the commandments in the Bible. A good example to study is the Nation of Israel and their rise and fall through the years. You can see the Law of Blessing and Cursing in operation in God's chosen people. There are a lot of good lessons to be learned by studying Israel's rise and fall in the Bible as well as in the history books.

Balak, King of Moab, hired Balaam, a Midianite prophet, to curse Israel when they were journeying in his territory. The story is found in Numbers 22-31. Moab was afraid of Israel because God was with them and they were destroying their enemies. He called Balaam to curse Israel to destroy that nation. God told Balaam not to go but he apparently wanted the reward. God let Balaam go but he cursed himself in going. Balaam could not curse Israel because they were following God. He actually blessed Israel and cursed Moab. Balaam counseled Balak to get the people of Israel to sin.

Israel then committed whoredom and idolatry with the women of Moab. They cursed themselves by disobeying God. The wrath of God descended on Israel. Finally, the Midianites are spoiled and Balaam is slain.

Law of Blessing and Cursing - Israel is blessed because of obedience. Balaam can not curse them. Israel curses themselves by idolatry. God is angry with them and a plague starts.

Moab is cursed because of incest, etc. Balak wants to curse Israel but cannot. He probably encourages the women to commit whoredom with the Israelites. The Moabites are later destroyed.

Balaam is a soothsayer. He disobeys God and greedily seeks a reward. In so doing, he curses himself and is later killed.

WARRIORS FOR CHRIST

We taught a lesson at Camp called, Warriors for Christ. In that lesson are many scriptures describing our roles as warriors. It lists our weapons and how we are to use them. Please refer to that lesson for material not covered herein.

The verses above list phrases that apply to us showing the God is our Commander-in-Chief: we fight in the battles of the Lord, we are his battle axes and weapons of war, and our weapons are not carnal but spiritual.

WHY DID JESUS COME TO EARTH?

I John 3:8 For this purpose the Son of God was manifested, that he might destroy the works of the Devil. Most adults can not answer this question correctly! Most people think that He came to save them. Salvation is just part of what Jesus Christ accomplished on earth. As you can see from the scripture above, He bruised Satan's head, led captivity captive, divided the spoil, cast out Satan, judged prince of world, spoiled principalities and powers, abolished death, put all things in subjection, etc.

As you study the Bible, it is clear that Jesus Christ, The Son of God, completely defeated Satan and his army of fallen angels and demons. It is also clear that God Almighty made provisions that we can be totally victorious in Him according to His Ways. Wouldn't it be ridiculous if God setup a plan for children of God to lose to the forces of evil?

If Satan has been completely defeated, then why do we still have to war with the enemy? It is simple; Satan is free to roam the earth until he is bound up for a thousand years. Until then, he

can do everything we will let him do to destroy us. Satan has no power over us but we let him trick us due to our ignorance of the Bible and because of sin in our lives.

DOES GOD WORK THROUGH US?

Jer. 51:20 Thou art my battle ax and weapons of war: for with thee will I break in pieces the nations, and with thee will I destroy kingdoms.

Why doesn't God do everything Himself? He certainly could! God has chosen to work through His children. The condition of the world is the responsibility of the Christian body and especially the leaders. It is clear that the five-fold ministry has failed to properly teach and show the world how to live. The world will never be won for Christ with the ignorance, cowardliness and greed of the present day ministry.

THE WAR OF THE AGES

God is our leader in the war and we clearly are in a series of battles. The warfare is against Satan and his multitude of evil forces. It is all out spiritual warfare until the end of the world as we know it. It is a life and death battle for our spiritual and physical lives.

We are warriors for Christ, have weapons and are taught how to use the weapons in the Bible. We are cursed, even bitterly, if we won't fight in the battles of the Lord. We have to be willing to shed blood in the spiritual battle. Judges 5:23 Curse ye Meroz, said the angel of the Lord, curse ye bitterly the inhabitants thereof; because they came not to the help of the Lord, to the help of the Lord against the mighty. Jer. 48:10 Cursed be he that doeth the work of the Lord deceitfully, and cursed be he that keepeth back his sword from blood. Other verses are Ge. 3:17 - those who hearken unto their wives rather than God, I Ki. 20:35-42 - him who keeps hack his sword from blood, and Ez. 3:18-21 -those who refuse to warn them that sin.

Deliverance is at the front lines in the hottest part of the spiritual battle. God parachutes you into the pits of peoples' personal hell to help them.

Deliverance is controversial and not popular. You have to be willing to sacrifice certain parts of your life style if necessary to help people in spite of the church opposition to deliverance and demon forces working against you.

Jesus was sent to destroy the works of the enemy. He accomplished that feat and gave us the keys to victory. However, it is up to us to use the keys of victory in our personal battle of our lifetime. If we don't fully use the keys as listed in the Bible, we will be partially or fully defeated by the forces of evil.

God chooses to work through us as well as sovereignty on His own. We can't dictate to God or put Him in a box. He doesn't have to obey our commandments or orders; we have to obey

His. Just because we say it, God doesn't have to do it especially when it is unscriptural. A lot of what is said in the Christian world is man's thoughts and not God's thoughts. This is frequently the case when we are praying warfare or fighting in the heavenlies. If what we say doesn't line up

with the Word of God, then God will not answer but Satan will answer every demonic prayer. Watch and see what happens when you pray. How are your sayings coming to pass?

PASSIVE JUDGEMENT

There are those who can't make clear judgments on issues and misuse the verse to judge not. Many do not realize they are to judge every prophecy, the fruit in our lives and in the lives of others, and on and on. You need to judge everything you see, hear or read. If not, you will be submitted to every wind of evil doctrine and fall into many hurtful traps. I once heard a pastor tell his people they should not criticize him even when he is wrong, neither should they talk about him. I have seen strange things in that church: an unusually large number of divorces, illegitimate children, crimes of theft and forced entry, idolatry, etc. People should be taught to properly make scriptural judgement.

WHAT IS WITCHCRAFT PRACTICED BY CHRISTIANS?

Witchcraft is defined as the power or practices of witches; sorcery; black magic; bewitching attraction or charm; enchantment; irresistible influence; fascination. Enchantment is defined as the act of casting a spell over; the use of magic to charm; the state of being under the influence of a magic spell or charm; a magic spell or charm; something the charms or delights greatly; great delight or pleasure. Also consider the words fascination, charm, captivation, allurement. Witchcraft is simply trying to control others for your own benefit no matter how worthy the cause may be.

God anoints and provides for his ministers to do his work here on earth. The people look to the ministers to help them live according to the Bible. This gives them a power over the people that can be used for good or evil. Silly women look up to the pastors as someone on a pedestal and frequently end up having sex with the weak pastors. Silly men want the admiration of the pastors and try to please the prideful pastors to gain favor. In the positions of the fivefold ministry, it is easy to fleece the flock.

PLAYING GOD IN PEOPLE'S LIVES

When we got into deliverance, people would come to us for help of many different types. They wanted us to go to God and find out what they were supposed to do. They wanted us to be their parents, show them parental love and tell them how to conduct their lives. They wanted to pay us for our help, give us gifts of love, and give us tithes and offerings.

Why would the people come to us for help? The Christian body is hurting and can not find the needed help in the church. The churches refuse to practice deliverance, healing, etc. and teach the whole truth of the Bible. If the people have problems, the church sends them to the world for help. They are sent to the medical profession to be physically healed in the body, to the psychiatric profession to be mentally healed in the soul, to the social profession to be financially healed in the material realm, and in certain ways to the world in general to be spiritually healed such as receiving peace.

The people did not feel that they could hear from God or had a good relationship with Him. They thought that we did since we could help them and that God would speak to us for them. They may have been lazy, ignorant or have some other reason why they wanted to place us as interme-

diaries between them and God. They may have had a Catholic or other religious background which caused them to look to man rather than directly to God for guidance.

Their parents did not provide the proper role models pointing them towards God, The Father. It is so important how the parents raise their children. Parents actually are in a position of being like God in the lives of the children. The way a child relates to their parents, especially to the father, is the way the child will relate to God in later life.

Many times when the children do not have good parents, they go through life seeking someone to fill that void in their lives. The parents may not have shown love for them. So, they seek love from others to fulfill that need. The parents may have been absentee parents and not given them guidance. So, they will seek others to guide them. They are still acting like a child even though they are adults.

People are so grateful for what you have done to help them that they are willing to pay you for your services or give you their tithe money. We sought the Lord about receiving money. We felt that He told us not to take money, explain to others that we didn't need money, that God was providing very well for us and to give their money to the church or some Christian work. If after a strong talk to them and they still felt that God wanted them to give us some money for the ministry, we would accept so that they could be blessed. The money given us was then placed in our tithe money to give to others or in the ministry of deliverance to buy publications for others.

Matt. 10:7-8 And as ye go, preach, saying, The kingdom of heaven is at hand. Heal the sick, cleanse the lepers, raise the dead, cast out devils: freely ye have received, freely give.

This is one of our favorite passages and we love to sing it or read it to the forces of evil. It could also be thought of as a great commission to us as well as other Christians. Notice that it said to freely give because that God has freely given to us. Therefore, we do not need the money of others because God is supplying our needs bountifully.

In our early ministry, God told us not to play God in the lives of his people. He was God and God would direct His church. We have tried to do that ever since. We do our best to help people, they do not owe us anything, and they are free to go and never return. This has worked out very well; God has rewarded us for obeying His Instructions.

It is easy to take advantage of the Christian body. God places the five-fold ministry and other spiritual leaders in a position where the people trust them and respect them. The leaders then take advantage of God's people for their own selfish reasons:

build a building, an empire, a ministry, an individual, etc. to satisfy and glorify the individuals in charge of the work. You especially see the leaders taking advantage of the money supplied for the use of themselves, their families and their friends. They take advantage of the women in the church, and sometimes sexually especially in the black churches.

In summary, parents are like God in the lives of their children. They should raise the children to have the proper relationship with Father God. The ministry should not act like God in the lives of their congregation. The leaders should train the people to go directly to God for their guidance.

EXAMPLES OF MINISTERS PLAYING GOD

We have seen this pattern through the years as we have ministered to people who have come out of churches and religious organizations, or came out from under the control of a pastor or other leader of that organization. It is amazing to watch the leader work witchcraft on his flock either ignorantly or deliberately to control them.

We have also seen this pattern as we sat in the congregation and had the leaders try to exercise witchcraft over us. We recognized the practice and did not receive it. Most people do not recognize the practice and receive demons. The people open themselves up to demon attack by their blind allegiance to the leaders and organization, and by accepting, not resisting, the damnable doctrine that was preached. Mat. 15:14 Let them alone: they he blind leaders of the blind. And if the blind lead the blind, both shall fall into the ditch.

What happens is that the leader opens the flock up to demon attack through his actions. The evil spirits assigned over the organization will be there because of the actions of the leader. Soul ties will be formed between the leader and the congregation. The leader will place curses on the followers. The leader will loose certain demons on the congregation due to what he says.

Let's talk in generalities. If the leader is sexually immoral, then the ruler will be a sexual demon; controls the congregation -witchcraft; steals money from the treasury - covetousness; drinks alcoholic beverages - addictions; glorifies himself -spiritual pride; and on and on. Then the ruler demons will try to cause the congregation to be like the leaders. If the leader is sexually loose, then the people will tend to be sexually loose. The religious organization will go the way of its leaders. A church we went to had three leaders fall into sexual sin; there were many illegitimate children in the church.

What is amazing is to watch these practices in Christians who move in deliverance. A Christian who walks in deliverance should be among the best educated of all Christians and have a better balance about what the Bible says. This is especially true of the deliverance ministers or lay workers. For instance, a pastor will cast out demons of witchcraft that came into the people in his congregation from practices outside of the church on the one hand, and then put demons of witchcraft into people in his congregation through his practices on the other hand.

In one example, the following happened. The pastor instilled fear in his people. He warned them about outside organizations, leaving the church, not submitting to his authority, criticizing him, etc. In the church, they had to obey and not question his authority. Outside the church, they couldn't leave his church and go to another church. They were paralyzed and were slaves to him. They were fearful of criticizing him and having him attack them from the pulpit. They were afraid to leave the church and lose their salvation. They were afraid of other organizations and people. If the people left, the people that remained could not associate with their dear friends that had left.

The church cursed and prayed against the people that left the church, and against any other group of people that the pastor may have had trouble with. Their actions sent demons to attack these people and organizations.

What were the results of the actions of the leaders? The leaders loosed demons on the people in the congregation and sent demons after the people that had left or had problems with the church. They cursed the people and spoke failure in their lives. The people had soul ties with the leaders.

When the people left the church, they felt that God did not love them, they may be loosing their salvation, they were fearful of many things, they could not function normally in life, they were hurt and rejected by the way they were treated, had pains and illnesses associated with fears, had spiritual pride about being in the only church, had problems forgiving the pastor and congregation about the way they were treated, were deceived about things of God, blamed the Lord for what had happened, and were confused and weakened by the experiences.

When an outside church renounced the practices of this church, the church was attacked by demons sent from the other church. The pastor and congregation had many problems in the church. You had one church praying against the other church. Actually, you had one church cursing the other church and loosing demons to attack the people in the church.

How can these curses fall on leaders, followers and other churches? Pr. 26:2 As the bird by wandering, as the swallow by flying, so the curse causeless shall not come. The curses fall on the leaders because they ignorantly or deliberately practice witchcraft which is clearly contrary to the Bible. The curses fall on the followers because they ignorantly follow the leaders who are sinning. The curses fall on other churches because they ignorantly practice the Word of God and leave themselves open to curses. The main reason is ignorance or lack of knowledge of the Bible. There are many other reasons such as the leader's selfishness, follower's weaknesses and a church's partial following of the Bible. We all probably have cracks in our armor which allow demons to attack us under certain circumstances.

You must completely break free spiritually and physically from the organization and its leaders. You must renounce the organization and its practices spiritually to God. You must ask God to help you in all of these things, and to have faith and trust in God. To do this requires forgiveness for the leaders and followers, asking God to forgive you for your sins of bitterness, etc, asking God to forgive and bless them, breaking soul ties and curses on your family, casting out demons that came in through soul ties, curses and association with the organization, praying for physical healing, and disciplining your mind not to yield to the programmed thinking of the leaders and demons.

In summary, no person should try to act like God in the lives of others and violate their freewill. Let God direct the actions of His Children. No person should submit their freewill to the leaders and become passive. A passive person is easily demonized because they yield. Both the leaders and the congregation will become demonized.

SEQUENCE OF DEMONIZATION

When people are subjected to these control practices, they become hurt and are influenced by the families of Rejection, Bitterness and Rebellion respectively in that order. They are attacked by the Charismatic Witchcraft demons sent from the leaders to the congregation. They personally submit to the Passive Mind demons by their actions. If people outside of the church have controlled them, then they are attacked by the Witchcraft demons of occult and demonic associations. If they personally have submitted to substances of abuse, then they are attacked by the Witchcraft demons of sorcery, drugs, alcohol, etc. which control the mind.

PRAYER

My dear heavenly and gracious Father, help me to recognize you as a Man of War and to be a Warrior for Christ. Help me to understand The Law of Blessing and Cursing. Give me Your Wisdom of why you came to earth and how you work through me to win The War of the Ages.

Forgive me for playing God in people's lives. Forgive me for not raising my children to have the proper relationship to God. I forgive the fivefold ministry for playing God in my life and violating my freewill. Forgive me for submitting to those who would try to control my will. Forgive me for my wrong thoughts and actions against those who have wronged me by their witchcraft. I pray that you would bless them with all spiritual blessings. Please help me Lord to have faith and trust in you and not in man.

I take authority over Satin according to the whole Word of God. I completely break free from any organization or leader that has dominated me. I renounce the organization and any practices that are ungodly. I now break all soul ties with those who have controlled me. I break the curses that have been placed upon me and my family.

I pray that you would deliver me from the demons that came in through these associations. I pray that you would heal me emotionally and physically from these experiences. Help me to cleanse my mind from the brain washing of the leaders. Help me to discipline my mind to look to The Father, Son and Holy Spirit as The Savior, Baptizer, Healer, Deliverer and Prosperer. I ask this prayer in the Name of Jesus Christ, my Lord, my Master and my Savior.

LIST OF DEMONS

Use the Lists of Demons found in the Mass Deliverance Manual. First take the people through Common Demon Groupings - Rejection, Bitterness and Rebellion Families. Then go on to Charismatic Witchcraft, Passive Mind, and finally Witchcraft.

REFERENCES:

Webster's New Twentieth Century Dictionary Unabridged

REPENTANCE – THE KEY TO DELIVERANCE SCRIPTURE

Job 42:6 - a good way to repent Jer. 8:6 - no man repented him of his wickedness 31:19 - surely after that I was turned, I repented

I Ki. 8:47 - repent, and make supplication unto thee Eze. 14:6 - repent, and turn from your idols 18:30 - repent and turn from all your transgressions

Matt. 3:2 - repent ye: for the kingdom of heaven is at hand
3:8 - bring forth fruits meet for repentance
3:11 - I baptize you with water unto repentance
4:17 - repent for the kingdom of heaven is at hand
9:13 - come to call the sinners to repentance

- 11:20 to upbraid because they repented not
- 11:21 they would have repented long ago
- 12:41 the repented at the preaching of Jonas
- 21:29 said, I will not: but afterward he repented
- 21:32 repented not afterward

Mark 1:4- baptism of repentance for the remission of sins

- 1:15 saying repent ye, and believe the gospel
- 6:12 and they preached that men should repent

Luke 13:3, 5 - except ye repent, ye shall all likewise perish

15:7, 10 - joy over one sinner that repenteth

16:30 - if one went unto them, they will repent

17:3 - rebuke him; and if he repent, forgive him

17:4 - turn again to thee, saying, I repent

24:47 - repentance and remission of sin should be preached

Acts 2:38 - repent, and be baptized every one of you

3:19 - repent ye therefore, and be converted

5:31 - give repentance to Israel, and forgiveness

8:22 - repent therefore of this thy wickedness

11:18 - then had God granted repentance unto life

13:24 - the baptism of repentance to all the people

17:30 - commandeth all men everywhere to repent

20:21 - repentance toward God, and faith toward our Lord

26:20 - they should repent and turn to God

Rom. 2:4 - goodness of God leadeth thee to repentance 11:29 - gifts and calling are without repentance

II Cor. 7:8 - I do not repent, though I did repent

7:9 - ye sorrowed to repentance

7:10- godly sorrow worketh repentance to salvation

12:21 - have not repented of the uncleanness

II Tim. 2:25 - peradventure will give them repentance Heb. 6:1 - foundation of repentance from dead works 6:6 - to renew them again unto repentance 12:17 - he found no place of repentance

II Pe. 3:9 - but that all should come to repentance

Rev. 2:5 - repent, and do the first works 2:16 - repent; or else I will come unto thee quickly

2:21 - repent of her fornication

2:22-1 will cast except they repent of their deeds

- 3:3 remember and hold fast, and repent
- 3:19 chasten: be zealous therefore, and repent
- 9:20 repented not of the works of their hands
- 9:21 neither repented they of their murders
- 16:9 and they repented not to give him glory
- 16:11 blasphemed and repented not of their deeds

IMPORTANT

The consequence of unforgiveness is the most important lesson that God has taught us about deliverance. Unforgiveness is a sin against God. The first thing you do is repent to God for having unforgiveness. Jesus Christ gave his life so that you can be forgiven for your sins. You come to realize what someone has done to you is insignificant as compared to what God did for you.

God taught us basic deliverance in the middle of the night in the middle of our bed. Deliverance saved our marriage and daughter, and may have even saved our lives. We use forgiveness as a basic technique in deliverance. When you think about forgiveness, you are forgiving those who have sinned against you.

This is a study about repentance. The subject is so important that it overwhelms me. I feel that my knowledge of repentance is inadequate for this important task. However, few ministers are willing to deal with the subject so here goes. This is a study of the words: repent, repentance and repenting.

FORGIVING SIN

Only Almighty God can forgive sin. No human being in any office such as priest can forgive sin. God does not have any representative on earth that He has transferred that authority to. That authority will always be with God.

FORGIVING OTHERS

God forgives sin but we forgive ourselves and others. We have the authority and responsibility to forgive human beings that have hurt us by sinning against God. We forgive ourselves for doing things that hurt us and our loved ones.

REMITTING AND RETAINING SIN

See John 20:21-23; verse 23 says Whose soever sins ye remit, they are remitted unto them; and whose soever sins ye retain, they are retained.

We can remit (to send away) or retain (to lay fast hold of) sins of those who have sinned against God and affected our lives. In other words, we can hold on to the sins against us or we can release those sins.

When I forgive someone, I visualize that person being released. I can hold on to the sins of others against me and try to get even in some way. When I release others, I am also releasing myself. There is freedom in releasing others from any bondage to ourselves. When we hold others in bondage, we also hold ourselves in bondage.

When you retaliate against others, you also retaliate against yourselves. Earline is a good teacher about this area of retaliation.

SINS OF OUR ANCESTORS

The Bible clearly teaches that the sins of the ancestors will be visited on their descendants. Earline had heart trouble and sought the Lord about the answer. God told her to look in Exodus 20, Leviticus 26 and Ezekiel 18 for the answer. This is how we learned about how to release ourselves from the sins of our ancestors.

Ex. 20:3-5 Thou shalt have no other gods before me. Thou shalt not make unto thee any graven image, or any likeness of any thing that is in heaven above, or that is in the earth beneath, or that is in the water under the earth: Thou shalt not bow down thyself to them, nor serve them: for I the Lord thy God am a jealous God, visiting the iniquity of the fathers upon the children unto the third and fourth generation of them that hate me.

There was a lot of marrying between races of whites and Indians before 1900, so much so, that the writers of Britannica could find few pure bred Indians and very few who could speak the language of their tribe. These Indians worshiped demons, therefore cursing all their descendents for three to four generations.

If no one in the family line worshiped other gods until the time ran out, the curse would cease. I am not four generations from my Indian ancestors, so the curse was on me.

I remembered at this time that my Dad had practiced a little witchcraft himself. He had our mountain well water-witched and he practiced a little folk medicine to get rid of my brothers warts. Innocent as these things may seem, they began the curse all over. Not only did he and most of his brothers and sisters have heart trouble and some died early deaths, but all my brothers and myself had heart problems.

Then I was led to read Ezekiel 18 in which I found it was not the will of God for children to be punished for their fathers sins, provided that the children were not following in their fathers foot-steps.

Ezekiel 18 discusses how God deals with just and wicked ancestors and descendants: just ancestors and wicked descendants, and wicked ancestors and just descendants. The just soul shall live and the wicked soul shall die. As a Christian, you would fall into the category of the just soul if you are not following the iniquities listed in this chapter. First, we confess our ancestors iniquity, trespasses and contrary walk towards God. Second, we forgive them for what they have done to us. Third, we break any curses brought on us by our ancestors.

Then Lev. 26:39-42, When in the land of bondage if you will confess your sins and the sins of you father and how you have all dealt treacherously with God He will remember you, forgive and heal you when your heart is humble. I just followed the instructions and have been healed all these years.

First, we confess our iniquities. Second, we confess the iniquities of our fathers. Third, God remembers His covenant. God promises to remember those that repent. Fifth, God blesses those who have repented.

CONFESS - REPENT - BREAK - CAST - DISCIPLINE

There is a sequence of events that we need to follow depending on the situation that we are in. First, we must realize what that situation is so that we can confess it to God. It could be brought on by ourselves or our ancestors. Second, we must repent of our sins and forgive those that have hurt us. Third, we must break curses and soul ties that have been brought on us by our sins and the actions of others such as our ancestors. Fourth, we must cast out any demons that inhabit our bodies because of our sins or the curses transmitted by our ancestors or others. Fifth, we must discipline our lives to not repeat the sins of our ancestors or the wrong habits of our lives.

SIX BASIC STEPS TO YOUR DELIVERANCE

- 1. Identify your problems.
- 2. Forgive, pray and get yourself right with God.
- 3. Break the curses and soul ties on you and your descendents.
- 4. Cast out your demons.
- 5. Pray for healing of your soul and body.
- 6. Discipline your life by changing your way of thinking and acting.

It is easy to cast out demons but hard to discipline your life.

KNOWLEDGE - BLOOD - AUTHORITY - CHANGE -

There is a parallel sequence of events that are necessary to accomplish CONFESS - REPENT -BREAK - CAST -DISCIPLINE. First, you need to obtain knowledge. You must have a working knowledge of the Bible and deliverance. You need to be a workman who is not ashamed of rightly dividing the Word of Truth. You can learn deliverance from teaching, ministry, counseling, studying, experience, etc. Second, you need to get right with God and get your sins under the Blood of Jesus so that you will be cleansed. Third, now that you are forgiven by God, you have the right to take authority over all the authority of the enemy and break curses and soul ties. Fourth, it is necessary to change your life: the way you think and act.

NEED FOR REPENTANCE

The greatest need in the Christian life is the need for repentance; forgiveness is a major part of repentance.

The basic method we use is to find out what a person or then-ancestors or others did that affected their life. Then, we get the person to confess and repent about these actions. Then, demonic ties are broken and demons are cast out. Finally, we counsel the person about disciplining their mind and body.

We have used this method successfully in our ministry for many years after God showed us this truth. It is easy to visualize when you realize that God thought it was so important that He died for our sins so that we could be forgiven when we repent. See Matthew 18:15-35 about how to deal with others when they offend us.

One of my pet peeves is the ministers who are unwilling to fully confront sin by teaching, ministry and counseling. These same ministers try to confess and repent for others rather than getting those guilty of sin to repent. What good do you think it accomplishes when the person is still guilty of that sin and has not repented or forgiven the one that hurt them? If the demons leave, they have a right to come back because of unbroken demonic ties, and unconfessed sin and iniquity.

We have worked with people at camp in mass deliverance, and then the next day worked with someone in individual deliverance. We find that person not to have repented in mass deliverance but repents in individual deliverance. The demons do not leave in mass deliverance but leave in individual deliverance because of repentance brought about by individual counseling.

OLD TESTAMENT

To repent means to be penitent, to be eased, to comfort self, to turn back. This means to change your heart, disposition, mind, purpose or conduct. If we do not repent, then we are in rebellion against God.

When God repented, He changed his mind. He would alter a course of action planned for his people when they repented and changed their course of action. He never changed his mind from punishing sin. I Sam. 15:29 And also the Strength of Israel will not lie nor repent: for he is not a man, that he should repent.

"Repentance with REFERENCES to sin is not so prominent as that change of mind or purpose, out of pity for those who have been affected by ones action, or in whom the result of the action have not fulfilled expectations, a repentance attributed both to God and to man." (Expository Dictionary of New Testament Words)

NEW TESTAMENT

To repent means to be careful or concerned with, to have another mind, a change of mind, or not to be careful or concerned with. We are not to repent or change our purpose about gifts, calling and salvation. We perceive our sin, and change our mind and purpose for the better in Christ. We regret our sins and repent to God.

"The subject chiefly has REFERENCES to repentance from sin, and this change of mind involves both a turning from sin and a turning to God. The parable of the prodigal son is an outstanding illustration of this. Christ began His ministry with a call to repentance to the individual." (Expository Dictionary of New Testament Words)

EASY BELIEVEISM

In the traditional church, there is a tendency to simply get the people to join the church. You can join the church as you would join a social club and with the same effect. In the full-gospel church, there is a tendency to simply get the people to accept Christ on their terms. You have to accept Christ on His terms not on your terms or that church's terms. There is no way to Christ and His salvation without repenting and confessing your sins.

The Roman's Road to Salvation: Romans 3:23, 6:23a, 5:8, 6:23b and 10:9, 13 For all have sinned, and come short of the glory of God. For the wages of sin is death. But God commendeth His love toward us; in that, while we were yet sinners, Christ died for us. But the gift of God is eternal life through Jesus Christ our Lord. That, if thou shalt confess with thy mouth the Lord Jesus, and shalt believe in thine heart that God hath raised Him from the dead, thou shalt be saved. For whosoever shall call on the Name of the Lord shah be saved. Easy believeism is leading people to Hell. There is only one way to God through Jesus Christ and in accordance with The Holy Word Of God.

Easy repentance is leading people to stay in bondage. Unless the repentance is acceptable to God by the Bible, the person is deceived and will remain in bondage although he may think he is free. Many people are being deceived by ministers and lay Christians by telling them they are free when they are still in bondage. The sad part of this charade is that you see people leaving the church and going back out into the world when their lives are not working out as told to them by others who should know better. These former church goers may end up in Hell.

SIN IN YOUR LIFE

Any sin in your life will keep you from the full blessings of God that you would receive in the areas of mental, physical, spiritual and material. There will be confusion in the mind, disease in the body, problems in the spiritual life, and poverty in the financial area.

If You have sin in your life, you have opened the door for Satan and his demons to attack you, your family and your church. Sin is a crack in your armor whether known or unknown to you. You or your ancestors have invited Satan to come into your life and work havoc.

The Bible is a book of blessings and curses. Every verse you obey carries a blessing; every verse you disobey carries a curse. If you obey half of the Bible, you are half blessed and half cursed.

It is your choice what you do; God didn't make you as a robot. You have a free will given by the Lord. You choose to go to Heaven or you choose to go to Hell. You choose to live the abundant life or you choose to live the life in poverty here on earth. Jesus has finished His work; it is up to you now.

SIN IN THE MINISTER'S LIFE

The minister needs to surrender fully to God and throw open all the doors and windows of his/her life to the searchlight of the Holy Spirit. The work of the ministry can be a difficult undertaking. Effective weapons used against ministers are carelessness, pride, immorality, taking God for granted, spiritual weakness, and affliction of wife/husband where the minister refuses to yield to God.

The person ministering in the area of deliverance is in a position of all- out warfare with the forces of evil. Many have fallen by the wayside because of ignorance of Bible and of deliverance, still having many demons within themselves, women and men ministering by themselves, being lured by false doctrines, etc.

SIN IN YOUR POSSESSIONS

You must clean your home and your person (body) of cursed objects. If you have cursed objects, you become cursed and you will have demons living with you. They don't just come to live in your home or on your person, they come to torment you and your family.

FIVE STEPS TO CLEANING YOUR HOUSE

- 1. Seven-way prayer of forgiveness: you forgive your ancestors, descendants and others for all sins; ask God to forgive and bless them with all spiritual blessings; ask God to forgive you, forgive yourself for sins against your body; and finally ask forgiveness for worshiping other gods).
- 2. Break curses and soul ties from others (ancestors) and to others (descendants); and break curses of psychic or Catholic prayers.
- 3. Clean out house of your objects, or exorcise objects you do not own.
- 4. Anoint house and objects with oil, and cast evil spirits out of house.
- 5. Cast demons out of people that came in thru curses from demonic objects.

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

1. **What is sin and the standard against sin?** - Sin is the thought or deed we commit that is contrary to the teaching of the Bible. The standard that is used to judge sin is the Holy Inspired Word of God, The Bible.

2. Who do we commit sin against? - I Cor. [#]3:12 But when ye sin so against the brethren, and wound their weak conscience, ye sin against Christ. The results of our sins affect ourselves and others. We sin upward against God, outward against others, inward against ourselves and downward against our descendents.

3. How do we sin against God? - We sin against God by disobedience to the commandments and precepts of the whole Bible.

4. How do we sin against others? - We sin against others by doing something to them that is contrary to the Bible. First, see what is a sin in the Bible. Second, that would be a sin against others. For example, the spreading of lies about another person is sin. We are telling lies which is a sin against God and it is also hurting another person.

5. How do we sin against ourselves? - I Cor. 6:18 He that commits fornication sins against his own body . Every other sin that man does is outside of the body except for fornication.

6. **How do we sin against our descendents?** - We sin against our descendents either directly or indirectly. We can directly sin against our children or indirectly against our children's children to the tenth generation. **For example, we conceive a bastard.** It is a sin against that child, our other children and our children's children to the tenth generation. The curse, created by conceiving a bastard, will bring problems and grief: primarily alienation from the church and conceiving bastards generation after generation.

7. Who forgives sins? - Only God can forgive sin by the shed Blood of Jesus Christ. We can remit (send away) sins and retain (hold fast) sins (John 20:23). What you bind on earth is bound in Heaven; what you loose on earth is loosed in Heaven (Matt. 16:19; 18:18). Other passages are

judging others (I Cor. 5:1-5), forgive in the sight of Christ (II Cor. 2:10) and Christ speaking in me (II Cor. 13:3).

8. Who confesses sins? - We confess our sins and the sins of our ancestors, and humble ourselves before God (Lev. 26:40-42). Earline has a testimony about how God healed her heart after she dealt with her Indian ancestors. God gave her a series of steps about how to counteract the sins of her ancestors who worshipped demons. The ideal is to have the descendents forgive their ancestors (especially their parents). The most sure method is for the person to forgive those who have hurt them or committed acts which affect their lives.

9. What do we do after our sins are forgiven? - First, we get our sins forgiven and we forgive others for sinning against us. We then have the right to break curses, soul ties and cast out the demons. Second, we break the curses on ourselves, our mate if he or she is affected, and our descendents. We can break curses placed on us by others, curses placed on us by ourselves, and curses placed on our descendents by ourselves. Third, we break soul ties brought about by sexual sin and witchcraft. Fourth, we cast out the demons that came in through sin and curses. Fifth, we go and sin not more.

ERASING THE RESULTS OF SIN

The traditional church and most of the other churches (full gospel, Pentecostal, charismatic, glossolalia, evangelistic) believe that the job is finished when the person repents. That is spiritual fantasy. Repentance means that God has forgiven us, and given us the authority to continue to clean our houses: souls and bodies. We need to eradicate, as much as possible, the evidences of sin in ourselves.

We must break curses on ourselves and our descendants to keep the curse from continuing and repeating the same sins. We need to break soul ties with those we have had sex with other than other than our only legitimate mate (which is a godly soul tie). We need to break soul ties with anyone who has exercised an ungodly control over us. We need to get rid of demonic objects in our living quarters and on our being.

PRAYER

Lord, I repent of my wickedness. I turn away from my sins, transgressions, iniquity and idols. I make supplication to you. I do not want to perish in the Lake of Fire and Brimstone. I forgive all others for anything they have done to me. I am sorry for my sins and mistakes. Help me to have faith in God necessary to accomplish this prayer. Help me to have works that follow my conversion. Help me to hold fast to my salvation and be zealous for the Lord.

I believe the Gospel and accept it in simple childlike faith. I accept all of the benefits of being baptized with water. I will bring forth Fruits of the Spirit. I will quit being double minded about my sins. I will tell others of my salvation. I will rebuke my brother/sister and then forgive him/her. I will he baptized when I am converted. I will do these things as the Holy Spirit leads and with the help of God.

Thank you that the Kingdom of Heaven is at hand. Thank you for your goodness and mercy. Thank you for your gifts, calling and salvation. Thank you that all of these blessing have been provided for me. Al 1 these things I ask in the Blessed Name of Jesus Christ, my Lord, Master and Savior. Amen

LIST OF DEMONS

A good list to use for mass deliverance is "Common Demons Groupings" found in the Mass Deliverance Manual.

DEMONIC TIES - SCRIPTURE

Soul Ties - One Flesh

Gen. 2:24	And shall cleave unto his wife: and they shall be one flesh.
Matt. 19:6	What therefore God hath joined together, let not man put asunder.
I Cor. 6:16	What? know ye not that he which is joined to an harlot is one body?

Curses - Bondage

Num. 5:21	Then the priest shall charge the woman with an oath of cursing.
Deut. 28:48	Put a yoke of iron upon thy neck, until he have destroyed thee.
Deut. 30:7	And the Lord thy God will put all these curses upon thine enemies.
Job 2:9	Dost thou still retain thine integrity? curse God, and die.
Acts 23:12	Certain of Jews banded together, and bound themselves under a curse.
Acts 23:14	We have bound ourselves under a great curse.
Gal 3:10	For as many as are of the works of the law are under the curse.

Soul Ties - Witchcraft

Lev. 19:31	Regard not that have familiar spirits, neither seek after wizards.
Lev. 20:6	I will even set my face against that soul, and will cut him off.

Bands - Bondage

Lev. 26:13	And I have broken the bands of your yoke, and made you go upright.
Jud. 15:14	And his bands loosed from off his hands.
Job 38:31	Or loose the bands of Orion?
Job 39:5	Or who hath loosed the bands of the wild ass?
Job 39:10	Canst thou bind the unicorn with his band in the furrow?
Psa. 2:3	Let us break their bands asunder, and cast away their cords from us.
Psa. 58:6	Break their teeth, O God, in their mouth.
Psa. 73:4	For there are no bands in their death.
Psa. 107:14	And brake their bands in sunder.
Psa. 119:61	The bands of the wicked have robbed me.
Prov. 6:21	Bind them continually upon thine heart, and tie them about thy neck.
Eccl. 7:26	The woman whose heart is snares and nets, and her hands as bands.
Isa. 28:22	Now therefore be ye not mockers, lest your bands be made strong.
Isa. 52:2	Loose thyself from bands of thy neck, O captive daughter of Zion.
Isa. 58:6	To loose the bands of wickedness, to undo the heavy burdens.
Eze. 4:8	And behold, I will lay bands upon thee, and thou shalt not turn thee.
Dan. 4:15	Leave stump of his roots in the earth, with band of iron and brass.
Hos. 11:4	I drew them with cords of a man, with bands of love.
Zech. 11:7	The one I called Beauty, and the other I called Bands.
Zech. 11:14	Then I cut asunder mine other staff, even Bands.
Luke 8:29	He was kept bound with chains and in fetters; he brake the bands.
Col. 2:19	From which all the body by joints and bands, and knit together.

WHAT DIFFERENCE A GENERATION MAKES - CHANGES IN 25 YEARS

Americans are waiting longer to marry today, more are getting divorced, resulting in more single parent families - as many as 60- among blacks, according to 3 reports issued last week by the Census Bureau.

While the man-and-wife family with 1 or more children remains the norm, it is a tradition that is rapidly eroding. Divorced persons have risen to 130 per 1,000 married persons, compared with just 35 in I960, and the proportion of 1-parent families of all races has more than doubled from 13% in 1970 to 28% last year.

Commenting on the causes, Douglas Besharov of the American Enterprise Institute said he doesn't think the fault is so much with economics as with **"trickle-down morality."**

"The elites of the country changed their behavior, at least outward manifestations, in the 1950s and everyone else is following. Across the board there has been a total loosening of the old Puritan standards by which we grew up," he said.

"People today value early marriage less, value having children less, and value having a career of their own, and some fun before settling down, more highly," Besharov declared. Details (202) 862-5800 - From Association Trends.

ARE ADOLESCENTS VALUED RESOURCES?

Violence and injury account for three out of four adolescent deaths. More than three out of 10 adolescents who die are killed in motor vehicle accidents. Half of these involve alcohol.

The homicide rate has doubled among 10- to 14-year-olds during the past 20 years. Homicide is the leading cause of death among black 15- to 19-year-olds.

Most 10- to 19-year-old homicide victims are killed with guns. In 1987, firearms accounted for 68 percent of the 1,744 adolescent murders. Eighteen percent of those adolescents were killed with knives and other cutting instruments. Fourteen percent were killed with clubs, beaten to death or strangled.

Child abuse and child neglect increased 74 percent in the last 10 years. Over the past 20 years, suicide tripled among 10- to 14-year-olds and doubled among 15- to 19-year-olds. Whites are three times more likely than blacks to kill themselves.

There are important sex differences in attempted and completed suicide. Adolescent girls are four to five times more likely than boys to attempt suicide, while boys are more likely to succeed, mainly because they choose more lethal methods. Girls generally use pills. Boys tend to hang themselves or use guns.

Approximately 92 percent of high school seniors have consumed alcohol at least once, 50 percent have tried marijuana and 15 percent have tried cocaine. Adolescents who currently drink alcohol are 10 times more likely than non- drinkers to use marijuana and 11 times more likely to use cocaine. By the time they are 18 years old, 65 percent of boys and 51 percent of girls are sexually active. Approximately 50 percent of American adolescents do not use contraceptives the first time they have intercourse. Half of premarital pregnancies occur within the first six months of sexual activity.

One in four sexually active high school students will get a sexually transmitted disease before graduating.

Mental disorders account for 32 percent of the disabilities among 10- to 18- year-olds. It is estimated that 5 million children and adolescents need mental health services but do not receive them.

Approximately 5 percent of adolescents are clinically obese and between 5 percent and 25 percent are overweight.

Pain during menstruation affects almost half of all female adolescents and is a leading cause of school absenteeism.

About one in four high school seniors approves of heavy cigarette smoking and one or two drinks a day. One in five approves of trying cocaine. Meanwhile, 80 percent of the parents of 8-to 17 -year-olds think drugs are not a problem.

From Ann Landers Advice.

WAKE UP AMERICA! - The conclusion from the above articles is that American needs to wake up. Parents need to

wake up and pay more attention to their children. Parents need to pay more attention to each other. Especially, the

Christian churches need to wake up, and teach and practice the whole Bible. God gave the Christians a winning program but we are not using it and the forces of evil are overcoming America.

GENERAL

There are invisible ties between human beings -alive and alive, and alive and dead, and between human beings and spiritual beings, and between human beings and animals. There are demonic ties, soul ties, ties of curses, witchcraft ties and bands or bondage.

Most Christians do not believe that demons control any part of their lives. **If they only knew how much, they would be aghast and would begin to take action against the forces of darkness.** Earline and I spend our time primarily studying what happens to people when they do not obey the Laws of God. We study God s Laws of Justice. Most people want to study Gods s Law s of Love. The Laws of Justice equally balance the Law s of Love.

Do you feel as if there is something that ties you to another or as if there is pressure around your body? Think about ties to men, women, animals - both dead and alive, and to objects and demons.

GOD'S SYSTEM

We believe that God has setup an invisible system of ties that we can not see but we can feel the results of these ties. We are knit together with God as His Body. We are also knit together with others and demonic forces.

The impression that we have is that there are good ties with God and bad ties with the forces of evil. You could visualize being tied up, bound up, in chains and fetters, tied to others, weighed down, under pressure, etc. You are either tied to others or tied-up within your self; you are carrying heavy loads on your shoulders or within your body.

God can either put you into bondage or remove you from bondage. It is your choice, not God's. You either do or do not follow God's Laws. You pay the consequence for your actions; you sow what you reap.

INANIMATE OBJECTS

If you have a cursed object in your house, you are cursed. A cursed object does not just sit idle in your house. It will cause trouble for you. There are demons that live in or around the cursed object. **Do you feel an unusual attraction or repulsion to some object in your home, office or car?** You may have a demonic tie to it.

Some friends of ours were ministers who went to Haiti. One time they brought us some carved figurines as a gift. These statutes caused us strife in the family. Our daughter, Marie, felt like there were eyes watching her as she walked across the room. The Lord finally got our attention and we destroyed the wood figures. The wood would not burn normally and finally I had to soak them in charcoal-lighter fluid. When they finally burned, a green flame came out and shot toward us. These dolls were probably made by Voodoo worshipers who blessed them so that they would be sold. After getting rid of the statutes, the strife left our family.

SEX WITH DEMONS

There are demons that have sex with humans that may be against their will. There are worshipers in humans that may be against their will. There are worshipers in Voodoo that invite demons to have sex with them during their rites. These demons are called incubus and succubus - one for males and one for females. It may be possible to form a soul tie with a demon.

SPIRIT, SOUL AND BODY

The human being is composed of eternal spirit, intellectual soul and fleshly body. God imparted the spirit into the womb at the moment of conception. The soul is normally thought of as mind, will and emotions. The soul and body are grown as we develop as humans. When we die, God will take our spirit and soul into the spiritual world leaving our fleshly body behind. We will recognize each other when we get to Heaven because we will have our souls which contain our memory.

An animal is composed of soul and body but no spirit. When the animal dies, there is no indication in the Bible that God preserves any part of the animal or that any earthly animals will be found in heaven. There are heavenly animals that are there now, such as horses, and will probably be there when we arrive. Demons have a spirit and soul but do not have a body.

When we unite with another, we unite in the soul. A demonic tie is formed between men and women depending on what the union is all about. A soul tie or some form of demonic tie may be formed with beasts, demons and objects.

SOUL TIES

Soul ties are simply becoming one flesh according to the Bible; the souls are united. Soul ties are invisible ties between live humans, live humans and animals, live humans and dead humans. Soul ties between live humans would include husband and wife, man and whore, woman and gigolo, man and man, and woman and woman. Soul ties between humans and animals would include sex with animals by men or women. Soul ties between live humans and dead humans would include any inability to give up the dead or influence of the dead on the living.

Have you been married before and divorced or separated? Is your former mate dead? If so, you have a soul tie with that person that needs to be broken unless you plan to reunite with that person after temporary separation.

GODLY SOUL TIES

There is a good soul tie between godly married mates. This was established by God as one of His Laws. Earline and I have a godly soul tie. This is our only marriage and we do not have any other former mates. We are one flesh. We became one flesh when we united in sex. Marriage in the Bible was consummated when the couple came together sexually. They simply went into the tent, had sex and they were married in the sight of God. There is no need for paperwork or formalities in the sight of God; these are needed for mans world.

FORNICATION AND ADULTERY - Fornication is all sexual acts outside of godly marriage union. Fornication would include sex between men and women before marriage even if the consenting adults got married after sex. Most people think that if they get married after a child is conceived, it is not illegitimate. In the sight of God, the child is a bastard. A soul tie is formed immediately upon the sexual act. God made the woman to have a strong attraction to the first man that she had sex with. It is going to be very difficult for the woman to forget her first sexual partner even when she gets married to another man. She may want to go back to her first partner as she goes through life.

Adultery is ungodly sexual acts in marriage with another person. Adultery is also defined as fornication. If a man or woman has sex outside of marriage with another, then a soul tie is formed with that person. When the married person goes to bed with their godly mate, it is as if they were bringing the other people to bed with them. This explains why people have some problems with their sex lives. They think about others during this time.

Sex with the harlot, whore, prostitute, gigolo (either male or female) causes a soul tie to be formed just the same as if the marriage was legitimate before God. Any soul tie outside of marriage is ungodly.

The world gets caught in the age-old trap of thinking that sex is love. Sex is not love; sex is sex. Sex in marriage should be sex with love but may only be sex without love. This may be brought

about by the wife bargaining for sex with the husband to get something she wants or for some other reason.

HOMOSEXUALITY - Homosexuality forms soul ties between men and men or women and women. They have united their souls through the sexual act of sodomy. There is now a spiritual tie between them similar to the ties of being married.

BESTIALITY - Bestiality is the sexual union between man or woman and beast. It may be that a soul tie is formed between the person and the beast. Have you noticed that some people treat their animals as if they were their children? Why do people have an ungodly attraction for animals? It is probably not all for bestiality but it illustrates how a person can be attracted to animals as if they were humans.

CURSES - Curses are a type of demonic tie between the living, and between the living and the dead. Curses speak of oaths, binding and lying upon. God can curse us for not following His Laws. We can curse ourselves and bind ourselves under a curse. We can curse others and bind them under a curse if we have the authority to do so (such as our children).

When the curse is broken, there is a release as if a tie had been severed. I have always wanted to see the connection in the spiritual world of the curse emanating from someone and landing on someone else. We can curse ourselves or we can be cursed by others. How does the release oc-cur? Is the tie suddenly severed or does the demon suddenly leave or what really happens? I wish God would open my eyes so that I could see into the spiritual world and see what happens there. I would like to see what happens as we pray, war in the spirit world, etc. Practicing deliverance is the best education that I know of to help you see into the spiritual world and understand what happens.

WITCHCRAFT

Witchcraft is the attempt to exercise control over others for personal gain. It can be practiced by white witchcraft (so called good witchcraft), black witchcraft (evil witchcraft), or someone who doesn't even think that they are a witch. Deliberate witchcraft would be practiced by someone in the occult or Satin worship. You don't have to be a witch or warlock to practice witchcraft.

When we go to a witch to gain hidden knowledge or something for ourselves, we are seeking to them as we would seek to God. We are submitting ourselves to them, become obligated to them and they begin to exercise control over us.

Unknown witchcraft would be practiced by someone trying to control others for their benefit or even for good intentions. Parents have a right and responsibility to control children that are underage and are supported by them. Parents do not have the right or responsibility to control children that are of age and are not supported by them especially when they are married.

Unknown witchcraft is commonly practiced in the Christian world by laymen and leaders. This is called charismatic witchcraft. A pastor or leader who tries to control his flock or group is practicing witchcraft. He or she may feel that they know what is best for their people and they try to force it to happen. They may or may not know what is best for others but they have no right to force their will on others. **The best example is God, He will not force His Will on us**.

We have worked with people who have been controlled by a dictatorial pastor. The pastor has formed soul ties with those who have yielded to his control rather than the direction of God in their lives. It is necessary to forgive the pastor, break soul ties and cast out demons.

If you have left a church that truly does not follow Jesus Christ, then you need to renounce that church or organization, forgive them, break soul ties, and cast out demons. The Catholic Church is a good example of an organization that tries to control their people completely. Many charismatic leaders fall into this trap of trying to control people and their money in order to build their kingdoms whether small or large.

We went to a church where the pastor seemed to let the Holy Spirit have His way in the services. There was a tremendous freedom there and you could hardly wait to get to church to see what God was going to do. Then the pastor decided that it was his church and would be run the way he wanted it to be run for his selfish reasons. After that, the freedom left and it was like any other charismatic church.

If you went to a fortune teller to get your fortune told, then you formed a soul tie with that person. There will be an attempt to control your life by that person from then on. Attempted control forms a soul tie. Demons will be sent out to help you and to draw you back to the fortune teller. God will cut us off. He may kill us as He did Saul for seeking the medium. He may cut us off from His Blessings on us mentally,

physically, spiritually or materially. You are placed in bondage by God. You may lose your mind, health, wealth or relationship with God. You are cursed and God may put ties on you to prevent you from prospering.

Witchcraft causes demons to be sent to another person to affect their life. The demons may stay on the outside of the person and just talk to the person or may affect their material surroundings. The demons may converse with the demons within the person and get their co-operation for your destruction.

BANDS

There are bands that bind us. These demonic ties are bands, bonds, fetters, cords, ropes, covenants, brotherhoods, etc. that have strength, might and force over our lives.

We have worked with people in deliverance who acted like they had bands around their heads or bonds around their bodies. There would be pressure on their heads as if something was tightened around their skull or brain. Similarly, there might be a feeling of pressure around the body or organ.

COVENANTS

We have cut a covenant with Jesus Christ. He has given us all of His Benefits and we have given Him all of our life. This is a blood covenant founded on the Blood of Jesus Christ. This is a very serious agreement and should not be taken lightly.

Beauty is symbolic name given to one of the two staves which symbolized the Lords' covenant with the seed of Jacob, and the brotherhood of Israel and Judah. I would say that this word symbolizes the good things that God will do for us.

Bands is a symbolic name given to the other of the two staves mentioned above. Strong's lists the following for bands: twisted rope, measuring line, inheritance, noose, cord, tied together, ruin, destruction, pain, pang, snare, sorrow. I would say that this word symbolizes the bad things that God will do to us. It could also mean that God sets a measuring line for us not to go past and that is our inheritance in Him. If we exceed His limits, then we face ruin, destruction, pain, pang, snare and sorrow. We could be twisted like a rope, have a noose around our neck and tied together with a cord.

David agreed with Jonathan to be his brother. They treated each other as if they were blood brothers. This agreement lasted after the dead of Jonathan. David was obligated to care for the descendents of Saul and Jonathan. David lived up to his agreement. Are you living up to your agreement with God?

BROTHERHOODS

Have you joined a brotherhood outside of Christianity? Have you agreed to or signed a document that causes you to treat those in that organization as if they were your blood brothers or sisters? An example would be the Masons. Have you ever cut your wrist, mingled your blood with another, drunk mingled blood and wine out of a chalice such as an Indian rite? As Christians, we are brothers and sisters in Christ by the His Blood. We are a family and may form some strong ties which may seem even stronger than those with our blood brothers and sisters who turn against us as we follow the Lord. This needs to be a natural love and not a contrived false love. Calling someone brother or sister does not indicate that you really mean it but may just be putting on a show.

YOKE OF BONDAGE

Have you ever felt that you have a yoke of iron upon your neck or that you were carrying a heavy load on your back or that you felt a heaviness on you? This feeling could be analogous to having bands around you. It can come about because you did not serve THE LORD YOUR GOD with joyfulness and gladness of heart.

Earline wrote a lesson called **An Attitude of Gratitude - The Cure for Depression.** We have seen how important it is to have gratitude towards God in ourselves and the lives others.

SPIRITUAL STRENGTH, MIGHT AND FORCE

Many Christians act as if there was no force in the spiritual world either good or evil. They may act as if God had no power or would not exercise that power in the lives of men. They may act as if Satan had no power or could not exercise that power over them.

God is all powerful, all knowing and all present - omnipotent, omniscient, omnipresent. God exercises those qualities in our lives whether we realize it or not.

Satan is the second most powerful being in the universe, only second to God - Father, Son and Holy Spirit. He and his forces can do demonic miracles to fool men. Except for Jesus Christ on our side, we are powerless before him. With Jesus Christ on our side, we have all power over the enemy.

You may act as if Satan was a buffoon or wore a red suit with a tail and carried a pitchfork. You need to know your enemy. It is Satan and his forces, not man, that is causing you problems. Satan has one-third of the angels, billions of demons and about 98% of the human race in his army. We don't need to fear this mighty enemy but we need to respect his power and learn how to overcome the enemy's army.

TYPES OF CATEGORIES

This list would include any demons that would cause demonic ties of any type. They include general categories of sexual unions, people who would control your freewill, you practicing witchcraft on others, and demonic ties to objects, animals and demons. Demonic ties could be thought of as holds over your life or being tied to something that you can not let go of. You are tied to anything that has a hold over some aspect of your life. What do you worship and what is important in your life; this is a key to your ties.

Demonic ties can be caused by parents abusing their children causing them to try to please their parents and get their acceptance for the rest of their adult lives. They can be caused by weak effeminate men and strong domineering women improperly raising their children. Ties can be caused by false religions or religious leaders. Addictions are a type of tie to drugs, alcohol, food, etc. Children can have demonic ties with their parents as well as godly ties. You can be tied to your enemies because of your hatred and inability to release them from their sins against you. You can be tied to worldly systems of religion, family, occupation, education, recreation, etc. You can be tied to races, cultures and creeds. You can be tied to doctors and hospitals for treatment of body and mind. You can be tied to yourself through selfishness and only thinking about your needs. You can be tied to traditions of your elders or churches.

You can be tied to medium spirits which guide your life or to your own demons that you submit to. Familiar spirits following the descendents after the ancestor's sins could be a type of tie. You can even be tied to someone that has died. You can be tied to the Devil through occult, witchcraft and Satan worship. You can be tied to demons that you have sex with.

PRAYER

"Father, I pray that you would forgive me of sex with demons, rape, fornication, adultery, homosexuality, bestiality, or anything else that would cause me to have a soul tie through demonic sex. Forgive me for having demonic objects in my home or office, and for having demonic ties to them. I forgive those who would try to control me through witchcraft, parental control after marriage, control by church leaders, or anyone who would try to control my God- given freewill. Forgive me for trying to control others. Forgive me for making covenants and brotherhoods, for taking oaths binding me to others, and for any unholy allegiance. Forgive me for cursing myself, family, church, nation and God.

Father, thank you for godly soul ties and my covenant with you. Please strengthen Your System in my life. Help me to cleanse my soul and body, and have a right spirit. Give me spiritual strength, might and force to do your work.

I now break all ungodly soul ties to humans, demonic ties to objects or animals, curses, bondage, witchcraft, bands, and yokes. I command all demons that came in with these ties and curses to leave me. I ask these things in the Name of Jesus Christ, my Lord, Master and Savior. Amen."

LIST OF DEMONS

Start off with **Rejection, Bitterness and Rebellion.** Then go on to other categories such as **Abused Children, Ahab and Jezebel, Charismatic Witchcraft, Cursed Objects, Occult, Witchcraft,** etc.

Use the following names or characteristics: demonic ties to parents, spirits of abused children, spirits in subconscious mind, Ahab and Jezebel, effeminacy, bastard and incest, religious spirits, demonic ties to religions and religious leaders, charismatic witchcraft, lies and lying, addictions and compulsions, ties to demonic tradition and cursed objects, fear and paranoia, ties to the dead, ties to races, colors and creeds, ties to doctors and hospitals, ties to self and selfishness, drunkenness and gluttony, occult, witchcraft and Satan worship, schizophrenia, hate, vengeance, envy and strife, rape, incubus and succubus, fornication, adultery, homosexuality, bestiality, prostitution, whoring, blood brothers, harlotry, death, great curse, works of the law, familiar spirits, wizards, bands of Orion, snares and nets, mockers, divorce, immorality, violence, alcoholism, murder, suicide, marijuana, cocaine, premarital sex, sexual diseases, mental disorders, obesity, fatness, demonic pain menstruation, nicotine, unbalanced teaching, tied up, bound up, in chains and fetters, tied to others, weighed down, under pressure, unusual attraction, repulsion, strife, Voodoo, gigolo, sodomy, sexual dreams and nightmares, ungodly attraction for animals, white witchcraft, black witchcraft, warlock, dictatorial, fortune teller, mediums, bands, bonds, fetters, cords, ropes, covenants, brotherhoods, twisted, noose, ruin, destruction, pain, pang, snare, sorrow, Masonic Lodge, demonic miracles, domineering, false religions, ties to worldly systems, and all other related demons and their works.

- Is. 28:15 Have made covenant with death, and with hell are we at agreement.
- Am. 3: 3 Can two walk together, except they be agreed?
- Mt. 5:25 Agree with thine adversary quickly.
- Mt. 18:19 Two of you shall agree on earth as touching anything.
- Mr. 14:56 But their witness agreed not together.
- II Co. 6:16 And what agreement hath the temple of God with idols?
- I Jo. 5:8 And these three agree in one.

Requirements to Agree - Bind - Loose

- Ps. 34:15 The eyes of the Lord are upon the righteous.
- Ps. 145:18 To all that call upon him in truth.
- Ps. 145:19 He will fulfill the desire of them that fear him.
- Pr. 15:29 But he heareth the prayer of the righteous.
- Is. 1:15 1 will not hear: your hands are full of blood.
- Mt. 5:24 First be reconciled to thy brother, then come and offer thy gift.
- Mt. 8:22 Follow me: and let the dead bury their dead.
- Jo. 9:31 Now we know that God heareth not sinners.
- Jo. 15:7 If ye abide in me, and my words abide in you.
- Jo. 20:23 Whose soever sins ye remit, they are remitted unto them.
- I Ti. 2:8 Lifting up holy hands, without wrath and doubting.
- Ja. 2:20 O vain man, that faith without works is dead.
- Ja. 5:16 Confess your faults one to another, and pray one for another.
- I Pe. 3:7 That your prayers be not hindered.
- I Jo. 3:22 We keep his commandments, and do those things that are pleasing.
- I Jo. 5:14 If we ask anything according to his will, he heareth us.

Bind - Binding

Nu. 30:2	Swear oath to bind his soul with a bond; shall not break his word.
De. 6:8	And thou shalt bind them for a sign upon thine hand.
Job 38:31	Canst thou bind or loose?
Pr. 3:3	Bind them about thy neck; write them upon the table of thine heart.
Is. 61:1	Bind up the brokenhearted - open the prison to them that are bound.
Mt. 12:29	Except he first bind strong man and then he will spoil his house.
Mt. 16:19	And I will give unto thee the keys of the kingdom of heaven.
Mt. 18:18	Verily I say unto you, hind and loose.
Mk. 3:27	No man can enter into a strong man's house, and spoil his goods.

Bound - Bounds

Ge. 44:30 Nu. 30:4	Seeing that his life is bound up in the lads life And every bond wherewith she hath hound her soul shall stand.
De. 32:8	He set the bounds of the people according to the number.
I Sa. 25:29	But the soul of my lord shall be bound in the bundle of life.
Job 14:5	Thou hast appointed his bounds that he cannot pass.
Job 38:20	That thou Shouldest take it to the bound thereof.
Ps. 107:10	Being bound in affliction and iron.
Pr. 22:15	Foolishness is bound in the heart of a child.
Pr. 30:4	Who hath bound the waters in a garment?
La. 1:14	The yoke of my transgressions is bound by his hand.
Ho. 5:10	The princes of Judah were like them that remove the bound.
Lu. 13:16	Whom Satan hath bound lo, these eighteen years, be loosed?
Ac. 20:22	And now, behold, I go bound in the spirit unto Jerusalem.
Ac. 23:14	We have hound ourselves under a great curse.
Ro. 7:2	For the woman which hath an husband is bound by the law.
II Th. 1:3	We are bound to thank God always for you, brethren.

Loose - Loosed

Job 30:11	Because he hath loosed my cord, and afflicted me.
Ec. 12:6	Or ever the silver cord be loosed, or the golden bowl be broken.
Is. 58:6	To loose the bands of wickedness, to undo the heavy burdens.

DEFINITIONS

Agreement - Agreement means to be into or for, in good mind, the same, like or similar, persuade, prevail upon, make one opinion, sound or speak together, put together, be met together, a putting down together.

Bind - Binding means to bind, gird, wrap round, fetter, tie, press, compress, bind a conspirator, entangle, yoke, fasten, stretch out before, bind around, bind under, bind up, straiten, bind fast, bind along with, obliging.

Bound - means to be bound, enclosed place, statute, limit, bent, bending, bowed down, thread, cord, bound to, bind, tie, fetter, press, be twisted together, owe, one bound, be wrapped around, press, bind around, be laid round about, bound with, mark, limit, set limit, make an enclosure.

Loose - Loosed means to draw off, cast off, loose, shake off, open, loose off or away, make inactive, send again or up, let go, lift up, lead forth, shake off, send forth or away, open for ones self, be loosed, be melted, be spread out, be opened, a loosening.

COMMENTS

Agreeing - We can make covenants with God or Satan which will result in blessings or cursings. If we walk together in the spirit, we must be agreed in our hearts not just in our heads or mouths. It is better to agree with your enemy than to suffer the consequences. Husband and wife make a strong team before God when they can truly agree and seek Him. Witnesses will not agree when they are false. We should not agree to subject our bodies, the temples of God, to fornicate with idols. Father, Son and Holy Ghost agree as one.

Requirements - God says in the Bible that He will listen to the righteous, who speak the truth, fear Him, offer-up their prayers, are reconciled to their brothers, follow the Lord, abide in Him, His Word abides in them, remit the sins of those who sin against them, have holy hands, confess their faults, pray for one another, have faith with works, keep His Commandments, and ask according to His Will.

The contrary is also true. He will not listen to you if your hands are full of blood, you are a sinner, have wrath and doubting, are vain, and follow the dead in Christ. This applies if you are unrighteous, untruthful, do not respect God, have unforgiveness against your brother and will not repent, follow man, do not read the Bible, do not release others from their sins, have unclean hands, do not repent, have no works in the Lord, do not obey the Bible, and pray according to your will. In other words, **if you do not follow God, don't expect God to follow you!**

Binding - We can bind (or bound) our soul with our words. We can bind the Word of God on our hearts. We can not bind or loose the things that God controls. We can bind up the brokenhearted and set at liberty those that are in spiritual prisons. We can bind Satan, the strong man, and tear up his playhouse in this world and in Christians. God gave us the Keys of Heaven to do His Work here on earth. We are commanded to bind the forces of evil from ourselves and others. We can not destroy the works of Satan unless we use the weapons of God: binding, loosing and agreeing (for this lesson).

Our life can be bound up in others. God sets bounds on the earth, nations and people. He has set a bound on our life span.

We can be bound in affliction and other yokes of bondage. A child is born with the sin nature in its heart. It is fruitless to try to remove the boundaries placed by God unless they are there because of sin. Satan and his forces of evil can place boundaries on us such as sickness, etc. We can be bound by our spirits. We can be bound with curses we have placed on ourselves. We are bound by marriage before God and man. We are bound *to give* thanks.

Loosing - God can bind or loose cords on us of affliction or death. We are to help others loose the bands of wickedness and get rid of the heavy burdens. We are commanded to loose the forces of evil from ourselves and others.

Agreeing - Binding - Loosing - First, we are to agree on earth to overcome the forces of evil. Second, we are to bind the forces of evil here on earth. God will then bind the forces of evil in Heaven that affect us here on earth. **Third**, we are to loose the forces of evil here on earth. God will then loose the forces of evil in Heaven that affect us here on earth.

There are times when we only want to agree with another Christian (in the Name of Jesus Christ) about some matter. There are times when we only want to bind the forces of evil and leave the evil forces in place. There are rarely times when we only want to loose the forces of evil to do their dirty work.

Generally, we want to complete the job and eliminate the source of the problem when we can. This means that we agree on the job to be done, bind the forces of the enemy, and finally loose the forces of evil from the person.

In deliverance, we agree to get rid of the demons in a persons body: flesh and soul. Then, we bind up the forces of the demons so that they can not manifest or harm anyone. Finally, we cast out the demons in Jesus' Name out of the person's body into dry places. Now the demons are on the outside of the body and the person must guard against letting the demons come back into his/her body by wrong actions.

EXAMPLE

We will use Marie, our daughter, as an example of agreeing - binding - loosing. She is pregnant and getting ready to have a child. We agree with the Bible and with each other for Marie to have a natural birth, and for both, Marie and the child, to be in good health. *We* bind the forces of evil against them and loose the them from any demonic activity. We ask these things in the Name of Jesus Christ. Amen.

MISTAKES IN TACTICS

Christians make many mistakes in tactics when dealing with the Devil especially in the area of deliverance. Agreement will work in any area of the Christian life when applied properly. It is not just for deliverance. If agreement is done improperly, then it won't work. Most of the carnal and Christian world is ignorant of Satan, fallen angels and demon spirits. Most of the traditional and full-gospel Christian world knows little on what the Bible teaches about evil. Satan and his forces are foreign to their way of thinking. Most of the full-gospel Christian world believes that Satan can not harm them and that a Christian can not have a demon within their body. They believe that if the person has a demon, they are not saved.

I would estimate that of the approximately five billion people in the world, only about 2.5% (Howard Pittman's death experience in the heavenlies) truly know Jesus Christ as their Savior (or 25% of those in church). Of this 2.5%, only about one in a hundred know Jesus as the Baptizer of the Holy Spirit, Healer of Our Bodies and Deliver from Demons, or about 0.25%. If these figures are correct, then only about 1,250,000 in the world really know about baptism, healing and deliverance. Whatever the figures are, there are not many who have come into true deliverance. If you are one of these people, then you need to be very thankful to God for bringing you in to this realm of the spirit world. From the reports we are getting from around the world, more and more people are coming into deliverance.

When the Christians finally start binding Satan, they think the job is finished after binding. Binding is a temporary measure and must be repeated probably daily. When you bind a demon, you paralyze it temporarily. The demon does not leave but remains dormant for an unknown period of time. If you don't cast the demon out, you will be daily binding it for the rest of your life. It is better to go ahead and cast the demon out. When the demon is within you, it has the upper hand. When the demon is outside of you, then you have the upper hand. It is easier to live with your demons on the outside than with your demons on the inside.

CAN SATAN MAKE YOU DO ANYTHING?

You have heard the statement many times, The Devil made me do it. Can Satan, his fallen angels or his demons make you do anything? The answer is a resounding no; they can not make you do anything!

You have to be in agreement with evil before you do evil. First, the enemy places an evil thought in your mind. At this point you have not sinned. You can reject the thoughts in the Name of Jesus Christ. Second, you can relish the thoughts over and over again until you feel that they are your thoughts. Then you want to do the act. Third, your body wont do the act until you tell your muscles to go into action. The evil act is then committed with your agreement. In summary, the thought comes to you, you like the thought, you decide to act on the thought and the evil deed is committed.

We have worked with thousands of people in deliverance. As far as we can determine, we have never worked with a person that was totally demon possessed. A person that is totally demon possessed would have absolutely no control over his/her spirit, soul and body. We have worked with some people that were in very bad shape but they still had some ability to control their behavior.

We have frequently worked with people that were demon possessed in one or more areas of their lives. Examples would be people that are addicted to some thing that they have no control over. If they can not control their actions in this area, then who is controlling their actions? The answer is a demon in their body is controlling their actions. The solution

to their problem is to get rid of the demon and sin no more. We deliberately only cast demons out of Christians. If you cast a demon out of an unsaved person, the last state of that person can be worse than the first state, if the person does not get saved. You have no guarantee that the person will get saved when the demon is cast out. It may be that the person just wants to do their thing and really does not want to follow Christ.

If Satan can not make you do anything, then why are people controlled by demons in some areas of their lives? The answer is that their ancestors or themselves have yielded to the Devil in these areas enough times that the demons have a strong affect in these areas on the peoples lives.

For instance, suppose that you are a glutton, someone who's god is their belly. You are driven by demons to overeat. However, can a demon force you to have the third piece of pie?

WE ARE OUR OWN WORST ENEMY!

We have just discussed that Satan and his forces can not make you do anything unless you and/or your ancestors have yielded in this area of sin enough times for the enemy to get a foothold. Even then, it is your choice to obey the demons.

Is Satan responsible for all of your mistakes? No, you are responsible for most of the mistakes! We can not blame the Devil for our mistakes; he is not a scapegoat for us to conveniently use to escape our responsibility. Is Satan greater than God? Not hardly.

We make mistakes in every area of our lives. The main areas are mental, physical, spiritual and material. Another way of saying this is the areas of spirit, soul, body and our environment. Or you could use the words: salvation, baptism, healing, deliverance and prosperity.

We make many mistakes in mental matters. These mistakes are caused by ignorance, not seeking the Leadership of the Holy Spirit, false teaching, etc. The mistakes in judgement cause us many problems in our business, ministry and personal lives. We have mental and emotional problems, and will to do the wrongs things.

We make many mistakes in physical matters. We don't know how to take care of our bodies or we don't care about the consequences of our actions. We abuse our bodies and then expect God to instantaneously heal us or rid us of the physical problem.

We make many mistakes in spiritual matters. There are many reasons why we are unlearned in the Ways of God. The church allowed Satan through the centuries to take away many of the true teachings of God. God may be bringing the teachings back in the end times. We make many mistakes in material matters. We don't know how to handle the material goods that God gives us such as money, property, etc. We are not good stewards of what God has trusted us with. We do not tithe and give offerings, and God curses us with poverty and want.

If you make a mistake of not following the Bible, Leadership of the Holy Spirit or Perfect Will of God, then God can not bless you. He must turn you over to Satan to curse you. Satan will attack you until you seek God, repent, break curses, break demonic ties, cast out demons, and finally start following the Lord.

PRAYER

"Father, forgive me where I have misunderstood and misapplied Your Word. Help me to truly understand the Principles of the Bible especially in the areas of Agreeing, Binding and Loosing. Help me to meet Your Requirements so that I will have Your Power to destroy the works of the enemy. Forgive me where I have made mistakes in tactics in the war against Satan. Forgive me when I said "The Devil made me do it". Help me not to be my own worst enemy.

Lord, I now pray for myself, this deliverance service and this camp meeting. Please have your way in my life and the lives of others so that we can be set free. I agree with all provisions in the Bible. I agree with God, with those present and with those who pray for the Camp.

We **agree** to deliverance from the demons in those present. We **bind** the forces of demons inside and outside of anyone present. We **loose** ourselves from the demons and **command** that they come out of our bodies and souls. We ask these things in the Name of Jesus Christ, our Lord, Master and Savior. Amen."

CURSING OTHERS AND BEING CURSED

COMMENTS

Earline and Linda Sutter are writing a book on curses. This lesson is an overview of curses. Glen Miller has given many scripture verses to build on. Many people are helped at the camp meetings. To me this is the purpose of the camp. If I didn't see results, I wouldn't come. See what you think about the following thoughts.

SOME THOUGHTS

It is amazing to me how many areas of the Bible are not explored and taught or preached by the fivefold ministry. It seems like God shows us a never ending list of topics to teach and minister on that are not commonly or infrequently taught. Apparently most ministers choose areas of the Bible that they are comfortable with and will further their ministry. The areas that they are not comfortable with, or are controversial or unpopular, or might cause them to lose some of their congregation or offerings, they avoid like the plague. This may be an excuse before man but it is not an excuse before God and they will have to answer to Him in the Great Day of Judgement. **Ministers and Christian Leaders - please think about standing before God and explaining why you did not teach certain areas of the Bible.**

Another weakness is the minister that says that you have to keep it simple so that the baby Christians will understand. So, they teach the same thing over and over again. The baby Christians are continually fed milk and are never fed the meat

of the Word of God. These Christians never grow up to be mature, strong Christians. Many of these baby Christians will fall away from Jesus Christ and go back out into the world. **Can you see that the minister is doing his congregation a disservice?**

It is clear that the Body of Christ needs the five-fold ministry which consists of apostles, prophets, evangelists, pastors and teachers. Many pastors would like to make it a four-fold ministry and eliminate the teachers. They say that the pastor is the pastor-teacher and there is no separate teaching ministry. If this is true, then why don't they teach the whole Word of God and not just a part of it? We need teachers who expound the whole Bible in a systematic manner so that the Body of Christ can have a working knowledge of the Bible and put it into practice.

There is a clear difference between preaching and teaching. Preaching is for the moment to stir people up and get them to make decisions in their lives; they walk out of church and usually quickly forget the message. Teaching is for the future to get people to remember the message and apply it to their lives. Teaching gives them a sound foundation to build on and then gives them the structure to build on the foundation.

There are many weaknesses in the church today which cause the Body of Christ to be in a weakened condition. We can not live on emotionalism for long; it makes you feel good for the service but it won't last when the trials of living in this world come to us. We need to have the solid foundation of the Bible to support us in trials and tribulations. It is nice to feel emotional about our salvation; we are not saved by feelings but by our belief in the Word of God.

Another weakness is catering to our fleshly desires. For example, the desire to have possessions. I Tim. 6:10 For the love of money is the root of all evil: which while some coveted after, they have

erred from the faith, and pierced themselves through with many sorrows. Teaching the congregation to look to God for blessings and possessions rather than what they can do for God. In other words, praying the give me and mine, my family of four and no more, selfish type of prayer. **Do** you agree or disagree with these thoughts?

BLESSING OTHERS AND BEING BLESSED

There is a lot in the Bible that deals with how to bless others and how to be blessed. This is the balance to cursing others and being cursed. We hear a lot taught about God blessing you but not much taught about how you can bless others in thought, word and deed. The emphasis is on what God will do for you without you having to do anything. Christianity is not a free lunch and we are not on welfare. To be an effective Christian requires considerable effort.

There are no blessings in the Bible that are unconditional. For every blessing there is a condition that you must fulfill before you receive the blessing. In other words, this is the **''if''** you see so often in the verses either stated directly or understood. **Deut. 28:1-2** And it shall come to pass, if thou shalt (shalt not) hearken diligently unto the voice of the Lord thy God, to observe and to do all his commandments which I command thee this day, that the Lord thy god will set (not set) thee on high above all nations of the earth: and all these blessings shall (shall not) come on thee, and overtake thee, if thou shalt (shalt not) hearken unto the voice of the Lord thy God. The reverse is true also; see the words in the parentheses.

PSYCHIC PRAYERS

A psychic prayer is any prayer that does not line up with the Word of God. If you pray contrary to the Bible, then you are praying not to God but to Satan. Satan then has the right before God to loose demons on the people that you prayed for as well as yourself. Psychic prayers is a good way to curse others and to be cursed in return.

SPOKEN CURSES

There are two ways that we can curse another person: thought or speaking. We can pray a psychic prayer or we can speak against another person either in our thoughts or out loud. We need to be careful what we think and speak as well as what we do.

The words we think or speak go out into the air and they have power to do good or evil. Ecc. 10:20 **Curse not the king, no not in thy thought; and curse not the rich in thy bedchamber: for a bird of the air shall carry the voice, and that which hath wings shall tell the matter.** Gould this he a demon spirit that God is talking about carrying your thoughts or words to the one that you are thinking or talking about?

ANCESTRAL CURSES

The first curses that we can receive are those placed on us by our ancestors which include our parents. These curses come down the ancestral line and are transferred by familiar spirits that are familiar with our family ancestral sins.

The ancestral curses are started by our ancestors committing some sin against God that is mentioned in the Bible. God would not curse us without warning us beforehand. A good example is the curse of worshiping other gods. Deut. 5:7-9 Thou shalt have none other gods before me. Thou shalt not make thee any graven image, or any likeness of any thing that is in heaven above, or that is in the earth beneath, or that is in the waters beneath the earth: Thou shalt not bow down thyself unto them, nor serve them: for I the Lord thy God am a jealous God, visiting the iniquity of the fathers upon the children unto the third and fourth generation of them that hate me. If our ancestors worshipped other gods in the manner described in these verses, then they cursed their descendents to the third and fourth generation. We are innocent and committed no sin but we still are cursed because of what those did who were in authority over us. However, it is not hopeless, God gave us a way to break the curses on us and our descendents.

PARENTAL CURSES

The parents can curse the child in the womb, after the child is born and until it dies. This is frightening when you think about the consequences of your actions on your children.

Common examples of cursing the child in the womb include conceiving the child in lust, not wanting the child when it is conceived, and failing in an abortion attempt.

Common examples of cursing the child after it is born include rejecting the child in some manner such as wanting a boy when a girl is born and not quickly changing their minds, cursing the child in thought or words, mistreating the child mentally, physically, spiritually or materially such as physical, emotional and sexual abuse.

CURSING BY OTHERS OTHER THAN YOUR ANCESTORS

You can be cursed by others other than your ancestors. These include those in the grip of the Devil: Satan worshipers, witches and warlocks, covens, fortune tellers and anyone practicing witchcraft. They include those in Christianity who would speak against you and pray psychic prayers for you.

How can you be cursed by these people? Prov. 26:2 **As the bird by wandering, as the swallow by flying, so the curse causeless shall not come.** There must be a cause for the curse to land. We have not seen anyone that lives a blameless, sinless, perfect life according to the whole Word of God. All you have to do is to read or listen to the Bible and see if you fulfill its provisions 100%. **It is very sobering to see how far you miss the target that God set for us to aim at.** We will never be perfect until Jesus Christ finishes the task in the hereafter.

CURSING YOURSELF

Other than being cursed by others, you can curse yourself. You can do this by sinning against God. For example, say that you conceived a bastard before marriage. It does not matter that you then get married; the damage has already been done. Deut. 23:2 A bastard shall not enter into the

congregation of the Lord; even to his tenth generation shall he not enter into the congregation of the Lord. What you and your girl friend did was to sin by committing fornication, a sin listed in the Bible. Both of you cursed yourselves and ten generations of your descendents with the curse of the bastard. This familiar spirits will work to cause family and church alienation, and a perpetuation of bastards generation after generation.

You can sin against your own body. I Cor. 6:18 **Flee fornication. Every sin that a man doeth is without the body; but he that committed! fornication sinneth against his own body.** This is the only sin that you do that sins against your body and brings curses directly against you. This sin can lead to Hell (spiritual death), physical diseases (physical death or living torment), and many problems in your life (death of marriage, etc.).

CURSING YOUR DESCENDENTS

When you curse yourself, you also curse your descendents. I know of no one-generation curse; they are multiple-generation curses. We have discussed the curse of the bastard and the curse of worshiping other gods; these carry a ten, and a three to four generation curse respectively.

ORIGIN OF CURSES

Where do curses come from? They come from God and are carried out by Satan with permission from God. Curses can be found listed in the Bible. Satan can not fabricate curses to place on you the way he fabricates lies. Deut. 28:15 But it shall come to pass, if thou wilt not hearken unto the voice of the Lord thy God, to observe to do all his commandments and his statutes which I command thee this day; that all these curses shall come upon thee, and overtake thee.

Let's look at where curses come from and where they go: remember that all curses originate with God. Curses can come to you from your ancestors or those who are not your ancestors. You can curse yourself. Curses can go out from you to your descendents or to others not your descendents.

BIBLICAL CURSES

There are probably sixty-six curses that can be easily identified in the Bible by simply looking up the word curse as well as the words cursed and cursing. Most of the curses are not so easily identified but must be discovered by studying the Bible and practicing deliverance. We believe that there is a curse associated with every verse in the Bible that you disobey. Deuteronomy 28 is a chapter of the blessings for obedience and the curses for disobedience. Compare Deut. 28:1-2 (blessings) with 28:15 (curses). Notice the little word **"all"** and the five times it is used. The corollary to the analogy of all blessings or all curses is that in between all and none are some blessings and some curses. You can be all blessed or all cursed or partially blessed and partially cursed.

THE CURSE OF DISOBEDIENCE

God sends demons and evil on people for disobedience of His Commandments. The following are paraphrases of verses about this subject. He will put a yoke of iron on your neck. Sickness can be caused by demons. God sends evil spirits to do some of His missions. God allowed Satan to prove Job. The deceived and the deceiver are His. He created evil and the waster to destroy. He has deceived and sent strong delusions. He sent a messenger in the flesh. Isa. 45:7 I form the light, and create darkness: **I make peace, and create evil: I the Lord do all these things.**

These actions by God cause many things to happen to people: sickness, cruelty, lying, seduction, death, deceit, troubling, confusion, lethargy, misery, destruction, ignorance, sorrow, wickedness, badness, adversity, affliction, calamity, displeasure, distress, grief, harm, hurt, mischief, sadness, trouble, vex, wretchedness, wrong, perishing, decay, ruin, corruptness, destroying, falling, de-luded, allured, enticed, persuaded, slumber, stupor, hardening, deceit, error, etc.

THE CURSE OF AHAB AND JEZEBEL

There are two free booklets you'll enjoy reading, **The Curse of Ahab**, and **The Curse of Jezebel**. Pickup a copy for each of you and also get a copy of our testimony, **From Death Into Real Life**. It took us four years to write our testimony after our only son, Byron, died at twelve years old.

We did not write these two booklets but only print them and give them away free to help people. We have seen the teaching, ministry and counseling about Ahab men and Jezebel women help many people. You can trace these curses back to Adam and Eve in the Garden when they fell from the Grace of God into sin. Read these booklets and see how many problems of mankind are caused by these characteristics of men and women.

Queen Jezebel was a prime example of controlling others. A Jezebelic wife and mother is actually practicing witchcraft as she tries to control her family. Charismatic witches use personal prophecy to control others. Charismatic witches are Jezebels.

THE CURSE OF CHARISMATIC WITCHCRAFT

Another aspect of Ahab and Jezebel is Charismatic Witchcraft. Witchcraft is the practice of trying to control others for personal gain. Charismatic witchcraft is exercising control over other Christians by leaders or by anyone within the congregation. A lot can be written about this subject. There are many demons associated with control of others. This practice is basically mind control.

Soul ties are formed with those to whom we submit our wills. Soul ties can be formed with leaders of the church as well as with anyone in the occult that we go to for help. A dictatorial pastor will form soul ties with his congregation. The church leaders are cursed by trying to take the place of God in our lives. The congregation is cursed for following man rather than God.

We have no right to control others! God gave us a free will and even He will not try to control us! Therefore, we enter into agreement with Satan and his demons when we attempt to control others, and we are practicing witchcraft!

THE CURSE OF THE BASTARD

We believe that probably everyone has the curse of the bastard and the curse of incest on them if they have not forgiven their ancestors and broken the curse off of them and their descendents.

There are histories about two families and their descendents. These stories clearly show the effects of the sins of the ancestors and how the descendents are cursed for generations. You can see the pattern repeating generation after generation.

THE INDIAN CURSES

Indian curses come from the Indians worshiping idols in their worship services and Indian rites practiced by the tribes. These curses come from worshiping other gods and practicing the occult.

Earline had Cherokee Indian ancestors on both sides of her family within three generations. blessing and take away the curse. We will get rid of cursed objects in our possession. We ask that you, other people and our descendents forgive us for anything we have done to bring the curse. We forgive our ancestors and everyone else that have placed curses on us. Please forgive all these people for psychic prayers, spoken curses, ancestral curses, parental curses, cursing by others, cursing ourselves, cursing our descendents, disobedience, Ahab and Jezebel, charismatic witchcraft, conceiving bastards, having incest, Indian curses, and any other curse known or unknown that is found in the Holy Word of God.

I now break any curses placed on me or my descendants from uttering a wish of evil against one; to imprecate evil, to call for mischief or injury to fall upon; to execrate, to bring evil upon or to; to blast, vex, harass or torment with great calamities. I break the curses back to ten generations or even to Adam and Eve on both sides of my family, and destroy every legal hold and every legal ground that demons have to work in my life. I break curses that follow in the name of the Lord Jesus Christ.

Because of these curses, her family had heart trouble and many men died therefrom. Earline, as a woman, even had heart trouble.

The following is her testimony: "I had a heart condition which was unusual. It never occurred with regularity nor under any specific condition. While taking a tread mill test, I experienced tremendous pain in the chest, arms and neck. Having been examined by a 'heart specialist' in Minneapolis, who told me that my heart was good but he had written 'death by heart attack' on many people's certificates like myself. These were people who didn't really have anything wrong with their hearts.

A year or so after my dad's death I found my heart acting up again. Sometimes one to five years would elapse between seizures. I began to ask God to show me why my brothers, dad, dad's brothers and his dad all had heart problems.

He showed me Ezekiel 18 & Exodus 20. He told me to repent for my ancestors and myself for the sin of idol worship in Leviticus 26:40-41. The curse of idol worship follows the blood line. I did these things and have been free since then. I was only the second generation from previous generations that sinned before God."

Eze. 18:14-18, We can recover from the sin of our ancestor. Eze. 20:1-6, These are the ten commandments which show the generational curse. Notice that God will show mercy when we repent. Lev. 26:36-42, God promises to remember those that repent.

CURSED OBJECTS

Deut. 7:26 Neither shalt thou bring an abomination into thine house lest thou be a cursed thing like it; but thou shalt utterly abhor it for it is a cursed thing. If you have cursed objects on your body or in your possessions that your carry around, or that are in your home, then your are cursed by God. You have invited the demons to attack you and the people that live in your home.

My favorite example is pierced ears which is a sign of slavery in the Bible. Jesus Christ wants us to live a simple life without religious objects or graven images. I want the men to take off all religious objects. I want the women to take off all jewelry except for wedding rings and watches. This will help in the deliverance to get rid of the demons.

SUMMARY

Therefore, be very careful how you think, pray, speak and act. Study your Bible to find out how God thinks and acts so that you can think, speak, pray and act in accordance with His Will. Also study to see how you should bless, rather than curse, others as well as yourself and your family.

Obey and be blessed - disobey and be cursed! It's your choice. You will be blessed in proportion to the amount of the Bible you follow and cursed in proportion to the amount of the Bible you do not follow. We are told to keep all the words of the Holy Bible.

SPIRITUAL WARFARE

Periodically, Earline and I have to break the curses that are placed against us and our ministry. You can feel the spiritual pressure building up and it is necessary to go to spiritual war. We forgive those who knowingly or unknowingly are praying or speaking against us, break any curses or soul ties, send the demons back to those who sent them, and pray that their eyes will be opened.

PRAYER

Father, we want to bless others and be blessed rather than to curse other and be cursed. Please make us a blessing and take away the curse. We will get rid of cursed objects in our possession. We ask that you, other people and our descendents forgive us for anything we have done to bring the curse. We forgive our ancestors and everyone else that have placed curses on us. Please forgive all these people for psychic prayers, spoken curses, ancestral curses, parental curses, cursing by others, cursing ourselves, cursing our descendents, disobedience, Ahab and Jezebel, charismatic witchcraft, conceiving bastards, having incest, Indian curses, and any other curse known or unknown that is found in the Holy Word of God.

I now break any curses placed on me or my descendants from uttering a wish of evil against one; to imprecate evil, to call for mischief or injury to fall upon; to execrate, to bring evil upon or to; to blast, vex, harass or torment with great calamities. I break the curses back to ten generations or even to Adam and Eve on both sides of my family, and destroy every legal hold and every legal ground that demons have to work in my life. I break curses that follow in the name of the Lord Jesus Christ.

- Mistreating God's chosen people Adultery, harlotry, prostitution idolatry Refusing to fight for God Not giving to poor Swearing falsely by God Robbing God of tithes Hearkening to wives rather than God Cheating people out of property Oppressing strangers, widows, orphans Incest with sister or mother pride Doing the work of God
- Deceitfully abortion or causing unborn to die Murdering indirectly Kidnapping Not preventing death Witchcraft Following horoscopes Losing virginity before marriage Rape Teaching rebellion against God Refusing to warn sinners Sacrificing humans

Intercourse during menstruation	Turning someone away from God
Necromancers	Rebelling against pastors
Being carnally minded	False prophets
Children rebelling	Not disciplining children
Fugitive and vagabond	Cursing rulers
Structure	Defiling the Sabbath
Destruction of family	Seances and fortune telling
priesthood word	Homosexuals and lesbians
Willing deceivers	Blaspheming lord's name
Disobedience to bible	Oral and anal sex
Keeping cursed objects	Nonproductivity
House of wicked	Improper family
Stealing	Refusing to do the will of God
Failing to give glory to God	
Dishonoring parents	Family disorder
Making graven images	Failure and poverty
Taking advantage of blind	Any sin worthy of death
Bestiality	Touching God's anointed
Murder secretly or for hire	Perversion of gospel
Putting trust in man	Loving cursing
Rewarding evil for good	Choosing that which God delights not in
	Looking to world for help
Having bastards	Stubbornness and rebellion
Striking parents	Offending children believing in christ
Cursing parents	Adding to or taking away from the bible
Sacrificing to false gods	Any biblical curse not listed above
Summer Dis lande Boas	

LIST OF DEMONS - Call out the demons that come in through the curses also.

Pestilence	Idol Worship	Graven Images
Consumption	Bastard	Pride
Fever	Wicked Balances	Catholic Prayers
Inflammation	Dislike/Hatred/Murder	Prince of Southern Curses
Extreme Burning	Curse of the Law	Prince of Occult
Blasting	Bless You Spirits	Witchcraft Curses
Mildew	Incest	Voodoo Curses
Botch of Egypt	Lesbians	Occult Curses
Emerods	Necromancers	American Indian Curses
Scab	Blaspheming	Charismatic Witchcraft
Itch	Sodomy	Horoscopes
Madness	Oral & Anal Sex	Rebellion
Blindness	Slackness	False Prophets
Astonishment of Heart	Deeper Teachings	Seances
Plagues	Irish Shamrock Hex	Fortune Telling
Sore Sicknesses	Fertility	Nonproductivity
Diseases of Egypt	Deceiving	Personal Poverty

Trembling of Heart	Adultery	Misrepresentation
Failing of Eyes	Disobedience	Perversion of Judgment
Sorrow of Mind	Cursed Objects	Doubt
Broken Vows	Thievery	Homosexual
Unicorn	False Swearing	Tulip
Twelve Petal Rosette	The Distlefink	Your Lucky Stars
Love & Romance	Eight Pointed Star	Friendship Hex
Pentacle/Pentagram	Eastern Star	Hexagram
Star of David	Mogen David	Cabalistic Magic Symbol
White Magic	Masonic Symbols	Freemasonry
Italian Horn	Leprechauns Staff	Unicorns Horn
Egyptian Ankh	Egyptian Sun	God RA Zodiac
Mexican Sun God	Buddhas	Crescent Moon & Star

Cursing, Vexation, Rebuke, Destroying, Perishing, Consuming, Groping Not Prosper, Oppressed, Spoiled, Failure, Crushed, Smite, Pursuing Sore Botch of Knees, Legs and Whole Body Overtaking, Distress, Plucked, Chastisement, Removed, Not Healed Astonishment, Proverb, Byword, Want, Besiege, Straitness, Evil Emotionalism, Love of Money, Psychic Prayers, Idol Worship, Conceived in Lust, Abortion, Rejection, Physical Abuse, Emotional Abuse, Sexual Abuse, Bastard, Incest, Fornication, Strife, Alienation, Sickness, Deceit, Delusions, Cruelty, Lying, Seduction, Death, Troubling, Confusion, Lethargy, Misery, Destruction, Ignorance, Sorrow, Wickedness, Badness, Adversity, Affliction, Calamity, Displeasure, Distress, Grief, Harm, Hurt, Mischief, Sadness, Trouble, Vex, Wretchedness, Wrong, Perishing, Decay, Ruin, Corruptness, Destroying, Falling, Deluded, Allured, Enticed, Persuaded, Slumber, Stupor, Hardening, Error, Taking God s Glory, Following Man, Witchcraft, Indian Spirits.

CURSES FOR SHEDDING INNOCENT BLOOD

GENERAL

I would like to examine the question of shedding innocent blood, or murder of innocent people. In the last twenty years there seems to be a great rise in the murder of innocent people or what seems like innocent people. Wondering why this has happened has set me to doing a little study. It seems that as the years go by unprovoked, or what looks like unprovoked, murders become more common.

As a child on a mountain in Tennessee, we heard of murder only once. It was a great shock to us all. Nothing like this had ever happened in my lifetime before. It took us children a long time to feel safe to go and come as we had before. There were no more murders there that I heard about, so in time, we became trusting again and went all about alone without fear.

I have read about so many murders in my town that I don't pay much attention to them anymore. I do find that I stay away from certain places and types of people. I wouldn't just go anywhere as I did as a child. I take my husband or someone else when I have to go to certain areas. We have a shopping center that I almost never go to alone because I consider it not to be safe even in the day time.

I started to notice a trend in our area; on the surface it seems more women are being attacked and/or murdered than in years past. I have often wondered why. I think we can find some answers in the Bible.

I have a new Bible which I have started to read from beginning to end, marking all of God's words in red. I came upon this verse, which I will have to admit, never registered with me before. Genesis 9:6, Whosoever sheds men's blood, by man shall his blood be shed; for in the image of God He made man. Since God created man in His image we should respect that which God gave honor to and not deface God's image, by unjustly killing a person. There is a law for killing by those who plan and carry out murder. There is a curse on those magistrates who do not punish murders, Rom. 13:4. The first account of innocent blood being shed in the Bible is in Gen. 4. The brothers Cain and Able have both offered sacrifice to God but only Able's is accepted. Cain becomes exceedingly angry and indignant. V.6, And the Lord said to Cain, Why are you angry? And why do you look sad and dejected? V.7, If you do well, will you not be accepted? And if you do not well, sin crouches at your door; its desire is for you, and you must master it.

Cain lets anger, rage, hate, jealousy take hold of him. Instead of repenting of disobedience to God's instruction concerning sacrifices, he decides to destroy the object of his anger. He murders his brother, hides the body, and pretends he doesn't know anything about it.

God is not deceived by this act, neither is the Devil. For God looks into Cain's heart and sees all the evil there. Cain could have confessed his sin but he did not, instead he lies. V. 11 contains his sentence. And now you are cursed by reason of the earth, which has opened its mouth to receive you brother's [shed] blood from your hand. V12, When you till the ground, it shall no longer yield to you its strength; you shall be a vagabond on the earth [in perpetual exile, a degraded outcast]. Even at this point Cain could have repented and been forgiven, but he would not. In fact, he was telling God that God would have to accept him because of his fine gift. There is nothing we can offer God fine enough to cause Him to accept us. It is only by accepting Jesus Christ as Saviour and afterward living by God's directions that we can be acceptable to God. Cain began to tell God about the harshness of his sentence. In the light of his murder of his brother, this attitude shows his opposition to God's laws. He should have considered his sentence light compared to the sentence he deserved.

See these scriptures on shedding innocent blood: Ex. 23:7, Keep very far from a false matter and [be very careful] not to condemn to death the innocent and the righteous, for I will not justify and acquit the wicked.

Deut. 19:10, Lest innocent blood be shed in your land, which the Lord your God gives you as an inheritance, and so blood guilt be upon you.

In the verses just before this one, God is setting up cities of refuge for those who accidentally kill another. God did not want the avenger of blood to kill while he was hot with anger. (If the avenger killed one who had accidentally killed, then the avenger would be guilty of shedding innocent blood.) The one who had accidentally killed another could stay in the city of refuge until the elders of his city could determine if he was guilty of hating and planning to kill. If it was certain that he hated and planned to kill, then they would go into the city of refuge and bring him out and slay him.

Why do this? V.13, Your eyes shall not pity him, but you shall clear Israel of the guilt of innocent blood, that it may be well with you.

This is the provision for redeeming the land where one is found murdered and no one knows who did the murder. Deut. 21:1-

9,

If one is found slain in open land, then the city nearest to the body shall bring a heifer to a valley never sown, break its neck, and there all the men from the city would wash their hands and say whether they had seen the murder or done it.

V.8, Forgive, O Lord, Your people Israel, whom You have redeemed, and do not allow the shedding of innocent blood to be charged to Your people Israel. And the guilt of the blood shall be forgiven them. V.9, So shall you purge the guilt of innocent blood from among you, when you do what is right in the sight of the Lord.

Deut. 27:24, **Cursed is he who slays his neighbor secretly. All the people shall say, Amen.** Even if you should never get caught, you and your descendents will be under a curse and will be hunted by others and be killed. The Devil will never leave you and your descendents alone until you repent of your sins, accept Jesus as Saviour, break the curses on the family line, cast out the demons, and live according to the Bible thereafter. If you or you children sin in this manner later, the curse will return.

Deut. 27:25, **Cursed is he who takes a bribe to slay an innocent person, all the people shall say, Amen.** This will include all parties participating in abortion of unborn children: the father, mother, doctor, nurses and all others who agree to the abortion. It includes those who are bribed to lie or kill, and judges who accept bribes to cancel sentences or give light sentences to those who have committed murder or have lied to protect the guilty.

I Sam. 19:5, Saul had ordered David slain but Jonathan attempted to persuade Saul to stop before he shed innocent blood. Why was Jonathan concerned? We will see soon that the curse for shedding innocent blood would effect Jonathan and all Saul's descendents, especially the males.

II Kings 21:16, **Moreover, Manasseh shed very much innocent blood, filling Jerusalem from one end to the other—besides his sin in making Judah sin, by doing evil in the sight of the Lord!** (II Chron. 33:1-10) He burned his children as an offering to his god in the valley of Ben-hinnom.

Manasseh, evil son of good Hezekiah, not only worshiped other gods but he put their images in God's Temple. Children were gifts from God given by Him to parents who then turned and killed them, and sacrificed them to demons. This was a terrible affront to God, a great rebellion, and a terrible sin which brings curses for many generations, possible forever, on a family line. It takes sincere repentance for these sins of self and/or ancestors.

II Kings 24:2-4, The Lord sent against Jehoiakim bands of Chaldeans, of Syrians, of Moabites and of Ammonites. And He sent them to Judah to destroy it, according to the word of the Lord which He spoke by His prophets. Surely this came upon Judah at the commandant of the Lord, to remove them out of His sight because of the sins of Manasseh according to all the sins he had done, And also for the innocent blood that he shed. For he filled Jerusalem with innocent blood, and the Lord would not pardon.

Jehoiakim was a descendent of Manasseh; the sins of his father he did plus he received the punishment and curses of his father. Good King Hezekiah prayed to not die, God heard him, and he proceeded to give Israel the worse king it had had so far. [Read of ten tragic results from God giving Hezekiah what he wanted so badly, II Kings 20:18; 21:1, 3-4, 6, 9, 14, 16, 20.] It was good that Hezekiah prayed earnestly but at the end of giving his desire list to God, he should have submitted himself to God s plan.

Josiah, son of Manasseh, did right in the sight of the Lord and God stayed His wrath until Josiah died. But Manasseh's grandson, Jehoiakim, followed after Manasseh and great was the destruction on Judah.

There is a good possibility we would never have heard of Nebuchadnezzar, if it had not been for the Kings of Judah going after other gods and shedding innocent blood. God appointed him to be king, and to take into captivity all of Judah and the rest of the known world.

I Kings 21-22 and II Kings 10, You will see an example of the results of shedding innocent blood on Ahab's household. Ahab wanted to have the vineyard of Naboth. Naboth refused to sell. Ahab came into his house, jumped into bed, whined around and pouted until he manipulated Jezebel to solve his problem.

She had Naboth framed and killed. God issued the results of that curse. V.19, To Ahab; where the dogs licked the blood of Naboth shall they also lick your blood. V.21, To Ahabs sons: I will bring evil on you and utterly sweep away and cut off from Ahab every male, bond and free. V.23, To Jezebel: the dogs will eat Jezebel by the wall of Jezreel. All these things happened just as God said.

Ps. 10:8, In this chapter we get a good picture of the wicked person who plots and plans murder of innocents. He is greedy, full of pride, persecutes the poor, spurns, renounces and despises the Lord, refuses to heed Gods instructions and warnings, thinks he will never be punished, his ways are grievous, he believes he will never have adversity or want, his mouth is full of cursing, deceit, oppression and fraud, trouble and sin are under his tongue, and he ambushes and slays the poor and innocent.

Ps. 15:5 tells us that those who will take a bribe to slay the innocent will not dwell in the tabernacle and in God s Holy Hill.

Ps. 94:21, There are those who band together to condemn the innocent to death, but the Lord will turn their own iniquity back upon them.

Ps. 106:36-42, And served their idols, which were a snare to them. Yes,, they sacrificed their sons and their daughters to demons,

II Kings 16:3. And shed innocent blood, even the blood of their sons and their daughters, whom they sacrificed to the idols of Canaan; and the land was polluted with blood. Thus were they defiled by their own works, and played the harlot and practiced idolatry with their own deeds of idolatrous rites. Therefore the wrath of the Lord was kindled against His people, insomuch that He abhorred and rejected His own heritage,

Deut. 32:17. And He gave them into the hand of the heathen nations, and they that hated them ruled over them. Their enemies also oppressed them, and they were brought into subjection under the hand of their foes.

Pro. 6:17-19, (six things the Lord hates) A proud look, a lying tongue, and hands that shed innocent blood, a heart that manufactures wicked thoughts and plans, feet that are swift in running to evil, A false witness who breaths out lies [even under oath], and he who sows discord among the brethren.

Isa. 59:7-8, Their feet run to evil, and they make hast to shed innocent blood; their thoughts are thoughts are of iniquity; desolation and destruction are in their paths and highways. The way of peace they know not, and there is no justice or right in their goings; they have made them crooked paths; whoever goes in them knows not peace.

Jer.2:34, This is a good chapter to read completely. God, through the prophets, is telling the history of sin to these people. He reminds them that He brought them out of Egypt and set them free. They have forgotten all His care and provisions in the wilderness, and being brought into a lane of plenty. Not even the priests ask for the Lord. The rulers transgressed against God, and the prophets prophesied by the authority of and in the name of Baal. Then God tells them what they are like and what will come upon them. He likens them to restless females in heat looking for a male. In verses 35-37 He explains how vain and hopeless their worship of idols is, and what destruction they have brought upon themselves.

In their idol worship they burn their babies and sacrifice their children; they also kill the innocent poor. V.34 tells them they have done these things because of their lust for idolatry.

One thing we have learned in deliverance sessions; those people who get into the occult, drugs or sex have a very difficult time giving their old activities up. After much prayer and Bible study, it has become evident that since these are all activities carried on in idol or Satan worship, the demons will really work on these people to get back in. It is far better and safer to leave idol and Satan worship out of you life. This means no sex before marriage, no desiring forbidden knowledge, no flirting with the occult, no use of illegal drugs, and no worship of anyone as Lord except Jesus Christ.

Jer. 19:4-9, Because the people have forsaken Me, and have estranged and profaned this place [Jerusalem], by burning incense in it to other gods that neither they nor their fathers nor the kings of Judah have known; and because they have filled this place with the blood of innocents, and have built the high places of Baal to burn their sons in the fire for burnt offerings to Baal, which I commanded not, nor spoke it, nor did it come into My mind or heart; Therefore, behold, the days are coming, says the Lord, when this place shall no more he called Topheth, or the Valley of Benhinnom, but the Valley of Slaughter. I will cause their people to fall by the sword of their enemies, and by the hand of those who seek their life; and their dead bodies will I give to be food for the birds of the air and for the beasts of the earth. I will make this city to be an astonishment and a horror and a hissing; I will cause them to eat the flesh of their sons and their daughters, and neighbors because of the distress of their life.

This group of verses should serve to warn us in America of much horror, sadness and distress ahead. I try to imagine what terror a baby goes through when it is murdered. It can be nothing

but murder. We can see how far we have fallen when we pick to murder those who are unable to do anything to defend themselves. See also Jer. 22:3,17; 26:15.

Eze. 13 tells us about people who are occult taking bribes to keep alive those who should die, and to kill those who should live. God says in verse 23 that He will deliver His people out of their hand. In Chapter 14, God explains what He will do to those who worship idols and still come around asking for God s advice. He will be cut off from the midst of My people. God says that when the land sins (which is like our law allowing and financing abortion), He will stretch out His hand against it and cut off their bread, send famine, and cut off from it man and beast. And that even if Noah, Daniel and Job were in that land, they could save only themselves by their own uprightness. You and I will stand before God on our own record and will not be able to make claims of Tightness because of what our families have done.

Matt. 27:4, When Judas saw that Jesus was condemned to be killed; his remorse was little more than a selfish dread of the consequences of betraying innocent blood. It looks like Judas didn't have the courage to face his friends after betraying Jesus. I'm sure he knew what he had done.

Matt. 27:24, Even Pilot wanted everyone to know he was not responsible for the innocent blood of Jesus. V.25, **Then answered all the people, and said His blood he on us, and on our children.** Once when we were working in deliverance with a person of Hebrew blood inheritance, we were impressed to have them repent for this curse and break it. They then began to shake and tremble violently. When they were free of these spirits, the shaking stopped.

From all this scripture we have learned: it is a very severe thing to take the life of any human being. It is most severe to take the life of the innocent, the unborn or the poor. To murder the unborn in a attempt to cover other sins only gets a person in more trouble that having the child.

We have seen how rebellion, hate, envy, jealousy grow extremely rapidly. The Bible tells us to obey the instructions of God quickly and enthusiastically. Quickly forgive others, repent of rebellion and quickly correct any errors in your thinking.

Have you seen families or a person that seemed to never belong, never be able to make enough money to take care of themselves, let alone their families, families who seemed to always be despised in the neighborhood, those who work and make plenty of money but never seen to have enough, those who never seem to be able to come to Jesus, those who stay in their idolatry and witchcraft even when it is obvious they are gaining nothing but are being damned, etc.?

There will be judgement coming on our land for the guilt of all the innocent blood that has been shed on our soil. These are some of the consequences we can expect: all the above and all those things we read about happening to the Old Testament people.

There must be sincere and deep repentance for the agreement to or the act of murder of innocents. If you give consent to abortion, you are also guilty. When Daniel asked God to forgive the sins of his nation, he used the terms us not them. Maybe we should do that too.

PRAYER

Dear Father in Heaven, we have read and learned today that there are curses that fall on individuals, families, races and on nations for the sin of shedding innocent blood. Learning that this is a curse that travels down the family line, I have no way of knowing what has gone on before me, I do now ask for forgiveness for myself and those before me who may have sinned against you and others by shedding innocent blood. We have greatly erred in shedding innocent blood in the United States, Lord forgive us this terrible sin and redeem us from quilt and cleanse the land.

Father, I repent of having become involved in acts that show worship and obedience to the Devil and his demons. I repent of all occult acts: worship, drugs, sex, thievery, murder, etc I break all soul ties with others that I practiced these acts with. I do this in the name of Jesus Christ my Lord.

Father, because you have given us power over all the power of the Devil, I break this curse of shedding innocent blood off of my family and my descendents in the name of Jesus Christ. I also break curses of idol worship, Satanism, illicit sex in Jesus name.

Father, You have said that if I call on the name of the Lord I can be delivered. I do now call upon the name of the Lord Jesus Christ to set me free I thank you Jesus for all you have done for me. I commit my life to you in a greater way today than I have before. Please instruct me and help me to correct my life and bring it into subjection to You. I pray this prayer in the name of Jesus Christ, God's son. Amen.

LIES, DECEIT AND FLATTERY

SCRIPTURE

Num.	23:19	s not a man, that He should lie.
Jud.	16:10	You can not play with lies.
I Sam.		strength of Israel will not lie nor repent.
Job	11:3	Lies are bad devices.
Psa.	62:4	Do you delight in lies?
	89:35	not lie unto David.
Prov.	14:5	A faithful witness will not lie.
	19:5	The liar shall not escape.
	19:9	The liar shall perish.
	29:12	Does you leader listen to lies?
Isa.	9:15	Do you teach lies?
	28:15	Have you made lies your refuge?
	59:4	If you are vane, you will lie.
	63:8	God's children will not lie.
Jer.	14:14	Do you prophesy lies in the Name of God?
Eze.	21:29	False prophesy is divination.
	24:12	Are you weary with lies?
Hos.	10:13	Have you eaten the fruit of lies?
	12:1	Lies will bring you into desolation.
Amos	2:4	Lies will cause you to make errors.
Mic.	1:14	Lies will cause you to fail.
	2:11	A man walking in the spirit will not lie.
Nah.	3:1	Lies and robbery are companions.
John	8:44	The Devil is the father of lies.
Acts	5:3	Lies come from Satan.
	5:4	You lie to God rather than to men.
Rom.	1:25	Satan changed the truth of God into a lie.

9:1 ruth is in Christ.

- II Cor. 11:31 God knows when you lie.
- Col. 3:9 Do not lie to each other.
- II Thes. 2:11 If you lie, you are deluded.
- I Tim. 4:2 Speaking lies in hypocrisy.
- Titus 1:2 **:annot lie.**
- Heb. 6:18 **npossible for God to lie.**
- James 3:14 Envying will cause a person to lie.
- I John 1:6 Liars walk in darkness.
- Rev. 21:8 Liars shall be placed in the Lake of Fire and brimstone.
 - 22:15 Do you love a lie?

COMMENTS

Another title for this lesson could be Are You A Liar? In this camp meeting there has been a powerful presence of the Lord to set the captives free. Everyone needs deliverance: from the cradle to the grave, male and female, congregation and ministry. Young people understand much more than we give them credit for. It is amazing what a child that is two years old can understand; we have seen this in our grandson, Nat.

I recommend that everyone obtain a good dictionary and look up words that they do not understand. Webster's Collegiate Dictionary is a good choice. An unabridged dictionary is the best to find definitions for your Bible study. Do the following definitions apply to you?

DEFINITIONS

1. LIE, LIED, LYING: to make an untrue statement with intent to deceive; to create a false or misleading impression; to affect by telling lies; to tell an untruth; an assertion of something known or believed by the speaker to be untrue with intent to deceive; an untrue or inaccurate statement that may or may not be believed true by the speaker; something that misleads or deceives.

2. LIE, PREVARICATE, EQUIVOCATE, PALTER, FIB mean to tell an untruth. LIE is the blunt term, imputing dishonesty; PREVARICATE softens the bluntness of lie by implying quibbling or confusing the issue; EQUIVOCATE implies using words having more than one sense so as to seem to say one thing but intend another; PALTER implies making unreliable statements of fact or intention or insincere promise; FIB applies to a telling of a trivial untruth.

3. DECEIT: the act or practice of deceiving; DECEPTION: an attempt or device to deceive; TRICK: the quality of being deceitful; DECEITFULNESS.

4. DECEIVE: ensnare; to be false to; to fail to fulfill; cheat; to cause to accept as true or valid what is false or invalid; to while away.

5. DECEIVE, MISLEAD, DELUDE, BEGUILE mean to lead astray or frustrate usually by underhandedness. DECEIVE implies imposing a false idea or belief that causes ignorance, bewilderment, or helplessness; MISLEAD implies a leading astray that may or may not be intentional; DELUDE implies deceiving so thoroughly as to obscure the truth; BEGUILE stresses the use of charm and persuasion in deceiving. 6. DISHONEST: shameful, unchaste; characterized by lack of truth, honesty, or trustworthiness; UNFAIR, DECEPTIVE.

7. DISHONEST, DECEITFUL, MENDACIOUS, LYING, UNTRUTHFUL mean unworthy of trust or belief. DISHONEST implies a willful perversion of truth in order to deceive, cheat, or defraud; DECEITFUL usually implies an intent to mislead and commonly suggests a false appearance or double-dealing; MENDACIOUS is less forthright than lying, may suggest bland or even harmlessly mischievous deceit, and used of people often suggests a habit of telling untruths; LYING implies a specific act or instance rather than a habit or tendency; UNTRUTHFUL is less brutal term than lying and in application to accounts or description stresses a discrepancy between what is said and fact or reality rather than an intent to deceive.

8. FLATTERY: the act or practice of flattering; something that flatters; insincere or excessive praise; a pleasing self-deception.

9. FEIGN: to give a false appearance of; induce as a false impression; to assert as if true; pretend; invent, imagine; to give fictional representation to; disguise, conceal.

10.VANITY: something that is vain, empty, or valueless; the quality or fact of being vain; inflated pride in oneself or ones appearance; conceit.

11.FALSE: not genuine; intentionally untrue; adjusted or made so as to deceive; tending to mislead; not true; not faithful or loyal; treacherous; appearing forced or artificial; unconvincing; based on mistaken ideas; inconsistent with the facts; IMPRUDENT, UNWISE, FAITHLESS.

GOD IS TRUTH

God is ultimate truth. He imparts his truth to us primarily through the written Word of God which we are expected to learn and use in a workmanlike manner. In addition, Almighty God speaks to us through his Holy Spirit into our human spirits. Jesus Christ is our attorney before Almighty God; He presents our defense to God and asks that God show us the Truth of Jesus Christ. The Father, Son and Holy Spirit are truth and they want us to know the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth. His ways are above our ways and his thoughts are above our thoughts. He has all wisdom and knowledge. We are expected to seek Him and He will impart His Wisdom and Knowledge to use thought the Holy Spirit. The Truth of Jesus Christ will set you free. God never makes a mistake and does not have to change His Mind about what He does.

I have to testify in courts. I have to swear to tell the truth before I can testify. If I am caught lying, I can be sent to prison. Maybe we should make the preachers swear to tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth so help me God before they start preaching.

GOD WILL NOT LIE

Where would you be if you could not trust God in everything? Where would you be if you could not trust the Bible in everything; what would you believe and what would you not believe? You are risking your eternity on what God says in His Word. You are also risking your life here on earth. Most Christians tend to look at the here-and-now rather than the here- and-after which is the most important. It is such a blessing to relax in God and trust Him in all things, and not to have to trust in ourselves.

No one is perfect or ever will be perfect on this earth except for Jesus Christ. I find that I make mistakes in judgement in my dealings with people and with the things of the world. I also sin and

have to ask forgiveness of the Father. If you will read or listen to the Bible and compare it to your life, you will find that you fall far short of what the Bible tells you to do. Do you love God with all your heart, soul and mind or is there some reservation for the things of this world? Do you love your neighbor as yourself; how are you treating your neighbors? I have the whole Bible on cassette tape and listen to it continuously at night and also while I am in the cars. See Mark 12:30-31.

RIGHTEOUSNESS AND HOLINESS

If you want to live in righteousness and holiness, then you will not lie or think lies. Think about God and Satan hearing every lie that you speak out of your mouth or think about in your mind. Think about God and Satan taking action on those lies; God will not bless and Satan will fulfill the curses.

Preachers talk a lot about living a holy life in righteousness. Many times they tell you to do something but do not tell you how to do it. It does no good to tell a person to do something in the Lord unless you tell them how to do it according to the Bible.

THE LITTLE WHITE LIE

How many Christians feel that they can tell a little white lie and it will not hurt anything? How do you know that it will not hurt anyone? What damage could it cause you and those related to you: Christian family and blood-related family? Since we are the Body of Christ and every Christian is related to every other Christian, then what we do affects everyone else. Every lie gives Satan an opportunity to use it against you and against the person you told the lie to. He might even petition God for an opportunity to get at you. Jesus Christ will not defend you when you tell a lie. Look at what happened to the Body of Christ when some Christian leaders fell and the media took over the persecution.

Why not tell the truth in love? We have found that tough love is a good way to help people. If you truly love that person, you will tell them the truth. If you are after some selfish gain, you will not be truthful with that person so that they will feel good about you and let you have your way. God tells us the truth to help us; Satan tells us a lie to hurt us.

EVANGELISTICALLY SPEAKING

This is a term used by ministers to talk about their meetings, church or congregation. They exaggerate the numbers to make them look good to other ministers and Christians. This is another white lie.

THE DELIBERATE LIE

When a Christian tells a deliberate lie, they are really opening themselves up to a demonic attack. They fully know it is a lie but they deliberately go ahead and tell it anyway.

See if you fit the following description of liars which I took out of the Bible. You would be called a liar. You could say your father is the Devil because he is the father of lies. Just like him, your part will be in the Lake; you shall not escape and shall perish. Liars are failures, use bad tactics, a sword is upon them, are deceivers, have naughty tongues, poor men are better, commit perjury in the spiritual world, and the truth is not in them.

Liars set a trap for themselves, do not respect themselves, delight in lies, are false witnesses, make lies their refuge, lie to God's people, cause themselves to make mistakes, will eat the fruit

of their lies, think-up lies, teach and prophesy lies, trust in lies, are weary with lies, are an abomination to God, are recognized as liars, do not walk in the Spirit, are false, lie to God, walk in darkness, and speak in hypocrisy.

FLATTERY

You are trying to deceive the person by being insincere and praising the person without justification. You see a lot of flattery in the Christian and carnal worlds. You expect it in the carnal world where people are trying to get the upper hand and advance their cause. We should not have to see it in the Christian world.

Why are Christian laymen and ministers so weak that they need to be praised just to do their jobs? Why do pastors have to build themselves up and have their congregations build them up? Why do people try to get the Glory that belongs to God? These people have a problem with pride, ego and vanity, or with insecurity, inferiority and rejection, or with selfishness, greed and self- serving.

PRETENDING

Pretending is another form of lying. You could use synonyms like affectation, theatrics, playacting, sophistication, pretension, etc. **God hates the smell of your offering because it is false.** He sees through your front and into your inner man where the true self resides.

You put on your Sunday-go-to-meeting clothes and artificial face. This is your facade to show the world that you are a good Christian. You may act like the Devil before or after the service. During the service you do and say the right things. You live for God one hour of the week and then live for yourself the rest of the week. Christianity is a full-time profession not just during the times that the church door is open for meetings. **You have to work at being a good Christian; it is not a spectator sport.**

Women especially have problems with pretending to prove that they are alright in the sight of God and man. Their voices will be high-pitched, piercing and falsetto or they will be harsh, rough and angry, or they will be pious, religious and in another tone. In other words their voices will not be natural as if another personality took over and the true personality was submerged.

Men tend to be more natural than women. They exhibit their pretense in their overdressing, hair styles, makeup, perfume and jewelry. They pray in a falsetto voice. They try to appear to be very dignified and in control of every situation. They may exhibit false tears for appearance.

DECEIT AND DECEPTION

It is sad to see all of the deceit and deception going on in the Christian world today. Most of it stems from those who are trying to build their ministry rather than letting God build His ministry in that person or church. It can take the form of trying to build an edifice for one man who must raise a lot of money. It can be a pastor of a local church who must be dictatorial and flattered. It is usually self-centered in one man or a small group of men and women.

These practices go on for years until something happens and that person falls. Then the Christian world catches it from the media who don't like Christians anyway. The falls of these men affect all of Christianity. They have affected our ministry and all of Christianity; people do not trust the public ministries which raise money they same way that they did before the falls of the leaders.

PRIDE, EGO AND VANITY

I like the definition of vainness: emptiness. The self- inflated pride is emptiness. It is like a lot of hot air and the person needs their balloon punctured. They need to come down to earth and accept reality in their lives. God hates pride because the people want to be gods rather than accept God s leadership.

FALSENESS

Anything that is false is contrary to God and will cause us problems of some sort. Falseness can be found in religions, churches, ministries, families and individuals. It can be found in human beings and material things. The human being is trying to be someone other than his natural self. He is using material things to try to achieve an image that he wants to portray.

CHEATING

Lying leads to cheating and cheating leads to lying; they work hand- in-hand. Cheating can take many forms: cheating on the marriage and family, cheating on the ministry and church finances, cheating on the Lord in tithes and offerings, cheating on the business and income taxes, and in general taking ungodly advantage of others in some form. We can cheat mentally, physically, spiritually or materially. Cheating on God is called spiritual adultery or the whoring after other gods. It could be called spiritual idolatry, the love of money, lust of the eyes, lust of the flesh, and pride of life.

DISHONESTY

A dishonest person must lie to cover their tracks. One lie leads to another and the person becomes a compulsive liar. A dishonest Christian will lie to God or try to reason with God about his actions or try to rationalize his actions in his mind. This person can not be trusted. A Christian must first be honest with God and then honest with themselves. **It is much easier to face the truth headon; in the short run it hurts but in the long run it pays off.** It pays to have godly qualities of truth and realism; God tells it like it is. There is no Christian fantasy in God. There is no fantasy in how God made this world; it works perfectly according to His plan. John 8:32 **And ye shall know the truth, and the truth shall set you free.**

RESPONSIBILITY OF A MINISTER

The minister has a frightening responsibility before God to tell the truth. God holds the minister to a higher burden of responsibility than He does the layman that does not teach. The minister will have to answer to God for every word that he has used to teach God's people. The only salvation is that we are constantly learning and will never know it all until God finishes His teaching in eternity. If we had to wait until we were perfect, there would be no ministers.

I pity the minister that chooses not to teach an unpopular portion of the Word of God, such as deliverance, which was about a fourth of the ministry of Jesus Christ. The pastor should teach the whole Bible, not just the parts he likes. Any part of the Bible that you are ignorant of will cause you grief in some form. It will also cause the pastor grief when he has to answer to God in the Great Day of Judgement as well as in the here-and-now. **BACKGROUND OF THE MOODYS** - We were called as teachers in the five-fold ministry. We specialize in deliverance and healing which go hand-in-hand. The reasons we do this is because so few other ministers will deal in this area and we have a limited amount of time; we have an engineering business as well as the teaching ministry. We are not preachers or pastors; we have a pastor in Slaughter, Louisiana, Butch Taylor, and our church is Manna Baptist Church, a full-gospel church that believes and practices deliverance. God told us that He had called many to this ministry but they had turned Him down. He took us because we were willing. God rubbed our noses in the mire of marriage problems for two years to make sure we wouldn't quit when the going got tough.

Most pastors see this as an unpopular and controversial ministry which is unfortunate for the Christian world. It is hard to understand why because it is a glorious ministry. **You get to see the miracle-working power of God in people's lives and you get to see lives changed sometimes before your very eyes.** Our goal is to teach others how to do deliverance and watch it spread out around the world. When we found out how demonized Christians were, we saw that we could do very little just going around the world and casting out demons; the world needs teaching. We recommend this ministry to others. Every Christian should be casting out demons if they believe. I would like to see a million deliverance ministers in the world. They would stay busy because Christians are so very demonized and this includes those in the ministry. Casting out a demon is a miracle in the sight of God (Mark 10:38-39).

OLD PROPHECY GIVES AMAZING PREVIEW

(Original Mother Shipton Prophecy) - This prophecy was written over 500 years ago by a woman. See if you think it was from God and applies today. The following is only one part excerpted for this lesson:

And now a word in uncomb rhyme Of what will be in further time, For in those wondrous, far-off days, The women shall adopt a craze, (Women are led around by a hook in their noses by fashions and women's' liberation.) To dress like men, and trousers, wear (Women look like men and wear men's' underwear.)

And cut off their lively licks of hair. (Women's' hair gets shorter and shorter and they look more and more like men.) They'll ride astride with brazen brow, (Women wear tight clothes and have protruding front chests and hips. They many have a whore's forehead, Jer. 3:3.) As witches on a broomstick now, (Jezebelic women practice witchcraft.)

Then love shall die and marriage cease, (Divorce now consumes over half of the marriages, and people are living together without marrying.)

And nations wane as babies decrease, (Abortion is killing millions of babies.)

The wives shall fondle cats and dogs, (Bestiality is sex with animals. Grotesque babies can be born from these unions.) **And then live much the same as hogs.** (These types of people live like animals frequently in filthy environments.)

PRAYER

Lord, I want to be like you; you do not lie. I want the Truth of Jesus Christ to be in me. I repent for being a liar, a deceitful person, being a cheat and dishonest, flattering other people, giving a false appearance, having pride, ego and vanity, being false and faithless, pretending I am something other than what I am, and for all falseness of dress, thoughts and actions. Help me to he what you made me to be in all ways; I want to be natural and not false. Show me my false personalities so that I can cast them out. All these things we ask in the Blessed Name of Jesus Christ, my Lord, Master and Savior, Amen.

LIST OF DEMONS

See the MASS DELIVERANCE MANUAL for Lists of Demons that you can use such as **Bad** Habits of Thinking and Reacting; Christian Fantasy - Lies not Truth; Common Demon Groupings; Hate, Vengeance, Envy and Strife; and Self. The following list are characteristics of liars: Lies Lying Prevarication Equivocation Paltering Fibbing Deceitfulness Deceptiveness Trickery Misleading Deluding Beguiling Dishonesty Unfairness Mendacious Untruthful Flattery Feigning Pride Ego Vanity Falseness Imprudent Unwise Faith less Cheating Pretending Insecurity Inferiority Rejection Bitterness Rebellion Selfishness Greediness Self- Serving False Witnesses False Teachers False Prophets Fruit of Their Lies Self-Centered Spiritual Adultery Love of Money Lust of the Eyes Lust of the Flesh Pride of Life Compulsive Liar Christian Fantasy Affectation Theatrics Playacting Sophistication Pretension Self-Inflated

REFERENCES

Webster's Ninth New Collegiate Dictionary

RESPECT, FEAR AND NERVOUSNESS

SCRIPTURE

43:23	Peace be to you, fear not.	
9:20	He that feared the Word of the Lord.	
15:11	Fearful in praises, doing wonders.	
19:3	Fear every man his mother, and his father, and keep my Sabbaths.	
1:21	Fear not, neither be discouraged.	
6:24	And the Lord commanded us to do these statutes, to fear the Lord.	
8:6	To walk in his ways, and to fear him.	
28:67	For the fear of thine heart wherewith thou shalt fear.	
31:6	Be strong and of a good courage, fear not, nor be afraid of them.	
31:12	Fear the Lord your God, and observe to do all words of this law.	
24:14	Therefore fear the Lord, and serve him in sincerity and in truth.	
6:23	Peace be unto thee; fear not.	
17:35	Ye shall not fear other gods.	
19:9	He charged them, thus shall ye do in the fear of the Lord.	
3:25	For the thing which I greatly feared is come upon me.	
21:9	Their houses are safe from fear.	
28:28	Behold, the fear of the Lord, that is wisdom.	
15:4	But he honoureth them that fear the Lord.	
23:4	I will fear no evil.	
	9:20 15:11 19:3 1:21 6:24 8:6 28:67 31:6 31:12 24:14 6:23 17:35 19:9 3:25 21:9 28:28 15:4	

	25:14	The secret of the Lord is with them that fear him.		
	74:20	Have respect unto the covenant.		
	89:7	God is greatly to be feared in the assembly of the saints.		
	96:4	He is to be feared above all gods.		
	96:9	Fear before him, all the earth.		
	119:6	When I have respect unto all thy commandments.		
	119:15	And have respect unto thy ways.		
	119:117	And I will have respect unto thy statutes continually.		
	147:11	The Lord taketh pleasure in them that fear him.		
Prov.	8:13	The fear of the Lord is to hate evil.		
	10:24	The fear of the wicked, it shall come upon him.		
	14:26	In the fear of the Lord is strong confidence.		
	14:27	The fear of the Lord is a fountain of life.		
	15:33	The fear of the Lord is the instruction of wisdom.		
	23:17	But be thou in the fear of the Lord all the day long.		
	28:14	Happy is the man that feareth always.		
	29:25	The fear of man bringeth a snare.		
Ecc.	12:13	Fear God, keep his commandments: this is the whole duty of man.		
Isa.	8:13	And let him be your fear, and let him be your dread.		
	14:3	The Lord shall give thee rest from thy sorrow, and from thy fear.		
	17:7	And his eyes shall have respect to the Holy One of Israel.		
	41:14	Fear not, thou worm Jacob. (Fear not preachers to tell the truth.)		
	44:8	Fear ye not, neither be afraid.		
Dan.	5:19	All people, nations, and languages, trembled and feared before him.		
	1:6	And if I be a master, where is my fear?		
	3:16	Book of remembrance was written for them that feared the Lord.		
Matt.	6:30	Shall He not much more clothe you, O ye of little faith?		
	8:26	Why are ye fearful, O ye of little faith?		
	10:28	Fear not them which kill the body, are not able to kill the soul.		
Luke	12:5	Fear him, which after he hath killed hadth power to cast into hell.		
	21:26	Mens hearts failing them for fear.		
Rom.	8:15	For ye have not received the spirit of bondage again to fear.		
II Cor.	7:1	Perfecting holiness in the fear of God.		
Eph.	5:21	Submitting yourselves one to another in the fear of God.		
	5:33	And the wife see that she reverence her husband.		
Phil.	2:12	Work out your own salvation with fear and trembling.		
II Tim.	1:7	For God hath not given us the spirit of fear.		
I Pe.	2:18	Servants, be subject to your masters with all fear.		
	3:2	While they behold your chaste conversation coupled with fear.		
I Jo.	4:18	There is no fear in love; but perfect love casteth out fear.		
Rev.	21:8	Fearful shall have their part in the lake which burneth with fire.		

WHAT IS FEAR? - Fear: an unpleasant often strong emotion caused by anticipation or awareness of danger, an instance of this emotion, a state marked by this emotion, anxious concern, solicitude, **PROFOUND REVERENCE AND AWE ESPECIALLY TOWARD GOD**, reason for alarm, danger. Do you have profound reverence and awe towards God?

FEAR, DREAD, FRIGHT, ALARM, PANIC, TERROR, TREPIDATION mean painful agitation in the presence or anticipation of danger. FEAR is the most general term and implies anxiety and usually loss of courage; DREAD usually adds the idea of intense reluctance to face or meet a person or situation and suggests aversion as well as anxiety; FRIGHT implies the shock of sudden, startling fear; ALARM suggests a sudden and intense awareness of immediate danger; PANIC implies unreasoning and over-mastering fear causing hysterical activity; TERROR implies the most extreme degree of fear; TREPIDATION adds to DREAD the implications of timidity, trembling, and hesitation.

FEARFUL, APPREHENSIVE, AFRAID mean disturbed by fear. FEARFUL implies often a timorous or worrying temperament (the child is fearful of loud noises) APPREHENSIVE suggests a state of mind and implies a premonition of evil or danger (apprehensive that war would break out) AFRAID often suggests weakness or cowardice and regularly implies inhibition of action or utterance (afraid to speak the truth). (How about that preachers, are you afraid to preach the truth? Are you more afraid of man than of God?)

HOW ABOUT FEAR MENTIONED IN THE BIBLE?

Fear is used frequently in the Word of God. Some definitions of fear are terror, sorrow, tremble, fright, **REVERENCE**, dread, rage, anger, timid, afraid, pain, caution and horror.

Reverential fear means fear, fearful, dread, terrible, terror, that ought to be feared, be afraid, reverence, be feared, be had in reverence, terrible acts, terrible things, affright, make afraid and put in fear. The number of times that reverence means fear is significant.

SHOULD WE RESPECT AND/OR FEAR THE LORD?

In recent years, I have told people not to fear the Lord or to be deathly afraid of Him but to have enough respect for God that they would obey His Word. Satan causes many Christians to fear lost salvation and implies that God is a harsh God that wants to hit people with a big stick as soon as they do anything wrong. Instead of respecting God, they fear God. **We need to fear the judgments of Cod. God is holy and righteous, and will not compromise His Word.** Do you fear the judgments of God?

We should respect Gods Covenant, Commandments, Ways, Statutes, and Being. Psa. 74:20 - **Have respect unto the covenant.** 119:6 - **When I have respect unto all thy commandments.** 119:15 - And have respect unto thy ways. 119:117- **And I will have respect unto thy statutes continually.** Isa. 17:7 - **And his eyes shall have respect to the Holy One of Israel.**

Some of the Body of Christ want to dwell on the God of Love and not the God of Judgement. God s Love is balanced with God s Judgement. Most people do not want to think about God's Judgement. We want to think about God s Love and what He will do for us. We do not want to think about what is our part of the Covenant with God and what we are supposed to do for the Lord.

This study has indicated to me that we need to have a very healthy respect and fear for God and His Holiness. We actually need to have somewhat of a fear for God so that we don't take Him

and His Word lightly and casually. We should fear God in the manner indicated in the Bible. **Do not take God for granted!** Do you?

ARE THERE BENEFITS FROM FEARING GOD? - Is there a positive side to fearing God? Absolutely, there are many benefits that accrue to the person that fears God. That person will work at keeping God's commandments and will be blessed rather than cursed.

The list of selected scriptures used above indicate that we can have peace, be encouraged, be strong and of good courage, fear not nor be afraid, not fear other gods, houses are safe from fear, be instructed in wisdom, will be honored by God, fear no evil, receive the secret of the Lord, takes pleasure in those that fear Him, have strong confidence, drink at the fountain of life, be happy, have rest, be written in the Book of Remembrance, perfecting holiness through fear of God, and work out our salvation.

We can have rest, peace, calmness, sleep and quietness that comes from God. To obtain these benefits, we must respect and reverence God; and dread His Judgments. Do you have the peace of God that passes understanding?

WHAT DOES IT TAKE OTHER THAN MENTALLY FEARING GOD?

Fear is an emotion or state of mind. We need to do more than just think about God in this manner. We need to put feet to our thoughts and walk the Christian walk not just talk the Christian talk.

The verses that we used above tell us to keep the Sabbath and His Statutes, walk in His Ways, observe all the Words of the Law, serve God in sincerity and truth, hate evil, keep His Commandments, perfect holiness towards God, submit ourselves one to another, wives reverence their husbands, work out our salvation, be subject to our masters, have a chaste conversation, and love God and man.

SHOULD WE FEAR DEATH?

Death is the ultimate fear for most people. Should a Christian fear death? For a Christian, death is leaving this life on earth for a better life in Heaven. It is walking into eternal life with God. It is leaving an imperfect body for a perfect body.

We should not fear death. What should we do? We should walk out our salvation with fear and trembling, and prepare to die. We should love God, trust in God and relax in His Peace. If we cant trust God for the here-and-now, how are we going to trust God for the here-and-after? Do you fear death?

NERVOUS HABITS

Lets look at several definitions: **Nervous:** originating in or affected by the nerves; easily excited or irritated; JUMPY, TIMID, APPREHENSIVE; tending to produce nervousness or agitation; UNEASY; appearing or acting unsteady, erratic, or irregular. **Nervous breakdown:** an attack of mental or emotional disorder of sufficient severity to be incapacitation especially when requiring hospitalization. **Nervous Nellie:** a timid or worrisome person. Do you have nervous habits or characteristics that other people would notice?

Habit: manner of conducting oneself; BEARING; bodily appearance or makeup especially as indicative of one' capacities and condition; the prevailing disposition or character of a person thoughts and feelings; mental makeup; a settled tendency or usual manner of behavior; a behavior pattern acquired by frequent repetition or physiologic exposure that shows itself in regularity or increased facility of performance; an acquired mode of behavior that has become nearly or completely involuntary; ADDICTION.

HABIT, PRACTICE, USAGE, CUSTOM, WONT mean a way of acting fixed through repetition. HABIT implies a doing unconsciously and often compulsively; PRACTICE suggests an act or method followed with regularity and usually through choice; USAGE suggests a customary action so generally followed that it has become a social norm; CUSTOM applies to a practice or usage so steadily associated with an individual or group as to have almost the force of unwritten law; WONT usually applies to an habitual manner, method, or practice distinguishing an individual or group.

FAITH, TRUST AND LOVE OF GOD

We need to be fearless: free from fear. We do not need to be fearful, apprehensive or afraid. **Perfect love casts out fear, I** Jo. 4:18. Perfect love of God drives away fear of man and fear of what will happen to you. **For God hath not given us a spirit of fear, II Tim. 4:8.** (Try singing this verse over and over again to dispel fear.) Demonic fear comes from Satan, not God. **Shall He not much more clothe you, Matt. 6:30.** Do not be fearful about what you shall eat or drink, or how you will be clothed. **Why are ye fearful, O ye of little faith, Matt. 8:26.** Have faith in God and get rid of your fear.

Nervous habits stem from the emotion of fear. For the Christian, nervous habits stem from the lack of faith and trust in God and His Provisions. They stem from trusting in yourself or man rather than God.

What are you hiding from? What are you afraid of? Did your parents abuse you as a child? Does your husband or wife mistreat you? What have people done to you to cause you to fear others or things?

SHOULD WIVES FEAR THEIR HUSBANDS?

Eph. 5:33 Nevertheless let every one of you in particular so love his wife even as himself; and the wife see that she reverence her husband. In this verse, reverence (phobe) means to be terrified, affrighted, afraid. Here is a good verse for you women to ponder; are you reverencing your husband? If not, what are the consequences to your marriage and family? Earline-Erma-Patti do you fear your husbands: Gene-Glen-Kevin?

SHOULD HUSBANDS LOVE THEIR WIVES? - Col. 3:18-21 Wives submit yourselves unto your own husbands, as it is fit in the Lord. Husbands, love your wives, and be not hitter against them. Children, obey your parents in all things: for this is well pleasing unto the Lord. Fathers, provoke not your children to anger, lest they be discouraged. These four little verses are the keys to a perfect family in God. For you husbands, this love (agapao) is the Love of Christ. Eph. 5:25 Husbands, love your wives, even as Christ also loved the church, and gave himself for it. This verse spells it out clearly for you men; you know what Christ gave for the church - his life. Gene-Glen-Kevin do you love your wives: Earline-Erma-Patti?

REFERENCES Webster's Collegiate Dictionary and Young's Analytical Concordance to the Bible.

LIST OF DEMONS

The **Mass Deliverance Manual** contains Lists of Demons which may be used in mass deliverance: "Bad Habits of Thinking and Reacting", "Fears Of", "Psychoneurosis", "Schizophrenia and Paranoia", and "Schizophrenia and Related Diseases".

In addition, the following list may be used: **Insecurity:** Inferiority, Self- Pity, Loneliness, Timidity, Shyness, Inadequacy, Ineptness; **Sensitiveness:** Self- Awareness, Fear of Man, Fear of Disapproval; **Persecution:** Unfairness, Fear of Judgment, Fear of Condemnation, Fear of Accusation, Fear of Reproof, Sensitiveness; **Paranoia:** Jealousy, Envy, Suspicion, Distrust, Persecution, Fears, Confrontation; **Mental Illness:** Mania, Paranoia, Hallucinations; **Jealousy:** Envy, Suspicion, Distrust, Selfishness; **Worry:** Anxiety, Fear, Dread, Apprehension; **Nervousness:** Tension, Headache, Nervous Habits, Restlessness, Excitement, Insomnia, Roving; **Mind Binding:** Fear of Man, Fear of Failure; Fears (All Kinds): Phobias (All Kinds), Hysteria; **Fear of Authority:** Lying, Deceit; Religious: Fear of God, Fear of Hell, Fear of Lost Salvation, Fear of Other Gods; **Inheritance:** Fears of Ancestors; **Doubt:** Unbelief, Skepticism; **Death:** Fear of Death; **Rejection:** Fear of Rejection; **Discouragement: Fears:** Dread, Fright, Alarm, Panic, Terror, Trepidation, Aversion, Timidity, Trembling, Hesitation, Fearful, Apprehensive, Afraid, Premonition of Evil, Weakness, Cowardice, Sorrow, Rage, Anger, Pain, Caution, Horror, Bondage, Solicitude, Demonic God of Love

Nervous Habits: Nervousness, Excitable, Irritation, Jumpy, Timidity, Apprehensive, Agitation, Uneasy, Unsteady, Erratic, Irregular, Nervous Breakdown, Emotional Disorder, Worry, Addictions, Fearful, Afraid, Fear of Man, Fear of Future, Spirit of Fear, Lack of Faith and Trust, Mental Abuse, Physical Abuse

		Baldness	
Lev.	21:5	Priests shall not make baldness on their heads.	
Deut.	14:1	Gods children are not to disfigure themselves in mourning.	
2 Ki.	2:23-	Bears destroy the children that mocked Elisha.	
	24		
Isa.	3:24	The judgments which shall be for the pride of the women.	
	15:2	The lamentable state of Moab.	
Jer.	16:6	Do not make yourself bald for the dead that are punished.	
	47:5	The destruction of the Philistines.	
	48:37	Moabites shall be bald with beards clipped.	
Eze.	7:18	The mournful repentance of them that escape.	
	27:31	And they shall make themselves utterly bald for thee.	
Amos	8:10	I will bring baldness upon every head.	
Mic.	1:16	Micah exhorteth to mourning.	
		Beards	
Lev.	19:27	A repetition of sundry laws.	

BALDNESS, BEARDS AND HAIR

2 Sam.	19:24	Mephibosheth had not trimmed his beard for mourning.	
Ezra	9:3	Ezra mourneth for the affinity of the people with strangers.	
Isa.	7:20	Ahaz is judged.	
		Hair	
Lev.	14:8	The rites and sacrifices in cleansing of the leper.	
Num.	6:5	The law of the Nazarites.	
1 Ki.	1:52	There shall not an hair of him fell to the earth.	
Job	4:15	Jobs hair stood up at the nearness of God.	
Isa.	50:6	They plucked out the beard of Jesus.	
Jer.	7:29	Jeremiah exhorteth to mourn for their abominations in Tophet.	
Eze.	16:7	God's extraordinary love towards Jerusalem.	
Matt.	5:36	What it is to swear.	
Luke	21:18	God can protect every hair.	
Acts	27:34	All came safe to land.	
1 Cor.	11:14	Long hair is a shame to a man.	
1 Cor.	11:15	Woman's hair is her glory.	
1 Tim.	2:9	How women should be attired.	
		Hoary Head	
Lev.	19:32	Honor the elderly and God.	
Prov.	16:31	If it be found in the way of righteousness.	
		č ž	

PREFACE

Either I coined a term for us or the Lord spoke into my spirit, "God's Little Trouble Makers". I took the Dale Carnegie Course which teaches you how to win friends and influence people. Then the Lord gave us a ministry which is unpopular and controversial; exactly the opposite of winning friends and influencing people. We stir people up to help them. We have caused many Christians consternation because of their lack of belief in deliverance and how they interpret the Bible. This lesson will touch the lives of many people because of their vanity and weaknesses. Most preachers want to give you the good news of what God is going to do for you. We tell you what will happen if you do not follow the Bible. Sin will reap its harvest. I have not fully researched this lesson but you can see that the ramifications are affected. Think about why people treat their hair the way they do, why people dress the way they do and why people treat their hair the way they do. Think about this lesson in the spiritual, mental, physical and material realms.

FREEDOM OF CHOICE

God gives us a freewill to choose our course in life. As such, we must give others a freewill to do as they please in things such as dress and hair styles. It doesn't matter whether it is contrary to the Bible, the person still has a right to choose between the world and the Word of God. They will reap the good or evil from their actions.

JESUS CHRIST

Isa. 50:6 Jesus Christ looked like the other people of his day and probably had long hair and a beard. We don't have any pictures of Him but we have the customs of His day retained in history.

They did have razors in those days and it was probably easier to shave than to trim their long hair.

REJECTION

If a person can not accept themselves as God made them and as they grow older, their problems probably are rooted in rejection. Many times the roots start with their parents. Most of women's rejection can be traced to how they have been treated by men in their lives: grandfathers, fathers, brothers, husbands and sons. The fathers have the strongest influence on their daughters' lives.

BITTERNESS

If a person has become rejected, they will tend to become bitter against those who rejected them. When a person becomes bitter, they will tend to become rebellious against those who rejected them or against society.

REBELLION

A common sight nowadays is a boy or man with long hair like a woman. Sometimes this is a sign of vain glory. Most times it is a sign of rebellion. Many times you can recognize why the person has long hair. If the person is in rebellion, check to see if they were rejected, became bitter and then entered into rebellion.

INHERITED CURSES

Baldness can be a curse that has been handed down through the generations. Some people say that baldness comes through the mother. If you see a family that has generations of men with premature baldness at an early age, that family probably is cursed by the sins of their ancestors. Check for familiar spirits if there is no disease and treatment such as cancer with radiation treatment which causes a loss of hair.

DISEASES - Some diseases can cause loss of hair on the head. If a person has a disease in this category, take the person through deliverance and **pray for their healing of the disease and then the baldness.** God is known to do creative miracles and may completely restore the body and hair.

PRIDE, EGO AND VANITY - Prov. 6:16-19 The driving force behind many of the actions of men and women is self or pride, ego and vanity for self. God hates pride because it causes so much trouble for the human race. It interferes with our relationship with God because we want to be gods or to have our own way. Earline said that we should call this lesson Vanity.

FEARS AND INSECURITIES - 2 Tim. 1:7 **For god hath not given us the spirit of fear; but of power, and of love, and of a sound mind.** Repeat this verse three times; it will make you feel stronger. God gave us spirits of power, love and sound mind. All fear comes from Satan.

Many people in the ministry and in public life are driven by fears of different types. Fears of ministers mainly deal with retaining their positions or ministries. Fears of the congregation mainly deal with retaining their jobs in their companies. Psychiatrists have cataloged at least 210 phobias which are fears.

Insecurities are found in many areas such as inferiority, self pity, loneliness, timidity, shyness, inadequacy, ineptness, etc. When we are insecure, we are looking for something to make us feel alright in that area of weakness.

WHIPSAW DEMONS - There are demons that cooperate with each other to whipsaw the person from one extreme to another extreme emotion. For instance, take pride and insecurity. The demon of insecurity will drive the person to do some act to be prideful. Then the demon of pride will cause the person to feel insecure. The whipsaw goes back and forth and the person is never allowed to fell alright for long.

BEARDS AND BALDNESS - Many men have beards because they are going bald. They think this helps to make up for lack of hair on the top of the head. **This probably indicates insecurity or vanity** brought about by feelings of not fully accepting themselves or trying to impress others by being something that they aren't. If the Holy Spirit wanted all men to grow beards, there would probably be a general impression to that effect at least in the Christian community.

TRYING TO LOOK YOUNG - Another one of my objections is that the men preachers have to look young and act young to maintain their positions of leadership. Women have to follow suit to maintain their husbands and their respect. There is much pressure in the world of advertising for looking and acting young. This is ridiculous before God and in the Christian community. Lev. 19:27, Prov. 16:31 I believe that the Bible honors the grey-haired man who has wisdom and understanding to impart to the members of his congregation and is living a righteous life. Therefore, I don't believe in dying the hair to hide the gray strands to look young.

CHRISTIAN FANTASY - Deliverance brings you into the ultimate reality of God's truth. **God is total truth and there is no fantasy in God.** One of the problems we have in charismatic circles is Christian fantasy which is really lies in the guise of Christianity. I would like to paraphrase Jack Harris, "Sheep in wolves clothing; watch their tracks."

FALSENESS - I object to anything that is false such as playacting, put on, theatrics, affectation, pretension, sophistication, etc. When you try to change your body and be something that you aren't, then you are entering into some degree of falseness.

One of the problems that women have is trying to be super spiritual so that they will be accepted and feel good about themselves. Women tend to have problems with accepting themselves as women because they think that the men have a better life. This can lead to fleshly prophesy outof-the-mind, wanting to lead, mouthing spiritual sayings that are not Biblical, etc. to be noticed and to be seen.

We have had some experiences with women who have done a lot of prophesying in the church and to people. A friend of mine got into a position where she had words for people. At one point, she told her husband that he would die before the year was out. He did not die but was in good health. When her words began to fail, she asked me what should she do. I told her to come up to Lake Hamilton Bible Camp and we would all stone her. That was the prescription for making a false prophecy in the Bible. In the Old Testament they were told to stone a prophet if his words did not come to pass and also not to fear them. If we thought about the serious responsibility a prophet has, we would not say anything in prophecy unless we had no doubt God said it. God does not like falseness.

Why do women think they are not as good as men? When we go back to Genesis, we find that the woman took and ate. When she gave to her husband, he took and ate ,and then all the bad stuff happened. Adam blamed it on Eve. If you take notice, the bad stuff happened only after he

ate. In I Tim. 2:14, we see that Eve was deceived but not Adam. This means Eve was sure she was making the right decision. Adam knew the true state of their action and chose to do wrong. From there until today, women have been the brunt of men's jokes. This is still so strong in some countries today that if people have a girl child and they don't want it, they let it die or kill it. We have come from a long line of rejection so we are conditioned to reject ourselves. When you find yourself doing things a little out of line, give some thought to what your motive is and what are you hoping to gain.

FEMININE PREACHERS

Some men preachers sound, look and smell like women; this turns me off. In the Bible, the man and woman clearly have different roles and should look like different sexes. Men should be masculine and women should be feminine. The pressure of humanism and the new world movement is turning men into women and women into men.

WOMEN

Isa. 3:24, 1 Cor. 11:15 & 1 Tim. 2:9 Isa. 3:16-24 The following is the Moody Paraphrase based on the experiences of deliverance ministers. The daughters of Zion are haughty. The Lord will smite with psoriasis. He will discover their secret parts with female diseases and burning. He will take away their bravery and give them fear. Instead of a sweet smell there shall be the stink of cancer and rotting flesh. Their clothes will be sackcloth and torn; their head shall be bald.

I Cor. 11:3-15 Paul reproveth them, because in holy assemblies their men prayed with their heads covered, and women with their heads uncovered. The woman's hair is given as a covering. Some people believe that a woman should have a scarf or hat on her head when she is in church and especially when she is ministering to the congregation.

The covering in this passage is not the husband but an actual covering for the head. It is a covering to show that the woman has chosen to submit to her husband. You realize, of course, that the covering is not proof of proper submission, but proper submission is a choice of the heart and mind of the woman.

Pat Forman had this experience once when she was to speak with Reggie. She was in the shower getting ready to go when her head become frozen looking up at the ceiling. She asked in prayer what was going on and was impressed that she should wear something on her head as a sign of submission to Reggie Forman. They looked up these scriptures and decided she would wear a barrette in her hair as a sign that she was choosing to submit to Reggie's leadership.

1 Tim. 2:9-15 These passages discuss how women should be dressed and what manner they should conduct themselves. 1 Pet. 3:1-6 Peter teaches the duty of wives to their husbands. The Bible clearly teaches that it is not the outward part of woman that is important but the inward part of her soul and spirit that God sees. The same could also be said for the man.

Our daughter, Marie, worked as a waitress while she was in college to help pay for her education. She noticed that the women in business had problems with loosing their hair in baldness.

1 Pet. 3:7 Likewise, ye husbands, dwell with them according to knowledge, giving honour unto the wife, as unto the weaker vessel, and as being heirs together of the grace of life; that you prayers be

not hindered. God made women weaker physically and spiritually than the men. The men are to be stronger and provide for the women.

When a woman tries to usurp the role of her husband or tries to act like a man, she opens herself up to masculinity problems and demons. She may begin to have problems of baldness which is common to man but not woman. She may begin to

look, act, talk and have the mannerisms of a man. She may grow excessive hair on the face while losing hair on the top of the head.

Some women preachers try to act like the men preachers to gain acceptance. They begin to take on the characteristics of men preachers. It is readily apparent when a woman is masculine. The woman is not sure whether she really fits into the role of preacher in the predominately man's world. She tries to compensate and become one of the boys and get accepted into the men's club.

Many times the profession of the woman stems from trying to please her father who wanted a boy or having a husband that didn't properly provide for her or having other men mistreat her. A woman ends up in a man's profession frequently because she has not been properly treated as a girl and then as a woman.

Women need to be very careful and watchful over their motivations. God does not look at the outward show but He reads what is in the heart. You may sit in this congregation and do all the correct outward actions but God is not impressed unless the heart and mind are correct.

Women wearing make-up comes from the occult. The women in Egypt were expert in the use of make-up. It was a part of the life of the women at the time of the Tower of Babel. Today women make their eyes in the same manner as the Egyptians. The Hebrew women then did not use make-up; even today they are modest in it's use. Women usually wear make-up because they hope to gain some advantage, manipulate somebody or because they feel rejected.

I suffered from rejection for many years of my life. I was often manipulated into doing things I didn't want to do because I wanted someone somewhere to like and approve of me. If your purpose for your manner of dress is to attract followers, you are in witchcraft. This is true also for you fellows.

II Kings 9:30-35 Jezebel was a beautiful person on the outside and she must have kept herself very beautiful. She has suffered through the sentence placed on her husband and her children, and she is now alone in the castle. Jehu has been anointed to destroy her. She hears him coming, thinking she will just do her usual thing (seduce him). She paints her face, beautifies her head and looks out the window hoping to stop God's sentence against her. Jehu was not impressed and carried out his instructions. She was thrown out the window, run over by horses and eaten by dogs. Once we had a young lady begin to scream," Stop the horses, stop the horses." She was holding her head in her hands and trying to protect herself. We thought this strange and looked this scripture up (II Kings 9:30-35). Our motives will show up in our reasons for what we do and this is what God sees.

ASK YOURSELVES SOME QUESTIONS

Why do you need to hide the wrinkles? Why do you need to look better? Apparently, you feel like you look better (younger) and feel approval (about yourself). Earline and I have a tendency to examine everything. Was it the Holy Spirit or another spirit that talked to you?

PERSONAL PREFERENCES

I never have been impressed by long hair or beards on men. I prefer short hair which is easy to maintain. I don't like the beards which scratch and have to be cut periodically.

PRAYER

Lord Jesus Christ, I forgive my ancestors and any others for any sin they may have committed that would have brought the curse of baldness on men and my descendants. I ask that you forgive and bless them with long life and a full-head of hair. Forgive men where I have sinned and cursed my head. Forgive me for mocking those with baldness, having a false personality, living in fantasy, trying to be something I am not, being rejected, bitter and rebellious. God please protect every hair from Satan.

WOMEN

Forgive me for my pride, super spirituality, false prophecy, usurping the role of my husband, acting and looking masculine, being haughty, and doing anything that would open me up to baldness and female problems. Please deliver me from psoriasis, female diseases, burning, fear, cancer, baldness, rotting flesh, excessive hair on the face, and female problems. I forgive my father, husband, sons and any other men who have mistreated me.

MEN

Forgive me for my pride, letting the wife be head of the home, acting and looking feminine, being false in my position as a man, long hair and vain glory.

CURSES

I break the curses of baldness, pride, falseness, fantasy, Jezebel, Ahab, female problems. Heal me of any medical treatment which causes loss of hair.

LIST OF DEMONS

See the **Mass Deliverance Manual** for Lists of Demons. Lists related to this lesson are many which drive humans to have the above emotions. "Common Demon Groupings" (Rejection, Bitterness and Rebellion, etc.) always is a good choice because these demons are common to men and women. "Fears Of" can be used because people are driven by fears to do the above acts. The following are some of the spirits encountered:

Rejection	Vanity	Fears	Inadequacy
Bitterness	Jealousy	Phobias	Ineptness
Rebellion	Envy	Insecurities	Whipsaw
Baldness	Shame	Inferiority	Spirits
Disfigurement	Embarrassment	Self Pity	False
Mocking	Premature	Loneliness	Youngness
Pride	Baldness	Timidity	Dying the Hair
Ego	Selfishness	Shyness	Falseness

Playacting Put On Theatrics Affectation Pretension	Demons Feminine Men Masculine Women	Burning Female Cancer Diseases of Flesh Jezebel	Witchcraft Destruction of Family Priesthood
Sophistication	Haughtiness	Ahab	Excessive Hair on
Super Spirituality Religious	Female Diseases Female Disorders	Domination Manipulation Control	Women

THE CHANGE OF LIFE SCRIPTURE

UNE	
31:11	made a covenant with mine eyes; why then should I think upon a maid?
5:15-	Be content with your wife and do not commit adultery.
21	
5:19	Let her breasts satisfy thee at all times.
3:3	Thou had a whores forehead and was not ashamed.
2:14-	He hateth putting away (God hates divorce).
16	
9:43-	Hand - foot - eye: cut off or pluck out rather than go to Hell.
48	
5:1	Christ has made us free (we have a free will).
5:13-	The effectual fervent prayer of a righteous man availeth much.
20	
5:16	Confess your faults one to another, and pray one for another.
21:7-8	Whoremongers - shall have their part in the lake which burneth.
	31:11 5:15- 21 5:19 3:3 2:14- 16 9:43- 48 5:1 5:13- 20 5:16

PREFACE

This is a lesson that I have never heard taught. Bill Null asked me to teach the men's class at Lake Hamilton Bible Camp shortly before it was to begin. I asked the Lord what to do and he gave me the initial part of this lesson. This is a very sensitive lesson. It causes problems for Christians as they grow older; the change of life may even start at a young age such as in the 30s.

ANN LANDER'S COLUMN

I like to read her newspaper column to find out what is happening in peoples' lives. Since our ministry is to help people who are hurting, we need an understanding of what experiences people have to go through in life. There has been considerable written about the difficulties that married couples face in the change of life of the woman or even of the man.

CONFESS YOUR FAULTS TO OTHERS

We have had many prayer meetings in our home where deliverance was the main subject. One type of meeting had this format: we would sit around the room in a circle and each person would have time to talk. I would take notes; then each person would pray and get right with God. After the prayers, we would cast out demons. **Publicly confessing your sins is very effective.**

It bothers me to watch ministers, especially deliverance ministers, try to forgive people's sins. This is an absolute impossibility! **Only God can forgive sins, and only then when a person really** **repents and humbly asks God for forgiveness.** If you cast out a demon that has a right before God to be there, that demon has a right to come back in again!

The most effective way to get rid of demons is to have the person repent of the specific sins committed by that person or committed by that person's ancestors as the first step to deliverance. **You could say that the most important aspect of Christianity, and also of deliverance, is repentance.** Without repentance, you will never become a Christian. Without repentance, you will not get your demons cast out or they will not stay out.

LUSTING AFTER OTHER WOMEN

Does a man have a right to lust after other women? Clearly, the Bible teaches that lust is a sin and is an opening for demons.

What will happen if the man freely lusts after other women? Satan will set a trap in the future with a loose woman. Sin begins with the thought process and leads to actions later on. Consider our divorce rate of about 50% in America, that there are more women than men, the declining morals of our society, the women that are looking for a husband anyway they can get one married or unmarried, and you will see how easy it is for Satan to trap the man.

LUSTING AFTER OTHER MEN

You may not think so but women also lust after men. This was a shock to Earline when she discovered that practice of women. This action is getting worse; the women are becoming more forward and initiating the approach to men. Women are becoming more like men in the area of sin. You can see the effects on women as they begin to sin like men. They become hard of heart, their hair begins to fall out, their face hardens, they get a whores forehead and they begin to have problems like men.

MENOPAUSE

"That period which marks the permanent cessation of menstrual activity. Usually occurs between the ages of 35 and 58. Natural menopause will occur in 25% of women by age 47, in 50% by age 50, 75% by age 52, and in 95% by age 55. Menopause due to surgical removal of the ovaries occurs in almost 30% of U.S. women past age 50.

The symptoms that may be associated with menopause begin soon following the cessation of ovarian function. This is true whether menopause occurs natural, or is due to surgical removal of the ovaries or failure of the pituitary gland to function. Symptoms that may last from a few months to years vary from being hardly noticeable to severe. Included are symptoms of vasomotor instability, nervousness, hot flashes, chills, excitability, fatigue, apathy, mental depression, crying following circumstances that would not normally cause that reaction, insomnia, palpitation, vertigo, headache, numbness, tingling, myalgia, urinary disturbances such as frequency and incontinence, and various disorders of the gastrointestinal system.

Hot flashes, or hot flushes, may start with an aura followed by a feeling of discomfort in the abdominal area, perhaps a chill quickly followed by a feeling of heat moving toward the head. Next the face becomes red, and sweating is followed by exhaustion. The cause, or causes, of hot flashes is not completely understood and is controversial (my thoughts - could it be demonic?). Treatment - Hormone replacement as required. **However, the use of estrogen or estrogen combined with a progestogen as a cure-all in treating the symptoms of menopause has been seriously questioned due to the possibility of undesired side effects.** Hormonal replacement therapy is contraindicated in those with a history of an estrogen-dependent breast tumor, thromboembolic disease, or acute liver disease. The long-term use of estrogens in order to prevent osteoporosis, q.v., is questionable. If menopause is the result of surgical removal of the ovaries, it is possible that estrogen therapy will reduce the risk of coronary disease. Yearly pelvic examination to include papanicolaou test for cancer of the uterus and cervix.

Artificial - Menopause occurring subsequent to surgical castration, x-ray irradiation, or radium implantation into the uterus.

Premature - Natural or artificial menopause occurring before age 35.

Surgical - A form of artificial menopause that follows surgical removal of the ovaries."

DOUBLE-MINDEDNESS ABOUT TREATMENT

The woman is torn between wanting to sexually satisfy her husband and maintaining her physical health. If she studies about hormone replacement, she will find that there are two sides to that issue. There are two schools of thought in the medical profession: either take estrogen or do not take estrogen.

If the woman takes estrogen, she will remain more sexually active for a longer period of time. However, she risks the serious side effects of contacting cancer or other diseases. Her husband may push her to take estrogen so that he can selfishly satisfy his sexual desires at her expense.

If she doesn't take estrogen, her body will continue the natural process of aging. It will become harder to have intercourse as she becomes older. It becomes more painful because her body becomes more fragile.

What about the use of lotions and creams? These help but they are a poor substitute for estrogen or the former youthfulness of the woman's body.

If she doesn't have intercourse, she may risk losing her husband who is only motivated by sex and not by love for his wife. How often have you read or heard about the man leaving his middle-aged wife for a younger woman? Clearly, this is usually motivated by sexual desires because the woman can still perform the other wifely duties.

MALE CLIMACTERIC

"The period that marks the cessation of a woman's reproductive ability (female climacteric or menopause); a corresponding period of lessening of sexual activity in the male (male climacteric)." Sometimes this has been jokingly called "the seven-year itch" to have another woman to prove that the male has not lost his ability.

What happens to the male when his sexual drive begins to lessen? He may take it as a normal part of the aging process or he may go to extremes to compensate for what he feels is a loss of manhood.

He may become overly concerned about his loss of hair, start transplanting hair from his body to his head, and grow a beard to compensate for the loss of hair. He may start dressing in a flashy manner to show his sexiness. He may buy a sports car to show his youth. He may start acting younger in mannerisms and actions. He is no longer an **Oldsmobile but now a Youngmobile.** He may start going to the bars for one-night stands. He may start running around on his wife. He may even get separated or divorced. He may ignore the concerns of his children. He may ignore all wisdom and common sense to show that he is still sexy. Earline had a college roommate that made a very apt statement, "A man is led around by his penis."

WHY DID GOD MAKE US THIS WAY?

The question that I have wrestled with for years is "why did God make the man and woman this way?" It is fairly easy to see that women should have children when they are young. They need the health and about twenty years to raise a child. Also, the older the couple, the more likely the child will be born with physical deformities and mental limitations.

Well, what about sex? What does the woman do as she is still married and her body is wearing out due to age, sickness and disease? What does the man do as he is still married and his body still has the lessened capacity for sex? The man has the capacity for sex many years after the woman enters menopause, possibly until he dies.

God hates divorce and the Bible teaches that we should practice one man - one woman throughout life. Does the man have the right to divorce his older wife and find a younger one mainly for sex? **The biblical answer is clearly no!**

Does the woman have a right to deny her husband sex when she reaches the menopause stage of life? She will be able to perform well for some years after that stage. What about sex as it becomes more and more painful? What if she chooses not to take estrogen? She has to make the choices of treatment and take the chances with her body. Should the husband force her to take estrogen? **Before God, she has the right to decide what to do with her body and the husband should not coerce her in any way.**

What should the man do who can not have sex with his wife? Should he masturbate? Should he read and watch pornography? How about watching television with all of its sex in advertisements and shows which just stimulates the sexual drive?

WHAT IS THE ANSWER?

As you can see, this is a problem for all of mankind and womankind. You will face this problem sooner or later in life. What will you do then? Will you give up your Christianity to have sex? Will you compromise your morals or beliefs to justify your actions?

Why did God make us this way and then write the Bible where it is difficult to follow? Could it be that this is a long personal test to see if we will follow His precepts or fall away to sexual sins? Do we follow God or follow our fleshly desires? Do we follow spiritual things or carnal things?

How important is sex to you? What are you willing to sacrifice to have it? What about your soul? Are you toying with the second death, the lake of fire and brimstone? Men, it would be

better to cut your penis off than to lose your salvation. Women, it would be better to cut your breasts off than to lose your salvation. If that sounds strong, how about the verses of plucking out your eyes or removing the offending member rather than perish in Hell?

MENSTRUATION PROBLEMS

A deliverance lesson could be developed dealing with the physical, mental and spiritual problems associated with problems in menstrual cycle. How many of you have been prayed for or prayed for others in this area?

REFERENCES

Tabers Cyclopedic Medical Dictionary (Everybody in deliverance should have this book. It provides a list of symptoms that deliverance ministers can view as demons when praying for someone with diseases.)

PRAYER FOR MEN

Lord, I forgive my wife for problems in my life caused by the changes in her life. I ask that she forgive me for problems in her life caused by the changes in my life. Forgive me for lusting after other women and other sexual sins I have committed. Protect me from the whorish woman. Please restore me from the effects of sexual sin. I forgive Adam and Eve for the original sin and cursing mankind. Forgive me for having wrong feelings for my wife due to difficulty in having intercourse. Please heal my body so that I can have normal intercourse during my lifetime. I forgive my wife for excuses for not having sex. In Jesus Name, I pray. Amen.

PRAYER FOR WOMEN

Lord, I forgive my husband for problems in my life caused by the changes in his life. I ask that he forgive me for problems in his life caused by the changes in my life. Forgive me for lusting after other men and other sexual sins I have committed. Protect me from the whoremongering man. Please restore me from the effects of sexual sin. Forgive me for being double minded. I forgive Adam and Eve for the original sin and cursing woman kind. Forgive me for having wrong feelings for my husband due to difficulty in having intercourse. Please heal my body so that I can have normal intercourse during my lifetime. I forgive my husband for the pain of having sex. In Jesus Name, I pray. Amen.

LIST OF DEMONS

You could use the lists of Sexual Harassment - Abuse - Assault - Violence and Sexual Sin and Diseases in the Mass Deliverance Manual.

The following lists more demons for use in deliverance: **Menopause** - failure of pituitary gland, vasomotor instability, nervousness, hot flashes, chills, excitability, fatigue, apathy, mental depression, abnormal crying, insomnia, palpitation, vertigo, headache, numbness, tingling, myalgia, urinary incontinence, gastrointestinal disorders, hot flushes, breast tumors, thromboembolic disease, acute liver disease, osteoporosis, coronary disease, cancer of uterus and cervix, castration, x-ray irradiation, radium implantation of uterus, climacteric.

Menstruation - vicarious menstruation; uterine hemorrhage; endocrine disturbances: pituitary gland, thyroid, and ovary; general systemic diseases: hypertension, diabetes mellitus, blood dispraises, chronic nephritis; malpositions of the uterus: retroversion and retroflexion; new growths of the uterus:

particularly fibroids of the uterus with hyperplasic changes of the endometrium; conditions of the cervix uteri: erosions or polyp; inflammations in the pelvis: acute salpingitis, acute metritis, acute endometritis, chronic metritis, and endometritis; painful menstruation or pelvic pain; prolonged menstruation; abnormal menstruation; damage by birth control pills or intrauterine device; epileptic convulsions; menstrual extraction; fertility control; congenital abnormalities; physical disorders: disease, obesity, malnutrition; emotional or hormonal disturbances; diseases of ovaries, hypophysis, thyroid, or adrenal glands; menstrual irregularities: absence of flow, scanty flow, painful menstruation, excessive loss of blood, spotting; anovulatory; retrograde; suppressed; vicarious.

Other Related Spirits - hard heartedness, premature baldness, hardness of face, whores forehead, whoremonger's forehead, stress, hypertension, demonic baldness, indecent clothing, exhibitionism, adultery, fornication, separation, divorce, worship of sex, premature aging, sicknesses, diseases, rough sex, masturbation, pornography, sexual fantasy, sexual carnality, unnatural menstruation, female problems, many sexual partners.

FREEMASONRY AND EASTERN STAR LIST OF SCRIPTURE PRIMARY SCRIPTURE

PRIMARY SCRIPTURE			
3:4-5	Ye shall not surely die, ye shall be as gods, knowing good and evil.		
19:16	And they brought him forth, and set him without the city.		
20:4-5	Thou shalt not make unto thee any graven image, or any likeness.		
7:25-26	The graven images of their gods shall ye burn with fire.		
11:24	Every place the soles of your feet shall tread shall be yours.		
11:26-28	See I am setting before you today a blessing and a curse.		
3:8-9	Spread thy skirt over thine handmaid: for thou art a near kinsman.		
15:22-23	To obey is better than sacrifice, to hearken than rams.		
17:15	They followed worthless idols, and themselves became worthless.		
7:14	Then will I hear from heaven, and will heal their land.		
139:7-10	Whither shall I go from thy spirit? or whether shall I flee?		
11:29	He that troubleth his own house shall inherit the wind.		
64:6	We are all as an unclean thing, our righteousness are filthy rags.		
7:30	They have set up their detestable idols in house that bears my Name.		
8:3-6	Son of man, seest thou what they do? even the great abominations.		
8:12	Hast thou seen what ancients of the house of Israel do in the dark?		
8:16	Faces toward the east; and they worshiped the sun toward the east.		
22:30-31	I sought for a man among them, that should make up the hedge.		
4:6	My people are destroyed for lack of knowledge.		
5:16	Let your light shine before men, that they may see your good works.		
5:34-37	But I say to you, make no oath at all, by heaven or by earth.		
6:1-4	Take heed that ye do not your alms before men, to be seen of them.		
7:21-23	Not everyone who says to Me, 'Lord, Lord' will enter the kingdom.		
11:28-29	Come unto me, and I will give you rest.		
28:18-20	Teaching them to observe all things that I have commanded you.		
16:13	No servant can serve two masters.		
	3:4-519:1620:4-57:25-2611:2411:26-283:8-915:22-2317:157:14139:7-1011:2964:67:308:3-68:128:1622:30-314:65:165:34-376:1-47:21-2311:28-2928:18-20		

John	1:4-9	The true Light, which lighteth every man that cometh into the world.
John	1:12	But as many as received him, even to them that believe on his name.
John	8:44	Ye are of your father the devil, and lusts of your father ye will do.
John	14:6	No man cometh unto the Father, but by me.
John	15:16-19	Ye have not chosen me, but I have chosen you, and ordained you.
Rom.	4:4-5	To him that worketh is the reward not reckoned of grace, but debt.
Rom.	6:16	To whom ye yield yourselves servants to obey, his servants ye are.
Rom.	6:21-23	For the wages of sin is death; eternal life through Jesus Christ.
1 Cor.	11:5-10	Neither was man created for woman; but the woman for the man.
Cor.	11:27	Shall be guilty of the body and blood of the Lord.
Cor.	6:14-18	Do not be unequally yoked together with unbelievers.
Gal.	1:6-9	There be some that trouble you, would pervert the gospel of Christ.
Eph.	2:8-9	For by grace are ye saved through faith, not works, lest boasting.
Eph.	5:23-26	Church is subject unto Christ, wives be to their own husbands.
Heb.	10:28-29	Despised Moses' law died without mercy; much sorer punishment.
Heb.	10:31	It is a fearful thing to fall into the hands of the living God.
Jam.	2:10	Keep the whole law, and yet offend in one point, he is guilty of all.
Jam.	5:12	But above all things swear not; lest ye fall into condemnation.
1 John	1:5-9	If we confess our sins, he is faithful to forgive us our sins.
1 John	5:21	Dear children keep yourselves from idols.
Rev.	9:11	Name in Hebrew tongue is Abaddon; in Greek tongue, Apollyon.
Rev.	20:1-12	White Throne Judgement is place of the judgement of the damned.

Old Testament (Secondary Scripture)

Gen. 3:21, 4:17-24 & 67, 6:2-3, 10:8-9,11:4-8, 29:23, 41:45-50 Exo. 3:22, 20:2-7, 20:13, 25:31, 26:35, 34:13 Lev. 10:1-3, 17:7, 18:21,20:2 Deu. 6:4-7, 23:2, 32:16-17 Josh. 24:15 Jud. 3:7, 11:29-40 1 Sam. 15:22 1 King 16:29-33 Neh. 9:2-3 Job 1:6-12 Psa. 64:8, 19:7-8, 48:2, 106:6-7, 118:22, 139:13-14 Prov. 11:29 Ecc. 10:8 Isa. 14:13, 43:10, 44:6-8 Jer. 2:13, 32:34-35 Eze. 1:4, 8:3 & 13-14, 18:4 Dan. 9:5-6 Hos. 4:6

New Testament (Secondary Scripture)

Mat. 2:2, 4:10, 5:34-37, 6:24, 7:15-20, 10:32-37, 12:25-30 & 43-45, 16:15-19, 18:6 & 18, 20:16, 21:42, 23:8-10, 26:28, 28:19-20 Mark 12:10, 16:15-17 Luke 14:28 John 1:1-14, 3:16, 8:12, 10:10

Acts 4:12, 8:9, 10:15, 10:25-26, 16:31, 17:11, 19:18-20 Rom. 1:22-24, 3:10 & 23, 6:4 & 20, 8:15-17, 12:1-2 1 Cor. 3:16-20, 6:15-20, 7:14, 10:21, 11:3-10 2 Cor. 6:14-18, 10:4-5 Gal. 1:8 Eph. 2:6-9, 4:15 & 27, 5:11, 6:4 & 12 Phil. 2:5-9, 3:13-14, 4:2 & 8 Col. 1:15, 2:9 & 14 1 Thes. 5:22 1 Tim. 2:1-5, 3:12-16, 4:2-3 2 Tim. 3:16 Heb. 4:15 Jam. 1:5-8, 4:7, 5:12-14 1 Pet. 2:9 2 Pet. 2:1 1 John 1:7-9 Jude 6-7 Rev. 2:4, 3:16, 7:3, 12:10, 13:8, 17:15

GENERAL

This lesson could be applied to any type of **secret religion** or to religious practices which are practiced in secret. It could be applied to those people **taking ungodly oaths** to an organization or individual. **A** Christian should practice his Christianity on the rooftop for the world to see. **A** Christian should not take any ungodly oaths which bind him to an organization or to an individual. God gives us a free will and we are only bound to Him through Jesus Christ.

PREFACE

(Excerpts) - Freemasonry is a secret organization of men (the women *belong to* the Eastern Star) with secret rituals and oaths. It is not a Christian organization.

Christians who hold high positions in churches, such as pastor or deacon, are involved in the Lodge because they do not understand that Freemasonry has its roots in **mystic religions** and have been **deceived by Satan**. If your family background includes membership in **Masons, Eastern Stars, Rainbow Girls, or DeMolay,** there is a generational inherited curse on you and your descendents. To stay free, you must not have anything to do with Masonry and follow the Christian life.

MASONRY - BEYOND THE LIGHT

(Excerpts) - Masonry is a religion and has a ritual. Christians who are Masons are serving two masters. Masonry has a generic god that is common enough for everyone, the true name of the god of Masonry is JHABUL-ON. The Jesus of the lodge is a counterfeit Christ. Masonry has a flawed doctrine of salvation requiring abominable oaths. The Bible forbids these oaths that places Masonry superior to country and God. An evil tree, which hides the real truths, cannot bring forth good fruit. It is a mystery religion which worships sexuality. Jesus Christ is denied as the true Son of God. Masons are connected with Rosicrucians, and Knights Templar. There is an immense amount of cross-pollination between the Illuminati and Freemasonry. Masonry is connected to witchcraft in a spiritual pyramid. The Devil takes the weak and ignorant. Pre-marital sex, abortion, illegal drug use, and dabbling in the occult and satanism by children of Masons is a by-product of their parents following idolatry.

HIDDEN SECRETS OF THE EASTERN STAR

(Excerpts) - Order of the Eastern Star is the women's auxiliary for the Lodge. Kindergartens for satanism are Order of DeMolay for boys and girls, and Rainbow Girls and Job's Daughters for young women. The Eastern Star is shrouded in mystery and, has been revised and altered. Blood oaths are taken and was established to appease the women. It is a religious facade and has discrepancies. This is a Luciferic initiation. Hermes is Masonic redeemer. Mason conjures up demons. Masons are intentionally misled. Masons are sworn to secrecy. Pentagram is sacred. Divinity of man is considered. Masonry, Satanism and New Age are related. Masons are present day Druids. Worship of the phallus is indicated by circle and point within circle. Scriptures are used as a chant. Masonry tries to usurp Christianity; it is not a legal oath. There are many sexual connotations in Masonry. Plants are sacred to the goddess. Rainbow Girls sound innocent but the Bible is only symbolical. Apron has roots in paganism. DeMolay is a kindergarten for Satanism.

SYMBOLS

(Excerpts) - There are many Masonic trinkets and tokens, and jewels and regalia which cause trouble for Christians. Symbols are disguised. Baphomet is the satanic "Goat of Mendes" and the best known representation of Lucifer in all occultism. Caduceus is an emblem of the Supreme Deity of the Masons and represented the active power of generation and the passive power of production conjoined. Inverted pentagram is to call up the power of Satan and is one of the human reproductive organs, locked in coitus. Crescent moon ands star are used by witches. Lambskin apron is an emblem of innocence and the badge of a Mason. Hexagram is a powerful symbol to witches, sorcerers and magicians.

FROM PAGANISM TO CHRIST

(Excerpts) - The origin of Masonic Oaths is identical to Hindu Temple worship. The Masonic rite of circumambulation came directly from the Hindu Temple worship. Christians are yoked with unbelievers when they join the Masonic Lodge. The Masonic god is JAH-BUL-ON: JAH is supposed by some to be short for Yahweh, the God of the Christian and Jew; BUL is a rendering the name BAAL or BEL, the ancient name of the Canaanite god; and ON or LUN was supposed to be the Chaldean name of God. These are deeds of darkness and the occult; they bring bondage on Christians. Any god will do for the Masons. It is salvation by works. The Secret Doctrine teaches that Jesus Christ is not the only begotten Son of God, but that each Mason may become a Christ through a process known as Masonic Initiation. The Secret Doctrine teaches that since he may become a Christ, each Mason is his own Savior - if he does not save himself, he will not be saved. The greatest bondage in the world today is the occult organization of Freemasonry. It is Anti-Christian and it has, by occultic means, greater control over human beings than any other demonic organization.

EVICTING DEMONIC SQUATTERS & BREAKING BONDAGES

Chapter 10 - Freemasons Curse Themselves, Their Families and The Churches - Summary (Excerpts)

1. Freemasonry rightly claims to be a religion. Lodges are regarded as "holy ground", and are supposed to face due East. Its quest is for knowledge of union with God, its standards of worship and prayers are to a diving person, and its members are prepared for the "Grand Lodge in the sky". The largest percentage of its membership have been deceived concerning its central deity which is anti- God and anti-Christ.

- 2. The central deity of Freemasonry is an object of Satanic syncretism in which the Jehovah of the Bible is blasphemously linked with mythological demonic deities. Worship is therefore idolatrous, and brings Freemasons directly under the curse of God.
- 3. Holders of the highest degrees in Freemasonry are committed to the belief that Lucifer alone is God. They exalt the on whom God has thrown out of his presence, and for whom the lake of fire has been prepared as eternal punishment.
- 4. Freemasons who profess to be Christian cause the curse of God to fall also upon their families and their churches because of their gross and blasphemous idolatry.
- 5. Demonic bondages and dominations in families of Lodge members emphasizes the great need for the visible church to be cleansed from all Freemason associations, and all family members delivered from demonic oppression.
- 6. "The assurance given to candidates that the name Great Architect of the Universe can be applied to whatever Supreme Being they choose is worse than misleading: it is a blatant lie. It is no overstatement to say that most Freemasons, even those without strong religious convictions, would never have joined the Brotherhood if they had not been victims of this subtle trick" (from **The Brotherhood** by Stephen Knight).

CURSES

Curses that come from ancestors, curses that come on the wife or sexual partners from the husband or lover, curses brought on the children by the parents

CURSED OBJECTS

(Excerpts) - "Believers who have broken with Freemasonry and renounced their vows, should write to the lodge asking that their names be deleted from the membership roll. It is also important that all personal regalia (or those handed down in the family) should be destroyed. Associated clothing should be burnt, and metal objects including swords defaced, or smashed and disposed of. Relatives are sometimes superstitious about disposing of these family relics, but they are cursed, and if retained will bring the judgment of God upon the household." Demons may try to prevent Masonic objects from being destroyed by hiding the means of destruction or preventing the objects from being destroyed such as preventing the objects from catching on fire.

HIDDEN SECRETS OF THE EASTERN STAR

THE MASONIC CONNECTION (Excerpts)- "From acquaintance with a large number of Christians who have been released from the dominant spirits of Freemason over recent years, a clear pattern of demonic activity has emerged. The results have been the same, whether the counsellee has been a lodge member, or is the descendant of a member. The following demonic powers need to be dealt with after personal or family Freemason vows and curses have been specifically renounced (in addition to the general renunciation of all Satan's bondages and dominations):

SUMMARY

The key to the lesson is that no Christian (or for that matter a heathen) should belong to any type of Masonic organization. The heathen will have a hard time accepting Christ with this type of satanic influence. If this is not the situation, there is still hope through Jesus Christ. The Christian can pray and get his demons cast out. Then he can go about eliminating any remaining influence that Masonry has over him and his loved ones.

PATTERN FOR PRAYER

First, repent for your ancestral ties to Freemasonry. Second, forgive the family members for handing down the curses. Third, pray a prayer to break the curses. (This is upward.)

If you have been personally involved with the Masons, you need to repent of your sins. Then break the curses on you. (This is inward.)

If you have a wife, children, grandchildren, etc., repent for bringing curses on them and ask them to forgive you. Then break the curses on them and have them break the curses on themselves. (This is outward.)

The pattern is to identify the sins, pray and get right with God, break curses and demonic ties, cast out the demons, and change the way you think and act. This is KNOWLEDGE - REPEN-TANCE - BREAKING - CASTING - DISCIPLINE.

PRAYERS

"In the Name of Jesus I break the curse of Freemasonry upon myself, my family and my children and children's children even to the fourth generation and I ask you to cover me in the Blood of Jesus, for it is only through the shedding of your blood that the curse is broken, I AM NOW FREE FROM THE CURSE PRAISE GOD."

LIST OF DEMONS

Hidden Secrets of the Eastern Star - The Masonic Connection (Excerpts) - "From acquaintance with a large number of Christians who have been released from the dominant spirits of Freemasonry over recent years, a clear pattern of demonic activity has emerged. The results have been the same, whether the counsellee has been a lodge member, or is the descendant of a member. The following demonic powers need to be dealt with after personal or family Freemason vows and curses have been specifically renounced (in addition to the general renunciation of all Satan's bondages and dominations):

- 1. The spirit of Freemasonry and the curse of the Luciferian doctrine.
- 2. A spirit, or spirits of Anti-Christ.
- 3. A spirit of idolatry.
- 4. Spirits of witchcraft and occultism (In severe cases, a spirit of poltergeist may be troublesome.)
- 5. Spirits of mockery.
- 6. The "all seeing third eye" in the forehead (an Illuminati symbol) may manifest if there has been heavy family involvement.)
- 7. A spirit of mental confusion.
- 8. A spirit of spiritual apathy.
- 9. A spirit of emotional hardness.
- 10. Spirits of doubt, skepticism, and unbelief.
- 11. Spirits of infirmities, sicknesses, and allergies (a most frequent manifestation). Where family membership has been handed down for a long time, and there has been special dedication to the lodge, spirits may cause special destruction in health or financial matters.
- 12. A spirit of false religion."

13. Spirits of confusion, bands around the head, loss of consciousness, mental shock, arrogance, financial difficulties, extreme lethargy, death, accidents

REFERENCES

I would recommend the purchase of the following books: Masonry Beyond The Light by William Schnoebelen Hidden Secrets of the Eastern Star - The Masonic Connection by Cathy Burns Evicting Demonic Squatters & Breaking Bondages by Noel and Phyl Gibson From Paganism to Christ - Islam, Hinduism, Freemasonry by Mick Oxley Breaking the Generational Curses by Marilyn Hickey Curses and Blessings by Derek Prince

GODLY PEOPLE STRICKEN BEFORE THEIR TIME SCRIPTURE

Gen.	3:15	It shall bruise thy head, and thou shalt bruise his heel.
Deut.	27	Curses are pronounced.
Deut.	28	Blessings for obedience and curses for disobedience.
Ester	2:1-4, 8-9,	And she obtained grace and favor in his sight.
	12-17	
Job		Disaster fells into our lives because God is testing our faith.
Isa.	53:4-5	Our peace was upon him; and with his stripes we are healed.
Isa.	62:1-4	No more be Forsaken; neither shall thy land any more be desolate.
Matt.	9:22	Daughter be of good comfort; thy faith hath made thee whole.
Matt.	13:21	When tribulation or persecution ariseth, by and by he is offended.
Luke	13:1-5	Think ye that they were sinners above all men that dwelt in Jer.?
Luke	22:31-32	Satan hath desired to have you, that he may sift you as wheat.
John	14:16	And I will pray the Father, and he shall give you another Comforter.
John	16:33	In the world ye shall have tribulation; but be of good cheer.
Acts	3:6	In the name of Jesus Christ of Nazareth rise up and walk.
Acts	14:7-10	Steadfastly beholding him, perceiving he had faith to be healed.
Heb.	11	What faith is; without faith we cannot please God.
Rom.	5:3	We glory in tribulations; knowing that tribulation worketh patience.
Rom.	8:28	And we know that all things work together for good to them that love.
Rom.	8:35	Tribulation, distress, persecution, famine, nakedness, peril, sword?
Rom.	12:12	Patient in tribulation; continuing instant in prayer.
I Cor.	8:2	And if any man think that he knoweth any thing, he knoweth nothing.
I Cor.	13:12	For now we see through a glass darkly; now I know in part.
II Cor.	1:4	Comforteth us in all our tribulation; we may be able to comfort.
Eph.	2:8	For by grace are ye saved through faith; it is the gift of God.
Eph.	4:11-13	Till we all come unto the measure of the stature of the fullness.
Phil.	4:19	But my God shall supply all your need according to his riches.
Col.	1:27	Which is Christ in you, the hope of glory.
I Thes.	3:4	We told you before that we should suffer tribulation.
I Thes.	5:18	In everything give thanks: for this is the will of God in Christ.

I Tim.	5:23	For thy stomach's sake and thine often infirmities.
II Tim.	2:15	Shew thyself approved unto God, rightly dividing Word of Truth.
II Tim.	3:14	Continue in the things which thou has learned and been assured of.
II Tim.	4:20	But Trophimus have I left at Miletum sick.
Heb.	2:8	But now we see not yet all things put under him.
James	5:20	Shall save a soul from death, and shall hide a multitude of sins.
I Peter	2:24	Should live unto righteousness: by whose stripes ye were healed.
I Peter	4:1-2	Christ suffered for us in the flesh, arm yourselves likewise.
Rev.	2:10	Be thou faithful unto death, and I will give thee a crown of life.
Rev.	3:14-21	As many as I love, I rebuke and chasten: be zealous therefore.

LETTER OF OCTOBER 27, 1991

As you know, Earline and I have been in the deliverance ministry for about fifteen years. We have worked with thousands of Christians in the area of healing and deliverance.

Recently, Earline was stricken with kidney failure. Otherwise, she is in fine shape for a woman who is fifty-nine years old.

We have known personally, or have known of men and women of God who have been stricken physically with infirmities. They may have even died before becoming seventy years old. These were people that we felt really tried to follow God and were doing a fine work in His Vineyard. They were also people that believed in the Whole Word of God.

Generally speaking, the ministry teaches the blessings of God and not the justice of God. We get the "bless-me club" personality. Generally speaking, the ministry does not teach about what Christians will go through as they follow Christ and obey His Word. The impression is "Once I become a Christian, I will have no more problems." This seems to be an area of the Bible that is primarily ignored. Many times Christians are taught this philosophy; then when it doesn't work, they leave the church.

My question to you is **''Why are these godly people stricken before their time of seventy years?''** In other words, what should we as Christians expect in the battle for the Lord? If we are living a godly life, should we expect to go through life without having any mental, physical, spiritual or material problems? What does the Bible teach about the lives of Christians? A good example is Paul. With the Love of Christ, Gene and Earline

REPLIES TO LETTER

We received replies from the following people to whom we are very grateful: Jo Anne Nystrom, Glen and Erma Miller, Dorthy and Harlan Deem, Ted Haggard, Edwin Edgerton, Frank Hammond, Lorraine A. Kupper, Buz Milosh, Dennis Mulder, Blanche Reynolds, Linda Sutter, Al Dagger, Norman Parish, Martin and Janice Turnbull, and Ann Pigg. We kept the letters and records of telephone conversations. It was quite an effort for those to try to answer our difficult questions. **Thank you for your love and concern!**

PRAYERS FOR US

We want to express our heartfelt thanks for those who have prayed and interceded for us through the years. It is wonderful to hear that we are being prayed for our well being by those who love us and have compassion on us. **Only God knows how your prayers may have helped to sustain us.**

OUR MINISTRY

We have now been in the deliverance ministry for about twenty years. It has been about five years since Earline had her kidney failure. God has seen us through all the difficulties that we have faced in our lifetimes. We have seen God do many wonderful things around the world using us as his servants. Even though we have probably cast out thousands of demons, Satan does not leave us alone. In fact, he probably attacks those who are very active even more because they are a greater threat to his kingdom.

FUTURE FOR CHRISTIANS

The wind may blow in your face to stop your progress now, but may be behind you in the future after you have worked your way through the problem. Move forward with the Lord. Our God is faithful and we must relinquish control to Him. Praise breaks certain bondages put on us by Satan. By all means repent; it is a way of life. We are comforted by the Word of God; standfast and trust in Jesus. Keep on ministering by faith and depend in the leadership of the Holy Spirit. God loves us and cares about us; He has all power and authority to direct our lives.

GENERAL COMMENTS

Earline and I have discussed, thought and prayed about this subject, both before and after Earline's failure of her kidneys, a considerable amount of time. There are many lessons to be learned by us and other Christians in this difficult area. The communications of others helped us to understand what we were going through. It is a real blessing to see what others go through in real life. It is an untruth to tell the Christian world that you, and your family, business and ministry have no problems, and that you are perfect just like Jesus Christ. We are still praying for answers for ourselves and for others. When Earline was in the hospital initially, we read the Book of Job seeking answers. Pay attention to what Job says as well as his so-called comforters.

This lesson was really written by others. We only compiled and edited it so that it could apply to the Body of Christ. It will give you a lot to think about as you ponder your life and the thoughts contained herein. This may be the most profound lesson that we have taught.

ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS

Do you believe that you have all of the answers to the problems we face here on earth? Are you living a perfect life in complete accord with the Bible? We don't believe that anyone has a complete understanding of the Bible. Everyone has problems; if you don't now, you will later. This includes those in the ministry and their families. God is sovereign and we can't change that fact of life. Rest assured that God's Word is a wonderful source of strength and comfort to suffering, hurting, poor people, as well as to those who are wealthy, all around the world. If we want life, we must keep His Commandments. We are all aware that if there was an easy answer, everyone would already know. Volumes could be written to properly answer the question raised, even in a general sense. Word of Wisdom, Word of Knowledge and Discerning of Spirits could be God s way of answering specifically for each of us. Inwardly, there might be the sins of the fathers or some break in Jobs hedge; outwardly, there might be an onslaught from some coven or occult

source that is getting through; and these are just a few possibilities. There are some valid truths coming from the "bless-me club" but they need to be balanced: God s love balanced by Gods justice. There are no pat answers.

GOD IN CONTROL

It may be God s purpose, not some other cause. What lessons can be learned? God can turn it around eventually; the future is in his hands. God understands and is rooting for us. We accept God's dealings with us and resist the Devil. Do not doubt God, who knows what we need. Jesus was not spared from suffering and has compassion on us. He gives us grace and sense to learn; God is teaching us. It may be for our good - for life and death situations. God can do whatever he chooses for greater glory and purpose. Jesus intercedes for us while we are going through the fire. Our peace comes when we rely on Jesus, even if it means that we die.

Satan is not in control. Satan will retaliate; we get wounded. There are occult attacks by witches and warlocks. We must know our enemies. There are curses, hexes and spells that are inherited, as well as received in the nasty now and now. Satan can not kill our spirits or souls, even if he is able to kill our bodies.

What about repressed feelings, used to being blessed, many causes of diseases and Judgemental? We are susceptible, sickness is common, not immune to suffering and there are hindrances which may be mysterious or harmful. Do not get impatient. Control your emotions; we can not control the events. Keep our spirits clean before God. Do not go on a guilt trip. It may be a simple lesson of trusting, not just an exercise of faith. We are not immune to attack. It rains on the just and unjust. How do we respond to tragedy? We must have faith that all things work together for good. We will learn or not learn. Wait before God without doubting; die triumphantly. Sometimes it is nothing we do. Good comes out of our experiences. We are more understanding, compassionate and patient, not judging others. Our faith is joined with others. Have conviction that God heals and does recreative miracles.

SOVEREIGNTY OF GOD

God allotted seventy years to all humanity, not just believers, which is about the average age at death. Life may be lengthened or shortened; our body is not redeemed. It is subject to the curse of sin, old nature, physical defects and curse applies to body. Perfect health will come in Heaven. We must relate to the world, demonstrate our faith, believe in redemption and maintain hope. The environment effects our bodies. The dead are alright in God, sleep in Christ and awake to resurrection. Walk by faith; don't worry about tomorrow. God meets our basic needs, not our wants. Food, clothing and shelter are blessings by God's grace. Our bodies are subject to failure. Death has its way with all flesh; God can intervene if He chooses. Pray for Gods Perfect Will in our lives. Have an overcoming attitude and draw close to God. There is more to life than just having perfect health. God wants to cleanse us from sin, get our attention and test us to strengthen our faith. Sickness is not immoral and will be in the Millennium. Our spirit and soul are redeemed; our body is not resurrected. Sometimes we may recover from sickness through prayer. It is difficult in dealing with God; his ways are not our ways. Acknowledgment of reality of life is faith. Age brings susceptibility to disease and death.

TRIALS AND TESTINGS

Lord, what do you want us to learn from our trials and testings? Certainly the Bible nowhere promises that Christians will go through life without problems. In fact, a careful reading of the Bible indicates that Christians will face many difficulties and trials. There are at least two biblical reasons as to why Christians suffer. One of them has to do with the fact that we are a fallen human race. The effects of sin, including illness, will come to Christians as well as non-Christian people. The fact that we suffer physical ailments, disease, etc. in some sense has little to do with the fact that we are Christian, it is simply the state of the fallen human race. It is the effects of sin in the world in which we live. Christians are not immune to those effects.

Secondly, there are times when disaster falls into our lives because God is testing our faith. He allows the Devil to have relatively free reign. While at the same time promising that He will never give us a burden too heavy to carry. An obvious example of that would be Job. The Book of Job teaches the above very clearly. Certainly the apostle Paul is a good example. He struggled with a thorn in the flesh all of his life. God chose not to remove that. We may never know the exact reason why, but God had a purpose in doing what He has done.

The Bible does not promise health, wealth and prosperity to all who believe in Christ. There are many Christians around the world who live in poverty. The Bible talks about taking up our cross and following Jesus Christ. In many parts of the world that cross is big and heavy, even to the extent of having to pay for faith, on occasion, with their lives. Those are the kinds of demands and sacrifices that the Scriptures place upon us as Christians. Without question we have been blessed in this country, living in relative freedom and prosperity. God has certainly not promised that we are immune from suffering. In fact, the scriptural teaching is that suffering brings with it many benefits. It is sometimes for those benefits that God allows us to go through these things.

Any Christian who thinks that they will not face tribulation or persecution in this life is sadly mistaken. Satan asked to sift Job and Peter, and he asks to sift the Body of Christ. Consider Job's attitude as well as that of his wife and friends.

FAITH OF THE SAINTS

It takes faith to believe in healing, deliverance and salvation; everything we receive from the Father comes through the Grace and Mercy of God and the Lord Jesus Christ with the interaction of the Holy Spirit. God answers prayer; things happen when we pray that don t happen when we don t pray. We interact with God through prayer. He acts according to His pre-determined will and purpose as we enter into communication with Him through silent and vocalized prayer.

The Lord Jesus Christ is a repository of virtue and righteous power, to meet our needs. It has already been bought and paid for at Calvary; the victory is assured. But it is not automatic without conflict or effort of mind, will, emotions, body strength and spiritual involvement. For instance: fasting, prayer, worship, praise, spiritual warfare, meditating, reading the Word, and submitting to God and one another with a determination to glorify God. Consider the woman with the issue of blood. The virtue deposited in Jesus for this woman was released through her faith. It brought about the desired results of her being made whole. Consider the man at the gate beautiful. He wanted alms; he didn't appear to have faith for healing. Was anyone else interceding for him? He was caught off guard. Peter reached down and lifted him up. Peters and Johns faith had to be sufficient. God's purpose was to show Himself alive by doing the miraculous. Consider the man crippled from his mothers womb. He heard Paul speaking and Paul perceived he had faith to be healed. He needed to be healed and God purposed a revival.

CHRISTIAN SCOREBOARD

Christians are not any better or worse than anyone else. Jobs friends knew that there must have been something wrong in his life, or why else would he have to suffer? Was there a tradition around Israel that the Galileans who suffered such things and the eighteen upon whom the tower of Siloam fell must have been worse sinners than others? But, this is not what Christ taught. We have not come to the measure of the stature of the fullness of Christ. But we have hope for the coming of Christ and his kingdom.

PRESENT CHURCH AGE

Do you believe that we are living in the Laodicean Church age? We think that we are so increased with goods, have need of nothing and were so rich in the things of God. We don't realize how great our spiritual need really is. Are you prepared for physical death? Which group of the ten virgins do you belong to: those whose lamp is full or those whose lamp is empty? This is an hour that we must use wisely. Return to the simplicity of true devotion to Christ. We should be warriors for Christ.

Jesus has limited His visits to us in relationship to how obediently we provide Him that opportunity by being His Body for Him to fill with His Spirit and presence. As we yield to Him to be locally in fellowship with the other regenerate ecclesians, under His Headship proper and potent healing, etc. will be present in much greater fullness than we presently experience. The problem is we are churchgoing instead of being the local ecclesia and membered together with others by the Holy Spirit. The body is dismembered by locality, hence all the confusions, weaknesses, etc. If we ourselves don't live to enjoy the restored Ecclesia, we should be working on it for our posterity.

The church is full of people who are not well but they are praising God. He is in their midst polishing lively stones for His Tabernacle. God is building a rock house with narrow mortar joints which is pleasing to Him. Have peace in God; there is tribulation in the world.

THIS WORLD

Earth is earth, and does not become Heaven for anyone when one gets saved. In other words, God s perfect plan, the full manifestation of His Kingdom, is fully manifested in Heaven. When we get saved, a ray of his Kingdom shines through our hearts with the provision for that glow to provide healing, deliverance and other manifestations of His Will. Certainly, He wants all to be saved, healed, delivered, filled with His Spirit, etc. and that will all be complete in heaven. Here on earth we get a taste, but not the entire package.

We need to seek God, live saved, be filled with His Spirit, walk in His Fullness all that we possibly can, be as healed as we can, and walk in the greatest degree of freedom and deliverance as possible. But, until Jesus physically returns, we will struggle, suffer and strain for the full manifestation of redemption in our lives.

The Bible reveals God's perfect plan for us in Christ. Now, Christ is here only by His Spirit. Soon we shall see Him face to face. When that happens, all of His Plans for His People will be fulfilled. So, what should we Christians expect in the battle for the Lord? Exactly that - a battle. As for victory; absolutely. As for timing; some now, the balance later.

Not having any problems is neither biblical nor practical. Living a godly life means that a person can expect to live a godly life. As for mental, physical, spiritual and material problems, those all come in varying degrees to all who live. Living a godly life should minimize those problems and it certainly should open the door for the operation of the Holy Spirit which will help with the solution. But the problems will remain until Jesus settles the sin nature and Satan problem. This is not defeatist. The powerful manifestation of the Holy Spirit does remarkable things in all of our lives. The authority of the Word of God can do powerful things. The enforcement of God's plans during this present age takes constant prayer, faith and involvement of the Holy Spirit. Hope is there and power is there; but so is the enemy and the world.

4. **TEN THOUGHTS FOR YOU** - Each person must seek for himself for a clear understanding of what he believes and how God works in each conflict. We that minister must be careful we do not add to the confusion and minister condemnation.

- 1. God can and does heal His people.
- 2. It is God's Will that we be healed for the Glory of God. Therefore, glorify God in your body. There are only two things: blessings and cursings. You are either increasing or decreasing.
- 4. The pure Word of God without mixture.
- 5. The non-pure Word of God with mixture.
- 6. God s medicine for us is His Word for us.
- 7. God is love.
- 8. God loves you.
- 9. You are healed because you were healed by the Stripes of Jesus.

Bottom line is agape love in the Master's Service.

CRUCIFIXION OF THE FLESH

Fasting is a way to crucify the flesh and seek God. It is also a way to rid the body of toxins which can kill you. Depression will lower your resistance to disease. We are also required to follow other practices for Christians outlined in the Bible. Doctors may not make any difference if it is time to go and be with the Lord. Fasting may cause the burden to be lifted. Nutrition is a function of healing and a walk of health.

SERVANTS OF GOD

Many have served God faithfully and are in the call of God's purpose for their lives. They know the Gospel, have on the full armor of God, doing spiritual warfare, teaching and demonstrating biblical principles, and are faithful servants. Now the test is on; God removes the consciousness of His presence. The heavens are brass and you can t seem to rouse Him to work for you. You hear condemnation, failure, guilt, what have I done to deserve this, I thought God had a hedge around me and I was untouchable, and on and on until we become filled with despair. Our life is passing from us and there is nothing we can do except turn to the arm of flesh. We search our souls, examine ourselves and try to find the key that will unlock the mystery of God's Grace. For all we are in Christ, all we do in the kingdom and our ability to stand in the face of the enemy is by God's Grace. The walk we walk is by God's grace: love, mercy, ministry, peace and health. God chose us in trespasses and sin, and seated us in Christ Jesus. He has given us a walk worthy of that Name and armed us to stand against the wiles of the Devil. No one can pluck us out of His Hand. We will not see the death angels, for God's angels will come for us that belong to Him. We will ever be with the Lord.

We can not earn that grace, keep it, improve on it, add to it, take from it or embellish it. Wages are earned and gifts are received. Just praise God and thank Him for Grace. When we are not established in grace, we go into confusion as did Job. He thought he did everything right and believed his works would keep him and his family protected, but it was God who had him hedged about. He could not understand why these things were happening to him and was overwhelmed by confusion.

DELIVERANCE WORKERS

A deliverance worker is a front-line warrior. The front line warrior receives the first strength of any attack. In the case of a couple, it is usually the wife who is attacked first as she is the weaker vessel. Sometimes, it is the man who is called into the ministry and not the wife. *She goes along* to support her husband, who leans on her for support. It takes a special couple to minister together for years avoiding or defeating Satan's attacks.

Sometimes we get puffed up in the idea of who we really are. We think that we are undefeatable and press on without really taking the time to stop and think that we are just His Servants by grace. We are ministering in His Name, Power, Strength, Might, Suffering, Love and guidance of the Holy Spirit.

Then comes Satan's attack and we get mad at God. This is not supposed to happen to God's warriors. We warriors get wounded. When we fail to turn to the Lord in praise, we stumble. Have you a hole in your armor? Are you spending time in prayer and in the Word everyday? Have idle thoughts found a way to get you to stop praying without ceasing? Have vain imaginations pene-trated your armor? Examine your armor for weaknesses.

Continue on to the goal of hearing Jesus say, "Well done my good and faithful servant." It could be that God is getting ready to do a greater work in your ministry once you overcome this trial. We must praise God in every circumstance. It is the praise, even unto death, that lifts the bonds that hold this earthly body in captivity. No one can separate us from the Love of God except ourselves. Regardless of what happens, we must always follow the Lord in spirit and truth.

APOSTLES SUFFERED

The apostles suffered, were God's saints, were persecuted, weak in body and had infirmities. Consider what Paul and Timothy went through. There are little things that affect the body. It is not a reflection on our spiritual condition if we get sick. Those with bodily weaknesses have been effective witnesses for Christ. The world can identify with their infirmities. They can be strong in the spirit. We are not perfect; we age, die, suffer sickness, are attacked by germs, our cells die every seven years and we are susceptible. Ask God for discernment and do not go on a guilt trip. Do not judge others outwardly; there is only one righteous judge. Show love and compassion; help others who are weaker. The church was persecuted. All apostles were martyred except for John in exile. God's heroes endured by faith even to torture and death.

PRIDE, EGO AND VANITY

God needs to cleanse our lives. Pride stands in our way of obtaining the blessings of God. We need God's wisdom and understanding. We must seek God and search our souls. We will always battle the forces of evil in this world. We need to try to live a balanced life: mentally, physically, spiritually and financially. Anything you neglect in life will cause you problems. Anything you omit in the Bible will cause you problems. Don't be puffed up; pride opens the door to demons.

CONFUSION OF MIND

Many Christians are confused about this subject. Why do they have to suffer in life when it seems that the heathen do not have to suffer? What are God's provisions and promises of healing? The concerns as to why terrible things happen to good people are quite natural and occur to us all. We must have faith and trust in our Heavenly Father, and know that we are loved by Him. The Scriptures are a source of comfort, strength and hope. What lies have we been told by our parents, spouses or children that we believe and affect our lives?

TESTIMONIES OF OTHERS

We hear of stories of those who read the scriptures every day, stand on them and are healed of terminal illnesses. We also hear of those who did the same thing and die. Can you judge and say that one person did not have the faith - absolutely not! There are those who seek the Lord for healing over some period of time, finally yield to surgery and are doing well. Can you condemn them for going to the doctors - absolutely not!

STANDING WITH EACH OTHER

We need to stand with each other, not only as Christian brothers and sisters, but also with other ministries. We are not in competition; there is plenty of work for everyone. This is especially true in the ministry of deliverance; there are few who perform this service. Ministers, just like every-one else, may have a difficult time with stability.

Ministers have a variety of styles and methods of ministry. Just because they don't perform the ministry just like we do, doesn't mean that we can not fellowship with them or support their ministry.

HUSBANDS RESPONSIBILITY

Have respect for your wife for her forced labor in the ministry. Don't put burdens on her so great she can not bear them. Repent to your wife for forced labor. Put her on the altar. God is faithful to honor the husband's proper relationship to the wife.

HUSBAND'S ASKING WIVE'S FORGIVENESS

Husbands and wives please stand together and hold hands. As your husband, I ask you, my wife, to forgive me for forcing you to labor in this ministry and to do things that God did not call you to do. Forgive me for placing burdens on you that were so great that you could not bear them. Forgive me for not showing the respect for you that you deserve as my wife. I place you on the altar of God and ask that He forgive me for sinning against Him in the way that I have misused you. Lord, help us to have the proper relationship as

husband and wife in all walks of life including the ministry. Will you, my wife, forgive me? In Jesus Christ's name we pray. Amen.

CREDIT TO OTHERS

We give credit for this lesson to those who comforted us during our time of illness. We give credit to those who have prayed for us over the years when we have been faced with injuries, illnesses and tragedies. We give credit to everyone who called, wrote or provided material for this lesson. However, we all give credit to the Father, Son and Holy Spirit for working through each of us to bring about God's purpose in our lives. We have taken some editorial liberties with the input to make this into a lesson for others.

PRAYERS BY GROUP

We bind the spirit of infirmity. We command you and all your underlings to leave our bodies now in the name of Jesus Christ. We break every curse of sickness, infirmity and organ failure. We command our bodies to respond to the blessing of healing and health. Our bodies are the temples of the Holy Spirit. We desire a dean temple for the Holy Spirit to dwell in. Father, we confess to you our sins, weaknesses, failures and lack of faith. We ask you to make your grace strong in our weaknesses. Help us to trust you in the things we don't know. We command the spirit of confusions to leave now in the name of Jesus Christ.

Lord, we ask you to grant us the blessings of long life and good health in the service of the kingdom of God. The seventy years, plus blessings, and the abundant life Jesus came to bring is your purpose for believers. We cancel out the purpose and plan of the Devil to kill, steal and destroy. We refuse any part of his plan and send all his curses back to the sender now in the name of the Lord Jesus Christ. In the name of Jesus Christ, we command the body's detoxification system to be healed and every spirit that is working to be destroyed or cause to fail. You must leave us now. All doubt and unbelief must leave. We rebuke you now in the name of Jesus Christ. We loose the ministering spirits for the heirs of salvation to come and minister to us now.

Thank you Lord Jesus for providing us victory over hell, death and the grave, and power over the spirits of sickness and over all the power of the Devil. We ask to live to accomplish all the God has purposed in our lives. Let us he a positive influence for Christ each day.

We break the curses of sickness, infirmity, organ failure, godlessness, nests of demons, doorways for demons, idolatry of possessions and ungodly holidays.

We break the curses listed in Deuteronomy 27 and 28, in the rest of the Bible, from diseases of Egypt, of every sickness and plague in Book of Law, and every curse and disease not written in this Book of the Law that we have the legal right to do so. Lord we ask that you show us any legal rights that Satan has in our lives so that we may repent and break these curses. In the name of Jesus Christ, we pray.

LIST OF DEMONS

We command that the demonic characteristics and spirits leave in the name of Jesus Christ of Nazareth as your name is called along with your family of repressed feelings, Judgemental, impatience, uncleanness, guilt, lack of faith, doubt, unbelief, seat of emotions, hidden spirits, beast nature, bestiality, uncleanness, immorality, unreality, condemnation, failure, despair, idleness, pride, ego, vanity, lying, confusion, overindulgence, selfishness, lust, perversion, greed, lesbian, lawlessness, iniquity, preying, witchcraft, jealousy, dolls with pins, Voodoo, enchantments, serpents in weight, thin veil, poison emotions, demonic reins, retardation, incest, pride, idolatry and

condemnation. Come out spirits of diseases, susceptible to disease, sickness, poor immunity, death, illness, infirmity, poisons, poor elimination, spirits in stomach - liver - kidney - bladder and other organs, hormone imbalance and related spirits. Every family of disease represented by the thirty-nine stripes that Jesus Christ was beaten with must come out of our bodies. DISEASES LISTED IN DEUTERONOMY 28:16-68 BY DR. BILL NULL - Verse 16. cursed in Godly People city, in field, 17. cursed shall be basket, store, 18. cursed shall be children, crops, cattle, sheep, 19. cursed going in, coming out, 20. cursing, confusion and failure in job and work, destruction, perishing, 21. plague, pestilence, sickness, death, 22. consumption (wasting disease), fever, inflammation (blood poisoning), extreme burning (high fever), madness (encephalitis), wars, crop failure, famine, **pestilence**, pursue until perish (harassment), 23. Heaven as brass, no rain (hot sun), earth as iron (hard dry ground), 24. land becomes powder and dust, dust shall cover you (dust storms), eve trouble from dust, asthma, emphysema, heart trouble, 25. defeat and terror before enemies, 26. body shall not be buried, wild beast will eat it, 27. botch (skin ulcers and boils), itch, scurvy, pellagra, beriberi, psoriasis, 28. madness, blindness, astonishment of heart (terror, amazement), tumors, hemorrhoids, 29. groping at noonday, poverty, oppression, robbed, no deliverance, 30. wife in adultery, raped, home stolen, wages stolen or lost, 31. ox slain, ass stolen, sheep taken, none to rescue, 32. son and daughters run away from home, taken into bondage for sex, eye and heart fail waiting for their return, 33. enemies will take your wages and property, oppression and destruction (crushed), 34. madness, helpless, hapless, powerless, 35. boils, ulcers (from sole of feet to top of head), impetigo, eczema, 36. foreign rulers and gods, 37. astonishment, a proverb among nations, laughing stock, ridicule, belittlement, 38. worms will eat grapes, crop failure, job failure, 39. locust will eat crop, crop failure, 40. olive tree shall fail, job failure, 41. sons and daughters go into captivity, drugs, witchcraft, sex, harlot, 42. crop failure, 43. foreign oppression, debt, poverty, 48. hunger, thirst, nakedness, poverty, destruction, 49. defeat by foreign nation, 50. unmerciful enemy, 51. destruction of cattle and crop, robbery of all possessions, 52. siege of cities, destruction of defenses, conquest of land, 53.-57. cannibalism, famine, distress, complete poverty, 59. wonderful plagues, plagues on children, long chronic illness, 60. all diseases of Egypt, 61. every sickness and every plague in Book of Law, 62. destruction of race (genocide), 63. plucked off land (exile), 64. dispersion among the nations (exile), 65. no rest, fearful, terror, blindness, depression, heaviness, 66. fear of death, no assurance, 67. fretting and worry always, constant danger, 68. bondage, slavery.

And finally, everything (every cure and disease) not written in this Book of the Law!

Blessings,

Gene Moody